THE BUDGET BILL

COMMUNICATION FROM THE GOVERNOR

A BILL for all amendments to Chapter 2 of the 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special Session I, which appropriated funds for the 2018-20 Biennium, and to provide a portion of revenues for the two years ending, respectively, on the thirtieth day of June, 2019, and the thirtieth day of June, 2020, submitted by the Governor of Virginia to the presiding officer of each house of the General Assembly of Virginia in accordance with the provisions of § 2.2-1509, Code of Virginia.



Submitted December 18, 2018

By Ralph S. Northam

GOVERNOR OF VIRGINIA

HOUSE DOCUMENT NO. 1

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA RICHMOND 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ENACTING CLAUSE PART 1: OPERATING EXPENSES	
PART I: UPERATING EXPENSES	4
LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT	4
JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT	
EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT	
Executive Offices	
Office of Administration	
Office of Agriculture and Forestry	
Office of Commerce and Trade	
Office of Education	
Office of Finance	
Office of Health and Human Resources	
Office of Natural Resources	
Office of Public Safety and Homeland Security	
Office of Technology	
Office of Transportation	
Office of Veterans and Defense Affairs	
Central Appropriations	
	507
STATE GRANTS TO NONSTATE ENTITIES	514
PART 2: CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES	516
EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT	
Office of Administration	
Office of Agriculture and Forestry	
Office of Education	
Office of Health and Human Resources	
Office of Natural Resources	
Office of Public Safety and Homeland Security	530
Office of Transportation	
Office of Veterans and Defense Affairs	
Central Appropriations	
PART 3: MISCELLANEOUS	551
PART 4: GENERAL PROVISIONS	571
INDEX	634

2019 SESSION

BIENNIUM 2018-20

THE BUDGET BILL

(2019 Session Amendments)

4 A tentative BILL for all amendments to Chapter 2 of the 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special Session I, which appropriated funds for the
2018-20 Biennium, and to provide a portion of revenues for the two years ending, respectively, on the thirtieth day of June, 2019, and
6 the thirtieth day of June, 2020, submitted by the Governor of Virginia to the presiding officer of each house of the General Assembly
7 of Virginia in accordance with the provisions of § 2.2-1509, Code of Virginia.

8 Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:

1

2

3

9 1. That Items 2, 4, 31, 35, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 44, 47, 49, 50, 58, 62, 63, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 84.30, 84.50, 84.60, 84.70, 87, 91, 98, 103, 105, 106, 113, 117, 121, 122, 123, 126, 128, 129, 130, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, 141, 143, 10 11 147, 148, 151, 152, 153, 154, 156, 159, 162, 163, 167, 170, 171, 174, 175, 177, 178, 179, 180, 181, 183, 187, 192, 193, 194, 195, 197, 12 200, 201, 204, 205, 206, 207, 208, 210, 211, 213, 214, 217, 221, 222, 226, 227, 228, 232, 241, 242, 243, 251, 255, 258, 259, 264, 265, 13 266, 273, 275, 279, 282, 283, 287, 289, 290, 291, 292, 293, 295, 297, 299, 302, 303, 305, 306, 307, 308, 309, 310, 311, 312, 316, 317, 14 318, 322, 323, 329, 334, 335, 337, 338, 339, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 346, 347, 348, 351, 355, 357, 358, 359, 362, 363, 364, 366, 367, 15 368, 369, 370, 371, 373, 376, 380, 385, 389, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 398, 399, 400, 403, 406, 407, 414, 416, 418, 419, 420, 422, 423, 16 433, 436, 439, 440, 448, 449, 450, 451, 452, 453, 454, 455, 457, 458, 466, 468, 470, 471, 474, 475, 477, 478, 480, 482, 485, 486, 487, 488, 489, 490, 491, § 2-0, C-16.10, C-20, C-25, C-26, C-27, C-33, C-39, C-43, C-45, C-49, C-50, C-52, C-53, § 3-1.01, § 3-2.03, § 3-17 18 5.03, § 3-5.06, § 3-5.16, § 4-2.01, § 4-6.01, § 4-9.03, § 4-14, of Chapter 2 of the 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special Session I, 19 be hereby amended and reenacted and that the cited chapter be further amended by adding Items 184.10, 347.10, 387.10, C-1.10, C-20 2.10, C-3.10, C-11.10, C-11.20, C-11.60, C-13.10, C-20.10, C-21.50, C-22.50, C-27.10, C-32.50, C-34.10, C-34.20, C-34.30, C-34.50, 21 C-44.10, C-44.20, C-46.10, C-48.10, C-49.10, C-49.20, § 3-5.20, and that the cited chapter be further amended by striking therefrom § 22 3-3.02.

+2. §1. The following are hereby appropriated, for the current biennium, as set forth in succeeding parts, sections and items, for the purposes stated and for the years indicated:

A. The balances of appropriations made by previous acts of the General Assembly which are recorded as unexpended, as of the closeof business on the last day of the previous biennium, on the final records of the State Comptroller; and

27 B. The public taxes and arrears of taxes, as well as moneys derived from all other sources, which shall come into the state treasury

28 prior to the close of business on the last day of the current biennium. The term "moneys" means nontax revenues of all kinds,

including but not limited to fees, licenses, services and contract charges, gifts, grants, and donations, and projected revenues derivedfrom proposed legislation contingent upon General Assembly passage.

31 § 2. Such balances, public taxes, arrears of taxes, and monies derived from all other sources as are not segregated by law to other

32 funds, which funds are defined by the State Comptroller, pursuant to § 2.2-803, Code of Virginia, shall establish and constitute the
 33 general fund of the state treasury.

34 § 3. The appropriations made in this act from the general fund are based upon the following:

35		First Year	Second Year	Total
36	Unreserved Balance, June 30,			
37 38	2018	\$212,160,796 \$1,229,941,000	\$0	\$212,160,796 \$1,229,941,000
39	Additions to Balance	\$22,032,299	-(\$500,000)	-\$21,532,299
40		(\$755,018,914)	\$336,198,952	(\$418,819,962)
41	Official Revenue Estimates	\$20,173,667,750	- \$20,976,167,750	-\$41,149,835,500
42		\$21,050,567,750	\$21,689,017,000	\$42,739,584,750
43	Transfer	\$620,975,902	-\$631,035,083	\$1,252,010,985
44		\$622,070,037	\$630,344,489	\$1,252,414,526
45 46	Total General Fund Resources Available for			
47	Appropriation	\$21,028,836,747	\$21,606,702,833	\$42,635,539,580
48		\$22,147,559,873	\$22,655,560,441	\$44,803,120,314

49 The appropriations made in this act from nongeneral fund revenues are based upon the following:

1		First Year	Second Year	Total
2 3	Balance, June 30, 2018	\$5,314,589,535 \$6, <i>342,196,144</i>	\$0	\$5,314,589,535 \$6, <i>342,196,144</i>
4	Official Revenue Estimates	\$31,061,074,096	\$32,309,426,263	\$63,370,500,359
5		\$31,286,479,018	\$34,945,737,912	\$66,2 <i>32,216,930</i>
6	Lottery Proceeds Fund	\$592,533,186	\$598,393,186	\$1,190,926,372
7		\$632,398,647	\$628,830,501	\$ <i>1,261,229,148</i>
8	Internal Service Fund	\$2,098,949,919	\$2,208,679,991	\$4,307,629,910
9		\$2,099,646,770	\$2,070,414,416	\$4,170,061,186
10	Bond Proceeds	\$1,079,456,936	\$128,566,436	\$1,208,023,372
11		\$1,104,206,936	\$723,070,436	\$1,827,277,372
12 13	Total Nongeneral Fund Revenues Available for			
14	Appropriation	\$40,146,603,672	\$35,245,065,876	\$75,391,669,548
15		\$41,464,927,515	\$38,368,053,265	\$79,832,980,780
16	TOTAL PROJECTED			
17	REVENUES	\$61,175,440,419	\$56,851,768,709	\$118,027,209,128
18		\$63,612,487,388	\$61,023,613,706	\$124,636,101,094

\$ 4. Nongeneral fund revenues which are not otherwise segregated pursuant to this act shall be segregated in accordance with the acts
 respectively establishing them.

21 § 5. The sums herein appropriated are appropriated from the fund sources designated in the respective items of this act.

22 § 6. When used in this act the term:

A. "Current biennium" means the period from the first day of July two thousand eighteen, through the thirtieth day of June twothousand twenty, inclusive.

B. "Previous biennium" means the period from the first day of July two thousand sixteen, through the thirtieth day of June twothousand eighteen, inclusive.

27 C. "Next biennium" means the period from the first day of July two thousand twenty, through the thirtieth day of June two thousand28 twenty-two, inclusive.

D. "State agency" means a court, department, institution, office, board, council or other unit of state government located in the
 legislative, judicial, or executive departments or group of independent agencies, or central appropriations, as shown in this act, and

legislative, judicial, or executive departments or group of independentwhich is designated in this act by title and a three-digit agency code.

32 E. "Nonstate agency" means an organization or entity as defined in § 2.2-1505 C, Code of Virginia.

F. "Authority" sets forth the general enabling statute, either state or federal, for the operation of the program for which appropriationsare shown.

G. "Discretionary" means there is no continuing statutory authority which infers or requires state funding for programs for which the appropriations are shown.

H. "Appropriation" shall include both the funds authorized for expenditure and the corresponding level of full-time equivalentemployment.

39 I. "Sum sufficient" identifies an appropriation for which the Governor is authorized to exceed the amount shown in the Appropriation40 Act if required to carry out the purpose for which the appropriation is made.

J. "Item Details" indicates that, except as provided in § 6 H above, the numbers shown under the columns labeled Item Details are for
 information reference only.

K. Unless otherwise defined, terms used in this act dealing with budgeting, planning and related management actions are defined in theinstructions for preparation of the Executive Budget.

45 § 7. The total appropriations from all sources in this act have been allocated as follows:

46

BIENNIUM 2018-20

1 2 3	OPERATING EXPENSES	General Fund \$42,632,882,857 \$44,744,738,594	Nongeneral Fund \$73,233,365,916 \$76,181,760,854	Total \$115,866,248,773 \$120,926,499,448
4	LEGISLATIVE			
5 6	DEPARTMENT	\$185,087,878	\$7,364,978 \$7,614,978	\$192,452,856 \$192,702,856
7 8	JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT	\$1,000,762,335 \$1,004,312,598	\$67,346,128	\$1,068,108,463 \$1,071,658,726
9 10	EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT	\$41,446,564,951 \$43,554,870,425	\$71,197,742,713 \$74,124,749,693	\$112,664,307,664 \$117,679,620,118
11 12	INDEPENDENT AGENCIES	\$467,693	\$1,960,912,097 \$1,982,050,055	\$1,961,379,790 <i>\$1,982,517,748</i>
13	STATE GRANTS TO			
14	NONSTATE AGENCIES	\$0	\$0	\$0
15	CAPITAL OUTLAY			
16 17	EXPENSES	\$120,000 \$33,571,000	\$1,447,327,372 \$2,220,174,302	\$1,447,447,372 \$2,253,745,302
18 19	TOTAL	\$42,633,002,857 \$44,778,309,594	\$74,680,693,288 \$78,401,935,156	\$117,313,696,145 \$123,180,244,750

20 § 8. This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the "2019 Appropriation Act."

Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$) ITEM 1. First Year Second Year **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020 FY2019 FY2020 PART 1: OPERATING EXPENSES 1 2 LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT 3 § 1-1. GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF VIRGINIA (101) 4 1. Enactment of Laws (78200) 5 a sum sufficient, estimated at..... \$46,981,541 \$46,981,541 6 \$46,981,541 \$46,981,541 Legislative Sessions (78204)..... 7 Fund Sources: General \$46,981,541 \$46,981,541 8 Authority: Article IV, Constitution of Virginia. 9 A. Out of this appropriation, the House of Delegates is funded \$26,282,859 the first year and 10 \$27,291,062 the second year from the general fund. The Senate is funded \$14,888,527 the 11 first year and \$15,799,993 the second year from the general fund. 12 B. Out of this appropriation shall be paid: 13 1. The salaries of the Speaker of the House of Delegates and other members, and personnel 14 employed by each House; the mileage of members, officers and employees, including salaries 15 and mileage of members of legislative committees sitting during recess; public printing and 16 related expenses required by or for the General Assembly; and the incidental expenses of the 17 General Assembly (§§ 30-19.11 through 30-19.20, inclusive, and § 30-19.4, Code of 18 Virginia). The salary of the Speaker of the House of Delegates shall be \$36,321 per year. The 19 salaries of other members of the House of Delegates shall be \$17,640 per year. The salaries of 20 the members of the Senate shall be \$18,000 per year. 21 2. Expenses of the Speaker of the House of Delegates not otherwise reimbursed, \$16,200 each 22 year, to be paid in equal monthly installments during the year. 23 3. In accordance with § 30-19.4, Code of Virginia, and subject to all other conditions of that 24 section except as otherwise provided in the following paragraphs: 25 a. \$101,757 per calendar year for the compensation of one or more secretaries of the Speaker 26 of the House of Delegates. Salary increases shall be governed by the provisions of Item 474 of 27 this act. 28 b. \$152,635 per calendar year for the compensation of one or more legislative assistants of the 29 Speaker of the House of Delegates. Salary increases shall be governed by the provisions of 30 Item 474 of this act. 31 c. \$193,125 per calendar year for the compensation of one or more secretaries or legislative 32 assistants for the Senate majority and minority leadership, as determined by the Majority 33 Leader in consultation with the Chairman of the Senate Committee on Rules. Salary increases 34 shall be governed by the provisions of Item 474 of this act. 35 d.1. \$42,024 per calendar year for the compensation of legislative assistants for each member 36 of the House of Delegates and \$47,277 for the compensation of legislative assistants for each 37 member of the Senate. Salary increases granted shall be governed by the provisions of Item 38 474 of this act. 39 2. In addition, \$15,759 per calendar year for each member of the House of Delegates and 40 \$10,506 per calendar year for each member of the Senate to provide compensation for 41 additional legislative assistant support costs incurred during the legislative session and in the 42 operation of legislative offices within members' districts. Salary increases granted shall be 43 governed by the provisions of Item 474 of this act. e. The per diem for each legislative assistant of each member of the General Assembly, 44 45 including the Speaker of the House of Delegates. Such per diem shall equal the amount authorized per session day for General Assembly members in paragraph B.5, if such 46

	ITEM 1.	Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020	Appropris First Year FY2019
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		legislative assistant maintains a temporary residence during the legislative session or an extension thereof and if the establishment of such temporary residence results from the person's employment by the member. The per diem for a legislative assistant who is domiciled in the City of Richmond or whose domicile is within twenty miles of the Capitol shall equal thirty-five percent of the amount paid to a legislative assistant who maintains a temporary residence during such session. For purposes of this paragraph, (i) a session day shall include such days as shall be established by the Rules Committee of each respective House and (ii) a temporary residence is defined as a residence certified by the member served by the legislative assistant as occupied only by reason of employment during the legislative session or extension thereof. Notwithstanding the provisions of (i) of the preceding sentence, if the House from which the legislative assistant is paid is in adjournment during a regular or special session, he must show to the satisfaction of the Clerk that he worked each day during such adjournment for which such per diem is claimed.	
15 16 17 18 19		f. A mileage allowance as provided in § 2.2-2823 A, Code of Virginia, and as certified by the member. Such mileage allowance shall be paid to a legislative assistant for one round trip between the City of Richmond and such person's home each week during the legislative session or an extension thereof when such person is maintaining a temporary residence.	
20 21		g. Per diem and mileage shall be paid only to a person who is paid compensation pursuant to § 30-19.4, Code of Virginia.	
22 23 24		h. Not more than one person shall be paid per diem or mileage during a single weekly pay period for serving a member as legislative assistant during a legislative session or extension thereof.	
25 26		i. No person, by virtue of concurrently serving more than one member, shall be paid mileage or per diem in excess of the daily rates specified in this Item.	
27 28 29 30 31		j. \$20,885 per calendar year additional allowance for secretaries or legislative assistants to the Majority and Minority Leaders of the House of Delegates and the Senate and for secretaries or legislative assistants to the President Pro Tempore of the Senate , and to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. Salary increases shall be governed by the provisions of Item 474 of this act.	
32 33 34 35		4.a All compensation and reimbursement of expenses to members of the General Assembly and non-General Assembly members for attending a meeting described in paragraphs B.4.c., B.4.d., B.5., and B.6. shall be paid solely as provided pursuant to this item.	
36 37 38 39		b. The provisions of paragraphs B.4.c. and B.4.d. of this item shall not apply during any regular session of the General Assembly or extension thereof, or during any special session of the General Assembly; provided, however, that the provisions of such paragraphs shall apply during any recess of the same.	
40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47		c. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, each General Assembly member shall receive compensation for each day, or portion thereof, of attendance at an official meeting of any joint subcommittee, board, commission, authority, council, compact, or other body that has been created or established by the General Assembly or by resolution of a house of the General Assembly, provided that the member has been appointed to, or designated an official member of, such joint subcommittee, board, commission, authority, council, compact, or other body pursuant to an act of the General Assembly or a resolution of a house of the General Assembly that provides for the appointment or designation.	
48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55		Notwithstanding any other provision of law, each General Assembly member shall also receive compensation for each day, or portion thereof, of attendance at an official meeting of (i) any standing committee or subcommittee thereof of the House of Delegates to which the member has been appointed, (ii) any standing committee or subcommittee thereof or Committee on Rules of the Senate to which the member has been appointed, or (iii) the Joint Rules Committee of the General Assembly. Any official meeting of a subcommittee of any of the committees described in clauses (i), (ii), or (iii) shall also be an official meeting for which the member shall receive compensation.	

		Item D)etails(\$)
ITEM 1.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any General attendance, in the written opinion of the chairman of (a) any		

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any General Assembly member whose
 attendance, in the written opinion of the chairman of (a) any joint subcommittee, board,
 commission, authority, council, or other body that has been created or established in the
 legislative branch of state government by the General Assembly or by resolution of a house of
 the General Assembly; (b) any such standing committee of the House of Delegates or of the
 Senate; (c) the Committee on Rules of the Senate; or (d) the Joint Rules Committee of the
 General Assembly, is required at an official meeting of the body shall also receive
 compensation for each day, or portion thereof, of attendance at such official meeting.

9 Any General Assembly member receiving compensation pursuant to this paragraph for
10 attending an official meeting shall be reimbursed for his or her reasonable and necessary
11 expenses incurred in attending such meeting. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the
12 reimbursement shall be provided by the respective body holding the meeting or by the entity
13 that supports the work of the body.

14 d. Compensation to General Assembly members for attendance at any official meeting 15 described under B.4.c.of this item may be at a rate equal to \$300 for each day, or portion thereof, of attendance. In no case shall a member be paid more than an aggregate of \$300 in 16 compensation for each day, or portion thereof, regardless of whether the member attends more 17 18 than one official meeting during the day. The payment of such compensation shall be subject 19 to the restrictions and limitations set forth in subsections B., C., and G. of § 30-19.12, Code of 20 Virginia. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, compensation to General Assembly 21 members for attendance at such official meetings shall be paid by the offices of the Clerk of 22 the House of Delegates or Clerk of the Senate, as applicable. The body holding the meeting 23 shall as soon as practicable report the member's attendance at any official meeting of such 24 body to the Clerk of the House of Delegates or the Clerk of the Senate, as applicable, in order 25 to facilitate payment of the compensation. Such body shall report the member's attendance in such manner as prescribed by the respective Clerk. 26

5. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, whenever any General Assembly member is required to travel for official attendance as a representative of the General Assembly at any meeting, conference, seminar, workshop, or conclave, which is not conducted by the Commonwealth of Virginia or any of its agencies or instrumentalities, such member shall be entitled to (i) compensation in an amount not to exceed the per day rate set forth in paragraph B.4.d., and (ii) reimbursement for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred. Such compensation and reimbursement for expenses shall be set by the Speaker of the House of Delegates for members of the House of Delegates and by the Senate Committee on Rules for members of the Senate.

27

28

29

30 31

32 33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

6. The provisions of this paragraph shall apply only to non-General Assembly members (hereinafter, "citizen members") of any (i) board, commission, authority, council, or other body created or established in the legislative branch of state government by the General Assembly or by resolution of a house of the General Assembly, or (ii) joint legislative committee or subcommittee.

41 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any citizen member of any body described in this 42 paragraph who is appointed at the state level, or designated an official member of such body, 43 pursuant to an act of the General Assembly or a resolution of a house of the General 44 Assembly that provides for the appointment or designation, shall receive compensation solely 45 for each day, or portion thereof, of attendance at an official meeting of the same. In no event 46 shall any citizen member be paid compensation for attending a meeting of an advisory 47 committee or other advisory body. Subject to any contrary law that provides for a higher 48 amount of compensation to be paid, compensation shall be paid at the rate of \$50 for each 49 day, or portion thereof, of attendance at an official meeting.

50 Such citizen members shall also be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary expenses
51 incurred in attending (i) an official meeting of any body described in this paragraph, or (ii) a
52 meeting of an advisory committee or advisory body of any body described in this paragraph.

53 Compensation and reimbursement of expenses to such citizen members shall be paid by the
54 body holding the meeting (or for meetings of advisory committees or advisory bodies, the
55 body on whose behalf the meeting is being held) or by the entity that supports the work of the
56 body.

		Item Details(\$)			iations(\$)
ITEM 1		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A citizen member, however, who is a full-time employee of its local political subdivisions, including any full-time institution of higher education, shall not be entitled to com and shall be limited to reimbursement for his reasonable an which shall be reimbursed by his employer. If such full-t member is required by his employer to take annual, fam leave or unpaid leave to attend an official meeting under the shall be reimbursed for his reasonable and necessary e holding the meeting, or for meetings of advisory committe on whose behalf the meeting is being held, or by the entit body. For the purposes of this paragraph, reasonable and ne the reimbursement for leave taken by a citizen member wh Commonwealth.	e faculty memb ppensation under ind necessary exp ime employee v ily and persona his paragraph, th xpenses incurre es or advisory b y that supports ecessary expenses	ber of a public r this paragraph penses incurred, who is a citizen l, or other paid nen such person ed by the body bodies, the body the work of the es shall exclude		
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	A citizen member who is also currently a treasurer, sherif of the revenue, or attorney for the Commonwealth by rea county or city voters shall not be entitled to compensation be limited to reimbursement for his reasonable and neces shall be reimbursed within the budget already established be in the same manner as other reasonable and necessar reimbursed. Full-time employees of one of the foregoing not be entitled to compensation under this paragra reimbursement for their reasonable and necessary exper reimbursed within the budget already established by the C same manner as other reasonable and necessary expenses	son of election under this para sary expenses i by the Compense cy expenses of constitutional of aph and shall nses incurred, Compensation B	of the qualified graph and shall incurred, which ation Board and his office are ffices shall also be limited to which shall be coard and in the		

7. Pursuant to § 30-19.13, Code of Virginia, allowances for expenses of members of the
General Assembly during any regular session of the General Assembly or extension
thereof or during any special session of the General Assembly shall be paid in an amount
not to exceed the maximum daily amount permitted by the Internal Revenue Service under
rates established by the U.S. General Services Administration.

25

reimbursed.

- 8. Allowance for office expenses and supplies of members of the General Assembly, in
 the amount of \$1,250 for each month of each calendar year. An additional \$500 for each
 month of each calendar year shall be paid to the Majority and Minority Leaders of the
 House of Delegates and the Senate and to the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, the
 Chairman or Chairs of the Senate Finance Committee, and the Chairman of the House
 Appropriations Committee.
- 37 C. One legislative assistant of a member of the General Assembly regularly employed on a 38 twelve (12) consecutive month salary basis receiving 60 percent or more of the salary 39 allotted pursuant to paragraph B.3.d.1, may, for the purposes of §§ 51.1-124.3 and 51.1-40 152, Code of Virginia, be deemed a "state employee" and as such will be eligible for 41 participation in the Virginia Retirement System, the group life insurance plan, the VRS 42 short and long term disability plans, and the state health insurance plan. Upon approval by 43 the Joint Rules Committee, legislative assistants shall be eligible to participate in the short 44 and long-term disability plans sponsored by the Virginia Retirement System pursuant to 45 Chapter 11 of Title 51.1, Code of Virginia. Such legislative assistants shall not receive 46 sick leave and family and personal leave benefits under this plan. Short-term disability 47 benefits shall be payable from the Legislative Reversion Clearing Account.
- 48 D. Out of this appropriation the Clerk of the House of Delegates shall pay the routine
 49 maintenance and operating expenses of the General Assembly Building as apportioned to
 50 the Senate, House of Delegates, Division of Legislative Services, Joint Legislative Audit
 51 and Review Commission, or other legislative agencies. The funds appropriated to each
 52 agency in the Legislative Department for routine maintenance and operating expenses
 53 during the current biennium shall be transferred to the account established for this
 54 purpose.
- E. An amount of up to \$10,000 per year shall be transferred from Item 34 of this act, to
 reflect equivalent compensation allowances for the Lieutenant Governor as were
 authorized by the 1994 General Assembly. The Lieutenant Governor shall report such

7

			Item I	Details(\$)	Арр		
	ITEM 1.		First Year	Second Year	First Yea		
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019		
1		increases to the Speaker of the House and the Chairman	of the House	Appropriations			

increases to the Speaker of the House and the Chairman of the House Appropriations
 Committee and the Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee.

3 F.1. The Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees shall each 4 appoint four members from their respective committees to a joint subcommittee to review 5 public higher education funding policies and to make recommendations to their respective 6 committees. The objective of the review is to develop policies and formulas to provide the 7 public institutions of higher education with an equitable funding methodology that: (a) 8 recognizes differences in institutional mission; (b) provides incentives for achievement and 9 productivity; (c) recognizes enrollment growth; and (d) establishes funding objectives in areas 10 such as faculty salaries, financial aid, and the appropriate share of educational and general 11 costs that should be borne by resident students. In addition, the review shall include the 12 development of comparable cost data concerning the delivery of higher education through an 13 analysis of the relationship of each public institution to its national peers. The public 14 institutions of higher education and the staff of the State Council of Higher Education for 15 Virginia are directed to provide technical assistance, as required, to the joint subcommittee.

2. The Joint Subcommittee on Higher Education Funding Policies shall conduct an assessment of the adequacy of the current educational and general funding levels for Virginia's public institutions of higher education. The assessment shall be used to develop guidelines against which to measure funding requests for higher education. The assessment shall include, but not be limited to, the following components:

a) Updated student-to-faculty ratios based on current practice or industry norms.

16

17

18

19

20

32

33

34

35

36

- b) Consideration of support staff needs and the changing requirements of support staff due to
 technology and privatization of services previously performed by the institutions.
- c) Costs of instruction, such as equipment, utilities, facilities maintenance, and othernonpersonal services expenses.
- 26 d) Recognition of the individual mission of the institution, student characteristics, location, or
 27 other factors that may influence the costs of instruction.
- 28 e) Benchmarking of the funding guidelines against a group of peer institutions, or other29 appropriate comparator group, to assess the validity of the guidelines.
- f) Means by which measures of institutional performance can be assessed and incorporatedinto funding and policy guidelines for higher education.
 - 3. The Joint Subcommittee on Higher Education Funding Policies shall develop a more precise methodology for determining funding needs at Virginia's public institutions of higher education related to enrollment growth. The methodology should take into consideration that support staff and operations may need to be expanded when enrollment growth reaches certain levels.
- 4. The Joint Subcommittee may seek support from the staff of the Senate Finance and House
 Appropriations Committees, the public institutions of higher education, or other higher
 education or state agency representatives, as requested by the Joint Subcommittee. At its
 discretion, the Joint Subcommittee may contract for consulting services.
- 5. The Joint Subcommittee is hereby continued to provide direction and oversight of higher
 education funding policies. The Joint Subcommittee shall review and articulate policies and
 funding methodologies on: (a) the appropriate share of educational and general costs that
 should be borne by students; (b) student financial aid; (c) undergraduate medical education
 funding; (d) the mix of full-time and part-time faculty; (e) the mix of in-state and out-of-state
 students as it relates to tuition policy; and (f) the viability of statewide articulation agreements
 between four-year and two-year public institutions.
- 48 6. a. It is the objective of the General Assembly that funding for Virginia's public colleges and
 49 universities shall be based primarily on the funding guidelines outlined in the November,
 50 2001 report of the Joint Subcommittee on Higher Education Funding Policies.
- b. Based on the findings and recommendations of its November, 2001 report, the Joint
 Subcommittee shall coordinate with the State Council of Higher Education, the Secretary of

		Item D	Details(\$)
	ITEM 1.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
L	Education, and the Department of Planning and Bu	dget in incorporat	ing the higher

2 education funding guidelines into the development of budget recommendations.

1

3 c. As part of its responsibilities to ensure the fair and equitable distribution and use of 4 public funds among the public institutions of higher education, the State Council of 5 Higher Education shall incorporate the funding guidelines established by the Joint 6 Subcommittee into its budget recommendations to the Governor and the General 7 Assembly.

8 G. The Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees shall each 0 appoint four members from their respective committees to a joint subcommittee to review 10 compensation of state agency heads and cabinet secretaries. The Department of Human 11 Resource Management, the Virginia Retirement System and all other agencies and 12 institutions of the Commonwealth are directed to provide technical assistance, as required, 13 to the joint subcommittee.

- 14 H. 1. The Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees shall 15 each appoint up to five members from their respective committees to a joint subcommittee 16 to provide on-going direction and oversight of Standards of Quality funding cost policies 17 and to make recommendations to their respective committees.
- 18 2. The Joint Subcommittee on Elementary and Secondary Education Funding shall: a) 19 study the Commonwealth's use of the prevailing salary and cost approaches to funding the 20 Standards of Quality, as compared with alternative approaches, such as a fixed point in 21 time salary base that is increased annually by some minimum percentage or funding the 22 national average teacher salary; and b) review the "federal revenue deduct" methodology, including the current use of a cap on the deduction; and c) review the methodology for 23 establishing a consistent funding cap process for all state funded instructional and certain 24 25 support positions.
- 26 3. The school divisions, the staff of the Virginia Department of Education, and staff of the 27 Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission, are directed to provide technical 28 assistance, as required, to the joint subcommittee.
- 29 I.The Speaker of the House shall establish the salary for the Clerk of the House of 30 Delegates.
- J. The Senate Committee on Rules shall establish the salary for the Clerk of the Senate. 31
- 32 K. Notwithstanding the salaries set out in Items 2, 4, 5, and 6, the Committee on Joint 33 Rules may establish salary ranges for such agency heads consistent with the provisions 34 and salary ranges included in § 4-6.01 of this act.
- 35 L. Included within this appropriation is \$15,400 each year from the general fund for 36 expenses related to the Joint Subcommittee on Tax Preferences, pursuant to House Bill 37 777 of the 2012 Session. This includes \$6,622 each year to be allocated by the Clerk of the 38 Senate and \$8,778 each year to be allocated by the Clerk of the House of Delegates.
- 39 M. Included in the appropriations for this item is \$25,000 the first year and \$25,000 the 40 second year from the general fund for the operations of the Virginia Indian 41 Commemorative Commission and the development of a monument commemorating the 42 life, achievements, and legacy of Native Americans in the Commonwealth.
- 43 N.1. The Special Joint Subcommittee to Consult on the Plan to Close State Training 44 Centers shall continue to conduct a review of the assumptions behind the cost and cost 45 savings of implementing the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) settlement agreement 46 including but not limited to a review of the cost of providing care in the state intellectual 47 disability (ID) training centers and in the community and an explanation of the difference 48 in costs.
- 49 2. The Joint Subcommittee to Consult on the Plan to Close State Training Centers, in 50 collaboration with the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, 51 shall develop and evaluate a plan for consideration of operating a smaller state training 52 center to serve those individuals for which care in a training center is appropriate. The 53 Joint Subcommittee shall evaluate and determine the operating costs, capital costs, and

	Item I	Item Details(\$)	
ITEM 1.	First Year	Second Year	First Year
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019

consider all other relevant factors in developing the plan for consideration.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 9

14

15

16

17

18

19 20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

O. The Joint Commission on Transportation Accountability shall regularly review, and provide oversight of the usage of funding generated pursuant to the provisions of House Bill 2313, 2013 Session of the General Assembly. To this end, by November 15 the Secretary of Transportation, the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority and the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission shall each prepare a report on the uses of the Intercity Passenger Rail Operating and Capital Funds, the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority Fund, and the Hampton Roads Transportation Fund, respectively, each year to be presented to the Joint Commission on Transportation Accountability.

P.1. There is hereby created in the legislative branch the Virginia World War I and World
War II Commemoration Commission. The Commission shall plan, develop, and carry out
programs and activities appropriate to commemorate the 100th anniversary of World War I
and the 75th anniversary of World War II.

2. The Commission shall have a total membership of ten members consisting of six legislative members, two nonlegislative citizen members, and two ex officio members. Members shall be appointed as follows: four members of the House of Delegates to be appointed by the Speaker of the House of Delegates in accordance with the principles of proportional representation contained in the Rules of the House of Delegates; two members of the Senate of Virginia to be appointed by the Senate Committee on Rules, one nonlegislative citizen member who shall be a World War II historian, to be appointed by the Speaker of the House of Delegates; one nonlegislative citizen member who shall be a World War II veteran or a family member of a World War II veteran, to be appointed by the Senate Committee on Rules; and two ex-officio members, to include the Commissioner of the Virginia Department of Veterans Services or his designee and the Executive Director of the Virginia War Memorial. The nonlegislative and ex-officio members shall be non-voting members. The nonlegislative citizen members shall be citizens of the Commonwealth, unless otherwise approved in writing by the chairman of the committee and the respective Clerk, and shall only be reimbursed for travel originating and ending within the Commonwealth of Virginia for the purpose of attending meetings. The voting members of the Commission shall elect a Chairman and Vice-Chairman from among its membership, who shall be members of the Virginia General Assembly.

31 3. Legislative members of the Commission and Advisory Council shall receive such 32 compensation as provided in § 30-19.12, Code of Virginia, and nonlegislative citizen 33 members of the Commission shall receive such compensation for the performance of their 34 duties as provided in § 2.2-2813. All members shall be reimbursed for all reasonable and 35 necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as provided in §§ 2.2-2813 and 2.2-2825. Compensation to members of the General Assembly for attendance at official 36 37 meetings of the Commission shall be paid by the offices of the Clerk of the House of 38 Delegates or Clerk of the Senate, as applicable. All other compensation and expenses shall be paid from existing appropriations to the Commission. 39

4. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special nonreverting fund to be known as the Virginia World War I and World War II Commemoration Commission Fund, hereafter referred to as the "Fund." The Fund shall be established on the books of the Comptroller and shall consist of gifts, grants, donations, bequests, or other funds from any source as may be received by the Commission for its work. Moneys shall be paid into the state treasury and credited to the Fund. Interest earned on moneys in the Fund shall remain in the Fund and be credited to it. Any moneys remaining in the Fund, including interest thereon, at the end of each fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund but shall remain in the Fund. Moneys in the Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of enabling the Commission to perform its duties. Expenditures and disbursements from the Fund shall be made by the State Treasurer on warrants issued by the Comptroller upon written request of the chairman of the Commission.

5. The Virginia Department of Veterans Services and the Virginia War Memorial shall
provide technical assistance to the Commission. The Division of Legislative Services shall act
as the fiscal agent for the Commission. Administrative staff support shall be provided by the
Office of the Clerk of the House of Delegates. Legal, research, policy analysis, and other
services as requested by the Commission shall be provided by the Division of Legislative
Services, and by other state agencies and institutions as may be requested by the Commission.

		Item D	etails(\$)
ITEM 1.		First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020
	The Director of the Division of Legislative Services is author	ized to fund th	e operations of

The Director of the Division of Legislative Services is authorized to fund the operations of the Virginia World War I and World War II Commemoration Commission from the appropriations to the Division and to provide full reimbursement to the Division from the unexpended balances of such Commission, once allotted.

6. The Commission may appoint and establish an Advisory Council composed of nonlegislative citizens at large and public officials who have knowledge of World War I and World War II and their respective anniversary commemorations, to serve in a consultative capacity to assist the Commission in its work. Nonlegislative citizen members of the Advisory Council shall serve without compensation but may be reimbursed for travel expenses to attend a meeting of the Advisory Council within the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Advisory Council shall have a Chairman and Vice-Chairman, one of whom shall be a member of the House of Delegates, to be appointed by the Speaker of the House of Delegates, and one of whom shall be a member of the Senate, to be appointed by the Senate Committee on Rules.

Q.1. The Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees shall each appoint up to five members from their respective committees to a Joint Subcommittee to provide recommendations for reforming the Virginia Preschool Initiative. The goals and objectives of the Joint Subcommittee will be to consider increasing accountability, flexibility, innovation, clarification of the state's role and policy relating to providing a preschool for economically disadvantaged children, and to further develop the facilitation of partnerships between school divisions and private providers for the Virginia Preschool Initiative. The Subcommittee will also review and consider possible recommendations regarding the development of a competency-based professional development framework for early childhood teachers in public schools and early learning practitioners in private early learning settings; further enhancements to the Quality Ratings System; other recommendations and options included in the 2017 JLARC report on Improving Virginia's Early Childhood Development Programs; opportunities for the state to leverage improvements in federal Head Start programs; an integrated early childhood fund to pool and leverage funds for maximum performance and efficiency; and mandating a minimum percentage of VPI slots be in private settings.

31 2. The staff of the elementary and secondary Education subcommittees for the House 32 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the Department of Education will 33 help with facilitating the scope of work to be completed by the Joint Subcommittee. The 34 Virginia Early Childhood Foundation will provide support and resources to the members 35 and staff of the Joint Subcommittee. Other stakeholders, such as those from the Virginia 36 Department of Social Services, the Virginia Community College System, local school 37 divisions, private and faith-based child day-care providers, accredited organizations, 38 education associations and businesses may provide additional information if requested. A 39 report of any findings and recommendations shall be submitted to the Chairmen of House 40 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by October 1, 2018.

41 R. 1.a. The Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees shall 42 each appoint four members from their respective committees to a Joint Subcommittee on 43 the Future Competitiveness of Virginia Higher Education to (a) review ways to maintain 44 and improve the quality of higher education, while providing for broad access and 45 affordability; (b) examine the impact of financial, demographic, and competitive changes 46 on the sustainability of individual institutions and the system as a whole; (c) identify best 47 practices to make the system more efficient, including shared services, institutional 48 flexibility, and easily accessible academic pathways; (d) evaluate the use of distance 49 education and online instruction across the Commonwealth and appropriate business 50 models for such programs; (e) review current need-based financial aid programs and 51 alternative models to best provide for student affordability and completion; (f) review the 52 recommendations of the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission on the study of 53 the cost efficiency of higher education institutions and make recommendations to their 54 respective committees on the implementation of those recommendations; (g) study the 55 effectiveness and value of transfer students; (h) evaluate the effectiveness of dual 56 enrollment in reducing the cost of higher education; and (i) study the effectiveness of 57 preparing teachers to enter the K-12 system.

58

1

2 3

4

5

6

7 8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

b. The Subcommittee will also conduct a focused review of access, affordability, quality,

		Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 1.	First	Year	Second Year		
	FY2	2019	FY2020		
1	and autonomy issues related to Virginia's public higher education	system.	As part of that		

review the Subcommittee will explore ways to (a) improve the quality of higher education; (b) 2 3 review the autonomy and flexibility granted to Virginia's public higher education institutions, 4 including the history of restructuring and the expansion of autonomy; (c) examine access and 5 affordability in higher education, including the cost of education and need-based financial aid 6 programs; (d) review the impact of financial, demographic, and competitive changes on the 7 sustainability of Virginia's public higher education system; and (e) identify any practices that 8 would result in more efficient outcomes regarding cost and completion, including dual 9 enrollment and online programs.

2. As the Joint Subcommittee conducts its analysis, it shall consider the mission, vision, goals
 and strategies outlined in the statewide strategic plan for higher education developed and
 approved by the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, and endorsed by the General
 Assembly in House Joint Resolution 555 of the 2015 Session of the General Assembly.

14 3. As part of its deliberations, the Joint Subcommittee shall review alternative tuition and fee15 structures and programs that could result in lower costs to in-state undergraduate students.

16

17

18

19

20

21

24

25

26

27

28

4. The Joint Subcommittee may seek support and technical assistance from the staff of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, the public institutions of higher education, the staff of the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission, and the staff of the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia. Other state agency or higher education representatives shall provide support upon request. At its discretion, the Joint Subcommittee may contract for consulting services.

- 5. The members of the Joint Subcommittee shall provide a final report to their respectivecommittees at the conclusion of the review.
 - S. The Joint Subcommittee to Evaluate Tax Preferences established pursuant to Chapter 777, 2012 Session of the General Assembly, is hereby directed, as part of its work to undertake a review of the Neighborhood Assistance Act tax credit program and to report to the General Assembly on any proposed changes to the program structure, eligibility requirements, distribution of funding or overall funding amounts made available for the credit.

T.1. The Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees shall each appoint four members from their respective committees to a Joint Subcommittee for Health and Human Resources Oversight to respond to federal health care changes, provide ongoing oversight of the Medicaid and children's health insurance programs and oversight of Health and Human Resources agencies. The members of the Joint Subcommittee shall elect a chairman and vice chairman annually.

- 35 2.a. The Joint Subcommittee shall monitor, evaluate and respond to federal legislation that 36 repeals, amends or replaces the Affordable Care Act (ACA), Medicaid (Title XIX of the 37 Social Security Act), the Children's Health Insurance Program (Title XXI of the Social 38 Security Act) or any proposals to block grant or change the method by which these programs 39 are funded. The joint subcommittee shall recommend actions to be taken by the General 40 Assembly to address the impact of any such federal legislation that would affect the state budget and health care coverage now available to Virginians. Furthermore, the subcommittee 41 shall evaluate federal changes for opportunities to improve Virginia's Medicaid and other 42 43 health insurance programs.
- 44 b. The Joint Subcommittee shall establish a workgroup to monitor the implementation of 45 Medicaid coverage of newly eligible individuals pursuant to the Patient Protection and 46 Affordable Care Act to ensure (i) the efficient and cost effective use of resources; (ii) 47 innovative and cost effective approaches to Medicaid eligibility screening and renewals, 48 provider accountability, administrative operations, and fraud prevention; and (iii) progress in 49 implementing the Training, Education, Employment and Opportunity Program (TEEOP); (iv) 50 uniform and effective screening for Medicaid eligibility in local and regional jails; and (v) use 51 of private vendors to facilitate successful implementation when cost effective. In addition, the 52 workgroup shall examine the role of the current Certificate of Need program, including a 53 review of past and current studies of the program, in ensuring access to care.
- 54 3. The Joint Subcommittee shall provide ongoing oversight of initiatives and operations of the
 55 Health and Human Resources agencies. The joint subcommittee shall examine progress made

ľ	EM 1.	Item E First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appro First Year FY2019
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	in implementing changes to: (i) Med long-term supports and services (the C changes to the Medallion program; (ii) waivers serving individuals with deve System; (iv) improve eligibility, enro CHIP programs; (v) the organizational the Department of Medical Assistance service to a managed care delivery s services through the Comprehensive S changes across the Health and Human use of resources across the Secretariat.	ommonwealth Coordinated Care Plu Medicaid waiver programs includin lopmental disabilities; (iii) the Medi llment and renewal processes in the structure and realignment of staff a Services resulting from the change ystem; (vi) improve the cost effect ervices Act; and (vii) initiatives and	s program) and g the Medicaid caid Enterprise Medicaid and nd resources of from a fee-for- ive delivery of programmatic	
12 13 14 15	4. The Joint Subcommittee may seek House Appropriations and Senate Fin Audit and Review Commission, and Services. Other state agency staff sha	ance Committees, the staff of the Jo the staff of the Department of Medi	oint Legislative	
16 17 18	5.a. The staff of the House Appropri facilitate the scope of work to be con Human Resources Oversight.			
19 20 21 22 23	b. The staff of the Health and Human F Subcommittees for the House Appro facilitate a workgroup, in cooperation Virginia Department of Education (VI Department of Social Services, and the	ppriations and Senate Finance Con with the Office of Children's Servi DOE), the Department of Planning a	mmittees shall ces (OCS), the ind Budget, the	

- Department of Social Services, and the Department of Juvenile Justice, to examine the 23 24 options and determine the actions necessary to better manage the quality and costs of 25 private day educational programs currently funded through the Children's Services Act 26 (CSA). Other stakeholders, such as those from local governments, school superintendents 27 or their designees, CSA Community Policy and Management Teams and Family 28 Assessment and Planning Teams, special education administrators, private providers, parents of special education students and others may provide additional information to the 29 30 workgroup as requested.
- 31 c. In examining the options, the workgroup shall consider: (i) amending the CSA to 32 transfer the state pool funding for students with disabilities in private day educational 33 programs to the VDOE; (ii) the identification and collection of data on an array of 34 measures to assess the efficacy of private special education day school placements; (iii) 35 the identification of the resources necessary in order to transition students in private day 36 school settings to a less restrictive environment; (iv) the role of Local Education Agencies 37 in determining placements and overseeing the quality, cost and outcome of services for 38 students with disabilities in private day educational programs; and (v) an assessment of the 39 Individualized Education Program (IEP) process as compared to federal requirements, 40 including how that process relates to the role of CSA Family Assessment and Planning 41 Team (FAPT) in determining services for students with disabilities whose IEP requires 42 private day educational placement.
- d. The workgroup shall examine: (i) funding impacts; (ii) necessary statutory, regulatory
 or budgetary changes; and (iii) other relevant actions necessary to implement any
 recommended actions.
- 46 U.1. The Co-Chairs of the Senate Finance Committee shall appoint five members from
 47 their Committee and the Chairman of the House Appropriations Committee shall appoint
 48 four members from his Committee and two members of the House Finance Committee to
 49 a Joint Subcommittee on Local Government Fiscal Stress. The Joint Subcommittee shall
 50 elect a chairman and vice-chairman from among its membership.
- 51
 2. The goals and objectives of the Joint Subcommittee will be to review (i) savings
 52
 53
 54
 55
 55
 56
 56
 57
 57
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 20
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 20
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 28
 29
 20
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 20
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 24
 25
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 29
 20
 20
 21
 21
 22
 23
 24
 24
 24
 25
 26
 27
 27
 28
 29
 29
 20
 20
 21
 21
 22
 23
 24
 24
 24
 25
 26
 27
 28
 29
 20
 21
 21
 22
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24
 24

	ITEM 1.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		3. Administrative staff support shall be provided by the Of Senate. The Joint Subcommittee may seek support and tee the Division of Legislative Services, House Appropriation and the Commission on Local Government. All agencies of assistance to the Joint Subcommittee for this study, upon r	chnical assistance as and Senate Fin of the Commonwe	e from the staff of ance Committees,		
6 7 8 9		4. No recommendation of the Joint Subcommittee shall be the recommendation. The Joint Subcommittee shall sub Automated Systems an executive summary of its findings the first day of the next Regular Session of the General As	mit to the Divisi and recommenda	on of Legislative tions no later than		
10 11 12		V. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Senate Joint Subcommittee Studying Mental Health Services i Century shall continue its work until December 1, 201	in the Commony			
13 14 15 16 17 18 19		W. Pursuant to projects authorized and funded in paragrap of the Acts of Assembly of 2014, operations of the temporarily move to and operate from the Pocahontas B streets: 9th Street to the west, 10th Street to the east, Bank to the south in the City of Richmond. Space occupied ten shall be under the control of the Legislative Support Cor routine maintenance and operations of the temporary space	Virginia Genera Building bounded Street to the nort apporarily by the 0 mmission (§ 30-3	Al Assembly will by the following h, and Main Street General Assembly (4.1). Funding for		
20 21 22 23 24		Senate Committee on Rules or the Joint Rules Com Commission, Committee, or other deliberative body in the	. Any nonlegislative citizen member appointed by either the Speaker of the House, the enate Committee on Rules or the Joint Rules Committee to any Authority, Board, ommission, Committee, or other deliberative body in the Commonwealth shall serve at the easure of such appointing authority. Any such member may be relieved of his appointment any time, with or without cause.			
25		Total for General Assembly of Virginia			\$46,981,541	\$46,981,541
26 27		General Fund Positions Position Level	224.00 224.00	224.00 224.00		
28		Fund Sources: General	\$46,981,541	\$46,981,541		
29		§ 1-2. AUDITOR OF PUB	BLIC ACCOUNT	TS (133)		
30 31	2.	Legislative Evaluation and Review (78300)			\$13,775,147	\$13,775,147 \$14,025,147
31 32 33		Financial and Compliance Audits (78301)	\$13,775,147	\$13,775,147 \$14,025,147		\$14,025,147
34 35 36		Fund Sources: General Special	\$12,221,188 \$1,553,959	\$12,221,188 \$1,553,959 \$ <i>1,803,959</i>		
37 38		Authority: Article IV, Section 18, Constitution of Virgin Virginia.	nia; Title 30, Ch	apter 14, Code of		
39 40 41		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual salary \$184,319 from July 1, 2018 to June 24, 2019 and \$184,3 2020.				
42 43 44 45 46 47 48		B. On or before November 1 of each year, the Auditor of General Assembly the certified tax revenues collected in pursuant to § 2.2-1829, Code of Virginia. The Auditor s report on (i) the 15 percent limitation and the amount th Stabilization Fund and (ii) any amounts necessary for depo- the mandatory deposit requirement of Article X, Section 8 well as the additional deposit requirement of § 2.2-1829,	the most recently hall, at the same hat could be paid posit into the Fund 8 of the Constitut	ended fiscal year time, provide his into the Revenue in order to satisfy ion of Virginia as		
49 50 51		C. The specifications of the Auditor of Public Accounts f accountants auditing localities shall include requirement sheriff. These requirements shall include that the independent	its for any mone	y received by the		

	ITEM 2.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		submit a letter to the Auditor of Public Accounts an whether the sheriff has maintained a proper system o accordance with the Code of Virginia. This letter sh locality's audit report.	f internal control	s and records in		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11		D.1. Each locality establishing a utility or enacting a sy a local stormwater management program pursuant to § provide to the Auditor of Public Accounts by October 1 by the Auditor, a report as to each program funded by th and sediment reductions for each of these programs. For generating more than \$200,000 in annual fees, such rep specific actions to remediate nutrient and sediment red	15.2-2114, Code of each year, in a hese fees and the of or any specific stroport shall include	of Virginia, shall format specified expected nutrient ormwater outfall identification of		
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		2. The Auditor of Public Accounts shall include in Counties, Cities, and Towns regulations for all local go enacting a system of service charges to support a local pursuant to § 15.2-2114, Code of Virginia, a requiren local government is in compliance with the provisi Virginia. Any such adjustment to the Specifications for Towns regulations shall be exempt from the Administ required for all audits completed after July 1, 2014.	vernments establi stormwater mana nent to ensure that ons of § 15.2-21 or Audits of Court	shing a utility or gement program at each impacted 14 A., Code of nties, Cities, and		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		E. The Auditor of Public Accounts' Specifications fo Towns and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, independent certified public accountants auditing locali shall include requirements related to the communi deficiencies or financial matters, commonly referred requirements shall include that any such communic certified public accountants related to other internal com matters that merit the attention of management and the the form of official, written communication.	Boards, and Com ities and local gov cation of other to as a managem ation issued by ntrol deficiencies	missions, for the vernment entities, internal control ent letter. These the independent or other financial		
29 30		Total for Auditor of Public Accounts			\$13,775,147	\$13,775,147 \$14,025,147
31 32 33		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	120.00 16.00 136.00	120.00 16.00 136.00		
34 35 36		Fund Sources: General Special	\$12,221,188 \$1,553,959	\$12,221,188 \$1,553,959 <i>\$1,803,959</i>		
37		§ 1-3. COMMISSION ON THE VIRGINIA ALO	COHOL SAFET	Y ACTION PRO	GRAM (413)	
38 39 40	3.	Ground Transportation System Safety Services (60500) Ground Transportation Safety Promotion (60503)	\$1,540,045	\$1,540,045	\$1,540,045	\$1,540,045
41		Fund Sources: Special	\$1,540,045	\$1,540,045		
42		Authority: §§ 18.2-271.1 and 18.2-271.2, Code of Virgin	nia.			
43 44 45		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual \$121,460 from July 1, 2018 to June 24, 2019 and \$121,42020.				
46 47 48		B. Notwithstanding the salaries listed in paragraph A. or Virginia Alcohol Safety Action Program may establish Director of the program.				
49 50		Total for Commission on the Virginia Alcohol Safety Action Program			\$1,540,045	\$1,540,045
51		Nongeneral Fund Positions	11.50	11.50		

				Details(\$)	Appropri	
	ITEM 3.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		Position Level	11.50	11.50		
2		Fund Sources: Special	\$1,540,045	\$1,540,045		
3		§ 1-4. DIVISION OF C.	APITOL POLICE	E (961)		
4 5	4.	Administrative and Support Services (39900) Security Services (39923)	\$10,831,214	\$10,380,214	\$10,831,214	\$10,380,214
6		Fund Sources: General	\$10,831,214	\$10,380,214		
7		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 3.1, Code of Virginia.				
8 9 10		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual sale Police, \$120,000 from July 1, $\frac{2016}{2017}$ to June 30, $\frac{20}{2017}$ 2018 to June 30, $\frac{2018}{2019}$ 2019.				
11		Total for Division of Capitol Police			\$10,831,214	\$10,380,214
12 13		General Fund Positions Position Level	108.00 108.00	108.00 108.00		
14		Fund Sources: General	\$10,831,214	\$10,380,214		
15		§ 1-5. DIVISION OF LEGISLATIV	VE AUTOMATED	O SYSTEMS (109)		
16 17	5.	Information Technology Development and Operations (82000)			\$5,565,665	\$5,565,665
18		Computer Operations Services (82001)	\$5,565,665	\$5,565,665	<i>43,505,005</i>	\$5,505,005
19 20		Fund Sources: General Special	\$5,277,907 \$287,758	\$5,277,907 \$287,758		
21		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 3.2, Code of Virginia.				
22 23 24		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual Legislative Automated Systems, \$164,800 from July 1, 5 from June 25, 2019 to June 30, 2020.				
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35		B. Included in this appropriation is funding sufficient for legislative bill tracking system. The expenditure of these of the Division of Legislative Automated Systems develor and submitting the plan to the Committee on Joint Rules a replacement legislative bill tracking system shall be Virginia Public Procurement Act (§ 2.2-4300 et. seq.) of review provisions of § 2.2-2012. The plan may propose bill tracking system using (i) a request for information jointly or in any combination thereof, (ii) such other indu for procuring a management information system, or (iii) comports with the best interests of the Commonwealth in	e funds is contingen pping a detailed imp for its approval. Ar exempt from the the Code of Virgini to procure a replac or a request for pu stry recognized pro- such other procure	nt on the Director plementation plan ny procurement of provisions of the a and the contract cement legislative roposal, singly or ocurement method ment method that		
36		Total for Division of Legislative Automated Systems.			\$5,565,665	\$5,565,665
37 38		General Fund Positions Position Level	19.00 19.00	19.00 19.00		
39 40		Fund Sources: General Special	\$5,277,907 \$287,758	\$5,277,907 \$287,758		
41		§ 1-6. DIVISION OF LEGI	SLATIVE SERVI	CES (107)		
42	6.	Legislative Research and Analysis (78400)		× - /	\$6,884,115	\$6,884,115
43		Bill Drafting and Preparation (78401)	\$6,884,115	\$6,884,115		
44 45		Fund Sources: General Special	\$6,864,081 \$20,034	\$6,864,081 \$20,034		

	ITEM 6.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 2.2, Code of Virginia.				
2 3 4		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual sa Legislative Services, \$157,374 from July 1, 2016, to Ju June 25, 2017, to June 30, 2018.				
5 6		B. Notwithstanding the salary set out in paragraph A. of Rules may establish a salary range for the Director, Divis				
7 8 9 10		C. The Division of Legislative Services shall continue to include payroll processing, accounting, and travel expen Chesapeake Bay Commission, the Joint Commission Commission on Youth, and the Virginia State Crim	nse processing at n on Health Ca	no charge to the		
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20		D. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year from support the work of the Senate Joint Resolution 47 (20) Mental Health Services in the Commonwealth in the 21 used to contract for expertise and assistance in its work system of service delivery or other related topics as re Subcommittee. Any contractor hired shall evaluate alternative delivery systems to provide the necessary in subcommittee in determining the most appropriate delive current delivery system, that ensures access, quality, con remaining balance at year-end shall be carried forward to	14) Joint Subcon lst Century. The to evaluate the co- equired by the w the current sys nformation and a ry system, or mo sistency, and acc	nmittee to Study funding may be ommunity-based ork of the Joint tem along with assistance to the difications to the countability. Any		
21		Total for Division of Legislative Services			\$6,884,115	\$6,884,115
22 23		General Fund Positions Position Level	56.00 56.00	56.00 56.00		
24 25		Fund Sources: General Special	\$6,864,081 \$20,034	\$6,864,081 \$20,034		
26		Capitol Square Preserv	vation Council (8	820)		
27 28	7.	Architectural and Antiquity Research Planning and Coordination (74800)			\$221,297	\$221,297
29		Architectural Research (74801)	\$221,297	\$221,297		
30		Fund Sources: General	\$221,297	\$221,297		
31		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.				
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39		Any net proceeds from the public sale or auction of the s Assembly Building replacement project, less actual dire the House of Delegates, the Clerk of the Senate, and the shall be deposited into a special non-reverting fund cr Comptroller. The Capitol Square Preservation Council Virginia Capitol Preservation Foundation after enterin funds to support the restoration and ongoing preservation Square.	ect costs incurred Department of C reated on the bo shall transfer th g into an agreen	by the Clerk of General Services, oks of the State ese funds to the nent to use such		
40		Total for Capitol Square Preservation Council			\$221,297	\$221,297
41 42		General Fund Positions Position Level	2.00 2.00	2.00 2.00		
43		Fund Sources: General	\$221,297	\$221,297		
44		Virginia Disability (Commission (837	7)		
45	8.	Social Services Research, Planning, and			***	***
46 47		Coordination (45000) Social Services Coordination (45001)	\$25,647	\$25,647	\$25,647	\$25,647

			Item I	Details(\$)	Appropri	ations(\$)
	ITEM 8.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		Fund Sources: General	\$25,647	\$25,647		1 1 2 0 2 0
2		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 35, Code of Virginia.				
3		Total for Virginia Disability Commission			\$25,647	\$25,647
4		Fund Sources: General	\$25,647	\$25,647		
5		Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. 1	Memorial Commiss	sion (845)		
6	9.	Human Relations Management (14600)			\$50,763	\$50,763
7		Human Relations Management (14601)	\$50,763	\$50,763	<i></i>	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++
8		Fund Sources: General	\$50,763	\$50,763		
9		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 27, Code of Virginia.				
10 11		Total for Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Memorial Commission			\$50,763	\$50,763
12		Fund Sources: General	\$50,763	\$50,763		
13		Joint Commission on Tech	nology and Science	e (847)		
14	10.	Technology Research, Planning, and Coordination				
15 16		(53700) Technology Research (53701)	\$222,993	\$222,993	\$222,993	\$222,993
17		Fund Sources: General	\$222,993	\$222,993		
18		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 11, Code of Virginia.				
19		Total for Joint Commission on Technology and				
20		Science			\$222,993	\$222,993
21 22		General Fund Positions Position Level	2.00 2.00	2.00 2.00		
23		Fund Sources: General	\$222,993	\$222,993		
24		Commissioners for the Promotion of Uniform	nity of Legislation i	n the United State	es (145)	
25	11.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100)			\$87,520	\$87,520
26		Interstate Affairs (70103)	\$87,520	\$87,520		
27		Fund Sources: General	\$87,520	\$87,520		
28		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.				
29 30		Total for Commissioners for the Promotion of Uniformity of Legislation in the United States			\$87,520	\$87,520
31		Fund Sources: General	\$87,520	\$87,520		
32		State Water Con	mmission (971)			
33	12.	Environmental Policy and Program Development			¢10.045	¢10.045
34 35 36		(51600) Environmental Policy and Program Development (51601)	\$10,245	\$10,245	\$10,245	\$10,245
37		Fund Sources: General	\$10,245	\$10,245		
38		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 24, Code of Virginia.				
39		Total for State Water Commission			\$10,245	\$10,245
40		Fund Sources: General	\$10,245	\$10,245		

	ITEM 12.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Virginia Coal and Ener	gy Commission (1	118)		
2 3 4	13.	Resource Management Research, Planning, and Coordination (50700) Energy Conservation Advisory Services (50703)	\$21,645	\$21,645	\$21,645	\$21,645
5		Fund Sources: General	\$21,645	\$21,645		
6		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 25, Code of Virginia.				
7		Total for Virginia Coal and Energy Commission			\$21,645	\$21,645
8		Fund Sources: General	\$21,645	\$21,645		
9		Virginia Code Co	mmission (108)			
10 11	14.	Enactment of Laws (78200) Code Modernization (78201)	\$93,681	\$93,681	\$93,681	\$93,681
12 13		Fund Sources: General Special	\$69,586 \$24,095	\$69,586 \$24,095		
14		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.				
15 16 17 18 19 20 21		The Code Commission shall not authorize, or undertake, of the Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended unless there is in a general Appropriation Act addressing the fiscal Commission is authorized to develop a proposal, for re Rules, to re-number the Code of Virginia, including the and a detailed estimate of any potential fiscal imp restructuring.	a specific approprimp impact of such wiew by the Com proposed re-numb	riation included an action. The mittee on Joint pering structure		
22		Total for Virginia Code Commission			\$93,681	\$93,681
23 24		Fund Sources: General Special	\$69,586 \$24,095	\$69,586 \$24,095		
25		Virginia Freedom of Informat	ion Advisory Cou	uncil (834)		
26 27	15.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100) Public Information Services (70109)	\$208,260	\$208,260	\$208,260	\$208,260
28		Fund Sources: General	\$208,260	\$208,260		
29		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.				
30 31		Total for Virginia Freedom of Information Advisory Council			\$208,260	\$208,260
32 33		General Fund Positions Position Level	1.50 1.50	1.50 1.50		
34		Fund Sources: General	\$208,260	\$208,260		
35		Virginia Housing C	ommission (840)			
36 37	16.	Housing Assistance Services (45800) Housing Research and Planning (45803)	\$21,265	\$21,265	\$21,265	\$21,265
38		Fund Sources: General	\$21,265	\$21,265		
39		Authority: § 30-257, Code of Virginia.				
40		Total for Virginia Housing Commission			\$21,265	\$21,265
41		Fund Sources: General	\$21,265	\$21,265		

	ITEM 16.		Item D First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Brown v. Board of Education S	Scholarship Comm	ittee (858)		
2 3	17.	Human Relations Management (14600) Human Relations Management (14601)	\$25,339	\$25,339	\$25,339	\$25,339
4		Fund Sources: General	\$25,339	\$25,339		
5		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 34.1, Code of Virginia.				
6 7 8 9 10		Pursuant to § 30-231.5, Code of Virginia, there is prov general fund to support the operations of the Brown v. Awards Committee. This operational support shall be incurred by the members of the committee and may be used necessary to accomplish the purposes for which it was creat	Board of Education used to provide for d for such other serve	on Scholarship or the expenses		
11 12		Total for Brown v. Board of Education Scholarship Committee			\$25,339	\$25,339
13		Fund Sources: General	\$25,339	\$25,339		
14		Commission on Unemployn	nent Compensation	n (860)		
15	18.	Consumer Affairs Services (55000)	Ĩ		\$6,072	\$6,072
16		Consumer Assistance (55002)	\$6,072	\$6,072		
17		Fund Sources: General	\$6,072	\$6,072		
18		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 33, Code of Virginia.				
19 20		Total for Commission on Unemployment Compensation			\$6,072	\$6,072
21		Fund Sources: General	\$6,072	\$6,072		
22		Small Business Co	ommission (862)			
23 24 25	19.	Economic Development Services (53400) Economic Development Research, Planning, and Coordination (53401)	\$15,261	\$15,261	\$15,261	\$15,261
26		Fund Sources: General	\$15,261	\$15,261		
27		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia.				
28		Total for Small Business Commission			\$15,261	\$15,261
29		Fund Sources: General	\$15,261	\$15,261		
30		Commission on Electric U	J tility Regulation (863)		
31 32 33	20.	Resource Management Research, Planning, and Coordination (50700) Resource Management Policy and Program			\$10,015	\$10,015
33 34		Development (50701)	\$10,015	\$10,015		
35		Fund Sources: General	\$10,015	\$10,015		
36		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 31, Code of Virginia.				
37		Total for Commission on Electric Utility Regulation			\$10,015	\$10,015
38		Fund Sources: General	\$10,015	\$10,015		
39		Manufacturing Developn	nent Commission (864)		
40	21.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$12,158	\$12,158

	ITEM 21.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Economic Development Research, Planning, and Coordination (53401)	\$12,158	\$12,158		
3		Fund Sources: General	\$12,158	\$12,158		
4		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 41, Code of Virginia.				
5 6		Total for Manufacturing Development Commission			\$12,158	\$12,158
7		Fund Sources: General	\$12,158	\$12,158		
8		Joint Commission on Adm	ninistrative Rules	(865)		
9 10	22.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100) Intragovernmental Services (70104)	\$10,015	\$10,015	\$10,015	\$10,015
11		Fund Sources: General	\$10,015	\$10,015		
12		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 8.1, Code of Virginia.				
13 14		Total for Joint Commission on Administrative Rules			\$10,015	\$10,015
15		Fund Sources: General	\$10,015	\$10,015		
16		Autism Advisory	Council (871)			
17	23.	Health Research, Planning, and Coordination			фс АП Г	¢< 175
18 19		(40600) Health Policy Research (40606)	\$6,475	\$6,475	\$6,475	\$6,475
20		Fund Sources: General	\$6,475	\$6,475		
21		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 50, Code of Virginia.				
22		Total for Autism Advisory Council			\$6,475	\$6,475
23		Fund Sources: General	\$6,475	\$6,475		
24		Virginia Conflict of Interest and	Ethics Advisory (Council (876)		
25	24.	Personnel Management Services (70400)			\$598,128	\$598,128
26		Fund Sources: General	\$598,128	\$598,128		
27		Authority: Chapters 792 and 804 of the 2014 Acts of Ass	embly.			
28 29		Out of the the amounts appropriated to the Council, an ary year is from lobbyist registration fees pursuant to § 2.2-4				
30 31		Total for Virginia Conflict of Interest and Ethics Advisory Council			\$598,128	\$598,128
32		General Fund Positions	5.00	5.00		
33 34		Position Level	5.00 \$598,128	5.00 \$598,128		
34		Fund Sources: General				
35		Joint Commission on Transpo	rtation Accountal	bility (875)		
36 37	25.	Ground Transportation Planning and Research (60200)			\$28,200	\$28,200
38		Fund Sources: General	\$28,200	\$28,200		
39 40		Total for Joint Commission on Transportation Accountability			\$28,200	\$28,200

	ITEM 25.		First Year	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	Second Year
1		Fund Sources: General	FY2019 \$28,200	\$28,200	F 12019	FY2020
2		Commission on Economic Opportunity for Virgi	nians in Aspiring a	and Diverse Comm	unities (877)	
3 4 5	26.	Economic Development Services (53400) Economic Development Research, Planning, and Coordination (53401)	\$10,560	\$10,560	\$10,560	\$10,560
6		Fund Sources: General	\$10,560	\$10,560		
7		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion				
8 9		Total for Commission on Economic Opportunity for Virginians in Aspiring and Diverse Communities			\$10,560	\$10,560
10		Fund Sources: General	\$10,560	\$10,560		
11		Virginia-Israel Ad	visory Board (330))		
12	26.10	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$215,184	\$215,184
13 14		Economic Development Research, Planning, and Coordination (53401)	\$215,184	\$215,184		
15		Fund Sources: General	\$215,184	\$215,184		
16		Total for Virginia-Israel Advisory Board			\$215,184	\$215,184
17 18		General Fund Positions Position Level	1.00 1.00	1.00 1.00		
19		Fund Sources: General	\$215,184	\$215,184		
20		Grand Total for Division of Legislative Services			\$8,784,838	\$8,784,838
21 22		General Fund Positions Position Level	67.50 67.50	67.50 67.50		
23 24		Fund Sources: General Special	\$8,740,709 \$44,129	\$8,740,709 \$44,129		
25		§ 1-7. CHESAPEAKE BA	AY COMMISSION	N (842)		
26 27	27.	Resource Management Research, Planning, and Coordination (50700)			\$332,368	\$332,368
27 28 29		Resource Management Policy and Program Development (50701)	\$332,368	\$332,368	<i>\$332,308</i>	<i>\$332,306</i>
30		Fund Sources: General	\$332,368	\$332,368		
31		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 36, Code of Virginia.				
32		Total for Chesapeake Bay Commission			\$332,368	\$332,368
33 34		General Fund Positions Position Level	1.00 1.00	1.00 1.00		
35		Fund Sources: General	\$332,368	\$332,368		
36		§ 1-8. JOINT COMMISSION	N ON HEALTH C	ARE (844)		
37	28.	Health Research, Planning, and Coordination			\$770 122	\$770.122
38 39		(40600) Health Policy Research (40606)	\$779,133	\$779,133	\$779,133	\$779,133
40		Fund Sources: General	\$779,133	\$779,133		
41		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.				

	ITEM 28.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 16 17		A. The Joint Commission on Health Care shall examine a that the public is made fully aware of the risks and c psychiatric medications that have dramatically increase Commission shall identify methods: (i) to raise awareness and physical health side effects of Attention Deficit Hy medication use and risks from potential drug addiction fror compile and track statistics regarding the number of childs diagnosed with ADHD or other categories such as "spec health impairment, multiple disorder, and emotional distu- methods for developing similar systems in the Commu- and interventions which focus on treatment, recovery, a identify the incidence and prevalence of prescribing anti- general physicians and psychiatrists for treatment of AD indication. The Joint Commission on Health Care shall con- the workload priorities set for Commission staff and report House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no h	oncerns related ed over the last s of risks relate peractivity Dis n ADHD medica ren in Virginia s ific learning dis arbances" in the limit antipsycho onwealth, include and legal penalt psychotics for of HD for which the mplete its analy findings to the of	d to the use of 25 years. The d to the mental order (ADHD) ation use; (ii) to schools who are sabilities, other e most effective otic use and the ling approaches ies; and (iv) to off-label use by here is no FDA sis according to Chairmen of the		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27		B. The Joint Commission on Health Care shall study op telemental health services in the Commonwealth. The Joi shall specifically study the issues and recommendation services set forth in the report of the Service System Struct of the Joint Subcommittee Studying Mental Health Servic 21st Century. All agencies of the Commonwealth shall Commission on Health Care for this study, upon request. T Care shall submit an interim report to the Joint Subcomm Services in the Commonwealth in the 21st Century by report of its findings to the Joint Subcommittee by Nov	nt Commission is related to tel ure and Financi es in the Comm provide assistan the Joint Commi nittee Studying November 1, 20	on Health Care emental health ng Work Group onwealth in the nee to the Joint assion on Health Mental Health 017 and a final		
28		Total for Joint Commission on Health Care			\$779,133	\$779,133
29 30		General Fund Positions Position Level	6.00 6.00	6.00 6.00		
31		Fund Sources: General	\$779,133	\$779,133		
32		§ 1-9. VIRGINIA COMMISS	ION ON YOUT	FH (839)		
33 34 35	29.	Social Services Research, Planning, and Coordination (45000) Social Services Research and Planning (45003)	\$355,201	\$355,201	\$355,201	\$355,201
36		Fund Sources: General	\$355,201	\$355,201		
37		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 20, Code of Virginia.				
38		Total for Virginia Commission on Youth			\$355,201	\$355,201
39 40		General Fund Positions Position Level	3.00 3.00	3.00 3.00		
41		Fund Sources: General	\$355,201	\$355,201		
42		§ 1-10. VIRGINIA STATE CRI	ME COMMISS	SION (142)		
43 44 45	30.	Criminal Justice Research, Planning and Coordination (30500) Criminal Justice Research (30503)	\$940,402	\$940,402	\$940,402	\$940,402
46 47		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$802,749 \$137,653	\$802,749 \$137,653		
48		Authority: Title 30, Chapter 16, Code of Virginia.				
49		Total for Virginia State Crime Commission			\$940,402	\$940,402

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 30.		First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	General Fund Positions	6.00	6.00		
2	Nongeneral Fund Positions	4.00	4.00		
3	Position Level	10.00	10.00		
4	Fund Sources: General	\$802,749	\$802,749		
5	Federal Trust	\$137,653	\$137,653		
6	§ 1-11. JOINT LEGISLATIVE AUDIT	AND REVIEW C	COMMISSION (11	0)	
7 31.	Legislative Evaluation and Review (78300)			\$5,194,132	\$5,545,132
8	Performance Audits and Evaluation (78303)	\$5,194,132	\$5,545,132		
9	Fund Sources: General	\$5,075,187	\$5,426,187		
10	Trust and Agency	\$118,945	\$118,945		
11	Authority: Title 30, Chapters 7 and 8, Code of Virginia.				
12 13 14	A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual sala Audit and Review Commission (JLARC), \$161,451 from \$161,451 from June 25, 2019, to June 30, 2020.				
15 16 17 18 19	B. JLARC, upon request of the Department of Plannin Chairman, shall review and provide comments to the de measures in the state budget process. JLARC staff sl proposed uses of such performance measures and pro- Commission.	partment on its use hall review the m	e of performance ethodology and		
20 21 22 23	C. Expenses associated with the oversight responsibility of JLARC and the House Appropriations and Senate Finance the Virginia Retirement System upon documentation by the incurred.	Committees shall b	be reimbursed by		
24 25 26 27 28 29	D. Out of this appropriation, funds are provided to com JLARC, in order to assist with legislative fiscal impact ar referred from the Chairman of a standing committee of the oversight of the expenditure forecasting process. Pursuar agencies of the Commonwealth shall provide access to in these duties.	nalysis when an imp he House or Senate at to existing statuto	pact statement is e, and to conduct ory authority, all		
30 31 32 33 34	E.1. The General Assembly hereby designates the Jot Commission (JLARC) to review and evaluate the Virginia (VITA) on a continuing basis and to make such spec requested by the General Assembly, the House Approp Finance Committee.	a Information Technial studies and rep	nologies Agency ports as may be		
35 36 37 38 39 40	2. The areas of review and evaluation to be conducted by are not limited to, the following: (i) VITA's infrastruct amendments thereto; (ii) adequacy of VITA's plannin including VITA's oversight of information technolo governmental information; (iii) cost-effectiveness and services and its oversight of the procurement activities	are outsourcing connections and oversight a constant of the second secon	ontracts and any responsibilities, the security of A's procurement		
41 42 43	3. For the purpose of carrying out its duties and notwith law, JLARC shall have the legal authority to access the employees of VITA.				
44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51	4. Records provided to VITA by a private entity perfinition of the Commonwealth's information technol from the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (§ 2.2-3) records contain (i) trade secrets of the private entity as de Act (§ 59.1-336 et seq.) or (ii) financial records of the private and financial statements, that are not generally available disclosure or otherwise. In order for the records specified	contractual amende ology infrastructure 700 et seq.), to the efined in the Unifor vate entity, includin le to the public thr	ments thereto for shall be exempt extent that such m Trade Secrets g balance sheets ough regulatory		

	ITEM 31.		Item I st Year Y2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		from the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, the private ent request to VITA:			F 12019	F 1 2020
3 4		a. Invoking such exclusion upon submission of the data or ot protection from disclosure is sought;	her mate	rials for which		
5		b. Identifying with specificity the data or other materials for wh and	ich prote	ction is sought;		
6		c. Stating the reasons why protection is necessary.				
7 8 9 10 11 12		VITA shall determine whether the requested exclusion from diprotect the trade secrets or financial records of the private entwritten determination of the nature and scope of the protection to this subdivision. Once a written determination is made by VIT protection under this subdivision shall continue to be protected the possession of VITA or JLARC.	tity. VIT. b be affor A, the re	A shall make a ded by it under cords afforded		
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		Except as specifically provided in this item, nothing in this ite authorize the withholding of (a) procurement records as requi information concerning the terms and conditions of any into agreement, service contract, lease, partnership, or any agreement by VITA and the private entity; (c) information concerning the any financing arrangement that involves the use of any public f concerning the performance of the private entity under the comp agreement, or any successor contract, or any contractual ame operation of the Commonwealth's information technology inf	red by § erim or o of any ki terms an unds; or orehensiv ndments	56-575.17; (b) comprehensive ind entered into d conditions of (d) information e infrastructure thereto for the		
22 23 24		5. The Chairman of JLARC may appoint a permanent subcommi and direction for VITA review and evaluation activities, subject supervision and such guidelines as the Commission itself may pr	to the ful			
25 26		6. All agencies of the Commonwealth shall cooperate as requ performance of its duties under this authority.	lested by	JLARC in the		
27 28 29 30 31		F.1. The General Assembly hereby designates the Joint Legisl Commission (JLARC) to conduct, on a continuing basis, a re economic development initiatives and policies and to make s reports as may be requested by the General Assembly, the Committee, or the Senate Finance Committee.	view and uch spec	l evaluation of ial studies and		
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39		2. The areas of review and evaluation to be conducted by the Co but are not limited to, the following: (i) spending on and per economic development incentives, including grants, tax preference (ii) economic benefits to Virginia of total spending on economic d least biennially; (iii) effectiveness, value to taxpayers, and econo of individual economic development initiatives on a cycle appro and (iv) design, oversight, and accountability of economic initiatives, and policies as needed.	formance ces, and c levelopme omic bene oved by th	e of individual other assistance; ent initiatives at efits to Virginia the Commission;		
40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50		3. For the purpose of carrying out its duties under this authority contrary provision of law, JLARC shall have the legal authority employees, information, and records, including confidential information and executive session meetings and records of the board of VED development initiatives and policies for the purpose of carry accordance with the established standards, processes, and practic pursuant to its statutory authority. Access shall include the right for the purpose of carrying out such duties. Any non-disclosur enters into on or after July 1, 2016, for the provision of confi information to VEDP by a third party shall require that JLARC a such information for the purposes of carrying out its duties.	y to access prmation, P, involv ying out cess exercess to attend re agreem idential a	ss the facilities, and the public ed in economic such duties in ised by JLARC such meetings ent that VEDP and proprietary		
51 52		4. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A or B of § 58.1	-3 or any	other provision		

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A or B of § 58.1-3 or any other provision
of law, unless prohibited by federal law, an agreement with a federal entity, or a court
decree, the Tax Commissioner is authorized to provide to JLARC such tax information as

	Item Details(\$)			Appropriations(\$)		
ITEM 31.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Y		
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY202		

may be necessary to conduct oversight of economic development initiatives and policies.

1

2 5. The following records shall be excluded from the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of 3 Information Act (§ 2.2-3700 et seq.), and shall not be disclosed by JLARC:

4 (a) records provided by a public body as defined in § 2.2-3701, Code of Virginia, to JLARC 5 in connection with its oversight of economic development initiatives and policies, where the 6 records would not be subject to disclosure by the public body providing the records. The 7 public body providing the records to JLARC shall identify the specific portion of the records 8 to be protected and the applicable provision of the Freedom of Information Act or other 9 provision of law that excludes the record or portions thereof from mandatory disclosure.

- 10 (b) confidential proprietary records provided by private entities pursuant to a promise of 11 confidentiality from JLARC, used by JLARC in connection with its oversight of economic 12 development initiatives and policies where, if such records are made public, the financial 13 interest of the private entity would be adversely affected.
- 14 6. By August 15 of each year, the Secretary of Commerce and Trade shall provide to JLARC 15 all information collected pursuant to § 2.2-206.+2, Code of Virginia, in a format and manner 16 specified by JLARC to ensure that the final report to be submitted by the Secretary fulfills the 17 intent of the General Assembly and provides the data and evaluation in a meaningful manner 18 for decision-makers.
- 19 7. JLARC shall assist the agencies submitting information to the Secretary of Commerce and 20 Trade pursuant to the provisions of § 2.2-206.+2, Code of Virginia, to ensure that the agencies 21 work together to effectively develop standard definitions and measures for the data required to 22 be reported and facilitate the development of appropriate unique project identifiers to be used 23 by the impacted agencies.
- 24 8. The Chairman of JLARC may appoint a permanent subcommittee to provide guidance and 25 direction for ongoing review and evaluation activities, subject to the full Commission's 26 supervision and such guidelines as the Commission itself may provide.
- 27 9. JLARC may employ on a consulting basis such professional or technical experts as may be reasonably necessary for the Commission to fulfill its responsibilities under this authority. 28
- 29 10. All agencies of the Commonwealth shall cooperate as requested by JLARC in the 30 performance of its duties under this authority.
- 31 11. The Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission (JLARC) is hereby directed to 32 review Virginia529's proposed weighted average tuition (WAT) payout model for the 33 Prepaid529 program and report how the WAT payout model would change Prepaid529 34 relative to the existing model. In conducting the review, JLARC should address how the 35 proposal would impact 1) program payout, 2) contract costs, 3) program sustainability, 4) 36 overall complexity of the program, 5) any other factors relevant to the program. JLARC 37 should complete the review and submit a final report, including any recommendations, to 38 JLARC and the Chairman of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committee by November 30, 2018. Virginia529 shall provide assistance on this review upon request. 39
- 40 12. Since the Virginia College Savings Plan's (Virginia529) Prepaid529 is a public fund, and 41 accurate benchmarks are necessary to ensure accountability and transparency for plan 42 participants and other stakeholders such as the state, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review 43 Commission (JLARC) is directed to contract with a third-party consultant to conduct an 44 independent review of investment performance benchmarks used for the fund. The consultant, which should have expertise in institutional investment, shall determine whether Virginia529 45 is using appropriate benchmarks to measure performance, given the investment goals, 46 47 strategies, and risk tolerance that the Virginia529 Board and Investment Advisory Committee 48 have adopted for the fund. The contract should be procured through a request for proposal 49 (RFP). The consultant shall report its findings and make recommendations, as warranted, for 50 changes to existing benchmarks, by December 15, 2018. JLARC's expenses related to its 51 duties under this amendment shall be reimbursed by Virginia529 as required under § 30-335. 52 The consultant's recommendations shall be considered by the Virginia529 Board and 53 Investment Advisory Committee.
- 54 G. Notwithstanding the salaries listed in paragraph A. of this item, the Joint Legislative Audit

Second Year FY2020

ITEM	31.	Item 1 First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	and Review Commission (JLARC) may establish a JLARC.				
3 4 5	H.1. The General Assembly hereby designates the Jo Commission (JLARC) to review and evaluate the a Secretary of Health and Human Resources (HHR)	agencies and prog	rams under the		
6 7	2. Review and evaluation work shall be directed by JL Committee for Health and Human Resources Oversigh		on with the Joint		
8 9 10 11	3. Review and evaluation shall include, but not be li programs; (ii) targeted analysis of spending tren examination; and (iii) assessment of the soundness spending forecasts, including the process, assumpt	ds and other issu and accuracy of	es warranting population and		
12 13 14	4. For the purpose of carrying out its duties and notwith law, JLARC shall have the legal authority to access t and employees of all agencies within the HHR secret	the information, red			
15 16	5. The following records shall be excluded from the pro Information Act (\S 2.2-3700 et seq.), and shall not be d				
17 18 19 20 21 22 23	(a) records provided by a public body as defined in § 2.2-3701, Code of Virginia, to JLARC in connection with its evaluation of agencies and programs within the HHR secretariat, where the records would not be subject to disclosure by the public body providing the records. The public body providing the records to JLARC shall identify the specific portion of the records to be protected and the applicable provision of the Freedom of Information Act or other provision of law that excludes the record or portions thereof from mandatory disclosure.				
24 25 26 27	(b) confidential proprietary records provided by privat confidentiality from JLARC, used by JLARC in connect and programs within the HHR secretariat where, if s financial interest of the private entity would be adve	ction with its evalua such records are m	tion of agencies		
28 29 30 31	6. The Chairman of JLARC may appoint a permanent and direction for ongoing review and evaluation of HHR secretariat, subject to the full Commission's supe Commission itself may provide.	agencies and progr	cams within the		
32 33 34	7. JLARC may employ on a consulting basis such profe be reasonably necessary for the Commission to ful authority.				
35 36	8. All agencies of the Commonwealth shall cooperate a performance of its duties under this authority.	s requested by JLA	RC in the		
37 38	Total for Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission			\$5,194,132	\$5,545,132
39 40 41	General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	42.00 1.00 43.00	42.00 1.00 43.00		
42 43	Fund Sources: General Trust and Agency	\$5,075,187 \$118,945	\$5,426,187 \$118,945		
44	§ 1-12. VIRGINIA COMMISSION ON INTE	RGOVERNMENI	TAL COOPERAT	TION (105)	
45 32.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100)	\$791 007	¢701 007	\$781,027	\$781,027
46 47	Interstate Affairs (70103) Fund Sources: General	\$781,027 \$781,027	\$781,027 \$781,027		
48	Authority: Title 30, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.	φ <i>ι</i> 01,027	φ/01,02/		
40	Automy. The 50, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.				

			Itom	Details(\$)	A m m m m	intions(¢)
	ITEM 32.		First Year	Second Year	First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1		Out of this appropriation may be paid from the general fu	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
2		 To the National Conference of State Legislatures; 		sinents.		
2		 To the Futuronal Conference of Date Legislatures, To the Council of State Governments; 				
4		 To the Southern Regional Education Board; and 				
- 5		 To the Southern Regional Education Doard, and To the Education Commission of the States. 				
			- f	- f the Courseil		
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		Included within this appropriation is \$146,035 each yea of State Governments. Of this amount, one-third (\$48, on behalf of the Executive Department, one-third (\$48, on behalf of the Judicial Department, and the remaining the dues payable on behalf of the Legislative Departm payable on behalf of the Legislative Department, \$13,94 discretion of the Senate Committee on Rules and \$34,77 discretion of the Speaker of the House of Delegates.	578) shall represent 578) shall represent g one-third (\$48,679 ent. Of the amount 08 each year shall b	the dues payable the dues payable 9) shall represent t for annual dues e allocated at the		
14 15		Total for Virginia Commission on Intergovernmental Cooperation			\$781,027	\$781,027
16		Fund Sources: General	\$781,027	\$781,027		
17		§ 1-13. LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT R	REVERSION CLEA	ARING ACCOUN	Г (102)	
18 19	33.	Across the Board Reductions (71400) Across the Board Reduction (71401)	(\$194,600)	(\$194,600)	(\$194,600)	(\$194,600)
20		Fund Sources: General	(\$194,600)	(\$194,600)		
21		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
22 23 24	34.	Enactment of Laws (78200) Undesignated Support for Enactment of Laws Services (78205)	\$610,315	\$610,315	\$610,315	\$610,315
25		Fund Sources: General	\$610,315	\$610,315		
26		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
27 28		A. Transfers out of this appropriation may be made to fu of legislative agencies or other such costs approved by th				
29 30 31 32 33		B. Included within this appropriation is \$200,000 the fir from the general fund and one position for the operation allocation of these funds shall be subject to the approval Capitol Guides program shall be jointly administered by and the Clerk of the Senate.	of the Capitol Guid of the Committee on	des program. The Joint Rules. The		
34 35 36		C. Included within this appropriation is \$250,000 the fir from the general fund to support the development of Square.				
37 38		Total for Legislative Department Reversion Clearing Account			\$415,715	\$415,715
39 40		General Fund Positions Position Level	1.00 1.00	1.00 1.00		
41		Fund Sources: General	\$415,715	\$415,715		
42 43		TOTAL FOR LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT			\$96,276,428	\$96,176,428 \$96,426,428
44		General Fund Positions	597.50	597.50		
45 46		Nongeneral Fund Positions	32.50 630.00	32.50 630.00		
-10		Position Level	050.00	050.00		

		Item	Item Details(\$)		iations(\$)
	ITEM 34.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Fund Sources: General	\$92,593,939	\$92,493,939		
2 3	Special	\$3,425,891	\$3,425,891 \$3,675,891		
4	Trust and Agency	\$118,945	\$118,945		
5	Federal Trust	\$137,653	\$137,653		

			Item Details(\$)			
	ITEM 35.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		JUDICIAL DI	EPARTMENT			
2		§ 1-14. SUPREM	E COURT (111)			
3 4 5	35.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Appellate Review (32101) Other Court Costs And Allowances (Criminal Fund)	\$9,064,345	\$9,064,345	\$14,924,170	\$14,924,170
6		(32104)	\$5,859,825	\$5,859,825		
7 8		Fund Sources: General Special	\$14,744,890 \$179,280	\$14,744,890 \$179,280		
9 10		Authority: Article VI, Sections 1 through 6, Constitutio and § 19.2-163, Code of Virginia.	n of Virginia; Titl	e 17.1, Chapter 3		
11		A. Out of the amounts for Appellate Review shall be paid	:			
12 13 14		1. The annual salary of the Chief Justice, \$196,517 fr 2018 <i>June 9, 2019</i> , 196,517 \$200,447 from November 25 \$196,517 from November 25, 2019, <i>June 10, 2019</i> to Ju	5, 2018, to Novem			
15 16 17		2. The annual salaries of the six (6) Associate Justices, e November 24, 2018, 184,327 June 9, 2019, from Novemb and \$184,327 from November 25, 2019, \$188,014 from J	ber 25, 2018, to No	ovember 24, 2019 ,		
18 19		3. To each justice, \$13,500 the first year and \$13,500 otherwise reimbursed, said expenses to be paid out of the				
20 21 22 23		B. There is hereby reappropriated the unexpended balance on June 30, 2018, in the appropriation made in Item 37, 2017, in the item detail Other Court Costs and Allowance remaining in this item detail on June 30, 2019.	Chapter 836, Act	ts of Assembly of		
24 25 26		C.1. Out of the amounts appropriated in this Item, \$5,17 the second year from the general fund is included for in appointed counsel pursuant to § 19.2-163, Code of Virg	ncreased reimburs			
27 28 29 30 31 32 33		2. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall upon the request of the Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court of Virginia, transfer from the second year amount identified in Paragraph C.1. of this item to the first year an amount equal to the estimated shortfall for criminal fund waivers in the first year. Any such request shall be submitted by the Executive Secretary no later than May 1st of any fiscal year. Any amounts transferred shall be communicated to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than 30 days following any such transfer.				
34 35 36		D. The Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court of V Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court judges court-ordered services for families in truancy cases prio	regarding the opt	ions available for		
37 38 39		E. Out of the amounts appropriated in this Item, \$310,7 second year from the general fund is included to cover t appointed in any custody and support or visitation cases	he cost of fee cha			
40 41 42		F. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 20-124.4, Code o shall be \$120 per appointment mediated. For such pu \$303,000 the second year from the general fund is included as the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the second year from the general fund is included by the second year from the second y	rpose, \$303,000 (the first year and		
43 44	36.	Law Library Services (32300) Law Library Services (32301)	\$1,057,444	\$1,057,444	\$1,057,444	\$1,057,444
45		Fund Sources: General	\$1,057,444	\$1,057,444		
46		Authority: §§ 42.1-60 through 42.1-64, Code of Virginia.				

	ITEM 37.		Item First Year	Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year				iations(\$) Second Year
	1120107		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020		
1 2	37.	Adjudication Training, Education, and Standards (32600)			\$899,140	\$899,140		
2 3		Judicial Training (32603)	\$899,140	\$899,140	φ077,140	ψ099,140		
4		Fund Sources: General	\$899,140	\$899,140				
5 6		Authority: Title 16.1, Chapter 9; Title 17.1, Chapter 7 43, Code of Virginia.	7; §§ 2.2-4025, 19.	2-38.1 and 19.2-				
7	38.	Administrative and Support Services (39900)			\$32,225,031	\$32,225,031		
8 9 10		General Management and Direction (39901)	\$32,225,031	\$32,225,031 \$32,513,319		\$32,513,319		
11 12		Fund Sources: General	\$23,125,335	\$23,125,335 \$23,413,623				
13 14		Special Dedicated Special Revenue	\$124,375 \$7,675,321	\$124,375 \$7,675,321				
14		Federal Trust	\$1,300,000	\$1,300,000				
16 17		Authority: §§ 16.1-69.30, 16.1-69.33, 17.1-314 throu Virginia.	gh 17.1-320 and 1'	7.1-502, Code of				
18 19 20 21 22 23		A. The Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court shall submit an annual fiscal year summary, on or before September 1 of each year, to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, which will report the number of individuals for whom legal or medical services were provided and the nature and cost of such services as are authorized for payment from the criminal fund or the involuntary mental commitment fund.						
24 25 26		B. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 19.2-326, attorney's fees allowed counsel for indigent defendar shall be in the discretion of the Supreme Court.						
27 28		C. The Chief Justice is authorized to reallocate legal Court and the Court of Appeals of Virginia, in order to						
29 30 31 32 33		Courts are requested to submit a fiscal impact assess the creation of any new judgeships, including the	D. Prior to January 1 of each year, the Judicial Council and the Committee on District Courts are requested to submit a fiscal impact assessment of their recommendations for the creation of any new judgeships, including the cost of judicial retirement, to the Chairmen of the House and Senate Committees on Courts of Justice, and the House					
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42		E. Included in this Item is \$3,750,000 the first year at the general fund, which may support computer sys circuit and district courts. The Executive Secretary of annual report to the Director, Department of Planning 1 of each year outlining the improvement projects u each project. Each project in the report should includ the amount spent on the project in the most recently project began, the estimated cost to complete the remain project completion date.						
43 44 45 46 47 48 49		F. Given the continued concern about providing adeq appointed attorneys providing criminal indigent de Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court, in conjun General, Indigent Defense Commission, represen Stakeholders Group and Chairmen of the House and S shall continue to study and evaluate all available opt Defense System.						
50 51 52 53		G. In addition to any filing fee or other fee permitted be be charged for each case filed electronically pursua Supreme Court of Virginia. The amount of this fee shall Virginia. Moneys collected pursuant to this fee shall be	nt to Rule 1:17 of nall be set by the S	the Rules of the upreme Court of				

			Item Details(\$)			
	ITEM 38.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	Fi: F	
1		to the credit of the Courts Technology Fund established purs	uant to § 17.1-13	32, to be used to		

Appropriations(\$)							
First Year	Second Year						
FY2019	FY2020						

- 2 support the costs of statewide electronic filing systems.
- 3 H. 1. No state funds used to support the operation of drug court programs shall be provided to 4 programs that serve first-time substance abuse offenders only or do not include probation 5 violators. This restriction shall not apply to juvenile drug court programs.

6 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection O. of § 18.2-254.1, Code of Virginia, any 7 locality is authorized to establish a drug treatment court supported by existing state resources 8 and by federal or local resources that may be available. This authorization is subject to the 9 requirements and conditions regarding the establishment and operation of a local drug 10 treatment court advisory committee as provided by § 18.2-254.1 and the requirements and 11 conditions established by the state Drug Treatment Court Advisory Committee. Any drug 12 court treatment program established after July 1, 2012, shall limit participation in the program 13 to offenders who have been determined, through the use of a nationally recognized, validated 14 assessment tool, to be addicted to or dependent on drugs. However, no such drug court 15 treatment program shall limit its participation to first-time substance abuse offenders only; nor shall it exclude probation violators from participation. 16

- 17 3. The evaluation of drug treatment court programs required by § 18.2-254.1 shall include the 18 collection of data needed for outcome measures, including recidivism. Drug treatment court 19 programs shall provide to the Office of the Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court the 20 information needed to conduct such an evaluation.
- 21 4. Included in this item is \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from the 22 general fund to support two substance abuse treatment pilot programs at the Norfolk Adult 23 Drug Court and the Henrico County Adult Drug Court utilizing non-narcotic, non-addictive, 24 long-acting, injectable prescription drug treatment regimens. The Norfolk and Henrico 25 County Adult Drug Courts shall utilize these resources to support pilot program medication, 26 provider fees, counseling, and patient monitoring. The Executive Secretary of the Supreme 27 Court shall report the results of the pilot program, as well as recommendations for expansion 28 of the pilot program to other drug courts, to the Secretaries of Public Safety and Homeland 29 Security and Health and Human Resources, the Director of the Department of Planning and 30 Budget, the Chairman of the Virginia State Crime Commission, and the Chairmen of the 31 House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by October 1 each year of the pilot 32 program. The Norfolk and Henrico County Adult Drug Courts shall provide all necessary 33 information to the Office of the Executive Secretary to conduct such an evaluation.
- 34 5. Included within this appropriation is \$960,000 the first year and \$960,000 the second year 35 from the general fund for drug courts in jurisdictions with high drug caseloads, to be allocated by the State Drug Treatment Court Advisory Committee to existing drug courts which have 36 37 been approved by the Supreme Court of Virginia but have not previously received state 38 funding.
- 39 6. Included in this item is \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the general 40 fund to support a substance abuse treatment pilot program at the Bristol Adult Drug Court 41 utilizing non-narcotic, non-addictive, long-acting, injectable prescription drug treatment 42 regimens. The Bristol Adult Drug Court shall utilize these resources to support pilot program 43 medication, provider fees, counseling, and patient monitoring. The Executive Secretary of the 44 Supreme Court shall include the results of this pilot program in its report pursuant to Item 45 38.H.5. The Bristol Adult Drug Court program shall provide all necessary information to the 46 Office of the Executive Secretary to conduct this evaluation.
- 47 I. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 16.1-69.48, Code of Virginia, the Executive Secretary 48 of the Supreme Court shall ensure the deposit of all Commonwealth collections directly into 49 the State Treasury for Item 41 General District Courts, Item 42 Juvenile and Domestic 50 Relations District Courts, Item 43 Combined District Courts, and Item 44 Magistrate System.
- 51 J. Included in this appropriation, \$240,000 the first year and \$240,000 the second year from 52 the general fund is provided to implement the Judicial Performance Evaluation Program 53 established by § 17.1-100 of the Code of Virginia.
- 54 K. Working in collaboration with the Chief Justice and Associate Justices of the Supreme 55 Court of Virginia and the Chief Judge and Associate Judges of the Court of Appeals of

	ITEM 38.	1	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2 3 4 5		Virginia, the Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court, in cor of the Department of General Services, is directed to develop meets the future space needs of both courts around Capitol Squ the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of Virginia and the C Appeals of Virginia.	a compreher uare, which is	s acceptable to		
6 7 8		L. Included in this appropriation, \$175,321 the first year and from nongeneral funds and two positions to support drug trea monitoring. The source of funds is the Drug Offender Assess	tment court e			
9 10 11 12 13		M. Included in the amounts appropriated for this item are \$\$400,000 the second year from the general fund to be all Treatment Court Advisory Committee for the establishment of with high drug-related caseloads, or to increase funding prov programs experiencing high caseload growth.	ocated by th drug courts i	ne State Drug n jurisdictions		
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		N. Included in this appropriation is \$500,000 the first year and from the general fund to support the creation and expansion of in jurisdictions with high caseloads, to be allocated by the Vi Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court shall evaluate an expansion, as well as recommendations for expansion of mer courts, to the Secretaries of Public Safety and Homeland Secu Resources, the Director of the Department of Planning and Bu the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by	mental health rginia Supren nd report the ntal health do rity and Heal udget, and the	a court dockets me Court. The results of the ockets to other th and Human e Chairmen of		
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45		O. The Executive Secretary shall convene a working group, to circuit court clerks, to evaluate issues related to statewide ado civil cases in circuit courts, and the implementation of a statewimages of nonconfidential records within civil case files in viewed by subscribers of that system. The evaluation shall includent benefits of the availability of electronic case filing of civil case the benefits of the adoption of one statewide electronic case courts; (iii) the benefits of a statewide system through which records within civil case files in the circuit courts may be visingle subscription for statewide access; (iv) the types of inform to subscribers of the system or, alternatively, excluded from subscription process may be established to provide a clear de Office of the Executive Secretary and each circuit court implementation and operation of the system; (vi) the estimat costs of all circuit courts implementing and operating a) an el and b) one statewide electronic case filing system for use by estimated one-time and ongoing costs of implementing and operating and operating and performing and operations are subscribers and how suce established, and (ix) any potential loss of revenues by circuit attributed to the implementation of one statewide electronic statewide electronic and by subscribers of that system through which images of nonconfidential records within circuit courts may be viewed by subscribers of that system via a single access; (viii) a fee schedule for subscribers and how suce established, and (ix) any potential loss of revenues by circuit attributed to the implementation of one statewide electronic statewide system through which images of nonconfidential records within circinatewide system through which images of nonconfidential records the system is a single access; (viii) a fee schedule for subscribers and how suce established, and (ix) any potential loss of revenues by circuit attributed to the implementation of one statewide electronic statewide system through which images of nonconfident	ption of elect wide system the circuit of lude consider ses in all circuit filing system images of na- iewed by sub- nation to be n- om the syste finition of th- art clerk wi- ted one-time electronic case all circuit co- perating a sta- vil case files e subscription h fee schedu- tit court cler- c case filing cords within	tronic filing of through which courts may be ation of (i) the puit courts; (ii) a by all circuit onconfidential oscribers via a made available om; (v) how a e duties of the th respect to e and ongoing filing system, ourts; (vii) the tewide system in the circuit a for statewide all should be ks reasonably system and a civil case files		
45 46 47		shall provide a summary of the findings and recommendations Chairmen of the House Committees on Courts of Justice and	of the workir	ng group to the		

49 P.1. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special nonreverting fund to be known 50 as the Attorney Wellness Fund, hereinafter referred to as the Fund. The Fund shall be 51 established on the books of the Comptroller. Interest earned on moneys in the Fund shall 52 remain in the Fund and be credited to it. Any moneys remaining in the Fund, including 53 interest thereon, at the end of the fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund, but shall 54 remain in the Fund. Except for transfers pursuant to this Item, there shall be no transfers 55 out of the Fund, including transfers to the general fund.

48

Senate Committees on Courts of Justice and Finance no later than November 30, 2018.

56 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 54.1-3912, Code of Virginia, in addition to any 57 other fee permitted by law, the Supreme Court of Virginia may adopt rules assessing

Second Year

FY2020

	ITEM 38.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020		Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		members of the Virginia State Bar an annual fee of up to S Fund and transferred to the Attorney Wellness Fund.			F 1 2017	F 12020
3 4 5 6 7 8 9		3.Moneys in the Fund shall be allocated at the direction solely for the purposes of wellness initiatives for atto including but not limited to preventing substance abuse an revenue raised in support of the Fund shall not be used judicial branch. Expenditures and disbursements from the Treasurer on warrants issued by the Comptroller upor Secretary of the Supreme Court of Virginia.	orneys, judges, a nd behavioral hea to supplant curre he Fund shall be t	nd law students, lth disorders. The ent funding to the made by the State		
10 11		Total for Supreme Court			\$49,105,785	\$49,105,785 \$49,394,073
12 13 14		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	150.63 8.00 158.63	150.63 8.00 158.63		
15 16 17 18 19		Fund Sources: General Special Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$39,826,809 \$303,655 \$7,675,321 \$1,300,000	\$39,826,809 \$40,115,097 \$303,655 \$7,675,321 \$1,300,000		
20	20	Court of Appeals	of Virginia (125)		¢0.752.029	¢0.752.029
21 22	39.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Appellate Review (32101)	\$9,753,238	\$9,753,238	\$9,753,238	\$9,753,238
23		Fund Sources: General	\$9,753,238	\$9,753,238		
24		Authority: Title 17.1, Chapter 4 and § 19.2-163, Code of V	⁷ irginia.			
25 26 27 28 29		 A. Out of the amounts in this Item for Appellate Review sh 1. 1. The annual salary of the Chief JudgeJustice, \$178,1 24, 2018June 9, 2019, \$178,110181,612 from November and \$178,110 from November 25, 2019, June 10, 2019 the 2. The annual salaries of the ten (10) judges, each at 	10 from July 1, 2(r 25, 2018, to No to June 30, 2020. t \$175,110 from	vember 24, 2019, July 1, 2018 , to		
30 31		November 24, 2018June 9, 2019, \$175,110 178,612 from 24, 2019, and \$175,110 from November 25, 2019, June 1		,		
32 33		3. Salaries of the judges are to be 95 percent of the salarie except for the Chief Judge, who shall receive an addition				
34 35		4. To each judge, \$6,500 the first year and \$6,500 the seco reimbursed, said expenses to be paid out of the current app				
36 37 38 39		B. There is hereby reappropriated the unexpended balance on June 30, 2018, in the appropriation made in Item 41, 2017, in the item detail Other Court Costs and Allowance remaining in this item detail on June 30, 2019.	Chapter 836, Act	s of Assembly of		
40 41		C. The amount of attorney's fees allowed counsel to ind Court of Appeals shall be in the discretion of the court.		in appeals to the		
42		Total for Court of Appeals of Virginia			\$9,753,238	\$9,753,238
43 44		General Fund Positions Position Level	69.13 69.13	69.13 69.13		
45		Fund Sources: General	\$9,753,238	\$9,753,238		
46		Circuit Con	urts (113)			

	ITEM 40.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	40.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Trial Processes (32103)	\$49,546,226	\$52,434,446	\$113,976,455	\$117,024,675
3 4		Other Court Costs And Allowances (Criminal Fund) (32104)	\$64,430,229	\$64,590,229		
5 6		Fund Sources: General Special	\$113,971,455 \$5,000	\$117,019,675 \$5,000		
7 8		Authority: Article VI, Section 1, Constitution of Virg 163, Code of Virginia.	ginia; Title 17.1, C	hapter 5; § 19.2-		
9		A. Out of the amounts in this Item for Trial Processes s	shall be paid:			
10 11 12 13 14		1. The annual salaries of Circuit Court judges, each November 24, 2018June 9, 2019, \$171,120 174,5 November 24, 2019, and \$171,120 from November 2 2020. Such salaries shall represent the total compen Court judges.	542 from Novemb 25, 2019, June 10,	ber 25, 2018, to 2019 to June 30,		
15 16		2. Expenses necessarily incurred for the position of jucclerk hire not exceeding \$1,500 a year for each judge		Court, including		
17 18 19 20		3. The state's share of expenses incident to the pros habeas corpus by an indigent petitioner, including pay Court; the expenses shall be paid upon receipt of an Court.	ment of counsel fee	es as fixed by the		
21 22 23 24		4. A circuit court judge shall only be reimbursed for a has to travel to a courthouse in a county or city other resides and the distance between the judge's residence 25 miles.	er than the one in	which the judge		
25 26 27 28 29		B. The Chief Circuit Court Judge shall restrict the conduct involuntary mental commitment hearings to General District Court or Juvenile and Domestic Rel made available or when the volume of the hearings we week.	those unusual in those District Co	stances when no urt Judge can be		
30 31 32 33		C. There is hereby reappropriated the unexpended business on June 30, 2018, in the appropriation mad Assembly of 2017, in the item detail Other Court Cos and the balance remaining in this item detail on June 3	e in Item 42, Chap ts and Allowances	pter 836, Acts of		
34 35		D. The appropriation in this Item for Other Court Cos shall be used to implement the provisions of § 8.01-38				
36 37 38		E.1. General fund appropriations for Other Court Cos total \$ 124,384,073 <i>124,909,073</i> the first year and \$ 12 year in this Item and Items 35, 39, 41, 42 and 43.				
39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49		 2. The Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of Virgini appropriated to Other Courts Costs and Allowances consistent with statutory provisions in the Code appropriations are to be used to fund fully the statutor to attorneys appointed by the court to defend criminal not be sufficient to fund fully all of the statutory caps of 19.2-163, Code of Virginia, that this appropriation sh statutory caps for the most serious noncapital felonies in this appropriation, to the other statutory caps, in de charges to which each cap is applicable. 3. Out of the amount appropriated from the general 	(Criminal Fund) v of Virginia. Fun ry caps on compen charges. Should th on compensation as all be applied first and then, should f eclining order of th	will be allocated, ds within these sation applicable his appropriation s established by § to fully fund the funds still remain he severity of the		
50 51 52		Allowances (Criminal Fund) in this Item, there sha exceed \$880,000 the first year and not to exceed \$880, Injuries Compensation Fund, administered by the	ll be transferred a 000 the second yea	n amount not to ar to the Criminal		

		Item D	etails(\$)
ITEM 40	0.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Commission, for the administration of the physical evidence rec	covery kit (PER	K) program.

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 19.2-163, Code of Virginia, the amount of compensation allowed to counsel appointed by the court to defend a felony charge that may be punishable by death shall be calculated on an hourly basis at a rate set by the Supreme Court of Virginia.

2

3

4

5

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

F.1. For any hearing conducted pursuant to § 19.2-306, Code of Virginia, the circuit court
shall have presented to it a sentencing revocation report prepared on a form designated by the
Virginia Criminal Sentencing Commission indicating the condition or conditions of the
suspended sentence, good behavior, or probation supervision that the defendant has allegedly
violated.

11 2. For any hearing conducted pursuant to § 19.2-306 in which the defendant is cited for 12 violation of a condition or conditions other than a new criminal offense conviction, the court 13 shall also have presented to it the applicable probation violation guideline worksheets 14 established pursuant to Chapter 1042 of the Acts of Assembly 2003. The court shall review 15 and consider the suitability of the discretionary probation violation guidelines. Before 16 imposing sentence, the court shall state for the record that such review and consideration have 17 been accomplished and shall make the completed worksheets a part of the record of the case 18 and open for inspection. In hearings in which the court imposes a sentence that is either greater or less than that indicated by the discretionary probation violation guidelines, the court 19 20 shall file with the record of the case a written explanation of such departure.

3. Following any hearing conducted pursuant to § 19.2-306 and the entry of a final order, the clerk of the circuit court in which the hearing was held shall cause a copy of such order or orders, the original sentencing revocation report, any applicable probation violation guideline worksheets prepared in the case, and a copy of any departure explanation prepared pursuant to subsection F.2., to be forwarded to the Virginia Criminal Sentencing Commission within 30 days.

4. The failure to follow any or all of the provisions specified in F.1. through F.3 or the failure to follow any or all of these provisions in the prescribed manner shall not be reviewable on appeal or the basis of any other post-hearing relief.

G. Mandated changes or improvements to court facilities pursuant to § 15.2-1643, Code of Virginia, or otherwise, including any new construction, shall be delayed at the request of the local governing body in which the court is located until June 30, 2020. The provisions of this item shall not apply to facilities that were subject to litigation on or before November 30, 2008.

H. In order to reduce expenditures through the Criminal Fund for court-appointed counsel, effective July 1, 2014, compensation paid to attorneys appointed pursuant to Virginia Code § 53.1-40 shall be limited to \$55 per hour, with a maximum per diem compensation of \$200, plus reasonable expenses, to be paid from the Criminal Fund.

39 I.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 19.2-155, Code of Virginia, in cases where an Attorney for the Commonwealth must recuse himself from a case or a special prosecutor must 40 41 be appointed, the circuit court judge must appoint an Attorney for the Commonwealth or an 42 Assistant Attorney for the Commonwealth from another jurisdiction. If the circuit court judge 43 determines that the appointment of such Attorney for the Commonwealth or such Assistant 44 Attorney for the Commonwealth is not appropriate or that such an attorney or assistant is 45 unavailable then the judge must request approval from the Executive Secretary of the 46 Supreme Court for an exception to this requirement.

47 2. The Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court shall include in the annual report required in
48 paragraph A. of Item 38 information on the number of exceptions granted related to special
49 prosecutors and the related expenditures.

- J. Notwithstanding any other provisions of Chapter 23 of Title 8.1 of the Code of Virginia, a
 reasonable fee not to exceed \$150 may be charged by Commissioners of Accounts for any
 foreclosures on a timeshare estate to reimburse them for the reasonable costs associated
 therewith.
- 54 K. Sufficient funding is provided in the second year appropriation for this item to fill all

	ITEM 40.		Iten First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		circuit court judgeships authorized pursuant to § 17.1 2019.	-507, Code of Vir	ginia, as of July 1,		
3		Total for Circuit Courts			\$113,976,455	\$117,024,675
4 5		General Fund Positions Position Level	165.00 165.00	165.00 165.00		
6 7		Fund Sources: General Special	\$113,971,455 \$5,000	\$117,019,675 \$5,000		
8		General Dist	rict Courts (114)			
9 10	41.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Trial Processes (32103)	\$96,960,139	\$99,339,145	\$117,958,469	\$120,337,475
11 12 13		Other Court Costs And Allowances (Criminal Fund) (32104) Involuntary Mental Commitments (32105)	\$15,069,165 \$5,929,165	\$15,069,165 \$5,929,165		
14		Fund Sources: General	\$117,958,469	\$120,337,475		
15 16		Authority: Article VI, Section 8, Constitution of Virg 19.2-163 and 37.2-809 et seq., Code of Virginia.	ginia; §§ 16.1-69.1	through 16.1-137,		
17		A. Out of the amounts in this Item for Trial Processes	shall be paid:			
18 19 20 21 22 23		1. The annual salaries of all General District Court june November 24, 2018 June 9, 2019, \$154,017 157, November 24, 2019, and \$154,017 from November 2020. Such salary shall be 90 percent of the annual s Circuit Courts and shall represent the total compensat and incorporate all supplements formerly paid by the	097 from Novem 25, 2019, June 10, salary fixed by law ion for General Dis	ber 25, 2018, to , 2019 to June 30, y for judges of the		
24		2. The salaries of substitute judges and court personne	el.			
25 26 27 28 29		B. There is hereby reappropriated the unexpended business on June 30, 2018, in the appropriation mad Assembly of 2017 in the item details Other Court Co and Involuntary Mental Commitments and the balance June 30, 2019.	de in Item 43, Cha sts and Allowance	pter 836, Acts of s (Criminal Fund)		
30 31 32 33		C. Any balance, or portion thereof, in the item detai may be transferred between Items 41, 42, 43, and 3 incurred for Involuntary Mental Commitments by the Medical Assistance Services.	00, as needed, to a	cover any deficits		
34 35		D. The appropriation in this Item for Other Court Co shall be used to implement the provisions of 8.01-3				
36 37 38 39 40 41		E. Out of the amount appropriated from the gener Allowances (Criminal Fund) in this Item, there shi exceed \$40,000 the first year and not to exceed \$40, Injuries Compensation Fund, administered by the Commission, for the administration of the physic program.	all be transferred 000 the second ye Virginia Worker	an amount not to ar to the Criminal rs' Compensation		
42 43 44 45		F. A district court judge shall only be reimbursed for has to travel to a courthouse in a county or city off resides and the distance between the judge's residence 25 miles.	her than the one in	which the judge		
46 47 48 49		G. Upon the retirement or separation from employme clerks from the 7th judicial district or the 13th judi positions in excess of one chief clerk for each general the Committee on District Courts to district courts	icial district, any v district court shall	acant chief clerk be reallocated by		

				n Details(\$)		riations(\$)
	ITEM 41.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		staffing requirements.				
2 3 4		H. Sufficient funding is provided in the second year and general district court judgeships authorized pursuant to § July 1, 2019.				
5		Total for General District Courts			\$117,958,469	\$120,337,475
6 7		General Fund Positions Position Level	1,056.10 1,056.10	1,056.10 1,056.10		
8		Fund Sources: General	\$117,958,469	\$120,337,475		
9		Juvenile and Domestic Rela	ations District Co	ourts (115)		
10	42.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100)			\$98,711,729	\$102,676,739
11	42.	Trial Processes (32103)	\$66,639,631	\$70,604,641	¢>0,711,72>	¢102,070,739
12 13		Other Court Costs And Allowances (Criminal Fund) (32104)	\$31,807,351	\$31,807,351		
14		Involuntary Mental Commitments (32105)	\$264,747	\$264,747		
15		Fund Sources: General	\$98,711,729	\$102,676,739		
16 17		Authority: Article VI, Section 8, Constitution of Virgini 16.1-226 through 16.1-334, 19.2-163 and 37.2-809 through				
18		A. Out of the amounts in this Item for Trial Processes shall	l be paid:			
19 20 21 22 23 24		1. The annual salaries of all full-time Juvenile and Dome \$154,017 from July 1, 2018; to November 24, 2018Jur. November 25, 2018, to November 24, 2019, and \$154,017 2019 to June 30, 2020. Such salary shall be 90 percent of judges of the Circuit Courts and shall represent the to Domestic Relations District Court Judges.	<i>e 9, 2019</i> , \$ 154, 7 from November f the annual salar	017 <i>157,097</i> from 25, 2019, <i>June 10,</i> y fixed by law for		
25		2. The salaries of substitute judges and court personnel.				
26 27 28 29		B. There is hereby reappropriated the unexpended balance on June 30, 2018, in the appropriation made in Item 44, 2017, in the Item details Other Court Costs and Allowand Mental Commitments and the balances remaining in these	Chapter 836, Acces (Criminal Fun	ts of Assembly of d) and Involuntary		
30 31 32 33		C. Any balance, or portion thereof, in the Item detail Invo be transferred between Items 41, 42, 43, and 300, as need Involuntary Mental Commitments by the Supreme Co Assistance Services.	ed, to cover any d	eficits incurred for		
34 35		D. The appropriation in this Item for Other Court Costs ar be used to implement the provisions of § 8.01-384.1:1, Co		iminal Fund) shall		
36 37 38 39 40		E. Out of the amount appropriated from the general Allowances (Criminal Fund) in this Item, there shall be \$\$70,000 the first year and not to exceed \$\$70,000 the s Compensation Fund, administered by the Virginia Work the administration of the physical evidence recovery kit	ransferred an ame econd year to the ers' Compensatio	ount not to exceed Criminal Injuries n Commission for		
41 42 43		F. Sufficient funding is provided in the second year an juvenile and domestic relations court judgeships authorize Virginia, as of July 1, 2019.				
44 45		Total for Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Courts			\$98,711,729	\$102,676,739
46 47		General Fund Positions Position Level	617.10 617.10	617.10 617.10		

1	ITEM 42.	Fund Sources: General	Iten First Year FY2019 \$98,711,729	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020 \$102,676,739	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
2		Combined Dist	ist Counts (116)			
2 3 4	43.	Combined Distr Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Trial Processes (32103)	\$14,457,963	\$14,457,963	\$23,744,526	\$23,744,526
5 6 7		Other Court Costs And Allowances (Criminal Fund) (32104) Involuntary Mental Commitments (32105)	\$7,737,503 \$1,549,060	\$7,737,503 \$1,549,060		
8		Fund Sources: General	\$23,744,526	\$23,744,526		
9 10		Authority: Article VI, Section 8, Constitution of Virgin 16.1-226 through 16.1-334, 19.2-163, and 37.2-809 thr				
11 12		A. Out of the amounts in this Item for Trial Proce substitute judges and court personnel.	sses shall be pai	d the salaries of		
13 14 15 16 17		B. There is hereby reappropriated the unexpended b business on June 30, 2018, in the appropriation made Assembly of 2017, in the item details Other Court Cost and Involuntary Mental Commitments and the balances June 30, 2019.	e in Item 45, Cha ts and Allowances	pter 836, Acts of s (Criminal Fund)		
18 19 20 21		C. Any balance, or portion thereof, in the Item detail may be transferred between Items 41, 42, 43, and 30 incurred for Involuntary Mental Commitments by the S Medical Assistance Services.	0, as needed, to c	over any deficits		
22 23		D. The appropriation in this Item for Other Court Cos implement the provisions of § 8.01-384.1:1, Code of V		s shall be used to		
24 25 26 27 28 29		E. Out of the amount appropriated from the general Allowances (Criminal Fund) in this Item, there shal exceed \$95,000 the first year and not to exceed \$95,00 Injuries Compensation Fund, administered by the Commission, for the administration of the physical program.	l be transferred a 00 the second yea Virginia Worker	an amount not to ar to the Criminal s' Compensation		
30		Total for Combined District Courts			\$23,744,526	\$23,744,526
31 32		General Fund Positions Position Level	204.55 204.55	204.55 204.55		
32 33		Fund Sources: General	\$23,744,526	\$23,744,526		
34		Magistrate S	System (103)			
35 36	44.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Pre-Trial Assistance (32102)	\$33,859,000	\$33,859,000	\$33,859,000	\$33,859,000
37		Fund Sources: General	\$33,859,000	\$33,859,000		
38 39		Authority: Article VI, Section 8, Constitution of Virgi Virginia.	nia; Title 19.2, C	hapter 3, Code of		
40		Total for Magistrate System			\$33,859,000	\$33,859,000
41 42		General Fund Positions Position Level	446.20 446.20	446.20 446.20		
43		Fund Sources: General	\$33,859,000	\$33,859,000		
44 45		Grand Total for Supreme Court			\$447,109,202	\$456,501,438 \$456,789,726
46		General Fund Positions	2,708.71	2,708.71		, ,

	ITEM 44.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Nongeneral Fund Positions	8.00	8.00		
2		Position Level	2,716.71	2,716.71		
3 4		Fund Sources: General	\$437,825,226	\$447,217,462 \$447,505,750		
5		Special	\$308,655	\$308,655		
6		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,675,321	\$7,675,321		
7		Federal Trust	\$1,300,000	\$1,300,000		
8		§ 1-15. BOARD OF B.	AR EXAMINERS	(233)		
9 10	45.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000) Lawyer Regulation (56019)	\$1,716,606	\$1,716,606	\$1,716,606	\$1,716,606
11		Fund Sources: Special	\$1,716,606	\$1,716,606		
12		Authority: Title 54.1, Chapter 39, Articles 3 and 4 and §	54.1-3934, Code of	Virginia.		
13 14 15 16 17		The State Comptroller shall continue the Board of Basystem. Revenues collected from fees paid by applicant deposited into the Board of Bar Examiners Fund. The so this item is the Board of Bar Examiners Fund. Interest geby the fund.	nts for admission to ource of nongeneral	the bar shall be funds included in		
18		Total for Board of Bar Examiners			\$1,716,606	\$1,716,606
19 20		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	9.00 9.00	9.00 9.00		
21		Fund Sources: Special	\$1,716,606	\$1,716,606		
22		§ 1-16. JUDICIAL INQUIRY AN	D REVIEW COM	MISSION (112)		
23 24	46.	Adjudication Training, Education, and Standards (32600)		••••• •••	\$656,142	\$656,142
25		Judicial Standards (32602)	\$656,142	\$656,142		
26		Fund Sources: General	\$656,142	\$656,142		
27 28		Authority: Article VI, Section 10, Constitution of Virg Virginia.	ginia; Title 17.1, Cl	napter 9, Code of		
29		Total for Judicial Inquiry and Review Commission			\$656,142	\$656,142
30		General Fund Positions	3.00	3.00		
31		Position Level	3.00	3.00		
32		Fund Sources: General	\$656,142	\$656,142		
33		§ 1-17. INDIGENT DEFE	NSE COMMISSI	ON (848)		
34 35	47.	Legal Defense (32700)			\$51,298,554	\$51,297,183 \$51,934,158
36 37		Criminal Indigent Defense Services (32701)	\$43,967,963	\$43,966,592 \$44,603,567		<i>\$</i> 51,757,150
38 39 40		Capital Indigent Defense Services (32702) Legal Defense Regulatory Services (32703) Administrative Services (32722)	\$3,928,516 \$221,798 \$3,180,277	\$3,928,516 \$221,798 \$3,180,277		
41 42		Fund Sources: General	\$51,286,554	\$51,285,183 \$51,922,158		
43		Special	\$12,000	\$12,000		
44		Authority: §§ 19.2-163.01 through 19.2-163.8, Code of V	Virginia			
45		A Pursuant to 8 19 2-163 01 Code of Virginia the	Executive Directo	r of the Indigent		

45 A. Pursuant to § 19.2-163.01, Code of Virginia, the Executive Director of the Indigent

	ITEM 47.		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Defense Commission shall serve at the pleasure of the o	commission.			
2 3 4		B. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$200,000 the first from the general fund is provided to support two compliance with the new Standards of Practice for	positions to enfo	rce and monitor		
5 6 7		C. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$186,463 the first from the general fund is included for the financing cos the state's master equipment lease purchase program.				
8 9		Total for Indigent Defense Commission			\$51,298,554	\$51,297,183 \$51,934,158
10 11		General Fund Positions	546.00	546.00 566.00		
12 13		Position Level	546.00	546.00 566.00		
14 15		Fund Sources: General	\$51,286,554	\$51,285,183 \$51,922,158		
16		Special	\$12,000	\$12,000		
17		§ 1-18. VIRGINIA CRIMINAL SE	INTENCING CO	MMISSION (160)		
18 19	48.	Adjudicatory Research, Planning, and Coordination (32400)			\$1,196,371	\$1,196,371
20		Adjudicatory Research And Planning (32403)	\$1,196,371	\$1,196,371		
21 22		Fund Sources: General Special	\$1,126,340 \$70,031	\$1,126,340 \$70,031		
23		Authority: Title 17.1, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia				
24 25 26 27 28 29		A. For any fiscal impact statement prepared by th Commission pursuant to § 30-19.1:4, Code of Virgin not have sufficient information to project the impa- minimum fiscal impact of \$50,000 to the bill and this of each such bill, but shall not be codified. The provi shall be applicable to any such bill.	ia, for which the ct, the commission amount shall be p	commission does on shall assign a rinted on the face		
30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47		B. The clerk of each circuit court shall provide th Commission case data in an electronic format from it the statewide Circuit Case Management System Management System is used by the clerk, when re Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court shall provid Commission. The Commission may use the data for purposes only and shall ensure the confidentialit Commission shall only publish statistical reports and ar for its annual reports or for other reports as require Commission shall not publish personal or case identif social security numbers and dates of birth, that may be management system. Upon transfer to the Virginia G such data shall not be subject to the Virginia Freedom publishing of personal or case identifying information numbers and dates of birth, the restrictions in th Commission from sharing aggregate data when requ Assembly, the Office of the Attorney General, the Offit the Governor's Cabinet.	s own case manage. If the statewide equested by the Q e for the transfer of research, evaluate y and security of halyses based on the ed by the General ying information, be included in the Criminal Sentence of Information A n, including name is section shall ested by a member	gement system or de Circuit Case Commission, the of such data to the ion, or statistical of the data. The his data as needed l Assembly. The including names, data from a case ing Commission, ct. Except for the ss, social security not prohibit the er of the General		
48 49		Total for Virginia Criminal Sentencing Commission			\$1,196,371	\$1,196,371
50 51		General Fund Positions Position Level	10.00 10.00	10.00 10.00		
52		Fund Sources: General	\$1,126,340	\$1,126,340		

	ITEM 48.		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Special	\$70,031	\$70,031	F 12017	F 1 2020
2		§ 1-19. VIRGINIA	STATE BAR (11	7)		
3 4	49.	Legal Defense (32700)			\$12,141,473	\$12,141,473 \$14,766,473
5		Criminal Indigent Defense Services (32701)	\$352,500	\$352,500		<i>\$11,700,770</i>
6 7		Indigent Defense, Civil (32704)	\$11,788,973	\$11,788,973 \$14,413,973		
8 9		Fund Sources: General	\$4,791,473	\$4,791,473 \$7,416,473		
10		Special	\$7,350,000	\$7,350,000		
11		Authority: § 17.1-278, Code of Virginia.				
12 13 14 15		A. The Virginia State Bar and the Legal Services Corpo provided for in this act, and those available from finar 3916, Code of Virginia, to file lawsuits on behalf of a violation of law.	ncial institutions pu	arsuant to § 54.1-		
16 17 18 19		B.1. The amounts for Indigent Defense, Civil, include u \$75,000 the second year from the general fund for th provide indigent defense services in matters related to services involving the rights and responsibilities of ta	e Community Tax taxation disputes	k Law Project, to		
20 21 22		2. The amounts for Indigent Defense, Civil, include up t \$4,350,000 $$6,975,000$ the second year from the gene quality civil legal assistance to low income Virginians a	eral fund to provid	le grants for high		
23 24 25 26		3. The amounts for Indigent Defense, Criminal, include u \$352,500 the second year from the general fund to pr Representation Resource Center for representation to p and to promote equal access to justice.	ovide grants to the	Virginia Capital		
27 28 29 30 31 32		C. The Virginia State Bar and the Legal Services Corpor about January 1, provide a report to the Chairmen of the Finance Committees, and the Director, Department of status of legal services assistance programs in the Com- but not be limited to, efforts to maintain and improve opening and case closure information, and program as	he House Appropri Planning and Bud monwealth. The re the accuracy of ca	ations and Senate get regarding the port shall include, useload data, case		
33 34	50.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000) Lawyer Regulation (56019)	\$15,240,451	\$15,240,451	\$15,240,451	\$15,240,451
35		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$15,240,451	\$15,240,451		
36 37		Authority: Title 54.1, Chapter 39, Article 2 and §§ 54. Virginia.	.1-3935 through 54	.1-3938, Code of		
38 39 40 41 42		A. It is the intention of the General Assembly that the activities toward the purposes of regulating the legal pro- legal services available to the people of the Commonwer possible, the Virginia State Bar shall refrain from con- necessarily or reasonably related to the above stated	ofession and improve ealth, and that, insome mmercial or other	ying the quality of of ar as reasonably		
43 44 45 46 47		B. Out of the amounts appropriated for this Item, \$1,000 second year from revenues generated from the assess Court of Virginia upon members of the Virginia State Acts of Assembly, is provided for transfer to the Clients' Bar.	nent of annual fee Bar, pursuant to C	s by the Supreme Chapter 847, 2007		
48 49 50		C. The Virginia State Bar shall review its member fee st to ensure fees are set at amounts needed only to cover co balance.				

		Item Details(\$)			Appropriations(\$)		
ITEM 50		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020		
1 2	Total for Virginia State Bar			\$27,381,924	\$27,381,924 \$30,006,924		
3	Nongeneral Fund Positions	89.00	89.00				
4	Position Level	89.00	89.00				
5 6	Fund Sources: General	\$4,791,473	\$4,791,473 \$7,416,473				
7	Special	\$7,350,000	\$7,350,000				
8	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$15,240,451	\$15,240,451				
9 10	TOTAL FOR JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT			\$529,358,799	\$538,749,664 \$542,299,927		
11 12	General Fund Positions	3,267.71	3,267.71 3,287.71				
13	Nongeneral Fund Positions	106.00	106.00				
14 15	Position Level	3,373.71	3,373.71 <i>3,393.71</i>				
16 17	Fund Sources: General	\$495,685,735	\$505,076,600 \$508,626,863				
18	Special	\$9,457,292	\$9,457,292				
19	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$22,915,772	\$22,915,772				
20	Federal Trust	\$1,300,000	\$1,300,000				

	ITEM 51.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		EXECUTIVE D	DEPARTMENT			
2		EXECUTIV	E OFFICES			
3		§ 1-20. OFFICE OF TH	HE GOVERNOR	(121)		
4 5	51.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$4,345,601	\$4,345,601	\$4,345,601	\$4,345,601
		Fund Sources: General	\$4,345,601	\$4,345,601		
6						
7		Authority: Article V, Constitution of Virginia; Title 2.2, C	-	-		
8 9		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the salary of th and \$175,000 the second year.	e Governor, \$175,	,000 the first year		
10 11		B. Out of the amounts for General Management and Dire for the Governor's discretionary expenses.	ction, \$75,000 eac	h year is included		
12	52.	Historic and Commemorative Attraction			\$775 5CC	\$775 5(C
13 14		Management (50200) Executive Mansion Operations (50207)	\$775,566	\$775,566	\$775,566	\$775,566
15		Fund Sources: General	\$775,566	\$775,566		
16		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
17 18	53.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100) Intergovernmental Relations (70101)	\$504,883	\$504,883	\$504,883	\$504,883
10		Fund Sources: General	\$347,307	\$347,307		
20		Commonwealth Transportation	\$157,576	\$157,576		
21		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 3, Code of Virginia.				
22 23 24	54.	Disaster Planning and Operations (72200) Disaster Operations (72202) Disaster Assistance (72203)	a sum suffic a sum suffic		a sum suffi	cient
25		Authority: Title 44, Chapter 3.2, Code of Virginia.				
26 27 28 29 30 31		A.1. The amount for Disaster Assistance is from al constitutionally restricted, and is to be effective only emergency or authorization by the Governor of the sum Code of Virginia. Any appropriation authorized by thi agencies for payment of eligible costs according to writt such other person or persons as may be designated by hi	in the event of a sufficient, pursuar s Item shall be tra en directions of th	declared state of at to § 44-146.28, ansferred to state e Governor or by		
32 33 34		2. Any amount authorized for expenditure pursuant to § 4 paid to eligible jurisdictions in accordance with guideline Department of Emergency Management, pursuant to § 44	es and procedures e	established by the		
35 36 37 38 39		B. In the event of a Presidentially declared disaster, the assistance, hazard mitigation, or flood control programs in determined in accordance with the procedures in the "Cor Operations Plan, Basic Plan," promulgated by the Depart The state share of any such program shall be no less that	n which the state part mmonwealth of Vir rtment of Emerger	articipates will be rginia Emergency		
40		Total for Office of the Governor			\$5,626,050	\$5,626,050
41		General Fund Positions	42.67	42.67		
42 43		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	1.33 44.00	1.33 44.00		
43						
44		Fund Sources: General	\$5,468,474	\$5,468,474		

ITEM 54.			Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
	Commonwealth Transportation	\$157,576	\$157,576		
	§ 1-21. LIEUTENANT	GOVERNOR ((119)		
55.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$378,564	\$378,564	\$378,564	\$378,564
	Fund Sources: General	\$378,564	\$378,564		
	Authority: Article V, Sections 13, 14, and 16, Constit Chapter 2, Article 3, Code of Virginia.	tution of Virginia	a; and Title 24.2,		
	Out of this appropriation shall be paid:				
	1. The salary of the Lieutenant Governor, \$36,321 the year;	first year and \$3	6,321 the second		
			Assembly on the		
	3. Salaries and benefits for compensation of up to three Lieutenant Governor.	staff positions in	the Office of the		
	Total for Lieutenant Governor			\$378,564	\$378,564
	General Fund Positions Position Level	4.00 4.00	4.00 4.00		
	Fund Sources: General	\$378,564	\$378,564		
	§ 1-22. ATTORNEY GENERAL AN	D DEPARTME	NT OF LAW (141)	
56.	Legal Advice (32000) State Agency/Local Legal Assistance and Advice (32002)	\$35,281,792	\$34,488,235	\$35,281,792	\$34,488,235
	Fund Sources: General Special Federal Trust	\$21,638,570 \$11,598,833 \$2,044,389	\$21,638,570 \$11,598,833 \$1,250,832		
	Authority: Title 2.2 Chapter 5, Code of Virginia.				
	A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid:				
	1. The salary of the Attorney General, \$150,000 the fi year.	rst year and \$15	0,000 the second		
	2. Expenses of the Attorney General not otherwise reim monthly installments.	bursed, \$9,000 e	ach year in equal		
	3. Salary expenses necessary to provide legal services Code of Virginia.	s pursuant to Titl	e 2.2, Chapter 5,		
	the general fund is designated for efforts to enforce the Agreement and Article 1 (§ 3.2-4200, et seq.), Chapter 4 Department of Law shall be responsible for enforcemen Chapter 42, Title 3.2, Code of Virginia and the 19 Agreement. The general fund shall be reimbursed of Tobacco Indemnification and Community Revitalization Settlement Fund for costs associated with the enforcer Settlement Agreement pursuant to transfers directed by and § 3-1.01, Paragraph N of this act. C. Upon notification by the Attorney General, agencie	1998 Tobacco M 42, Title 3.2, Code at of Article 1 (§ 3 998 Tobacco Ma 998 Tobacco Ma 9998 Tobacco Ma 999 Tobacco Ma 990 To	Master Settlement e of Virginia. The 3.2-4200, et seq.), aster Settlement l basis from the Virginia Tobacco Tobacco Master aphs A.2 and B.2,		
	55.	Sommonwealth Transportation	ITEM 54. First Year FY2019 Commonwealth Transportation \$157,576 \$ 1-21. LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR (55. Administrative and Support Services (79900) \$378,564 Fund Sources: General \$378,564 Authority: Article V, Sections 13, 14, and 16, Constitution of Virginia Chapter 2, Article 3, Code of Virginia. Out of this appropriation shall be paid: 1. The salary of the Lieutenant Governor, \$36,521 the first year and \$3 year; 2. Expenses of the Lieutenant Governor during sessions of the General same basis as for the members of the General Assembly; 3. Salaries and benefits for compensation of up to three staff positions in Lieutenant Governor. 4.00 Total for Lieutenant Governor 4.00 Position Level 4.00 Position Level 4.00 Pund Sources: General \$378,564 S122. ATTORNEY GENERAL AND DEPARTME 56. Legal Advice (32000) \$35,281,792 Fund Sources: General \$21,638,570 Special \$11,598,833 Federal Trust \$2,044,389 Authority: Title 2.2 Chapter 5, Code of Virginia. A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid: 1. The salary of the Attorney General, \$150,000 the first year and \$15 year. Salary expenses necessary to provide legal servic	First Year Second Year Commonwealth Transportation \$157,576 \$157,576 Stor,576 \$157,576 \$157,576 Stor,777 \$168,277,564 \$378,564 Authority: Article 3, Code of Virginia. Out of this appropriation shall be paid: 1. 1. The salary of the Lieutenant Governor, \$36,321 the first year and \$36,321 the second year; 2. Expenses of the Lieutenant Governor. 3. Salaries and benefits for compensation of up to three staff positions in the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 4.00 4.00 Fund Sources: General \$378,564 \$378,564 \$378,564 \$101 for Lieutenant Governor. Stor of Legal Advice (32000)<	TEEM 54. Pirst Year FY 2019 Second Year FY 2019 First Year FY 2019 Commonwealth Transportation \$157.576 \$157.576 S 1-21. LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR (119) \$378.564 \$378.564 55. Administrative and Support Services (79900) \$378.564 \$378.564 Fund Sources: General \$378.564 \$378.564 \$378.564 Authority: Article V, Sections 13, 14, and 16, Constitution of Virginia; and Title 24.2, Chapter 2, Article 3, Code of Virginia. Statistical Statis Statistical Statistical Statistical Statis

				n Details(\$)		iations(\$)
	ITEM 56.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		Department of Law the necessary funds to cover the cos such nongeneral funds. The Attorney General, in com- heads, shall determine the amounts for transfer. It is the legal services provided by the Office of the Attorney programs shall be provided out of this appropriation.	sts of legal services sultation with the intent of the Gene	respective agency eral Assembly that		
6 7 8 9 10 11 12		D. At the request of the Attorney General, the Director, shall provide an amount not to exceed \$100,000 per year Reserve Account to pay the compensation, fees, and exp Office of the Attorney General in actions brought pursu to cause court facilities to be made secure, or put in go and (ii) counsel representing court personnel, including arising out of their official duties.	from the Miscellar penses of (i) counse ant to § 15.2-1643, od repair, or render	eous Contingency l appointed by the Code of Virginia, red otherwise safe,		
13 14 15 16 17		E.1. Pursuant to Chapter 577 of the Acts of Assembly General shall provide legal service in civil matters and and other legal actions to soil and water conservation de request of those district directors or districts at no char other costs associated with litigation, excluding the pay	consultation and le istrict directors and ge, inclusive of all	gal advice in suits districts upon the		
18 19 20 21 22 23		2. If the Office of the Attorney General is unable to p water conservation districts, and as a result the distri counsel, then the Director of the Department of Planni fund appropriations from the Office of the Attorn Conservation and Recreation in an amount equal to the conservation districts to be used to reimburse the distri	cts incur costs fro ng and Budget sha ney General to th e cost incurred by	m retaining other ll transfer general e Department of the soil and water		
24 25 26 27 28		F. The Attorney General shall prepare and submit a r Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by 2 expenditures in the prior fiscal year for special outsid agencies. The report shall include the reasoning why our rate charged by outside counsel, total expenditures, and	November 1 of ea de counsel by any tside counsel is nec	ch year detailing executive branch		
29 30 31	57.	Medicaid Program Services (45600) Medicaid Fraud Investigation and Prosecution (45614)	\$14,387,303	\$14,387,303	\$14,387,303	\$14,387,303
32 33		Fund Sources: Special Federal Trust	\$3,784,266 \$10,603,037	\$3,784,266 \$10,603,037		
34		Authority: Title 32.1, Chapter 9, Code of Virginia.				
35	58.	Regulation of Business Practices (55200)			\$3,486,677	\$3,486,677
36 37 38		Regulatory and Consumer Advocacy (55201)	\$3,486,677 \$ <i>3</i> ,986,677	\$3,486,677 \$ <i>3</i> ,986,677	\$3,986,677	\$3,986,677
39 40 41		Fund Sources: General Special	\$2,067,020 \$1,419,657 \$1,919,657	\$2,067,020 \$1,419,657 \$ <i>1,919,657</i>		
42		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 5, Code of Virginia.				
43 44 45 46 47		Included in this Item is \$750,000 \$1,250,000 the first second year from special funds for the Regulatory, C Enforcement Revolving Trust Fund as established in It Assembly 1994 and amended herein. The Department of fund any face give product and any face of the second	consumer Advocac em 48 of Chapter 9 of Law is authorize	y, Litigation, and 966 of the Acts of d to deposit to the		

fund any fees, civil penalties, costs, recoveries, or other moneys which from time to time may

become available as a result of regulatory and consumer advocacy litigation, litigation in

which the Office of the Attorney General participates, or civil enforcement efforts including,

but not limited to, those brought pursuant to Article 1 (§ 3.2-4200 et seq.) and Article 3 (§

3.2-4204 et seq.) of Chapter 42 of Title 3.2 of the Code of Virginia. The Department of Law

is also authorized to deposit to the fund any attorneys' fees which from time to time may be

obtained. Any deposit to, and interest earnings on, the fund shall be retained in the fund,

provided, however, that any amounts contained in the fund that exceed \$750,000 on the final

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

	ITEM 58.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7		day of the fiscal year shall be deposited to the credit of uses of the fund permitted by Item 48 of Chapter 966 o fund may be used to pay costs associated with enforcer 3.2-4200 et seq.) and Article 3 (§ 3.2-4204 et seq.) of of Virginia, costs associated with litigation initiated by and costs associated with civil commitment procedures of the Code of Virginia.	f the Acts of Assen nent efforts pursua Chapter 42 of Title the Office of the A	mbly of 1994, the ant to Article 1 (§ e 3.2 of the Code Attorney General,		
8 9 10 11 12	59.	Any judgment rendered pursuant to the Virginia Tort state treasury under the direction of the Attorney Gene solely from the general fund shall be paid from the gen funded by both general and nongeneral funds shall be based upon the appropriations from such funds.	ral. Claims against neral fund. Claims	agencies funded against agencies		
13 14	60.	Personnel Management Services (70400) Compliance and Enforcement (70414)	\$492,241	\$492,241	\$492,241	\$492,241
15 16		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$415,792 \$76,449	\$415,792 \$76,449		
17 18		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 26, Article 12, and Cha 15.2-1604, Code of Virginia.	apter 39; Title 15.	2, Chapter 16, §		
19 20		Total for Attorney General and Department of Law			\$53,648,013 \$54,148,013	\$52,854,456 \$53,354,456
21 22 23		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	236.75 203.25 440.00	236.75 203.25 440.00		
24 25 26 27		Fund Sources: General Special Federal Trust	\$24,121,382 \$16,802,756 \$ <i>17,302,756</i> \$12,723,875	\$24,121,382 \$16,802,756 \$ <i>17,302,756</i> \$11,930,318		
28		Division of Debt	t Collection (143)			
29 30 31	61.	Collection Services (74000) State Collection Services (74001) State Fraud Recovery Services (74002)	\$2,536,631 \$218,816	\$2,536,631 \$218,816	\$2,755,447	\$2,755,447
32		Fund Sources: Special	\$2,755,447	\$2,755,447		
 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 5 and Title 8.01, Chapter 3 A. 1. The Division of Debt Collection shall provide leg collection of funds owed the Commonwealth, includ pursuant to the Virginia Fraud Against Taxpayers Act the Commonwealth as defined by 8.01-216.2. All agend procedures for collection of funds owed the Commonw 2.2-4800 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, and all ag subdivisions shall follow the procedures for recovery and 8.01-216.1 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, except this act.	vice related to the of certain funds 216.1 et seq.) by s shall follow the in §§ 2.2-518 and ns, and political ied in §§ 2.2-518			
43 44 45 46 47 48 49		 The provisions of this section shall not apply to recoveries related to matters handled under the autho Control Unit within the Department of Law pursuant to et seq. All matters pertaining to the recovery of such M fines, and penalties received pursuant to FATA, an provisions of this section. B.1. The Division of Debt Collection is entitled to ret 	rity granted to the o the provisions of Medicaid funds, in- re specifically ex	Medicaid Fraud 42 C.F.R. § 1007 cluding damages, cluded from the		
50		revenues generated by its collection services pursuan	-			

			Iten	n Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 61.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		costs supported by the appropriation in this item.				
2 3 4 5 6		2. Upon closing its books at the end of the fiscal year, state agencies having claims collected by the Division or retain up to a \$400,000 balance in its operating accorr operating accounts that exceed \$400,000 on the final dat to the credit of the general fund no later than September	of Debt Collection, unts. Any amounts y of the fiscal year	, the Division may s contained in the shall be deposited		
7 8 9 10		3. The Division of Debt Collection is entitled to retain a any funds recovered on behalf of the Commonwealth a awarded to the Commonwealth pursuant to FATA for it paragraph A., to pay operating costs supported by the a	s well as any separ s fraud recovery se	rate attorney's fees ervices pursuant to		
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		4. There shall be created on the books of the Comptroll fund to be known as the Fraud Recovery Fund (FATA deposit to the FATA Fund any revenue, fees, civil p moneys which from time to time may become availa services. The Division is also authorized to deposit to which from time to time may be awarded to the Commo earnings on, the FATA Fund shall be retained in the FA 30% of any funds recovered as well as any separa Commonwealth pursuant to FATA, and shall transfer the state agencies and political subdivisions on a periodic approved by the Division.	Fund). The Division enalties, costs, read ble as a result of it the FATA Fund a powealth. Any deport ATA Fund. The Di ate attorney's fees ne remaining funds	on is authorized to coveries, or other its fraud recovery my attorneys' fees osit to, and interest vision shall retain s awarded to the to the appropriate		
22 23		5. The Director, Department of Planning and Budg provisions in paragraph B.2. if the Division of Del				
24 25		C. The Division of Debt Collection may contract wi collection of debts amounting to less than \$15,000.	th private collecti	on agents for the		
26		Total for Division of Debt Collection			\$2,755,447	\$2,755,447
27 28		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	27.00 27.00	27.00 27.00		
29		Fund Sources: Special	\$2,755,447	\$2,755,447		
30 31 32		Grand Total for Attorney General and Department of Law			\$56,403,460 \$56,903,460	\$55,609,903 \$56,109,903
33		General Fund Positions	236.75	236.75		
34		Nongeneral Fund Positions	230.25	230.25		
35		Position Level	467.00	467.00		
36 37 38 39		Fund Sources: General Special Federal Trust	\$24,121,382 \$19,558,203 \$20,058,203 \$12,723,875	\$24,121,382 \$19,558,203 <i>\$20,058,203</i> \$11,930,318		
40		§ 1-23. SECRETARY OF TH	IE COMMONWE	CALTH (166)		
41 42 43	62.	Central Records Retention Services (73800)	\$1,461,447	\$1,461,447	\$2,251,576 \$3,751,576	\$2,251,576
43 44 45		Appointments (73801)	\$2,961,447 \$2,961,447 \$69,269	\$69,269		
4 6		Judicial Support Services (73803)	\$564,052	\$564,052		
47		Lobbyist and Organization Registrations (73804)	\$14,993	\$14,993		
48		Notaries Commissioning (73805)	\$141,815	\$141,815		
49 50		Fund Sources: General	\$2,158,598 \$3,658,598	\$2,158,598		
51		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$92,978	\$92,978		

	ITEM 62.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Authority: §§ 2.2-400 through 2.2-435, 2.2-3106, Code	e of Virginia.			
2 3		A. The fee charged by the Secretary of the Commonw 409, Code of Virginia, for a Service of Process shall be		visions of § 2.2-		
4 5 6		B. Included in the general fund appropriation for this related to the Virginia Indian Advisory Board, pursu 814 of the 2016 General Assembly.				
7 8 9		C. Included in the general fund appropriation for this support of education, outreach and preparation for concensus.				
10 11		Total for Secretary of the Commonwealth			\$2,251,576 \$3,751,576	\$2,251,576
12 13		General Fund Positions Position Level	17.00 17.00	17.00 17.00		
14 15		Fund Sources: General	\$2,158,598 \$3,658,598	\$2,158,598		
16		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$92,978	\$92,978		
17		§ 1-24. OFFICE OF THE STAT	E INSPECTOR G	ENERAL (147)		
18 19	63.	Inspection, Monitoring, and Auditing Services (78700)			\$6,844,033	\$6,844,033
20 21		Inspection and Compliance of Program Operations (78701)	\$6,844,033	\$6,844,033	+ •,• • •,•••	<i></i>
22		Fund Sources: General	\$4,631,281	\$4,631,281		
23 24		Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$282,390 \$1,930,362	\$282,390 \$1,930,362		
25		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 3.2, Code of Virginia.				
26 27 28		A. Out of this appropriation shall be paid the annual s $\frac{157,945}{157,430}$ from July 1, $\frac{2016}{2018}$ to June 30, from July 1, $\frac{2017}{2017}$ 2019 to June 30, $\frac{2018}{2020}$.				
29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37		B. The Office of the State Inspector General shall be responsible for investigating the management and operations of state agencies and nonstate agencies to determine whether acts of fraud, waste, abuse, or corruption have been committed or are being committed by state officers or employees or any officers or employees of a nonstate agency, including any allegations of criminal acts affecting the operations of state agencies or nonstate agencies. However, no investigation of an elected official of the Commonwealth to determine whether a criminal violation has occurred, is occurring, or is about to occur under the provisions of § 52-8.1 shall be initiated, undertaken, or continued except upon the request of the Governor, the Attorney General, or a grand jury.				
38 39 40 41 42 43 44		C. The Office of the State Inspector General shall b recommending standards for those internal audit progr and developing and maintaining other internal aud nonstate agencies as needed in order to ensure that the to appropriate internal management controls. The Stat condition of the accounting, financial, and administra nonstate agencies.	ams in existence as it programs in sta Commonwealth's a e Inspector Genera	s of July 1, 2012, te agencies and assets are subject l shall assess the		
45 46 47 48		D. The Office of the State Inspector General shall b notification to the appropriate attorney for the Con agencies whenever the State Inspector General has reas been a violation of state criminal law.	nmonwealth and la	aw-enforcement		
49 50 51		E. The Office of the State Inspector General shall be understanding their rights and the processes avail regarding the activities of a state agency or nonstate ag	able to them to ex	xpress concerns		

				Details(\$)		iations(\$)
	ITEM 63.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		the foregoing;				
2 3 4 5 6 7 8		F.1. The Office of the State Inspector General shall coordination and management of a program to train intern Inspector General shall assist internal auditors of state ag continued professional education as required by profess State Inspector General shall coordinate its efforts with s and offer training programs to the internal auditors as we programs for the internal auditors.	nal auditors. The C gencies and institu sional standards. 7 tate institutions of	Office of the State tions in receiving The Office of the higher education		
9 10 11 12 13		2. To fund the direct costs of hiring training instructors General is authorized to collect fees from training partici internal auditors. A nongeneral fund appropriation of \$125 second year is provided for use by the Office of the State collection of payments from training participants for this	pants to provide t 5,000 the first year e Inspector Gener	raining events for and \$125,000 the		
14		Total for Office of the State Inspector General			\$6,844,033	\$6,844,033
15		General Fund Positions	24.00	24.00		
16		Nongeneral Fund Positions	16.00	16.00		
17		Position Level	40.00	40.00		
18		Fund Sources: General	\$4,631,281	\$4,631,281		
19		Special	\$282,390	\$282,390		
20		Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,930,362	\$1,930,362		
21		§ 1-25. INTERSTATE ORGANIZ	ATION CONTRI	BUTIONS (921)		
22	64.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100)			\$190,939	\$190,939
23		Interstate Affairs (70103)	\$190,939	\$190,939		
24		Fund Sources: General	\$190,939	\$190,939		
25		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
26 27		Out of the amounts for Interstate Affairs funding is provide memberships:	ded for the followi	ing organizational		
28		1. National Association of State Budget Officers				
29		2. National Governors' Association				
30		3. Federal Funds Information for States				
31		Total for Interstate Organization Contributions			\$190,939	\$190,939
32		Fund Sources: General	\$190,939	\$190,939		
33 34		TOTAL FOR EXECUTIVE OFFICES			\$71,694,622 \$73,694,622	\$70,901,065 \$71,401,065
35		General Fund Positions	324.42	324.42		
36		Nongeneral Fund Positions	247.58	247.58		
37		Position Level	572.00	572.00		
38 39		Fund Sources: General	\$36,949,238 \$38,449,238	\$36,949,238		
40		Special	\$19,840,593 \$20,340,503	\$19,840,593		
41 42		Commonwealth Transportation	\$20,340,593 \$2,087,938	\$20,340,593 \$2,087,938		
42 43		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,087,938 \$92,978	\$2,087,938 \$92,978		
43 44		Federal Trust	\$12,723,875	\$11,930,318		
••			,-=0,0,0	,-00,010		

			Iter	m Details(\$)	Approp	riations(\$)
	ITEM 65.		First Yea FY2019		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
			F 1 2019	F 1 2020	F 1 2019	F 1 2020
1		OFFICE OF AI	OMINISTRATIO	N		
2		§ 1-26. SECRETARY OF	ADMINISTRA	ΓΙΟΝ (180)		
3 4	65.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$1,685,650 \$3,038,191	\$1,685,650
5 6		General Management and Direction (79901)	\$894,350 \$2,246,891	\$894,350	<i>\$6,600,171</i>	
7		Accounting and Budgeting Services (79903)	\$791,300	\$791,300		
8 9		Fund Sources: General	\$1,685,650 \$3,038,191	\$1,685,650		
10		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Code of Virginia.				
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		A. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, the Secretary of Technology referenced in § 2.2-203.1, § 2.2-437, § 2.2-1617, § 2.2-2005, § 2.2-2006, § 2.2-20 2699.7, § 2.2-2817.1, § 2.2-2822, § 2.2-3503, § 2.2- 497, and § 59.1-550, Code of Virginia, shall I Administration. Notwithstanding any contrary pr responsibilities of the Secretary of Technology refere shall be divided between the Secretary of Administra and Trade as determined by the Governor.	2.2-213.3, § 2.2-2 007, § 2.2-2220, § 3504, § 2.2-3803, be executed by ovision of law, nced in § 2.2-225	222.3, § 2.2-436, § 2.2-2699.5, § 2.2- § 30-279, § 59.1- the Secretary of the authority and , Code of Virginia,		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26		B. Out of this appropriation, \$1,352,541 the first year to support a data sharing and analytics program database to identify data elements and document use also support the creation of an enterprise data diction platform. Agencies, as defined in Chapter 679 of t cooperate with the Secretary of Administration to fu analytics program.	for the purpose, r access patterns, nary and a cloud-l he Acts of Assem	s of developing a The database will based data catalog bly of 2018, shall		
27 28		Total for Secretary of Administration			\$1,685,650 \$3,038,191	\$1,685,650
29 30		General Fund Positions Position Level	13.00 13.00	13.00 13.00		
31 32		Fund Sources: General	\$1,685,650 \$3,038,191	\$1,685,650		
33		§ 1-27. COMPENS.	ATION BOARD	(157)		
34 35 36	66.	Financial Assistance for Sheriffs' Offices and Regional Jails (30700)			\$472,543,575	\$474,116,781 \$473,269,695
37 38 39		Financial Assistance for Regional Jail Operations (30710)	\$153,565,798	\$155,086,091 \$154,239,005		÷···;_··;
40 41		Financial Assistance for Local Law Enforcement (30712)	\$95,346,637	\$95,346,637		
42 43		Financial Assistance for Local Court Services (30713)	\$57,246,941	\$57,246,941		
44		Financial Assistance to Sheriffs (30716)	\$12,611,106	\$12,611,106		
45 46		Financial Assistance for Local Jail Operations (30718)	\$153,773,093	\$153,826,006		
47		Fund Sources: General	\$464,543,575	\$466,116,781		
48 49		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$8,000,000	\$465,269,695 \$8,000,000		
50 51		Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 3 and 6.1; of Virginia.	and §§ 53.1-83.1	and 53.1-85, Code		

	ITEM 66.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020		Second Year	Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020	
1 2 3 4 5 6		A.1. The annual salaries of the sher be as hereinafter prescribed, accor whether the sheriff is charged with only, or the added responsibilitie Execution of arrest warrants sh responsibilities for the purpose of	ding to the population of the ci civil processing and courtroom es of law enforcement or oper all not, in and of itself, const	ty or count security ration of a stiute law	nty served and esponsibilities jail, or both. enforcement		
7 8 9 10		2. Whenever a sheriff is such for a aggregate population of such politic arriving at the salary of such sherif receive as additional compensation	cal subdivisions shall be the population of the provisions of this iteration.	ulation for em and suc	the purpose of		
11			July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019	Decer	nber 1, 2019
			to		to		to
12			June 30, 2019	Nov	ember 30, 2019	J	une 30, 2020
13 14		Law Enforcement and Jail Responsibility					
15		Less than 10,000	\$69,439		\$69,439		\$69,439
16					\$70,828		\$70,828
17 18		10,000 to 19,999	\$79,813		\$79,813 \$81,409		\$79,813 \$81,409
10 19 20		20,000 to 39,999	\$87,708		\$87,708 \$89,462		\$81,409 \$87,708 \$89,462
21		40,000 to 69,999	\$95,335		\$95,335		\$95,335
22					\$97,242		\$97,242
23 24		70,000 to 99,999	\$105,927		\$105,927 \$108,046		\$105,927 \$108,046
2 4 25		100,000 to 174,999	\$117,699		\$103,040		\$108,040 \$117,699
26			<i><i>q</i>11,<i>q</i>3,</i>		\$120,053		\$120,053
27 28		175,000 to 249,999	\$123,892		\$123,892 \$126,370		\$123,892 \$126,370
29 30		250,000 and above	\$137,657		\$137,657 \$140,410		\$137,657 \$140,410
31		Law Enforcement or Jail					
32 33		Less than 10,000	\$68,048		\$68,048 \$69,409		\$68,048 \$69,409
34 35		10,000 to 19,999	\$78,217		\$78,217 \$79,781		\$78,217 \$79,781
36 37		20,000 to 39,999	\$85,952		\$85,952 \$87,671		\$85,952 \$87,671
38		40,000 to 69,999	\$93,428		\$93,428		\$93,428
39 40		70,000 +- 00,000	¢102.900		\$95,297		\$95,297
40 41		70,000 to 99,999	\$103,809		\$103,809 \$105,885		\$103,809 \$105,885
42 43		100,000 to 174,999	\$115,34		\$115,343 \$117,650		\$115,343 \$117,650
44 45		175,000 to 249,999	\$121,415		\$121,415 \$123,843		\$121,415 \$123,843
46 47		250,000 and above	\$135,593		\$135,593 \$138,305		\$135,593 \$138,305

48 No Law Enforcement or Jail49 Responsibility

ITEM 66		1	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Less than 10,000	\$63,940		\$63,940		\$63,940
2	10,000 +- 10,000	¢71.044		\$65,219 \$71.044		\$65,219 \$71,044
3 4	10,000 to 19,999	\$71,044		\$71,044 \$72,465		\$71,044 \$72,465
5	20,000 to 39,999	\$78,936		\$78,936		\$78,936
6 7	40,000 to 69,999	\$87,708		\$80,515 \$87,708		\$80,515 \$87,708
8 9	70,000 to 99,999	\$97,454		\$89,462 \$97,454		\$89,462 \$97,454
10				\$99,403		\$99,403
11 12	100,000 to 174,999	\$108,281		\$108,281 \$110,447		\$108,281 \$110,447
13 14	175,000 to 249,999	\$113,978		\$113,978 \$116,258		\$113,978 \$116,258
15 16	250,000 and above	\$128,021		\$128,021 \$130,581		\$128,021 \$130,581

B. Out of the amounts provided for in this Item, no expenditures shall be made to provide security devices such as magnetometers in standard use in major metropolitan airports. Personnel expenditures for operation of such equipment incidental to the duties of courtroom and courthouse security deputies may be authorized, provided that no additional expenditures for personnel shall be approved for the principal purpose of operating these devices.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 C. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 53.1-120, or any other section of the Code of 24 Virginia, unless a judge provides the sheriff with a written order stating that a substantial 25 security risk exists in a particular case, no courtroom security deputies may be ordered for 26 civil cases, not more than one deputy may be ordered for criminal cases in a district court, 27 and not more than two deputies may be ordered for criminal cases in a circuit court. In 28 complying with such orders for additional security, the sheriff may consider other deputies 29 present in the courtroom as part of his security force.

30 D. Should the scheduled opening date of any facility be delayed for which funds are 31 available in this Item, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may allot such 32 funds as the Compensation Board may request to allow the employment of staff for 33 training purposes not more than 45 days prior to the rescheduled opening date for the 34 facility.

35 E. Consistent with the provisions of paragraph B of Item 73, the board shall allocate the 36 additional jail deputies provided in this appropriation using a ratio of one jail deputy for 37 every 3.0 beds of operational capacity. Operational capacity shall be determined by the 38 Department of Corrections. No additional deputy sheriffs shall be provided from this 39 appropriation to a local jail in which the present staffing exceeds this ratio unless the jail is 40 overcrowded. Overcrowding for these purposes shall be defined as when the average 41 annual daily population exceeds the operational capacity. In those jails experiencing 42 overcrowding, the board may allocate one additional jail deputy for every five average 43 annual daily prisoners above operational capacity. Should overcrowding be reduced or 44 eliminated in any jail, the Compensation Board shall reallocate positions previously 45 assigned due to overcrowding to other jails in the Commonwealth that are experiencing 46 overcrowding.

47 F. Two-thirds of the salaries set by the Compensation Board of medical, treatment, and 48 inmate classification positions approved by the Compensation Board for local correctional 49 facilities shall be paid out of this appropriation.

G.1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly for this purpose, the 50 Compensation Board shall provide for a master deputy pay grade to those sheriffs' offices 51 52 which had certified, on or before January 1, 1997, having a career development plan for 53 deputy sheriffs that meet the minimum criteria set forth by the Compensation Board for 54 such plans. The Compensation Board shall allow for additional grade 9 positions, at a 55 level not to exceed one grade 9 master deputy per every five Compensation Board grade 7 56 and 8 deputy positions in each sheriff's office.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2. Each sheriff who desires to participate in the Master Deputy Program who had not certified a career development plan on or before January 1, 1997, may elect to participate by certifying to the Compensation Board that the career development plan in effect in his office meets the minimum criteria for such plans as set by the Compensation Board. Such election shall be made by July 1 for an effective date of participation the following July 1.

ITEM 66.

1

2

3

4

5

6 3. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly for this purpose, funding shall be
7 provided by the Compensation Board for participation in the Master Deputy Program to
8 sheriffs' offices electing participation after January 1, 1997, according to the date of receipt by
9 the Compensation Board of the election by the sheriff.

- 10 H. The Compensation Board shall estimate biannually the number of additional law 11 enforcement deputies which will be needed in accordance with § 15.2-1609.1, Code of 12 Virginia. Such estimate of the number of positions and related costs shall be included in the 13 board's biennial budget request submission to the Governor and General Assembly. The 14 allocation of such positions, established by the Governor and General Assembly in Item 73 of 15 this act, shall be determined by the Compensation Board on an annual basis. The annual 16 allocation of these positions to local sheriffs' offices shall be based upon the most recent final 17 population estimate for the locality that is available to the Compensation Board at the time 18 when the agency's annual budget request is completed. The source of such population 19 estimates shall be the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service of the University of Virginia 20 or the United States Bureau of the Census. For the first year of the biennium, the 21 Compensation Board shall allocate positions based upon the most recent provisional 22 population estimates available at the time the agency's annual budget is completed.
- I. Any amount in the program Financial Assistance for Sheriffs' Offices and Regional Jails
 may be transferred between Items 66 and 67, as needed, to cover any deficits incurred in the
 programs Financial Assistance for Confinement of Inmates in Local and Regional Facilities,
 and Financial Assistance for Sheriffs' Offices and Regional Jails.
- J.1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly for this purpose, the Compensation
 Board shall provide for a Sheriffs' Career Development Program.
- 2. Following receipt of a sheriff's certification that the minimum requirements of the Sheriffs'
 30 Career Development Program have been met, and provided that such certification is submitted
 31 by sheriffs as part of their annual budget request to the Compensation Board on or before
 32 February 1 of each year, the Compensation Board shall increase the annual salary shown in
 33 paragraph A of this Item by the percentage shown herein for a twelve-month period effective
 34 the following July 1.
- 35 a. 9.3 percent increase for all sheriffs who certify their compliance with the established 36 minimum criteria for the Sheriffs' Career Development Program where such criteria includes 37 that a sheriff has achieved certification in a program agreed upon by the Compensation Board 38 and the Virginia Sheriffs' Institute by Virginia Commonwealth University, or, where such 39 criteria include that a sheriff's office seeking accreditation has been assessed and will be 40 considered for accreditation by the accrediting body no later than March 1, and have achieved 41 accreditation by March 1 from the Virginia Law Enforcement Professional Standards 42 Commission, or the Commission on Accreditation of Law Enforcement agencies, or the 43 American Correctional Association.
- 3. Other constitutional officers' associations may request the General Assembly to include
 certification in a program agreed upon by the Compensation Board and the officers'
 associations by the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service to the requirements for
 participation in their respective career development programs.
- 48 K. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 7, Chapter 15, Title 56, Code of Virginia,
 49 \$\$,000,000 the first year and \$\$,000,000 the second year from the Wireless E-911 Fund is
 50 included in this appropriation for local law enforcement dispatchers to offset dispatch center
 51 operations and related costs.
- L. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 53.1-131 through 53.1-131.3, Code of Virginia, local and regional jails may charge inmates participating in inmate work programs a reasonable daily amount, not to exceed the actual daily cost, to operate the program.

	ITEM 66.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020			iations(\$) Second Year FY2020		
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8		year from the general fund for the Compensation Bo provided by the Virginia Center for Policing Innovati interface between all local and regional jails in the O Automated Victim Notification (SAVIN) system, coordination, and to maintain the interface between SA Registry. All law enforcement agencies receiving generation	Included in this appropriation is \$1,256,649 the first year and \$1,256,649 the second from the general fund for the Compensation Board to contract for services to be vided by the Virginia Center for Policing Innovation to implement and maintain the frace between all local and regional jails in the Commonwealth and the Statewide omated Victim Notification (SAVIN) system, to provide for SAVIN program dination, and to maintain the interface between SAVIN and the Virginia Sex Offender istry. All law enforcement agencies receiving general funds pursuant to this item shal ride the data requirements necessary to participate in the SAVIN system.					
9 10 11		N. Included in this appropriation is \$1,520,293\$673 general fund to support staffing costs associated wit William/Manassas Regional Jail.						
12 13 14	67.	Financial Assistance for Confinement of Inmates in Local and Regional Facilities (35600)			\$61,722,359 \$58,692,757	\$62,745,837 \$59,083,447		
15 16 17 18		Financial Assistance for Local Jail Per Diem (35601) Financial Assistance for Regional Jail Per Diem	\$27,409,763 \$25,894,962	\$27,868,103 \$26,036,908				
18 19 20		(35604)	\$34,312,596 \$32,797,795	\$34,877,734 \$33,046,539				
21 22		Fund Sources: General	\$61,722,359 \$58,692,757	\$62,745,837 \$59,083,447				
23		Authority: §§ 53.1-83.1, 53.1-84 and 53.1-85, Code of	hority: §§ 53.1-83.1, 53.1-84 and 53.1-85, Code of Virginia.					
24 25 26		provisions, any amount remaining as of June 1, 2	In the event the appropriation in this Item proves to be insufficient to fund all of its ovisions, any amount remaining as of June 1, 2019, and June 1, 2020, may be allocated among localities on a pro rata basis according to such deficiency.					
27		B. For the purposes of this Item, the following definitio	For the purposes of this Item, the following definitions shall be applicable:					
28 29		1. Effective sentencea convicted offender's sentence portion of the sentence suspended by the court.	ffective sentencea convicted offender's sentence as rendered by the court less any ion of the sentence suspended by the court.					
30 31 32 33 34		2. Local responsible inmate(a) any person arrested on a local correctional facility, as defined by § 53.1-1, Coo person convicted of a misdemeanor offense and senten- facility; or (c) any person convicted of a felony offense (i) twelve months or less or (ii) less than one year.	le of Virginia, prio ced to a term in a e and given an effe	or to trial; (b) any local correctional				
35 36 37 38 39		3. State responsible inmateany person convicted of o the sum of consecutive effective sentences for felonies 1995, is (i) more than 12 months or (ii) one year or m effective sentences for felonies, committed before J years.	s, committed on o nore, or (b) the su	or after January 1, m of consecutive				
40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		C. The individual or entity responsible for operating from this Item may, if requested by the Departme agreement with the department to accept the transfer of facilities or from facilities operated by the Department such agreements, or in effecting the transfer of offend shall consider the security requirements of transferred local facility to maintain such offenders. For purposes locality, all funds earned by the locality as a result of ar Corrections shall be included as receipts from these app	ns, enter into an , from other local entering into any ent of Corrections e capability of the amount due each					
49 50 51 52		D. Out of this appropriation, an amount not to exe \$377,010 the second year from the general fund, is d unbudgeted medical expenses incurred by local correct responsible felons.	esignated to be he	eld in reserve for				
53 54		E. The following amounts shall be paid out of this app for the cost of maintaining prisoners in local correction						

	Item D)etails(\$)
	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020
Code of Vincinia on if the missner is not house	lin a local compational	£

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

- Code of Virginia, or if the prisoner is not housed in a local correctional facility, in an
 alternative to incarceration program operated by, or under the authority of, the sheriff or jail
 board:
- 4 1. For local responsible inmates--\$4 per inmate day, or, if the inmate is housed and maintained in a jail farm not under the control of the sheriff, the rate shall be \$18 per inmate day.
- 7 2. For state responsible inmates--\$12 per inmate day.

ITEM 67.

8 F. For the payment specified in paragraph E 1 of this Item for prisoners in alternative9 punishment or alternative to incarceration programs:

- 10 1. Such payment is intended to be made for prisoners that would otherwise be housed in a
 11 local correctional facility. It is not intended for prisoners that would otherwise be sentenced to
 12 community service or placed on probation.
- 13
 2. No such payment shall be made unless the program has been approved by the Department
 14 of Corrections or the Department of Criminal Justice Services. Alternative punishment or
 15 alternative to incarceration programs, however, may include supervised work experience,
 16 treatment, and electronic monitoring programs.
- 17 G.1. Except as provided for in paragraph G 2, and notwithstanding any other provisions of
 18 this Item, the Compensation Board shall provide payment to any locality with an average
 19 daily jail population of under ten in FY 1995 an inmate per diem rate of \$18 per day for local
 20 responsible inmates and \$12 per day for state responsible inmates held in these jails in lieu of
 21 personal service costs for corrections' officers.
- 22 2. Any locality covered by the provisions of this paragraph shall be exempt from the 23 provisions thereof provided that the locally elected sheriff, with the assistance of the 24 Compensation Board, enters into good faith negotiations to house his prisoners in an existing 25 local or regional jail. In establishing the per diem rate and capital contribution, if any, to be 26 charged to such locality by a local or regional jail, the Compensation Board and the local 27 sheriff or regional jail authority shall consider the operating support and capital contribution made by the Commonwealth, as required by §§ 15.2-1613, 15.2-1615.1, 53.1-80, and 53.1-81, 28 29 Code of Virginia. The Compensation Board shall report periodically to the Chairmen of the 30 House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on the progress of these negotiations 31 and may withhold the exemption granted by this paragraph if, in the board's opinion, the local 32 sheriff fails to negotiate in good faith.
- 33 H.1. The Compensation Board shall recover the state-funded costs associated with housing 34 federal inmates, District of Columbia inmates or contract inmates from other states. The 35 Compensation Board shall determine, by individual jail, the amount to be recovered by the 36 Commonwealth by multiplying the jail's current inmate days for this population by the 37 proportion of the jail's per inmate day salary funds provided by the Commonwealth, as 38 identified in the most recent Jail Cost Report prepared by the Compensation Board. Beginning 39 July 1, 2009, the Compensation Board shall determine, by individual jail, the amount to be 40 recovered by the Commonwealth by multiplying the jail's current inmate days for this population by the proportion of the jail's per inmate day operating costs provided by the 41 42 Commonwealth, excluding payments otherwise provided for in this Item, as identified in the 43 most recent Jail Cost Report prepared by the Compensation Board. If a jail is not included in 44 the most recent Jail Cost Report, the Compensation Board shall use the statewide average of 45 per inmate day salary funds provided by the Commonwealth.
- 2. The Compensation Board shall deduct the amount to be recovered by the Commonwealth
 from the facility's next quarterly per diem payment for state-responsible and local-responsible
 inmates. Should the next quarterly per diem payment owed the locality not be sufficient
 against which to net the total quarterly recovery amount, the locality shall remit the remaining
 amount not recovered to the Compensation Board.
- 51 3. Any local or regional jail which receives funding from the Compensation Board shall give
 52 priority to the housing of local-responsible, state-responsible, and state contract inmates, in
 53 that order, as provided in paragraph H 1.
- 54 4. The Compensation Board shall not provide any inmate per diem payments to any local or

ITEN	1 67.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	regional jail which holds federal inmates in excess of the m with the Department of Corrections, unless the Director, certifies to the Chairman of the Compensation Board that a required; b) the facility has operational capacity built und government; c) the facility has received a grant from the fede of the capital costs; or d) the facility has applied to the De participation in the contract bed program with a sufficient Department of Corrections' need or ability to fund contrac given fiscal year.	Department a) such contra ler contract v eral governme epartment of number of be	of Corrections, act beds are not with the federal ent for a portion Corrections for eds to meet the		
10 11 12 13 14	5. The Compensation Board shall apply the cost recover paragraph H 1 of this Item to any jail which holds inma contractual basis. However, recovery in such circumstances sheld pending extradition to other states or pending transfer to Corrections.	tes from ano shall not be m	ther state on a ade for inmates		
15 16 17	6. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to any lo cumulative federal share of capital costs exceeds the Commo contribution.	•	0		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	7. For a local or regional jail which operates bed space spec capital or grant funds for the housing of federal inmates a Board funding has never been authorized for staff for such I Board shall allow an exemption from the recovery provi- defined number of federal prisoners upon certification by the the federal government has paid for the construction of provided a grant for a portion of the capital cost. Such certif funding amounts paid by the federal government, loca authorities, and the Commonwealth for the construction of the housing of federal inmates and for the construction of the The defined number of federal prisoners to be exempted fr paragraph H.1. shall be based upon the proportion of f	nd for which bed space, the ded in parage sheriff or sup bed space in ication shall i ilities, and/o ed space spect he jail facility om the recove	Compensation compensation raph H.1. for a erintendent that the facility or include specific r regional jail ifically built for y in its entirety. ery provided in		

- 29 paragraph H.1. shall be based upon the proportion of funding paid by the federal government and localities and/or regional jail authorities for the construction of bed space
 31 to house federal prisoners to the total funding paid by all sources, including the Commonwealth, for all construction costs for the jail facility in its entirety.
 33 8. Beginning March 1, 2013, federal inmates placed in the custody of a regional jail
- 34 by the federal minutes placed in the custody of a regional jain
 34 pursuant to a work release program operated by the federal Bureau of Prisons shall be
 35 exempt from the recovery of costs associated with housing federal inmates pursuant to
 36 paragraph H.1. of this item if such federal inmates have been assigned by the federal
 37 Bureau of Prisons to a home electronic monitoring program in place for such inmates by
 38 agreement with the jail on or before January 1, 2012 and are not housed in the jail facility.
 39 However, no such exemption shall apply to any federal inmate while they are housed in
 40 the regional jail facility.
- I. Any amounts in the program Financial Assistance for Confinement of Inmates in Local and Regional Facilities, may be transferred between Items 66 and 67, as needed, to cover any deficits incurred in the programs Financial Assistance for Sheriffs' Offices and Regional Jails and Financial Assistance for Confinement of Inmates in Local and Regional Facilities.
- 46 J.1. The Compensation Board shall provide an annual report on the number and diagnoses 47 of inmates with mental illnesses in local and regional jails, the treatment services 48 provided, and expenditures on jail mental health programs. The report shall be prepared in 49 cooperation with the Virginia Sheriffs Association, the Virginia Association of Regional 50 Jails, the Virginia Association of Community Services Boards, and the Department of 51 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, and shall be coordinated with the data 52 submissions required for the annual jail cost report. Copies of this report shall be provided 53 by November 1 of each year to the Governor, Director, Department of Planning and 54 Budget, and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees.
- Whenever a person is admitted to a local or regional correctional facility, the staff of the
 facility shall screen such person for mental illness using a scientifically validated
 instrument. The Commissioner of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall

	ITEM 67.		First FY2	Year	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		designate the instrument to be used for the screenin being administered by an employee of the local or health care provider, provided that such employee instrument.	regional correction	al facili	ty, other than a		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12		K. Out of the amounts appropriated in this item, second year from the general fund is provided for Nottoway for the expense of confining residen Rehabilitation arrested for new offenses and held i the County. Reimbursements by the Board are to demonstrated costs incurred by the County of Nott and shall not exceed the amounts provided in Reimbursement of demonstrated costs in the first	the purpose of rein ts of the Virginia (n Piedmont Regiona) be made quarterly oway for confinement in this paragraph	hbursing Center a al Jail at , and sh ent of th for eac	the County of for Behavioral the expense of all be equal to ese individuals, th fiscal year.		
13 14 15 16 17 18		prior fiscal year if not previously reimbursed. In st include expenses incurred in the last month o reimbursed. The County of Nottoway, the Virginia Piedmont Regional Jail shall upon request provide and assistance it determines is necessary to calcula of Nottoway.	the prior fiscal y a Center for Behavior the Compensation	emonstr year if 1 oral Reh Board a	rated costs may not previously abilitation, and ny information		
19 20	68.	Financial Assistance for Local Finance Director (71700)				\$5,627,448	\$5,627,448
21 22		Financial Assistance to Local Finance Director (71701)	\$680,45	3	\$680,453		
23 24		Financial Assistance for Operations of Local Finan Directors (71702)		5	\$4,946,995		
25		Fund Sources: General	\$5,627,44	8	\$5,627,448		
26		Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 2 and 6.	1, Code of Virginia.				
27 28 29 30 31		A.1. The annual salaries of elected or appointed of treasurer and commissioner of the revenue, or el- combined office of county treasurer and comm provisions of § 15.2-1636.17, Code of Virginia, s the services provided, except as otherwise provided	lected or appointed missioner of the re hall be as hereinafte	officer evenue er presci	s who hold the subject to the ribed, based on		
32			July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019	Decen	nber 1, 2019
33		Ju	to 1ne 30, 2019	Nov	to ember 30, 2019	Jı	to 1ne 30, 2020
34		Less than 10,000	\$62,523		\$62,523		\$62,523
35 36 37		10,000-19,999	\$69,473		\$63,773 \$69,473 \$70,862		\$63,773 \$69,473 \$70,862
38 39		20,000-39,999	\$77,193		\$77,193 \$78,737		\$77,193 \$77,193 \$78,737
40		40,000-69,999	\$85,767		\$85,767		\$85,767 \$87,482
41 42		70,000-99,999	\$95,298		\$87,482 \$95,298		\$95,298
43 44		100,000-174,999	\$105,883		\$97,204 \$105,883		\$97,204 \$105,883
45 46		175,000 to 249,999	\$111,459		\$108,001 \$111,459		\$108,001 \$111,459
47 48 49		250,000 and above	\$126,659		\$113,688 \$126,659 \$129,192		\$113,688 \$126,659 \$129,192

50
50
2. Whenever any officer whether elected or appointed, who holds that combined office of city
51
52
53
53
54
55
55
56
57
58
50
50
50
50
50
51
50
50
51
51
52
53
50
51
51
51
52
53
54
55
55
56
57
57
57
57
58
50
50
50
51
51
51
52
53
54
54
55
55
56
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57
57<

	ITEM 68.		It First Ye FY201		Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		B.1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assem Career Development Program shall be made availa appointed officers who hold the combined office commissioner of the revenue subject to the provi Virginia.	ble by the Com e of city or co	pensation Board to unty treasurer and		
6 7 8 9 10		2. The Compensation Board may increase the annual following receipt of the appointed officer's certification the Treasurers' Career Development Program ha certifications are submitted by appointed officers as p the Compensation Board on February 1 of each year.	num requirements of provided that such			
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	69.	Financial Assistance for Local Commissioners of the Revenue (77100) Financial Assistance to Local Commissioners of the Revenue for Tax Value Certification (77101) Financial Assistance for Operations of Local Commissioners of the Revenue (77102) Financial Assistance for State Tax Services by Commissioners of the Revenue (77103)	\$10,265,563 \$7,841,169 \$516,012	\$10,265,563 \$7,841,169 \$516,012	\$18,622,744	\$18,622,744
19 20		Fund Sources: General Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 2 and 6.1, C	\$18,622,744 Code of Virginia.	\$18,622,744		
21 22		A. The annual salaries of county or city commiss hereinafter prescribed, except as otherwise provided i				
23		July 1	1, 2018	July 1, 2019	Decen	nber 1, 2019
24		June 30	to 2019	to November 30, 2019	T.	to 1ne 30, 2020
24		June 30	, 2019	November 50, 2019	JL	ine 30, 2020
25 26		Less than 10,000 \$	62,523	\$62,523 \$63,773		\$62,523 \$63,773

25	Less than 10,000	\$62,523	\$62,523	\$62,523
26			\$63,773	\$63,773
27	10,000-19,999	\$69,473	\$69,473	\$69,473
28			\$70,862	\$70,862
29	20,000-39,999	\$77,193	\$77,193	\$77,193
30			\$78,737	\$78,737
31	40,000-69,999	\$85,767	\$85,767	\$85,767
32			\$87,482	\$87,482
33	70,000-99,999	\$95,298	\$95,298	\$95,298
34			\$97,204	\$97,204
35	100,000-174,999	\$105,883	\$105,883	\$105,883
36			\$108,001	\$108,001
37	175,000 to 249,999	\$111,459	\$111,459	\$111,459
38			\$113,688	\$113,688
39	250,000 and above	\$126,659	\$126,659	\$126,659
40			\$129,192	\$129,192

B. 1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly for this purpose, the Compensation Board shall provide for a Commissioners of the Revenue Career Development Program.

41

42

43

44 2. Following receipt of the commissioner's certification that the minimum requirements of 45 the Commissioners of the Revenue Career Development Program have been met, and 46 provided that such certification is submitted by commissioners of the revenue as part of 47 their annual budget request to the Compensation Board on or before February 1 of each 48 year, the Compensation Board shall increase the annual salary shown in Paragraph A of 49 this Item by the amount shown herein for a 12-month period effective the following July 50 1. The salary supplement shall be based upon the levels of service offered by the 51 commissioner of the revenue for his/her locality and shall be in accordance with the

	ITEM 69.		First Y		Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1		following schedule:	FY20	I9 FY2020	F Y 2019	F ¥ 2020	
2 3 4		a. 4.7 percent increase for all commissioners of the rev	.7 percent increase for all commissioners of the revenue who certify their compliance with established minimum criteria for the Commissioners of the Revenue Career Development				
5 6 7 8		b. 2.3 percent additional increase for all commission compliance with the established minimum criteria for Career Development Program and provide state incom- in the minimum criteria for the Commissioners of the b and	or the Commission e tax or real estate	ners of the Revenue services as described			
9 10 11 12 13		c. 2.3 percent additional increase for all commission compliance with the established minimum criteria for Career Development Program and provide state in described in the minimum criteria for the Commission Program.	or the Commission come tax and read	ners of the Revenue I estate services, as			
14 15		C.1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assemb Board shall provide for a Deputy Commissioners Car					
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		2. For each deputy commissioner selected by th participation in the Deputy Commissioners Career De Board shall increase the annual salary established for receipt of the commissioner of the revenue's certifica the Deputy Commissioners Career Development Prog such certification is submitted by the commissioner budget request to the Compensation Board on or be effective date of salary increase of the following Ju	velopment Progra that position by 9 tion that the minin gram have been m r of the revenue a ofore February 1s	m, the Compensation .3 percent, following num requirements of et, and provided that as part of the annual			
24 25 26	70.	Financial Assistance for Attorneys for the Commonwealth (77200)			\$74,083,743	\$74,083,743 \$74,807,163	
27 28		Financial Assistance to Attorneys for the Commonwealth (77201)	\$16,636,754	\$16,636,754			
29 30 31		Financial Assistance for Operations of Local Attorneys for the Commonwealth (77202)	\$57,446,989	\$57,446,989 \$58,170,409			
32 33		Fund Sources: General	\$73,483,743	\$73,483,743 \$74,207,163			
33 34		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$600,000	\$600,000			
35		Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 4 and 6.1, C	ode of Virginia.				
36 37 38		A.1. The annual salaries of attorneys for the Common according to the population of the city or county ser 15.2-1636.12, Code of Virginia.					
39		July	y 1, 2018	July 1, 2019	Decem	ber 1, 2019	
40		Luna	to 20. 2010	to	T	to ne 30, 2020	
40		June	30, 2019	November 30, 2019	JU		
41 42		Less than 10,000	\$55,408	\$55,408 \$56,516		\$55,408 \$56,516	
43		10,000-19,999	\$61,573	\$61,573		\$61,573	
44		20,000,24,000	¢ (7 700	\$62,804		\$62,804 \$67,728	
45 46		20,000-34,999	\$67,728	\$67,728 \$69,083		\$67,728 \$69,083	
47 48		35,000-44,999	\$121,906	\$121,906 \$124,344		\$121,906 \$124,344	
49 50		45,000-99,999	\$135,449	\$135,449 \$138,158		\$135,449 \$138,158	

			Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 70).		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	100,000-249,999	\$140,529		\$140,529 \$143,340		\$140,529 \$143,340
3 4	250,000 and above	\$145,612		\$145,612 \$148,524		\$145,612 \$148,524

2. The attorneys for the Commonwealth and their successors who serve on a full-time basis pursuant to §§ 15.2-1627.1, 15.2-1628, 15.2-1629, 15.2-1630 or § 15.2-1631, Code of Virginia, shall receive salaries as if they served localities with populations between 35,000 and 44,999.

5

6 7

8

9 3. Whenever an attorney for the Commonwealth is such for a county and city together, or
10 for two or more cities, the aggregate population of such political subdivisions shall be the
11 population for the purpose of arriving at the salary of such attorney for the
12 Commonwealth under the provisions of this paragraph and such attorney for the
13 Commonwealth shall receive as additional compensation the sum of one thousand dollars.

- B. No expenditure shall be made out of this Item for the employment of investigators,
 clerk-investigators or other investigative personnel in the office of an attorney for the
 Commonwealth.
- 17 C. Consistent with the provisions of § 19.2-349, Code of Virginia, attorneys for the 18 Commonwealth may, in addition to the options otherwise provided by law, employ 19 individuals to assist in collection of outstanding fines, costs, forfeitures, penalties, and 20 restitution. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, beginning on the date upon which 21 the order or judgment is entered, the costs associated with employing such individuals 22 may be paid from the proceeds of the amounts collected provided that the cost is 23 apportioned on a pro rata basis according to the amount collected which is due the state 24 and that which is due the locality. The attorneys for the Commonwealth shall account for 25 the amounts collected and apportion costs associated with the collections consistent with procedures issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts. 26
- D. The provisions of this act notwithstanding, no Commonwealth's attorney, public
 defender or employee of a public defender, shall be paid or receive reimbursement for the
 state portion of a salary in excess of the salary paid to judges of the circuit court. Nothing
 in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the ability of localities to supplement the
 salaries of locally elected constitutional officers or their employees.
- 32 E. The Statewide Juvenile Justice project positions, as established under the provisions of 33 Item 74 E, of Chapter 912, 1996 Acts of Assembly, and Chapter 924, 1997 Acts of 34 Assembly, are continued under the provisions of this act. The Commonwealth's attorneys 35 receiving such positions shall annually certify to the Compensation Board that the 36 positions are used primarily, if not exclusively, for the prosecution of delinquency and 37 domestic relations felony cases, as defined by Chapters 912 and 924. In the event the 38 positions are not primarily or exclusively used for the prosecution of delinquency and 39 domestic relations felony cases, the Compensation Board shall reallocate such positions 40 by using the allocation provisions as provided for the board in Item 74 E of Chapters 912 and 924. 41
- F. The Compensation Board shall monitor the Department of Taxation program regarding
 the collection of unpaid fines and court costs by private debt collection firms contracted
 by Commonwealth's attorneys and shall include, in its annual report to the General
 Assembly on the collection of court-ordered fines and fees for clerks of the courts and
 Commonwealth's attorneys, the amount of unpaid fines and costs collected by this
 program.
- 48 G. Out of this appropriation, \$389,165 the first year and \$389,165 the second year from
 49 the general fund is designated for the Compensation Board to fund five additional
 50 positions in Commonwealth's attorney's offices that shall be dedicated to prosecuting
 51 gang-related criminal activities. The board shall ensure that these positions work across
 52 jurisdictional lines, serving the Northern Virginia area (counties of Fairfax, Loudoun,
 53 Prince William, and Arlington and the cities of Falls Church, Alexandria, Manassas,
 54 Manassas Park and Fairfax).
- 55 H. In accordance with the provisions of § 19.2-349, Code of Virginia, attorneys for the

	Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 70.	First Year	Second Year	Fi	
	FY2019	FY2020]	

Appropriations(\$)							
First Year	Second Year						
FY2019	FY2020						

1 Commonwealth may employ individuals, or contract with private attorneys, private collection 2 agencies, or other state or local agencies, to assist in collection of delinquent fines, costs, 3 forfeitures, penalties, and restitution. If the attorney for the Commonwealth employs 4 individuals, the costs associated with employing such individuals may be paid from the 5 proceeds of the amounts collected provided that the cost is apportioned on a pro rata basis 6 according to the amount collected which is due the state and that which is due the locality. If 7 the attorney for the Commonwealth does not undertake collection, the attorney for the 8 Commonwealth shall, as soon as practicable, take steps to ensure that any agreement or 9 contract with an individual, attorney or agency complies with the terms of the current Master 10 Guidelines Governing Collection of Unpaid Delinquent Court-Ordered Fines and Costs 11 Pursuant to Virginia Code § 19.2-349 promulgated by the Office of the Attorney General, the 12 Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court, the Department of Taxation, and the 13 Compensation Board ("the Master Guidelines"). Notwithstanding any other provision of law, 14 the delinquent amounts owed shall be increased by seventeen (17) percent to help offset the 15 costs associated with employing such individuals or contracting with such agencies or 16 individuals. If such increase would exceed the contracted collection agent's fee, then the 17 delinquent amount owed shall be increased by the percentage or amount of the collection 18 agent's fee. Effective July 1, 2015, as provided in § 19.2-349, Code of Virginia, treasurers not 19 being compensated on a contingency basis as of January 1, 2015 shall be prohibited from 20 being compensated on a contingency basis but shall instead be compensated for 21 administrative costs pursuant to § 58.1-3958, Code of Virginia. Treasurers currently 22 collecting a contingency fee shall be eligible to contract on a contingency fee basis. Effective 23 July 1, 2015, any treasurer collecting a contingency fee shall retain only the expenses of 24 collection, and the excess collection shall be divided between the state and the locality in the 25 same manner as if the collection had been done by the attorney for the Commonwealth. The 26 attorneys for the Commonwealth shall account for the amounts collected and the fees and 27 costs associated with the collections consistent with procedures issued by the Auditor of 28 Public Accounts.

29 I. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 7, Chapter 4, Title 38, Code of Virginia, 30 beginning July 1, 2018, \$600,000 each year from the Insurance Fraud Fund is included in this appropriation to fund multi-jurisdictional Assistant Commonwealth's Attorney positions that 31 shall be dedicated to prosecuting insurance fraud and related criminal activities. The 32 33 Department of State Police shall identify those jurisdictions most affected by insurance fraud 34 based upon data provided by the Virginia State Police Insurance Fraud Program. The Virginia 35 State Police Insurance Fraud Program shall ensure that these positions work across 36 jurisdictional lines, serving jurisdictions identified as most in need of these resources as 37 supported by data. These funds shall remain unallocated until the Compensation Board and 38 Virginia State Police notify the Director of the Department of Planning and Budget of the 39 joint agreements reached with the Commonwealth's Attorneys of the jurisdictions receiving 40 the additional Assistant Commonwealth's Attorney positions and the jurisdictions to be served 41 by these positions. The Commonwealth's Attorneys receiving such positions shall annually 42 certify to the Compensation Board that these positions are used primarily, if not exclusively, 43 for the prosecution of insurance fraud and related criminal activities.

44 45	71.	Financial Assistance for Circuit Court Clerks (77300)			\$54,345,586	\$54,345,586
46		Financial Assistance to Circuit Court Clerks (77301).	\$14,077,778	\$14,077,778		
47 48		Financial Assistance for Operations for Circuit Court Clerks (77302)	\$24,432,695	\$24,432,695		
49 50		Financial Assistance for Circuit Court Clerks' Land Records (77303)	\$15,835,113	\$15,835,113		
51 52		Fund Sources: General Trust and Agency	\$46,344,874 \$8,000,712	\$46,344,874 \$8,000,712		

53 Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Article 6.1; §§ 51.1-706 and 51.1-137, Title 17.1, Chapter
54 2, Article 7, Code of Virginia.

A.1. The annual salaries of clerks of circuit courts shall be as hereinafter prescribed.

55

56	July 1, 2018	July 1, 2019	December 1, 2019
	to	to	to

ITEM 71.			Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020		Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020	
1		June 30, 2019	Nov	vember 30, 2019	Ju	ine 30, 2020
2 3	Less than 10,000	\$78,553		\$78,553 \$80,124		\$78,553 \$80,124
4 5	10,000 to 19,999	\$96,795		\$96,795 \$98,731		\$96,795 \$98,731
6 7	20,000-39,999	\$110,825		\$110,825 \$113,042		\$110,825 \$113,042
8 9	40,000-69,999	\$116,435		\$116,435 \$118,764		\$116,435 \$118,764
10 11	70,000-99,999	\$126,251		\$126,251 \$128,776		\$126,251 \$128,776
12 13	100,000-174,999	\$137,476		\$137,476 \$140,226		\$137,476 \$140,226
14 15	175,000-249,999	\$141,742		\$141,742 \$144,577		\$141,742 \$144,577
16 17	250,000 and above	\$145,896		\$145,896 \$148,814		\$145,896 \$148,814

18 2. Whenever a clerk of a circuit court is such for a county and a city, for two or more
19 counties, or for two or more cities, the aggregate population of such political subdivisions
20 shall be the population for the purpose of arriving at the salary of the circuit court clerk
21 under the provisions of this Item.

3. Except as provided in Item 73 A 2, the annual salary herein prescribed shall be full compensation for services performed by the office of the circuit court clerk as prescribed by general law, and for the additional services of acting as general receiver of the court pursuant to § 8.01-582, Code of Virginia, indexing and filing land use application fees pursuant to § 58.1-3234, Code of Virginia, and all other services provided from, or utilizing the facilities of, the office of the circuit court clerk. Pursuant to § 8.01-589, Code of Virginia, the court shall provide reasonable compensation to the office of the clerk of the circuit court for acting as general receiver of the court. Out of the compensation so allowed, the clerk shall pay his bond or bonds. The remainder of the circuit court clerk.

4. In any county or city operating under provisions of law which authorizes the governing
body to fix the compensation of the clerk on a salary basis, such clerk shall receive such
salary as shall be allowed by the governing body. Such salary shall not be fixed at an
amount less than the amount that would be allowed the clerk under paragraphs A 1
through A 3 of this Item.

5. All clerks shall deposit all clerks' fees and state revenue with the State Treasurer in a manner consistent with § 2.2-806, Code of Virginia, unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Board as set forth in § 17.1-284, Code of Virginia or otherwise provided by law.

B. The reports filed by each circuit court clerk pursuant to § 17.1-283, Code of Virginia, for each calendar year shall include all income derived from the performance of any office, function or duty described or authorized by the Code of Virginia whether directly or indirectly related to the office of circuit court clerk, including, by way of description and not limitation, services performed as a commissioner of accounts, receiver, or licensed agent, but excluding private services performed on a personal basis which are completely unrelated to the office. The Compensation Board may suspend the allowance for office expenses for any clerk who fails to file such reports within the time prescribed by law, or when the board determines that such report does not comply with the provisions of this paragraph.

C. Each clerk of the circuit court shall submit to the Compensation Board a copy of the
 report required pursuant to § 19.2-349, Code of Virginia, at the same time that it is
 submitted to the Commonwealth's attorney.

54 D. Included within this appropriation are Trust and Agency funds necessary to support one

			Item I	etails(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 71.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Y FY202
1 2		position to assist circuit court clerks in implementing the re Records Management Task Force Report dated January 1, 1		ns of the Land		
3 4 5 6 7 8		E. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 17.1-279 E, Code of Board may allocate to the clerk of any circuit court funds for the software for a pilot project for the automated application for licenses by such court. Any such funds allocated shall be de pursuant to clause (iii) of § 17.1-279 E for the purposes of the forth in that subsection.				
9 10 11		F. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 17.1-279, Code of Virg may allocate up to \$1,978,426 the first year and \$1,978,426 th Trust Fund moneys for operating expenses in the clerks' office	he second year			
12 13 14 15		G. Notwithstanding § 17.1-287, Code of Virginia, any electer Item may elect to relinquish any portion of his state funded sala 1 of this Item. In any office where the official elects this opt shall ensure the amount relinquished is used to fund salaries	ary established ion, the Comp	in paragraph A ensation Board		
16 17 18 19 20		H.1. For audits of clerks of the circuit court completed after Public Accounts shall report any internal control matter that co- lead to the loss of revenues or assets, or otherwise comprom Auditor of Public Accounts will also report on compliance w financial matters of the clerks' office.	ould be reasonanise fiscal acco	bly expected to untability. The		
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		2. For internal control matters that could be reasonably ex revenues or assets, or otherwise compromise fiscal accountabil Auditor of Public Accounts a written corrective action plan to 10 business days of the audit exit conference, which will state w to remediate the finding. The clerk's response may also address During the next audit, the Auditor of Public Accounts shall de has corrected the finding related to internal control matters that to lead to the loss of revenues or assets, or otherwise comprom	ity, the clerk s any such audit what actions the the other matter termine and re t could be rease	hall provide the findings within e clerk will take ers in the report. port if the clerk onably expected		
29		3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Item 474, the Compensati	on Board shall	not provide any		

- 29 3. Notwithstanding the provisions of Item 474, the Compensation Board shall not provide any 30 salary increase to any circuit court clerk identified by the Auditor of Public Accounts who has not taken corrective action for the matters reported above. 31
- 32 I.1. Subject to appropriation by the General Assembly for this purpose, the Compensation 33 Board may implement a Circuit Court Clerks' Career Development Program.

34

35

36

37

38

39

- 2. Following receipt of a clerk's certification that the minimum requirements of the Clerks' Career Development Program have been met, and provided that such certification is submitted by Clerks as part of their annual budget request to the Compensation Board by February 1 of each year, the Compensation Board shall increase the annual salary shown in Paragraph A.1. of this item by 9.3 percent with the salary increase becoming effective on the following July 1 for a 12-month period.
- 40 J.1. Subject to appropriation by the General Assembly for this purpose, the Compensation 41 Board may implement a Deputy Clerks of Circuit Courts' Career Development Program.
- 42 2. For each deputy clerk selected by the clerk for participation in the Deputy Clerks' Career 43 Development Program, the Compensation Board shall increase the annual salary established 44 for that position by 9.3 percent following receipt of the clerk's certification that the minimum 45 requirements of the Deputy Clerks' Career Development Program have been met and provided 46 that such certification is submitted by clerks as part of their annual budget request to the 47 Compensation Board by February 1 of each year.
- 48 K. Upon request of the attorney for the Commonwealth, the clerk of the circuit court shall 49 contemporaneously provide the attorney for the Commonwealth copies of all documents 50 provided to the Virginia Criminal Sentencing Commission pursuant to § 19.2-298.01 E, Code 51 of Virginia.
- 52 L. The Compensation Board may obligate Trust and Agency funds in excess of the current 53 biennium appropriation for the automation efforts of the clerks' offices from the Technology

Second Year FY2020

	ITEM 71.			Item I irst Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		Trust Fund provided that sufficient cash is avail and that sufficient revenues are projected to me as well as all other commitments and appropriate the biennial budget.	et all cash oblig	ations for 1	new obligations		
5 6 7 8		M. Offices of the Clerks of the Circuit Cour Department of Corrections are further authorized transmit and process criminal court orders to as processing of such records.	d to enter into ag	greements t	o electronically		
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18		N. The Compensation Board, in consultation wi Court shall conduct a study of circuit court clerk and deputy clerks staff salaries in all jurisdiction where locally funded supplements to salaries by for these positions. The study shall include a det jurisdiction, the total fiscal impact of addressin for state adjustment, if any. Copies of the study the Secretary of Administration, the Secreta Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the P Committees.	c salaries in relations, with specifi y a local govern tail report on the og such disparition shall be provid ry of Finance,	tion to dist c emphasis ing body a e salary dis ies, and rec led by Octo Director,	rict court clerks s in jurisdiction re not provided parities by each commendations ober 1, 2018, to Department of		
19 20 21	72.	Financial Assistance for Local Treasurers (7740) Financial Assistance to Local Treasurers (7740) Financial Assistance for Operations of Lo) \$10,22	4,591	\$10,224,591	\$17,503,235	\$17,503,235
22 23 24		Treasurers (77402) Financial Assistance for State Tax Services	\$7,11 by		\$7,113,008		
24 25		Local Treasurers (77403) Fund Sources: General		5,636 3 235	\$165,636 \$17,503,235		
26		Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 2 and					
27 28 29 30 31 32		A.1. The annual salaries of treasurers, elect combined office of city treasurer and commissio officers who hold the combined office of co revenue subject to the provisions of § 15.2- hereinafter prescribed, based on the services pr 15.2-1636.12, Code of Virginia.	ner of the reven unty treasurer a 1636.17, Code	ue, or elect and comm of Virgin	ed or appointed issioner of the ia, shall be as		
33			July 1, 2018		July 1, 2019	Decem	nber 1, 2019
34		Jı	to une 30, 2019	Nov	to rember 30, 2019	Ju	to 1110 100, 2020
35 36		Less than 10,000	\$62,523		\$62,523 \$63,773		\$62,523 \$63,773
37 38		10,000 to 19,999	\$69,473		\$69,473 \$70,862		\$69,473 \$70,862
39 40		20,000-39,999	\$77,193		\$77,193 \$78,737		\$77,193 \$78,737
41 42		40,000-69,999	\$85,767		\$ 85,767 \$87,482		\$85,767 \$87,482
43 44		70,000-99,999	\$95,298		\$95,298 \$97,204		\$95,298 \$97,204
45 46		100,000-174,999	\$105,883		\$105,883		\$105,883
40 47 48		175,000-249,999	\$111,459		\$108,001 \$111,459 \$113,688		\$108,001 \$111,459 \$113,688
49 50		250,000 and above	\$126,659		\$115,088 \$126,659 \$129,192		\$113,088 \$126,659 \$129,192
F1			1 .		1. 1		

51 2. Provided, however, that in cities having a treasurer who neither collects nor disburses
52 local taxes or revenue or who distributes local revenues but does not collect the same,

	ITEM 72.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		range in which the city falls except that in no case shall a whether elected or appointed, who holds that combin commissioner of the revenue, receive an increase in salary increase provided from state funds to any other treasurer, w	such salaries shall be seventy-five percent of the salary prescribed above for the population range in which the city falls except that in no case shall any such treasurer, or any officer whether elected or appointed, who holds that combined office of city treasurer and commissioner of the revenue, receive an increase in salary less than the annual percentage increase provided from state funds to any other treasurer, within the same population range, who was at the maximum prescribed salary in effect for the fiscal year 1980.			
7 8 9		3. Whenever a treasurer is such for two or more cities or for aggregate population of such political subdivisions shall be arriving at the salary of such treasurer under the provisions				
10 11 12 13		B.1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly Career Development Program shall be made available appointed officers who hold the combined office of city or c of the revenue subject to the provisions of § 15.2-1636.17, C	sation Board to			
14 15 16 17 18		2. The Compensation Board may increase the annual salary 9.3 percent following receipt of the treasurer's certification t the Treasurers' Career Development Program have been met are submitted by treasurers as part of their annual budget re on February 1 of each year.	requirements of the certifications			
19 20		C.1. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly fo Board shall provide for a Deputy Treasurers' Career Devel				
21 22 23 24 25 26 27		2. For each deputy treasurer selected by the treasurer Treasurers' Career Development Program, the Compensatio salary established for that position by 9.3 percent follo certification that the minimum requirements of the Deputy Program have been met, and provided that such certificatio part of the annual budget request to the Compensation Boar year for an effective date of salary increase of the following	rease the annual the treasurer's er Development the treasurer as			
28 29 30 31	73.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901) Information Technology Services (79902) Training Services (79925)	\$3,101,673 \$1,130,870 \$58,850	\$3,101,673 \$842,257 \$64,850	\$4,291,393	\$4,008,780
32 33		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$4,037,041 \$254,352	\$4,008,780 \$0		
34		Authority: Title 2.2-1839: Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 2	2. 3. 4 and 6.1: Tit	tle 17.1. Chapter		

34 Authority: Title 2.2-1839; Title 15.2, Chapter 16, Articles 2, 3, 4 and 6.1; Title 17.1, Chapter 35 2, Article 7, Code of Virginia.

36 A.1. In determining the salary of any officer specified in Items 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, and 72 of 37 this act, the Compensation Board shall use the greater of the most recent actual United States 38 census count or the most recent provisional population estimate from the United States 39 Bureau of the Census or the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service of the University of 40 Virginia available when fixing the officer's annual budget and shall adjust such population 41 estimate, where applicable, for any annexation or consolidation order by a court when such 42 order becomes effective. There shall be no reduction in salary by reason of a decline in 43 population during the terms in which the incumbent remains in office.

- 44 2. In determining the salary of any officer specified in Items 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, and 72 of this 45 act, nothing herein contained shall prevent the governing body of any county or city from 46 supplementing the salary of such officer in such county or city for the provisions of Chapter 47 822, 2012 Acts of Assembly or for additional services not required by general law; provided, 48 however, that any such supplemental salary shall be paid wholly by such county or city.
- 49 3. Any officer whose salary is specified in Items 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, and 72 of this act shall 50 provide reasonable access to his work place, files, records, and computer network as may be 51 requested by his duly elected successor after the successor has been certified.
- 52 B.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Compensation Board shall authorize and 53 fund permanent positions for the locally elected constitutional officers, subject to

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 73.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	appropriation by the General Assembly, including the princ levels:	ipal officer, a	at the following		
3			FY 2017	,	FY 2018
4	Sheriffs		11,407	1	11,407
5 6	Partially Funded: Jail Medical, Treatment, and Classification Records Positions	and	797	,	797
7	Commissioners of the Revenue		851		851
8	Treasurers		861		861
9	Directors of Finance		383	;	383
10	Commonwealth's Attorneys		1,271		1,271
11	Clerks of the Circuit Court		1,144	ļ	1,144
12	TOTAL		16,714	Ļ	16,714
13 14	2. The Compensation Board is authorized to provide funding the first year and 597 temporary positions the second year.	g for 597 temp	porary positions		
15 16	3. The board is authorized to adjust the expenses and other al maintain approved permanent and temporary manpower leve		such officers to		

4. Paragraphs B 1 and B 2 of this Item shall not apply to the clerks of the circuit courts and their employees specified in § 17.1-288, Code of Virginia, or those under contract pursuant to § 17.1-290, Code of Virginia.

- C.1. Reimbursement by the Compensation Board for the use of vehicles purchased or
 leased with public funds used in the discharge of official duties shall be at a rate equal to
 that approved by the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission for Central Garage
 Car Pool services. No vehicle purchased or leased with public funds on or after July 1,
 2002, shall display lettering on the exterior of the vehicle that includes the name of the
 incumbent sheriff.
- 26 2. Reimbursement by the Compensation Board for the use of personal vehicles in the
 27 discharge of official duties shall be at a rate equal to that established in § 4-5.04 e 2. of
 28 this act. All such requests for reimbursement shall be accompanied by a certification that a
 29 publicly owned or leased vehicle was unavailable for use.
- D. The Compensation Board is directed to examine the current level of crowding of
 inmates in local jails among the several localities and to reallocate or reduce temporary
 positions among local jails as may be required, consistent with the provisions of this act.
- E. Any new positions established in Item 76 of this act shall be allocated by the
 Compensation Board upon request of the constitutional officers in accordance with
 staffing standards and ranking methodologies approved by the Compensation Board to
 fulfill the requirements of any court order occurring from proceedings under § 15.2 1636.8, Code of Virginia, in accordance with the provisions of Item 66 of this act.
- 38 F. Any funds appropriated in this act for performance pay increases for designated 39 deputies or employees of constitutional officers shall be allocated by the Compensation 40 Board upon certification of the constitutional officer that the performance pay plan for that 41 office meets the minimum standards for such plans as set by the Compensation Board. 42 Nothing herein, and nothing in any performance pay plan set by the Compensation Board 43 or adopted by a constitutional officer, shall change the status of employees or deputies of 44 constitutional officers from employees at will or create a property or contractual right to 45 employment. Such deputies and employees shall continue to be employees at will who serve at the pleasure of the constitutional officers. 46
- 47 G. The Compensation Board shall apply the current fiscal stress factor, as determined by
 48 the Commission on Local Government, to any general fund amounts approved by the
 49 board for the purchase, lease or lease purchase of equipment for constitutional officers. In
 50 the case of equipment requests from regional jail superintendents and regional special
 51 prosecutors, the highest stress factor of a member jurisdiction will be used.
- 52 H. The Compensation Board shall not approve or commit additional funds for the

		Item Details(\$)			
Ι	ITEM 73.	First Year	Second Year		
		FY2019	FY2020		
1	operational cost, including salaries, for any local or region	onal jail construction	, renovation, or		
2	expansion project which was not approved for reim	bursement by the S	State Board of		
3	Corrections prior to January 1, 1996, unless: (1) the Secre	etary of Public Safety	and Homeland		
4	Security certifies that such additional funding result	s in an actual cost	savings to the		

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Security certifies that such additional funding results in an actual cost savings to the 5 Commonwealth or (2) an exception has been granted as provided for in Item 388 of this act. 6 I. Subject to appropriations by the General Assembly for this purpose, the Compensation 7 Board may provide funding for executive management, lawful employment practices, and jail 8 management training for constitutional officers, their employees, and regional jail 9

superintendents.

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34 35

10 J. Any local or regional jail that receives funding from the Compensation Board shall report 11 inmate populations to the Compensation Board, through the local inmate data system, no less 12 frequently than weekly. Each local or regional jail that receives funding from the 13 Compensation Board shall use the Virginia Crime Codes (VCC) in identifying and describing 14 offenses for persons arrested and/or detained in local and regional jails in Virginia.

15 K.1. The Compensation Board shall provide the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House 16 Appropriations Committees and the Secretaries of Finance and Administration with an annual 17 report, on December 1 of each year, of jail revenues and expenditures for all local and 18 regional jails and jail farms which receive funds from the Compensation Board. Information 19 provided to the Compensation Board is to include an audited statement of revenues and 20 expenses for inmate canteen accounts, telephone commission funds, inmate medical co-21 payment funds, any other fees collected from inmates and investment/interest monies for 22 inclusion in the report.

2. Local and regional jails and jail farms and local governments receiving funds from the Compensation Board shall, as a condition of receiving such funds, provide such information as may be required by the Compensation Board, necessary to prepare the annual jail cost report.

3. If any sheriff, superintendent, county administrator, or city manager fails to send such information within five working days after the information should be forwarded, the Chairman of the Compensation Board shall notify the sheriff, superintendent, county administrator or city manager of such failure. If the information is not provided within ten working days from that date, then the chairman shall cause the information to be prepared from the books of the city, county, or regional jail and shall certify the cost thereof to the State Comptroller. The State Comptroller shall issue his warrant on the state treasury for that amount, deducting the same from any funds that may be due the sheriff or regional jail from the Commonwealth.

36 L. In the event of the transition of a city to town status pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 37 41 (§ 15.2-4100 et seq.) of Title 15.2, Code of Virginia, or the consolidation of a city and a 38 county into a single city pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 35 (§ 15.2-3500 et seq.) of Title 39 15.2, Code of Virginia, subsequent to July 1, 1999, the Compensation Board shall provide 40 funding from Items 66, 69, 70, 71, and 72 of this act, consistent with the requirements of § 41 15.2-1302, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph E of this Item, any 42 positions in the constitutional offices of the former city or former county which are available 43 for reallocation as a result of the transition or consolidation shall be first reallocated in 44 accordance with Compensation Board staffing standards to the constitutional officers in the 45 county in which the town is situated or to the consolidated city, without regard to the 46 Compensation Board's priority of need ranking for reallocated positions. The salary and fringe 47 benefit costs for these positions shall be deducted from any amounts due the county or to the 48 consolidated city, as provided in § 15.2-1302, Code of Virginia.

49 M. Notwithstanding any other provisions of § 15.2-1605, Code of Virginia, the Compensation 50 Board shall provide no reimbursement for accumulated vacation time for employees of 51 Constitutional Officers.

52 N. The Compensation Board is hereby authorized to deduct, from reimbursements made each 53 year to localities out of the amounts in Items 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, and 72 of this act, an amount 54 equal to 100 percent of each locality's share of the insurance premium paid by the 55 Compensation Board on behalf of the constitutional officers, directors of finance, and regional 56 jails. From sheriffs and regional jails, the Compensation Board shall deduct an additional

D.4. 1. (0)

ITEM 73		Item D ïrst Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	\$80,000 each year for the costs of conducting training on man of local and regional jails.			F 1201)	r 12020
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	O. Effective July 1, 2007, the Compensation Board is reimbursements due the locality for sheriff and jail expenses Superintendent of State Police that there is reason to believe th locality to the Department of State Police in accordance with § missing, incomplete or incorrect. Upon subsequent notification the data is accurate, the Compensation Board shall make re funding due the locality when such corrections are made withi funds have been withheld.	upon notifica at crime data 52-28, Code by the Super imbursemen	ation from the reported by a of Virginia, is rintendent that at of withheld		
11 12 13 14 15	P. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 51.1-1403 A, Code of V Board is hereby authorized to deduct, from reimbursements m out of the amounts in Items 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, and 72 of this ac locality's retiree health premium paid by the Compensatio constitutional offices, directors of finance, and regional ja	ade each yea et, an amount n Board on	ar to localities equal to each		
16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q.1. Compensation Board payments of, or reimbursement contribution to the Virginia Retirement System, or any system not exceed the Commonwealth's proportionate share of the for (a) the actual retirement rate for the local constitutional of correctional facility as set by the Board of the Virginia Retir employer rate established for the general classified workfor covered under and payable to the Virginia Retirement System	offering like llowing, whi fficer's offic rement Syst ce of the Co	benefits, shall chever is less: e or regional em or (b) the		
23 24	2. The rate specified in paragraph Q.1. shall exclude the co program implemented by the Commonwealth.	st of any ea	rly retirement		
25 26	3. Any employer paid contribution costs for rates exceeding th Q.1. shall be borne by the employer.	ose specified	d in paragraph		
27 28 29	4. The benefits rate reimbursed by the Compensation Board to shall not exceed the rate identified for fiscal year 2011 in paragraph I.1.				
30 31 32 33	R. Localities shall not utilize Compensation Board funding provided for the salaries of constitutional officers and th provisions of Chapter 822, 2012 Acts of Assembly, who were a on June 30, 2012.	eir employe	ees under the		
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41	S. Effective July 1, 2016, the Compensation Board is reimbursements due to the locality for sheriff's law enforcem fails to certify to the Board that the sheriff's office is compli- registration requirements of \S 9.1-903, Code of Virginia. Upon the sheriff that the sheriff's office is compliant with the requirements of \S 9.1-903, Code of Virginia, the Compen- reimbursement of withheld funding due to the locality when su is made within the same fiscal year that funds have been withhe	ent expenses iant with the subsequent c sex offende sation Boar ch subsequent	s if the sheriff e sex offender ertification by r registration d shall make		
42 43 44 45 46	T.1. Consistent with the provisions of Chapter 198 of the 20 Assembly, the Executive Secretary of the State Compensation recommendations relating to the State Compensation Board n Medical Assistance Services in its November 30, 2017 re Medicaid application and enrollment process for incarcer	Board shall and by the laport on stre	implement the Department of eamlining the		
47 48 49	2. For the purpose of implementing these recommendations, ind for this item are \$28,261 the first year from the general fund, a from nongeneral funds.				
50 51 52 53 54	U. The Executive Secretary of the Compensation Board shall comprised of representatives of the Supreme Court, Depart Services, Commonwealth's Attorneys, local governments, and appropriate by the Executive Secretary to investigate how be may continue to impact the workloads experienced by Common	ment of Cri other stakehody worn car	minal Justice olders deemed meras have or		

			Iten	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
	ITEM 73.		First Year FY2019		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8		The working group shall examine processes, relevant judicial decisions, practices, and policies used in other states, potential financial and staffing challenges, and other related issues to determine workload impacts, and to develop recommended budgetary and legislative actions for consideration during the 2019 Session of the General Assembly. The Executive Secretary of the Compensation Board shall submit the recommendations of the working group to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 1, 2018. All state agencies and local subdivisions shall provide assistance as requested by the working group.					
9 10 11 12 13		W. The Compensation Board shall review the feasibilit that can be shared between offices in multiple localities for small localities which currently have minimal staf provide recommendations based on this review to the C and Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2019.	or multiple offices fing. The Compens hairmen of the Hou	within one locality sation Board shall			
14 15		Total for Compensation Board			\$708,740,083 \$705,710,481	\$711,054,154 \$707,268,098	
16		General Fund Positions	20.00	20.00			
17		Nongeneral Fund Positions	1.00	1.00			
18		Position Level	21.00	21.00			
19 20		Fund Sources: General	\$691,885,019 \$688,855,417	\$694,453,442 \$690,667,386			
21		Trust and Agency	\$8,000,712	\$8,000,712			
22		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$8,600,000	\$8,600,000			
23		Federal Trust	\$254,352	\$0			
24		§ 1-28. DEPARTMENT OF	GENERAL SERV	VICES (194)			
25	74.	Laboratory Services (72600)			\$38,828,247	\$38,939,593	
26 27 28		Statewide Laboratory Services (72604)	\$24,354,460	\$24,332,980 \$25,141,075		\$39,747,688	
29		Newborn Screening Laboratory Services (72607)	\$11,952,757	\$11,952,757			
30		Laboratory Accreditation Services (72608)	\$500,000	\$500,000			
31		Drinking Water Testing Services (72609)	\$2,021,030	\$2,153,856			
32 33		Fund Sources: General	\$13,144,185	\$13,255,531 \$13,733,626			
34		Special	\$20,000	\$20,000			
35		Enterprise	\$14,195,752	\$14,195,752			
36 37		Internal Service	\$4,272,932	\$4,272,932 \$4,602,932			
38		Federal Trust	\$7,195,378	\$7,195,378			
39		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11, Article 2, Code of Virg		.,,,			
40 41 42 43		A. The provisions of § 2.2-1104, Code of Virginia Consolidated Laboratory Services shall ensure that no laboratory tests mandated by the Department of Health services.	o individual is deni	ed the benefits of			
44 45 46 47 48 49		B. Out of this appropriation, \$4,272,932 the first year a year for Statewide Laboratory Services is sum sufficient an internal service fund which shall be paid from reve from state agencies and institutions of higher educatio internal service fund shall also consist of revenues Transportation for motor fuel testing as stated in §	and these amounts enues derived from n for laboratory tes transferred from tl	are estimates from charges collected sting services. The he Department of			

50 C.1. The provisions of § 2.2-1104 B, Code of Virginia, notwithstanding, the Division of
 51 Consolidated Laboratory Services may charge a fee for the limited and specific purpose of

			Iten	n Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 74.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Ye FY2020
1 2 3 4		analyses of water samples where (i) testing is requir regulations as mandated by the federal Safe Drinking Wa such testing is not otherwise provided for in this act, and unless a plan is first approved by the Governor.	ter Act, (ii) f	unding to support		
5 6 7 8 9 10		2. The Division of Consolidated Laboratory Services may of to certify laboratories under the requirements of §§ 2.2-11 Virginia, where certification of these laboratories is require regulations mandated by the federal Safe Drinking Water A seq.) of Title 10.1, the Virginia Waste Management Act (§ Water Control Law (§ 62.1-44.2 et seq.), Code of Virginia.	04 A. 4 and 2 ed by the Dep Act, Chapter 1 10.1-1400 et	2.2-1105, Code of artment of Health 3 (§ 10.1-1300 et		
11 12 13 14 15		3.a. Any regulations or guidelines necessary to implement fees charged for testing of water samples or certification of without complying with the Administrative Process Act (§ input is solicited from the public. Such input requires only to submit written comments be given.	of laboratorie 2.2-4000 et s	s may be adopted eq.) provided that		
16 17 18		b. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, changes water samples or certification of laboratories shall be subje of this act, effective July 1, 2016.				
19 20		c. Fees charged for testing of water samples or certificate exceed the cost of providing such services.	ation of labo	ratories shall not		
21 22 23 24 25		D. Out of this appropriation, \$278,035 the first year and \$ the general fund shall be used for the first and second year replacement of instrumentation used for drinking water test utilizing the state's Master Equipment Leasing Program maintenance agreements for such instrumentation.	ear of paymenting that is at	nts to finance the least ten years old		
26 27	75.	Real Estate Services (72700)			\$66,729,602 \$69,138,310	\$67,422,3 \$70,571,5
28 29			6 6,729,602 69,138,310	\$67,422,353 \$70,571,518	<i>\$67,126,216</i>	<i>\$</i> , <i>0</i> , <i>0</i> , <i>1</i> , <i>0</i>
30 31			6 6,729,602 69,138,310	\$67,422,353 \$70,571,518		
32		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11, Article 4, § 2.2-1156, Code	e of Virginia.			
33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43		A. Out of this appropriation, \$66,729,602 <i>\$69,138,310</i> t <i>\$70,571,518</i> the second year for Statewide Leasing a sufficient and amounts shown are estimates from an intern paid from revenues from rent payments or fees to be paid by for their occupancy of facilities and management of real p but not necessarily limited to, leases of non-state owne Commonwealth for use by such agencies and institutions. costs associated with the disposal of state-owned real pro implementing the program, the Department of General S services, portfolio management strategies, personnel polici generally consistent with prevailing industry best practices	nd Disposal nal service fu y state agenci roperty transa d office space Also included operty and in ervices may es, and comp	Services is sum nd which shall be es and institutions actions, including, e throughout the d are funds to pay terests therein. In utilize brokerage		
44 45		B.1. The costs paid for each sale of state-owned property upon sale of the property in an amount calculated at 115				
46 47 48 49		2. The rate charged for administration of single-agency lease costs and the rate for administration of master lease costs. Fees approved in accordance with § 4-5.03 of this ac time transactions.	s shall be fou	r percent of lease		
50 51 52 53		C. The Department of General Services shall issue guidelin for new state facilities is accomplished in a way that is co Sustainable Community Investment identified in Exe Executive Order 82 (2009).	onsistent with	the Principles of		

Appropriations(\$) Year 20

2,353 7,518

	ITEM 75.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7		D.1. Upon notification from the State Treasurer that obligations have been met, the Department of Ger Commonwealth of Virginia, shall transfer ownership of th Innovative Technology Complex at 2214 Rock Hill Road, as the Software Consortium Productivity Building and no from the Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Au General Services.	all debt service a neral Services, o ne property located Herndon, Virginia ow known as the M	on behalf of the l at the Center for l, formerly known Aid-Rise Building		
8 9 10 11		2. The Department of General Services shall honor all manage the property as part of its real estate services ope General Services shall allow IEIA to continue to ma accordance with Item 126.10 Q of this act unless oth	ration. However, t nage and maintai	he Department of in the facility in		
12 13	76.	Procurement Services (73000)			\$57,302,921 \$57,757,745	\$57,349,742 \$58,069,382
14 15		Statewide Procurement Services (73002)	\$26,622,881 \$27,077,705	\$26,622,881 \$27,342,521	<i>+,,,</i> ,	+,,
16		Surplus Property Programs (73007)	\$1,967,880	\$1,983,147		
17 18		Statewide Cooperative Procurement and Distribution Services (73008)	\$28,712,160	\$28,743,714		
19		Fund Sources: General	\$1,872,240	\$1,872,240		
20		Special	\$3,501,192	\$3,501,192		
21 22		Enterprise	\$21,249,449 \$21,704,273	\$21,249,449 \$21,060,080		
22 23		Internal Service	\$30,680,040	\$21,969,089 \$30,726,861		
24		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11, Articles 3 and 6, Code of	Virginia.			
25 26 27 28 29		A. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$584,607 the first year federal surplus property is sum sufficient and amounts sh service fund which shall be paid from revenues derived f 2. Out of this appropriation, \$1,383,273 the first year and surplus property is sum sufficient and amounts shown are	hown are estimates from charges for so \$1,395,454 the sec e estimates from a	s from an internal ervices.		
30 31 32 33 34		fund which shall be paid from revenues derived from cha B. Out of this appropriation, \$28,712,160 the first year a Statewide Cooperative Procurement and Distribution Ser shown are estimates from an internal service fund which from charges for services.	nd \$28,743,714 th vices is sum suffic	cient and amounts		
35 36 37		C. The Commonwealth's statewide electronic procurem eVA will be financed by fees assessed to state agencies a and vendors.				
38 39 40		D. The Department of General Services shall allow nonpro and granted tax-exempt status under § 501(c)(3) of the 1 directly from the Virginia Distribution Center.				
41	77.	Physical Plant Management Services (74100)	#5 265 110	\$5.455 700	\$52,818,677	\$53,465,300
42 43		Parking Facilities Management (74105) Statewide Building Management (74106)	\$5,365,118 \$41,862,006	\$5,456,728 \$42,480,605		
44		Statewide Engineering and Architectural Services	φ+1,002,000	φ+2,+00,005		
45 46		(74107)	\$5,033,408 \$558,145	\$4,969,822		
46		Seat of Government Mail Services (74108)	\$558,145	\$558,145		
47 48		Fund Sources: General	\$1,441,550 \$5,365,118	\$1,441,550 \$5,456,728		
48 49		Special Internal Service	\$5,365,118 \$46,012,009	\$5,456,728 \$46,567,022		
50		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11, Articles 4, 6, and 8; § 58.		-		
51 52		A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$41,142,683 the first year a Statewide Building Management represent a sum sufficie				

	ITEM 77.		Item Do First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		be paid from revenues from rental charges assessed to occu buildings controlled, maintained, and operated by the Depart fees paid for other building maintenance and operation servi agreements and special work orders. The internal service fu at the seat of government and maintenance and operation facilities as the Governor or department may direct, as o	ment of Genera ces provided the nd shall support of such other	l Services and rrough service t the facilities r state-owned		
7 8 9		2. Out of the amounts included above in paragraph A.1, \$ \$8,305,202 the second year represent amounts estimat Management consisting of fees derived from service agreem	ed for Statew	ide Building		
10 11 12 13 14 15		3. Out of the amounts included above in paragraph A.1, \$3 \$33,456,080 the second year represent amounts estima Management consisting of revenues derived from rental char seat of government buildings controlled, maintained, and op General Services, excluding the building occupants that service agreements with the department.	ted for Statew rges assessed to perated by the I	vide Building o occupants of Department of		
16 17 18 19		4. The rent rate for occupants of office space in seat of gover maintained by the Department of General Services, excludin currently have maintenance service agreements with the dep square foot the first year and \$15.96 the second year.	g the building	occupants that		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		5. On or before September 1 of each year, the Department of to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senat Secretary of Administration, and the Department of Planni operations and maintenance costs of all buildings controlled, the Department of General Services. The report shall inclu- cost and fund source associated with the following: utilities security, custodial services, groundskeeping, direct administr- any other operations or maintenance costs for the most recent amount of unleased space in each building shall also be report	e Finance Con ng and Budget maintained, ar de, but not be es, maintenanc ation and other ly concluded fi	mmittees, the regarding the ad operated by limited to, the e and repairs, overhead, and		
29 30 31 32 33		6. Further, out of the estimated cost for Statewide Build estimated at \$1,894,865 the first year and \$1,894,865 the s Payment in Lieu of Taxes. In addition to the amoun Management, the following sums, estimated at the amounts included in the appropriations for the agencies identified:	econd year sha ts for Statew	all be paid for ide Building		
34				FY 2017		FY 2018
35		Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority		\$78,331		\$78,331
36		Department of Corrections		\$4,906		\$4,906
37		Department of Motor Vehicles		\$206,832		\$206,832
38		Department of State Police		\$675		\$675
39		Department of Transportation		\$223,736		\$223,736
40		Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired		\$4,639		\$4,639
41		Virginia Employment Commission		\$62,163		\$62,163
42		Virginia Museum of Fine Arts		\$158,513		\$158,513
43		Virginia Retirement System		\$94,172		\$94,172
44		Veterans Services		\$140,878		\$140,878
45		Workers' Compensation Commission		\$35,002		\$35,002
46		TOTAL	\$1	1,009,847		\$1,009,847
47 48 49 50 51		B.1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,869,326 the first year and for Statewide Engineering and Architectural Services provid Outlay Management represent a sum sufficient internal serv from revenues from fees paid by state agencies and institution review of architectural, mechanical, and life safety plans of c	ded by the Bur rice fund which ns of higher edu	eau of Capital a shall be paid ucation for the		

52 2. In administering this internal service fund, the Bureau of Capital Outlay Management
53 (BCOM) shall provide capital project cost review services to state agencies and

	ITEM 77.		First Year		First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1 2 3 4		institutions of higher education and produce capital project Department of Planning and Budget. BCOM shall collect authorized above in paragraph B.1, from state agencies a for completed capital project cost review services or work	ct fees, consister nd institutions of	nt with those fees	FY2019	FY2020
5 6 7		3. The hourly rate for engineering and architectural services \$146.67 the second year, excluding contracted services ar pursuant to § 4-5.03 of this act.		-		
8 9 10 11		4. Out of the amounts appropriated in this Item, \$164,08 second year from the general fund is provided for the Burg to support the Commonwealth's capital budget and cap authorized in this paragraph cannot otherwise be assessed.	eau of Capital Ou pital pool proces	tlay Management		
12 13		C. Interest on the employee vehicle parking fund authorize added to the fund as earned.	ed by § 4-6.04 c	of this act shall be		
14 15 16 17 18 19		D. The Department of General Services shall, in conjunctivity implement, and administer a consolidated mail function mail for agencies located in the Richmond metropolitan ar shall include the establishment of a centralized mail relocation or locations, and the enhancement of mail selocation(s).	to process inbourea. The consolid ceiving and out	and and outbound ated mail function bound processing		
20 21 22 23		E. All new and renovated state-owned facilities, if the reno of the structure's assessed value, that are over 5,000 gross constructed consistent with energy performance standard Green Building Council's LEED rating system or the Gr	s square feet shal ds at least as stri	l be designed and angent as the U.S.		
24 25		F. Effective July 1, 2009, the total service charge for the Assembly Building and the State Capitol Building shall r				
26 27 28 29 30		G. The Director of the Department of General Services shi the Department of Transportation and other agencies to r diodes (LEDs) instead of traditional incandescent light bu new outdoor lighting fixtures or replaces nonfunctionin lighting fixtures as long as the LEDs lights are determined	maximize the use albs when any sta ag light bulbs on	of light-emitting agency installs existing outdoor		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38		H. The Director, Department of General Services, in c Committee of the General Assembly, shall develop Department's Old City Hall and Patrick Henry Buildings occupancy by legislative and executive branch agencies of considered and may be approved by the Director and Joint of the lists, the Department will immediately design an accommodate the identified tenants. The Director, and Joint their work no later than September 30, 2018.	tenant occupa . In development of either or both t Rules Committe ad construct the	ncy lists for the c of the lists, joint buildings shall be ee. Upon approval space required to		
39 40	78.	Printing and Reproduction (82100) Statewide Graphic Design Services (82101)	\$155,009	\$157,052	\$155,009	\$157,052
41		Fund Sources: Internal Service	\$155,009	\$157,052		
42		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11, Articles 3 and 6, Code of	Virginia.			
43 44 45		1. The appropriation for Statewide Graphic Design Servi shown are estimates from an internal service fund which s from charges for services.				
46 47 48		2. The hourly rate charged for graphic design services \$85.00 the second year. The amount charged for contracted the actual cost of such contracted services.				
49 50	79.	Transportation Pool Services (82300) Statewide Vehicle Management Services (82302)	\$19,774,962	\$20,162,297	\$19,774,962	\$20,162,297
51		Fund Sources: Internal Service	\$19,774,962	\$20,162,297		

	ITEM 79.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020		riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11, Article 7; § 2.2-120, Cod	e of Virginia.			
2 3 4		A. The appropriation for Statewide Vehicle Managemen amounts shown are estimates from an internal service revenues derived from charges to agencies for fleet m	fund which shall	l be paid from		
5 6 7 8		B. Charges for central fleet vehicles leased by state agen vehicle purchase cost and interest charges amortized over addition to a standard monthly operating charge of \$127. second year per vehicle for the cost of maintenance and s	a period of 84 m 32 the first year a	onths or less, in		
9 10 11 12		C. In addition to providing services to state agencies and services may also be provided to local public bodies accordance with established Department of General Serv and procedures.	s on a fee for se	ervice basis in		
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20		D. The Department of General Services shall manage the of bulk and commercial fuel contracts awarded in res Assembly of 2008, Item 1-83 C. The intent of this c Commonwealth's state and local public entities, gasoline to achieve the most favored pricing from private sec procurement administration workload from state agencie entities, and other authorized users of awarded contra procured and contracted separately for these commod	ponse to Chapte onsolidation is t and diesel fuel pr tor fuel provide s, institutions, lo acts that would h	er 879, Acts of o leverage the urchase volume rs, and reduce cal government		
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32		E. The Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Ger comprehensive agreement, or multiple comprehensive agr Private Education Facilities and Infrastructure Act – 2002 the purposes of § 2.2-1176 (B) and result in the replacer vehicles with vehicles that operate on alternative fuels. A be cost neutral or result in a reduction in the Comm acquisition and operational costs, and result in lower agreements shall not be subject to the requirements found Virginia (§ 30-278 et. seq.). The Director, Department of with the Governor's Senior Advisor on Energy and t determine whether the agreement is cost neutral or Commonwealth.	reements, pursuar 2 (§ 56-575.1 et s nent of state-own Any agreement en nonwealth's con environmental e in Title 30, Chap General Services, he Secretary of	nt to the Public- eq.), to achieve hed or operated tered into must blined vehicle emissions. The oter 42, Code of in consultation Finance, shall		
33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40		F. The comprehensive agreement referenced in paragra Department of General Services (DGS) to establish altern electric) fueling sites at its office of fleet management Such sites may be open to the general public for the pur- such fuels are not available on the retail market with management facility. Rates for fuel purchased by the general the private vendor operating the fueling site. In emergency Commonwealth retains the ability to restrict access to such	ative fuels (natur facility in Richr rchase of alternat hin 10 miles of eral public will be y situations or fue	al gas, propane, nond, Virginia. tive fuels when the DGS fleet e established by el shortages, the		
41 42	80.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$4,735,525	\$4,735,525 \$4,835,525
43 44		General Management and Direction (79901)	\$2,740,684	\$2,740,684 \$2,840,684		ψ1,000,020
44 45		Information Technology Services (79902)	\$1,994,841	\$2,840,084 \$1,994,841		
46 47		Fund Sources: General	\$4,735,525	\$4,735,525 \$4,835,525		
48		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 11 and Chapter 24, Article 1,	, Code of Virginia			
49 50		Total for Department of General Services	, C		\$240,344,943 \$243,208,475	\$242,231,862 \$247,008,762
51		General Fund Positions	240.50	240.50	<i>₽= 109₽009770</i>	φ = 17,000,702
52 53		Nongeneral Fund Positions	426 50	243.50 426.50		

426.50

426.50

53

Nongeneral Fund Positions.....

			Item Details(\$) First Vaar – Socond Vaar			riations(\$)
	ITEM 80.		First Year		First Year	Second Year
1		Desition Lough	FY2019 667.00	FY2020 667.00	FY2019	FY2020
1 2		Position Level	007.00	670.00		
3 4		Fund Sources: General	\$21,193,500	\$21,304,846 \$21,882,941		
5		Special	\$8,886,310	\$8,977,920		
6		Enterprise	\$35,445,201	\$35,445,201		
7			\$35,900,025	\$36,164,841		
8 9		Internal Service	\$167,624,554 \$170,033,262	\$169,308,517 \$172,787,682		
10		Federal Trust	\$7,195,378	\$7,195,378		
11		§ 1-29. DEPARTMENT OF HUMA	N RESOURCE MA	NAGEMENT (12	9)	
12	81.	Personnel Management Services (70400)			\$103,805,256	\$108,535,313
13		-			\$103,100,826	\$108,114,532
14 15		Agency Human Resource Services (70401)	\$1,124,489 \$1,452,709	\$821,270 \$1,427,700		
15		Human Resource Service Center (70402)	\$1,432,709 \$1,286,809	\$1,427,709 \$1,286,809		
17		Human Resource Service Celler (70402)	\$1,362,447	ψ1,200,007		
18		Health Benefits Services (70406)	\$7,968,125	\$7,968,125		
19		· · · ·	\$6,859,837	\$6,868,079		
20		Personnel Development Services (70409)	\$678,686	\$678,686		
21		Personnel Management Information System (70410)	\$1,827,972	\$1,861,248		
22		Equal Employment and Dispute Resolution Services	¢1.9 22 .040	¢1 822 040		
23 24		(70413)	\$1,822,940	\$1,822,940 \$1,895,766		
25		State Employee Program Services (70417)	\$2,139,084	\$2,139,084		
26		State Employee Workers' Compensation Services				
27		(70418)	\$86,414,323	\$91,414,323		
28		Administrative and Support Services (70419)	\$542,828	\$542,828		
29		Fund Sources: General	\$4,803,254	\$4,500,035		
30			\$5,207,112	\$5,179,300		
31		Special	\$1,272,515	\$1,272,515		
32 33		Enterprise	\$3,714,817 \$2,519,448	\$3,714,817 \$2, <i>519,44</i> 8		
33 34		Internal Service	\$7,338,929	\$7,372,205		
35		Trust and Agency	\$86,675,741	\$91,675,741		
36		Trust and Agency	\$86,762,822	\$91,771,064		
37		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapters 12 and 28, 29, 30, and 32,	Code of Virginia.			
38		A. The Department of Human Resource Management	shall report any pro	posed changes in		
39		premiums, benefits, carriers, or provider networks to the				
40 41		House Appropriations and Senate Finance Comm implementation.				
		-	_			
42		B.1. The Department of Human Resource Managem				
43 44		service center to support the human resource needs				
44		Secretary of Administration in consultation with the Dep agencies identified shall cooperate with the Department				
4 6		transferring such records and functions as may be requi		e munugement by		
47 48		2. Out of this appropriation, \$622,898 the first year an general fund shall be used to support the human resou		ond year from the		
49		3. Nothing in this paragraph shall prohibit additional ag	gencies from using t	he services of the		
50		center; however, these additional agencies' use of the h				
51		subject to approval by the affected cabinet secretary an				
52		A a Agancies that are partially or fully funded with non	anaral funds that a	caive annroval her		
52 53		4. a. Agencies that are partially or fully funded with non the affected cabinet secretary and the Secretary of Adm				

4. a. Agencies that are partially or fully funded with hongeneral funds that receive approval by
 the affected cabinet secretary and the Secretary of Administration to join the human resource
 service center, on or after July 1, 2014, shall pay the Department of Human Resource
 Management the costs to support the human resource service center. The agency's share of the

7	7		

Item Details(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

FY2019 1 costs to support the human resource service center shall be based on the agency's 2 applicable nongeneral fund expenditures as set out in § 4-5.03 of this act. 3 b. The rates required to recover the costs of the human resource service center shall be 4

ITEM 81.

provided by the Department of Human Resource Management to the Department of 5 Planning and Budget by September 1 each year for review and approval of the subsequent 6 fiscal year's rate in accordance with § 4-5.03 of this act.

- 7 c. The rates for the human resource service center shall be \$625.00 per full-time 8 equivalent and \$225.00 per wage employee the first year and \$900.00 per full-time 9 equivalent and \$325.00 per wage employee the second year.
- 10 C. The institutions of higher education shall be exempt from the centralized advertising 11 requirements identified in Executive Order 73 (01).
- 12 D.1. To ensure fair and equitable performance reviews, the Department of Human 13 Resource Management, within available resources, is directed to provide performance 14 management training to agencies and institutions of higher education with classified 15 employees.
- 16 2. Agency heads in the Executive Department are directed to require appropriate 17 performance management training for all agency supervisors and managers.
- 18 E. The Department of Human Resource Management shall take into account the claims 19 experience of each agency and institution when setting premiums for the workers' 20 compensation program.
- 21 F.1. The Department of Human Resource Management shall report to the Governor and 22 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by October 30 of 23 each year, on its recommended workers' compensation premiums for state agencies for the 24 following biennium. This report shall also include the basis for the department's 25 recommendations; the status and recommendations of the loss control program authorized 26 in paragraph F. 2; the number and amount of workers' compensation settlements 27 concluded in the previous fiscal year, inclusive of those authorized in paragraph F. 3.a; 28 and the impact of those settlements on the workers' compensation program's reserves.
- 29 2. Beginning July 1, 2015, the Department of Human Resource Management shall conduct 30 an annual review of each state agency's loss control history, to include the severity of 31 workers' compensation claims, experience modification factor, and frequency normalized 32 by payroll. Based on the annual review, state agencies deemed by the Department of 33 Human Resource Management as having higher than normal loss history shall be required 34 to participate in a loss control program. All executive, judicial, legislative, and 35 independent agencies required to participate in the loss control program shall fully 36 cooperate with the Department of Human Resource Management's review.
- 3. a. A working capital advance of up to \$20,000,000 shall be provided to the Department 37 38 of Human Resource Management to identify and potentially settle certain workers' 39 compensation claims open for more than one year but less than 10 years. The Department 40 of Human Resource Management shall pay back the working capital advance from annual 41 premiums over a seven-year period.
- 42 b. The Secretary of Finance and Secretary of Administration shall approve the drawdowns 43 from this working capital advance prior to the expenditure of funds. The State Comptroller 44 shall notify the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate 45 Finance Committees of any approved drawdowns.
- 46 G. The Department of Human Resource Management shall report to the Governor and 47 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, by October 15 of 48 each year, on the renewal cost of the state employee health insurance program premiums 49 that will go into effect on July 1 of the following year. This report shall include the impact 50 of the renewal cost on employee and employer premiums and a valuation of liabilities as 51 required by Other Post Employment Benefits reporting standards.
- 52 H. Out of this appropriation, \$303,219 \$606,439 the first year and \$606,439 the second 53 year from the general fund is provided for the time, attendance and leave system.

	It	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 8	81. First Ye FY201		Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	I. The Department of Human Resource Management shall develop and d	listribu	te instructions		
2	and guidelines to all executive department agencies for the provision of	an anr	nual statement		
3	of total compensation for each classified employee. The statement should	d accor	unt for the full		

4 cost to the Commonwealth and the employee of cash compensation as well as Social Security, 5 Medicare, retirement, deferred compensation, health insurance, life insurance, and any other 6 benefits. The Director, Department of Human Resource Management, shall ensure that all 7 executive department agencies provide this notice to each employee. The Department of 8 Accounts and the Virginia Retirement System shall provide assistance upon request. Further, 9 the Director of the Department of Human Resource Management shall provide instructions 10 and guidelines for the development notices of total compensation to all independent, 11 legislative, and judicial agencies, and institutions of higher education for preparation of 12 annual statements to their employees.

- J. 1. The appropriation for the Personnel Management Information System (PMIS) is a sum
 sufficient and amounts shown are estimates from an internal service fund which shall be paid
 solely from revenues derived from charges to participating agencies, identified by the
 Department of Human Resource Management and approved by the Department of Planning
 and Budget, to support the operation of PMIS and its subsystems authorized in this Item.
- 18 2.a. The rate for agencies to support PMIS and its subsystems, operated and maintained by the
 19 Department of Human Resource Management, shall be \$16.20 per position the first year and
 20 no more than \$17.03 per position the second year. The rate is based upon the higher of the
 21 agency's maximum employment level as of July 1, 2017, and filled wage positions as of June
 22 30, 2017, or the total number of filled classified and wage positions as of June 30, 2017.
- b. The rates authorized to support the operation of PMIS and its subsystems shall be provided
 by the Department of Human Resource Management and approved by the Department of
 Planning and Budget by September 1 each year for review and approval of the subsequent
 fiscal year's rate in accordance with § 4-5.03 of this act.
- 27 3. The State Comptroller shall recover the cost of services provided for the administration of
 28 the internal service fund through interagency transactions as determined by the State
 29 Comptroller.

K. Out of the amounts appropriated for this Item to support the Commission on Employee
 Retirement Security and Pension Reform, the Department of Human Resource Management is
 authorized to spend an amount estimated at \$75,000 each year on the development and
 maintenance of an employee exit survey and an amount estimated at \$20,000 per year to
 subscribe to Occupationally Based Data Services focused on total compensation and
 evaluation of peer employers.

L. The Department of Human Resource Management shall work with the Virginia Information Technologies Agency to develop a pilot program, beginning in July of 2019, utilizing a currently available electronic platform, to track and evaluate the productivity contract staff when teleworking or working in an office that is not part of the agency for which they work or for which they have a contract. The Departments shall identify specific executive branch agencies which have a significant number of such contractors and work with these agencies to develop the pilot project. The Departments shall report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on the results of the pilot program by November 15, 2020.

Total	for	Department	of	Human	Resource
Manag	gemen	it			

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45 46

47

53 54 55

49.96	49.96
72.04	72.04
66.04	66.04
122.00	122.00
116.00	116.00
\$4.803.254	\$4,500,035
\$5,207,112	\$5,179,300
\$1,272,515	\$1,272,515
	72.04 66.04 122.00 116.00 \$4,803,254 \$5,207,112

\$103,805,256 \$108,535,313 \$103,100,826 \$108,114,532

	ITEM 81.		Ite First Ye FY201			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Enterprise	\$3,714,817 \$2,519,448	\$3,714,817 \$2,510,448		
2 3 4 5		Internal Service Trust and Agency	\$2,519,448 \$7,338,929 \$86,675,741 \$86,762,822	\$2,519,448 \$7,372,205 \$91,675,741 \$91,771,064		
3			<i>\$</i> 00,702,822	<i>\$91,771,004</i>		
6		Administration of	Health Insurance	e (149)		
7 8	82.	Personnel Management Services (70400)			\$2,585,446,067 \$2,085,446,067	\$2,685,446,067 \$2,110,446,067
9 10		Health Benefits Services (70406)	\$1,519,195,823	\$1,619,195,823 \$1,544,195,823		
11		Local Health Benefit Services (70407)	\$534,050,244	\$534,050,244		
12 13		Health Insurance Benefit Payment Under the Line of Duty Act (70408)	\$32,200,000	\$32,200,000		
14 15 16		Health Benefit Services – State-Based Local Option (70411)	\$500,000,000 \$0	\$500,000,000 \$0		
17 18		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$1,034,050,244 \$534,050,244	\$1,034,050,244 \$534,050,244		
19		Internal Service	\$1,519,195,823	\$1,619,195,823		
20 21		Trust and Agency	\$32,200,000	\$1,544,195,823 \$32,200,000		
22		Authority: § 2.2-2818, § 2.2-1204, and Title 9.1, Cha	pter 4, Code of Vi	rginia.		
23 24 25		A. The appropriation for Health Benefits Services is are estimates from an internal service fund which sha agencies to the Department of Human Resource Man	all be paid from rev			
26 27		B. The amounts for Local Health Benefits Services from localities for the local choice health benefits p		l revenues received	1	
28 29 30		C.1. In the event that the total of all eligible clai employee medical reimbursement account, there is from the general fund of the state treasury to enable	hereby appropriat	ed a sum sufficien	t	
31 32 33 34		2. The term "employee medical reimbursement according by the Department of Human Resource Managemer Revenue Code in connection with the health insura 2.2-2818, Code of Virginia).	ent pursuant to §	125 of the Interna	1	
35 36 37 38 39 40 41		D. Any balances remaining in the reserved compone Fund shall be considered part of the overall Health General Assembly that future premiums for the stat shall be set in a manner so that the balance in the He to meet the estimated Incurred But Not Paid lia contingency reserve at a level recommended by t Management for a self-insured plan subject to the	Insurance Fund. It e employee health ealth Insurance Fur bility for the Fur he Department of	t is the intent of the insurance program and will be sufficien and and maintain a f Human Resource	e 1 t a e	
42 43 44 45		E. The Department of Human Resource Manager Therapy Management pilot program for state en including Type II diabetes. The department shall of stakeholders in order to establish program parame	ployees with cer continue to consul	tain disease states	5	
46 47 48 49 50 51 52		F. Concurrent with the date the Governor introduce Departments of Planning and Budget and Human R the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and S detailing the assumptions included in the Govern employee health insurance plan. The report shall include that would be effective for the upcoming fiscal yes benefit structure.	esource Managem Genate Finance Co tor's introduced b clude the proposed ear and any propo	ent shall provide to ommittees a repor udget for the state premium schedule sed changes to the	0 t e e	
53		G. Of money appropriated for the state employee her	alth insurance fund	l, \$650,000 the firs	t	

				em Details(\$)		oriations(\$)
	ITEM 82.		First Yea FY2019		r First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		year and \$650,000 the second year shall be held separ any required fees due to the Patient-Centered Outcom	ate and apart from	the fund to pay for		
3 4 5 6 7 8		H. In addition to such other payments as may be av insurance, net of any deductions and credits, for the certain public safety officers killed in the line of duty disabled in the line of duty, and the spouses and dep payable from this Item pursuant to Title 9.1, Chapter 2017.	surviving spouses and for certain pu endents of such di	and dependents of ablic safety officers sabled officers, are	f 5 2	
9 10 11		I. The amounts for Health Benefits Services = State = revenues received from localities for the local health b of the Acts of Assembly of 2016.				
12 13 14 15		J. The Department of Human Resource Managemen House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees progress of implementing a shared-services incentive plan and the Local Choice Health Benefit Plan.	no later than Nove	mber 1, 2018 on the	2	
16 17		Total for Administration of Health Insurance			\$2,585,446,067 \$2,085,446,067	\$2,685,446,067 \$2,110,446,067
18 19		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$1,034,050,244 \$534,050,244	\$1,034,050,244 \$534,050,244		
20 21		Internal Service	\$1,519,195,823	\$1,619,195,823 \$1,544,195,823		
22		Trust and Agency	\$32,200,000	\$32,200,000		
23 24 25		Grand Total for Department of Human Resource Management			\$2,689,251,323 \$2,188,546,893	\$2,793,981,380 \$2,218,560,599
26		General Fund Positions	49.96	49.96		
27 28		Nongeneral Fund Positions	72.04 66.04	72.04 66.04		
28 29 30		Position Level	122.00 116.00	122.00 116.00		
31 32		Fund Sources: General	\$4,803,254 \$5,207,112	\$4,500,035 \$5,179,300		
33		Special Enterprise	\$1,272,515	\$1,272,515		
34 35		Enterprise	\$536,569,692	\$1,037,765,061 \$536,569,692		
36 37		Internal Service	\$1,526,534,752	\$1,626,568,028 \$1,551,568,028		
38 39		Trust and Agency	\$118,875,741 \$118,962,822	\$123,875,741 \$123,971,064		
40		§ 1-30. DEPARTMEN	T OF ELECTIO	NS (132)		
41 42	83.	Electoral Services (72300)			\$12,116,786	\$11,896,786 \$16,068,370
43 44 45		Electoral Administration, Uniformity, Legality, and Quality Assurance Services (72302)	\$1,285,140	\$1,285,140 \$2,052,640		
46 47 48		Statewide Voter Registration System and Associated Information Technology Services (72304)	\$8,872,492	\$8,872,492 \$12,169,925		
49 50		Campaign Finance Disclosure Administration	\$181,282	\$181,282		
50 51		Services (72309) Voter Services and Communications (72311)	\$181,282 \$703,944	\$181,282 \$483,944		
52 53		Administrative Services (72312)	\$1,073,928	\$1,073,928 \$1,180,579		
54 55		Fund Sources: General	\$12,064,536	\$11,844,536 \$13.016.120		
55 56		Special	\$52,250	\$13,016,120 \$52,250		

		Item 1	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 83.		First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year	
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020	
1	Trust and Agency	\$0	\$3,000,000			

46		Population	June 3	30, 2019	Ju	ine 30, 2020
45			July	to	•	July 1, 2019 to
43 44		b. The annual salaries of general registrars, in accord 111, Code of Virginia, shall be as hereinafter prescrib	bed.			
36 37 38 39 40 41 42		A.1.a. In determining the salary for each general registrar, the Department of Elections shall use the most recent provisional population estimate from the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service of the University of Virginia. The Department of Elections shall adjust such population estimate, where applicable, for any annexation or consolidation order by a court when such order becomes effective. There shall be no reduction in salary by reason of a decline in population during the terms in which the incumbent general registrar remains in office.				
35		Authority: Title 24.2, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
34		Fund Sources: General	\$5,957,836	\$5,957,836		
32 33		Financial Assistance for Local Electoral Board Compensation and Expenses (78002)	\$925,352	\$925,352		
28 29 30 31	84.	Financial Assistance for Electoral Services (78000) Financial Assistance for General Registrar Compensation (78001)	\$5,032,484	\$5,032,484	\$5,957,836	\$5,957,836
25 26 27		G. Out of this appropriation, \$212,423 the first year a the general fund is provided for conducting list maint National Voter Registration Act.				
19 20 21 22 23 24		F. Out of this appropriation, \$212,687 the first year and general fund is provided for voter outreach and educat the photo identification requirements pursuant to Char 2013. It is the intent of the General Assembly that regi photograph and signature be provided free to any eligibregistrar.				
16 17 18		E. All unpaid charges and civil penalties assessed u interest, the administrative collection fee and late penal Collection Act, Chapter 48 of Title 2.2, § 2.2-4800 et s	lties authorized in			
13 14 15		D. The State Board of Elections shall by regulation pro \$25 for each non-electronic report filed with the Sta regulation shall provide for waiver of the fee based	te Board under §			
11 12		C. Municipalities will pay all expenses associated with including those costs incurred by the Department of E		ter June 30, 2009,		
6 7 8 9 10		B. Any locality using paper pollbooks for elections he shall be responsible for entering voting credit as provid locality using paper pollbooks for elections held after hereimburse the Department of Elections for state cost pollbooks.	led in § 24.2-668. November, 2010 m	Additionally, any hay be required to		
3 4 5		A. It is the intention of the General Assembly that all absentee precincts established under § 24.2-712, Co pollbooks for elections held beginning in November				
2		Authority: Title 24.2, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				

\$46,468

\$51,059

47

48

49

0-25,000

25,001-50,000

\$46,468

\$47,397

\$51,059

		Item I	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM	I 84.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1					\$52,080	
2 3	50,001-100,000	\$	\$55,959			
4 5	100,001-150,000	\$6	\$62,538			
6 7	150,001-200,000	\$6	\$68,491			
8 9	200,001 and above	\$9	90,525		\$90,525 \$92,336	

c. Any locality required to supplement the salary of a general registrar on June 30, 1981, shall
 continue that supplement at the identical annual amount as paid in FY 1982. This supplement
 shall continue as long as the incumbent general registrar on July 1, 1982, continues in office.
 Further, any locality may supplement the annual salary of the general registrar. There shall be
 no reimbursement out of the state treasury for such supplements.

General registrars in the Counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Loudoun, and Prince William and
 the Cities of Alexandria, Fairfax, Falls Church, Manassas, and Manassas Park shall receive a
 cost of competition supplement equal to 15 percent of the salaries authorized in paragraph
 A.1.a. The cost of this supplement shall be paid out of the general fund of the state treasury.

19 B.1.a. The Department of Elections shall set the annual compensation for secretaries and 20 members of local electoral boards on July 1 of each year. In determining such compensation, 21 the Department of Elections shall use the most recent population estimate from the United 22 States Bureau of the Census. However, should more recent population estimates from the 23 Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service of the University of Virginia indicate that the 24 population of any county or city has, since the last United States census, increased so as to 25 entitle such county or city to be placed in a higher compensation bracket, such county or city 26 shall be considered as being within the higher bracket for the purpose of fixing the annual 27 compensation.

b. The annual compensation of the secretary of each local electoral board shall be as hereinafter prescribed.

28

29

30		July 1, 2018	July 1, 2019
31		to June 30, 2019	to June 30, 2020
32	Population Size		<i>June 20, 2020</i>
33	of Locality		
34 35	0-10,000	\$2,150	\$2,150 \$2, <i>193</i>
36 37	10,001-25,000	\$3,222	\$3,222 \$3,286
38 39	25,001-50,000	\$4,296	\$4,296 \$4,382
40 41	50,001-100,000	\$5,370	\$5,370 \$5,477
42 43	100,001-150,000	\$6,442	\$6,442 \$6,571
44 45	150,001-200,000	\$7,534	\$7,534 \$7,685
46 47	200,001-350,000	\$8,598	\$8,598 \$8,770
48 49	Above 350,000	\$9,667	\$9,667 \$9,860

50 c. The annual compensation of other members of local electoral boards shall be fixed at one-51 half the annual compensation provided to the secretary of the board.

52 d. The governing body of any county or city may pay to a full-time secretary of an electoral

	ITEM 84.		First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year
1 2		board such supplemental compensation as it deen reimbursement out of the state treasury for such		FY2020 here shall be no	F ¥ 2019	FY2020
3 4 5 6		2. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the governi paying the secretary of its electoral board such addin deems appropriate but there shall be no reimburseme expenses.	ng body of any cou tional allowance for	or expenses as it		
7 8		3. Notwithstanding § 24.2-108, Code of Virginia, reimbursed for mileage paid to members of electronic structure of the struct		ies shall not be		
9 10		Total for Department of Elections			\$18,074,622	\$17,854,622 \$22,026,206
11 12		General Fund Positions	43.00	43.00 49.00		
12 13 14		Position Level	43.00	43.00 43.00 49.00		
15 16		Fund Sources: General	\$18,022,372	\$17,802,372 \$18,973,956		
17 18		Special Trust and Agency	\$52,250 \$0	\$52,250 <i>\$3,000,000</i>		
19		§ 1-31. VIRGINIA INFORMATION	N TECHNOLOGI	ES AGENCY (13	6)	
20 21 22	84.10	Information Systems Management and Direction (71100) Geographic Information Access Services (71105)	\$2,740,163	\$2,740,163	\$2,740,163	\$2,740,163
23		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,740,163	\$2,740,163		
24		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, Code of Virginia.	+_,,,	+_,,		
25 26 27 28		A.1. All state and nonstate agencies receiving an appro the guidelines and related procedures issued by V Agency for effective management of geograph Commonwealth.	irginia Informatio	n Technologies		
29 30 31 32		2. All state and nonstate agencies identified in para information system, shall assist the department by pro- the systems including current and planned expendi- resources.	viding any requeste	d information on		
33 34 35 36		3. The State Corporation Commission, Virginia Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, and ot encouraged to use their own fund sources for the acqui of data for the spatial data library in the Virginia Geog	her nongeneral fur sition of hardware a	nd agencies are and development		
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51		B. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency, t Network Division (VGIN), or its counterpart, shall resolution digital orthophotography of the land bass Virginia Base Mapping Program (VBMP) and digita administer the maintenance of the VBMP and appro attribution in collaboration with local governments. A Terrain Models and ancillary data produced by the VI centerline files, shall be the property of the Commony by VGIN. The VGIN, or its counterpart, will be ra through appropriate license agreements and establish charges and any limitations on use of the data. VGIN (other than media / transfer costs) to Virginia govern data shall not be subject to release by such entities une or similar laws. VGIN in its discretion may release ce	acquire on a four- e of Virginia purs l road centerline fi priate addressing a ll digital orthophot BMP, but not inclu- wealth of Virginia a esponsible for pro- hing appropriate te N will license the d nental entities or the der the Freedom of rtain data by postin	year cycle high- suant to VGIN's iles. VGIN shall and standardized ography, Digital ding digital road and administered tecting the data erms, conditions, lata at no charge neir agents. Such Information Act g to the Internet.		
51 52		Distribution of the data for commercial or priv Commonwealth will be the sole responsibility of VG				

	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)			
ľ	TEM 84.1	0.	First Year FY2019	• Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		payment of a license fee to be determined by VGIN. A added to the GIS Fund as established in the Code of Vir grants are hereby appropriated for future data updates or ortho acquisition or for other purposes authorized in § 2.	ginia § 2.2-2028. to cover the costs	Collected fees and		
5 6 7 8		C. Funding in this item shall be used to support the Information Network which provides for the developme E-911 wireless activities in partnership with Enhanced E Funding is to be earmarked for major updates of the VBN	ent and use of spat mergency Commu	ial data to support nications Services.		
9 10 11 12 13 14		D. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 7, Chap \$1,750,000 the first year and \$1,750,000 the second year Development Technology Services dedicated special r efforts of the Virginia Geographic Information Network development and use of spatial data to support E-911 w Enhanced Emergency Communications Services.	from Emergency evenue shall be us , or its counterpart	Response Systems sed to support the , for providing the		
15 16	84.20	Emergency Response Systems Development Technology Services (71200)			\$22,896,338	\$22,896,338
17 18 19		Emergency Communication Systems Development Services (71201) Financial Assistance to Localities for Enhanced	\$6,919,730	\$6,919,730		
20 21		Emergency Communications Services (71202) Financial Assistance to Service Providers for	\$10,984,640	\$10,984,640		
22 23		Enhanced Emergency Communications Services (71203)	\$4,991,968	\$4,991,968		
24		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$22,896,338	\$22,896,338		
25		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, and Title 56, Chapter	r 15, Code of Virgi	inia.		
26 27 28		A.1.a. Out of the amounts for Emergency Communicat \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year be used for development and deployment of improvement	from dedicated sp	ecial revenue shall		
29 30		b. These funds shall remain unallotted until their exp Wireless E-911 Services Board.	enditure has been	approved by the		
31 32 33		2. Out of the amounts for Emergency Communication \$4,000,000 the first year and \$4,000,000 the second year be used for wireless E-911 service costs as determined by	from dedicated sp	ecial revenue shall		
34 35 36		B. The operating expenses, administrative costs, and sal Safety Communications Division shall be paid from pursuant to § 56-484.17.				
37 38 39	84.30	Information Technology Development and Operations (82000)			\$329,182,128	\$329,182,128 \$273,570,619
40 41		Network Services Data, Voice, and Video (82003).	\$102,286,722	\$102,286,722 \$102,666,845		φ275,576,617
42 43		Data Center Services (82005)	\$117,920,303	\$117,920,303 \$62,617,248		
44 45		Desktop and End User Services (82006)	\$100,643,409	\$100,643,409 \$92,226,454		
46 47		Computer Operations Security Services (82010)	\$8,331,694	\$8,331,694 \$16,060,072		
48 49		Fund Sources: Internal Service	\$329,182,128	\$329,182,128 \$273,570,619		
50		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, Code of Virginia.				
51 52 53		A. Out of this appropriation, \$329,182,128 the first year second year for Information Technology Development a amounts shown are estimates from an internal service f	and Operations is s	sum sufficient and		

Item Details(\$)					
First Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 revenues derived from charges for services.

ITEM 84.30.

B. Political subdivisions and local school divisions are hereby authorized to purchase
information technology goods and services of every description from the Virginia
Information Technologies Agency and its vendors, provided that such purchases are not
prohibited by the terms and conditions of the contracts for such goods and services.

6 C.1. In consultation with the General Assembly and the Office of the Governor, the
 7 Virginia Information Technologies Agency (VITA) is authorized to plan for, procure, and
 8 take other actions necessary to replace information technology services currently provided
 9 by Northrop Grumman. VITA's plan to replace information technology services currently
 10 provided by Northrop Grumman shall involve agencies served by VITA.

- 2. The Secretary of Finance and Secretary of Administration shall approve the draw
 downs from the agency's line of credit authorized in § 3-2.03 of this act prior to the
 expenditure of funds for costs associated with replacing information technology services
 currently provided by Northrop Grumman.
- 15 3. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to administratively
 16 adjust the appropriation in this item and Item 84.60 of this act for approved transition
 17 costs associated with replacing information technology services currently provided by
 18 Northrop Grumman.
- 19 D. The Chief Information Officer of the Commonwealth shall report to the Governor and 20 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on progress 21 toward transitioning to new information technology services that will replace the 22 information technology services currently provided by Northrop Grumman under the 23 Comprehensive Infrastructure Agreement. Such a report shall be made at least quarterly, 24 in a format mutually agreeable to them, and shall (i) describe efforts to discontinue the 25 Unisys mainframe, (ii) assess the Virginia Information Technologies Agency's 26 organization and in-scope information technology and telecommunications costs, and (iii) 27 identify options available to the Commonwealth at the expiry of the current agreement 28 including any anticipated steps required to plan for its expiration.
- E. 1. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall, in consultation with state
 agencies, report quarterly to the Secretary of Administration and the Secretary of Finance
 with a detailed transition plan for this migration out of the Commonwealth Enterprise
 Solutions Center (CESC). This plan will, at a minimum, identify the migration-readiness
 status of all such applications, data, and systems, propose detailed transition timelines,
 and identify ongoing and one-time costs for the migration.
- 2. For purposes of facilitating and expediting the migration of all Commonwealth
 applications, data, and systems currently physically located or hosted in CESC to the
 Quality Technology Services data center by June 30, 2022, The Virginia Information
 Technologies Agency shall procure a statewide contract on behalf of executive branch
 agencies to provide migration-readiness modifications where such modifications are
 deemed necessary by the Chief Information Officer of the Commonwealth.
- 3. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency is hereby authorized to fund approved
 migration expenses on behalf of agencies from its line of credit authorized in § 3-2.03 of
 this act. All proposed draws from the Virginia Information Technologies Agency's line of
 credit recommended by the Chief Information Officer of the Commonwealth for required
 migration expenses shall be approved by the Secretary of Finance and the Secretary of
 Administration prior to any expenditure of funds.
- 47 4. It is the responsibility of each approved agency to repay its specific costs incurred on
 48 the Virginia Information Technologies Agency's line of credit. Upon approval of
 49 expenditures to be paid from the line of credit draw request, the Secretary of
 50 Administration and the Secretary of Finance shall specify the repayment period.
- 5. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 4-3.02 of this act, the Secretary of Finance may
 provide agencies whose applications or systems are funded in whole or in part by
 nongeneral funds interest-free treasury loans to fund expenses associated with the
 migration of agency applications, data, and systems out of CESC where such

ľ	ГЕМ 84.3	0.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		modifications are deemed necessary by the Chief Inform Such treasury loans shall only be for the nongeneral fun The repayment plan for such loans may be extended for by the Secretary of Finance.	nd component of the	e migration costs.		
5 6	84.40	Central Support Services for Business Solutions (82400)			\$6,760,438	\$6,760,438
7 8		Information Technology Services for Data Exchange Programs (82401)	\$6,603,226	\$6,603,226		
9 10		Information Technology Services for Productivity Improvements (82402)	\$157,212	\$157,212		
11		Fund Sources: Internal Service	\$6,760,438	\$6,760,438		
12		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, Code of Virginia.				
13 14 15 16 17		The appropriation for Central Support Services for Busi amounts shown are estimates from an internal service for revenues derived from charges for services. Included in and second year costs for workplace productivity and col- are offered as optional services to executive branch agend	und which shall be these amounts are t laboration solutions	paid solely from he projected first 5. These solutions		
18 19 20	84.50	Information Technology Planning and Quality Control (82800)			\$1,110,137	\$1,110,137 \$0
20 21 22		Enterprise Development Services (82803)	\$1,110,137	\$1,110,137 \$0		φo
23 24		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,110,137	\$1,110,137 \$0		
25		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, Code of Virginia.				
26 27	84.60	Administrative and Support Services (89900)			\$43,786,114 \$44,146,614	\$41,590,093
28		General Management and Direction (89901)	\$28,033,408	\$25,837,387		
29		Accounting and Budgeting Services (89903)	\$5,884,610	\$5,884,610		
30		Human Resources Services (89914)	\$213,754	\$213,754		
31		Planning and Evaluation Services (89916)	\$2,054,485	\$2,054,485		
32 33		Procurement and Contracting Services (89918)	\$4,413,682 \$4,774,182	\$4,413,682		
34		Web Development and Support Services (89940)	\$3,186,175	\$3,186,175		
35 36		Fund Sources: Special	\$9,891,446 \$10,251,946	\$9,891,446		
37		Internal Service	\$33,894,668	\$31,698,647		

38 Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, Code of Virginia.

39

40

41

42

A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$33,894,668 the first year and \$31,698,647 the second year for Administrative and Support Services is sum sufficient and amounts shown are estimates from an internal service fund which shall be paid solely from charges to other programs within this agency.

- 43 2. In accordance with § 2.2-2013 D, Code of Virginia, the surcharge rate used to fund
 44 expenses for operations and staff of services administered by the Virginia Information
 45 Technologies Agency shall be no more than 11.09 percent the first year and 10.04 10.71
 46 percent the second year.
- 47 3. Included in the amounts for Administrative and Support Services are funds from the
 48 Acquisition Services Special Fund which is paid solely from receipts from vendor information
 49 technology contracts. These funds will be used to finance procurement and contracting
 50 activities and costs unallowable for federal fund reimbursement.
- 51 B. The provisions of Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1 of the Code of Virginia shall not apply to the52 Virginia Port Authority.

ITEM 84.6		Item I t Year 2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5	purchase information technology equipment or services from th Technologies Agency according to the provisions of Chapters 981	The requirement that the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services chase information technology equipment or services from the Virginia Information hnologies Agency according to the provisions of Chapters 981 and 1021 of the Acts of embly of 2003 shall not adversely impact the provision of services to mentally bled clients.			
6 7 8 9	D. The Chief Information Officer and the Secretary of Administr Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Sena with a report detailing any amendments or modifications t infrastructure agreement. The report shall include statements desc	ate Finan to the c	ce Committees omprehensive		

of such amendments or modifications and shall be submitted within 30 days following the

12 E.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 2.2-1509, 2.2-2007 and 2.2-2017, Code of 13 Virginia, the scope of formal reporting on major information technology projects in the Recommended Technology Investment Projects (RTIP) report is reduced. The efforts 14 15 involved in researching, analyzing, reviewing, and preparing the report will be streamlined and project ranking will be discontinued. Project analysis will be targeted as determined 16 by the Chief Information Officer (CIO) and the Secretary of Administration. Information 17 18 on major information technology investments will continue to be provided General 19 Assembly members and staff. Specifically, the following tasks will not be required, 20 though the task may be performed in a more streamlined fashion: (i) The annual report to 21 the Governor, the Secretary, and the Joint Commission on Technology and Science; (ii) 22 The annual report from the CIO for submission to the Secretary, the Information 23 Technology Advisory Council, and the Joint Commission on Technology and Science on a 24 prioritized list of Recommended Technology Investment Projects (RTIP Report); (iii) The 25 development by the CIO and regular update of a methodology for prioritizing projects based upon the allocation of points to defined criteria and the inclusion of this information 26 27 in the RTIP Report; (iv) The indication by the CIO of the number of points and how they were awarded for each project recommended for funding in the RTIP Report; (vi) The 28 29 reporting, for each project listed in the RTIP, of all projected costs of ongoing operations 30 and maintenance activities of the project for the next three biennia following project 31 implementation, a justification and description for each project baseline change, and 32 whether the project fails to incorporate existing standards for the maintenance, exchange, 33 and security of data; and (vii) The reporting of trends in current projected information 34 technology spending by state agencies and secretariats, including spending on projects, 35 operations and maintenance, and payments to Virginia Information Technologies Agency.

signing of any amended agreement.

10

11

36 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law and effective July 1, 2015, the Virginia 37 Information Technologies Agency (VITA) shall maintain and update quarterly a list of 38 major information technology projects that are active or are expected to become active in 39 the next fiscal year and have been approved and recommended for funding by the 40 Secretary of Administration. Such list shall serve as the official repository for all ongoing 41 information technology projects in the Commonwealth and shall include all information 42 required by § 2.2-1509.3 (B)(1)-(8), Code of Virginia. VITA shall make such list 43 publically available on its website, updated on a quarterly basis, and shall submit 44 electronically such quarterly update to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and 45 Senate Finance Committees and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, in a 46 format mutually agreeable to them. To ensure such list can be maintained and updated 47 quarterly, state agencies with major information technology projects that are active or are 48 expected to become active in the next fiscal year shall provide in a timely manner all data 49 and other information requested by VITA.

50 51 52	84.70	Information Technology Security Oversight (82900)		
53 54		Technology Security Oversight Services (82901)	\$3,582,440	\$3,582,440 \$3,654,272
55 56		Information Technology Security Service Center (82902)	\$2,695,267	\$2,653,707
57		Cloud Based Services Oversight (82903)	\$571,301	\$571,301
58 59		Fund Sources: General Special	\$425,164 \$293,555	\$425,164 \$293,555

\$6,849,008

\$6,807,448 \$6,879,280

		Item 1	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 84.70.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2	Internal Service	\$6,130,289	\$6,088,729 \$6,160,561			

Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 20.1, Code of Virginia.

3

4

5

6

7

A. Out of this appropriation, \$3,385,245 the first year and \$3,385,245 \$3,457,077 the second year for Technology Security Oversight Services is sum sufficient and amounts shown are estimates from an internal service fund which shall be paid solely from charges to other programs within this agency.

8 B.1. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall operate an information technology
 9 security service center to support the information technology security needs of agencies
 10 electing to participate in the information technology security service center. Support for
 11 participating agencies shall include, but not be limited to, vulnerability scans, information
 12 technology security audits, and Information Security Officer services. Participating agencies
 13 shall cooperate with the Virginia Information Technologies Agency by transferring such
 14 records and functions as may be required.

15 2.a. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall perform vulnerability scans of all public-facing websites and systems operated by state agencies. All state agencies which operate such websites and systems shall cooperate with the Virginia Information Technologies Agency in order to complete the vulnerability scans. However, the State Corporation Commission shall not be required to disable, in full or in part, any software system, process, or other tool utilized to protect such public-facing websites and systems.

b. Out of this appropriation, \$274,092 the first year and \$274,092 the second year from the
general fund shall be used to support vulnerability scanning of public-facing websites and
systems of the Commonwealth.

3. Agencies electing to participate in the information technology security service center shall
enter into a memorandum of understanding with the Virginia Information Technologies
Agency. Such memorandums shall outline the services to be provided by the Virginia
Information Technologies Agency and the costs to provide those services. If a participating
agency elects to not renew its memorandum of understanding, the agency shall notify the
Virginia Information Technologies Agency twelve months prior to the scheduled renewal date
of its intent to become a non-participating agency.

4. Non-participating agencies shall be required by July 1 each year to notify the Chief
Information Officer of the Commonwealth that the agency has met the requirements of the
Commonwealth's information security standards. If the agency has not met the requirements
of the Commonwealth's information security standards, the agency shall report to the Chief
Information Officer of the Commonwealth the steps and procedures the agency is
implementing in order to satisfy the requirements.

5. Out of this appropriation, \$2,270,103 the first year and \$2,228,543 the second year for
Information Technology Security Service Center is sum sufficient and amounts shown are
estimates from an internal service fund which shall be paid solely from internal service fund
revenues.

41 6. Notwithstanding any other provision of state law, and to the extent and in the manner 42 permitted by federal law, the Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall have the legal 43 authority to access, use, and view data and other records transferred to or in the custody of the 44 information technology security service center pursuant to this item. The services of the 45 center are intended to enhance data security, and no state law or regulation imposing data 46 security or dissemination restrictions on particular records shall prevent or burden the 47 custodian agency's authority under this item to transfer such records to the center for the 48 purpose of receiving the center's services. All such transfers and any access, use, or viewing 49 of data by center personnel in support of the center's provision of such services to the 50 transferring agency shall be deemed necessary to assist in valid administrative needs of the 51 transferring agency's program that received, used, or created the records transferred, and 52 personnel of the center shall, to the extent necessary, be deemed agents of the transferring 53 agency's administrative unit that is responsible for the program. Without limiting the 54 foregoing, no transfer of records under this item shall trigger any requirement for notice or 55 consent under the Government Data Collection and Dissemination Practices Act (GDCDPA)

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 84.7	0.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	(§ 2.2-3800 et. Seq.) or other law or regulation of the Co agency shall continue to be deemed the custodian of any for purposes of the GDCDPA, the Freedom Of Inform regulations of the Commonwealth pertaining to agencies records and associated programs. Custody of such records make the Virginia Information Technologies Agency a c memorandum of understanding under authority of this iter transferred, security requirements, and permitted use of contractor it uses in the provision of the center's ser confidence and implement and maintain all information se memorandum of understanding or required by federal policies for the protection of sensitive data.	record transferren nation Act, and that administer s for security pur- custodian of suc n shall specify th data provided. vices shall hole curity safeguard	ed to the center other laws or the transferred rposes shall not h records. Any he records to be VITA and any d such data in s defined in the		
13 14 15 16	7. The rates required to recover the costs of the informatic center shall be provided by the Virginia Information Department of Planning and Budget by September 1 each the subsequent fiscal year's rate.	Technologies	Agency to the		
17 18 19 20 21	C.1. Out of this appropriation, \$474,941 the first year and Cloud Based Services Oversight is sum sufficient and and an internal service fund which shall be paid solely from in a program to support the use of cloud service providers by Virginia Information Technologies Agency.	ounts shown are ternal service fu	estimates from nd revenues for		
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	2. As part of the program, the Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall develop policies, standards, and procedures for the use of cloud services providers by state agencies served by the Virginia Information Technologies Agency. These policies, standards, and procedures shall address the security and privacy of Commonwealth and citizen data; ensure compliance with federal and state laws and regulations; and provide for ongoing oversight and management of cloud services to verify performance through service level agreements or other means. VITA shall also establish a statewide contract of approved vendors authorized to offer cloud based services to state agencies.				
30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	3. Requests to use cloud providers shall be submitted by participating agencies to the Virginia Information Technologies Agency, which shall review such requests in accordance with the Commonwealth's policies, standards, and procedures. For approved requests, and consistent with Chapter 20.1 of Title 2.2, the Virginia Information Technologies Agency will procure cloud services on behalf of other agencies or may, upon request, authorize other state agencies to undertake such procurements on their own. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall also administer and oversee all contracts for cloud services used by agencies participating in the cloud services center, including verification of security and performance.				
39 40 41 42 43	4. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall work with state agencies to assess opportunities for additional use of cloud services, including infrastructure, platform, and software as a service. This assessment shall include a review of options for use of service brokers and integrators, and options for providing storage and server services through cloud or on-premises means.				
44 45 46	5. The rates required to recover the costs associated management of cloud based services shall be included in t 5.03 of this act.				
47 48 49	Total for Virginia Information Technologies Agency			\$413,324,326 \$413,684,826	\$411,086,745 \$354,436,931
50 51 52	General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions	2.00 238.00	2.00 238.00 236.40		
53 54	Position Level	240.00	240.00 238.40		
55	Fund Sources: General	\$425,164	\$425,164		

		Iter	m Details(\$)	Approp	oriations(\$)
ITEM 84.70).	First Yea FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Special	\$10,185,001 \$10,545,501	\$10,185,001		
3 4	Internal Service	\$375,967,523	\$373,729,942 \$318,190,265		
5 6	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$26,746,638	\$26,746,638 \$25,636,501		
7 8	TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION			\$4,071,420,947 \$3,572,263,488	\$4,177,894,413 \$3,550,986,246
9 10	General Fund Positions	368.46	368.46 377.46		
11 12	Nongeneral Fund Positions	737.54 731.54	737.54 729.94		
13 14	Position Level	1,106.00 <i>1,100.00</i>	1,106.00 <i>1,107.40</i>		
15 16	Fund Sources: General	\$738,014,959 \$736,741,756	\$740,171,509 \$738,814,397		
17 18	Special	\$20,396,076 \$20,756,576	\$20,487,686		
19 20	Enterprise	\$1,073,210,262 \$572,469,717	\$1,073,210,262 \$572,734,533		
21 22	Internal Service	\$2,070,126,829 \$2,072,535,537	\$2,169,606,487 \$2,042,545,975		
23 24	Trust and Agency	\$126,876,453 \$126,963,534	\$131,876,453 \$134,971,776		
25 26	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$35,346,638	\$35,346,638 \$34,236,501		
27	Federal Trust	\$7,449,730	\$7,195,378		

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 85.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		OFFICE OF AGRICUL	FURE AND FOR	ESTRY		
2		§ 1-32. SECRETARY OF AGRIC	ULTURE AND F	ORESTRY (193)		
3 4	85.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$503,367	\$503,367	\$503,367	\$503,367
5		Fund Sources: General	\$503,367	\$503,367		
6		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Article 2.1; § 2.2-203.3,	, Code of Virginia.			
7		Total for Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry			\$503,367	\$503,367
8 9		General Fund Positions Position Level	3.00 3.00	3.00 3.00		
10		Fund Sources: General	\$503,367	\$503,367		
11		§ 1-33. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTU	JRE AND CONSU	JMER SERVICE		
12 13	86.	Nutritional Services (45700) Distribution of USDA Donated Food (45708)	\$5,003,513	\$5,003,513	\$5,003,513	\$5,003,513
14 15		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$299,578 \$4,703,935	\$299,578 \$4,703,935		
16		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 1 and 47, Code of Virgini	ia.			
17 18	87.	Animal and Poultry Disease Control (53100)			\$7,841,695	\$7,841,695 \$7,991,695
19 20 21		Animal Disease Prevention and Control (53101) Diagnostic Services (53102)	\$3,357,008 \$4,267,076	\$3,357,008 \$4,267,076 \$4,417,076		
22		Animal Welfare (53104)	\$217,611	\$217,611		
23 24		Fund Sources: General	\$4,880,562	\$4,880,562 \$5,030,562		
25 26		Special Federal Trust	\$1,688,227 \$1,272,906	\$1,688,227 \$1,272,906		
27		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 60 and 65, Code of Virgin	nia.			
28 29 30		Out of the amounts in this Item, \$150,000 the seco included for the purchase of laboratory equipment the Equipment Leasing Program.				
31 32	88.	Agricultural Industry Marketing, Development, Promotion, and Improvement (53200)			\$21,539,204	\$21,539,204
33 34		Grading and Certification of Virginia Products (53201)	\$7,419,277	\$7,419,277		
35		Milk Marketing Regulation (53204)	\$828,137	\$828,137		
36		Marketing Research (53205)	\$285,784	\$285,784		
37 38		Market Virginia Agricultural and Forestry Products Nationally and Internationally (53206)	\$4,829,301	\$4,829,301		
39		Agricultural Commodity Boards (53208)	\$7,190,091	\$7,190,091		
40 41		Agribusiness Development Services and Farmland Preservation (53209)	\$986,614	\$986,614		
42		Fund Sources: General	\$8,260,076	\$8,260,076		
43		Special	\$158,125	\$158,125		
44		Trust and Agency	\$6,900,385	\$6,900,385		
45 46		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$5,499,720 \$720,898	\$5,499,720 \$720,898		

	ITEM 88.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020		Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 1, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 30, 32, 34, 35; Title 28.2, Chapter 2; and Title 61.1, Chapter 4, C	, 20, 21, 22, 2	3, 24, 26, 27,	1 1 2017	
3 4		A. Agricultural Commodity Boards shall be paid from the specifollowing estimated amounts:	ial fund taxes	levied in the		
5		1. To the Tobacco Board, \$143,000 the first year and \$143,000 the	second year.			
6		2. To the Corn Board, \$390,000 the first year and \$390,000 the sec	ond year.			
7		3. To the Egg Board, \$210,000 the first year and \$210,000 the seco	ond year.			
8		4. To the Soybean Board, \$1,164,000 the first year and \$1,164,000	the second ye	ar.		
9		5. To the Peanut Board, \$320,000 the first year and \$320,000 the set	econd year.			
10		6. To the Cattle Industry Board, \$800,000 the first year and \$800,0	00 the second	year.		
11		7. To the Virginia Small Grains Board, \$400,000 the first year and	\$400,000 the s	second year.		
12 13		8. To the Virginia Horse Industry Board, \$320,000 the first yea year.	r and \$320,00	0 the second		
14		9. To the Virginia Sheep Industry Board, \$35,000 the first year and	l \$35,000 the s	econd year.		
15		10. To the Virginia Potato Board, \$25,000 the first year and \$25,000	00 the second y	ear.		
16		11. To the Virginia Cotton Board, \$180,000 the first year and \$180	,000 the secon	d year.		
17		12. To the State Apple Board, \$150,000 the first year and \$150,000) the second ye	ear.		
18 19		B. Each commodity board is authorized to expend funds in according stated in the Code of Virginia. Such expenditures will be limited				
20 21 22 23 24		C. Each commodity board specified in this Item shall provide a excise tax paying producers which summarizes the purpose of th current tax rate, amount of excise taxes collected in the previous tyear expenditures and the board's past year activities. The manu determined by each board.	e board and the board the part of the part	ne excise tax, revious fiscal		
25 26 27 28		D. Out of the amounts in this Item shall be paid from certain special fund license taxes, license fees, and permit fees levied or imposed under Title 28.2, Chapters 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7, Code of Virginia, to the Virginia Marine Products Board, \$402,543 and two positions the first year and \$402,543 and two positions the second year.				
29 30 31		E. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$2,273,692 the first year and \$2,273,692 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Wine Promotion Fund as established in § 3.2-3005, Code of Virginia.				
32 33 34 35		F. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$250,000 the first year and \$250,000 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Farmland Preservation Fund established in \$ 3.2-201, Code of Virginia. This appropriation shall be deemed sufficient to meet the provisions of \$ 2.2-1509.4, Code of Virginia.				
36 37 38 39		G. Out of the amounts in this Item, the Commissioner is authorized to expend from the general fund amounts not to exceed \$25,000 the first year and \$25,000 the second year for entertainment expenses commonly borne by businesses. Further, such expenses shall be recorded separately by the agency.				
40		H. Out of the amounts in this Item, the Commissioner is authorize		,120,226 the		

- H. Out of the amounts in this Item, the Commissioner is authorized to expend \$1,120,226 the
 first year and \$1,120,226 the second year from the general fund for the promotion of
 Virginia's agricultural products overseas. Such efforts shall be conducted in concert with the
 international offices opened by the Virginia Economic Development Partnership.
- I. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$25,000 the first year and \$25,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to support 4-H and Future Farmers of America youth participation educational costs at the State Fair of Virginia. These funds shall not be used for

	ITEM 88.		Item First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	Appropri First Year	ations(\$) Second Year
	11 ENI 00.		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1		administrative costs by the State Fair.				
2 3 4	89.	Economic Development Services (53400) Financial Assistance for Economic Development (53410)	\$1,221,473	\$1,221,473	\$1,221,473	\$1,221,473
5		Fund Sources: General	\$1,221,473	\$1,221,473		
6		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapter 3.1, Code of Virginia.				
7 8 9 10 11 12 13		A. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$1,000,000 the fin year from the general fund shall be deposited to the G Industries Development Fund for the payment of gran et seq., Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding any other p the Governor, the cap on the amount of funding that project as provided in § 3.2-305, Code of Virginia, ma of regional or statewide interest.	overnor's Agricult ts or loans in accorrovision of law, at may be awarded	ure and Forestry rdance § 3.2-303 the discretion of to an individual		
14 15		B. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$221,473 the first may be used by the department to pay administrative		the second year		
16 17	90.	Plant Pest and Disease Control (53500) Plant Pest and Disease Prevention and Control			\$3,513,746	\$3,513,746
17		Services (53504)	\$3,513,746	\$3,513,746		
19 20 21		Fund Sources: General Special Federal Trust	\$2,344,567 \$319,016 \$850,163	\$2,344,567 \$319,016 \$850,163		
22 23		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 7, 8, 9, 10, 28, 38, 41.1 a of Virginia.	nd 44; Title 15.2, C	Chapter 18, Code		
24 25 26 27 28		A. The Commissioner may enter into agreements with persons, for the control of black vultures, coyotes, and agricultural animals. The Commissioner shall enter is government to establish and maintain the Virgini Management Program.	d other wildlife that nto an agreement	t pose danger to with the federal		
29 30 31 32 33 34 35		B. Out of the amounts in this item, \$125,000 the first from the general fund shall be deposited to the Beehiv to \$ 3.2-4415, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding the Virginia, the department shall not accept applications Program if funds are not appropriated for such purp required to continue to accept applications for the pr been fully allocated to grantees for a given fiscal ye	ve Grant Fund esta provisions of § 3. for grants from th poses nor shall the ogram if funds ap	blished pursuant 2-4416, Code of e Beehive Grant e department be		
36	91.	Agriculture and Food Homeland Security (54100)			\$176,934	\$176,934
37 38 39 40		Agricultural and Food Emergencies Prevention and Response (54101)	\$176,934	\$176,934 \$315,171		\$315,171
41 42		Fund Sources: General	\$173,613	\$173,613 \$311,850		
43		Special	\$3,321	\$3,321		
44		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 7, 51, 59, 60, and 65, Coo	le of Virginia.			
45 46 47	92.	Consumer Affairs Services (55000) Consumer Affairs - Regulation and Consumer Education (55001)	\$1,723,343	\$1,723,343	\$1,723,343	\$1,723,343
48 49		Fund Sources: General Special	\$33,726 \$1,689,617	\$33,726 \$1,689,617		
50 51		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapter 1; Title 57, Chapter 5; T. 34.1 and 36, Code of Virginia.	itle 59.1, Chapters	24, 25, 33.1, 34,		

	ITEM 92.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	93.	Regulation of Business Practices (55200) Regulation of Grain Commodity Sales (55207) Regulation of Weights and Measures and Motor Fuels (55212)	\$103,960 \$3,196,081	\$103,960 \$3,196,081	\$3,300,041	\$3,300,041
5 6		Fund Sources: General Special	\$3,098,551 \$201,490	\$3,098,551 \$201,490		
7 8		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 43, 47, 55.1, 56, 57, and 58; Virginia.	; and Title 59.1, Cha	pter 12, Code of		
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		In lieu of periodic inspections by the Commissioner Consumer Services, any person whose weights and mea 5600, et seq., Code of Virginia, which are used for a provide for the inspection and testing of all such weig accuracy and correct operation of the equipment or dev weights and measures devices tested at least annually by pursuant to § 3.2-5703, Code of Virginia. Weights and m service agency shall not be used again commerciall reexamined by the rejecting authority or an inspector er found to be in compliance with Title 3.2, Chapter 56, C weights and measures devices, or third-party agencies on the Commissioner on an annual basis in a manner prescril of all testing, including (i) the number of inspections com the weights and measures equipment or devices, and (i inaccuracies in the equipment or devices.	asures devices, as d commercial purpos hts and measures t vice. The owner sha y a service agency t easures that have be y until they have nployed by the Con ode of Virginia. Th behalf of the owne bed by the Commiss upleted, (ii) the num	lefined in § 3.2- ie may select to o determine the all have all such hat is registered een rejected by a been officially mmissioner, and e owner of such r, shall report to sioner the results ber of failures in		
24 25 26	94.	Food Safety and Security (55400) Regulation of Food Establishments and Processors (55401)	\$5,004,427	\$5,019,427	\$10,325,722	\$10,340,722

25 26 27 28	Regulation of Food Establishments and Processors (55401) Regulation of Meat Products (55402) Regulation of Milk and Dairy Industry (55403)	\$5,004,427 \$4,083,362 \$1,237,933	\$5,019,427 \$4,083,362 \$1,237,933
29	Fund Sources: General	\$5,771,125	\$5,771,125
30	Special	\$637,823	\$637,823
31	Federal Trust	\$3,916,774	\$3,931,774

32 Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 51, 51.1, 52, 53, 54, 55, and 60, Code of Virginia.

A. Each establishment under the authority of the Regulation of Meat Products that is
 requesting overtime or holiday inspection shall pay that part of the actual cost of the
 inspection services.

36 B. The Commissioner, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, is authorized to 37 collect an annual inspection fee, not to exceed \$40, from all establishments that are subject to 38 inspection pursuant to Title 3.2, Chapter 51, Code of Virginia. However, any such 39 establishment that is subject to any permit fee, application fee, inspection fee, risk assessment 40 fee, or similar fee imposed by any locality shall be subject to this annual inspection fee only 41 to the extent that the annual inspection fee and the locally-imposed fee, when combined, do 42 not exceed \$40. This fee structure shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary of 43 Agriculture and Forestry. Any food bank, second harvest certified food bank, food bank 44 member charity, or other food related activity which is exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C. 45 § 501 (c) (3), which maintains a food handling or storage facility, or any food-related program 46 operated by any Community Services Board, as defined in Title 37.2, Chapter 5, Code of 47 Virginia, shall be exempt from this inspection fee. Also, a producer of fruits and herbs that are 48 dried, without the addition of any other ingredients, and sold only at a local farmers' market 49 shall be exempt from the fee.

C. The Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services and the Virginia
 Department of Health shall collaborate to develop a long-term plan to adequately fund the
 food safety and restaurant inspection programs. In developing the plan, the departments shall
 seek input from representatives from local governments, private sector organizations, and the
 public. The objective of the plan is to develop a financial strategy for the programs that will

94

	ITEM 94.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11		protect the public and the business sector without und but not be limited to, these factors: (1) the likelihood of for this activity; (2) projected workloads, including to subject to inspection and by type of establishment; (3) strategies in program management through increase options to fund the programs or a portion of the progra- that considers the number, size, and type of establishment inspect such establishments; (5) the feasibility of un currently performed by the two agencies and (6) legi departments shall submit the plan no later than Octobe Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Fin	ue burdens. The p of additional gener the total number of 3) cost containment ed reliance upon ams through a flex nents and the time ifying the food sa slation to implement of 1, 2018, to the O	lan shall address, al fund resources of establishments nt and efficiency technology; (4) ible fee schedule and resources to afety inspections ent the plan. The Governor and the		
12 13	95.	Regulation of Products (55700) Pesticide Regulation and Applicator Certification			\$5,922,203	\$5,922,203
13		(55704)	\$3,758,899	\$3,758,899		
15 16		Regulation of Feed, Seed, and Fertilizer Products (55706)	\$2,163,304	\$2,163,304		
17		Fund Sources: General	\$590,013	\$590,013		
18		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$4,631,417	\$4,631,417		
19		Federal Trust	\$700,773	\$700,773		
20 21		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 1, 36, 37, 39, 40, 43, 47 and Title 59.1, Chapter 12, Code of Virginia.	7, 48, and 49; Title	e 18.2, Chapter 6;		
22 23 24		The Office of Pesticide Services shall publish a rep programs, research, and grants administered through th Board of Agriculture and Consumer Services by Octob	e Pesticide Contro	ol Act Fund to the		
25 26 27 28	96.	Regulation of Charitable Gaming Organizations (55900) Charitable Gaming Regulation and Enforcement (55907)	\$1,216,859	\$1,216,859	\$1,216,859	\$1,216,859
29 30		Fund Sources: General Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,116,859 \$100,000	\$1,116,859 \$100,000		
31 32		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 24; Title 18.2, Chapter 8; Virginia.	and Title 59.1, Ch	apter 51, Code of		
33 34 35 36		A. Notwithstanding § 18.2-340.31, Code of Virgin organization conducting charitable gaming under a including audit and administrative fees and permit fee fund.	permit issued by	the department,		
37 38 39 40		B. The department shall deposit into the Investigation result of a law enforcement seizure and subsequent for court. The fund shall be used to defray the expenses actions and to purchase equipment for enforcement	orfeiture by either of investigation	a state or federal		
41 42 43 44		C. Included in these amounts is \$100,000 the first year nongeneral funds from annual registration fees paid support both direct and indirect expenses of the depa contests in Virginia.	by operators of fa	ntasy contests to		
45 46	97.	Administrative and Support Services (59900) General Management and Direction (59901)	\$11,224,466	\$11,224,466	\$11,224,466	\$11,224,466
47		Fund Sources: General	\$9,293,891	\$9,293,891		
48		Special	\$1,644,666	\$1,644,666		
49		Trust and Agency	\$163,215	\$163,215		
50		Federal Trust	\$122,694	\$122,694		
51		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 1, 4, 5, 6 and 29; Title 10	0.1, Chapter 5, Cod	le of Virginia.		

	ITEM 97.		Item First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
	11 EN 97.		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3		Total for Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services			\$73,009,199	\$73,024,199 \$73,312,436
4 5		General Fund Positions	330.00	330.00 331.00		
6		Nongeneral Fund Positions	214.00	214.00		
7		Position Level	544.00	544.00		
8			0.1100	545.00		
9 10		Fund Sources: General	\$37,084,034	\$37,084,034 \$37,372,271		
11		Special	\$6,342,285	\$6,342,285		
12		Trust and Agency	\$7,063,600	\$7,063,600		
13		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$10,231,137	\$10,231,137		
13		Federal Trust	\$12,288,143	\$12,303,143		
15						
15		§ 1-34. DEPARTMEN	I OF FORESTRY	(411)		
16 17	98.	Forest Management (50100)			\$34,182,018	\$33,946,018 \$34,664,547
18 19		Reforestation Incentives to Private Forest Land Owners (50102)	\$4,345,039	\$4,345,039		
20 21		Forest Conservation, Wildfire & Watershed Services (50103)	\$23,956,163	\$23,956,163		
22		(55105)	<i>423,730,103</i>	\$24,674,692		
23		Tree Restoration and Improvement, Nurseries &				
24		State-Owned Forest Lands (50104)	\$4,980,816	\$4,744,816		
25 26		Financial Assistance for Forest Land Management (50105)	\$900,000	\$900,000		
27 28		Fund Sources: General	\$19,267,285	\$19,031,285 \$19,749,814		
29		Special	\$10,428,507	\$10,428,507		
30		Trust and Agency	\$106,538	\$106,538		
31		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$89,535	\$89,535		
32		Federal Trust	\$4,290,153	\$4,290,153		
33		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapter 11, and Title 58.1, Chapter	er 32, Article 4, Code	of Virginia.		
34 35 36		A. The State Forester is hereby authorized to utilize suppression fund authorized by § 10.1-1124, Code of V replacement equipment for forestry management and p	Virginia, for the purp	pose of acquiring		
37 38 39 40		B. In the event that budgeted amounts for forest fire sup fire suppression demands, such amounts as may be transferred from Item 475 of this act to the Department Director, Department of Planning and Budget.	necessary for this	purpose may be		
41 42 43 44		C. The department shall provide technical assistance spraying of herbicides on timberland on landowner pr direct cost associated with the spraying contract, the dep fee for this service.	operty. In addition	to recovering the		
45 46		D. The Department of Forestry, in cooperation with t increase the use of inmate labor for routine and speci				
47 48 49 50		E. The appropriation in Reforestation Incentives to P \$1,945,226 the first year and \$1,945,226 the second Reforestation of Timberlands Program. This appropriati the provisions of Titles 10.1 and 58.1, Code of Virginia	l year from the generation shall be deemed a	eral fund for the		
51 52 53		F. Out of this appropriation, \$2,126,126 the first year a the general fund is included for the purchase of forest a state's master equipment lease purchase program.				

	ITEM 98.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		G. The department is authorized to enter into agree active operational life of the tower located at 900 Nat County, Virginia. Notwithstanding any other provision such agreements shall be retained by the department an	ural Resources Dr of law, any reven	rive in Albemarle ues received from		
5 6 7 8 9		H.1. The State Comptroller shall continue the Vir Acquisition Fund and the Long Term Mitigation Fund 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly. All moneys in these fur this Item and in Item 102, Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of A 2015 Acts of Assembly.	as established in l nds shall be used a	tem 102, Chapter as provided for in		
10 11 12		2.a. With the exception of the amounts prescribed in Virginia State Forest Mitigation and Acquisition Fund or conservation easement acquisition.				
13 14		b. The Long Term Mitigation Fund shall be used sole Cumberland State Forest Stream Buffer Preservation S	•	anagement of the		
15 16 17 18 19 20		3. For any such future mitigation projects, no state for compensatory mitigation for wetland or stream impar- until such time as due consideration has been given to available from private sources. State forest land mea- patches, ponds, lakes, streams, rivers, beaches, and Forestry holds title for use, development, and admin	cts of any public of the availability of ans all sites, road lakes to which th	or private project mitigation credits ways, game food		
21 22 23 24 25 26		I. The department is authorized to sell properties an 16520 Five Forks Road, Amelia, Virginia, 23002; 26 Virginia, 23847; 11260 Jessie Dupont Memorial High 152 Maury River Road, Lexington, Virginia, 24450; Virginia, 24091. Notwithstanding any other provision transactions shall be deposited into the general fund.	ghway, Emporia, , Virginia, 22482; Road NE, Floyd,			
27 28		J. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and general fund is provided for the Virginia Natural Resources				
29 30		Total for Department of Forestry			\$34,182,018	\$33,946,018 \$34,664,547
31 32 33		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	165.59 113.41 279.00	165.59 113.41 279.00		
34 35 36 37 38 39		Fund Sources: General Special Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$19,267,285 \$10,428,507 \$106,538 \$89,535 \$4,290,153	\$19,031,285 \$19,749,814 \$10,428,507 \$106,538 \$89,535 \$4,290,153		
40		§ 1-35. AGRICULTU	RAL COUNCIL	(307)		
41 42	99.	Agricultural and Seafood Product Promotion and Development Services (53000)			\$490,308	\$490,308
43 44		Grants for Agriculture, Research, Education and Services (53001)	\$490,308	\$490,308		
45		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$490,308	\$490,308		
46		Authority: Title 3.2, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.			ф 400 2 00	¢ 400 200
47 48		Total for Agricultural Council Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$490,308	\$490,308	\$490,308	\$490,308
		-				
49		§ 1-36. VIRGINIA RACI	ING COMMISSI	ON (405)		

]	ITEM 100		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	100.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$1,500,000	\$1,500,000
2 3		Financial Assistance to the Horse Breeding Industry	\$1,500,000	\$1,500,000		
		(53411)				
4		Fund Sources: Special	\$1,500,000	\$1,500,000		
5		Authority: Title 59.1, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.				
6 7	101.	Regulation of Horse Racing and Pari-Mutuel Betting (55800)			\$1,688,655	\$1,688,655
8 9		License and Regulate Horse Racing and Pari-mutuel Wagering (55801)	\$1,688,655	\$1,688,655		
10		Fund Sources: Special	\$1,688,655	\$1,688,655		
11		Authority: Title 59.1, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.				
12 13 14		A. Out of this appropriation, the members of the Virginia compensation and reimbursement for their reasonable exduties, as provided in § 2.2-2104, Code of Virginia.				
15 16 17		B. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 59.1-392, Code of year and \$255,000 the second year shall be transferred to State University to support the Virginia-Maryland Region	o Virginia Polytec	hnic Institute and		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24		C. Any revenues received during the biennium and which to § 59.1-364 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be used first the commission as appropriated in this item. Any chang appropriated requires the approval of the Department of I in excess of amounts required for commission operations a of this act and amounts payable to specific entities pursua paragraphs B and D of this item, shall revert to the general	st to fund the oper- ge in operating ex Planning and Budg as appropriated uno nt to § 59.1-392 and	ating expenses of penses as herein get. Any revenues der the provisions		
25 26		D. Out of these amounts, the obligations set out in § 59 K.4., K.5., N.3., N.4., and N.5., Code of Virginia, shall		, G.5., G.6., K.3.,		
27 28 29 30 31		E. In the event revenues exceed the appropriated amoun Commission is authorized to seek an administrative appr Director, Department of Planning and Budget, to develo promotion and marketing, sustenance and growth of the horse breeding.	opriation, up to \$7 p programs or awa	700,000, from the ard grants for the		
32		Total for Virginia Racing Commission			\$3,188,655	\$3,188,655
33 34		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	10.00 10.00	10.00 10.00		
35		Fund Sources: Special	\$3,188,655	\$3,188,655		
36 37 38		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY			\$111,373,547	\$111,152,547 \$ <i>112,159,313</i>
39 40		General Fund Positions	498.59	498.59 499.59		. , ,
41		Nongeneral Fund Positions	337.41	337.41		
42 43		Position Level	836.00	836.00 837.00		
44 45		Fund Sources: General	\$56,854,686	\$56,618,686 \$57,625,452		
46		Special	\$19,959,447	\$19,959,447		
47		Trust and Agency	\$7,170,138	\$7,170,138		
48		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$10,810,980	\$10,810,980		
49		Federal Trust	\$16,578,296	\$16,593,296		

I	TEM 102		Iten First Year	n Details(\$) Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1		OFFICE OF COMM	IERCE AND TR	ADE		
2		§ 1-37. SECRETARY OF CO	MMERCE AND	TRADE (192)		
3 4	102.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$1,076,185	\$1,076,185	\$1,076,185	\$1,076,185
5		Fund Sources: General	\$1,076,185	\$1,076,185		
6		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Article 3; § 2.2-201, Co	ode of Virginia.			
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that statechnical, or training assistance to local governments or directly to businesses seeking to relocate or expand used to help a company relocate or expand its op communities when the same company is simultaneousl communities. It is the responsibility of the Secretary of this policy and to inform the Chairmen of the Senate Committees in writing of the justification to override	for economic developerations in Virg erations in one of y closing facilities of Commerce and Finance and Hous	elopment projects inia should not be or more Virginia s in other Virginia Trade to enforce se Appropriations		
15 16 17		B. The Secretary shall develop and implement, as a economic development policy requirements as establis a strategic workforce development plan for the Comm	shed in § 2.2-205,			
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25		C. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, the Secretary of Technology referenced in § 2.2-205, § 2. § 2.2-2240.1, § 2.2-2485, § 2.2-2698, § 2.2-2699.1, 2911.1, § 23.1-3102, § 23.1-3132, § 58.1-322.02, and be executed by the Secretary of Commerce and Tra provision of law, the authority and responsibilities referenced in § 2.2-225, Code of Virginia, shall be Administration and the Secretary of Commerce and Tra	2-2221, § 2.2-222 § 2.2-2738, § 15 § 58.1-402, Code de. Notwithstand s of the Secretar divided between	1.1, § 2.2-2233.1, 5.2-2425, § 23.1- of Virginia, shall ling any contrary y of Technology the Secretary of		
26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40		D. The Secretary of Commerce and Trade shall conduct the Commonwealth's economic development system consolidate and improve coordination of activities to in of economic development programs and policies. In Secretary shall seek input from a group of stak representative from each of the secretariats respon development programs, and representatives from the and Senate Finance Committees. The examination of and policies shall include, but is not limited to, workfor services such as trade development, site selection and such as modified apportionment formulas, credits, exert from bonds; rights to lease property at below fair mar from the Commonwealth. The Secretary shall report and the Chairmen of the House Finance, House Ap Committees by November 1, 2018.	m and make reconcrease efficiency developing recon- eholders which sible for agencie staffs of the House f economic develop- orce development technical assistant mptions, and subtra- ket value; and and recommendations	ommendations to and effectiveness nmendations, the shall include a s with economic se Appropriations opment programs initiatives; grants; ce; tax incentives ractions; proceeds y other incentives s to the Governor		
41		Total for Secretary of Commerce and Trade			\$1,076,185	\$1,076,185
42 43		General Fund Positions Position Level	9.00 9.00	9.00 9.00		
44		Fund Sources: General	\$1,076,185	\$1,076,185		
45		Economic Development	Incentive Payme	nts (312)		
46 47	103.	Economic Development Services (53400)	<i>u</i> -		\$50,034,808 \$47,964,808	\$44,033,498 \$43,823,498
48 49 50		Financial Assistance for Economic Development (53410)	\$50,034,808 \$47,964,808	\$44,033,498 \$43,823,498		

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 103.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Fund Sources: General	\$43,754,808 \$41,684,808	\$38,122,498 \$ <i>37,912,49</i> 8		
3	Special	\$6,130,000	\$5,761,000		
4	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$150,000	\$150,000		

5 Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16

17

A.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$19,750,000 the first year and \$19,750,000 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund, as established in § 2.2-115, Code of Virginia. Such funds shall be used at the discretion of the Governor, subject to prior consultation with the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, to attract economic development prospects to locate or expand in Virginia. If the Governor, pursuant to the provisions of § 2.2-115, E.1., Code of Virginia, determines that a project is of regional or statewide interest and elects to waive the requirement for a local matching contribution, such action shall be included in the report on expenditures from the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund required by § 2.2-115, F., Code of Virginia. Such report shall include an explanation on the jobs anticipated to be created, the capital investment made for the project, and why the waiver was provided.

18 2. The Governor may allocate these funds as grants or loans to political subdivisions. Loans 19 shall be approved by the Governor and made in accordance with procedures established by 20 the Virginia Economic Development Partnership and approved by the State Comptroller. 21 Loans shall be interest-free unless otherwise determined by the Governor and shall be repaid 22 to the general fund of the state treasury. The Governor may establish the interest rate to be 23 charged, otherwise, any interest charged shall be at market rates as determined by the State 24 Treasurer and shall be indicative of the duration of the loan. The Virginia Economic 25 Development Partnership shall be responsible for monitoring repayment of such loans and 26 reporting the receivables to the State Comptroller as required.

3. Funds may be used for public and private utility extension or capacity development on and off site; road, rail, or other transportation access costs beyond the funding capability of existing programs; site acquisition; grading, drainage, paving, and other activity required to prepare a site for construction; construction or build-out of publicly-owned buildings; grants or loans to an industrial development authority, housing and redevelopment authority, or other political subdivision pursuant to their duties or powers; training; or anything else permitted by law.

34 4. Consideration should be given to economic development projects that 1) are in areas of
35 high unemployment; 2) link commercial development along existing transportation/transit
36 corridors within regions; and 3) are located near existing public infrastructure.

5. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Virginia Economic Development
Partnership shall work with localities awarded grants from the Commonwealth's Development
Opportunity Fund to recover such moneys when the economic development projects fail to
meet minimal agreed-upon capital investment and job creation targets. All such recoveries
shall be deposited and credited to the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund.

42 6. Up to \$5,000,000 of previously awarded funds and funds repaid by political subdivisions or
43 business beneficiaries and deposited to the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund
44 may be used to assist Prince George County with site improvements related to the location of
45 a major aerospace engine manufacturer to the Commonwealth.

- B.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$4,879,210 \$4,609,210 the first year and
 \$5,446,900 \$5,236,900 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the
 Investment Performance Grant subfund of the Virginia Investment Partnership Grant Fund to
 be used to pay investment performance grants in accordance with § 2.2-5101, Code of
 Virginia.
- 51 2. Consideration should be given to economic development projects that 1) are in areas of
 52 high unemployment; 2) link commercial development along existing transportation/transit
 53 corridors within regions; and 3) are located near existing public infrastructure.
- 54 C.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$1,800,000 the first year from the general fund

ITEM 103.		Item Do irst Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2 3	shall be deposited to the Major Eligible Employer Grant Investment Partnership Grant Fund to be used to pay investm accordance with § 2.2-5102, Code of Virginia.				
4 5 6	2: Consideration should be given to economic development pro high unemployment; 2) link commercial development along exi corridors within regions; and 3) are located near existing public	isting transpo	ortation/transit		
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	D. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$3,000,000 the first second year from the general fund and an amount estimated at \$150,000 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be de Motion Picture Opportunity Fund, as established in § 2.2-2320 nongeneral fund revenues shall be deposited to the fund from digital media fee established pursuant to § 58.1-1731, et seq funds shall be used at the discretion of the Governor to attract activity to the Commonwealth.	\$150,000 the posited to the O, Code of V revenues gen I., Code of V	a first year and the Governor's irginia. These merated by the Virginia. Such		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	E. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$5,500,000 the firs second year from the Aerospace Manufacturing Performance the first year and \$261,000 the second year from the Aerospace Training Grant Fund is hereby appropriated. These funds sl accordance with §§ 59.1-284.20 and 59.1-284.22, Code o Department of Planning and Budget shall transfer these fur agencies upon request to the Director, Department of Plan respective state agency.	Grant Fund e Manufactur hall be used f Virginia. ' nds to the in	and \$630,000 rer Workforce for grants in The Director, mpacted state		
23 24 25 26 27	F.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$4,400,000 the first second year from the general fund shall be deposited to Development Incentive Grant subfund of the Virginia Investment to be used to pay investment performance grants in accordance Virginia.	the Virgin ent Partnersh	ia Economic ip Grant Fund		
28 29 30	2. Consideration should be given to economic development prohigh unemployment; 2) link commercial development along exicorridors within regions; and 3) are located near existing public	isting transpo	ortation/transit		
31 32 33 34 35 36	3. Notwithstanding § 2.2-5102.1.E. or any other provisio appropriation by the General Assembly, up to \$8,000,000 i incentive grants is authorized for eligible projects to be awarde but before June 30, 2019. Any eligible project awarded such gr conditions set forth in § 2.2-5102.1. Any additional grant awa act, including any awards after June 30, 2019, shall require se	n economic ed on or after ants shall be ards not auth	development r July 1, 2017, subject to the orized by this		
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	G.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$3,750,000 the first second year from the general fund shall be provided for the V Research Corporation (VBHRC), a non-stock corporation rest comprised of the University of Virginia, Virginia Commonw Polytechnic Institute and State University, George Mason U Virginia Medical School. The consortium will contract with pr and other governmental sources to capture and perform resear well as promote the development of bioscience infrastructure of facilitate additional research activities. The Director, Departme is authorized to provide these funds to the non-stock corpora referenced in this paragraph upon request filed with the Director	irginia Biosc earch consor ealth Univer Iniversity an rivate entitie arch in the b tools which o nt of Plannin ation researc	tiences Health rtium initially rsity, Virginia d the Eastern s, foundations iosciences, as can be used to us and Budget, ch consortium		

49 2. Of the amounts provided in G.1. for the research consortium, up to \$3,750,000 the first 50 year and \$3,750,000 the second year may be used to develop or maintain investments in 51 research infrastructure tools to facilitate bioscience research.

and Budget by VBHRC.

48

52 3. The remaining funding shall be used to capture and perform research in the biosciences 53 and must be matched at least dollar-for-dollar by funding provided by such private 54 entities, foundations and other governmental sources. No research will be funded by the 55 consortium unless at least two of the participating institutions, including the five founding

Second Year

FY2020

ITEM 102			Details(\$)	Appropriations(S First Year Secor	
ITEM 103.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	FIrst Year FY2019	Secor FY
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	institutions and any other institutions choosing to join, are actively and significantly involved in collaborating on the research. No research will be funded by the consortium unless the essearch topic has been vetted by a scientific advisory board and holds potential for high inpact near-term success in generating other sponsored research, creating spin-off companies is otherwise creating new jobs. The consortium will set guidelines to disburse research funds ased on advisory board findings. The consortium will have near-term sustainability as a goal, long with corporate-sponsored research gains, new Virginia company start-ups, and job reation milestones.				
9 10 11 12 13	4. Other publicly-supported institutions of higher education choose to join the consortium as participating institutions. Part the five founding institutions and by other participating instruction in each y \$50,000.	rticipation in the stitutions choos	e consortium by ing to join will		
14 15 16 17	5. Of these funds, up to \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 pay the administrative, promotional and legal costs of estal consortium, including the creation of intellectual property presearch results.	blishing and ad	lministering the		

18 6. The Virginia Economic Development Partnership, in consultation with the publicly-19 supported institutions of higher education in the Commonwealth participating in the 20 consortium, shall provide to the Governor, and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House 21 Appropriations committees, by November 1 of each year a written report summarizing the 22 activities of the consortium, including, but not limited to, a summary of how any funds 23 disbursed to the consortium during the previous fiscal year were spent, and the consortium's 24 progress during the fiscal year in expanding upon existing research opportunities and 25 stimulating new research opportunities in the Commonwealth.

26 7. The accounts and records of the consortium shall be made available for review and audit by 27 the Auditor of Public Accounts upon request.

28 8. Up to \$2,500,000 of the funds managed by the Commonwealth Health Research Board 29 (CHRB), created pursuant to § 32.1-162.23, Code of Virginia, shall be directed toward 30 collaborative research projects, approved by the boards of the VBHRC and CHRB, to support 31 Virginia's core bioscience strengths, improve human health, and demonstrate commercial 32 viability and a high likelihood of creating new companies and jobs in Virginia.

33 H. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$5,669,833 the first year and \$2,669,833 the second 34 year from the general fund shall be available for eligible businesses under the Virginia Jobs 35 Investment Program. Pursuant to § 2.2-1611, Code of Virginia, the appropriation provided for 36 the Virginia Jobs Investment Program for eligible businesses shall be deposited to the 37 Virginia Jobs Investment Program Fund.

38

39

40

41

42

43

I. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the general fund may be provided to the Virginia Economic Development Partnership to facilitate additional domestic and international marketing and trade missions approved by the Governor. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to provide these funds to the Virginia Economic Development Partnership upon written approval of the Governor.

44 45 46	Total for Economic Development Incentive Payments			\$50,034,808 \$47,964,808	\$44,033,498 \$43,823,498
47 48 49 50	Fund Sources: General Special Dedicated Special Revenue	\$43,754,808 <i>\$41,684,808</i> \$6,130,000 \$150,000	\$38,122,498 \$ <i>37,912,498</i> \$5,761,000 \$150,000		
51 52	Grand Total for Secretary of Commerce and Trade			\$51,110,993 \$49,040,993	\$45,109,683 \$44,899,683
53 54	General Fund Positions Position Level	9.00 9.00	9.00 9.00		

;(\$) ond Year Y2020

				Details(\$)		iations(\$)
	ITEM 103	5.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: General	\$44,830,993 \$42,760,993	\$39,198,683 \$38,988,683		
3 4		Special Dedicated Special Revenue	\$6,130,000 \$150,000	\$5,761,000 \$150,000		
5		§ 1-38. BOARD OF A	ACCOUNTANCY	(226)		
6 7	104.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000)			\$2,476,080	\$2,104,195
8		Accountant Regulation (56001)	\$2,476,080	\$2,104,195		
9		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,476,080	\$2,104,195		
10		Authority: Title 54.1, Chapter 44, Code of Virginia.				
11		Total for Board of Accountancy			\$2,476,080	\$2,104,195
12 13		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	13.00 13.00	13.00 13.00		
14		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,476,080	\$2,104,195		
15		§ 1-39. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING A	ND COMMUNIT	Y DEVELOPME	NT (165)	
16	105.	Housing Assistance Services (45800)			\$66,402,939	\$68,069,605
17 18 19		Housing Assistance (45801)	\$34,821,044 \$49,321,044	\$34,821,044 \$ <i>39,321,044</i>	\$80,902,939	\$72,673,655
20		Homeless Assistance (45804)	\$13,037,143	\$13,037,143		
21 22		Financial Assistance for Housing Services (45805).	\$18,544,752	<i>\$13,141,193</i> \$20,211,418		
23 24		Fund Sources: General	\$19,380,355 \$33,880,355	\$21,047,021 \$25,651,071		
24 25		Special	\$344,537	\$344,537		
26		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$100,000	\$100,000		
27		Federal Trust	\$46,578,047	\$46,578,047		
28 29		Authority: Title 36, Chapters 8, 9, and 11; and Title Code of Virginia.	58.1, Chapter 3, A	Articles 4 and 13,		
30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41		A. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$3,482,705 from dedicated special revenue, and \$3,427,000 from fet \$3,482,705 from the general fund, \$100,000 from \$3,427,000 from federal trust funds the second year se for persons at risk of or experiencing homelessness special needs, and \$4,050,000 the first year and \$4 general fund shall be provided for homeless preven provided, the department is authorized to use up to tw administration. The amounts allocated for services for homelessness shall be matched through local or pri purposes specified in this paragraph which are unexpe 2020, shall not revert to the general fund but shall be of	deral trust funds the n dedicated speci- hall be provided to s and housing for p ,050,000 the secon- ntion. Of the gene wo percent in each or persons at risk of vate sources. Any ended on June 30, 2	he first year and al revenue, and support services populations with hd year from the ral fund amount year for program f or experiencing balances for the 019, and June 30,		
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52		B. The department shall report to the Chairmen of Appropriations Committees, and the Director, Depa November 4 of each year on the state's homeless pro- the number of (i) emergency shelter beds, (ii) transiti- occupancy dwellings, (iv) homeless intervention p programs, and (vi) the number of homeless indivi- housing state funding on a locality and statewide basis by the additional state funding provided to the progra also include the number of Virginians served by programs, and the financial and in-kind support pr groups in these programs. In preparing the report,	rtment of Planning grams, including, b onal housing units, orograms, (v) hom duals supported b s and the accomplis am in the first year. these programs, ovided by localitio	g and Budget, by but not limited to, (iii) single room eless prevention y the permanent shments achieved . The report shall the costs of the es and nonprofit		

	Item Details(\$)		
ITEM 105.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First FY2
localities and community based groups			

Appropriations(\$) Yirst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 localities and community-based groups.

C. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$1,100,000 the first year and \$1,100,000 the second year
from the general fund shall be provided for rapid re-housing efforts. In keeping with the
specific goals of the Balance of State Continuum of Care, \$200,000 of this amount in each
year shall be focused on ensuring that no veteran is homeless or in a shelter for more than 30
days. These funds shall be used to supplement other state and federal programs, shall be
directed to areas throughout the state where federal funds are not available, and shall be used
to serve those veterans ineligible for federal benefits.

- 9 D. The department shall continue to collaborate with the Department of Veteran Services to10 ensure coordinated efforts towards reducing homelessness among veterans.
- E.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$5,500,000 \$20,000,000 the first year and \$5,500,000
 \$10,000,000 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Housing
 Trust Fund, established pursuant to \$ 36-142 et seq., Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding \$ 36-14
 142, Code of Virginia, when awarding grants through eligible organizations for targeted
 efforts to reduce homelessness, priority consideration shall be given to efforts to reduce the number of homeless youth and families.
- 2. As part of the plan required by § 36-142 E., Code of Virginia, the department shall also report on the impact of the loans and grants awarded through the fund, including but not limited to: (i) the number of affordable rental housing units repaired or newly constructed, (ii)
 the number of individuals receiving down payments and/or closing assistance, and (iii) the progress and accomplishments in reducing homelessness achieved by the additional support provided through the fund.
- F. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$15,800,000 the first year and \$15,800,000 the second year
 from federal trust funds shall be provided to support Virginia affordable housing programs
 and the Indoor Plumbing Program.
- 26 G. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from
 27 the general fund and one position shall be provided to support the administrative costs
 28 associated with administering the tax credits authorized pursuant to § 58.1-435, Code of
 29 Virginia.
- 30 H. The department shall develop and implement strategies, that may include potential 31 Medicaid financing, for housing individuals with serious mental illness. The department shall 32 include other agencies in the development of such strategies including the Virginia Housing 33 Development Authority, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, 34 Department of Aging and Rehabilitative Services, Department of Medical Assistance 35 Services, and Department of Social Services. The department shall also include stakeholders 36 whose constituents have an interest in expanding supportive housing for people with serious 37 mental illness, including the National Alliance on Mental Illness Virginia, the Virginia 38 Housing Alliance and the Virginia Sheriff's Association. An annual report on such strategies 39 and the progress on implementation shall be provided to the Chairmen of the House 40 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by the first day of each General Assembly 41 Regular Session.

42 43	106.	Community Development Services (53300)		
44 45 46		Community Development and Revitalization (53301)	\$17,668,675	\$17,668,675 \$63,668,675
47 48 49 50		Financial Assistance for Regional Cooperation (53303) Financial Assistance for Community Development (53305)	\$34,044,251 \$18,142,795	\$39,044,251 \$18,142,795
51 52 53 54 55		Fund Sources: General Special Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$46,681,890 \$212,012 \$150,000 \$22,811,819	\$51,681,890 \$97,681,890 \$212,012 \$150,000 \$22,811,819

\$69,855,721

\$74,855,721 \$120,855,721

ITEM 10	6.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 13, Article 3 and Chapter 42: 11; and Title 59.1, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia.	; Title 36, Cha	pters 8, 10 and		
3 4 5 6	A. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$351,930 the first year a from the general fund is provided for annual membersh Regional Commission. These dues are payable from the Development and Revitalization.	nip dues to th	e Appalachian		
7 8 9	B. The department and local program administrators shall me provide participants basic financial counseling to enhance the Indoor Plumbing Program and to foster their movement to e	neir ability to b	enefit from the		
10 11	C. Out of the amounts in this Item shall be paid from the quarterly installments each year:	e general fund	l in four equal		
12 13 14 15	1. To the Lenowisco Planning District Commission, \$75,971 second year, which includes \$38,610 the first year and s responsibilities originally undertaken and continued pursu Virginia, and the Virginia Coalfield Economic Development	\$38,610 the s ant to § 15.2	econd year for 4207, Code of		
16 17 18 19	2. To the Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commissio \$75,971 the second year, which includes \$42,390 the first year for responsibilities originally undertaken and continu Code of Virginia, and the Virginia Coalfield Economic D	year and \$42, ued pursuant	390 the second to § 15.2-4207,		
20	3. To the Mount Rogers Planning District Commission, \$75,5 the second year.	971 the first ye	ear and \$75,971		
21 22	4. To the New River Valley Planning District Commission \$75,971 the second year.	n, \$75,971 the	e first year and		
23 24	5. To the Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Commissio \$75,971 the second year.	on, \$75,971 th	e first year and		
25 26	6. To the Central Shenandoah Planning District Commissio \$75,971 the second year.	on, \$75,971 th	e first year and		
27 28	7. To the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commissio \$75,971 the second year.	on, \$75,971 th	e first year and		
29	8. To the Northern Virginia Regional Commission, \$151,94 the second year.	3 the first yea	r and \$151,943		
30 31	9. To the Rappahannock-Rapidan Regional Commission \$75,971 the second year.	, \$75,971 the	first year and		
32 33	10. To the Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commissio \$75,971 the second year.	on, \$75,971 th	e first year and		
34	11. To the Region 2000 Local Government Council, \$75,9 the second year.	71 the first ye	ar and \$75,971		
35 36	12. To the West Piedmont Planning District Commission \$75,971 the second year.	n, \$75,971 the	first year and		
37 38	13. To the Southside Planning District Commission, \$75,971 second year.	the first year a	and \$75,971 the		
39 40	14. To the Commonwealth Regional Council, \$75,971 th second year.	e first year a	nd \$75,971 the		
41 42	15. To the Richmond Regional Planning District Commissio \$113,957 the second year.	on, \$113,957 tł	e first year and		
43	16. To the George Washington Regional Commission, \$75,5 the second year.	971 the first ye	ear and \$75,971		

ITEM 106.		Item D ïrst Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	17. To the Northern Neck Planning District Commission, \$75,97 the second year.	l the first ye	ar and \$75,971		
2 3	18. To the Middle Peninsula Planning District Commission, \$ \$75,971 the second year.	\$75,971 the	first year and		
4 5	19. To the Crater Planning District Commission, \$75,971 the second year.	first year aı	nd \$75,971 the		
6 7	20. To the Accomack-Northampton Planning District Commission \$75,971 the second year.	n, \$75,971 th	e first year and		
8 9	21. To the Hampton Roads Planning District Commission \$1 \$151,943 the second year.	51,943 the	first year, and		
10 11 12 13 14	D. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$968,442 the first year and \$96 the general fund shall be provided for the Southeast Rural Com (formerly known as the Virginia Water Project) operating costs grants. The department shall disburse the total payment each year installments.	munity Ass and water a	istance Project and wastewater		
15 16 17 18	E. The department shall leverage any appropriation provided for drinking water and wastewater treatment in the Lenowisco, Cun Rogers planning districts with other state moneys, federal grants of and private or nonprofit resources.	nberland Pla	teau, or Mount		
19 20 21 22	F.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$95,000 the first year and \$9 the general fund shall be provided for the Center for Rural Virg report periodically to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance a Committees on the status, needs and accomplishments of the	ginia. The de nd House A	epartment shall		
23 24 25 26 27	2. As part of its mission, the Center for Rural Virginia shall monito budget initiatives approved by the 2005 Session of the General A and shall report periodically to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance Committees on the effectiveness of these various programs in development problems.	Assembly for e and House	r rural Virginia Appropriations		
28 29 30	G. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$71,250 the first year and \$7 the general fund shall be provided to support The Crooked Road Trail.				
31 32 33	H. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$1,500,000 the first year and from the general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Removal of Structures Fund to support industrial site revitalization.				
34 35 36	I. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$500,000 the first year and \$50 the general fund shall be provided for the Virginia Main Street Pro- in addition to other appropriations for this activity.				
37 38 39 40	J. Of the general fund amounts provided for the Virginia Main Plumbing Rehabilitation Program, and the water and wastewater projects in Southwest Virginia, the department is authorized to u appropriation in each year for program administration.	planning a	nd construction		
41 42 43	K.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$875,000 the first year and from the general fund shall be provided for the Southwest V Foundation.				
44 45 46	2. The foundation shall report by September 1 of each year to the of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees foundation and its ongoing efforts to generate revenues sufficient.	on the expe	nditures of the		
47 48 49 50	L.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$4,000,000 the first year are the second year from the general fund is provided for the Vir Initiative. The funds shall be used for providing financial construction costs by private sector broadband service providers to	rginia Telec assistance	ommunication to supplement		

		Item I	Details(\$)	
ITI			Second Year FY2020	Fi I
1	presently are unserved by any broadband provider.	Any balances for	r the purposes	

presently are unserved by any broadband provider. Any balances for the purposes specified in this paragraph which are unexpended on June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2020, shall not revert to the general fund but shall be carried forward and reappropriated.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

2. The department shall develop appropriate criteria and guidelines for the use of the funding provided to the Virginia Telecommunication Initiative. Such criteria and guidelines shall: (i) facilitate the extension of broadband networks by the private sector and shall focus on unserved areas; (ii) attempt to identify the most cost-effective solutions, given the proposed technology and speed that is desired; (iii) give consideration to proposals that are public-private partnerships in which the private sector will own and operate the completed project; and, (iv) consider the number of locations where the applicant states that service will be made available, in addition to whether customers take the service in both evaluating applications and in establishing completion and accountability requirements. The department shall encourage additional assistance from the local governments in areas designated to receive funds to lower the overall cost and further assist in the timely completion of construction, including assistance with permits, rights of way, easement and other issues that may hinder or delay timely construction and increase the cost.

- 18 3. The department shall post electronic copies of all submitted applications to the
 19 department's website after the deadline for application submissions has passed but before
 20 project approval, and shall establish a process for providers to challenge applications
 21 where providers assert the proposed area is served by another broadband provider.
- 4. The department shall consult with the Broadband Advisory Council to designate the
 unserved areas to receive funds. The department shall report annually to the Governor's
 Broadband Advisory Council on the progress by the private sector on the designated
 projects.
- M.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$29,450,000 the first year and \$34,450,000 the
 second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Growth and
 Opportunity Fund to encourage regional cooperation among business, education, and
 government on strategic economic and workforce development efforts in accordance with
 \$ 2.2-2487, Code of Virginia.
- 31 2. Of the amounts provided in this paragraph, the appropriation shall be distributed as 32 follows: (i) \$3,250,000 the first year and \$2,250,000 the second year from the general 33 fund shall be allocated to qualifying regions to support organizational and capacity 34 building activities, which, notwithstanding § 2.2-2489, Code of Virginia, may not require 35 matching funds if a waiver is granted by the Virginia Growth and Opportunity Board to a 36 qualifying region upon request; (ii) \$13,900,000 the first year and \$16,900,000 the second 37 year from the general fund shall be allocated to qualifying regions based on each region's 38 share of the state population; and (iii) \$12,300,000 the first year and \$15,300,000 the 39 second year from the general fund shall be awarded to regional councils on a competitive 40 basis.
- 3. The Virginia Growth and Opportunity Board may allocate monies among the distributions outlined in paragraph M.2. of this item to meet demonstrated demand for funds. However, only those regional councils whose allocation is less than \$1,000,000 in a fiscal year based the region's share of state population shall be eligible to receive an additional allocation, and the amount shall be limited such that the total allocation does not exceed \$1,000,000 in a fiscal year.
- 47 4. The Chairman of the Virginia Growth and Opportunity Board shall convene a 48 broadband telecommunications advisory workgroup in cooperation with the Secretary of 49 Commerce and Trade and the Commonwealth Chief Broadband Advisor, including 50 representatives of the Department of Housing and Community Development, the Center 51 for Innovative Technology, Virginia Economic Development Partnership, Mid-Atlantic 52 Broadband Communities Corporation, staff from the House Appropriations Committee 53 and Senate Finance Committee, and representatives from the broadband 54 telecommunications industry, to develop a framework for policies related to broadband 55 telecommunications across the Commonwealth of Virginia. The framework shall be used 56 to provide guidance on statewide policies for commercial and economic planning and 57 project development, including regional solutions, to improve access to and utilization of

]	ITEM 106.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		broadband to support economic development goals, including regions and those areas of the Commonwealth recognized a Such framework shall include, but not be limited to, the follo broadband telecommunications development and deployment neutral in order to leverage all available or emerging technolo effective plan; (ii) solutions that utilize speeds greater th standards as prescribed by the Virginia Telecommunications In maximize opportunities for private sector driven models relat and maintenance and open access to private-sector Internet S ownership of infrastructure may be proposed; (iv) facilitate deployment-friendly polices at the regional and local level t plans and projects, as well as mitigate costs, and (v) oppor existing broadband infrastructure, including transoceanic and th to encourage new private sector job creation and investment in	s having high owing principl solutions must ogies to identify an the minim itiative for unse ed to construct ervice Provide broadband de o expedite impr trunities to lev ranscontinental	unemployment. es: (i) potential be technology- y the most cost- um technology erved areas; (iii) tion, operations, rs where public evelopment and plementation of verage new and backbone lines,		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21		5. The Virginia Growth and Opportunity Board may appro- commercial economic development demand and current access and engineering of broadband infrastructure that are a recommended by the working group, and shall give priority technology development and deployment to facilitate the conn to current and proposed business-ready sites in areas of high regions.	s, and to advar ligned with t consideration ectivity or upg	the planning he framework for broadband rade of services		
22 23 24	107.	Economic Development Services (53400) Financial Assistance for Economic Development (53410)\$13	3,773,354	\$13,773,354	\$13,773,354	\$13,773,354
25			3,773,354	\$13,773,354		
26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35		Authority: Title 59.1, Chapters 22 and 49, Code of Virginia. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$13,500,000 the first year and from the general fund shall be provided to carry out the provise 548, Code of Virginia, related to the Enterprise Zone Gra provisions of §§ 59.1-547 and 59.1-548, Code of Virginia, th prorate, with no payment of the unpaid portion of the grant ne the amount of awards each business receives to match the appr actual grants awarded in each fiscal year be less than the amo excess shall not revert to the general fund but shall be deposit Rehabilitation of Derelict Structures Fund for revitalization pr	sions of §§ 59. ant Act. Notwine department cessary in the copriation for the unts provided ted to the Virgi	1-547 and 59.1- ithstanding the is authorized to next fiscal year, his Item. Should in this Item, the		
36 37	108.	Regulation of Structure Safety (56200) State Building Code Administration (56202) \$2	2,922,902	\$2,922,902	\$2,922,902	\$2,922,902
38 39 40		Fund Sources: General	\$498,640 2,124,262 \$300,000	\$498,640 \$2,124,262 \$300,000		
41 42		Authority: Title 15.2, Chapter 9; Title 27, Chapters 1, 6, and 9 6, and 8; Title 58.1, Chapter 36, Article 5; and Title 63.2, Chapter 36, Article 5; and Title 5;	· · · ·	L / / / /		
43 44	109.	Governmental Affairs Services (70100) Intergovernmental Relations (70101)	\$350,291	\$350,291	\$350,291	\$350,291
45		Fund Sources: General	\$350,291	\$350,291		
46		Authority: Title 15.2, Subtitle III, Code of Virginia.				
47 48	110.	Administrative and Support Services (59900) General Management and Direction (59901)	3,184,949	\$3,184,949	\$3,184,949	\$3,184,949
49 50			2,721,190 \$463,759	\$2,721,190 \$463,759		
51		Authority: Title 36, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.				

I	TEM 110		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		Total for Department of Housing and Community Development			\$156,490,156 \$170,990,156	\$163,156,822 \$213,760,872
4 5		General Fund Positions	60.25	60.25 61.25		
6 7 8		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	51.75 112.00	51.75 112.00 <i>113.00</i>		
9 10		Fund Sources: General	\$83,405,720 \$97,905,720	\$90,072,386 \$140,676,436		
11		Special	\$3,144,570	\$3,144,570		
12		Trust and Agency	\$150,000	\$150,000		
13		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$400,000	\$400,000		
14		Federal Trust	\$69,389,866	\$69,389,866		
15		§ 1-40. DEPARTMENT OF L	ABOR AND IND	USTRY (181)		
16	111.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$1,971,054	\$1,971,054
17		Apprenticeship Program (53409)	\$1,971,054	\$1,971,054		
18		Fund Sources: General	\$1,971,054	\$1,971,054		
19		Authority: Title 40.1, Chapter 6, Code of Virginia.				
20 21	112.	Regulation of Business Practices (55200) Labor Law Services (55206)	\$919,006	\$919,006	\$919,006	\$919,006
22		Fund Sources: General	\$919,006	\$919,006		
			. ,	Ψ)1),000		
23 24	112	Authority: Title 40.1, Chapters 1, 3, 4, and 5, Code of V	v irginia.		\$10 604 222	\$10,604,222
24 25	113.	Regulation of Individual Safety (55500)			\$10,604,222	\$10,604,222 \$12,033,222
26 27 28		Virginia Occupational Safety and Health Services (55501)	\$10,604,222	\$10,604,222 \$12,033,222		
29 30		Fund Sources: General	\$4,310,156	\$4,310,156 \$5,739,156		
31		Special	\$855,916	\$855,916		
32 33 34		Federal Trust Authority: Title 40.1, Chapters 1, 3, 3.2, and 3.3; Title 30, Code of Virginia.	\$5,438,150 54.1, Chapter 5; T	\$5,438,150 itle 59.1, Chapter		
35 36 37 38		A. Notwithstanding § 40.1-49.4 D., Code of Virgi Department of Labor and Industry may retain up to \$ pursuant to § 40.1-49.4, Code of Virginia, as the voluntary protection and voluntary compliance pr	481,350 in civil p required federal	enalties assessed		
39 40 41 42		B. Of the amounts provided in this item, \$650,000 the year from the general fund is provided to suppor Occupational Safety and Health Voluntary Protection Office of Consultation Services.	t three positions	in the Virginia		
43 44 45	114.	Regulation of Structure Safety (56200) Boiler and Pressure Vessel Safety Services (56201)	\$536,371	\$536,371	\$536,371	\$536,371
46		Fund Sources: General	\$536,371	\$536,371		
47		Authority: Title 40.1, Chapter 3.1, Code of Virginia.				
48 49	115.	Administrative and Support Services (59900) General Management and Direction (59901)	\$3,221,992	\$3,221,992	\$3,221,992	\$3,221,992

	ITEM 115.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
					F 1 2019	F 1 2020
1		Fund Sources: General	\$2,306,233	\$2,306,233		
2		Special	\$915,759	\$915,759		
3 4		Authority: Title 40.1, Chapters 1, 3, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 4, 5, a Chapter 30, Code of Virginia.	and 6; Title 54.1, Cha	pter 5; Title 59.1,		
5 6		Total for Department of Labor and Industry			\$17,252,645	\$17,252,645 \$18,681,645
7		General Fund Positions	113.66	113.66		
8		Nongeneral Fund Positions	76.34	76.34		
9		Position Level	190.00	190.00		
10 11		Fund Sources: General	\$10,042,820	\$10,042,820 \$11,471,820		
12		Special	\$1,771,675	\$1,771,675		
12		Federal Trust	\$5,438,150	\$5,438,150		
15			ψ3,430,130	ψ5,450,150		
14		§ 1-41. DEPARTMENT OF MINE	ES, MINERALS AN	D ENERGY (409)		
15	116.	Minerals Management (50600)			\$29,917,215	\$29,917,215
16		Geologic and Mineral Resource Investigations,	¢1 112 716	¢1 112 716		
17 18		Mapping, and Utilization (50601) Mineral Mining Environmental Protection, Worker	\$1,113,716	\$1,113,716		
10		Safety and Land Reclamation (50602)	\$2,918,681	\$2,918,681		
20		Gas and Oil Environmental Protection, Worker	1 99			
21		Safety and Land Reclamation (50603)	\$1,653,793	\$1,653,793		
22		Coal Environmental Protection and Land				
23		Reclamation (50604)	\$18,729,938	\$18,729,938		
24		Coal Worker Safety (50605)	\$5,501,087	\$5,501,087		
25		Fund Sources: General	\$10,155,595	\$10,155,595		
26		Special	\$5,948,745	\$5,948,745		
27		Trust and Agency	\$525,000	\$525,000		
28		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$173,000	\$173,000		
29		Federal Trust	\$13,114,875	\$13,114,875		
30		Authority: Title 45.1, Code of Virginia.				
31 32 33		A. Out of this appropriation, \$31,224 the first year and funds shall be provided for annual membership due Commission.				
34 35		B. Out of this appropriation shall be provided reimbu administrative and judicial review when so ordered by				
36 37 38		C. Out of this appropriation, \$6,119 the first year and \$6 fund shall be provided for annual membership dues to Commission.				
39 40		D. The application fee for a coal mine license or a rener § 45.1-161.58, Code of Virginia, shall be in the amount		cense pursuant to		
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		 E. The application fee for a mineral mine license or a reto § 45.1-161.292:31, Code of Virginia, shall be in the submitted electronically, which shall be accompanied to any person engaged in mining sand or gravel on an area to pay a fee of \$100, except applications submit accompanied by a fee of \$80. F. The application fee for a new oil or gas well permit Virginia, shall be in the amount of \$600 and the application 	e amount of \$400, ex by a fee of \$330. How a of five acres or less ated electronically, it pursuant to \$45.1	cept applications wever, the fee for shall be required which shall be -361.29, Code of		
49		be \$300.				

]	ITEM 117	<i>.</i>	First Year		First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1	117.	Resource Management Research, Planning, and	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
2	117.	Coordination (50700)			\$3,116,931	\$3,116,931
3 4		Energy Conservation Advisory Services (50703)	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$13,116,931	\$3,503,931
5		Energy Conservation and Alternative Energy	\$50,000	\$30,000		
6 7		Supply Programs (50705)	\$3,066,931 \$13,066,931	\$3,066,931 \$3,453,931		
8 9		Fund Sources: General	\$1,002,560 \$11,002,560	\$1,002,560 \$1,389,560		
10 11		Special Federal Trust	\$96,252 \$2,018,119	\$96,252 \$2,018,119		
			\$2,010,117	φ2,010,117		
12		Authority: Title 45.1, Chapter 26, Code of Virginia.				
13 14 15		A. Out of this appropriation, \$38,362 the first year an general fund shall be provided for dues and expense Board.				
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25		B. To defray the costs of implementing the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy is authoriz natural gas, electricity, and similar energy contracts from using agencies and remit to the department surcharge shall reflect the department's actual of Additionally, the department is authorized, consist distribute energy-related federal funds as grants or agencies for use in financing energy-related projects, administrative service charge to recover the department or loan programs.	zed to have included a provision for sup an administrative costs to administra- tent with federal f as loans to other s and to recover from	d in state fuel oil, ppliers to collect surcharge. The er the program. unding rules, to state or nonstate n the recipient an		
26 27 28 29 30		C. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used for the Virginia Solar Development Authority working with the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy to conduct a study to determine whether or not future legislation in the form of regulatory reforms and incentives will prove fruitful in encouraging emerging energy storage capacity in the Commonwealth.				
31 32 33 34 35 36		D. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$10,000,000 the provided to support the development of a public/prive financing for energy efficiency and renewable energy government properties and entities within the Common shall submit specific criteria and guidelines for this pre expenditure of this appropriation.	ate partnership pro gy loans for both p nwealth of Virginia	ogram to provide private and local . The department		
37 38	118.	Administrative and Support Services (59900)	\$4,045,938	\$4,045,938	\$4,045,938	\$4,045,938
		General Management and Direction (59901)		. , ,		
39 40		Fund Sources: General Special	\$2,337,142 \$1,414,959	\$2,337,142 \$1,414,959		
41		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$293,837	\$293,837		
42		Authority: Title 45.1, Chapter 14.1, Code of Virginia.				
43 44 45		Total for Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy			\$37,080,084 \$47,080,084	\$37,080,084 \$37,467,084
46		General Fund Positions	161.43	161.43		
47		Nongeneral Fund Positions	74.57	74.57		
48		Position Level	236.00	236.00		
49 50		Fund Sources: General	\$13,495,297 \$2 <i>3,495,297</i>	\$13,495,297 \$13,882,297		
51		Special	\$7,459,956	\$7,459,956		
52		Trust and Agency	\$525,000	\$525,000		
53		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$466,837	\$466,837		

1	TEM 118		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Federal Trust	\$15,132,994	\$15,132,994		
2		§ 1-42. DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL	AND OCCUPATI	ONAL REGULAT	FION (222)	
3 4	119.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000) Licensure, Certification, and Registration of			\$23,954,438	\$23,954,438
5 6		Professions and Occupations (56046) Enforcement of Licensing, Regulating and Certifying	\$7,550,924	\$7,550,924		
7 8		Professions and Occupations (56047) Administrative Services (56048)	\$7,913,854 \$8,489,660	\$7,913,854 \$8,489,660		
9 10 11		Fund Sources: Special Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$1,328,410 \$22,291,028 \$335,000	\$1,328,410 \$22,291,028 \$335,000		
12 13 14 15		Authority: Title 54.1, Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8.1, 9, 23, 23.1, 23.2, 23.3, and 23.4; Title 55, Chapters 4.1, 4.2 Title 36, Chapter 5.1, Code of Virginia. Costs for professional and occupational regulation may be	2, 19, 21, 24, 26, 27	7, 28, and 29; and		
16		professions and occupations.				
17 18		Total for Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation			\$23,954,438	\$23,954,438
19 20		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	203.00 203.00	203.00 203.00		
21 22 23		Fund Sources: Special Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$1,328,410 \$22,291,028 \$335,000	\$1,328,410 \$22,291,028 \$335,000		
24		§ 1-43. DEPARTMENT OF SMALL BUSI			Y (350)	
25	120.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$7,338,570	\$6,763,570
26		Minority Business Enterprise Certification (53414)	\$1,735,503	\$1,735,503		
27		Business Information Services (53418)	\$1,589,568	\$1,589,568		
28 20		Administrative Services (53422)	\$1,476,064	\$1,226,064		
29 30		Financial Services for Economic Development (53423)	\$2,537,435	\$2,212,435		
31		Fund Sources: General	\$4,439,269	\$4,189,269		
32		Special	\$1,141,729	\$816,729		
33		Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,592,572	\$1,592,572		
34 25		Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$100,000 \$65,000	\$100,000 \$65,000		
35 36		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapters 16.1 and 22, Code of Virgin		\$05,000		
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50		A. The Department of Small Business and Supplier Department of General Services, the Virginia Employr Department of Transportation, is authorized to conduct ar business enterprises in Virginia and the utilization of suc of Virginia, localities, or private industry in the acqu department also is authorized to receive and accept from t agency thereof, and from any other source, private of allotments, bequests or devises of any nature that would such analyses or otherwise strengthen its services to Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is author appropriation for the purposes of expending revenues the B.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$325,000 the first Grant Fund is hereby appropriated for payment of grant Virginia.	Diversity, in conju- nent Commission, alyses of the availa th businesses by the isition of goods at he United States go r public, any and assist the departme minority business tized to establish a hat may be receive year from the Sma	and the Virginia ability of minority e Commonwealth nd services. The overnment, or any all gifts, grants, ent in conducting enterprises. The nongeneral fund d for this effort. all Business Jobs		

Item D	etails(\$)
First Year	Second Year

FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2. By April 1 of each year, the department shall report to the Governor and the Secretary of Commerce and Trade the expenditures of the Small Business Jobs Grant Fund and anticipated needs for small business development in order to monitor the effective use of these funds.

ITEM 120.

1

2

3

4

C. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$819,753 the first year and \$819,753 the second year
from the general fund shall be deposited to the Small Business Investment Grant Fund
pursuant to \$ 2.2-1616, Code of Virginia. The department shall aggressively market the
program and shall report to the Governor and the Secretary of Commerce and Trade on the
status of the program by November 1 of each year.

10D. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year11from the general fund shall be provided to support the Business One-Stop Program.

E.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$163,690 from the general fund and \$981,729 from
nongeneral funds the first year and \$163,690 from the general fund and \$981,729 from
nongeneral funds the second year shall be provided for the Virginia Small Business
Financing Authority. The general fund amount shall be used to support operating expenses
of the authority.

17 2. To meet changing financing needs of small businesses, the Executive Director, Virginia 18 Small Business Financing Authority, with the approval of the Director, Department of 19 Small Business and Supplier Diversity, may transfer moneys between funds managed by 20 the authority. These include the Virginia Small Business Growth Fund (§ 2.2-2310, Code 21 of Virginia); the Virginia Export Fund (§ 2.2-2309, Code of Virginia); and the Insurance 22 or Guarantee Fund (§ 2.2-2290, Code of Virginia). The Executive Director, Virginia Small 23 Business Financing Authority, shall report, by fund, the transfers made by January 1 of 24 each year to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees.

25 3. The Virginia Small Business Financing Authority is authorized to insure additional 26 loans for eligible small businesses, pursuant to § 2.2-2290, Code of Virginia, up to an 27 aggregate amount not to exceed four times the principal amount in the Insurance or 28 Guarantee Fund, or up to an aggregate amount of \$15,000,000. In the event that the 29 authority is called upon to pay on guaranties of loans of more than 10 percent of the 30 aggregate amount of all outstanding insured loans, the authority shall not insure any 31 further loans and shall immediately notify the Governor and the Chairmen of the House 32 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. Pursuant to § 4-1.03 of this act, the 33 Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to transfer a sum sufficient to 34 the Insurance or Guarantee Fund in the event the amount in the fund falls below the 35 amount needed to honor any guarantee.

- 36 4. For the I-95 HOV/HOT Lanes project as evidenced by the Comprehensive Agreement
 37 approved pursuant to the Public-Private Transportation Act of 1995, the maximum fee
 38 and/or premium charged by the Virginia Small Business Financing Authority pursuant to
 39 §§ 2.2-2285 and 2.2-2291, Code of Virginia, for acting as the conduit issuer for any bond
 40 financing is not to exceed \$25,000 per annum.
- F. The Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity shall include employment
 services organizations within the development and operation of any state procurement
 program or program goal and targets for small, women-owned, and minority-owned
 businesses consistent with requirements in the Code of Virginia requiring the Department
 to certify employment service organizations.
- 46 G. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any business certified on or after July 1,
 47 2017, by the Virginia Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity as a small,
 48 women-owned, or minority-owned business, shall be certified for a period of five years
 49 unless (i) the certification is revoked before the end of the five-year period, (ii) the
 50 business ceases operation, or (iii) the business no longer qualifies as a small, women- or
 51 minority-owned business.
- H. Beginning with the calendar quarter ending September 30, 2018, the Director of the
 Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity shall report to the Secretary of
 Commerce and Trade and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance
 Committees on the agency's efforts to maximize job creation and retention among the

		11-	4			
]	ITEM 120.		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10		Commonwealth's small businesses. The report shall incl the effectiveness of programs administered by the Sma assisting borrowers to create jobs and enable increased c and effectiveness of Small, Women-owned, and Minority- Business Enterprise programs; (iii) the success of the assistance activities; and, (iv) the number of businesses of business days to process a certification application each m prescribed by the Secretary, but shall include specific service disabled veteran businesses currently certified in t due within thirty days of the close of each calendar quarter	Il Business Finan apital investment; -owned Business a e agency's outrea certified, and the a nonth. The report si data breakouts for the SWaM certifica	cing Authority in (ii) the efficiency nd Disadvantaged and technical verage number of hall be in a format or rural areas and		
11 12		Total for Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity			\$7,338,570	\$6,763,570
13 14 15		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	26.00 24.00 50.00	26.00 24.00 50.00	. ,	
16 17 18 19 20		Fund Sources: General Special Commonwealth Transportation Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$4,439,269 \$1,141,729 \$1,592,572 \$100,000 \$65,000	\$4,189,269 \$816,729 \$1,592,572 \$100,000 \$65,000		
21		§ 1-44. FORT MONRO	DE AUTHORITY	(360)		
22 23 24 25	121.	Economic Development Services (53400) Administrative Services (53422)	\$5,815,606 \$6,472,528	\$5,923,245 \$6,080,167	\$5,815,606 \$6,472,528	\$5,923,245 \$6,080,167
26 27		Fund Sources: General	\$5,815,606 \$6,472,528	\$5,923,245 \$6,080,167		
28		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia.				
29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37		A.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$5,815,606 \$6,472,528 the first year and \$5,923,245 \$6,080,167 the second year from the general fund shall be provided for the Commonwealth's share of the estimated operating expenses of the Fort Monroe Authority (FMA). This appropriation represents the Commonwealth's share of the FMA's estimated operating expenses. These expenses may not be reimbursed by the federal government and shall be reduced by any federal funding the authority may receive for expenditures funded through the Commonwealth's contribution that ultimately qualify for federal reimbursement. Any such reimbursements shall be repaid to the general fund. The State Comptroller shall disburse the first and second year appropriations in twelve equal monthly installments.				
38 39 40		2. All moneys of the FMA, from whatever source derived FMA. The Auditor of Public Accounts or his legally auth examine the accounts of the books of the FMA.				
41		3. Employees of the FMA shall be eligible for membershi	p in the Virginia F	Retirement System		

41 3. Employees of the FMA shall be eligible for membership in the Virginia Retirement System
42 and participation in all of the health and related insurance and other benefits, including
43 premium conversion and flexible benefits, available to state employees as provided by law.

44 4. Pursuant to § 2.2-2338, Code of Virginia, the Board of Trustees of the FMA shall be
45 deemed a state public body and may meet by electronic communication means in accordance
46 with the requirements set forth in § 2.2-3708, Code of Virginia. Electronic communication
47 shall mean the same as that term is defined in § 2.2-3701, Code of Virginia.

5. Notwithstanding any other provision of law or agreement, the amount paid from all sources of funds by the FMA to the City of Hampton pursuant to § 2.2-2342, Code of Virginia, shall not exceed \$983,960 in FY 2019 and \$983,960 in FY 2020. Beginning July 1, 2016, the FMA shall not pay any such amount to the City of Hampton until the City has recorded among the land records in the Office of the Circuit Court Clerk of the City of Hampton an instrument removing any liens or claims of liens on the real property of the Commonwealth at Fort

	ITEM 121.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	i P P P P	Monroe. Such instrument shall state that the City ac conflict between any fees in lieu of taxes provided for Virginia and the Appropriations Act, the Appropr instrument shall further state that the FMA has paid all a Act for fiscal year 2014, fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year assert nor will it assert in the future any liens of any Commonwealth at Fort Monroe. Such instrument shal have the written approval of the Attorney General of t recordation.	knowledges that under § 2.2-234 iations Act shat amounts set by that 2016 and that kind on the read	at in the event of 42 of the Code of all prevail. Such the Appropriations the City does not all property of the cceptable to, and	1 12017	1 1 2020
10 11		Total for Fort Monroe Authority			\$5,815,606 \$6,472,528	\$5,923,245 \$6,080,167
12 13	1	Fund Sources: General	\$5,815,606 \$6,472,528	\$5,923,245 \$6,080,167		
14		§ 1-45. VIRGINIA ECONOMIC DEV	ELOPMENT P.	ARTNERSHIP (31	10)	
15 16	122. I	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$31,597,198 \$51,597,198	\$35,107,392
17 18	1	Economic Development Services (53412)	\$31,597,198 \$51,597,198	\$35,107,392		
19 20	1	Fund Sources: General	\$31,597,198 \$51,597,198	\$35,107,392		
21 22		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 22, Article 4 and Chap Virginia.	ter 51; and § 15	5.2-941, Code of		
23 24		A. Upon authorization of the Governor, the Virginia Ec may transfer funds appropriated to it by this act to a not				
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33	s C I S T	B. Prior to July 1 of each fiscal year, the Virginia Ecc shall provide to the Chairmen of the House Appr Committees and the Director, Department of Planning an plan. Prior to September 1 of each fiscal year, the 1 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Fina Department of Planning and Budget a detailed expen salaries and bonuses for all partnership employees for reports shall be prepared in the formats as previously Planning and Budget.	opriations and nd Budget a repo Partnership sha unce Committees diture report an or the prior fisca	Senate Finance ort of its operating Il provide to the and the Director, d a listing of the al year. All three		
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	r C V T F F F S S C	C. In developing the criteria for any pay for performance not be limited to, these variables: 1) the number of e committed to move to or expand operations in Virgin Virginia for land acquisition, construction, buildings, a time jobs directly related to an economic developmen project. To that end, the pay for performance plan sho reward employees who successfully recruit new econom existing prospects to expand operations in localities we statewide average. Fiscal Stress shall be based on the In pon Local Government. If a prospect is physically loca locality, the highest Fiscal Stress Index of the particip	economic develo ia; 2) dollar inv ind equipment; 3 nt project; and 4 all be weighted ic development p with fiscal stress dex published by ited in more that	opment prospects vestment made in B) number of full- 4) location of the to recognize and prospects or cause s greater than the y the Commission n one contiguous		
45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53	A S S S S C C	D.1. The Virginia Economic Development Partnership Assembly convenes in January of each year on the sta state's comprehensive economic development strategy, actions related to the implementation of the compre strategy. The report shall be submitted to the Chairmen Senate Finance Committees, and shall include the employees of the Virginia Economic Development Par development prospects.	atus of the imple and shall recon- chensive econor of the House A number of site thership with po	ementation of the nmend legislative nic development ppropriations and e visits made by otential economic		
53 54		suited for location in the southside and southwest regi				

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

E. The State Comptroller shall disburse the first and second year appropriations in twelve equal monthly installments. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget may authorize 3 an increase in disbursements for any month, not to exceed the total appropriation for the fiscal year, if such an advance is necessary to meet payment obligations.

5 F. The Virginia Economic Development Partnership shall provide administrative and support 6 services for the Virginia Tourism Authority as prescribed in the Memorandum of Agreement 7 until July 1, 2020, or until the authority is able to provide such services.

8 G. The Virginia Economic Development Partnership shall report one month after the close of 9 each quarter to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees on 10 the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund. The report shall include, but not be 11 limited to, total appropriations made or transferred to the fund, total grants awarded, cash 12 balances, and balances available for future commitments.

13 H. Prior to purchasing airline and hotel accommodations related to overseas trade shows, the 14 Virginia Economic Development Partnership shall provide an itemized list of projected costs 15 for review by the Secretary of Commerce and Trade.

16 I. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from 17 the general fund is provided to market distressed areas of the Commonwealth.

18 J. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$215,000 the first year and \$215,000 the second year from 19 the general fund is provided to assist small manufacturers with the export of advanced 20 manufacturing products.

21 K. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from 22 the general fund is provided for an expanded international and domestic marketing campaign 23 to market Virginia to attract additional businesses to the Commonwealth.

24 L. The Virginia Economic Development Partnership shall investigate additional ways in 25 which it might encourage the export of products and services from the Commonwealth to 26 international markets, including researching potential methods through which to support 27 broader availability of bridge loans and shipment insurance for Virginia exporters.

28 M. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$1,097,957 the first year and \$1,097,957 the second year 29 from the general fund is provided for administration and operating expenses of the Virginia 30 Jobs Investment Program.

31 N.1. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$2,250,000 in the first year and \$2,250,000 in the second 32 year from the general fund shall be deposited in the Virginia Brownfields Restoration and 33 Economic Redevelopment Assistance Fund established pursuant to § 10.1-1237, Code of 34 Virginia.

35 2. Guidelines developed by the Virginia Economic Development Partnership, in consultation 36 with the Department of Environmental Quality, governing the use of the Fund shall provide 37 for grants of up to \$500,000 for site remediation and include a requirement that sites with 38 potential for redevelopment and economic benefits to the surrounding community be 39 prioritized for consideration of such grants.

40 O. The Virginia Economic Development Partnership shall transfer to the Department of 41 Environmental Quality up to \$250,000 of the amounts appropriated in this Item to conduct 42 research and for other appropriate costs associated with the development of a long-term 43 offsetting methods within the Virginia Nutrient Credit Exchange. The Virginia Economic 44 Development Partnership shall work in conjunction with the Department of Environmental 45 Quality to develop the long-term offsetting methods.

P. Out of the amounts in this Item, the Virginia Economic Development Partnership shall 46 47 provide \$925,000 the first year and \$925,000 the second year from the general fund to the Commonwealth Center for Advanced Manufacturing for rent and operating support. 48

Q. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$4,865,700 the first year and \$4,865,700 the second year 49 50 from the general fund shall be provided to strengthen and promote economic development 51 initiatives. The funding shall be allocated as follows: \$366,000 the first year and \$366,000 the 52 second year to expand and rebrand the Virginia Jobs Investment Program, \$950,000 the first

ITEM 122.

1

2

	ITEM 122		Iter First Yea FY2019			riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7		year and \$950,000 the second year to support the Vi \$1,900,000 the first year and \$1,900,000 the second Going Global Defense Initiative and the State Trac program, \$605,000 the first year and \$605,000 the exporters, \$250,000 in each year to implement the Sustained Growth Study and \$794,700 in each year business attraction.	rginia Internation year to match fed le Export Promote e second year to e recommendation	al Trade Alliance, leral grants for the tion (STEP) grant Support Virginia ns of the Virginia	112019	112020
8 9 10 11 12		R. Any requests for administrative or staff suppo Development and Marketing or the Committee on advise the Virginia Economic Development Partne subject to the approval of, the Chairman or the Chie Economic Development Partnership.	International Tra ership shall be di	ade established to rected to, and are		
13 14 15		Total for Virginia Economic Development Partnership			\$31,597,198 \$51,597,198	\$35,107,392
16 17		Fund Sources: General	\$31,597,198 \$51,597,198	\$35,107,392		
18		§ 1-46. VIRGINIA EMPLO	YMENT COMM	ISSION (182)		
19 20	123.	Workforce Systems Services (47000)			\$557,581,011 \$557,705,646	\$552,381,011 \$554,265,081
21 22		Job Placement Services (47001)	\$31,658,869 \$31,783,504	\$31,658,869 \$33,542,939		
23		Unemployment Insurance Services (47002)	\$525,045,012	\$519,845,012		
24		Workforce Development Services (47003)	\$877,130	\$877,130		
25 26		Fund Sources: General Special	<i>\$124,635</i> \$6,018,987	\$1,884,070 \$6,018,987		
27		Trust and Agency	\$551,562,024	\$546,362,024		
28		Authority: Title 60.2, Chapters 1 through 6, Code of W	⁷ irginia.			
29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36		A. Revenues deposited into the Special Unemployr Fund shall be used for the purposes set out in the fol payment of any interest owed on loans from th unemployment compensation benefits; 2) to support e particularly in the event of reductions in federal fund projects; and 4) to fund the discretionary fund establiss Funding may be transferred from the capital budget with this language.	lowing order of p the U.S. Treasury essential services of ling; 3) to finance whed in § 60.2-315	riority: 1) to make for payment of of the Commission, the cost of capital , Code of Virginia.		
37 38 39 40		B.1. Reed Act funds distributed by the Employment S respect to the federal fiscal years 1956, 1957, and 19 the proceeds related to the sale of agency proper appropriated (up to \$600,000) to maintain service 10	958 and credited t ty with federal e	o the agency from equity are hereby		
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49		2. Reed Act funds distributed by the Balanced Budg unemployment trust fund with respect to federal fisca § 1103 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C.), as a administration of the unemployment compensation Virginia Employment Commission, and shall not be s 305, Code of Virginia. Reed Act funds from the appropriated (up to \$2.2 million, not to exceed the bal for upgrading the information technology syste Commission.	I years 2000, 200 mended, shall be program, under th ubject to the requi Balanced Budge lance of said Reed	1, and 2002, under used only for the he direction of the irements of § 60.2- et Act are hereby l Act funds) to pay		
50 51 52 53 54		C. There is hereby appropriated out of the funds made of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C.) as amended, the Act funds, if any, provided in Item 120 E. of Chapte upgrading obsolete information technology syst appropriation is subject to the provisions of § 60.2-3	e balance of the \$5 er 847, 2007 Acts ems, to include	1,067,866 of Reed s of Assembly, for staff costs. This		

_				m Details(\$)		riations(\$)
]	ITEM 123		First Year FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		result of the new systems shall be retained by the commi	ssion.			
2 3 4 5		D. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all fees in Commission with respect to the collection of debts and 4806 of the Code of Virginia, using the Treasury Offse become part of the debt owed the Commission and may	horized to be coll t Program of the U	ected under § 2.2- Jnited States, shall		
6 7 8		E. Workforce development programs shall give priority are required to participate in the Training, Education, En to the extent allowed by federal law.				
9 10 11 12 13 14		F. Out of this appropriation, \$124,635 the first year and general fund is provided to implement the provisions of including the development and implementation of a strathat will provide information on issues such as state and relationship between the supply and demand for worker projected employment growth or decline.	Chapter 225, 2018 tegic workforce da regional labor ma	8 Acts of Assembly, ashboard and tools rket conditions, the		
15 16	124.	Economic Development Services (53400) Economic Information Services (53402)	\$3,027,295	\$3,027,295	\$3,027,295	\$3,027,295
17 18		Fund Sources: Special Trust and Agency	\$529,000 \$2,498,295	\$529,000 \$2,498,295		
19		Authority: Title 60.2, Chapters 1 through 6, Code of Virg				
22 23 24 25 26 27		the terms and conditions provided in the said Social Sect the amount remaining in the clearing account of the U created by § 60.2-301, Code of Virginia, after deduc pursuant to § 60.2-301, Code of Virginia, a sum suff Total for Virginia Employment Commission	Jnemployment Co ting the refunds	ompensation Fund	\$ 560,608,306 \$560,732,941	\$555,408,306 \$557,292,376
28		Coursed Frond Desistions	3.00	6.00	<i>\$000,702,71</i>	<i>\$667,272,676</i>
20 29		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions	865.00	865.00		
30 31		Position Level	865.00 868.00	865.00 871.00		
32		Fund Sources: General	\$124,635	\$1,884,070		
33		Special	\$6,547,987	\$6,547,987		
34		Trust and Agency	\$554,060,319	\$548,860,319		
35		§ 1-47. VIRGINIA TOU	RISM AUTHORI	TY (320)		
36 37	126.	Tourist Promotion (53600)			\$21,035,424 \$21,585,424	\$20,810,424
38 39		Tourist Promotion Services (53607)	\$21,035,424 \$21,585,424	\$20,810,424	φ21,303,+2+	
40 41		Fund Sources: General	\$21,035,424 \$21,585,424	\$20,810,424		
42		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 22, Article 8, Code of Virgi	nia.			
43 44 45 46 47 48		A.1. The Department of Transportation shall pay t \$1,200,000 each year for continued operation of the W Transportation shall fund maintenance at each facility ba contained in the Memorandum of Agreement between th Department of Transportation. Included in the amount year for maintenance of the Danville Welcome Center	elcome Centers. T sed on the agreed- e Virginia Tourisn s in this paragraph	The Department of upon service levels a Authority and the		

48 year for maintenance of the Danville Welcome Center.

49 2. To the extent necessary to fund the operations of the Welcome Centers, the Virginia50 Tourism Authority is authorized to collect fees paid by businesses for display space at the

Item Details(\$)				
First Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

1

2

3

B. Upon authorization of the Governor, the Virginia Tourism Authority may transfer funds appropriated to it by this act to a nonstock corporation.

4 C. Prior to July 1 of each fiscal year, the Virginia Tourism Authority shall provide to the 5 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the Director, 6 Department of Planning and Budget a report of its operating plan. Prior to September 1 of 7 each fiscal year, the authority shall provide to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations 8 and Senate Finance Committees and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget a 9 detailed expenditure report and a listing of the salaries and bonuses for all authority 10 employees for the prior fiscal year. All three reports shall be prepared in the formats as 11 previously approved by the Department of Planning and Budget.

- D. The State Comptroller shall disburse the first and second year appropriations in twelve
 equal monthly installments. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget may
 authorize an increase in disbursements for any month, not to exceed the total appropriation
 for the fiscal year, if such an advance is necessary to meet payment obligations.
- 16 E. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$2,475,000 \$3,025,000 the first year and \$2,475,000 17 the second year from the general fund is provided for grants to regional and local tourism 18 authorities and other tourism entities to support their efforts. From the grants provided 19 from the amounts included in this paragraph, priority consideration shall be given to 20 funding for the Daniel Boone Visitor Center, as well as \$100,000 \$350,000 the first year 21 and \$100,000 the second year to the Coalfield Regional Tourism Authority, and \$50,000 22 the first year and \$50,000 the second year for events sponsored by Special Olympics 23 Virginia, \$550,000 \$850,000 the first year and \$550,000 the second year to the Southwest 24 Virginia Regional Recreation Authority for the Spearhead Trails initiative, and \$125,000 25 the first year and \$125,000 the second year to the City of Virginia Beach for a regional 26 tourism entity.
- F. The Virginia Tourism Authority shall place a high priority on marketing rural areas ofthe state.
- 29 G. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$3,100,000 in the first year and \$3,100,000 in the 30 second year from the general fund is provided to supplement appropriations to promote 31 Virginia's tourism industries through an enhanced advertising campaign. Of these 32 amounts, at least \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year shall be used to 33 support a cooperative advertising program to partner with private sector tourism businesses and regional tourism entities to advertise Virginia as a tourism destination. The 34 35 state dollars shall be used to incentivize private and regional tourism marketing funds on a \$1.00 for \$1.00 basis whereby the Virginia Tourism Corporation shall enter into 36 37 agreements to undertake joint advertising purchases to promote Virginia and specific 38 facilities with private sector and regional partners.
- 39 H. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$330,012 the first year and \$330,012 the second year 40 from the general fund is provided to promote and advertise tourism in Virginia. These 41 amounts include \$130,012 in the first year and \$130,012 in the second year for "See 42 Virginia First," a partnership operated by the Virginia Association of Broadcasters to 43 advertise Virginia Tourism, provided the Association contributes a total of at least 44 \$390,036 in television and radio advertising value to promote tourism in Virginia in the 45 first year and \$390,036 in the second year. Also included in these amounts is \$100,000 the 46 first year and \$100,000 the second year to promote Virginia Parks, and \$100,000 the first 47 year and \$100,000 the second year to promote Virginia's wineries.
- I. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$497,544 the first year and \$497,544 the second year
 from the general fund is provided to purchase media in the Washington, D.C., Virginia,
 and Baltimore, Maryland markets through the "See Virginia First," a partnership operated
 by the Virginia Association of Broadcasters, in association with its affiliates in other states
 in the region, provided that the Association can obtain contributions of at least \$1,492,632
 the first year and \$1,492,632 the second year in television, radio and station-related
 internet advertising value to promote tourism in Virginia.
- 55 J. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$400,000 the first year and \$450,000 the second year

			Iten	n Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 126.		First Year FY2019	· Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		from the general fund is provided as an incentive to est Indira Gandhi International Airport and Washington accordance with a signed agreement entered into with the agreement shall include provisions requiring a minimum per week, a load factor, and that the incentive payments b if such conditions are not met.	n Dulles Interna Virginia Tourism 1 of three nonstop	r service between tional Airport in Corporation. Such round-trip flights		
7 8 9		K. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$150,000 the first year the general fund is provided to support a tourism devel Henrico.				
10 11 12		L. Out of the amounts in this item, \$250,000 the first yea as the state's contribution towards infrastructure costs in o Eventing at Great Meadow, The Plains.				
13 14		M. Out of the amounts in this item, \$25,000 the first year support the Carver Price Legacy Museum.	from the general t	fund is provided to		
15 16		Total for Virginia Tourism Authority			\$21,035,424 \$21,585,424	\$20,810,424
17 18		Fund Sources: General	\$21,035,424 \$21,585,424	\$20,810,424		
19		§ 1-48. INNOVATION AND ENTREPRENED	URSHIP INVEST	MENT AUTHOR	ITY (934)	
20 21	126.10	Economic Development Services (53400) Commonwealth Growth Accelerator Program			\$11,046,485	\$11,296,485
21 22 23		(53415) Commonwealth Research Commercialization	\$3,100,000	\$3,100,000		
24		Services (53416)	\$2,800,000	\$2,800,000		
25 26		Technology Industry Development Services (53419) Administrative Services (53422)	\$1,950,000 \$3,196,485	\$1,950,000 \$3,446,485		
 27		Fund Sources: General	\$11,046,485	\$11,296,485		
28		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia, and Di				
29 30		A. The appropriation in this item shall be used for the putterms and conditions specified in Title 2.2, Chapter 22, C	rpose of and in ac			
31 32 33 34		B. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority funds in this appropriation to the Center for Innovative T realizing the statutory purposes of the Authority, by c private entities, notwithstanding the provisions of § 4.	Cechnology to exp contracting with §	end said funds for governmental and		
35		C. This appropriation shall be disbursed in twelve equal m	nonthly installmen	ts each fiscal year.		
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43		D.1. No later than July 15 of each year, the Innovation Authority shall provide to the Chairmen of the House A Committees, Secretary of Commerce and Trade, and the and Budget, a report of its operating plan for each ye September 30 of each year, the center shall submit to the report for the concluded fiscal year. Both reports shall be by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget an following:	Appropriations ar e Director, Depar ear of the biennin same entities a de prepared in the fo	ad Senate Finance tment of Planning um. No later than stailed expenditure rmats as approved		
44 45 46		a. All planned and actual revenue and expenditures alor state, federal, and other revenue sources of both the Investment Authority and the Center for Innovative	Innovation and	-		
47 48		b. A listing of the salaries, bonuses, and benefits of al Entrepreneurship Investment Authority and the Center				
49 50		c. By program, total grants made and investments awar program, to include the Commonwealth Research Com	-			

ITEM 126.		Item D t Year 2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	d. By program, a report of the projected economic impact on the recoveries of previous grants or investments and sales of equit				
3 4	e. Cash balances by funding source, and a report, by program, of a projected expenditures of all cash balances.	vailable,	committed and		
5 6 7 8	2. The President of the Center shall report quarterly to the Center's the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance C Commerce and Trade, and the Director, Department of Planning approved by the Board the following:	ommittee	es, Secretary of		
9 10	a. The quarterly financial performance, determined by comparing revenues and expenditures to planned revenues and expenditures f				
11 12	b. All investments and grants executed compared to projected inv on prior investments and grants, including all gains and losses; an		closings, return		
13 14	c. The financial and programmatic performance of all operating Center.	g entities	owned by the		
15 16 17	E. As part of its mission to foster technological innovation in the Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority is encouractivities Virginia private research universities.				
18 19 20 21 22 23	F.1. The Center for Innovative Technology shall continue to supp quasi-public bodies within the Commonwealth to enhance or availability of and access to advanced electronic communicatio known as broadband, throughout the Commonwealth, monitoring advanced electronic communications technology to plan and foreca technology, and identify funding options.	r facilita ns servic trends a	te the prompt ces, commonly nd advances in		
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36	2. Out of the amounts appropriated in this item, \$550,000 the first second year from the general fund shall be used to support the e improvement of broadband services in regions and loca Commonwealth. The Center for Innovative Technology (CIT) s policy development and priorities established by the Commonwe Advisor, as well as coordinate with and support the broadband as activities of the Virginia Growth and Opportunity Board. CIT sh solutions designed to close gaps in Virginia's broadband covera addition, CIT will provide technical assistance to unserved and u localities where wired broadband services are not currently avai those regions and localities in determining the issues, business requirements, including an assessment of the existing technologi broadband services to their citizens.	xpansion lities th hall supp ealth's Ch ssessmen all assess ge and p nderserv lable, in s practice	a and continual roughout the port broadband hief Broadband at and planning s strategies and erformance. In ed regions and order to assist es, and vendor		
37 38 39 40 41	G. The General Assembly supports the Innovation and Entrep Authority's stated mission to enhance federal research funding to universities and to industry. It is also the intent of the General greater reliance by the authority on nongeneral fund revenues for the and programs.	Virginia Assembl	's colleges and y to promote a		
42 43 44 45	H. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any interest ea Advanced Communications Assistance Fund, as well as any mone at the end of each fiscal year, including interest thereon, shall be fund.	ys remair	ing in the fund		
46 47 48 49 50	I.1. A total of \$3,100,00 the first year and \$3,100,000 the second fund shall be allocated to the Commonwealth Growth Accelerator the development of Virginia-based technology, biosciences, and funding shall be used to underwrite early stage financing for new of of achieving an average 11:1 private to public investment ratio.	Progran	n fund to foster ompanies. This		
51	2. Funds returned to the Commonwealth Growth Accelerator Prog	ram, incl	uding proceeds		

51 2. Funds returned to the Commonwealth Growth Accelerator Program, including proceeds52 received due to the sale of a company that previously received a GAP investment, shall

Item Details(\$)							
First Year	Second Year						
FY2019	FY2020						

remain in the program and be used to make future early stage financing investments
 consistent with the goals of the program. The Center for Innovative Technology may recover
 the direct costs incurred associated with securing the return of such funds from the moneys
 returned.

ITEM 126.10.

J.1. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the
 general fund is provided to support the advancement of unmanned systems companies and
 development of the unmanned systems industry in the Commonwealth.

- 8 2. In addition to the amounts set forth in paragraph J.1., \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 9 the second year from the general fund shall be made available for the establishment of an 10 Unmanned Aerial Systems Commercial Center of Excellence and business accelerator in 11 collaboration with the Mid-Atlantic Aviation Partnership and the Virginia Commercial 12 Spaceflight Authority for (i) the development of a strategic plan and roadmap for the 13 recruitment and expansion of commercial UAS entities, and (ii) advancing collaborative 14 public-private UAS partnerships across the Commonwealth at the direction of the Secretary of 15 Commerce and Trade.
- 16 K. Out of the appropriation for this item, \$400,000 the first year and \$400,000 the second year
 17 from the general fund shall support the Virginia Cyber Security Commission and its recommendations.
- L. Notwithstanding the definition of qualifying institutions in § 2.2-2233.1, Code of Virginia, a university research consortium that includes Virginia colleges and university member
 institutions is a qualifying institution for purposes of seeking funding from the Commonwealth Research Commercialization Fund.
- M. Any proceeds from the sale of equity in companies that participated in the cyber security
 accelerator shall not revert to the general fund but shall be used to support the accelerator
 program.
- N. By September 1 each year, the President of the Innovation and Entrepreneurship
 Investment Authority shall report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate
 Finance Committees, Secretary of Commerce and Trade, and to the Director, Department of
 Planning and Budget on program activities including, but not limited to the following:
- 30 1. For activities associated with providing localities with broadband assistance: (i) the number
 31 of localities assisted by state and other broadband funding sources and (ii) the estimated
 32 number of households and localities with populations lacking wired broadband access;
- 33 2. For activities associated with the Growth Accelerator Program (GAP): (i) the number of 34 companies receiving investments from the fund, (ii) the state investment and amount of 35 privately leveraged investments per company, (iii) the estimated number of jobs created, (iv) 36 the estimated tax revenue generated, (v) the number of companies who have received 37 investments from the GAP fund still operating in Virginia, (vi) return on investment, to include the value of proceeds from the sale of equity in companies that received support from 38 39 the program and economic benefits to the Commonwealth, (vii) the number of state 40 investments that failed and the state investment associated with failed investments, and (viii) 41 the number of new companies created or expanded and the number of patents filed; and
- 3. For activities associated with the cyber security accelerator: (i) the number of companies assisted and the number of startups successfully launched through the cyber accelerator program, (ii) the number of companies operating in Virginia as a result of the program, (iii) estimated number of jobs created, (iv) the value of proceeds from the sale of equity in companies that received capital support from the program, (v) the number of state investments that failed and the state investment associated with failed investments, and (vi) the number of new companies created or expanded and the number of patents filed.
- 49 4. Such report shall include the prior fiscal year outcomes as well as the outcomes of each
 50 program since inception. In addition, the report shall also include program changes
 51 anticipated in the subsequent fiscal year.
- 52 O.1. Pursuant to § 3-2.03 of this act, a line of credit up to \$2,500,000 shall be provided to the
 53 Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority as a temporary cash flow advance.
 54 The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority shall transfer such related funds to

		Item I	Details(\$)	Approp	riation
ITEM 126	5.10.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Sec F
1 2 3 4 5 6	the Center for Innovative Technology as a temporary cash adva of each fiscal year. Funds received from the line of credit sh operational costs in anticipation of receiving reimbursement signed contracts and grant awards. The request for the line of the formats as approved by the Secretary of Finance and Se Trade.	hall be used of the standard of said exp for the standard of t	only to support enditures from be prepared in		
7 8	2. The Secretary of Finance and Secretary of Commerce and T downs from this line of credit prior to the expenditure of funds	-	prove the draw		
9 10 11 12	P.1. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authori and maintain the Mid-Rise Building located at the Center to Complex at 2214 Rock Hill Road, Herndon, Virginia, unless Governor.	for Innovativ	ve Technology		
13 14 15	2. The Authority shall ensure building maintenance meets th Maintenance Code 2012, remains at a level to satisfy existing a metropolitan Class B office standards.				
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	3. Consistent with the transfer of ownership of the Mid-Rise of General Services directed in Item 75 D of this act, the Innov Investment Authority shall make all records and information Building available to the Department of General Services provide any other information requested by the Department of the Center for Innovative Technology Complex and any com nature of the Mid-Rise Building's shared infrastructure an components of the Complex. Notwithstanding § 2.2-2221, Co provision of law, the Center for Innovative Technology Com- located at 2214 and 2205 Rock Hill Road, Herndon, Virgin provisions of §§ 2.2-1150 through 2.2-1158, Code of Virg	vation and Er on related to . The Author General Ser nponents the id interconne ode of Virgin plex, consist nia, shall be	trepreneurship the Mid-Rise ority shall also vices regarding reof due to the ection to other ia, or any other ing of property		
27 28 29 30 31 32	Q. Effective July 1, 2016, any form of proposed increase in em the base salaries of employees, including one-time bonuses, ex explicitly authorized in this act, must be communicated to the Planning and Budget, and the Staff Directors of the House App the Senate Finance Committee, more than ninety days in ad increase.	xcept for sala he Director, propriations	ry adjustments Department of Committee and		
33 34 35 36 37 38	R.1. Out of the appropriation for this item, \$2,800,000 the firsecond year from the general fund shall be deposited into the Commercialization Fund created pursuant to \$2.2-2233.1, Co shall not be subject to the equal monthly disbursement requirer C. of this item but shall be disbursed as provided for in pa below.	e Commonw de of Virgini ments provide	ealth Research ia. These funds ed in paragraph		
39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47	2. Of the amounts provided for the Commonwealth Research paragraph R.1., up to \$1,500,000 the first year and \$1,500,00 used for a Small Business Innovation Research Matching F based technology businesses and, for matching funds for r Business Technology Transfer (STTR) awards for Virginia-b monies from these amounts that have not been allocated at the not revert to the general fund but shall be distributed for other Research and Technology Investment Advisory Committee an and Technology Strategic Roadmap.	00 the secon Fund Program recipients of pased small b end of each f purposes de	d year shall be n for Virginia- federal Small usinesses. Any fiscal year shall signated by the		
48 49	3.a. Businesses meeting the following criteria shall be eligible administered by the Research and Technology Investment Adv				
50 51	(i). The applicant has received an STTR award targeted at th research or technologies;	ne developme	ent of qualified		
52	(ii). At least 51 percent of the applicant's employees reside in V	Virginia; and			
53	(iii). At least 51 percent of the applicant's property is located in	n Virginia.			

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$) econd Year FY2020

		Item I	Details(\$)	
ITEM 126.1	0.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	Firs FY
1	b. Applicants shall be eligible for matching grants of up to \$1	00,000 for Pha	se I awards and	
2	up to \$500,000 for Phase II awards. All applicants sh	all be require	ed to submit a	
3	commercialization plan with their application. Any unused	l funds shall n	ot revert to the	
4	general fund but shall remain in the Commonwealth Research	and Commerc	ialization Fund.	
5	Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-2233.1, Code of Vir	ginia, unused fi	unding from the	
6	Fund shall be awarded as originally intended by the Research	h and Technol	ogy Investment	
7	Advisory Committee and only reallocated if sufficient demand			

9 4. Prior to disbursement of these funds to the Authority, the Innovation and Entrepreneurship
10 Investment Authority shall certify that the awards have been made in compliance with the
11 requirements set forth in § 2.2-2233.1, Code of Virginia, and in a format approved by the
12 Director, Department of Planning and Budget.

8

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

allocation.

- 5.Notwithstanding § 2.2-2233.1, Code of Virginia, Commonwealth Research
 Commercialization Fund awards authorized for payment shall be disbursed to the Innovation
 and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority as provided in paragraph R.4. of this item in
 addition to the monthly payments as provided in paragraph C of this item. Any funds not
 expensed in accordance with the award shall be remitted by the Authority to the state treasury
 and deposited to the Commonwealth Research Commercialization Fund.
- S. 1. Notwithstanding § 2.2-2221, Code of Virginia, the General Assembly finds real property
 and the improvements thereon to be surplus to the needs of the Commonwealth; specifically,
 real property and improvements located in Loudoun County (Parcel 035-26) and Fairfax
 County (Parcel 0152-01-0015 and Parcel 0152-01-0017). The Department of General Services
 shall pursue and is authorized to execute disposal options, with the approval of the Governor,
 in accordance with § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia.
 - 2. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority and the Center for Innovative Technology shall promptly respond to requests for information and provide other assistance as requested by the Department of General Services and other state agencies as necessary to comply with the requirements set forth in § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia, shall make all records related to the property readily available to the Department of General Services, and shall provide the Department of General Services access to the property. Further, the Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority shall continue to manage the property in the best interests of the Commonwealth until the property is sold to the successful purchaser. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority shall not convey any interest or allow any new use without the recommendation of the Department of General Services and approval of the Governor or his designee.
 - 3. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority shall provide monthly reports to the Department of General Services of income and expenses associated with the property. The Department of General Services shall provide quarterly reports to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and to the Governor on the Department's progress to determine disposal options of the parcels, beginning with the initial report due October 1, 2016.
- 42 4. Costs incurred by the Department of General Services to carry out the direction in this item
 43 shall be accounted for separately from other Department operations and shall be reimbursed
 44 first from the Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority building reserve fund
 45 and, if insufficient funding is available from that fund, from the proceeds of the sale of the
 46 property. Such costs shall include moving expenses and the first year of new rent costs
 47 incurred by the Center for Innovative Technology as a result of the direction in this item.
- 48 5. The remaining proceeds of the sale shall be deposited to the nonreverting Virginia Research 49 Investment Fund established pursuant to Chapter 775, 2016 Acts of Assembly for the express 50 purpose of promoting research and development excellence in the Commonwealth; 51 positioning the Commonwealth as a national leader in science-based and technology-based 52 research, development, and commercialization; and encouraging cooperation and 53 collaboration among higher education research institutions, and with the private sector, in 54 areas and with activities that foster economic development and job creation in the 55 Commonwealth, with particular emphasis on personalized health, biosciences, data analytics, 56 and cybersecurity. Such proceeds shall herein be appropriated to the portion of the Fund 57 designated for investment, reinvestment and management by the Board of the Virginia

ITEM 126.	10.	Iter First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020		riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Retirement System as provided in § 51.1-124.38, Code	e of Virginia.			
2 3 4 5	T. The Center for Innovative Technology shall not cha limited to, allocating administrative staff and overhe Entrepreneurship Measurement System, broadban Security Commission, unless approved by the Go	ad costs against tl d, unmanned sys	he Innovation and		
6 7	Total for Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority			\$11,046,485	\$11,296,485
8	Fund Sources: General	\$11,046,485	\$11,296,485		
9 10 11	TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF COMMERCE AND TRADE			\$925,805,985 \$969,567,542	\$923,967,289 \$978,218,331
12 13	General Fund Positions	370.34 373.34	370.34 377.34		
14	Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,307.66	1,307.66		
15 16	Position Level	1,678.00 1,681.00	1,678.00 1,685.00		
17 18	Fund Sources: General	\$225,708,812 \$269,470,369	\$230,136,001 \$284,387,043		
19	Special	\$27,524,327	\$26,830,327		
20	Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,592,572	\$1,592,572		
21 22	Trust and Agency	\$554,835,319 \$25,848,945	\$549,635,319		
22 23	Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$25,848,945 \$90,296,010	\$25,477,060 \$90,296,010		

			Iten	n Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
]	ITEM 127		First Year FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		OFFICE OF	EDUCATION			
2		§ 1-49. SECRETARY	OF EDUCATION	V (185)		
3 4	127.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$694,565	\$694,565	\$694,565	\$694,565
5		Fund Sources: General	\$694,565	\$694,565		
6		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, § 2.2-208 Code of Virgini	ia.			
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		A. The Secretary of Education is hereby authorized to academies of the portion of the national zone academy be annually to the Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant to Se Code of 1986, as amended, and to provide for carryovers making such allocations, the Secretary of Education is of requests for qualified zone academies having at least 32 either located in federal enterprise communities or locate federal enterprise communities are located.	ond limitation amo ection 1397E of the of any unused lim lirected to give pri 5 percent free lund	unt to be allocated e Internal Revenue nitation amount. In iority to allocation ch participation or		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		B. The Secretary of Education is hereby authorized to m tax-exempt private activity bond limitation amoun Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant to the Economic G Act of 2001 (PL 107-16)(Section 142(k)(5) of the In amended) for the development of education facilities usin provide for carryovers of any unused limitation amou Secretary is directed to give priority to public-private pa demonstration projects concerning the leveraging o resources, the achievement of economies or efficience innovation, and other benefits that are or may be derived contrast to more traditional approaches to public schoo Secretary is directed to report annually not later than Aug Finance and House Appropriations Committees regardia any allocations made pursuant to this paragraph.	t to be allocated rowth and Tax Re- nternal Revenue ing public-private p nt. In making suc- rtnership proposal f private sector of cies associated w l from public-priv ol construction an gust 31 to the Chain	I annually to the lief Reconciliation Code of 1986, as artnerships, and to ch allocations, the s that will serve as contributions and ith private sector ate partnerships in d renovation. The rmen of the Senate		
29 30 31 32		C. For the funds identified for reallocation in each o educational and general programs, each respective institu specific purposes for which they were used in its six-yea of 2018 and the fall of 2019.	tion shall report th	ne amounts and the		
33		Total for Secretary of Education			\$694,565	\$694,565
34		General Fund Positions	5.00	5.00		
35		Position Level	5.00	5.00		
36		Fund Sources: General	\$694,565	\$694,565		
37		§ 1-50. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION	, CENTRAL OFF	FICE OPERATION	IS (201)	
38 39	128.	Instructional Services (18100)			\$19,515,887 \$20,165,887	\$19,515,887 \$21,419,207
40 41		Public Education Instructional Services (18101)	\$11,006,525 \$11,656,525	\$11,006,525 \$12,909,845		
42 43 44		Program Administration and Assistance for Instructional Services (18102) Adult Education and Literacy (18104)	\$7,042,721 \$1,466,641	\$7,042,721 \$1,466,641		
45 46		Fund Sources: General	\$8,809,594 \$9,459,594	\$8,809,594 \$10,712,914		
47 48 49 50		Special Commonwealth Transportation Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$300,000 \$270,419 \$5,000 \$10,130,874	\$300,000 \$270,419 \$5,000 \$10,130,874		

		127				
	ITEM 128		I First Y FY20	ear	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1 2		Authority: Public Education Instructional Services: Title Virginia; P.L. 107-110, P.L. 105-332, P.L.108-447, P.L.				
3 4		Program Administration and Assistance for Instructional Ser Code of Virginia; P.L. 107-110, P.L. 105-332, P.L. 108-447,				
5 6		Compliance and Monitoring of Instructional Services: Titl Virginia; P.L. 107-110, P.L. 105-332, P.L. 108-447, Feder			r 13, Code of	
7 8		Adult Education and Literacy: §§ 2.2-2472, 22.1-223-226 Code of Virginia; P.L. 105-220, Federal Code.	, 22.1-2	53.13:	1, 22.1-254.2,	
9 10		A. The Superintendent of Public Instruction is e school/community team training.	ncourag	ged to	implement	
11 12 13		B. The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall provassistance to local school divisions in the revision of t curriculum and instructional practices.				
14 15 16 17 18		C. The Superintendent of Public Instruction, in cooperatio Social Services, shall encourage local departments of soci divisions to work together to develop cooperative arrange resources, especially computer labs, for the purpose of traini Needy Families (TANF) recipients for the workforce.	al servio ments f	ces and or the	d local school use of school	
19 20 21 22		D. Notwithstanding § 4-1.04 a 3 of this act, the Superintenda apply for grant funding to be used by local school divisions of Chapter 447, 1999 Acts of Assembly. The nongeneral agency shall be adjusted by the amount of the proceeds of the	consisten fund ap	t with	the provisions ation for this	
23 24 25 26 27 28 29		E. 1. Out of the appropriations in this item, \$1,300,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to support strinformation technology industry certifications. The fundioutreach, training, instructional resources, industry recogniz for teachers and students enrolled in Virginia public high scl technical education programs, and information technology curstudents' parents.	udents and ng shall ed certif nools and	nd teac be us ication d regio	chers pursuing ed to provide opportunities nal career and	
30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43		2. The funds provided in this initiative shall be used to su objectives: a) increase the percentage of students enrol education courses who receive instruction in informatio increased number of students achieving industry recognized technology; b) increase the number of high schools and re education programs that receive the training and techni implement information technology curricula leadin implementation and use; c) increase the number of teachers technical education courses and other high school teach information technology and in industry recognized certifica number of teachers achieving industry recognized certifications in Southside and Southwest Virginia so that imple at least comparable to implementation in other regions of V	led in c n techno certifica egional d ical sup g to in teaching ers who tions lea ttification echnolog mentation	areer ology ations career port to crease g targe receiv ding to ons in cy curri	and technical leading to an in information and technical b be ready to ed statewide ted career and ve training in b an increased information cula in school	
44 45 46 47		F. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$413,000 the first y year from the general fund is provided for the Departmen professional development program intended to increase t school leaders in under-performing schools.	t of Edu	cation	to continue a	
48 49		G. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$366,000 the first y year from the general fund is provided to the Department				

- 48 G. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$366,000 the first year and \$366,000 the second
 49 year from the general fund is provided to the Department of Education to assist local
 50 school divisions, as needed, to establish criteria for the professional development of
 51 teachers and principals on the subject of issues related to high-needs students.
- 52 H. a. Out of this appropriation, \$1,350,000 the first year and \$1,350,000 the second year
 53 from the general fund is provided through the Department of Education to the University

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

of Virginia to continue statewide implementation of the Virginia Kindergarten Readiness Program conducted in the fall, and to develop and implement a post-assessment upon the conclusion of the kindergarten year.

ITEM 128.

1

2

3

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

b. The Department of Education shall coordinate with the University of Virginia's Center for
Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning to ensure that all school divisions shall be required
to have their kindergarten students assessed during the school year using the multidimensional kindergarten readiness assessment model no later than by the end of the school
year 2019-2020, and annually thereafter. All school divisions shall be required to have their
kindergarten students assessed with such model.

c. Further, out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year
from the general fund shall be allocated to University of Virginia's Center for Advanced
Study of Teaching and Learning to provide training to school divisions annually on how to
effectively use Virginia Kindergarten Readiness Program data to improve instructional
practices and student learning. Such teacher focused professional development and training
shall be prioritized for the school divisions that would most benefit from state assistance in
order to provide more time for classroom instruction and student learning.

d. The Department and the University of Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of Teaching
and Learning shall use the results of the multi-dimensional Virginia Kindergarten Readiness
Program assessments to determine how well the Virginia Preschool Initiative promotes
readiness in all key developmental domains assessed. The Department shall submit such
findings using data from the prior year's fall assessment to the Chairmen of House
Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than October 1, 2019, and annually
thereafter.

I. The Department of Education, in cooperation with the Departments of Health, Social Services, and Planning & Budget, shall convene a workgroup facilitated by the Virginia Early Childhood Foundation, to examine opportunities including, but not limited to, leveraging existing funds targeted to early childhood development with the goal of identifying strategies and mechanisms for developing an Integrated Early Childhood Fund. The findings of the workgroup shall be provided by October 15, 2018, to the Joint Subcommittee on the Virginia Preschool Initiative, and shall articulate the potential for existing but underutilized appropriations including, but not limited to, unused Virginia Preschool Initiative funds and TANF, and other funds to support administrative costs that would assist with more fully drawing down federal CACFP funds. The purpose of the Integrated Early Childhood Fund shall be to more feasibly implement the cohesive and efficient administration of early childhood resources, increasing access to quality early childhood services for at-risk children with little additional fiscal impact on the Commonwealth's budget.

37 J. Out of this appropriation, \$300,000 the first year and \$700,000 the second year from the 38 general fund is provided through the Department of Education to the University of Virginia's 39 Center for Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning to ensure that all Virginia Preschool 40 Initiative classroom programs teachers receive appropriate individualized professional 41 development training from professional development specialists to support quality teacher-42 child interactions and effective research-based curriculum implementation. Funding and 43 professional development assistance shall be prioritized for teachers with Classroom 44 Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) observation scores that did not meet the statewide 45 minimum acceptable threshold standard established by University of Virginia's Center for 46 Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning and the Department of Education. The University 47 of Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning, assisted on an as needed 48 basis, by the Department of Education, Virginia Early Childhood Foundation, and Elevate 49 Early Education to hire and train specialists to provide such individualized professional 50 development.

K. Out of this appropriation, \$350,000 the first year and \$350,000 the second year from the general fund is provided through the Department of Education to the University of Virginia to ensure that all Virginia Preschool Initiative classroom programs have the quality of their teacher-child interactions assessed through a rigorous and research-based classroom observational instrument at least once every two years using the CLASS observational instrument for such assessment. All classrooms shall be observed no later than June 30, 2020. The University of Virginia, with input from the Department of Education and the use of its

ITEM 128.			Iten First Year	n Details(\$) r Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1		•	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12		detailed plan for such assessments, shall establish threshold for the quality of teacher-child interaction classroom programs, and classrooms that are assess additional technical assistance from the Department Virginia. The threshold should be established with Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of Teaching a research-based classroom observational instrument. T later than the beginning of the 2018-2019 school ye shall begin no later than spring 2019. The University Study of Teaching and Learning shall submit a pr observations to the Chairmen of House Appropriatio no later than June 30, 2019, and annually thereafter.	ns for Virginia Pro- ed below the thress of Education and the the assistance and Learning, usin the threshold shall evar and the classr of Virginia's Cen- trogress report on and Senate Fin	eschool Initiative shold will receive the University of of University of g a rigorous and be established no coom assessments ther for Advanced such classroom		
13 14 15 16		L. Out of this appropriation, \$553,000 the second yea to support the Board of Education's computer sci statewide computer science education and training ne Department of Education and the University of Virgin	ience Standards eds through a con	of Learning and		
17 18	129.	Special Education and Student Services (18200)			\$16,492,613	\$16,492,613 \$16,985,368
19 20		Special Education Instructional Services (18201) Special Education Administration and Assistance	\$9,907,986	\$9,907,986		
21 22		Services (18202) Special Education Compliance and Monitoring	\$1,043,459	\$1,043,459		
23 24		Services (18203)	\$3,058,297	\$3,058,297 \$3,551,052		
25		Student Assistance and Guidance Services (18204).	\$2,482,871	\$2,482,871		
26 27		Fund Sources: General	\$1,903,579	\$1,903,579 \$2,396,334		
28 29		Special Federal Trust	\$120,000 \$14,469,034	\$120,000 \$14,469,034		
30 31 32		Authority: Special Education Instructional Services: § 253.13:1 through 22.1-253.13:8, 22.1-319 through 22 446, Federal Code.	§ 22.1-213 throug	h 22.1-221, 22.1-		
33 34		Special Education Administration and Assistance S 22.1-253.13:8, Code of Virginia; P.L. 108-446, Fed	leral Code.	-		
35 36 37		Special Education Compliance and Monitoring Servi 22.1-253.13:1 through 22.1-253.13:8, 22.1-319 through 108-446, Federal Code.				
38 39 40		Student Assistance and Guidance Services: Title 22. 16.2, 22.1-17.1, 22.1-17.2, 22.1-199.4, 22.1-206, 22 Code of Virginia; P.L. 107-110 and P.L. 108-446, F	.1-207.1, 22.1-20			
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49		A. The Department of Education, in collaboration with shall provide training to local staff serving on Famil and Community Policy and Management Teams. Trae limited to, the federal and state requirements pertain education services funded under § 2.2-5211, Code of include written guidance concerning which services references the local school divisions. In addition, the Department local oversight of its federal and state requirements funded under § 2.2-5211, Code of Virginia.	y Assessment and ining shall include ning to the provision of Virginia. The the emain the financia of Education shal	l Planning Teams e, but need not be ion of the special raining shall also l responsibility of l provide ongoing		
50 51 52		B. The Board of Education shall consider the caselo pathologists as part of its review of the Standards of Code of Virginia.				
53 54 55		C. The Board of Education shall consider the inclusion for blind and visually impaired students enrolled in developing a caseload requirement for these instruction	public schools a	nd shall consider		

	ITEM 129.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		the Standards of Quality, pursuant to § 22.1-18.01, Code of		F 1 2020	F 1 2017	F 1 2020
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9		D. Out of this appropriation, \$197,416 \$447,416 the first second year from the general fund is provided to the D training, technical assistance, and on-site coachin administrators on implementation of a positive behavioral with the goal of improving school climate and reducing of Such training and other assistance may be provided as efforts to assist schools with implementation of a tiered sy academic and behavioral needs.	pepartment of Edu g to public scho interventions and lisruptive behaviors part of the Depa	cation to provide ool teachers and supports program r in the classroom. urtment's ongoing		
10 11 12		E. Out of this appropriation, \$290,000 the first year and general fund and \$290,000 the first year and \$290,000 shall be used for Multisensory Structured Literacy teach	the second year fi			
13 14 15 16		F. Out of this appropriation, \$492,755 the second year f support statewide training and assistance for local school Education's Regulations Governing the Use of Seclusion and Secondary Schools in Virginia.	divisions to imple	ment the Board of		
17 18	130.	Pupil Assessment Services (18400)			\$39,626,152	\$39,626,152 \$40,126,152
19 20		Test Development and Administration (18401)	\$39,626,152	\$39,626,152 \$40,126,152		φ+0,120,152
21 22		Fund Sources: General	\$28,611,859	\$28,611,859 \$29,111,859		
23 24		Special Federal Trust	\$270,488 \$10,743,805	\$270,488 \$10,743,805		
25		Authority: § 22.1-253.13:3, sections C and E, Code of Vir	ginia; P.L. 107-11	0, Federal Code.		
26 27 28 29		A. Out of this appropriation, \$25,380,678 the first year and the general fund is provided to support the costs of administration, scoring, and reporting as well as other pro- of Learning testing program.	f contracts for te	est development,		
30 31		B. Out of this appropriation, \$1,551,416 the first year ar the general fund is provided for continued computer ada				
32 33		C. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of law, the D required to administer the Stanford 9 norm-referenced test		cation shall not be		
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45		D. Out of this appropriation, \$300,000 the first year and general fund is provided for a verified credit in high sch establishing graduation requirements, the State Board of earn one verified credit in history and social science. Such by (i) the successful completion of a Board-developed e assessment; (ii) achievement of a passing score on a administered on a statewide, multistate, or international incorporates or exceeds the Standards of Learning conten- credit is given; or (iii) achievement of criteria for the re- credit from the local school board in accordance with crite when the student has not passed a corresponding Stand end-of-course Standards of Learning assessment shall not	ool in history and Education shall r h verified credit sh nd-of-course Stan Board-approved al basis that meas t in the course for ecceipt of a locally teria established in ards of Learning	social science. In equire students to all be earned only dards of Learning standardized test sures content that which the verified awarded verified Board guidelines assessment. Such		
46 47 48		E. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the second year f update the Virginia Studies Standards of Learning assess Standards of Learning assessment.				
49 50 51 52	131.	School and Division Assistance (18500) School Improvement (18501) School Nutrition (18502) Pupil Transportation (18503)	\$1,939,750 \$4,477,096 \$433,198	\$1,939,750 \$4,477,096 \$433,198	\$6,850,044	\$6,850,044

]	ITEM 131	l.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Fund Sources: General	\$2,485,708	\$2,485,708		
2		Special	\$31,000	\$31,000		
3		Federal Trust	\$4,333,336	\$4,333,336		
4 5		Authority: School Improvement: § 22.1-253.13:1 et sec Federal Code.	q., Code of Virgini	a; P. L. 107-110,		
6 7		School Nutrition: §§ 22.1-24, 22.1-89.1, and 22.1-207 P.L. 89-642, P.L. 95-627, as amended, P.L. 108-265,		nia; P.L. 79-396,		
8 9		Pupil Transportation: Title 22.1, Chapter 12, and Title 272 and P.L. 109-20, Federal Code.	46.2, Code of Vir	ginia; P. L. 103-		
10 11 12		A. This appropriation includes \$1,100,183 the first ye from the general fund for contractual services related to the Standards of Accreditation as prescribed by the Boa	o assisting schools			
13 14 15 16 17		B. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1502.1. Education, in cooperation with the Department of Plau invite a school division to participate in the school effic § 2.2-1502.1, Code of Virginia, as a component of pursuant to § 22.1-253.13:3, Code of Virginia.	nning and Budget, ciency review prog	, is authorized to gram described in		
18 19	132.	Technology Assistance Services (18600)			\$2,229,864 \$2,629,864	\$2,229,864 \$2,629,864
20 21		Instructional Technology (18601) Distance Learning and Electronic Classroom	\$612,288	\$612,288		
22 23		(18602)	\$1,617,576 \$2,017,576	\$1,617,576 \$2,017,576		
24 25		Fund Sources: General	\$1,795,025 \$105,000	\$1,795,025 \$105,000		
25 26		Special Trust and Agency	\$105,000 \$274,563	\$105,000 \$274,563		
27			\$674,563	\$674,563		
28		Federal Trust	\$55,276	\$55,276		
29 30		Authority: Instructional Technology: §§ 22.1-20.1, 22 through 22.1-253.13:8, Code of Virginia; P.L. 107-11		1, 22.1-253.13:1		
31		Distance Learning and Electronic Classroom: § 22.1-21	2.2, Code of Virgi	nia.		
32 33 34 35 36 37		A. This appropriation includes \$1,000,000 the first ye from the general fund for statewide digital content of related support services, as prescribed through contract All digital content produced and delivery of online lear by the Department of Education, meet or exceed applic correlated to such state standards.	levelopment, onli with the Departm ming shall meet cr	ne learning, and ent of Education. iteria established		
38 39 40 41 42 43		B. In developing the deliverables for each contract, t consult with division superintendents or their designat divisions' needs for digital content, online learning, tea that advance technology integration into the K-12 cla educational resources that may be made available to Commonwealth.	ed representatives acher training, and assroom, as well	to assess school support services as for additional		
44 45	133.	Teacher Licensure and Education (56600)			\$2,380,752	\$2,380,752 \$2,933,252
46 47		Teacher Licensure and Certification (56601)	\$2,006,252	\$2,006,252 \$2,558,752		
48		Teacher Education and Assistance (56602)	\$374,500	\$374,500		
49 50		Fund Sources: General	\$397,168	\$397,168 \$949,668		
51		Special	\$1,983,584	\$1,983,584		
52		Authority: Teacher Licensure and Certification: §§ 22	2.1-16, 22.1-298.1	, 22.1-299, 22.1-		

ITEM 133		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	299.2, 22.1-302, 22.1-303, 22.1-305.2, 22.1-316 to 22.1-3 Federal Code.	318, Code of Virgi	nia; P.L. 107-110,		
3 4	Teacher Education and Assistance: §§ 22.1-290; 22.1-2 305.2, 22.1-305.1, Code of Virginia; P. L. 108-446 and				
5 6 7 8 9	A. Proceeds from the fee schedule for the issuance of tea defray all, or any part of, the expenses incurred by the D accounting for teaching certificates. The fee schedule sh of issuing certificates. Any portion of the general fund supplemented by such fees.	epartment of Education account	ation in issuing or nt the actual costs		
10 11	B. The Board of Education is authorized to approve che charged to school personnel pursuant to 8VAC20-22-4		sure fee amounts		
12 13 14 15 16	C. In furtherance of the General Assembly's interest in teaching work force, teacher turnover rates, and the mark metrics as the number of applicants per position, the Dep model exit questionnaire that Virginia school divisio teachers.	et for teachers, as o partment shall deve	evidenced by such elop and provide a		
17 18 19 20	D. Out of this appropriation, \$93,084 the first year and general fund is provided to support local school divison a State Directors of Teacher Education and Certificati research educator misconduct.	access to the Nation	nal Association of		
21 22	E. Out of this appropriation, \$552,500 the second year j automate the teacher licensure application and intake p		und is provided to		
23 134. 24	Administrative and Support Services (19900)			\$20,519,856	\$20,519,856 \$21,678,429
25	General Management and Direction (19901)	\$3,951,175	\$3,951,175		
26 27	Information Technology Services (19902)	\$10,128,307	\$10,128,307 \$10,393,773		
28 29	Accounting and Budgeting Services (19903)	\$4,337,930	\$4,337,930 \$5,222,037		
30 31	Policy, Planning, and Evaluation Services (19929)	\$2,102,444	\$3,222,037 \$2,102,444 \$2,111,444		
32 33	Fund Sources: General	\$17,294,254	\$17,294,254 \$18,452,827		
34	Special	\$2,349,281	\$2,349,281		
35	Federal Trust	\$876,321	\$876,321		
36 37 38 39	Authority: Article VIII, Sections 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, Constitutio 12, 29, 30, 31, and 32; Title 22.1, 22.1-8 through 20, 22.1 4, 5, 6.1, and 11; Title 60.2, Chapters 60.2-100, 60.2-10 Code of Virginia; P.L. 108-446, P.L. 107-110, Federal	1-21 through 24; Ti 06; Title 65.2, Cha	itle 51.1, Chapters		
40	A. Out of this appropriation, \$9,000 the first year and \$9,	000 the second yea	r from the general		

A. Out of this appropriation, \$9,000 the first year and \$9,000 the second year from the general fund is designated to support annual membership dues to the Southern Regional Education
Board. In addition, \$5,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year from the general fund is designated to pay registration and travel expenses of citizens appointed as Virginia commissioners for the Southern Regional Education Board.

45 B. Out of this appropriation \$70,000 the first year and \$70,000 the second year from the
46 general fund is provided for the fees and travel expenses associated with the Interstate
47 Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children, established pursuant to Chapter
48 187, of the 2009 Acts of Assembly.

49 C. The Department of Education is authorized to collect proceeds from the sale of educational
50 resources it has developed, such as technology applications, on-line course content,
51 assessments, and other educational content, to out-of-state individuals or entities and to in52 state, for-profit entities. The Department of Education is further authorized to deposit such
53 proceeds in a non-reverting special fund account established in its financial records for this

ITEM 134.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Approp First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1 2 3 4 5	purpose. Net proceeds from such sales shall be exper to further develop existing educational resources or for the benefit of the commonwealth's public school the provisions of this paragraph. The Secretary of licensing agreements executed by the Department of	to create new educ ls and which may a Administration sh	nent of Education cational resources lso be sold under all authorize any			
6 7 8 9 10	general fund shall be used to provide performan principals, division superintendents, and other aff	Out of this appropriation, \$34,625 the first year and \$34,625 the second year from the neral fund shall be used to provide performance evaluation training to teachers, ncipals, division superintendents, and other affected school division personnel in port of the transition from continuing employment contracts to annual employment ntracts for teachers and principals.				
11 12 13 14	from the general fund to cover ongoing operation	Included in this appropriation is \$624,713 the first year and \$624,713 the second year om the general fund to cover ongoing operational and maintenance costs of the rformance Budgeting System and the Cardinal System charged to Direct Aid for Public lucation.				
15 16 17 18 19	F. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from the general fund is provided for the Board of Education, in consultation with the Standards of Learning Innovation Committee, to continue redesigning the School Performance Report Card so that it is more effective in communicating to parents and the public regarding information about the status and achievements of the schools and school divisions.					
20 21 22 23 24	Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year is ovided from the general fund for the Department of Education to develop a growth scale r the existing Standards of Learning mathematics and reading assessments. This growth ale should facilitate data-driven school improvement efforts and support the state's countability and accreditation systems.					
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	H. Out of the amounts in this item, the Department of Education shall develop and administer biennially to individuals holding a license from the Department in each public elementary and secondary school in the Commonwealth a voluntary and anonymous school personnel survey to evaluate school-level teaching conditions and the impact such conditions have on teacher retention and student achievement. Such survey may include questions regarding school leadership, teacher leadership, teacher autonomy, demands on teachers' time, student conduct management, professional development, instructional practices and support, new teacher support, community engagement and support, and facilities and other resources. The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall report the results of any school personnel survey to the Chairmen of the House Committees on Appropriations and Education and to the Senate Committees on Finance and Education and Health annually before the first day of each General Assembly Regular Session. The appropriation in this item meets the requirements of the second enactment of Senate Bill 456, of the 2018 General Assembly Regular Session.					
39 40	I. Out of this appropriation, \$600,000 the second ye to support a new grants management system.	ar is provided from	the general fund			
41 42 43	Total for Department of Education, Central Office Operations			\$107,615,168 \$108,665,168	\$107,615,168 \$112,622,316	
44 45	General Fund Positions	144.00	144.00 150.00			
46 47 48	Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	185.50 329.50	185.50 329.50 335.50			
49 50 51 52	Fund Sources: General Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$61,297,187 \$61,947,187 \$5,159,353 \$270,419	\$61,297,187 \$65,904,335 \$5,159,353 \$270,419			

\$279,563 \$679,563

\$40,608,646

\$279,563 \$679,563

\$40,608,646

Trust and Agency.....

Federal Trust

53 54

]	ITEM 134.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) - Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Direct Aid to Publ	lic Education (197	7)		
2 3 4	135.	Financial Assistance for Educational, Cultural, Community, and Artistic Affairs (14300)			\$31,723,732 \$33,621,945	\$31,237,303 \$32,373,459
5 6 7		Financial Assistance for Supplemental Education (14304)	\$31,723,732 \$33,621,945	\$31,237,303 \$32,373,459		
8 9		Fund Sources: General	\$31,723,732 \$33,621,945	\$31,237,303 \$32,373,459		
10		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
11		Appropriation Detail of Educational, Cultural, Comm	unity, and Artisti	ic Affairs (14300)		
12 13		Supplemental Education Assistance Programs (14304)		FY 2019		FY 2020
14		Achievable Dream	5	\$500,000		\$500,000
15		Career and Technical Education Regional		\$720,000		\$720,000
16 17		Centers Career and Technical Education - Emil		\$660,000 \$250,000		\$660,000 \$250,000
18		and Grace Shihaden Innovation Center		\$250,000		\$250,000
19 20		Career and Technical Education Resource Center	S	\$298,021		\$298,021
21 22		Career Council at Northern Neck Career & Technical Center		\$60,300		\$60,300
23		Charter School Supplement	:	\$100,000		\$100,000
24		College Partnership Laboratory School	. .	\$50,000		\$50,000
25 26		Communities in Schools (CIS)		,244,400		\$1,244,400 \$400,000
26 27 28		Great Aspirations Scholarship Program (GRASP)		\$400,000		\$600,000
28 29		Grow Your Own Teacher Pilot Program High School Program Innovation		<i>\$0</i> \$500,000		\$200,000 \$500,000
29 30		Jobs for Virginia Graduates (JVG)		\$500,000 \$573,776		\$500,000 \$573,776
31 32		National Board Certification Program	\$5	5,291,787 5,250,000		\$5,497,358 \$5,393,514
33 34		Newport News Aviation Academy - STEM Program		\$100,000		\$100,000
35 36		Norfolk Botanical Garden's The Garden of Tomorrow Project	\$2	2,000,000		\$0
37 38		Petersburg Executive Leadership Recruitment Incentives		\$350,000		\$350,000
39 40		Positive Behavioral Interventions & Support (PBIS)	\$1	,598,000		\$1,598,000
41 42		Praxis and Virginia Communication and Literacy Assessment Assistance for		\$50,000		\$50,000
43 44		Provisionally Licensed Minority Teachers PreK-2 Active Learning Pilot Program		\$0		\$250,000
45		Project Discovery		\$962,500		\$962,500
46		Robots for Autism Pilot Program	· · · · · ·	\$0		\$250,000
47		Small School Division Assistance	:	\$145,896		\$145,896
48 49		Southside Virginia Regional Technology Consortium		\$108,905		\$108,905
50 51		Southwest Virginia Public Education Consortium	S	\$124,011		\$124,011
52 53		STEM Program / Research Study (VA Air & Space Center)	5	\$681,975		\$681,975

ITEM 135		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	STEM Competition Team Grants	\$20	00,000		\$200,000
2 3	Targeted Extended/Enriched School Year and Year-round School Grants	\$7,76	53,312		\$7,763,312
4	Teach for America	\$50	00,000		\$500,000
5	Teacher Improvement Funding Initiative	\$1	5,000		\$15,000
6 7	Teacher Recruitment & Retention Grant Programs	\$2,12	23,000		\$1,931,000
8	Teacher Residency Program	\$2,00	00,000		\$1,500,000
9	Van Gogh Outreach Program	\$7	71,849		\$71,849
10 11	Virginia Arts Festival World Class Education Program		\$0		\$400,000
12 13	Virginia Early Childhood Foundation (VECF)	\$2,75	50,000		\$2,750,000
14	Virginia Reading Corps	\$60	00,000		\$600,000
15 16	Virginia Student Training and Refurbishment (VA STAR) Program	\$30	00,000		\$300,000
17	Vision Screening Grants	\$39	91,000		\$391,000
18	Vocational Lab Pilot	\$17	75,000		\$175,000
19	Wolf Trap Model STEM Program	\$72	25,000		\$725,000
20 21	Total	\$31,72 \$33,62			\$31,237,303 \$32,373,459

A. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Education shall provide \$573,776 the first year and \$573,776 the second year from the general fund for the Jobs for Virginia Graduates initiative.

22

23

24

25

26

27

28 29

30 31 B. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Education shall provide \$124,011 the first year and \$124,011 the second year from the general fund for the Southwest Virginia Public Education Consortium at the University of Virginia's College at Wise. An additional \$71,849 the first year and \$71,849 the second year from the general fund is provided to the Consortium to continue the Van Gogh Outreach program with Lee and Wise County Public Schools and expand the program to the twelve school divisions in Southwest Virginia.

32 C. This appropriation includes \$108,905 the first year and \$108,905 the second year from
 33 the general fund for the Southside Virginia Regional Technology Consortium to expand
 34 the research and development phase of a technology linkage.

D. An additional state payment of \$145,896 the first year and \$145,896 the second year
from the general fund is provided as a Small School Division Assistance grant for the City
of Norton. To receive these funds, the local school board shall certify to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction that its division has entered into one or more
educational, administrative or support service cost-sharing arrangements with another
local school division.

41 E. Out of this appropriation, \$298,021 the first year and \$298,021 the second year from
42 the general fund shall be allocated for the Career and Technical Education Resource
43 Center to provide vocational curriculum and resource instructional materials free of charge
44 to all school divisions.

45 F. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Department of Education provide 46 bonuses from state funds to classroom teachers in Virginia's public schools who hold 47 certification from the National Board of Professional Teaching Standards. Such bonuses shall be \$5,000 the first year of the certificate and \$2,500 annually thereafter for the life of 48 49 the certificate. This appropriation includes an amount estimated at \$5,291,787 \$5,250,000 50 the first year and \$5,497,358 \$5,393,514 the second year from the general fund for the 51 purpose of paying these bonuses. By October 15 of each year, school divisions shall notify the Department of Education of the number of classroom teachers under contract for that 52 53 school year that hold such certification.

		Item Details(\$)		
ITEM	A 135. F	First Year Second Year		First
]	FY2019	FY2020	FY
1	G. This appropriation includes \$2,123,000 the first year and \$1,93	1,000 the se	econd year from	

G. This appropriation includes \$2,123,000 the first year and \$1,931,000 the second year from the general fund for grants, scholarships, and incentive payments to attract, recruit, and retain high-quality teachers and fill critical teacher shortage disciplines in Virginia's public schools.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36 37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

1. Out of this appropriation, \$708,000 the first year and \$708,000 the second year from the general fund is provided for teaching scholarship loans. These scholarships shall be for undergraduate students in college with a cumulative grade point average of at least 2.7, who are nominated by their college, and who meet the criteria and qualifications, pursuant to \$22.1-290.01, Code of Virginia, except as provided herein. Awards shall be made to students who are enrolled full-time or part-time in approved undergraduate or graduate teacher education programs for the top five critical teacher shortage disciplines, however minority students may be enrolled in any content area for teacher preparation. Scholarship recipients may fulfill the teaching obligation by accepting a teaching position, and teaching for at least two years in a school division where 50 percent or more of the students are eligible for free and reduced price lunch. Scholarship recipients who only complete one year of the teaching obligation shall be forgiven for one-half of the scholarship loan amount. Scholarship amounts are based on up to \$10,000 per year for full-time students, and shall be prorated for part-time students based on the number of credit hours. The Department of Education shall report annually on the critical shortage teaching areas in Virginia.

a. The Department of Education shall make payments on behalf of the scholarship recipients
 directly to the Virginia institution of higher education where the scholarship recipient is
 enrolled full-time or part-time in an approved undergraduate or graduate teacher education
 program.

b. The Department of Education is authorized to recover total funds awarded as scholarships,
or the appropriate portion thereof, in the event that scholarship recipients fail to honor the
stipulated teaching obligation.

c. Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from this program may be applied toward the
 other teacher preparation, recruitment, and retention programs under paragraph G.

2. Out of this appropriation, \$1,000,000 the first year and \$808,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to attract, recruit, and retain high-quality diverse individuals to teach science, technology, engineering, or mathematics (STEM) subjects in Virginia's middle and high schools experiencing difficulty in recruiting qualified teachers. A teacher employed fulltime in a Virginia school division who has been issued a five-year Virginia teaching license with an endorsement in Middle Education 6-8: Mathematic, Mathematics-Algebra-I, mathematics, Middle Education 6-8: Science, Biology, Chemistry, Earth and Space Science, physics, or technology education and assigned to a teaching position in a corresponding STEM subject area in a hard-to-staff school is eligible to receive a \$5,000 incentive award after the completion of the first, second, and third year of teaching at a hard-to-staff school with a satisfactory performance evaluation and a signed contract in the same school division for the following school year. The maximum incentive award for each eligible teacher is \$15,000. Eligibility for access to these incentives shall be determined through an application process whereby school divisions shall apply to the Department of Education. Priority for distribution of these incentives shall be to school divisions experiencing the most acute difficulties in recruiting qualified teachers, as determined using Department of Education criteria. School divisions that have been approved shall advertise the incentive for eligible vacancies and award such funds in accordance with this paragraph. For the purpose of the award of the additional \$1,000 to individuals who received funds under this program prior to July 1, 2018, the criteria provided in Chapter 836 of the 2017 Acts of Assembly shall continue to apply. Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from this program may be applied toward the other teacher preparation, recruitment, and retention programs under paragraph G.

50 3. Out of this appropriation, \$415,000 the first year and \$415,000 the second year from the
51 general fund is provided to help school divisions recruit and retain qualified middle-school
52 mathematics teachers. Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from this program may
53 be applied toward the other teacher preparation, recruitment, and retention programs under
54 paragraph G.

H. Out of this appropriation, \$400,000 the first year and \$400,000 \$600,000 the second year
 from the general fund shall be distributed to the Great Aspirations Scholarship Program
 (GRASP) to provide students and families in need access to financial aid, scholarships, and

	Item I	Item Details(\$)		Appropriation	
ITEM 135.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Se	
a <u>19</u> , 19, 19, 19, 19, 19, 19, 19, 19, 19, 19					

ons(\$) econd Year FY2020

counseling to maximize educational opportunities for students. 1

2 I. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Education shall provide \$1,244,400 the first 3 year and \$1,244,400 the second year from the general fund to Communities in Schools. 4 These funds will be used to continue existing Communities in Schools programming in 5 Petersburg and Richmond City, expand programming to all Petersburg schools, and 6 expand the Pathways to Parents as Partners program to two additional Richmond City 7 elementary schools. Further, Communities in Schools is directed to assist the Community 8 School organization with the developing opportunities to establish a Community School 9 program in interested school divisions.

10 J. This appropriation includes \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from 11 the general fund for the Superintendent of Public Education to award supplemental grants 12 to charter schools.

13 K. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Education shall provide \$962,500 the first 14 year and \$962,500 the second year from the general fund for Project Discovery. These 15 funds are towards the cost of the program in Abingdon, Accomack/Northampton, 16 Alexandria, Amherst, Appomattox, Arlington, Bedford, Bland, Campbell, Charlottesville, 17 Cumberland, Danville/Pittsylvania, Fairfax, Franklin/Patrick, 18 Fredericksburg/Spotsylvania, Goochland/Powhatan, Lynchburg, Newport News, Norfolk, 19 Richmond City, Roanoke City, Smyth, Surry/Sussex, Tazewell, Williamsburg/James City, 20 and Wythe and the salary of a fiscal officer for Project Discovery. The Department of 21 Education shall administer the Project Discovery funding distributions to each community 22 action agency. Distributions to each community action agency shall be based on 23 performance measures established by the Board of Directors of Project Discovery. The 24 contract with Project Discovery should specify the allocations to each local program and 25 require the submission of a financial and budget report and program evaluation 26 performance measures.

27 2. Each participating community action agency shall submit annual performance metrics 28 for services provided through the Project Discovery program that provide measurable 29 evaluations and outcomes of participating students. Such performance metrics shall 30 include evidenced-based data that effectively measure academic improvement outcomes. 31 In addition, the performance metrics shall also include evidenced-based data to evaluate 32 the specific effectiveness of the program for participating students on a longitudinal basis. 33 Further, the performance metrics shall include the coordination and collaboration efforts 34 the program staff regularly have with the school-based personnel, such as teachers and 35 guidance counselors, that support and maximize opportunities of participating students to 36 successfully graduate from high school and then to enroll and graduate from an institution 37 of higher learning. Project Discovery shall submit a comprehensive and cumulative 38 program performance metrics evaluation to the Department of Education and the 39 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than 40 October 1, 2016.

41 L. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Education shall provide \$300,000 the first 42 year and \$300,000 the second year from the general fund for the Virginia Student Training 43 and Refurbishment Program.

44 M. Out of this appropriation, \$1,598,000 the first year and \$1,598,000 the second year 45 from the general fund is provided to expand the number of schools implementing a system 46 of positive behavioral interventions and supports with the goal of improving school 47 climate and reducing disruptive behavior in the classroom. Such a system may be 48 implemented as part of a tiered system of supports that utilizes evidence-based, system-49 wide practices to provide a response to academic and behavioral needs. Any school 50 division which desires to apply for this competitive grant must submit a proposal to the 51 Department of Education by June 1 preceding the school-year in which the program is to 52 be implemented. The proposal must define student outcome objectives including, but not 53 limited to, reductions in disciplinary referrals and out-of-school suspension rates. In 54 making the competitive grant awards, the Department of Education shall give priority to 55 school divisions proposing to serve schools identified by the Department as having high 56 suspension rates. No funds awarded to a school division under this grant may be used to 57 supplant funding for schools already implementing the program.

	Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 135.	First Year	Second Year	Firs	
	FY2019	FY2020	FY	

N. Targeted Extended/Enriched School Year and Year-round School Grants Payments

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

1. Out of this appropriation, \$7,150,000 the first year and \$7,150,000 the second year from the general fund is provided for a targeted extended/enriched school year or year-round school incentive in order to improve student achievement. Annual start-up grants of up to \$300,000 per school may be awarded for a period of up to two years after the initial implementation year. The per school amount may be up to \$400,000 in the case of schools that have an Accredited with Conditions status and are rated at Level Three in two or more Academic Achievement for All Students school quality indicators, or schools that had an Accredited with Conditions status and were rated at Level Three in two or more Academic Achievement for All Students school quality indicators when the initial application was made. Schools that qualified for the per school grant up to \$400,000 under the previous Standards of Accreditation Denied Accreditation status remain eligible for funding for the initial three year period; after that period, such schools are subject to eligibility under the current Standards of Accreditation a Denied Accreditation status or had a Denied Accreditation status when the initial application was made. After the third consecutive year of successful participation, an eligible school's grant amount shall be based on a shared split of the grant between the state and participating school division's local composite index. Such continuing schools shall remain eligible to receive a grant based on the 2012 JLARC Review of Year Round Schools' researched base findings.

20 2. Except for school divisions with schools that are in an Accredited with Conditions status
21 and are rated at Level Three in two or more Academic Achievement for All Students school
22 quality indicators or in a Denied Accreditation status, any other school division applying for
23 such a grant shall be required to provide a twenty percent local match to the grant amount
24 received from either an extended/enriched school year or year-round school start-up or
25 planning grant.

3. In the case of any school division with schools that are in an Accredited with Conditions
status and are rated at Level Three in two or more Academic Achievement for All Students
school quality indicators or in a Denied Accreditation status that apply for funds, the school
division shall also consult with the Superintendent of Public Instruction or designee on all
recommendations regarding instructional programs or instructional personnel prior to
submission to the local board for approval.

32 4. Out of this appropriation, \$613,312 the first year and \$613,312 the second year from the 33 general fund is provided for planning grants of no more than \$50,000 each for local school 34 divisions pursuing the creation of new extended/enriched school year or year-round school 35 programs for divisions or individual schools in support of the findings from the 2012 JLARC 36 Review of Year Round Schools. School divisions must submit applications to the Department of Education by August 1 of each year. Priority shall be given to schools based on need, 37 38 relative to the state accreditation ratings or similar federal designations. Applications shall 39 include evidence of commitment to pursue implementation in the upcoming school year. If 40 balances exist, existing extended school year programs may be eligible to apply for remaining 41 funds.

42 5. A school division that has been awarded an extended/enriched school year or year-round
43 school start-up grant or planning grant for the development of an extended/enriched school
44 year or year-round school program may spend the awarded grant over two consecutive fiscal
45 years.

46 6. a) Any such school division receiving funding from a Targeted Extended/Enriched School
47 Year and Year-round School grant shall provide an annual progress report to the Department
48 of Education that evaluates end of year success of the extended/enriched school year or year49 round school model implemented as compared to the prior school year performance as
50 measured by an appropriate evaluation matrix no later than September 1 each year.

b) The Department of Education shall develop such evaluation matrix that would be
appropriate for a comprehensive evaluation for such models implemented. Further, the
Department of Education is directed to submit the annual progress reports from the
participating school divisions and an executive summary of the program's overall status and
levels of measured success to the Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senate Finance
Committees no later than November 1 each year.

ITEM 135	. 1	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	7. Any funds remaining in this paragraph following grant awar Department of Education as grants to school divisions to suppor instructional delivery or school governance models.	•	•		
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	O. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500 the general fund is provided through grants or contracts for the incentives associated with hiring teachers in challenged school for grants or contracts awarded and expenses associated with America program. School divisions or their partners may applications submitted to the Department of Education. Applic the Department of Education by September 1 each year. W unobligated balance may be used for the Teacher Residement	te cost of fee s. These fund h supporting ply for those vations must b Within the fi	s and financial ds may be used the Teach for funds through be submitted to scal year, any		
12 13 14 15 16 17	P. Out of this appropriation, \$725,000 the first year and \$725,0 general fund is provided for the Accomack, Albemarle, Arlin Henrico, Loudoun, Norfolk, Petersburg, Richmond City, S Schools to support expansion of a STEM model program for students. Each developed model will focus on enhancing chilt through the arts.	gton, Cheste Suffolk, and kindergarten	rfield, Fairfax, Wythe Public and preschool		
18 19 20 21	Q. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500 the general fund is provided for the Achievable Dream partn School Division. This funding is in lieu of a like amoun Assistance Program Tax Credits for An Achievable Dream M	ership with I t from the I	Newport News Neighborhood		
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30	R. Out of this appropriation, \$2,000,000 the first year and \$ from the general fund is provided for grants for teacher resid university teacher preparation programs and the Petersburg, N school divisions and any other university teacher preparation school divisions to help improve new teacher training and schools. The grants will support a site-specific residency mod planning, development and implementation, including possible attract qualified candidates and mentors. Applications r Department of Education by August 1 each year.	lency partner lorfolk, and l programs an retention fo lel program f e stipends in	ships between Richmond City d hard-to-staff r hard-to-staff or preparation, the program to		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41	Partner school divisions shall provide at least one-third of the shall provide data requested by the university partner in or effectiveness by the mutually agreed upon timelines. Each un annually, no later than June 30, to the Department of Educa measures, including student performance indicators, as wel requested by the Department of Education. The Department of directly to the university partners, relevant longitudinal dat Department of Education shall consolidate all submissio unversity partners and school divisions and submit such conso Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance November 1 each year.	order to eva iversity parti ation on avai all as addition of Education that may be ns from the olidated annu	luate program her shall report lable outcome nal data needs shall provide, be shared. The participating al report to the		

- 42 S. Out of this appropriation, \$60,300 the first year and \$60,300 the second year from the 43 general fund is provided to the Northern Neck Regional Technical Center to expand the 44 workforce readiness education and industry based skills and certification development 45 efforts supporting that region in the state. These funds support the Center's programs that 46 serve high school students from the surrounding counties of Essex, Lancaster, 47 Northumberland, Rappahannock, Westmoreland and Colonial Beach.
- 48 T. Out of this appropriation, \$2,750,000 the first year and \$2,750,000 the second year 49 from the general fund is provided to the Virginia Early Childhood Foundation.
- 50 1. Of this amount, \$250,000 the first year and \$250,000 the second year is provided for 51 general operations of the Foundation's grant program to strengthen the capacity of local 52 communities to promote school readiness for young children through innovative regional 53 partnerships.
- 54 2. Of this amount, \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year is provided to 55 operate a scholarship program to increase the skills of Virginia's early education

Item I	Item Details(\$)		
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

3. Of this amount, \$1,500,000 the first year and \$1,500,000 the second year is provided to
pilot an initiative to promote public-private delivery of pre-kindergarten services to high-risk
children and communities. In determining these grant awards, the Virginia Early Childhood
Foundation shall offer an award to a private-provider that has submitted application
applicable to a partnership with Richmond City for a mixed delivery pre-kindergarten
program, provided that the application is of high quality and is competitive with other
submitted applications received for such an award.

- 9 4. Notwithstanding any provisions of § 22.1-199.6 or § 22.1-299, and in order to achieve the 10 priorities of the Joint Subcommittee on Virginia Preschool Initiative for exploring the 11 feasibility of and barriers to mixed delivery preschool systems in Virginia, recipients of a 12 Mixed-Delivery Preschool grant shall be provided maximum flexibility within their respective 13 pilot initiative in order to fully implement the associated goals and objectives of the pilot. 14 Recipients of a Mixed-Delivery Preschool grant and divisions participating in such grant pilot 15 activities shall be exempted from all regulatory and statutory provisions related to teacher 16 licensure requirements and qualifications when paid by public funds within the confines of the 17 Mixed-Delivery Preschool pilot initiative.
- In the case of new pilot grants awarded beginning in the second year, in addition to the
 provisions of § 22.1-199.6 E., grants shall be awarded to recipients that offer high quality
 preschool experience to participating enrolled at-risk four-year-old children.
- 21 U. This appropriation includes \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the 22 general fund to support ten competitive grants, not to exceed \$50,000 each, for planning the 23 implementation of systemic High School Program Innovation by either individual school 24 divisions or consortia of school divisions or implementing a plan for High School Program 25 Innovation previously approved by the Department of Education. The local applicant(s) 26 selected to conduct this systemic approach to high school reform, in consultation with the 27 Department of Education, will develop and plan or implement innovative approaches to 28 engage and to motivate students through personalized learning and instruction leading to 29 demonstrated mastery of content, as well as skills development of career readiness. Essential 30 elements of high school innovation include: (1) student centered learning, with progress based 31 on student demonstrated proficiency; (2) 'real-world' connections that promote alignment with 32 community work-force needs and emphasize transition to college and/or career; and (3) 33 varying models for educator supports and staffing. Individual school divisions or consortia 34 will be invited to apply on a competitive basis by submitting a grant application that includes 35 descriptions of key elements of innovations, a detailed budget, expectations for outcomes and 36 student achievement benefits, evaluation methods, and plans for sustainability. The 37 Department of Education will make the final determination of which individual school 38 divisions or consortia of divisions will receive the year-long planning grant for High School 39 Innovation or a grant to implement a High School Program Innovation plan previously 40 approved by the Department of Education. Any school division or consortium of divisions 41 which desires to apply for this competitive grant must submit a proposal to the Department of 42 Education by June 1 preceding the school year in which the planning or implementation for 43 systemic high school innovation is to take place.
- V. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from the
 general fund is provided to support the Newport News Aviation Academy's four-year high
 school STEM program, which focuses on piloting, aircraft maintenance, engineering,
 computers, and electronics.
- W. Out of this appropriation, \$15,000 the first year and \$15,000 the second year is provided
 for grants to school divisions of up to \$5,000 each to explore alternative teacher compensation
 approaches that move away from tenure-based step increases toward compensation systems
 based on teacher performance and student progress. Priority will be given to school divisions
 that have not previously explored alternative compensation approaches and have schools not
 achieving full accreditation, or that have high numbers of at-risk students needing qualified
 teachers in hard-to-staff subjects.
- X. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 the first year and \$200,000 the second year from the general fund is provided for STEM Competition Team Grants. Notwithstanding § 22.1-362,
 Code of Virginia, Paragraph B, grants may not exceed \$5,000 each.

1 workforce.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020 Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Y. Out of this appropriation, \$681,975 the first year and \$681,975 the second year from the general fund is provided to support a multi-platform STEM education engagement program and research study, via the Virginia Air & Space Center.

ITEM 135.

1

2

3

4 Z. Out of this appropriation, \$350,000 the first year and \$350,000 the second year from 5 the general fund is provided for executive leadership incentives in the Petersburg City Public Schools to strengthen the impact of division and school level executive leadership 6 7 on student achievement in the school division. Such incentives may include, but not be 8 limited to, supplements to locally funded salaries, deferred salary compensation, bonuses, 9 housing and commuting supplements, and professional development supplements. The 10 Department of Education shall provide such executive management incentive payments 11 directly to the Petersburg City Public Schools accounts pursuant to a Memorandum of 12 Understanding entered into between the Board of Education and the Petersburg City 13 School Board. Such Agreement shall be approved by both parties by July 1, 2016, shall 14 cover no less than both years of the biennium, and may be amended with the consent of 15 both parties. Such Agreement shall include operational and student achievement metrics 16 and include provisions for the achievement of such metrics as a condition of payment of 17 the incentive funds by the Department of Education. The Department of Education shall 18 provide updates on implementation of the Agreement to the Chairmen of the Senate 19 Finance and House Appropriations Committees.

AA. Out of this amount, \$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year from the
 general fund shall be reserved for school divisions to partner with the Virginia Reading
 Corps program. The implementation partner shall determine and select partner school
 divisions. The Virginia Reading Corps shall report annually to the school divisions and
 Department of Education on the outcomes of this program.

BB. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the
 general fund is provided for Chesterfield County Public Schools to partner and plan with
 Virginia State University for the continued development of a College Partnership
 Laboratory School in support of Ettrick Elementary School.

29 CC. Out of this appropriation, \$175,000 the first year and \$175,000 the second year from
30 the general fund is provided to establish a Career and Technical Education Vocational
31 Laboratory pilot that will be located within the Virginia Aviation Academy located in the
32 Newport News school division. This vocational-based lab will be developed and focused
33 on advanced, augmented and virtual reality related education.

34DD. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the35general fund is provided for praxis assistance and Virginia Communication and Literacy36Assessment assistance for provisionally licensed minority teachers seeking full licensure37in Virginia. Grants of up to \$10,000 shall be awarded to school divisions, teacher38preparation programs, or nonprofit organizations in the Northern Virginia, Central39Virginia, and Hampton Roads regions to subsidize test fees and the cost of tutoring for40provisionally licensed minority teachers seeking full licensure in Virginia.

41 EE. Out of this appropriation, \$391,000 the first year and \$391,000 the second year from 42 the general fund is provided to school divisions to pay for a portion of the vision screening 43 of students in kindergarten, grade two or three and grades seven and ten, pursuant to 44 Chapter 312, 2017 Session Acts of Assembly. Eligible school divisions may receive the 45 state's share of \$7.00 for each student reported in average daily membership and enrolled 46 in kindergarten, grades three, seven and ten and who has received such vision screening 47 test. The Department of Education shall administrator and distribute reimbursements to 48 school divisions and the funding shall be prorated if needed, such that the appropriation is 49 not exceeded. Prioritization shall be given the schools that would most benefit from state 50 assistance in order to provide such vision screening service to students that are eligible for 51 free lunch.

FF. Out of this appropriation, \$720,000 \$660,000 the first year and \$720,000 \$660,000 the
 second year from the general fund is provided for annual grants of \$60,000 to each of the
 ten nine regional career and technical centers, Winchester Public Schools' Innovation
 Center and Norfolk Public Schools' Norfolk Technical Center, to expand workforce
 readiness education and industry based skills.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020 Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

GG. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year and \$250,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to Winchester Public Schools to match private support provided for the renovation of the Emil and Grace Shihadeh Innovation Center.

ITEM 135.

1

2

3

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

HH. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to
establish a Grow Your Own Teacher pilot program to provide scholarships to high school
graduates who are committed to attend a baccalaureate institution of higher education in the
Commonwealth and to subsequently teach in high-need public schools in their school division
of residence.

9 1. The Department of Education shall establish a process by which local school boards may 10 apply to the Department for grants to establish Grow Your Own Teacher pilot programs to 11 provide a scholarship not to exceed \$7,500 per academic year for attendance at a 12 baccalaureate institution of higher education in the Commonwealth to any individual who: 1) 13 graduated from a public high school in the local school division; 2) was eligible for free or 14 reduced price lunch throughout the individual's attendance at a public high school in the 15 local school division; and 3) commits to teach, within three years of graduating from the 16 baccalaureate institution of higher education in the Commonwealth and for a period of at 17 least four years, in the school division at a public high school at which at least 50 percent of 18 students qualify for free or reduced price lunch at the time of application.

2. The Department of Education shall make payments on behalf of the scholarship recipients
 directly to the Virginia institution of higher education where the scholarship recipient is
 enrolled full-time in an approved undergraduate teacher education program.

3. The Department of Education is authorized to recover total funds awarded as scholarships,
 or the appropriate portion thereof, in the event that any program scholarship recipient fails
 or refuses to honor the stipulated teaching obligation.

II. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to encourage active learning for students in pre-kindergarten through second grade. Any school division that desires to apply for this competitive grant must submit a proposal to the Department of Education outlining the intended use of funds and a projected number of students who will be served. The Department of Education shall establish criteria by which to award these funds to school divisions. Local school divisions may use the funds to purchase a platform that features on-demand adventures that transform math and language Standards of Learning content into movement-rich activities for students in pre-kindergarten through second grade, or for staff to provide active learning curriculum and to conduct activities aligned to the Standards of Learning. All activities must correlate to Virginia's Standards of Learning that teachers already use to develop and manage their lesson planning.

JJ. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to 36 37 encourage the use of robots to aid in the education of students on the autism spectrum. Any 38 school division that desires to apply for this competitive grant must submit a proposal to the 39 Department of Education outlining the intended use of funds and a projected number of 40 students who will be served. The Department of Education shall establish criteria by which to 41 award these funds to school divisions. Local school divisions may use the funds to purchase 42 robotic devices with proven effectiveness for aiding in the academic and social-emotional 43 learning of students on the autism spectrum.

KK. Out of this appropriation, \$400,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to
 support the Virginia Arts Festival World Class Education Program. Funds shall be used to
 develop partnerships with local school divisions to ensure widespread student participation,
 to support financial assistance for students participating in the program, to support
 residencies and master classes that include extended and concentrated instruction for student
 participants, and to provide arts education opportunities that support the Virginia Standards
 of Learning.

LL. Out of this appropriation, \$2,000,000 the first year from the general fund is provided to
 support the Norfolk Botanical Garden's The Garden of Tomorrow project. This one-time
 appropriation is provided to enhance environmental education in the Commonwealth.

\$6,983,675,218 \$6,988,217,730

\$7,158,199,386 \$7,295,037,230

		Ite	em Details(\$)	Appropri	iations(\$)
ITEM 136	6. First			First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	9 FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	Standards of Quality for Public Education (SOQ)				
2 3	(17801)	\$6,174,103,650 \$6,152,892,137	\$6,203,629,560 \$6,219,139,890		
4	Financial Incentive Programs for Public Education	$\phi 0, 152, 092, 157$	φ0,219,139,090		
5	(17802)	\$158,095,394	\$297,092,585		
6		\$144,590,580	\$388,633,076		
7 8	Financial Assistance for Categorical Programs (17803)	\$58,942,988	\$59,084,055		
9	(1,000)	\$58,336,366	\$58,433,763		
10	Distribution of Lottery Funds (17805)	\$592,533,186	\$598,393,186		
11		\$632,398,647	\$628,830,501		
12	Fund Sources: General	\$6,241,397,462	\$6,420,061,630		
13 14	Special	\$6,286,474,513 \$895,000	\$6,526,862,159 \$895,000		
14	Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$2,100,000	\$2,100,000		
15	Trust and Agency	\$739,282,756	\$735,142,756		
17	Trust and Tigeney	\$698,748,217	\$765,180,071		
18	Authority: Standards of Quality for Public Education	(SOO) (17801) · A	article VIII Section		
18 19	2, Constitution of Virginia; Chapter 667, Acts of A				
20	22.1-198, 22.1-199.1, 22.1-199.2, 22.1-213 through	•	•		
21	22.1-253.13:1 through 22.1-253.13:8, 22.1-254.01,				
22 23	1, 5, 6.2, 7, and 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 91-230, a		3-380, as amended;		
23	P.L. 94-142, as amended; P.L. 98-524, as amended,	rederal Code.			
24	Financial Incentive Programs for Public Education				
25	through 22.1-318, Code of Virginia; P.L. 79-396, a				
26 27	P.L. 89-642, as amended; P.L. 108-265, as amended Federal Code.	ed; Title II P.L. 99	9-159, as amended,		
21	rederar code.				
28	Financial Assistance for Categorical Programs (1780				
29 30	1677 between Virginia and the Indians; §§ 22.1-3 212.2:2, 22.1-213 through 22.1-221, 22.1-223 th				
30 31	Virginia; P.L. 89-10, as amended; P.L. 91-230, as				
32	P.L. 94-142, as amended; P.L. 94-588; P.L. 95				
33	amended; P.L. 98-524, as amended; P.L. 99-570; P.		ended; P.L. 102-73,		
34	as amended; P.L. 105-220, as amended, Federal Coo	de.			
35	Distribution of Lottery Funds (17805): §§ 58.1-4022	and 58.1-4022.1,	Code of Virginia		
36	Appropriation Detail of Education				
37	Assistance Programs (17800)				
20			EX 2010		FN7 2020
38 20	Standards of Quality (17801)	¢2.24	FY 2019	¢2	FY 2020
39 40	Basic Aid		3,800,247 0,204,988		336,206,414 313,887,419
40 41	Sales Tax		0,800,000		441,800,000
41 42	Sulos Tur		1,600,000		486,302,403
43	Textbooks		0,307,670		\$70,478,652
44			0,008,927		\$70,023,715
45	Vocational Education	\$5	8,415,421	:	\$58,249,318
46		\$5	8,212,575		\$57,941,218
47	Gifted Education		5,432,596		\$35,542,296
48			5,280,085		\$35,314,827
49 50	Special Education		7,724,858		398,522,385
50			2,781,461		396,198,737
51 52	Prevention, Intervention, and Remediation		3,078,853 2,645,717		112,984,901 112,320,130
52 53			2,043,717 (2,210,121		
53 54	English as a Second Language		9,957,366		\$65,479,578 \$62,519,408
5 4 55	VRS Retirement (includes RHCC)		2,990,973		443,958,755
55	The Remember (includes RICC)	Փኅኅ	2,70,775	D,	

ITEM 136		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020	Appropriations(\$) r First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020
1		\$441,069,956	\$444,539,502
2 3	Social Security	\$200,773,283 \$199,902,693	\$201,206,270 \$201,465,968
4 5	Group Life	\$13,629,269 \$13,570,212	\$13,658,060 \$13,649,696
6 7	Remedial Summer School	\$13,57,212 \$24,940,359 \$24,658,157	\$12,677,676 \$ 25,542,931 \$24,976,867
8 9	Total	\$6,152,892,137	\$ 6,219,139,890 \$6,219,139,890
10	Incentive Programs (17802)		
11 12	Compensation Supplement	\$0	\$130,327,110 \$2 <i>17,271,416</i>
13 14	Governor's Schools	\$17,797,126 \$17,587,224	\$18,609,369 \$18,626,227
15 16	At-Risk Add-On (split funded)	\$100,250,775 \$25,382,033	\$107,079,544 <i>\$36,728,753</i>
17	Clinical Faculty	\$318,750	\$318,750
18	Career Switcher Mentoring Grants	\$279,983	\$279,983
19 20	Special Education - Endorsement Program	\$437,186	\$437,186
21	Special Education – Vocational Education	\$200,089	\$200,089
22 23	Virginia Workplace Readiness Skills Assessment	\$308,655	\$308,655
24 25	Math/Reading Instructional Specialists Initiative	\$1,834,538	\$1,834,538
26	Early Reading Specialists Initiative	\$1,476,790	\$1,476,790
27	Breakfast After the Bell Incentive	\$1,074,000	\$1,074,000
28 29	Special Education - Regional Tuition (split funded)	\$28,004,796 \$89,503,626	\$35,146,571 \$100,397,909
30	Small School Division Enrollment Loss	\$6,112,706	\$0
31 32	Virginia Preschool Initiative - Develop Assessment Plan	\$75,000	\$0
33	Virginia Preschool Initiative Plus	\$0	\$9,678,780
34 35	Total	\$158,095,394 \$144,590,580	\$297,092,585 \$388,633,076
36	Categorical Programs (17803)		
37	Adult Education	\$1,051,800	\$1,051,800
38	Adult Literacy	\$2,480,000	\$2,480,000
39 40	Virtual Virginia	\$5,425,808 \$5,025,808	\$5,425,808 \$5,025,808
41 42	American Indian Treaty Commitment	\$35,515 \$ <i>37,219</i>	\$36,682 \$38,954
43	School Lunch Program	\$5,801,932	\$5,801,932
44 45	Special Education - Homebound	\$5,052,524 \$4,844,198	\$5,077,061 \$4,867,702
46 47	Special Education - Jails	\$3,507,385	\$3,622,748 \$3,507,385
48 49	Special Education - State Operated Programs	\$35,588,024	\$35,588,024 \$35,660,182
50 51	Total	\$58,942,988 \$58,336,366	\$59,084,055 \$58,433,763

ITEM 13	36.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Lottery Funded Programs (17805)				
2	At-Risk Add-On (split funded)	\$95,87	77.881		\$84,767,625
3	Foster Care	\$11,01			\$11,979,339
4		. ,	15,192		\$10,387,961
5	Virginia Preschool Initiative - Per Pupil	\$72,28			\$72,297,411
6	Amount				\$72,351,058
7	Virginia Preschool Initiative -	\$2,30	04,088		\$2,306,100
8	Provisional Teacher Licensure				\$306,100
9 10	Virginia Preschool Initiative - Local Curriculum Grants		\$0		\$900,000
11 12	Virginia Preschool Initiative - Local Classroom Observation Grants		\$0		\$799,680
13 14	Virginia Preschool Initiative = Teacher Professional Development	\$3()0,000		\$700,000
15 16	Virginia Preschool Initiative = Classroom Observations	\$3 5	50,000		\$350,000
17 18	Virginia Preschool Initiative = Develop Assessment Plan	\$ 7	75,000		\$0
19	Early Reading Intervention	\$22,5 9			\$22,651,560
20		\$23,57			\$23,571,284
21	Mentor Teacher		00,000		\$1,000,000
22 23	K-3 Primary Class Size Reduction	\$130,59 \$125,17	75,585		\$130,388,333 \$128,005,970
24 25	School Breakfast Program		31,771 37,789		\$7,997,053 \$7,439,888
26	SOL Algebra Readiness	\$13,0 0			\$13,020,964
27			99,389		\$13,061,697
28 29	Supplemental Lottery Per Pupil Allocation	\$234,67 \$253,19			\$239,357,235 \$255,531,948
29 30	Regional Alternative Education		79,013		\$9,211,142
30 31	Regional Alternative Education		67,652		\$9,451,837
32	Individualized Student Alternative		47,581		\$2,247,581
33	Education Program (ISAEP)		,		+_, , = = -
34 35	Special Education = Regional Tuition (split-funded)	\$67,63	33,790		\$65,930,420
36 37	Career and Technical Education – Categorical	\$12,40	00,829		\$12,400,829
38	Project Graduation	\$1,38	37,240		\$1,387,240
39	Race to GED (NCLB/EFAL)	\$2,41	10,988		\$2,410,988
40 41	Path to Industry Certification (NCLB/EFAL)	\$1,83	31,464		\$1,831,464
42	Supplemental Basic Aid	\$91	16,789		\$925,527
43		\$93	37,376		\$977,351
44	Total	\$592,53			598,393,186
45		\$632,39	98,647	\$	\$628,830,501
46	Technology – VPSA	\$58,83	35,200		\$60,331,600
47			45,300		\$58,540,400
48	Security Equipment - VPSA		00,000		\$6,000,000
49	Payments out of the above amounts shall be subject	to the following condition	ions:		
50	A. Definitions				

51 1. "March 31 Average Daily Membership," or "March 31 ADM" - The responsible school

	ITEM 136.		A ar First
1 2 3 4 5 6		FY2019 FY2020 division's average daily membership for grades K-12 including (1) handicapped students ag 5-21 and (2) students for whom English is a second language who entered school for the fin time after reaching their twelfth birthday, and who have not reached twenty-two years of ag on or before August 1 of the school year, for the first seven (7) months (or equivalent perio of the school year through March 31 in which state funds are distributed from th appropriation. Preschool and postgraduate students shall not be included in March 31 AD	rst ge d) is
7 8		a. School divisions shall take a count of September 30 fall membership and report th information to the Department of Education no later than October 15 of each year.	is
9 10 11 12 13		b. Except as otherwise provided herein, by statute, or by precedent, all appropriations to the Department of Education shall be calculated using March 31 ADM unadjusted for half-darkindergarten programs, estimated at $\frac{1,252,433.60}{1,245,570.50}$ the first year at $\frac{1,257,772.90}{1,248,165.55}$ the second year. March 31 ADM for half-day kindergarten shall be adjusted at 85 percent.	ay 1d
14 15 16 17 18 19 20		c. Students who are either (i) enrolled in a nonpublic school or (ii) receiving home instruction pursuant to § 22.1-254.1 and who are enrolled in a public school on less than a full-time base in any mathematics, science, English, history, social science, vocational education, heal education or physical education, fine arts or foreign language course, or receiving speci- education services required by a student's individualized education plan, shall be counted the funded fall membership and March 31 ADM of the responsible school division. Eac course shall be counted as 0.25, up to a cap of 0.5 of a student.	sis th al in
21 22 23 24		d. Students enrolled in an Individualized Student Alternative Education Program (ISAE) pursuant to § 22.1-254 E shall be counted in the March 31 Average Daily Membership of the responsible school division. School divisions shall report these students separately in the March 31 reports of Average Daily Membership.	he
25 26		2. "Standards of Quality" - Operations standards for grades kindergarten through 12 prescribed by the Board of Education subject to revision by the General Assembly.	as
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36		3.a. "Basic Operation Cost" - The cost per pupil, including provision for the number instructional personnel required by the Standards of Quality for each school division with minimum ratio of 51 professional personnel for each 1,000 pupils or proportionate numb thereof, in March 31 ADM for the same fiscal year for which the costs are computed, an including provision for driver, gifted, occupational-vocational, and special education, libra materials and other teaching materials, teacher sick leave, general administration, divisio superintendents' salaries, free textbooks (including those for free and reduced price lunc pupils), school nurses, operation and maintenance of school plant, transportation of pupi instructional television, professional and staff improvement, remedial work, fixed charges an other costs in programs not funded by other state and/or federal aid.	a er nd ry on ch ls,
37 38 39 40 41		b. The state and local shares of funding resulting from the support cost calculation for scho nurses shall be specifically identified as such and reported to school divisions annuall School divisions may spend these funds for licensed school nurse positions employed by the school division or for licensed nurses contracted by the local school division to provide school health services.	y. ne
42 43 44 45 46 47 48		4.a. "Composite Index of Local Ability-to-Pay" - An index figure computed for each locality The composite index is the sum of 2/3 of the index of wealth per pupil in unadjusted Marco 31 ADM reported for the first seven (7) months of the 2015-2016 school year and 1/3 of the index of wealth per capita (population estimates for 2015 as determined by the Weldo Cooper Center for Public Service of the University of Virginia) multiplied by the loc nominal share of the costs of the Standards of Quality of 0.45 in each year. The indices wealth ere determined by combining the following constituent index alaments with the	ch he on al of

wealth are determined by combining the following constituent index elements with the

indicated weighting: (1) true values of real estate and public service corporations as reported

by the State Department of Taxation for the calendar year 2015 - 50 percent; (2) adjusted

gross income for the calendar year 2015 as reported by the State Department of Taxation - 40

percent; (3) the sales for the calendar year 2015 which are subject to the state general sales

and use tax, as reported by the State Department of Taxation - 10 percent. Each constituent

index element for a locality is its sum per March 31 ADM, or per capita, expressed as a

percentage of the state average per March 31 ADM, or per capita, for the same element. A

locality whose composite index exceeds 0.8000 shall be considered as having an index of

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

146

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$) t Year Second Year 2019 FY2020

ITEM 13 (st Year 72019	Second Year FY2020	First Y FY2(
1 2 3 4 5	0.8000 for purposes of distributing all payments based on the c ability-to-pay. Each constituent index element for a locality composite index of local ability-to-pay for the current bienn available data for the specified official base year provided to the I by the responsible source agencies no later than November 15, 20	used to d ium shall Department	etermine the be the latest	
6 7 8 9 10 11 12	b. For any locality whose total calendar year 2015 Virginia Ad comprised of at least 3 percent or more by nonresidents of Vir income shall be excluded in computing the composite index Department of Education shall compute the composite index for adjusted gross income data which exclude nonresident income, composite index of any other localities. The Department of Taxa Department of Education such data as are necessary to implement	ginia, such of ability such local but shall ation shall	h nonresident r-to-pay. The ities by using not adjust the furnish to the	
13 14	c.1) Notwithstanding the funding provisions in § 22.1-25 D, Cod state funding for future consolidations shall be as set forth in future consolidations shall be as set forth in future consolidations.			
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	2) In the case of the consolidation of Clifton Forge and All divisions, the fifteen year period for the application of a new combeginning with the fiscal year that starts on July 1, 2004. The comby the Board of Education shall equal the lowest composite indep to July 1, 2004, of any individual localities involved in such consshall remain in effect for a period of fifteen years, unless a localculated for the combined division through the process for conforth above.	posite indeposite inde	ex shall apply ex established in effect prior and this index osite index is	
23 24 25 26 27 28 29	3) If the composite index of a consolidated school division is redu the fifteen year period to a level that would entitle the school div rate for a Literary Fund loan than it received when the loan was Board of Education shall reduce the interest rate of such loan f period of the loan. Such reduction shall be based on the interest the time of such adjustment. This rate shall remain in effect for and shall apply only to those years remaining to be paid.	vision to a originally or the rem rate that w	lower interest released, the nainder of the yould apply at	
30 31 32 33 34 35 36	4) In the case of the consolidation of Bedford County and Bedfor the fifteen year period for the application of a new composite sha the fiscal year that starts on July 1, 2013. The composite index est Education shall equal the lowest composite index that was in effe of any individual localities involved in such consolidation, and the effect for a period of fifteen years, unless a lower composite index combined division through the process for computing an index	all apply be ablished by ect prior to his index sl dex is calc	eginning with y the Board of y July 1, 2013, hall remain in ulated for the	
37 38 39 40 41	d. When it is determined that a substantial error exists in a consti Department of Education will make adjustments in funding for only in the division where the error occurred. The composite ind shall not be changed as a result of the adjustment. No adjustment of be made as a result of updating of data used in a constituent index	the current lex of any during the	t school year other locality	
42 43 44 45 46	e. In the event that any school division consolidates two or n division shall continue to receive Standards of Quality fundi required local expenditure for a period of five years as if the consolidated. Small schools are defined as any elementary, mid- enrollment below 200, 300 and 400 students, respectively.	ng and provide schools	ovide for the had not been	
47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54	5. "Required Local Expenditure for the Standards of Quality" - T on the composite index of local ability-to-pay of the cost required Quality minus its estimated revenues from the state sales and use education and those sales tax revenues transferred to the gener Education Standards of Quality/Local Real Estate Property appropriated in this Item, both of which are returned on the be estimate of school age population provided by the Weldon Co Service, as specified in this Item, collected by the Departm	d by all the e tax dedic al fund fro Tax Reli asis of the poper Cent	e Standards of ated to public om the Public ef Fund and latest yearly er for Public	

uality/Local Real Estate Property appropriated in this Item, both of which are returned on the basis of the latest yearly estimate of school age population provided by the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service, as specified in this Item, collected by the Department of Education and distributed to school divisions in the fiscal year in which the school year begins.

54

55

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$) Year Second Year 2019 FY2020

	Iten	item Details(\$)		
ITEM 136.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020		
	. "Required Local Match" - The locality's required share of program			

6. "Required Local Match" - The locality's required share of program cost based on the composite index of local ability-to-pay for all Lottery and Incentive programs, where required, in which the school division has elected to participate in a fiscal year.

1 2

3

4 7. "Planning District Eight" - The nine localities which comprise Planning District Eight are
5 Arlington County, Fairfax County, Loudoun County, Prince William County, Alexandria
6 City, Fairfax City, Falls Church City, Manassas City, and Manassas Park City.

8. "State Share of the Standards of Quality" - The state share of the Standards of Quality
(SOQ) shall be equal to the total funded SOQ cost for a school division less the school division's estimated revenues from the state sales and use tax dedicated to public education
based on the latest yearly estimate of school age population provided by the Weldon Cooper
Center for Public Service, adjusted for the state's share of the composite index of local ability
to pay.

- 9. Entitlements under this Item that use school-level or division-level Free Lunch eligibility
 percentages to determine the entitlement amounts are based on the most recent data available
 as of the biennial rebenchmarking calculations made for the current biennium. For schools
 that participate in the Community Eligibility Provision program, such entitlements are based
 on the most recent Free Lunch eligibility data available prior to that school's enrollment in the
 Community Eligibility Provision program.
- 19 10. In the event that the general fund appropriations in this Item are not sufficient to meet the 20 entitlements payable to school divisions pursuant to the provisions of this Item, the 21 Department of Education is authorized to transfer any available general fund funds between 22 these Items to address such insufficiencies. If the total general fund appropriations after such 23 transfers remain insufficient to meet the entitlements of any program funded with general 24 fund dollars, the Department of Education is authorized to prorate such shortfall 25 proportionately across all of the school divisions participating in any program where such 26 shortfall occurred. In addition, the Department of Education is authorized each year to 27 temporarily suspend textbook payments made to school divisions from Lottery funds to 28 ensure that any shortfall in Lottery revenue can be accounted for in the remaining textbook 29 payments to be made for the year.
- 30 11. The Department of Education is directed to apply a cap on inflation rates in the same
 31 manner prescribed in § 51.1-166.B, Code of Virginia, when updating funding to school
 32 divisions during the biennial rebenchmarking process.
- 12. Notwithstanding any other provision in statute or in this Item, the Department of
 Education is directed to combine the end-of-year Average Daily Membership (ADM) for
 those school divisions who have partnered together as a fiscal agent division and a contractual
 division for the purposes of calculating prevailing costs included in the Standards of Quality
 (SOQ).
- 38 13. Notwithstanding any other provision in statute or in this Item, the Department of
 39 Education is directed to include zeroes in the linear weighted average calculation of support
 40 non-personal costs for the purpose of calculating prevailing costs included in the Standards of
 41 Quality (SOQ).
- 42 14. Notwithstanding any other provision in statute or in this Item, the Department of
 43 Education is directed to eliminate the corresponding and appropriate object code(s) related to
 44 reported travel expenditures included the linear weighted average non-personal cost
 45 calculations for the purpose of calculating prevailing costs included in the Standards of
 46 Quality (SOQ).
- 47 15. Notwithstanding any other provision in statute or in this Item, the Department of
 48 Education is directed to eliminate the corresponding and appropriate object code(s) related to
 49 reported leases and rental and facility expenditures included the linear weighted average non50 personal cost calculations for the purpose of calculating prevailing costs included in the
 51 Standards of Quality (SOQ).
- 52 16. Notwithstanding any other provision in statute or in this Item, the Department of
 53 Education is directed to fund transportation costs using a 15 year replacement schedule, which
 54 is the national standard guideline, for school bus replacement schedule for the purpose of

Itom Dotoila(\$)

	Item D	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 136.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020

calculating funded transportation costs included in the Standards of Quality (SOQ).

2 17. To provide temporary flexibility, notwithstanding any other provision in statute or in 3 this Item, school divisions may elect to increase the teacher to pupil staffing ratios in 4 kindergarten through grade 7 and English classes for grades 6 through twelve by one 5 additional student; the teacher to pupil staffing ratio requirements for Elementary 6 Resource teachers, Prevention, Intervention and Remediation, English as a Second 7 Language, Gifted and Talented, Career and Technical funded programs (other than on 8 Career and Technical courses where school divisions will have to maintain a maximum 9 class size based on federal Occupational Safety & Health Administration safety 10 requirements) are waived; and the instructional and support technology positions, 11 librarians and guidance counselors staffing ratios for new hires are waived.

- 12 18. To provide additional flexibility, notwithstanding the provisions of § 22.1-79.1, Code
 13 of Virginia, any school division that was granted a waiver regarding the opening date of
 14 the school year for the 2011-2012 school year under the good cause requirements shall
 15 continue to be granted a waiver for the 2018-2019 school year and the 2019-2020 school
 16 year.
- 17 B. General Conditions

1

18 1. The Standards of Quality cost in this Item related to fringe benefits shall be limited for
 instructional staff members to the employer's cost for a number not exceeding the number
 of instructional positions required by the Standards of Quality for each school division and
 for their salaries at the statewide prevailing salary levels as printed below.

22	Instructional Position	First Year Salary	Second Year Salary
23	Elementary Teachers	\$48,298	\$48,298
24	Elementary Assistant Principals	\$68,545	\$68,545
25	Elementary Principals	\$85,115	\$85,115
26	Secondary Teachers	\$51,167	\$51,167
27	Secondary Assistant Principals	\$74,535	\$74,535
28	Secondary Principals	\$93,695	\$93,695
29	Instructional Aides	\$17,738	\$17,738

- a.1) Payment by the state to a local school division shall be based on the state share of
 fringe benefit costs of 55 percent of the employer's cost distributed on the basis of the
 composite index.
- 33 2) A locality whose composite index exceeds 0.8000 shall be considered as having an34 index of 0.8000 for purposes of distributing fringe benefit funds under this provision.
- 35 3) The state payment to each school division for retirement, social security, and group life
 36 insurance costs for non-instructional personnel is included in and distributed through
 37 Basic Aid.
- b. Payments to school divisions from this Item shall be calculated using March 31
 Average Daily Membership adjusted for half-day kindergarten programs.
- 40 c. Payments for health insurance fringe benefits are included in and distributed through41 Basic Aid.
- 42 2. Each locality shall offer a school program for all its eligible pupils which is acceptable
 43 to the Department of Education as conforming to the Standards of Quality program
 44 requirements.
- 45 3. In the event the statewide number of pupils in March 31 ADM results in a state share of
 46 cost exceeding the general fund appropriation in this Item, the locality's state share of
 47 Basic Aid shall be reduced proportionately so that this general fund appropriation will not
 48 be exceeded. In addition, the required local share of Basic Aid shall also be reduced
 49 proportionately to the reduction in the state's share.
- **50** 4. The Department of Education shall make equitable adjustments in the computation of

		Item L	Details(\$)
ITE	M 136. First	t Year	Second Year
	FY	2019	FY2020
1	indices of wealth and in other state-funded accounts for localities	affected	by annexation

indices of wealth and in other state-funded accounts for localities affected by annexation, unless a court of competent jurisdiction makes such adjustments. However, only the indices of wealth and other state-funded accounts of localities party to the annexation will be adjusted.

2

3

5. In the event that the actual revenues from the state sales and use tax dedicated to public
education and those sales tax revenues transferred to the general fund from the Public
Education Standards of Quality/Local Real Estate Property Tax Relief Fund and appropriated
in this Item (both of which are returned on the basis of the latest yearly estimate of school age
population provided by the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service) for sales in the fiscal
year in which the school year begins are different from the number estimated as the basis for
this appropriation, the estimated state sales and use tax revenues shall not be adjusted.

6. This appropriation shall be apportioned to the public schools with guidelines established bythe Department of Education consistent with legislative intent as expressed in this act.

13 7.a. Appropriations of state funds in this Item include the number of positions required by the 14 Standards of Quality. This Item includes a minimum of 51 professional instructional positions 15 and aide positions (C 5); Education of the Gifted, 1.0 professional instructional position (C 6); 16 Occupational-Vocational Education Payments and Special Education Payments; a minimum 17 of 6.0 professional instructional positions and aide positions (C 7 and C 8) for each 1,000 pupils in March 31 ADM each year in support of the current Standards of Quality. Funding in 18 19 support of one hour of additional instruction per day based on the percent of students eligible 20 for the federal free lunch program with a pupil-teacher ratio range of 18:1 to 10:1, depending 21 upon a school division's combined failure rate on the English and Math Standards of Learning, is included in Remedial Education Payments (C 9). 22

b. No actions provided in this section signify any intent of the General Assembly to mandate
an increase in the number of instructional personnel per 1,000 students above the numbers
explicitly stated in the preceding paragraph.

26 c. Appropriations in this Item include programs supported in part by transfers to the general 27 fund from the Public Education Standards of Quality/Local Real Estate Property Tax Relief 28 Fund pursuant to Part 3 of this Act. These transfers combined together with other 29 appropriations from the general fund in this Item funds the state's share of the following 30 revisions to the Standards of Quality pursuant to Chapters 939 & 955 of the Acts of Assembly 31 of 2004: five elementary resource teachers per 1,000 students; one support technology 32 position per 1,000 students; one instructional technology position per 1,000 students; and a full daily planning period for teachers at the middle and high school levels in order to relieve 33 34 the financial pressure these education programs place on local real estate taxes.

- 35 d. To provide flexibility, school divisions may use the state and local funds for instructional technology resource teachers required by the Standards of Quality to employ a data 36 37 coordinator position, an instructional technology resource teacher position, or a data 38 coordinator/instructional resource teacher blended position. The data coordinator position is 39 intended to serve as a resource to principals and classroom teachers in the area of data 40 analysis and interpretation for instructional and school improvement purposes, as well as for 41 overall data management and administration of state assessments. School divisions using 42 these SOQ funds in this manner shall only employ instructional personnel licensed by the 43 Board of Education.
- e. To provide flexibility in the provision of reading intervention services, school divisions
 may use the state Early Reading Intervention initiative funding provided from the Lottery
 Proceeds Fund and the required local matching funds to employ reading specialists to provide
 the required reading intervention services. School divisions using the Early Reading
 Intervention Initiative funds in this manner shall only employ instructional personnel licensed
 by the Board of Education.
- f. To provide flexibility in the provision of mathematics intervention services, school
 divisions may use the state Standards of Learning Algebra Readiness initiative funding
 provided from the Lottery Proceeds Fund and the required local matching funds to employ
 mathematics teacher specialists to provide the required mathematics intervention services.
 School divisions using the Standards of Learning Algebra Readiness initiative funding in this
 manner shall only employ instructional personnel licensed by the Board of Education.

ITEM 136	ó.	Item De First Year	Second Year	Appropri First Year	Second Year
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	8.a.1) Pursuant to § 22.1-97, Code of Virginia, the Departmen make calculations at the start of the school year to ensure appropriated adequate funds to support their estimated requir corresponding state fiscal year. In an effort to reduce the adm divisions resulting from state data collections, such as the aforementioned calculations, the requirements of § 22.1-97, 0 to the adequacy of estimated required local expenditures, s certification by each division superintendent at the beginni sufficient local funds have been budgeted to meet all stat required local match amounts. This provision shall only apply the Department of Education related to estimated required local pertain to the calculations associated with actual required local of the school year.	that school d red local expen- inistrative burd in one needed Code of Virgin shall be satisfing of each sch e required loc y to calculation al expenditures	ivisions have diture for the den on school to make the ia, pertaining ed by signed tool year that al effort and ns required of and shall not	FY2019	FY2020
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	2) The Department of Education shall also make calculations year to verify that the required local effort level, based on act Membership, was met. Pursuant to § 22.1-97, Code of V Education shall report annually, no later than the first day session, to the House Committees on Education and App Committees on Finance and Education and Health, the result after the close of the school year and the degree to which ea failed to meet, or surpassed its required local expenditure. Th shall specify the calculations to determine if a school divisio local expenditure for the Standards of Quality. This calcula limited to the following calculations:	ual March 31 A irginia, the D y of the Gener ropriations an as of such calcu- ach school divi- he Department on has expende	Average Daily epartment of ral Assembly d the Senate alations made sion has met, of Education d its required		
25 26 27 28	b. The total expenditures for operation, defined as total exoutlays, expenditures for debt service, facilities, non-regular d adult education, preschool, and non-local education programs will be calculated.	ay school prog	rams (such as		
29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	c. The following state funds will be deducted from the amoun above: revenues from the state sales and use tax (returned on estimate of school age population provided by the Weldor Service, as specified in this Item) for sales in the fiscal yea begins; total receipts from state funds (except state funds programs and state funds used for capital or debt service purp any balances carried forward from the previous fiscal year. Ar remain unspent at the end of the fiscal year will be added to paragraph a. above.	the basis of the a Cooper Cent ar in which the for non-regula boses); and the ny qualifying st	e latest yearly er for Public e school year ar day school state share of ate funds that		
38 39 40 41	d. Federal funds, and any federal funds carried forward from also be deducted from the amount calculated in paragraph a. a remain unspent at the end of the fiscal year and any capital ex funds will be added to the amount calculated in paragraph a. a	bove. Any fede penditures paid	eral funds that		
42 43	e. Tuition receipts, receipts from payments from other ci transfers will also be deducted from the amount calculat				
44 45	f. The final amount calculated as described above must be required local expenditure defined in paragraph A. 5.	equal to or gre	eater than the		
46 47	g. The Department of Education shall collect the data calculations of required local expenditure as required	-	-		
48 49	h. A locality whose expenditure in fact exceeds the required a not reduce its expenditures unless it first complies with all of				
50 51 52 53	9.a. Any required local matching funds which a locality, as of not expended, pursuant to this Item, for the Standards of Q locality into the general fund of the state treasury. Such paym than the end of the school year following that in which the ur	Quality shall b nents shall be r nder expenditu	e paid by the nade not later re occurs.		
54	b. Whenever the Department of Education has recovered fund	s as defined in	the preceding		

Item Details(\$)		
First Year	Second Year	
FY2019	FY2020	

Appropriations(\$)				
First Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

paragraph a., the Secretary of Education is authorized to repay to the locality affected by that
 action, seventy-five percent (75%) of those funds upon his determination that:

ITEM 136.

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

3 1) The local school board agrees to include the funds in its June 30 ending balance for the
4 year following that in which the under expenditure occurs;

5 2) The local governing body agrees to reappropriate the funds as a supplemental appropriation
6 to the approved budget for the second year following that in which the under expenditure
7 occurs, in an appropriate category as requested by the local school board, for the direct benefit
8 of the students;

- 3) The local school board agrees to expend these funds, over and above the funds required to
 meet the required local expenditure for the second year following that in which the under
 expenditure occurs, for a special project, the details of which must be furnished to the
 Department of Education for review and approval;
- 4) The local school board agrees to submit quarterly reports to the Department of Educationon the use of funds provided through this project award; and
- 15 5) The local governing body and the local school board agree that the project award will be
 16 cancelled and the funds withdrawn if the above conditions have not been met as of June 30 of
 17 the second year following that in which the under expenditure occurs.
- c. There is hereby appropriated, for the purposes of the foregoing repayment, a sum sufficient,
 not to exceed 75 percent of the funds deposited in the general fund pursuant to the preceding
 paragraph a.

10. The Department of Education shall specify the manner for collecting the required information and the method for determining if a school division has expended the local funds required to support the actual local match based on all Lottery and Incentive programs in which the school division has elected to participate. Unless specifically stated otherwise in this Item, school divisions electing to participate in any Lottery or Incentive program that requires a local funding match in order to receive state funding, shall certify to the Department of Education its intent to participate in each program by July 1 each fiscal year in a manner prescribed by the Department of Education. As part of this certification process, each division superintendent must also certify that adequate local funds have been appropriated, above the required local effort for the Standards of Quality, to support the projected required local match based on the Lottery and Incentive programs in which the school division has elected to participate. State funding for such program(s) shall not be made until such time that the school division can certify that sufficient local funding has been appropriated to meet required local match. The Department of Education shall make calculations after the close of the fiscal year to verify that the required local match was met based on the state funds that were received.

11. Any sum of local matching funds for Lottery and Incentive program which a locality has not expended as of the end of a fiscal year in support of the required local match pursuant to this Item shall be paid by the locality into the general fund of the state treasury unless the carryover of those unspent funds is specifically permitted by other provisions of this act. Such payments shall be made no later than the end of the school year following that in which the under expenditure occurred.

- 12. The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall provide a report annually, no later than the
 first day of the General Assembly session, on the status of teacher salaries, by local school
 division, to the Governor and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations
 Committees. In addition to information on average salaries by school division and statewide
 comparisons with other states, the report shall also include information on starting salaries by
 school division and average teacher salaries by school.
- 49 13. All state and local matching funds required by the programs in this Item shall be50 appropriated to the budget of the local school board.
- 51 14. By November 15 of each year, the Department of Planning and Budget, in cooperation
 52 with the Department of Education, shall prepare and submit a preliminary forecast of
 53 Standards of Quality expenditures, based upon the most current data available, to the
 54 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. In odd-numbered

Item I	Details(\$)
First Year	Second

Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

years, the forecast for the current and subsequent two fiscal years shall be provided. In even-numbered years, the forecast for the current and subsequent fiscal year shall be 3 provided. The forecast shall detail the projected March 31 Average Daily Membership and the resulting impact on the education budget.

ITEM 136.

1 2

4

5 15. School divisions may choose to use state payments provided for Standards of Quality 6 Prevention, Intervention, and Remediation in both years as a block grant for remediation 7 purposes, without restrictions or reporting requirements, other than reporting necessary as 8 a basis for determining funding for the program.

- 9 16. Except as otherwise provided in this act, the Superintendent of Public Instruction shall 10 provide guidelines for the distribution and expenditure of general fund appropriations and 11 such additional federal, private and other funds as may be made available to aid in the 12 establishment and maintenance of the public schools.
- 13 17. At the Department of Education's option, fees for audio-visual services may be 14 deducted from state Basic Aid payments for individual local school divisions.
- 15 18. For distributions not otherwise specified, the Department of Education, at its option, 16 may use prior year data to calculate actual disbursements to individual localities.
- 17 19. Payments for accounts related to the Standards of Quality made to localities for public 18 education from the general fund, as provided herein, shall be payable in twenty-four semi-19 monthly installments at the middle and end of each month.
- 20 20. Notwithstanding § 58.1-638 D., Code of Virginia, and other language in this Item, the 21 Department of Education shall, for purposes of calculating the state and local shares of the 22 Standards of Quality, apportion state sales and use tax dedicated to public education and 23 those sales tax revenues transferred to the general fund from the Public Education 24 Standards of Quality/ Local Real Estate Property Tax Relief Fund in the first year based 25 on the July 1, 2016, estimate of school age population provided by the Weldon Cooper 26 Center for Public Service and, in the second year, based on the July 1, 2017, estimate of 27 school age population provided by the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service.
- 28 Notwithstanding § 58.1-638 D., Code of Virginia, and other language in this Item, the 29 State Comptroller shall distribute the state sales and use tax revenues dedicated to public 30 education and those sales tax revenues transferred to the general fund from the Public 31 Education Standards of Quality/ Local Real Estate Property Tax Relief Fund in the first 32 year based on the July 1, 2016, estimate of school age population provided by the Weldon 33 Cooper Center for Public Service and, in the second year, based on the July 1, 2017, 34 estimate of school age population provided by the Weldon Cooper Center for Public 35 Service.
- 36 21. The school divisions within the Tobacco Region, as defined by the Tobacco 37 Indemnification and Community Revitalization Commission, shall jointly explore ways to 38 maximize their collective expenditure reimbursement totals for all eligible E-Rate funding.
- 39 22. This Item includes appropriations totaling an estimated \$592,533,186 \$632,398,647 40 the first year and \$598,393,186 \$628,830,501 the second year from the revenues deposited 41 to the Lottery Proceeds Fund. These amounts are appropriated for distribution to counties, 42 cities, and towns to support public education programs pursuant to Article X, Section 7-A 43 Constitution of Virginia. Any county, city, or town which accepts a distribution from this 44 fund shall provide its portion of the cost of maintaining an educational program meeting 45 the Standards of Quality pursuant to Section 2 of Article VIII of the Constitution without 46 the use of distributions from the fund.
- 47 23. For reporting purposes, the Department of Education shall include Lottery Proceeds 48 Funds as state funds.
- 49 24.a. Any locality that has met its required local effort for the Standards of Quality 50 accounts for FY 2019 and that has met its required local match for incentive or Lottery-51 funded programs in which the locality elected to participate in FY 2019 may carry over 52 into FY 2020 any remaining state Direct Aid to Public Education fund balances available 53 to help minimize any FY 2020 revenue adjustments that may occur in state funding to that 54 locality. Localities electing to carry forward such unspent state funds must appropriate the

		Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM	I 136.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	funds to the school division for expenditure in FY 2020.				

b. Any locality that has met its required local effort for the Standards of Quality accounts for FY 2020 and that has met its required local match for incentive or Lottery-funded programs in which the locality elected to participate in FY 2020 may carry over into FY 2021 any remaining state Direct Aid to Public Education fund balances available to help minimize any FY 2021 revenue adjustments that may occur in state funding to that locality. Localities electing to carry forward such unspent state funds must appropriate the funds to the school division for expenditure in FY 2021.

9 25. Localities are encouraged to allow school boards to carry over any unspent local 10 allocations into the next fiscal year. Localities are also encouraged to provide increased 11 flexibility to school boards by appropriating state and local funds for public education in a 12 lump sum.

13 26. The Department of Education shall include in the annual School Performance Report Card 14 for school divisions the percentage of each division's annual operating budget allocated to 15 instructional costs. For this report, the Department of Education shall establish a methodology 16 for allocating each school division's expenditures to instructional and non-instructional costs 17 in a manner that is consistent with the funding of the Standards of Quality as approved by the 18 General Assembly.

19 27. It is the intent of the General Assembly that all school divisions annually provide their 20 employees, upon request, with a user-friendly statement of total compensation, including 21 contract duration if less than 12 months.

22 28. The Department of Education, in collaboration with the Virginia Community College 23 System, will ensure that the same policies regarding the cost for dual enrollment courses held 24 at a community college, are consistently applied to public school students and home-schooled 25 students alike. These policies will clearly address the school division contributions and any 26 student charges for dual enrollment courses, and will ensure that public school students and home-school students are treated in the same manner.

C. Apportionment

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

27

28

29

30

31

32

34

35

36

37

39

1. Subject to the conditions stated in this paragraph and in paragraph B of this Item, each locality shall receive sums as listed above within this program for the basic operation cost and payments in addition to that cost. The apportionment herein directed shall be inclusive of, and without further payment by reason of, state funds for library and other teaching materials.

33 2. School Employee Retirement Contributions

a. This Item provides funds to each local school board for the state share of the employer's retirement cost incurred by it, on behalf of instructional personnel, for subsequent transfer to the retirement allowance account as provided by Title 51.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.

b. Notwithstanding § 51.1-1401, Code of Virginia, the Commonwealth shall provide 38 payments for only the state share of the Standards of Quality fringe benefit cost of the retiree health care credit. This Item includes payments in both years based on the state share of fringe 40 benefit costs of 55 percent of the employer's cost on funded Standards of Quality instructional 41 positions, distributed based on the composite index of the local ability-to-pay.

- 42 3. School Employee Social Security Contributions
- 43 a. This Item provides funds to each local school board for the state share of the employer's Social Security cost incurred by it, on behalf of the instructional personnel for subsequent 44 transfer to the Contribution Fund pursuant to Title 51.1, Chapter 7, Code of Virginia. 45
- 46 b. Appropriations for contributions in paragraphs 2 and 3 above include payments from funds derived from the principal of the Literary Fund in accordance with Article VIII, Section 8, of 47 48 the Constitution of Virginia. The amounts set aside from the Literary Fund for these purposes shall not exceed \$146,349,570 \$66,349,570 the first year and \$136,349,570 the second year. 49
- 50 4. School Employee Insurance Contributions
- 51 This Item provides funds to each local school board for the state share of the employer's

ITEM 136.	. 1	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	Group Life Insurance cost incurred by it on behalf of insparticipate in group insurance under the provisions of Title Virginia.				
4	5. Basic Aid Payments				
5 6 7 8 9	a.1) A state share of the Basic Operation Cost, which cost per established individually for each local school division instructional personnel required by the Standards of Quality a salary levels (adjusted in Planning District Eight for the cos recognized support costs calculated on a prevailing basis for ar	based on t nd the states at of compet	he number of wide prevailing ing) as well as		
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	2) This appropriation includes funding to recognize the co Washington-Baltimore-Northern Virginia, DC-MD-VA-WV Standards of Quality salary payments for instructional and s divisions of the localities set out below have been adjusted for the Cost of Competing Adjustment (COCA) rates that are paid Planning District Eight. For the counties of Stafford, Fauq Warren, Frederick, and Culpeper and the Cities of Frederick SOQ payments for instructional and support positions have be each year of the COCA rates paid to school divisions in Plann	Combined S support posi or the equiva to local schu uier, Spotsy suburg and V een increased	Statistical Area. tions in school alent portion of ool divisions in Ivania, Clarke, Vinchester, the 1 by 25 percent		
19	The support COCA rate is 10.6 percent.				
20 21 22 23 24	b. The state share for a locality shall be equal to the Basic Ope less the locality's estimated revenues from the state sales and u of the latest yearly estimate of school age population provid Center for Public Service, as specified in this Item), in the fisc year begins and less the required local expenditure.	se tax (returr led by the V	ned on the basis Veldon Cooper		
25 26	c. For the purpose of this paragraph, the Department of Taxatic tax estimates are as cited in this Item.	on's fiscal yea	ar sales and use		
27 28 29 30	d. 1) In accordance with the provisions of § 37.2-713, Code of Education shall deduct the locality's share for the education of in institutions within the Department of Behavioral Health as from the locality's Basic Aid payments.	handicapped	pupils residing		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	2) The amounts deducted from Basic Aid for the education persons shall be transferred to the Department of Behavioral Services in support of the cost of educating such persons; the a Aid for the education of emotionally disturbed person extraordinary expenses incurred in the education of such per Education shall establish guidelines to implement these provi- the periodic transfer of sums due from each local school div Behavioral Health and Developmental Services and for Spe payments. The amount of the actual transfers will be based on e- prior school year.	Health and i mount deduces s shall be ersons. The disions and sh dision to the decial Education	Developmental cted from Basic used to cover Department of nall provide for Department of ion categorical		
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49	e. 1) The apportionment to localities of all driver education reschool year shall be made as an undesignated component of the accordance with the provisions of this Item. Only school division standardized program established by the Board of Education shin the distribution of state funds appropriated for driver education will deduct a designated amount per pupil from a payment when the school division is not in compliance will virginia. Such amount will be computed by dividing the curding Driver Education Fund by actual March 31 ADM.	e state share visions comp all be entitle cation. The school divisi ith § 22.1-2	of Basic Aid in olying with the od to participate Department of ion's Basic Aid 05 C, Code of		
50 51 52 53	2) Local school boards may charge a per pupil fee for behind provided, however, that the fee charged plus the per pupil b driver education shall not exceed the actual average per pupil cause for a pro rata reduction in Basic Aid payments to schoo	asic aid rein cost. Such fo	nbursement for		

54 f. Textbooks

Item Details(\$)		
First Year	Second Year	
FY2019	FY2020	

1) The appropriation in this Item includes \$70,307,670 \$70,008,927 the first year and
 \$70,478,652 \$70,023,715 the second year from the general fund as the state's share of the cost
 of textbooks based on a per pupil amount of \$100.69 the first year and \$100.69 the second
 year. A school division shall appropriate these funds for textbooks or any other public
 education instructional expenditure by the school division. The state's distributions for
 textbooks shall be based on adjusted March 31 ADM. These funds shall be matched by the
 local government, based on the composite index of local ability-to-pay.

8 2) School divisions shall provide free textbooks to all students.

ITEM 136.

- 9 3) School divisions may use a portion of this funding to purchase Standards of Learning
 10 instructional materials. School divisions may also use these funds to purchase electronic
 11 textbooks or other electronic media resources integral to the curriculum and classroom
 12 instruction and the technical equipment required to read and access the electronic textbooks
 13 and electronic curriculum materials.
- 4) Any funds provided to school divisions for textbook costs that are unexpended as of June
 30, 2019, or June 30, 2020, shall be carried on the books of the locality to be appropriated to
 the school division the following year to be used for same purpose. School divisions are
 permitted to carry forward any remaining balance of textbook funds until the funds are
 expensed for a qualifying purpose.
- 19g. The one-cent state sales and use tax earmarked for education and the sales tax revenues20transferred to the general fund from the Public Education Standards of Quality/Local Real21Estate Property Tax Relief Fund and appropriated in this Item which are distributed to22localities on the basis of the latest yearly estimate of school age population provided by the23Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service as specified in this Item shall be reflected in each24locality's annual budget for educational purposes as a separate revenue source for the current25fiscal year.
- 26 h. The appropriation for the Standards of Quality for Public Education (SOQ) includes 27 amounts estimated at \$386,700,000 \$389,900,000 the first year and \$395,200,000 28 \$409,300,000 the second year from the amounts transferred to the general fund from the 29 Public Education Standards of Quality/Local Real Estate Property Tax Relief Fund pursuant 30 to Part 3 of this act which are derived from the 0.375 cent increase in the state sales and use 31 tax levied pursuant to § 58.1-638, Code of Virginia. These additional funds are provided to 32 local school divisions and local governments in order to relieve the financial pressure 33 education programs place on local real estate taxes.
- 34 i. From the total amounts in paragraph h. above, an amount estimated at \$257,800,000 35 \$259,900,000 the first year and \$263,400,000 \$272,900,000 the second year (approximately 36 1/4 cent of sales and use tax) is appropriated to support a portion of the cost of the state's 37 share of the following revisions to the Standards of Quality pursuant to Chapters 939 & 955 38 of the Acts of Assembly of 2004: five elementary resource teachers per 1,000 students; one 39 support and one instructional technology position per 1,000 students; a full daily planning 40 period for teachers at the middle and high school levels in order to relieve the pressure on 41 local real estate taxes and shall be taken into account by the governing body of the county, 42 city, or town in setting real estate tax rates.
- j. From the total amounts in paragraph h. above, an amount estimated at \$128,900,000
 \$130,000,000 the first year and \$131,700,000 \$136,400,000 the second year (approximately
 1/8 cent of sales and use tax) is appropriated in this Item to distribute the remainder of the
 revenues collected and deposited into the Public Education Standards of Quality/Local Real
 Estate Property Tax Relief Fund on the basis of the latest yearly estimate of school age
 population provided by the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service as specified in this Item.
- k. For the purposes of funding certain support positions in Basic Aid, a funding ratio
 methodology is used based upon the prevailing ratio of actual support positions, consistent
 with those recognized for SOQ funding, to actual instructional positions, consistent with those
 recognized for SOQ funding, as established in Chapter 781, 2009 Acts of Assembly. For the
 purposes of making the required spending adjustments, the appropriation and distribution of
 Basic Aid shall reflect this methodology. Local school divisions shall have the discretion as to
 where the adjustment may be made, consistent with the Standards of Quality funded in this

Item Details(\$)			
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

1

a. An additional payment shall be disbursed by the Department of Education to local
school divisions to support the state share of one full-time equivalent instructional position
per 1,000 students in adjusted March 31 ADM.

b. Local school divisions are required to spend, as part of the required local expenditure
for the Standards of Quality the established per pupil cost for gifted education (state and local share) on approved programs for the gifted.

- 9 7. Occupational-Vocational Education Payments
- a. An additional payment shall be disbursed by the Department of Education to the local
 school divisions to support the state share of the number of Vocational Education
 instructors required by the Standards of Quality. These funds shall be disbursed on the
 same basis as the payment is calculated.
- b. An amount estimated at \$120,281,318 the first year and \$120,376,109 \$120,350,481 the
 second year from the general fund included in Basic Aid Payments relates to vocational
 education programs in support of the Standards of Quality.
- 17 8. Special Education Payments
- a. An additional payment shall be disbursed by the Department of Education to the local
 school divisions to support the state share of the number of Special Education instructors
 required by the Standards of Quality. These funds shall be disbursed on the same basis as
 the payment is calculated.
- b. Out of the amounts for special education payments, general fund support is provided to
 fund the caseload standards for speech pathologists at 68 students for each year of the
 biennium.
- 25 9. Remedial Education Payments

a. An additional payment estimated at \$113,078,853 \$112,645,717 the first year and
\$112,984,901 \$112,320,130 the second year from the general fund shall be disbursed by
the Department of Education to support the Board of Education's Standards of Quality
Prevention, Intervention, and Remediation program adopted in June 2003.

- 30 b. The payment shall be calculated based on one hour of additional instruction per day for 31 identified students, using the three year average percent of students eligible for the federal 32 Free Lunch program as a proxy for students needing such services. Fall membership shall 33 be multiplied by the three year average division-level Free Lunch eligibility percentage to 34 determine the estimated number of students eligible for services. Pupil-teacher ratios shall 35 be applied to the estimated number of eligible students to determine the number of 36 instructional positions needed for each school division. The pupil-teacher ratio applied for 37 each school division shall range from 10:1 for those divisions with the most severe 38 combined three year average failure rates for English and math Standards of Learning test 39 scores to 18:1 for those divisions with the lowest combined three year average failure rates 40 for English and math Standards of Learning test scores.
- 41 c. Funding shall be matched by the local government based on the composite index of42 local ability-to-pay.
- 43 d. To provide flexibility in the instruction of English Language Learners who have limited 44 English proficiency and who are at risk of not meeting state accountability standards, 45 school divisions may use state and local funds from the SOQ Prevention, Intervention, and 46 Remediation account to employ additional English Language Learner teachers to provide 47 instruction to identified limited English proficiency students. Using these funds in this 48 manner is intended to supplement the instructional services provided through the SOO 49 staffing standard of 17 instructional positions per 1,000 limited English proficiency 50 students. School divisions using the SOQ Prevention, Intervention, and Remediation funds 51 in this manner shall only employ instructional personnel licensed by the Board of

2

3

4

5

6 7

1 Education.

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

e. An additional state payment estimated at \$100,250,775 \$25,382,033 the first year and \$107,079,544 \$36,728,753 the second year from the general fund and \$95,877,881 the first year and \$84,767,625 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be disbursed based on the estimated number of federal Free Lunch participants, in support of programs for students who are educationally at risk. The additional payment shall be based on the state share of:

8 1) A minimum 1.0 percent Add-On, as a percent of the per pupil basic aid cost, for each child
9 who qualifies for the federal Free Lunch Program; and

- 2) An addition to the Add-On, based on the concentration of children qualifying for the federal Free Lunch Program. Based on its percentage of Free Lunch participants, each school division will receive a total between 1.0 and 13.0 16.0 percent in the first year and between 1.0 and 14.0 16.0 percent in the second year in additional basic aid per Free Lunch participant. These funds shall be matched by the local government, based on the composite index of local ability-to-pay.
- 3a) Local school divisions are required to spend the established At-Risk Add-On payment(state and local share) on approved programs for students who are educationally at risk.

18 b) To receive these funds, each school division shall certify to the Department of Education 19 that the state and local share of the At-Risk Add-On payment will be used to support 20 approved programs for students who are educationally at risk. These programs may include: 21 teacher recruitment programs and incentives, Dropout Prevention, community and school-22 based truancy officer programs, Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID), Project 23 Discovery, Reading Recovery, programs for students who speak English as a Second 24 Language, hiring additional school guidance counselors, or programs related to increasing the 25 success of disadvantaged students in completing a high school degree and providing 26 opportunities to encourage further education and training. Further, each school division shall 27 report each year by August 1 to the Department the individual uses of these funds. The 28 Department shall compile the responses and provide them to the Chairmen of House 29 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than the first day of each Regular 30 General Assembly Session.

31 4) If the Board of Education has required a local school board to submit a corrective action plan pursuant to § 22.1-253.13:3, Code of Virginia, either for the school division pursuant to a 32 33 division level review, or for any schools within its division that have been designated as not meeting the standards as approved by the Board of Education, the Superintendent of Public 34 35 Instruction shall determine and report to the Board of Education whether each such local school board has met its obligation to develop and submit such corrective action plan(s) and is 36 37 making adequate and timely progress in implementing the plan(s). Additionally, if an 38 academic or other review process undertaken pursuant to § 22.1-253.13:3, Code of Virginia, 39 has identified actions for a local school board to implement, the Superintendent of Public 40 Instruction shall determine and report to the Board of Education whether the local school 41 board has implemented required actions. If the Superintendent certifies that a local school 42 board has failed or refused to meet any of those obligations as referenced in a memorandum 43 of understanding between the local school board and the Board of Education, the Board of 44 Education shall withhold payment of some or all At-Risk Add-On funds otherwise allocated 45 to the affected division pursuant to this allocation for the pending fiscal year. In determining 46 the amount of At-Risk Add-On funds to be withheld, the Board of Education shall take into 47 consideration the extent to which such funds have already been expended or contractually 48 obligated. The local school board shall be given an opportunity to correct its failure and, if 49 successful in a timely manner, may have some or all of its At-Risk Add-On funds restored at 50 the Board of Education's discretion.

51 f. Regional Alternative Education Programs

52 1) An additional state payment of \$8,779,013 \$8,767,652 the first year and \$9,211,142
53 \$9,451,837 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be disbursed for Regional
54 Alternative Education programs. Such programs shall be for the purpose of educating certain
55 expelled students and, as appropriate, students who have received suspensions from public
56 schools and students returned to the community from the Department of Juvenile Justice.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020 Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2) Each regional program shall have a small student/staff ratio. Such staff shall include, but not be limited to education, mental health, health, and law enforcement professionals, who will collaborate to provide for the academic, psychological, and social needs of the students. Each program shall be designed to ensure that students make the transition back into the "mainstream" within their local school division.

6 3) a) Regional alternative education programs are funded through this Item based on the 7 state's share of the incremental per pupil cost for providing such programs. This 8 incremental per pupil payment shall be adjusted for the composite index of local ability-9 to-pay of the school division that counts such students attending such program in its 10 March 31 Average Daily Membership. It is the intent of the General Assembly that this 11 incremental per pupil amount be in addition to the basic aid per pupil funding provided to 12 the affected school division for such students. Therefore, local school divisions are 13 encouraged to provide the appropriate portion of the basic aid per pupil funding to the 14 regional programs for students attending these programs, adjusted for costs incurred by the 15 school division for transportation, administration, and any portion of the school day or 16 school year that the student does not attend such program.

b) In the event a school division does not use all of the student slots it is allocated underthis program, the unused slots may be reallocated or transferred to another school division.

A school division must request from the Department of Education the availability and
 possible use of any unused student slots. If any unused slots are available and if the
 requesting school division chooses to utilize any of the unused slots, the requesting school
 division shall only receive the state's share of tuition for the unused slot that was allocated
 in this Item for the originally designated school division.

24 2. However, no requesting school division shall receive more tuition funding from the
25 state for any requested unused slot than what would have been the calculated amount for
26 the requesting school division had the unused slot been allocated to the requesting school
27 division in the original budget. Furthermore, the requesting school division shall pay for
28 any remaining tuition payment necessary for using a previously unused slot.

29 3. The Department of Education shall provide assistance for the state share of the
30 incremental cost of Regional Alternative Education program operations based on the
31 composite index of local ability-to-pay.

- 4) Out of this appropriation, \$432,317 \$720,891 the second year from the Lottery
 Proceeds Fund is provided for a compensation supplement payment equal to 3.0 5.0
 percent of base pay on July 1, 2019, for Regional Alternative Education Program
 instructional and support positions, as referenced in paragraph C. 39. of this Item.
- 36 g. Remedial Summer School

ITEM 136.

1

2

3

4

5

37 1) This appropriation includes \$24,940,359 \$24,658,157 the first year and \$25,542,931 38 \$24,976,867 the second year from the general fund for the state's share of Remedial Summer School Programs. These funds are available to school divisions for the operation 39 40 of programs designed to remediate students who are required to attend such programs 41 during a summer school session or during an intersession in the case of year-round 42 schools. These funds may be used in conjunction with other sources of state funding for 43 remediation or intervention. School divisions shall have maximum flexibility with respect 44 to the use of these funds and the types of remediation programs offered; however, in 45 exercising this flexibility, students attending these programs shall not be charged tuition 46 and no high school credit may be awarded to students who participate in this program.

47 2) For school divisions charging students tuition for summer high school credit courses,
48 consideration shall be given to students from households with extenuating financial
49 circumstances who are repeating a class in order to graduate.

3) From the amounts provided for Remedial Summer School, there is hereby appropriated
 \$550,000 the first year and \$550,000 the second year from the general fund to support
 pilot public-private partnerships between local school divisions and the Greater Richmond
 and Central Virginia affiliates of the Virginia Alliance of YMCAs to expand student
 participation opportunities in existing summer Power Scholars Academies in such

ITEM 136		Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Y FY202	
1 2 3 4	partnered school divisions. The Virginia All evaluation report for such pilot partnerships Richmond and Central Virginia YMCA affili and Senate Finance Committees no later than	between the school divisions a ates to the Chairmen of House	and the Greater			
5	10. K-3 Primary Class Size Reduction Payment	its				
6 7 8 9	a. An additional payment estimated at \$130,388,333 <i>\$128,005,970</i> the second ye disbursed by the Department of Education a primary grades.	ar from the Lottery Proceeds	Fund shall be			
10 11 12	b. The Department of Education shall calculate the payment based on the incremental cost of providing the lower class sizes based on the lower of the division average per pupil cost of all divisions or the actual division per pupil cost.					
13 14	c. Localities are required to provide a match f local ability-to-pay.	. Localities are required to provide a match for these funds based on the composite index of ocal ability-to-pay.				
15 16 17	d. By October 15 of each year school divis Education that each participating school has through 3 that meet the following criteria:					
18 19	Qualifying School Percentage of Students Approved	Grades K-3	Μ	aximum Individu	al	
20 21	Eligible for Free Lunch, Three-Year Average	School Ratio		K-3 Class Size		
22	30% but less than 45%	19 to 1		24		
23	45% but less than 55%	18 to 1		23		
24	55% but less than 65%	17 to 1		22		
25	65% but less than 70%	16 to 1		21		
26	70% but less than 75%	15 to 1		20		

14 to 1

28 e. School divisions may elect to have eligible schools participate at a higher ratio, or only in a 29 portion of grades kindergarten through three, with a commensurate reduction of state and 30 required local funds, if local conditions do not permit participation at the established ratio 31 and/or maximum individual class size. In the event that a school division requires additional 32 actions to ensure participation at the established ratio and/or maximum individual class size, 33 such actions must be completed by December 1 of the impacted school year. Special 34 education teachers and instructional aides shall not be counted towards meeting these required 35 pupil/teacher ratios in grades kindergarten through three.

f. The Superintendent of Public Instruction may grant waivers to school divisions for the class size requirement in eligible schools that have only one class in an affected grade level in the school.

39 11. Literary Fund Subsidy Program Payments

75% or more

27

36

37

38

40 a. The Department of Education and the Virginia Public School Authority (VPSA) shall 41 provide a program of funding for school construction and renovation through the Literary 42 Fund and through VPSA bond sales. The program shall be used to provide funds, through 43 Literary Fund loans and subsidies, and through VPSA bond sales, to fund a portion of the 44 projects on the First or Second Literary Fund Waiting List, or other critical projects which 45 may receive priority placement on the First or Second Literary Fund Waiting List by the 46 Department of Education. Interest rate subsidies will provide school divisions with the present 47 value difference in debt service between a Literary Fund loan and a borrowing through the 48 VPSA. To qualify for an interest rate subsidy, the school division's project must be eligible 49 for a Literary Fund loan and shall be subject to the same restrictions. The VPSA shall work 50 with the Department of Education in selecting those projects to be funded through the interest 51 rate subsidy/bond financing program, so as to ensure the maximum leverage of Literary Fund 52 moneys and a minimum impact on the VPSA Bond Pool.

Second Year FY2020

19

ITEM 13	6.	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	b. The Department of Education may offer Literary Fund balances of the Literary Fund after meeting the obligation sales and the amounts set aside from the Literary Fund fo Education Technology in this Item.	s of the intere	st rate subsidy		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	c. 1) In the event that on any scheduled payment date of School Authority (VPSA) authorized under the provisions subsequent to June 30, 1997, issued subsequent to June 30, the provisions of either § 22.1-168 (iii), (iv), and (v), Code Code of Virginia, the sum of (i) the payments on general obl counties, and towns (localities) paid to the VPSA and (ii) t application of the provisions of § 15.2-2659, Code of Virgin is less than the debt service due on such bonds of the VPSA appropriated to the VPSA, first, from available moneys of t from the general fund a sum equal to such deficiency.	of a bond reso 1997, and not b of Virginia, o igation school he proceeds de ia, to such bon on such date,	lution adopted benefiting from r § 22.1-168.1, bonds of cities, crived from the ds of localities, there is hereby		
15 16 17 18	2) The Commonwealth shall be subrogated to the VPS, appropriation paid to the VPSA and shall be entitled to enfor respect to the defaulting locality and to full recovery of th together with interest at the rate of the defaulting locality's	rce the VPSA's e amount of su	remedies with		
19 20 21 22 23 24 25	d. The chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the November 1 of each year, make and deliver to the Governor a certificate setting forth his estimate of total debt service of biennium on bonds of the VPSA issued and projected to be pursuant to the bond resolution referred to in paragraph a a submission each year shall include provisions for the paymen paragraph 1) above.	and the Secre during each fis issued during bove. The Gov	tary of Finance cal year of the such biennium vernor's budget		
26	12. Educational Technology Payments				
27 28 29 30	a. Any unobligated amounts transferred to the education disbursed on a pro rata basis to localities. The additio technology needs identified in the division's technology plar of Education.	nal funds sha	ll be used for		
31 32 33 34	b. The Department of Education shall authorize estimated ar from the Literary Fund to provide debt service payments grant program conducted through the Virginia Public Schoo years.	for the educati	on technology		
35	Table 1				
36 37 38	2014 \$13,2 - \$ <i>13</i> ,2-	2019 43,979 40,500		FY 2020	
39 40		09,749 08,750		\$13,807,226 \$13,807,500	
41 42	\$13,7.	56,846 58,000		\$13,754,552 \$13,753,750	
43 44		53,049 53,750		\$13,952,820 \$13,949,750	
45	2018 \$12,6	42,589		\$12,642,589	
46 47	\$12,4	74,388		\$12,471,250 \$12,658,496	
47 48	2019			\$12,658,496 \$12,434,267	
49 50 51	c. It is the intent of the General Assembly to authorize suffice pay debt service on the Virginia Public School Authority be education technology grant programs. In developing the pro-	onds or notes	authorized for		

c. It is the intent of the General Assembly to authorize sufficient Literary Fund revenues to
pay debt service on the Virginia Public School Authority bonds or notes authorized for
education technology grant programs. In developing the proposed 2020-2022, 2022-2024,
and 2024-2026 biennial budgets for public education, the Department of Education shall
include a recommendation to the Governor to authorize sufficient Literary Fund revenues

	Item Details(\$)		
ITEM 136.	First Year	Second Year	First Yea
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019

to make debt service payments for these programs in fiscal years 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024,
 2025, and 2026.

3 d. 1) An education technology grant program shall be conducted through the Virginia Public 4 School Authority, through the issuance of equipment notes in an amount estimated at 5 \$58,835,200 \$56,945,300 in fiscal year 2019 and \$60,331,600 \$58,540,400 in fiscal year 6 2020. Proceeds of the notes will be used to establish a computer-based instructional and 7 testing system for the Standards of Learning (SOL) and to develop the capability for high 8 speed Internet connectivity at high schools followed by middle schools followed by 9 elementary schools. School divisions shall use these funds first to develop and maintain the 10 capability to support the administration of online SOL testing for all students with the 11 exception of students with a documented need for a paper SOL test.

- 12 2) Grant funds from the issuance of \$58,835,200 \$56,945,300 in fiscal year 2019 and 13 60,331,600 \$58,540,400 in fiscal year 2020 in equipment notes are based on a grant of \$26,000 per school and \$50,000 per school division. For purposes of this grant program, 14 15 eligible schools shall include schools that are subject to state accreditation and reporting membership in grades K through 12 as of September 30, 2016 2018, for the fiscal year 2017 16 2019 issuance, and September 30, 2017 2019, for the fiscal year 2018 2020 issuance, as well 17 18 as regional vocational centers, special education centers, alternative education centers, regular 19 school year Governor's Schools, CodeRVA Regional High School, and the School for the 20 Deaf and the Blind. Schools that serve only pre-kindergarten students shall not be eligible for 21 this grant.
- 22 3. a.) Supplemental grants shall be allocated to eligible divisions to support schools that are 23 not fully accredited in accordance with this paragraph. Schools that include a ninth grade that 24 administer SOL tests in Spring 2018 and that are not fully accredited for the second 25 consecutive year, based on school accreditation ratings in effect for fiscal year 2018 and fiscal 26 year 2019 will qualify to participate in the Virginia e-Learning Backpack Initiative in fiscal 27 year 2019 and receive: (1) a supplemental grant of \$400 per student reported in ninth grade 28 fall membership in a qualifying school for the purchase of a laptop or tablet for that student and (2) a supplemental grant of \$2,400 per qualifying school to purchase two content creation 29 packages for teachers. Schools eligible to receive this supplemental grant in fiscal year 2019 30 31 shall continue to receive the grant for the number of subsequent years equaling the number of grades 9 through 12 in the qualifying school up to a maximum of four years. Schools that 32 33 administer SOL tests in Spring 2019 and that are not fully accredited for the second 34 consecutive year based on school accreditation ratings in effect for fiscal year 2019 and fiscal 35 year 2020 will qualify to participate in the initiative in fiscal year 2020. Schools eligible for 36 the supplemental grants in previous fiscal years shall continue to be eligible for the remaining 37 years of their grant award. Schools eligible to receive this supplemental grant in fiscal year 38 2020 shall continue to receive the grant for the number of subsequent years equaling the 39 number of grades 9 through 12 in the qualifying school up to a maximum of four years. 40 Grants awarded to qualifying schools that do not have grades 10, 11, or 12 may transition 41 with the students to the primary receiving school for all years subsequent to grade 9. Schools 42 are eligible to receive these grants for a period of up to four years beginning in fiscal year 43 2014 and shall not be eligible to receive a separate award in the future once the original award 44 period has concluded. Schools that are fully accredited or that are new schools with 45 conditional accreditation in their first year shall not be eligible to receive this supplemental 46 grant.
- b.) Supplemental grants allocated to school divisions for participation in the Virginia eLearning Backpack Initiative prior to fiscal year 2017 shall be used in eligible schools for (1)
 the purchase of a laptop or tablet for a student reported in ninth grade fall membership, and
 (2) the purchase of two content creation packages for teachers per grant. The amounts for
 such grants shall remain unchanged.
 - 4) Required local match:

52

a) Localities are required to provide a match for these funds equal to 20 percent of the grant amount, including the supplemental grants provided pursuant to paragraph g. 5). At least 25
percent of the local match, including the match for supplemental grants, shall be used for teacher training in the use of instructional technology, with the remainder spent on other required uses. The Superintendent of Public Instruction is authorized to reduce the required

		Item I	Appropriat		
ITE	CM 136.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	S
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	
1	local match for school divisions with a composite index	of local ability	-to-pay below		

local match for school divisions with a composite index of local ability-to-pay below 0.2000. The Virginia School for the Deaf and the Blind is exempt from the match requirement.

4 b) School divisions that administer 100 percent of SOL tests online in all elementary, 5 middle, and high schools may use up to 75 percent of their required local match to 6 purchase targeted technology-based interventions. Such interventions may include the 7 necessary technology and software to support online learning, technology-based content systems, content management systems, technology equipment systems, information and 8 9 data management systems, and other appropriate technologies that support the individual 10 needs of learners. School divisions that receive supplemental grants pursuant to paragraph 11 g.5) above shall use the funds in qualifying schools to purchase laptops and tablets for 12 ninth grade students reported in fall membership and content creation packages for 13 teachers.

- 5) The goal of the education technology grant program is to improve the instructional,
 remedial, and testing capabilities of the Standards of Learning for local school divisions
 and to increase the number of schools achieving full accreditation.
- 17 6) Funds shall be used in the following manner:

1

2 3

a) Each division shall use funds to reach a goal, in each high school, of: (1) a 5-to-1
student to computer ratio; (2) an Internet-ready local area network (LAN) capability; and
(3) high speed access to the Internet. School connectivity (computers, LANs and network
access) shall include sufficient download/upload capability to ensure that each student will
have adequate access to Internet-based instructional, remedial and assessment programs.

b) When each high school in a division meets the goals established in paragraph a) above,
the remaining funds shall be used to develop similar capability in first the middle schools
and then the elementary schools.

c) For purposes of establishing or enhancing a computer-based instructional program supporting the Standards of Learning pursuant to paragraph g. 1) above, these grant funds may be used to purchase handheld multifunctional computing devices that support a broad range of applications and that are controlled by operating systems providing full multimedia support and mobile Internet connectivity. School divisions that elect to use these grant funds to purchase such qualifying handheld devices must continue to meet the on-line testing requirements stated in paragraph g. 1) above.

- 33 d) School divisions shall be eligible to receive supplemental grants pursuant to paragraph 34 g.5) above. These supplemental grants shall be used in qualifying schools for the purchase 35 of laptops and tablets for ninth grade students reported in fall membership and content 36 creation packages for teachers. Participating school divisions will be required to select a 37 core set of electronic textbooks, applications and online services for productivity, learning 38 management, collaboration, practice, and assessment to be included on all devices. In 39 addition, participating school divisions will assume recurring costs for electronic textbook 40 purchases and maintenance.
- e) Pursuant to § 15.2-1302, Code of Virginia, and in the event that two or more school divisions became one school division, whether by consolidation of only the school divisions or by consolidation of the local governments, such resulting division shall be provided funding through this program on the basis of having the same number of school divisions as existed prior to September 30, 2000.
- 46 7) Local school divisions shall maximize the use of available federal funds, including E47 Rate Funds, and to the extent possible, use such funds to supplement the program and
 48 meet the goals of this program.
- e. The Department of Education shall maintain criteria to determine if high schools,
 middle schools, or elementary schools have the capacity to meet the goals of this
 initiative. The Department of Education shall be responsible for the project management
 of this program.
- 53 f. 1) In the event that, on any scheduled payment date of bonds or notes of the Virginia
 54 Public School Authority (VPSA) issued for the purpose described in § 22.1-166.2, Code

I	6	4

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

of Virginia, and not benefiting from the provisions of either § 22.1-168 (iii), (iv) and (v), Code of Virginia, or § 22.1-168.1, Code of Virginia, the available moneys in the Literary Fund are less than the amounts authorized for debt service due on such bonds or notes of the VPSA on such date, there is hereby appropriated to the VPSA from the general fund a sum equal to such deficiency.

6 2) The Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the VPSA shall, on or before November 1 7 of each year, make and deliver to the Governor and the Secretary of Finance a certificate 8 setting forth his estimate of total debt service during each fiscal year of the biennium on 9 bonds and notes of the VPSA issued and projected to be issued during such biennium 10 pursuant to the resolution referred to in paragraph 1) above. The Governor's budget 11 submission each year shall include provisions for the payment of debt service pursuant to 12 paragraph 1) above.

13 g. Unobligated proceeds of the notes, including investment income derived from the proceeds of the notes may be used to pay interest on, or to decrease principal of the notes or to fund a portion of such other educational technology grants as authorized by the General Assembly.

h. 1) For the purposes of § 56-232, Code of Virginia, "Contracts of Telephone Companies with State Government" and for the purposes of § 56-234 "Contracts for Service Rendered by a Telephone Company for the State Government" shall be deemed to include communications lines into public schools which are used for educational technology. The rate structure for such lines shall be negotiated by the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the Chief Information Officer of the Virginia Information Technologies Agency. Further, the Superintendent and Director are authorized to encourage the development of "by-pass" infrastructure in localities where it fails to obtain competitive prices or prices consistent with the best rates obtained in other parts of the state.

2) The State Corporation Commission, in its consideration of the discount for services provided to elementary schools, secondary schools, and libraries and the universal service funding mechanisms as provided under § 254 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, is hereby encouraged to make the discounts for intrastate services provided to elementary schools, secondary schools, and libraries for educational purposes as large as is prudently possible and to fund such discounts through the universal fund as provided in § 254 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996. The commission shall proceed as expeditiously as possible in implementing these discounts and the funding mechanism for intrastate services, consistent with the rules of the Federal Communications Commission aimed at the preservation and advancement of universal service.

35 13. Security Equipment Payments

> 1) A security equipment grant program shall be conducted through the Virginia Public School Authority, through the issuance of equipment notes in an amount estimated at up to \$6,000,000 in fiscal year 2019 and \$6,000,000 in fiscal year 2020 in conjunction with the Virginia Public School Authority technology notes program authorized in C.12. of this Item. Proceeds of the notes will be used to help offset the related costs associated with the purchase of appropriate security equipment that will improve and help ensure the safety of students attending public schools in Virginia.

43 2) The Department of Education shall authorize estimated amounts as indicated in Table 1 44 from the Literary Fund to provide debt service payments for the security equipment grant programs conducted through the Virginia Public School Authority in the referenced years. 45

Table 1

ITEM 136.

1

2

3

4

5

14

15

16

17

18 19

20

21 22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

36 37

38

39

40

41 42

46

47	Grant Year	FY 2019	FY 2020
48	2014	\$1,235,521	
49		\$1,239,000	
50	2015	\$1,244,751	\$1,244,524
51		\$1,245,750	\$1,244,250
52	2016	\$1,234,154	\$1,233,948
53		\$1,233,000	\$1,234,750
54	2017	\$1,246,951	\$1,246,930

		Item D	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 136.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1		\$1,246,250		\$1,250,000		
2	2018	\$1,291,481		\$1,291,481		
3		\$1,273,531		\$1,270,750		
4	2019			\$1,291,481		
5				\$1,310,127		

3) It is the intent of the General Assembly to authorize sufficient Literary Fund revenues to pay debt service on the Virginia Public School Authority bonds or notes authorized for this program. In developing the proposed 2020-2022, 2022-2024, and 2024-2026 biennial budgets for public education, the Department of Education shall include a recommendation to the Governor to authorize sufficient Literary Fund revenues to make debt service payments for these programs in fiscal years 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025, and 2026.

- 4) In the event that, on any scheduled payment date of bonds or notes of the Virginia
 Public School Authority issued for the purpose described in § 22.1-166.2, Code of
 Virginia, and not benefiting from the provisions of either § 22.1-168 (iii), (iv) and (v),
 Code of Virginia, or § 22.1-168.1, Code of Virginia, the available moneys in the Literary
 Fund are less than the amounts authorized for debt service due on such bonds or notes on
 such date, there is hereby appropriated to the Virginia Public School Authority from the
 general fund a sum equal to such deficiency.
- 5) The Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Public School Authority
 shall, on or before November 1 of each year, deliver to the Governor and the Secretary of
 Finance a certificate setting forth his estimate of total debt service during each fiscal year
 of the biennium on bonds and notes issued and projected to be issued during such
 biennium. The Governor's budget submission each year shall include provisions for the
 payment of debt service pursuant to paragraph 1) above.
- 26 6) Grant award funds from the issuance of up to \$6,000,000 in fiscal year 2019 and 27 \$6,000,000 in fiscal year 2020 in equipment notes shall be distributed to eligible school 28 divisions. The grant awards will be based on a competitive grant basis of up to \$100,000 29 \$250,000 per school division. School divisions will be permitted to apply annually for 30 grant funding. For purposes of this program, eligible schools shall include schools that are 31 subject to state accreditation and reporting membership in grades K through 12 as of 32 September 30, 2018, for the fiscal year 2019 issuance, and September 30, 2019, for the 33 fiscal year 2020 issuance, as well as regional vocational centers, special education centers, 34 alternative education centers, regular school year Governor's Schools, and the Virginia 35 School for the Deaf and the Blind.
- 36 7) School divisions would submit their application to Department of Education by August
 37 1 of each year based on the criteria developed by the Department of Education in
 38 collaboration with the Department of Criminal Justice Services who will provide
 39 requested technical support. Furthermore, the Department of Education will have the
 40 authority to make such grant awards to such school divisions.
- 41 8) It is also the intent of the General Assembly that the total amount of the grant awards42 shall not exceed \$30,000,000 over any ongoing revolving five year period.
- **43** 9) Required local match:

6 7

8

9

10

11 12

- a) Localities are required to provide a match for these funds equal to 25 percent of the grant amount. The Superintendent of Public Instruction is authorized to reduce the required local match for school divisions with a composite index of local ability-to-pay below 0.2000. The Virginia School for the Deaf and the Blind is exempt from the match requirement.
- b) Pursuant to § 15.2-1302, Code of Virginia, and in the event that two or more school divisions became one school division, whether by consolidation of only the school divisions or by consolidation of the local governments, such resulting division shall be provided funding through this program on the basis of having the same number of school divisions as existed prior to September 30, 2000.
- 54 c) Local school divisions shall maximize the use of available federal funds, including E-

		Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 136.		First Year	Second Year	Firs	
		FY2019	FY2020	FY	

Appropriations(\$)						
First Year	Second Year					
FY2019	FY2020					

Rate Funds, and to the extent possible, use such funds to supplement the program and meet
 the goals of this program.

3 14. Virginia Preschool Initiative Payments

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36 37

38

39

40

a.1) It is the intent of the General Assembly that a payment estimated at \$72,286,230 the first year and \$72,297,411 *\$72,351,058* the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be disbursed by the Department of Education to schools and community-based organizations to provide quality preschool programs for at-risk four-year-olds who are residents of Virginia and unserved by Head Start program funding and for at-risk five-year-olds who are not eligible to attend kindergarten. In no event shall distributions from the Lottery Proceeds Fund be made directly to community-based or private providers.

 2) These state funds and required local matching funds shall be used to provide programs for at-risk four-year-old children, which include quality preschool education, health services, social services, parental involvement and transportation. It shall be the policy of the Commonwealth that state funds and required local matching funds for the Virginia Preschool Initiative not be used for capital outlay. Programs must provide full-day or half-day and, at least, school-year services.

17 3) The Department of Education shall establish academic standards that are in accordance 18 with appropriate preparation for students to be ready to successfully enter kindergarten. These 19 standards shall be established in such a manner as to be measurable for student achievement 20 and success. Students shall be required to be evaluated in the fall and in the spring by each 21 participating school division and the school divisions must certify that the Virginia Preschool 22 Initiative program follows the established standards in order to receive the funding for quality 23 preschool education and criteria for the service components. Such standards shall align with 24 the Virginia Standards of Learning for Kindergarten.

4) a) Grants shall be distributed based on an allocation formula providing the state share of a \$6,326 grant for 100 percent of the unserved at-risk four-year-olds in each locality for a fullday program. The number of unserved at-risk four-year-olds in each locality shall be based on the projected number of kindergarten students, updated once each biennium for the Governor's introduced biennial budget. Half-day programs shall operate for a minimum of three hours of classroom instructional time per day, excluding breaks for lunch or recess, and grants to half-day programs shall be funded based on the state share of \$3,163 per unserved at-risk four-year-old in each locality. Full-day programs shall operate for a minimum of five and one-half instructional hours, excluding breaks for meals and recess. Virginia Preschool Initiative programs may include unstructured recreational time that is intended to develop teamwork, social skills, and overall physical fitness in any calculation of total instructional time, provided that such unstructured recreational time does not exceed 15 percent of total instructional time or teaching hours. No additional state funding is provided for programs operating greater than three hours per day but less than five and one-half hours per day. In determining the state and local shares of funding, the composite index of local ability-to-pay is capped at 0.5000.

b) For new programs in the first year of implementation only, programs operating less than a
full school year shall receive state funds on a fractional basis determined by the pro-rata
portion of a school year program provided. In determining the prorated state funds to be
received, a school year shall be 180 days or 990 teaching hours.

b.1) Any locality which desires to participate in this grant program must submit a proposal
through its chief administrator (county administrator or city manager) by May 15 of each
year. The chief administrator, in conjunction with the school superintendent, shall identify a
lead agency for this program within the locality. The lead agency shall be responsible for
developing a local plan for the delivery of quality preschool services to at-risk children which
demonstrates the coordination of resources and the combination of funding streams in an
effort to serve the greatest number of at-risk four-year-old children.

52 2) The proposal must demonstrate coordination with all parties necessary for the successful
 53 delivery of comprehensive services, including the schools, child care providers, local social
 54 services agency, Head Start, local health department, and other groups identified by the lead
 55 agency.

		Item L	Details(\$)
ITEM	136.	First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020
1	3) A local match, based on the composite index of local	l ability-to-pay, sh	all be required.
2	For purposes of meeting the local match, localities may u	ise local expenditu	res for existing

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

For purposes of meeting the local match, localities may use local expenditures for existing qualifying programs, however, at least seventy-five percent of the local match will be cash and no more than twenty-five percent will be in-kind. In-kind contributions are defined as cash outlays that are made by the locality that benefit the program but are not directly charged to the program. The value of fixed assets cannot be considered as an in-kind contribution. Philanthropic or other private funds may be contributed to the locality to be appropriated in their local budget and then utilized as local match. Localities shall also continue to pursue and coordinate other funding sources, including child care subsidies. Funds received through this program must be used to supplement, not supplant, any funds currently provided for programs within the locality. However, in the event a locality is unable to continue the previous level of support to programs for at-risk four-year-olds from Title I of the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), the state and local funds provided in this grants program may be used to continue services to these Title I students. Such inability may occur due to adjustments to the allocation formula in the reauthorization of ESEA as the Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015, or due to a percentage reduction in a locality's Title I allocation in a particular year. Any locality so affected shall provide written evidence to the Superintendent of Public Instruction and request his approval to continue the services to Title I students.

- c. Local plans must provide clear methods of service coordination for the purpose of
 reducing the per child cost for the service, increasing the number of at-risk children served
 and/or extending services for the entire year. Examples of these include:
- 1) "Wraparound Services" -- methods for combining funds such as child care subsidy
 dollars administered by local social service agencies with dollars for quality preschool
 education programs.
- 26 2) "Wrap-out Services" methods for using grant funds to purchase quality preschool
 27 services to at-risk four-year-old children through an existing child care setting by
 28 purchasing comprehensive services within a setting which currently provides quality
 29 preschool education.
- 30 3) "Expansion of Service" methods for using grant funds to purchase slots within
 31 existing programs, such as Head Start, which provide comprehensive services to at-risk
 32 four-year-old children.
- 33 d.1) Local plans must indicate the number of at-risk four-year-old children to be served, 34 and the eligibility criteria for participation in this program shall be consistent with the 35 economic and educational risk factors stated in the 2015-2016 programs guidelines that 36 are specific to: (i) family income at or below 200 percent of federal poverty guidelines, (ii) 37 homelessness, (iii) student's parents or guardians are school dropouts, or (iv) family 38 income is above 200 percent but at or below 350 percent of federal poverty guidelines in the case of students with special needs or disabilities. Up to 15 percent of a division's slots 39 40 may be filled based on locally established eligibility criteria so as to meet the unique needs 41 of at-risk children in the community.
- 42 2) The Department of Education is directed to compile from each school division the 43 aggregated information as to the number of enrolled students whose families are (i) at or 44 below 130 percent of poverty, (ii) above 130 percent but at or below 200 percent of 45 poverty, (iii) above 200 percent but at or below 350 percent of poverty, and (iv) above 350 46 percent of poverty. The Department shall report this information annually, after the 47 application and fall participation reports are submitted to the Department from the school 48 divisions, to the Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. In 49 addition, the Department will post and maintain the summary information by division on 50 the Department's website in keeping with current student privacy policies.
- 51 e.1) The Department of Education shall provide technical assistance for the administration
 52 of this grant program to provide assistance to localities in developing a comprehensive,
 53 coordinated, quality preschool program for serving at-risk four-year-old children.
- 54 2) The Department shall provide interested localities with information on models for
 55 service delivery, methods of coordinating funding streams, such as funds to match federal
 56 IV-A child care dollars, to maximize funding without supplanting existing sources of

D. 4 . 11. (0)

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

funding for the provision of services to at-risk four-year-old children. A priority for technical assistance in the design of programs shall be given to localities where the majority of the at-risk four-year-old population is currently unserved.

ITEM 136.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

f. The Department of Education shall include in the program's application package specific information regarding the potential availability of funding for supplemental grants that may be used for one-time expenses, other than capital, related to start-up or expansion of programs, with priority given to proposals for expanding the use of partnerships with either nonprofit or for-profit providers. Furthermore, the Department is mandated to communicate to all eligible school divisions the remaining available balances in the program's adopted budget, after the fall participation reports have been submitted and finalized for such grants.

11 g. Beginning in school year 2019-2020, one-time waiting list slots may, subject to available 12 funds, be provided to school divisions that have utilized 100 percent of their calculated slots 13 in the previous school year and had a waiting list for unserved eligible children as certified by 14 such school divisions on the October + Virginia Preschool Initiative Fall Verification Report 15 submitted to the Department of Education in the previous school year. Further, eligible school divisions that may request and receive a one-time allocation of such slots in the subsequent 16 school year, shall offer such slots to at-risk four-year old children that (i) family income at or 17 18 below 200 percent of federal poverty guidelines, (ii) family income is above 200 percent but 19 at or below 350 percent of federal poverty guidelines in the case of students with special 20 needs or disabilities, (iii) homelessness, or (iv) student's parents or guardians are school 21 dropouts. The amount of funding available to provide any waiting list slots to eligible school 22 divisions shall be determined by the previous fiscal year year-end balance of the allocations in 23 paragraph C. 14. a. 1) of this item. Further, the Department of Education shall ensure that 24 supplemental grants for one-time expenses, other than capital, related to start-up or expansion 25 of Virginia Preschool Initiative program in paragraph C. 14. f. of this item, are awarded and 26 allocated first from any vear-end available balances in the program's adopted budget, after 27 the fall participation reports have been submitted and finalized before any remaining balances 28 are considered for waiting list slots. Any such remaining balances not awarded and allocated 29 in the current fiscal year for start-up or expansion grants shall be carried forward to the next 30 fiscal year to support waiting list slots. Available funding shall be provided only to eligible 31 school divisions that report using 100 percent of the upcoming school year slot allocation in 32 the May 15 grant proposal and report using 100 percent of the school year slot allocation on 33 the October + Virginia Preschool Initiative Fall Verification Report submitted to the 34 Department of Education for the school year that waiting list slots are provided. If a school 35 division's October + Virginia Preschool Initiative Fall Verification Report submitted to the 36 Department of Education does not certify that 100 percent of the school year calculated slot 37 allocation is used, then the Department of Education shall withdraw enough of the granted 38 waiting list slots and associated funding provided such that the net difference between the 39 withdrawn waiting list slots make up the percentage deficient from the school year calculated 40 slot allocation not used. The Department of Education shall submit a comprehensive report, 41 detailing, but not limited to, the number of calculated slots and funding allocated to each 42 school division, the number of calculated slots filled by each school division, supplemental 43 grants requested and awarded by each school division, the number of waiting list slots 44 requested by each school division, the number of waiting list slots offered to each school 45 division, the number of waiting list slots filled by each school division and the funding 46 allocated for the filled waiting list slots by each school division, to the Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than November 15 December 31, 47 48 2019, and annually thereafter.

49 h. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$2,304,088 the first year and $\frac{$2,306,100}{$306,100}$ the 50 second year from the general fund is allocated for the Department of Education to provide 51 grants of no more than \$30,000 each for local school divisions that have applied for such 52 funds for the sole purpose of providing financial incentives to provisionally licensed teachers 53 teaching students enrolled in the Virginia Preschool Initiative and who are actively engaged in 54 coursework and professional development, toward achieving the required degree and license 55 that satisfy the licensure requirements reflected in § 22.1-299, Code of Virginia. School 56 divisions must submit applications to the Department of Education by December 1 of each 57 year. Priority for awarding grants shall be given to hard-to-staff schools and schools with the 58 highest number of provisionally licensed teachers teaching students enrolled in the Virginia 59 Preschool Initiative. The Department of Education shall develop the application process to be 60 provided to school divisions that have provisionally licensed teachers employed and are

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

teaching students enrolled in the Virginia Preschool Initiative. Any funds not awarded from this grant program in fiscal year 2019 may be awarded for supplemental grants for one-time expenses, other than capital, related to start-up or expansion of Virginia Preschool Initiative programs in paragraph C.14.f. of this Item. Any such remaining balances not awarded and allocated in fiscal year 2019 for start-up or expansion grants shall be carried forward to fiscal year 2020 to support waiting list slots.

ITEM 136.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7 i. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$300,000 the first year and \$700,000 the second 8 year from the general fund is provided through the Department of Education to the 9 University of Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning to ensure 10 that all Virginia Preschool Initiative classroom programs teachers receive appropriate 11 individualized professional development training from professional development 12 specialists to support quality teacher-child interactions and effective research-based 13 curriculum implementation. Funding and professional development assistance shall be 14 prioritized for teachers with Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) observation 15 scores that did not meet the statewide minimum acceptable threshold standard established 16 by University of Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning and the 17 Department of Education. The University of Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of 18 Teaching and Learning, assisted on an as needed basis, by the Department of Education, Virginia Early Childhood Foundation, and Elevate Early Education to hire and train 19 20 specialists to provide such individualized professional development.

21 j. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$75,000 the first year from the general fund is 22 provided such that, beginning July 1, 2018, the Department of Education shall develop a 23 plan to ensure that high quality instruction is provided in the Virginia Preschool Initiative 24 program's individual preschool classrooms. The plan shall detail how the Department will 25 (i) monitor and assess the quality of teacher-child interactions within each preschool 26 classroom at least once every two years, (ii) ensure the use of evidence-based curricula is 27 implemented in each preschool classroom and take necessary corrective action if 28 evidence-based curriculum is not used or effective by the following school year, and, (iii) 29 facilitate and provide individualized professional development for Virginia Preschool 30 Initiative classroom teachers to ensure the necessary teaching skills are aligned for the 31 pedagogy of high quality preschool classroom experiences and (iv) provide informative and complete information about how Virginia Preschool Initiative funding, from all 32 33 sources, supports quality preschool experiences for children enrolled in the local public 34 school divisions in Virginia. The plan shall also include details on the number of staff, 35 tasks and duties, and possible funding needed to carry out these responsibilities. The 36 Department shall submit its complete detailed plan to the Chairmen of House 37 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2018.

38 k.Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$350,000 the first year and \$350,000 the second 39 year from the general fund is provided through the Department of Education to the 40 University of Virginia to ensure that all Virginia Preschool Initiative classroom programs 41 have the quality of their teacher-child interactions assessed through a rigorous and 42 research-based elassroom observational instrument at least once every two years using the 43 CLASS observational instrument for such assessment. All classrooms shall be observed 44 no later than June 30, 2020. The University of Virginia, with input from the Department of 45 Education and the use of its detailed plan for such assessments, shall establish a statewide 46 minimum acceptable threshold for the quality of teacher-child interactions for Virginia 47 Preschool Initiative classroom programs, and classrooms that are assessed below the 48 threshold will receive additional technical assistance from the Department of Education 49 and the University of Virginia. The threshold should be established with the assistance of 50 University of Virginia's Center for Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning, using a 51 rigorous and research-based elassroom observational instrument. The threshold shall be 52 established no later than the beginning of the 2018-2019 school year and the classroom 53 assessments shall begin no later than spring 2019. The University of Virginia's Center for 54 Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning shall submit a progress report on such 55 elassroom observations to the Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senate Finance 56 Committees no later than June 30, 2019, and annually thereafter.

57 l.1) Out of this appropriation, \$1,669,680 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund
58 is provided to enhance local capacity and quality of Virginia Preschool Initiative
59 programs in accordance with the Department of Education's November 2018 Plan to

	It	Item Details(\$) Approp		
ITEM 136	. First Ye FY201		First Year FY2019	Second FY20
1	Ensure High-Quality Instruction in All Virginia Preschool Initiative Class	srooms, submitted to		

Appropriations(\$)						
rst Year	Second Year					
'Y2019	FY2020					

the General Assembly pursuant to paragraph C.14.j. of this Item. 2

3 2.) Of this amount, \$900,000 is provided to assist school divisions and localities to purchase 4 and effectively implement vetted, evidence-based curriculum in Virginia Preschool Initiative 5 classrooms. Funding shall be awarded through a competitive grant process through 6 application to the Department of Education. Applicants must submit to the Department of 7 Education a plan to implement approved curriculum and to support teachers to use such 8 curriculum with fidelity to promote children's learning and development. Virginia Preschool 9 Initiative classrooms that are not already using an approved curriculum shall receive priority 10 for funding. Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from this program may be applied 11 toward the grants under paragraph C.14.1.3. of this Item.

12 3.) Of this amount, \$799,680 is provided to assist school divisions and localities to conduct Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) observations by local observers in Virginia 13 14 Preschool Initiative classrooms. Funding shall be awarded through a competitive grant 15 process through application to the Department of Education. Participating Virginia Preschool Initiative classrooms shall undergo local observation using the CLASS observation 16 17 instrument and shall receive feedback at least two times per school year. The results of these 18 observations shall be provided to the Department of Education. School divisions and 19 localities have discretion as to which individuals conduct these observations, but all 20 observers must be certified as reliable CLASS observers. Within the fiscal year, any funds not 21 awarded from this program may be applied toward the grants under paragraph C.14.1.2. of 22 this Item.

- 23 4.) Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from the grant programs in paragraph 24 C.14.1.2. and paragraph C.14.1.3. of this Item may be used to support implementation of the 25 Department of Education's November 2018 Plan to Ensure High-Quality Instruction in All 26 Virginia Preschool Initiative Classrooms.
- 27 15. Early Reading Intervention Payments

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

a. An additional payment of \$22,599,681 \$23,578,891 the first year and \$22,651,560 \$23,571,284 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be disbursed by the Department of Education to local school divisions for the purposes of providing early reading intervention services to students in grades kindergarten through 3 who demonstrate deficiencies based on their individual performance on diagnostic tests which have been approved by the Department of Education. The Department of Education shall review the tests of any local school board which requests authority to use a test other than the stateprovided test to ensure that such local test uses criteria for the early diagnosis of reading deficiencies which are similar to those criteria used in the state-provided test. The Department of Education shall make the state-provided diagnostic test used in this program available to local school divisions. School divisions shall report the results of the diagnostic tests to the Department of Education on an annual basis at a time to be determined by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.

41 b. These payments shall be based on the state's share of the cost of providing two and one-half 42 hours of additional instruction each week for an estimated number of students in each school 43 division at a student to teacher ratio of five to one. The estimated number of students in each 44 school division in each year shall be determined by multiplying the projected number of 45 students reported in each school division's fall membership in grades kindergarten, 1, 2, and 3 46 by the percent of students who are determined to need services based on diagnostic tests 47 administered in the previous year in that school division and adjusted in the following 48 manner:

49		Year 1	Year 2
50	Kindergarten	100%	100%
51	Grade 1	100%	100%
52	Grade 2	100%	100%
53	Grade 3	100%	100%

54 c. These payments are available to any school division that certifies to the Department of 55 Education that an intervention program will be offered to such students and that each student

		Item Details(\$)		
ITEM 1	136.	First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020		First Year FY2019
		F 1 2017	F 1 2020	112017
1	who receives an intervention will be assessed again at the end	l of that scho	ool year. At the	
2	beginning of the school year, local school divisions shall partn	er with the p	parents of those	
3	third grade students in the division who demonstrate reading d	eficiencies,	discussing with	
4	them a developed plan for remediation and retesting. Such in	tervention p	rograms, at the	

third grade students in the division who demonstrate reading deficiencies, discussing with them a developed plan for remediation and retesting. Such intervention programs, at the discretion of the local school division, may include, but not be limited to, the use of: special reading teachers; trained aides; full-time early literacy tutors; volunteer tutors under the supervision of a certified teacher; computer-based reading tutorial programs; aides to instruct in-class groups while the teacher provides direct instruction to the students who need extra assistance; or extended instructional time in the school day or year for these students. Localities receiving these payments are required to match these funds based on the composite index of local ability-to-pay.

- d. In the event that a school division does not use the diagnostic test provided by the
 Department of Education in the year that serves as the basis for updating the funding
 formula for this program but has used it in past years, the Department of Education shall
 use the most recent data available for the division for the state-provided diagnostic test.
- e. The results of all reading diagnostic tests and reading remediation shall be discussedwith the student and the student's parent prior to the student being promoted to grade four.

18 f. Funds appropriated for Standards of Quality Prevention, Intervention, and Remediation,
 19 Remedial Summer School, or At-Risk Add-On may also be used to meet the requirements
 20 of this program.

21 16. Standards of Learning Algebra Readiness Payments

5

6 7

8

9

10

11

22 a. An additional payment of \$13,003,937 \$13,099,389 the first year and \$13,020,964 23 \$13,061,697 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be disbursed by the 24 Department of Education to local school divisions for the purposes of providing math 25 intervention services to students in grades 6, 7, 8 and 9 who are at-risk of failing the 26 Algebra I end-of-course test, as demonstrated by their individual performance on 27 diagnostic tests which have been approved by the Department of Education. These 28 amounts reflect \$200,000 the first year and \$200,000 the second year apportioned to each 29 school division to account for the cost of the diagnostic test. The Department of Education 30 shall review the tests to ensure that such local test uses state-provided criteria for 31 diagnosis of math deficiencies which are similar to those criteria used in the state-provided 32 test. The Department of Education shall make the state-provided diagnostic test used in 33 this program available to local school divisions. School divisions shall report the results of 34 the diagnostic tests to the Department of Education on an annual basis at a time to be 35 determined by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.

- b. These payments shall be based on the state's share of the cost of providing two and one-half hours of additional instruction each week for an estimated number of students in each school division at a student to teacher ratio of ten to one. The estimate number of students
 in each school division shall be determined by multiplying the projected number of students that qualify for the federal Free Lunch Program.
- c. These payments are available to any school division that certifies to the Department of
 Education that an intervention program will be offered to such students and that each
 student who receives an intervention will be assessed again at the end of that school year.
 Localities receiving these payments are required to match these funds based on the
 c. These payments are index of local ability-to-pay.
- 47 17. School Construction Grants Program Escrow

48 Notwithstanding the requirements of § 22.1-175.5, Code of Virginia, school divisions are
49 permitted to withdraw funds from local escrow accounts established pursuant to § 22.150 175.5 to pay for recurring operational expenses incurred by the school division. Localities
51 are not required to provide a local match of the withdrawn funds.

- **52** 18. English as a Second Language Payments
- A payment of \$62,210,121 \$59,957,366 the first year and \$65,479,578 \$62,519,408 the
 second year from the general fund shall be disbursed by the Department of Education to

Appropriations(\$) rst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

local school divisions to support the state share of 17 professional instructional positions per 1,000 students for whom English is a second language. Local school divisions shall provide a local match based on the composite index of local ability-to-pay.

4 19. Special Education Instruction Payments

ITEM 136.

1

2

3

5 a. The Department of Education shall establish rates for all elements of Special Education 6 Instruction Payments.

7 b. Out of the appropriations in this Item, the Department of Education shall make available, 8 subject to implementation by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, an amount estimated at 9 \$28,004,796 \$89,503,626 the first year and \$35,146,571 \$100,397,909 the second year from 10 the general fund and \$67,633,790 the first year and \$65,930,420 the second year from the 11 Lottery Proceeds Fund for the purpose of the state's share of the tuition rates for approved 12 public Special Education Regional Tuition school programs. Notwithstanding any contrary 13 provision of law, the state's share of the tuition rates shall be based on the composite index of 14 local ability-to-pay.

15 c. Out of the amounts for Financial Assistance for Categorical Programs, \$35,588,024 the first 16 year and \$35,588,024 \$35,660,182 the second year from the general fund is appropriated to 17 permit the Department of Education to enter into agreements with selected local school boards 18 for the provision of educational services to children residing in certain hospitals, clinics, and 19 detention homes by employees of the local school boards. The portion of these funds provided 20 for educational services to children residing in local or regional detention homes shall only be 21 determined on the basis of children detained in such facilities through a court order issued by 22 a court of the Commonwealth. The selection and employment of instructional and 23 administrative personnel under such agreements will be the responsibility of the local school 24 board in accordance with procedures as prescribed by the local school board. State payments 25 for the first year to the local school boards operating these programs will be based on certified 26 expenditures from the fourth quarter of FY 2018 and the first three quarters of FY 2019. State 27 payments for the second year to the local school boards operating these programs will be 28 based on certified expenditures from the fourth quarter of FY 2019 and the first three quarters 29 of FY 2020.

30 20. Vocational Education Instruction Payments

31 a. It is the intention of the General Assembly that the Department of Education explore 32 initiatives that will encourage greater cooperation between jurisdictions and the Virginia 33 Community College System in meeting the needs of public school systems.

- 34 b. This appropriation includes \$1,800,000 the first year and \$1,800,000 the second year from 35 the Lottery Proceeds Fund for secondary vocational-technical equipment. A base allocation of 36 \$2,000 each year shall be available for all divisions, with the remainder of the funding 37 distributed on the basis of student enrollment in secondary vocational-technical courses. State 38 funds received for secondary vocational-technical equipment must be used to supplement, not 39 supplant, any funds currently provided for secondary vocational-technical equipment within the locality. Local school divisions are not required to provide a local match in order to 40 receive these state funds. 41
- 42 c.1) This appropriation includes an additional \$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,000,000 the 43 second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund to update vocational-technical equipment to 44 industry standards providing students with classroom experience that translates to the 45 workforce.
- 46 2) Of this amount, \$1,400,000 the first year and \$1,400,000 the second year is provided for 47 vocational-technical equipment in high-demand, high-skill, and fast-growth industry sectors 48 as identified by the Virginia Board of Workforce Development and based on data from the 49 Bureau of Labor Statistics and the Virginia Employment Commission.
- 50 3) Of this amount, \$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year will be awarded 51 based on competitive innovative program grants for high-demand and fast-growth industry 52 sectors with priority given to state-identified challenged schools, the Governor's Science 53 Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) academies, and the Governor's Health 54 Science Academies.

ITEM 136	í.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	d. This appropriation includes \$500,000 the first year and \$5 the Lottery Proceeds Fund to support credentialing testing professional development for instructors in science, tec mathematics-health sciences (STEM-H) career and tech	g materials fo chnology, en	or students and gineering, and		
5	21. Adult Education Payments				
6 7 8	State funds shall be used to reimburse general adult educati per pupil or cost per class basis. No state funds shall be noncredit courses.				
9	22. General Education Payments				
10 11 12	a. This appropriation includes \$2,410,988 the first year and from the Lottery Proceeds Fund to support Race to GED \$465,375 the first year and \$465,375 the second year shall	0. Out of this	appropriation,		
13 14 15	b. This appropriation includes \$1,387,240 the first year and from the Lottery Proceeds Fund to support Project Grad administrative and contractual service expenditures rela	duation and	any associated		
16	23. Virtual Virginia Payments				
17 18	a. From appropriations in this Item, the Department of Educator for the Virtual Virginia program.	ation shall pro	ovide assistance		
19 20 21	b. This appropriation includes \$498,000 the first year and \$4 the general fund to support the Virtual Virginia full-time grades nine through 12.				
22 23	c. This appropriation includes \$330,000 the first year and \$3 the general fund to support the virtual mathematics outreach		cond year from		
24 25	d. The local share of costs associated with the operation of shall be computed using the composite index of local ability		rginia program		
26	24. Individual Student Alternative Education Program (ISAE)	P) Payments			
27 28 29 30	Out of this appropriation, \$2,247,581 the first year and \$2,247 the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be provided for the secondar Alternative Education Program (ISAEP), pursuant to Chapter 1999 Session of the General Assembly.	y schools' Ind	ividual Student		
31	25. Foster Children Education Payments				
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	a. An additional state payment is provided from the Lottery year's local operations costs, as determined by the Departmen of school age as defined in § 22.1-1, Code of Virginia, not a r providing his education (a) who has been placed in foster within the geographical boundaries of such school division b state or local, which is authorized under the laws of this Com (b) who has been placed in an orphanage or children's f guardianship rights; or (c) who is a resident of Virginia and h school purposes, in a child-caring institution or group home.	t of Education esident of the care or other y a Virginia a monwealth to nome which o	a, for each pupil school division custodial care gency, whether place children; exercises legal		
41 42 43 44 45 46	b. This appropriation provides $\$11,010,422$ $\$9,615,192$ the $\$10,387,961$ the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund public school who have been placed in foster care or othe jurisdictional lines, as provided by subsections A and B of $\$$ To the extent these funds are not adequate to cover the ful Department is authorized to expend unobligated balances in	to support ch r such custor 22.1-101.1, C l costs specif	ildren attending lial care across ode of Virginia. ied therein, the		
47	26. Sales Tax Payments				
40					

48 a. This is a sum-sufficient appropriation for distribution to counties, cities and towns a49 portion of net revenue from the state sales and use tax, in support of the Standards of

FY2020

- Quality (Title 22.1, Chapter 13.2, Code of Virginia) (See the Attorney General's opinion of August 3, 1982).
- b. Certification of payments and distribution of this appropriation shall be made by the StateComptroller.
- 5 c. The distribution of state sales tax funds shall be made in equal bimonthly payments at the middle and end of each month.
- d. Included in this appropriation are the accelerated sales tax revenues attributable to §58.1638 B., D., and F.1., Code of Virginia, and collected pursuant to §3-5.06 of this act.
- 9 27. Adult Literacy Payments

ITEM 136.

24

25

26

27

28

29

- a. Appropriations in this Item include \$125,000 the first year and \$125,000 the second year
 from the general fund for the ongoing literacy programs conducted by Mountain Empire
 Community College.
- b. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Education shall provide \$100,000 the first year
 and \$100,000 the second year from the general fund for the Virginia Literacy Foundation
 grants to support programs for adult literacy including those delivered by community-based
 organizations and school divisions providing services for adults with 0-9th grade reading
 skills.
- **18** 28. Governor's School Payments
- a. Out of the amounts for Governor's School Payments, the Department of Education shall
 provide assistance for the state share of the incremental cost of regular school year Governor's
 Schools based on each participating locality's composite index of local ability-to-pay.
 Participating school divisions must certify that no tuition is assessed to students for
 participation in this program.
 - b.1) Out of the amounts for Governor's School Payments, the Department of Education shall provide assistance for the state share of the incremental cost of summer residential Governor's Schools and Foreign Language Academies to be based on the greater of the state's share of the composite index of local ability-to-pay or 50 percent. Participating school divisions must certify that no tuition is assessed to students for participation in this program if they are enrolled in a public school.
- 2) Out of the amounts for Governor's School Payments, \$41,000 the first year and \$41,000 the
 second year is provided to support the Hanover Regional Summer Governor's School for
 Career and Technical Advancement, which was established pursuant to Chapter 425, 2014
 Acts of Assembly, and Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly.
- c. For the Summer Governor's Schools and Foreign Language Academies programs, the
 Superintendent of Public Instruction is authorized to adjust the tuition rates, types of programs
 offered, length of programs, and the number of students enrolled in order to maintain costs
 within the available state and local funds for these programs.
- d. It shall be the policy of the Commonwealth that state general fund appropriations not be
 used for capital outlay, structural improvements, renovations, or fixed equipment costs
 associated with initiation of existing or proposed Governor's schools. State general fund
 appropriations may be used for the purchase of instructional equipment for such schools,
 subject to certification by the Superintendent of Public Instruction that at least an equal
 amount of funds has been committed by participating school divisions to such purchases.
- e. The Board of Education shall not take any action that would increase the state's share of
 costs associated with the Governor's Schools as set forth in this Item. This provision shall not
 prohibit the Department of Education from submitting requests for the increased costs of
 existing programs resulting from updates to student enrollment for school divisions currently
 participating in existing programs or for school divisions that begin participation in existing
 programs.
- 50 f.1) Regular school year Governor's Schools are funded through this Item based on the state's51 share of the incremental per pupil cost for providing such programs for each student attending

First Year

FY2019

ITEM 136		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	a Governor's School up to a cap of 1,800 students per Gover and a cap of 1,800 students per Governor's School in the seco pupil payment shall be adjusted for the composite index of th such students attending an academic year Governor's School Daily Membership. It is the intent of the General Assembly th amount be in addition to the basic aid per pupil funding pro- division for such students. Therefore, local school divisions a appropriate portion of the basic aid per pupil funding to students attending these programs, adjusted for costs incurre transportation, administration, and any portion of the day that Governor's School.	mor's School nd year. This he school divi ol in their Ma hat this increr ovided to the ure encourage the Governo ed by the sch	in the first year incremental per sion that counts rch 31 Average nental per pupil affected school d to provide the r's Schools for ool division for		1 1 2020
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	2) Students attending a revolving Academic Year Governor's semester shall be counted as 0.50 of a full-time equivalent st only fifty percent of the full-year funded per pupil amount. F a revolving Academic Year program will be adjusted based and January 30th enrollment each fiscal year. For purpor programs shall mean Academic Year Governor's School prog semester basis.	udent and wi unding for stu upon actual s oses of this I	ll be funded for idents attending September 30th tem, revolving		
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	3) Students attending a continuous, non-revolving Acader program shall be counted as a full-time equivalent student any year funded per pupil amount. Funding for students attending Academic Year Governor's School program will be adjusted 30th student enrollment each fiscal year. For purposes of revolving programs shall mean Academic Year Governor's admit students at the beginning of the school year. Fairfax Co reduce local per pupil funding for the Thomas Jefferson G amounts appropriated for the 2003-2004 school year.	d will be fun g a continuous based upon ac this Item, co s School prog unty Public S	ded for the full- , non-revolving ctual September ontinuous, non- grams that only chools shall not		
28 29	g. All regional Governor's Schools are encouraged to provide programs.	full-day grad	es 9 through 12		
30 31 32 33 34	h. Out of the appropriation included in paragraph C. 39. of t the second year from the general fund is provided in the School funding allocation to increase the per pupil amount t for a compensation supplement payment equal to $3.0 \ 5.0 \ pc$ 2019, for Academic Year Governor's School instructional a	Academic Y he second ye ercent of base	ear Governor's ar as an add-on e pay on July 1,		
35	29. School Nutrition Payments				
36 37 38 39	It is provided that, subject to implementation by the Superin no disbursement shall be made out of the appropriation for so in which the schools permit the sale of competitive foods in f during the time of service of food funded pursuant to this Iter	chool nutrition ood service fa	n to any locality		
40	30. School Breakfast Payments				
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49	a. Out of this appropriation, $\frac{6,731,771}{6,287,789}$ the $\frac{7,439,888}{6,739,888}$ the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund i funded incentive program to maximize federal school nutri student participation in the school breakfast program. Thes school division as a reimbursement for breakfast meals ser baseline established by the Department of Education. The p be 0.22 ; however, the department is authorized, but not reaproportionately in the event that the actual number of meals number on which this appropriation is based so that this appropriation is based so that this appropriate the school set of the set of	s included to rition revenue e funds are a ved that are i er meal reimil quired to redut to be reimbur	continue a state es and increase available to any n excess of the pursement shall ace this amount sed exceeds the		
50 51 52 53 54 55	b. In order to receive these funds, school divisions must ce- used to supplement existing funds provided by the local go funds derived from sources that are not generated by the sch not been reduced or eliminated. The funds shall be used to i in the school breakfast program. These efforts may incl reducing the per meal price paid by students, reducing com-	overning body nool nutrition mprove stude ude, but are	y and that local programs have ant participation not limited to,		

in the school breakfast program. These efforts may include, but are not limited to, reducing the per meal price paid by students, reducing competitive food sales in order to

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

improve the quality of nutritional offerings in schools, increasing access to the school breakfast program, or providing programs to increase parent and student knowledge of good nutritional practices. In no event shall these funds be used to reduce local tax revenues below the level appropriated to school nutrition programs in the prior year. Further, these funds must be provided to the school nutrition programs and may not be used for any other school purpose.

7 c.1) Out of this appropriation, \$1,074,000 the first year and \$1,074,000 the second year from 8 the general fund is provided to fund an After-the-Bell Model breakfast program available on a 9 voluntary basis to elementary, middle, and high schools where student eligibility for free or 10 reduced lunch exceeds 45.0 percent for the participating eligible school, and to provide 11 additional reimbursement for eligible meals served in the current traditional school breakfast program at all grade levels in any participating school. The Department of Education is 12 13 directed to ensure that only eligible schools receive reimbursement funding for participating 14 in the After-the-Bell school breakfast model. The schools participating in the program shall 15 evaluate the educational impact of the models implemented that provide school breakfasts to 16 students after the first bell of the school day, based on the guidelines developed by the 17 Department of Education and submit the required report to the Department of Education no later than August 31, 2019 for the 2018-2019 school year and no later than August 31, 2020 18 19 for the 2019-2020 school year.

20 2) The Department of Education shall communicate, through Superintendent's Memo, to 21 school divisions the types of breakfast serving models and the criteria that will meet the 22 requirements for this State reimbursement, which may include, but are not limited to, 23 breakfast in the classroom, grab and go breakfast, or a breakfast after first period. School 24 divisions may determine the breakfast serving model that best applies to its students, so long 25 as it occurs after the instructional day has begun. For the 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 school years, the Department of Education shall monthly transfer to each school division a 26 27 reimbursement rate of \$0.05 per breakfast meal that meets either of the established criteria in 28 elementary schools and a reimbursement rate of \$0.10 per breakfast meal that meets either of 29 the established criteria in middle or high schools.

30 3) No later than July 1, 2018 for the 2018-2019 school year and no later than July 1, 2019 for 31 the 2019-2020 school year, the Department of Education shall provide for a breakfast program application process for school divisions with eligible schools, including guidelines 32 33 regarding specified required data to be compiled from the prior school year or years and for 34 the upcoming school year program. The number of approved applications shall be based on 35 the estimated number of sites that can be accommodated within the approved funding level. 36 The Department of Education shall set criteria for establishing priority should the number of 37 applications from eligible schools exceed the approved funding level. The reporting 38 requirements must include: chronic absenteeism rates, student attendance and tardy arrivals, 39 office discipline referrals, student achievement measures, teachers' and administrators' 40 responses to the impact of the program on student hunger, student attentiveness, and overall 41 classroom learning environment before and after implementation, and the financial impact on 42 the division's school food program. Funded schools that do not provide data by August 31 are 43 subject to exclusion from funding in the following year. The Department of Education shall 44 collect and compile the results of the breakfast program and shall submit the report to the 45 Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no 46 later than November 1 following each school year.

47 31. Clinical Faculty and Mentor Teacher Program Payments

This appropriation includes \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from the
 Lottery Proceeds Fund to be paid to local school divisions for statewide Mentor Teacher
 Programs to assist pre-service teachers and beginning teachers to make a successful transition
 into full-time teaching. This appropriation also includes \$318,750 the first year and \$318,750
 the second year from the general fund for Clinical Faculty programs to assist pre-service
 teachers and beginning teachers to make a successful transition into full-time teaching. Such
 programs shall include elements which are consistent with the following:

- a. An application process for localities and school/higher education partnerships that wish toparticipate in the programs;
- 57 b. For Clinical Faculty programs only, provisions for a local funding or institutional

3 4 5

1

2

6

ITEM 136	. 1	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Y FY202
1	commitment of 50 percent, to match state grants of 50 percent;	1 12017	112020	1 1 2017	11202
2 3 4 5 6	c. Program plans which include a description of the criteria for and mentor teachers, training, support, and compensation for teachers, collaboration between the school division and instit the clinical faculty and mentor teacher assignment process, and the programs;	clinical fact utions of hi	lty and mentor gher education,		
7 8 9	d. The Department of Education shall allow flexibility to local education institutions regarding compensation for clinical fa consistent with these elements of the programs; and				
10 11 12 13	e. It is the intent of the General Assembly that no preferen beginning teacher programs be construed by the language in operating beginning teacher mentor programs shall receiv funding.	this Item. Se	chool divisions		
14	32. Career Switcher/Alternative Licensure Payments				
15 16 17 18	Appropriations in this Item include \$279,983 the first year and from the general fund to provide grants to school divisions th for new teachers entering the profession through the altern prescribed by the Board of Education.	at employ r	nentor teachers		
19	33. Virginia Workplace Readiness Skills Assessment				
20 21 22 23	Appropriations in this Item include \$308,655 the first year and from the general fund to provide support grants to school divi graduates. To provide flexibility, school divisions may use th assessment or for other industry certification preparation and	isions for sta e state grant	andard diploma		
24	34. Early Reading Specialists Initiative				
25 26 27 28	a. An additional payment of \$1,476,790 the first year and \$1,47 the general fund shall be disbursed by the Department of Ed school divisions for the purpose of providing a reading specia grade that rank lowest statewide on the reading Standards of L	ucation to q list for scho	ualifying local ols with a third		
29 30	b. These payments shall be based on the state's share of the co specialist per qualifying school.	st of providi	ing one reading		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	c. These payments are available to any school division with a certifies to the Department of Education that the division has I provide direct services to children reading below grade lever reading achievement and (2) applies and receives a waiver for Board of Education for the administration of third grade SOI history and social science or both for the purpose of creating a for reading specialists to work with students reading below grad achievement.	hired a readi al in the sch or up to two assessmen additional inst	ng specialist to ool to improve years from the ts in science or structional time		
39 40 41 42 43	d. These payments also are available to any school division w certifies to the Department of Education that the division collegiate programs and instruction for currently employed ins to earn the credentials necessary to meet licensure required reading specialist.	is support structional se	ing tuition for chool personnel		
44 45	e. School divisions receiving these payments are required to r the composite index of local ability-to-pay.	natch these	funds based on		
46 47	f. Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from this preligible schools under the Math/Reading Instructional Specie				
48	35. Math/Reading Instructional Specialist Initiative				
49	a. Included in this appropriation is \$1,834,538 the first year	and \$1,834,	538 the second		

49 a. Included in this appropriation is \$1,834,538 the first year and \$1,834,538 the second 50 year from the general fund in additional payments for reading or math instructional Second Year FY2020

	Item Details(\$)		Details(\$)		
ITE	EM 136.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	Fir F	
1	specialists at underperforming schools. From this amount, the state share of one reading or				
2	math specialist shall be provided to local school divisions with schools which rank lowest				

specialists at underperforming schools. From this amount, the state share of one reading or
 math specialist shall be provided to local school divisions with schools which rank lowest
 statewide on the Spring Standards of Learning (SOL) math or reading assessment. Funding
 for one math or reading specialist during the 2018-2020 biennium shall be based on the results
 of the Spring 2017 SOL assessments. Such schools shall be eligible to receive the state share
 of funding for both years of the biennium. If, following certification from a school division
 that it will not participate in the program, the Department is authorized to identify additional
 eligible schools based upon the list of schools that rank lowest on the Spring SOL math or
 reading assessment.

b. These payments are available to any school division with a qualifying school that certifies
to the Department of Education that the division has (1) hired a math or reading instructional
specialist, or (2) is supporting tuition for collegiate programs and instruction for currently
employed instructional school personnel to earn the credentials necessary to meet licensure
requirements to be endorsed as a math specialist or a reading specialist. Localities receiving
these payments are required to match these funds based on the composite index of local
ability-to-pay.

c. The Department of Education is authorized to utilize available funding appropriated to the Early Reading Specialist Initiative contained in this Item to pay for instructional specialists at additional eligible schools, or to support tuition for collegiate programs and instruction for currently employed instructional school personnel at additional eligible schools to earn the credentials necessary to meet licensure requirements to be endorsed as an instructional specialist.

d. Within the fiscal year, any funds not awarded from this program may be awarded toeligible schools under the Early Reading Specialists Initiative.

36. Broadband Connectivity Capabilities

17

18

19

20

21

22

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

By November 1 each year, school divisions shall report to the Department of Education the status of broadband connectivity capability of schools in the division on a form to be provided by the Department. Such report shall include school-level information on the method of Internet service delivery, the level of bandwidth capacity and the degree such capacity is sufficient for delivery of school-wide digital resources and instruction, degree of internet connectivity via Wi-Fi, cost information related to Internet connectivity, data security, and such other pertinent information as determined by the Department of Education. The Department shall provide a summary of the division responses in a report to be made available on its agency Web site.

35 37. Supplemental Lottery Per Pupil Allocation Payments

36 a. Out of this appropriation, an amount estimated at \$234,670,780 \$253,190,472 the first year and \$239,357,235 \$255,531,948 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund shall be 37 disbursed by the Department of Education to local school divisions to support the state share 38 39 of an estimated 336.08 364.15 per pupil the first year and 341.96 367.44 per pupil the second year in adjusted March 31 average daily membership. These per pupil amounts are 40 subject to change for the purpose of payment to school divisions based on the actual March 31 41 ADM collected each year. No locality shall be required to maintain a per pupil expenditure 42 43 each year from local funds which is greater than the per pupil amount expended by the 44 locality for such purposes in the year upon which the 2016-18 biennial Standards of Quality 45 expenditure data were based.

- b. Of the amounts listed above, school divisions are permitted to spend such funds on both
 recurring and nonrecurring expenses in a manner that best supports the needs of the schools
 divisions. No local match is required.
- 49 c. Any lottery funds provided to school divisions from this item that are unexpended as of
 50 June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2020, shall be carried on the books of the locality to be
 51 appropriated to the school division in the following year.
- **52** 38. Special Education Endorsement Program
- a. Notwithstanding § 22.1-290.02, Code of Virginia, out of this appropriation, \$437,186 the
 first year and \$437,186 the second year from the general fund is provided for traineeships and

179

Item Details(\$)			
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

program operation grants that shall be awarded to public Virginia institutions of higher education to prepare persons who are employed in the public schools of Virginia, state operated programs, or regional special education centers as special educators with a provisional license and enrolled either part-time or full-time in programs for the education of children with disabilities. Applicants shall be graduates of a regionally accredited college or university.

b. The award of such grants shall be made by the Department of Education, and the number of awards during any one year shall depend upon the amounts appropriated by the General Assembly for this purpose. The amount awarded for each traineeship shall be \$600 for a minimum of three semester hours of course work in areas required for the special education endorsement to be taken by the applicant during a single semester or summer session. Only one traineeship shall be awarded to a single applicant in a single 13

14 39. Compensation Supplement

ITEM 136.

1

2

3

4

5

6

15 a.1) Out of this appropriation, \$130,895,609 \$218,203,996 the second year from the 16 general fund and \$432,317 \$720,891 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund is 17 provided for the state share of a payment equivalent to a 3.0 5.0 percent salary incentive increase, effective July 1, 2019, for funded SOQ instructional and support positions. 18 19 Funded SOQ instructional positions shall include the teacher, guidance counselor, 20 librarian, instructional aide, principal, and assistant principal positions funded through the 21 SOQ staffing standards for each school division in the biennium. This amount includes 22 \$568,499 \$932,580 the second year from the general fund referenced in paragraph C. 28. 23 h. for the Academic Year Governor's Schools for a 3.0 5.0 percent salary incentive 24 increase, effective July 1, 2019, for instructional and support positions, and this amount 25 includes \$432,317 \$720,891 the second year from the Lottery Proceeds Fund referenced in 26 paragraph C. 9. f. 4) for Regional Alternative Education Programs for a 3.0 5.0 percent 27 salary incentive increase, effective July 1, 2019, for instructional and support positions.

28 2) It is the intent that the instructional and support position salaries be increased in school 29 divisions throughout the state by at least an average of 3.0 5.0 percent during the 2018-30 2020 biennium. Sufficient funds are appropriated in this act to finance, on a statewide 31 basis, the state share of a 3.0 5.0 percent salary increase for funded SOQ instructional and 32 support positions, effective July 1, 2019, to school divisions which certify to the 33 Department of Education, by April June 1, 2019, that salary increases of a minimum 34 average of 3.050 percent have been or will have been provided during the 2018-2020 35 biennium, either in the first year or in the second year or through a combination of the two 36 years, to instructional and support personnel.

- 37 b. This funding is not intended as a mandate to increase salaries.
- 38 40. Small School Division Enrollment Loss Payments

Out of this appropriation, \$6,112,706 the first year from the general fund is allocated to
eligible school divisions that have realized and reported to the Department of Education a
total of a five percent or more decline in average daily membership from March 31, 2013,
to March 31, 2018, with a minimum dollar amount for such eligible school divisions of
\$75,000. Such eligible school divisions shall receive an apportioned allocation as specified
below:

45	DIVISION NAME	FY 2019
46	ALLEGHANY	\$277,068
47	AMHERST	\$159,179
48	BATH	\$75,000
49	BEDFORD	\$343,221
50	BLAND	\$93,254
51	BOTETOURT	\$147,129
52	BRUNSWICK	\$155,111
53	BUCHANAN	\$209,987
54	CARROLL	\$288,674

		Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 13		First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	CHARLES CITY				\$75,000
2	CHARLOTTE				\$91,755
3	CLARKE				\$75,000
4	CRAIG				\$75,000
5	CUMBERLAND				\$75,000
6	DICKENSON				\$157,259
7	DINWIDDIE				\$119,359
8	ESSEX				\$80,965
9	GRAYSON				\$142,166
10	GREENSVILLE				\$86,726
11	HALIFAX				\$299,314
12	KING & QUEEN				\$75,000
13	LANCASTER				\$75,000
14	MADISON				\$75,000
15	MATHEWS				\$75,000
16	MECKLENBURG				\$183,246
17	NELSON				\$75,000
18	NORTHUMBERLAND				\$75,000
19	NOTTOWAY				\$114,243
20	PRINCE EDWARD				\$98,625
21	PULASKI				\$168,097
22	RAPPAHANNOCK				\$75,000
23	RUSSELL				\$256,057
24	SCOTT				\$136,340
25	SMYTH				\$241,110
26	SURRY				\$75,000
27	SUSSEX				\$75,000
28	TAZEWELL				\$342,700
29	WYTHE				\$108,477
30	BUENA VISTA				\$75,000
31	DANVILLE				\$260,493
32	MARTINSVILLE				\$131,417
33	NORTON				\$75,000
34	PETERSBURG				\$145,734
35	FRANKLIN CITY				\$75,000
36	TOTAL				\$6,112,706

37 41. Virginia Preschool Initiative Plus

Out of this appropriation, \$9,678,780 the second year from the general fund is provided to 38 39 sustain approximately 1,530 student slots of high quality preschool for at risk four year olds 40 within the 13 divisions that participate in the federally-funded Preschool Development Grant 41 program known as Virginia Preschool Initiative Plus. These school divisions shall be 42 responsible for ensuring that all such slots meet expectations set forth in the Department of 43 Education's November 2018 Plan to Ensure High-Quality Instruction in All Virginia 44 Preschool Initiative Classrooms, submitted to the General Assembly pursuant to paragraph 45 C.14.j. of this Item. In fiscal year 2020, localities are not responsible for a local match of 46 funding for any slots used. Beginning in fiscal year 2021, a local match of 10.0 percent is 47 required, and the local match shall increase annually by 10.0 percent each year thereafter, not to exceed the lower of the school division's composite index of local ability-to-pay or 48 49 0.5000.

51Federal Assistance to Local Education Programs52(17901).....

\$1,066,525,233 \$1,066,525,233

\$1,066,525,233 \$1,066,525,233

⁵⁰ 137. Federal Education Assistance Programs (17900).....

ITEM 137	<i>'</i> .	Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$1,066,525,233	\$1,066,525,233		
2	Authority: PL 107-110, PL 108-446, PL 105-332, PL	. 105-220, PL 105-22	20, Federal Code.		
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	a. The appropriation to support payments to school funds is contained in this Item. Such federal progra estimates available to the Department of Edu informational purposes and are subject to change awarding federal agency. The Department of Educat federal program grant fund amounts contained in the throughout the biennium.	m grant funds are bacation and are provide the state of within each state for is directed to upon	ased on the latest ovided here for iscal year by the late the estimated		
10 11 12	b. The Department of Education will encourag reimbursements for eligible special education expe- available state and local funding for other education	enditures which will	help to increase		
13 14 15 16 17 18	c. It is the intent of the General Assembly that in an or budgeted by the Commonwealth, applicable to a were derived from a federally funded grant or p decrease in such funding levels, that the Commor decreased federal funding received or budgeted with Commonwealth.	ny public education rogram and subsective wealth will not sup	n program, which quently realize a pplant any of the		
19 20	Item Details of Federal Education Assistance Program Awards (17900)	1	FY 2019		FY 2020
21	Project AWARE and YMHFA	\$1,	948,697		\$0
22 23	School Nutrition - Breakfast, Lunch, Special Milk	\$348,	354,872	\$3	69,078,569
24 25 26	School Nutrition - Summer Food Service Program and After School At- risk Program	\$14,	250,000	\$	14,250,000
27	Fresh Fruit and Vegetables	\$4,	714,061		\$4,714,061
28 29	Child Nutrition Programs Team Nutrition	\$	498,010		\$498,010
30 31	Special Education - Program Improvement	\$1,	524,000		\$1,524,000
32 33	Special Education - IDEA - Part B Section 611	\$291,	082,767	\$2	91,082,767
34 35	Special Education - IDEA - Part B Section 619 - Preschool	\$8,	863,495		\$8,863,495
36 37	Federal Preschool Expansion Grant (VPI)	\$18,	775,000		\$0
38	Migration Education - Basic Grant	\$	945,262		\$945,262
39 40	Migrant Education - Consortium Incentive Grants	\$	133,333		\$133,333
41 42	Title I - Neglected & Delinquent Children	\$1,	263,459		\$1,263,459
43 44	Title I Part A - Improving Basic Programs	\$254,	532,699	\$2	54,532,699
45 46	Title II Part A - Improving Teacher Quality	\$36,	500,579	\$	36,500,579
40 47 48	Title III Part A - Language Acquisition State Grant	\$12,	743,264	\$	12,743,264
49 50	Title IV Part A - Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant	\$6,	969,326		\$6,969,326
51 52	Title IV Part B - 21st Century Community Learning Centers	\$20,	507,430	\$	20,507,430
53 54	Title VI - Rural and Low-Income Schools	\$2,	242,591		\$2,242,591

ľ	TEM 137		Ita First Ye FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
					F 1 2019	
1		Adult Literacy		12,880,748		\$12,880,748
2		Vocational Education - Basic Grant	\$2	24,254,182		\$24,254,182
3		School Climate Transformation		\$707,941		\$707,941
4		Education for Homeless Children and	5	\$1,309,517		\$1,309,517
5		Youth				
6 7		Empowering Educators through a Systems Approach	S	\$1,524,000		\$1,524,000
8		Total	\$1,00	66,525,233	\$	1,066,525,233
9 10		Total for Direct Aid to Public Education			\$8,081,924,183 \$8,088,364,908	\$8,255,961,922 \$8,393,935,922
11 12 13		Fund Sources: General	\$ 6,273,121,194 \$6, <i>320,096,458</i> \$895,000	\$6,451,298,933 \$6,559,235,618		
13		Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$2,100,000	\$895,000 \$2,100,000		
14 15		Trust and Agency	\$2,100,000 \$739,282,756	\$2,100,000 \$735,142,756		
16		Trust and Agency	\$698,748,217	\$765,180,071		
17		Federal Trust	\$1,066,525,233	\$1,066,525,233		
18 19 20		Grand Total for Department of Education, Central Office Operations			\$8,189,539,351 \$8,197,030,076	\$8,363,577,090 \$8,506,558,238
21 22		General Fund Positions	144.00	144.00 150.00		
23		Nongeneral Fund Positions	185.50	185.50		
24 25		Position Level	329.50	329.50 335.50		
26 27		Fund Sources: General	\$6,334,418,381 \$6,382,043,645	\$6,512,596,120 \$6,625,139,953		
28		Special	\$6,054,353	\$6,054,353		
29		Commonwealth Transportation	\$2,370,419	\$2,370,419		
30 31		Trust and Agency	\$739,562,319 \$699,427,780	\$735,422,319 \$765,859,634		
32		Federal Trust	\$1,107,133,879	\$1,107,133,879		
33		§ 1-51. VIRGINIA SCHOOL FOI	R THE DEAF AN	D THE BLIND (21	8)	
34	138.	Instruction (19700)			\$5,676,303	\$5,676,303
35	150.	Classroom Instruction (19701)	\$5,476,043	\$5,476,043	42,57 0,205	40,010,000
36		Occupational-Vocational Instruction (19703)	\$158,065	\$158,065		
37		Outreach and Community Assistance (19710)	\$42,195	\$42,195		
20		-	¢1 710 170	¢1 710 100		
38 39		Fund Sources: General Special	\$4,748,128 \$135,239	\$4,748,128 \$135,239		
40		Federal Trust	\$792,936	\$792,936		
41		Authority: §§ 22.1-346 through 22.1-349, Code of Virg		¢// _ ,/00		
	100		,		¢5.00 2. 240	¢5.00 2. 240
42 43	139.	Residential Support (19800)	¢110 00F	¢110 005	\$5,092,349	\$5,092,349
43 44		Food and Dietary Services (19801)	\$449,885 \$403,650	\$449,885 \$403,650		
44 45		Medical and Clinical Services (19802)	\$403,650 \$2,100,276	\$403,650 \$2,100,276		
45 46		Physical Plant Services (19803) Residential Services (19804)	\$2,100,278 \$1,784,204	\$2,100,278 \$1,784,204		
40 47		Transportation Services (19804)	\$354,334	\$1,784,204 \$354,334		
48		Fund Sources: General	\$4,949,636	\$4,949,636		
49		Special	\$104,220	\$104,220		
50		Federal Trust	\$38,493	\$38,493		
51		Authority: Title 22.1, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.	·			

				Details(\$)		iations(\$)
I	TEM 14().	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	140.	Administrative and Support Services (19900)	F 1 2019	F 1 2020	\$1,321,520	\$1,321,520
1 2	140.	General Management and Direction (19901)	\$1,321,520	\$1,321,520	\$1,521,520	\$1,521,520
3		Fund Sources: General	\$1,086,326	\$1,086,326		
4		Special	\$181,724	\$181,724		
5		Federal Trust	\$53,470	\$53,470		
6		Authority: Title 22.1, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.				
7		Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Virgi	nia School for the D	Deaf and Blind is		
8 9		authorized to retain the income generated by the r campus to outside entities.				
10 11		Total for Virginia School for the Deaf and the Blind			\$12,090,172	\$12,090,172
12		General Fund Positions	185.50	185.50		
13		Position Level	185.50	185.50		
14		Fund Sources: General	\$10,784,090	\$10,784,090		
15		Special	\$421,183	\$421,183		
15		Federal Trust	\$884,899	\$884,899		
10			<i>ф00</i> ч,0 <i>уу</i>	<i>ф004,077</i>		
17		§ 1-52. STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHI	ER EDUCATION F	OR VIRGINIA	(245)	
18 19 20	141.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$82,587,332	\$84,708,559
20 21 22		Scholarships (10810)	\$82,397,332	\$84,518,559 \$93,718,559		\$93,908,559
23 24		Regional Financial Assistance for Education (10813)	\$190,000	\$190,000		
25 26		Fund Sources: General	\$82,327,332	\$84,448,559 \$93,648,559		
27		Special	\$10,000	\$10,000		
28		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$250,000	\$250,000		
29 30		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 6, Code of Virginia Discretionary Inclusion; Undergraduate and Graduate				
31 32		A. Appropriations in this Item are subject to the cond D, E, F, G, and H hereof.	litions specified in p	paragraphs B, C,		
33 34 35		B. Those private institutions which participate appropriations in this Item shall, upon request by the submit financial and other information which the Cor	State Council of H	igher Education,		
36		C. Out of the amounts for Scholarships the following s	sums shall be made a	available for:		
37 38 39		1. Tuition Assistance Grant Program, \$65,812,66 \$72,798,303 the second year from the general undergraduate and graduate students.				
40 41		2. a. Virginia Space Grant Consortium Scholarships, S the second year from the general fund.	6795,000 the first ye	ar and \$795,000		
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49		b. Out of the amounts included in this item, \$100,0 second year from the general fund shall be prov Consortium (VSGC) to provide scholarships for select in immersive ground and flight training through the so the critical pilot shortage. The VSGC shall work w University to provide two sessions of its New Hori school students the opportunity to accomplish their	ided to the Virgin thigh school studer lo experience as a st ith Averett Univers zons solo academy first solo flight.	ia Space Grant nts to participate ep in addressing sity and Liberty giving 30 high		
49		3. Out of this appropriation, \$20,000 the first year an	a \$20,000 the secor	u year from the		

Item I	Details(\$)	
First Year	Second Year	Fi
FY2019	FY2020	I

Appropriations(\$)				
First Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

general fund is designated to provide grants of up to \$5,000 per year for Virginia students who attend schools and colleges of optometry. Each student receiving a grant shall agree to set up practice in the Commonwealth for a period of not less than two years upon completion of instruction.

- 5 4. No amount, or part of an amount, listed for any program specified under paragraph C shall6 be expended for any other program in this appropriation.
- 7 D. Tuition Assistance Grant Program

ITEM 141.

1

2

3

4

8

9

10

11

12

13

27

28

29

30

31 32

33

34

37

38 39

40

41

42

1. Payments to students out of this appropriation shall not exceed \$3,300 the first year and \$3,350 \$3,400 the second year for qualified undergraduate students and \$2,200 the first year and \$2,200 the second year for qualified graduate and medical students attending not-for-profit, independent institutions in accordance with \$ 23.1-628 through \$ 23.1-635, Code of Virginia. However, for those undergraduate students pursuing a career in teaching, payments shall be increased by an additional \$500 in their senior year.

14 2. The private institutions which participate in this program shall, during the spring semester 15 previous to the commencement of a new academic year or as soon as a student is admitted for 16 that year, whichever is later, notify their enrolled and newly admitted Virginia students about 17 the availability of tuition assistance awards under the program. The information provided to 18 students and their parents must include information about the eligibility requirements, the 19 application procedures, and the fact that the amount of the award is an estimate and is not 20 guaranteed. The number of students applying for participation and the funds appropriated for 21 the program determine the amount of the award. Conditions for reduction of award amount and award eligibility are described in this Item and in the regulations issued by the State 22 23 Council of Higher Education. The institutions shall certify to the council that such notification 24 has been completed and shall indicate the method by which it was carried out.

25 3. Institutions participating in this program must submit annually to the council copies of26 audited financial statements.

4. To be eligible for a fall or full-year award out of this appropriation, a student's application must have been received by a participating independent college or by the State Council of Higher Education by July 31. Returning students who received the award in the previous year will be prioritized with the July 31 award. Applications for a fall or full-year award received after July 31 but no later than September 14 will be held for consideration if funds are available after July 31 and returning student awards have been made. Applications for spring semester only awards must be received by December 1 and will be considered only if funds remain available.

35 5. No limitations shall be placed on the award of Tuition Assistance Grants other than those36 set forth herein or in the Code of Virginia.

6. All eligible institutions not previously approved by the State Council of Higher Education to participate in the Tuition Assistance Grant Program shall have received accreditation by a nationally recognized regional accrediting agency, prior to participation in the program or by the Commission on Osteopathic College Accreditation of the American Osteopathic Association in the case of freestanding institutions of higher education that offer the Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine as the sole degree program.

- 7. Payments to undergraduate students shall be greater than payments to graduate and medical
 students and shall be based on a differential established by the State Council of Higher
 Education for Virginia.
- 8. No awards shall be provided to graduate students except in health-related professional
 programs to include allied health, nursing, pharmacy, medicine, and osteopathic medicine.
 Notwithstanding application deadlines contained in the Virginia Administrative Code for the
 Tuition Assistance Grant program, provided that the institution has received accreditation by
 the Liaison Committee on Medical Education, the Virginia Tech Carilion School of
 Medicine shall be deemed eligible to participate in the Tuition Assistance Grant program.
- 52 9. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, Eastern Virginia Medical School is not
 53 eligible to participate in the Tuition Assistance Grant Program.

ITEM 141		Item D st Year Y2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2 3	10. Any general fund appropriation in the Tuition Assistance of unexpended at the close of business June 30 of any fiscal year shuse in the program in the following year.	Grant Pro	gram which is		1 1 2 0 2
4 5 6 7	E.1. Regional Grants and Contracts: Out of this appropriation, \$1 \$170,000 the second year from the general fund is designate participation in the Southern Regional Education Board initiativ of minority doctoral graduates.	ed to supp	port Virginia's		
8 9 10	2. The amounts listed in paragraph E.1 shall be expended agreements between the Commonwealth of Virginia and the Sout Board.				
11 12 13 14 15	F.1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,980,000 the first year and \$1, from the general fund is designated to support the Virginia Dependents program, \$ 23.1-608, Code of Virginia, to provid stipend to offset the costs of room, board, books and supplies for dependents of military service members.	Military e up to a	Survivors and \$2,200 annual		
16 17 18	2. The amount of the stipend is an estimate depending on the nur under § 23.1-608, Code of Virginia. Changes that increase or de shall be determined by the State Council of Higher Education for	ecrease the	e grant amount		
19 20 21	3. The Director, State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, s to public institutions of higher education on behalf of studen provision.				
22 23 24 25 26	4. Each institution of higher education shall report the numb program to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall repor Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Co each year.	by April t this info	1 of each year. rmation to the		
27 28 29	5. The Department of Veterans Services shall consult with the Education for Virginia prior to the dissemination of any inf financial benefits provided under this program.				
30 31 32	G.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$3,549,667 the first second year from the general fund is designated to support the Tw Grant Program.				
33 34 35 36 37	2. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall disb time students consistent with § 23.1-623 through § 23.1-627, Cod with students who are entering a senior institution as a two-year first time in the fall 2013 academic year, and who otherwise meet § 23.1-624, Code of Virginia, the maximum EFC is raised to \$12	le of Virgi r transfer t the eligit	nia. Beginning student for the		
38 39 40	3. The actual amount of the award depends on the number of s 23.1-623 through § 23.1-627, Code of Virginia. Changes that de shall be determined by the State Council of Higher Education for	ecrease the	e grant amount		
41 42 43 44 45 46 47	4. Out of this appropriation, up to \$600,000 the first year and \$ from the general fund is designated to support students eligible to 23.1-623 through § 23.1-627, Code of Virginia. The State Council Virginia shall transfer these funds to Norfolk State University, O Radford University, University of Virginia's College at Wise, V University and Virginia State University so that each institution \$ \$1,000 from these funds for these students.	for the firs l of Highe old Domin Virginia C	st time under § r Education for ion University, commonwealth		
48 49 50 51	a. Each institution shall award grants from these funds for one ye receive subsequent awards until they have satisfied the requirem class level. Each recipient may receive a maximum of one year of for a maximum total of two years of support.	ents to m	ove to the next		

52 b. Any balances remaining from the appropriation identified in paragraph G.4 shall not Second Year FY2020

	Item D	Details(\$)	Appropr	riations(\$)
ITEM 141.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
		112020		112020

revert to the general fund at the end of the fiscal year, but shall be brought forward and made available to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia to support the purposes specified in paragraphs G.1. and G.4 in the subsequent fiscal year.

4 c. It is anticipated that the institutions shift by a total of 600 the number of students each enrolls from first time freshman to transfers eligible under § 23.1-623 through § 23.1-627,
6 Code of Virginia. Institutional goals under this fund are estimated as follows:

7	Institution	Transfer Target
8	Norfolk State University	80
9	Old Dominion University	140
10	Radford University	140
11	University of Virginia's College at Wise	20
12	Virginia Commonwealth University	140
13	Virginia State University	80

d. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia may allocate these funds among the institutions in Paragraph G.4.c as necessary to meet the actual number of transfers each institution generates for students eligible for the first time under § 23.1-623 through § 23.1-627, Code of Virginia. Each institution shall report its progress toward the targets in Paragraph G.4.c to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by May 1 each year.

- 20 e. The report shall include a detailed accounting of the use of the funds provided and a plan21 for achieving the goals identified in this item.
- H. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$9,500,000 the first year and \$9,500,000 \$13,500,000 the
 second year from the general fund is designated for the New Economy Workforce Credential
 Grant Program.
 - 2. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall develop guidelines for the program, collect data, evaluate and approve grant funds for allocation to eligible institutions.

27 3. Local community colleges shall not start new workforce programs that would duplicate
28 existing high school and adult Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs for high29 demand occupations in order to receive funding under this Grant.

- 4. To qualify for the Grant, a student must have a family income at or below \$50,000 a year.
- 31 5. No more than 25 percent of Grant funds may be used in one occupational field.

25

26

30

32 I. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 each year from the general fund is designated for the 33 Cybersecurity Student Loan Repayment Public Service Grant Program (the Program) as a 34 public-private initiative for the purpose of attracting to and retaining in qualified employment 35 talented recent graduates and veterans to meet qualified employers' growing demand for 36 cybersecurity professionals. The Program shall provide renewable grants of up to \$20,000 of 37 matching state and employer funds on a competitive basis to an individual who (i) either (a) 38 graduated within the past year from a Virginia public institution of higher education or 39 regionally accredited Virginia private institution of higher education with an undergraduate or 40 graduate degree in computer science or another academic program recognized by the Council 41 to prepare an individual for a career in cybersecurity and who resides in the Commonwealth 42 or (b) has served on active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States, was discharged or 43 released within the past year from such service under conditions other than dishonorable, 44 gained experience or received training in computer science during such service, and resides in 45 the Commonwealth and (ii) accepts an offer of employment in a computer science position 46 with any federal, or state, or local government organization, including any federal or state 47 military or defense organization, that is located in the Commonwealth or any private 48 organization that contractually provides cybersecurity services for any such federal, or state, 49 or local organization and that is located in the Commonwealth. The State Council of Higher 50 Education for Virginia shall administer and award grants pursuant to the Program and shall 51 adopt regulations relating to recent graduate and veteran eligibility and academic or job 52 qualifications, the application process, and identification and prioritization of qualified 53 employers and qualified employment and may adopt such other regulations for the

I	TEM 141		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		administration of the Program as it deems nece Cybersecurity Public Service Scholarship may fu commitment utilizing the employer description contain service for each year of award received.	ulfill that progra	m's employment		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		J. 1. The State Council of Higher Education for Virgini the higher education institutions receiving state finar tuition assistance grants and review the financial a institutions by November 1, 2017. During this re opportunities for improvement as well as best practice completeness of the information provided on gift aid regarding student loans or work-study, student's abil packages among these institutions to make informed fi under which these awards or outstanding balance might	ncial aid or whose aid award letters of eview, the Counc es for, but not limit as well as studer ity to compare fin inancial choices, a	students receive utilized by these il shall identify ted to, clarity and tt's responsibility ancial aid award		
14 15 16 17 18 19		2. The Council shall then develop and implement following information is available to the student (1) a b institution's cost of attendance, designating billable c each award, indicating the type of aid; (3) the use of s with the National Association of Student Financial A (4) whether awards are conditional and renewal require	preakdown of the c harges; (2) a clear standardized termin id Administrators	omponents of the identification of nology consistent (NASFAA); and		
20 21 22		3. The Council shall report its findings and provide a soft the policy and process changes to the House Ap Committees by December 1, 2018.				
23 24	142.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$75,000	\$75,000
25		Outstanding Faculty Recognition (11009)	\$75,000	\$75,000		
26		Fund Sources: Special	\$75,000	\$75,000		
27		Authority: Outstanding Faculty Recognition Program:	Discretionary Inclu	usion.		
28		Outstanding Faculty Recognition Program				
29 30 31		1. The State Council of Higher Education for Virgini faculty members selected to be honored under this pr may be designated for this purpose.				
32 33 34		2. The faculty members shall be selected from public education in Virginia, but recipients of Outstanding Fa be eligible for the awards in subsequent years.				
35 36 37 38 39	143.	Higher Education Academic, Fiscal, and Facility Planning and Coordination (11100) Higher Education Coordination and Review (11104) Regulation of Private and Out-of-State Institutions	\$6,029,446	\$6,058,118	\$16,861,435	\$17,205,107
40 41		(11105) Institutional Program Support (11107)	\$1,251,727 \$9,580,262	\$1,251,727 \$9,895,262		
42 43 44		Fund Sources: General Special Trust and Agency	\$15,459,708 \$1,211,727 \$190,000	\$15,803,380 \$1,211,727 \$190,000		
45		Authority: § 23.1-200, § 23.1-203, § 23.1-1107, § 23.1-	-629.			
46 47 48 49		A. 1. It is the intent of the General Assembly to provide a level equivalent to the Tuition Assistance Grant Baldwin University for Virginia women resident stur Women's Institute for Leadership at Mary Baldwin U	undergraduate a dents to participat	ward with Mary		
50 51		2. The amounts included in this Item are \$307,899 the year from the general fund for the programmatic admi				

		Item Details(\$)		Аррі	
ITEM 143		rst Year Y2019	Second Year FY2020	First Yea FY2019	
1	3. General fund appropriations provided under this contract include	financial i	ncentive for the		
2	participating students at Mary Baldwin University in the Virgin	in Womer	's Institute for		

Appropriations(\$) irst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

3. General fund appropriations provided under this contract include financial incentive for the participating students at Mary Baldwin University in the Virginia Women's Institute for Leadership Program. Students receiving this financial incentive will not be eligible for Tuition Assistance Grants.

3

4

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

4. By September 1 of each year, Mary Baldwin University shall report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, the Director, State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, on the number of students participating in the Virginia Women's Leadership Program, the number of in-state and out-of-state students receiving awards, the amount of the awards, the number of students
graduating, and the number of students receiving commissions in the military.

- B. In discharging the responsibilities specified in § 23.1-219, Code of Virginia, the State
 Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall provide exemptions to individual
 proprietorships, associations, co-partnerships or corporations which are now or in the future
 will be using the words "college" or "university" in their training programs solely for their
 employees or customers, which do not offer degree-granting programs, and whose name
 includes the word "college" or "university" in a context from which it clearly appears that
 such entity is not an educational institution.
- 18 C. Out of the appropriation for Higher Education Coordination and Review, \$8,847,363 the
 19 first year and \$9,162,363 the second year from the general fund is provided for continuation
 20 of the Virtual Library of Virginia. Funding for the Virtual Library of Virginia is provided for
 21 the benefit of students and faculty at the Commonwealth's public institutions of higher
 22 education and participating nonprofit, independent private colleges and universities. Out of
 23 this amount, \$421,946 the first year and \$436,946 the second year is earmarked to allow the
 24 participation of nonprofit, independent private colleges and universities.
 - D. Out of this appropriation, \$950,366 and ten positions the first year and \$950,366 and ten positions the second year from nongeneral funds is provided to support higher education coordination and review services, including expenses incurred in the regulation and oversight of the private and out-of-state postsecondary institutions and proprietary schools operating in Virginia. These funds will be generated through fee schedules developed pursuant to § 23.1-224, Code of Virginia. Out of this amount, \$190,000 the first year and \$190,000 the second year from nongeneral funds is designated to administration of the Student Tuition Guarantee Fund.
- 33 E. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, in consultation with the House Appropriations Committee, the Senate Finance Committee, the Department of General 34 35 Services, and the Department of Planning and Budget, shall develop a six-year capital outlay plan for higher education institutions including affiliated entities. As a part of this plan 36 37 SCHEV shall consider (i) current funding mechanisms for capital projects and improvements 38 at the Commonwealth's institutions of higher education, including general obligation bonds 39 and other viable funding methods; (ii) mechanisms to assist private institutions of higher 40 education in the Commonwealth with their capital needs.
- 41 F. The Executive Director, State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, may appoint an 42 advisory committee to assist the council with technology-enriched learning initiatives. The 43 advisory committee may assist the council in (i) developing innovative, cost-effective, 44 technology-enriched teaching and learning initiatives, including distance and distributed 45 learning initiatives; (ii) improving cooperation among and between the public and private 46 institutions of higher education in the Commonwealth; (iii) improving efficiency and expand 47 the availability of technology-enriched courses; and (iv) facilitating the sharing of research 48 and experience to improve student learning.
- 49 G. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall include Eastern Virginia Medical
 50 School in any calculations used to determine the funding requirements for state medical
 51 schools.
- H. In addition to the reviews conducted under § 23.1-206 and § 23.1-306, Code of Virginia,
 the State Council of Higher Education shall evaluate the progress of individual initiatives
 funded in this act as part of the incentive funding provided to colleges and universities with
 regard to improvements in retention, graduation, degree production and other criteria the
 Council deems appropriate.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FV2019 FV2020 Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

ITEM 143.

	FY2019	FY2020
I. Out of this appropriation, \$160,295 the first year and \$160,29 general fund is designated to support research and analysis consumer information regarding higher education.		
J. Out of this appropriation, \$300,000 the first year and \$300,00 general fund is designated to support initiatives related to the education and to help implement the recommendations of the Review Commission's series of higher education reports.	e statewide pl	an for higher
K. Out of this appropriation, \$330,687 the first year and \$330 the general fund is designated to support research and analysis multi-agency longitudinal data system to improve consume recommendations.	and the admin	nistration of a
L. Out of this appropriation, \$225,000 the first year and \$225 the general fund is designated to establish and maintain a innovation. The fund is designed to stimulate collaboration and community colleges and universities to create and expand affor to pursue shared services and other efficiency initiatives at co lead to measurable cost reductions. Grants will be awarded of eligibility criteria determined by the State Council of Higher	a fund for ex ong public sch dable student lleges and un n a competitiv	cellence and nool divisions, pathways and iversities that we basis, with
M. Out of this appropriation, \$514,031 the first year and \$534 the general fund is designated for development of the Com Technology Strategic Roadmap as well as support for the Vir Committee and Fund as established in Chapter 775, 2016 Act	nmonwealth I ginia Researc	Research and h Investment
N. Out of this appropriation, \$115,333 and one position the f one position the second year from the general fund is designate student loan ombudsman to provide timely assistance to studen education loan in the Commonwealth. The ombudsman wi establishing and maintaining an online student loan borrowe would cover key loan terms, documentation requirements, mo income-based repayment options, loan forgiveness, and disclo	d for the estab nt borrowers of ill also be reserved to the er education of onthly payment	blishment of a of any student sponsible for course, which nt obligations,
O. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 the first year and \$20 the general fund is designated for an internship pilot program. stimulate public colleges and universities to develop partners internship programs for their students. Grants will be awarded Virginia public colleges and universities, with eligibility crite Council of Higher Education for Virginia. To be eligible for college or university must have at least one private sector parts be matched equally by the partner with non-state funding.	The funding is ships to provid d on a compe- ria determined r a grant a Vi	is designed to de innovative titive basis to d by the State irginia public
2. Applications by institutions of higher education shall de internship grants will be used to accomplish one or more of support the strategic objectives of the Commonwealth of Vir workforce needs; (ii) support the strategic objectives of the C regarding research and research commercialization in sector development; (iii) support regional economic growth and enhance the job readiness and access of students by prov experience as a member of a team addressing real problem employers seek; and (v) reduce the amount of educational le incur without lengthening the course of study leading to a deg credential.	of the following inia regardin commonwealth commonwealth is and clusters diversification iding valuabions and building oan debt that	ing goals: (i) ng designated th of Virginia s targeted for on plans; (iv) le workplace ng skills that students will

49 P. As part of the biennial six-year financial plan required in the provisions of § 23.1-306,
50 Code of Virginia, each public four-year institution of higher education, Richard Bland
51 College, and the Virginia Community College System shall include in its six-year plan
52 submitted to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV) a tuition and fee
53 transparency and predictability plan for in-state undergraduate students. Such tuition and
54 fee predictability plans shall be for a period of not less than three years and must cover at
55 least tuition and mandatory educational and general fees. Plans shall include a

	ITEM 143		First Year		First Year	riations(\$) Second Year
1 2		percentage and dollar increase or decrease of any si appropriate from one year to the next or for the entire	duration covered	by the plan. Plans	FY2019	FY2020
3 4 5 6		shall indicate a range of tuitions based upon available scenario that includes the assumption of no new state develop instructions related to the submission of such per financial plans as required by § 23.1-306, Code of Virge	general fund supp lans in conjunctio	port. SCHEV shall		
7 8	144.	Higher Education Federal Programs Coordination (11200)			\$2,440,426	\$2,440,426
9 10		Higher Education Federal Programs Coordination (11201)	\$2,440,426	\$2,440,426		
11		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$2,440,426	\$2,440,426		
12		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 2, Code of Virginia.				
13 14 15		Out of this appropriation, \$2,440,426 the first year an nongeneral funds is designated for grants to improve tea Act grant).				
16	145.	Financial Assistance for Public Education			#2 000 000	#2 000 000
17 18		(Categorical) (17100) Early Awareness and Readiness Programs (17117)	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000
19		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000		
20		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
21 22 23		Out of this appropriation, \$3,000,000 the first year an nongeneral funds is designated for the Gaining Ear Undergraduate Programs (GEAR-UP) grant.				
24 25 26	146.	Technology Assistance Services (18600) Distance Learning and Electronic Classroom (18602)	\$100,000	\$100,000	\$100,000	\$100,000
27		Fund Sources: Special	\$100,000	\$100,000		
28		Authority: Code of Virginia, § 23.1-211	<i><i><i>q</i> 100,000</i></i>	<i>Q</i> 100,000		
29		Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year an	od \$100.000 the	second year from		
30 31 32 33		Normal State Authorization Reciprocity Agreement (SA Southern Regional Education Board (SREB) and the Nat Reciprocity Agreements (NC-SARA).	ordination and ad RA) program as a	ministration of the administered by the		
34 35 36		Total for State Council of Higher Education for Virginia			\$105,064,193	\$107,529,092 \$116,729,092
37		General Fund Positions	46.00	46.00		
38		Nongeneral Fund Positions	17.00	17.00		
39 40		Position Level	63.00	63.00		
40 41		Fund Sources: General	\$97,787,040	\$100,251,939 \$109,451,939		
42		Special	\$1,396,727	\$1,396,727		
43 44		Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$190,000 \$250,000	\$190,000 \$250,000		
45		Federal Trust	\$5,440,426	\$5,440,426		
16				DEITY (141)		
46	1.47	§ 1-53. CHRISTOPHER NET	WPUKI UNIVE	K511 Y (242)	\$74 070 C70	¢76 000 242
47 48	147.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$74,972,673 \$76,533,673	\$76,090,343 \$77,651,343
49 50		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$37,797,505 \$38,356,782	\$38,465,175 \$39,024,452		

		Item	Item Details(\$)		iations(\$)
ITEM 147		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Higher Education Research (100102)	\$1,961,180	\$1,961,180		
2 3	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$9,877,717 \$10,394,202	\$9,877,717 \$10,394,202		
4 5	Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$6,445,684 \$6,459,684	\$6,445,684 \$6,459,684		
6 7	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$8,466,817 \$8,682,718	\$8,466,817 \$8,682,718		
8 9	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$10,423,770 \$10,679,107	\$10,873,770 \$11,129,107		
10	Fund Sources: General	\$29,175,568	\$30,293,238		
11 12	Higher Education Operating	\$45,797,105 \$47,358,105	\$45,797,105 \$47,358,105		

13 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.

14

15

16

17

- A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).
- 18 B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base 19 adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund 20 share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in 21 exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into 22 consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In 23 accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of 24 Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general 25 fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.
- 26 C. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$667,670 the second year from the general fund is 27 designated to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, 28 Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.
- 29 2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First 30 Professional awards as follows:
- 31 a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained in 32 the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;
- 33 b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion data contained in the 34 State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), C-1 A1 completion report for 35 the following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26), Engineering (14) less 36 those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physical 37 Science (42);
- c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 38 39 completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and
- 40 d. Education awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 41 completion report for the Education Programs (13).
- 42 3. Christopher Newport University is expected to increase:
- 43 a. Data Science and Technology awards by 5 in the second year.
- 44 b. Science and Engineering awards by 15 in the second year.
- 45 c. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these purposes.
- 46 4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the House 47 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals 48 annually beginning August 2020.
- 49 148. Higher Education Student Financial Assistance 50 (10800)..... 51

I	TEM 148.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Scholarships (10810)	\$8,520,157	\$8,842,285 \$9,507,167	F 1 2019	F 1 2020
2 3		Fellowships (10820)	\$15,163	\$9,507,107 \$15,163		
4 5		Fund Sources: General	\$4,975,320	\$5,297,448 \$5,962,330		
6		Higher Education Operating	\$3,560,000	\$3,560,000		
7		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.				
8 9 10 11 12 13		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be u Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority fund and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare a grant for students in innovative internship programs pro one private sector partner and the grant is matched ec funding and / or the institution from private funds.	ling who are enroll and Education prog vided that the insti	ed in Data Science grams and (2) as a tutions has at least		
14 15 16	149.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$1,498,882	\$1,498,882	\$1,498,882	\$1,498,882
17		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,498,882	\$1,498,882		
18		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.				
19 20 21		The Higher Education Operating fund source listed in sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of fundin sponsored program operations.				
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33	150.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated atFood Services (80910) Bookstores And Other Stores (80920) Residential Services (80930) Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940) Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970) Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980) Other Enterprise Functions (80990) Intercollegiate Athletics (80995) Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating 	\$17,608,538 \$709,300 \$30,482,944 \$1,801,906 \$5,774,978 \$167,142 \$13,831,856 \$9,951,221 \$60,524,016	\$17,608,538 \$709,300 \$30,482,944 \$1,801,906 \$5,774,978 \$167,142 \$13,831,856 \$9,951,221 \$60,524,016	\$80,327,885	\$80,327,885
34		Debt Service	\$19,803,869	\$19,803,869		
35		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.				
36 37		Total for Christopher Newport University			\$165,334,760 \$166,895,760	\$166,774,558 \$169,000,440
38 39 40		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions	341.56 585.18 596.18	341.56 585.18 596.18		
41 42		Position Level	926.74 937.74	926.74 937.74		
43 44		Fund Sources: General	\$34,150,888	\$35,590,686 \$36,255,568		
44 45 46		Higher Education Operating	\$111,380,003 \$112,941,003	\$30,233,308 \$111,380,003 \$112,941,003		
47		Debt Service	\$19,803,869	\$19,803,869		
48		§ 1-54. THE COLLEGE OF WILLI	AM AND MARY	IN VIRGINIA (204	4)	
49 50	151.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$207,744,934 \$215,407,230	\$209,579,454 \$217,241,750

ITEM 151		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$113,568,820 \$117,664,830	\$115,328,340 \$119,424,350		
3 4	Higher Education Research (100102)	\$1,009,170 \$1,302,405	\$1,009,170 \$1,302,405		
5	Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$8,021	\$8,021		
6 7	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$30,297,231 \$31,215,747	\$30,297,231 \$31,215,747		
8 9	Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$8,974,583 \$9, <i>378,972</i>	\$8,974,583 \$9,378,972		
10 11	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$24,700,054 \$26,911,426	\$24,700,054 \$26,911,426		
12 13	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$29,187,055 \$28,925,829	\$29,262,055 \$29,000,829		
14	Fund Sources: General	\$43,719,512	\$45,554,032		
15 16	Higher Education Operating	\$154,363,371 \$162,025,667	\$154,363,371 \$162,025,667		
17	Debt Service	\$9,662,051	\$9,662,051		

18 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.

19

20

21

22

A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).

23 B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base 24 adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund 25 share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in 26 exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In 27 accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of 28 Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general 29 fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible. 30

- 31 C. Out of this appropriation, \$245,000 the first year and \$245,000 the second year from 32 the general fund is designated to support the Lewis B. Puller Jr. Veterans Benefits Clinic.
- 33 D. Out of this appropriation, \$287,850 and two positions the second year from the general 34 fund is designated to develop a specialization in military and veterans counseling within 35 the existing clinical mental health counseling degree program and a post-graduate 36 certificate in veterans counseling.
- 37 E. The College of William and Mary may extend the authority granted to it under the 38 Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act (Title 23.1, 39 Chapter 10, Code of Virginia) to Richard Bland College in a manner that is consistent 40 with the Management Agreement By and Between the Commonwealth of Virginia and the 41 College of William and Mary in Virginia, executed November 15, 2005 and subsequently 42 amended to the provisions of the memorandum of understanding related to financial 43 operations and other related administrative areas as executed by the presidents of both 44 institutions on November 15, 2017 and as may subsequently be amended.
- 45 F. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education Operating in this Item shall be 46 considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of the amount of revenues 47 to be collected for the educational and general program under the terms of the 48 management agreement between the College of William and Mary and the 49 Commonwealth, as set forth in Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly.
- 50 G. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,221,670 the second year from the general fund is 51 designated to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, 52 Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.
- 53 2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First 54 Professional awards as follows:

	ITEM 151.			Appropr First Year	Second Year	
1 2		a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based of State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 co		FY2020 a contained in the	FY2019	FY2020
3 4 5 6		b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on con Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), following programs Biological and Biomedical Science already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technolog	C-1 A1 completi e (26), Engineerir	on report for the ng (14) less those		
7 8		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Health Professions and Relat				
9 10		d. Education awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Education Programs (13).	a contained in the	SCHEV C-1 A1		
11		3. The College of William and Mary is expected to increase	se:			
12		a. Data Science and Technology awards by 20 in the second	nd year.			
13		b. Science and Engineering awards by 15 in the second ye	ear.			
14		c. Education awards by 5 in the second year.				
15		d. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these p	ourposes.			
16 17 18		4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these ge Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report annually beginning August 2020.				
19 20 21 22		H. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 and two position fund is designated for on-line course development Government program. This program will provide a hybrid will allow the first year to be completed online.	for the Public Po	olicy's Whole of		
23 24 25	152.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$40,999,673 \$45,924,441	\$41,350,192 \$46,313,815
26 27 28		Scholarships (10810)	\$26,989,374 \$ <i>31,914,142</i> \$14,010,299	\$27,339,893 \$ <i>32,303,516</i> \$14,010,299	<i>+ · · , / · _ · , · · -</i>	+
20 29		Fund Sources: General	\$4,460,902	\$4,811,421		
30 31 32		Higher Education Operating	\$36,538,771 \$41,463,539	\$4,850,276 \$36,538,771 \$41,463,539		
33		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.				
34 35 36		A. Higher education operating funds appropriated in this based aid to Virginia undergraduate students to enhan student body.				
37 38 39 40 41		B. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Educat considered sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estin student financial aid needs, under the terms of the ma university and the Commonwealth as set forth in Chapter Assembly.	nate of the revenue anagement agreer	e collected to meet nent between the		
42 43 44 45 46 47		C. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be u Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority fundi and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare as grant for students in innovative internship programs prov one private sector partner and the grant is matched equ funding and / or the institution from private funds.	ing who are enrolle nd Education prog ided that the instit	ed in Data Science grams and (2) as a utions has at least		

48 49 50 Financial Assistance For Educational and General 153. Services (11000).....

\$31,725,000 \$32,524,929

\$31,725,000 \$32,524,929

1	ITEM 153		Iten First Year	n Details(\$) Second Year		riations(\$) Second Year
-		•	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2		Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$31,725,000 \$32,524,929	\$31,725,000 \$32,524,929		
3		Fund Sources: General	\$75,000	\$75,000		
4 5		Higher Education Operating	\$31,464,806 \$32,264,735	\$31,464,806 \$32,264,735		
6		Debt Service	\$185,194	\$185,194		
7		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.				
8 9 10 11		A. Out of this appropriation, \$75,000 the first year and general fund and \$400,000 the first year and \$400,00 funds are designated to build research capacity in bie engineering.	00 the second year	from nongeneral		
12 13 14		B. The Higher Education Operating fund source list sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of cover sponsored program operations.				
15 16 17	154.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$82,489,084 \$85,516,353	\$82,489,084 \$85,516,353
18		Food Services (80910)	\$15,448,700	\$15,448,700	<i>\$65,510,555</i>	φ05,510,555
19		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$3,875,918	\$3,875,918		
20		Residential Services (80930)	\$27,959,653	\$27,959,653		
21			\$28,359,653	\$28,359,653		
22 23		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$1,924,715	\$1,924,715		
24		Telecommunications Systems And Services		· · · · · ·		
25		(80950)	\$4,669,012	\$4,669,012		
26 27		Student Health Services (80960)	\$3,605,724 \$5,575,127	\$3,605,724 \$5,575,127		
28		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities	<i>\$0,070,127</i>	<i>\$0,0,0,12,</i>		
29 20		(80970)	\$6,639,832	\$6,639,832		
30 31		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$6,775,671 \$748,349	\$6,775,671 \$748,349		
32			\$1,006,215	\$1,006,215		
33		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$9,012,152	\$9,012,152		
34 35		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$9,276,313 \$8,605,029	\$9,276,313 \$8.605.029		
			. , ,			
36 37		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$62,351,460 \$65,378,729	\$62,351,460 \$65,378,729		
38		Debt Service	\$20,137,624	\$20,137,624		
39		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.				
40 41 42		Total for The College of William and Mary in Virginia			\$362,958,691 \$379,372,953	\$365,143,730 \$381,596,847
43		General Fund Positions	545.16	549.16		
44		Nongeneral Fund Positions	882.96	882.96		
45		Position Level	1,428.12	1,432.12		
46		Fund Sources: General	\$48,255,414	\$50,440,453		
47 48 40		Higher Education Operating	\$284,718,408 \$201,122,670	\$50,479,308 \$284,718,408 \$301,132,670		
49 50		Debt Service	\$301,132,670 \$29,984,869	\$301,132,670 \$29,984,869		
51		Richard Bla	nd College (241)			
52	155.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$13,054,585	\$13,276,008
53	100.	Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$6,253,898	\$6,452,041	÷==,00 .,000	÷; - ; 0,000
54		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$4,500	\$4,500		

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 15	5.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$729,502	\$729,502		
2	Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$1,016,298	\$1,016,298		
3	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$3,543,471	\$3,566,751		
4	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$1,506,916	\$1,506,916		
5	Fund Sources: General	\$7,398,321	\$7,549,744		
6	Higher Education Operating	\$5,656,264	\$5,726,264		

Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.

7

8

9

10

11

A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).

12 B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 13 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 14 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 15 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 16 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-17 sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit 18 increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate 19 students to the extent possible.

20 C. In order to advance the goals outlined in TJ21 and collaboration and innovation in higher 21 education, Richard Bland College may develop and deliver new, collaborative educational 22 pathways and innovative educational models, including distance learning, technology-based 23 instruction, prior learning assessments, experiential learning, stackable credentials, and 24 competency-based programs that lead to STEM-H and other high-demand credentials and 25 careers, with such funds as are appropriated or made available for this purpose. Richard Bland 26 College shall strengthen educational pathways for traditional and nontraditional students, 27 including veterans and military personnel, through the continued establishment and 28 strengthening of cross-institutional and cross-sector partnerships including the use of 29 innovative educational approaches in order to promote entry into high-demand fields and 30 industries critical to the economic development of Virginia. Richard Bland College may:

31 1. Broker agreements between and among educational, industry, and non-profit partners and 32 establish collaborative, innovative partnership agreements with school districts, public and 33 private colleges and universities, economic development agencies, employers, philanthropic 34 organizations, veterans organizations, public agencies and other partners as necessary to 35 strengthen and streamline educational pathways from high school, to work-based learning, to 36 baccalaureate and advanced degrees that prepare individuals, including nontraditional 37 students and veterans, for entry into STEM-H and other high-demand careers in the 38 Commonwealth:

39 2. Serve as a clearing house of educational pathway and career pathway information and as a40 resource and referral agency for traditional and non-traditional students, including veterans;

3. Serve as an educational innovation resource center, referral agency and hub for
collaboration, innovation, and information sharing among educational and industry partners to
facilitate the vetting, piloting, and effective implementation of innovative, evidence-based
educational resources, including open educational resources and self-paced, competencybased tools designed to maximize limited resources, improve educational outcomes, or
accelerate time to credential completion;

47 4. Pilot and implement innovative educational approaches and technologies, and promote the
48 development, delivery, and ongoing assessment of innovative, cost-effective degree programs
49 and stackable credentials, including industry-recognized, competency-based credentials that
50 are aligned with and responsive to the educational and workforce development needs of
51 traditional and non-traditional students, including veterans and military personnel, and
52 advance the economic development needs of employers and industries statewide;

53 5. Identify and implement new strategies to support economic and community development in
 54 Virginia and to expand opportunities for traditional and non-traditional students, including

			Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$)				
ITEM 155			First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1		veterans, to prepare for high-demand fields.					
2 3 4 5 6 7 8		6. Identify opportunities for resource sharing and no delivery of postsecondary education and pursue add corporate, and private philanthropic sources to su approaches to education that improve educational acc alignment between postsecondary education and h Virginia, and support improved educational attain economic development for Virginians.	litional funding l apport collabora cess and outcome high-demand car	by federal, state, tive, innovative es, strengthen the eer pathways in			
9 10		7. Richard Bland College may explore shared service collaboration with the College of William and Mary.		ons for increased			
11 12 13 14		D. Out of this appropriation, \$706,070 and seven positi seven positions the second year from the general fund i recommendations of the Auditor of Public Accounts re operations.	s designated to ad	dress the staffing			
15 16 17	156.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$1,047,077	\$1,127,644 \$1,366,180	
18 19		Scholarships (10810)	\$1,047,077	\$1,127,644 \$1,366,180			
20 21		Fund Sources: General	\$987,077	\$1,067,644 \$1,306,180			
22		Higher Education Operating	\$60,000	\$60,000			
23		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.					
24 25 26 27 28 29		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be us Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, H and (2) as a grant for students in innovative intern institutions has at least one private sector partner and t partner with non-state funding and / or the institution f	funding who are ealthcare and Edu ship programs p he grant is matche	enrolled in Data acation programs rovided that the ed equally by the			
30 31 32 33	157.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$15,000	\$15,000	\$15,000	\$15,000	
34		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$15,000	\$15,000			
35		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.					
36 37	158.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$4,727,202	\$4,727,202	
38		Food Services (80910)	\$640,600	\$640,600			
39 40		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920) Residential Services (80930)	\$200,000 \$2,377,102	\$200,000 \$2,377,102			
41		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services					
42 43		(80940) Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$248,000 \$29,000	\$248,000 \$29,000			
4 4		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$882,500	\$882,500			
45		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$350,000	\$350,000			
46		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$4,727,202	\$4,727,202			
47		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.					
48 49		Total for Richard Bland College			\$18,843,864	\$19,145,854 \$19,384,390	
50		General Fund Positions	72.43	72.43			
51		Nongeneral Fund Positions	41.41	41.41			

	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)		
ITH	EM 158.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Position Level		113.84		
2 3	Fund Sources: General	\$8,385,398	\$8,617,388 \$8,855,924		
4	Higher Education Operating	\$10,458,466	\$10,528,466		
5	Virginia I	nstitute of Marine Science (20	68)		
6 1 7	159. Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$24,760,690	\$25,254,158 \$25,640,826
8 9 10	Higher Education Instruction (100101) Higher Education Research (100102)		\$1,525,293 \$10,353,673 \$10,740,341		
11 12	Higher Education Academic (100104) Higher Education Institutional Support (10010)6) \$2,661,887	\$5,543,703 \$2,661,887		
13	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)		\$5,169,602		
14 15	Fund Sources: General		\$23,262,834 \$2 <i>3,649,502</i>		
16	Higher Education Operating	\$1,989,268	\$1,991,324		
17	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, and Title 28	8.2, Chapter 11, Code of Virgin	ia.		
18 19 20 21	A. This Item includes general and nongener initiatives that help meet statewide goals de Financial and Administrative Operations Act Assembly).	escribed in the Restructured H	Higher Education		
22 23 24 25	B. If sufficient appropriations are not made a necessary for the Virginia Institute of Mar- research projects to provide the funding for r the Appropriation Act.	ine Science to reallocate fun	ds from existing		
26 27 28 29 30	C. Out of this appropriation, \$212,772 and for positions the second year from the general Genetics and Breeding Technology Center a center shall coordinate its efforts with the repl Commission.	fund is designated to support t the Virginia Institute of Mar	t an Aquaculture rine Science. The		
31 32 33	D. It is the intent of the General Assembly th oyster remains a high priority for oyster-relate Marine Science.				
34 35 36 37	E. Out of this appropriation, \$68,391 the fin general fund is provided for the continuation funding will allow the Virginia Institute of N and technical assistance to the Commonwealth	n of the Clean Marina Program Marine Science to provide edu	n. This additional acation, outreach,		
38 39 40 41 42	F. Out of this appropriation, \$289,096 the fin general fund is designated for the monitoring This additional support will permit the Virgi data necessary to develop fishery managen project the annual blue crab catch.	g of the Chesapeake Bay's blue inia Institute of Marine Science	e crab population. ce to generate the		
43 44 45 46 47 48	G. Notwithstanding Chapter 719, 1999 Acts of the first year and \$159,579 the second year Virginia Institute of Marine Science to su Program. Expenditures and disbursements from on warrants issued by the State Comptrolle College of William and Mary.	from the general fund shall be apport the Fishery Resource m the Fund shall be made by the	e provided to the Grant Fund and ne State Treasurer		
49 50 51 52	H. Out of this appropriation, \$432,894 and 3.1 positions the second year from the general fur rise and state-of-the-art storm surge modeling of William and Mary's Virginia Coastal Police	nd is designated to support rese g, as well as for subcontracting	earch on sea level with the College		

ITEM	159.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5	legal analyses of stakeholder-driven adaptation responses to the Commonwealth Center for Recurrent Flooding Resilience partnership involving the Virginia Institute of Marine Science and the CWMVCPC, shall work with municipalities both throughout the Commonwealth to develop useful resilience	y. The center, ce, Old Domin along coasta	a collaborative ion University,		
6 7 8 9	I. Out of this appropriation, \$125,000 the first year and \$125, general fund is designated for the establishment of a mar program in partnership with Virginia-based marine scien conservation museums.	ine conservat	ion fellowship		
10 11 12 13 14 15	J. Out of this appropriation, \$14,893 the first year and \$14,7 general fund is designated for debt service costs under the Program (MELP) for upgrades to the campus information t addition to these amounts, \$590,317 and one position the firs position the second year from the general fund is designated supporting a network engineer, maintenance contracts, and s	Master Equi technology in st year and \$1 for installing	pment Leasing frastructure. In 88,086 and one		
16 17 18 19 20 21 22	K. Out of this appropriation, \$84,678 the second year from the for debt service costs under the Master Equipment Leasin equipment associated with the modeling and assessment tech water quality of the Chesapeake Bay and its tributaries. \$406,075 and 2.70 positions the second year from the gene postdoctoral researcher and two research technicians, re- materials, and ongoing service center costs.	ng Program (1 mologies used In addition t eral fund is d	MELP) for the to monitor the o this amount, esignated for a		
23 24 25 26 27	L. Out of this appropriation, \$403,000 the second year from the for development of the State of the Elizabeth River Scorect levels in the Elizabeth River. The report shall include, at a fish health data including cancer levels, tributyltin levels, integrity, in correlated contamination samples of water and	ard 2020 repo minimum, an and benthic	ort on pollution assessment of index of biotic		
28 29 30 31 32	M. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education C considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estima to be collected for the educational and general progra management agreement between the College of Wi Commonwealth, as set forth in Chapters 933 and 943 of t	ate of the amo am under the illiam and M	unt of revenues terms of the Mary and the		
33 34 35 36 37 38	N. Out of this appropriation, \$386,668 and 2.75 position general fund is provided for an annual survey of subm development of best management practices for oyster aq existence with bay grasses. The survey is also intended to as of water quality standards, permitting efforts of other sta progress towards meeting the Chesapeake Bay Program g	erged bay gr uaculture tha ssist in evalua te agencies, a	casses and the at supports co- ting attainment		
39 160. 40 41	(10800)	321,002	\$321,002	\$321,002	\$321,002
42	Fund Sources: General\$	321,002	\$321,002		
43	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28, Code of Virginia.				
44 161. 45 46 47	Services (11000) Eminent Scholars (11001)	\$75,000 ,016,561	\$75,000 \$24,016,561	\$24,091,561	\$24,091,561
48	Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating \$24,	,091,561	\$24,091,561		
49	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 28 and Title 28.2, Chapter 11, C	Code of Virgi	nia.		
50 51 52	A. Out of the amounts for sponsored programs, \$50,000 th second year from nongeneral funds shall be paid from the M Fund to support the Mariculture and Marine Product Adviso	Marine Fishing			

		Item	Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$)			
ITEM 161		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2 3	B. The Higher Education Operating fund source listed sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of fund sponsored program operations.					
4 5	Total for Virginia Institute of Marine Science			\$49,173,253	\$49,666,721 \$50,053,389	
6 7	General Fund Positions	288.47	291.17 293.92			
8	Nongeneral Fund Positions	99.30	99.30			
9 10	Position Level	387.77	390.47 393.22			
11 12	Fund Sources: General	\$23,092,424	\$23,583,836 \$2 <i>3,970,504</i>			
13	Higher Education Operating	\$26,080,829	\$26,082,885			
14 15 16	Grand Total for The College of William and Mary in Virginia			\$430,975,808 \$447,390,070	\$433,956,305 \$451,034,626	
17 18	General Fund Positions	906.06	912.76 915.51			
19	Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,023.67	1,023.67			
20 21	Position Level	1,929.73	1,936.43 1,939.18			
22 23	Fund Sources: General	\$79,733,236	\$82,641,677 \$8 <i>3,305,736</i>			
24 25	Higher Education Operating	\$321,257,703 \$337,671,965	\$321,329,759 \$337,744,021			
26	Debt Service	\$29,984,869	\$29,984,869			
27	§ 1-55. GEORGE MA	SON UNIVERSITY	<i>i</i> (247)			

\$529,319,010 \$537,854,330 162. Educational and General Programs (10000)..... \$582,319,010 \$590,854,330 Higher Education Instruction (100101)..... \$329,287,929 \$335,491,540 \$357,775,239 \$363,978,850 Higher Education Research (100102)..... \$8.608.561 \$8.686.216 \$9,718,731 \$9,796,386 \$2,133,803 Higher Education Public Services (100103)..... \$2,154,279 \$2,448,543 \$2,469,019 \$64,627,637 Higher Education Academic (100104)..... \$65,148,642 \$73,474,636 \$73,995,641 \$21.392.580 \$21.585.411 Higher Education Student Services (100105)..... \$24,973,418 \$25,166,249 \$53,316,616 \$53,828,516 Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)..... \$61,127,840 \$61,639,740 Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)..... \$49.951.884 \$50.959.726 \$53,808,445 \$52,800,603 Fund Sources: General \$137,254,116 \$142,789,436 Higher Education Operating..... \$392.064.894 \$395.064.894 \$445,064,894 \$448,064,894

47 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

48

49

50

51

A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals as described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).

B. Out of this appropriation, an amount estimated at \$289,614 the first year and \$289,614 the
second year from the general fund and \$124,120 the first year and \$124,120 the second year
from nongeneral funds are designated for the educational telecommunications project to
provide graduate engineering education. For supplemental budget requests, the participating

institutions and centers jointly shall submit a report in support of such requests to the State 1 2 Council of Higher Education for Virginia for review and recommendation to the Governor 3 and General Assembly.

ITEM 162.

4 C. Out of this appropriation, \$459,125 the first year and \$459,125 the second year from 5 the general fund is designated for the Institute for Conflict Analysis.

6 D. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base 7 adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund 8 share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in 0 exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into 10 consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In 11 accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general 12 13 fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.

- 14 E. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the 15 general fund is designated to support the Potomac Bay Science Center.
- 16 F. Out of this appropriation, \$400,000 the first year and \$400,000 the second year from the 17 general fund is designated to develop a pathway program to attract and train veterans for 18 cyber security careers.
- 19 G. The 4-VA, a public-private partnership among George Mason University, James 20 Madison University, the University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, Old Dominion University, 21 and CISCO Systems, Inc., utilizes emerging technologies to promote collaboration and 22 resource sharing to increase access, reduce time to graduation and reduce unit cost while 23 maintaining and enhancing quality. Instructional talent across the five institutions is 24 leveraged in the delivery of programs in foreign languages, science, technology, engineering and mathematics. The 4-VA Management Board can expand this partnership 25 26 to additional institutions as appropriate to meet the goals of the 4-VA initiative. It is 27 expected that funding will be pooled by the management board as required to support 28 continuing efforts of the 4-VA priorities and projects.
- 29 H. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,685,320 the second year from the general fund is 30 designated to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, 31 Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.
- 32 2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First 33 Professional awards as follows:
- 34 a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained in 35 the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;
- 36 b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion data contained in the 37 State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), C-1 A1 completion report for 38 the following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26), Engineering (14) less those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physical 39 40 Sciences (42);
- 41 c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and 42
- 43 d. Education awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 44 completion report for the Education Programs (13).
- 45 3. George Mason University is expected to increase:
- 46 a. Data Science and Technology awards by 50 in the second year.
- 47 b. Science and Engineering awards by 35 in the second year.
- c. Healthcare awards by 35 in the second year. 48
- 49 d. Education awards by 40 in the second year.

Item Details(\$)

FY2020

First Year

FY2019

		Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM	162.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these purpo	ses.			

4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals annually beginning August 2020.

5 I. Out of this appropriation \$50,000 each year from the general fund is designated for campus 6 lighting, generators and other infrastructure at the School of Conflict Resolution at the Point 7 of View facility.

8 J. The Board of Visitors of George Mason University may participate in a joint venture or 9 innovation agreement with an individual, corporation, governmental body or agency, 10 partnership, association, or other entity to develop and deliver new, collaborative distance 11 learning and technology-based instruction programs for traditional and non-traditional 12 students, including veterans and military personnel. The Board may create or operate such 13 entity accordingly. In the course of any venture or agreement, the Board may authorize a pilot 14 and implementation of distance learning and technology-based instruction programs that are 15 aligned with and responsive to the educational and workforce needs of traditional and non-16 traditional students. If the Board determines it is necessary to the development and delivery of 17 distance learning and technology-based instruction programs, the Board may create or assist 18 in the creation of; own in whole or in part or otherwise control; participate in or with any 19 entities, public or private; and purchase, receive, subscribe for, own, use, employ, sell, pledge 20 or otherwise acquire or dispose of (i) shares or obligations of, or interests in, any entity 21 organized for any purpose within or outside the Commonwealth and (ii) obligations of any 22 person or corporation. Prior to the execution of any joint venture or innovation agreement, 23 George Mason University shall formally seek and receive approval from the majority of the 24 members of the Joint Subcommittee on the Future Competitiveness of Virginia Higher 25 Education and report on whether there will be any impact on current or future operations of 26 the Online Virginia Network Authority.

163. Higher Education Student Financial Assistance

(10800)

2

3

4

27

28

29

(10000)		
Scholarships (10810)	\$31,391,565 \$34,191,565	\$32,467,260 \$38,187,653
Fellowships (10820)	\$5,708,941	\$5,708,941
Fund Sources: General	\$26,804,506	\$27,880,201 \$30,800,594
Higher Education Operating	\$10,296,000 \$13,096,000	\$10,296,000 \$13,096,000

37 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.

38 A. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 4-5.01.5.b) of this Act, George Mason University is 39 hereby authorized to transfer the balance of its discontinued student loan funds to an 40 endowment fund established by the University to be used for undergraduate and graduate 41 students in the Higher Education Student Financial Assistance Program.

B. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed 42 Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data Science 43 44 and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs and (2) as a 45 grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the institutions has at least 46 one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the partner with non-state 47 funding and / or the institution from private funds.

48 49 50 51	164.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) Eminent Scholars (11001) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$1,000,000 \$261,000,000	\$1,000,000 \$261,000,000	\$262,000,000	\$262,000,000
52 53		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$1,831,250 \$260,168,750	\$1,831,250 \$260,168,750		

54 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia. \$38 176 201

\$43,896,594

\$37 100 506

\$39,900,506

ITEM 164			Iter First Yea	Approj r First Year	priations(\$) Second Year	
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4		A. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$956,250 the first year the general fund and \$5,850,000 the first year and nongeneral funds are designated to build research of biomaterials engineering.	d \$5,850,000 the	second year from	1	
5 6		2. Out of this appropriation, \$750,000 the first year an general fund is designated for applied research in sim			e	
7 8		B. Out of this appropriation, \$125,000 the first year the general fund is designated for Lyme Disease res				
9 10 11		C. The Higher Education Operating fund source list sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of cover sponsored program operations.				
12 13	165.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$222,500,000	\$222,500,000
14		Food Services (80910)	\$34,257,808	\$34,257,808	+,- • • • , • • •	+, ,
15		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$1,832,900	\$1,832,900		
16		Residential Services (80930)	\$37,688,815	\$37,688,815		
17		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services	\$57,000,015	\$57,000,015		
18		(80940)	\$14,391,828	\$14,391,828		
19		Telecommunications Systems And Services	1 9 9	, , ,		
20		(80950)	\$513,178	\$513,178		
21		Student Health Services (80960)	\$5,023,606	\$5,023,606		
22 23		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$10,691,770	\$10,691,770		
24		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$17,512,020	\$17,512,020		
25		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$77,927,480	\$77,927,480		
26		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$22,660,595	\$22,660,595		
		-				
27 28		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Debt Service	\$168,357,800 \$54,142,200	\$168,357,800 \$54,142,200		
29		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.	++ .,=,=	++ .,,		
49						
30 31		Total for George Mason University			\$1,050,919,516 \$1,106,719,516	\$1,060,530,531 \$1,119,250,924
32		General Fund Positions	1,082.14	1,082.14		
33		Nongeneral Fund Positions	3,577.57	3,577.57		
34			3,772.57	3,772.57		
35 36		Position Level	4,659.71 4,854.71	4,659.71 4,854.71		
37 38		Fund Sources: General	\$165,889,872	\$172,500,887 \$175,421,280		
39 40		Higher Education Operating	\$830,887,444 \$886,687,444	\$833,887,444 \$889,687,444		
41		Debt Service	\$54,142,200	\$54,142,200		
42		§ 1-56. JAMES MADI	SON UNIVERSI	ГҮ (216)		
43	166.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$315,339,326	\$317,785,246
44		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$166,088,448	\$168,534,368		
45		Higher Education Research (100102)	\$895,884	\$895,884		
46		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$1,446,139	\$1,446,139		
47		Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$43,387,251	\$43,387,251		
48		Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$20,039,901	\$20,039,901		
49		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$44,817,074	\$44,817,074		
50		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$38,664,629	\$38,664,629		
51		Fund Sources: General	\$84,310,500	\$86,756,420		
51 52		Higher Education Operating	\$229,078,173	\$229,078,173		

\$229,078,173

\$229,078,173

Higher Education Operating.....

52

		Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 166.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Debt Service	\$1,950,653	\$1,950,653		

2 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 16, Code of Virginia.

A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional
initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education
Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of
Assembly).

7 B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 8 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 9 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 10 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 11 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-12 sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit 13 increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate 14 students to the extent possible.

15 C. The 4-VA, a public-private partnership among George Mason University, James Madison University, the University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, Old Dominion University, and CISCO 16 17 Systems, Inc., utilizes emerging technologies to promote collaboration and resource sharing to 18 increase access, reduce time to graduation and reduce unit cost while maintaining and 19 enhancing quality. Instructional talent across the five institutions is leveraged in the delivery 20 of programs in foreign languages, science, technology, engineering and mathematics. The 4-21 VA Management Board can expand this partnership to additional institutions as appropriate to 22 meet the goals of the 4-VA initiative. It is expected that funding will be pooled by the 23 management board as required to support continuing efforts of the 4-VA priorities and 24 projects.

D. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$2,445,920 the second year from the general fund is
 designated to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, Science
 and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.

- 28 2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First
 29 Professional awards as follows:
- a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained in the
 State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;
- b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion data contained in the State
 Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), C-1 A1 completion report for the
 following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26), Engineering (14) less those
 already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physical Sciences (42);
- 36 c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1
 37 completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and
- 38 d. Education awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1
 39 completion report for the Education Programs (13).
- 40 3. James Madison University is expected to increase:
- 41 a. Data Science and Technology awards by 10 in the second year.
- 42 b. Science and Engineering awards by 15 in the second year.
- 43 c. Healthcare awards by 45 in the second year.
- 44 d. Education awards by 15 in the second year.
- 45 e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these purposes.

46 4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the House
47 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals
48 annually beginning August 2020.

:	ITEM 167		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Approp First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	167.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$16,753,359	\$17,411,854
		Scholarships (10810)	\$15,837,388	\$16,495,883	\$10,700,000	\$18,585,366
5 6		Fellowships (10820)	\$915,971	\$ <i>17,669,395</i> \$915,971		
7		Fund Sources: General	\$9,613,739	\$10,272,234		
8 9		Higher Education Operating	\$7,139,620	\$11,445,746 \$7,139,620		
10		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 16, Code of Virginia.	· , ,	.,,,		
11 12 13 14 15 16		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be a Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, and (2) as a grant for students in innovative inter institutions has at least one private sector partner and partner with non-state funding and / or the institution	y funding who are Healthcare and Ed mship programs p the grant is match	enrolled in Data ucation programs provided that the led equally by the		
17 18	168.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)				
19		a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$37,335,958	\$37,335,958
20 21		Eminent Scholars (11001) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$39,031 \$37,296,927	\$39,031 \$37,296,927		
21		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$37,335,958	\$37,335,958		
23		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 16, Code of Virginia.	1 - ·))			
24	169.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900)				
25	10).	a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$215,053,139	\$215,053,139
26		Food Services (80910)	\$67,418,068	\$67,418,068		
27		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$1,644,000	\$1,644,000		
28 20		Residential Services (80930)	\$37,705,530	\$37,705,530		
29 30		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$6,287,490	\$6,287,490		
31 32		Telecommunications Systems And Services (80950)	\$1,392,632	\$1,392,632		
33		Student Health Services (80960)	\$6,480,601	\$6,480,601		
34		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities				
35		(80970)	\$7,505,345	\$7,505,345		
36 37		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980) Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$13,972,180 \$25,499,121	\$13,972,180 \$25,499,121		
37 38		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$47,148,172	\$47,148,172		
39 40		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Debt Service	\$180,997,356 \$34,055,783	\$180,997,356 \$34,055,783		
41		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 16, Code of Virginia.				
42 43		Total for James Madison University			\$584,481,782	\$587,586,197 \$588,759,709
44		General Fund Positions	1,167.39	1,167.39		
45		Nongeneral Fund Positions	2,440.41	2,440.41		
46		Position Level	3,607.80	3,607.80		
47 48		Fund Sources: General	\$93,924,239	\$97,028,654 \$98,202,166		
49		Higher Education Operating	\$454,551,107	\$454,551,107		
50		Debt Service	\$36,006,436	\$36,006,436		

§ 1-57. LONGWOOD UNIVERSITY (214)

				Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)	
	ITEM 170		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	170.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$69,796,261	\$70,943,261 \$71,493,261
3 4		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$33,200,365	\$33,747,365 \$33,967,365		
5		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$609,926	\$609,926		
6 7		Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$8,110,511	\$8,110,511 \$8, <i>330,511</i>		
8		Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$4,738,011	\$4,738,011		
9		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$14,567,043	\$14,567,043		
10 11		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$8,570,405	\$9,170,405 \$9,280,405		
12		Fund Sources: General	\$28,182,452	\$29,329,452		
13 14		Higher Education Operating	\$41,613,809	\$41,613,809 \$42,163,809		

15 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 17, Code of Virginia.

16

17

18

19

35

36

37

38

A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).

20 B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 21 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 22 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 23 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 24 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-25 sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this Act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit 26 increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate 27 students to the extent possible.

C. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$547,000 the second year from the general fund is designated
 to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, Science and
 Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.

31 2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First32 Professional awards as follows:

a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained in the
State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;

b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion data contained in the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), C-1 A1 completion report for the following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26), Engineering (14) less those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physical Sciences (42);

c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and

d. Education awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1
completion report for the Education Programs (13).

- **43** 3. Longwood University is expected to increase:
- 44 a. Science and Engineering awards by 5 in the second year.
- 45 b. Healthcare awards by 5 in the second year.
- 46 c. Education awards by 5 in the second year.
- 47 d. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these purposes.

48 4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the House
49 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals
50 annually beginning August 2020.

]	ITEM 171		Iter First Yea FY2019			riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	171.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$7,358,377	\$7,566,766
3 4 5		Scholarships (10810)	\$7,337,713	\$7,546,102 \$8,081,995		\$8,102,659
6		Fellowships (10820)	\$20,664	\$20,664		
7 8		Fund Sources: General	\$5,045,497	\$5,253,886 \$5,789,779		
9		Higher Education Operating	\$2,312,880	\$2,312,880		
10		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 17, Code of Virginia.				
11 12 13 14 15 16		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priorit Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, and (2) as a grant for students in innovative inte institutions has at least one private sector partner and partner with non-state funding and / or the institution	y funding who are Healthcare and Ed rnship programs j d the grant is match	e enrolled in Data lucation programs provided that the hed equally by the		
17 18 19	172.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$3,178,393	\$3,178,393
1) 20		Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$3,178,393	\$3,178,393	φ5,176,575	φ5,176,575
21		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,178,393	\$3,178,393		
22		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 17, Code of Virginia.				
23 24	173.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$64,882,672	\$64,882,672
25		Food Services (80910)	\$8,139,258	\$8,139,258		
26		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$273,195	\$273,195		
27		Residential Services (80930)	\$22,354,254	\$22,354,254		
28 29		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$989,591	\$989,591		
30		Telecommunications Systems And Services	¢051 (0 0	¢051 6 2 0		
31 32		(80950) Student Health Services (80960)	\$951,620 \$974,226	\$951,620 \$974,226		
32 33		Student Health Services (80500)	\$774,220	\$774,220		
34		(80970)	\$3,179,541	\$3,179,541		
35		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$2,172,334	\$2,172,334		
36		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$16,807,306	\$16,807,306		
37		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$9,041,347	\$9,041,347		
38 39		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Debt Service	\$57,295,361 \$7,587,311	\$57,295,361 \$7,587,311		
40		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 17, Code of Virginia.				
41 42		Total for Longwood University			\$145,215,703	\$146,571,092 \$147,656,985
43		General Fund Positions	287.89	287.89		
44		Nongeneral Fund Positions	471.67	471.67		
45		Position Level	759.56	759.56		
46 47		Fund Sources: General	\$33,227,949	\$34,583,338 \$35,119,231		
48 49		Higher Education Operating	\$104,400,443	\$104,400,443 \$104,950,443		
50		Debt Service	\$7,587,311	\$7,587,311		
51		§ 1-58. NORFOLK ST	ATE UNIVERSI	ГҮ (213)		

§ 1-58. NORFOLK STATE UNIVERSITY (213)

52 174. Educational and General Programs (10000)..... \$86,452,708 \$87,633,268

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 174.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Higher Education Instruction (100101) Higher Education Research (100102)	\$39,382,186 \$199,975	\$40,437,746 \$199,975		
3 4	Higher Education Public Services (100103) Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$1,326,879 \$10,245,834	\$1,326,879 \$10,245,834		
5 6 7	Higher Education Student Services (100105) Higher Education Institutional Support (100106) Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$5,346,684 \$17,036,290 \$12,914,860	\$5,346,684 \$17,036,290 \$13,039,860		
8 9	Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$46,933,360 \$39,519,348	\$47,759,930 \$39,873,338		
10	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.				
11 12 13 14	A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund ap initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Assembly).	the Restructured H	Higher Education		
15 16 17 18 19	B.1. Out of this appropriation, \$5,350,128 the first year a the general fund is designated for the recently initia programs in Electronics Engineering and Optical E academic programs in Electronics Engineering, Optical Criminal Justice.	ted Bachelor of Songineering and M	cience academic aster of Science		
20 21 22	2. Out of the amounts for programs listed in paragraph B the first year and \$273,486 the second year from the gen the Master Equipment Leasing Program for educational	eral fund for lease	payments through		
23 24 25	3. Out of the amounts for Educational and General Pa \$37,500 the second year from the general fund is provincome from the Eminent Scholars Program.				
26 27 28	C.1. Out of the amounts for Educational and General Pr first year and \$70,000 the second year from the general National Institute for Minorities in Applied Sciences.				
29 30 31 32 33	2. Any unexpended balances in paragraphs B.1., B.2., B of business on June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019 shall no fund, but shall be carried forward on the books of the Stat the succeeding year. Norfolk State University may export its educational and general activities.	ot revert to the surplate Comptroller and	lus of the general reappropriated in		
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41	D. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approa guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to full base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided wi authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors sh of escalating college costs for Virginia students and fa sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Boa increases on tuition and mandatory educational and gen students to the extent possible.	y fund the general th the intent that, in all take into conside milies. In accordan ard of Visitors is en	fund share of the n exercising their eration the impact ace with the cost- couraged to limit		
42 43 44	E. Out of this appropriation, \$220,000 the first year and general fund is designated to increase retention and grad academic standing and who have additional demonstrate	luation of juniors an			
45 46 47	F. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$826,570 the second yea to address increased degree production in Data Scie Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.				
48 49	2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachele Professional awards as follows:	ors, Masters, Doct	torates and First		

a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained in the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;

Year

	ITEM 174		Ite First Yes FY2019		Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on con State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), the following programs Biological and Biomedical Scien those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Te Sciences (42);	, C-1 A1 con nce (26), En	mpletion report for gineering (14) less		
6 7		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data co completion report for the Health Professions and Related I				
8 9		d. Education awards shall be based on completion data co completion report for the Education Programs (13).	ontained in th	ne SCHEV C-1 A1		
10		3. Norfolk State University is expected to increase:				
11		a. Data Science and Technology awards by 5 in the second	year.			
12		b. Science and Engineering awards by 5 in the second year.				
13		c. Healthcare awards by 5 in the second year.				
14		d. Education awards by 5 in the second year.				
15		e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these put	rposes.			
16 17 18		4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on t annually beginning August 2020.				
19 20 21 22 23 24 25		G. Norfolk State University, Virginia State University, an College at Wise, shall develop a framework and funding rec enhancing access to undergraduate education for students institutions shall submit a single report on their findin September 1, 2019, to the Secretary of Finance, Secretary House Appropriations Committee, the Chairmen of the Se the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.	commendations with high fings and reconstructions and reconstructi	ons associated with nancial needs. The commendations by n, Chairman of the		
26 27 28	175.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$17,002,323	\$17,400,189 \$18,307,464
29 30 31			16,823,771 \$178,552	\$17,221,637 \$ <i>18,128,912</i> \$178,552		
31 32		Fellowships (10820) Fund Sources: General	\$178,552 11,869,456	\$178,332 \$12,267,322		
32 33 34				\$13,174,597		
			\$5,132,867	\$5,132,867		
35		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.				
36 37 38 39 40 41		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used the Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funds Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healt and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship institutions has at least one private sector partner and the granter with non-state funding and / or the institution from the sector function.	iding who an thcare and E p programs grant is mate	e enrolled in Data ducation programs provided that the shed equally by the		
42 43 44 45	176.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at Sponsored Programs (11004)\$1	18,006,943	\$18,006,943	\$18,006,943	\$18,006,943
46		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	18,006,943	\$18,006,943		
47		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.				
48 49	177.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$41,965,589	\$41,965,589

ITEM 177		First Year		First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	Food Services (80910)	\$1,368,865	\$1,368,865		
2	Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$393,740	\$393,740		
3	Residential Services (80930)	\$14,529,508	\$14,529,508		
4	Parking And Transportation Systems And Services	· · · · · · ·	, ,- ,		
5	(80940)	\$458,180	\$458,180		
6	Student Health Services (80960)	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000		
7	Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$9,570,213	\$9,570,213		
8	Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$7,477,215	\$7,477,215		
9	Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$7,167,868	\$7,167,868		
10	-	¢20.151.005	\$20.151.005		
10	Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$38,171,807	\$38,171,807		
11	Debt Service	\$3,793,782	\$3,793,782		
12	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 19, Code of Virginia.				
13 14	Total for Norfolk State University			\$163,427,563	\$165,005,989 \$165,913,264
15	General Fund Positions	492.77	496.64		
16	Nongeneral Fund Positions	685.35	688.48		
17	Position Level	1,178.12	1,185.12		
10		#5 0,00 2 ,01,6	.		
18 19	Fund Sources: General	\$58,802,816	\$60,027,252 \$60,934,527		
19 20	Higher Education Operating	\$100,830,965	\$101,184,955		
20	Higher Education Operating Debt Service	\$3,793,782	\$3,793,782		
21	Debt Service	φ5,775,782	\$3,775,762		
22	§ 1-59. OLD DOMINI	ON UNIVERSITY	(221)		
23 178. 24	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$291,824,526	\$299,434,655 \$303,666,746
25 26	Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$161,608,643	\$169,143,772 \$171,441,654		
27 28	Higher Education Research (100102)	\$5,863,813	\$5,863,813 \$5,956,234		
29 30	Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$276,403	\$276,403 \$278,586		
31 32	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$50,734,058	\$50,734,058 \$51,537,029		
33 34	Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$17,995,501	\$17,995,501 \$18,371,520		
35 36	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$28,970,470	\$28,970,470 \$29,456,147		
37 38	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$26,375,638	\$26,450,638 \$26,625,576		
39	Fund Sources: General	\$122,968,662	\$126,655,452		
40	Higher Education Operating	\$168,855,864	\$172,779,203		
41 42	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 20, Code of Virginia.		\$177,011,294		
1.4	realonty. The 25.1, Chapter 20, Code of Virgilia.				
43 44 45 46	A.1. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund a initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 Assembly).	the Restructured H	Higher Education		

- 47 2. Out of this appropriation, the university may allocate funds to expand enrollment capacity48 through expansion of distance learning, TELETECHNET and summer school.
- B. Out of this appropriation, \$431,013 the first year and \$431,013 the second year from the general fund and \$198,244 the first year and \$198,244 the second year from nongeneral funds are designated for the educational telecommunications project to provide graduate engineering education. For supplemental budget requests, the participating institutions and centers jointly shall submit a report in support of such requests to the State Council of Higher

ITEM 178		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Education for Virginia for review and recommendation to Assembly.	o the Govern	or and General		
3 4	C. Notwithstanding § 55-297, Code of Virginia, Old Dod designated as the administrative agency for the Virginia				
5 6 7 8 9 10 11	D. Notwithstanding § 23.1-506, Code of Virginia, the gover University may charge reduced tuition to any person enrol University's TELETECHNET sites or higher education center radius of the site/center, is domiciled in, and is entitled to in institutions of higher learning in any state, or the Dist contiguous to Virginia and which has similar reciprocal pro- in Virginia.	lled in one of ers who lives we n-state tuition rict of Colur	Old Dominion vithin a 50-mile n charges in the nbia, which is		
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	E. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approa adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are pro exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Boat consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virg accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.0 Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mand fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible	o fully fund the vided with the of of Visitors inia students 1 b. of this ac atory education	he general fund e intent that, in shall take into and families. In ct, the Board of		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26	F. Out of this appropriation, \$320,000 the first year and \$320 general fund is designated to provide opportunity for 80 stude STEM education using aerospace, high tech science, tec partnership with NASA Wallops Flight Facility. Old Domini with the Virginia Space Grant Consortium and STEM educe who will participate in the program each year. The designate will not be considered as a resource for purposes of funding	ents per year t hnology and on University ators to ident ted funding in	o be engaged in engineering in will collaborate ify the students		
27 28 29 30 31 32 33	G. Out of this appropriation, \$409,200 and four positions the four positions the second year from the general fund is desig socioeconomic impacts of recurrent flooding in support of th Recurrent Flooding Resiliency. The center, a collaborative Dominion University, the Virginia Institute of Marine Science and Mary's Virginia Coastal Policy Center, shall work wi coastal Virginia and throughout the Commonwealth to develop	nated to supp ne Commonwork re partnership e, and the Col th municipali	ort modeling of ealth Center for involving Old lege of William ties both along		
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43	H. The 4-VA, a public-private partnership among Georg Madison University, the University of Virginia, Virginia Tea and CISCO Systems, Inc., utilizes emerging technologies to resource sharing to increase access, reduce time to graduate maintaining and enhancing quality. Instructional talent a leveraged in the delivery of programs in foreign langue engineering and mathematics. The 4-VA Management Board to additional institutions as appropriate to meet the goals expected that funding will be pooled by the management continuing efforts of the 4-VA priorities and projects.	ch, Old Domin to promote co on and reduce cross the five tages, science d can expand of the 4-VA	nion University, llaboration and unit cost while e institutions is e, technology, this partnership initiative. It is		
44 45 46	I. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$3,611,790 the second ye designated to address increased degree production in Da Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.				
47 48	2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, M Professional awards as follows:	lasters, Docto	prates and First		
49 50	a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 c	-			
51 52 53 54	b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on com State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), of the following programs Biological and Biomedical Science those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Tech	C-1 A1 compl e (26), Engine	etion report for eering (14) less		

ITEM 178.			Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Sciences (42);				
2 3		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion dat completion report for the Health Professions and Relat				
4 5		d. Education awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Education Programs (13).	a contained in the	e SCHEV C-1 A1		
6		3. Old Dominion University is expected to increase:				
7		a. Data Science and Technology awards by 15 in the second	nd year.			
8		b. Science and Engineering awards by 40 in the second ye	ear.			
9		c. Healthcare awards by 40 in the second year.				
10		d. Education awards by 30 in the second year.				
11		e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these p	ourposes.			
12 13 14		4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these g Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report annually beginning August 2020.				
15 16 17		J. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget President, Old Dominion University, to move up to \$2,00 from the second year to the first year.				
18 19 20	179.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$33,101,147	\$33,750,373 \$34,347,607
21 22		Scholarships (10810)	\$30,390,452	\$31,039,678 \$31,636,912		<i>\$61,617,007</i>
22		Fellowships (10820)	\$2,710,695	\$2,710,695		
24 25		Fund Sources: General	\$24,773,629	\$25,422,855 \$26,020,089		
23 26		Higher Education Operating	\$8,327,518	\$8,327,518		
27		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 20, Code of Virginia.				
28 29 30 31 32 33		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be us Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority fundi and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare a grant for students in innovative internship programs prov one private sector partner and the grant is matched equ funding and / or the institution from private funds.	ing who are enrollend Education prograded that the institution of the second seco	ed in Data Science grams and (2) as a tutions has at least		
34 35 36	180.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$17,484,202	\$17,484,202 \$17,484,260
37 38 39		Eminent Scholars (11001) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$421,387 \$17,062,815	\$421,387 \$17,062,815 \$ <i>17,062,873</i>		φ17, 404 ,200
40 41 42		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$4,064,245 \$13,419,957	\$4,064,245 \$13,419,957 \$ <i>13,420,015</i>		
43		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 20, Code of Virginia.				
44 45 46 47 48		A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$2,099,838 and 14 position 14 positions the second year from the general fund a \$4,500,000 the second year from nongeneral funds are d in modeling and simulation, which shall include effort through modeling.	and \$4,500,000 t esignated to build	the first year and research capacity		
49		2. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year and	\$250,000 the sec	ond year from the		

	ITEM 180		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		general fund is designated to support science, techno (STEM), and health-related programs. Old Dominion promote the use of modeling and simulation in the m				
4 5 6 7 8 9		B. Out of this appropriation, \$1,500,000 the first ye from the general fund is designated to expand r Bioelectrics, which uses electrical stimuli in the biom and tumors without damaging healthy surrounding tis efficiently deliver DNA vaccines. Non-biomedical pollutants in exhaust and establishing effective group	esearch efforts a edical area to elim sue, accelerate we areas of research	t the Center for inate cancer cells ound healing, and include reducing		
10 11 12		C. The Higher Education Operating fund source liste sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of f cover sponsored program operations.				
13 14 15	181.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$111,721,044 \$117,041,044	\$111,721,044 \$117,041,044
16		Food Services (80910)	\$5,260,460	\$5,260,460		
17		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$655,764	\$655,764		
18 19		Residential Services (80930)	\$32,829,062 \$34,129,062	\$32,829,062 \$34,129,062		
20 21 22		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$6,609,248 \$6,709,248	\$6,609,248 \$6,709,248		
23		Telecommunications Systems And Services	\$206121	\$206.101		
24		(80950)	\$906,134	\$906,134		
25 26		Student Health Services (80960)	\$2,687,180 \$2,807,180	\$2,687,180 \$2,807,180		
27 28		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$8,342,908	\$8,342,908		
29 30		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$2,415,657 \$4,215,657	\$2,415,657 \$4,215,657		
31		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$18,248,115	\$18,248,115		
32 33		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$33,766,516 \$35,766,516	\$33,766,516 \$35,766,516		
34 35		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$89,103,563 \$94,423,563	\$89,103,563 \$94,423,563		
36		Debt Service	\$22,617,481	\$22,617,481		

Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 20, Code of Virginia.

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

Old Dominion University is authorized to establish a self-supporting "instructional enterprise" fund to account for the revenues and expenditures of TELETECHNET classes offered at locations outside the Commonwealth of Virginia. Consistent with the selfsupporting concept of an "enterprise fund," student tuition and fee revenues for TELETECHNET students at locations outside Virginia shall exceed all direct and indirect costs of providing instruction to those students. Tuition and fee rates to meet this requirement shall be established by the University's Board of Visitors. Revenue and expenditures of the fund shall be accounted for in such a manner as to be auditable by the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia. Revenues in excess of expenditures shall be retained in the fund to support the entire TELETECHNET program. Full-time equivalent students generated through these programs shall be accounted for separately. Additionally, revenues which remain unexpended on the last day of the previous biennium and the last day of the first year of the current biennium shall be reappropriated and allotted for expenditure in the respective succeeding fiscal year.

\$454,130,919

\$459,450,919

\$462,390,274 \$472,539,657

52 53	Total for Old Dominion University		
54	General Fund Positions	1,063.51	1,084.51
55	Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,504.98	1,525.98
56	Position Level	2,568.49	2,610.49

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)		
]	ITEM 181		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: General	\$151,806,536	F 1 2020 \$156,142,552 <i>\$156,739,786</i>	F 1 2019	F 1 2020
2 3 4		Higher Education Operating	\$279,706,902 \$285,026,902	\$130,733,780 \$283,630,241 \$293,182,390		
5		Debt Service	\$22,617,481	\$22,617,481		
6		§ 1-60. RADFORD	UNIVERSITY (2)	17)		
7	182.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$128,257,092	\$129,285,552
8		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$78,703,027	\$79,731,487		
9		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$616,976	\$616,976		
10		Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$11,482,401	\$11,482,401		
11		Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$6,124,308	\$6,124,308		
12		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$20,329,736	\$20,329,736		
13		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$11,000,644	\$11,000,644		
14 15		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$51,845,521 \$76,411,571	\$52,873,981 \$76,411,571		
16		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.				
17 18 19 20		A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund an initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Assembly).	the Restructured	Higher Education		
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.				
29 30 31		C. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,028,460 the second year from the general fund is designated to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.				
32 33		2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First Professional awards as follows:				
34 35		a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 c		a contained in the		
36 37 38 39		b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on co Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV) following programs Biological and Biomedical Scien- already counted in paragraph.	, C-1 A1 completi	on report for the		
40		2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physical Science	ces (42);			
41 42		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion da completion report for the Health Professions and Rela				
43 44		d. Education awards shall be based on completion da completion report for the Education Programs (13).	ta contained in the	SCHEV C-1 A1		
45		3. Radford University is expected to increase:				
46		a. Data Science and Technology awards by 5 in the second	nd year.			
47		b. Science and Engineering awards by 5 in the second ye	ear.			
48		c. Healthcare awards by 10 in the second year.				

1 d. Education awards by 10 in the second year. 2 e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the have year for these purposes. 3 4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the Hoase Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals annually beginning August 2020. 6 5. Out the amounts designated for degree production \$300,000 the second year is designated to support a fla-fee degree plot initiative for education programs. Redford University shall offer alternative unition or fee structures, including discontet duition. flat utition rates, discounted student fees, or student fee and student services flexibilised on any in the treatment is defined in § 23.1-500 effect and program that leads to enployment as a teacher in the region. Such an alternative tuition or fee structure may be renewed each year if the student to the arm a degree in a program that leads to enployment as a teacher in the student to the institution on terms established by the institution shall convert the financial benefit received by the institution. 19 113. Higher Education Student Financial Assistance \$12.547.467 \$12.547.467 21 Kelobarships (10810) \$11.628.720 \$11.699.657 \$17.634.202 22 Fuldoward for hearing in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed Assistence Program (1082) \$11.639.956 \$11.639.767 23 Fuldoward for hearing in this item may be teacid to support Virginia Guaranteed Assistence Program (1090) \$19.07.71 \$19.07.71]	ITEM 182	·•	Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
3 4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals unmult beginning August 2020. 6 5. Out the amounts designated for degree production \$300.000 the second year is designated to support a flat-fee degree pilor initiative for ducation programs. Radford University shall offer alternitive turinion or fee structures, including disconnect utilion, flat utilion rates, discounded student fees, or student fee and student services flexibilized onicile, as that term is defined in § 23.1-500 et seq., in the Commoval in an (ii) enrolls full time try the the institution or test variable and onicile, as that term is defined in § 23.1-500 et seq., in the Commoval in a (ii) enrolls full time enrolls that time any degree program within four years, the institution on test and eagree to the student to the institution on terms stublished by the institution. It is institution on terms stublished by the institution. 19 18.3. Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (16800)	1		d. Education awards by 10 in the second year.				
4 Appropriations and Senare Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goals annually beginning August 2020. 6 5. Out the amounts designated for degree production \$300,000 the second year is designated to support a flat fee degree pilot initiative for education programs. Radford 8 University shall offer alternative tuition of restructures, including disconted tuition, flat utition rates, discounted student fees, or student fee and student services flexibility, to any tuith the intent to ear an degree in a program that leads to employment as a teacher in the region. Such an alternative tuition of restructures may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tuition of restructures may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tuition of restructures may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tuition of restructures may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tuition of restructures may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tuition or fee structures may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tuition or fee structures may be renewed each year if the region has to complete the elyptile degree program, the institution. 18 Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)	2		e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for thes	e purposes.			
7 designated to support a flat-fce degree piptor initiative for education programs. Radford 8 University shall offer alternative tution of restructures, including disconted tution. At tution, rates, discounted student frees, or student fee and student services flexibility, to any thin the intert to earn a degree in a program that leads to employment as a teacher in the region. Such an alternative tution or fee structure may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tution or fee structure may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tution or fee structure may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tution or fee structure may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tution or fee structure may be renewed each year if the region. Such an alternative tution or terms established by the institution. shall convert the financial hesefit received by the student to a financial obligation payable by the student to the institution on terms established by the institution. 91 18. Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800). \$11.628.720 \$11.994.581 12. Scholarships (10810). \$11.628.717 \$12.547.467 \$12.913.374.162.202 12. Higher Education Operating. \$10.039.996 \$14.005.887.173 \$13.541.62 13. Control of the finding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority finding who are enrolled in Data institutions has at least one private sector partner and the gram is matched equally by the partner with non-state funding and / or the institution from private funds. \$9,	4		Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report				
20(10500)\$12,547,467 $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,467$ $$512,547,547$ $$512,547,467$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$59,010,037$ $$50,522,341,670$ 30Sponsored Programs (11004)S8,561,640S8,961,640S8,961,640S8,961,640S22,341,67041Authority: Title 23,1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia. $$50,522,341,670$ $$50,522,341,670$ $$50,522,341,670$ 42I84,10 <th>7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17</th> <th></th> <th>designated to support a flat-fee degree pilot initiative University shall offer alternative tuition or fee structure tuition rates, discounted student fees, or student fee an first-time, incoming freshman undergraduate student v that term is defined in § 23.1-500 et seq., in the Comr with the intent to earn a degree in a program that lead region. Such an alternative tuition or fee structure recipient maintains continuous full-time enrollmen continuous full-time enrollment, subsequently enrolls fails to complete the eligible degree program within convert the financial benefit received by the student t</th> <th>e for education pr es, including disco d student services who (i) has establi nonwealth and (ii s to employment a may be renewed at. If a recipient in a noneligible d in four years, the o a financial oblig</th> <th>rograms. Radford ounted tuition, flat flexibility, to any shed domicile, as) enrolls full time as a teacher in the each year if the fails to maintain egree program, or institution shall</th> <th></th> <th></th>	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17		designated to support a flat-fee degree pilot initiative University shall offer alternative tuition or fee structure tuition rates, discounted student fees, or student fee an first-time, incoming freshman undergraduate student v that term is defined in § 23.1-500 et seq., in the Comr with the intent to earn a degree in a program that lead region. Such an alternative tuition or fee structure recipient maintains continuous full-time enrollmen continuous full-time enrollment, subsequently enrolls fails to complete the eligible degree program within convert the financial benefit received by the student t	e for education pr es, including disco d student services who (i) has establi nonwealth and (ii s to employment a may be renewed at. If a recipient in a noneligible d in four years, the o a financial oblig	rograms. Radford ounted tuition, flat flexibility, to any shed domicile, as) enrolls full time as a teacher in the each year if the fails to maintain egree program, or institution shall		
22 23Scholarships (10810) $\$11,628,720$ $\$11,945,81$ $\$12,622,926$ 24Fellowships (10820) $\$918,747$ $\$918,747$ 25Fund Sources: General $\$10,639,996$ $\$11,005,857$ $$11,634,202$ 27Higher Education Operating $\$1,907,471$ 28Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.29Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data Science and Technology. Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the institutions has at least one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the partner with non-state funding and / or the institution from private funds.31184.Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (1000) a sum sufficient, estimated at.\$9,010,03738Eminent Scholars (11001) Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Operation of Higher Education Centers (19900) Moreal Sufficient, estimated at.\$041Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.\$042184.10Administrative and Support Services (19900) Moreal Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Sufficient education Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Sufficient education Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Sufficient education Operating Sufficient education Sufficient education Centers (19931) Sufficient educat	20	183.				\$12,547,467	\$12,913,328 \$12,541,672
25 26Fund Sources: General.\$10,639,996\$11,605,857 \$11,634,20227Higher Education Operating.\$1,907,471\$1,907,47128Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.29Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed30Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data31Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs32and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the33institutions has at least one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the34partner with non-state funding and / or the institution from private funds.35184.Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)36Eminent Scholars (11001)\$48,39737a sum sufficient, estimated at\$9,010,03738Eminent Scholars (11004)\$8,961,64040Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating\$9,010,03741Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.42184.10Administrative and Support Services (19900)\$043\$22,341,67044Fund Sources: General\$045Higher Education Operating\$046Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia47The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to support the university's operations of Jefferson College of Health Sciences in Roanoke once it merges with Radford University.49 </th <th>22</th> <th></th> <th>Scholarships (10810)</th> <th>\$11,628,720</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>φ13,341,073</th>	22		Scholarships (10810)	\$11,628,720			φ13,341,073
26 S11,634,202 27 Higher Education Operating	24		Fellowships (10820)	\$918,747	\$918,747		
28 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia. 29 Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed 30 Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data 31 Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs 32 and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the 33 institutions has at least one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the 34 partner with non-state funding and / or the institution from private funds. 35 184. Financial Assistance For Educational and General 36 Services (11000) \$48,397 38 Eminent Scholars (11001) \$48,397 39 Sponsored Programs (11004) \$8,961,640 40 Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating \$9,010,037 41 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia. \$0 42 184.10 Administrative and Support Services (19900) \$0 43 <i>Operation of Higher Education Operating</i> \$0 \$1,707,422 44 <i>Fund Sources: General</i> \$0 \$2,0634,248 46 Authority: Tit	26				\$11,634,202		
 Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the institutions has at least one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the partner with non-state funding and / or the institution from private funds. 184. Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at			Higher Education Operating	\$1,907,471	\$1,907,471		
 Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the institutions has at least one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the partner with non-state funding and / or the institution from private funds. 184. Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at	28		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.				
36Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at\$9,010,037\$9,010,037\$9,010,03738Eminent Scholars (11001)\$48,397\$48,397\$48,39739Sponsored Programs (11004)\$8,961,640\$8,961,64040Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating\$9,010,037\$9,010,03741Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.\$0\$22,341,67042184.10Administrative and Support Services (19900)	30 31 32 33		Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, H and (2) as a grant for students in innovative intern institutions has at least one private sector partner and	funding who are lealthcare and Ed nship programs p the grant is match	enrolled in Data ucation programs provided that the led equally by the		
38Eminent Scholars (11001)\$48,397\$48,397\$48,39739Sponsored Programs (11004)\$8,961,640\$8,961,64040Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating\$9,010,037\$9,010,03741Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.\$0\$22,341,67042184.10Administrative and Support Services (19900)\$0\$22,341,67043Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)\$0\$22,341,67044Fund Sources: General\$0\$1,707,42245Higher Education Operating\$0\$20,634,24846Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia47The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to support the university's operations of Jefferson College of Health Sciences in Roanoke once it merges with Radford University.49185.Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at\$63,389,33350\$63,389,333\$63,389,3	36	184.	Services (11000)			\$9,010,037	\$9,010,037
41Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.42184.10Administrative and Support Services (19900)			Eminent Scholars (11001)				
42184.10Administrative and Support Services (19900)\$0\$22,341,67043Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)\$0\$22,341,67044Fund Sources: General\$0\$1,707,42245Higher Education Operating\$0\$20,634,24846Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia47The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to support the university's operations of Jefferson College of Health Sciences in Roanoke once it merges with Radford University.49185.Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at\$63,389,333\$63,389,333	40		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$9,010,037	\$9,010,037		
 43 Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931) 44 Fund Sources: General	41		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.				
45Higher Education Operating\$0\$20,634,24846Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia47The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to support the university's operations of Jefferson College of Health Sciences in Roanoke once it merges with Radford University.49185.Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at.\$63,389,333\$63,389,33		184.10		\$0	\$22,341,670	\$0	\$22,341,670
 47 The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to support the university's operations of Jefferson College of Health Sciences in Roanoke once it merges with Radford University. 49 185. Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at							
 47 The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to support the university's operations of Jefferson College of Health Sciences in Roanoke once it merges with Radford University. 49 185. Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at	46		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia				
49185.Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900)50a sum sufficient, estimated at\$63,389,333\$63,389,333\$63,389,3			The appropriation listed in this Item is designated to su				
51 Food Services (80910) \$17,589,847 \$17,589,847	50	185.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at	\$17,589,847		\$63,389,333	\$63,389,333

	Item	Details(\$)
	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$552,998	\$552,998
Residential Services (80930)	\$15,120,494	\$15,120,494
Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$1,514,508	\$1,514,508
Telecommunications Systems And Services (80950)	\$602,949	\$602,949
Student Health Services (80960)	\$2,962,546	\$2,962,546

\$5,687,500

\$1,516,639

\$5,687,500

\$1,516,639

Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020

\$77,150,505

9	Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$4,867,326	\$4,867,326		
10	Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$12,974,526	\$12,974,526		
11	Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$59,189,333	\$59,189,333		
12	Debt Service	\$4,200,000	\$4,200,000		
13	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 21, Code of Virginia.				
14 15	Total for Radford University			\$213,203,929	\$214,598,250 \$237,568,265
16	General Fund Positions	631.39	631.39		
17 18	Nongeneral Fund Positions	812.69	812.69 964.69		
19 20	Position Level	1,444.08	1,444.08 1,596.08		
21 22	Fund Sources: General	\$62,485,517	\$63,879,838 \$66,215,605		
23 24	Higher Education Operating	\$146,518,412	\$146,518,412 \$167,152,660		
25	Debt Service	\$4,200,000	\$4,200,000		

§ 1-61. UNIVERSITY OF MARY WASHINGTON (215)

27 28 29 30 31 32 33	186.	Educational and General Programs (10000) Higher Education Instruction (100101) Higher Education Research (100102) Higher Education Public Services (100103) Higher Education Academic (100104) Higher Education Student Services (100105) Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$39,656,593 \$418,561 \$460,385 \$9,922,575 \$8,377,983 \$10,646,609	\$39,995,143 \$418,561 \$460,385 \$9,922,575 \$8,752,983 \$10,646,609	\$76,386,955
34		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$6,904,249	\$6,954,249	
35 36		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$26,907,724 \$49,479,231	\$27,671,274 \$49,479,231	

37 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.

ITEM 185.

Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970) ...

Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980).....

1

2

3 4

5

6

7

8

26

38 A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional 39 initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education 40 Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of 41 Assembly).

42 B. Out of this appropriation an amount estimated at \$80,483 the first year and \$80,483 the 43 second year from the general fund and \$36,130 the first year and \$36,130 the second year 44 nongeneral funds are designated for the educational telecommunications project to provide 45 graduate engineering education. The participating institutions and centers shall jointly submit 46 an annual report and operating plan to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia in 47 support of these funded activities.

48 C. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 49 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 50 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 51 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 52 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-

]	ITEM 186		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the F limit increases on tuition and mandatory education undergraduate students to the extent possible.	Board of Visitors			
4 5 6 7 8		D. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Ur enter into an agreement with the Fredericksburg organization dedicated to cooperative economic develop region, for the purpose of expanding regional efforts in and research.	Regional Allia pment efforts in t	nce, a nonprofit ne Fredericksburg		
9 10 11 12 13		E. Pursuant to § 2.2-1155 B., Code of Virginia, the Ur enter into written agreements to lease property on its September 1, 2017 for use of the Gates Hudson Bu Schools, which lease is expressly conditioned upon app hereby approved.	Stafford Campus ilding by Staffor	The lease dated d County Public		
14 15 16		F. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$338,550 the second designated to address increased degree production is Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education	in Data Science			
17 18		2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelo Professional awards as follows:	ors, Masters, Doc	ctorates and First		
19 20		a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be base the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C				
21 22 23 24 25		b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHI the following programs Biological and Biomedical So those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Sciences (42);	EV), C-1 A1 com cience (26), Eng	pletion report for neering (14) less		
26 27		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion dat completion report for the Health Professions and Relat				
28 29		d. Education awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Education Programs (13).	a contained in the	SCHEV C-1 A1		
30		3. University of Mary Washington is expected to increa	se:			
31		a. Science and Engineering awards by 5 in the second y	ear.			
32		b. Education awards by 5 in the second year.				
33		c. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these	e purposes.			
34 35 36		4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these g Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report annually beginning August 2020.				
37 38 30	187.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$12,571,981	\$12,747,143
39 40 41		Scholarships (10810)	\$12,550,848	\$12,726,010 \$12,860,129		\$12,881,262
42		Fellowships (10820)	\$21,133	\$21,133		
43 44		Fund Sources: General	\$3,371,981	\$3,547,143 \$3,681,262		
45		Higher Education Operating	\$9,200,000	\$9,200,000		
46		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.				
47 48		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be us Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority				

48 Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data
 49 Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs
 50 and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the

				Item Details(\$)		iations(\$)
]	ITEM 187		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		institutions has at least one private sector partner and partner with non-state funding and / or the institution				
3 4 5	188.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$809,533	\$809,533
6 7		a sum sufficient, estimated at Eminent Scholars (11001) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$57,396 \$752,137	\$57,396 \$752,137	φ007,555	4009,555
8		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$809,533	\$809,533		
9		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.				
10 11 12	189.	Museum and Cultural Services (14500) Collections Management and Curatorial Services (14501)	\$799,139	\$799,139	\$799,139	\$799,139
13 14		Fund Sources: General Special	\$481,118 \$318,021	\$481,118 \$318,021		
15 16		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 18 and Chapter 51, Acts Code of Virginia.	of Assembly of 19	960; § 23.1-1310,		
17 18		The amounts provided in this appropriation are designates estate and memorial gallery of American artist Gari Methods		t of Belmont, the		
19 20	190.	Administrative and Support Services (19900) Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)	\$1,700,000	\$1,700,000	\$1,700,000	\$1,700,000
21 22		Fund Sources: General Special	\$1,250,000 \$450,000	\$1,250,000 \$450,000		
23		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.				
24	191.	Historic and Commemorative Attraction			\$227.007	\$227 007
25 26 27		Management (50200) Historic and Commemorative Attraction Management (50200)	\$53,950	\$53,950	\$327,897	\$327,897
28 29		Historic Landmarks and Facilities Management (50203)	\$273,947	\$273,947		
30 31		Fund Sources: General Special	\$273,947 \$53,950	\$273,947 \$53,950		
32		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, § 2.2-208 Code of Virgin	ia.			
33 34		The amounts provided in this appropriation are desig Monroe Museum and Memorial Library.	nated for the supp	ort of the James		
35 36 37	192.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$43,976,228 \$45,976,228	\$43,976,228 \$45,976,228
38 39		Food Services (80910)	\$8,886,229 \$9,250,229	\$8,886,229 \$9,250,229	+ ,> ,	+ ,> ,= = =
40		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$2,634,945	\$2,634,945		
41 42		Residential Services (80930)	\$10,826,169 \$13,921,169	\$10,826,169 \$13,921,169		
43 44		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$692,417	\$692,417		
45 46		Telecommunications Systems And Services (80950)	\$1,932,104 \$2,832,104	\$1,932,104 \$2,832,104		
47 48		Student Health Services (80960)	\$592,823 \$4,740,027	\$592,823 \$4,740,027		
48 49		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$4,749,937 \$5,391,937	\$4,749,937 \$5,391,937		
50 51		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$1,965,941 \$1,040,941	\$1,965,941 \$1,040,941		

]	ITEM 192		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020		riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$9,041,809 \$6,965,809	\$9,041,809 \$6,965,809		
3		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$2,653,854	\$2,653,854		
4 5		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$38,537,600 \$40,537,600	\$38,537,600 \$40,537,600		
6		Debt Service	\$5,438,628	\$5,438,628		
7		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.				
8 9		Total for University of Mary Washington			\$136,571,733 \$138,571,733	\$137,510,445 \$139,644,564
10		General Fund Positions	228.66	228.66		
11		Nongeneral Fund Positions	465.00	465.00		
12		Position Level	693.66	693.66		
13 14		Fund Sources: General	\$32,284,770	\$33,223,482 \$33,357,601		
15		Special	\$821,971	\$821,971		
16 17		Higher Education Operating	\$98,026,364 \$100,026,364	\$98,026,364 \$100,026,364		
18		Debt Service	\$5,438,628	\$5,438,628		
19		§ 1-62. UNIVERSIT	Y OF VIRGINIA	(207)		
20	193.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$649,101,340	\$651,747,680
21 22 23		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$319,082,300 \$ <i>371,082,300</i>	\$321,743,640 \$373,743,640	\$732,801,340	\$735,647,680
23 24 25		Higher Education Research (100102)	\$21,684,573 \$29,584,573	\$373,743,640 \$21,684,573 \$29,584,573		
26 27		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$9,482,000	\$9,467,000 \$9,667,000		
28 29		Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$111,524,612 \$125,524,612	\$111,524,612 \$125,524,612		
30		Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$37,814,443	\$37,814,443		
31		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$41,482,643	\$41,482,643		
32 33 34		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$46,282,643 \$108,030,769 \$113,030,769	\$46,282,643 \$108,030,769 \$113,030,769		
35		Fund Sources: General	\$128,219,761	\$130,866,101		
36 37		Higher Education Operating	\$518,001,579	\$131,066,101 \$518,001,579		
38			\$601,701,579	\$601,701,579		
39		Debt Service	\$2,880,000	\$2,880,000		
40		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia.				
41 42 43 44		A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund a initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 Assembly).	n the Restructured I	Higher Education		
45 46 47 48 49		B.1. This appropriation includes an amount not to e \$1,393,959 the second year from the general fund for Residency Program and Family Practice medical stud Family Practice programs, whether ultimately impli- other means, is considered to be a grant.	the operation of the lent programs. This	e Family Practice appropriation for		
50 51		2. The university shall report by July 1 annually t Budget an operating plan for the Family Practice				
52 53		3. The University of Virginia, in cooperation with the Health System Authority, shall establish elective Fam				

		Item I	Item Details(\$)		riations(\$)
ITEM	193.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Southwest Virginia for both students and residents.				

4. In the event the Governor imposes across-the-board general fund reductions, pursuant to his executive authority in § 4-1.02 of this act, the general fund appropriation for the Family Practice programs shall be exempt from any reductions, provided the general fund appropriation for the family practice program is excluded from the total general fund appropriation for the University of Virginia for purposes of determining the university's portion of the statewide general fund reduction requirement.

2

3

4

5

6

7

- 8 C. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,476,467 the first year and \$1,576,467 \$1,776,467 the 9 second year from the general fund and \$714,900 the first year and \$714,900 the second year 10 from nongeneral funds is designated for the Virginia Foundation for Humanities and Public 11 Policy. Out of the total funding, \$250,000 and two positions the first year and \$250,000 and 12 two positions the second year from the general fund and \$714,900 and four positions the first 13 year and \$714,900 and four positions the second year from nongeneral funds is provided to 14 support Discovery Virginia, an online archive to preserve elements of Virginia history, 15 culture, and heritage, and make the materials accessible to the public.
- 2. Pursuant to House Joint Resolution 762, 1999 Session of the General Assembly, funds in 16 17 this Item begin to address the objective of appropriating one dollar per capita for the support of the Foundation. 18
- 19 D. Out of this appropriation, an amount estimated at \$501,230 the first year and \$501,230 the 20 second year from the general fund and at least \$468,850 the first year and at least \$468,850 21 the second year from nongeneral funds are designated for the educational telecommunications 22 project to provide graduate engineering education. For supplemental budget requests, the 23 participating institutions and centers jointly shall submit a report in support of such requests 24 to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia for review and recommendation to the 25 Governor and General Assembly.
- 26 E. Out of this appropriation, \$183,306 the first year and \$183,306 the second year from the 27 general fund, and at least \$283,500 the first year and at least \$283,500 the second year from 28 nongeneral funds are designated for the independent Virginia Institute of Government at the 29 University of Virginia Center for Public Service.
- 30 F. Out of this appropriation, at least \$148,577 the first year and \$148,577 the second year 31 from the general fund is designated for support of diabetes education and public service at the Virginia Center for Diabetes Professional Education at the University of Virginia. 32
- 33 G. Out of this appropriation \$304,927 the first year and \$304,927 the second year from the 34 general fund and \$53,189 the first year and \$53,189 the second year from nongeneral funds 35 are designated for support of the State Arboretum at Blandy Farm.
- 36 H. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 37 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 38 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 39 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 40 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-41 sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit 42 increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate 43 students to the extent possible.
- 44 I. The 4-VA, a public-private partnership among George Mason University, James Madison 45 University, the University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, Old Dominion University, and CISCO 46 Systems, Inc., utilizes emerging technologies to promote collaboration and resource sharing to 47 increase access, reduce time to graduation and reduce unit cost while maintaining and 48 enhancing quality. Instructional talent across the five institutions is leveraged in the delivery 49 of programs in foreign languages, science, technology, engineering and mathematics. The 4-50 VA Management Board can expand this partnership to additional institutions as appropriate to 51 meet the goals of the 4-VA initiative. It is expected that funding will be pooled by the 52 management board as required to support continuing efforts of the 4-VA priorities and 53 projects.
- 54 J. Out of this appropriation, \$190,000 the first year and \$190,000 the second year from the

ITEM 193	Item Details(\$)3.First YearFY2019FY2020	ear First Year	oriations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2	general fund is designated for a pilot program to expand health care services to rural a medically underserved areas through the use of nurse practitioners and telemedicine.	nd	
3 4 5	K. Out of this appropriation, \$175,000 the first year and \$175,000 the second year designated to support the efforts of the Weldon Cooper Center to produce populati estimates at least every other year in between census years.		
6 7 8 9	L. Out of this appropriation, \$115,000 the first year from the general fund is designated support the Weldon Cooper Center's participation in the federal Local Update of Cens Addresses (LUCA) to ensure completeness and accuracy of the Commonwealth's addre list to be used in the census.	sus	
10 11 12 13 14	M. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education Operating in this Item shall considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of the amount of revenu to be collected for the educational and general program under the terms of t management agreement between the University of Virginia and the Commonwealth, as a forth in Chapters 933 and 943, of the 2006 Acts of Assembly.	ues the	
15 16 17	N. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$2,661,340 the second year from the general fund designated to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technolog Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.		
18 19	2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and Fi Professional awards as follows:	rst	
20 21	a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;	in	
22 23 24 25 26	b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion data contained in the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), C-1 A1 completion report for the following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26), Engineering (14) let those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physic Sciences (42);	for ess	
27 28	c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 a completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and	A1	
29 30	d. Education awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 a completion report for the Education Programs (13).	A1	
31	3. The University of Virginia is expected to increase:		
32	a. Data Science and Technology awards by 20 in the second year.		
33	b. Science and Engineering awards by 30 in the second year.		
34	c. Healthcare awards by 20 in the second year.		
35	d. Education awards by 10 in the second year.		
36	e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these purposes.		
37 38 39	4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the Hou Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report on the progress toward these goa annually beginning August 2020.		
40 41 42 43 44 45 46	O. The President of the University of Virginia shall lead a collaborative evaluati between the University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, and Virginia State University, w assistance from other institutions of higher education and organizations with expertise this area, to analyze the problems facing rural Virginia and develop strateg recommendations for improvement. Such recommendations shall be reported to t Governor and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committee by October 1, 2018.	ith 9 in gic the	
47 194. 48 49	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)	\$141,474,699	\$141,981, \$142,049,

1,4/4,6

\$141,981,668 \$142,049,052

Second Year FY2020

I	TEM 194.		First Year		Appropri First Year	Second Year
1 2		Scholarships (10810)	FY2019 \$51,352,780	FY2020 \$51,859,749	FY2019	FY2020
2 3		Fellowships (10820)	\$90,121,919	\$51,927,133 \$90,121,919		
4		Fund Sources: General	\$11,809,411	\$12,316,380		
5 6		Higher Education Operating	\$129,665,288	<i>\$12,383,764</i> \$129,665,288		
7		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia.				
8 9 10		A. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year ar general fund, shall be provided to support public-pri maximize the number of newly licensed nurses and in	ivate sector partne	rships in order to		
11 12 13 14 15		B. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Educ considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an meet student financial aid needs, under the terms of the university and the Commonwealth as set forth in Chap Assembly.	estimate of the rev management agree	venue collected to ement between the		
16 17 18 19 20 21		C. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority fun and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare grant for students in innovative internship programs pro one private sector partner and the grant is matched e funding and / or the institution from private funds.	ding who are enrolle and Education progovided that the institu-	ed in Data Science grams and (2) as a tutions has at least		
22 23 24	195.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$537,856,736	\$536,856,736 \$537,856,736
25 26		Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$537,856,736	\$536,856,736 \$537,856,736		<i>\$557,850,750</i>
27 28		Fund Sources: General	\$10,469,379	\$9,469,379 \$10,469,379		
29 30		Higher Education Operating Debt Service	\$504,577,357 \$22,810,000	\$504,577,357 \$22,810,000		
31		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter22, Code of Virginia.				
32 33 34 35		A. Out of this appropriation, \$1,744,245 the first year the general fund and \$14,350,000 the first year and nongeneral funds are designated to build research capace biosciences.	\$14,350,000 the s	second year from		
36 37		B. Out of this appropriation, \$4,162,634 the first year the general fund is designated for the support of cance		second year from		
38 39 40		C. Out of this appropriation, \$3,612,500 the first year a year from the general fund is designated for support support core programs and research activities.				
41 42 43		D. Out of this appropriation, \$950,000 the first year ar general fund is designated to support the creation o Accelerator.				
44 45 46		E. The Higher Education Operating fund source listed sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of fundir sponsored program operations.				
47 48	196.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$222,775,089	\$222,775,089
49 50		Food Services (80910) Residential Services (80930)	\$5,126,300 \$42,416,308	\$5,126,300 \$42,416,308	. ,	. , ,
51 52		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$15,152,588	\$15,152,588		

П	ГЕМ 196.	Ita First Ye FY201			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Telecommunications Systems And Service (80950)	s \$15,564,808	\$15,564,808	F 12019	F 1 2020
2 3 4	Student Health Services (80960) Student Unions And Recreational Facilitie	\$9,988,173	\$9,988,173		
5	(80970)	\$6,416,529	\$6,416,529		
6 7	Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980) Other Enterprise Functions (80990)		\$9,719,717 \$61,109,420		
8	Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)		\$57,281,246		
9 10	Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Debt Service		\$200,917,089 \$21,858,000		
11	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia	a.			
12 13	Total for University of Virginia			\$1,551,207,864 \$1,634,907,864	\$1,553,361,173 \$1,638,328,557
14	General Fund Positions	1,084.63	1,084.63		
15	Nongeneral Fund Positions		5,951.17		
16	Position Level		7,035.80		
17 18	Fund Sources: General		\$152,651,860 \$153,919,244		
19 20	Higher Education Operating	\$1,353,161,313 \$1,436,861,313	\$1,353,161,313 \$1,436,861,313		
21	Debt Service		\$47,548,000		
22	University of Vir	ginia Medical Cente	er (209)		
23 24	197. State Health Services (43000)			\$1,874,877,027	\$1,899,578,933 \$1,987,715,855
25 26	Inpatient Medical Services (43007)	\$767,462,156	\$769,762,156 \$795,807,156		<i>41,707,710,000</i>
27 28	Outpatient Medical Services (43011)	\$451,807,921	\$455,307,921 \$483,484,843		
29 30	Administrative Services (43018)	\$655,606,950	\$674,508,856 \$708,423,856		
31 32	Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,857,230,562	\$1,881,932,468 \$1,970,069,390		
33	Debt Service	\$17,646,465	\$17,646,465		
34 35	Authority: §§ 23.1, Chapter 22, Article 3, Cod Assembly of 1978.	e of Virginia and C	Chapter 38, Acts of		
36 37 38 39 40 41	A. The appropriation to the University of Virgini treatment, health related services and education patients, including indigent and medically indigen Virginia Medical Center is a state teaching hosp jointly support the education of health students appropriation.	on activities associa t patients. Inasmuch vital, this appropriati	ated with Virginia as the University of on is to be used to	L 2 0	
42 43 44 45 46 47	B. By July 1 of each year, the Director, Departme approve a common criteria and methodology for appropriations in this Item. The Medical Center v Assistance Services expenditures for indigent, me Auditor of Public Accounts and the State Comptro these procedures. The Medical Center shall r	determining free car- vill report to the Dep dically indigent, and oller shall monitor the	e attributable to the artment of Medical other patients. The e implementation of		

these procedures. The Medical Center shall report by October 31 annually to the Department of Medical Assistance Services, the Comptroller and the Auditor of Public Accounts on expenditures related to this Item. Reporting shall be by means of the indigent care cost report and shall follow criteria approved by the Director, Department of Medical Assistance Services.

52 C. Funding for Family Practice is included in the University of Virginia's Educational and
 53 General appropriation. Support for other residencies is included in the hospital

]	ITEM 197.		Ite First Yes FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		appropriation.				
2 3 4		D. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Un Hospital maintain its efforts to staff residencies and generalist physicians in medically underserved region	fellow positions to			
5 6 7		E. The Higher Education Operating fund source listed sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of fundi medical center operations.				
8 9 10		F. Notwithstanding anything contrary to law, the Undetermine compensation paid to Medical Center emestablished by the Board of Visitors.				
11 12 13 14		G. In order to provide the state share for Medicaid provider private hospitals in which the University of majority interest, the University of Virginia shall tr Assistance Services public funds that comply with a	f Virginia Medica ansfer to the Dep	l Center has a non- artment of Medical		
15 16 17	198.	The June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019 unexpended b Medical Center are hereby reappropriated; their use is s Department of Planning and Budget.				
18 19 20	199.	A full accrual system of accounting shall be effected by of the State Comptroller, as stated in § 2.2-803, Co appropriations for operating expenses may not be u	de of Virginia, w	ith the proviso that		
21 22		Total for University of Virginia Medical Center			\$1,874,877,027	\$1,899,578,933 \$1,987,715,855
23 24		Nongeneral Fund Positions	7,145.22	7,294.22 7,463.22		
25 26		Position Level	7,145.22	7, 4 03.22 7,294.22 7,463.22		
27 28		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,857,230,562	\$1,881,932,468 \$1,970,069,390		
29		Debt Service	\$17,646,465	\$17,646,465		
30		University of Virgini	ia's College at Wis	se (246)		
31	200.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$27,503,151	\$29,192,340
32 33 34		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$10,093,463	\$12,093,463 \$13,061,326		\$31,925,486
35		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$546,684	\$546,684		
36 37		Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$5,373,038	\$5,312,227 \$5, <i>370,727</i>		
38		Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$1,995,301	\$1,994,103		
39 40 41		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$5,280,306	\$2,432,408 \$5,280,306 \$5,684,026		
41 42 43		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$4,214,359	\$5,684,036 \$3,965,557 \$4,830,305		
44 45		Fund Sources: General	\$16,629,041	\$18,318,230 \$20,918,230		
46 47		Higher Education Operating	\$10,874,110	\$20,918,250 \$10,874,110 \$11,007,256		
48		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 22, Article 2, Code of Vi	rginia.			
49 50		A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund a initiatives that help meet statewide goals described i				

initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education
Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of

	Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 200.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020		
Assembly).				
B. The software engineering curriculum being e	established to insure suc	ccess of recent		

1 2

3 4

5

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

\$2,756.028

\$2.855.808 \$3.254.335

s of recent economic development projects in Southwest Virginia, shall be considered on its merits by the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia and shall not be dependent on funding by the Commonwealth.

6 C. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base 7 adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund 8 share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in 0 exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into 10 consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In 11 accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of 12 Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general 13 fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.

- 14 D. Out of this appropriation, \$233,358 the first year and \$233,358 the second year from 15 the general fund and \$138,577 the first year and \$138,577 the second year from 16 nongeneral funds are designated to facilitate the technical training programs for the 17 Northrop Grumman state backup data center.
- 18 E. Out of this appropriation, \$720,880 the first year and \$715,580 the second year from 19 the general fund is designated to support debt service costs under the Master Equipment 20 Lease Program (MELP) to upgrade the university's information technology network and 21 security systems. In addition to these amounts, \$172,000 the first year and \$116,489 the 22 second year from the general fund is designated to support training and software costs.
- 23 F. Out of this appropriation, \$1,750,000 the second year from the general fund is 24 designated to enhance academic programs at the College.
- 25 G. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education Operating in this Item shall be 26 considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of the amount of revenues 27 to be collected for the educational and general program under the terms of the 28 management agreement between the University of Virginia and the Commonwealth, as set forth in Chapters 933 and 943, of the 2006 Acts of Assembly. 29
- 30 H. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget is authorized, upon request of the 31 Chancellor, University of Virginia's College at Wise, to move up to \$2,000,000 of general 32 fund appropriation from the second year to the first year.
- I. The University of Virginia's College at Wise, Norfolk State University, and Virginia 33 34 State University, shall develop a framework and funding recommendations associated 35 with enhancing access to undergraduate education for students with high financial needs. 36 The institutions shall submit a single report on their findings and recommendations by 37 September 1, 2019, to the Secretary of Finance, Secretary of Education, Chairman of the 38 House Appropriations Committee, the Chairmen of the Senate Finance Committee, and 39 the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.

40 41 42	201.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)		
43 44		Scholarships (10810)	\$2,756,028	\$2,855,808 \$3,254,335
45 46		Fund Sources: General	\$2,706,028	\$2,805,808 \$3,204,335
47		Higher Education Operating	\$50,000	\$50,000

48 Authority: Title 23.1. Chapter 22, Article 2, Code of Virginia.

49 Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed 50 Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data 51 Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs 52 and (2) as a grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the 53 institutions has at least one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the

]	ITEM 201		Ite First Yea FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		partner with non-state funding and / or the institution fr		F 1 2020	F 1 2017	F 1 2020
2	202.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General	F			
3	202.	Services (11000)				
4 5		a sum sufficient, estimated at	\$3,889,751	\$3,613,252	\$3,889,751	\$3,613,252
		Sponsored Programs (11004)				
6		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,889,751	\$3,613,252		
7		Authority: Title 23.1 Chapter 22, Article 2, Code of Vin	ginia.			
8 9	203.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$12,292,005	\$12,292,005
10		Food Services (80910)	\$294,528	\$294,528		
11		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$268,500	\$268,500		
12		Residential Services (80930)	\$4,781,075	\$4,781,075		
13		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services				
14		(80940)	\$150,172	\$150,172		
15		Student Health Services (80960)	\$209,230	\$209,230		
16		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$1,297,379	\$1,297,379		
17		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$123,400	\$123,400		
18		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$2,546,219	\$2,546,219		
19		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$2,621,502	\$2,621,502		
20		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$9,302,005	\$9,302,005		
21		Debt Service	\$2,990,000	\$2,990,000		
22		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 22, Article 2, Code of Vi	rginia.			
23 24		Total for University of Virginia's College at Wise			\$46,440,935	\$47,953,405 \$51,085,078
25 26		General Fund Positions	165.26	165.26 171.46		
27 28		Nongeneral Fund Positions	185.44	185.44 186.24		
29 20		Position Level	350.70	350.70		
30				357.70		
31 32		Fund Sources: General	\$19,335,069	\$21,124,038 \$24,122,565		
33 34		Higher Education Operating	\$24,115,866	\$23,839,367 \$23,972,513		
35		Debt Service	\$2,990,000	\$2,990,000		
36 37		Grand Total for University of Virginia			\$3,472,525,826 \$3,556,225,826	\$3,500,893,511 \$3,677,129,490
38 39		General Fund Positions	1,249.89	1,249.89 1,256.09		
40 41		Nongeneral Fund Positions	13,281.83	13,430.83 13,600.63		
42 43		Position Level	14,531.72	14,680.72 14,856.72		
44		Fund Sources: General	\$169,833,620	\$173,775,898		
45 46 47		Higher Education Operating	\$3,234,507,741 \$ <i>3,318,207,741</i>	\$178,041,809 \$3,258,933,148 \$3,430,903,216		
48		Debt Service	\$68,184,465	\$68,184,465		
49		§ 1-63. VIRGINIA COMMO	NWEALTH UNIV	VERSITY (236)		
50	204.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$602,861,401	\$607,134,781
51 52 53		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$346,436,880 \$374,736,880	\$350,710,260 \$379,010,260	\$631,161,401	\$635,434,781

			n Details(\$)		iations(\$)
ITEM 20 4	ι.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Higher Education Research (100102)	\$14,264,683	\$14,264,683	F 1 2019	F 1 2020
1 2	Higher Education Research (100102) Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$8,673,781	\$8,673,781		
2 3	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$97,468,448	\$97,468,448		
3 4	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$26,410,668	\$26,410,668		
5	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$54,539,802	\$54,539,802		
6	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$55,067,139	\$55,067,139		
7	Fund Sources: General	\$178,794,052	\$183,067,432		
8 9	Higher Education Operating	\$424,067,349 \$452,367,349	\$424,067,349 \$452,367,349		
10	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia.				
11 12 13 14	A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund a initiatives that help meet statewide goals described i Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 Assembly).	n the Restructured	Higher Education		
15 16 17 18 19	B.1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,336,607 the first y from the general fund is provided for the operation Program and Family Practice medical student progr Practice programs, whether ultimately implement means, is considered to be a grant.	n of the Family Prams. This appropr	actice Residency iation for Family		
20 21	2. The university shall report by July 1 annually Budget an operating plan for the Family Practice				
22 23 24	3. The university, in cooperation with the University Family Practice Medicine experiences in Southw residents.				
25 26 27 28 29 30	4. In the event the Governor imposes across-the-boa to his executive authority in § 4-1.02 of this act, th Family Practice programs shall be exempt from any r appropriation for the family practice program is ex- appropriation for Virginia Commonwealth Univers University's portion of the statewide general fund	e general fund appr reductions, provided coluded from the to ity for purposes of	ropriation for the I the general fund otal general fund I determining the		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37	C. Out of this appropriation, an amount estimated at the second year from the general fund and \$168,533 t year from nongeneral funds are designated for the edu to provide graduate engineering education. For participating institutions and centers jointly shall requests to the State Council of Higher Educa recommendation to the Governor and General	he first year and \$10 ucational telecomm supplemental budg submit a report in tion for Virginia	58,533 the second unications project get requests, the support of such		
38 39 40 41	D.1. Out of this appropriation, not less than \$386, \$386,685 the second year from the general fund is d Aging. This includes \$319,750 the first year and Alzheimer's and Related Diseases Research Awa	esignated for the V \$319,750 the sec	irginia Center on		
42 43 44 45 46	2. Out of this appropriation, \$253,244 the first year and general fund and \$356,250 the first year and \$356,2 funds are designated for the operation of the Virgini Geriatric Academic Career Awards Program, both Center on Aging.	50 the second year a Geriatric Education	from nongeneral on Center and the		
47 48 49	E. All costs for maintenance and operation of th Engineering, Phase I and future renovations, repairs necessary shall be financed from nongeneral funds.				
50 51	F. Out of this appropriation, \$300,000 the first year an general fund is designated for support of the Council				
52	G. Out of this appropriation, \$32,753 the first year a	nd \$32,753 the seco	ond year from the		

	Item	Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 204.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	Fiı F		
		1 1 2020			

Appropriations(\$)				
'irst Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

1 general fund is designated for support of the Education Policy Institute.

H.1. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, Virginia Commonwealth University is
authorized to remit tuition and fees for merit scholarships for students of high academic
achievement subject to the following limitations and restrictions:

2. The number of such scholarships annually awarded to undergraduate Virginia students shall not exceed 20 percent of the fall headcount enrollment of Virginia students in undergraduate studies in the institution from the preceding academic year. The total value of such merit scholarships annually awarded shall not exceed in any year the amount arrived at by multiplying the applicable figure for undergraduate tuition and required fees by 20 percent of the headcount enrollment of Virginia students in the institution for the fall semester from the preceding academic year.

- 3. The number of such scholarships annually awarded to undergraduate non-Virginia students
 shall not exceed 20 percent of the fall headcount enrollment of non-Virginia students in
 undergraduate studies in the institution from the preceding academic year. The total value of
 such merit scholarships annually awarded shall not exceed in any year the amount arrived at
 by multiplying the applicable figure for undergraduate tuition and required fees by 20 percent
 of the fall headcount enrollment of non-Virginia students in undergraduate studies in the
 institution during the preceding academic year.
- 4. A scholarship awarded under this program shall entitle the holder to receive an annual
 remission of an amount not to exceed the cost of tuition and required fees to be paid by the
 student.
- I. Out of this appropriation, \$252,595 the first year and \$252,595 the second year from the
 general fund is provided for the Medical College of Virginia Palliative Care Partnership.
- 24 J. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 25 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 26 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 27 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 28 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-29 sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit 30 increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate 31 students to the extent possible.
- 32 K. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the 33 general fund is designated for the Virginia Commonwealth University School of Pharmacy to 34 support the Center for Compounding Practice and Research. The allocation will serve to 35 support any costs associated with creating the Center including facility-related expenses as 36 well as the purchase of the compounding equipment necessary for this state of the art teaching 37 and research facility and will be leveraged as a matching gift with private funds. The Center 38 will train Pharm.D. students to meet technical compounding demands, provide continuing 39 education to registered pharmacists and conduct ongoing research on compounded 40 medications.
- L. Out of this appropriation, \$180,000 the first year and \$180,000 the second year from the
 general fund is designated to support a substance abuse fellowship program at the Virginia
 Commonwealth University School of Medicine.
- M. Out of this appropriation, \$125,000 the first year and \$125,000 the second year from the
 general fund is designated to support a partnership between Virginia Commonwealth
 University and the Virginia Repertory Theatre at the historic November Theatre (formally
 known as the Empire Theatre).
- 48 N. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year and \$250,000 the second year from the
 49 general fund is designated for the Commonwealth Center for Advanced Logistics to serve as
 50 state matching funds for industry research and membership fees.
- 51 O. Out of this appropriation, \$125,000 the first year \$125,000 the second year from the
 52 general fund is designated for the Commonwealth Center for Advanced Logistics to support
 53 the traffic optimization modeling and simulation project at the Port of Virginia to improve
 54 port operations.

				n Details(\$)		iations(\$)
]	ITEM 204		First Year FY2019	 Second Year FY2020 	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		P. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Educat considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is and to be collected for the educational and general p management agreement between Virginia Comm Commonwealth, as set forth in Chapters 594 and 614 Q. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,273,380 the seco	tion Operating in estimate of the an program under t monwealth Uni 6, of the 2008 A	this Item shall be nount of revenues he terms of the versity and the cts of Assembly.	112013	112020
7 8		designated to address increased degree production i Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education	in Data Science			
9 10		2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelo Professional awards as follows:	rs, Masters, Doc	torates and First		
11 12		a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C				
13 14 15 16 17		b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHE the following programs Biological and Biomedical So those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Sciences (42);	EV), Ĉ-1 A1 com cience (26), Engi	pletion report for neering (14) less		
18 19		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Health Professions and Relat				
20 21		d. Education awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Education Programs (13).	a contained in the	SCHEV C-1 A1		
22		3. Virginia Commonwealth University is expected to inc	crease:			
23		a. Data Science and Technology awards by 20 in the sec	cond year.			
24		b. Science and Engineering awards by 30 in the second	year.			
25		c. Healthcare awards by 40 in the second year.				
26		d. Education awards by 20 in the second year.				
27		e. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these	e purposes.			
28 29 30		4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these ge Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report annually beginning August 2020.				
31 32 33	205.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$58,353,954	\$59,568,247 \$63,394,475
34 35		Scholarships (10810)	\$54,928,970	\$56,143,263 \$59,969,491		, ,
36		Fellowships (10820)	\$3,424,984	\$3,424,984		
37 38		Fund Sources: General	\$31,777,447	\$32,991,740 \$35,195,886		
39 40		Higher Education Operating	\$26,576,507	\$26,576,507 \$28,198,589		
41		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia.				
42 43 44 45 46		A. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an em- meet student financial aid needs, under the terms of the the university and the Commonwealth as set forth in e- Acts of Assembly.	estimate of the rev e management ag	venue collected to greement between		
47 48		B. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item n Guaranteed Assistance Program eligible students for (1				

]	ITEM 205.		First Year		First Year	riations(\$) Second Year
1 2 3 4		in Data Science and Technology, Science and Engi programs and (2) as a grant for students in innovative i institutions has at least one private sector partner and partner with non-state funding and / or the institution	nternship programs the grant is match	e provided that the ed equally by the	FY2019	FY2020
5 6 7	206.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$299,137,393 \$309,437,393	\$299,137,393 \$309,437,393
8		Eminent Scholars (11001)	\$3,045,800	\$3,045,800	\$309,437,393	<i>\$</i> 309,437,393
9 10		Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$3,645,666 \$296,091,593 \$306,391,593	\$306,391,593		
11		Fund Sources: General	\$14,012,500	\$14,012,500		
12 13		Higher Education Operating	\$266,018,613 \$275,318,613	\$266,018,613 \$275,318,613		
14 15		Debt Service	\$19,106,280 \$20, <i>106,280</i>	\$19,106,280 \$20,106,280		
16		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia.				
17 18 19 20		A. Out of this appropriation, \$1,162,500 the first year at the general fund and \$6,600,000 the first year and nongeneral funds are designated to build research of engineering and regenerative medicine.	\$6,600,000 the s	econd year from		
21 22		B. Out of this appropriation, \$12,500,000 the first year a the general fund is designated for the support of cancer a		second year from		
23 24		C. Out of this appropriation, \$350,000 the first year an general fund is designated to support the Parkinson's a				
25 26 27		D. The Higher Education Operating fund source listed sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of fundin sponsored program operations.				
28 29	207.	State Health Services (43000)			\$26,575,000 \$27,575,000	\$26,575,000 \$27,575,000
30 31 32		State Health Services Technical Support And Administration (43012)	\$26,575,000 \$27,575,000	\$26,575,000 \$27,575,000		
33 34		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$26,575,000 \$27,575,000	\$26,575,000 \$27,575,000		
35		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
36 37 38 39		This appropriation includes funding to support 238 inspositions and for administrative and classified position internal service agreements, to the Virginia Common Authority.	ons which provide	services, through		
40 41 42	208.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$164,247,126 \$174,247,126	\$164,247,126 \$174,247,126
43 44		Food Services (80910)	\$13,763,884 \$14,996,022	\$13,763,884 \$14,996,022	<i>\$174,247,120</i>	φ174,247,120
45 46		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$4,806,270 \$5,338,412	\$4,806,270 \$5,338,412		
47 48		Residential Services (80930)	\$30,075,194 \$31,446,857	\$30,075,194 \$31,446,857		
49 50 51		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$23,383,257 \$24,351,660	\$23,383,257 \$24,351,660		
52		Telecommunications Systems And Services (80950).	\$5,676,016	\$5,676,016		
53		Student Health Services (80960)	\$5,891,638	\$5,891,638		
54 55		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$14,560,559	\$14,560,559		
55		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$11,859,159	\$11,859,159		

	ITEM 208		Iter First Yea FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$36,166,962	\$36,166,962	1 1 2017	1 1 2020
2 3		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	<i>\$42,062,616</i> \$18,064,187	<i>\$42,062,616</i> \$18,064,187		
4		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$130,379,246	\$130,379,246		
5 6		Debt Service	\$140,379,246 \$33,867,880	\$140,379,246 \$33,867,880		
7		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia.				
8	209.	Administrative and Support Services (19900)			\$45,000,000	\$45,000,000
9		Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)	\$45,000,000	\$45,000,000		
10		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$45,000,000	\$45,000,000		
11		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 23, Code of Virginia.				
12 13		A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$45,000,000 the first y from nongeneral funds is designated to support the un				
14 15 16 17		2. Notwithstanding § 2.2-1802 of the Code of V University is authorized to maintain a local bank accor to facilitate business operations the VCU Qatar Camp the Securities for Public Deposits Act, Title 2.2, Chap	ount in Qatar and rous. These account	non-U.S. countries s are exempt from		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24		3. Procurements and expenditures from the local ba Virginia Public Procurement Act and the Commo Procedures (CAPP) Manual. Virginia Common procurement policies based on competitive procurer stated within these policies. Expenditures from the lo the Commonwealth Accounting and Reporting Syster as appropriated herewith with revenue recognized as	onwealth Accoun awealth Universi nent principles, ex cal bank account y m by Agency Tran	ting Policies and ty will institute accept as otherwise will be recorded in asaction Vouchers	 ; ;	
25 26 27		4. Notwithstanding § 2.2-1149 of the Code of V University is authorized to approve operating, incom policies and procedures developed by the University	ne and capital leas			
28 29 30 31 32		5. Virginia Commonwealth University is authorize faculty) positions in Qatar under policies and proce These employees, who are employed solely to s considered employees of the Commonwealth of V Virginia Personnel Act.	edures developed l upport the Qatar	by the University Campus are not	:	
33 34		6. The Board of Visitors of Virginia Commonwealth policies for the Qatar Campus.	University is authorial	orized to establish	l	
35 36		Total for Virginia Commonwealth University			\$1,196,174,874 \$1,245,774,874	\$1,201,662,547 \$1,255,088,775
37		General Fund Positions	1,507.80	1,507.80		
38 39		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	3,792.29 5,300.09	3,792.29 5,300.09		
40 41		Fund Sources: General	\$224,583,999	\$230,071,672 \$232,275,818		
42 43		Higher Education Operating	\$918,616,715 \$967,216,715	\$918,616,715 \$968,838,797		
43 44 45		Debt Service	\$907,210,713 \$52,974,160 \$53,974,160	\$908,838,797 \$52,974,160 \$53,974,160		
46		§ 1-64. VIRGINIA COMMUN	NITY COLLEGE	SYSTEM (260)		
47	210.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$895,795,430	\$896,375,430
48 49 50		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$386,925,300	\$386,925,300 \$392,555,300		\$903,505,430
51		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$4,606,631	\$4,606,631		

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 21 0	н.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$95,942,712	\$96,422,712		
2	Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$91,753,670	\$91,753,670		
3 4	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$218,410,701	\$218,410,701 \$219,910,701		
5	Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$98,156,416	\$98,256,416		
6 7	Fund Sources: General	\$384,683,304	\$385,263,304 \$390,893,304		
8 9	Higher Education Operating	\$511,112,126	\$511,112,126 \$512,612,126		

10 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.

 A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).

15 B. It is the objective of the Commonwealth that a standard of 70 percent full-time faculty be 16 established for the Virginia Community College System. Consistent with higher education 17 funding guidelines, it is expected that the Virginia Community College System will utilize the 18 funds provided for base operating support to achieve this objective. In addition, the first 19 priority for new funding provided to the community college system shall be for operating 20 support at individual community colleges. Thirty days prior to the beginning of each fiscal 21 year, the Virginia Community College System shall report to the Chairmen of the House 22 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on the allocation of all new general funds and 23 nongeneral funds in this item and any cost recovery plans between the individual community 24 colleges and the system office.

C. It is the intent of the General Assembly that funds available to the Virginia Community
 College System be reallocated to accommodate changes in enrollment and other cost factors
 at each of the community colleges.

D. Tuition and fee revenues from out-of-state students taking distance education courses
 through the Virginia Community College System must exceed all direct and indirect costs of
 providing instruction to those students. Tuition and fee rates to meet this requirement shall be
 established by the State Board for Community Colleges.

32 E. Out of this appropriation, amounts for the following special programs are designated: at J. 33 Sargeant Reynolds Community College, the Program for the Deaf, \$64,547 and four positions 34 the first year and \$64,547 and four positions the second year from the general fund and the 35 Program for the Intellectually Disabled, \$91,004 and four positions the first year and \$91,004 36 and four positions the second year from the general fund; and, at New River Community 37 College, the Program for the Deaf, \$78,328 and four positions the first year and \$78,328 and 38 four positions the second year from the general fund, and the Program for the Intellectually 39 Disabled, \$69,682 and 4.5 positions the first year and \$69,682 and 4.5 positions the second 40 year from the general fund; and, at Danville Community College, the Program for the Deaf, 41 \$26,001 and one position the first year and \$26,001 and one position the second year from the 42 general fund.

F. Out of this appropriation, \$39,001 the first year and \$39,001 the second year from the general fund is designated to support the Southwest Virginia Telecommunications Network.

45 G. Out of this appropriation, \$261,370 and four positions the first year and \$261,370 and four positions the second year from the general fund is provided to support Virginia Western
47 Community College's participation in the Roanoke Higher Education Center and the Botetourt
48 County Education and Training Center at Greenfield.

49 H. Out of this appropriation, \$130,005 the first year and \$130,005 the second year from the general fund is designated to support the Southwestern Virginia Advanced Manufacturing
 51 Technology Center at Wytheville Community College.

52 I.1. Out of this appropriation, \$345,000 the first year and \$345,000 the second year from the
 53 general fund is provided for the annual lease or rental costs of space in the Botetourt County
 54 Education and Training Center at Greenfield.

Item Details(\$)			
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2. The general fund amounts provided for in this paragraph for workforce training, retraining, programming, and community education facilities at the Botetourt County Education and Training Center shall be matched by local or private sources in a ratio of two-thirds state funds to at least one-third local or private funds, as approved by the State Board for Community Colleges.

ITEM 210.

1

2

3

4

5

6 J. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base 7 adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund 8 share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in 9 exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into 10 consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In 11 accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of 12 Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general 13 fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.

- K. Out of this appropriation, \$191,884 the first year and \$191,884 the second year from
 the general fund shall be provided to Northern Virginia Community College to support
 public-private sector partnerships in order to maximize the number of newly licensed
 nurses and increase the supply of nursing faculty.
- 18 L. Out of this appropriation, \$489,000 the first year and \$489,000 the second year from 19 the general fund is designated for Northern Virginia Community College to implement the 20 SySTEMic Solutions initiative which will enable expansion of dual enrollment courses 21 with a STEM focus in all Northern Virginia school districts; opportunities to earn 22 industry-aligned certifications; professional development opportunities for STEM 23 teachers; part-time employment and internship opportunities for students in STEM 24 programs; hands-on SOL-based science lessons at the elementary level with industry input 25 and support; and collaborative robotics programs between the community college and K-26 12 schools. It is expected that an equal amount of private funds will be generated as a 27 match for the state support.
- M. Out of this appropriation, \$19,560 the first year and \$19,560 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to Southside Virginia Community College. Out of this amount, \$7,824 each year from the general fund shall be provided to the Estes Community
 Center in Chase City, \$7,824 each year from the general fund shall be provided to the Lake Country Advanced Knowledge Center in South Hill, and \$3,912 the first year and \$3,912 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to the Clarksville Enrichment Complex.
- N. Out of this appropriation, \$115,130 the first year and \$115,130 the second year from
 the general fund is provided for the Mecklenburg County Job Retraining Center.
- O. Out of this appropriation, \$255,000 the first year and \$255,000 the second year from
 the general fund and \$163,000 the first year and \$163,000 the second year from
 nongeneral funds is designated for the operation of the Amherst Center of Central Virginia
 Community College. Central Virginia Community College shall report annually to the
 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on the number of
 students enrolled, the programs provided with number of students served and the number
 of degrees and certificates awarded by program.
- P. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 each year from the general fund is designated for
 Lord Fairfax Community College. Of this amount \$100,000 each year is designated to
 expand the career and technical education programs at the Middletown Campus and
 \$100,000 each year is designated for workforce training programs at the Fauquier
 Campus. The programs will be designed in collaboration with regional employers and
 high schools.
- Q. Out of this appropriation, \$1,100,000 and seven positions the first year and \$1,100,000
 and seven positions the second year from the general fund is designated for veterans
 resource centers at Northern Virginia Community College, Tidewater Community
 College, Thomas Nelson Community College, Germanna Community College, J. Sargeant
 Reynolds Community College, John Tyler Community College, and Virginia Western
 Community College.

ITEM 210.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

44

45

46

47

58

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

R. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 and nine positions the first year and \$250,000 and nine positions the second year from the general fund is designated to support the Rural Horseshoe Initiative.

S. Out of this appropriation, \$550,000 in the first year and \$550,000 in the second year from the general fund is designated for Northern Virginia Community College to contract in accordance with Chapter 779, 2017 Acts of Assembly, to develop, market, and implement high-quality and effective computer science training and professional development activities for public school teachers throughout the Commonwealth for the purpose of improving the computer science literacy of all public school students in the Commonwealth. Further, Northern Virginia Community College shall establish an advisory committee for the purpose of advising the college and its partner organization on the development, marketing, and implementation of training and professional development activities pursuant to Chapter 779 (2017), subsection A. The Secretary of Commerce and Trade and the Secretary of Education shall each submit to the college a list of names of qualified individuals, and the college shall appoint members to such advisory committee from such lists.

16 T. The Virginia Community College System (VCCS) shall evaluate and submit a report on a 17 strategy and funding for enhancing the rate at which community college students progress 18 through the system's academic programs and attain degrees or other credentials. The 19 evaluation should focus on enhancing institutions' academic advising services. The report 20 should describe a plan for ensuring that each institution can provide proactive, individualized, 21 mandatory advising for students who demonstrate the potential to benefit from such advising 22 and who are at the highest risk of not earning a credential or transferring to a four-year higher 23 education institution. The report should also describe the criteria that the system will use to 24 identify high-risk students who should receive intensive, mandatory advising; describe the 25 circumstances that will prompt mandatory academic advising meetings; estimate the total 26 number of students who would be eligible; estimate the total cost of equipping each college to 27 provide such advising; and identify the potential sources of funding for implementing the 28 plan. The report should describe how the existing College Success Coach Initiative program 29 could be expanded to achieve these purposes. The report should also describe the resources 30 that would be necessary to require students to attend new-student orientation before enrolling in courses and to complete the student development course during their first semester, and 31 such requirements should at least apply to students who are seeking a degree or credential and 32 33 who have been identified by VCCS as being at-risk of non-completion. The report should be 34 provided to the Secretary of Education and the Chairman of the House Appropriations and 35 Senate Finance Committees by September 1, 2018.

36 U. Out of this appropriation, \$480,000 and two positions the second year from the general 37 fund are designated for the Virginia Community College System, in partnership with the State 38 Council of Higher Education for Virginia, to develop and maintain a mandated online 39 repository for all transfer agreements, course equivalency tools, Passport Credit Program 40 Guidelines and other informational resources related to transferring from a public two-year 41 institution to a public four-year institution. The repository shall also include a Dual 42 Enrollment Guide, Exam Equivalency Guide, Degree Searcher, and other transfer tools and 43 components that support student transfer.

V. Out of this appropriation, \$5,500,000 and 79 positions in the second year from the general fund are designated to support the goals of credential completion and job attainment by creating navigator positions. These navigators will help students choose a career pathway, connect to a transfer institution or assist in finding employment in high demand areas.

48 49 50 51	211.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800) a sum sufficient, estimated at		
52 53		Scholarships (10810)	\$65,532,073	\$66,809,208 \$74,283,661
54 55		Fund Sources: General	\$45,084,767	\$46,361,902 \$49,836,355
56 57		Higher Education Operating	\$20,447,306	\$20,447,306 \$24,447,306

\$65,532,073

Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.

^{\$66.809.208} \$74.283.661

			Appropriations(\$)				
	ITEM 211		First Yea FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2 3 4 5 6		the general fund is designated for Tidewater Co apprenticeship program for Virginia's shipyard w appropriated for this apprenticeship program shall	A. Out of this appropriation, \$150,000 the first year and \$150,000 the second year from the general fund is designated for Tidewater Community College to support an apprenticeship program for Virginia's shipyard workers. All general fund amounts appropriated for this apprenticeship program shall be used to provide scholarships to shipyard workers enrolled in the program. The conditions for receiving a scholarship shall be those conditions described in \$23,1-2912. Code of Virginia				
7 8 9 10		B. Funding in this Item shall be allocated for the Virgi the Commonwealth Award and need-based student fir certifications or related programs that do not qualify f assistance.	nancial assistance	for industry-based			
11 12 13 14 15 16		C. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item Guaranteed Assistance Program eligible students for (in Data Science and Technology, Science and Engi programs and (2) as a grant for students in innovative the institutions has at least one private sector partner the partner with non-state funding and / or the institut	1) priority funding neering, Healthca e internship progr and the grant is m	g who are enrolled are and Education ams provided that hatched equally by			
17 18 19	212.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$55,786,044	\$55,786,044	\$55,786,044	\$55,786,044	
20 21		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$550,000 \$55,236,044	\$550,000 \$55,236,044			
22		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.					
23	213.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$107,419,320	\$107,719,320	
24 25 26 27		Management of Workforce Development Program Services (53427)	\$107,419,320	\$107,719,320 \$118,719,320		\$118,719,320	
28 29 30		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$10,417,664 \$97,001,656	\$10,717,664 \$97,001,656 \$108,001,656			
31		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia.					
32 33 34 35		A. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$53,850,629 and \$53,850,629 and 38 positions the second year from n administration and implementation of workforce de federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act	ongeneral funds i velopment progra	s provided for the ams as part of the			
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		2. Out of this appropriation, and consistent with Sections 128 and 133 of WIOA, 15% of the nongeneral funds received for the administration of Title I of WIOA shall be reserved by the Governor in a fund to support administration of the Title 1 programs and to support statewide strategic workforce initiatives. At the end of the federal allotment cycle, unobligated Rapid Response funds shall also be transferred to the Governor's fund, consistent with Section 134 of WIOA. The investment strategy for the fund shall be determined by the Governor, in consultation with the Chief Workforce Development Advisor, the Virginia Community College System, and workforce system stakeholders no later than the first day of the federal program year for WIOA Title I. The investment strategy shall be consistent with required and allowable activities under Section 134 of WIOA. By December 15 of each year, the Chief Workforce Development Advisor shall report on the use of funds and generated outcomes to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.					
49 50 51		B. Out of this appropriation, \$125,000 the first year the general fund is provided to continue plann manufacturing technology program at Thomas	ing for the adva	anced integrated			
52 53		C.1. Out of this appropriation, \$166,162 the first year the general fund is designated for the A. L. Philpott M					

Item Details(\$)						
First Year	Second Year					
FY2019	FY2020					

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 at Patrick Henry Community College.

ITEM 213.

2

3

4

5

6

29

30

2. Out of this appropriation, \$927,700 the first year and \$927,700 the second year from the general fund is designated for the A. L. Philpott Manufacturing Extension Partnership at Patrick Henry Community College for an ongoing match for a grant from the U.S. Department of Commerce to develop a manufacturer assistance program covering most of Virginia.

7 D. It is the intent of the General Assembly that noncredit business and industry work-related 8 training courses and programs offered by community colleges be funded at a ratio of 30 9 percent from the general fund and 70 percent from nongeneral funds. Out of this 10 appropriation, \$664,647 in the first year and \$664,647 in the second year from the general 11 fund is designated for this purpose. These funds may be combined with funds of \$249,243 the 12 first year and \$249,243 the second year already included in the Virginia Community College 13 System budget for the "Virginia Works" program. The funds will be allocated by formula to 14 all colleges based on the number of individuals served by non-credit activities.

E.1. As recommended by House Joint Resolution No. 622 (1997), the Joint Subcommittee to
Study Noncredit Education for Workforce Training in the Commonwealth, the Virginia
Community College System is directed to establish one or more Institutes of Excellence
responsible for development of statewide training programs to meet current, high demand
workforce needs of the Commonwealth. Out of this appropriation, at least \$664,647 the first
year and \$664,647 the second year from the general fund is available to support the Institutes
of Excellence.

22 2. Under the guidance of the Virginia Workforce Council, authorized in Title 2.2, Chapter 26,
23 Article 25, Code of Virginia, the Virginia Community College System shall submit to the
24 Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees by November 4 of
25 each year a report detailing the financing, activities, accomplishments and plans for the
26 Institutes of Excellence and the four workforce development centers, and outcomes of the
27 appropriations for 23 workforce coordinators and for non-credit training. The report shall
28 include, but not be limited to:

a. performance measures to be used to evaluate the effectiveness of the workforce coordinators at all 23 colleges;

b. detailed information on number of students trained, employers served and courses offered;
the types of certifications awarded; and the participation by local governments and the public
or private sector, and other data relevant to the activities of the four regional workforce
development centers;

c. the number of students trained, employers served and courses offered through noncredit
 instruction, and the amounts of local government, public or private sector funding used to
 match this appropriation; and

d. the amount or percentage of private and public funding contributed for the institutes'
 programming and operating needs; the number of private and public partnerships involved in
 the institutes' programming; the number of faculty and colleges affected by the institutes'
 programming; and performance measures to be used to evaluate the sharing or broadcasting of
 information and new/improved/updated curricula to other Virginia Community College
 campuses.

F. Out of this appropriation, \$1,196,820 and 23 positions the first year and \$1,196,820 and 23 positions the second year from the general fund is provided for staff who will be responsible for coordinating workforce training in the campus service area. The staff will work with local business and industry to determine training needs, coordinate with local economic development personnel, the local workforce training council, and other providers. It is the General Assembly's intent that the Virginia Community College System maximize these positions by encouraging funding matches at the local level.

G. Out of this appropriation, \$470,880 and four positions the first year and \$470,880 and four
positions the second year from the general fund is provided for four workforce training
centers: the Peninsula Workforce Development Center (Thomas Nelson Community College),
\$78,480 and one position the first year and \$78,480 and one position the second year; the

]	ITEM 213			Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Yea FY2020	Appropri r First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7		Regional Center for Appl \$156,960 and one position t Workforce Development Ce position the first year and Virginia Manufacturing Tec one position the first year ar provide a 25 percent match	he first year and \$156,960 Inter at Paul D. Camp Com \$156,960 and one position hnology Training Center i d \$78,480 and one position	and one position munity College, in the second year n the Lynchburg n the second year.	the second year; a \$156,960 and one ; and the Central area, \$78,480 and	1 ; [[
8 9		H. Out of this appropriation the general fund is designated				L	
10 11		I. Out of this appropriation, general fund is designated to	-				
12 13 14		J. Out of this appropriation support career and technica County Center with a focus	education at Lord Fairfax	Community Col			
15 16 17 18 19 20 21		K. Out of this appropriation the general fund is designa Community College, Boteto the demand for mechatronic Engineering Technicians ov County Public Schools an faculty preparation progra	ted to implement a pilot p urt County Public Schools, technicians. The program er five years using establish d Virginia Western Com	rogram between , and local industr goal is to prepare hed career pathwa	Virginia Westerr y partners to meet 100 Mechatronic tys with Botetour	1 2 2	
22 23 24 25 26		L. Out of this appropriation, to implement a pilot progra City Public Schools and loo program to allow high school diploma and a workforce creation	m between Virginia West cal industry partners to cre of students the opportunity to	ern Community (eate a Career Tec	College, Roanoke chnical dual track		
27 28 29	214.	Higher Education Auxiliary a sum sufficient, estin	Enterprises (80900) nated at			\$58,821,317	\$58,821,317 \$53,821,317
30 31 32 33 34		Food Services (80910) Bookstores And Other Store Parking And Transportation (80940)	s (80920) Systems And Services	\$1,238,576 \$14,447,297 \$23,487,416	\$1,238,576 \$14,447,297 \$23,487,416		φ <i>33,</i> 021,317
34 35 36		Student Unions And Re (80970)		\$19,648,028	\$18,487,416 \$19,648,028		
37 38		Fund Sources: Higher Educa	tion Operating	\$42,710,554	\$42,710,554 \$37,710,554		
39				\$16,110,763	\$16,110,763		
40		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapte	er 29, Code of Virginia.				
41	215.	The appropriations in this se	ction are for the following	community colleg	ges:		
42		College I.D.	Community College	Co	ollege I.D.	Community Colle	ege
43		61	System Office		80	Northern Virginia	
44		70	Utility		85	Patrick Henry	
45		91	Blue Ridge		77	Paul D. Camp	
46		92	Central Virginia		82	Piedmont	
47		87	Dabney S. Lancaster		78	Rappahannock	
48		79	Danville		76	Southside Virginia	L
49		84	Eastern Shore		94	Southwest Virginia	a
50		97	Germanna		93	Thomas Nelson	
51		83	J. Sargeant Reynolds		95	Tidewater	
52		90	John Tyler		96	Virginia Highland	8

ITEM 215.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year			riations(\$) Second Year			
				FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020	
1		98	Lord Fairfax		86	Virginia Western		
2		99	Mountain Empire		88	Wytheville		
3		75	New River					
4 5		Total for Virginia Commu	unity College System			\$1,183,354,184	\$1,185,511,319 \$1,206,115,772	
6 7		General Fund Positions		5,557.57	5,557.57 5,637.57			
8			1S	5,796.58	5,796.58			
9 10		Position Level		11,354.15	11,354.15 11,434.15			
11 12		Fund Sources: General		\$440,735,735	\$442,892,870 \$451,997,323			
13 14		Higher Edu	acation Operating	\$726,507,686	\$726,507,686 \$738,007,686			
15		Debt Servi	ce	\$16,110,763	\$16,110,763			
16			§ 1-65. VIRGINIA MIL	ITARY INSTITUT	TE (211)			
17	216.	Educational and General I	Programs (10000)			\$40,129,603	\$41,464,327	
18			ion (100101)	\$16,934,911	\$18,269,635			
19		-	Services (100103)	\$75,221	\$75,221			
20		-	nic (100104)	\$5,763,746	\$5,763,746			
21 22		0	Services (100105)	\$2,694,932 \$7,509,209	\$2,694,932 \$7,509,209			
22 23			ce Of Plant (100107)	\$7,309,209 \$7,151,584	\$7,151,584			
24		Fund Sources: General		\$9,995,154	\$10,930,316			
25			acation Operating	\$29,734,449	\$30,134,011			
26		Debt Servi	ce	\$400,000	\$400,000			
27		Authority: Title 23.1, Cha	pter 25, Code of Virginia.					
28 29 30 31		initiatives that help meet	eneral and nongeneral fund a statewide goals as described ative Operations Act of 2005	in the Restructured	Higher Education			
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39		B. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.						
40 41			by the State Council of Higher from the base adequacy fundi		inia to be uniquely			
42 43 44			ation, \$395,740 the second ye gree production in Data Sci e, and Education.	•	0			
45 46		2. Degree production sl Professional awards as	nall be measured for Bache follows:	lors, Masters, Doc	torates and First			
47 48			nology awards shall be based Education for Virginia, C-16	-	a contained in the			
49 50			ng awards shall be based on c ation for Virginia (SCHEV)					

	ITEM 216		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		following programs Biological and Biomedical Science already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technolo (42);	(26), Engineerin			
4 5		c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Health Professions and Related				
6 7		d. Education awards shall be based on completion data completion report for the Education Programs (13).	contained in the	SCHEV C-1 A1		
8		3. Virginia Military Institute is expected to increase:				
9		a. Data Science and Technology awards by 5 in the second	nd year.			
10		b. Science and Engineering awards by 5 in the second year	ar.			
11		c. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these	purposes.			
12 13 14		4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goa Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report o annually beginning August 2020.				
15 16 17	217.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$5,636,680	\$5,707,147 \$5,718,218
18 19		Scholarships (10810)	\$5,636,680	\$5,707,147 \$5,718,218		ψ3,710,210
20 21		Fund Sources: General	\$1,036,680	\$1,107,147 \$1,118,218		
22		Higher Education Operating	\$4,600,000	\$4,600,000		
23		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 25, § 23.1-2506, Code of V	/irginia.			
24 25		A. Out of the amounts for Scholarships and Loans, the Cadetships and for discretionary student aid.	e institute shall p	provide for State		
26 27 28 29 30 31		B. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item ma Guaranteed Assistance Program eligible students for (1) in Data Science and Technology, Science and Engine programs and (2) as a grant for students in innovative in the institutions has at least one private sector partner and the partner with non-state funding and / or the institution	priority funding ering, Healthcar nternship program d the grant is ma	who are enrolled e and Education ms provided that tched equally by		
32 33 34	218.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$894,898	\$894,898
35 36		Eminent Scholars (11001) Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$200,000 \$694,898	\$200,000 \$694,898	<i></i>	
37		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$894,898	\$894,898		
38		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 25, Code of Virginia.				
39	219.	Unique Military Activities (11300)			\$8,772,662	\$10,172,662
40 41		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$4,210,058 \$4,562,604	\$5,610,058 \$4,562,604		
42		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
43 44 45		A.1. Personnel associated with performance of activities of Higher Education for Virginia to be uniquely mili calculation of employment guidelines.				
46 47		2. It is the intent of the General Assembly that nonresider fund support in the Unique Military program as resident of		the same general		

40 2. It is the intent of the General Assembly that holiesteen cadets I47 fund support in the Unique Military program as resident cadets.

ITEM 220.		Item First Year FY2019			iations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1	220.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900)	F 1 2019	F 1 2020	FY2019	F I 2020
2	220.	a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$29,916,510	\$29,916,510
3		Food Services (80910)	\$7,497,369	\$7,497,369		
4		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$1,174,021	\$1,174,021		
5		Residential Services (80930)	\$2,080,471	\$2,080,471		
6		Student Health Services (80960)	\$232,440	\$232,440		
7		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities (80970)	\$1,838,039	\$1,838,039		
8		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$955,874	\$955,874		
9		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$10,743,395	\$10,743,395		
10		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$5,394,901	\$5,394,901		
11		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$27,920,510	\$27,920,510		
12		Debt Service	\$1,996,000	\$1,996,000		
13		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 25, Code of Virginia.				
14 15		Total for Virginia Military Institute			\$85,350,353	\$88,155,544 \$88,166,615
16		General Fund Positions	187.71	187.71		
17		Nongeneral Fund Positions	281.06	281.06		
18		Position Level	468.77	468.77		
19 20		Fund Sources: General	\$15,241,892	\$17,647,521 \$17,658,592		
21		Higher Education Operating	\$67,712,461	\$68,112,023		
22		Debt Service	\$2,396,000	\$2,396,000		
23		§ 1-66. VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INS	TITUTE AND STA	TE UNIVERSIT	Y (208)	
24 25	221.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$707,553,016 \$756,061,887	\$712,768,896 \$761,277,767
26 27		Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$402,323,902 \$440,537,396	\$407,539,782 \$445,753,276		
28		Higher Education Research (100102)	\$21,760,642	\$21,760,642		
29		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$24,677,993	\$24,677,993		
30 31		Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$85,609,511 \$88,977,171	\$85,609,511 \$88,977,171		
32 33		Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$22,070,704 \$23,344,510	\$22,070,704 \$23,344,510		
34 35		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$69,017,141 \$72,667,747	\$69,017,141 \$72,667,747		
26		One section and Maintenance Of Dlant (100107)	¢ 22 002 122	¢02 002 122		

\$82,093,123

\$84,096,428

- Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)..... \$82,093,123 \$84,096,428 \$162,254,482 \$167,470,362 Fund Sources: General \$545,298,534 \$545,298,534 Higher Education Operating..... \$593,807,405 \$593,807,405
- 41 Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 26, Code of Virginia.

36

37

38

39

40

42 43

44

45

A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund appropriations to support institutional initiatives that help meet statewide goals described in the Restructured Higher Education Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 (Chapters 933 and 945, 2005 Acts of Assembly).

46 B. Out of this appropriation shall be expended an amount estimated at \$869,882 the first year 47 and \$869,882 the second year from the general fund and \$436,357 the first year and \$436,357 48 the second year from nongeneral funds are designated for the educational telecommunications 49 project to provide graduate engineering education. For supplemental budget requests, the 50 participating institutions and centers jointly shall submit a report in support of such requests 51 to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia for review and recommendation to the 52 Governor and General Assembly.

53 C. Out of this appropriation, \$301,219 the first year and \$301,219 the second year from the

	241					
ITEM 221		Item D t Year 2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1 2	general fund is designated to support the Marion duPont Scott Virginia-Maryland Regional College of Veterinary Medicine.	Equine	Center of the			
3 4 5	D. Out of this appropriation, \$225,588 the first year and \$225,58 the general fund is designated to support tobacco research for media tests at sites in Blackstone and Abingdon.		-			
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	E. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach fur adequacy guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully share of the base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided exercising their authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of V consideration the impact of escalating college costs for Virginia st accordance with the cost-sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of Visitors is encouraged to limit increases on tuition and mandatory of fees for in-state, undergraduate students to the extent possible.	y fund th with the Visitors a tudents a f this act	e general fund intent that, in shall take into nd families. In t, the Board of			
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	F. Out of this appropriation, \$288,000 the first year and \$288,000 th general fund is designated to develop a STEM Industry Internship with the Virginia Space Grant Consortium, Virginia Regional Te industry. The program will provide 75 undergraduate students acre an opportunity to centrally apply for real world work experience industries with access to qualified interns. Virginia Tech will pa Space Grant Consortium and work with Virginia's Regional Tec will serve as the program's conduit to industry, advertising the pro- interested industry partners.	program chnology oss the C and prov rtner wit hnology	in partnership v Councils and commonwealth vide Virginia's th the Virginia Councils who			
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	G. The 4-VA, a public-private partnership among George Mat Madison University, the University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, Ol- and CISCO Systems, Inc., utilizes emerging technologies to pro- resource sharing to increase access, reduce time to graduation and maintaining and enhancing quality. Instructional talent across leveraged in the delivery of programs in foreign languages, engineering and mathematics. The 4-VA Management Board can to additional institutions as appropriate to meet the goals of the expected that funding will be pooled by the management board continuing efforts of the 4-VA priorities and projects.	d Domin mote col l reduce the five science expand the e 4-VA is	ion University, laboration and unit cost while institutions is e, technology, his partnership initiative. It is			
33 34 35 36 37 38 39	H. Out of this appropriation, \$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,00 from the general fund is designated to support a cyber range platfo security training by students in Virginia's public high schools, co four-year institutions. Virginia Tech shall form a consortium institutions, and shall serve as the coordinating entity for use consortium should initially include all Virginia public institutions academic excellence from the federal government.	rm to be mmunity among of the	used for cyber colleges, and participating platform. The			
40 41 42 43 44	I. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education Operatic considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of to be collected for the educational and general program un management agreement between Virginia Polytechnic Institute ar the Commonwealth, as set forth in Chapters 933 and 943, of the 2	the amounder the address the second state of t	nt of revenues terms of the University and			
45 46 47	J. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$5,215,880 the second year fro designated to address increased degree production in Data Sci Science and Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.					
48 49	2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters Professional awards as follows:	, Doctor	rates and First			
50 51	a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on compl the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 comple					
52 53 54	b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion State Council of Higher Education for Virginia SCHEV), C-1 Al the following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26)	l comple	tion report for			

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)	
ITEM 221.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
L 2	those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Sciences (42);	g Technologies (15), and Physical			
3 1	c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and					
5	d. Education awards shall be based on completion dat completion report for the Education Programs (13).	a contained in the S	SCHEV C-1 A1			
7	3. Virginia Tech is expected to increase:					
3	a. Data Science and Technology awards by 60 in the seco	nd year.				
)	b. Science and Engineering awards by 100 in the second	year.				
)	c. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these J	purposes.				
L 2 3	4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these g Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees report annually beginning August 2020.					
222.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$26,156,231 \$29,709.256	\$26,862,539 \$31,406,961	
7	Scholarships (10810)	\$21,078,606	\$21,784,914	. , ., .		

\$24,631,631

\$5,077,625

\$21,288,231

\$4,868,000

\$8,421,025

\$26,329,336

\$5,077,625

\$21,994,539

\$22,985,936

\$4,868,000

\$8,421,025

A. Out of the amount for Scholarships, the following sums shall be made available from thegeneral fund for:

Higher Education Operating.....

28 1. Soil Scientist Scholarships, \$11,000 the first year and \$11,000 the second year.

Fellowships (10820).....

Fund Sources: General

16 17

18

19

20

21

22

 $\overline{23}$

24

25

Virginia.,

29 2. Scholarships, internships, and graduate assistantships administered by the Multicultural
30 Academic Opportunities Program at the university, \$86,500 the first year and \$86,500 the
31 second year. Eligible students must have financial need and participate in an academic
32 support program.

Authority: Soil Scientist Scholarships: Title 23.1, Chapter 26, and § 23.1-615, Code of

B. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Education Operating in this Item shall be
 considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of the revenue collected to
 meet student financial aid needs, under the terms of the management agreement between the
 university and the Commonwealth as set forth in Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of
 Assembly.

C. Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be used to support Virginia Guaranteed
Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority funding who are enrolled in Data Science
and Technology, Science and Engineering, Healthcare and Education programs and (2) as a
grant for students in innovative internship programs provided that the institutions has at least
one private sector partner and the grant is matched equally by the partner with non-state
funding and / or the institution from private funds.

Financial Assistance For Educational and General 44 223. 45 Services (11000)..... 46 \$2,000,000 Eminent Scholars (11001). \$2,000,000 47 \$334,801,687 \$334,801,687 Sponsored Programs (11004) 48 \$5,388,544 \$5,388,544 Fund Sources: General 49 \$331,413,143 \$331,413,143 Higher Education Operating.....

\$336,801,687 \$336,801,687

	ITEM 223.		First Year		First Year	riations(\$) Second Year
1		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 26, Code of Virginia.	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
2 3 4 5		A. Out of this appropriation, \$2,388,544 the first ye from the general fund and \$15,000,000 the first year from nongeneral funds are designated to build r bioengineering, biomaterials and nanotechnology	r and \$15,000,000 esearch capacity) the second year		
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		 B. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State Universitive supporting "instructional enterprise" fund to account for the Institute for Distance and Distributed Learning (II) locations outside the Commonwealth of Virginia. Concept of an "enterprise fund," student tuition and locations outside Virginia shall exceed all direct and in to those students. The Board of Visitors shall set requirement and shall set other policies regarding Revenue and expenditures of the fund shall be accour auditable by the Auditor of Public Accounts. As a pafund Virginia Tech is authorized to establish a program courses, certificate, and entire degree programs, primar to students in Virginia who are not enrolled for classe of the extended campus locations. Tuition generated b line courses and tuition from IDDL students at location in the fund to support the entire IDDL program. Full-through these programs shall be accounted for separar remain unexpended on the last day of the previous bi year of the current biennium shall be reappropriated respective succeeding fiscal year. 	or the revenues an DDL) classes offe Consistent with the fee revenues for l direct costs of pro- tuition and fee ra- the IDDL as may inted for in such a urt of this "instruct m in which Interne- rily at the graduate is on the Blacksbu y Virginia student ns outside Virginia all not be used by ess of expenditures time equivalent si- titely. Additionally ennium and the la and allotted for e	d expenditures of red to students at e self-supporting IDDL students at viding instruction ates to meet this be appropriate. a manner as to be tional enterprise" et-based (on-line) level, are offered rg campus or one s taking these on- a shall be retained the state to offset s shall be retained tudents generated , revenues which st day of the first xpenditure in the		
29 30 31 32		from the general fund is designated to support and e D. The Higher Education Operating fund source liste sum sufficient appropriation, which is an estimate of fu- cover sponsored program operations.	d in this Item is c	onsidered to be a		
33	224.	Unique Military Activities (11300)			\$2,284,350	\$2,584,350
34		Fund Sources: General	\$2,284,350	\$2,584,350	. , ,	.,,,
			¢2,201,550	¢2,501,550		
35 36 37 38 39 40		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.A.1. Personnel associated with performance of activit of Higher Education for Virginia to be uniquely m calculation of employment guidelines.2. It is the intent of the General Assembly that nonreside fund support in the Unique Military program as resider	ilitary shall be ex dent cadets receive	cluded from the		
41	225.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900)				
42 43		a sum sufficient, estimated at Food Services (80910)	\$58,017,586	\$58,017,586	\$312,946,077	\$312,946,077
43 44		Residential Services (80910)	\$54,276,261	\$54,276,261		
45 46		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$13,709,452	\$13,709,452		
47		Telecommunications Systems And Services				
48		(80950)	\$19,617,224	\$19,617,224		
49 50		Student Health Services (80960) Student Unions And Recreational Facilities	\$11,308,313	\$11,308,313		
50 51		(80970)	\$18,411,985	\$18,411,985		
52		Recreational And Intramural Programs (80980)	\$9,123,592	\$9,123,592		
53		Other Enterprise Functions (80990)	\$61,298,310	\$61,298,310		
54		Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$67,183,354	\$67,183,354		

			Item Details(\$) Appropriation					
	ITEM 225.		First Year FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020		
1 2		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Debt Service	\$302,595,577 \$10,350,500	\$302,595,577 \$10,350,500				
3		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 26, Code of Virginia.						
4 5 6		Total for Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University			\$1,385,741,361 \$1,437,803,257	\$1,391,963,549 \$1,445,016,842		
7 8 9		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	1,890.53 4,933.45 6,823.98	1,890.53 4,933.45 6,823.98				
10 11		Fund Sources: General	\$191,215,607	\$197,437,795 \$108,420,102				
11 12 13 14		Higher Education Operating	\$1,184,175,254 \$1,236,237,150 \$10,250,500	\$198,429,192 \$1,184,175,254 \$1,236,237,150 \$10,250,500				
14		Debt Service	\$10,350,500	\$10,350,500				
15		Virginia Cooperative Extension an	d Agricultural Expe	eriment Station (22	29)			
16 17	226.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$89,957,448 \$90,087,005	\$89,957,448 \$90,506,372		
18 19		Higher Education Research (100102)	\$39,256,359 \$39,315,359	\$39,256,359 \$39,506,336				
20 21		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$46,920,496 \$46,991,053	\$46,920,496 \$47,219,443				
22 23		Higher Education Academic (100104) Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$718,057 \$3,062,536	\$718,057 \$3,062,536				
24 25		Fund Sources: General	\$71,786,740 \$71,916,297	\$71,786,740 \$72,335,664				
26		Higher Education Operating	\$18,170,708	\$18,170,708				
27		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 26, Article 2, Code of V	irginia.					
28 29 30		A. Appropriations for this agency shall include of investigations, and the several regional and county ag control, in accordance with law.						
31 32 33 34 35		B.1. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the highest priority to programs and services which con- Extension Service, especially agricultural programs ensure that the service utilizes information technology programs.	omprised the origin at the local level. Th	al mission of the he university shall				
36 37 38 39 40 41		2. The budget of this agency shall include and separately account for local payments. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, in conjunction with Virginia State University, shall report, by fund source, actual expenditures for each program area and total actual expenditures for the agency, annually, by September 1, to the Department of Planning and Budget and the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The report shall include all expenditures from local support funds.						
42 43		C. The Virginia Cooperative Extension and Agricultura fee for testing the soil on property used for commercial		n shall not charge a				
44 45 46		D. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the general program for the Virginia Cooperative Extensis shall be 95 percent of state funding calculations.						
47 48 49 50 51		E. The appropriation for the fund source Higher Edu considered a sum sufficient appropriation, which is ar be collected for the educational and general program agreement between Virginia Polytechnic Instit Commonwealth, as set forth in Chapters 933 and	n estimate of the amo n under the terms o tute and State Un	ount of revenues to f the management iversity and the				

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEN	1 226.	First Yea FY2019		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	Total for Virginia Cooperative Extension and Agricultural Experiment Station			\$89,957,448 \$90,087,005	\$89,957,448 \$90,506,372
4 5 6	General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	726.24 388.27 1,114.51	726.24 388.27 1,114.51		
7 8	Fund Sources: General	\$71,786,740 \$71,916,297	\$71,786,740 \$72,335,664		
9	Higher Education Operating	\$18,170,708	\$18,170,708		
10 11 12	Grand Total for Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University			\$1,475,698,809 \$1,527,890,262	\$1,481,920,997 \$1,535,523,214
13	General Fund Positions	2,616.77	2,616.77		
14 15	Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	5,321.72 7,938.49	5,321.72 7,938.49		
16 17	Fund Sources: General	\$263,002,347 \$263,131,904	\$269,224,535 \$270,764,856		
18 19	Higher Education Operating	\$1,254,407,858	\$1,202,345,962 \$1,254,407,858		
20	Debt Service	\$10,350,500	\$10,350,500		
21	§ 1-67. VIRGINIA ST	TATE UNIVERSI	ГҮ (212)		
22 227 23	7. Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$72,863,678	\$73,144,280 \$73,668,030
23 24 25	Higher Education Instruction (100101)	\$40,138,349	\$40,619,059 \$41,142,809		<i>\$75</i> ,000,050
26	Higher Education Research (100102)	\$2,118,047	\$2,118,047		
27	Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$120,448	\$120,448		
28	Higher Education Academic (100104)	\$5,752,949	\$5,752,949		
29 20	Higher Education Student Services (100105)	\$4,387,836	\$4,387,836		
30 31	Higher Education Institutional Support (100106) Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$13,166,931 \$7,179,118	\$12,891,823 \$7,254,118		
32 33	Fund Sources: General	\$36,206,980	\$36,487,582		
33 34 35	Higher Education Operating	\$36,656,698	\$36,786,868 \$36,656,698 \$36,881,162		
36	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 27, Code of Virginia.				
37 38 39 40	A. This Item includes general and nongeneral fund a initiatives that help meet statewide goals described Financial and Administrative Operations Act of 2005 Assembly).	in the Restructured	Higher Education		
41 42 43 44 45	B.1. Out of this appropriation, \$3,790,639 the first from the general fund is designated for continued en Science academic programs in Computer Science, M Engineering, Mass Communications and Criminal Education.	hancement of the ex Ianufacturing Engin	xisting Bachelor of neering, Computer		
46 47 48	2. Out of this appropriation, \$37,500 the first year a general fund is provided to serve in lieu of endown Program.				
49 50 51 52	3. Any unexpended balances in paragraphs B.1. a business on June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019, shall r fund but shall be carried forward on the books of the in the succeeding year.	not revert to the sur	plus of the general		

	Item	Item Details(\$)	
ITEM 227.	First Year	Second Yea	
	FY2019	FY2020	

1

2

3

24

25

26

27

28

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Year

C. This appropriation includes \$200,000 the first year and \$200,000 the second year from the general fund to increase the number of faculty with terminal degrees to at least 85 percent of the total teaching faculty.

4 D. Out of this appropriation, Virginia State University is authorized to use up to \$600,000 the 5 first year and \$600,000 the second year from the general fund to address extremely critical 6 deferred maintenance deficiencies in its facilities, including residence halls and dining 7 facilities.

8 E. As Virginia's public colleges and universities approach full funding of the base adequacy 9 guidelines and as the General Assembly strives to fully fund the general fund share of the 10 base adequacy guidelines, these funds are provided with the intent that, in exercising their 11 authority to set tuition and fees, the Board of Visitors shall take into consideration the impact 12 of escalating college costs for Virginia students and families. In accordance with the cost-13 sharing goals set forth in § 4-2.01 b. of this act, the Board of Visitors is encouraged to limit 14 increases on tuition and mandatory educational and general fees for in-state, undergraduate 15 students to the extent possible.

16 F. Out of this appropriation, \$1,300,000 the first year and \$1,300,000 the second year from 17 the general fund is designated to support the Manufacturing Engineering and Logistics 18 Technology program.

19 G. Out of this appropriation, \$104,792 the first year and \$104,022 the second year from the 20 general fund is designated for debt service costs under the Master Equipment Lease Program 21 (MELP) for upgrades to the university's police radio system. In addition to these amounts, 22 \$154,451 the first year from the general fund is designated to support training and software 23 costs.

H. Out of this appropriation, \$324,140 the first year and \$321,757 the second year from the general fund is designated to support debt service costs under the Master Equipment Lease Program (MELP) to improve the university's information technology network. In addition to these amounts, \$412,923 the first year and \$295,419 the second year from the general fund is designated to support training and software costs.

29 I. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$480,710 the second year from the general fund is designated 30 to address increased degree production in Data Science and Technology, Science and 31 Engineering, Healthcare, and Education.

32 2. Degree production shall be measured for Bachelors, Masters, Doctorates and First 33 Professional awards as follows:

34 a. Data Science and Technology awards shall be based on completion data contained in the 35 State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, C-16 completion report;

36 b. Science and Engineering awards shall be based on completion data contained in the State 37 Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV), C-1 A1 completion report for the 38 following programs Biological and Biomedical Science (26), Engineering (14) less those already counted in paragraph 2 a., Engineering Technologies (15), and Physical Sciences (42); 39

40 c. Healthcare awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 41 completion report for the Health Professions and Related Programs (51); and

- 42 d. Education awards shall be based on completion data contained in the SCHEV C-1 A1 43 completion report for the Education Programs (13).
- 44 3. Virginia State University is expected to increase:
- 45 a. Data Science and Technology awards by 5 in the second year.
- 46 b. Science and Engineering awards by 5 in the second year.
- 47 c. Education awards by 5 in the second year.
- d. The 2016-17 year will serve as the base year for these purposes. 48
- 49 4. SCHEV shall report on the progress toward these goals to the Chairman of the House

ITEM 227.			Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020			
1 2		Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees repor annually beginning August 2020.			FY2019	FY2020
3 4 5 6 7 8		I. Out of this appropriation, an amount estimated at \$ \$224,464 from nongeneral funds in the second year telecommunications project to provide graduate engine budget requests, the participating institutions and cer support of such requests to the State Council of Higher and recommendation to the Governor and General As	are designated fo eering education. tters jointly shall s er Education for V	or the educational For supplemental submit a report in		
9 10 11 12 13 14 15		J. Virginia State University, Norfolk State University College at Wise, shall develop a framework and fundin enhancing access to undergraduate education for stud institutions shall submit a single report on their J September 1, 2019, to the Secretary of Finance, Secret House Appropriations Committee, the Chairmen of the the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.	ng recommendation dents with high fin findings and reco etary of Education	ns associated with bancial needs. The commendations by b, Chairman of the		
16 17 18	228.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$15,372,344	\$15,623,045 \$16,103,906
19 20		Scholarships (10810)	\$14,973,285	\$15,223,986 \$15,704,847		<i>\$</i> 10,100,700
21		Fellowships (10820)	\$399,059	\$399,059		
22 23		Fund Sources: General	\$8,775,317	\$9,026,018 \$9,506,879		
24		Higher Education Operating	\$6,597,027	\$6,597,027		
25		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 27, Code of Virginia.				
26 27 28 29 30 31		Up to 15 percent of the funding in this item may be u Assistance Program eligible students for (1) priority Science and Technology, Science and Engineering, F and (2) as a grant for students in innovative inter institutions has at least one private sector partner and partner with non-state funding and / or the institution	funding who are Healthcare and Ed nship programs p the grant is match	e enrolled in Data lucation programs provided that the ned equally by the		
32 33 34	229.	Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$35,538,161	\$35,538,161
35		a sum sufficient, estimated at Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$35,538,161	\$35,538,161	\$55,556,101	\$55,556,101
36		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$35,538,161	\$35,538,161		
37		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 27, Code of Virginia.	<i>435,55</i> 0,101	φ35,536,101		
38 39	230.	Higher Education Auxiliary Enterprises (80900) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$42,508,117	\$42,508,117
40		Food Services (80910)	\$8,789,606	\$8,789,606	+,	+ + +
41		Bookstores And Other Stores (80920)	\$51,001	\$51,001		
42		Residential Services (80930)	\$17,374,870	\$17,374,870		
43 44		Parking And Transportation Systems And Services (80940)	\$417,467	\$417,467		
45		Student Health Services (80960)	\$1,046,036	\$1,046,036		
46		Student Unions And Recreational Facilities				
47 48		(80970)	\$2,678,662 \$6,150,277	\$2,678,662 \$6,150,277		
48 49		Other Enterprise Functions (80990) Intercollegiate Athletics (80995)	\$6,150,277 \$6,000,198	\$6,150,277 \$6,000,198		
50 51		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$32,175,572 \$10,332,545	\$32,175,572 \$10,332,545		
51		Debt Service	\$10,332,545	\$10,332,545		
52		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 27, Code of Virginia.				

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)			
]	ITEM 230.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2		Total for Virginia State University			\$166,282,300	\$166,813,603 \$167,818,214	
3 4		General Fund Positions	323.47	323.47 327.47			
5 6		Nongeneral Fund Positions	486.89	486.89 489.89			
7 8		Position Level	810.36	810.36 817.36			
9 10		Fund Sources: General	\$44,982,297	\$45,513,600 \$46,293,747			
11 12		Higher Education Operating	\$110,967,458	\$110,967,458 \$111,191,922			
13		Debt Service	\$10,332,545	\$10,332,545			
14		Cooperative Extension and Ag	ricultural Research	Services (234)			
15	231.	Educational and General Programs (10000)			\$12,231,656	\$12,231,656	
16		Higher Education Research (100102)	\$5,679,088	\$5,679,088			
17		Higher Education Public Services (100103)	\$5,934,114	\$5,934,114			
18		Higher Education Institutional Support (100106)	\$50,440	\$50,440			
19		Operation and Maintenance Of Plant (100107)	\$568,014	\$568,014			
20 21		Fund Sources: General Higher Education Operating	\$5,590,340 \$6,641,316	\$5,590,340 \$6,641,316			
21		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 27, § 23.1-2704, Title 23,					
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32		 A. Out this appropriation, \$392,107 the first year and \$392,107 the second year from the general fund is designated for support of research and extension activities aimed at the production of hybrid striped bass in Virginia farm ponds. No expenditures will be made from these funds for other purposes without the prior written permission of the Secretary of Education. B. The Extension Division budgets shall include and separately account for local payments. Virginia State University, in conjunction with Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, shall report, by fund source, actual expenditures for each program area and total actual expenditures for the Extension Division, annually, by September 1, to the Department of Planning and Budget and the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The 					
33 34 35		report shall include all expenditures from local support C. Out of this appropriation, \$394,000 the first year ar general fund is designated for the Small-Farmer Outrea	nd \$394,000 the seco ch Training and Tec	chnical Assistance			
36		Program to provide outreach and business management	education to small	farmers.			
37 38		Total for Cooperative Extension and Agricultural Research Services			\$12,231,656	\$12,231,656	
39		General Fund Positions	31.75	31.75			
40		Nongeneral Fund Positions	67.00	67.00			
41		Position Level	98.75	98.75			
42		Fund Sources: General	\$5,590,340	\$5,590,340			
43		Higher Education Operating	\$6,641,316	\$6,641,316			
44 45		Grand Total for Virginia State University			\$178,513,956	\$179,045,259 \$180,049,870	
46 47		General Fund Positions	355.22	355.22 359.22			
48 49		Nongeneral Fund Positions	553.89	553.89 556.89			
50 51		Position Level	909.11	909.11 916.11			

]	ITEM 231		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: General	\$50,572,637	\$51,103,940 \$51,884,087		
3 4		Higher Education Operating	\$117,608,774	\$117,608,774 \$117,833,238		
5		Debt Service	\$10,332,545	\$10,332,545		
6		§ 1-68. FRONTIER CULTURI	E MUSEUM OF V	IRGINIA (239)		
7 8	232.	Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$2,597,716	\$2,597,716 \$2,612,716
9 10		Collections Management and Curatorial Services	\$188,555	\$188,555		φ2,012,710
10		(14501) Education and Extension Services (14503)	\$1,169,606	\$1,169,606		
12		Operational and Support Services (14507)	\$1,239,555	\$1,239,555		
13			.,,,	\$1,254,555		
14 15		Fund Sources: General	\$1,891,936	\$1,891,936 \$1,906,936		
16		Special	\$705,780	\$705,780		
17		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 32, Article 2, Code of V	⁷ irginia.			
18 19 20 21 22		A. Any revenue generated by the Frontier Cultu development of its properties pursuant to § 23.1-3203 by the museum to support agency operations. Such special fund which shall be created on the books of the fund shall be appropriated consistent with the provision	3, Code of Virginia revenues shall be e State Comptroller	, may be retained deposited into a		
23 24 25		B. The Governor may authorize the conveyance improvements thereon held by the Commonwealth Foundation.				
26 27		Total for Frontier Culture Museum of Virginia			\$2,597,716	\$2,597,716 \$2,612,716
28		General Fund Positions	22.50	22.50		
29		Nongeneral Fund Positions	15.00	15.00		
30		Position Level	37.50	37.50		
31 32		Fund Sources: General	\$1,891,936	\$1,891,936 \$1,906,936		
33		Special	\$705,780	\$705,780		
34		§ 1-69. GUNST	FON HALL (417)			
35	233.	Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$842,150	\$842,150
36		Education and Extension Services (14503)	\$94,202	\$94,202		
37		Operational and Support Services (14507)	\$747,948	\$747,948		
38		Fund Sources: General	\$661,973	\$661,973		
39		Special	\$180,177	\$180,177		
40		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 32, Article 3, Code of V	⁷ irginia.			
41		Total for Gunston Hall			\$842,150	\$842,150
42		General Fund Positions	8.00	8.00		
43		Nongeneral Fund Positions	3.00	3.00		
44		Position Level	11.00	11.00		
45		Fund Sources: General	\$661,973	\$661,973		
46		Special	\$180,177	\$180,177		
47		§ 1-70. JAMESTOWN-YOR	KTOWN FOUND	ATION (425)		
48	234	Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$18 918 251	\$18 360 426

48 234. Museum and Cultural Services (14500).....

\$18,918,251 \$18,360,426

ITEM 234.			Item First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	Appropriations(\$) ear First Year Second Y	
	11201204		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2		Collections Management and Curatorial Services (14501)	\$684,141	\$684,141		
3 4		Education and Extension Services (14503) Operational and Support Services (14507)	\$7,858,030 \$10,376,080	\$7,300,205 \$10,376,080		
5 6		Fund Sources: General Special	\$10,305,275 \$8,612,976	\$9,747,450 \$8,612,976		
7		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 32, Article 4, Code of Virg	inia.			
8 9 10 11		A. Out of the amounts for Operational and Support Serexpend from special funds amounts not to exceed \$3,500 year for entertainment expenses commonly borne by recorded separately by the agency.) the first year and §	\$3,500 the second		
12 13 14 15		B. With the prior written approval of the Director, Donogeneral fund revenues which are unexpended by the the Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation, Inc. for the specified Trustees in support of Foundation programs.				
16 17 18		C. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Ja authorized to fill all positions authorized in this act and a in this act, notwithstanding § 4-7.01 of this act.				
19 20 21		D. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$54,777 the fin from the general fund is included for the purchase of mu through the state's master equipment lease program.				
22		Total for Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation			\$18,918,251	\$18,360,426
23		General Fund Positions	108.00	108.00		
24 25		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	63.00 171.00	63.00 171.00		
26 27		Fund Sources: General Special	\$10,305,275 \$8,612,976	\$9,747,450 \$8,612,976		
28		Jamestown-Yorktown	Commemorations	(400)		
29	235.	Historic and Commemorative Attraction				
30 31		Management (50200) 2019 Commemoration (50210)	\$6,501,417	\$6,501,417	\$6,501,417	\$6,501,417
32		Fund Sources: General	\$6,501,417	\$6,501,417		
33		Total for Jamestown-Yorktown Commemorations			\$6,501,417	\$6,501,417
34		General Fund Positions	9.00	9.00		
35		Position Level	9.00	9.00		
36		Fund Sources: General	\$6,501,417	\$6,501,417		
37		Grand Total for Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation			\$25,419,668	\$24,861,843
38 20		General Fund Positions	117.00 63.00	117.00 63.00		
39 40		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	180.00	63.00 180.00		
41 42		Fund Sources: General Special	\$16,806,692 \$8,612,976	\$16,248,867 \$8,612,976		
43		§ 1-71. THE LIBRARY OF VIRGINIA (202)				
44	236.	Archives Management (13700)			\$5,848,305	\$5,848,305
45	250.	Management of Public Records (13701)	\$778,007	\$778,007	\$2,0.0,000	40,010,000
46		Management of Archival Records (13702)	\$1,967,402	\$1,967,402		

			Details(\$)	Appropri	
ITEM 236		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Historical and Cultural Publications (13703) Archival Research Services (13704)	\$679,368 \$1,236,422	\$679,368 \$1,236,422		
3 4	Conservation-Preservation of Historic Records	\$175,061	\$175,061		
4 5	(13705) Circuit Court Record Preservation (13706)	\$1,012,045	\$1,012,045		
6	Fund Sources: General	\$2,250,046	\$2,250,046		
7	Special	\$3,273,833	\$3,273,833		
8	Federal Trust	\$324,426	\$324,426		
9	Authority: Title 42.1, Chapters 1 and 7, Code of Virginia	a.			
10 11	A. The Librarian of Virginia shall report annually to progress in the processing and preserving of circuit		of Education on		
12 13 14 15 16	B. The Librarian of Virginia and the State Archivist sha Library of Virginia's archival preservation needs and pr by December 1 to the Governor and the Chairmen o Appropriations Committees of the General Assemb progress to date in reducing its archival backlog.	riorities, and shall f the Senate Fina	l report annually ance and House		
17 237.	Statewide Library Services (14200)			\$6,413,094	\$6,413,094
18	Cooperative Library Services (14201)	\$2,651,222	\$2,651,222		
19 20	Consultation to Libraries (14203) Research Library Services (14206)	\$739,259 \$3,022,613	\$739,259 \$3,022,613		
21	Fund Sources: General	\$2,986,105	\$2,986,105		
21 22	Special	\$286,759	\$286,759		
23	Federal Trust	\$3,140,230	\$3,140,230		
24	Authority: Title 42.1, Chapters 1 and 3, Code of Virginia	1.			
25 26 27	It is the intent of the General Assembly to continue to public libraries and to provide universal access to all cit priority shall be the ability to access the Internet in local	izens of the Com			
 28 238. 29 30 31 	Financial Assistance for Educational, Cultural, Community, and Artistic Affairs (14300) State Formula Aid for Local Public Libraries (14301)	\$16,483,584	\$16,733,584	\$16,483,584	\$16,733,584
32	Fund Sources: General	\$16,483,584	\$16,733,584		
33	Authority: Title 42.1, Chapter 3, Code of Virginia.				
34 35 36 37	A. It is the objective of the Commonwealth that all local provide access to their patrons to worldwide electronic the intent of the General Assembly that local public lib the technology necessary to provide or enhance this ser	raries receiving st	he Internet. It is		
38 39 40	B. Included in this appropriation is \$190,070 the first y from the general fund to supplement the state formula 42.1, Code of Virginia, for Fairfax Public Library Syst	aid distribution p			
41 42 43	C. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year an the general fund is designated for the Eastern Shore Publ of a new library.				
44 45 46	D. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year an the general fund of the total amounts for aid to libraries materials and programs or for STEAM instructional ma	may be used for			
47 239.4849	Administrative and Support Services (19900) General Management and Direction (19901) Information Technology Services (19902)	\$3,431,116 \$3,332,910	\$3,431,116 \$3,203,705	\$10,279,695	\$10,150,490

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 239.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	Physical Plant Services (19915)	\$3,515,669	\$3,515,669		
2	Fund Sources: General	\$8,377,320	\$8,248,115		
3	Special	\$1,021,479	\$1,021,479		
4	Federal Trust	\$880,896	\$880,896		
5	Authority: Title 42.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
6 7 8	A. In the event that any budget reduction actions are Planning and Budget, shall exclude from any reduc included in the Library of Virginia budget.				
9	Total for The Library Of Virginia			\$39,024,678	\$39,145,473
10	General Fund Positions	134.09	134.09		
11	Nongeneral Fund Positions	63.91	63.91		
12	Position Level	198.00	198.00		
13	Fund Sources: General	\$30,097,055	\$30,217,850		
14	Special	\$4,582,071	\$4,582,071		
15	Federal Trust	\$4,345,552	\$4,345,552		
16	§ 1-72. THE SCIENCE M	1USEUM OF VIRGI	NIA (146)		
17	240. Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$11,492,197	\$11,492,197
18	Collections Management and Curatorial Services	¢1 712 009	¢1 712 009		
19 20	(14501)	\$1,713,008 \$5,097,180	\$1,713,008 \$5,097,180		
20 21	Education and Extension Services (14503) Operational and Support Services (14507)	\$4,682,009	\$4,682,009		
22	Fund Sources: General	\$5,263,401	\$5,263,401		
23 24	Special	\$5,228,192	\$5,228,192		
24	Federal Trust	\$1,000,604	\$1,000,604		
25	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 32, Article 5, Code of V	irginia.			
26 27	A. This appropriation from the general fund shall be nongeneral funds, notwithstanding any contrary prov		propriation from		
28 29 30	B. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 and two position positions the second year from the general fund sha Science Center in Danville, Virginia.	•			
31 32 33	C. Out of this appropriation, \$351,314 the first year a general fund is included for the purchase of an IMAX state's master equipment lease program.				
34 35 36 37 38	D. Out of this appropriation, \$150,000 the first year an to pilot a STEM partnership between the Science Mu Space Center, and the Virginia Living Museum for pro 12 students in Hampton Roads and across the state, le component of the workforce pipeline.	seum of Virginia, the grams that promote ac	Virginia Air and hievement for K-		
39	Total for The Science Museum of Virginia			\$11,492,197	\$11,492,197
40	General Fund Positions	58.19	58.19		
41	Nongeneral Fund Positions	34.81	34.81		
42	Position Level	93.00	93.00		
43	Fund Sources: General	\$5,263,401	\$5,263,401		
44	Special	\$5,228,192	\$5,228,192		
45	Federal Trust	\$1,000,604	\$1,000,604		
46	§ 1-73. VIRGINIA COMM	IISSION FOR THE A	ARTS (148)		

§ 1-73. VIRGINIA COMMISSION FOR THE ARTS (148)

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)	
	ITEM 241		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	241.	Financial Assistance for Educational, Cultural,	F 12019	F 1 2020		
2 3		Community, and Artistic Affairs (14300)			\$3,880,912	\$3,880,912 \$4,130,912
4 5 6		Financial Assistance to Cultural Organizations (14302)	\$3,630,912	\$3,630,912 \$3,880,912		\$ 1,120,71 <u>-</u>
7 8		Administration of Grants for Cultural and Artistic Affairs (14307)\$250,000\$250,000\$250,000				
9		Fund Sources: General	\$3,160,237			
10 11		Federal Trust	\$720,675	\$3,410,237 \$720,675		
12		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 25, Article 4, Code of Vir	ginia.			
13 14		A. In the allocation of grants to arts organizations, the to the performing arts.	e Commission shal	l give preference		
15 16		B. It is the objective of the Commonwealth to fund th at an amount that equals one dollar for each resident of		ssion for the Arts		
17 18 19 20		C. In the allocation of grants to arts organizations, the other general fund amounts which may be appropriate in this act, nor shall any funds appropriated elsewhe which may be allocated from this appropriation.	ed to an arts organi	zation elsewhere		
21 22	242.	Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$631,430 \$639,358	\$631,430 \$639,358
23 24		Operational and Support Services (14507)	\$631,430 \$639,358	\$631,430 \$639,358	<i>\$667,656</i>	<i>\$667,666</i>
25 26 27		Fund Sources: General	\$543,973 \$551,901 \$87,457	\$543,973 \$551,901 \$87,457		
				φ07,437		
28		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 25, Article 4, Code of Vir	ginia.			
29 30		Total for Virginia Commission for the Arts			\$4,512,342 \$4,520,270	\$4,512,342 \$4,770,270
31 32		General Fund Positions Position Level	5.00 5.00	5.00 5.00		
33		Fund Sources: General	\$3,704,210	\$3,704,210		
34 35		Federal Trust	\$ <i>3,712,138</i> \$808,132	\$3,962,138 \$808,132		
36		§ 1-74. VIRGINIA MUSE	CUM OF FINE AF	RTS (238)		
37 38	243.	Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$41,979,096	\$42,123,449 \$42,500,852
39 40		Collections Management and Curatorial Services (14501)	\$8,007,367	\$8,007,367		\$ 12,0 00,00 2
40 41 42		Education and Extension Services (14503)	\$7,872,606	\$3,007,307 \$7,872,606 \$8,250,009		
43		Operational and Support Services (14507)	\$26,099,123	\$26,243,476		
44 45		Fund Sources: General	\$10,119,079	\$10,263,432 \$10,640,835		
46		Special	\$6,452,595 \$7,470,010	\$6,452,595 \$7,470,010		
47 48		Enterprise Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,479,910 \$17,677,512	\$7,479,910 \$17,677,512		
40 49		Federal Trust	\$250,000	\$250,000		
50		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 32, Article 6, Code of V		,		
50 51		A. The appropriation in this Item from the genera	-	addition to any		
51		A. The appropriation in this from from the genera		addition to any		

I	ГЕМ 243.		Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		appropriation from nongeneral funds, notwithstanding ar			F 1 2019	Г 1 2020
2 3 4		B. Nongeneral fund revenues included in this Item under restricted for the uses specified by the donors and shall n or appropriation reductions.	er Dedicated Specia	al Revenue will be		
5 6 7 8 9		C. The Comptroller of Virginia shall establish a special nongeneral funds donated to the Virginia Museum of volunteers who sponsor fundraising activities to support exhibitions, and programs, and entertainment expenses expenses shall be recorded separately by the museum.	of Fine Arts by protection of Fine Arts by protection of the museum's g	rivate donors and general operations,		
10 11 12		D. Out of this appropriation, \$158,513 in the first year a the general fund is provided to cover the service fee i Richmond.				
13 14 15 16		E. Purchase of items for resale at retail outlets and f public operated by the Virginia Museum of Fine Arts sh the Virginia Public Procurement Act (§ 2.2-4300 et. set such purchase procedures shall provide for competition	hall be exempt from q.) of the Code of V	n the provisions of Virginia. However,		
17 18		Total for Virginia Museum of Fine Arts			\$41,979,096	\$42,123,449 \$42,500,852
19 20		General Fund Positions	132.50	133.50 141.50		
21		Nongeneral Fund Positions	212.00	212.00		
22 23		Position Level	344.50	345.50 353.50		
24 25		Fund Sources: General	\$10,119,079	\$10,263,432 \$10,640,835		
26		Special	\$6,452,595	\$6,452,595		
27 28		Enterprise Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,479,910 \$17,677,512	\$7,479,910 \$17,677,512		
28 29		Federal Trust	\$250,000	\$250,000		
20			IA MEDICAL SC	UOOL (274)		
30 31	244.	§ 1-75. EASTERN VIRGINI Financial Assistance For Educational and General	IA MEDICAL SC.	HOOL (274)		
32	244.	Services (11000)			\$26,181,554	\$27,866,126
33		Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$595,612	\$595,612		
34		Medical Education (11005)	\$25,585,942	\$27,270,514		
35		Fund Sources: General	\$26,181,554	\$27,866,126		
36		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 30 and Chapter 87, Acts o	f Assembly of 2002	2.		
37 38		A. Out of this appropriation, \$595,612 the first year an general fund is designated to build research capacity in		•		
39 40 41 42 43		B. Out of this appropriation, \$6,158,108 the first year a the general fund is designated for treatment, care an patients through the medical school. The aid is to be ap approved, at the beginning of each biennium, by the Assistance Services.	d maintenance of portioned on the ba	indigent Virginia asis of a plan to be		
44 45 46		C. Out of this appropriation, \$375,700 the first year an general fund is designated to support financial aid for in students.				
47 48 49		D. Out of this appropriation, \$658,597 the first year an general fund is designated for the operation of the Fan Family Practice Medical Student programs.				
50		E. Out of this appropriation, \$60,620 the first year an	d \$60,620 the sec	ond year from the		

ITEM 244.			Iten First Year	n Details(\$) Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
		•	FY2019	FY2020		
1		general fund is designated to support the Eastern Virgin	nia Area Health Ec	lucation Center.		
2 3 4 5 6 7		F. Eastern Virginia Medical School shall transfer fu Assistance Services to fully fund the state share for M physicians affiliated with Eastern Virginia Medical S capitation payments to managed care organizations fo Medicaid physicians services in Eastern Virginia. The f with 42 CFR 433.51.	ledicaid suppleme School for Medic r the purpose of s	ental payments to aid supplemental ecuring access to		
8 9 10 11 12 13		G. Eastern Virginia Medical School is hereby au Department of Medical Assistance Services to fully supplemental payments to the primary teaching hospit Medical School. These Medicaid supplemental fee-for- to managed care organizations are for the purpose of s in Eastern Virginia. The funds to be transferred must				
14 15	245.	Appropriations for this agency shall be disbursed in each fiscal year.	twelve equal mor	thly installments		
16		Total for Eastern Virginia Medical School			\$26,181,554	\$27,866,126
17		Fund Sources: General	\$26,181,554	\$27,866,126		
18		§ 1-76. NEW COLLE	GE INSTITUTE	(938)		
19	246.	Administrative and Support Services (19900)			\$4,133,795	\$4,133,795
20		Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)	\$4,133,795	\$4,133,795		
21 22		Fund Sources: General Special	\$2,589,059 \$1,544,736	\$2,589,059 \$1,544,736		
23		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 4, Code of Vi	rginia.			
24 25 26 27 28 29 30		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the New Advanced Learning and Research, and the Southern coordinate their activities, both instructional and resear to best meet the needs of the citizens of the region, resources, and to avoid unnecessary duplication. The the October 1 to the Secretary of Education and the State O Department of Planning and Budget on their joint effor	Virginia Higher 1 ch, to the maximu to ensure effect ree entities shall r council of Higher 1	Education Center m extent possible ive utilization of eport annually by		
31		B. The requirements of § 4-5.05 shall not apply to this a	appropriation.			
32 33 34 35 36 37		C. 1. The Governing Board of the New College Insti agreement with the New College Foundation and o acquire the Building on Baldwin for the amount no Indemnification and Community Revitalization Cor through the U.S. Economic Development Administ Commission, other federal monies, or local govern	mental parties to Virginia Tobacco leral government			
38 39 40 41 42 43		2. If agreement on acquisition of the Building on Governing Board of the New College Institute, with t General Services (DGS), is further authorized to plan for a new facility. Priority will be given to options util Governing Board and DGS may partner with local governments to this end.	he assistance of the or the construction izing existing states	he Department of n or acquisition of ate property. The		
44 45 46 47 48 49 50		D. The New College Institute, in collaboration wit Virginia Community College System and the Online update on the delivery of programs in Data Scien Engineering, Healthcare and Education. The repor program's implementation, an assessment of workford and interim steps required to ensure student success report to the Chairman of the House Appropriations a	Virginia Network ce and Technolo t shall include a ce demand and stu . The institutions	, shall provide an gy, Science and timeline for the udent preparation shall submit this		

			Item Details(\$) Appropriations			ations(\$)
	ITEM 246.	46. First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020			First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		September 15, 2018.	F 1201)	F 1 2020	112017	F 1 2020
2		Total for New College Institute			\$4,133,795	\$4,133,795
3		General Fund Positions	17.00	17.00		
4		Nongeneral Fund Positions	6.00	6.00		
5		Position Level	23.00	23.00		
6		Fund Sources: General	\$2,589,059	\$2,589,059		
7		Special	\$1,544,736	\$1,544,736		
8		§ 1-77. INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED	LEARNING ANI	O RESEARCH (88	5)	
9	247.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$6,415,246	\$6,415,246
10 11		Regional Research, Technology, Education, and Commercialization Services (53421)	\$6,415,246	\$6,415,246		
12		Fund Sources: General	\$6,415,246	\$6,415,246		
13		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 3, Code of Virgi	nia.			
14 15 16 17 18 19 20		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Ins Research, the New College Institute, and the Southern coordinate their activities, both instructional and research best meet the needs of the citizens of the region, to ensur and to avoid unnecessary duplication. The three entities si the Secretary of Education and the State Council of Higher this regard.	Virginia Higher E , to the maximum e re effective utilizat hall report annually	ducation Center xtent possible to ion of resources, by October 1 to		
21		B. The requirements of § 4-5.05 shall not apply to this app	propriation.			
22 23		C. This Item includes no funds for the agency's use o activities.	f leased property	for engagement		
24 25 26 27		D. This Item includes \$31,927 the first year and \$31,92 fund for debt service on a five-year term loan through the (MELP) to purchase communications infrastructure and 1 that the ongoing amount will be removed from the agency	Master Equipment 1 6 telephone handse	Leasing Program ets. It is intended		
28 29		Total for Institute for Advanced Learning and Research			\$6,415,246	\$6,415,246
30		Fund Sources: General	\$6,415,246	\$6,415,246		
31		§ 1-78. ROANOKE HIGHER ED	UCATION AUTH	IORITY (935)		
32	248.	Administrative and Support Services (19900)			\$1,478,706	\$1,478,706
33		Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)	\$1,478,706	\$1,478,706		
34		Fund Sources: General	\$1,478,706	\$1,478,706		
35		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 5, Code of Virgi	nia.			
36		A. The requirements of § 4-5.05 shall not apply to this app	propriation.			
37		Total for Roanoke Higher Education Authority			\$1,478,706	\$1,478,706
38		Fund Sources: General	\$1,478,706	\$1,478,706		
39		§ 1-79. SOUTHERN VIRGINIA HIG	HER EDUCATIO	N CENTER (937)		
40	249.	Administrative and Support Services (19900)			\$7,526,924	\$7,808,065
41		Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)	\$7,526,924	\$7,808,065		
42 43		Fund Sources: General Special	\$3,543,932 \$3,982,992	\$3,718,615 \$4,089,450		

I	TEM 249		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 6, Code of Virgini	ia.				
2 3 4 5 6 7 8		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the South Center, the Institute for Advanced Learning and Research, coordinate their activities, both instructional and research, t to best meet the needs of the citizens of the region, to e resources, and to avoid unnecessary duplication. The three October 1 to the Secretary of Education and the State Co Virginia on their joint efforts in this regard.					
9 10 11 12 13 14		general fund is designated for the educational telecomm graduate engineering education. For supplemental budg institutions and centers jointly shall submit a report in supp	Dut of this appropriation, \$29,050 the first year and \$29,050 the second year from the eral fund is designated for the educational telecommunications project to provide luate engineering education. For supplemental budget requests, the participating fututions and centers jointly shall submit a report in support of such requests to the State ncil of Higher Education for Virginia for review and recommendation to the Governor the General Assembly.				
15 16 17 18 19		four positions the second year from the general fund operational support of the Southern Virginia Higher Educ	Out of this appropriation, \$266,000 and four positions the first year and \$266,000 and positions the second year from the general fund is designated for additional ational support of the Southern Virginia Higher Education Center and its efforts to ride STEM programs and specialized workforce training to the citizens of Southside ginia.				
20 21 22 23 24 25 26		eight positions the second year from the general fund and first year and \$782,100 and 3.5 positions the second ye designated to maintain workforce advancement program manufacturing, information technology, and STEM that	Out of this appropriation, \$731,250 and eight positions the first year and \$731,250 and ght positions the second year from the general fund and \$782,100 and 3.5 positions the rst year and \$782,100 and 3.5 positions the second year from nongeneral funds are esignated to maintain workforce advancement programs in the areas of health care, nanufacturing, information technology, and STEM that were originally established grough short-term grants in order to expand the credentials-to-career pipeline for key industry sectors in Southside Virginia.				
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34		E. Out of this appropriation, \$127,997 the first year and \$ the general fund is designated for debt service costs under Program (MELP) for the acquisition of specialized machine these costs, \$218,500 and two positions the first year and second year from the general fund and \$126,917 the first year from nongeneral funds are designated for the staff ar with the Career Tech Academy, providing precision machines school students from the counties of Charlotte, Halifax, and	the Master Equipmen \$394,125 and year and \$233 doperational ining technical	tipment Leasing t. In addition to six positions the ,375 the second costs associated training to high			
35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42		F. The Southern Virginia Higher Education Center is authorized to provide specialized workforce training consistent with grant agreements and memoranda of understanding with employers that existed as of January 1, 2016. The center will seek opportunities to collaborate with local community colleges in meeting the continuing goals of these programs and on new training needs identified by employers. If the local community colleges are unable to meet the training needs identified by employers, then the center is authorized to seek other education providers or to offer specialized workforce training independent of the local community colleges.					
43		G. The requirements of § 4-5.05 shall not apply to this appro-	opriation.				
44 45		Total for Southern Virginia Higher Education Center			\$7,526,924	\$7,808,065	
46 47 48		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	30.80 29.50 60.30	34.80 29.50 64.30			
49 50			53,543,932 53,982,992	\$3,718,615 \$4,089,450			
51		§ 1-80. SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA HIGH	ER EDUCAT	ON CENTER (94	18)		
52	250.	Administrative and Support Services (19900)			\$9,637,229	\$9,637,229	

ITEM 250.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	General Management and Direction (19901) Operation of Higher Education Centers (19931)	\$38,794 \$9,598,435	\$38,794 \$9,598,435		
3 4	Fund Sources: General Special	\$2,100,046 \$7,537,183	\$2,100,046 \$7,537,183		
5	Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 7, Code of Virg	ginia.			
6 7 8 9	The board of trustees of the Southwest Virginia Higher administer agreements with out-of-state institutions certi § 23.1-219 Code of Virginia for such institutions to graduate-level instructional programs at the Center	fied to operate in Vi o provide undergra	rginia pursuant to		
10 11	Total for Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center			\$9,637,229	\$9,637,229
12 13 14	General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	30.00 5.00 35.00	30.00 5.00 35.00		
15 16	Fund Sources: General Special	\$2,100,046 \$7,537,183	\$2,100,046 \$7,537,183		
17 18	§ 1-81. SOUTHEASTERN UNIVERSITIES RESEARCH ASS ASSOCIATI	SOCIATION DOIN ES, LLC (936)	IG BUSINESS FOI	R JEFFERSON S	SCIENCE
19 20 21	251. Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$1,775,439	\$1,275,439 \$1,775,439
22 23	Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$1,775,439	\$1,275,439 \$1,775,439		ψ1,770,707
24 25	Fund Sources: General	\$1,775,439	\$1,275,439 \$1,775,439		
26	Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
27 28 29 30 31 32	A. This appropriation represents the Commonwealt Southeastern Universities Research Association Doi Associates, LLC, for the support of the Thomas Jeff (Jefferson Lab) located at Newport News, Virginia.' support faculty positions and industry-led research that opportunities in the Commonwealth.	ing Business for Je erson National Acc This contribution i	efferson Science celerator Facility ncludes funds to		
33 34 35 36	B. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year <i>and</i> general fund is designated to provide one-time seed fun femtography in partnership with the Commonweal femtography is expected to be the next generation	ding to establish a d th's research unive	center for nuclear ersities. Nuclear		
37 38	C. This nonstate agency is exempt from the match revealed Virginia and § 4-5.05 of this act.	equirement of § 2.	2-1505, Code of		
39 40 41 42	Total for Southeastern Universities Research Association Doing Business for Jefferson Science Associates, LLC			\$1,775,439	\$1,275,439 \$1,775,439
43 44	Fund Sources: General	\$1,775,439	\$1,275,439 \$1,775,439		
45	§ 1-82. HIGHER EDUCATION	RESEARCH INIT	FIATIVE (989)		
46 47	252. Financial Assistance For Educational and General Services (11000)			\$8,000,000	\$28,000,000
48	Sponsored Programs (11004)	\$8,000,000	\$28,000,000	, • , • • •	,
49	Fund Sources: General	\$8,000,000	\$28,000,000		

	Item I	Details(\$)	Approp	
ITEM 252.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	

Appropriations(\$) Sirst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2 A. Out of this appropriation, \$8,000,000 the first year and \$8,000,000 the second year 3 from the general fund is designated for the Virginia Research Investment Fund. These 4 funds shall be allocated in accordance with provisions established in Chapter 775 of the 5 2016 General Assembly and shall be used to (i) promote research and development excellence in the Commonwealth; (ii) foster innovative and collaborative research, 6 7 development, and commercialization efforts in projects and programs with a high potential 8 for economic development and job creation opportunities; (iii) position the 9 Commonwealth as a national leader in science-based and technology-based research, 10 development, and commercialization; and (iv) to attract and recruit eminent researchers 11 that enhance research superiority at public institutions of higher education.

Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 8, Code of Virginia

- B.1. The Commonwealth Cyber Initiative shall be established to serve as an engine for
 research, innovation, and commercialization of cybersecurity technologies, and address
 the Commonwealth's need for growth of advanced and professional degrees within the
 cyber workforce.
- 16
 2. The initiative shall consist of a primary Hub, located in Northern Virginia, and a
 17
 18
 18
 19
 20
 20
 20
- 3. In collaboration with public institutions in the Commonwealth, Virginia Polytechnic
 Institute & State University shall serve as the anchoring institution and coordinate the
 activities of the Hub.
- 24 4. Out of this appropriation, \$10,000,000 in the second year from the general fund is 25 provided to the Virginia Research Investment Fund (VRIF) to scale the initiative and 26 provide resources for faculty recruiting at both the Hub and Spoke sites. The VRIF will 27 establish a process for public institutions of higher education in Virginia to seek 28 certification as a Spokes site based on a plan for institutional investment, industry 29 partnership, enrollment growth, and research focus areas. The Hub and certified Spokes 30 sites will have the ability to seek matching funds for faculty recruitment and support for 31 renovations and equipment. Certified institutions shall submit their funding request 32 application to the Virginia Research Investment Committee established in § 23.1-3132 for 33 review and evaluation. After completing its review, the Virginia Research Investment 34 Committee, pursuant to § 23.1-3133, shall approve or deny the request for an allocation of 35 funds
- 5. Out of this appropriation, \$10,000,000 in the second year from the general fund is
 provided for the leasing of space and establishment of the Hub by the anchoring institution
 and for the establishment of research faculty, entrepreneurship programs, student
 internships and educational programming, and operations of the Hub.
- 40 6. Out of the amounts authorized in Item C-52.10 of Chapter 836, 2017 Session,
 41 \$5,000,000 in the first year shall be made available for renovations, space enhancements,
 42 and equipment.
- 43 7. No later than December 1, 2018, Virginia Polytechnic Institute & State University shall 44 provide to the Virginia Research Investment Committee (VRIC) a blueprint for the 45 development and operation of the Commonwealth Cyber Initiative. This report will 46 include such components as an outline of Virginia Tech's operating model of the Hub, a 47 framework for Spoke sites and their interface with the Hub, an assessment of opportunities 48 for industry partnerships and the commercialization of innovation, and a vision for both 49 the short-term and long-term development of the initiative. The report will define the 50 amount needed to establish the Hub including renovations, equipping and leasing of space, 51 establishment of research faculty, entrepreneurship programs, student internships and 52 educational programming, operations of the Hub, establishment of cyber-physical systems 53 security at the Hub and at supporting Spoke sites across the Commonwealth, 54 establishment of a machine learning lab at the Hub, and the amount for Virginia Research 55 Investment Fund (VRIF) to scale the initiative and provide resources for faculty recruiting

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
	ITEM 252.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9		at both the Hub and Spoke sites. The report will clarify the higher education in Virginia to seek certification as a institutional investment, industry partnership, enrollment. The Hub and certified Spoke sites will have the ability to recruitment and support for renovations and equipment. C their funding request application to the Virginia Research I in § 23.1-3132 for review and evaluation. After completing Investment Committee, pursuant to § 23.1-3133, shall ap allocation of funds.	Spoke site base growth, and rese o seek matching Certified institution nvestment Community its review, the V	ed on a plan for arch focus areas. funds for faculty ions shall submit nittee established /irginia Research		
10		Total for Higher Education Research Initiative			\$8,000,000	\$28,000,000
11		Fund Sources: General	\$8,000,000	\$28,000,000		
12		§ 1-83. ONLINE VIRGINIA NET	WORK AUTH	ORITY (244)		
13 14	253.	Educational and General Programs (10000) Higher Education Instruction (10001)	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000
15		Fund Sources: General	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000		
16		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 31, Article 9, Code of Virgini	a.			
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27		Out of this appropriation, \$3,000,000 the first year and \$3, general fund is designated for the Online Virginia Network University, Old Dominion University and the Virginia C develop a plan for the OVN that (1) serves adult learners, students seeking access to an online degree program; (traditional degree; (3) describes how the OVN will reduce education; (4) uses tuition revenue from online students to (5) includes a discussion of potential options to partner with courses; and (6) utilizes only existing financial aid progra annual progress report on the plan to the Governor a Appropriations and the Senate Finance Committees b	Authority (OVN Community Colle nontraditional str 2) is more cost- the unit cost of support the cost h those currently rams. The OVN nd the Chairmen	b). George Mason ege System shall udents, and other effective than a providing online t of the initiative; providing online shall provide an en of the House		
28		Total for Online Virginia Network Authority			\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000
29		Fund Sources: General	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000		
30		§ 1-84. VIRGINIA COLLEGE BU	UILDING AUTH	IORITY (941)		
31	254.	Authority: Chapter 597, Acts of Assembly of 1986.				
32 33 34 35		A.1. The purpose of this Item is to provide an ongoing replacement of instructional and research equipment at stat education in accordance with the intent and purpose of C 1986.	te-supported insti	itutions of higher		
36 37 38		2. The Governor shall annually present to the Go Commonwealth's budget process, the estimated payments ar equipment to be acquired.				
39 40 41 42		B.1. The State Council of Higher Education for Virgin procedures through which institutions of higher educat available under the program, and shall develop guidelin apportionment of such equipment to each state-supported	tion apply for a es and recomme	llocations made endations for the		
43 44 45 46 47 48 49		2. The Authority shall finance equipment for educational 23.1-1207, Code of Virginia, and according to terms and Commonwealth's budget and appropriation process. Bond College Building Authority to finance equipment may be with other obligations of the Authority as separate issue institution shall make available such additional detail on sp as may be requested by the Governor or the General Assem	conditions appro- ls or notes issued sold and issued es or as a comb pecific equipmen	by the Virginia d by the Virginia at the same time ined issue. Each t to be purchased		

	Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM	A 254.First YearFY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	necessary when the General Assembly is not in session, the Governor ma acquisitions. The Governor shall report his approval of such acquisitions t of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.			
		T. 1 11 1		

4 3. Amounts for debt service payments for allocations provided by this Item shall be5 provided pursuant to Item 279 of this act.

6 C.1. Transfer of the appropriation in Item 279 of this act to the Virginia College Building
7 Authority shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary of Finance. An allocation of
8 \$168,469,999 made in the 2016-2018 biennium brings the total amount of equipment
9 acquired through the program to approximately \$1,476,789,456.

2. Allocations of \$83,000,000 the first year and \$83,000,000 the second year will be made
to support the purchase of additional equipment to enhance instructional and research
activity at Virginia's public colleges and universities. Allocations are as follows:

13 14		Dita	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2019	FY 2020
14 15	Institution	Prior Allocations	Allocation	Allocation	Research Allocation	Research Allocation
15 16 17	George Mason University	\$92,641,169	\$3,947,024	\$3,947,024	\$474,407	\$474,407
18 19	Old Dominion University	\$98,944,593	\$5,016,192	\$5,016,192	\$329,078	\$329,078
20 21	University of Virginia	\$261,083,324	\$10,458,476	\$10,458,476	\$5,189,341	\$5,189,341
22 23 24	Virginia Commonwealth University	\$178,884,857	\$6,853,430	\$6,853,430	\$2,995,552	\$2,995,552
25 26 27 28	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	\$273,762,820	\$10,331,639	\$10,331,639	5,240,458	\$5,240,458
29 30	College of William and Mary	\$49,693,024	\$2,300,493	\$2,300,493	\$595,857	\$595,857
31 32	Christopher Newport University	\$14,878,357	\$754,464	\$754,464	\$0	\$0
33 34 35	University of Virginia's College at Wise	\$6,142,801	\$250,681	\$250,681	\$0	\$0
36 37	James Madison University	\$47,730,911	\$2,309,646	\$2,309,646	\$0	\$0
38 39	Longwood University	\$14,886,969	\$743,433	\$743,433	\$0	\$0
40 41	University of Mary Washington	\$16,658,922	\$655,746	\$655,746	\$0	\$0
42 43	Norfolk State University	\$41,232,791	\$1,200,108	\$1,200,108	\$0	\$0
44	Radford University	\$34,088,668	1,744,993	\$1,744,993	\$0	\$0
45 46	Virginia Military Institute	\$17,254,514	\$886,084	\$886,084	\$0	\$0
47 48	Virginia State University	\$26,146,509	\$1,342,189	\$1,342,189	\$0	\$0
49 50	Richard Bland College	\$3,616,262	\$160,149	\$160,149	\$0	\$0
51 52 53	Virginia Community College System	\$278,820,129	\$17,596,542	\$17,596,542	\$0	\$0
54	Virginia Institute of	\$9,109,516	\$362,100	\$362,100	\$175,307	\$175,307

ITEM 254	4.			Ite First Yea FY2019			priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Marine Science						
2 3 4	Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center	\$1,463,385	\$80,111		\$80,111	\$0	\$0
5 6	Roanoke Higher Education Authority	\$1,149,593	\$77,623		\$77,623	\$0	\$0
7 8 9	Institute for Advanced Learning and Research	\$6,016,656	\$274,172		\$274,172	\$0	\$0
10 11 12	Southern Virginia Higher Education Center	\$624,576			\$95,790	\$0	\$0
13 14	New College Institute	\$410,250	\$34,486		\$34,486	\$0	\$0
15 16	Eastern Virginia Medical School	\$1,548,858	\$524,429		\$524,429	\$0	\$0
17	TOTAL	\$1,476,789,456	\$68,000,000	\$6	8,000,000	\$15,000,000	\$15,000,000
18 19 20 21	year and \$5,000,000 Workforce Developme	ns for the Virginia Com the second year is desi nt activities, including t Training Grant Program	gnated to supp those related to	port the ed	quipment needs	of	
22	Total for Virginia Colle	ge Building Authority				\$0	\$0
23 24	TOTAL FOR OFFICE	OF EDUCATION				\$19,437,284,736 \$19,711,370,104	\$19,711,193,513 \$20,285,854,344
25 26	General Fund Positions		1	8,611.91	18,648.48 18,755.43		
27 28	Nongeneral Fund Positi	ons		1,228.61 1,434.61	41,401.74 <i>41,932.54</i>		
29 30	Position Level			9,840.52 0,046.52	60,050.22 60,687.97		
31 32	Fund Sources: General.			,588,457 ,351,206	\$8,689,356,422 \$8,840,089,769		
33	Special			,520,936	\$47,627,394		
24	· · · · ·		60 71 1	050 600	00 747 000 00		

\$8,714,858,682

\$8,980,315,840

\$2,370,419

\$7,479,910

\$739,752,319

\$699,617,780

\$343,923,009

\$344,923,009

\$17,927,512

\$1,119,863,492

\$8,747,033,036

\$9,139,523,205

\$2,370,419

\$7,479,910

\$735,612,319

\$766,049,634 \$343,923,009

\$344,923,009 \$17,927,512

\$1,119,863,492

Higher Education Operating.....

Commonwealth Transportation.....

Enterprise.....

Trust and Agency.....

Debt Service

Dedicated Special Revenue.....

Federal Trust

34 35

36

37

38 39

40

41

42

	ITEM 255	i.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		OFFICE OF	FINANCE			
2		§ 1-85. SECRETARY	OF FINANCE (190)		
3	255.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$667,595	\$667,595 \$842,505
4 5 6		General Management and Direction (79901)	\$667,595	\$667,595 \$842,595		\$842,595
7 8		Fund Sources: General	\$667,595	\$667,595 \$842,595		
9		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Article 5; § 2.2-201, Cod	le of Virginia.			
10 11 12 13 14		A. The Secretary of Finance, in consultation with oth authorized to order the State Comptroller to transfer to t as determined by the State Comptroller, from annual cha enterprise funds that exceed the cost of providing a recoveries from the general fund.	he general fund a arges of internal s	reasonable sum, service funds and		
15 16 17 18 19		B. Following every General Assembly session, the fina 2.2-1503.1, Code of Virginia, shall be updated to reflect adopted by the General Assembly that would alter fina plan. The revised financial plan shall be posted on the D website no later than September 1 of each year.	t policy changes of ncial assumption	or budget actions s included in the		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29		C. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$175,000 the second ye used for the Secretary of Finance to contract with a thin study the Commonwealth's gaming governance struc- revenues to the Commonwealth. The study shall in governance structures of other states and the impac- lotteries. The study shall be conducted in consultation Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry, the Secretary Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, the Charitable Gaming Board, and any other state agency Finance.	rd-party, indepen- cture and currer nclude a review t of gaming expo- on with the Virgi- ry of Commerce Virginia Racing o as requested by	dent reviewer, to nt and potential of the gaming ansions on state inia Lottery, the and Trade, the Commission, the the Secretary of		
30 31 32		2. The Secretary of Finance shall submit the findings and to the Governor and the Chairmen of the Senate Fin Committees no later than November 1, 2019.				
33 34		Total for Secretary of Finance			\$667,595	\$667,595 \$842,595
35 36		General Fund Positions Position Level	4.00 4.00	4.00 4.00		
37 38		Fund Sources: General	\$667,595	\$667,595 \$842,595		
39		§ 1-86. DEPARTMENT	OF ACCOUNTS	5 (151)		
40 41	256.	Financial Systems Development and Management (72400)			\$3,921,555	\$3,921,555
42		Financial Systems Development (72401)	\$778,798	\$778,798	ψ3,721,333	ψ3,721,333
43 44		Financial Systems Maintenance (72402) Computer Services (72404)	\$1,060,044 \$2,082,713	\$1,060,044 \$2,082,713		
45		Fund Sources: General	\$3,921,555	\$3,921,555		
46		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.				
47	257.	Accounting Services (73700)			\$9,073,298	\$9,073,298
48 49		General Accounting (73701) Disbursements Review (73702)	\$4,091,704 \$1,067,737	\$4,091,704 \$1,067,737		

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 25	7.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Payroll Operations (73703)	\$1,279,794	\$1,279,794		
2	Financial Reporting (73704)	\$2,634,063	\$2,634,063		
3	Fund Sources: General	\$8,080,478	\$8,080,478		
4	Special	\$992,820	\$992,820		

5 Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 8, and § 2.2-1822, Code of Virginia.

A.1. There is hereby created on the books of the State Comptroller the Commonwealth
Charge Card Rebate Fund. Rebates earned in any fiscal year on the Commonwealth's
statewide charge card program shall be deposited to the Commonwealth Charge Card Rebate
Fund. The cost of administration of the program as well as rebates due to political
subdivisions and payments due to the federal government are hereby appropriated from the
fund. All remaining rebate revenue in the fund shall be deposited to the general fund by June
30 of each year.

- 13 2. The Department of Accounts is authorized to include the administrative costs estimated at
 14 \$80,000 per year for executing entries in the Commonwealth's accounting system for Level III
 15 institutions as defined in Chapter 675, 2009 Acts of Assembly, in the program costs
 16 appropriated from the fund.
- B. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 17.1-286 and 58.1-3176, Code of Virginia, the State
 Comptroller shall not make payments to the Circuit Court clerks on amounts directly
 deposited into the State Treasury by General District Courts, Juvenile and Domestic Relations
 General District Courts, Combined District Courts, and the Magistrates System. The State
 Comptroller shall continue to make payments, in accordance with §§ 17.1-286 and 58.1-3176,
 Code of Virginia, to the respective clerks on those amounts directly deposited into the state
 treasury by the Circuit Courts.
- 24 C.1. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special nonreverting fund that shall be 25 known as the Federal Repayment Reserve Fund. The Fund shall be established on the books 26 of the Comptroller and shall consist of such moneys as the State Comptroller determines will 27 be required to repay the federal government its share of any rebates, Internal Service Fund 28 profits, transfers to the general fund or amounts arising from other sources. Interest earned on 29 the moneys in the Fund shall remain in the Fund and be credited to it. Any moneys remaining 30 in the Fund, including interest thereon, at the end of the fiscal year shall not revert to the 31 general fund but shall remain in the Fund. The Comptroller shall hold all moneys in this Fund 32 until such payment is required by the federal government.
- 2. Effective upon creation of Federal Repayment Reserve Fund, any agency with cash
 balances held in reserve for the anticipated federal repayment shall transfer the estimated
 amount determined by the State Comptroller prior to June 30. On an ongoing basis, agencies
 shall coordinate with the State Comptroller to identify amounts due to be returned to the
 federal government. The State Comptroller shall transfer those amounts to the Fund on or
 before June 30 of each year.
- 39 D. The Department of Accounts is authorized to charge employees a mandatory fee of up to
 40 15 cents for each payroll deduction administered under the Supplemental Insurance and
 41 Annuities program. Reimbursement by the employing agency is prohibited.

\$2,762,479

\$2,682,503

42	258.	Service Center Administration (82600)		
43		Payroll Service Bureau (82601)	\$2,682,503	\$2,762,479
44		Fund Sources: Internal Service	\$2,682,503	\$2,762,479

- 45 Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.
- 46 A. The appropriation for the Payroll Service Bureau is sum sufficient and amounts shown are
 47 estimates from an internal service fund which shall be paid solely from revenues derived from
 48 charges for services.
- 49 B.1. The Department of Accounts shall operate the payroll service center to support the salaried and wage employees of all agencies identified by the Department of Planning and Budget. The agencies so identified shall cooperate with the Department of Accounts in transferring such records and functions as may be required. The payroll service center shall

]	ITEM 258		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		provide services to employees to include, but not be limited and leave accounting. The Department of Accounts shall be reconciliations for these services; however, each employ responsible for certifying the accuracy of each payrol certification shall be in such form as the Comptroller	e responsible for ving agency sha l paid to its en	r all accounting Il remain fully		
6 7		2.a. The Department of Accounts shall recover the cost of s service center through interagency transactions as determined and the service serv	•	• • •		
8 9 10 11 12 13		b. The Department of Accounts is authorized to charge t participating in the payroll service center based on the ty processed and how each customer agency reports employed to the implementation of Cardinal Payroll, the new Pay Payroll rate category shall be assigned by the Comptro closely coincides with the prior rate.	ype and number e leave to the de roll Service B	of W-2 forms partment. Prior ureau Cardinal		
14		Criteria	FY 2017 F	Y2019	FY 2	018 FY2020
15		Wage employees with automatic leave	\$1	05.54	FT 2	\$108.88
16		processing		\$68.53		\$105.31
17 18		Wage employees with manual leave		28.15 \$83.22		\$132.21 \$127.76
10 19		processing Salariad ampleusas with automatic		13.08		\$127.70 \$116.65
19 20		Salaried employees with automatic leave processing		\$73.43		\$112.72
20 21		Salaried employees with manual leave		50.77		\$112.72 \$155.54
21		processing		\$97.90		\$150.31
23 24 25 26 27 28		C.1. The Department of Accounts shall operate a fiscal operations of all agencies identified by the Department agencies so identified shall cooperate with the Departme such records and functions as may be required. The service agencies to include accounts payable processing, trave reconciliations, and such other fiscal services as may be	of Planning an ent of Accounts center shall pro l voucher proc	d Budget. The in transferring vide services to essing, related		
29 30		2. The Department of Accounts shall recover the cost of service center through interagency transactions as determ				
31 32 33 34 35		3. The Department of Accounts is authorized to charge f revenues generated pursuant to non-tax debt collection initi costs of supporting such initiatives. These fees are over a outside collections contractors and/or enhanced collect Commonwealth.	atives to pay the and above any f	e administrative ees charged by		
36 37 38		D. Nothing in this section shall prohibit additional agencie centers; however, such additions shall be subject to app secretary and the Secretary of Finance.				
39 40 41	259.	Information Systems Management and Direction (71100)			\$26,140,587 \$24,428,730	\$36,311,025 \$25,105,962

\$2,660,587

\$23,480,000

\$21,768,143

\$26,140,587

\$24,428,730

A. The appropriation for Financial Oversight for Performance Budgeting System and

Financial Oversight for Cardinal System is sum sufficient and amounts shown are

estimates from internal service funds for the Commonwealth's enterprise applications

which shall be paid solely from revenues derived from charges for services. All users of

the Commonwealth's enterprise applications shall be assessed a surcharge based on

\$2,684,775

\$33,626,250

\$22,421,187

\$36,311,025

\$25,105,962

42

43

44 45

46

47

48 49

50

51

52

53

Financial Oversight for Performance Budgeting

System (71107).....

Financial Oversight for Cardinal System (71108).....

Fund Sources: Internal Service.....

Authority: Title 2.2 Chapter 8, Code of Virginia

		Item I	Details(\$)	A
ITEM 259		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First FY2
	licenses, transactions, or other meaningful methodology as de Finance and the owner of the enterprise application, which sl	2	2	

Appropriations(\$) Year Second Year 2019 FY2020

2 3 Additionally, the State Comptroller shall recover the cost of services provided for the 4 administration of the fund through interagency transactions as determined by the State 5 Comptroller.

1

6 1. Out of this appropriation, the Performance Budgeting System is appropriated \$2,660,587 7 the first year and \$2,684,775 the second year from internal service fund revenues.

8 2. Out of this appropriation, the Cardinal Financial System is appropriated \$18,480,000 9 \$21,768,143 the first year and \$19,404,000 \$22,421,187 the second year from internal service 10 fund revenues.

11 3. Out of this appropriation, the Cardinal Payroll System is appropriated \$5,000,000 the first 12 year and \$14,222,250 the second year from internal service fund revenues. The first year 13 amount of \$5,000,000 represents four months of operating costs incurred after the full 14 transition to the new Cardinal Payroll System during the first year. The operating costs 15 incurred during the transition are funded through the Working Capital Advance included in 16 paragraph B.1. of this Item.

17 4. The State Comptroller shall submit revised projections of revenues and expenditures for the 18 internal service funds for the Commonwealth's enterprise applications and estimates of any 19 anticipated changes to fee schedules in accordance with § 4-5.03 of this act.

20 5. In the event that expenses of the enterprise applications become due before costs have been 21 fully recovered in the department's internal service fund, a treasury loan shall be provided to 22 the department to finance these costs. This treasury loan shall be repaid from the proceeds 23 collected in the funds.

24 B.1.a. A working capital advance of up to \$52,000,000 shall be provided to the Department of 25 Accounts to pay the initial costs of the replacement of the Commonwealth Integrated 26 Payroll/Personnel System (CIPPS). Initial costs include any costs necessary for the planning, 27 development, and configuration of the new payroll system. Initial costs do not include 28 statewide roll-out costs necessary to ensure agencies are prepared for the implementation of 29 the new payroll system and the decommissioning of CIPPS such as applications 30 configuration, agency training, change management costs, or costs incurred by line agencies 31 to develop required interfaces from agency based systems. From this amount up to 32 \$10,000,000 may be directed toward any unforeseen costs associated with the roll-out of the 33 statewide financial management system known as Cardinal.

34 The Department of Accounts, in coordination with the Department of Human Resource 35 Management shall replace the Commonwealth Integrated Payroll/Personnel System (CIPPS) 36 and the Personnel Management Information System and the Benefits Eligibility System (PMIS 37 & BES) with an integrated Human Capital Management (HCM) system. In order to maximize 38 the efficiencies and benefits of the current Commonwealth Enterprise Resource Planning 39 system, Cardinal, along with establishing a single source of personnel and payroll 40 information and to achieve greater security of sensitive personally identifiable information, 41 such system shall be based on the HCM modules within the Cardinal Enterprise Resource 42 Planning application currently serving as the Commonwealth's financial system.

43 b. A working capital advance of up to \$82,400,000 shall be provided to the Department of 44 Accounts to pay the initial costs of replacing CIPPS and PMIS & BES. Initial costs may 45 include any costs necessary for the planning, development, configuration, and roll-out of the 46 new HCM application. Initial costs do not include costs necessary to ensure agencies are 47 prepared for the implementation of the new application and the decommissioning of CIPPS 48 and PMIS & BES such as interfaces from agency based systems. The State Comptroller shall 49 provide the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 50 Committees with the total projected project implementation cost by September 1, 2019.

51 c. The Department of Accounts and the Department of Human Resource Management shall 52 recommend to the Governor a permanent system of governance over the new HCM 53 application, which shall designate specifically which agencies have the responsibility for 54 authority and control of the data in the new HCM application as well as responsibility for 55 systems support and maintenance.

	ITEM 259		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		2. The Secretary of Finance and Secretary of Administrat from this working capital advance prior to the expenditure shall notify the Governor and the Chairmen of the Ho Finance Committees of any approved drawdowns.	e of funds. The St	ate Comptroller		
5 6 7 8 9		3. Repayment of the working capital advance and ongoing and support costs for the statewide payroll <i>Human Capi</i> funded through the Cardinal Payroll System Enterprise A established in an internal service fund for the enterprise of A. 3 . of this Item.	tal Management pplications Intern	system shall be al Service Fund		
10 11	260.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$1,491,063	\$1,491,063	\$1,491,063	\$1,491,063
12		Fund Sources: General	\$1,491,063	\$1,491,063		
13		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.				
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		As a condition of the appropriation in this Item, the of Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Fina and revenue reports necessary for timely legislative of necessary reports include monthly and year-end version interactive electronic format agreed upon by the Chairm and Senate Finance Committees, or their designees, and the reports shall occur by way of electronic mail or other within 48 hours of their initial run after the close of the	nce Committees oversight of state ons and shall be nen of the House he Comptroller. I methods to ensu	the expenditure e finances. The provided in an Appropriations Delivery of these ure their receipt		
22 23 24 25 26 27	261.	In the event of default by a unit, as defined in § 15.2-260 of principal of or interest on any of its general obligation the State Comptroller, in accordance with § 15.2-265 authorized to make such payment to the bondholder, or and to recover such payment and associated costs of pu funds appropriated and payable by the Commonwealth to	bonded indebted by, Code of Virg paying agent for ublication and m	dness when due, ginia, is hereby the bondholder, ailing from any		
28 29 30 31 32 33 34	262.	In the event of default by any employer participating is authorized by § 2.2-1204, Code of Virginia, in the remin and costs of the program, the State Comptroller is a premiums and costs and to recover such payments from payable by the Commonwealth to the employer for any shall make such payments upon receipt of notice from the Resource Management, that such payments are due and u	ttance of premiur hereby authorize om any funds ap purpose. The St o Director, Depart	ns or other fees ed to pay such propriated and ate Comptroller timent of Human		
35 36 37 38	263.	The State Comptroller shall make calculations of paymen earned on federal funds, interest receivable on state fund programs, and direct cost reimbursements due from the Item 278 of this act.	ds advanced on b	ehalf of federal		
39 40		Total for Department of Accounts			\$43,309,006 \$41,597,149	\$53,559,420 \$42,354,357
41 42 43		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	115.00 54.00 169.00	115.00 54.00 169.00		
44 45 46 47		Special Internal Service	\$13,493,096 \$992,820 \$28,823,090 \$27,111,233	\$13,493,096 \$992,820 \$39,073,504 \$27,868,441		
48		Department of Accounts T	ransfer Payment	ts (162)		

			Itom	Details(\$)	Appropr	riations(\$)
	ITEM 264.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	264.	Financial Assistance to Localities - General (72800) a sum sufficient, estimated at				
2 3		a sum sumerent, estimated at			\$572,395,000	\$572,395,000 \$600,395,000
4		Distribution of Rolling Stock Taxes (72806)	\$6,530,000	\$6,530,000		
5		Distribution of Recordation Taxes (72808)	\$40,000,000	\$40,000,000		
6 7		Financial Assistance to Localities - Rental Vehicle Tax (72810)	\$46,500,000	\$46,500,000		
8 9		Distribution of Sales Tax Revenues from Certain Public Facilities (72811)	\$1,040,000	\$1,040,000		
10 11		Distribution of Tennessee Valley Authority Payments in Lieu of Taxes (72812)	\$1,200,000	\$1,200,000		
12 13		Distribution of the Virginia Communications Sales and Use Tax (72816)	\$440,000,000	\$440,000,000		
14 15		Distribution of Payments to Localities for Enhanced Emergency Communications Services (72817)	\$37,000,000	\$37,000,000		
16 17		Distribution of Sales Tax Revenues from Certain Tourism Projects (72819)	\$125,000	\$125,000		
18 19		Distribution of Historic Triangle Sales Tax Collections (72820)	\$0	\$28,000,000		
20		Fund Sources: General	\$48,895,000	\$48,895,000		
21		Trust and Agency	\$46,500,000	\$46,500,000		
22 23		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$477,000,000	\$477,000,000 \$505,000,000		

Authority: §§ 15.2-5814, 15.2-5914, 33.2-2400, 58.1-608.3, 58.1-662, 58.1-815.1, 58.1-816, 58.1-1736, 58.1-1741, 58.1-2658.1, and 58.1-3406, Code of Virginia.

A. Out of this appropriation, amounts estimated at \$20,000,000 the first year and \$20,000,000 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited into the Northern Virginia Transportation District Fund, as provided in § 33.2-2400, Code of Virginia. Said amount shall consist of recordation taxes attributable to and transferable to the cities of Alexandria, Fairfax, Falls Church, Manassas, and Manassas Park and the counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Loudoun, and Prince William, pursuant to § 58.1-816, Code of Virginia. This amount shall be transferred to Item 454 of this act and shall be used to support the Northern Virginia Transportation District Program as defined in § 33.2-2401, Code of Virginia. The Commonwealth Transportation Board shall make such allocations and expenditures from the fund as are provided in the Northern Virginia Transportation District, Commonwealth of Virginia Revenue Bond Act of 1993 (Chapter 391, 1993 Acts of Assembly). The Commonwealth Transportation Board also shall make such allocations and expenditures from the fund as are provided in Chapters 470 and 597 of the 1994 Acts of Assembly (amendments to Chapter 391, 1993 Acts of Assembly).

B. Pursuant to Chapters 233 and 662, 1994 Acts of Assembly, out of this appropriation, an amount estimated at \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited into the set-aside fund as requested in an ordinance adopted March 28, 1995, and in compliance with the requirements provided for in § 58.1-816.1, Code of Virginia, for an account for the City of Chesapeake. These amounts shall be transferred to Item 454 of this act and shall be allocated by the Commonwealth Transportation Board to provide for the debt service pursuant to the Oak Grove Connector, City of Chesapeake, Commonwealth of Virginia Transportation Program Revenue Bond Act of 1994 (Chapters 233 and 662, 1994 Acts of Assembly).

49 C. Out of this appropriation, the Virginia Baseball Stadium Authority shall be paid a sum
50 sufficient equal to the state personal, corporate, and pass-through entity income and sales and
51 use tax revenues to which the authority is entitled.

52 D.1. In order to carry out the provisions of § 58.1-645 et seq., Code of Virginia, there is
53 hereby appropriated a sum sufficient amount of nongeneral fund revenues estimated at
54 \$\$\$440,000,000 in the first year and \$\$440,000,000 in the second year equal to the revenues
55 collected pursuant to \$\$58.1-645 et seq., Code of Virginia, from the Virginia Communications
56 Sales and Use Tax. All revenue received by the Commonwealth pursuant to the provisions of
\$\$\$\$\$58.1-645 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be paid into the state treasury and deposited to the

	ITEM 264		Iter First Yea	n Details(\$) r Second Year		riations(\$) Second Year
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		Virginia Communications Sales and Use Tax Fund and 58.1-662, Code of Virginia and Item 284 of this ac Comptroller's preliminary and final annual reports Virginia, however, all deposits to and disbursements for as part of the general fund of the state treasury.	ct. For the purp required by §	oses of the State 2.2-813, Code of		
6 7 8 9		2. It is the intent of the General Assembly that all such a cities, and towns, the Department for the Deaf an Department of Taxation for the costs of administering the and Use Tax Fund.	nd Hard-of-Hea	aring, and to the		
10 11 12 13 14		E. In order to carry out the provisions of § 58.1-1734 hereby appropriated a sum sufficient amount of nonge \$46,500,000 in the first year and \$46,500,000 in the s collected pursuant to A. 2 of § 58.1-1736 Code of V Vehicle Rental Tax.	eneral fund reve second year equa	nues estimated at al to the revenues		
15 16 17 18		F. In order to carry out the provisions of § 56-484 . :17 hereby appropriated a sum sufficient amount of nonge \$37,000,000 in the first year and \$37,000,000 in the s collected pursuant to § 56-484.17 . :1 Code of Virginia	eneral fund reve second year equa	nues estimated at al to the revenues		
19 20 21 22		G. In order to carry out the provisions of Chapter 850 hereby appropriated a sum sufficient amount of nonge \$28,000,000 the second year equal to the revenues co Code of Virginia, from the additional state sales and	eneral fund reve ollected pursuan	nues estimated at t to § 58.1-603.2,		
23	265.	Revenue Stabilization Fund (73500)			\$0	\$262,941,731
24 25		Payments to the Revenue Stabilization Fund (73501)	\$0	\$262,941,731		
26		Fund Sources: General	\$0	\$262,941,731		
27		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 18, Article 4, Code of Virg	ginia.			
28 29 30 31 32 33		A. On or before November 1 of each year, the Auditor the General Assembly the certified tax revenues collecter year. The auditor shall, at the same time, provide his r and the amount that could be paid into the fund in order requirement of Article X, Section 8 of the Constit additional deposit requirement of § 2.2-1829, Code	ed in the most rec report on the 15 er to satisfy the r ution of Virgin	cently ended fiscal percent limitation nandatory deposit ia as well as the		
34 35 36 37 38 39		B. Out of this appropriation, \$262,941,731 the sec attributable to actual tax collections for fiscal year Comptroller on or before June 30, 2020, into the Rever § 2.2-1829, Code of Virginia. This amount is based on Public Accounts of actual tax revenues for fiscal year 2 mandatory deposit requirement of Article X, Section 8	2018 shall be nue Stabilization the certification 2018. This appro	paid by the State Fund pursuant to a of the Auditor of priation meets the		
40 41	266.	Revenue Cash Reserve (23700)			\$45,500,000 \$784,797,895	\$45,500,000 \$95,500,000
42 43		Appropriated Revenue Reserve (23701)	\$45,500,000 \$784,797,895	\$45,500,000 \$95,500,000	<i>\$</i> 70 7 ,777,075	Ψ25,500,000
44 45		Fund Sources: General	\$45,500,000 \$784,797,895	\$45,500,000 \$95,500,000		
46		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion: Title 2.2, Chapter 18	8, Article 4.1, Co	de of Virginia.		
47 48 49 50 51 52		A. <i>I</i> . Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, the item $$45,500,000$ $$784,797,895$ from the general furt $$95,500,000$ from the general fund the second year established pursuant to Chapter 827, 2018 Session of the <i>Code of Virginia</i> , to mitigate any potential revenue of during the biennium.	nd the first year ar to the Reven the General Assen	and \$45,500,000 ue Cash Reserve ably; § 2.2-1831.2,		

ITEM 266			Details(\$) Second Year	Appropri First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
11 EAVI 200		First Year FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4	2. The appropriations in this Item include an amount estim year from the general fund to be deposited and carried forv the Revenue Stabilization Fund in fiscal year 2021 to meet revenue estimates included in this act for fiscal year 2019.	ward in order to	be transferred to		
5 6 7	3. Notwithstanding the provision of §2.2-1831.3, Code Revenue Reserve established pursuant to §2.2-1831.2, Co percent of the total general fund revenues for the prior f	ode of Virginia			
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	4. Notwithstanding the provisions of §2.2-1831.4, Coa authorized to appropriate funds from this Item to add disallowances, and repayments required by the feder obligations including costs resulting from settlements an natural disasters; 4) economic development incentives aut and the Governor; and, 5) any required deposits to the Rev not otherwise supported by this act.	dress payment cal government ed litigation; 3) thorized by the (of: 1) deferrals, ; 2) unbudgeted emergencies and General Assembly		
15 16 17 18 19	B.1. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, the O Revenue Reserve any sums that are committed by the Co June 30, 2018 balance sheet and that are reported by the Gov part of the preliminary annual balance sheet and that are General Assembly as part of the preliminary annual repo	mptroller for the vernor to the Gen reported by the	at purpose on his neral Assembly as		
20 21 22 23	2. Any calculation made pursuant to the provisions of § 2.2 Auditor of Public Accounts based on general fund resources be committed for deposit into the Fund established pur Virginia, in fiscal year 2021.	collected in fisc	al year 2019 shall		
24 25 26	C. Any amounts appropriated in this item that are unexpend 2020, shall be reappropriated in the next fiscal year to this purposes identified in this item.				
27 267. 28	Virginia Education Loan Authority Reserve Fund (73600)			\$194,778	\$194,778
29 30	Loan Servicing Reserve Fund (73601) Edvantage Reserve Fund (73602)	\$94,778 \$100,000	\$94,778 \$100,000	ψ194,770	ψ1 / 4,770
31	Fund Sources: Trust and Agency	\$194,778	\$194,778		
32	Authority: Chapter 384, Acts of Assembly of 1995; Chapter	39, Acts of Asso	embly of 1998.		
33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42	A. The General Assembly hereby recognizes and rea Declarations as may have been adopted by the Virginia Edu Chapter 384, 1995 Acts of Assembly, and dated June 30, 19 from the VELA Loan Servicing Reserve Fund within the st necessary, not to exceed \$94,778, to be paid out by the Stat provisions of the Declarations. There is hereby appropriate Reserve Fund within the state treasury such sums as m \$100,000, to be paid out by the State Comptroller for the pu and amount of any claims against the Fund. The State Com actions as may be necessary to effect the provisions of this	cation Loan Aut 996. There is he tate treasury suc te Comptroller c d from the VEL nay be necessar urpose of detern uptroller is autho	hority pursuant to reby appropriated h sums as may be onsistent with the A Loan Servicing y, not to exceed nining the validity		
43 44 45	B. Funds in the Edvantage Reserve Fund are hereby appr State Comptroller, as provided for by law. All interest earner shall remain with the fund.				
46 268. 47	Personnel Management Services (70400) Employee Flexible Benefits Services (70420)	\$32,686,276	\$32,686,276	\$32,686,276	\$32,686,276
48	Fund Sources: Trust and Agency	\$32,686,276	\$32,686,276		
49	Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.				
50 269. 51 52	Financial Assistance for Health Research (40700) Health Research Grant Administration Services (40701)	\$1,549,871	\$1,580,906	\$1,549,871	\$1,580,906

I	TEM 269		Iter First Yea FY2019		Approp First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,549,871	\$1,580,906		
2		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.				
3 4 5		The Department of Accounts is authorized to a Commonwealth Health Research Board, funds received System pursuant to § 32.1-162.28, Code of Virginia	ived from the Vi			
6 7 8	270.	Personal Property Tax Relief Program (74600) Reimbursements to Localities for Personal Property Tax Relief (74601)	\$950,000,000	\$950,000,000	\$950,000,000	\$950,000,000
9		Fund Sources: General	\$950,000,000	\$950,000,000		
10		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
11 12 13		A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$950,000,000 the first year from the general fund is provided to be used to in equitable tax relief from the personal property tax on y	nplement a progra			
14 15 16 17 18 19		2. The amounts appropriated in this Item provide for percent in tax years 2004 and 2005. The local reimbur at \$950,000,000 pursuant Chapter 1, 2004 Acts of Ass to localities with calendar year 2006 car tax payment of not be reimbursed until after July 1, 2006, except as of this Item.	sement level for ta sembly, Special So due dates prior to	ax year 2006 is set ession I. Payments July 1, 2006, shall		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30		B. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection B of amended by Chapter 1, 2004 Acts of Assembly, Spe- each county's, city's and town's share of the total fun personal property tax relief pursuant to that subsection actual payments to such county, city or town pursuant Virginia, for tax year 2004 as compared to the actual towns pursuant to that chapter for tax year 2004, mare requests submitted on or before December 31, 2005, a of Public Accounts not later than March 1, 2006. No second enactment of Chapter 1, 2004 Acts of Assemb shall become effective upon the effective date of this a	cial Session I, the ds available for r on shall be pro ra to Title 58.1, Cha payments to all c ade with respect as certified in writ otwithstanding the ly, Special Sessio	e determination of reimbursement for ta based upon the upter 35.1, Code of rounties, cities and to reimbursement ing by the Auditor e provisions of the		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42		C. The requirements of subsection C 2 of § 58.1-352 Code of Virginia, as amended by Chapter 1, 2004 A with respect to the establishment of tax rates for quali bills shall be deemed to have been satisfied if the resolution, or as part of its annual budget adopted purs of Virginia, or the provisions of a local government ch or 8, Code of Virginia, if applicable, specific c Commonwealth's payments to such locality for tangibl the owners of qualifying vehicles, and such loca description of the criteria upon which relief has be qualifying vehicle that is the subject of such bill, the allocated.	cts of Assembly, fying vehicles and locality provides uant to Title 15.2, arter or Title 15.2 criteria for the a e personal propert lity's tax bills p een allocated and	Special Session I, d the format of tax s by ordinance or , Chapter 25, Code , Chapter 4, 5, 6, 7 allocation of the ty tax relief among provide a general l set out, for each		
43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52		D. The Secretary of Finance may authorize advance p this Item, of sums otherwise due a town on and after tax relief under the provisions of Chapter 1, 2004 Act the Secretary finds that such town (1) had a due date on qualified vehicles for tax year 2006 falling between had a due date for tangible personal property taxes on falling between January 1 and June 30, 2004, (3) recei provisions of Title 58.1, Chapter 35.1, Code of Virgin 2004, (4) utilizes the cash method of accounting, and the absence of such advance payment.	July 1, 2006, for s of Assembly, S for tangible perso en January 1 and qualified vehicles ved reimburseme nia, between Janu	personal property pecial Session I, if onal property taxes June 30, 2006, (2) s for tax year 2004 nts pursuant to the ary 1 and June 30,		

53 E. It is the intention of the General Assembly that reimbursements to counties, cities and

ITEM 270.		Ite First Ye FY201			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	towns that had a billing date for tax year 2004 tangible qualifying vehicles falling between January 1 and J property tax relief reimbursement with respect to tax between January 1 and June 30, 2004, pursuant to the Code of Virginia, as it existed prior to the amendmen Assembly, Special Session I, be made by the Common to such spring billing dates not later than August 15 of	June 30, 2004, and x year 2004 from provisions of Title ts effected by Cha wealth with respect	d received personal the Commonwealth e 58.1, Chapter 35.1, pter 1, 2004 Acts of		
8 9 10	Total for Department of Accounts Transfer Payments			\$1,602,325,925 \$2,341,623,820	\$1,602,356,960 \$1,943,298,691
11	Nongeneral Fund Positions	1.00	1.00		
11	Position Level	1.00	1.00		
13 14 15 16	Fund Sources: General Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,044,395,000 \$1,783,692,895 \$79,381,054 \$478,549,871	\$1,044,395,000 \$1,357,336,731 \$79,381,054 \$478,580,906		
17	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$170,519,071	\$506,580,906		
18 19	Grand Total for Department of Accounts			\$1,645,634,931 \$2,383,220,969	\$1,655,916,380 \$1,985,653,048
20	General Fund Positions	115.00	115.00		
21	Nongeneral Fund Positions	55.00	55.00		
22	Position Level	170.00	170.00		
23 24	Fund Sources: General	\$1,057,888,096 \$1,797,185,991	\$1,057,888,096 \$1,370,829,827		
25	Special	\$992,820	\$992,820		
26 27	Internal Service	\$28,823,090 \$27,111,233	\$39,073,504 \$27,868,441		
28	Trust and Agency	\$79,381,054	\$79,381,054		
29 30	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$478,549,871	\$478,580,906 \$506,580,906		
31	§ 1-87. DEPARTMENT OF I	PLANNING AND	BUDGET (122)		
32 271. 33	Planning, Budgeting, and Evaluation Services (71500)			\$7,963,865	\$8,015,465
34 35 36	Budget Development and Budget Execution Services (71502) Forecasting and Regulatory Review Services	\$5,688,400	\$5,688,400		
30 37	(71505)	\$1,124,374	\$1,175,974		
38	Program Evaluation Services (71506)	\$678,507	\$678,507		
39	Administrative Services (71598)	\$472,584	\$472,584		
40	Fund Sources: General	\$7,963,865	\$8,015,465		
41	Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.				
42 43 44 45 46 47 48	A. The Department of Planning and Budget shall be r and coordination of an integrated, systematic po performance measurement and evaluation process wit shall collaborate with the Governor's Secretaries and and other entities as necessary to ensure that informa useful for managing and improving the efficiency a operations.	blicy analysis, pla hin state governme all other agencies tion generated from	anning, budgeting ent. The department of state government n these processes is		
49 50	B. The Department of Planning and Budget shall development and coordination of a review process				

B. The Department of Planning and Budget shall be responsible for the continued
 development and coordination of a review process for strategic plans and performance
 measures of the state agencies. The review process shall assess on a periodic basis the
 structure and content of the plans and performance measures, the processes used to develop
 and implement the plans and measures, the degree to which agencies achieve intended goals

ITEM 27	/1.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020		
1	and results, and the relation between intended and actual	results and budg	et requirements.				
2 3 4 5 6	C.1. Notwithstanding § 2.2-1508, Code of Virginia, or before December 20, the Department of Planning and Bu officer of each house of the General Assembly a copy of the explanation of the Governor's budget recomme electronic format.	udget shall delive of the budget doci	r to the presiding ument containing				
7 8 9 10 11 12	amount of projected spending and projected net tax-sup the biennium on a per capita basis. For this purpose appropriations from all funds for the cited fiscal years	The Department of Planning and Budget shall include in the budget document the ount of projected spending and projected net tax-supported state debt for each year of biennium on a per capita basis. For this purpose, "spending" is defined as total ropriations from all funds for the cited fiscal years as shown in the Budget Bill. The st current population estimates from the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Services Il be used to make the calculations.					
13 14 15 16 17	D. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, any the Department of Planning and Budget to assist in the review for the division, including but not limited to conduct that school division's review. Each participation percent of the cost of the review.	coordination of a the selection of t	school efficiency the contractor to				
18	Total for Department of Planning and Budget			\$7,963,865	\$8,015,465		
19 20 21	General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	67.00 3.00 70.00	67.00 3.00 70.00				
22	Fund Sources: General	\$7,963,865	\$8,015,465				
22		ΟΓ ΤΑΥΑΤΙΟΝ	I (1 (1)				
2324 272.	§ 1-88. DEPARTMENT Planning, Budgeting, and Evaluation Services	OF TAXATION	(101)				
25	(71500)			\$3,831,391	\$3,831,391		
26 27	Tax Policy Research and Analysis (71507) Appeals and Rulings (71508)	\$1,954,381 \$1,160,286	\$1,954,381 \$1,160,286				
27	Revenue Forecasting (71509)	\$716,724	\$716,724				
29	Fund Sources: General	\$3,831,391	\$3,831,391				
30 31	Authority: §§ 2.2-1503, 15.2-2502, 58.1-202, 58.1-207, 58.1-3406, and Title 10.1, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia		13, 58.1-816, and				
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41	 revenue forecasting of the Commonwealth Transpondent Department of Motor Vehicles Special Fund, as provide The Department of Motor Vehicles shall provide the D access to all data records and systems required to perfor of Planning and Budget shall effectuate the transfer of t and sufficient funding to ensure the successful consolidates. B. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-202.2, Cod private partnership contracts shall be required in years for the successful consultation. 	A. The Department of Taxation shall continue the staffing and responsibility for the evenue forecasting of the Commonwealth Transportation Funds, including the Department of Motor Vehicles Special Fund, as provided in § 2.2-1503, Code of Virginia. The Department of Motor Vehicles shall provide the Department of Taxation with direct ccess to all data records and systems required to perform this function. The Department of Planning and Budget shall effectuate the transfer of three full-time equivalent positions nd sufficient funding to ensure the successful consolidation of this function.					
42 43 44 45 46	C. The Department of Taxation shall report no later that to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations, Hou Committees, on the amount of state sales and use tax re for the preceding fiscal year under the provisions of § 58.1-3851.2, of the Code of Virginia, as amended by t	se Finance and evenues authorize 58.1-608.3, § 58	Senate Finance ed to be remitted .1-3851.1, and §				
47 48 49 50 51	D. The Department of Taxation shall convene a work related to the timing of payments and return filings requ to §§ 58.1-615 and 58.1-616, Code of Virginia, and § shall establish costs and a timeline for the Department online application provided by the Department of Tax	ired of registered 3-5.06 of this act of Taxation to in	dealers pursuant . The workgroup plement an easy				

ITEM 272.			Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		hardship exception and determine whether the current hards be expanded to include additional hardship scenario recommendations to the Department of Taxation about pre- accelerated sales tax payments, the equity in assessing penalty fees, how the state would be impacted by options tax by fiscal year 2022, and the ability of the General Asset tax threshold by more than 10% in one year when thress taxable sales or less. The workgroup shall consider alterna accelerated sales tax requirement and shall examine other bi-monthly remittance of sales taxes as an alternative. The of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committe designee, the Office of the Governor and representative industries. Additional staff support shall be provided by th Division of Legislative Services upon request. The work month of May and meet no less than three times and comp 2018, and shall submit to the Governor and the Chairmen Senate Finance Committees and all members of the House . Committees a report of its findings and recommendation 2019 Regular Session of the General Assembly.	s. The workgro oviding earlier no monthly 6 perc to phase-out the mbly to lower the hold is at \$15,0 tives and limitati sales tax-related workgroup shall ges, the Secretary es from affecte the Department of group shall begi- lete its meetings of the House A Appropriations an	up should make btice to dealers of ent late payment accelerated sales accelerated sales 00,000 of annual ons to the current issues, including include the staffs of Finance or his d businesses and Taxation and the n meetings in the by November 30, ppropriations and ad Senate Finance		
20 21	273.	Revenue Administration Services (73200)			\$57,051,523	\$57,106,413 \$57,279,905
22 23 24 25		Tax Return Processing (73214) Customer Services (73217) Compliance Audit (73218) Compliance Collections (73219)	\$5,747,734 \$12,091,563 \$20,166,112 \$16,402,877	\$5,747,734 \$12,091,563 \$20,250,986 \$16,372,893		,

\$2,643,237

\$2,643,237

\$2,816,729

Fund Sources: General	\$46,340,063	\$46,431,403 \$46,604,895
Special	\$10,020,211	\$9,987,133
Dedicated Special Revenue	\$691,249	\$687,877
Authority: Title 3.2; Title 58.1, Code of Virginia.		

Legal and Technical Services (73222).....

26

27

28

29

30

31 32 33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

A. Pursuant to § 58.1-1803, Code of Virginia, the Tax Commissioner is hereby authorized to contract with private collection agencies for the collection of delinquent accounts. The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to deposit collections from such agencies into the Contract Collector Fund (§ 58.1-1803, Code of Virginia). Revenue in the Contract Collector Fund may be used to pay private collection agencies/attorneys and perform oversight of their operations, upgrade audit and collection systems and data interfaces, and retain experts to perform analysis of receivables and collection techniques. Any balance in the fund remaining after such payment shall be deposited into the appropriate general, nongeneral, or local fund no later than June 30 of each year.

42 B.1. The Department of Taxation is authorized to retain, as special revenue, its reasonable 43 share of any court fines and fees to reimburse the department for any ongoing operational 44 collection expenses.

45 2. Any form of state debt assigned to the Department of Taxation for collection may be 46 collected by the department in the same manner and means as state taxes may be collected 47 pursuant to Title 58.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.

48 C. The Department of Taxation is hereby appropriated revenues from the Communications 49 Sales and Use Tax Trust Fund to recover the direct cost of administration incurred by the 50 department in implementing and collecting this tax as provided by § 58.1-662, Code of 51 Virginia.

52 D. The Tax Commissioner shall have the authority to waive penalties and grant extensions of 53 time to file a return or pay a tax, or both, to any class of taxpayers when the Tax 54 Commissioner in his discretion finds that the normal due date has, or would, cause undue 55 hardship to taxpayers who were, or would be, unable to use electronic means to file a return or 56 pay a tax because of a power or systems failure that causes the department's electronic filing

ITEM 27.	3.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	or payment systems to be nonfunctional for all or a portion date for a return or payment.	of a day on o	r about the due		
3 4 5 6 7	E. The Department of Taxation is hereby appropriated Land fees imposed under § 58.1-513 C. 2., Code of Virginia, on the the donated interest. The Code of Virginia specifies suc Departments of Taxation and Conservation and Recreation administration incurred in implementing the Virginia Land	te transferring th fees will b to recover th	of the value of be used by the e direct cost of		
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	F. In the event that the United States Congress adopts governments, with the assistance of the Commonwealth, to o using offsets from federal income taxes, the Department of treasury loan to the Department of Taxation to finance the co computer systems to implement this federal debt setoff prog be repaid from the proceeds collected from the offsets of fede behalf of localities by the Department of Taxation.	collect deling of Accounts sts of modifyi ram. This trea	uent local taxes shall provide a ing the agency's asury loan shall		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21	G. 1. All revenue received by the Commonwealth pursuant to et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be paid into the state treasury Communications Sales and Use Tax Fund and shall be distri Code of Virginia, and Items 264 and 284 of this act. For the preliminary and final annual reports required by § 2.2-813, C deposits to and disbursements from the Fund shall be accour fund of the state treasury.	and deposited buted pursuan purposes of th code of Virgin	l to the Virginia it to § 58.1-662, e Comptroller's ia, however, all		
22 23 24	2. It is the intent of the General Assembly that all such revent cities, and towns, the Department for the Deaf and Hard-of- administering the Virginia Communications Sales and Use	Hearing, and			
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	H. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-478, Code of Vi every employer whose average monthly liability can reasona or more and the aggregate amount required to be withheld by shall file the annual report required by § 58.1-478, Code required by § 58.1-472, Code of Virginia, using an electro prescribed by the Tax Commissioner. Waivers shall be Commissioner finds that this requirement creates an u employer. All requests for waiver shall be submitted to the T	bly be expect any employe of Virginia, onic medium be granted on nreasonable	ed to be \$1,000 er exceeds \$500 , and all forms using a format nly if the Tax burden on the		
33 34 35	I. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-214, Code of V not be required to mail its forms and instructions unless re representative.				
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43	J.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-609.12, Code fiscal, economic and policy impact of the miscellaneous exemptions under § 58.1-609.10, Code of Virginia, shall be of the final report in the first five-year cycle of the study, Department of Taxation shall satisfy the requirement of § 5 report on the annual fiscal impact of the Retail Sales at nonprofit entities provided for in § 58.1-609.11, Code of V fiscal impact on its website.	s Retail Sales required after due Decembe 58.1-609.12 th nd Use Tax e	s and Use Tax the completion er 1, 2011. The nat it study and exemptions for		
44 45 46 47 48 49	2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-202, Code of Vir total amount of corporate income tax relief provided in Virgi completion of such report due on October 1, 2013. The D satisfy the requirement of § 58.1-202 that it issue an annu amount of corporate income tax relief provided in Virgin Report on its website.	nia shall be re epartment of al report det	equired after the Taxation shall ailing the total		
50	K. 1. Notwithstanding any provision of the Code of Virginia	or this act to th	ne contrary,		
51 52 53	a. Effective January 1, 2013, all corporations are required to and their annual income tax return and final payment using format prescribed by the Tax Commissioner .				
54	h Effective July 1, 2013, every employer shall file the annu	al report requ	uired by 8 58 1-		

54 b. Effective July 1, 2013, every employer shall file the annual report required by § 58.1-

			Details(\$)	Appropr	
ľ	TEM 273.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	478 and all forms required by § 58.1-472, Cod format prescribed by the Tax Commissioner.	e of Virginia, using an electron	ic medium in a		
3 4 5	c. Effective July 1, 2014, every employer shall not later than January 31 of the calendar year were withheld from employees.				
6 7 8 9	d. Effective January 1, 2015, for taxable years pass-through entity shall file the annual return make related payments using an electronic Commissioner.	required by § 58.1-392, Code of	of Virginia, and		
10 11 12 13	e. <i>i</i> . Effective January 1, 2018 <i>until January 1</i> , estimated tax payments pursuant to § 58.1-49 income tax return pursuant to § 58.1-381, C electronic medium in a format prescribed by	00 et seq., Code of Virginia, a ode of Virginia, and final pay	nd their annual		
14 15 16 17	ii. Effective January 1, 2020, annual incom pursuant to § 58.1-381, Code of Virginia, that a as defined in § 58.1-302, Code of Virginia, n format prescribed by the Tax Commissioner.	are prepared by an income tax i	return preparer,		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	f. Taxpayers subject to the taxes imposed p estimated tax pursuant to § 58.1-490 et seq., electronic medium in a format prescribed by th of estimated tax and all payments made with re if (i) any one such payment exceeds or is requ total tax liability exceeds or can be reasonably of beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The De advanced notice to taxpayers affected by this r	, shall be required to file and ne Tax Commissioner all install egard to a return or an extension if to exceed \$7,500, or if (ii expected to exceed \$30,000 in a partment of Taxation shall pro-	remit using an lment payments n of time to file) the taxpayer's iny taxable year		
26 27 28 29	2.a. The Tax Commissioner shall have the authelectronic means. Waivers shall be granted or requirement creates an unreasonable burden medium. All requests for waiver shall be sub-	only if the Tax Commissioner on the person required to us	finds that this e an electronic		
30 31 32 33	b. The Tax Commissioner shall have the autho January 31. Waivers shall be granted only if the creates an unreasonable burden on the perso requests for waiver shall be submitted to the	e Tax Commissioner finds that t on required to file or pay by J	his requirement anuary 31. All		
34 35 36 37	L.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of payments shall be made using an electronic m beginning with the June 2012 return, due July filers, with the first return they are required to	nedium prescribed by the Tax 2012, for monthly filers and, f	Commissioner		
38 39 40 41 42	2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law Consumer's Use Tax returns and payments prescribed by the Tax Commissioner beginnin for monthly filers and, for less frequent filers after August 1, 2017.	shall be made using an elect g with the July 2017 return, du	tronic medium 1e August 2017,		
43 44 45	3. The Tax Commissioner shall have the au electronic means upon a determination that the All requests for waiver shall be transmitted to	e requirement would cause an u	undue hardship.		

- 46 M. The Department of Taxation is hereby appropriated revenues from the Virginia Motor
 47 Vehicle Rental Tax to recover the direct cost of administration incurred by the department in
 48 implementing and collecting this tax as provided by § 58.1-1741, Code of Virginia.
- 49 N. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-490 et seq., Code of Virginia,
- 50 1. Effective for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2015, a taxpayer shall be
 51 permitted to file a declaration of estimated tax with the Department of Taxation instead of
 52 with the commissioner of the revenue and notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-306, Code

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$)

ITEM 273		Item D rst Year Y2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Y FY202
1	of Virginia, the department may so advise taxpayers.				
2 3 4 5	2. Effective January 1, 2015, every treasurer who receives an est declaration or voucher pursuant to § 58.1-495 of the Code of Vireturn, declaration or voucher to the Department of Taxation us in a format prescribed by the Tax Commissioner.	rginia shal	l transmit such		
6 7 8 9	O. Notwithstanding any provision of the Code of Virginia or the Department of Taxation is authorized to provide Form 1099 is taxpayers. The Tax Commissioner shall ensure that taxpayers electronic version of the form.	n an electr	onic format to		
10 11 12	P. The Department of Taxation is hereby appropriated revenues Tax to recover the direct cost of administration incurred implementing and collecting this tax as provided by § 56-484	d by the d	lepartment in		
13 14 15 16	Q. The Department of Taxation is hereby appropriated revenue expenses pursuant to §§ 38.2-400 and 38.2-403, Code of Virgi related to the Insurance Premiums License Tax that are incurr Taxation, as provided in § 58.1-2533, Code of Virginia.	inia, to rec	over any costs		
17 18 19 20 21	R. The Department of Taxation is authorized to recover the admi with debt collection initiatives under the U.S. Treasury Offset 2.2-4809, not to exceed twenty percent of revenues generate collection initiatives. Such sums are in addition to any fees charge contractors and/or enhanced collection revenues returned to the	Program a ed pursuan ged by outs	uthorized by § t to such debt ide collections		
22 23 24 25	S.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Code of V contrary, effective July 1, 2015, the Department of Taxation charge a fee of \$5.00 per copy of a tax return requested by a tax thereof.	is hereby	authorized to		
26 27 28 29	2. The Tax Commissioner shall have the authority to waive su granted only if the Tax Commissioner finds that this requirement burden on the person requesting such copies. All requests for wa the Tax Commissioner in writing.	nt creates an	n unreasonable		
30 31 32 33 34 35 36	T. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Code of Virginia effective January 1, 2016, the Department of Taxation shall commissioners of the revenue or any other local officials copie schedules, including but not limited to, federal Schedules C (1040), E (1040), or F (1040), or federal Forms 4562 or 210 Schedule 500FED, unless such schedules or forms are attached return and submitted to the department in an electronic format	not provid es of federa (1040), C- 06, or copi to a Virgi	le to the local al tax forms or EZ (1040), D es of Virginia nia income tax		
37 38 39 40 41	U.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, Vending Ma Motor Vehicle Rental Tax and Fee, Communications Taxes, an returns shall be filed using an electronic medium prescribed b beginning with the July 2016 return, due August 2016, for me frequent filers, with the first return they are required to file at	nd Tobacco by the Tax onthly filer	Products Tax Commissioner s and, for less		
42 43 44	2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, Litter Tax return payments shall be made using an electronic medium prescribed beginning with the first return required to be filed after January	by the Tax			
45 46 47	3. The Tax Commissioner shall have the authority to waive the electronic means upon a determination that the requirement hardship. All requests for waiver shall be transmitted to the Tax	t would ca	use an undue		
48 49 50 51 52 53	V.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, effective July of Taxation shall charge a fee of \$275 for each request, except th assessing officer, for a letter ruling to be issued pursuant to \$58 or for an advisory opinion issued pursuant to \$\$58.1-3701 Virginia; \$50 for each request for an offer in compromise collectability authorized by \$58.1-105, Code of Virginia; and	ose request 3.1-203, Co or 58.1-39 with respe	ed by the local de of Virginia, 83.1, Code of ct to doubtful		

Second Year FY2020

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriati	
ITEM 273		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second FY2
l .	permission to change a corporation's filing method pursuant to	§ 58.1-442, Co	de of Virginia.		
2	2. The Tax Commissioner shall have the authority to waiv	e such fees. W	aivers shall be		

D.4. 1. (0)

granted only if the Tax Commissioner finds that such fee creates an unreasonable burden on the person making such request. All requests for waiver shall be submitted to the Tax Commissioner in writing.

3 4

5

6 3. Revenues received from the above fees shall be deposited into the general fund in the state 7 treasury.

8 W. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 38.2-5601, Code of Virginia, the Department of 9 Taxation shall not be required to update the Virginia Medical Savings Account Plan report 10 after the completion of such report due on December 31, 2016.

11 X.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any employer or payroll service provider 12 that owns or licenses computerized data relating to income tax withheld pursuant to Article 16 13 (§ 58.1-460 et seq.) of Chapter 3 of Title 58.1 shall notify the Office of the Attorney General 14 without unreasonable delay after the discovery or notification of unauthorized access and 15 acquisition of unencrypted and unredacted computerized data containing a taxpayer 16 identification number in combination with the income tax withheld for that taxpayer that 17 compromises the confidentiality of such data and that creates a reasonable belief that an 18 unencrypted and unredacted version of such information was accessed and acquired by an 19 unauthorized person, and causes, or the employer or payroll provider reasonably believes has 20 caused or will cause, identity theft or other fraud. With respect to employers, this requirement 21 applies only to information regarding the employer's employees, and does not apply to 22 information regarding the employer's customers or other non-employees.

23 Such employer or payroll service provider shall provide the Office of the Attorney General 24 with the name and federal employer identification number of the employer as defined in § 58.1-460 that may be affected by the compromise in confidentiality. Upon receipt of such 25 26 notice, the Office of the Attorney General shall notify the Department of Taxation of the 27 compromise in confidentiality. The notification required under this provision that does not 28 otherwise require notification under subsections A through L of § 18.2-186.6, Code of 29 Virginia, shall not be subject to any other notification, requirement, exemption, or penalty 30 contained in that section.

31 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any income tax return preparer, as defined in § 58.1-302, who prepares any Virginia individual income tax return during a calendar year for 32 33 which he has the primary responsibility for the overall substantive accuracy of the preparation thereof shall notify the Department of Taxation without unreasonable delay after the 34 35 discovery or notification of unauthorized access and acquisition of unencrypted and unredacted return information that compromises the confidentiality of such information and 36 37 that creates a reasonable belief that an unencrypted and unredacted version of such 38 information was accessed and acquired by an unauthorized person, and causes, or such 39 preparer reasonably believes has caused or will cause, identity theft or other fraud.

Such income tax return preparer shall provide the Department of Taxation with the name and 40 taxpayer identifying number of any taxpayer that may be affected by the compromise in 41 confidentiality, as well as the name of the income tax return preparer, his preparer tax 42 43 identification number, and such other information as the Department may prescribe.

44	274.	Tax Value Assistance to Localities (73400)		
45		Training for Local Assessors (73401)	\$146,401	\$146,401
46 47		Valuation and Assessment Assistance for Localities (73410)	\$1,981,743	\$1,974,771
48		Fund Sources: General	\$682,353	\$682,353
49		Special	\$1,445,791	\$1,438,819

\$2,128,144

50 Authority: Title 58.1, Chapters 32, 34, 35, 36, and 39 and §§ 58.1-202, subdivisions 6, 10, and 51 11, 58.1-206; §§ 58.1-2655, 58.1-3239, 58.1-3278, and 58.1-3374, Code of Virginia.

52 A. The department is hereby authorized to recover from participating localities, as special 53 funds, the direct costs associated with assessor/property tax and local valuation and 54 assessments training classes. In accordance with § 58.1-206, Code of Virginia, the assessing \$2,121,172

Second Year FY2020

	ITEM 274		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		officers and board members attending shall continuexpenses incurred by their attendance at the program	e to be reimburs			
3 4 5 6 7 8 9		B. In the expenditure of funds out of its appropriations locally taxable real estate for use by the Board of distributions, the Department of Taxation shall use a si of parcels, in accordance with the classification system of Virginia, to reflect actual true values; further, the dep local school board, review its initial determination and Education of corrections in such determination.	E Education in st ufficiently represe as established in partment shall, up	tate school fund entative sampling § 58.1-208, Code on request of any		
10 11 12		C. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the re Taxation print and distribute local tax forms, instructio satisfied by the posting of such documents on the depart	ns, and property t			
13 14	275.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$50,589,813	\$49,673,140 \$49,811,536
15 16 17		General Management and Direction (79901) Information Technology Services (79902)	\$29,383,260 \$21,206,553	\$29,383,260 \$20,289,880 \$20,428,276		φ17,011,220
18 19		Fund Sources: General	\$50,436,359	\$49,519,686 \$49,658,082		
20		Special	\$153,454	\$153,454		
21		Authority: §§ 58.1-200, 58.1-202, and 58.1-213, Code c	-			
22 23 24 25		A. To defray the costs of administration for voluntary income tax returns for taxable years beginning on or aft of Taxation may retain up to five percent of the contri- not to exceed a total of \$50,000 from all organizations	er January 1, 2003 butions made to e	3, the Department each organization,		
26 27 28 29 30 31		B. The Department is hereby authorized to request and necessary start-up costs associated with the impler modification or other state or local tax imposed pursu Assembly. The treasury loan shall be repaid for these Department shall also retain sufficient revenues to reco these taxes.	mentation of a substant to Chapter 7 costs from the ta	ales and use tax 66, 2013 Acts of ax revenues. The		
32 33 34 35		C. Out of this appropriation, \$524,670 the first year a the general fund shall be provided for an initiative to de purchase computer tablets for the department's field of increase revenue collection efficiency.	evelop new mobile	e applications and		
36 37 38 39 40 41		D. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 2.2-50 Commissioner determines that an issue may have a maj or expenditures, he may request that the Attorney G render such assistance or representation as needed. T counsel shall be paid out of the funds appropriate Department of Taxation.	or impact on tax p eneral appoint sp 'he compensation	policies, revenues pecial counsel to for such special		
42 43 44 45		E. The Department of Taxation is required to provide detailed information on the audit process and tax p Furthermore, the Department shall compile and make common issues which are identified in a large number	oolicies that are available on their	being examined.		
46 47		Total for Department of Taxation			\$113,600,871	\$112,732,116 \$113,044,004
48		General Fund Positions	894.00	894.00 807.00		
49 50		Nongeneral Fund Positions	56.00	897.00 56.00		
51 52		Position Level	950.00	950.00 953.00		

				n Details(\$)		iations(\$)
]	ITEM 275		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: General	\$101,290,166	\$100,464,833 \$100,776,721		
3		Special	\$11,619,456	\$11,579,406		
4		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$691,249	\$687,877		
5		§ 1-89. DEPARTMENT (OF THE TREASU	RY (152)		
6	276.	Investment, Trust, and Insurance Services (72500)			\$36,785,300	\$32,706,683
7		Debt Management (72501)	\$1,113,753	\$1,113,753		
8		Insurance Services (72502)	\$31,319,996	\$27,241,379		
9		Banking and Investment Services (72503)	\$4,351,551	\$4,351,551		
10		Fund Sources: General	\$7,745,856	\$3,667,239		
11		Special	\$126,365	\$126,365		
12		Commonwealth Transportation	\$185,187	\$185,187		
13		Trust and Agency	\$28,727,892	\$28,727,892		
14		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia.				
15 16		A. The Department of the Treasury shall take into ac agency and institution when setting premiums for the				
17 18 19		B. Coverage provided by the VARISK plan for constitut action filed against a constitutional officer or appointee Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or the Vin	of a constitutional			
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32		C. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 33.2-1919 and Northern Virginia Transportation Commission a Transportation Commission are authorized to obtain li- joint project, the Virginia Railway Express, consisting o self-insurance maintained by the Commissions and ad Treasury's Division of Risk Management or by an ind Commissions, which liability policies shall be deemed 195.3, Code of Virginia. In addition, the Director of Transportation is authorized to work with the Northern and the Potomac Rappahannock Transportation Commi policies for the Commissions. In obtaining liability polic Rail and Public Transportation shall advise the Commi applicable public procurement and administrative guide	and the Potomac ability policies for f liability insurance ministered by the I lependent third part to meet the require the Department of Virginia Transport ssion to obtain the cies, the Director of ssions regarding co	Rappahannock the Commissions' and a program of Department of the ty selected by the ements of § 8.01- f Rail and Public ation Commission foregoing liability the Department of		
33 34 35 36 37		D. By January 15 of each year the Department of the Tr the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Comm agreeable to them, summarizing changes in required de fund as the result of any refinancing, refunding, or issu taken by the Commonwealth within the next twelve mo	nittees, in a unified bt service payments ance actions taken	d report mutually s from the general		
38 39 40		E. The Virginia Public School Authority shall transfer to year an amount necessary to recover the direct cost administration of the Virginia Public School Author	incurred by the d			
41 42		F. Notwithstanding § 2.2-1836 of the Code of Virginia authorized to continue the data breach coverage under				
43 44 45 46 47 48 49		G. The Department of the Treasury shall provide to premiums, by local constitutional office and individu Constitutional Officer and Regional Jail Fund of the Sta premiums provided to the Department of the Treasury by factors such claims experience by local constitutional of local constitutional office and individual regional jail's and regional jail average daily populations.	al regional jail, req te Insurance Reserv y the actuary shall b fice and individual total number of po	uired to fund the e Trust Fund. The e calculated using regional jail, each ssitions, and local		
50 51 52		H. Out of the amounts for this Item shall be paid \$582 Robert Paul Davis, as provided for and contingent upor bill of the 2018 Acts of General Assembly.				

			Itom	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
1	TEM 276		First Year	Second Year		
			First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4		I. Out of the general fund amounts for this item shall be for the relief of Danial J. Williams, Joseph Jesse Dic Derek Elliot Tice, as provided for pursuant to Chapter the Assembly.	k, Jr., Eric Camer	on Wilson, and		
5	277.	Revenue Administration Services (73200)			\$13,101,042	\$13,112,104
6		Unclaimed Property Administration (73207)	\$6,782,313	\$6,782,313		
7		Accounting and Trust Services (73213)	\$1,769,561	\$1,780,623		
8		Check Processing and Bank Reconciliation	\$2 240 472	¢2 240 472		
9 10		(73216) Administrative Services (73220)	\$2,249,473 \$2,299,695	\$2,249,473 \$2,299,695		
10						
11		Fund Sources: General	\$3,687,021	\$3,693,657		
12		Special	\$335,994	\$335,994		
13		Trust and Agency	\$8,359,770	\$8,363,089		
14		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$718,257	\$719,364		
15		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 18 and §§ 55-210.1 throug	h 55-210.29, Code	of Virginia.		
16 17 18 19		A. Included in this Item is a sum sufficient nongener services and other operating expenses to process che Social Services. The estimated cost, excluding actual year and \$89,000 the second year.	ecks issued by the	Department of		
20 21 22 23 24		B. Included in this Item is a sum sufficient non administrative expenses to process the Virginia Emp Virginia Retirement System (VRS) checks. The estimat year and \$5,500 the second year, and for VRS is \$25, second year.	bloyment Commiss ted cost for VEC is	ion (VEC) and \$5,500 the first		
25 26 27		C.1. The amounts for Unclaimed Property Administ related support costs of the Uniform Disposition of U solely from revenues derived pursuant to the act.				
28 29 30		2. The amounts also include a sum sufficient nong \$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,000,000 the second services and securities portfolio custody services for u	l year to pay fees	for compliance		
31 32 33		3. Any revenue derived from the sale of the Department property system is hereby appropriated to the department customer service and system enhancements.				
34 35		4. Notwithstanding § 55-210.13.C of the Uniform Disp the State Treasurer is not required to publish any item of		ed Property Act,		
36 37 38 39 40 41 42		D. The State Treasurer is authorized to charge is participating in the private college financing program Authority an administrative fee of up to 10 basis poin project in addition to a share of direct costs of issu Treasurer. Revenue collected from this administrative fund in the Department of the Treasury to compens indirect staff time and expenses involved with this	to of the Virginia Control of the amount fin the of the amount fin the shall be deposited the shall be deposited the department	bllege Building nanced for each ed by the State ted to a special		
43 44 45 46 47		E. The State Treasurer is authorized to sell any s demutualization proceeds of insurance companies at a legislation enacted by the 2003 Session of the General the sale of said securities shall be handled in accord Virginia.	ny time after delive Assembly. The fun	ery, pursuant to ds derived from		
48 49 50 51 52		F.1. The State Treasurer is authorized to charge qua public deposits, as defined in § 2.2-4401, Code of Vir, of not more than one-half of one basis point of their av a twelve month period. The State Treasurer shal implementation of this fee. However, the total fe	ginia, an annual ad erage public depos 1 issue guidelines	ministrative fee it balances over s to effect the		

]	ITEM 277.		Iter First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		depositories shall not exceed \$100,000 in any one year.				
2 3 4 5		2. Any regulations or guidelines necessary to implement be adopted without complying with the Administration provided that input is solicited from qualified public do that notice and an opportunity to submit written comm	ve Process Act (§ lepositories. Such i	2.2-4000 et seq.)		
6 7 8 9		G. The State Treasurer shall work with universities policies and procedures which minimize the use reimbursements of student loan balances. These efforts s debit cards, direct deposits, or other electronic means.	of paper checks v	when issuing any		
10 11 12		H. The Virginia Public School Authority shall transfer to year an amount necessary to recover the direct cost accounting and financial reporting of the Virginia I	t incurred by the	department in the		
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	278.	1. There is hereby appropriated to the Department of transfer to the federal government, in accordance with Management Improvement Act of 1990 and related feo by the state on federal funds advanced to the state for fe- funds are held by the state from the time they are depo- they are paid out to redeem warrants, checks or paymen appropriation is funded from the interest earned on feo the state. The actual amount for transfer shall be estable	h the provisions o leral regulations, o deral assistance pro- ssited in the state's ts by other means." leral funds deposite	f the federal Cash f the interest owed grams, where such bank account until This sum sufficient ed and invested by		
21 22 23 24 25		2. When permitted by applicable federal laws or a Comptroller shall first offset and reduce the amount to of interest payments calculated to be received by the stat such payments are due to the state because the state was federal program purposes prior to the receipt of federal f	be transferred by a te from the federal required to disburs	ny and all amounts government, where		
26 27 28 29 30 31		3. Should the interest payments calculated to be made l exceed the interest calculated to be transferred from reduced by the federally approved direct cost rein Comptroller shall then notify the federal government of state and shall record such net interest, upon its recei- general fund.	the state to the fe mbursement to th f the net amount of	deral government, e state, the State interest due to the		
32		Total for Department of the Treasury			\$49,886,342	\$45,818,787
33		General Fund Positions	31.20	31.20		
34		Nongeneral Fund Positions	91.80	91.80		
35		Position Level	123.00	123.00		
36		Fund Sources: General	\$11,432,877	\$7,360,896		
37		Special	\$462,359	\$462,359		
38 39		Commonwealth Transportation Trust and Agency	\$185,187 \$37,087,662	\$185,187 \$37,090,981		
40		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$718,257	\$719,364		
41		8 1 00 TDE ASI	JRY BOARD (155)		
	250		JAI BOARD (135)	0000 451 40 5	Φρες ρες 425
42 43	279.	Bond and Loan Retirement and Redemption (74300).			\$808,451,406 \$782,931,935	\$856,066,435 \$824,795,771
44 45 46		Debt Service Payments on General Obligation Bonds (74301)	\$67,030,237 \$67,029,003	\$64,792,831 \$64,791,313		
47		Capital Lease Payments (74302)	\$5,490,800	\$5,497,550		
48		Debt Service Payments on Public Building Authority	¢070 247 840	¢200 779 052		
49 50		Bonds (74303)	\$272,347,842 \$262,613,033	\$299,778,953 \$280,424,780		
51		Debt Service Payments on College Building				
52 53		Authority Bonds (74304)	\$463,582,527 \$447,799,099	\$485,997,101 \$474,082,128		

	ITEM 279.		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Fund Sources: Genera	ิม	\$759,099,000 \$735,190,499	\$807,607,404 \$776,432,307		
2 3 4	Higher	Education Operating	\$31,526,576 \$30,011,174	\$31,526,576		
5	Dedica	ated Special Revenue	\$645,000	\$645,000		
6 7	Federa	ll Trust	\$17,180,830 \$17,085,262	\$16,287,455 \$16,191,888		
8 9	Authority: Title 2.2, Virginia.	Chapter 18, Code of Virginia;	Article X, Section 9	9, Constitution of		
10 11 12	appropriations betwe	Department of Planning and en Items in the Treasury Boar ed by the General Assembly.				
13 14 15 16	following amounts a	ants for Debt Service Paymen re hereby appropriated from nds issued pursuant to Article 2	the general fund for	r debt service on		
17	Series		FY 2019	•		FY 2020
18		General Fund	Federal Funds	General Fur	nd Fea	leral Funds
19	2009A	\$4,063,500	\$0		\$0	\$0
20	2009B	\$3,128,651	\$411,196	\$3,074,40	57	\$379,328
21	2009D Refunding	\$23,824,751	\$0	\$22,811,75	50	\$0
22	2012 Refunding	\$4,322,450	\$0	\$4,229,20	00	\$0
23	2013 Refunding	\$15,388,750	\$0	\$14,977,25	50	\$0
24	2015B Refunding	\$13,977,350	\$0	. , , ,		\$0
25	2016B Refunding	\$1,821,450	\$0	. , ,		\$0
26 27	Projected debt service		\$0			\$0
27 28	& expenses Total Service Area	\$90,905 \$66,619,041	\$411,196	\$88,5. \$64,413,5 (\$379,328
20 29	Total Service Area	\$66,617,807	φ411,170	\$64,411,98		φ <i>στ 9</i> ,520
30 31		ts for Debt Service Payments nce costs and other expenses				
32 33	C. Out of the amoun appropriated for cap	ts for Capital Lease Payment ital lease payments:	s, the following am	ounts are hereby		
34			1	FY 2019		FY 2020
35 36	Norfolk RHA (VCCS 1995	-TCC), Series	\$	738,300		\$739,800
37	Virginia Biotech Rese	earch Park, 2009	\$4,	752,500		\$4,757,750
38	Total Capital Lease	Payments	\$5,	,490,800		\$5,497,550
39 40		nts for Debt Service Payments o the Virginia Public Building				
41		for its various bond issues:	, reactionly the follow			
42	Series		FY 2019			FY 2020
43		General Fund	Nongeneral Fund		6	eneral Fund
44	2005D	\$2,000,000	\$0			\$0
45	2008B	\$7,119,950	\$0		\$0	\$0
46	2009A	\$4,683,024	\$0			\$0 \$0
47	2009B	\$10,204,500	\$0	. , ,		\$0
48	2009B STARS	\$6,584,000	\$0			\$0 \$0
49	2009C	\$1,089,190	\$0	\$1,087,55	54	\$0

ITEM 279.			Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
			First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	2009D	\$6,248,100	\$0	\$6,241	,975	\$0
2	2010A	\$21,902,842	\$4,039,992	\$21,886	· -	\$3,813,064
3		\$21,877,801	\$4,026,508	\$21,861		\$3,799,581
4 5	2010B	\$30,463,982 \$30,091,167	\$3,483,595 \$ <i>3,401,511</i>	\$30,473 \$30,320		\$3,392,523 \$3,310,439
5 6	2011A STARS	\$631,000	\$5,401,511 \$0	\$628		\$3, <i>310,439</i> \$0
0 7	2011A STARS 2011A	\$051,000 \$17,659,300	\$0 \$0	\$028 \$17,658		\$0 \$0
8	2011A	\$12,909,500	φŪ	\$12,908		\$0
9	2011B	\$1,298,749	\$0	\$1,299		\$0
10	2012A Refunding	\$6,567,975	\$0	\$6,564		\$0
11	C	\$6,559,225		\$6,556	,225	
12	2013A	\$10,281,175	\$0	\$10,279	,550	\$0
13		\$8,823,275		\$8,821		
14	2013B	\$3,478,000	\$0	\$17,247	,000	\$0
15	2014A	\$9,204,775	\$645,000	\$9,202		\$645,000
16		\$8,482,025		\$8,479		
17	2014B	\$2,012,760	\$0	\$2,011		\$0
18	2014C Refunding	\$39,637,575	\$0	\$25,923		\$0
19 20	2015 4	\$39,593,775	¢o	\$25,880		¢0
20 21	2015A	\$17,344,496	\$0 \$0	\$17,339	, ,	\$0 \$0
21 22	2015B Refunding	\$14,881,080 \$14,845,275	\$0	\$16,639 \$16,603	,	\$0
22	2016A	\$14,385,550	\$0	\$14,385		\$0
23 24	2016B Refunding	\$8,816,400	\$0 \$0	\$8,816		\$0 \$0
25	2010D Refunding	\$8,77 <i>3</i> ,400	φυ	\$8,773		φ0
26	2016C	\$11,659,375	\$0	\$11,657		\$0
27	2016D	\$906,902	\$0	\$903	,732	\$0
28	2017A	\$6,722,850	\$0	\$6,722	,850	\$0
29	2018A	\$5,097,794	\$0	\$11,745	,719	\$0
30	2018B	\$475,366	\$0	\$1,233	,790	\$0
31	Projected debt service	\$15,118,555	\$0	\$48,209	,412	\$0
32	and expenses	\$642,965		\$16,487	,732	
33	Total Service Area	\$264,179,255	\$8,168,587	\$291,928	·	\$7,850,587
34		\$254,540,014	\$8,073,019	\$272,669,	,760	\$7,755,020

2.a. Funding is included in this Item for the Commonwealth's reimbursement of a portion of the approved capital costs as determined by the Board of Corrections and other interest costs

35

36

37

38

as provided in §§ 53.1-80 through 53.1-82.2 of the Code of Virginia, for the following:

39	Project	Approved Capital Costs
40	Prince William – Manassas Regional Jail	\$21,032,421
41	Henry County Jail	\$18,759,878
42	Chesapeake City Jail	\$6,860,886
43	Piedmont Regional Jail	\$2,139,464
44	Rockbridge Regional Jail	\$103,693
45	Prince William - Manassas Adult Detention Center	\$49,643
46	Northwestern Regional Jail Authority	\$1,198,915
47	Southside Regional Jail Authority	\$138,465
48	Total Approved Capital Costs	\$50,283,365

Commonwealth Share of

b. The Commonwealth's share of the total construction cost of the projects listed in the tablein paragraph D.2.a. shall not exceed the amount listed for each project. Reimbursement of the

51 Commonwealth's portion of the construction costs of these projects shall be subject to the

ITEM 279.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	approval of the Department of Corrections of the	final expenditures.			
2 3	c. This paragraph shall constitute the authority for to issue bonds for the foregoing projects pursuan				
4 5 6 7	E.1. Out of the amounts for Debt Service Pa Authority Bonds shall be paid to the Virginia C amounts for use by the Authority for paymen authorized projects under the 21st Century C	ollege Building Authority ts on obligations issued	the following		
8	Series	FY	2019		FY 2020
9	2008A	\$4,96	6,500		\$0
10	2009A&B	\$15,17			\$15,176,800
11		\$14,45			\$0
12	2009E Refunding	\$26,97	5,050		\$26,976,000
13	2009F	\$37,69	3,761		\$37,353,111
14	2010B	\$27,67	3,519		\$27,471,289
15	2011 A	\$13,9 4	0,050		\$13,940,800
16		\$10,72	7,000		\$10,727,750
17	2012A	\$21,49	6,400		\$21,495,900
18		\$16,24	8,450		\$16,247,950
19	2012B	\$25,52	7,200		\$25,524,200
20		\$21,48	21,850		\$21,478,850
21	2013 A	\$21,95	,		\$21,959,263
22		\$16,81			\$15,872,969
23	2014A	\$19,5 4	,		\$19,547,400
24		\$16,97			\$16,974,150
25	2014B		\$1,328,400		\$1,387,150
26	2015A	\$22,48	,		\$31,266,700
27		\$16,39			\$25,175,700
28	2015B Refunding	\$7,28	5,433		\$12,225,054
29 20	20150	¢1.45	0.254		\$12,255,054
30	2015C		9,354		\$1,484,260
31 32	2015D	\$22,49 \$22,49	,		\$13,711,535
	2016A	\$22,49 \$19,47			\$19,469,100
33 34					
	2016B Refunding		2,000		\$1,972,000
35	2016C		8,839		\$4,433,139
36	2017B		\$21,184,500		\$19,851,250
37	2017C		\$31,464,500		\$31,466,500
38	2017D		\$11,318,714		\$11,316,514
39	2017E	\$31,96			\$41,448,500
40 41	Projected 21st Century debt service &	\$21,303,509			\$49,470,746
41	expenses		7,501		\$38,328,915
42 43	Subtotal 21st Century	\$381,17 \$365,52	/		407,498,711 395,401,686
44	2. Out of the amounts for Debt Service Payments				

2. Out of the amounts for Debt Service Payments on Virginia College Building Authority Bonds shall be paid to the Virginia College Building Authority the following amounts for the payment of debt service on authorized bond issues to finance equipment:

45

47	Series	FY 2019	FY 2020
48	2011A	\$8,536,500	\$0
49	2012A	\$8,363,250	\$0
50	2013A	\$9,451,750	\$9,448,500
51	2014A	\$9,660,250	\$9,658,000
52	2015A	\$10,483,250	\$10,482,000

ITEM 279.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year		Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year	
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	2016A	\$11,00	55,500		\$11,067,000
2	2017A	\$11,849,000		\$11,853,750	
3	2018	\$12,865,274		\$12,864,500	
4	Projected debt service & expenses	\$12,994,400		\$25,989,140	
5			\$0		\$13,306,692
6	Subtotal Equipment	\$82,4 ()3,900		\$78,498,390
7		\$82,22	74,774		\$78,680,442
8	Total Service Area	\$463,5 8	82,527	Ś	\$485,997,101
9		\$447,79	99,099	5	\$474,082,128

10 3. Beginning with the FY 2008 allocation of the higher education equipment trust fund, the 11 Treasury Board shall amortize equipment purchases at seven years, which is consistent with 12 the useful life of the equipment.

13 4. Out of the amounts for Debt Service Payments on Virginia College Building Authority 14 Bonds, the following nongeneral fund amounts from a capital fee charged to out-of-state 15 students at institutions of higher education shall be paid to the Virginia College Building 16 Authority in each year for debt service on bonds issued under the 21st Century Program:

17	Institution	FY 2019	FY 2020
18	George Mason University	\$2,644,092	\$2,804,490
19	Old Dominion University	\$1,047,123	\$1,108,899
20	University of Virginia	\$4,721,706	\$5,006,754
21 22	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	\$4,867,731	\$5,192,295
23	Virginia Commonwealth University	\$2,224,530	\$2,359,266
24	College of William and Mary	\$1,549,053	\$1,639,845
25	Christopher Newport University	\$122,562	\$131,508
26	University of Virginia's College at Wise	\$45,540	\$48,330
27	James Madison University	\$2,675,079	\$2,843,787
28	Norfolk State University	\$402,831	\$420,789
29	Longwood University	\$97,911	\$106,149
30	University of Mary Washington	\$222,750	\$234,834
31	Radford University	\$281,556	\$300,486
32	Virginia Military Institute	\$377,190	\$400,470
33	Virginia State University	\$739,233	\$773,577
34	Richard Bland College	\$9,900	\$10,830
35	Virginia Community College System	\$3,139,785	\$3,301,665
36	TOTAL	\$25,168,572	\$26,683,974

37 5. Out of the amounts for Debt Service Payments of College Building Authority Bonds, the 38 following is the estimated general and nongeneral fund breakdown of each institution's share 39 of the debt service on the Virginia College Building Authority bond issues to finance equipment. The nongeneral fund amounts shall be paid to the Virginia College Building 40 41 Authority in each year for debt service on bonds issued under the equipment program:

42			FY 2019		FY 2020
43	Institution	General Fund	Nongeneral Fund	General Fund	Nongeneral Fund
44 45	College of William & Mary	\$2,721,384 \$2,726,776	\$259,307	\$2,527,063 \$2,542,753	\$259,307
46 47	University of Virginia	\$14,337,975 \$14,768,704	\$1,088,024	\$13,323,452 \$14,069,323	\$1,088,024
48 49 50	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	\$14,442,862 \$14,850,856	\$992,321	\$13,302,001 \$14,157,712	\$992,321

ITEM	279.		First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	Virginia Military	\$876,713	\$88,844	\$830,		\$88,844
2	Institute	\$844,441		\$766,		
3	Virginia State	\$1,353,677	\$108,886	\$1,284,		\$108,886
4	University	\$1,304,801		\$1,186,		
5 6	Norfolk State University	\$1,199,191 \$1,155,483	\$108,554	\$1,137, \$1,050,		\$108,554
7 8	Longwood University	\$755,365 \$728,290	\$54,746	\$716, \$663,		\$54,746
9 10	University of Mary Washington	\$617,490 \$760,811	\$97,063	\$583, \$872,		\$97,063
11 12	James Madison University	\$2,262,279 \$2,178,176	\$254,504	\$2,142, \$1,975,		\$254,504
13 14	Radford University	\$1,766,263 \$1,535,517	\$135,235	\$1,675, \$1,213,		\$135,235
15 16	Old Dominion University	\$5,352,390 \$5,250,439	\$374,473	\$5,052, \$4,670,		\$374,473
17	Virginia	\$9,428,616	\$401,647	\$8,733,		\$401,647
18 19	Commonwealth University	\$9,627,321		\$9,153,	973	
20 21	Richard Bland College	\$172,483 \$166,653	\$2,027	\$164, \$152,		\$2,027
22 23	Christopher Newport University	\$804,228 \$776,754	\$17,899	\$765, \$710,		\$17,899
24 25	University of Virginia's College at Wise	\$253,407 \$244,285	\$19,750	\$240, \$222,		\$19,750
26	George Mason	\$4,511,046	\$205,665	\$3,935,	203	\$205,665
27	University	\$4,474,164		\$4,516,	681	
28 29	Virginia Community College System	\$15,363,705 \$14,722,898	\$633,657	\$15,889, \$14,614,		\$633,657
30	Virginia Institute of	\$555,160	\$0	\$493,	103	\$0
31	Marine Science	\$568,209		\$520,		
32 33	Roanoke Higher Education Authority	\$84,591 \$81,758	\$0	\$80, \$74,		\$0
34	Southwest Virginia	\$87,294	\$0	\$83,	149	\$0
35	Higher Education	\$84,378		\$77,	344	
36	Center					
37 38	Institute for Advanced Learning and Research	\$298,762 \$288,907	\$0	\$284, \$264,		\$0
39	Southern Virginia	\$90,167	\$0	\$99,	434	\$0
40 41	Higher Education Center	\$86,674		\$92,	482	
42 43	New College Institute	\$51,796 \$50,542	\$0	\$35, \$33,		\$0
44	Eastern Virginia	\$174,460	\$0	\$274,		\$0
45	Medical School	\$155,335		\$236,	697	
46 47	TOTAL	\$77,561,306 \$77,432,173	\$4,842,602	\$73,655, \$73,837,		\$4,842,602

F. Pursuant to various Payment Agreements between the Treasury Board and the
Commonwealth Transportation Board, funds required to pay the debt service due on
Commonwealth Transportation Board bonds shall be paid to the Trustee for the
bondholders by the Treasury Board after transfer of these funds to the Treasury Board
from the Commonwealth Transportation Board pursuant to Item 457, paragraph E of this
act and §§ 33.2-2300, 33.2-2400, and 58.1-816.1, Code of Virginia.

54 G. Under the authority of this act, an agency may transfer funds to the Treasury Board for 55 use as lease, rental, or debt service payments to be used for any type of financing where

			Ite	em Details(\$)	Approp	oriations(\$)
IT	EM 279.		First Yea FY2019		r First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		the proceeds are used to acquire equipment and to final limited to issuance and other financing costs. In the evi- shall be deemed an appropriation to the Treasury Boar rental, or debt service payments described herein.	vent such transfers	occur, the transfer	S	
5 6 7 8 9 10		H. Notwithstanding the provisions of 2.2-11.56, Code used by the Commonwealth or its authorities, boards, o construction, improvement or equipping of real proper or disposition of such property and any improve remediation options available under federal law in ord such bonds.	r institutions to fina rty, proceeds from ments may first	ance the acquisition the subsequent sal be applied towar	n, e d	
11 12 13	280.	A. There is hereby appropriated to the Treasury Board to pay obligations incurred pursuant to Article X, S Constitution of Virginia, as follows:				
14		1. Section 9 (a) To meet emergencies and redeem previ	ous debt obligation	s.		
15		2. Section 9 (c) Debt for certain revenue-producing cap	ital projects.			
16 17		3. Section 9 (d) Debt for variable rate obligations secure a payment agreement with the Treasury Board.	red by general fund	l appropriations an	d	
18 19 20		4. For payment of the principal of and the interest on the cited Sections 9 (c) and 9 (d), in the event pledged obligation of the Commonwealth.				
21 22 23 24 25 26		B. There is hereby appropriated to the Treasury Boar expected at the time of issuance to be paid from sub- arbitrage rebate amounts and other penalties to the issued by the Commonwealth pursuant to Article X, (obligations secured by General Fund appropriations to Virginia.	sidies under federa United States Gov Sections 9 (a), 9 (al programs and for ernment for bond (b), 9 (c), and 9 (d	or s l)	
27 28		Total for Treasury Board			\$808,451,406 \$782,931,935	\$856,066,435 \$824,795,771
29 30		Fund Sources: General	\$759,099,000 \$735,190,499	\$807,607,404 \$776,432,307		
31 32		Higher Education Operating	\$31,526,576 \$30,011,174	\$31,526,576		
33		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$645,000	\$645,000		
34 35		Federal Trust	\$17,180,830 \$17,085,262	\$16,287,455 \$16,191,888		
36 37		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF FINANCE			\$2,626,205,010 \$3,338,271,577	\$2,679,216,778 \$2,978,169,670
38 39		General Fund Positions	1,111.20	1,111.20 1,114.20		
40		Nongeneral Fund Positions	205.80	205.80		
41 42		Position Level	1,317.00	1,317.00 <i>1,320.00</i>		
43 44		Fund Sources: General	\$1,938,341,599 \$2,653,730,993	\$1,982,004,289 \$2,264,257,811		
45 46		Special Higher Education Operating	\$13,074,635 \$31,526,576	\$13,034,585 \$31,526,576		
47			\$30,011,174			
48		Commonwealth Transportation	\$185,187	\$185,187		
49 50		Internal Service	\$28,823,090 \$27,111,233	\$39,073,504 \$27,868,441		
51		Trust and Agency	\$116,468,716	\$116,472,035		
52 53		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$480,604,377	\$480,633,147 \$508,633,147		

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 280.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Federal Trust	\$17,180,830 \$17,085,262	\$16,287,455 \$16,191,888		

ITEM 28	31.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	OFFICE OF HEALTH AND	HUMAN RESOU	URCES		
2	§ 1-91. SECRETARY OF HEALTH A	ND HUMAN RE	SOURCES (188)		
3 281. 4	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$830,743	\$830,743	\$830,743	\$830,743
5	Fund Sources: General	\$830,743	\$830,743		
6	Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2; Article 6, and § 2.2-200, Coc	le of Virginia.			
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A.1. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources, in col Attorney General and the Secretary of Public Safety and H six-year forecast of the adult offender population presently Corrections and approaching release who meet the criter Chapter 914 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, and who m sexually violent predators (SVPs) for each fiscal year with As part of the forecast, the secretary shall report on: (i) the Committee (CRC) evaluations to be completed; (ii) t recommended by the CRC for civil commitment, conditiona number of civilly committed residents of the Virginia Cen who are eligible for annual review; and (iv) the number of in Virginia Center for Behavioral Rehabilitation and grante commitment in a state SVP facility. The secretary shall com SVP cases and a forecast of SVP eligibility, civil commitme including projected bed space requirements, to the Governe Appropriations Committees by November 15 of each year.	omeland Security, incarcerated in the ria set forth in C ay be eligible fo in the six-year for number of Comm he number of el l release, and full ter for Behavioral dividuals civilly c ed conditional rel- plete a summary r nts, and SVP cond or and Senate Fina	, shall present a e Department of hapter 863 and r evaluation as ecasting period. nitment Review igible inmates release; (iii) the l Rehabilitation ommitted to the ease from civil report of current litional releases, ance and House		
23 24 25 26 27 28	2. As part of the forecast process, the Department of Correc 99 screening to all potential Sexually Violent Predators pursuant to § 37.2-900 et seq., Code of Virginia, within Department of Corrections. The results of such scree commissioner of the Department of Behavioral Health and E on a monthly basis and used for the SVP population forecast	s eligible for civ six months of ac nings shall be p Developmental Ser	il commitment Imission to the rovided to the		
29 30 31	3. The Office of the Attorney General shall also provide to the monthly basis, the status of all SVP cases pending before forecasting the SVP population.				
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	B. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources shall workgroup to develop a shared vision and definition of tra within the Health and Human Resources Secretariat. representatives from the Departments of Social Ser Developmental Services, Medical Assistance Services, and researchers, community organizations and representatives workgroup shall also (i) examine Virginia's applicable child data; (ii) develop strategies to build a trauma-informed syste practices for families who are impacted by the human serv indicators to measure progress in developing such a syst professional development/training in trauma-informed professionals and (v) identify data sharing issues that need t system. In addition, the workgroup shall explore opportur care throughout the Commonwealth. The Secretary of He report on the workgroup's activities to the Chairmen of the Einance Committees and the Virginia Commission on Yout	auma-informed ca The workgroup vices, Behavior d Health, as well a from impacted cor and family-servin em of care for chil ice delivery syste em of care; (iv) i practices for all o be addressed to nities to expand tr alth and Human I House Appropriat	re for agencies o shall include al Health and as stakeholders, mmunities. The g programs and dren, using best m; (iii) identify dentify needed l child-serving facilitate such a auma-informed Resources shall ions and Senate		

48 C.1. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources, in collaboration with the Secretary of
 49 Administration and the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, shall convene an
 50 interagency workgroup to oversee the development of a statewide integrated electronic health
 51 record (EHR) system. The workgroup shall include the Department of Behavioral Health and
 52 Developmental Services (DBHDS), the Virginia Department of Health, the Department of
 53 Corrections, the Department of Planning and Budget, and other agencies as deemed

Finance Committees and the Virginia Commission on Youth by December 15 of each year.

		Item Details(\$)		Appropr	riations(\$)
ITEM 281.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Y FY202
	appropriate by the respective Secretaries. The purpose of evaluate common business requirements for electronic consistency and interoperability with other partner state and private health care entities to the extent allowed by federal a The goal of the workgroup is to develop an integrated El appropriate with other partner state and local agencies and p entities. The workgroup shall evaluate the DBHDS statement EHR system and the DBHDS platform for potential adaption in order to develop an integrated statewide EHR.	c health reco local agencies and state law a HR which ma public and privent of work de	and public and and regulations. by be shared as wate health care eveloped for its		
	2. The workgroup may consider and evaluate other EHR appropriate to meet specific agency needs and evaluate the c separate EHR system as compared to a statewide integ workgroup shall ensure that standards are developed to ensure appropriate with public and private partner agencies and heat	ost-effectiven grated EHR. re that EHRs c	ess of pursing a However, the can be shared as		
	3. The workgroup shall also develop an implementation t assess other issues that may need to be addressed in order statewide EHR system. The timeline and cost estimates sh agencies to coordinate implementation. The workgroup sha any recommendations to the Joint Subcommittee on He	r to implemen all be used by all report on it	t an integrated the respective s activities and		

D. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources shall convene a work group to examine recent trends in the individual insurance market and state options for stabilizing that market. The examination shall include, but not be limited to, a review of association and catastrophic health plans as well as innovative solutions that reduce individual insurance premiums and out-of-pocket costs while preserving access to comprehensive health insurance. The examination shall also consider the resources necessary to fund any proposed options. The work group shall include the Commissioner of Insurance or his designee, the Virginia Association of Health Plans, chambers of commerce, and other relevant stakeholders at the discretion of the Secretary. The Secretary shall report his findings and recommendations to the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2018.

Oversight by October 15, 2018.

- E.1. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources is authorized to develop and apply for a state innovation waiver under Section 1332 of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (42 U.S.C. 18052) to implement innovative solutions to help stabilize the individual insurance market by reducing individual insurance premiums and out-ofpocket costs while preserving access to health insurance. Such solutions may include the implementation of a state reinsurance program or high risk pool, or market stabilization program payments, among others.
- 2. The State Corporation Commission Bureau of Insurance shall provide technical assistance to the Secretary of Health and Human Resources as requested.
- 3. The Secretary shall report on the waiver plan to the House and Senate Committees on Labor and Commerce and the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees prior to the submission of the waiver application. Such report shall include an analysis of the costs and assumptions used to implement the waiver and any mechanism proposed to fund the non-federal share of costs. Implementation of the waiver shall be subject to appropriation of the non-federal share of costs by the General Assembly and approval by the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services."

48 49	Total for Secretary of Health and Human Resources			\$830,743
50	General Fund Positions	5.00	5.00	
51	Position Level	5.00	5.00	
52	Fund Sources: General	\$830,743	\$830,743	

\$830,743

Second Year

FY2020

	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Y FY202
Children's Services	Act (200)			
Protective Services (45300)			\$349,251,604 \$343,351,604	\$359,167 \$353,267

\$359,167,989 \$353,267,989 Financial Assistance for Child and Youth Services

Second Year FY2020

(45303)	\$349,251,604 \$343,351,604	\$359,167,989 \$353,267,989	
Fund Sources: General	\$296,643,858 \$290,743.858	\$306,560,243 \$300.660.243	
Federal Trust	\$52,607,746	\$52,607,746	

10 Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 52, Code of Virginia.

ITEM 281.

282.

1

2 3

4 5 6

- 11 A. The Department of Education shall serve as fiscal agent to administer funds cited in 12 paragraphs B and C.
- 13 B.1.a. Out of this appropriation, \$238,581,993 the first year and \$258,756,145\$252,856,145 14 the second year from the general fund and \$51,609,746 \$51,607,746 the first year and 15 \$51,607,746 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be used for the state pool of funds 16 pursuant to § 2.2-5211, Code of Virginia. This appropriation shall consist of a Medicaid pool 17 allocation, and a non-Medicaid pool allocation.
- 18 b. The Medicaid state pool allocation shall consist of \$28,526,197 the first year and 19 \$28,526,197 the second year from the general fund and \$43,187,748 the first year and \$43,187,748 the second year from nongeneral funds. The Office of Children's Services will 20 transfer these funds to the Department of Medical Assistance Services as they are needed to 21 22 pay Medicaid provider claims.
- 23 c. The non-Medicaid state pool allocation shall consist of \$209,805,796 the first year and 24 \$219.972.181\$214,072,181 the second year from the general fund and \$8,419,998 the first 25 year and \$8,419,998 the second year from nongeneral funds. The nongeneral funds shall be 26 transferred from the Department of Social Services.
- 27 d. The Office of Children's Services, with the concurrence of the Department of Planning and 28 Budget, shall have the authority to transfer the general fund allocation between the Medicaid 29 and non-Medicaid state pools in the event that a shortage should exist in either of the funding 30 pools.
- 31 e. The Office of Children's Services, per the policy of the State Executive Council, shall deny 32 state pool funding to any locality not in compliance with federal and state requirements pertaining to the provision of special education and foster care services funded in accordance 33 34 with § 2.2-5211, Code of Virginia.
- 35 2.a. Out of this appropriation, \$55,666,865 \$49,766,865 the first year and \$55,666,865 the 36 second year from the general fund and \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second 37 year from nongeneral funds shall be set aside to pay for the state share of supplemental 38 requests from localities that have exceeded their state allocation for mandated services. The 39 nongeneral funds shall be transferred from the Department of Social Services.
- 40 b. In each year, the director of the Office of Children's Services may approve and obligate 41 supplemental funding requests in excess of the amount in 2a above, for mandated pool fund 42 expenditures up to 10 percent of the total general fund appropriation authority in B1a in this 43 Item.
- 44 c. The State Executive Council shall maintain local government performance measures to 45 include, but not be limited to, use of federal funds for state and local support of the Children's 46 Services Act.
- 47 d. Pursuant to § 2.2-5200, Code of Virginia, Community Policy and Management Teams shall 48 seek to ensure that services and funding are consistent with the Commonwealth's policies of 49 preserving families and providing appropriate services in the least restrictive environment, 50 while protecting the welfare of children and maintaining the safety of the public. Each locality 51 shall submit to the Office of Children's Services information on utilization of residential 52 facilities for treatment of children and length of stay in such facilities. By December 15 of

29	3

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

each year, the Office of Children's Services shall report to the Governor and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on utilization rates and average lengths of stays statewide and for each locality.

ITEM 282.

1 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

3. Each locality receiving funds for activities under the Children's Services Act (CSA) shall have a utilization management process, including a uniform assessment, approved by the State Executive Council, covering all CSA services. Utilizing a secure electronic site, each locality shall also provide information as required by the Office of Children's Services to include, but not be limited to case specific information, expenditures, number of youth served in specific CSA activities, length of stay for residents in core licensed residential facilities, and proportion of youth placed in treatment settings suggested by the uniform assessment instrument. The State Executive Council, utilizing this information, shall track and report on child specific outcomes for youth whose services are funded under the Children's Services Act. Only non-identifying demographic, service, cost and outcome information shall be released publicly. Localities requesting funding from the set aside in paragraph 2.a. and 2.b. must demonstrate compliance with all CSA provisions to receive pool funding.

4. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources, in consultation with the Secretary of
Education and the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, shall direct the
actions for the Departments of Social Services, Education, and Juvenile Justice, Medical
Assistance Services, Health, and Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, to
implement, as part of ongoing information systems development and refinement, changes
necessary for state and local agencies to fulfill CSA reporting needs.

5. The State Executive Council shall provide localities with technical assistance on ways
 to control costs and on opportunities for alternative funding sources beyond funds
 available through the state pool.

26 6. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the 27 general fund is provided for a combination of regional and statewide meetings for 28 technical assistance to local community policy and management teams, family assessment 29 and planning teams, and local fiscal agents. Training shall include, but not be limited to, 30 cost containment measures, building community-based services, including creation of 31 partnerships with private providers and non-profit groups, utilization management, use of 32 alternate revenue sources, and administrative and fiscal issues. A state-supported 33 institution of higher education, in cooperation with the Virginia Association of Counties, 34 the Virginia Municipal League, and the State Executive Council, may assist in the 35 provisions of this paragraph. A training plan shall be presented to and approved by the 36 State Executive Council before the beginning of each fiscal year. A training calendar and 37 timely notice of programs shall be provided to Community Policy and Management 38 Teams and family assessment and planning team members statewide as well as to local 39 fiscal agents and chief administrative officers of cities and counties. A report on all 40 regional and statewide training sessions conducted during the fiscal year, including (i) a 41 description of each program and trainers, (ii) the dates of the training and the number of 42 attendees for each program, (iii) a summary of evaluations of these programs by attendees, 43 and (iv) the funds expended, shall be made to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations 44 and Senate Finance Committees and to the members of the State Executive Council by 45 December 1 of each year. Any funds unexpended for this purpose in the first year shall be 46 reappropriated for the same use in the second year.

- 47 7. Out of this appropriation, \$70,000 the first year and \$70,000 the second year from the
 48 general fund is provided for the Office of Children's Services to contract for the support of
 49 uniform CSA reporting requirements.
- **50** 8. The State Executive Council shall require a uniform assessment instrument.

51 9. The Office of Children's Services, in conjunction with the Department of Social
52 Services, shall determine a mechanism for reporting Temporary Assistance for Needy
53 Families Maintenance of Effort eligible costs incurred by the Commonwealth and local
54 governments for the Children's Services Act.

55 10. For purposes of defining cases involving only the payment of foster care maintenance,56 pursuant to § 2.2-5209, Code of Virginia, the definition of foster care maintenance used by

	It	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 282	2. First Ye FY201		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1	the Virginia Department of Social Services for federal Title IV-E shall be	used.			

- the Virginia Department of Social Services for federal Title IV-E shall be used.
- 2 C. The funding formula to carry out the provisions of the Children's Services Act is as 3 follows:

4 1. Allocations. The allocations for the Medicaid and non-Medicaid pools shall be the amounts 5 specified in paragraphs B.1.b. and B.1.c. in this Item. These funds shall be distributed to each 6 locality in each year of the biennium based on the greater of that locality's percentage of 7 actual 1997 Children's Services Act pool fund program expenditures to total 1997 pool fund 8 program expenditures or the latest available three-year average of actual pool fund program 9 expenditures as reported to the state fiscal agent.

- 10 2. Local Match. All localities are required to appropriate a local match for the base year 11 funding consisting of the actual aggregate local match rate based on actual total 1997 program 12 expenditures for the Children's Services Act. This local match rate shall also apply to all 13 reimbursements from the state pool of funds in this Item and carryforward expenditures 14 submitted prior to September 30 each year for the preceding fiscal year, including 15 administrative reimbursements under paragraph C.4. in this Item.
- 16 3.a. Notwithstanding the provisions of C.2. of this Item, beginning July 1, 2008, the local 17 match rate for community based services for each locality shall be reduced by 50 percent.
- 18 b. Localities shall review their caseloads for those individuals who can be served 19 appropriately by community-based services and transition those cases to the community for 20 services. Beginning July 1, 2009, the local match rate for non-Medicaid residential services 21 for each locality shall be 25 percent above the fiscal year 2007 base. Beginning July 1, 2011, 22 the local match rate for Medicaid residential services for each locality shall be 25 percent 23 above the fiscal year 2007 base.
- 24 c. By OctoberDecember 1 of each year, The State Executive Council (SEC) shall provide an 25 update to the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 26 Committees on the outcomes of this initiative.
- 27 d. At the direction of the State Executive Council, local Community Policy and Management 28 Teams (CPMTs) and Community Services Boards (CSBs) shall work collaboratively in their 29 service areas to develop a local plan for intensive care coordination (ICC) services that best 30 meets the needs of the children and families. If there is more than one CPMT in the CSB's 31 service area, the CPMTs and the CSB may work together as a region to develop a plan for 32 ICC services. Local CPMTs and CSBs shall also work together to determine the most 33 appropriate and cost-effective provider of ICC services for children in their community who 34 are placed in, or at-risk of being placed in, residential care through the Children's Services 35 Act, in accordance with guidelines developed by the State Executive Council. The State 36 Executive Council and Office of Children's Services shall establish guidelines for reasonable 37 rates for ICC services and provide training and technical assistance to CPMTs and fiscal 38 agents regarding these services.
- 39 e. The local match rate for all non-Medicaid services provided in the public schools after June 40 30, 2011 shall equal the fiscal year 2007 base.
- 41 4. Local Administrative Costs. Out of this appropriation, an amount equal to two percent of the fiscal year 1997 pool fund allocations, not to exceed \$2,060,000 the first year and 42 43 \$2,060,000 the second year from the general fund, shall be allocated among all localities for 44 administrative costs. Every locality shall be required to appropriate a local match based on the 45 local match contribution in paragraph C.2. of this Item. Inclusive of the state allocation and 46 local matching funds, every locality shall receive the larger of \$12,500 or an amount equal to 47 two percent of the total pool allocation. No locality shall receive more than \$50,000, inclusive 48 of the state allocation and local matching funds. Localities are encouraged to use 49 administrative funding to hire a full-time or part-time local coordinator for the Children's 50 Services Act program. Localities may pool this administrative funding to hire regional 51 coordinators.
- 52 5. Definition. For purposes of the funding formula in the Children's Services Act, "locality" 53 means city or county.
- 54 D. Community Policy and Management Teams shall use Medicaid-funded services whenever

ITEM 28 2		Item D rst Year Y2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5	they are available for the appropriate treatment of children and under the Children's Services Act. Effective July 1, 2009, pool fu any service that can be funded through Medicaid for Medicaid-el except when Medicaid-funded services are unavailable or inapp needs of a child.	youth reco inds shall r ligible chil	eiving services not be spent for dren and youth		112020
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	E. Pursuant to subdivision 3 of § 2.2-5206, Code of Virginia, Management Teams shall enter into agreements with the pare children receiving services under the Children's Services Act. Services shall be a party to any such agreement. If the parent of refuses to pay the agreed upon sum on a timely basis and a co referred to the Division of Child Support Enforcement of th Services, upon the request of the community policy manager Children's Services shall make a claim against the parent or payment through the Department of Law's Division of Debt Colle Attorney General.	nts or lega The Office or legal gu llection ac le Departr nent team legal gua	al guardians of e of Children's hardian fails or etion cannot be ment of Social , the Office of rdian for such		
16 17 18 19	F. The Office of Children's Services, in cooperation with the Assistance Services, shall provide technical assistance and trainin treatment foster care providers who provide Medicaid-reimburs Children's Services Act to become Medicaid-certified providers	ng to assist able servio	residential and		
20 21 22 23 24 25	G. The Office of Children's Services shall work with the State E Department of Medical Assistance Services to assist Community Teams in appropriately accessing a full array of Medicaid-funde eligible children and youth through the Children's Services Medicaid reimbursement for treatment services and decreasing Medicaid services related to medical necessity and utilization re	Policy an ed services Act, there the numbe	d Management for Medicaid- by increasing r of denials for		
26 27 28 29 30	H. Pursuant to subdivision 21 of § 2.2-2648, Code of Virginia, n in the odd-numbered years, the State Executive Council shal disseminate to members of the General Assembly and C Management Teams a progress report on services for children, y plan for such services for the succeeding biennium.	l biennial Communit	ly publish and ty Policy and		
31 32 33	I. Out of this appropriation, \$275,000 the first year and \$275,000 general fund shall be used to purchase and maintain an inform quality and timely child demographic, service, expenditure, and	nation syst	tem to provide		
34 35 36 37 38	J. The State Executive Council shall work with the Department o funding in this Item is sufficient to pay for the educational serve been placed in or admitted to state or privately operated per treatment facilities to meet the educational needs of the stude student's Individual Educational Plan (IEP).	ices of stue sychiatric	dents that have or residential		
39 40 41 42 43	K.1. The Office of Children's Services (OCS) shall report on func care services including but not limited to the number of children cost of care, type of service provided, length of stay, referr disposition. In addition, the OCS shall provide guidance and trai negotiating contracts with therapeutic foster care providers.	served and ral source	nually, average , and ultimate		
44 45 46 47	2. The Office of Children's Services shall report on funding f treatment and residential services, including but not limited to served annually, average cost of care, type of service provided source, and ultimate disposition.	o the numl	ber of children		
48 49 50	3. The Office of Children's Services shall report by Decen information included in this paragraph to the Chairmen of the H Senate Finance Committees. beginning September 1, 2011 and a	louse App	ropriations and		
51 52 53 54	L. Out of this appropriation, the Director, Office of Children's \$2,200,000 the first year and \$2,200,000 the second year fullocalities for wrap-around services for students with disab Children's Services Act policy manual.	rom the g	eneral fund to		

ITEM 282.		Iter First Yea FY2019		Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	M. Out of this appropriation, up to \$250,000 the first yet made available for the Office of Children's Services to cont paid by localities to special education private day pro Department of Education. The study shall include an ex- current rates for private educational services for children settings, and include recommendations for implement educational services reimbursed through the Children's Ser- the impact on local school districts, local governments, a services providers. The Office of Children's Services sha study's findings to the Governor and the Chairmen of Appropriations Committees by December 1, 2018, recommendations, by July 1, 2019.	tract for a study ograms license amination of the n placed outside ting a rate-set vices Act. The second public and p Il provide an in f the Senate F	on the current rates d by the Virginia he adequacy of the le of public school ting structure for study shall consider private educational terim report on the inance and House		
13 14 15 16 17 18 19	N. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the rates private day special education services under the Children more than two percent above the rates paid in the prior fis effect July 1, 2019, such that the rates paid in fiscal year two percent over the rates paid in fiscal year 2019. All loca rates for private day education services to the Office of C each year.	n's Services Act scal year. This p 2020 shall not alities shall sub	t shall not increase provision shall take increase more than mit their contracted		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33	O. The Office of Children's Services shall coordinate with facilitate a workgroup to include private providers, inclu Independent Specialized Education Facilities, the Virginia Virginia Association of Independent Schools, the Virgi Associations, and the Virginia Association of Commun divisions, stakeholder groups, and parent representative measures to assess students' progress in private day placer scores, attendance, graduation rates, transition statistics, schools. The agencies shall ensure that the number of representatives of private providers, parents, local govern each considered their own group) are proportionally rep Office of Children's Services and Department of Education the Chairmen of the House Education and Appropriat Education and Health and Finance Committees by No	uding the Virgi Council for Pri nia Coalition o ity Services Bo so to identify an ments that may , and return to f members from ments, and oth presented on the n shall report re- ions Committe	nia Association of vate Education, the of Private Provider bards, local school ad define outcome include assessment the students' home m each group (i.e er stakeholders are le workgroup. The ecommendations to es and the Senate		
34 283. 35 36	Administrative and Support Services (49900) General Management and Direction (49901)	\$1,933,058	\$1,933,058	\$1,933,058	\$1,933,058 \$1,945,790
37 38 39	Fund Sources: General	\$1,933,058	\$1,945,790 \$1,933,058 \$1,945,790		
40 41	Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 26, Code of Virginia. The Office of Children's Services may enter into a memo	randum of unde	erstanding with the		
42 43 44	Department of Social Services for the provision of routin Total for Children's Services Act	e administrative	e support services.	\$351,184,662 \$345,284,662	\$361,101,047 \$355,213,779
45 46	General Fund Positions Position Level	14.00 14.00	14.00 14.00		, , - , - , - ,
47 48 49		\$ 298,576,916 \$292,676,916 \$52,607,746	\$308,493,301 \$ <i>302,606,033</i> \$52,607,746		
50 51 52	Grand Total for Secretary of Health and Human Resources			\$352,015,405 \$346,115,405	\$361,931,790 \$356,044,522
53 54	General Fund Positions Position Level	19.00 19.00	19.00 19.00		

			Iten	n Details(\$)	Appropri	ations(\$)
]	ITEM 283	3.	First Year FY2019		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: General	\$299,407,659 \$293,507,659	\$309,324,044 \$303,436,776		
3		Federal Trust	\$52,607,746	\$52,607,746		
4		§ 1-92. DEPARTMENT FOR THE D	EAF AND HARD	OF-HEARING (7	51)	
5 6	284.	Social Services Research, Planning, and Coordination (45000)			\$4,265,778	\$4,265,778
7 8		Technology Services for Deaf and Hard-of- Hearing (45004)	\$3,148,260	\$3,148,260		
9 10		Consumer, Interpreter, and Community Support Services (45005)	\$723,899	\$723,899		
11		Administrative Services (45006)	\$393,619	\$393,619		
12		Fund Sources: General	\$998,570	\$998,570		
13		Special	\$3,167,208	\$3,167,208		
14		Federal Trust	\$100,000	\$100,000		
15		Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 13, Code of Virginia.				
16 17 18 19 20 21 22		A. Up to \$38,798 the first year and up to \$38,798 the provided to the Department of Deaf and Hard-of-He Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (administrative services. The scope of the services and memorandum of understanding (MOU) between approval of the respective agency heads. Any revision DARS to the Director, Department of Planning and	earing (DDHH) to DARS) for the pro- l specific costs sha DDHH and DAR on to the MOU sha	contract with the ovision of shared Il be outlined in a S subject to the all be reported by		
23 24 25		B. Out of this appropriation, an amount estimate \$2,648,800 the second year from special funds shall b telecommunications relay service as defined in \$51.5-	e used to cover the	cost of providing		
26 27 28 29 30		C.1. Notwithstanding § 58.1-662 of the Code of V monies from the Communications Sales and Use Ta towns, there shall be distributed monies in the fund to Program. This requirement shall not change any other the Communications Sales and Use Tax Trust Fund.	x Trust Fund to co pay for the Techr	ounties, cities and ology Assistance		
31 32		2. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year special funds shall be used for the Technology Assisted for		second year from		
33 34 35 36		D. Out of this appropriation, \$40,000 the first year ar general fund shall be used to contract with the Conr Planning District 1 for the provision of outreach and t of-hearing individuals.	nie Reasor Deaf Re	esource Center in		
37 38		Total for Department for the Deaf and Hard-Of- Hearing			\$4,265,778	\$4,265,778
39 40 41		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	8.37 2.63 11.00	8.37 2.63 11.00		
42		Fund Sources: General	\$998,570	\$998,570		
43		Special	\$3,167,208	\$3,167,208		
44		Federal Trust	\$100,000	\$100,000		
45		§ 1-93. DEPARTME	NT OF HEALTH	(601)		
46	285.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance				.
47 48		(10800) Scholarships (10810)	\$774,000	\$774,000	\$774,000	\$774,000
49 50		Fund Sources: General Dedicated Special Revenue	\$300,000 \$85,000	\$300,000 \$85,000		

		Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 285.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Federal Trust	\$389,000	\$389,000		

\$44.851,484

\$44,851,484

Authority: §§ 23.1-614 and 32.1-122.5:1 through 32.1-122.10, Code of Virginia.

2

5

6

7

39

40

41

42

3 A. This appropriation shall only be used for the provision of loans or scholarships in 4 accordance with regulations promulgated by the Board of Health, or for the administration, management, and reporting thereof. The department may move appropriation between scholarship or loan repayment programs as long as the scholarship or loan repayment is in accordance with the regulations promulgated by the Board of Health.

8 B. The Virginia Department of Health shall collaborate with the Virginia Health Care 9 Foundation and the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, the state 10 teaching hospitals, and other relevant stakeholders on a plan to increase the number of 11 Virginia behavioral health practitioners, including licensed clinical psychologists, licensed 12 clinical social workers, licensed professional counselors, child and adolescent psychiatrists, 13 and psychiatric nurse practitioners, practicing in Virginia's community services boards, behavioral health authorities, state mental health facilities, free clinics, federally qualified 14 15 health centers and other similar health safety net organizations through the use of a student 16 loan repayment program. The program design shall address the need for behavioral health 17 professionals in behavioral health shortage areas; the types of behavioral health practitioners 18 needed across communities; the results of community health needs assessments that have 19 been completed by hospitals, localities or other organizations; and shortages that may exist in 20 high cost of living areas, which may preclude individuals from choosing employment in 21 public and non-profit community behavioral health and safety net organizations and state 22 mental health facilities. The program design shall include a preference for applicants who 23 choose employment in underserved areas of the Commonwealth and contain conditions for 24 recipients to practice in these areas for at least two years. The program shall be implemented 25 by the Virginia Department of Health. The plan shall identify opportunities to leverage state 26 funding for the program with funds from other sources in order to maximize the total funding 27 for such a program. The plan shall determine how the program can complement and 28 coordinate with existing efforts to recruit and retain Virginia behavioral health practitioners.

29 30 31 32 33	286.	Emergency Medical Services (40200) Financial Assistance for Non Profit Emergency Medical Services Organizations and Localities (40203) State Office of Emergency Medical Services (40204).	\$33,291,700 \$11,559,784	\$33,291,700 \$11,559,784	
34		Fund Sources: Special	\$18,559,266	\$18,559,266	
35		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$25,886,329	\$25,886,329	
36		Federal Trust	\$405,889	\$405,889	

37 Authority: §§ 32.1-111.1 through 32.1-111.16, 32.1-116.1 through 32.1-116.3, and 46.2-694 38 A 13, Code of Virginia.

A. Out of this appropriation, \$25,000 the first year and \$25,000 the second year from special funds shall be provided to the Department of State Police for administration of criminal history record information for local volunteer fire and rescue squad personnel (pursuant to § 19.2-389 A 11, Code of Virginia).

43 B. Distributions made under § 46.2-694 A 13 b (iii), Code of Virginia, shall be made only to 44 nonprofit emergency medical services organizations.

C. Out of this appropriation, \$1,045,375 the first year and \$1,045,375 the second year from 45 46 the Virginia Rescue Squad Assistance Fund and \$2,052,723 the first year and \$2,052,723 the 47 second year from the special emergency medical services fund shall be provided to the 48 Department of State Police for aviation (med-flight) operations.

49 D. The State Health Commissioner shall review current funding provided to trauma centers to 50 offset uncompensated care losses, report on feasible long-term financing mechanisms, and 51 examine and identify potential funding sources on the federal, state and local level that may 52 be available to Virginia's trauma centers to support the system's capacity to provide quality 53 trauma services to Virginia citizens. As sources are identified, the commissioner shall work 54 with any federal and state agencies and the Trauma System Oversight and Management

	ITEM 286		Iten First Year	n Details(\$) Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
	111200	•	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1		Committee to assist in securing additional funding for the	ne trauma system.			
2 3 4 5 6		E. Notwithstanding any other provision of law or regula modify the geographic or designated service areas o medical services councils in effect on January 1, 200 criterion in approving or renewing applications for s disbursing state funds.	f designated reg)8, or make such	ional emergency modifications a		
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		F. Notwithstanding any other provision of law or regul \$4.25 for Life fee shall be provided for the payment of medical services certification examination provid Emergency Medical Technicians (NREMT). The Bo allocation methodology upon recommendation by th ensure that funds are available for the payment of initial those individuals seeking certification as an Emergency Commonwealth of Virginia.	f the initial basic ed by the Natio ard of Health sh he State EMS Ao NREMT testing	level emergency onal Registry of all determine an dvisory Board to and distributed to		
15 16 17 18 19		G. Out of this appropriation, \$90,000 the first year and Virginia Rescue Squad Assistance Fund shall be provid on persons applying to serve as a licensed provider services agency. The Office of Emergency Medical Se Office of State Police for national background checks	ed for national bain a licensed em rvices may trans	ackground checks ergency medical		
20 21 22	287.	Medical Examiner and Anatomical Services (40300)			\$14,095,497	\$14,095,497 \$14,351,745
23 24 25		Anatomical Services (40301) Medical Examiner Services (40302)	\$569,238 \$13,526,259	\$569,238 \$13,526,259 \$13,782,507		<i>\$1,001,770</i>
26 27 28		Fund Sources: General	\$12,522,448 \$717,268	\$12,522,448 \$ <i>12,778,696</i> \$717,268		
29 20		Federal Trust	\$855,781	\$855,781		
30		Authority: §§ 32.1-277 through 32.1-304, Code of Virgi	nia.			
31 32	288.	Vital Records and Health Statistics (40400) Health Statistics (40401)	\$1,073,143	\$1,073,143	\$8,010,137	\$8,010,137
33		Vital Records (40402)	\$6,936,994	\$6,936,994		
34 35		Fund Sources: Special Federal Trust	\$7,384,058 \$626,079	\$7,384,058 \$626,079		
36 37		Authority: §§ 8.01-217, 32.1-249 through 32.1-276, Coamended, Federal Code.	de of Virginia; ar	nd P.L. 93-353, as		
38 39		A. Effective July 1, 2004, the standard vital records fee expedited record search shall be \$48.00.	shall be \$12.00 a	and the fee for the		
40 41 42 43 44 45 46		B. Notwithstanding § 32.1-273.D, Code of Virginia, the of birth, marriage, or divorce records in state admit distributed between the districts that issue the records a The revenues will be split with 65 percent remaining in that district and 35 percent to be transferred to the Div ongoing infrastructure costs associated with the collect Commonwealth's vital records.	nistered health and the Division the district to su vision of Vital R	districts shall be of Vital Records. pport the costs of ecords to support		
47 48 49 50 51 52		C. The state teaching hospitals shall work with the Dep Vital Records to fully implement use of the Electronic I for all deaths occurring within any Virginia state te implementation shall occur and be reported, by the I Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finan in alignment with the Division of Vital Records plan to	Death Registration eaching hospital Division of Vita nce Committees l	n System (EDRS) 's facilities. Full l Records, to the by April 15, 2018,		

				Details(\$)		iations(\$)
Ι	TEM 289.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	289.	Communicable Disease Prevention and Control (40500)			\$92,038,115	\$91,799,909 \$93,768,863
4		Immunization Program (40502)	\$6,764,610	\$6,626,404		
5		Tuberculosis Prevention and Control (40503)	\$2,116,814	\$2,116,814		
6 7		Sexually Transmitted Disease Prevention and Control (40504)	\$3,199,002	\$3,199,002		
8 9		Disease Investigation and Control Services (40505)	\$3,592,408	\$3,492,408 \$5,039,325		
10 11		HIV/AIDS Prevention and Treatment Services (40506)	\$75,195,735	\$75,195,735		
12 13		Pharmacy Services (40507)	\$1,169,546	\$1,169,546 \$1,591,583		
14 15		Fund Sources: General	\$9,804,664	\$9,704,664 \$11,251,581		
16 17		Special	\$805,116	\$805,116 \$1,329,034		
18 19		Federal Trust	\$81,428,335	\$81,290,129 \$81,188,248		
20 21		Authority: §§ 32.1-11.1, 32.1-11.2, and 32.1-35 through 91-464, as amended, Federal Code.	n 32.1-73, Code of V	/irginia; and P.L.		
22 23		A. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year an general fund shall be used to purchase medications for it				

A. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to purchase medications for individuals who have tuberculosis but who do not qualify for free or reduced prescription drugs and who do not have adequate income or insurance coverage to purchase the required prescription drugs.

24

25

26

27

28

29

36

37

38

39

40

41

B. Out of this appropriation, \$40,000 the first year and \$40,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to the Division of Tuberculosis Control for the purchase of medications and supplies for individuals who have drug-resistant tuberculosis and require treatment with expensive, second-line antimicrobial agents.

C. The requirement for testing of tuberculosis isolates set out in § 32.1-50 E, Code of
Virginia, shall be satisfied by the submission of samples to the Division of Consolidated
Laboratory Services, or such other laboratory as may be designated by the Board of Health.

D. Out of this appropriation, \$840,288 the first year and \$840,288 the second year from
 nongeneral funds shall be used to purchase the Tdap (tetanus/diptheria/pertussis) vaccine for
 children without insurance.

E. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 the first year and \$200,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to the State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program (SPAP) for insurance premium payments, coinsurance payments, and other out-of-pocket costs for individuals participating in the Virginia AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP) with incomes between 135 percent and 300 percent of the federal poverty income guidelines and who are Medicare Part D beneficiaries.

42 F. The State Health Commissioner shall monitor patients who have been removed or diverted 43 from the Virginia AIDS Drug Assistance Program due to budget considerations. At a 44 minimum the Commissioner shall monitor patients to determine if they have been 45 successfully enrolled in a private Pharmacy Assistance Program or other program to receive 46 appropriate anti-retroviral medications. The commissioner shall also monitor the program to 47 assess whether a waiting list has developed for services provided through the ADAP program. The commissioner shall report findings to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and 48 49 Senate Finance Committees annually on October 1.

G. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year from the general fund shall be used for the
Virginia Department of Health (VDH) to design and conduct a pilot epidemiological study of
the human health effects of land application of biosolids. In designing and conducting the
pilot study, VDH shall contract with third parties, such as researchers at Virginia institutions
of higher education, as needed. VDH shall be assisted by the Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality as needed. Following completion of the pilot study, VDH shall submit
its findings and a proposed design for a full-scale epidemiological study, if needed, to the

]	ITEM 289		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		Senate Finance, and Agriculture, Conservation, and M the House Appropriations, and Agriculture, Che Committees.				
4 5 6 7		H. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year fro the Virginia Department of Health (VDH) to perform that are land applied in Virginia to determine their pa results to inform its epidemiological pilot study and a	sample testing of thogen content. V	Class B biosolids DH shall use test		
8 9 10 11		I. Out of this appropriation, \$1,461,742 the second y used to purchase Meningococcal Conjugate (M Papillomavirus (HPV) vaccines for children and adou health departments.	CV4), Hepatitis	A, and Human		
12 13 14	290.	Health Research, Planning, and Coordination (40600)			\$18,190,949 \$18,359,931	\$18,190,949 \$19,558,631
15 16 17		Health Research, Planning and Coordination (40603)	\$3,178,975	\$3,178,975 \$4,378,975		
18 19 20		Regulation of Health Care Facilities (40607) Certificate of Public Need (40608)	\$13,697,376 \$1,314,598 \$1,483,580	\$13,697,376 \$1,314,598 <i>\$1,482,280</i>		
21 22		Fund Sources: General	\$3,579,610 \$3,748,592	\$3,579,610 \$4,779,610		
23 24 25		Special Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,782,987 \$451,798	\$2,782,987 \$2,950,669 \$451,798		
25 26		Federal Trust	\$11,376,554	\$11,376,554		
27 28 29		Authority: §§ 32.1-102.1 through 32.1-102.11; 32.1 32.1-123 through 32.1-138.5, Code of Virginia; and Code; and Title XVIII and Title XIX of the U.S. So	d P.L. 96-79, as a	mended, Federal		
30 31		A. Supplemental funding for the regional health plann the following sources:	ing agencies shall	be provided from		
32 33 34 35		1. Special funds from Certificate of Public Need (40 those required to operate the COPN Program, provid fund balances each year equal to of one month's op shortfalls in the subsequent year.	led the program m	nay retain special		
36 37 38		2. The Department of Health shall revise annual ag planning agencies to require an annual independent fi state funds and the reasonableness of those expenditu	inancial audit to ex			
39 40 41		B. Failure of any regional health planning agence operations shall cause funds to revert to the Central O Certificate of Public Need functions.				
42 43 44 45 46 47 48		C. The State Health Commissioner shall continue Action Plan: Improving Access to Primary Hea Underserved Areas and Populations of the Commonw first year and \$150,000 the second year from the ge Virginia Office of Rural Health, as the state match fo Policy Grant. The commissioner is authorized to con plan.	alth Care Service ealth." A minimun neral fund shall be r the federal Office	es in Medically n of \$150,000 the e provided to the e of Rural Health		
49 50 51 52 53		D. Out of the this appropriation, \$278,000 the first ye appropriated to the department from statewide indire funds and support the programs of the Office of Lic recovered in excess of the special fund appropriatio fund.	ect cost recoveries ensure and Certifi	to match federal ication. Amounts		
54		E. The Virginia Department of Health (VDH) in col	llaboration with th	ne Department of		

		30)2			
	ITEM 290.		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		Health Professions shall issue risk mitigation guideline potent pain medicines known as extended-release and lo to include co-prescription of an opioid antagonist, ap Administration (FDA), for administration by family medically supervised environment.	ng-acting (ER/LA) proved by the U.S	opioid analgesics . Food and Drug		
6 7	291.	State Health Services (43000)			\$163,419,548 \$162,466,548	\$163,419,548 \$167,286,862
7 8 9 10		Child and Adolescent Health Services (43002) Women's and Infant's Health Services (43005)	\$11,407,376 \$9,189,910 <i>\$9,236,910</i>	\$11,407,376 \$9,189,910 \$ <i>10,157,225</i>	\$163,466,548	\$167,386,863
11 12 13 14		Chronic Disease Prevention, Health Promotion, and Oral Heath (43015) Injury and Violence Prevention (43016) Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) and	\$10,959,837 \$4,024,200	\$10,959,837 \$4,024,200		
15 16		Community Nutrition Services (43017)	\$127,838,225	\$127,838,225 \$130,838,225		
17 18		Fund Sources: General	\$4,410,670 \$4,457,670	\$4,410,670 \$5, <i>377,9</i> 85		
19		Special	\$3,017,967	\$3,017,967		
20 21 22		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$64,967,057 \$91,023,854	\$64,967,057 \$91,023,854 \$94,023,854		
23 24 25		Authority: §§ 32.1-11, 32.1-77, 32.1-89, and 32.1-90 amended, Title V of the U.S. Social Security Act and Service Act, Federal Code; and P.L. 95-627, as amer	d Title X of the U.	S. Public Health		
26 27 28 29 30		A. Out of this appropriation, \$999,804 the first year a special funds is provided to support the newborn scapursuant to Chapters 717 and 721, Act of Assembly of Assembly. Fee revenues sufficient to fund the Departm and its expansion shall be transferred from the Division	reening program a 2005, and Chapter : aent of Health's cos	nd its expansion 531, 2018 Acts of ts of the program		
31 32		B. The Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Wo from the requirements of the Administrative Process Ac				
33 34 35 36 37		C. Out of this appropriation, \$305,000 the first year and general fund shall be provided to the department's si pediatric caseloads in the current program. Any remai transition services for youth who will require adult set services are available and provided for youth who age	ckle cell program ning funds shall be vices to ensure app	to address rising e used to develop propriate medical		
38 39		D. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the S providing services through child development clinics an				
40 41 42		E. Out of this appropriation, \$1,000,000 the first year a the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Department of Health for the operation of the Resource	block grant shall b	e provided to the		
43 44 45 46 47 48 49		F. Out of this appropriation, \$124,470 the first year and general fund and \$82,980 the first year and \$82,980 the shall be provided for the Virginia Department of Health to Quality Collaborative. The Perinatal Quality Collaborat outcomes for women and newborns by advancing ev processes through continuous quality improvement with with substance use disorder and infants impacted by new	e second year from o establish and adm ive shall work to in idence-based clini a an initial focus on	nongeneral funds ninister a Perinatal nprove pregnancy cal practices and pregnant women		
50 51 52 53 54 55		G. Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, the I Budget, is authorized to move the associated appro- supporting the federal Summer Food Service Program Meals Program component of the Child and Adult Ca Department of Health to the Department of Education. with a memorandum-of-understanding agreed to by the	opriation and auth and the federal At- re Food Program f Such transfer shall	orized positions Risk Afterschool from the Virginia be in accordance		

			Itom	Details(\$)	Annuon	iations(\$)
1	TEM 291		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		the Department of Education setting forth the for transferred associated with the Summer Food Serv Programs. Such transfer shall be coordinated with Agriculture to ensure a seamless transition.	ice and At-Risk Af	terschool Meals		
5 6	292.	Community Health Services (44000)			\$267,476,216	\$267,614,422 \$268,240,726
7 8 9 10		Local Dental Services (44002) Restaurant and Food Safety, Well and Septic Permitting and Other Environmental Health Services (44004)	\$3,851,248 \$39,436,804	\$3,851,248 \$39,436,804		+
11		Local Family Planning Services (44005)	\$30,411,901	\$30,411,901		
12 13		Support for Local Management, Business, and Facilities (44009)	\$69,742,537	\$69,742,537		
14 15 16		Local Maternal and Child Health Services (44010)	\$37,952,642	\$70,197,775 \$37,952,642 \$37,500,149		
17		Local Immunization Services (44013)	\$17,986,689	\$18,124,895		
18 19 20		Local Communicable Disease Investigation, Treatment, and Control (44014)	\$22,713,419	\$22,713,419		
20 21 22		Local Personal Care Services (44015)	\$4,400,334	\$22,541,978 \$4,400,334 \$5,195,334		
23		Local Chronic Disease and Prevention Control				
24 25		(44016) Local Nutrition Services (44018)	\$11,871,775 \$29,108,867	\$11,871,775 \$29,108,867		
26 27 28		Fund Sources: General	\$104,694,748	\$104,694,748 \$104,705,700		
28 29		Special	\$111,195,079	\$111,333,285 \$111,530,815		
30 31		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$3,568,592 \$48,017,797	\$3,568,592 \$48,017,797		
32				\$48,435,619		
33 34 35		Authority: §§ 32.1-11 through 32.1-12, 32.1-31, 32 through 32.1-211, 32.1-246, and 35.1-1 through 35.1 U.S. Social Security Act; and Title X of the U.S. Put	-26, Code of Virgini	ia; Title V of the		
36 37 38 39 40		A.1. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176 Commissioner shall charge a fee of no more than \$4 on-site sewage systems designed for less than 1,0 discharging systems not supported with certified wo professional engineer working in consultation with a	425.00, for a constru 00 gallons per day, rk from an onsite so	action permit for and alternative oil evaluator or a		
41 42 43 44		2. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Commissioner shall charge a fee of no more than \$3 less than 1,000 gallons per day not supported with evaluator or a professional engineer working in const	350.00, for the certif	ication letter for m an onsite soil		
45 46 47 48		3. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Commissioner shall charge a fee of no more than \$22 onsite sewage system designed for less than 1,000 ga supported with certified work from a licensed onsite	5.00, for a construct llons per day when t	ion permit for an		
49 50 51 52		4. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Commissioner shall charge a fee of no more than \$3 less than 1,000 gallons per day supported with certific or a professional engineer working in consultation wi	320.00, for the certif ed work from an ons	ication letter for ite soil evaluator		
53 54 55		5. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Commissioner shall charge a fee of no more than \$30 private well.	-			
56		6. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176,	Code of Virginia,	the State Health		

ITEM 292		Item Det First Year FY2019	ails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Commissioner shall charge a fee of no more than \$1,400.00, certification letter designed for more than 1,000 gallons per c	for a constructi			
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	7. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Code of V 2019, the State Health Commissioner shall charge a fee of \$425 onsite sewage system or an alternative discharging system d gallons per day not supported with certified work from an professional engineer working in consultation with an onsite so waived for persons with income below 200 percent of the fe established by the United States Department of Health and application is for a pit privy or for a repair of a failing onsit sewage system.	5.00, for a permi esigned for les onsite soil ev el evaluator. Thi ederal poverty g Human Servic	t to repair an s than 1,000 aluator or a s fee shall be guidelines as es when the		
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	8. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Code of V 2019, the State Health Commissioner shall charge a fee of \$225 voluntarily upgrade an onsite sewage system or alternative disc less than 1,000 gallons per day supported with certified work from a professional engineer. This fee shall be waived for persons will of the federal poverty guidelines as established by the United Stat Human Services when the application is for a pit privy or for a alternative discharging sewage system.	5.00, for a permi bharging system om an onsite soil th income below tes Department of	it to repair or designed for evaluator or 200 percent of Health and		
20 21 22 23	9. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Code of V 2019, the State Health Commissioner shall charge a fee of S authorizations pursuant to § 32.1-165 not supported with cert professional.	\$150.00, to pro	vide written		
24 25 26 27	10. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Code of S 2019, the State Health Commissioner shall charge a fee of S authorizations pursuant to § 32.1-165 supported with certifiprofessional.	\$100.00, to pro	vide written		
28 29 30	11. Notwithstanding § 32.1-163 through § 32.1-176, Code of V 2019, the State Health Commissioner shall charge a fee of \$1,40 voluntarily upgrade an onsite sewage system designed for more	0.00, for a perm	it to repair or		
31 32 33	12. The State Health Commissioner shall appoint two man Committee on Sewage Handling and Disposal, representing of Association of Onsite Soil Engineers.				
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	B.1. The State Health Commissioner is authorized to develor regulated entities, a hotel, campground, and summer camp plan not to exceed \$40.00, a restaurant plan and specification review annual hotel, campground, and summer camp permit renewal fe an annual restaurant permit renewal fee, not to exceed \$40. establishments, except K-12 public schools, that are subject to i of Health pursuant to §§ 35.1-13, 35.1-14, 35.1-16, and 35.1-17 any such establishment that is subject to any health permit fee, a risk assessment fee or similar fee imposed by any locality as subject to this annual permit renewal fee only to the extent that and the locally imposed fee, when combined, do not exceed to paragraph. This fee structure shall be subject to the approval of Human Resources.	and specificatio fee, not to exceed on to be collect nspection by the , Code of Virgir pplication fee, in of January 1, 20 the Department the fee amount	n review fee, ed \$40.00, an l \$40.00, and ted from all e Department tia. However, nspection fee, 202, shall be of Health fee listed in this		
47 48 49	2. The Department of Health shall examine the cost recovery f determine if the services are adequately supported and report to Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 2	the Chairmen			
50 51 52 53 54 55	3. The Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Department of Health shall collaborate to develop a long-term food safety and restaurant inspection programs. In developing the seek input from representatives from local governments, private public. The objective of the plan is to develop a financial strate protect the public and the business sector without undue burden	plan to adequa le plan, the depa sector organizat gy for the progr	tely fund the rtments shall tions, and the ams that will		

ITEM 292.		Item D First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	not be limited to, these factors: (1) the likelihood of additionat this activity; (2) projected workloads, including total number inspection and by type of establishment; (3) cost containmen program management through increased reliance upon technol programs or a portion of the programs through a flexible fee number, size, and type of establishments and the time and establishments; (5) the feasibility of unifying the food sa performed by the two agencies and (6) legislation to impleme shall submit the plan no later than October 1, 2018, to the Go the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.	al general fun of establishm t and efficiend logy; (4) opti schedule tha d resources to afety inspect nt the plan. T	d resources for nents subject to cy strategies in ons to fund the t considers the o inspect such ions currently he departments		
11 12 13 14 15	C. Pursuant to the Department of Health's Policy Implemindividuals who participate in a local festival, fair, or other c is sold, shall be exempt from the annual temporary food e \$40.00 provided the event is held only one time each calend place within the locality where the individual resides.	ommunity events establishment	ent where food permit fee of		
16 17 18 19 20 21	D. The State Health Commissioner shall work with public an develop options for delivering dental services in underserved public-private partnerships in the development and staffing of hygiene and dental students to expand services and enhance havailability of reimbursement mechanisms and other public expand services.	d areas, inclue f facilities, th earning exper	ding the use of e use of dental iences, and the		
22 23 24 25	E. Out of this appropriation, \$387,744 the first year and \$38 the general fund and \$267,602 the first year and \$267, nongeneral funds is provided to address the cost of leasing department facilities.	602 the seco	ond year from		
26 27 28 29 30 31	F.1. Out of this appropriation, \$3,000,000 the first year and from the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) be for the purpose of developing a two-year pilot program to exp acting reversible contraceptives (LARC) that delay or prev Department of Health shall establish and manage memorand qualified health care providers who will provide access to	block grant sh and access to ent ovulation dums of unde b LARCs to p	all be provided hormonal long . The Virginia rstanding with		

income is below 250% of the federal poverty level, the Title X family planning program income eligibility requirement. Providers shall be reimbursed for the insertion and removal of LARCs at Medicaid rates. As part of the pilot program, the department, in cooperation with the Department of Medical Assistance Services and stakeholders, shall develop a plan to improve awareness and utilization of the Plan First program and include outreach efforts to refer women who have a diagnosis of substance use disorder and who seek family planning services to the Plan First program or participating providers in the pilot program.

32

33

34

35

36

37 38

39

40 2. The Virginia Department of Health shall develop metrics to measure the effectiveness 41 of the pilot project such as impacts on morbidity, reduction in abortions and unplanned 42 pregnancies, and impacts on maternal health such as an increase in the length of time 43 between births, among others. In addition, the department shall collect data on the number 44 of women served who also sought treatment for substance use disorder. The department 45 shall submit a progress report to the Governor, Chairmen of the House Appropriations and 46 Senate Finance Committees, Secretary of Health and Human Resources, and the Director, 47 Department of Planning and Budget, that describes the program, metrics used to measure 48 results, preliminary results. actual program expenditures, and projected expenditures by 49 July 1, 2019, with a final report on June 30, 2020.

- 50 G. Out of this appropriation, \$417,822 the second year from the Temporary Assistance for 51 Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be used to support program expenses for the 52 Healthy Families program.
- 53 H. Out of this appropriation, \$795,000 the second year from the general fund shall be 54 provided to contract with the Eastern Shore Rural Health System to support the 55 construction of the pediatric department at the Eastville Community Health Center.

Second Year

FY2020

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
]	ITEM 293		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	293.	Financial Assistance to Community Human Services Organizations (49200)			\$23,239,583 \$28,239,583	\$21,239,583
4 5		Payments to Human Services Organizations (49204)	\$23,239,583 \$28,239,583	\$21,239,583		
6 7		Fund Sources: General	\$20,839,583 \$25,839,583	\$18,839,583		
8		Federal Trust	\$2,400,000	\$2,400,000		

Authority: § 32.1-2, Code of Virginia.

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$832,946 the first year and \$832,946 the second year from the general fund and \$2,400,000 the first year and \$2,400,000 the second year from the federal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be used to contract with the Comprehensive Health Investment Project (CHIP) of Virginia. In the event that the CHIP of Virginia changes its name; the provisions of this item shall apply to the successor organization provided that the required program purposes outlined in paragraph A.2. through A.4. are still achieved.

17 2. The purpose of the program is to develop, expand, and operate a network of local public-18 private partnerships providing comprehensive care coordination, family support and preventive medical and dental services to low-income, at-risk children. 19

20 3. The general fund appropriation in this Item for the CHIP of Virginia projects shall not be 21 used for administrative costs.

22 4. CHIP of Virginia shall continue to pursue raising funds and in-kind contributions from 23 local communities. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the CHIP program increases 24 its efforts to raise funds from local communities and other private or public sources with the 25 goal of reducing reliance on general fund appropriations in the future.

26 5. Of this appropriation, from the amounts in paragraph A.1., \$24,679 the first year and 27 \$24,679 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the CHIP of 28 Roanoke and shall be used as matching funds to support three full-time equivalent public 29 health nurse positions to services in the Roanoke Valley and Allegheny Highlands.

30 B. Out of this appropriation \$53,241 the first year and \$53,241 the second year from the 31 general fund shall be used to contract with the Alexandria Neighborhood Health Services, Inc. 32 to promote the health of women in Alexandria, Arlington, Fairfax County, and Falls Church, 33 to prevent illness and injury and provide early treatment for serious health conditions. The 34 contract with Alexandria Neighborhood Health Services Inc. (ANHSI) shall require that 35 ANHSI provide comprehensive women's health care with a focus on preventative health 36 services and screenings to low income, uninsured women. Women's health care services shall 37 focus on preventative screenings. Blood pressure screening and body mass index shall be 38 performed at each visit. The organization shall pursue raising funds and in-kind contributions 39 from the local community.

40 C. Out of this appropriation \$5,982 the first year and \$5,982 the second year from the general 41 fund shall be used to contract with the Louisa County Resource Council to promote, develop, 42 and encourage activities to deliver community-based services to disadvantaged Louisa County 43 residents. The contract with Louisa County Resource Council shall require that the council 44 provide assistance to income-eligible residents in meeting various needs of the clients 45 including medication assistance, outreach assistance, and medical care referrals by exploring 46 affordable options. The council shall continue to pursue raising funds and in-kind 47 contributions from the local community.

48 D. Out of this appropriation, \$7,837 the first year and \$7,837 the second year from the general 49 fund shall be used to contract with the Olde Towne Medical Center. The contract with Olde 50 Towne Medical Center shall require that the center provide cost effective, comprehensive 51 primary and preventive health care (including obstetrical care) and oral health care to the 52 uninsured, Medicaid, and Medicare residents in the City of Williamsburg, James City County, 53 and York County. The population served shall include adults and children.

54 E.1. Out of this appropriation, \$433,750 the first year and \$433,750 the second year from the

ITEM 293.

1

2

3

4

5

6 7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Community Healthcare Association (VCHA). The contract with VCHA shall require that the association purchase pharmaceuticals and medically necessary pharmacy supplies, and to provide pharmacy services to low-income, uninsured patients of the Community and Migrant Health Centers throughout Virginia. The uninsured patients served with these funds shall have family incomes no greater than 200 percent of the federal poverty level. The amount allocated to each Community and Migrant Health Center shall be determined through an allocation methodology developed by the Virginia Community Healthcare Association. The allocation methodology shall ensure that funds are distributed such that the Community and Migrant Health Centers are able to serve the pharmacy needs of the greatest number of low-income, uninsured persons. The Virginia Community Healthcare Association shall establish accounting and reporting mechanisms to track the disbursement and expenditure of these funds.

- 2. Out of this appropriation, \$175,000 the first year and \$175,000 the second year from the
 general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Community Healthcare
 Association. The contract with VCHA shall require that the association expand access to
 care provided through community health centers.
- 3. Out of this appropriation, \$2,800,000 the first year and \$2,800,000 the second year from 18 19 the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Community Healthcare 20 Association. The contract with VCHA shall require that the association support community health center operating costs for services provided to uninsured clients. The 21 22 amount allocated to each Community and Migrant Health Center shall be determined 23 through an allocation methodology developed by the Virginia Community Healthcare 24 Association. The allocation methodology shall ensure that funds are distributed such that 25 the Community and Migrant Health Centers are able to serve the needs of the greatest 26 number of uninsured persons. The Virginia Community Healthcare Association shall 27 establish accounting and reporting mechanisms to track the disbursement and expenditure 28 of these funds.
- 29 F.1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,321,400 the first year and \$1,321,400 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Association of Free and 30 31 Charitable Clinics (VAFCC). The contract with VAFCC shall require that the organization 32 purchase pharmaceuticals and medically necessary pharmacy supplies, and to provide pharmacy services to low-income, uninsured patients of the Free Clinics throughout 33 34 Virginia. The amount allocated to each Free Clinic shall be determined through an 35 allocation methodology developed by the Virginia Association of Free and Charitable 36 Clinics. The allocation methodology shall ensure that funds are distributed such that the 37 Free Clinics are able to serve the pharmacy needs of the greatest number of low-income, 38 uninsured adults. The Virginia Association of Free and Charitable Clinics shall establish 39 accounting and reporting mechanisms to track the disbursement and expenditure of these 40 funds.
- 2. Out of this appropriation, \$175,000 the first year and \$175,000 the second year from the
 general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Association of Free and Charitable
 Clinics (VAFCC). The contract with VAFCC shall require the organization to expand
 access to health care services.
- 45 3. Out of this appropriation, \$5,300,000 the first year and \$5,300,000 the second year from 46 the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Association of Free and 47 Charitable Clinics (VAFCC). The contract with VAFCC shall require that the organization 48 support free clinic operating costs for services provided to uninsured clients. The amount 49 allocated to each free clinic shall be determined through an allocation methodology 50 developed by the Virginia Association of Free and Charitable Clinics. The allocation 51 methodology shall ensure that funds are distributed such that the free clinics are able to 52 serve the needs of the greatest number of uninsured persons. The Virginia Association of 53 Free and Charitable Clinics shall establish accounting and reporting mechanisms to track 54 the disbursement and expenditure of these funds.
- G. Out of this appropriation, \$29,303 the first year and \$29,303 the second year from the
 general fund shall be used to contract with HealthWorks of Herndon. The contract with
 HealthWorks of Herndon (HWH) shall require that HWH provide treatment and

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

prevention services, including health care services and mental health counseling, to low
 income and uninsured adults and children residing in the communities of Herndon, Reston,
 Chantilly, and Centreville in Fairfax County. These services shall include comprehensive
 primary health care with integrated behavioral health care to adult and children, prescription
 medications, diagnostic and lab testing, specialty referrals, and preventive screenings.
 Children's services shall include school physicals and sports physicals. Patients will also have
 access to oral health care through HealthWorks Dental Program.

ITEM 293.

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34 35

36

37

38

39

8 H. Out of this appropriation, \$164,758 the first year and \$164,758 the second year from the
9 general fund shall be used to contract with the Southwest Virginia Graduate Medical
10 Education Consortium. The contract with Southwest Virginia Graduate Medical Education
11 (GMEC) shall require GMEC to create and support medical residency preceptor sites in rural
12 and underserved communities in Southwest Virginia.

I. Out of this appropriation, \$355,555 the first year and \$355,555 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the regional AIDS resource and consultation centers and one local early intervention and treatment center.

J. Out of this appropriation, \$57,963 the first year and \$57,963 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the Arthur Ashe Health Center in Richmond. The contract with the Arthur Ashe Health Center shall require that the center provide HIV early intervention and treatment for HIV infected patients who reside within the City of Richmond.

K. Out of this appropriation, \$10,663 the first year and \$10,663 the second year from the
 general fund shall be used to contract with the Health Brigade for AIDS related services. The
 contract with the Health Brigade shall require that the clinic provide financial assistance and
 support groups and conduct an education and outreach program for HIV positive clients in
 Central Virginia.

L.1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,580,571 the first year and \$4,580,571 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Health Care Foundation. The contract with the Virginia Health Care Foundation (VHCF) shall require that the general fund shall be matched with local public and private resources and shall be awarded to proposals which enhance access to primary health care for Virginia's uninsured and medically underserved residents, through innovative service delivery models. The foundation, in coordination with the Virginia Department of Health, the Area Health Education Centers program, the Joint Commission on Health Care, and other appropriate organizations, is encouraged to undertake initiatives to reduce health care workforce shortages. The foundation shall account for the expenditure of these funds by providing the Governor, the Secretary of Health and Human Resources, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, the State Health Commissioner, and the Chairman of the Joint Commission on Health Care with a certified audit and full report on the foundation's initiatives and results, including evaluation findings, not later than October 1 of each year for the preceding fiscal year ending June 30.

2. The contract with the Virginia Health Care Foundation shall require that on or before
October 1 of each year, the foundation shall submit to the Governor and the Chairmen of the
House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees a report on the actual amount, by
fiscal year, of private and local government funds received by the foundation since its
inception. The report shall include certification that an amount equal to the state appropriation
for the preceding fiscal year ending June 30 has been matched from private and local
government sources during that fiscal year.

47 3. Of this appropriation, from the amounts in paragraph L.1., \$125,000 the first year and
48 \$125,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia
49 Health Care Foundation (VHCF). The contract with VHCF shall require that the general fund
50 shall be provided to the foundation to expand the Pharmacy Connection software program to
51 unserved or underserved regions of the Commonwealth.

4. Of this appropriation, from the amounts in paragraph L.1., \$105,000 the first year and
\$105,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia
Health Care Foundation (VHCF). The contract with VHCF shall require that the general fund
shall be used to contract with the foundation for the Rx Partnership to improve access to free
medications for low-income Virginians.

	Item I	Item Details(\$)		
ITEM 293.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 5. Of this appropriation, from the amounts in paragraph L.1., \$2,350,000 the first year and 2 \$2,350,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the 3 Virginia Health Care Foundation (VHCF). The contract with VHCF shall require that the 4 general fund be provided to the foundation to increase the capacity of the 5 Commonwealth's health safety net providers to expand services to unserved or 6 underserved Virginians. Of this amount, (i) \$850,000 the first year and \$850,000 the 7 second year shall be used to underwrite service expansions and/or increase the number of 8 patients served at existing sites or at new sites, (ii) \$1,350,000 the first year and 9 \$1,350,000 the second year shall be used for Medication Assistance Coordinators who 10 provide outreach assistance, and (iii) \$150,000 the first year and \$150,000 the second year 11 shall be made available for locations with existing medication assistance programs.

- M.1. Out of this appropriation, \$272,313 the first year and \$272,313 the second year from
 the general fund shall be used to support the administration of the patient level data base,
 including the outpatient data reporting system. The department shall establish a contract
 for this service.
- 16
 2. Out of this appropriation from the amounts in paragraph M.1., \$25,000 the first year
 17 and \$25,000 the second year from the general fund the second year shall be used to
 18 contract with the Virginia All Payer Claims Database.
- N. Out of this appropriation, \$402,712 the first year and \$402,712 the second year from
 the general fund shall be used to contract with the Health Wagon. The contract with the
 Health Wagon shall require the organization to provide summer outreach programs to
 low-income and uninsured individuals living in southwest Virginia.
- 23 O. Out of this appropriation, \$105,000 the first year and \$105,000 the second year from 24 the general fund shall be used to contract with the Statewide Sickle Cell Chapters of 25 Virginia (SSCCV). The contract with SSCCV shall require that the general fund shall be 26 used to provide for grants to community-based programs that provide patient assistance, 27 education, and family-centered support for individuals suffering from sickle cell disease. 28 The SSCCV shall develop criteria for distributing these funds including specific goals and 29 outcome measures. A report shall be submitted to the Chairmen of the House 30 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees detailing program outcomes by October 1 31 of each year.
- P. Out of this appropriation, \$141,280 the first year and \$141,280 the second year from the general fund shall be used to contract with the Virginia Dental Health Foundation for the Mission of Mercy (M.O.M.) dental project. The contract with the Virginia Dental Health
 Foundation for the Mission of Mercy (M.O.M.) dental project shall require the Foundation to conduct Mission of Mercy (M.O.M) Projects that provide no cost dental services in identified underserved areas.
- 38 Q. Out of this appropriation, \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year 39 from the general fund shall be used to contract with three poison control centers. The State 40 Health Commissioner shall review existing poison control services and determine how 41 best to provide and enhance use of these services as a resource for patients with mental 42 health disorders and for health care providers treating patients with poison-related suicide 43 attempts, substance abuse, and adverse medication events. The Commissioner shall 44 allocate the general fund amounts between the three centers. The general fund amounts 45 shall be based on the proportion of Virginia's population served by each center.
- 46 R. Out of this appropriation, \$32,559 the first year and \$32,559 the second year from the 47 general fund shall be used to contract with the Community Health Center of the 48 Rappahannock Region to provide medical, dental, and behavioral health services to low 49 income and/or uninsured residents in the Rappahannock region. The contract with the 50 center shall require the center to include acute and chronic disease management services, 51 lab and diagnostic services, medication assistance, physical examinations, diagnosis and 52 treatment of sexually transmitted infections, immunizations, women's health services 53 (including family planning and pap smears), preventive and restorative dental services, 54 and behavioral health services.
- 55 S. Out of this appropriation, \$571,750 the first year and \$571,750 the second year from the

	ITEM 293.		Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		general fund shall be used to contract with the Hampton F at Hampton University, LLC. The contract with Ham Institute shall require that the institute support efforts for cancerous tumors with fewer side effects.	Roads Proton Bear opton Roads Proto	n Therapy Institute on Beam Therapy		1 1 2020
5 6 7		T. Out of this appropriation, \$2,000,000 \$7,000,000 the f be provided to the Hampton University Proton Therapy I research and therapy activities.				
8 9 10		U. Out of this appropriation, \$10,000 the first year and general fund shall be provided to Special Olympics Virgi Athlete Program.				
11 12 13 14		V. Out of this appropriation, \$1,200,000 from the gen provided to contract with the Riverside Shore Memori healthcare services. The contract shall require that the F the residents of the Eastern Shore of Virginia.	al Hospital (RSM	(H) for obstetrical		
15	294.	Drinking Water Improvement (50800)			\$29,195,627	\$29,195,627
16		Drinking Water Regulation (50801)	\$9,809,453	\$9,809,453		
17		Drinking Water Construction Financing (50802)	\$18,936,844	\$18,936,844		
18		Public Health Toxicology (50805)	\$449,330	\$449,330		
19		Fund Sources: General	\$4,631,983	\$4,631,983		
20		Special	\$5,756,332	\$5,756,332		
21		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$15,794,644	\$15,794,644		
22		Federal Trust	\$3,012,668	\$3,012,668		
24 25 26 27 28		62.1-44.19:9, Code of Virginia; and P.L. 92-500, P.L. 93A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the D designated to receive and manage general and nongeneral federal Safe Drinking Water Act of 1996.B. The fee schedule for charges to community waterwaterwaterwaterwaterwaterwaterwater	epartment of Hea al funds appropria vorks shall be adj	alth be the agency ted pursuant to the justed to the level		
29 30 31		necessary to cover the cost of operating the Waterwo consistent with § 32.1-171.1, Code of Virginia, and shal all community waterworks.				
32 33	295.	Environmental Health Hazards Control (56500)			\$10,879,124 \$10,986,649	\$10,937,124 \$11,044,649
34 35		State Office of Environmental Health Services (56501)	\$4,373,035	\$4,431,035		
35 36		Shellfish Sanitation (56502)	\$4,373,033 <u>\$2,653,184</u>	\$4,431,033 \$2,653,184		
37		Sherrish Sumaton (20202)	\$2,760,709	\$2,760,709		
38		Bedding and Upholstery Inspection (56503)	\$828,733	\$828,733		
39		Radiological Health and Safety Regulation (56504)	\$3,024,172	\$3,024,172		
40		Fund Sources: General	\$5,546,317	\$5,604,317		
41			\$5,653,842 \$2,548,520	\$5,711,842 \$2,548,520		
42 43		Special	\$2,548,530 \$1,477,635	\$2,548,530 \$1,477,635		
43 44		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$1,477,655 \$1,306,642	\$1,306,642		
45 46		Authority: §§ 2.2-4002 B 16; 28.2-800 through 28.2-8 Code of Virginia.	25; and 32.1-212	through 32.1-245,		
47 48		Out of this appropriation, \$12,500 the first year and \$12,, fund shall be provided for the activities of the Sewage Ap				
49	296.	Emergency Preparedness (77500)			\$33,694,356	\$33,694,356
50	_> 5.	Emergency Preparedness and Response (77504)	\$33,694,356	\$33,694,356		+,-> 1,000
51		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$33,694,356	\$33,694,356		
51		runa Sources: reaerai Itust	<i>фээ</i> ,074,550	<i>фээ</i> ,074,330		

]	ITEM 296		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1		Authority: §§ 32.1-2, 32.1-39, and 32.1-42, Code of Vi		F 1 2020	F 1 2019	F 1 2020	
2	297.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)	rgiina.		\$24,339,399	\$28,540,899	
3 4 5		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$9,322,919	\$11,722,919	\$24,492,399	\$28,580,165	
5 6 7		Information Technology Services (49902)	\$9,522,919 \$8,187,609 \$8,140,609	\$9,989,109 \$9,942,109			
8		Accounting and Budgeting Services (49903)	\$3,267,953	\$3,267,953			
9 10 11		Human Resources Services (49914) Procurement and Distribution Services (49918)	\$2,113,124 \$1,447,794	\$2,113,124 \$1,447,794 <i>\$1,534,060</i>			
12 13		Fund Sources: General	\$15,670,199 \$15,823,199	\$19,871,699 \$19,910,965			
14		Special	\$3,973,821	\$3,973,821			
15		Federal Trust	\$4,695,379	\$4,695,379			
16 17		Authority: §§ 3.2-5206 through 3.2-5216, 32.1-11.3 the 7, and 35.1-9 through 35.1-28, Code of Virginia.	rough 32.1-23, 35.	1-1 through 35.1-			
18 19 20 21 22		A. The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to provide a line of credit of up to \$200,000 to the Department of Health to cover the actual costs of expanding the availability of vital records through the Department of Motor Vehicles, to be repaid from administrative processing fees provided under Code of Virginia, § 32.1-273 until such time as the line of credit is repaid.					
23 24 25 26		B. Out of this appropriation, \$150,000 the first year and \$150,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided for agency costs related to onboarding to ConnectVirginia, transition costs to convert the agency's node on ConnectVirginia to the state agency node, and provide support to other state agencies in their onboarding efforts.					
27 28 29 30 31		C. The Virginia Department of Health is authorized reduction of \$150,000 the first year and \$150,000 the across programs within the department to reflect admi of Planning and Budget is authorized to make the nece to transfer the funds between programs to implement the	second year from nistrative savings ssary budget exec	the general fund The Department			
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41		D.1. Out of this appropriation, \$370,000 from the g nongeneral funds is provided for the Virginia Depar requirements of House Bill 2209 and Senate Bill 156 shall contract or amend an existing contract with a nor to do so. The department shall require its contractor Emergency Department Care Coordination Advisor responsibility for implementing this program shall be supervision. The contractor may utilize an existing gov in order to fulfill the requirements of House Bill 2 expedite the implementation of the program.	tment of Health 51 (2017 Session) n-profit entity as r to establish a sep y Council (ED C e delegated under vernance, legal and	to implement the . The department necessary in order arate and distinct ouncil) to whom the department's d trust framework			
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55		2. The ED Council, under the department's governance necessary functionalities to meet the needs of all k oversee a competitive selection process for a vendor o statewide technology solution to fulfill the required fu of the initiative; and (iii) select and oversee the impler technologies, with implementation no later than Jun include three representatives from the Commonwe including the department, the Department of Medi Department of Health Professions; three represent systems, nominated by the Virginia Association representatives, nominated by the Virginia Association the Virginia College of Emergency Physicians, the Physicians and the Virginia Chapter, American A	ey stakeholders; r vendors that wil anctionalities and e anotation of succe e 30, 2018. The lealth appointed b ical Assistance S tatives from hosp hcare Association n of Health Plans; Virginia with rep he Virginia Aca Academy of Ped	(ii) develop and l provide a single, advance the goals essful information ED Council shall by the Secretary, dervices, and the pitals and health the health plan and six physician presentation from demy of Family iatrics.			

56 3. The department shall coordinate with the Department of Medical Assistance Services to

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

seek federal Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act matching funds. The department shall coordinate with the Department of Medical Assistance Services to seek any additional eligible federal matching funds supporting provider electronic health record implementation and integration in order to implement the program. The department may use up to \$100,000 for administrative costs.

6 4. The implementation of this initiative is contingent upon the receipt of federal HITECH Act 7 funds, and neither the department nor its contractor shall be obligated to implement the 8 program without HITECH Act matching funds. The appropriation in this paragraph is 9 contingent upon the receipt of federal HITECH Act funds.

10 5. Effective July 1, 2017 or upon program implementation, all hospitals operating emergency 11 departments in the Commonwealth and all Medicaid Managed Care contracted health plans 12 shall participate in the program. Effective June 30, 2018, all hospital operating emergency 13 departments in the Commonwealth, all Medicaid Managed Care contracted health plans, the 14 State Employee Health Plan, all Medicare plans operating in the Commonwealth, and all 15 commercial plans operating in the Commonwealth, excluding ERISA plans, shall participate 16 in the program. The department, in coordination with the Department of Medical Assistance 17 Services, shall determine the amount of federal funds available to support program operations 18 in the second year. Accordingly, the department, in coordination with the Department of 19 Medical Assistance Services and the ED Council, shall recommend, by December 15, 2017, a 20 funding structure for program operations in fiscal year 2019 that apportions program costs 21 across the Commonwealth, participating hospitals, and participating health plans.

6. The department, in coordination with the ED Council, shall report annually beginning November 1, 2017 to the Secretary of Health and Human Resources and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and the Senate Finance Committees on progress, including, but not limited to: (i) the participation rate of hospitals and health systems, physicians and subscribing health plans; (ii) strategies for sustaining the program and methods to continue to improve care coordination; and (iii) the impact on health care utilization and quality goals such as reducing the frequency of visits by high-volume Emergency Department utilizers and avoiding duplication of prescriptions, imaging, testing or other health care services.

E. The Virginia Department of Health shall assess the feasibility of developing a home visiting Pay for Success pilot program. The department shall develop a workgroup comprised of Virginia home visiting organizations and early childhood education organizations in examining this issue. The department shall determine if the recent provisions of the federal Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018 allow for the department to access federal funding to develop a pilot Pay for Success program for home visiting. The department shall report on the feasibility analysis, the availability of federal funding and the steps necessary to proceed with a pilot program, if feasible, to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 1, 2018.

39 40	Total for Department of Health			\$730,204,035 \$735,680,542	\$732,363,535 \$740,696,829
41 42	General Fund Positions	1,503.00 <i>1,505.00</i>	1,503.00 <i>1,506.00</i>		
43 44	Nongeneral Fund Positions	2,196.00	2,196.00 2,198.00		
45 46	Position Level	3,699.00 <i>3,701.00</i>	3,699.00 <i>3,704.00</i>		
47 48	Fund Sources: General	\$182,000,222 \$187,476,729	\$184,159,722 \$188,287,945		
49 50	Special	\$156,740,424	\$156,878,630 \$157,767,760		
51	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$112,231,055	\$112,231,055		
52 53	Federal Trust	\$279,232,334	\$279,094,128 \$282,410,069		

53

ITEM 297.

1 2

3

4

5

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36 37

38

§ 1-94. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS (223)

:	ITEM 298		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	298.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance			¢ < 5,000	¢ < 5 000
2 3		(10800) Scholarships (10810)	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$65,000
4		Fund Sources: Special	\$65,000	\$65,000		
5		Authority: § 54.1-3011.2, Chapter 30, Code of Virginia.				
6 7 8	299.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000)			\$33,708,207	\$33,708,207 \$34,383,922
9 10 11		Technical Assistance to Regulatory Boards (56044)	\$33,708,207	\$33,708,207 \$34,383,922		<i>\$</i> 57,303,722
12 13 14		Fund Sources: Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,125,987 \$32,582,220	\$1,125,987 \$32,582,220 \$ <i>33,257,935</i>		
15		Authority: Title 54.1, Chapter 25, Code of Virginia.				
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 from nongeneral fu implement a demonstration program with the Medi Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) to enhance to through the use of real time access to the program vi health records systems. The department shall design \$25,000 in PMP funds and \$225,000 in federal Heat Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act fund Assistance Services shall apply for up to \$225,000 in funds to support the program. The Department of Heat increased use of the program by prescribers in the demo of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Co implementation of the demonstration program is conti- HITECH Act funds.	ical Society of Y he use of the PM a intraoperability the demonstration alth Information ds. The Departr n enhanced fede lth Professions sl nstration program committees by Ju	Virginia and the IP by prescribers y with electronic on program using Technology for nent of Medical ral HITECH Act hall report on the n to the Chairmen ly 1, 2018. The		
29 30		Total for Department of Health Professions			\$33,773,207	\$33,773,207 \$34,448,922
31 32		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	246.00 246.00	246.00 246.00		. , ,
33 34 35 36		Fund Sources: Special Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$65,000 \$1,125,987 \$32,582,220	\$65,000 \$1,125,987 \$32,582,220 \$ <i>33,257,935</i>		
37		§ 1-95. DEPARTMENT OF MEDICA	AL ASSISTANC	E SERVICES (60)	2)	
38 39 40	300.	Pre-Trial, Trial, and Appellate Processes (32100) Reimbursements for Medical Services Related to Involuntary Mental Commitments (32107)	\$18,239,618	\$17,991,740	\$18,239,618	\$17,991,740
41		Fund Sources: General	\$18,239,618	\$17,991,740		
42		Authority: § 37.2-809, Code of Virginia.				
43 44 45 46		A. Any balance, or portion thereof, in Reimbursement Involuntary Mental Commitments (32107), may be tran and 300 as needed, to address any deficits incurred for by the Supreme Court or the Department of Medical As	nsferred between Involuntary Men	Items 41, 42, 43, tal Commitments		
47 48 49 50 51		B. Out of this appropriation, payments may be made to medical screening and assessment services provided to in emergency custody pursuant to § 37.2-808, Code of C. To the extent that appropriation in this Item are Planning and Budget shall transfer general fund appropriation	persons with me Virginia. insufficient, the	ental illness while		

1	TEM 300.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) - Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Health Insurance Program Delivery (44600), Medica Medical Assistance Services for Low Income Children	•			
3 4 5 6 7 8		D. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall e incentives and disincentives, for increasing the particip provision of medical services for individuals subject to The department shall report on the options to the Chairm Senate Finance Committees by September 30, 2018.	xamine options, in ation of communi temporary detenti	ncluding financial ty hospitals in the on orders (TDOs).		
9 10 11	301.	Financial Assistance for Health Research (40700) Grants for Improving The Quality of Health Services (40703)	\$12,810,945	\$12,810,945	\$12,810,945	\$12,810,945
12 13		Fund Sources: Federal Trust Authority: P.L. 111-5, Federal Code.	\$12,810,945	\$12,810,945		
14 15 16 17 18 19 20	302.	Children's Health Insurance Program Delivery (44600) Reimbursements for Medical Services Provided Under the Family Access to Medical Insurance Security Plan (44602)	\$200,025,684 \$213,752,531	\$211,343,011 \$220,083,759	\$200,025,684 \$213,752,531	\$ 211,343,011 \$220,083,759
21 22 23 24 25		Fund Sources: General Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$9,937,455 \$11,212,749 \$14,065,627 \$176,022,602 \$188,474,155	\$29,523,869 \$30,818,090 \$14,065,627 \$167,753,515 \$175,200,042		

Authority: Title 32.1, Chapter 13, Code of Virginia; Title XXI, Social Security Act, Federal Code.

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

A. Pursuant to Chapter 679, Acts of Assembly of 1997, the State Corporation Commission shall annually, on or before June 30, 1998, and each year thereafter, calculate the premium differential between: (i) 0.75 percent of the direct gross subscriber fee income derived from eligible contracts and (ii) the amount of license tax revenue generated pursuant to subdivision A 4 of § 58.1-2501 for the immediately preceding taxable year and notify the Comptroller of the Commonwealth to transfer such amounts to the Family Access to Medical Insurance Security Plan Trust Fund as established on the books of the State Comptroller.

- 35 B. As a condition of this appropriation, revenues from the Family Access to Medical Insurance Security Plan Trust Fund, shall be used to match federal funds for the Children's 36 37 Health Insurance Program.
- 38 C. Every eligible applicant for health insurance as provided for in Title 32.1, Chapter 13, 39 Code of Virginia, shall be enrolled and served in the program.
- 40 D. To the extent that appropriations in this Item are insufficient, the Department of Planning 41 and Budget shall transfer general fund appropriation, as needed, from Medicaid Program 42 Services (45600) and Medical Assistance Services for Low Income Children (46600), if 43 available, into this Item to be used as state match for federal Title XXI funds.
- 44 E. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall make the monthly capitation 45 payment to managed care organizations for the member months of each month in the first 46 week of the subsequent month.
- 47 F. If any part, section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or phrase of this Item or the application 48 thereof is declared by the United States Department of Health and Human Services or the 49 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services to be in conflict with a federal law or regulation, 50 such decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Item, which shall 51 remain in force as if this Item had passed without the conflicting part, section, subsection, 52 paragraph, clause, or phrase. Further, if the United States Department of Health and Human 53 Services or the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services determines that the process for

Ι	TEM 302		Ite First Ye FY2019		ar First Year	priations(\$) Second Year FY2020		
1 2 3 4 5		accomplishing the intent of a part, section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or phrase of this Item is out of compliance or in conflict with federal law and regulation and recommends another method of accomplishing the same intent, the Director, Department of Medical Assistance Services, after consultation with the Attorney General, is authorized to pursue the alternative method.						
6 7	303.	Medicaid Program Services (45600)			\$11,349,056,147 \$11,840,531,648	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
8 9 10		Reimbursements to State-Owned Mental Health and Intellectual Disabilities Facilities (45607)	\$123,671,762	\$110,694,442 \$81,678,750				
11 12 13		Reimbursements for Behavioral Health Services (45608)	\$134,087,172 \$186,076,126	\$14,571,748 \$43,601,628				
14 15		Reimbursements for Medical Services (45609)	\$8,816,333,481 \$8,994,264,674	\$9,247,571,707 \$9,733,483,654				

<u>\$1,219,302,428</u>

\$1,442,690,738

\$1,055,661,304

\$1,093,828,348

\$4.693.022.530

\$4,875,329,958

\$752,219,143

\$675,249,477

\$5.903.814.474

\$6,289,952,213

\$1.307.328.752

\$1,497,658,506

\$2,312,939,049

\$3,618,414,628

\$4.775.531.889

\$5,023,102,769

\$1,070,819,016

\$1,061,301,201

\$7,146,754,793

\$8,890,433,196

Authority: Title 32.1, Chapters 9 and 10, Code of Virginia; P.L. 89-97, as amended, Title XIX, Social Security Act, Federal Code.

A.1.Out of this appropriation, \$61,835,881 the first year and \$55,347,221\$40,839,375 the second year from the general fund and \$61,835,881 the first year and \$55,347,221\$40,839,375 the second year from the federal trust fund is provided for reimbursement to the institutions within the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services.

Reimbursements for Long-Term Care Services

(45610).....

Payments for Healthcare Coverage for Low-

Income Uninsured Adults (45611).....

Fund Sources: General

Dedicated Special Revenue.....

Federal Trust

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 23

24 25

26 27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

2. Out of this appropriation, \$18,969,647 the first year from the general fund is provided to cover any federal deferrals associated with payments made to Piedmont and Catawba hospitals. The Department of Planning and Budget shall unallot these funds and shall not allot the funds until the Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) provides documentation of a federal deferral. The Department of Planning and Budget shall be authorized to transfer any unspent portion of this amount, along with first year appropriation in service area 45607 of this Item, to agency 793 (Mental Health Treatment Centers) should DMAS cease Medicaid payments to either Piedmont or Catawba 43 hospitals.

- 44 B.1. Included in this appropriation is \$71,773,601\$44,675,958 the first year and 45 \$76,085,569\$9,017,369 the second year from the general fund and 46 \$90,962,360\$63,864,717 the first year and \$95,874,328\$28,206,128 the second year from 47 nongeneral funds to reimburse the Virginia Commonwealth University Health System for 48 indigent health care costs as reported by the hospital and adjusted by the department for 49 indigent care savings related to Medicaid expansion. This funding is composed of 50 disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments, indirect medical education (IME) 51 payments, and any Medicaid profits realized by the Health System. Payments made from 52 the federal DSH fund shall be made in accordance with 42 USC 1396r-4.
- 53 2. Included in this appropriation is \$43,354,550\$26,274,229 the first year and 54 \$45,391,756\$3,054,908 the second year from the general fund and 55 \$58,069,328\$40,989,007 the first year and \$60,106,534\$17,769,686 the second year from nongeneral funds to reimburse the University of Virginia Health System for indigent 56 57 health care costs as reported by the hospital and adjusted by the department for indigent 58 care savings related to Medicaid expansion. This funding is comprised of disproportionate

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

share hospital (DSH) payments, indirect medical education (IME) payments, and any Medicaid profits realized by the Health System. Payments made from the federal DSH fund shall be made in accordance with 42 USC 1396r-4.

3. The general fund amounts for the state teaching hospitals have been reduced to mirror the general fund impact of reduced and no inflation for inpatient services in prior years. It also includes reductions associated with prior year indigent care reductions. However, the nongeneral funds are appropriated. In order to receive the nongeneral funds in excess of the amount of the general fund appropriated, the health systems shall certify the public expenditures.

- 10 4. The Department of Medical Assistance Service shall have the authority to increase 11 Medicaid payments for Type One hospitals and physicians consistent with the appropriations 12 to compensate for limits on disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments to Type One 13 hospitals that the department would otherwise make. In particular, the department shall have 14 the authority to amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to increase physician 15 supplemental payments for physician practice plans affiliated with Type One hospitals up to the average commercial rate as demonstrated by University of Virginia Health System and 16 17 Virginia Commonwealth University Health System, to change reimbursement for Graduate Medical Education to cover costs for Type One hospitals, to case mix adjust the formula for 18 19 indirect medical education reimbursement for HMO discharges for Type One hospitals and to 20 increase the adjustment factor for Type One hospitals to 1.0. The department shall have the 21 authority to implement these changes prior to completion of any regulatory process 22 undertaken in order to effect such change.
- C.1. The estimated revenue for the Virginia Health Care Fund is \$371,395,190\$410,279,068
 the first year and \$365,695,190\$364,019,578 the second year, to be used pursuant to the uses
 stated in § 32.1-367, Code of Virginia.
- 26 2. Notwithstanding § 32.1-366, Code of Virginia, the State Comptroller shall deposit 41.5
 27 percent of the Commonwealth's allocation of the Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco
 28 product manufacturers, as defined in § 3.2-3100, Code of Virginia, to the Virginia Health
 29 Care Fund.
- 30 3. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the State Comptroller shall deposit 50 percent
 31 of the Commonwealth's allocation of the Strategic Contribution Fund payment pursuant to the
 32 Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco product manufacturers into the Virginia Health
 33 Care Fund.
- 34 4. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, revenues deposited to the Virginia Health Care
 35 Fund shall only be used as the state share of Medicaid unless specifically authorized by this
 36 Act.
- 37 D. If any part, section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or phrase of this Item or the application 38 thereof is declared by the United States Department of Health and Human Services or the 39 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services to be in conflict with a federal law or regulation, 40 such decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Item, which shall remain in force as if this Item had passed without the conflicting part, section, subsection, 41 paragraph, clause, or phrase. Further, if the United States Department of Health and Human 42 Services or the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services determines that the process for 43 44 accomplishing the intent of a part, section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or phrase of this 45 Item is out of compliance or in conflict with federal law and regulation and recommends 46 another method of accomplishing the same intent, the Director, Department of Medical 47 Assistance Services, after consultation with the Attorney General, is authorized to pursue the 48 alternative method.
- 49 E. At least 30 days prior to the submission of any state plan or waiver amendment to the
 50 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), the Department of Medical Assistance
 51 Services (DMAS) shall provide written notification to the Director, Department of Planning
 52 and Budget as to the purpose of such change. This notice shall also assess whether the
 53 amendment will require any future state regulatory action or expenditure beyond that which is
 54 appropriated in this Act.
- 55 F.1. The Director, Department of Medical Assistance Services shall seek the necessary

1

2

3

ITEM 303.

			etails(\$)	Appropri	
ITEM 303	h.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	waivers from the United States Department of Health and Hu Commonwealth to cover health care services and delivery by Title XIX of the Social Security Act, which may provide the State Plan for Medical Assistance.	systems, as mag	y be permitted		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	2. At least 30 days prior to the submission of an application XIX or Title XXI of the Social Security Act, the Depart Services shall notify the Chairmen of the House Approp Committees of such pending application and provide infor justification for the waiver along with any fiscal impact. I official letter from either Chairmen raising an objection ab day period, the department shall not submit the waiver a authority for such waiver as part of the normal legislative department receives no objection, then the application maspecifically authorized elsewhere in this item is not subject renewals are not subject to the provisions of this paragram.	ment of Medic oriations and Se ormation on the f the departme out the waiver application and or budgetary p ay be submitted ect to this prov	cal Assistance enate Finance e purpose and nt receives an during the 30- l shall request process. If the d. Any waiver		
16 17 18	3. The director shall promulgate such regulations as may be programs which may be permitted by Titles XIX and XXI conformance with all requirements of the Administrative P	of the Social So			
19 20 21 22 23	G. To the extent that appropriations in this Item are inserving and Budget shall transfer general fund appropriation Health Insurance Program Delivery (44600) and Medical Income Children (46600), if available, into this Item to be ut Title XIX funds.	on, as needed, fi Assistance Ser	rom Children's vices for Low		
24 25 26	H. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the medicall Medicaid program are adjusted annually to account for ch Index.				
27	I.1.a. As of July 1, 2017, the Community Living (CL) waiver	authorizes 11,3	302 slots.		
28 29	b. As of July 1, 2017, the Family and Individuals Support (slots.	FIS) waiver au	thorizes 1,762		
30	c. As of July 1, 2017, the Building Independence (BI) waiver	authorizes 360	slots.		
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	2. Notwithstanding Chapters 228 and 303 of the 2009 Vin §32.1-323.2 of the Code of Virginia, the Department of Med- not add any slots to the Intellectual Disabilities Medicaid Family Developmental Disabilities and Support Medicaid authorized specifically to support the Money Follows individuals who are exiting state institutions, any slots author 729 of the 2011 Virginia Acts of Assembly or §37.2-319, Co- elsewhere in this Act.	lical Assistance Waiver or the I Waiver other th the Person Do prized under Cha	Services shall Individual and nan those slots emonstration, apters 724 and		
39 40 41 42 43 44	3. Upon approval by the Centers for Medicare and Medicar for renewal of the CL, FIS and BI waivers, expeditious imp shall be deemed an emergency situation pursuant to § 2.2 Process Act. Therefore, to meet this emergency situation Assistance Services shall promulgate emergency regulations of this Act.	plementation of 2-4002 of the A , the Departme	any revisions Administrative ant of Medical		
45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53	4.a. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMA) to add 189 new slots effective July 1, 2018 and an addition 2019. An amount estimated at \$8,156,426 the first year and from the general fund and \$8,156,426 the first year and \$16, nongeneral funds is provided to cover the anticipated corestimated amounts assumes that 60 of the additional slots in individuals transitioning from facility care. DMAS sha necessary changes to the CL waiver to add the addition b. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS)	hal 195 slots ef \$16,537,788 th 537,788 the sec osts of the new each year may Il seek federal hal slots.	fective July 1, ne second year cond year from v slots. These be filled with approval for		

b. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall amend the FIS waiver to
add 414 new slots effective July 1, 2018 and an additional 481 slots effective July 1, 2019.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

An amount estimated at \$6,347,617 the first year and \$13,720,427 the second year from the general fund and \$6,347,617 the first year and \$13,720,427 the second year from nongeneral funds is provided to cover the anticipated costs of the new slots. DMAS shall seek federal approval for necessary changes to the FIS waiver to add the additional slots.

ITEM 303.

1

2

3

4

25

26

27

28

29

30

5 c. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall amend the BI waiver to add 6 40 new slots effective July 1, 2019. An amount estimated at \$257,680 the second year from 7 the general fund and \$257,680 the second year from nongeneral funds is provided to cover the 8 anticipated costs of the new slots. DMAS shall seek federal approval for necessary changes to 9 the BI waiver to add the additional slots.

10 d. In addition to the new slots added in 4.a. and b., the Department of Medical Assistance 11 Services (DMAS) shall amend the CL waiver to add 25 new slots effective July 1, 2018 and 12 an additional 25 slots effective July 1, 2019. These slots shall be held as reserve capacity by 13 the Department of Behavioral Health and Disability Services (DBHDS) to address emergency 14 situations. An amount estimated at \$937,237 the first year and \$1,874,475 the second year 15 from the general fund and \$937,237 the first year and \$1,874,475 the second year from nongeneral funds is provided to cover the anticipated costs of the emergency slots. DMAS 16 17 shall seek federal approval for necessary changes to the CL waiver to add the additional slots. Beginning July 1, 2018, DBHDS shall provide a quarterly report on the use of the emergency 18 19 slot provided in this paragraph.

20 e. In addition to the new slots added in 4.b., the Department of Medical Assistance Services 21 shall amend the FIS waiver to add 326 new slots effective July 1, 2019 to address the Priority 22 One waiting list. An amount estimated at \$5,000,000 from the general fund and \$5,000,000 23 from nongeneral funds the second year is provided to cover the anticipated costs of the 24 additional slots.

f. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in collaboration with the Department of Behavioral Health and Disability Services, shall separately track all costs, placements and services associated with the additional slots added in paragraphs I.4.a., I.4.b., and I.4.c. of this Item. By October 1 of each year, the department shall report this data to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.

31 J. The Department of Medical Assistance Services and the Virginia Department of Health 32 shall work with representatives of the dental community: to expand the availability and 33 delivery of dental services to pediatric Medicaid recipients; to streamline the administrative 34 processes; and to remove impediments to the efficient delivery of dental services and 35 reimbursement thereof. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall report its efforts 36 to expand dental services to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 37 Committees and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget by December 15 each year.

38 K. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall not require dentists who agree to 39 participate in the delivery of Medicaid pediatric dental care services, or services provided to 40 enrollees in the Family Access to Medical Insurance Security (FAMIS) Plan or any variation 41 of FAMIS, to also deliver services to subscribers enrolled in commercial plans of the 42 managed care vendor, unless the dentist is a willing participant in the commercial managed 43 care plan.

44 L. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall implement continued enhancements 45 to the drug utilization review (DUR) program. The department shall continue the Pharmacy 46 Liaison Committee and the DUR Board. The department shall continue to work with the 47 Pharmacy Liaison Committee, meeting at least semi-annually, to implement initiatives for the 48 promotion of cost-effective services delivery as may be appropriate. The department shall 49 solicit input from the Pharmacy Liaison Committee regarding pharmacy provisions in the 50 development and enforcement of all managed care contracts. The department shall report on 51 the Pharmacy Liaison Committee's and the DUR Board's activities to the Board of Medical 52 Assistance Services and to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 53 Committees and the Department of Planning and Budget no later than December 15 each year 54 of the biennium.

55 M.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have the authority to seek federal 56 approval of changes to its Medallion 4.0 waiver.

	Item Details(\$)		
ITEM 303.	First Year	Second Year	Firs
	FY2019	FY2020	FY

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2. In order to conform the state regulations to the federally approved changes and to implement the provisions of this Act, the department shall promulgate emergency regulations to become effective within 280 days or less from the enactment of this Act.

1

2

3

4

5

6 7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

N.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall develop and pursue cost saving strategies internally and with the cooperation of the Department of Social Services, Virginia Department of Health, Office of the Attorney General, Children's Services Act program, Department of Education, Department of Juvenile Justice, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, Department of the Treasury, University of Virginia Health System, Virginia Commonwealth University Health System Authority, Department of Corrections, federally qualified health centers, local health departments, local school divisions, community service boards, local hospitals, and local governments, that focus on optimizing Medicaid claims and cost recoveries. Any revenues generated through these activities shall be transferred to the Virginia Health Care Fund to be used for the purposes specified in this Item.

16 2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall retain the savings necessary to
17 reimburse a vendor for its efforts to implement paragraph. N.1. of this Item. However,
18 prior to reimbursement, the department shall identify for the Secretary of Health and
19 Human Resources each of the vendor's revenue maximization efforts and the manner in
20 which each vendor would be reimbursed. No reimbursement shall be made to the vendor
21 without the prior approval of the above plan by the Secretary.

22 O. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have the authority to pay 23 contingency fee contractors, engaged in cost recovery activities, from the recoveries that 24 are generated by those activities. All recoveries from these contractors shall be deposited 25 to a special fund. After payment of the contingency fee any prior year recoveries shall be 26 transferred to the Virginia Health Care Fund. The Director, Department of Medical 27 Assistance Services, shall report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate 28 Finance Committees the increase in recoveries associated with this program as well as the 29 areas of audit targeted by contractors by November 1 each year.

P. The Department of Medical Assistance Services in cooperation with the State Executive
 Council, shall provide semi-annual training to local Children's Services Act teams on the
 procedures for use of Medicaid for residential treatment and treatment foster care services,
 including, but not limited to, procedures for determining eligibility, billing,
 reimbursement, and related reporting requirements. The department shall include in this
 training information on the proper utilization of inpatient and outpatient mental health
 services as covered by the Medicaid State Plan.

Q.1. Notwithstanding § 32.1-331.12 et seq., Code of Virginia, the Department of Medical
Assistance Services, in consultation with the Department of Behavioral Health and
Developmental Services, shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance Services to
modify the delivery system of pharmaceutical products to include a Preferred Drug List.
In developing the modifications, the department shall consider input from physicians,
pharmacists, pharmaceutical manufacturers, patient advocates, and others, as appropriate.

43 2.a. The department shall utilize a Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee to assist in the 44 development and ongoing administration of the Preferred Drug List program. The 45 Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee shall be composed of 8 to 12 members, including 46 the Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, or his 47 designee. Other members shall be selected or approved by the department. The 48 membership shall include a ratio of physicians to pharmacists of 2:1 and the department 49 shall ensure that at least one-half of the physicians and pharmacists are either direct 50 providers or are employed with organizations that serve recipients for all segments of the 51 Medicaid population. Physicians on the committee shall be licensed in Virginia, one of 52 whom shall be a psychiatrist, and one of whom specializes in care for the aging. 53 Pharmacists on the committee shall be licensed in Virginia, one of whom shall have 54 clinical expertise in mental health drugs, and one of whom has clinical expertise in 55 community-based mental health treatment. The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee 56 shall recommend to the department (i) which therapeutic classes of drugs should be 57 subject to the Preferred Drug List program and prior authorization requirements; (ii)

		Item I	Details(\$)	
ITE	M 303.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	F
1	specific drugs within each therapeutic class to be included of	on the preferred	d drug list; (iii)	

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

specific drugs within each therapeutic class to be included on the preferred drug list; (iii) 2 appropriate exclusions for medications, including atypical anti-psychotics, used for the 3 treatment of serious mental illnesses such as bi-polar disorders, schizophrenia, and 4 depression; (iv) appropriate exclusions for medications used for the treatment of brain 5 disorders, cancer and HIV-related conditions; (v) appropriate exclusions for therapeutic 6 classes in which there is only one drug in the therapeutic class or there is very low utilization, 7 or for which it is not cost-effective to include in the Preferred Drug List program; and (vi) 8 appropriate grandfather clauses when prior authorization would interfere with established 9 complex drug regimens that have proven to be clinically effective. In developing and 10 maintaining the preferred drug list, the cost effectiveness of any given drug shall be 11 considered only after it is determined to be safe and clinically effective.

- b. The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee shall schedule meetings at least semi-annually
 and may meet at other times at the discretion of the chairperson and members. At the
 meetings, the Pharmacy and Therapeutics committee shall review any drug in a class subject
 to the Preferred Drug List that is newly approved by the Federal Food and Drug
 Administration, provided there is at least thirty (30) days notice of such approval prior to the
 date of the quarterly meeting.
- 18 3. The department shall establish a process for acting on the recommendations made by the
 19 Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee, including documentation of any decisions which
 20 deviate from the recommendations of the committee.
- 21 4. The Preferred Drug List program shall include provisions for (i) the dispensing of a 72-22 hour emergency supply of the prescribed drug when requested by a physician and a 23 dispensing fee to be paid to the pharmacy for such supply; (ii) prior authorization decisions to 24 be made within 24 hours and timely notification of the recipient and/or the prescribing 25 physician of any delays or negative decisions; (iii) an expedited review process of denials by 26 the department; and (iv) consumer and provider education, training and information regarding 27 the Preferred Drug List prior to implementation, and ongoing communications to include 28 computer access to information and multilingual material.
- 5. The Preferred Drug List program shall generate savings as determined by the departmentthat are net of any administrative expenses to implement and administer the program.
- 6. Notwithstanding § 32.1-331.12 et seq., Code of Virginia, to implement these changes, the
 Department of Medical Assistance Services shall promulgate emergency regulations to
 become effective within 280 days or less from the enactment of this Act. With respect to such
 state plan amendments and regulations, the provisions of § 32.1-331.12 et seq., Code of
 Virginia, shall not apply. In addition, the department shall work with the Department of
 Behavioral Health and Development Services to consider utilizing a Preferred Drug List
 program for its non-Medicaid clients.
- 38 7. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall (i) continually review utilization of 39 behavioral health medications under the State Medicaid Program for Medicaid recipients; and 40 (ii) ensure appropriate use of these medications according to federal Food and Drug 41 Administration (FDA) approved indications and dosage levels. The department may also 42 require retrospective clinical justification according to FDA approved indications and dosage 43 levels for the use of multiple behavioral health drugs for a Medicaid patient. For individuals 44 18 years of age and younger who are prescribed three or more behavioral health drugs, the 45 department may implement clinical edits that target inefficient, ineffective, or potentially 46 harmful prescribing patterns in accordance with FDA-approved indications and dosage levels.
- 8. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall ensure that in the process of developing the Preferred Drug List, the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee considers the value of including those prescription medications which improve drug regimen compliance, reduce medication errors, or decrease medication abuse through the use of medication delivery systems that include, but are not limited to, transdermal and injectable delivery systems.
- R.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services may amend the State Plan for Medical
 Assistance Services to modify the delivery system of pharmaceutical products to include a
 specialty drug program. In developing the modifications, the department shall consider input
 from physicians, pharmacists, pharmaceutical manufacturers, patient advocates, the Pharmacy

	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 303.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020

1 Liaison Committee, and others as appropriate.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

2. In developing the specialty drug program to implement appropriate care management and control drug expenditures, the department shall contract with a vendor who will develop a methodology for the reimbursement and utilization through appropriate case management of specialty drugs and distribute the list of specialty drug rates, authorized drugs and utilization guidelines to medical and pharmacy providers in a timely manner prior to the implementation of the specialty drug program and publish the same on the department's website.

- 9 3. In the event that the Department of Medical Assistance Services contracts with a 10 vendor, the department shall establish the fee paid to any such contractor based on the 11 reasonable cost of services provided. The department may not offer or pay directly or 12 indirectly any material inducement, bonus, or other financial incentive to a program 13 contractor based on the denial or administrative delay of medically appropriate 14 prescription drug therapy, or on the decreased use of a particular drug or class of drugs, or 15 a reduction in the proportion of beneficiaries who receive prescription drug therapy under 16 the Medicaid program. Bonuses cannot be based on the percentage of cost savings 17 generated under the benefit management of services.
- 18 4. The department shall: (i) review, update and publish the list of authorized specialty 19 drugs, utilization guidelines, and rates at least quarterly; (ii) implement and maintain a 20 procedure to revise the list or modify specialty drug program utilization guidelines and 21 rates, consistent with changes in the marketplace; and (iii) provide an administrative 22 appeals procedure to allow dispensing or prescribing provider to contest the listed 23 specialty drugs and rates.
- 24 5. The department shall have authority to enact emergency regulations under § 2.2-4011 of 25 the Administrative Process Act to effect these provisions.
- 26 S.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall reimburse school divisions who 27 sign an agreement to provide administrative support to the Medicaid program and who 28 provide documentation of administrative expenses related to the Medicaid program 50 29 percent of the Federal Financial Participation by the department.
- 30 2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall retain five percent of the Federal 31 Financial Participation for reimbursement to school divisions for medical and 32 transportation services.
- 33 T. In the event that the Department of Medical Assistance Services decides to contract for 34 pharmaceutical benefit management services to administer, develop, manage, or 35 implement Medicaid pharmacy benefits, the department shall establish the fee paid to any 36 such contractor based on the reasonable cost of services provided. The department may 37 not offer or pay directly or indirectly any material inducement, bonus, or other financial 38 incentive to a program contractor based on the denial or administrative delay of medically 39 appropriate prescription drug therapy, or on the decreased use of a particular drug or class 40 of drugs, or a reduction in the proportion of beneficiaries who receive prescription drug 41 therapy under the Medicaid program. Bonuses cannot be based on the percentage of cost savings generated under the benefit management of services. 42
- 43 U. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in cooperation with the Department of 44 Social Services' Division of Child Support Enforcement (DSCE), shall identify and report 45 third party coverage where a medical support order has required a custodial or 46 noncustodial parent to enroll a child in a health insurance plan. The Department of 47 Medical Assistance Services shall also report to the DCSE third party information that has 48 been identified through their third party identification processes for children handled by 49 DCSE.
- 50 V.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 32.1-325.1:1, Code of Virginia, upon identifying 51 that an overpayment for medical assistance services has been made to a provider, the 52 Director, Department of Medical Assistance Services shall notify the provider of the 53 amount of the overpayment. Such notification of overpayment shall be issued within the 54 earlier of (i) four years after payment of the claim or other payment request, or (ii) four 55 years after filing by the provider of the complete cost report as defined in the Department

Year

Item D	etails(\$)
First Year	Second

First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$)	
First Year	Second Year
FY2019	FY2020

of Medical Assistance Services' regulations, or (iii) 15 months after filing by the provider of the final complete cost report as defined in the Department of Medical Assistance Services' regulations subsequent to sale of the facility or termination of the provider.

ITEM 303.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

36

37

38 39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 32.1-325.1, Code of Virginia, the director shall issue an informal fact-finding conference decision concerning provider reimbursement in accordance with the State Plan for Medical Assistance, the provisions of § 2.2-4019, Code of Virginia, and applicable federal law. The informal fact-finding conference decision shall be issued within 180 days of the receipt of the appeal request, except as provided herein. If the agency does not render an informal fact-finding conference decision within 180 days of the receipt of the appeal request or, in the case of a joint agreement to stay the appeal decision as detailed below, within the time remaining after the stay expires and the appeal timeframes resume, the decision is deemed to be in favor of the provider. An appeal of the director's informal fact-finding conference decision concerning provider reimbursement shall be heard in accordance with § 2.2-4020 of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4020 et seq.) and the State Plan for Medical Assistance provided for in § 32.1-325, Code of Virginia. The Department of Medical Assistance Services and the provider may jointly agree to stay the deadline for the informal appeal decision or for the formal appeal recommended decision of the Hearing Officer for a period of up to sixty (60) days to facilitate settlement discussions. If the parties reach a resolution as reflected by a written settlement agreement within the sixtyday period, then the stay shall be extended for such additional time as may be necessary for review and approval of the settlement agreement in accordance § 2.2-514 of the Code of Virginia. Once a final agency case decision has been made, the director shall undertake full recovery of such overpayment whether or not the provider disputes, in whole or in part, the informal fact-finding conference decision or the final agency case decision. Interest charges on the unpaid balance of any overpayment shall accrue pursuant to § 32.1-313, Code of Virginia, from the date the Director's agency case decision becomes final.

W. Any hospital that was designated a Medicare-dependent small rural hospital, as defined in
42 U.S.C. §1395ww (d) (5) (G) (iv) prior to October 1, 2004, shall be designated a rural
hospital pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1395ww (d) (8) (ii) (II) on or after September 30, 2004.

X.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall make programmatic changes in the
 provision of Intensive In-Home services and Community Mental Health services in order to
 ensure appropriate utilization and cost efficiency. The department shall consider all available
 options including, but not limited to, prior authorization, utilization review and provider
 qualifications. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall promulgate regulations
 to implement these changes within 280 days or less from the enactment date of this Act.

2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have the authority to implement prior authorization and utilization review for community-based mental health services for children and adults. The department shall have the authority to promulgate emergency regulations to implement this amendment within 280 days or less from the enactment of this Act.

Y. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall delay the last quarterly payment of certain quarterly amounts paid to hospitals, from the end of each state fiscal year to the first quarter of the following year. Quarterly payments that shall be delayed from each June to each July shall be Disproportionate Share Hospital payments, Indirect Medical Education payments, and Direct Medical Education payments. The department shall have the authority to implement this reimbursement change effective upon passage of this Act, and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.

Z. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall make the monthly capitation
payment to managed care organizations for the member months of each month in the first
week of the subsequent month. The department shall have the authority to implement this
reimbursement schedule change effective upon passage of this Act, and prior to the
completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.

AA. In every June the remittance that would normally be paid to providers on the last
 remittance date of the state fiscal year shall be delayed one week longer than is normally the
 practice. This change shall apply to the remittances of Medicaid and FAMIS providers. This
 change does not apply to providers who are paid a per-month capitation payment. The
 department shall have the authority to implement this reimbursement change effective upon
 passage of this Act, and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order

Item Details(\$)				
First Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

ITEM 303.

1

2

3

4

5

6

BB. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall impose an assessment equal to 6.0 percent of revenue on all ICF-ID providers. The department shall determine procedures for collecting the assessment, including penalties for non-compliance. The department shall have the authority to adjust interim rates to cover new Medicaid costs as a result of this assessment.

7 CC. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall not adjust rates or the rate8 ceiling of residential psychiatric facilities for inflation.

DD. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall work with the Department of
 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services in consultation with the Virginia
 Association of Community Services Boards, the Virginia Network of Private Providers,
 the Virginia Coalition of Private Provider Associations, and the Association of
 Community Based Providers, to establish rates for the Intensive In-Home Service based
 on quality indicators and standards, such as the use of evidence-based practices.

15 EE. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall seek federal authority through 16 the necessary waiver(s) and/or State Plan authorization under Titles XIX and XXI of the 17 Social Security Act to expand principles of care coordination to all geographic areas, 18 populations, and services under programs administered by the department. The expansion 19 of care coordination shall be based on the principles of shared financial risk such as shared 20 savings, performance benchmarks or risk and improving the value of care delivered by 21 measuring outcomes, enhancing quality, and monitoring expenditures. The department 22 shall engage stakeholders, including beneficiaries, advocates, providers, and health plans, 23 during the development and implementation of the care coordination projects. Implementation shall include specific requirements for data collection to ensure the ability 24 25 to monitor utilization, quality of care, outcomes, costs, and cost savings. The department 26 shall report by November 1 of each year to the Governor and the Chairmen of the House 27 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees detailing implementation progress 28 including, but not limited to, the number of individuals enrolled in care coordination, the 29 geographic areas, populations and services affected and cost savings achieved. Unless 30 otherwise delineated, the department shall have authority to implement necessary changes 31 upon federal approval and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in 32 order to effect such change. The intent of this Item may be achieved through several steps, 33 including, but not limited to, the following:

34 a. In fulfillment of this Item, the department and the Department of Behavioral Health and 35 Developmental Services, in collaboration with the Community Services Boards and in consultation with appropriate stakeholders, shall develop a blueprint for the development 36 37 and implementation of a care coordination model for individuals in need of behavioral 38 health services not currently provided through a managed care organization. The overall 39 goal of the project is to improve the value of behavioral health services purchased by the 40 Commonwealth of Virginia without compromising access to behavioral health services for 41 vulnerable populations. Targeted case management services will continue to be the 42 responsibility of the Community Services Boards. The blueprint shall: (i) describe the 43 steps for development and implementation of the program model(s) including funding, 44 populations served, services provided, timeframe for program implementation, and 45 education of clients and providers; (ii) set the criteria for medical necessity for community 46 mental health rehabilitation services; and (iii) include the following principles:

- 47 1. Improves value so that there is better access to care while improving equity.
- 48 2. Engages consumers as informed and responsible partners from enrollment to care delivery.
- **50** 3. Provides consumer protections with respect to choice of providers and plans of care.
- 51 4. Improves satisfaction among providers and provides technical assistance and incentives52 for quality improvement.
- 53 5. Improves satisfaction among consumers by including consumer representatives on54 provider panels for the development of policy and planning decisions.

		Item I	Details(\$)	Α
EM 303.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First FY2
	6. Improves quality, individual safety, health outcomes, and eff	ficiency.		
	7. Develops direct linkages between medical and behavioral se for consumers to obtain timely access to care and services, integration.			
	8. Builds upon current best practices in the delivery of behavior	ral health servic	ces.	
	9. Accounts for local circumstances and reflects familiarit services are provided.	ty with the con	nmunity where	
	10. Develops service capacity and a payment system that recommitments and prevents default (or diversion) to state how		for involuntary	
	11. Reduces and improves the interface of vulnerable population courts, jails, and detention centers.	ons with local l	aw enforcement,	
	12. Supports the responsibilities defined in the Code of Vi Services Boards and Behavioral Health Authorities.	rginia relating	to Community	
	13. Promotes availability of access to vital supports sucemployment.	ch as housing	and supported	
	14. Achieves cost savings through decreasing avoidable episod strengthening the discharge planning process, improving adhe and utilizing community alternatives to hospitalizations and i	erence to media	cation regimens,	
	15. Simplifies the administration of acute psychiatric, commun	ity mental heal	th rehabilitation,	

Appropriations(\$) t Year Second Year 2019 FY2020

1

ITE

2 3 4

- 5
- 6 7
- 8 9
- 10 11
- 12 13
- 14 15
- 16 17 18
- 19 15. Simplifies the administration of acute psychiatric, community mental health rehabilitation, 20 and medical health services for the coordinating entity, providers, and consumers.
- 21 16. Requires standardized data collection, outcome measures, customer satisfaction surveys, 22 and reports to track costs, utilization of services, and outcomes. Performance data should be 23 explicit, benchmarked, standardized, publicly available, and validated.
- 24 17. Provides actionable data and feedback to providers.
- 25 18. In accordance with federal and state regulations, includes provisions for effective and 26 timely grievances and appeals for consumers.
- 27 b. The department may seek the necessary waiver(s) and/or State Plan authorization under 28 Titles XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act to develop and implement a care coordination 29 model, that is consistent with the principles in Paragraph a, for individuals in need of 30 behavioral health services to be effective July 1, 2019. This model may be applied to 31 individuals on a mandatory basis. The department shall have authority to promulgate 32 emergency regulations to implement this amendment within 280 days or less from the 33 enactment date of this Act.
- 34 FF. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall make programmatic changes in the 35 provision of Residential Treatment Facility (Level C) and Levels A and B residential services 36 (group homes) for children with serious emotional disturbances in order ensure appropriate 37 utilization and cost efficiency. The department shall consider all available options including, 38 but not limited to, prior authorization, utilization review and provider qualifications. The 39 department shall have authority to promulgate regulations to implement these changes within 40 280 days or less from the enactment date of this Act.
- 41 GG. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in consultation with the appropriate 42 stakeholders, shall seek federal authority to implement a pricing methodology to modify or 43 replace the current pricing methodology for pharmaceutical products as defined in 13 VAC 44 30-80-40, including the dispensing fee, with an alternative methodology that is budget neutral 45 or that creates a cost savings. The department shall have the authority to promulgate 46 emergency regulations to implement this amendment within 280 days or less from the 47 enactment of this Act. The department shall have the authority to implement these changes prior to completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change. 48
- 49 HH. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall have the authority to 50 amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to enroll and reimburse freestanding birthing

				Jetails(\$)		lations(\$)
	ITEM 303		irst Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Y FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		centers accredited by the Commission for the Accreditati Reimbursement shall be based on the Enhanced Ambulatory Pa applied in a manner similar to the reimbursement methodolog centers. The department shall have authority to implement neces approval and prior to the completion of any regulatory proce effect such change.	atient Grou y for ambussary chang	p methodology ulatory surgery es upon federal		
7 8 9 10 11 12 13		II. The department may seek federal authority through amend under Title XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act, and appro- develop and implement programmatic and system change enrollment of Medicaid eligible recipients into Medicaid manage for pregnant women. The department shall have the authority regulations to implement this amendment within 280 days or less of this Act.	opriate wai es that all ged care, m to promulg	vers to such, to low expedited ost importantly gate emergency		
14 15		JJ.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, related to and for the department, shall have authority to amend regulatio		dministered by		
16 17		i. Utilize the method of transmittal of documentation to includ electronic transmission.	le email, fa	ax, courier, and		
18		ii. Clarify that the day of delivery ends at normal business hours	of 5:00 pm	l.		
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32		iii. Eliminate an automatic dismissal against DMAS for allege summary that do not relate to DMAS's obligation to substar specified in the provider's written notice of informal appeal. A p which the provider shall file with the informal appeals agent w the provider's receipt of the DMAS case summary, a written not alleged deficiencies that the provider knows or reasonably should have 12 calendar days after receipt of the provider's timely writ or cure any of said alleged deficiencies. The current requirement address each adjustment, patient, service date, or other dispute provider's written notice of informal appeal in the detail set fort shall remain in force and effect, and failure to file a writter Appeals Division in the detail specified within 30 days of th written notice of informal appeal shall result in dismissal in favo issues not addressed by DMAS.	ntively add process sha vithin 12 ca ice that spe d know exi ten notifica ent that the ed matter ic h in the cu n case sum te filing of	Iress all issues all be added, by alendar days of ecifies any such st. DMAS shall ation to address case summary dentified in the rrent regulation mary with the the provider's		
33 34 35		iv. Clarify that appeals remanded to the informal appeal level v or court order shall reset the timetable under DMAS' appeals re from the date of the remand.				
36 37		v. Clarify the department's authority to administratively dism requests.	iss untime	ly filed appeal		
38		vi. Clarify the time requirement for commencement of the formation	l administr	ative hearing.		
39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		vii. Clarify that settlement proposals may be tendered during the approval is subject to the requirements of § 2.2-514 of the Code regulations shall develop a framework for the submission of the state that the Department of Medical Assistance Services and agree to stay the deadline for the informal appeal decision recommended decision of the Hearing Officer for a period of facilitate settlement discussions. If the parties reach a resolution settlement agreement within the sixty-day period, then the stay additional time as may be necessary for review and approval of in accordance with law.	of Virginia e settlemen the provid or for the f up to six n as reflect shall be ex	a. The amended nt proposal and ler may jointly formal appeal ty (60) days to ed by a written tended for such		
49 50 51		2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have regulations to implement these changes within 280 days or less f this Act.	-			
52 53 54		KK. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the implementat the care coordination contract for behavioral health services be consured insures system integrity and engages private providers in the	onducted i	n a manner that		

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$) Year 20

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 process. In addition, it is the intent that in the provision of services that ethical and 2 professional conflicts are avoided and that sound clinical decisions are made in the best 3 interests of the individuals receiving behavioral health services. As part of this process, the onitor the performance of the contract to ensure that these principles are holders are involved in the assessment, approval, provision, and use of ervices provided as a result of this contract.

nt of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical for delivery of notices of program reimbursement or other items referred ns related to provider appeals by electronic means consistent with the Transactions Act. The department shall implement this change effective 11 July 1, 2013, and prior to completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect 12 such changes.

13 MM.1. The department shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to reimburse the 14 price-based operating rate rather than the transition operating rate to any nursing facility 15 whose licensed bed capacity decreased by at least 30 beds after 2011 and whose occupancy 16 increased from less than 70 percent in 2011 to more than 80 percent in 2013. The department 17 shall have the authority to implement this reimbursement change effective July 1, 2015, and 18 prior to completion of any regulatory process in order to effect such change.

19 2. Effective July 1, 2017, the department shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to 20 increase the direct and indirect operating rates under the nursing facility price based 21 reimbursement methodology by 15 percent for nursing facilities where at least 80 percent of 22 the resident population have one or more of the following diagnoses: quadriplegia, traumatic 23 brain injury, multiple sclerosis, paraplegia, or cerebral palsy. In addition, a qualifying facility 24 must have at least 90 percent Medicaid utilization and a case mix index of 1.15 or higher in 25 fiscal year 2014. The department shall have the authority to implement this reimbursement 26 methodology change for rates on or after July 1, 2017, and prior to completion of any 27 regulatory process in order to effect such change.

3. Effective July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to pay nursing facilities located in the former Danville Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) the operating rates calculated for the Other MSA peer group. For purposes of calculating rates under the rebasing effective July 1, 2017, the department shall use the peer groups based on the existing regulations. For future rebasings, the department shall permanently move these facilities to the Other MSA peer group. The department shall have the authority to implement this reimbursement change effective July 1, 2017 and prior to completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.

37 NN. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend its State Plan under Title 38 XIX of the Social Security Act to implement reasonable restrictions on the amount of incurred 39 dental expenses allowed as a deduction from income for nursing facility residents. Such 40 limitations shall include: (i) that routine exams and x-rays, and dental cleaning shall be 41 limited to twice yearly; (ii) full mouth x-rays shall be limited to once every three years; and 42 (iii) deductions for extractions and fillings shall be permitted only if medically necessary as 43 determined by the department.

44 OO. Notwithstanding §32.1-325, et seq. and §32.1-351, et seq. of the Code of Virginia, and 45 effective upon the availability of subsidized private health insurance offered through a Health 46 Benefits Exchange in Virginia as articulated through the federal Patient Protection and 47 Affordable Care Act (PPACA), the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall 48 eliminate, to the extent not prohibited under federal law, Medicaid Plan First and FAMIS 49 Moms program offerings to populations eligible for and enrolled in said subsidized coverage 50 in order to remove disincentives for subsidized private healthcare coverage through publicly-51 offered alternatives. To ensure, to the extent feasible, a smooth transition from public 52 coverage, DMAS shall endeavor to phase out such coverage for existing enrollees once 53 subsidized private insurance is available through a Health Benefits Exchange in Virginia. The 54 department shall implement any necessary changes upon federal approval and prior to the 55 completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.

56 PP. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have authority to amend the State 57 Plans for Medical Assistance under Titles XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act, and any

·	interests of the mar
4	department shall me
5	met and that stakeh
6	behavioral health se
7	LL. The Departmen
8	Assistance to allow
9	to in the regulation
10	Uniform Electronic

ITEM 303.

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

	Item Details(\$)			Appropria
ITEM 303		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019
1	waivers thereof, to implement requirements of the fe			
2	Affordable Care Act (PPACA) as it pertains to implement			
3	eligibility determination and case management standard			
4	Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) methodology	· •		
5	authority to implement such standards and practices upon fe			
6	completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to	effect such cha	ange.	
7	QQ. Effective July 1, 2013, the Department of Medical Ass	istance Service	s shall establish	
8	a Medicaid Physician and Managed Care Liaison Committee			
9	representatives from the following organizations: the			
10	Physicians; the American Academy of Pediatricians - V	virginia Chapte	er; the Virginia	
11	College of Emergency Physicians; the American College o	f Obstetrics and	ł Gynecology –	
12	Virginia Section; Virginia Chapter, American College of	0.	•	
13	Society of Virginia; the Virginia Medical Group Mana	•		
14	Medical Society of Virginia. The committee shall also incl	•		
15	of the department's contracted managed care organizations	•		
16	Virginia Association of Health Plans. The committee wil		•	
17	investigate the implementation of quality, cost-effective he		· ·	
18 19	means to increase provider participation in the Me			
19 20	administrative obstacles to quality, cost-effective patient can			
20 21	as raised by the department or members of the committee.			
21 22	an Emergency Department Care Coordination work group from the Committee, including the Virginia College o			
22	Medical Society of Virginia, the Virginia Hospital and			
_	inconcur society of virginia, the virginia hospital and	i ilcanneare A	ssociation, the	

Virginia Academy of Family Physicians and the Virginia Association of Health Plans to

review the following issues: (i) how to improve coordination of care across provider types

of Medicaid "super utilizers"; (ii) the impact of primary care provider incentive funding on

improved interoperability between hospital and provider systems; and (iii) methods for formalizing a statewide emergency department collaboration to improve care and

treatment of Medicaid recipients and increase cost efficiency in the Medicaid program,

- 30 including recognized best practices for emergency departments. The committee shall meet 31 semi-annually, or more frequently if requested by the department or members of the 32 committee. The department, in cooperation with the committee, shall report on the 33 committee's activities annually to the Board of Medical Assistance Services and to the 34 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the 35 Department of Planning and Budget no later than October 1 each year. 36 RR. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall realign the billable activities 37 paid for individual supported employment provided under the Medicaid home- and community-based waivers to be consistent with job development and job placement services provided through employment services organizations that are reimbursed by the
- community-based waivers to be consistent with job development and job placement
 services provided through employment services organizations that are reimbursed by the
 Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services. The department shall have the
 authority to implement this reimbursement change effective July 1, 2013, and prior to the
 completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.
- 43 SS.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall seek federal authority through
 44 any necessary waiver(s) and/or State Plan authorization under Titles XIX and XXI of the
 45 Social Security Act to implement a comprehensive value-driven, market-based reform of
 46 the Virginia Medicaid/FAMIS programs.
- 47 2. The department is authorized to contract with qualified health plans to offer recipients a 48 Medicaid benefit package adhering to these principles. Any coordination of non-49 traditional behavioral health services covered under contract with qualified health plans or 50 through other means shall adhere to the principles outlined in paragraph EE.a. This 51 reformed service delivery model shall be mandatory, to the extent allowed under the 52 relevant authority granted by the federal government and shall, at a minimum, include (i) 53 limited high-performing provider networks and medical/health homes; (ii) financial 54 incentives for high quality outcomes and alternative payment methods; (iii) improvements 55 to encounter data submission, reporting, and oversight; (iv) standardization of 56 administrative and other processes for providers; and (v) support of the health information 57 exchange.
- 58

24

25

26

27

28 29

3. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall seek reforms to include all

Appropriations(\$) irst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020 ITEM 303. Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 2

3

4

5

6

7

30

31

32 33

34

35

36

37

38

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

remaining Medicaid populations and services, including long-term care and home- and community-based waiver services into cost-effective, managed and coordinated delivery systems. The department shall begin designing the process and obtaining federal authority to transition all remaining Medicaid beneficiaries into a coordinated delivery system. DMAS shall promulgate regulations to implement these provisions to be effective within 280 days of its enactment. The department may implement any changes necessary to implement these provisions prior to the promulgation of regulations undertaken in order to effect such changes.

8 4.a. Notwithstanding § 30-347, Code of Virginia, or any other provision of law, no later than 9 45 days upon the passage of House Bill 5001, the Department of Medical Assistance Services 10 shall have the authority to (1) amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance under Title XIX of 11 the Social Security Act, and any waivers thereof, to implement coverage for newly eligible individuals pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396d(y)(1)[2010] of the Patient Protection and 12 13 Affordable Care Act and (2) begin the process of implementing a § 1115 demonstration 14 project to transform the Medicaid program for newly eligible individuals pursuant to the 15 provisions of 4.a.(1) and eligible individuals enrolled in the existing Medicaid program. No 16 later than 150 days from the passage of House Bill 5001, DMAS shall submit the § 1115 17 demonstration waiver application to CMS for approval. If the State Plan amendments are 18 affirmatively approved by CMS prior to the submission of the waiver, Medicaid coverage for 19 newly eligible individuals may be implemented. If the State Plan amendment becomes 20 effective without affirmative action by CMS, coverage may begin upon submission of the 21 completed § 1115 demonstration waiver application, per CMS notification, but no later than 22 January 1, 2019. If the demonstration waiver cannot be completed by 150 days, despite a 23 good faith effort to complete the application, the department may request an extension from 24 the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The department 25 shall provide updates on the progress of the State Plan amendments and demonstration waiver 26 applications to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, or 27 their designees, upon request, and provide for participation in discussions with CMS staff. 28 The department shall respond to all requests for information from CMS on the State Plan 29 amendments and demonstration waiver applications in a timely manner.

b. At least 10 days prior to the submission of the application for the waiver of Title XIX of the Social Security Act, the department shall notify the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees of such pending application and provide a copy of the application. If the department receives an official letter from either Chairman raising an objection about the waiver during the 10-day period, the department shall make all reasonable attempts to address the objection and modify the waiver(s). If the department receives no objection, then the application may be submitted. Any waiver specifically authorized elsewhere in this item is not subject to this provision. Waiver renewals are not subject to the provisions of this paragraph.

39 c. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall include provisions to make referrals 40 to job training, education and job placement assistance for all unemployed, able-bodied adult 41 enrollees as allowed under current federal law or regulations through the State Plan 42 amendments, contracts, or other policy changes. DMAS shall also include provisions to foster 43 personal responsibility and prepare newly eligible enrollees for participation in commercial 44 health insurance plans to include use of private health plans, premium support for employer-45 sponsored insurance, health and wellness accounts, appropriate utilization of hospital 46 emergency room services, healthy behavior incentives, and enhanced fraud prevention efforts, 47 among others through the State Plan amendments, contracts, or other policy changes.

d. The demonstration project shall be designed to empower individuals to improve their health
 and well-being and gain employer sponsored coverage or other commercial health insurance
 coverage, while simultaneously ensuring the program's long-term fiscal sustainability. The
 demonstration project shall include the following elements in the design:

(i) two pathways for eligible individuals with incomes between 100 percent and 138 percent
of the federal poverty level, including income disregards, to obtain health care coverage:
enrollment in an existing Medicaid managed care plan, or premium assistance for the
purchase of employer-sponsored health insurance coverage if cost effective. The plans will
provide a comprehensive benefit package consistent with private market plans, compliant
with all mandated essential health benefits, and inclusive of current Medicaid covered mental
health and addiction recovery and treatment services. The demonstration shall include (1) the

		Item Details(\$)			
ITEM 303.	First Year	Second Year	Firs		
		FY2019	FY2020	FY	
1	development of a health and wellness account for eligib	le individuals	comprised of		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

development of a health and wellness account for eligible individuals, comprised of participant contributions and state funds to be used to fund the health insurance premiums and to ensure funds are available for the enrollee to cover out-of-pocket expenses for the deductible, with the ability to roll over the funds from the account into succeeding years if not fully used. The monthly premium amount for the enrollee shall be set on a sliding scale based on monthly income, not to exceed two percent of monthly income, nor be less than \$1 per month; (2) provisions for demonstration coverage to begin on the first day of the month following receipt of the premium payment or enrollment due to treatment of an acute illness; (3) provisions for institution of a grace period for premium payment, followed by a waiting period before re-enrollment if the premium is not paid by the participant or if the participant does not maintain continuous coverage; and (4) provisions to recover premium payments owed to the Commonwealth through debt set-off collections;

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

- (ii) provisions to enroll newly eligible individuals with incomes between 0 and 100
 percent of the federal poverty level, including income disregards, in existing Medicaid
 managed care plans with existing Medicaid benefits or in employer-sponsored health
 insurance plans, if cost effective. Such newly eligible enrollees shall be subject to existing
 Medicaid cost sharing provisions;
- 19 (iii) cost-sharing for eligible enrollees with incomes between 100 percent and 138 percent 20 of the federal poverty level, including income disregards, designed to promote healthy 21 behaviors such as the avoidance of tobacco use, and to encourage personal responsibility 22 and accountability related to the utilization of health care services such as the appropriate 23 use of emergency room services. However, such individuals who also meet the 24 exemptions listed in (iv) shall not be subject to premium and copayment requirements 25 more stringent than existing Medicaid law or regulations. Enrollees who comply with 26 provisions of the demonstration program, including healthy behavior provisions, may 27 receive a decrease in their monthly premiums and copayments, not to exceed 50 percent.
- 28 (iv) the establishment of the Training, Education, Employment and Opportunity Program 29 (TEEOP) for every able-bodied, working-age adult enrolled in the Medicaid program to 30 enable enrollees to increase their health and well-being through community engagement 31 leading to self-sufficiency. The TEEOP program shall not apply to: (1) children under the 32 age of 18 or individuals under the age of 19 who are participating in secondary education; 33 (2) individuals age 65 years and older; (3) individuals who qualify for medical assistance 34 services due to blindness or disability, including individuals who receive services pursuant 35 to a § 1915 waiver; (4) individuals residing in institutions; (5) individuals determined to 36 be medically frail; (6) individuals diagnosed with serious mental illness; (7) pregnant and 37 postpartum women; (8) former foster children under the age of 26; (9) individuals who are 38 the primary caregiver for a dependent, including a dependent child or adult dependent 39 with a disability; and (10) individuals who already meet the work requirements of the 40 TANF or SNAP programs. The TEEOP shall comply with guidance from CMS regarding 41 such programs and may include other exemptions that may be necessary to achieve the 42 TEEOP's goals of community engagement and improved health outcomes that are 43 approved by CMS.
- The TEEOP shall include provisions for gradually escalating participation in training,
 education, employment and community engagement opportunities through the program as
 follows:
- 47 a. beginning three months after enrollment, at least 20 hours per month;
- 48 b. beginning six months after enrollment, at least 40 hours per month;
- 49 c. beginning nine months after enrollment, at least 60 hours per month; and
- **50** d. beginning 12 months after enrollment, at least 80 hours per month;
- The TEEOP shall also include provisions for satisfaction of the requirement for
 participation in training, education, employment and community engagement
 opportunities through participation in job skills training; job search activities in
 conformity with Virginia Employment and Commission guidelines; education related to
 employment; general education, including participation in a program of preparation for the

D . 4 . 11 (4)

	Item I	Details(\$)
ITEM 303.	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020
General Education Development (GED) certificatio	n examination or com	munity college

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 2 courses leading to industry certifications or a STEM-H related degree or credential; 3 vocational education and training; subsidized or unsubsidized employment; community work 4 experience programs, community service or public service, excluding political activities, that 5 can reasonably improve work readiness; or caregiving services for a non-dependent relative or 6 other person with a chronic, disabling health condition. The department may waive the 7 requirement for participation in employment in areas of the Commonwealth with 8 unemployment rates equal to or greater than 150 percent of the statewide average; however, 9 requirements related to training, education and other community engagement opportunities 10 shall not be waived in any area of the Commonwealth.

11The TEEOP shall work with Virginia Workforce Centers or One-Stops to provide services to12Medicaid enrollees. Such services shall include career services for program enrollees, services13to link enrollees with industry certification and credentialing programs, including the New14Economy Workforce Credential Grant Program, and individualized case management15services.

16 The TEEOP shall, to the extent allowed under federal law, utilize federal and state funding
 17 available through the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Temporary Assistance for
 18 Needy Families program, the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, the Workforce
 19 Innovation and Opportunity Act, and other state and federal workforce development programs
 20 to support program enrollees.

Unless exempt, enrollees shall be ineligible to receive Medicaid benefits if, during any three
 months of the 12-month period beginning on the first day of enrollment, they fail to meet the
 TEEOP requirements and they will not be permitted to re-enroll until the end of such 12 month period, unless the failure to comply or report compliance was the result of a
 catastrophic event or circumstances beyond the beneficiary's control. However, enrollees shall
 be eligible to re-enroll in the program within such 12-month period upon demonstration of
 compliance with the TEEOP requirements.

(v) monitoring and oversight of the use of health care services to ensure appropriate utilization;

28

29

30

31

32

33

(vi) The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall develop a supportive employment and housing benefit targeted to high risk Medicaid beneficiaries with mental illness, substance use disorder, or other complex, chronic conditions who need intensive, ongoing support to obtain and maintain employment and stable housing.

e. The State Plan amendment and the demonstration waiver program shall include (i) systems
for determining eligibility for participation in the program, (ii) provisions for disenrollment if
federal funding is reduced or terminated, and (iii) provisions for monitoring, evaluating, and
assessing the effectiveness of the waiver program in improving the health and wellness of
program participants and furthering the objectives of the Medicaid program.

f. The department shall have the authority to promulgate emergency regulations to implement
these changes within 280 days or less from the enactment date of House Bill 5001. The
department shall have the authority to implement these changes prior to the completion of any
regulatory process undertake in order to effect such changes.

43 5. In the event that the increased federal medical assistance percentages for newly eligible 44 individuals included in 42 U.S.C. § 1396d(y)(1)[2010] of the PPACA are modified through 45 federal law or regulation from the methodology in effect on January 1, 2014, resulting in a 46 reduction in federal medical assistance as determined by the department in consultation with 47 the Department of Planning and Budget, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall 48 disenroll and eliminate coverage for individuals who obtained coverage through 42 U.S.C. § 49 1396d(y)(1) [2010] of the PPACA. The disenvolument process shall include written 50 notification to affected Medicaid beneficiaries, Medicaid managed care plans, and other 51 providers that coverage will cease as soon as allowable under federal law following the date 52 the department is notified of a reduction in Federal Medical Assistance Percentage.

TT. Effective July 1, 2014, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall replace the
 AP-DRG grouper with the APR-DRG grouper for hospital inpatient reimbursement. The
 department shall develop budget neutral case rates and Virginia-specific weights for the APR-

ITEM	303.	First Year	etails(\$) Second Year	Appropri First Year	Second Y
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	DRG grouper based on the FY 2011 base year. The departmed DRG weights by blending in 50 percent of the full APR-DRG FY 2014 AP-DRG weights in the first year and 75 percent of with 25 percent of the FY 2014 AP-DRG weights in the secon group and severity. FY 2014 AP-DRG weights shall be calcu FY 2014 AP-DRG weight for all claims in the base year that group and severity. Full APR-DRG weights shall be used in th years for each APR-DRG group and severity. The departmen implement these reimbursement changes effective July 1, 2014 any regulatory process in order to effect such changes.	weights with the full APR nd year for ea lated as a we at group to ea he third year a t shall have t	a 50 percent of -DRG weights ach APR-DRG ighted average ach APR-DRG and succeeding he authority to	FY2019	FY202
11 12 13	UU.1. Effective July 1, 2014, the Department of Medical Assis the current Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) method methodology:		-		
14 15 16 17 18	a) DSH eligible hospitals must have a total Medicaid Inpatient percent or higher in the base year using Medicaid days eligi Low Income Utilization Rate in excess of 25 percent and meet Eligibility for out of state cost reporting hospitals shall b utilization or on total Medicaid NICU utilization equal to	ble for Medi t other federa e based on t	care DSH or a l requirements. otal Medicaid		
19 20 21 22 23	b) Each hospital's DSH payment shall be equal to the DSH p hospital's eligible DSH days in a base year. Days reported in p FY 2011 will be the base year for FY 2015 prospective DS recalculated annually with an updated base year. DSH paymen federal limits.	provider fisca SH payments	l years in state . DSH will be		
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33	c) Eligible DSH days are the sum of all Medicaid inpatir rehabilitation days above 14 percent for each DSH hospital su of state cost reporting hospitals. Eligible DSH days for out of s shall be the higher of the number of eligible days based on sentence times Virginia Medicaid utilization (Virginia Medica Medicaid days) or the Medicaid NICU days above 14 per Medicaid utilization (Virginia NICU Medicaid days as a perc days). Eligible DSH days for out of state cost reporting hospita who have less than 12 percent Virginia Medicaid utilization sh that would have otherwise been eligible DSH days.	bject to speci state cost repor- the calculati- tid days as a p cent times V ent of total N als who qualit	al rules for out orting hospitals ion in the first percent of total Virginia NICU ICU Medicaid fy for DSH but		
34 35	d) Additional eligible DSH days are days that exceed 28 perc Virginia Type Two hospitals (excluding Children's Hospital o				
36	e) The DSH per diem shall be calculated in the following mann	ner:			
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	a. The DSH per diem for Type Two hospitals is calculated by DSH allocation by the sum of eligible DSH days for all Typ purposes of DSH, Type Two hospitals do not include Child Daughters (CHKD) or any hospital whose reimburser uncompensated care cost limit. The Type Two Hospital DSI amount of DSH paid to Type Two hospitals in state FY 2014 percent change in the federal allotment, including any rec Affordable Care Act, adjusted for the state fiscal year.	be Two DSH ren's Hospita ment exceed H allocation s 4 increased a	hospitals. For l of the Kings ls its federal shall equal the nnually by the		
45 46 47 48 49 50	b. The DSH per diem for State Inpatient Psychiatric Hospitals total State Inpatient Psychiatric Hospital DSH allocation by th The State Inpatient Psychiatric Hospital DSH allocation shal paid in state FY 2013 increased annually by the percent char including any reductions as a result of the Affordable Care fiscal year.	e sum of elig l equal the an ige in the fed	ible DSH days. mount of DSH eral allotment,		
51 52	c. The DSH per diem for CHKD shall be three times the DS hospitals.	SH per diem	for Type Two		
53 54	d. The DSH per diem for Type One hospitals shall be 17 times Two hospitals.	the DSH per	diem for Type		

Type One hospit H per dien Two hospitals. 54

Second Year FY2020

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

- 2. Each year, the department shall determine how much Type Two DSH has been reduced as a result of the Affordable Care Act and adjust the percent of cost reimbursed for outpatient hospital reimbursement.
- 3. The department shall convene the Hospital Payment Policy Advisory Council at least once
 a year to consider additional changes to the DSH methodology.
- 6 4. The department shall have the authority to implement these reimbursement changes
 7 effective July 1, 2014, and prior to completion of any regulatory process in order to effect
 8 such changes.
- 9 VV. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have authority to amend the State 10 Plans for Medical Assistance under Titles XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act, and any 11 waivers thereof, to implement requirements of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable 12 Care Act (PPACA), P.L. 111-148, as it pertains to implementation of Medicaid and CHIP 13 eligibility determination and case management standards and practices, including the 14 Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) methodology and, notwithstanding the 15 requirements of Code of Virginia §2.2-4000, et seq., the process for administrative appeals of 16 MAGI-related eligibility determinations. The department shall have authority to implement 17 such standards and practices upon federal approval and prior to the completion of any 18 regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such changes.
- 19 WW.1. Notwithstanding § 32.1-330 of the Code of Virginia, the Department of Medical 20 Assistance Services shall improve the preadmission screening process for individuals who 21 will be eligible for long-term care services, as defined in the state plan for medical assistance. 22 The community-based screening team shall consist of a licensed health care professional and 23 a social worker who are employees or contractors of the Department of Health or the local 24 department of social services, or other assessors contracted by the department. The 25 department shall not contract with any entity for whom there exists a conflict of interest. For 26 community-based screening for children, the screening shall be performed by an individual or 27 entity with whom the department has entered into a contract for the performance of such 28 screenings.
- 29 2. The department shall track and monitor all requests for screenings and report on those
 30 screenings that have not been completed within 30 days of an individual's request for
 31 screening. The screening teams and contracted entities shall use the reimbursement and
 32 tracking mechanisms established by the department.
- 33 3. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall promulgate regulations to implement
 34 these provisions to be effective within 280 days of its enactment. The department may
 35 implement any changes necessary to implement these provisions prior to the promulgation of
 36 regulations undertaken in order to effect such changes.
- 37 XX.1.a. There is hereby appropriated sum-sufficient nongeneral funds for the Department of 38 Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) to pay the state share of supplemental payments for 39 qualifying private hospital partners of Type One hospitals (consisting of state-owned teaching 40 hospitals) as provided in the State Plan for Medical Assistance Services. Qualifying private hospitals shall consist of any hospital currently enrolled as a Virginia Medicaid provider and 41 owned or operated by a private entity in which a Type One hospital has a non-majority 42 interest. The supplemental payments shall be based upon the reimbursement methodology 43 44 established for such payments in Attachments 4.19-A and 4.19-B of the State Plan for 45 Medical Assistance Services. DMAS shall enter into a transfer agreement with any Type One 46 hospital whose private hospital partner qualifies for such supplemental payments, under 47 which the Type One hospital shall provide the state share in order to match federal Medicaid 48 funds for the supplemental payments to the private hospital partner. The department shall 49 have the authority to implement these reimbursement changes consistent with the effective 50 date in the State Plan amendment approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 51 Services (CMS) and prior to completion of any regulatory process in order to effect such 52 changes.
- b. The department shall adjust capitation payments to Medicaid managed care organizations
 for the purpose of securing access to Medicaid hospital services for the qualifying private
 hospital partners of Type One hospitals (consisting of state-owned teaching hospitals). The
 department shall revise its contracts with managed care organizations to incorporate these

1 2

3

ITEM 303.

		Item I	Details(\$)	
ITEM 303		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	Fi F
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	supplemental capitation payments and provider payment red into a transfer agreement with any Type One hospital w qualifies for such supplemental payments, under which provide the state share in order to match federal Medicai payments to the private hospital partner. The department implement these reimbursement changes consistent with th the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) without approval from CMS.	hose private he the Type One d funds for the at shall have the he effective date	ospital partner hospital shall e supplemental ne authority to te approved by	
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	2.a. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall pr supplemental payments to Medicaid physician providers wi Eastern Virginia that is a political subdivision of the Comm supplemental payment shall be based on the difference bet rate approved by CMS and the payments otherwise made t shall have the authority to implement these reimbursement effective date in the State Plan amendment approved by CM any regulatory process in order to effect such changes.	th a medical sc nonwealth. The ween the avera o physicians. T it changes cons	hool located in a amount of the ge commercial The department sistent with the	
17 18 19 20 21 22 23	b. The department shall increase payments to Medicaid m the purpose of securing access to Medicaid physician service higher rates to physicians affiliated with a medical school le is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth subje department shall revise its contracts with managed care orgo supplemental capitation payments, and provider payment approval by CMS. No payment shall be made without	es in Eastern Vi ocated in Easter ct to applicab anizations to in- ent requirement	irginia, through rn Virginia that le limits. The corporate these nts, subject to	
24	c. Funding for the state share for these Medicaid payments is	authorized in I	Item 244.	
25 26	3.a. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMA amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance Services		-	

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34 35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance Services (State Plan) to implement a supplemental Medicaid payment for local government-owned nursing homes. The total supplemental Medicaid payment for local government-owned nursing homes shall be based on the difference between the Upper Payment Limit of 42 CFR §447.272 as approved by CMS and all other Medicaid payments subject to such limit made to such nursing homes. There is hereby appropriated sum-sufficient funds for DMAS to pay the state share of the supplemental Medicaid payment hereunder. However, DMAS shall not submit such State Plan amendment to CMS until it has entered into an intergovernmental agreement with eligible local government-owned nursing homes or the local government itself which requires them to transfer funds to DMAS for use as the state share for the supplemental Medicaid payment each nursing home is entitled to and to represent that each has the authority to transfer funds to DMAS and that the funds used will comply with federal law for use as the state share for the supplemental Medicaid payment. If a local government-owned nursing home or the local government itself is unable to comply with the intergovernmental agreement, DMAS shall have the authority to modify the State Plan. The department shall have the authority to implement the reimbursement change consistent with the effective date in the State Plan amendment approved by CMS and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.

44 b. If by June 30, 2017, the Department of Medical Assistance Services has not secured 45 approval from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services to use a minimum fee 46 schedule pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.6(c)(1)(iii) for local government-owned nursing 47 homes participating in Commonwealth Coordinated Care Plus (CCC Plus) at the same 48 level as and in lieu of the supplemental Medicaid payments authorized in Section XX.3.a., 49 then DMAS shall: (i) exclude Medicaid recipients who elect to receive nursing home 50 services in local government-owned nursing homes from CCC Plus; (ii) pay for such 51 excluded recipient's nursing home services on a fee-for-service basis, including the related 52 supplemental Medicaid payments as authorized herein; and (iii) prohibit CCC Plus 53 contracted health plans from in any way limiting Medicaid recipients from electing to 54 receive nursing home services from local government-owned nursing homes. The 55 department may include in CCC Plus Medicaid recipients who elect to receive nursing 56 home services in local government-owned nursing homes in the future when it has secured 57 federal CMS approval to use a minimum fee schedule as described above.

Appropriations(\$) 'irst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

Appropriations(\$) Second Year **First Year** FY2019 FY2020

4. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have the authority to amend the State 2 Plan for Medical Assistance Services to implement a supplemental payment for clinic services 3 furnished by the Virginia Department of Health (VDH) effective July 1, 2015. The total 4 supplemental Medicaid payment shall be based on the Upper Payment Limit approved by the 5 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services and all other Medicaid payments. VDH may 6 transfer general fund to the department from funds already appropriated to VDH to cover the 7 non-federal share of the Medicaid payments. The department shall have the authority to 8 implement the reimbursement change effective July 1, 2015, and prior to the completion of 9 any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such changes.

10 5. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to increase the supplemental physician payments for physicians employed at a 11 12 freestanding children's hospital serving children in Planning District 8 with more than 50 13 percent Medicaid inpatient utilization in fiscal year 2014 to the maximum allowed by the 14 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services within the limit of the appropriation provided for 15 this purpose. The total supplemental Medicaid payment shall be based on the Upper Payment 16 Limit approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services and all other Virginia 17 Medicaid fee-for-service payments. The department shall have the authority to implement 18 these reimbursement changes effective July 1, 2016, and prior to the completion of any 19 regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.

20 6.a. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall promulgate regulations to make 21 supplemental Medicaid payments to the primary teaching hospitals affiliated with a Liaison 22 Committee on Medical Education (LCME) accredited medical school located in Planning 23 District 23 that is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth and an LCME accredited 24 medical school located in Planning District 5 that has a partnership with a public university. 25 The amount of the supplemental payment shall be based on the reimbursement methodology established for such payments in Attachments 4.19-A and 4.19-B of the State Plan for 26 27 Medical Assistance and/or the department's contracts with managed care organizations. The department shall have the authority to implement these reimbursement changes consistent 28 29 with the effective date in the State Plan amendment or the managed care contracts approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and prior to completion of any 30 regulatory process in order to effect such changes. No payment shall be made without 31 32 approval from CMS.

- 33 b. Funding for the state share for these Medicaid payments is authorized in Item 244 and Item 34 4-5.03.
- 35 c. Payments authorized in this subsection shall sunset after the effective date of a statewide supplemental payment for private acute care hospitals authorized in Item 3-5.16. For purposes 36 37 of the upper payment limit, the department shall prorate the upper payment limit if the sunset 38 date is mid-fiscal year. The department shall have the authority to implement this change prior 39 to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.
- 40 7. The department shall amend the State plan for Medical Assistance to implement a 41 supplemental inpatient and outpatient payment for Chesapeake Regional Hospital based on 42 the difference between reimbursement with rates using an adjustment factor of 100% minus 43 current authorized reimbursement subject to the inpatient and outpatient Upper Payment 44 Limits for non-state government owned hospitals. The department shall include in its 45 contracts with managed care organizations a minimum fee schedule for Chesapeake Regional 46 Hospital consistent with rates using an adjustment factor of 100%. The department shall 47 adjust capitation payments to Medicaid managed care organizations to fund this minimum fee 48 schedule. Both the contract changes and capitation rate adjustments shall be compliant with 49 42 C.F.R. 438.6(c)(1)(iii) and subject to CMS approval. Prior to submitting the State Plan 50 Amendment or making the managed care contract changes, Chesapeake Regional Hospital shall enter into an agreement with the department to transfer the non-federal share for these 51 52 payments. The department shall have the authority to implement these reimbursement 53 changes consistent with the effective date(s) approved by the Centers for Medicare and 54 Medicaid (CMS). No payments shall be made without CMS approval.
- 55 8.a. There is hereby appropriated sum-sufficient nongeneral funds for the department to pay 56 the state share of supplemental payments for nursing homes owned by Type One hospitals 57 (consisting of state-owned teaching hospitals) as provided in the State Plan for Medical

1

ITEM 303.

ITEM 303.		Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Firs FY
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Assistance Services. The total supplemental payment shal between the Upper Payment Limit of 42 CFR § 447.272 a other Medicaid payments subject to such limit made to such enter into a transfer agreement with any Type One hospital for such supplemental payments, under which the Type O state share in order to match federal Medicaid funds for the department shall have the authority to implement these reim with the effective date in the State Plan amendment app completion of any regulatory process in order to effect a	as approved by nursing homes whose nursing l ne hospital sha supplemental j bursement char roved by CMS	CMS and all bome qualifies and provide the bayments. The ges consistent	
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	b. The department shall adjust capitation payments to organizations to fund a minimum fee schedule compliant witt 438.6(c)(1)(iii) at a level consistent with the State Plan ame nursing homes owned by Type One hospitals. The departm with managed care organizations to incorporate these supplies and provider payment requirements. DMAS shall enter into Type One hospitals whose nursing home qualifies for such significant which the Type One hospital shall provide the state share. Medicaid funds for the supplemental payments. The departm implement these reimbursement changes consistent with the CMS. No payment shall be made without approval from C	h requirements endment author nent shall revis lemental capita a transfer agree upplemental pa re in order to ent shall have t e effective dat	in 42 C.F.R. § ized above for e its contracts tion payments ment with any yments, under match federal he authority to	
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	YY. The Department of Medical Assistance Services sha Medical Assistance to provide coverage for cessation service pharmacology, group and individual counseling, and other the most current version of or an official update to the Clinic Tobacco Use and Dependence" published by the Public Department of Health and Human Services. These services a requirements. The department shall have authority to im change effective July 1, 2014 and prior to the completion undertaken in order to effect such changes.	s for tobacco u treatment serv al Health Guide Health Servic shall be subject plement this re	sers, including ices including eline "Treating ee of the U.S. to copayment eimbursement	
30 31 32 33	ZZ. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall ha Section $1902(a)(10)(A)(i)(IX)$ of the federal Social Secur benefits up until the age of 26 to individuals who are or we the age of 18 in any state.	ity Act to prov	vide Medicaid	
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42	AAA.1.a The Department of Medical Assistance Service demonstration project (Project Number 11-W-00297/3) to through the project to individuals with serious mental illnes Income eligibility shall be modified to limit services to seri- effective household incomes up to 60 percent of the fede individuals enrolled in this Medicaid demonstration projec and 100% of the Federal Poverty Level as of May 15, 2015 program eligibility rules, shall maintain enrollment in the eligibility renewal period or July 1, 2016, whichever comes f	o modify eligib s to be effective ously mentally ral poverty lev t with incomes 5 who continue lemonstration t	ility provided e July 1, 2015. ill adults with vel (FPL). All between 61% to meet other until their next	

555

Appropriations(\$) cst Year Second Year Y2019 FY2020

b. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the Medicaid demonstration project described in paragraph AAA.1.a. to increase the income eligibility for adults with serious mental illness from 60 to 80 percent of the federal poverty level effective July 1, 2016 and from 80 to 100 percent of the federal poverty level effective

provided through the agency's Behavioral Health Services Administrator.

following services: (i) primary care office visits including diagnostic and treatment

services performed in the physician's office, (ii) outpatient specialty care, consultation,

and treatment, (iii) outpatient hospital including observation and ambulatory diagnostic

procedures, (iv) outpatient laboratory, (v) outpatient pharmacy, (vi) outpatient

telemedicine, (vii) medical equipment and supplies for diabetic treatment, (viii) outpatient

psychiatric treatment, (ix) mental health case management, (x) psychosocial rehabilitation

assessment and psychosocial rehabilitation services, (xi) mental health crisis intervention,

(xii) mental health crisis stabilization, (xiii) therapeutic or diagnostic injection, (xiv)

behavioral telemedicine, (xv) outpatient substance abuse treatment services, and (xvi)

intensive outpatient substance abuse treatment services. Care coordination, Recovery

Navigation (peer supports), crisis line and prior authorization for services shall be

43 44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

October 1, 2017. Effective October 1, 2017, the department shall amend the Medicaid demonstration project to include the provision of addiction recovery and treatment services, 3 including partial day hospitalization and residential treatment services. The department shall 4 have authority to implement necessary changes upon federal approval and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such changes.

ITEM 303.

1 2

5

18

19

20

21

22 23

24

25

26

27

28

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42 43

6 c. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in cooperation with the Department of 7 Social Services and the League of Social Service Executives, shall provide information and 8 conduct outreach activities with the Department of Corrections and local and regional jails to 9 increase access to the Medicaid demonstration waiver for individuals with serious mental 10 illness who are preparing to be released from custody, or are under the supervision of state or 11 local community corrections programs.

12 d. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in cooperation with the Department of 13 Social Services and the League of Social Service Executives, shall provide information and 14 conduct outreach activities with the Department of Corrections and local and regional jails to 15 increase access to the Medicaid demonstration waiver for individuals with serious mental 16 illness who are preparing to be released from custody, or are under the supervision of state or 17 local community corrections programs.

2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services is authorized to amend the State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act to add coverage for comprehensive dental services to pregnant women receiving services under the Medicaid program to include: (i) diagnostic, (ii) preventive, (iii) restorative, (iv) endodontics, (v) periodontics, (vi) prosthodontics both removable and fixed, (vii) oral surgery, and (viii) adjunctive general services.

- 3. The Department of Medical Assistance Services is authorized to amend the FAMIS MOMS and FAMIS Select demonstration waiver (No. 21-W-00058/3) for FAMIS MOMS enrollees to add coverage for dental services to align with pregnant women's coverage under Medicaid.
- 4. The Department of Medical Assistance Services is authorized to amend the State Plan under Title XXI of the Social Security Act to plan to allow enrollment for dependent children of state employees who are otherwise eligible for coverage.
- 29 5. The department shall have authority to implement necessary changes upon federal approval 30 and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such 31 changes.
 - BBB. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance Services to eliminate the requirement for pending, reviewing and reducing fees for emergency room claims for 99283 codes. The department shall have the authority to implement this reimbursement change effective July 1, 2015, and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.
 - CCC. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to increase the supplemental physician payments for practice plans affiliated with a freestanding children's hospital with more than 50 percent Medicaid inpatient utilization in fiscal year 2009 to the maximum allowed by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. The department shall have the authority to implement these reimbursement changes effective July 1, 2015, and prior to completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such change.
- 44 DDD. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall amend its July 1, 2016, 45 managed care contracts in order to conform to the requirement pursuant to House Bill 1942 / 46 Senate Bill 1262, passed during the 2015 Regular Session, for prior authorization of drug 47 benefits.
- 48 EEE.1. Out of this appropriation, $\frac{1.450,000}{1.400,000}$ the first year and 49 $\frac{22,700,000}{2,350,000}$ the second year from the general fund and $\frac{1,450,000}{1,400,000}$ the 50 first year and \$2,700,000\$2,250,000 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be used for 51 supplemental payments to fund the second and third years of graduate medical education for 52 15 funded slots for residents who began their residencies in July 2017, the first and second 53 years of graduate medical education of 1413 funded slots for residents beginning their 54 residencies in July 2018, and the first year of graduate medical education of 2520 funded slots

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 30	3.	First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1	for residencies in July 2019, and two one year post graduat	e fellowships in	July 2019.		

2 2. The supplemental payment for each qualifying residency slot shall be \$100,000 3 annually minus any Medicare residency payment for which the sponsoring institution is 4 eligible. For any residency program at a facility whose Medicaid payments are capped by 5 the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, the supplemental payments for each 6 qualifying residency slot shall be \$50,000 from the general fund annually minus any 7 Medicare residency payments for which the residency program is eligible. Supplemental 8 payments shall be made for up to four years for each qualifying resident. Payments shall 9 be made quarterly following the same schedule used for other medical education 10 payments.

- 113. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall submit a State Plan amendment12based on the authorization in EEE.1. of this item to make supplemental payments for13graduate medical education residency slots. The supplemental payments are subject to14federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services approval. The department shall have15the authority to promulgate emergency regulations to implement this amendment within16280 days or less from the enactment of this Act.
- 4.a. Effective July 1, 2017, the department shall make supplemental payments to the following sponsoring institutions for the specified number of primary care residencies:
 Sentara Norfolk General (2 residencies), Carilion Medical Center (6 residencies), Centra Lynchburg General Hospital (1 residency), Riverside Regional Medical Center (2
 residencies), Bon Secours St. Francis Medical Center (2 residencies). The department shall make supplemental payments to Carilion Medical Center for 2 psychiatry residencies.
- b. Effective July 1, 2018, the department shall make supplemental payments to the
 following sponsoring institutions for the specified number of primary care residencies:
 Sentara Norfolk General (21 residencies residency), Maryview Hospital (1 residency) and
 Carilion Medical Center (6 residencies). The department shall make supplemental
 payments to Carilion Medical Center for 2 psychiatric residencies and to
 Sentara Norfolk General for 1 OB/GYN residency; and 2 psychiatric residencies; and 1
 urology residency.

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

- c. Effective July 1, 2019, the department shall make supplemental payments to the following sponsoring institutions for the specified number of primary care residencies: Sentara Norfolk General (1 residency), Maryview Hospital (1 residency), Carilion Medical Center (6 residencies), Centra Health (2 residencies), and Riverside Regional Medical Center (2 residencies). The department shall make supplemental payments to Inova Fairfax Hospital for 1 General Surgery residency and to Carilion Medical Center for 2 psychiatric residencies. The department shall make supplemental payments to Sentara Norfolk General for 2 psychiatric residencies, 1 OB/GYN residency, and 2 urology residencies. The department shall make supplements to the University of Virginia Health System for a one year fellowship in Addiction Medicine and to the Virginia Commonwealth University Health System for a one year fellowship in Addiction Medicine.
- 43 5. Preference shall be given for residency slots located in underserved areas. Applications 44 for slots that involve multiple medical care providers collaborating in training residents 45 and that involve providing residents the opportunity to train in underserved areas are 46 encouraged. A majority of the new residency slots funded each year shall be for primary 47 care. The department shall adopt criteria for primary care, high need specialties and 48 underserved areas as developed by the Virginia Health Workforce Development 49 Authority. Beginning July 1, 2018, the department shall also review and consider 50 applications from non-hospital sponsoring institutions, such as Federally Qualified Health 51 Centers (FQHCs).
- 52 6. If the number of qualifying residency slots exceeds the available number of
 53 supplemental payments, the Virginia Health Workforce Development Authority shall
 54 determine which new residency slots to fund based on priorities developed by the
 55 authority.
- 56 7. The sponsoring institution will be eligible for the supplemental payments as long as it

338

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

maintains the number of residency slots in total and by category as a result of the increase. The sponsoring institutions must certify by June 1 each year that they continue to meet the criteria for the supplemental payments and report any changes during the year to the number of residents.

ITEM 303.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

8. The department shall require all sponsoring institutions receiving Medicaid medical education funding to report annually by September 15 on the number of residents in total and by specialty/subspecialty. Medical education funding includes payments for graduate medical education (GME) and indirect medical education (IME).

9. The Virginia Health Workforce Authority shall study options to help institutions in underserved and rural areas acquire and maintain specialists and instructors vital to maximize the quality of residency programs and report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2018.

FFF.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in consultation with the appropriate
 stakeholders, shall amend the state plan for medical assistance and/or seek federal authority
 through an 1115 demonstration waiver, as soon as feasible, to provide coverage of inpatient
 detoxification, inpatient substance abuse treatment, residential detoxification, residential
 substance abuse treatment, and peer support services to Medicaid individuals in the Fee-for Service and Managed Care Delivery Systems.

19 2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have the authority to make 20 programmatic changes in the provision of all Substance Abuse Treatment Outpatient, 21 Community Based and Residential Treatment services (group homes and facilities) for individuals with substance abuse disorders in order to ensure parity between the substance 22 23 abuse treatment services and the medical and mental health services covered by the 24 department and to ensure comprehensive treatment planning and care coordination for 25 individuals receiving behavioral health and substance use disorder services. The department 26 shall ensure appropriate utilization and cost efficiency, and adjust reimbursement rates within 27 the limits of the funding appropriated for this purpose based on current industry standards. 28 The department shall consider all available options including, but not limited to, service 29 definitions, prior authorization, utilization review, provider qualifications, and reimbursement 30 rates for the following Medicaid services: substance abuse day treatment for pregnant women, 31 substance abuse residential treatment for pregnant women, substance abuse case management, 32 opioid treatment, substance abuse day treatment, and substance abuse intensive outpatient. 33 Any amendments to the State Plan or waivers initiated under the provisions of this paragraph 34 shall not exceed funding appropriated in this Act for this purpose. The department shall have 35 the authority to promulgate regulations to implement these changes within 280 days or less from the enactment date of this Act. 36

37 3. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical 38 Assistance and any waivers thereof to include peer support services to children and adults 39 with mental health conditions and/or substance use disorders. The department shall work with 40 its contractors, the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, and 41 appropriate stakeholders to develop service definitions, utilization review criteria and provider 42 qualifications. Any amendments to the State Plan or waivers initiated under the provisions of 43 this paragraph shall not exceed funding appropriated in this Act for this purpose. The 44 department shall have the authority to promulgate regulations to implement these changes 45 within 280 days or less from the enactment date of this Act.

46 4. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall, prior to the submission of any state
47 plan amendment or waivers to implement paragraphs FFF.1., FFF.2., and FFF.3., submit a
48 plan detailing the changes in provider rates, new services added, other programmatic changes,
49 and a certification of budget neutrality to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget
50 and the Chairmen of the House Appropriation and Senate Finance Committees.

51GGG. The Department of Medical Assistances shall amend the State Plan for Medical52Assistance to convert the specialized care rates to a prospective rate consistent with the53existing cost-based methodology by adding inflation to the per diem costs subject to existing54ceilings for direct, indirect and ancillary costs from the most recent settled cost report prior to55the state fiscal year for which the rates are being established. The same inflation adjustment56shall apply to plant costs for specialized care facilities that do not have prospective capital57rates that are based on fair rental value. The department shall use the state fiscal year rate

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

methodology recently adopted for regular nursing facilities. Partial year inflation shall be applied to per diem costs if the provider fiscal year end is different than the state fiscal year. Ceilings shall also be maintained by state fiscal year. The department shall have the authority to implement these changes effective July 1, 2016, and prior to completion of any regulatory process to effect such changes.

ITEM 303.

1

2

3

4

5

6 HHH. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS), in consultation with the
7 appropriate stakeholders, shall seek federal authority via a state plan amendment to cover
8 low-dose computed tomography (LDCT) lung cancer screenings for high-risk adults. The
9 department shall promulgate emergency regulations to implement this amendment within
10 280 days or less from the enactment of this Act.

- III. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall not expend any appropriation for
 an approved Delivery System Reform Incentive Program (DSRIP) §1115 waiver unless
 the General Assembly appropriates the funding. The department shall notify the Chairmen
 of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees within 15 days of any final
 negotiated waiver agreement with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.
- 16 JJJ. Effective July 1, 2017, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend 17 the managed care regulations to specify that all contracts with health plans in a Medicaid 18 managed care delivery model, including long-term services and supports, require 19 reimbursement to nursing facility and specialized care services at no less than the 20 Medicaid established per diem rate for Medicaid covered days, using the department's 21 methodologies, unless the managed care organization and the nursing facility or 22 specialized care services provider mutually agree to an alternative payment. The 23 department shall have authority to implement this provision prior to the completion of any 24 regulatory process in order to effect such change.
- KKK.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall monitor the capacity
 available under the Upper Payment Limit (UPL) for all hospital supplemental payments
 and adjust payments accordingly when the UPL cap is reached. The department shall
 make an adjustment to stay under the UPL cap by reducing or eliminating as necessary
 supplemental payments to hospitals based on when the first supplemental payments were
 actually made so that the newest supplemental payments to hospitals would be impacted
 first and so on.
- 32 2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall have the authority to implement
 33 reimbursement changes deemed necessary to meet the requirements of this paragraph prior
 34 to the completion of any regulatory process in order to effect such changes.
- 35 LLL.1: Effective no later than January 1, 2019By October 1, 2019, the Department of 36 Medical Assistance Services is authorized to shall require consumer-directed aides 37 providing personal care, respite care and companion services in the Medicaid 38 Commonwealth Coordinated Care (CCC) Plus Waiver and Developmental Disability 39 waiver programs and the Early and Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) 40 program to utilize an Electronic Visit Verification (EVV) system. The department is 41 authorized to contract with a vendor to provide access to an EVV system for use by 42 consumer-directed aides.
- 43 2. For personal care, respite care and companion services agencies, the department shall
 44 work with the appropriate stakeholders to develop standards for electronic visit
 45 verification systems and certification requirements to ensure EVV systems used by such
 46 agencies meet all federal requirements and are capable of providing the necessary data the
 47 department may require.
- 48 3. Nothing stated above shall apply to respite services provided by a DBHDS licensed
 49 provider in a DBHDS licensed program site such as a group home, sponsored residential
 50 home, supervised living, supported living or similar facility/location licensed to provide
 51 respite, as allowed by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid.
- 52 4. The department shall ensure that implementation of electronic visit verification
 53 complies with all requirements of the federal Centers of Medicare and Medicaid Services.
 54 The department shall have authority to implement these provisions prior to the completion
 55 of any regulatory process in order to effect such changes.

		Item Details(\$)		
ITEM 303		First Year Second Year		First \
		FY2019	FY2020	FY2
1	MMM. Effective July 1, 2017, the Department of Medical A	Assistance Servi	ces shall amend	

Appropriations(\$) irst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2 the State Plan for Medical Assistance to increase the formula for indirect medical education 3 (IME) for freestanding children's hospitals with greater than 50 percent Medicaid utilization 4 in 2009 as a substitute for DSH payments. The formula for these hospitals for indirect medical 5 education for inpatient hospital services provided to Medicaid patients but reimbursed by 6 capitated managed care providers shall be identical to the formula for Type One hospitals. 7 The IME payments shall continue to be limited such that total payments to freestanding 8 children's hospitals with greater than 50 percent Medicaid utilization do not exceed the federal 9 uncompensated care cost limit to which disproportionate share hospital payments are 10 subject, excluding third party reimbursement for Medicaid eligible patients. The department 11 shall have the authority to implement these changes effective July 1, 2017, and prior to 12 completion of any regulatory action to effect such changes.

- 13 NNN. Effective July 1, 2019, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall increase
 14 the rates for agency and consumer directed personal care, respite and companion services in
 15 the home and community based services waivers and Early Periodic Screening, and Diagnosis
 16 and Treatment (EPSDT) program by two percent. The department shall have the authority to
 17 implement these changes prior to completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to
 18 effect such change.
- OOO. The Department of Planning and Budget, in cooperation with the Department of
 Medical Assistance Services, the Department of Social Services and other agencies as
 necessary, shall transfer appropriations across items, service areas and agencies within the
 budget to properly account for the costs and savings of the implementation of Medicaid
 coverage of newly eligible individuals pursuant to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
 Act, including the Training, Education, Employment and Opportunity Program (TEEOP),
 consistent with the intent of the General Assembly.
- PPP. For the period beginning September 1, 2016 until 180 days after publication and
 distribution of the Developmental Disabilities Waivers provider manual by the Department of
 Medical Assistance Services (DMAS), retraction of payment from Developmental Disabilities
 Waivers providers following an audit by DMAS or one of its contractors is only permitted
 when the audit points identified are supported by the Code of Virginia, regulations, DMAS
 general providers manuals, or DMAS Medicaid Memos in effect during the date of services
 being audited.
- QQQ. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall review of the rates paid to
 residential psychiatric treatment facilities and determine if those rates are appropriate for
 those facilities. The department shall require residential psychiatric treatment facilities to
 submit cost reports to be used to conduct its review. The department shall report its findings
 to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by October 1,
 2019.
- 39 RRR. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall submit a report annually on all 40 supplemental payments made to hospitals through the Medicaid program. This report shall 41 include information for each hospital and by type of supplemental payment (Disproportionate 42 Share Hospital, Graduate Medical Education, Indirect Medical Education, Upper Payment 43 Limit program, and others). The report shall include total Medicaid payments from all sources 44 and calculate the percent of overall payments that are supplemental payments. Furthermore, it 45 shall include a description of each type of supplemental payment and the methodology used to 46 calculate the payments. Each report shall reflect the data for the prior three fiscal years and 47 shall be submitted to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 48 Committees by September 1 each year.
- 49 SSS. Effective July 1, 2018, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the 50 State Plan for Medical Assistance to make the following changes. The department shall: (i) 51 eliminate eligibility for Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) payments for Children's 52 National Medical Center (CNMC); (ii) increase the annual indirect medical education (IME) 53 payments for CNMC by the amount of DSH the hospital was eligible for in fiscal year 2018; 54 and (iii) reduce the Type 2 DSH allocation by this same amount. The department shall have 55 the authority to implement these changes effective July 1, 2018, and prior to completion of 56 any regulatory action to effect such change.
- 57 TTT.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall work with stakeholders to

ITEM 303. First Year Second Year FY2019 Fy2019 FY2019 Second Year I review and adjust medical necessity criteria for Medicaid-funded narrsing services including private dup narrsing, salidal cares models including brivate dup narrsing, salidal cares models including brivate dup narrsing, salidal and use of integrated care models including brivate status medical restaurces in medical treatment, new technologies, and nat XXI of the Social Security Act to include changes to services evered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, and rates and rate medioal guest oprivate dup narrsing. The adjustments to these services shall meet the needs of members and maintain budget neurality by not requiring any additional experiment shall bave the authority to implement these changes to be effective July 1, 2019. The department shall sub nave authority to promulgate any mergency regulators for a services. 11 2019. The department shall sub nave authority to promulgate any entergency regulators in the nactment due to the sace. The department shall sub nave authority to promulgate any mergency regulators and services and the recenter duping the scheme of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. 30 days prior to implementation of such changes. 13 7019. The department shall subnit a report and estimates of any projected cost and the recenter advisory that comment and senate Finance Committees. 30 days prior to implementation of such changes. 14 2010. U.U.Effective July 1, 2018. the Department of Medical Assistance Services covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, rinthmorement methodologies for private dup naring advisors and daraset one implement the m				Details(\$)	Appropri	
2 including private duty norsing, skilled nursing, and home health. The department shall adjust the medical necessity criteria to reflect advances in medical treatment, new technologies, and use of integrated care models including behavioral supports. The department shall have the authority to annel the necessary waiver(s) and the State Plan under Titles XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act to include changes to services covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, and rates and rate methodologies for private duty nursing. The adjustments to these services shall meet the necks of members and maintain hudge neutrinity by not requiring any additional expenditure of general fund beyond the current projected appropriation for such nursing services. 11 2. The department shall have authority to implement these changes to be effective July 1, 2019. The department hall also have authority to prumalgue any emergency regulations required to implement these necessary waivers? Strom the enactment of the services and the services and the services and the services and the service services and the service services and any projected constraints of any projected constraints of any projected constraints of the floates Appropriate and sense thromes 200 days prior to implementation of such changes. 18 3. The department shall waive with stakeholders to review changes to services covered, provider qualifications, rates and rate methodologies for private duty nursing services, and make recommenduions to the Changes. 21 UUU. Effective July 1, 2018, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall explore private score to chology haved platforms and service delivery options to allow qualified, licensed provider qualifications, rate changes that would be required nucluing the services covered, provider qualifications (changes	ITEM	[303.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Yea FY2020
13 2019. The department shall also have authority to promulgate any emergency regulations required to implement these necessary changes within 230 days or less from the enactment dated of this set. The department shall submit a report and estimates of any projected cost savings to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees 30 days prior to implementation of such changes. 18 3. The department shall work with stakeholders to review changes to services covered, provider qualifications, rates and rate methodologies for private day nursing services, and make recommendations to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 15, 2018. 212 UUU. Effective July 1, 2018, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall explore private sector technology based platforms and service delivery options to allow qualified. Iteensed providers to deliver the Consumer-Directed Agency with Choice model in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The department shall work with stakeholders to examine this model of care and assess the changes that would be required including the services covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, reimbursement methodologies and rates to implement the model. The department shall submit a report on its findings to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 1, 2018. 31 VVV. Effective July 1, 2019, the department shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance Carlify payment rules for new ursing homes or renovations that qualify for mid-year rate adjustments, to include the following: 31 I. For any facility whose Fair Rental Value report has less than 12 months of experience, the department shall develor a cuaring veschedue thatr represents average sta	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	including private duty nursing, skilled nursing, and home h adjust the medical necessity criteria to reflect advances technologies, and use of integrated care models including department shall have the authority to amend the necessary under Titles XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act to in covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity cr methodologies for private duty nursing. The adjustments to t needs of members and maintain budget neutrality by no expenditure of general fund beyond the current projected app	ealth. The de in medical t g behavioral waiver(s) and nclude chan iteria, and hese services t requiring	epartment shall reatment, new supports. The d the State Plan ges to services rates and rate s shall meet the any additional		
19provider qualifications, rates and rate methodologies for private dury nursing services, and make recommendations to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 15, 2018.22UUU. Effective July 1, 2018, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall explore private sector technology based platforms and service delivery options to allow qualified, licensed providers to deliver the Consumer-Directed Agency with Choice model in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The department shall work with stakeholders to examine this model of care and assess the changes that would be required including the services covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, reimbursement methodologies and rates to implement the model. The department shall submit a report on its findings to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 1, 2018.31VVV. Effective July 1, 2019, the department shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to clarify payment rules for new nursing homes or renovations that qualify for mid-year rate adjustments, to include the following:341. For any facility whose Fair Rental Value report has less than 12 months of experience, the department shall develop an occupancy schedule that represents average statewide occupancy by month of operation for use in calculating the per diem rate in fleu of a minimum occupancy requirement or actual occupancy.382. Any new beds or renovations placed in service between the reporting year and the rate year.414. Costs shall be treated as a mid-year rate adjustment. No new rate will be made after April 30. Rate updates that fall between May 1 and June 30 shall be effective July 1 of the same year.423. The department shall annualize real e	13 14 15 16	2019. The department shall also have authority to promulgate required to implement these necessary changes within 280 day dated of this act. The department shall submit a report and est savings to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Ser	e any emerge vs or less from timates of any	ncy regulations n the enactment y projected cost		
 private sector technology based platforms and service delivery options to allow qualified, licensed providers to deliver the Consumer-Directed Agency with Choice model in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The department shall work with stakeholders to examine this model of care and assess the changes that would be required including the services covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, reimbursement methodologies and rates to implement the model. The department shall submit a report on its findings to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 1, 2018. VVV. Effective July 1, 2019, the department shall amend the State Plan for Medical Assistance to clarify payment rules for new nursing homes or renovations that qualify for mid-year rate adjustments, to include the following: 1. For any facility whose Fair Rental Value report has less than 12 months of experience, the department shall develop an occupancy schedule that represents average statewide occupancy by month of operation for use in calculating the per diem rate in lieu of a minimum occupancy requirement or actual occupancy. 2. Any new beds or renovations placed in service between the reporting year and the rate year. 3. The department shall annualize real estate taxes, property taxes and property insurance costs that do not represent a full year's cost. 4. Costs shall be based on currently available documentation at the time but are subject to audit. The department shall annualize real estate taxes, property taxes and property insurance costs that do not represent a full year's cost. 4. Costs shall be based on currently available documentation at the time but are subject to audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estimate costs for which there is inadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequent documentation or audit for a current rate year shall be applied beginning with the next rate year. 4. Costs	19 20	provider qualifications, rates and rate methodologies for priva make recommendations to the Chairmen of the House Approp	te duty nursii	ng services, and		
 Assistance to clarify payment rules for new nursing homes or renovations that qualify for mid-year rate adjustments, to include the following: I. For any facility whose Fair Rental Value report has less than 12 months of experience, the department shall develop an occupancy schedule that represents average statewide occupancy by month of operation for use in calculating the per diem rate in lieu of a minimum occupancy requirement or actual occupancy. Any new beds or renovations placed in service between the reporting year and the rate year shall be treated as a mid-year rate adjustment. No new rate will be made after April 30. Rate updates that fall between May 1 and June 30 shall be effective July 1 of the same year. The department shall annualize real estate taxes, property taxes and property insurance costs that do not represent a full year's cost. 4. Costs shall be based on currently available documentation at the time but are subject to audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estimate costs for which there is inadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequent documentation or audit for a current rate year shall be applied beginning with the next rate year. S. The department shall have 15 days from the date of the provider's submission to determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a rate for a new or renovated facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the filing is deemed incomplete to submit the required information. The deadline for setting the rate shall be extended for 30 days after the filing is deemed complete. 6. Providers may propose a phased renovation subject to approval by the department. The 	23 24 25 26 27 28 29	private sector technology based platforms and service deliver licensed providers to deliver the Consumer-Directed Agenc Commonwealth of Virginia. The department shall work with model of care and assess the changes that would be requi covered, provider qualifications, medical necessity criteria, re and rates to implement the model. The department shall subm the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance	y options to y with Choic stakeholders ired includir imbursement nit a report of	allow qualified, ce model in the to examine this ng the services methodologies n its findings to		
 the department shall develop an occupancy schedule that represents average statewide occupancy by month of operation for use in calculating the per diem rate in lieu of a minimum occupancy requirement or actual occupancy. 2. Any new beds or renovations placed in service between the reporting year and the rate year shall be treated as a mid-year rate adjustment. No new rate will be made after April 30. Rate updates that fall between May 1 and June 30 shall be effective July 1 of the same year. 3. The department shall annualize real estate taxes, property taxes and property insurance costs that do not represent a full year's cost. 4. Costs shall be based on currently available documentation at the time but are subject to audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estimate costs for which there is inadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequent documentation or audit for a current rate year shall be applied beginning with the next rate year. 5. The department shall have 15 days from the date of the provider's submission to determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a rate for a new or renovated facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the filing is deemed incomplete to submit the required information. The deadline for setting the rate shall be extended for 30 days after the filing is deemed complete. 6. Providers may propose a phased renovation subject to approval by the department. The 	32	Assistance to clarify payment rules for new nursing homes or				
 39 year shall be treated as a mid-year rate adjustment. No new rate will be made after April 40 30. Rate updates that fall between May 1 and June 30 shall be effective July 1 of the same 41 year. 42 3. The department shall annualize real estate taxes, property taxes and property insurance 43 costs that do not represent a full year's cost. 44 4. Costs shall be based on currently available documentation at the time but are subject to 45 audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estimate costs for which there is 46 inadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequent documentation or audit 47 for a current rate year shall be applied beginning with the next rate year. 48 5. The department shall have 15 days from the date of the provider's submission to 49 determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a rate for a new or renovated 50 facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the filing is deemed incomplete to 51 submit the required information. The deadline for setting the rate shall be extended for 30 52 days after the filing is deemed complete. 53 6. Providers may propose a phased renovation subject to approval by the department. The 	35 36	the department shall develop an occupancy schedule that re occupancy by month of operation for use in calculating the	epresents ave	erage statewide		
 43 costs that do not represent a full year's cost. 44 4. Costs shall be based on currently available documentation at the time but are subject to 45 audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estimate costs for which there is 46 inadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequent documentation or audit 47 for a current rate year shall be applied beginning with the next rate year. 48 5. The department shall have 15 days from the date of the provider's submission to 49 determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a rate for a new or renovated 50 facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the filing is deemed incomplete to 51 submit the required information. The deadline for setting the rate shall be extended for 30 52 days after the filing is deemed complete. 53 6. Providers may propose a phased renovation subject to approval by the department. The 	39 40	year shall be treated as a mid-year rate adjustment. No new 1 30. Rate updates that fall between May 1 and June 30 shall be	rate will be n	ade after April		
 45 audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estimate costs for which there is 46 inadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequent documentation or audit 47 for a current rate year shall be applied beginning with the next rate year. 48 5. The department shall have 15 days from the date of the provider's submission to 49 determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a rate for a new or renovated 50 facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the filing is deemed incomplete to 51 submit the required information. The deadline for setting the rate shall be extended for 30 52 days after the filing is deemed complete. 53 6. Providers may propose a phased renovation subject to approval by the department. The 			axes and pro	perty insurance		
 49 determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a rate for a new or renovated 50 facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the filing is deemed incomplete to 51 submit the required information. The deadline for setting the rate shall be extended for 30 52 days after the filing is deemed complete. 53 6. Providers may propose a phased renovation subject to approval by the department. The 	45 46	audit. The department may use any reasonable method to estiminadequate documentation. Any adjustments based on subsequents based on sub	mate costs fo uent docume	r which there is		
	49 50 51	determine if the filing is complete for purposes of setting a facility. The facility shall have 15 days from the date the fili submit the required information. The deadline for setting the	rate for a ne ing is deeme	w or renovated l incomplete to		

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$) ear

		Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$)			iations(\$)
ITEM 303		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	proposed renovation are also subject to approval by the depart	ment.			

2 7. The department shall have the authority to implement these reimbursement changes
3 effective July 1, 2019 and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in
4 order to effect such change.

5 WWW. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan to add 6 coverage of the preventive services provided pursuant to the Patient Protection and 7 Affordable Care Act (ACA) for adult, full Medicaid individuals who are not enrolled pursuant 8 to the ACA. The evidence-based preventive services provided shall include: 1) prevention 9 services with a grade of "A" or "B" recommended by the United States Preventive Services 10 Task Force; 2) adult vaccines recommended by the Centers for Disease Control Advisory 11 Committee for Immunization Practices; and 3) preventive services for women recommended by the Institute of Medicine. The Department shall have the authority to implement these 12 13 changes effective July 1, 2019, and prior to the completion of any regulatory process 14 undertaken in order to effect such changes.

15 XXX. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall amend the State Plan for Medical 16 Assistance and any relevant waivers thereof to modify reimbursement for Hospice services 17 provided to patients residing in facilities to include at least 100 percent of the relevant 18 Medicaid facility rate for that individual, a component commonly referred to as "room and 19 board." To the extent allowed under federal law and regulation, the Department shall further 20 amend the State plan and/or relevant waivers thereof to pay this "room and board" rate in 21 effect with no discount applied to the facility directly, thus eliminating the Hospice from its 22 role in passing-through this facility payment to the facility. To the extent federal approval of 23 this direct payment component is dependent on whether it is in the State Plan or in relevant 24 waivers, the Department shall implement the direct payment where federal approval is 25 achieved. The department shall have authority to implement these changes effective July 1, 26 2019 and prior to the completion of any regulatory process undertaken in order to effect such 27 change.

28 29	304.	Medical Assistance Services (Non-Medicaid) (46400)			
30 31		Insurance Premium Payments for HIV-Positive Individuals (46403)	\$556,702	\$556,702	
32 33		Reimbursements from the Uninsured Medical Catastrophe Fund (46405)	\$265,000	\$265,000	
34		Fund Sources: General	\$781,702	\$781,702	
35		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$40,000	\$40,000	

36 Authority:- §32.1-330.1 and §32.1-324.3, Code of Virginia.

55

A. Out of this appropriation, \$556,702 the first year and \$556,702 the second year from the general fund shall be provided for insurance payment assistance to HIV-infected persons in accordance with § 32.1-330.1, Code of Virginia, except that the eligibility threshold for assistance shall allow a maximum income of no more than 250 percent of the federal poverty threshold.

B. Out of this appropriation, \$225,000 the first year and \$225,000 the second year from the general fund shall be transferred to the Uninsured Medical Catastrophe Fund under § 32.1-324.3, Code of Virginia.

45 46 47 48	305.	Medical Assistance Services for Low Income Children (46600) Reimbursements for Medical Services Provided to			\$156,888,591 \$187,688,174	\$162,674,282 \$204,523,494
49 50		Low-Income Children (46601)	\$156,888,591 \$187,688,174	\$162,674,282 \$204,523,494		
51 52		Fund Sources: General	\$18,826,631 \$21,802,581	\$33,551,571 \$40,793,389		
53 54		Federal Trust	\$138,061,960 \$165,885,593	\$129,122,711 \$163,730,105		

\$821,702

\$821,702

Authority: Title 32.1, Chapters 9, 10 and 13, Code of Virginia; P.L. 89-97, as amended, Titles

I	TEM 305		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		XIX and XXI, Social Security Act, Federal Code.				
2 3 4 5		To the extent that appropriations in this Item are insu and Budget shall transfer general fund appropriation Insurance Program Delivery (44600) and Medica available, into this Item to be used as state mate	, as needed, from (aid Program Serv	Children's Health vices (45600), if		
6 7 8	306.	Medical Assistance Management Services (Forecasted) (49600)			\$64,204,564 \$52,262,433	\$62,784,520 \$43,871,083
9 10 11		Medicaid payments for enrollment and utilization related contracts (49601)	\$61,742,452 \$49,800,321	\$61,679,457 \$42,766,020		
12 13		CHIP payments for enrollment and utilization related contracts (49632)	\$2,462,112	\$1,105,063		
14 15		Fund Sources: General	\$23,307,149 \$17,324,168	\$24,837,446 \$14,377,806		
16 17 18		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$977,271 \$40,897,415 \$33,960,994	\$2,344,057 \$37,947,074 \$27,149,220		
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26		To the extent that appropriations in this Item are insu and Budget, is authorized to transfer amounts, as Services (45600), Medical Assistance Services for Children's Health Insurance Program Delivery (44600 administrative expenditures associated with contr companies providing dental benefit services, consur- processing, behavioral health management service programs for Medicaid and FAMIS recipients.	needed, from M Low Income Child)), if available, into acts between the her-directed payrol	edicaid Program dren (46600) and b this Item to fund department and ll services, claims		
27 28	307.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)			\$282,112,859 \$278,627,135	\$281,299,207 \$291,221,330
29 30		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$271,558,406 \$268,072,682	\$270,744,754 \$280,666,877		
31 32		Administrative Support for the Family Access to Medical Insurance Security Plan (49932)	\$10,554,453	\$10,554,453		
33 34		Fund Sources: General	\$75,722,124 \$66,357,031	\$77,451,857 \$77,445,714		
35 36		Special Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,305,332 \$9,939,927	\$2,334,320 \$8, <i>312,757</i>		

\$204,085,403

\$200,024,845

\$201,513,030

\$203,128,539

Authority: Title 32.1, Chapters 9 and 10, Code of Virginia; P.L. 89-97, as amended, Titles
XIX and XXI, Social Security Act, Federal Code.

Federal Trust

37 38

41 A.1. By November 1 of each year, the Department of Planning and Budget, in cooperation 42 with the Department of Medical Assistance Services, shall prepare and submit a forecast 43 of Medicaid expenditures, upon which the Governor's budget recommendations will be 44 based, for the current and subsequent two years to the Chairmen of the House 45 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. In addition to the expenditure forecast, 46 the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall provide a breakout that shows 47 forecasted expenditures by caseload/utilization, inflation, and policy changes. An 48 enrollment forecast for the same forecast period shall also be submitted with the 49 expenditure forecast.

50 2. The forecast shall be based upon current state and federal laws and regulations. The 51 forecast shall only include expenditures for medical services in Program 45600 and shall 52 exclude administrative expenditures. Rebasing and inflation estimates that are required by 53 existing law or regulation for any Medicaid provider shall be included in the forecast. The 54 forecast shall also include an estimate of projected increases or decreases in managed care 55 costs, including estimates regarding changes in managed care rates for the three-year 56 period. In preparing for each year's forecast of the managed care portions of the budget, 57 the department shall submit to its actuarial contractor a letter, with a copy sent to the

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 Department of Planning and Budget and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and 2 Senate Finance Committees. This letter shall document the department's request for a point 3 estimate of the rate of increase in rates, based on application of actuarial principals and 4 methodologies and information available at the time of the forecast, that the contractor 5 estimates will occur in the years being forecast, and shall specify the population groupings for 6 which estimates are requested. The department shall request that the contractor reply in 7 writing with a copy to all parties copied on the department's letter.

8 3. The Department of Planning and Budget and the Department of Medical Assistance 9 Services shall convene a meeting on or before October 15 of each year with the appropriate 10 staff from the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees to review current trends 11 and the assumptions used in the Medicaid forecast prior to its finalization. The departments shall provide at this meeting a complete list of all policy and manual adjustments along with 12 13 the estimated amounts of each adjustment by fiscal year that will be included in the Medicaid 14 forecast due November 1.

15 B.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall submit monthly 16 expenditure reports of the Medicaid program by service that shall compare expenditures to the official Medicaid forecast, adjusted to reflect budget actions from each General Assembly 17 18 Session. The monthly report shall be submitted to the Department of Planning and Budget and 19 the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees within 20 days 20 after the end of each month. DMAS shall convene a meeting each quarter with the Secretary 21 of Finance, Secretary of Health and Human Resources, Secretary of Administration, or their 22 designees, and appropriate staff from the Department of Planning and Budget, House 23 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, Joint Legislative Audit and Review 24 Commission, and Joint Commission on Health Care to explain any material differences in 25 expenditures compared to the official Medicaid forecast, adjusted to reflect budget actions 26 from each General Assembly Session. If necessary, the department shall provide options to bring expenditures in line with available resources. 27

2. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall submit a quarterly report 28 summarizing managed care encounter data by service category in a format similar to the report in paragraph B.1. This quarterly report shall be submitted to the Department of 30 Planning and Budget and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than 30 days after the end of each quarter.

33 3. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall track expenditures for the prior fiscal 34 year that ended on June 30, that includes the expenditures associated with changes in services 35 and eligibility made in the Medicaid and FAMIS programs adopted by the General Assembly 36 in the past session(s). Expenditures related to changes in services and eligibility adopted in a 37 General Assembly Session shall be included in the report for five fiscal years beginning from 38 the first year the policy impacted expenditures in the Medicaid and FAMIS programs. The 39 department shall report the expenditures of each funding change separately and show the 40 impact by fiscal year. The report shall be submitted to the Department of Planning and Budget 41 and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by October 1 42 of each year.

43 C.1. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Department of Medical Assistance 44 Services provide more data regarding Medicaid and other programs operated by the 45 department on their public website. The department shall create a central website that 46 consolidates data and statistical information to make the information more readily available to 47 the general public. At a minimum the information included on such website shall include 48 monthly enrollment data, expenditures by service, and other relevant data.

49 2. No later than June 30, 2018, the department shall make Medicaid and other agency data 50 stored in the agency's data warehouse available through the department's website that 51 includes, at a minimum, interactive tools for the user to select, display, manipulate and export 52 requested data.

53 D. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall notify the Director, Department of 54 Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 55 Committees at least 30 days prior to any change in capitated rates for managed care 56 companies. The notification shall include the amount of the rate increase or decrease, and the 57 projected impact on the state budget.

29

31

32

ITEM 307		Item D `irst Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	E.1. Effective January 1, 2018, the Department of Medical include in all its contracts with managed care organizations				
3 4 5	a. A provision requiring the MCOs to return one-half of the unc three percent of Medicaid premium income up to 10 percent. T percent of the underwriting gain above 10 percent.				
6 7 8 9	b. A requirement for detailed financial and utilization reportin include: (i) income statements that show expenses by service ca (iii) information about related-party transactions; and (iv utilization metrics.	ategory; (ii)	balance sheets;		
10 11	c. Upon the inclusion of behavioral health care in managed specific metrics to identify undesirable trends in service ut		vioral health-		
12 13 14	d. Upon the inclusion of behavioral health care in managed car and processes for identifying behavioral health providers w services and the number of such providers that are disenred	ho provide			
15 16	2. For rate periods effective January 1, 2018 and thereafter, the Assistance Services shall direct its actuary as part of the rate				
17 18 19 20	a. Identify potential inefficiencies in the Medallion program and expected efficiencies. The department is authorized to phase-in based on the portion of identified inefficiencies that MCOs ca year.	n this adjust	ment over time		
21 22 23 24 25	b. Monitor medical spending for related-party arrangements an spending when deemed necessary to ensure that capitation rate high spending as compared to benchmarks. Related-party arran in which there is common ownership or control between the en Medicaid payments otherwise authorized in this item.	es do not cov ngements sh	ver excessively all mean those		
26 27	c. Adjust capitation rates in the Medallion program to accoun savings from required initiatives.	t for a porti	on of expected		
28 29	d. Allow negative historical trends in medical spending to be ca capitation rates.	arried forwa	d when setting		
30 31	e. Annually rebase administrative expenses per member enrollment changes.	per month	for projected		
32 33 34 35	f. Annually incorporate findings on unallowable administrativ MCOs into its calculations of underwriting gain and admini purposes of ongoing financial monitoring, including enforceme cap.	strative loss	s ratios for the		
36 37	g. Adjust calculations of underwriting gain and medical loss ra medical spending that is excessively high due to related-party				
38 39 40 41 42 43	3. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall report on spending and utilization trends within Medicaid man population and service information and include an analysis an reasons for these trends, the agency's and MCOs' initiatives to and the impact of those initiatives. The report shall be submitted 1.	aged care, d report on address und	with detailed the underlying esirable trends,		
44 45 46 47 48 49	4. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall de sharing requirements based on family income for individu services and supports through the optional 300 percent of Supp eligibility category and submit the proposal to the Centers for Services to determine if such a proposal is feasible. No cost sha implemented unless approved by the General Assembly.	als eligible plemental So or Medicare	for long-term ecurity Income and Medicaid		
50	F. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, to the exten	ıt permissibl	e under federal		

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

law, shall enter into an agreement with the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services to share Medicaid claims and expenditure data on all Medicaidreimbursed mental health, intellectual disability and substance abuse services, and any new or expanded mental health, intellectual disability retardation and substance abuse services that are covered by the State Plan for Medical Assistance. The information shall be used to increase the effective and efficient delivery of publicly funded mental health, intellectual disability and substance abuse services.

ITEM 307.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33 34

35

36

37

38

8 G. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in collaboration with the Department of 9 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, shall convene a stakeholder workgroup, to 10 meet at least once annually, with representatives of the Virginia Association of Community 11 Services Boards, the Virginia Network of Private Providers, the Virginia Association of 12 Centers for Independent Living, Virginia Association of Community Rehabilitation Programs 13 (VaACCSES), the disAbility Law Center of Virginia, the ARC of Virginia, and other 14 stakeholders including representative family members, as deemed appropriate by the 15 Department of Medical Assistance Services. The workgroup shall: (i) review data from the 16 previous year on the distribution of the SIS levels and tiers by region and by waiver; (ii) 17 review the process, information considered, scoring, and calculations used to assign 18 individuals to their levels and reimbursement tiers; (iii) review the communication which 19 informs individuals, families, providers, case managers and other appropriate parties about the 20 SIS tool, the administration, and the opportunities for review to ensure transparency; and (iv) 21 review other information as deemed necessary by the workgroup. The department shall report 22 on the results and recommendations of the workgroup to the General Assembly by October 1 23 of each year.

H.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall take actions to improve the reliability of Medicaid eligibility screenings for long-term services and supports, including: (i) validation of the children's criteria used with the Uniform Assessment Instrument to determine eligibility for Medicaid long-term services and supports, and (ii) design and implementation of an inter-rater reliability test for the pre-admission screening process.

2. The department shall work with relevant stakeholders to (i) assess whether hospital screening teams are making appropriate recommendations regarding placement in institutional care or home and community-based care; (ii) determine whether hospitals should have a role in the screening process; and (iii) determine what steps must be taken to ensure the Uniform Assessment Instrument is implemented consistently and does not lead to unnecessary institutional placements.

3. The department shall report to the General Assembly by December 1 on steps taken to address the risks associated with hospital screenings, including any statutory or regulatory changes needed to improve such screenings.

I. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall collect and provide to the
 Office of Children's Services (OCS) all information and data necessary to ensure the
 continued collection of local matching dollars associated with payments for Medicaid eligible
 services provided to children through the Children's Services Act as required in Item 282, C.2.
 of this Act. This information and data shall be collected by DMAS and provided to OCS on a
 monthly basis.

45 J. The Departments of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) and Social Services (DSS) shall 46 collaborate with the League of Social Services Executives, and other stakeholders to analyze 47 and report data that demonstrates the accuracy, efficiency, compliance, quality of customer 48 service, and timeliness of determining eligibility for the Medicaid, CHIP and Governor's 49 Access Program (GAP) programs. Based on this collaboration, the departments shall develop 50 meaningful performance metrics on data in agency systems that shall be used to monitor 51 eligibility trends, address potential compliance problem areas and implement best practices. 52 DMAS shall maintain on its website a public dashboard on eligibility performance that 53 includes performance metrics developed through collaborative efforts as well as the 54 performance of local departments of social services and any centralized eligibility-processing 55 unit. Effective August 1, 2018 this dashboard shall be updated for the previous quarter and 30 56 days following the end of each quarter thereafter.

57 K. In addition to any regional offices that may be located across the Commonwealth, any

	Item Details(\$)		
	First Year	Second Year	
	FY2019	FY2020	
controlized call conter facility that operates in	continuation wi	th a brokerage	

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

statewide, centralized call center facility that operates in conjunction with a brokerage
 transportation program for persons enrolled in Medicaid or the Family Access to Medical
 Insurance Security plan shall be located in Norton, Virginia.

L. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall, to the extent possible, require
web-based electronic submission of provider enrollment applications, revalidations and
other related documents necessary for participation in the fee-for-service program under
the State Plans for Title XIX and XXI of the Social Security Act.

M. The Department of Medical Assistance Services, in collaboration with the Department
 of Social Services, shall require Medicaid eligibility workers to search for unreported
 assets at the time of initial eligibility determination and renewal, using all currently
 available sources of electronic data, including local real estate property databases and the
 Department of Motor Vehicles for all Medicaid applicants and recipients whose assets are
 subject to an asset limit under Medicaid eligibility requirements.

- N.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall require eligibility workers to
 verify income, using currently available Virginia Employment Commission data, for
 applicants and recipients who report no earned or unearned income. The Department shall,
 at the earliest date feasible but no later than October 1, 2017, require all Medicaid
 eligibility workers to apply the same protocols when verifying income for all applicants
 and recipients, including those who report no earned or unearned income.
- 20 2. The Department shall amend the Virginia Medicaid application, upon approval of the
 21 federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid, to require a Medicaid applicant to opt out if
 22 such applicant does not want to grant permission to the state to use his federal tax returns
 23 for the purposes of renewing eligibility. The Department shall implement the necessary
 24 regulatory changes and other necessary measures to be consistent with federal approval of
 25 any appropriate state plan changes, and prior to the completion of any regulatory process
 26 undertaken in order to effect such change.

O.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall report on the operations and costs of the Medicaid call center (also known as the Cover Virginia Call Center). This
report shall include number of calls received on a monthly basis, the purpose of the call, the number of applications for Medicaid submitted through the call center, and the costs of the contract. The department shall submit the report by August 15 of each year to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

- 34 2. Out of this appropriation, \$3,283,004 the first year and \$3,283,004 the second year from 35 the general fund and \$9,839,000 the first year and \$9,839,000 the second year from nongeneral funds is provided for the enhanced operation of the Cover Virginia Call Center 36 37 as a centralized eligibility processing unit (CPU) that shall be limited to processing 38 Medicaid applications received from the Federally Facilitated Marketplace, telephonic 39 applications through the call center, or electronically submitted Medicaid-only 40 applications. The department shall report the number of applications processed on a 41 monthly basis and payments made to the contractor to the Director, Department of 42 Planning and Budget and the Chairman of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 43 Committees. The report shall be submitted no later than 30 days after the end of each 44 quarter of the fiscal year.
- 45 3. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources shall convene an interagency workgroup 46 of the Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS), the Department of Social 47 Services (DSS), and the Department of Planning and Budget (DPB) and representatives of 48 the Virginia League of Social Services Executives to assess the programmatic, operational 49 and fiscal impact of consolidating the Cover Virginia call center with the call center 50 operated by DSS to determine if more efficient and cost effective services can be 51 achieved, prior to the reprocurement of the Cover Virginia call center contract. The 52 workgroup shall develop an implementation plan and funding adjustments, that may be 53 needed, to implement a consolidated call center. The Secretary shall report on the results 54 of the assessment and any recommendations to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations 55 and Senate Finance Committee by September 1, 2019.

56

ITEM 307.

P.1. Out of this appropriation, \$5,835,000 the first year and \$5,835,000 the second year

Item I	Item Details(\$)		
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

from the general fund and \$52,515,000 the first year and \$52,515,000 the second year from
 nongeneral funds shall be provided to replace the Medicaid Management Information System.

ITEM 307.

2. Within 30 days of awarding a contract or contracts related to the replacement project, the
 Department of Medical Assistance Services shall provide the Chairmen of the House
 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, and the Director, Department of Planning
 and Budget, with a copy of the contract including costs.

3. Beginning July 1, 2016, the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall provide
annual progress reports that must include a current project summary, implementation status,
accounting of project expenditures and future milestones. All reports shall be submitted to the
Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, and Director,
Department of Planning and Budget.

12 Q. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,675,000 the first year and \$1,675,000 the second year from 13 special funds is appropriated to the Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) for 14 the disbursement of civil money penalties (CMP) levied against and collected from Medicaid 15 nursing facilities for violations of rules identified during survey and certification as required 16 by federal law and regulation. Based on the nature and seriousness of the deficiency, the 17 Agency or the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services may impose a civil money 18 penalty, consistent with the severity of the violations, for the number of days a facility is not 19 in substantial compliance with the facility's Medicaid participation agreement. Civil money 20 penalties collected by the Commonwealth must be applied to the protection of the health or 21 property of residents of nursing facilities found to be deficient. Penalties collected are to be 22 used for (1) the payment of costs incurred by the Commonwealth for relocating residents to 23 other facilities; (2) payment of costs incurred by the Commonwealth related to operation of 24 the facility pending correction of the deficiency or closure of the facility; and (3) 25 reimbursement of residents for personal funds or property lost at a facility as a result of 26 actions by the facility or individuals used by the facility to provide services to residents. 27 These funds are to be administered in accordance with the revised federal regulations and law, 28 42 CFR 488.400 and the Social Security Act § 1919(h), for Enforcement of Compliance for 29 Long-Term Care Facilities with Deficiencies. Any special fund revenue received for this 30 purpose, but unexpended at the end of the fiscal year, shall remain in the fund for use in 31 accordance with this provision.

- 32 2. Of the amounts appropriated in Q.1. of this Item, up to \$175,000 the first year and
 \$175,000 the second year from special funds may be used for the costs associated with
 administering CMP funds.
- 35 3. Of the amounts appropriated in Q.1. of this Item, up to \$1,000,000 the first year and
 36 \$1,000,000 the second year from the special funds may be used for special projects that
 37 benefit residents and improve the quality of nursing Facilities.
- 38 4. By October 1 of each year, the department shall provide an annual report of the previous
 39 fiscal year that includes the amount of revenue collected and spending activities to the
 40 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the Director,
 41 Department of Planning and Budget.
- 42 5. No spending or activity authorized under the provisions of paragraph Q. of this Item shall43 necessitate general fund spending or require future obligations to the Commonwealth.
- 6. The department shall maintain CMP special fund balance of at least \$1.0 million to addressemergency situations in Virginia's nursing facilities.
- 46 R. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from the
 47 general fund shall be provided to contract with the Virginia Center for Health Innovation for
 48 research, development and tracking of innovative approaches to healthcare delivery.
- S.1. Out of this appropriation, \$40,332 the first year and \$69,320 the second year from special funds and \$295,764 the first year and \$266,776 the second year from federal funds shall be used to contract with Vision to Learn, a non-profit organization, to provide vision exams and corrective lenses and frames, if necessary, to school age children enrolled in Title I schools where at least 51 percent of the student body qualifies for free or reduced lunch. Vision to Learn will provide services through a mobile eye clinic, and must have a formalized

]	TEM 307.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	agreement with targeted schools being serviced. The Services (DMAS) shall reimburse Vision to Learn for s not have another source of payment. The department sh at the standard fee-for-service reimbursement rates.	ervices provided to	children that do		
5 6 7 8 9 10	2. Federal trust funds for these services will be acces Insurance Program (CHIP) Health Services I 2015(a)(1)(D)(ii)) of the Social Security Act and 42 authorized to match federal trust funds with local publ purpose of reimbursing Vision to Learn for eye exams necessary, to school age children.	initiative allowe CFR 457.10. The ic and private contr	d by Section department is ibutions for the		
11 12 13 14	3. The funding of these services is contingent on c Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP), and is fu CHIP administrative funds. This language should not Medicaid or CHIP benefit, or as creating a new entitle	arther limited by the be construed as aut	e availability of		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28	T. The Director, the Department of Medical Assistance all managed care contracts, for all department program report quarterly, for all quarters through the one endin for all pharmacy claims; the amount paid to the pharr but not limited to cost of drug reimbursement; disp amount charged to the plan sponsor for each claim by the event there is a difference between these amount itemization of all administrative fees, rebates, or proc claim. All data and information provided by the plan notwithstanding any other provision of law, the confidentiality of the proprietary information and no information contained in the report or data collected w Only those department employees involved in collectin for the purpose of preparing the report shall have acce	ming, requiring the g June 30, 2019, to nacy provider per c ensing fees; copay v its pharmacy bene s, the plan sponsor essing charges asso sponsor shall be k department shall t share or disclose ith persons outside ng, securing and ana	plan sponsor to the department laim, including ments; and the fit manager. In shall report an ociated with the ept secure; and maintain the the proprietary the department. alyzing the data		
29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36	U. The Department of Medical Assistance Services sl quarter, determine and properly reflect in the accorrebates received in the quarter are related to fee-for-ser and whether or not the rebates are prior year recover current year. All pharmacy rebates for the quarter de shall be deposited to the Virginia Health Care Fund b The department shall create and use a separate rev pharmacy rebates in the Virginia Health Care Fund	unting system whe vice or managed ca ies or expenditure termined to be price before the end of the renue source code	ther pharmacy re expenditures refunds for the or year revenue e fiscal quarter.		
37	V.1. Effective with the development of the 2020-202	22 biennium, it is th	ne intent of the		

- V.1. Effective with the development of the 2020-2022 biennium, it is the intent of the
 General Assembly that there is hereby established an annual Medicaid state spending
 target for each fiscal year. The Joint Subcommittee for Health and Human Resources
 Oversight shall establish the annual target by September 15 of each year for the following
 two fiscal years. The target shall take into account the following: a 10-year rolling average
 of Medicaid expenditures by eligibility category and utilization of services, a 20-year
 rolling average of general fund revenue growth, and for policy decisions adopted by
 General Assembly during the previous Session which impact Medicaid spending.
- 45 2. In the event of an economic recession, the Joint Subcommittee may take into consideration enrollment and spending trends experienced during previous recessions in establishing the targets.
- 48 3. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Governor abide by the spending target
 49 for Medicaid state spending, as established by the Joint Subcommittee, in developing the
 50 introduced budget each year and shall notify the Chairmen of the House Appropriations
 51 and Senate Finance Committees in the event the target cannot be met, along with the
 52 reason it cannot be met.
- W. Out of this appropriation, \$225,000 the first year from the general fund and \$225,000
 the first year from federal funds shall be used to hire an expert contractor or contractors
 to review the Department of Medical Assistance Services' (DMAS) federal expenditure
 and budget reporting as well as aid the department with improvements to cost allocation

	Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 307.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
plans and federal advanced planning documents. On or before October 1, 2020, DMAS shall				

\$4,701,738

\$5.054.172

\$4,081,136

provide a report that details all areas examined, findings and improvements to Director, Department of Planning and Budget and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

X. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the general fund and \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from federal funds shall be used for the Department of Medical Assistance Services to provide training for consumer-directed (CD) attendants who provide personal assistance, respite and companion services.

Total for Department of Medical Assistance Services.			\$12,084,160,110 \$12,604,734,186	\$13,742,831,105 \$15,766,161,219
General Fund Positions	257.52	257.52 259.52		
Nongeneral Fund Positions	259.48 273.48	259.48 275.48		
Position Level	517.00 531.00	517.00 535.00		
Fund Sources: General	\$4,839,837,209 \$5,011,047,807	\$4,959,670,074 \$5,205,311,210		
Special	\$2,305,332	\$2,334,320		
Dedicated Special Revenue	\$766,324,770 \$700,272,302 \$6,475,692,799	\$1,084,924,643 \$1,086,063,642 \$7,695,902,068		
reueral ITust	1 -))	\$9,472,452,047		

§ 1-96. DEPARTMENT OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES (720)

26 27	308.	Regulation of Public Facilities and Services (56100)		
28 29		Regulation of Health Care Service Providers (56103).	\$4,081,136	\$4,701,738 \$5,054,172
30 31		Fund Sources: General	\$3,625,461	\$4,246,063 \$4,598,497
32		Special	\$95,864	\$95,864
33		Federal Trust	\$359,811	\$359,811

³⁴ Authority: Title 37.2, Chapter 4, Code of Virginia.

1 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

25

35 A. The department shall post on its Web site information concerning (i) any application for 36 initial licensure of or renewal of a license, denial of an application for an initial license or 37 renewal of a license, or issuance of provisional licensure of for any residential facility for 38 children located in the locality and (ii) all inspections and investigations of any residential 39 facility for children licensed by the department, including copies of any reports of such 40 inspections or investigations. Information concerning inspections and investigations of 41 residential facilities for children shall be posted on the department's Web site within seven 42 days of the issuance of any report and shall be maintained on the department's website for a 43 period of at least six years from the date on which the report of the inspection or investigation 44 was issued.

45 B. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services is authorized to certify 46 individuals as peer recovery specialists and shall promulgate emergency regulations to 47 become effective within 280 days or less from the enactment of this act.

48 309. A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Department of Behavioral Health and 49 Developmental Services proceed in transforming its system of care into a model that 50 embodies best practices and state-of-the art services. The consumer-driven system of services 51 and supports shall promote self-determination, empowerment, recovery, resilience, health, 52 and the highest possible level of consumer participation in all aspects of community life. The 53 transformed system shall include investments in a suitable array and adequate quantity of 54 community-based services, with an emphasis on consumer choice and the appropriate use of

	ITEM 309		Iter First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		facility resources. State facilities shall be redesigned to operation, and capacity necessary for persons mos authorized herein, and in related legislation, shall be us the system of care and to promote the provision of be services in the most efficient and appropriate settin. Health and Developmental Services may consider the u deliver behavioral health and intellectual disability ser behavioral health and intellectual disability system of planned for renovation or replacement. These partne private entities for facility operations, unless the Dep Developmental Services can demonstrate that continue least as cost effective and provides at least an equivale operation by a private entity.	o ensure high qua t in need of suc sed to support the havioral health a g. The Departmo use of public-priv vices as part of t of care, in facilit rships may inclu- partment of Beha d state operation	lity care, efficient h care. Amounts transformation of nd developmental ent of Behavioral ate partnerships to he comprehensive ies that are being de contracts with vioral Health and of the facility is at	F 1 2013	F 1 2020
14 15 16 17		B. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, on July 2019, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the gene balance accumulated by the Department of Behav Services in excess of \$25,000,000.	eral fund any spe	cial revenue fund		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26		C.1. Notwithstanding §4-5.10, §4-5.09 of this Act and of Virginia, the Department of Behavioral Health and authorized to deposit the entire proceeds of the sale behavioral health and intellectual disability facilities ir fund may initially be used for expenses associated Remaining proceeds after such expenses shall be de current patients as facility services are restructured. T enhance services to individuals with mental illness, in abuse problems.	Developmental 3 es of surplus lar nto a revolving tri with restructurin dicated to contir 'hereafter, the fu	Services is hereby ad at state-owned ust fund. The trust ng such facilities. nuing services for nd will be used to		
27 28 29		2. Expenditures from the Behavioral Health and Develope subject to appropriation through an appropriat Assembly.				
30 31		3. Any remaining balances in the Behavioral Health a Fund shall be carried forward to the subsequent fisca		tal Services Trust		
32 33 34 35 36		D. Any funds appropriated in this Act for the purpose agreement with the United States Department of Ju 3:12cv059-JAG that remain unspent at the end of the into the subsequent fiscal year in order to continue is requirements.	istice pursuant t fiscal year may b	o civil action no: be carried forward		
37 38	310.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)			\$96,848,446 \$97,756,222	\$96,376,988 \$97,715,780
39 40		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$20,525,179	\$20,525,179 \$20,599,429	<i>\$77,700,222</i>	<i>\$7,7,720,700</i>
41		Information Technology Services (49902)	\$33,621,717	\$33,621,717		
42		Architectural and Engineering Services (49904)	\$2,935,876	\$2,685,876		
43		Collection and Locator Services (49905)	\$3,079,686	\$3,079,686		
44		Human Resources Services (49914)	\$548,566	\$548,566		
45		Planning and Evaluation Services (49916)	\$3,626	\$3,626		
46 47		Program Development and Coordination (49933)	\$36,133,796 \$37,041,572	\$35,912,338 \$37,176,880		
48 49		Fund Sources: General	\$53,429,075	\$54,407,617 \$54,594,797		
50		Special	\$15,568,328	\$15,318,328		
51		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,200,000	\$0		
52		Federal Trust	\$26,651,043	\$26,651,043		
53			\$27,558,819	\$27,802,655		
54		Authority: Title 16.1, Article 18, and Title 37.2, Chapte	ers 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 ar	nd 7, and Title 2.2,		

54 Authority: Title 16.1, Article 18, and Title 37.2, Chapters 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7, and Title 2.2,
55 Chapters 26 and 53 Code of Virginia; P.L. 102-119, Federal Code.

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

A. The Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall, at the beginning of each fiscal year, establish the current capacity for each facility within the system. When a facility becomes full, the commissioner or his designee shall give notice of the fact to all sheriffs.

B. The Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall work in conjunction with community services boards to develop and implement a graduated plan for the discharge of eligible facility clients to the greatest extent possible, utilizing savings generated from statewide gains in system efficiencies.

- 9 C. Notwithstanding § 4-5.09 of this act and paragraph C of § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia, the
 10 Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services is hereby authorized to deposit
 11 the entire proceeds of the sales of surplus land at state-owned behavioral health and
 12 intellectual disability facilities into a revolving trust fund. The trust fund may initially be used
 13 for expenses associated with restructuring such facilities. Remaining proceeds after such
 14 expenses shall be dedicated to continuing services for current patients as facility services are
 15 restructured.
 - D. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall identify and create opportunities for public-private partnerships and develop the incentives necessary to establish and maintain an adequate supply of acute-care psychiatric beds for children and adolescents.
- E. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, in cooperation with the
 Department of Juvenile Justice, where appropriate, shall identify and create opportunities for
 public-private partnerships and develop the incentives necessary to establish and maintain an
 adequate supply of residential beds for the treatment of juveniles with behavioral health
 treatment needs, including those who are mentally retarded, aggressive, or sex offenders, and
 those juveniles who need short-term crisis stabilization but not psychiatric hospitalization.
 - F. Out of this appropriation, \$656,538 the first year and \$656,538\$730,788 the second year from the general fund shall be provided for placement and restoration services for juveniles found to be incompetent to stand trial pursuant to Title 16.1, Chapter 11, Article 18, Code of Virginia.
- 30 G. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to pay for legal and medical examinations needed for individuals
 32 living in the community and in need of guardianship services.
- 33 H. Out of this appropriation, \$2,751,776 the first year and \$2,938,500 the second year from 34 the general fund shall be provided for services for the civil commitment of sexually violent 35 predators including the following: (i) clinical evaluations and court testimony for sexually 36 violent predators who are being considered for release from state correctional facilities and 37 who will be referred to the Clinical Review Committee for psycho-sexual evaluations prior to 38 the state seeking civil commitment, (ii) conditional release services, including treatment, and 39 (iii) costs associated with contracting with a Global Positioning System service to closely monitor the movements of individuals who are civilly committed to the sexually violent 40 41 predator program but conditionally released.
- I. Out of this appropriation, \$146,871 the first year and \$146,871 the second year from the
 general fund shall be used to operate a real-time reporting system for public and private acute
 psychiatric beds in the Commonwealth.
- 45 J. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall submit a report to 46 the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees 47 no later than December 1 of each year for the preceding fiscal year that provides information 48 on the operation of Virginia's publicly-funded behavioral health and developmental services 49 system. The report shall include a brief narrative and data on the numbers of individuals 50 receiving state facility services or CSB services, including purchased inpatient psychiatric 51 services, the types and amounts of services received by these individuals, and CSB and state 52 facility service capacities, staffing, revenues, and expenditures. The annual report also shall 53 describe major new initiatives implemented during the past year and shall provide information 54 on the accomplishment of systemic outcome and performance measures during the year.

ITEM 310.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

16

17

18

19

26

27

28

29

353	

		Details(\$)
	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
K. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$5 the general fund shall be used for a comprehensive statewide The Commissioner of the Department of Behavioral Health (DBHDS), in collaboration with the Departments of Health, Aging and Rehabilitative Services, and other partners sha statewide program of public education, evidence-based tra health provider capacity-building, and related suicide prev	e suicide preve and Developn Education, Vet all develop an aining, health a	ention program. nental Services terans Services, d implement a and behavioral
L.1. Beginning October 1, 2013, the Commissioner of th Health and Developmental Services shall provide quar Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on progress close state training centers and transition residents to the c provide the following information on each state trainin authorized representatives who have made decisions rega placement for the resident they represent and the type of pla the number of authorized representatives who have not ye barriers to discharge; (iv) the general fund and nongener provided to individuals transitioning from training centers; Medicaid reimbursement for congregate residential services	rterly reports s in implement community. The ag center: (i) the arding the long accement they have et made such of ral fund cost of ; and (v) the us	to the House ting the plan to he reports shall the number of g-term type of ave chosen; (ii) decisions; (iii) of the services se of increased

ITEM 310.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 19

20 2. At least six months prior to the closure of a state intellectual disabilities training center, 21 the Commissioner of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall complete a 22 comprehensive survey of each individual residing in the facility slated for closure to 23 determine the services and supports the individual will need to receive appropriate care in 24 the community. The survey shall also determine the adequacy of the community to 25 provide care and treatment for the individual, including but not limited to, the 26 appropriateness of current provider rates, adequacy of waiver services, and availability of 27 housing. The Commissioner shall report quarterly findings to the Governor and Chairmen 28 of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

individuals transitioning from state training centers.

29 3. The department shall convene quarterly meetings with authorized representatives. 30 families, and service providers in Health Planning Regions I, II, III and IV to provide a 31 mechanism to (i) promote routine collaboration between families and authorized 32 representatives, the department, community services boards, and private providers; (ii) 33 ensure the successful transition of training center residents to the community; and (iii) 34 gather input on Medicaid waiver redesign to better serve individuals with intellectual and 35 developmental disability.

36 4. In the event that provider capacity cannot meet the needs of individuals transitioning 37 from training centers to the community, the department shall work with community 38 services boards and private providers to explore the feasibility of developing (i) a limited 39 number of small community group homes or intermediate care facilities to meet the needs 40 of residents transitioning to the community, and/or (ii) a regional support center to provide 41 specialty services to individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities whose 42 medical, dental, rehabilitative or other special needs cannot be met by community 43 providers. The Commissioner shall report on these efforts to the House Appropriations 44 and Senate Finance Committees as part of the quarterly report, pursuant to paragraph L.1.

45 M.1. A joint subcommittee of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, 46 in collaboration with the Secretary of Health and Human Resources and the Department of 47 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, shall continue to monitor and review the 48 closure plans for the three remaining training centers scheduled to close by 2020. As part 49 of this review process the joint subcommittee may evaluate options for those individuals 50 in training centers with the most intensive medical and behavioral needs to determine the 51 appropriate types of facility or residential settings necessary to ensure the care and safety 52 of those residents is appropriately factored into the overall plan to transition to a more 53 community-based system. In addition, the joint subcommittee may review the plans for 54 the redesign of the Intellectual Disability, Developmental Disability and Day Support 55 Waivers.

56 2. To assist the joint subcommittee, the Department of Behavioral Health and 57 Developmental Services shall provide a quarterly accounting of the costs to operate and

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

Item I	Details(\$)
First Year	Second

First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020 Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

maintain each of the existing training centers at a level of detail as determined by the joint subcommittee. The quarterly reports for the first, second and third quarter shall be due to the joint subcommittee 20 days after the close of the quarter. The fourth quarter report shall be due on August 15 of each year.

ITEM 310.

1

2

3

4

5 N. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services in collaboration with 6 the Department of Medical Assistance Services shall provide a detailed report for each fiscal 7 year on the budget, expenditures, and number of recipients for each specific intellectual 8 disability (ID) and developmental disability (DD) service provided through the Medicaid 9 program or other programs in the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 10 Services. This report shall also include the overall budget and expenditures for the ID, DD 11 and Day Support waivers separately. The Department of Medical Assistance Services shall 12 provide the necessary information to the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 13 Services 90 days after the end of each fiscal year. This information shall be published on the 14 Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services' website within 120 days after 15 the end of each fiscal year.

16 O. Effective July 1, 2015, the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services
17 shall not charge any fee to Community Services Boards or private providers for use of the
18 knowledge center, an on-line training system.

P. Out of this appropriation, \$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to provide mental health first aid training and certification to recognize and respond to mental or emotional distress. Funding shall be used to cover the cost of personnel dedicated to this activity, training, manuals, and certification for all those receiving the training.

Q. Out of this appropriation, \$752,170 the second year from the general fund is provided to
 establish community support teams responsible for the development and oversight of a
 continuum of integrated community settings for individuals leaving state hospitals.

27 R. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services and the Department of 28 Medical Assistance Services shall recognize Certified Employment Support Professional 29 (CESP) and Association of Community Rehabilitation Educators (ACRE) certifications in 30 lieu of competency requirements for supported employment staff in the developmental 31 disability Medicaid waiver programs to allow providers that are Department of Aging and 32 Rehabilitative Services (DARS) vendors that hold a national three-year accreditation from the 33 National Council on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF) to be deemed qualified 34 to meet employment competency requirements.

S. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year from special funds is designated to 35 conduct the next phase of Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) at the Central Virginia 36 37 Training Center to assess the presence of contaminants in the soil and ground water from the 38 high and medium priority findings presented in the Site Specific Environmental Conditions 39 Assessment that was performed by EEE Consulting, Inc, in July 2017. The Department of 40 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall be responsible for conducting and 41 reporting results of the assessment by December 1, 2018, to the Governor and General 42 Assembly. The department may request assistance from the Department of General Services 43 in procuring the services for this assessment.

44 T. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services is authorized to receive 45 unsolicited proposals and to solicit proposals under the Public-Private Education Facilities and Infrastructure Act (PPEA), Chapter 22.1 of Title 56, Code of Virginia, as amended, to 46 47 partner with private not-for-profit entities described under Section 501(c)(3) of the federal 48 Internal Revenue Code to provide the necessary level of care for residents at the Central 49 Virginia Training Center, which could include either intermediate care or a nursing facility 50 level of care. The department shall provide to proposers such relevant information, including 51 financial information, capital assets of the training center, operational details, information 52 regarding current medical and long-term care needs of training center residents, in accordance 53 with federal law, and other information as may be reasonably requested, in order to assist 54 proposers in developing and submitting a proposal. Proposals may include managing or 55 leasing state property, including some or all of the buildings at the training center and may 56 also include other facility options offsite from the training center. Review and approval, if 57 any, of proposals shall follow the requirements of Chapter 22.1 of Title 56, Code of Virginia,

		Item Details(\$))
	ITEM 310		d Year Fin 2020 F
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9		and shall include information provided by the Department of Treasury as to state fu of the training center and the financial consequences related to such funding of en into a comprehensive agreement under the PPEA. If a proposal is recommend approval, after review and consideration by the Secretary of Health and H Resources, the Department Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall not Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees at least thirt prior to the award of same and execution of any related comprehensive agreement details regarding the recommended proposal, and any operational, financial and impacts associated with it, including general fund effects.	attering ed for luman ify the y days tt with
10 11 12 13 14 15 16		U.1. The Department of General Services (DGS), with the cooperation of the Depart of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS), shall work with Jame County to identify the amount of acreage needed on the Eastern State Hospital site purchased or leased at fair market value by James City County for the co-location new facility for Old Town Medical Center and Colonial Behavior Health and t development of a community project that serves as a residence for 25 families imp by a member with serious mental illness by Hope Family Village Corporation.	es City e to be on of a he the
17 18 19 20 21		2. As part of this process, DGS will work with James City County to update the City County comprehensive plan to assist with a master development plan, includi subject acres, of the entire site to maximize the economic development opportu expedite the rezoning process and the receipt of funds for DBHDS Mental Health fund from the sale(s) of surplus property.	ng the nities,
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31		V. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services for each fisca shall report the number of waiver slots, by waiver, that becomes available for reallo during the year. In addition, the department shall report on the allocation of emer waiver slots and reserve slots, which shall include how many slots were allocated year and for which waiver. The information on reserve slots shall indicate for waiver the reserve slot was used and the waiver from which the individual moved th granted the slot. Furthermore, the report shall show the allocations by each Comm Services Board from new waiver slots, emergency slots and reserve slots for the year department shall submit this report for the prior fiscal year, ending June 30, by Sept 1 of each year.	cation gency in the which at was nunity r. The
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39		W. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services in conjunction the Department of the Treasury shall report on the outstanding bonds related to the closure of the Southwest Virginia Training Center and the Central Virginia Tra- Center. The report shall indicate the anticipated outstanding bond balance for the of the planned facility closure based on facility funding as of the date of the report a anticipated outstanding balance each year thereafter until such time as all bonds wo repaid on those facilities. The department shall submit the report to the Chairmen House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by September 1, 2018.	future aining late of nd the uld be
40 41 42 43 44 45		X.1. Out of this appropriation, \$75,000 the second year from the general fund is profor compensation to individuals who were involuntarily sterilized pursuant to the Vi Eugenical Sterilization Act and who were living as of February 1, 2015. Any fund are appropriated but remain unspent at the end of the fiscal year shall be carried for into the subsequent fiscal year in order to provide compensation to individual qualify for compensation.	irginia ls that orward
46 47 48		2. A claim may be submitted on behalf of an individual by a person lawfully authors act on the individual's behalf. A claim may be submitted by the estate of or per representative of an individual who died on or after February 1, 2015.	
49 50 51		3. Reimbursement shall be contingent on the individual or their representative pro appropriate documentation and information to certify the claim under guid established by the department.	
52 53 54		4. Reimbursement per verified claim shall be \$25,000 and shall be contingent on fi being available, with disbursements being prioritized based on the date at which suf documentation is provided.	-

55 5. Should the funding provided in the paragraph be exhausted prior to the end of the fiscal

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$) rst Year FY2019 Second Year FY2020

		Item Details(\$)			Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 310		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2 3 4	year, the department may use available special fu compensation. The department shall report to the Gover Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on a additional individuals who have applied.	rnor and the Chair	men of the House			
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Y.1. The Department of Behavioral Health and Development the Department of Medical Assistance Services, shall, or impact of Medicaid expansion on community services bo Health and Developmental Services shall require con- monthly expenditure reports documenting additional fed Medicaid expansion on a timely basis. In the event appropriation allocated to each community services be additional revenues from Medicaid expansion exceeds, additional revenue collections at the end of the fiscal year Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, ma available special fund revenue balances to address necessary.	n a monthly basis, bards. The Departm mmunity services leral revenues rece that the reduction board in this Act by more than ten by more than ten ar, the Commission by allocate up to	monitor the fiscal nent of Behavioral boards to submit ived as a result of a in general fund in anticipation of percent, the total ner, Department of \$7,000,000 from			
17 18 19	2. Prior to the distribution of any special revenue fu Department shall notify the Secretary of Finance Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.					
20 311. 21 22	Central Office Managed Community and Individual Health Services (44400)			\$12,960,077 \$14,560,077	\$16,510,077 \$19,120,492	
23 24 25	Individual and Developmental Disability Services (44401)	\$4,810,077	\$6,110,077			
25 26 27	Mental Health Services (44402)	\$8,150,000	\$5,890,492 \$10,400,000 \$11,630,000			
28	Substance Abuse Services (44403)	\$1,600,000	\$1,600,000			
29 30	Fund Sources: General	\$12,960,077 \$14,560,077	\$16,510,077 \$19,120,492			
31 32	Authority: Title 16.1, Article 18, and Title 37.2, Chapter Chapters 26 and 53 Code of Virginia; P.L. 102-119, Fe		d 7, and Title 2.2,			
33 34 35 36 37	A. Out of this appropriation, \$3,900,000 the first year a the general fund shall be used for Developmental Disc regions served, or previously served, by Southside Virgin Training Center, Northern Virginia Training Center, a Center.	ability Health Sup nia Training Center	port Networks in r, Central Virginia			
38 39 40	B. Out of this appropriation, \$565,000 the first year and general fund shall be used to provide community-based from state training centers to community settings who a	services to individ	luals transitioning			
41 42 43 44 45	C. Out of this appropriation, \$2,900,000 the first year a the general fund shall be used to address census isso community-based services for those individuals determi for the diversion of admissions to state facilities by purch based psychiatric services at private facilities.	ues at state facilit ned clinically read	ties by providing y for discharge or			
46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54	D. Out of this appropriation, \$1,750,000 the first year a the general fund is provided for the development or a housing options to provide comprehensive community hospitals who have complex and resource-intensive determined able to move from a hospital to a more integ the second year from the general fund is provided for housing providers in addressing the complex needs of a from state facilities or individuals who are at risk of in E. Out of this appropriation, \$2,500,000 the first year a	equisition of clini y-based care for in e needs who have grated setting. In a a community supp residents who have stitutionalization.	ically appropriate dividuals in state e been clinically ddition, \$250,000 port team to assist e been discharged			
54 55	the general fund shall be provided to the Department of B					

	ITEM 311.		Ite First Yea FY2019			riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8		Services to provide alternative transportation for ad detention order. The department shall structure the co three-year period such that in year three the contract v statewide. The department shall report on the disbur and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Sena November 1, 2018. Annually, thereafter on October Governor and Chairmen of the House Appropriations the effectiveness and outcomes of the program funding	ntract to phase in will result in the pr sement of the fun- the Finance Comm 1, the department s and Senate Finar	the program over a ovision of services ds to the Governor ittees no later than shall report to the		
9 10 11 12		F. Out of this appropriation, \$1,230,000 the second provided to the Department of Behavioral Health and with the Virginia Mental Health Access Program t services for children.	l Developmental S	Services to contract		
13 14 15 16		G. Out of this appropriation, \$89,500 the second y provided to the Department of Behavioral Health and with the Jewish Foundation for Group Homes to explaisabilities in Loudoun County.	l Developmental S	Services to contract		
17 18 19 20		H. Out of this appropriation, \$1,600,000 the first ye from the general fund shall be used to purchase and and associated doses of naloxone used to treat eme suspected opioid overdose.	l distribute additi	onal REVIVE! kits		
21 22 23		Total for Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services			\$113,889,659 \$116,397,435	\$117,588,803 \$121,890,444
24 25 26		General Fund Positions	399.75 31.25	422.50 423.50 31.25		
20 27 28		Position Level	431.00	453.75 454.75		
29 30		Fund Sources: General	\$70,014,613 \$71,614,613	\$75,163,757 \$78, <i>313,786</i>		
31		Special	\$15,664,192	\$15,414,192		
32		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,200,000	\$0		
33 34		Federal Trust	\$27,010,854 \$27,918,630	\$27,010,854 \$28,162,466		
35		Grants to I	Localities (790)			
36 37	312.	Financial Assistance for Health Services (44500)			\$446,744,254 \$465,217,537	\$459,692,678 \$502,170,491
38 39		Community Substance Abuse Services (44501)	\$102,583,512 \$116,094,031	\$104,583,512 \$121,844,031		
40 41		Community Mental Health Services (44506)	\$264,423,058 \$267,125,162	\$121,871,851 \$274,816,643 \$285,571,247		
42		Community Developmental Disability Services		#00.000.500		
43 44		(44507)	\$79,737,684 \$81,998,344	\$80,292,523 \$94,755,213		
45 46		Fund Sources: General	\$370,958,279 \$371,417,537	\$392,706,703 \$409,670,491		
47 48		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,800,000	\$0 \$2,500,000		
49 50		Federal Trust	\$71,985,975 \$90,000,000	\$66,985,975 \$90,000,000		
51		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapters 5 and 6; Title 2.2, Cha	pter 53, Code of V	/irginia.		
52 53 54		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that condisability and substance abuse services are to be improvided in this Item shall not be used to supplant the	proved throughout	ut the state. Funds		

54 provided in this Item shall not be used to supplant the funding effort provided by localities
55 for services existing as of June 30, 1996.

Item Details(\$)			
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

ITEM 312.

1

2

3

4

21

22

23

C. Out of the appropriation for this Item, funds are provided to Community Services Boards
in an amount sufficient to reimburse the Virginia Housing Development Authority for
principal and interest payments on residential projects for the mentally disabled financed by
the Housing Authority.

- D. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall make payments to
 the Community Services Boards from this Item in twenty-four equal semimonthly
 installments, except for necessary budget revisions or the operational phase-in of new
 programs.
- E. Failure of a board to participate in Medicaid covered services and to meet all requirements
 for provider participation shall result in the termination of a like amount of state grant
 support.
- F. Community Services Boards may establish a line of credit loan for up to three months'operating expenses to assure adequate cash flow.
- 18 G. Out of this appropriation \$190,000 the first year and \$190,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to Virginia Commonwealth University for the continued operation and expansion of the Virginia Autism Resource Center.
 - H.1. Out of this appropriation, \$18,127,885 \$18,587,143 the first year and \$19,099,977 \$19,761,265 the second year from the general fund shall be provided for Virginia's Part C Early Intervention System for infants and toddlers with disabilities.
- 2. By November 15 of each year, the department shall report to the Chairmen of the House
 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees on the (a) total revenues used to support Part
 C services, (b) total expenses for all Part C services, (c) total number of infants, toddlers and
 families served using all Part C revenues, and (d) services provided to those infants, toddlers,
 and families.
- 29 I. Out of this appropriation \$6,148,128 the first year and \$6,148,128 the second year from the 30 general fund shall be provided for mental health services for children and adolescents with 31 serious emotional disturbances and related disorders, with priority placed on those children 32 who, absent services, are at-risk for custody relinquishment, as determined by the Family and 33 Assessment Planning Team of the locality. The Department of Behavioral Health and 34 Developmental Services shall provide these funds to Community Services Boards through the annual Performance Contract. These funds shall be used exclusively for children and 35 36 adolescents, not mandated for services under the Comprehensive Services Act for At-Risk Youth, who are identified and assessed through the Family and Assessment Planning Teams 37 and approved by the Community Policy and Management Teams of the localities. The 38 39 department shall provide these funds to the Community Services Boards based on an 40 individualized plan of care methodology.
- 41 J. The Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall 42 allocate \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from the federal Community 43 Mental Health Services Block Grant for two specialized geriatric mental health services 44 programs. One program shall be located in Health Planning Region II and one shall be located 45 in Health Planning Region V. The programs shall serve elderly populations with mental 46 illness who are transitioning from state mental health geriatric units to the community or who 47 are at risk of admission to state mental health geriatric units. The commissioner is authorized 48 to reduce the allocation in each year in an amount proportionate to any reduction in the federal Community Mental Health Services Block Grant funds awarded to the 49 50 Commonwealth.
- K. The Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall
 allocate \$750,000 the first year and \$750,000 the second year from the federal Community
 Mental Health Services Block Grant for consumer-directed programs offering specialized
 mental health services that promote wellness, recovery and improved self-management. The

	Item I	Details(\$)
•	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020
commissioner is authorized to reduce the allocation proportionate to any reduction in the federal Communit Grant funds awarded to the Commonwealth.	-	
L. Out of this appropriation, \$2,197,050 the first year a from the general fund shall be used for jail diversion and distributed to community-based contractors based on ne as determined by the commissioner.	reentry services.	Funds shall be

Appropriations(\$)

Second Year

FY2020

First Year

FY2019

8 M. Out of this appropriation, \$2,400,000 the first year and \$2,400,000 the second year
9 from the general fund shall be used for treatment and support services for substance use
10 disorders, including individuals with acquired brain injury and co-occurring substance use
11 disorders. Funded services shall focus on recovery models and the use of best practices.

ITEM 312.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

- 12 N. Out of this appropriation, \$2,780,645 the first year and \$2,780,645 the second year 13 from the general fund shall be used to provide outpatient clinician services to children 14 with mental health needs. Each Community Services Board shall receive funding as 15 determined by the commissioner to increase the availability of specialized mental health 16 services for children. The department shall require that each Community Services Board 17 receiving these funds agree to cooperate with Court Service Units in their catchment areas 18 to provide services to mandated and nonmandated children, in their communities, who 19 have been brought before Juvenile and Domestic Relations Courts and for whom 20 treatment services are needed to reduce the risk these children pose to themselves and 21 their communities or who have been referred for services through family assessment and 22 planning teams through the Comprehensive Services Act for At-Risk Youth and Families.
- 23 O. Out of this appropriation, \$17,701,997 the first year and \$17,701,997 the second year from the general fund shall be used to provide emergency services, crisis stabilization 24 25 services, case management, and inpatient and outpatient mental health services for 26 individuals who are in need of emergency mental health services or who meet the criteria 27 for mental health treatment set forth pursuant to §§ 19.2-169.6, 19.2-176, 19.2-177.1, 28 37.2-808, 37.2-809, 37.2-813, 37.2-815, 37.2-816, 37.2-817 and 53.1-40.2 of the Code of 29 Virginia. Funding provided in this item also shall be used to offset the fiscal impact of (i) 30 establishing and providing mandatory outpatient treatment, pursuant to House Bill 499 31 and Senate Bill 246, 2008 Session of General Assembly; and (ii) attendance at involuntary 32 commitment hearings by community services board staff who have completed the 33 prescreening report, pursuant to §§ 19.2-169.6, 19.2-176, 19.2-177.1, 37.2-808, 37.2-809, 34 37.2-813, 37.2-815, 37.2-816, 37.2-817 and 53.1-40.2 of the Code of Virginia.
- P. Out of this appropriation, \$10,056,250 the first year and \$10,475,000 the second year
 from the general fund shall be used to provide community crisis intervention services in
 each region for individuals with intellectual or developmental disabilities and co-occurring
 mental health or behavioral disorders.
- Q. Out of this appropriation, \$1,900,000 the first year and \$1,900,000 the second year
 from the general fund shall be used to expand community-based services in Health
 Planning Region V. These funds shall be used for services intended to delay or deter
 placement, or provide discharge assistance for patients in a state mental health facility.
- R. Out of this appropriation, \$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,000,000\$11,000,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to expand crisis stabilization and related services statewide intended to delay or deter placement in a state mental health facility.
- 46 S. Out of this appropriation, \$8,400,000 the first year and \$8,400,000 the second year 47 from the general fund shall be used to provide child psychiatry and children's crisis 48 response services for children with mental health and behavioral disorders. These funds, 49 divided among the health planning regions based on the current availability of the 50 services, shall be used to hire or contract with child psychiatrists who can provide direct 51 clinical services, including crisis response services, as well as training and consultation 52 with other children's health care providers in the health planning region such as general 53 practitioners, pediatricians, nurse practitioners, and community service boards staff, to 54 increase their expertise in the prevention, diagnosis, and treatment of children with mental 55 health disorders. Funds may also be used to create new or enhance existing community-56 based crisis response services in a health planning region, including mobile crisis teams

	Item D	vetans(\$)
ITEM 312.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
and crisis stabilization services, with the	e goal of diverting children from inpat	ient psychiatric

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

and crisis stabilization services, with the goal of diverting children from inpatient psychiatric hospitalization to less restrictive services in or near their communities. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services shall report annually on the use and impact of this funding to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by October 1.

1 2

3

4

5

T.1. Out of this appropriation, \$10,500,000 the first year and \$10,500,000 the second year
from the general fund shall be used for up to 32 drop-off centers to provide an alternative to
incarceration for people with serious mental illness and individuals with acquired brain injury
and co-occurring serious mental health illness. Priority for new funding shall be given to
programs that have implemented Crisis Intervention Teams pursuant to § 9.1-102 and § 9.1187 et seq. of the Code of Virginia and have undergone planning to implement drop-off
centers.

- 13 2. Out of this appropriation, \$900,000 the first year and \$1,800,000 the second year from the
 14 general fund is provided for grants to establish Crisis Intervention assessment centers in six
 15 unserved rural communities.
- 3. Out of this appropriation, \$657,648 the first year and \$657,648 the second year from the
 general fund is provided for grants to establish CIT training programs in six rural
 communities.
- U. Out of this appropriation, \$2,375,000 the first year and \$2,750,000 the second year from
 the general fund shall be used to develop and implement crisis services for children with
 intellectual or developmental disabilities.
- V. Out of this appropriation, \$29,758,441 the first year and \$32,058,441\$37,298,441 the
 second year from the general fund shall be used to provide community-based services or acute
 inpatient services in a private facility to individuals residing in state hospitals who have been
 determined clinically ready for discharge, and for continued services for those individuals
 currently being served under a discharge assistance plan. Of this appropriation, \$1,305,000
 the first year and \$1,305,000 the second year shall be allocated for individuals currently or
 previously residing at Western State Hospital.
- W. Out of this appropriation, \$620,000 the first year and \$620,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to expand access to telepsychiatry and telemedicine services.
- X. Out of this appropriation, \$4,000,000 the first year and \$4,000,000 the second year from
 the general fund shall be used to increase availability of community-based mental health
 outpatient services for youth and young adults.
- Y. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the
 general fund shall be used to increase mental health inpatient treatment purchased in
 community hospitals. Priority shall be given to regions that exhaust available resources before
 the end of the year in order to ensure treatment is provided in the community and do not result
 in more restrictive placements.
- 39 Z. Out of this appropriation, \$10,496,105 the first year and \$12,021,210\$14,083,710 the 40 second year from the general fund is provided for programs for permanent or transitional 41 housing for individuals with serious mental illness. Of this amount, \$8,970,500 the first year and \$8,970,500 the second year shall be used for permanent supportive housing to support 42 43 rental subsidies and services to be administered by community services boards or private 44 entities to provide stable, supportive housing for persons with serious mental illness. 45 Remaining amounts may be used to expand permanent supportive housing programs or to 46 provide transitional housing supports for individuals with serious mental illness being 47 discharged from state facilities into the community.
- 48 AA. Out of this appropriation, \$400,000 the first year and \$400,000 the second year is
 49 provided for rental subsidies and associated costs for individuals served through the Rental
 50 Choice VA program.
- BB. Out of this appropriation, \$5,308,836 the first year and \$7,897,833 the second year from
 the general fund shall be used for a program of rental subsidies for individuals with
 intellectual and developmental disabilities.

D.4. 1. (0)

ITEM 312	2.	Item D First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Yes FY2020
1 2 3 4	CC. Out of this appropriation, \$3,800,000 the first year from Developmental Services Trust Fund is provided for the deve for individuals with medically complex support needs or multiple diagnoses.	lopment of pro	ovider capacity		
5 6 7 8 9 10	DD. Out of this appropriation, \$10,795,651 the first year and from the general fund shall be provided to Community Ser Health Authorities to implement same day access for co services. The Department of Behavioral Health and Develop annually by October 1 to the Governor and Chairmen of th Senate Finance Committees on the effectiveness and outco	rvice Boards a ommunity beh omental Service e House Appr	and Behavioral avioral health ces shall report copriations and		
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	EE. Out of this appropriation, \$5,000,000 the first year from Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant and \$5,000,000 the second is provided to increase access to medication assisted treas substance use disorders who are addicted to opioids. In department shall ensure that preferred drug classes shall addictive, injectable prescription drug treatment regimens. that a portion of the funding is used for non-narcotic, non- treatment regimens for individuals who are: (i) on probation or jail; or (iii) not able for clinical or other reasons to par methadone based drug treatment regimens.	nd year from th atment for in- expending th include non- The departme -addictive, pre- ; (ii) in an ins	he general fund dividuals with is amount, the narcotic, non- nt shall ensure escription drug titution, prison,		
21 22 23	FF. Out of this appropriation, \$1,000,000 the first year and from the general fund is provided for community detoxificat individuals in crisis.				
24 25 26 27	GG. Out of this appropriation, \$880,000 the first year and \$8 the general fund is provided for one regional, multi-disciplina team shall provide clinical, medical, nursing, and behavior services to nursing facilities and assisted living facilities.	ry team for old	der adults. This		
28 29 30 31	HH. Out of this appropriation, \$3,720,000 the first year and from the general fund is provided for primary care outp Community Services Boards and Behavioral Health Author 607, 2017 Acts of Assembly.	atient screeni	ng services at		
32 33 34 35 36	II. Out of this appropriation, \$15,000,000 the second ye provided to begin phasing in an expansion of outpatient ment services at Community Services Boards and Behavioral Heal System Transformation, Excellence and Performance in Virg Chapters 607 and 683, 2017 Acts of Assembly.	al health and s th Authorities	ubstance abuse pursuant to the		
37 38 39 40 41	JJ. Out of this appropriation, \$2,000,000 the second year from to begin phasing in an expansion of detoxification services at and Behavioral Health Authorities, pursuant to the System and Performance in Virginia (STEP-VA) process and Chapte Assembly.	Community S Transformati	Services Boards on, Excellence		
42 43 44	KK. Out of this appropriation, \$826,200 the first year and from the general fund shall be used to provide permanent su or parenting women with substance use disorders.				
45 46 47	LL. Out of this appropriation, \$11,025,231 the first year and from the general fund shall be used to divert admissio purchasing acute inpatient or community-based psychiatric	ons from state	e hospitals by		
48 49 50 51 52	MM. Out of this appropriation, \$1,600,000 the first year and from the general fund is provided for discharge planning serious mental illness. Funding shall be used to create sta Services Boards and will be implemented at two jails with a with serious mental illness.	at jails for in aff positions	dividuals with in Community		
53 54	NN. Out of this appropriation, \$708,663 the first year and \$7 the general fund is provided to establish an Intercept 2 dive				

ear

	ITEM 312.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		rural communities. The funding shall be used for staffi services.			11201)	112020
3 4 5		OO. Out of this appropriation, \$1,100,000 the first year the general fund is provided to establish the Appalac telemental health pilot program.				
6 7 8 9 10		PP. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 the first year at general fund shall be provided to the Department of B Services to contract with Best Buddies Virginia to expa intellectual and developmental disabilities to the Richn state.	ehavioral Health and inclusion servic	nd Developmental es for people with		
11 12		Total for Grants to Localities			\$446,744,254 \$465,217,537	\$459,692,678 \$502,170,491
13		Fund Sources: General	\$370,958,279	\$392,706,703		
14			\$ <i>371,417,537</i> \$3,800,000	\$409,670,491		
15 16		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$5,800,000	\$0 \$2,500,000		
17 18		Federal Trust	\$71,985,975 \$90,000,000	\$66,985,975 \$90,000,000		
19		Mental Health Tre	atment Centers (7	92)		
20	313.	Instruction (19700)			\$176,397	\$176,397
21 22		Facility-Based Education and Skills Training (19708)	\$176,397	\$176,397		
23		Fund Sources: General	\$34,569	\$34,569		
24		Special	\$5,328	\$5,328		
25		Federal Trust	\$136,500	\$136,500		
26 27		Authority: §§ 37.2-312 and 37.2-713, Code of Virgi Federal Code.	nia; P.L. 102-73 a	and P.L. 102-119,		
28	314.	Secure Confinement (35700)			\$21,501,860	\$21,501,860
29 30		Forensic and Behavioral Rehabilitation Security (35707)	\$21,501,860	\$21,501,860		
31		Fund Sources: General	\$21,057,403	\$21,057,403		
32		Special	\$444,457	\$444,457		
33		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapter 9, Code of Virginia.				
34	315.	Pharmacy Services (42100)			\$18,677,746	\$18,677,746
35		Inpatient Pharmacy Services (42102)	\$18,677,746	\$18,677,746		
36 37		Fund Sources: General Special	\$6,246,656 \$12,431,090	\$6,246,656 \$12,431,090		
38		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapter 8, Code of Virginia.				
39 40	316.	State Health Services (43000)			\$244,851,323	\$251,069,370 \$259,838,038
41		Geriatric Care Services (43006)	\$49,604,517	\$49,604,517		<i>*==*,320,020</i>
42		Inpatient Medical Services (43007)	\$18,252,833	\$18,252,833		
43 44		State Mental Health Facility Services (43014)	\$176,993,973	\$183,212,020 \$191,980,688		
45 46		Fund Sources: General	\$192,455,049	\$198,051,291 \$2 <i>34,122,0</i> 78		
47 48		Special	\$52,396,274	\$53,018,079 \$25,715,960		

49 Authority: Title 37.2, Chapters 1 through 11, Code of Virginia.

]	ITEM 316		Iten First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		A. Out of this appropriation, \$700,000 the first year the general fund shall be used to continue operating Mental Health Institute (NVMHI) that had been sche The Commissioner of the Department of Behavioral shall ensure continued operation of at least 123 bed	g up to 13 beds at l eduled for closure in l Health and Develo	Northern Virginia n fiscal year 2013.		
6 7 8 9		B. The Department of Behavioral Health and Dev November 1 of each year to the Secretary of Fina Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees of through discharge assistance plans and the types	nce and the Chairr on the number of ir	nen of the House ndividuals served		
10 11 12		C. Out of this appropriation, \$850,000 the second used to provide transition services in alternate settin can be diverted or discharged from state facilities.				
13 14	317.	Facility Administrative and Support Services (49800)			\$104,915,227	\$104,915,227
15 16 17		General Management and Direction (49801)	\$46,795,316	\$46,795,316 \$48,795,316		\$106,915,227
18		Information Technology Services (49802)	\$6,242,139	\$6,242,139		
19		Food and Dietary Services (49807)	\$13,827,750	\$13,827,750		
20		Housekeeping Services (49808)	\$8,365,167	\$8,365,167		
21		Linen and Laundry Services (49809)	\$1,657,504	\$1,657,504		
22		Physical Plant Services (49815)	\$21,136,325	\$21,136,325		
23		Power Plant Operation (49817)	\$4,181,654	\$4,181,654		
24		Training and Education Services (49825)	\$2,709,372	\$2,709,372		
25 26		Fund Sources: General	\$90,086,146	\$90,086,146 \$92,086,146		
27		Special	\$14,765,581	\$14,765,581		
28		Federal Trust	\$63,500	\$63,500		
29		Authority: § 37.2-304, Code of Virginia.				
30 31 32 33		A. Out of this appropriation, \$759,000 the first year the general fund shall be used to ensure proper billi prescription drugs purchased by mental health treatm D drug program.	ng and maximum r	eimbursement for		
34 35 36 37 38 39		B. Notwithstanding § 37.2-319 of the Code of Virgin plan to address the capital and programmatic needs and state mental retardation training centers when co- fund. No less than 30 days prior to the expenditure present an expenditure plan to the Chairmen of Appropriations Committees for their review and	of other state menta onsidering expenditure re of funds, the Co of the Senate Fin	al health facilities ares from the trust mmissioner shall		
40 41 42 43 44	318.	The Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Heal report by August 1 of each year to the Secretary of Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees the allocations and authorized position levels for eac facility. The report shall be made available on the	Finance, and the Cl e general fund and ch state-operated b	hairmen of House non general fund behavioral health		
45 46		Total for Mental Health Treatment Centers			\$390,122,553	\$396,340,600 \$407,109,268
47 48		General Fund Positions	3,848.00	3,949.00 4,203.00		
49		Nongeneral Fund Positions	602.00	613.00		
50 51		Position Level	4,450.00	4,562.00 4,816.00		
52 53		Fund Sources: General	\$309,879,823	\$315,476,065 \$353,546,852		

	ITEM 318		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Special	\$80,042,730	\$80,664,535 \$53,362,416		
3		Federal Trust	\$200,000	\$200,000		
4		Intellectual Disabilities	s Training Centers	(793)		
5	319.	Instruction (19700)			\$6,870,420	\$5,827,797
6 7		Facility-Based Education and Skills Training (19708)	\$6,870,420	\$5,827,797		
8		Fund Sources: General	\$6,664,769	\$5,622,146		
9		Special	\$5,651	\$5,651		
10		Federal Trust	\$200,000	\$200,000		
11		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapter 3, Code of Virginia.				
12	320.	Pharmacy Services (42100)	\$5 515 COO	\$5 515 600	\$5,515,600	\$5,515,600
13		Inpatient Pharmacy Services (42102)	\$5,515,600	\$5,515,600		
14		Fund Sources: General	\$141,443	\$141,443		
15		Special	\$5,374,157	\$5,374,157		
16		Authority: §§ 37.2-312 and 37.2-713, Code of Virginia; F	P.L. 102-119, Feder	al Code.		
17 18	321.	State Health Services (43000)	\$22,005,261	¢22.005.261	\$69,918,683	\$69,918,683
18 19 20		Inpatient Medical Services (43007) State Intellectual Disabilities Training Center	\$32,095,261 \$37,823,422	\$32,095,261 \$37,823,422		
20		Services (43010)		\$37,823,422		
21 22		Fund Sources: General Special	\$15,066,431 \$54,852,252	\$15,066,431 \$54,852,252		
23		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapters 1 through 11, Code of Vin	ginia.			
24 25 26 27		The Commissioner of Behavioral Health and Developm relevant state and federal laws and Supreme Court dec residents from state intellectual disability training cen disability waiver slots.	cisions that govern	the discharge of		
28 29 30	322.	Facility Administrative and Support Services (49800)			\$57,642,209	\$57,642,209 \$55,642,209
31 32		General Management and Direction (49801)	\$13,329,884	\$13,329,884 \$11,329,884		<i>\$66,612,267</i>
33		Information Technology Services (49802)	\$1,596,574	\$1,596,574		
34		Food and Dietary Services (49807)	\$12,351,287	\$12,351,287		
35 36		Housekeeping Services (49808)	\$8,039,680 \$2,046,376	\$8,039,680 \$2,046,376		
30 37		Linen and Laundry Services (49809) Physical Plant Services (49815)	\$13,120,286	\$13,120,286		
38		Power Plant Operation (49817)	\$5,832,104	\$5,832,104		
39		Training and Education Services (49825)	\$1,326,018	\$1,326,018		
40		Fund Sources: General	\$9,763,533	\$9,763,533		
41 42		Special	\$47,878,676	<i>\$7,763,533</i> \$47,878,676		
43		Authority: Title 37.1, Chapters 1 and 2, Code of Virginia	; P.L. 74-320, Feder			
44 45 46 47 48	323.	The Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health report by August 1 of each year to the Secretary of Fi Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees the allocations and authorized position levels for each state shall be made available on the agency's public website.	inance, and the Ch general fund and r	airmen of House 10n general fund		

364

				n Details(\$)		riations(\$)
]	TEM 323		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Total for Intellectual Disabilities Training Centers	F 12019	F 1 2020	\$139,946,912	F 1 2020 \$138,904,289 \$136,904,289
3		General Fund Positions	1,092.00	1,092.00		
4		Nongeneral Fund Positions	665.00	665.00		
5		Position Level	1,757.00	1,757.00		
6 7		Fund Sources: General	\$31,636,176	\$30,593,553 \$28,593,553		
8		Special	\$108,110,736	\$108,110,736		
9		Federal Trust	\$200,000	\$200,000		
10		Virginia Center for Beh	avioral Rehabilitat	tion (794)		
11	324.	Instruction (19700)			\$227,847	\$227,847
12 13		Facility-Based Education and Skills Training (19708)	\$227,847	\$227,847		
14		Fund Sources: General	\$227,847	\$227,847		
15	325.	Secure Confinement (35700)			\$12,098,368	\$18,159,479
16 17	525.	Forensic and Behavioral Rehabilitation Security (35707)	\$12,098,368	\$18,159,479	¢12,020,500	ψ10,1 <i>0</i> ,7,77
18		Fund Sources: General	\$12,098,368	\$18,159,479		
19		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapter 9, Code of Virginia.	. , ,	. , ,		
20	326.	Pharmacy Services (42100)			\$999,013	\$999,013
21		Inpatient Pharmacy Services (42102)	\$999,013	\$999,013		
22		Fund Sources: General	\$999,013	\$999,013		
23 24	327.	State Health Services (43000) State Mental Health Facility Services (43014)	\$12,767,511	\$12,862,705	\$12,767,511	\$12,862,705
25		Fund Sources: General	\$12,767,511	\$12,862,705		
				¢1 2, 00 2, 700		
26		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapters 1 and 9, Code of Virgi				
27 28 29		Out of this appropriation, \$2,793,766 the first year a the general fund is provided for the staffing, equipmedical needs to be a staffing of the staffing and the staffing are staffing as the staffing as the staffing as the staffing are staffing as the staffing as the staffing	nent, and other cos			
30 31	328.	Facility Administrative and Support Services (49800)			\$14,245,696	\$15,945,696
32		General Management and Direction (49801)	\$2,164,423	\$3,864,423		
33		Information Technology Services (49802)	\$28,765	\$28,765		
34 25		Food and Dietary Services (49807)	\$3,079,145 \$428,210	\$3,079,145 \$428,210		
35 36		Housekeeping Services (49808) Physical Plant Services (49815)	\$8,446,716	\$428,210		
37		Training and Education Services (49825)	\$98,437	\$98,437		
38		Fund Sources: General	\$14,245,696	\$15,945,696		
39		Authority: Title 37.2, Chapters 1 through 11, Code of	Virginia.			
40 41 42 43		A. In the event that services are not available in Virg an individual committed for treatment at the VCBR or capacity cannot be met at the VCBR, the Commi services from another state.	r conditionally relea	sed, or additional		
44 45 46		B. Out of the amounts appropriated in this Item and I from the general fund is provided for the staffing, equ 72 new beds at the expanded VCBR beginning in Au	ipment, and other o			
47		C. Out of this appropriation, \$540,000 the first year	and \$540,000 the s	second year from		

		2	000			
	ITEM 328.		Ite First Yea FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		the general fund is provided for the treatment costs of r facility shall make efforts to use certified federal 3400 associated pharmaceuticals.				
4 5 6 7 8 9		D. Within 15 days of any appropriation transfer to Rehabilitation from any other sub-agency within the I Developmental Services, the Department of Planning ar the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Comr amount, fund source and reason for the transfer with an transferred has no impact on the sub-agency from which	Department of Beh ad Budget shall not nittees. The notice explanation of why	avioral Health and ify the Chairmen of e shall include the		
10 11		Total for Virginia Center for Behavioral Rehabilitation			\$40,338,435	\$48,194,740
12 13		General Fund Positions Position Level	631.50 631.50	778.50 778.50		
14		Fund Sources: General	\$40,338,435	\$48,194,740		
15 16 17		Grand Total for Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services			\$1,131,041,813 \$1,152,022,872	\$1,160,721,110 \$1,216,269,232
18 19		General Fund Positions	5,971.25	6,242.00 6,497.00		
20 21 22		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	1,298.25 7,269.50	1,309.25 7,551.25 7,806.25		
23 24		Fund Sources: General	\$822,827,326 \$824,886,584	\$862,134,818 \$918,319,422		
25 26		Special	\$203,817,658	\$204,189,463 \$176,887,344		
27 28		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$5,000,000	\$0 \$2,500,000		
29 30		Federal Trust	\$99,396,829 \$118,318,630	\$94,396,829 \$118,562,466		
31		§ 1-97. DEPARTMENT FOR AGING A	ND REHABILIT	ATIVE SERVICE	S (262)	
32 33	329.	Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400)			\$110,285,116 \$102,350,463	\$110,285,116 \$98,792,156
34 35		Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404)	\$93,000,600 \$85,065,947	\$93,000,600 \$82,465,914		
36 37		Community Rehabilitation Programs (45406)	\$17,284,516	\$17,284,516 \$16,326,242		
38 39		Fund Sources: General	\$33,180,238	\$33,180,238 \$32,887,879		
40 41		Special	\$837,802	\$837,802 \$719,952		
42		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$999,937	\$999,937		

\$75,267,139

\$67,332,486

\$75,267,139

\$64,184,388

45 Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code.

Federal Trust

43 44

46 47

48

49

50

51

A.1. Out of this appropriation, \$8,984,358 the first year and \$8,984,358 the second year from the general fund shall be used as state matching dollars for the federal Vocational Rehabilitation State Grant provided under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, hereafter referred to as the federal vocational rehabilitation grant. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) shall not transfer or expend these dollars for any purpose other than to support activities related to vocational rehabilitation.

52 2. The annual federal vocational rehabilitation grant award that will be received by DARS is
53 estimated at \$57,165,260 for federal fiscal year 2018; \$57,165,260\$62,709,708 for federal
54 fiscal year 2019; and \$57,165,260\$62,709,708 for federal fiscal year 2020. In addition to the

	ITEM 329	T	etails(\$) Second Year	Appropri First Year	ations(\$) Second Y	
	1112101 527		'irst Year FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY202
1 2 3 4 5		base annual award amount, DARS is expected to request up to additional federal reallotment dollars in each of these years. As annual 21.3 percent state matching requirement would equate fiscal year 2018; \$18,320,072 for federal fiscal year 2019; ar fiscal year 2020.	suming these to \$18,320,0	e amounts, the 072 for federal		
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		3. Based on the projection of federal award funding in paragurequest federal vocational rehabilitation grant dollars in excess fiscal year 2018; \$67,689,656 for federal fiscal year 2019; ar fiscal year 2020, without prior written concurrence from the Planning and Budget. Any approved increases in grant award reDARS to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Se within 30 days. <i>Any federal reallotment dollars received by the for any purpose that creates an on-going fiscal obligation to t</i>	of \$67,689,6 ad \$67,689,6 e Director, I equests shall enate Financ e agency sha	556 for federal 56 for federal Department of be reported by e Committees all not be used		
14 15 16 17 18		4. By October 1 of each year, the department shall submit an arvocational rehabilitation program revenues and spending from report shall also provide spending projections for the current This report shall be provided to the Director, Department of the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance.	n the prior fi and upcomin Planning an	scal year. The ng fiscal years. d Budget, and		
19 20 21 22 23		B. Out of this appropriation, \$1,132,073 the first year and \$ from the general fund shall be used to provide vocational a persons recovering from mental health issues, alcohol and oth pursuant to an interagency agreement between the Department Developmental Services and the Department for Aging and Recovering from the department for Aging and Recovering and Recovering and Recovering and Recovering and Recovering and Recove	ehabilitation ner substanc t of Behavio	n services for e abuse issues ral Health and		
24 25 26		C. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Servic appropriation in this item to fulfill any necessary match re Supported Employment grant.				
27 28		D. Out of this appropriation, \$2,658,198 the first year and \$2 from the general fund is provided for the Extended Employment				
29 30 31		E. Out of this appropriation, \$6,294,568 the first year and \$6 from the general fund is provided for the Long Term Empl (LTESS) program.				
32 33		F. Recovery of administrative costs for the Long Term Emp program shall be limited to 1.70 percent the first year and 1.7	• •	•		
34 35 36 37		G. In allocating funds for Extended Employment Services, Support Services (LTESS) and Economic Development, the I Rehabilitative Services shall consider recommendations from the Service Organizations/LTESS Steering Committee.	Department	for Aging and		
38 39 40 41		H. Of this appropriation, \$200,000 the first year and \$200,000 general fund shall be used to contract with Didlake Inc., fo employment services and Long Term Employment Support disabilities.	r the purpos	e of extended		
42 43		I. A minimum of \$4,997,284 the first year and \$4,997,284 the is allocated to support Centers for Independent Living.	second year	from all funds		
44 45 46		J. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services sharesponsibilities pertaining to the Personal Attendant Se interruption or discontinuation of personal attendant services.	rvices prog	ram, without		
47 48 49		K. Out of this appropriation, it is estimated that \$2,349,933 the the second year from the general fund shall be used for perso individuals with disabilities.	-			
50 51 52		L.1. Out of this appropriation, \$5,933,981 the first year and \$ from the general fund shall be provided for expanding the con assist persons with brain injuries in returning to work and con	tinuum of se	ervices used to		

Second Year FY2020

Item Details(\$)					
First Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2. Of this amount, \$1,830,000 the first year and \$1,830,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to provide a continuum of brain injury services to individuals in unserved or underserved regions of the Commonwealth. Up to \$150,000 each year shall be awarded to successful program applicants. Programs currently receiving more than \$250,000 from the general fund each year are ineligible for additional assistance under this section. To be determined eligible for a grant under this section, program applicants shall submit plans to pursue non-state resources to complement the provision of general fund support.

ITEM 329.

8 3. Of this amount, \$285,000 the first year and \$285,000 the second year shall be provided
9 from the general fund to support direct case management services for brain injured individuals
10 and their families in Southwestern Virginia.

- 4. Of this amount, \$150,000 the first year and \$150,000 the second year from the general fund
 shall be used to support case management services for individuals with brain injuries in
 unserved or underserved regions of the Commonwealth.
- 5. In allocating additional funds for brain injury services, the Department for Aging and
 Rehabilitative Services shall consider recommendations from the Virginia Brain Injury
 Council (VBIC).
- 17 6. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) shall submit an annual
 18 report to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees
 19 documenting the number of individuals served, services provided, and success in attracting
 20 non-state resources.
- M.1. For Commonwealth Neurotrauma Initiative Trust Fund grants awarded after July 1,
 2004, the commissioner shall require applicants to submit a plan to achieve self-sufficiency
 by the end of the grant award cycle in order to receive funding consideration.
- 24 2. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the commissioner may reallocate up to
 25 \$500,000 from unexpended balances in the Commonwealth Neurotrauma Initiative Trust
 26 Fund to fund new grant awards for research on traumatic brain and spinal cord injuries.
- N. Out of this appropriation, \$427,457 the first year and \$427,457 the second year from the
 general fund shall be allocated to the Long-Term Rehabilitation Case Management Services
 Program.
- O. Every county and city, either singly or in combination with another political subdivision,
 may establish a local disability services board to provide input to state agencies on service
 needs and priorities of persons with physical and sensory disabilities, to provide information
 and resource referral to local governments regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act, and
 to provide such other assistance and advice to local governments as may be requested.
- 35 P. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services shall convene a workgroup of 36 relevant stakeholders that shall include at a minimum representatives of various employment 37 services organizations including Goodwill Industries, APSE, vaACCSES, staff of the House 38 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, the Department of Planning and Budget, and 39 appropriate staff from the department. Each organization included in the workgroup will be 40 limited to one representative from that group. The purpose of the workgroup is to assess 41 combining the Extended Employment Services (EES) and Long Term Employment Support 42 Services (LTESS) programs and associated funding into one program. The workgroup shall 43 report its recommendations to the Chairman of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 44 Committees by November 1, 2018.

45	330.	Individual Care Services (45500)			
46 47 48		Financial Assistance for Local Services to the Elderly (45504) Rights and Protection for the Elderly (45506)	\$30,890,287 \$5,168,931	\$30,890,287 \$5,168,931	
49		Fund Sources: General	\$16,303,403	\$16,303,403	
50		Special	\$60,000	\$60,000	
51		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$200,000	\$200,000	
52		Federal Trust	\$19,495,815	\$19,495,815	

\$36,059,218

\$36,059,218

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEN	A 330.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.				
2	A. Out of this appropriation, \$456,209 the first year and	d \$456,209 the se	cond year from		

A. Out of this appropriation, \$456,209 the first year and \$456,209 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to continue a statewide Respite Care Initiative program for the elderly and persons suffering from Alzheimer's Disease.

3

4

B.1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,726,733 the first year and \$1,726,733 the second year
from the general fund shall be provided to support local and regional programs of the
Virginia Public Guardian and Conservator Program. This funding is estimated to provide
457 client slots the first year and 457 client slots the second year for unrestricted
guardianship services.

- 2. Out of this appropriation, \$125,500 the first year and \$125,500 the second year from the general fund shall be used to provide services through the Virginia Public Guardian and Conservator Program for individuals with mental illness or intellectual disability (ID).
 This funding is estimated to provide 40 client slots each year for guardianship services for individuals with mental illness or ID.
- 15 3. Out of this appropriation, \$1,970,600 the first year and \$1,970,600 the second year from the general fund shall be used to provide services through the Virginia Public Guardian 16 17 and Conservator Program for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ID) and 18 developmental disabilities (DD). This funding shall be expended pursuant to an 19 interagency agreement between the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 20 Services (DBHDS) and the Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services. This 21 funding is estimated to provide 454 client slots the first year and 454 client slots the 22 second year for guardianship services for individuals with ID/DD, as authorized by 23 DBHDS.
- 24 4. Out of this appropriation, \$686,000 the first year and \$686,000 the second year from the 25 general fund shall be used to provide services through the Virginia Public Guardian and 26 Conservator Program for individuals with mental illness. This funding shall be expended 27 pursuant to an interagency agreement between the Department of Behavioral Health and 28 Developmental Services (DBHDS) and the Department for Aging and Rehabilitative 29 Services. This funding is estimated to provide 98 client slots the first year and 98 client 30 slots the second year for guardianship services for individuals with mental illness, as authorized by DBHDS. 31
- C.1. Area Agencies on Aging that are authorized to use funding for the Care Coordination
 for the Elderly Program, shall be authorized to use funding to conduct a program
 providing mobile, brief intervention and service linking as a form of care coordination.
 The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, in collaboration with the Area
 Agencies on Aging, shall analyze the resulting impact in these agencies and determine if
 this model of service delivery is an appropriate and beneficial use of these funds.
- 38 2. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, in collaboration with Area 39 Agencies on Aging (AAAs) that are authorized to use funding for the Care Coordination 40 for Elderly Program, shall examine and analyze existing state and national care 41 coordination models to determine best practice models. The department and designated 42 AAAs shall determine which models of service delivery are appropriate and demonstrate 43 beneficial use of these funds and develop the accompanying service standards. Each AAA 44 receiving care coordination funding shall submit its plan for care coordination with the 45 annual area plan.
- 46 D. Area Agencies on Aging shall be designated as the lead agency in each respective area47 for No Wrong Door.
- 48 E. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services shall (i) recommend strategies to
 49 coordinate services and resources among agencies involved in the delivery of services to
 50 Virginians with dementia; (ii) monitor the implementation of the Dementia State Plan; (iii)
 51 recommend policies, legislation, and funding needed to implement the Plan; (iv) collect
 52 and monitor data related to the impact of dementia on Virginians; and (v) determine the
 53 services, resources, and policies that may be needed to address services for individuals
 54 with dementia.

	ITEM 330		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		F. Out of this appropriation, \$201,875 the first year and general fund shall be provided to support the distribution information to Virginia's senior population, their familie	n of comprehensive			
4 5 6		G. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year and general fund shall be provided for the Pharmacy Conn administered by Mountain Empire Older Citizens, Inc.	ect Program in So			
7 8 9		H. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and general fund shall be used to contract with the Jewish assistance to low-income seniors who have experience	Social Services A			
10 11 12		I. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year and general fund shall be provided to contract with Birmin services to low-income, disabled individuals.				
13 14 15 16 17	331.	Nutritional Services (45700) Meals Served in Group Settings (45701) Distribution of Food (45702) Delivery of Meals to Home-Bound Individuals (45703)	\$9,521,747 \$424,342 \$12,073,514	\$9,521,747 \$424,342 \$12,073,514	\$22,019,603	\$22,019,603
18 19		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$6,278,648 \$15,740,955	\$6,278,648 \$15,740,955		
20		Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.				
21 22		Home delivered meals shall not require cost-sharing un cost-sharing with Older Americans Act funding.	ntil such time as fe	deral law permits		
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30	332.	A. Area Agencies on Aging are encouraged to continue seeking funds from a variety of sources which include cost-sharing in programs where not prohibited by funding sources; private sector voluntary contributions from older persons receiving services; families of individuals receiving services; and churches, service groups and other organizations. Such appropriations shall not be included in the appropriations used to match Older Americans Act funding. Revenue generated as a result of these projects shall be retained by the participating area agencies for use in meeting critical care needs of older Virginians. These revenues shall supplement, not supplant, general fund resources.				
31 32 33 34 35		B. It is the intent of the General Assembly that all Arr general fund revenue, with the exception of funding Ombudsman program, to implement sliding fees for ser should be given to applicants in the greatest need, regard fees shall be retained by the Area Agencies on Aging for	g provided for the vices. However, pr dless of ability to p	Long-term Care iority for services ay. Revenue from		

37 C. It is the intent of the General Assembly that Older Americans Act funds and general fund
38 moneys be targeted to services which can assist the elderly to function independently for as
39 long as possible. Area Agencies on Aging may use general fund moneys for consumer40 directed services.

older Virginians. These revenues shall supplement, not supplant, general fund resources.

35 36

41 D. At the request of the Commissioner, Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, the 42 Director, Department of Planning and Budget may transfer state general fund appropriations 43 for services provided by Area Agencies on Aging between service categories. The amounts to 44 be transferred between categories shall not exceed 40 percent of the total state general fund 45 appropriations allocated for each category. Under no circumstances shall any funds be 46 transferred from direct services to administration. State general fund appropriations shall be 47 available to the area agencies on aging beginning July 1 of each year of the biennium, in 48 compliance with the department's General Fund Cash Management Policy.

49 50	333.	Continuing Income Assistance Services (46100) Social Security Disability Determination (46102)	\$54,911,365	\$54,911,365	
51		Fund Sources: General	\$1,465,118	\$1,465,118	

\$54,911,365 \$54,911,365

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 333.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Special	\$152,258	\$152,258	1 12017	1 1 2020
2	Federal Trust	\$53,293,989	\$53,293,989		

\$6,920,474

\$6,920,474 \$7.089.867

3 Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; Titles II and XVI, P.L. 74-271, 4 Federal Code.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

A. The Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, in cooperation with the Department of Social Services and local social services agencies, shall develop an expedited process for transitioning hospitalized persons to rehabilitation facilities when the patient may meet the criteria established by the Social Security Administration (SSA) and Medicaid for disability. As part of this expedited process, the Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) shall make Medicaid disability determinations within seven business days of the receipt of social service referrals, when the referrals include sufficient evidence that appropriately documents SSA's definition of disability. If the referrals do not contain sufficient documentation of disability, DARS shall continue to expedite processing of these priority referrals under Medicaid regulations.

17 18	334.	Adult Programs and Services (46800)		
19 20 21		Management and Quality Assurance of Aging Services (46811)	\$3,749,515	\$3,749,515 \$3,218,908
22 23 24		Central Oversight and Quality Assurance for Adult Protective Services (46812)	\$1,609,632	\$1,609,632 \$1,709,632
25 26 27		State Long-Term Care Ombudsman Services (46813) No Wrong Door Initiative (46814)	\$1,219,845 \$341,482	\$1,219,845 \$341,482
28 29 30		Fund Sources: General	\$3,523,359	\$941,482 \$3,523,359 \$3,692,752
31		Special	\$30,490	\$30,490
32		Federal Trust	\$3,366,625	\$3,366,625

³³ Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code.

- B. Out of this appropriation, up to \$5,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year from 42 43 the general fund shall be provided to support activities of the Virginia Public Guardianship 44 and Conservator Program Advisory Board, including but not limited to, paying expenses 45 for the members to attend four meetings per year.
- 46 C. Out of this appropriation, \$87,338 the first year and \$87,338 \$90,831 the second year 47 from the general fund is provided to support a position dedicated to monitoring and 48 auditing the auxiliary grant (AG) program. The department shall provide an annual report 49 on AG oversight findings and activities to the Director, Department of Planning and 50 Budget and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by 51 October 1 of each year.
- 52 D. By August 1 of each year, the Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services 53 (DARS) shall report, for each month of the previous fiscal year, the number of Auxiliary 54 Grant recipients living in a supportive housing setting. This information shall be reported

¹⁵ B. The general fund appropriation in this item shall only be used for the cost of Medicaid 16 disability determinations and for no other purpose.

³⁴ A. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$233,515 the first year and \$233,515 the second year from 35 the general fund shall be used to administer and oversee public guardianship programs and 36 for no other purpose.

³⁷ 2. Of this amount, \$88,350 the first year and \$88,350 the second year shall be used to 38 support the administrative costs associated with serving individuals pursuant to 39 interagency agreements for the provision of public guardianship services between the 40 Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) and the 41 Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services.

First YearFirst YearFi		Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$)					
2 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. 3 E. Out of this appropriation, 5445;1245745,124 the first year and 5445;1245745,124 the second year from the general fund and 5445;1245745,124 the first year and one part-time positions to support the Medicaid Managed Long Term Services and Supports (MLTSS) program. 8 F. Out of this appropriation, S440,000 the first year and S440,000 the second year from the general fund in provided to cover PeerPlace license costs for local workers as well as the ongoing cost of system modifications. 11 33.5 Administrative and Support Services (49900) \$7,7461,882 \$7,7461,882 13 Administrative and Support Services (49900) \$6,092,808 \$6,092,808 \$6,092,808 14 General Management and Direction (49901) \$7,7461,882 \$7,7461,882 \$7,7461,882 15 Information Technology Services (49902) \$6,092,808 \$6,092,808 \$6,092,808 16 System modifications. \$11,760,006 \$11,760,006 \$11,760,006 17 Planning and Evaluation Services (49916) \$752,827 \$752,827 18 Fund Sources: General \$10,000 \$11,806,856 21 Federal Trust \$2,438,461 \$2,438,461 23 Federal Trust appropriation area mounts estimated at \$583,541 the first year and \$38,	EM 334.	334.					Second Year FY2020
4second year from the general fund and $\frac{5445+1245745}{124}$ the first year and $\frac{5445-12457}{124}$ the second year from federal matching funds is provided to reight full-line and one part-time positions to support the Medicaid Managed Long Term Services and Supports (MLTSS) program.8F. Out of this appropriation, $\frac{5440,000}{164}$ the Medicaid Managed Long Term Services and 				dget and Chairm	en of the House		
9 general fund is provided to cover PeerPlace license costs for local workers as well as the on- going cost of system modifications. 514.307.467	sec \$44 and	second year from the gene \$445,124\$745,124 the second year and one part-time positions to	ral fund and \$445, ar from federal matchin	124\$745,124 the g funds is provided	e first year and for eight full-time		
12 S13,547,140 13 General Management and Direction (49901)	gen	general fund is provided to cove	r PeerPlace license cos				
14 86,701,505 \$7,534,154 15 Information Technology Services (49902) $$6,702,808$ $$56,092,808$ 16 Planning and Evaluation Services (49916) \$752,827 \$752,827 17 Planning and Evaluation Services (49916) \$752,827 \$752,827 18 Fund Sources: General \$110,0000 \$100,000 19 Special \$111,769,006 \$11,880,850 20 Special \$111,679,006 \$11,880,850 21 \$2,438,461 \$2,438,461 \$2,438,461 23 Federal Trust \$2,438,461 \$2,438,461 24 Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code. 25 336. Included in the Federal Trust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$583,541 the first year and \$583,541 the services of thase estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by § 4-2.03 of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund. \$244,503,243 31 General Fund Positions. \$1.76 \$2.76 32 Services. \$244,503,243 \$235,808,263 33 General Fund Positions. \$1.606,02,904 \$60,850,766 \$244,503,243<	335. Ad	Administrative and Support Serv	vices (49900)				\$14,307,467 \$14,429,789
15 Information Technology Services (49902) $\frac{56.392.808}{36.092.808}$ $\frac{56.392.808}{56.092.808}$ 17 Planning and Evaluation Services (49916) 3752.827 8752.827 18 Fund Sources: General $$100.000$ $\frac{5100.000}{511.769.006}$ 20 Special $$11.769.006$ $\frac{511.769.006}{511.769.006}$ 21 Federal Trust $\frac{52.438.461}{52.438.461}$ $\frac{52.438.461}{52.219.967}$ 24 Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code. 25 25 336. Included in the Federal Trust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$583.541 the first year and \$583.541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by $\frac{42.030}{10}$ of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund. $\frac{5244.503.243}{5235,808,263}$ 33 General Fund Positions $\frac{81.76}{82.76}$ $\frac{827.6}{32.76}$ 34 General Fund Positions $\frac{81.76}{82.76}$ $\frac{852.26}{82.26}$ 35 Nongeneral Fund Positions $\frac{81.76}{80.950.766}$ $\frac{56.950.766}{500.950.766}$ 35 Position Level $\frac{160.960.250.766}{500.950.766}$ 51	Ger	General Management and Direct	ion (49901)			, .,, .	, , , . ,
Is Fund Sources: General \$100,000 \$100,000 \$100,000 19 Special \$11,769,006 \$11,786,036 20 Special \$11,769,006 \$11,886,836 21 Federal Trust \$2,438,461 \$2,438,461 23 Federal Trust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$583,541 the first year and \$583,541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by \$4-2.03 of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund. 20 Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services. \$244,503,243 33 General Fund Positions. 81.76 81.76 34 Nongeneral Fund Positions. $926-26$ 926.26 35 Nongeneral Fund Positions. 81.76 82.76 36 Fund Sources: General \$60,850,766 \$60,890,766 36 Fund Sources: General \$60,850,766 \$60,950,766 37 Position Level. \$10,99,37 \$11,99,937 \$11,99,937 38 General Trust. \$100,602,994 \$160,602,904 \$12,549,556 <td></td> <td></td> <th></th> <td>\$6,392,808 \$6,092,808</td> <td>\$6,392,808 \$6,092,808</td> <td></td> <td></td>				\$6,392,808 \$6,092,808	\$6,392,808 \$6,092,808		
19 Special \$11,769,006 \$11,769,006 21 Special \$11,769,006 \$11,780,006 23 Federal Trust $$2,438,461$ $$2,438,461$ 23 Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code. 24 Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code. 25 336. Included in the Federal Trust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$583,541 the first year and \$583,541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by \$4.2.03 of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund. 30 Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services. $$244,503,243$ 313 General Fund Positions. $$1.76$ $$11,76$ 334 General Fund Positions. $$926,26$ $$92,226$ 335 Nongeneral Fund Positions. $$926,26$ $$92,626$ 336 Position Level $$100,602,946$ $$80,276$ 337 Federal Trust. $$12,849,556$ $$12,849,556$ $$12,849,556$ 337. Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400). $$7,132$		2					
21\$11,886,85622Federal Trust $$2,2438,461$ $$2,2438,461$ 23\$2,219,96724Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code.25336.Included in the Federal Trust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$283,541 the first year and \$583,541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect cost up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by $$4-2.03$ of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund.30Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services $$244,503,243$ \$2235,808,26333General Fund Positions $$81.76$ $$81.76$ $$2.76$ 34Services $$2245,002,243$ \$2235,808,26335Nongeneral Fund Positions $$926,26$ $$26,66$ 36Position Level $$10,908,002$ $$966,02$ 37Position Level $$10,908,002$ $$10,908,004$ 38Pecial\$12,849,556 $$12,849,556$ 39Fund Sources: General\$169,602,904 $$169,002,904$ 337.Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400) $$71,132,567$ $$10,908,004$ 337.Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45404) $$71,132,567$ $$6,831,377$ $$60,830,302$ 46337.Rehabilitation Services (45404)47Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45405) $$6,621,628$ 48Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45405) $$6,621,628$ 49Vocational Rehabilitation S	Fur	Fund Sources: General		\$100,000			
23 $\$l_1678, 134$ $\$l_2, 219, 967$ 24Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Federal Code.25336.Included in the Federal Trust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$583, 541 the first year and \$583, 541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by $\$ 4.2.03$ of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund.30Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services. $\$244,503,243$ \$235,808,26333General Fund Positions. $\$1.76$ $\$22.26$ 822.26 822.26 822.26 822.26 822.26 822.26 822.26 $860,250,766$ 34Special $\$12,849,556$ $\$12,849,55$		Special		\$11,769,006			
25336.Included in the Federal Tust appropriation are amounts estimated at \$583,541 the first year and \$583,541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by \$4-2.03 of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund.30Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services\$244,563,243 \$235,808,26333General Fund Positions81.7681.76 82.7634926,26926,2635Nongeneral Fund Positions926,2636908,0024,008,0237Position Level1,008,0238960,850,766\$60,850,76639Fund Sources: General\$12,849,55641Special\$12,849,55642Dedicated Special Revenue\$1,19,93743Federal Trust\$160,602,98444\$160,908,004\$158,301,73945Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)46337.Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400)\$7,132,56747Yucational Rehabilitation Services (45404)\$7,132,56748Yocational Rehabilitation Services (45405)\$6,918,13749Medical Rehabilitative Services (45405)\$6,421,62846Stocker (25405)\$6,421,62847Stocker (25405)48Stocker (25405)49Stocker (25405)40Stocker (25405)41St		Federal Trust					
26and \$583,541 the second year, to pay for statewide indirect cost recoveries of this agency. Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the level of these estimates shall be exempt from payment into the general fund, as provided by $\$ 4.2.03$ of this Act. Amounts recovered in excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general fund.30Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative services. $\$244,503,243$ $\$235,808,263$ 33General Fund Positions. $\$1.76$ $\$2.76$ 34Nongeneral Fund Positions. $\$1.76$ $\$2.76$ 35Nongeneral Fund Positions. $\$26,26$ $\$2.26$ 36Nongeneral Fund Positions. $\$26,26$ $\$2.26$ 37Position Level. $$1,008,02$ $$66,0850,766$ 38Fund Sources: General.\$60,850,766 $$60,950,766$ 41Special $$12,849,556$ \$12,849,556 $$12,849,556$ 42Dedicated Special Revenue.\$1,199,937 $$1,199,937$ 43Federal Trust. $$169,602,984$ $$160,602,984$ 44Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)45Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)46337.Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400). $$7,132,567$ $$7,132,567$ $$7,132,567$ $$7,132,567$ 47Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404). $$6,918,137$ $$6,930,302$ $$6,921,628$ 46Medical Rehabilitative Services (45405). $$6,421,628$	Au	Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14	, Code of Virginia; P.L	93-112, Federal Co	ode.		
33 General Fund Positions. 81.76 81.76 82.76 34 Nongeneral Fund Positions. 926.26 926.26 926.26 36 882.26 882.26 882.26 37 Position Level. $1,008.02$ $1,008.02$ 38 964.02 965.02 39 Fund Sources: General. $$60,850,766$ $$60,850,766$ 40 Special. $$12,849,556$ $$12,849,556$ 41 Special Revenue. $$11,199,937$ $$1,199,937$ 43 Federal Trust. $$169,602,984$ $$169,602,984$ 44 \$160,908,004 \$158,301,739 45 Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203) 46 337. Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400). $$7,132,567$ $$7,132,567$ 47 Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404). $$7,132,567$ $$7,132,567$ $$7,132,567$ 48 Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45405). $$6,421,628$ $$6,421,628$ $$6,421,628$	Act fron in e Tot	Actual recoveries of statewide in from payment into the general f in excess of these estimates shal Total for Department for Agin	idirect costs up to the le und, as provided by § 4 l be deposited to the ge g and Rehabilitative	vel of these estimat -2.03 of this Act. A	es shall be exempt		\$244,503,243 \$233,301,998
34 82.76 35 Nongeneral Fund Positions	Ge	General Fund Positions		81.76	81.76	,,_,_,_,_	<i>,,_,_,_,_,_,</i>
36 882.26 882.26 37 Position Level $1,008.02$ $1,008.02$ 38 964.02 965.02 39 Fund Sources: General	No	Nongeneral Fund Positions			82.76		
39 40Fund Sources: General $\$60,850,766$ $\$60,950,766$ 41Special $\$12,849,556$ $\$12,849,556$ 42Dedicated Special Revenue $\$11,199,937$ $\$1,199,937$ 43Federal Trust<		C C			1,008.02		
40 $\$60,950,766$ 41Special $\$12,849,556$ $\$12,849,556$ 42Dedicated Special Revenue $\$11,199,937$ $\$1,199,937$ 43Federal Trust $\$169,602,984$ $\$169,602,984$ 44Silon Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)45Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)46337.Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400) $\$13,554,195$ 47Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404) $\$7,132,567$ $\$7,132,567$ 48Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404) $\$7,132,567$ $\$7,132,567$ 49Medical Rehabilitation Services (45405) $\$6,918,137$ $\$6,830,302$							
42 Dedicated Special Revenue	Fur	Fund Sources: General		\$60,850,766	\$60,950,766		
43 44 Federal Trust							
46 337. Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400) \$13,554,195 47 \$12,585,591 48 Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404) \$7,132,567 49 \$6,918,137 \$6,830,302 50 Medical Rehabilitative Services (45405) \$6,421,628				\$169,602,984	\$169,602,984		
47 \$12,585,591 48 Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404) \$7,132,567 49 \$6,918,137 \$6,830,302 50 Medical Rehabilitative Services (45405) \$6,421,628		W	ilson Workforce and l	Rehabilitation Cen	ter (203)		
48 Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404) \$7,132,567 \$7,132,567 49 \$6,918,137 \$6,830,302 50 Medical Rehabilitative Services (45405) \$6,421,628 \$6,421,628	337. Rel	Rehabilitation Assistance Servic	es (45400)				\$13,554,195 \$11,007,271
50 Medical Rehabilitative Services (45405) \$6,421,628 \$6,421,628	Vo	Vocational Rehabilitation Servic	es (45404)			<i>φ12,383,391</i>	\$11,907,271
	Me	Medical Rehabilitative Services	(45405)				
52 Fund Sources: General \$2,909,117 \$2,909,117	Fur						
53 Special \$10,636,078 \$10,63		Special					

				Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
]	ITEM 337	•	First Year FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1		Federal Trust	\$9,000	\$9,000			
2 3		Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; P and P.L. 95-602, Federal Code.	.L. 89-313, P.L. 93	-112, P.L. 94-482			
4 5 6	338.	Facility Administrative and Support Services (49800)			\$14,165,846 \$13,269,477	\$14,165,846 \$12,366,824	
7 8		General Management and Direction (49801)	\$3,932,936 \$3,375,938	\$3,932,936 \$2,656,295	<i><i><i>ϕ</i>10,20,,177</i></i>	\$12,200,027	
9 10		Information Technology Services (49802)	\$778,832 \$722,122	\$778,832 \$674,534			
11 12		Security Services (49803)	\$737,283 \$680,023	\$737,283 \$632,435			
13 14		Residential Services (49804)	\$1,773,482 \$1,746,906	\$1,773,482 \$1,746,906			
15 16		Food and Dietary Services (49807)	\$1,176,000 \$1,156,498	\$1,176,000 \$1,156,498			
17 18		Physical Plant Services (49815)	\$5,767,313 \$5,587,990	\$5,767,313 \$5,500,156			
19 20		Fund Sources: General	\$2,408,597	\$2,408,597			
20 21		Special	\$11,578,286 \$10,681,917	\$11,578,286 \$9,779,264			
22		Federal Trust	\$178,963	\$178,963			
23 24		Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia; F Code.	P.L. 93-112 and P.I	2. 95-602, Federal			
27 28 29 30 31 32		shall include, but not be limited to, vocational prevocational, academic, and vocational training; inc from school to work services; rehabilitative enginee medical rehabilitation services, including resider community reentry, and family support. Total for Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center	lependent living se ering and assistive	ervices; transition e technology; and	\$27,720,041	\$27,720,041	
33					\$25,855,068	\$24,274,095	
34 35		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions	58.80 222.20	58.80 222.20			
35 36 37		Position Level	193.20 281.00	193.20 281.00			
38			252.00	252.00			
39 40		Fund Sources: General Special	\$5,317,714 \$22,214,364	\$5,317,714 \$22,214,364			
41 42		Federal Trust	\$20,349,391 \$187,963	\$18,768,418 \$187,963			
43 44 45		Grand Total for Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services			\$272,223,284 \$261,663,331	\$272,223,284 \$257,576,093	
46 47		General Fund Positions	140.56	140.56 141.56			
48 49		Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,148.46 1,075.46	1,148.46 1,075.46			
49 50 51		Position Level	1,075.40 1,289.02 1,216.02	1,075.40 1,289.02 1,217.02			
52 53		Fund Sources: General	\$66,168,480	\$66,168,480 \$66,268,480			
54		Special	\$35,063,920	\$35,063,920			
55 56		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$ <i>33,198,947</i> \$1,199,937	\$31,617,974 \$1,199,937			

ITEM 220			Item Details(\$) Appropriations(First Year Second Year First Year Second				
]	ITEM 338		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1 2		Federal Trust	\$169,790,947 \$161,095,967	\$169,790,947 \$158,489,702			
3		§ 1-98. DEPARTMENT O	F SOCIAL SERVI	CES (765)			
4 5	339.	Program Management Services (45100)			\$42,408,598	\$42,408,598 \$43,073,674	
6 7		Training and Assistance to Local Staff (45101) Central Administration and Quality Assurance for	\$4,986,679	\$4,986,679			
8 9		Benefit Programs (45102) Central Administration and Quality Assurance for	\$12,541,044	\$12,541,044			
10 11		Family Services (45103)	\$8,491,978	\$8,491,978 \$9,157,054			
12 13		Central Administration and Quality Assurance for Community Programs (45105)	\$9,992,656	\$9,992,656			
14 15		Central Administration and Quality Assurance for Child Care Activities (45107)	\$6,396,241	\$6,396,241			
16		Fund Sources: General	\$16,701,948	\$16,701,948			
17 18		Special	\$100,000	<i>\$17,034,486</i> \$100,000			
19		Federal Trust	\$25,606,650	\$25,606,650			
20				\$25,939,188			
21 22 23		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 54; Title 63.2, Chapters 2 Subtitle B, P.L. 97-35, as amended; P.L. 103-252, as a Federal Code.					
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34		A. The Department of Social Services, in collaboration shall provide training to local staff serving on Family . Community Policy and Management Teams. Training sto, the federal and state requirements pertaining to the funded under § 2.2-5211, Code of Virginia. The training concerning which services remain the financial responsocial services. Training shall be provided on a regional guidance shall be updated and provided to local Office of there is a change in allowable expenses under federal Department of Social Services shall provide ongoing larequirements related to the provision of services funded.	Assessment and Pla shall include, but ne provision of the fo g shall also include nsibility of the loca l basis at least once of Children's Service or state guidelines bocal oversight of its	nning Teams and eed not be limited ster care services written guidance al departments of per year. Written s teams whenever a. In addition, the federal and state			
35 36 37 38 39 40 41		B. By November 1 of each year, the Department of Plar the Department of Social Services, shall prepare and so cash assistance provided through the Temporary Ass program, mandatory child day care services under T adoption subsidy payments, upon which the Governo based, for the current and subsequent two years to the C and Senate Finance Committees.	submit a forecast of istance for Needy 1 CANF, foster care r's budget recommo	expenditures for Families (TANF) maintenance and endations will be			
42 43 44		C. The Department of Social Services shall provide a assistance to the Family and Children's Trust Fund (FA Sections 63.2-2100 through 63.2-2103, Code of Virgin	CT) Board of Trust				
45 46 47 48		D. Out of this appropriation, \$1,829,111 the first year a the general fund and \$1,829,111 the first year and nongeneral funds shall be provided to fund the Suppler (SNAP) Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) contract co	\$1,829,111 the somental Nutrition As	econd year from			
49 50 51 52 53		E.1. Out of this appropriation, ten positions and the ass providing on-going financial oversight of foster care set two working out of each regional office, shall assess a ensure that state and federal standards are met. None quality, information technology, or clerical functions	rvices. Each of the t nd review all foster of these positions	en positions, with care spending to			
54 55		2. By September 1 of each year, the department shall rep the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Commit					

			Item	n Details(\$)	Approp	riations(\$)
	ITEM 339		First Year FY2019	• Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Planning and Budget regarding the foster care prog and compliance with state and federal reviews.	ram's statewide sper	nding, error rates		
3 4 5	340.	Financial Assistance for Self-Sufficiency Programs and Services (45200)			\$267,327,852	\$274,095,685 \$276,021,073
6 7 8		Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Cash Assistance (45201)	\$65,706,200	\$61,618,736 \$63,544,124		<i>\$276,021,075</i>
9 10 11		Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Employment Services (45212)	\$21,657,833	\$21,657,833		
11 12 13		Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAPET) Services (45213)	\$4,562,444	\$1,017,741		
14 15		Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Child Care Subsidies (45214)	\$57,807,905	\$57,807,905		
16 17		At-Risk Child Care Subsidies (45215) Unemployed Parents Cash Assistance (45216)	\$110,235,948 \$7,357,522	\$124,635,948 \$7,357,522		
18 19 20		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$81,518,741 \$185,809,111	\$81,518,741 \$192,576,944 \$194,502,332		
21 22 23		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 54; Title 63.2, Chapters VI, Subtitle B, P.L. 97-35, as amended; P.L. 103-amended, Federal Code.		of Virginia; Title		
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32		A. It is hereby acknowledged that as of June 30, government an unexpended balance of \$123,754,882 Needy Families (TANF) block grant funds which ar Virginia to reimburse expenditures incurred in accorr the TANF program. Based on projected spending lev Commonwealth's accumulated balance for authorize estimated at \$117,664,697 \$136,288,696 on June 30 on June 30, 2019; and \$99,249,842 \$112,426,112 or B. No less than 30 days prior to submitting any an	e in federal Tempora re available to the C dance with the adop rels and appropriation of federal TANF blo 0, 2018; \$106,277,3 n June 30, 2020.	ary Assistance for commonwealth of ted State Plan for ons in this act, the ock grant funds is 67 \$124,901,366 deral government		
33 34 35 36 37 38 39		related to the State Plan for the Temporary Assistan Commissioner of the Department of Social Service House Appropriations and Senate Finance Con Department of Planning and Budget written docume changes. This documentation shall include an estimat changes and information summarizing public comme changes.	es shall provide the nmittees as well ntation detailing the te of the fiscal impace ent that was received	Chairmen of the as the Director, e proposed policy ct of the proposed d on the proposed		
40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52		C. Notwithstanding any other provision of state law shall maintain a separate state program, as that ten governing the Temporary Assistance for Needy Far 260.30, for the purpose of providing welfare cash ass parent families. The separate state program shall be outside of the TANF program. Able-bodied two-par TANF cash assistance as defined at 45 C.F.R. § 260 under the separate state program provided for in conditions and eligibility requirements may be differ the basic benefit payment for which two-parent far state program shall not be less than what they wou Department of Social Services shall establish regu program.	m is defined by fe nilies (TANF) prog istance payments to e funded by state fu rent families shall n 0.31 (a)(1), but shal a this paragraph. A rent under the separa nilies are eligible u ald have received u	deral regulations ram, 45 C.F.R. § able-bodied two- nds and operated tot be eligible for l receive benefits lthough various ate state program, nder the separate nder TANF. The		
53 54 55 56		D. As a condition of this appropriation, the Departm the value of one motor vehicle per assistance unit assistance in the Temporary Assistance for Needy H separate state program for able-bodied two-parent f	t in determining eli Families (TANF) pr	igibility for cash		

57 E. The Department of Social Services, in collaboration with local departments of social

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

services, shall maintain minimum performance standards for all local departments of social services participating in the Virginia Initiative for Employment, Not Welfare (VIEW) program. The department shall allocate VIEW funds to local departments of social services based on these performance standards and VIEW caseloads. The allocation formula shall be developed and revised in cooperation with the local social services departments and the Department of Planning and Budget.

ITEM 340.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 13

F. A participant whose Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) financial assistance is terminated due to the receipt of 24 months of assistance as specified in § 63.2-612, Code of Virginia, or due to the closure of the TANF case prior to the completion of 24 months of TANF assistance, excluding cases closed with a sanction for noncompliance with the Virginia Initiative for Employment Not Welfare program, shall be eligible to receive employment and training assistance for up to 12 months after termination, if needed, in addition to other transitional services provided pursuant to § 63.2-611, Code of Virginia.

14 G. The Department of Social Services, in conjunction with the Department of Correctional 15 Education, shall identify and apply for federal, private and faith-based grants for pre-release parenting programs for non-custodial incarcerated parent offenders committed to the 16 Department of Corrections, including but not limited to the following grant programs: 17 18 Promoting Responsible Fatherhood and Healthy Marriages, State Child Access and Visitation 19 Block Grant, Serious and Violent Offender Reentry Initiative Collaboration, Special 20 Improvement Projects, § 1115 Social Security Demonstration Grants, and any new grant 21 programs authorized under the federal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 22 block grant program.

H.1. Out of this appropriation, \$10,703,748 the first year and \$10,703,748 the second year
from nongeneral funds is included for Head Start wraparound child care services.

25 2. Included in this Item is funding to carry out the former responsibilities of the Virginia 26 Council on Child Day Care and Early Childhood Programs. Nongeneral fund appropriations 27 allocated for uses associated with the Head Start program shall not be transferred for any 28 other use until eligible Head Start families have been fully served. Any remaining funds may 29 be used to provide services to enrolled low-income families in accordance with federal and 30 state requirements. Families, who are working or in education and training programs, with 31 income at or below the poverty level, whose children are enrolled in Head Start wraparound 32 programs paid for with the federal block grant funding in this Item shall not be required to pay 33 fees for these wraparound services.

- 34 I. Out of this appropriation, \$2,647,305 the first year and \$2,647,305 the second year from the 35 general fund and \$72,503,762 the first year and \$72,503,762 the second year from federal 36 funds shall be provided to support state child care programs which will be administered on a 37 sliding scale basis to income eligible families. The sliding fee scale and eligibility criteria are 38 to be set according to the rules and regulations of the State Board of Social Services, except 39 that the income eligibility thresholds for child care assistance shall account for variations in 40 the local cost of living index by metropolitan statistical areas. The Department of Social 41 Services shall make the necessary amendments to the Child Care and Development Funds 42 Plan to accomplish this intent. Funds shall be targeted to families who are most in need of 43 assistance with child care costs. Localities may exceed the standards established by the state 44 by supplementing state funds with local funds.
- J. Out of this appropriation, \$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be used to provide scholarships to students in early childhood education and related majors who plan to work in the field, or already are working in the field, whether in public schools, child care or other early childhood programs, and who enroll in a state community college or a state supported senior institution of higher education.
- 50 K. Out of this appropriation, \$505,000 the first year and \$505,000 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be used to provide training of individuals in the field of early childhood education.
- L. Out of this appropriation, \$300,000 the first year and \$300,000 the second year from
 nongeneral funds shall be used to provide child care assistance for children in homeless and
 domestic violence shelters.

	ITEM 340		Iter First Yea	n Details(\$) r Second Yea		riations(\$) Second Year
	11 200 340	•	FY2019		FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		M. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Soci first year and \$4,800,000 the second year from the fed Families (TANF) block grant to provide to each of children in the assistance unit a monthly TANF su Division of Child Support Enforcement collects up to through to such recipient. The TANF child support pays the amount of such supplement. For purposes of of assistance services, the TANF supplement desc disregarded. In the event there are sufficient federar assistance required by the TANF State Plan, the Of federal TANF block grant funds in excess of this a supplement described in this paragraph.	eral Temporary A TANF recipient upplement equal \$200, less the \$10 upplement shall I ment or payments letermining eligi tribed in this pa al TANF funds to ommissioner ma	ssistance to Needy with two or more to the amount the 0 disregard passed be paid within two used to determine bility for medica ragraph shall be provide all other y use unobligated		
14 15 16		N. The Board of Social Services shall combine G Temporary Assistance to Needy Families cash benefi new group.				
17 18 19 20 21 22		O. The Department of Social Services, in cooperation Center for Advanced Study of Teaching and Learning based, age-appropriate curricula to be available as participating in the child care subsidy program, and list of professional development courses and provid child care professionals participating in the child care	g, shall (i) develop a resource for ch (ii) develop, publ ers to be availabl	a list of research ild care providers ish and maintain a e as resources for	- 5 1	
23 24 25 26 27 28		P. The Department of Social Services shall submit a spending of additional federal Child Care and Dev access to and quality of child day care in Virginia Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2018, PL 115-14 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate F 2018.	elopment Fund n a that are receive 1. The plan shall l	nonies to improve d pursuant to the be submitted to the		
29 30 31 32 33 34 35		Q.1. Out of this appropriation \$925,000 the first year the federal Child Care and Development Fund (CCD pilot program in cooperation with the University of V of Teaching and Learning (UVA CASTL) to improve based and private child day care centers. The pilot pro developed curricula, professional development a Kindergarten readiness in these centers.	F) shall be provid Virginia Center for early childhood c gram shall impler	ed to implement a r Advanced Study lassrooms in faith ment UVA CASTI	1 7 -	
36 37 38 39 40		2. Out of the amounts provided in O.1., \$525,000 the the pilot program in 50 early childhood classrooms care centers and \$400,000 the first year from the f develop a version of the Virginia Kindergarten Readin use in assessing four-year-olds in these early childhoo	in faith-based and ederal CCDF sha less Program for th	l private child day all be provided to	7)	
41 42		3. Out of the amounts provided in O.1., \$325,000 the s implement an evaluation of the pilot program.	second year shall b	be used to		
43 44 45	341.	Financial Assistance for Local Social Services Staff (46000)			\$484,194,170 \$484,163,595	\$495,412,252 \$487,089,788
46 47		Local Staff and Operations (46010)	\$484,194,170 \$484,163,595	\$495,412,252 \$487,089,788		
48 49		Fund Sources: General	\$126,847,174 \$124,596,629	\$128,239,109 \$124,596,629		
50 51		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,000,000 \$7,774,764	\$3,000,000 \$8,659,655		
52 53		Federal Trust	\$354,346,996 \$351,792,202	\$364,173,143 \$353,833,504		
54 55		Authority: Title 63.2, Chapters 1 through 7 and 9 thro 193, Titles IV A, XIX, and XXI, Social Security Act,				

]	ITEM 341.		Ite First Yea FY2019			iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		A. The amounts in this Item shall be expended under a Services to reimburse county and city welfare/social serv Code of Virginia, and subject to the same percentage l services performed by county and city public wel superintendents of public welfare/social services pursuan Virginia, as amended.	vices boards purs imitations for o lfare/social ser	ther administrative vices boards and		
7 8 9 10		B. Pursuant to the provisions of §§ 63.2-403, 63.2-406, Code of Virginia, all moneys deducted from funds otherw to the counties and cities pursuant to the provisions of § 6 credited to the applicable general fund account.	vise payable out	of the state treasury		
11 12 13 14		C. Included in this appropriation are funds to reimburs eligibility workers who interview applicants to determine benefits which include but are not limited to: Tempora (TANF); Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (e qualification fo ary Assistance f	or public assistance or Needy Families		
15 16 17 18		D. Included in this appropriation are funds to reimburs social workers who deliver program services which inclu adult protective services complaint investigations; foster c services.	ude but are not li	mited to: child and		
19 20 21 22 23		E. Out of the federal fund appropriation for local social s \$72,000,000 the first year and \$72,000,000 the second y local costs which exceed available general fund reimbu \$22,000,000 the first year and \$22,000,000 the second y local governments for allowable costs incurred in admin	year shall be set arsement and am year shall be set	aside for allowable nounts estimated at aside to reimburse		
24 25 26 27		F. Out of this appropriation, \$562,260 the first year and general fund and \$540,211 the first year and \$540,211 the is provided to cover the cost of the health insurance cree employees.	e second year from	n nongeneral funds		
28 29 30 31 32		G. The Department of Social Services shall work with loc a pilot project in the western region of the state to evalu local departments on facilitated care arrangements. The findings from the pilot project, determine the most appropreporting such data on a statewide basis.	uate the availabl he department s	e data collected by hall, based on the		
33 34 35		H.1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,527,969 the first year at the general fund shall be available for the reinvestment of authorized in Title IV, parts B and E of the federal Social	of adoption gene	ral fund savings as		
36 37 38 39 40		2. Of the amount in paragraph H.1. above, \$1,333,031 second year from the general fund shall be used to provi assessments and investigations in response to all rep controlled substances regardless of whether the substance when she has sought or gained substance abuse counseling	ide Child Protect ports of children e had been presc	ive Services (CPS) n born exposed to		
41 42	342.	Child Support Enforcement Services (46300)			\$775,255,087	\$774,455,087 \$774,309,270
43 44 45		Support Enforcement and Collection Services (46301)	\$110,348,778	\$109,548,778 \$109,402,961		<i>\$771,007,270</i>
46		Public Assistance Child Support Payments (46302)	\$11,000,000	\$11,000,000		
47 48		Non-Public Assistance Child Support Payments (46303)	\$653,906,309	\$653,906,309		
49		Fund Sources: General	\$17,157,242	\$16,957,242 \$16,882,124		
50 51 52		Special	\$691,388,199	\$16,882,124 \$690,788,199 \$601,662,217		
52 53 54		Federal Trust	\$66,709,646	\$691,663,317 \$66,709,646 \$65,763,829		

]	ITEM 342	·	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Authority: Title 20, Chapters 2 through 3.1 and 4.1 Code of Virginia; P.L. 104-193, as amended; P.L. 104-194-194, as amended; P.L. 104-194-194, as amended; P.L. 104-194, as amended; P.L. 104-194, and and amended; P.L. 104-194, amended; P.L. 104-19	through 9; Title 6	53.2, Chapter 19,		
3 4 5 6 7 8 9		A. Any net revenue from child support enforcement are made in accordance with state and federal statutes share of the cost of administering the program is paid into the general fund by June 30 of the fiscal year in v moneys determined to be available upon final detern administering the program shall be deposited to the g subsequent fiscal year in which it is collected.	and regulations, ar d, shall be estimat vhich it is collected mination of a fisca	ad after the state's ed and deposited d. Any additional al year's costs of		
10 11 12 13 14		B. In determining eligibility and amounts for cash a Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation the department shall continue to disregard up to \$100 p and return to recipients of cash assistance up to \$100 p collected on their behalf.	Act of 1996, Pub ber month in child	lic Law 104-193, support payments		
15 16 17 18		C. The state share of amounts disbursed to recipier paragraph B of this Item shall be considered part Maintenance of Effort spending for the federal Tempo program established by the Social Security Act.	of the Commonw	vealth's required		
19 20 21 22 23 24 25		D. The department shall expand collections of child s with private vendors. However, the Department of So Attorney General shall not contract with any private co other private entity for any child support enforcement Social Services has made a written determination the under a proposed contract at a lower cost than if Commonwealth.				
26 27 28 29 30 31 32		E. The Division of Child Support Enforcement, in co Medical Assistance Services, shall identify cases for order requiring a noncustodial parent to contribute to the who is enrolled in the Medicaid or Family Access to M Programs. Once identified, the division shall work Assistance Services to take appropriate enforcement a repayments for the Medicaid program.	r which there is a he medical cost of fedical Insurance S with the Departu	medical support caring for a child Security (FAMIS) ment of Medical		
33 34 35 36 37 38	343.	Adult Programs and Services (46800) Auxiliary Grants for the Aged, Blind, and Disabled (46801) Adult In-Home and Supportive Services (46802) Domestic Violence Prevention and Support Activities (46803)	\$20,998,969 \$6,822,995 \$11,839,205	\$22,298,009 \$6,822,995 \$11,839,205	\$39,661,169	\$40,960,209
39 40		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$22,456,141 \$17,205,028	\$23,755,181 \$17,205,028		
41 42		Authority: Title 63.2, Chapters 1, 16 and 22, Code of Security Act, as amended.				
43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54		 A.1.a. Effective July 1, 2018 January 1, 2019, the collaboration with the Department for Aging and Relabase approved licensed assisted living facility rat occupancy rate of 85 percent of licensed capacity, \$1,271 \$1,292 per month, which rate is also applied to unless modified as indicated below. The department r the maximum amount for licensed assisted living facil Planning District Eight. b. Effective July 1, 2019, the Department of Social Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, is a assisted living facility rates for individual facilities on licensed capacity, not to exceed a maximum rate of \$100 per the service of the service o	abilitative Services es for individual not to exceed a n o approved adult f nay add a 15 perce lities and adult fos Services, in collat uthorized to base a an occupancy rate	s, is authorized to facilities on an maximum rate of oster care homes, ent differential to ter care homes in poration with the approved licensed e of 85 percent of		

F

Item Details(\$)					
irst Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 is also applied to approved adult foster care homes, unless modified as indicated below. The 2 department may add a 15 percent differential to the maximum amount for licensed assisted 3 living facilities and adult foster care homes in Planning District Eight.

ITEM 343.

7

11

16

17

4 2. Effective January 1, 2013, the monthly personal care allowance for auxiliary grant 5 recipients who reside in licensed assisted living facilities and approved adult foster care 6 homes shall be \$82 per month, unless modified as indicated below.

3. The Department of Social Services, in collaboration with the Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services, is authorized to increase the assisted living facility and adult for 8 9 care home rates and/or the personal care allowance 10 which the federal government increases Supplem rates or at any other time that the department de 12 ensure that the Commonwealth continues to m 13 eligibility for federal financial participation in the Medicaid program. Any such increase is 14 subject to the prior concurrence of the Department of Planning and Budget. Within thirty days 15 after its effective date, the Department of Social Services shall report any such increase to the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees with an explanation of the reasons for the increase.

18 4. The number of auxiliary grant recipients in a supportive housing setting shall not exceed 19 60.

20 B. Out of this appropriation, \$4,185,189 the first year and \$4,185,189 in the second year from 21 the federal Social Services Block Grant shall be allocated to provide adult companion services 22 for low-income elderly and disabled adults.

23 C. The toll-free telephone hotline operated by the Department of Social Services to receive 24 child abuse and neglect complaints shall also be publicized and used by the department to 25 receive complaints of adult abuse and neglect.

26 D. Out of this appropriation, \$248,750 the first year and \$248,750 the second year from the 27 general fund and \$1,346,792 the first year and \$1,346,792 the second year from federal 28 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funds shall be provided as a grant to local 29 domestic violence programs for purchase of crisis and core services for victims of domestic 30 violence, including 24-hour hotlines, emergency shelter, emergency transportation, and other 31 crisis services as a first priority.

- 32 E. Out of this appropriation, \$75,000 the first year and \$75,000 the second year from the 33 general fund and \$400,000 the first year and \$400,000 the second year from nongeneral funds 34 shall be provided for the purchase of services for victims of domestic violence as stated in § 35 63.2-1615, Code of Virginia, in accordance with regulations promulgated by the Board of 36 Social Services.
- 37 F. Out of this appropriation \$1,100,000 the first year and \$1,100,000 the second year from the general fund and \$2,500,000 the first year and \$2,500,000 the second year from federal 38 39 Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) funds shall be provided as a grant to local 40 domestic violence programs for services.

41 42	344.	Child Welfare Services (46900)		
43 44		Foster Care Payments (46901)	\$66,587,861 \$62,854,331	\$66,668,352 \$63,478,732
45 46		Supplemental Child Welfare Activities (46902)	\$36,763,186	\$36,763,186 \$37,872,749
47 48		Adoption Subsidy Payments (46903)	\$130,925,453 \$135,292,686	\$130,925,453 \$135,942,946
49 50		Fund Sources: General	\$117,370,861 \$118,060,119	\$117,426,796 \$118,545,789
51 52		Special	\$1,425,030	\$1,425,030 \$2,434,593
53		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$585,265	\$585,265
54 55		Federal Trust	\$114,895,344 \$114,839,789	\$114,919,900 \$115,728,780

\$234,276,500 \$234,356,991 \$234.910.203 \$237.294.427

the assisted fiving facility and adult foster	
ce cited above on January 1 of each year in	
nental Security Income or Social Security	
etermines that an increase is necessary to	
neet federal requirements for continuing	

ITEM 344.	. 1	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	Authority: Title 63.2, Chapters 1, 2, 4 and 8 through 15, Code P.L. 101-126, P.L. 101-226, P.L. 105-89, P.L. 110-351, F Federal Code.				
4 5 6 7 8	A. Expenditures meeting the criteria of Title IV-E of the Socia reimbursed except that expenditures otherwise subject to a sta under applicable state policy, including local staffing, shal match. The commissioner shall ensure that local soci reimbursement for all children eligible for Title IV-E	indard local r l continue to al service b	natching share require local		
9 10 11 12 13	B. The commissioner, in cooperation with the Department of establish a reasonable, automatic adjustment for inflation eac room and board maximum rates paid to foster parents. However only in fiscal years following a fiscal year in which salary incre employees.	ch year to be er, this provis	applied to the ion shall apply		
14 15 16 17	C. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500 the general fund shall be provided for the purchase of services neglect prevention activities as stated in § 63.2-1502, Code with regulations promulgated by the Board of Social Services	for victims c of Virginia,	hild abuse and		
18 19 20	D. Out of this appropriation, \$180,200 the first year and \$180 the general fund and \$99,800 the first year and \$99,800 the set funds shall be provided to continue respite care for foster parts	cond year fro			
21 22 23 24 25	E. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 63.2-1300 through 6 adoption assistance subsidies and supportive services shall n adopted through parental placements, except parental placement is a child placing agency at the time of the adoption. This re- existing adoption assistance agreements.	ot be availab nts where the	le for children legal guardian		
26 27 28	F.1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,500,000 the first year and 8 from the general fund shall be provided to implement pilot number of foster care children adopted.		-		
29 30 31 32 33 34	2. Beginning July 1, 2017, the department shall provide an anr days after the end of the state fiscal year, on the use and ef including, but not limited to, the additional number of special r foster care as a result of this effort and the types of ongoing su to the Governor, Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senar the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.	fectiveness on needs children apportive serv	of this funding adopted from vices provided,		
35 36 37	G. Out of this appropriation, \$17,625,719 \$18,293,004 the first second year from the general fund and \$7,000,000 the first second year from nongeneral funds shall be provided for second year.	t year and \$	7,000,000 the		
38 39 40 41	H. Out of this appropriation $$53,199,867$ $$54,830,250$ the $$54,830,250$ the second year from the general fund and $$53,159$ year and $$53,199,867$ $$54,830,250$ the second year from provided for Title IV-E adoption subsidies.	9,867 \$54,83	30,250 the first		
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50	I. The Commissioner, Department of Social Services, shall en that provide independent living services to persons between 1 certain information about and counseling regarding the availa services is provided to any person who chooses to leave fos terminate independent living services before his twenty-first include the option for restoration of independent living servic independent living services, and the processes whereby indep be restored should he choose to seek restoration of such ser 63.2-905.1 of the Code of Virginia.	8 and 21 year bility of inde ter care or w birthday. Inf es following pendent living	rs of age make pendent living vho chooses to ormation shall termination of g services may		
51 52 53 54	J.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 63.2-1302, Code of Social Services shall negotiate all adoption assistance agreem prospective adoptive parents on behalf of local departmen provision shall not alter the legal responsibilities of the lo	ents with bot ts of social	th existing and services. This		

Year

Item D	etails(\$)
First Year	Second Year

FY2020

FY2019

Appropriations(\$)					
First Year Second Year					
FY2019	FY2020				

ITEM 344.

2. Out of this appropriation, \$342,414 the first year and \$342,414 the second year from the
general fund and \$215,900 the first year and \$215,900 the second year from nongeneral funds
shall be provided for five positions to execute these negotiations.

6 K.1. The Department of Social Services shall partner with Patrick Henry Family Services to
7 implement a pilot program in the area encompassing Planning District 11 (Amherst,
8 Appomattox, Bedford, Campbell Counties and the City of Lynchburg) for the temporary
9 placements of children for children and families in crisis.

- The pilot program will allow a parent or legal custodian of a minor, with the assistance of
 Patrick Henry Family Services, to delegate to another person by a properly executed power of
 attorney any powers regarding care, custody, or property of the minor for a temporary
 placement for a period that is not greater than 90 days. The program will allow for an option
 of a one-time 90 day extension.
- 15 2. The department shall ensure that this pilot program meets the following specific16 programmatic and safety requirements outlined in 22 VAC 40-131 and 22 VAC 40-191:
- (i) The pilot program organization shall meet the background check requirements described in22 VAC 40-191.
- (ii) The pilot program organization shall develop and implement written policies and
 procedures for governing active and closed cases, admissions, monitoring the administration
 of medications, prohibiting corporal punishment, ensuring that children are not subjected to
 abuse or neglect, investigating allegations of misconduct toward children, implementing the
 child's back-up emergency care plan, assigning designated casework staff, management of all
 records, discharge policies, and the use of seclusion and restraint (22 VAC 40-131-90).
- (iii) The pilot program organization shall provide pre-service and ongoing training for
 temporary placement providers and staff (22 VAC 40-131-210 and 22 VAC 40-131-150).
- 3. The Department of Social Services shall evaluate the pilot program and determine if this
 model of prevention is effective. A report of the evaluation findings and recommendations
 shall be submitted to the Governor, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate
 Finance Committees, and the Commission on Youth by December 1, 2017.
- L.1. Out of this appropriation, \$2,925,954 the first year and \$2,925,954 the second year from
 the general fund and \$2,886,611 the first year and \$2,886,611 the second year from
 nongeneral funds shall be available for the expansion of foster care and adoption assistance as
 authorized in the federal Foster Connections to Success and Increasing Adoptions Act of 2008
 (P.L. 110-351; P.L. 11-148).
- 36 2. In order to implement the Fostering Futures program, the Department of Social Services 37 shall set out the requirements for program participation in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 675 (8) 38 (B) (iv) and shall provide the format of an agreement to be signed by the local department of 39 social services and the youth. The definition of a child for the purpose of the Fostering 40 Futures program shall be any natural person who has reached the age of 18 years but has not 41 reached the age of 21. The Department of Social Services shall develop guidance setting out 42 the requirements for local implementation including a requirement for six-month reviews of 43 each case and reasons for termination of participation by a youth. The guidance shall also 44 include a definition of a supervised independent living arrangement which does not include group homes or residential facilities. Implementation of this program includes the extension 45 of adoption assistance to age 21 for youth who were adopted at age 16 or older and who meet 46 the program participation requirements set out in guidance by the Department of Social 47 48 Services.
- 49 3. The Department of Social Services shall issue guidance for the program's eligibility
 50 requirements and shall be available, on a voluntary basis, to an individual upon reaching the
 51 age of 18 who:
- 52 (i) was in the custody of a local department of social services either:

ľ	ГЕМ 344		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		(a) prior to reaching 18 years of age, remained in foster can or				
3 4		(b) immediately prior to commitment to the Departmet transitioning from such commitment to self-sufficience		le Justice and is		
5		(ii) and who is:				
6		(a) completing secondary education or an equivalent creder	ntial; or			
7		(b) enrolled in an institution that provides post-secondary of	or vocational ec	lucation; or		
8		(c) employed for at least 80 hours per month; or				
9 10		(d) participating in a program or activity designed to pr barriers to employment; or	omote employ	ment or remove		
11 12 13		(e) incapable of doing any of the activities described in sub a medical condition, which incapability is supported by re the program participant's case plan.				
14 15		4. Implementation of extended foster care services shall youth reaching age 18 on or after July 1, 2016.	be available t	for those eligible		
16 17 18 19		M.1. Out of this appropriation, \$7,517,668 the first year a from the general fund and \$2,500,000 the first year and \$2 nongeneral funds shall be available for the reinvestment of as authorized in title IV, parts B and E of the federal Socia	2,500,000 the f adoption gen	second year from eral fund savings		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		2. Of the amounts in paragraph M.1. above, \$3,078,595 th second year from the general fund shall be used to develop a comprehensive child welfare information system (CCW CCWIS, the department shall not create any future of appropriation of general fund in excess of that provided appropriation, in excess of the amounts identified in this pa development of this or any other module for the CCWIS, Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finan Department of Planning and Budget.	a case manage /IS). In the de oligation that in this Act. S aragraph, be no the department	ement module for velopment of the will require the should additional edded to complete at shall notify the		
29 30 31 32 33		3. Beginning September 1, 2018, the department shall also reports that includes current project summary, implem- project expenditures and future milestones. All reports sha of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committee Planning and Budget.	entation statu Il be submitted	s, accounting of I to the Chairmen		
34 35		N. Out of this appropriation, \$1,009,563 the second year jused to fund ten positions that support the child protective				
36 37 38		O. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the second year from the second year from nongeneral funds shall be used to f Virginia Fosters.				
39 40	345.	Financial Assistance for Supplemental Assistance			\$78 757 450	\$78,757,450
40 41		Services (49100) General Relief (49101)	\$500,000	\$500,000	\$78,757,450	ψτ0, <i>τ3τ</i> ,430
42 43			\$9,022,000 69,235,450	\$9,022,000 \$69,235,450		
43						
44 45		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$500,000 78,257,450	\$500,000 \$78,257,450		
46 47		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 54; Title 63.2, Code of Virg 97-35, as amended; P.L. 104-193, as amended, Federal C		, Subtitle B, P.L.		

			Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
	ITEM 346		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	346.	Financial Assistance to Community Human Services Organizations (49200)			\$48,789,789 \$48,689,789	\$49,039,789 \$48,521,967
4		Community Action Agencies (49201)	\$18,638,048	\$18,638,048		
5		Volunteer Services (49202)	\$3,866,340	\$3,866,340		
6 7 8		Other Payments to Human Services Organizations (49203)	\$26,285,401 \$26,185,401	\$26,535,401 \$26,017,579		
9		Fund Sources: General	\$674,500	\$674,500		
10 11		Federal Trust	\$48,115,289 \$48,015,289	\$48,365,289 \$47,847,467		

Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 54; Title 63.2, Code of Virginia; Title VI, Subtitle B, P.L. 97-35, as amended; P.L. 103-252, as amended; P.L. 104-193, as amended, Federal Code.

12

13

A.1. All increased state or federal funds distributed to Community Action Agencies shall be distributed as follows: The funds shall be distributed to all local Community Action Agencies according to the Department of Social Services funding formula (75 percent based on low-income population, 20 percent based on number of jurisdictions served, and five percent based on square mileage served), adjusted to ensure that no agency receives less than 1.5 percent of any increase.

20 2. Out of this appropriation, \$185,725 the first year and \$185,725 the second year from the 21 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided to contract 22 with the Virginia Community Action Partnership to provide outreach, education and tax 23 preparation services via the Virginia Earned Income Tax Coalition and other community non-24 profit organizations to citizens who may be eligible for the federal Earned Income Tax Credit. 25 The contract shall require the Virginia Community Action Partnership to report on its efforts 26 to expand the number of Virginians who are able to claim the federal EITC, including the 27 number of individuals identified who could benefit from the credit, the number of individuals 28 counseled on the availability of federal EITC, and the number of individuals assisted with tax 29 preparation to claim the federal EITC. The annual report from the Virginia Community 30 Action Partnership shall also detail actual expenditures for the program including the sub-31 contractors that were utilized. This report shall be provided to the Governor and the Chairmen 32 of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by December 1 each year.

- 33 3. Out of this appropriation, \$6,250,000 the first year and \$6,250,000 the second year from the
 34 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided to contract
 35 with local Community Action Agencies to provide an array of services designed to meet the
 36 needs of low-income individuals and families, including the elderly and migrant workers.
 37 Services may include, but are not limited to, child care, community and economic
 38 development, education, employment, health and nutrition, housing, and transportation.
- B. The department shall continue to fund from this Item all organizations recognized by theCommonwealth as community action agencies as defined in §2.2-5400 et seq.
- 41 C. Out of this appropriation, \$9,035,501 the first year and \$9,035,501 \$8,617,679 the second 42 year from the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided to contract with programs that follow the evidence-based Healthy Families America 43 44 home visiting model that promotes positive parenting, improves child health and 45 development, and reduces child abuse and neglect. The Department of Social Services shall 46 use a portion of the funds from this item to contract with the statewide office of Prevent Child Abuse Virginia for providing the coordination, technical support, quality assurance, training 47 48 and evaluation of the Virginia Healthy Families programs.
- 49 D. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from
 50 nongeneral funds shall be provided for Volunteer Emergency Families for Children to expand
 51 its shelter care network for abused, neglected, runaway, homeless, and at-risk children
 52 throughout Virginia.
- E. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be provided for the Child Abuse Prevention Play (the play) administered by Virginia Repertory Theatre. The contract shall include production and live performances of the play that teach child safety awareness to prevent child abuse.

Item Details(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

F. Out of this appropriation, \$70,000 the first year and \$70,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to contract with the Virginia Alzheimer's Association Chapters to provide dementia-specific training to long-term care workers in licensed nursing facilities, assisted living facilities and adult day care centers who deal with Alzheimer's disease and related disorders.

ITEM 346.

1

2

3

4

5

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

6 G. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from 7 the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided to 8 contract with Northern Virginia Family Services (NVFS) to provide supportive services 9 that address the basic needs of families in crisis, including the provision of food, financial 10 assistance to prevent homelessness, and access to health services. The contract shall 11 require NVFS to provide an intake process that identifies the needs and appropriate 12 services for those in crisis. Outcomes will be measured utilizing surveys provided to those 13 who receive services and NVFS will report quarterly on survey results.

14 H. Out of this appropriation, \$405,500 the first year and \$405,500 the second year from the general fund and \$1,125,500 the first year and \$1,125,500 the second year from the 16 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided to contract with child advocacy centers (CAC) to provide a comprehensive, multidisciplinary team response to allegations of child abuse in a dedicated, child-friendly setting. The contracts shall require CACs to provide forensic interviews, victim support and advocacy services, medical evaluations, and mental health services to victims of child abuse and neglect with the expected outcome of reducing child abuse and neglect. The department shall allocate four percent to Children's Advocacy Centers of Virginia (CACVA), the recognized chapter of the National Children's Alliance for Virginia's Child Advocacy Centers, for the purpose of assisting and supporting the development, continuation, and sustainability of community-coordinated, child-focused services delivered by children's advocacy centers (CACs). Of the remaining 96 percent, (i) 65 percent shall be distributed to a baseline allocation determined by the accreditation status of the CAC: (a) developing and associate centers 100 percent of base; (b) accredited centers 150 percent of base; and (c) accredited centers with satellite facilities 175 percent of base; and (ii) 35 percent shall be allocated according to established criteria to include: (a) 25 percent determined by the rate of child abuse per 1,000; (b) 25 percent determined by child population; and (c) 50 percent determined by the number of counties and independent cities serviced.

33 I.1. Out of this appropriation, \$1,250,000 the first year and \$1,250,000 the second year 34 from the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided 35 to contract with the Virginia Early Childhood Foundation (VECF) to support the health 36 and school readiness of Virginia's young children prior to school entry. These funds shall 37 be matched with local public and private resources with a goal of leveraging a dollar for 38 each state dollar provided.

39 2. Of the amounts in paragraph I.1. above, \$1,250,000 the first year and \$1,250,000 the 40 second year from the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall 41 be used to provide information and assistance to parents and families and to facilitate 42 partnerships with both public and private providers of early childhood services. VECF will 43 track and report statewide and local progress on a biennial basis. The Foundation shall 44 account for the expenditure of these funds by providing the Governor, Secretary of Health 45 and Human Resources, and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 46 Committees with a certified audit and full report on Foundation initiatives and results not 47 later than October 1 of each year for the preceding fiscal year ending June 30.

- 48 3. On or before October 1 of each year, the foundation shall submit to the Governor and 49 the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees a report on the 50 actual amount, by fiscal year, of private and local government funds received by the 51 foundation.
- 52 J. Out of this appropriation \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from 53 the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) block grant shall be provided to the 54 Virginia Alliance of Boys and Girls Clubs to expand community-based prevention and 55 mentoring programs.

56 K.1. Out of this appropriation, \$7,500,000 the first year and \$7,500,000 the second year

	Item Details(\$)
ITEM 346	First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020
1	from the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) block grant the shall be provided
2	for competitive grants for community employment and training programs designed to move
3	low-income individuals out of poverty through programs designed to assist TANF recipients

a low-income individuals out of poverty through programs designed to assist TANF recipients
 a low-income individuals out of poverty through programs designed to assist TANF recipients
 a in obtaining and retaining competitive employment with the prospect of a career path and
 b wage growth and other supportive services designed to break the cycle of poverty and
 b permanently move individuals out of poverty. Of this amount, \$2.0 million shall be provided
 c competitive grants provided through Employment Services Organizations (ESOs).

8 2.a. Out of this appropriation, \$3,000,000 the first year and \$3,000,000 the second year from 9 the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) block grant the shall be provided for a 10 second round of grants for community employment and training programs designed to move 11 low-income individuals out of poverty by obtaining and retaining competitive employment with the prospect of a career path and wage growth. The local match requirement shall be 12 13 reduced to 10 percent, including in-kind services, for grant recipients located in Virginia 14 counties or cities with high fiscal stress as defined by the Commission on Local Government 15 fiscal stress index.

b. Out of the amounts in 2.a., at least \$300,000 each year from the TANF block grant shall be
provided through a contract with the City of Richmond, Office of Community Wealth for
services provided through the Center for Workforce Innovation.

19 3. The Department of Social Services shall award grants to qualifying programs through a 20 memorandum of understanding which articulates performance measures and outcomes 21 including the number of individuals participating in services, number of individuals hired into 22 employment, the number of unique employers hiring individuals through organizational 23 programs and activities, the average starting wage of individuals hired, reductions in the rate 24 of poverty, as well as process measures such as how the program targets improvement in 25 poverty over a 3-5 year period and fits in with long term community goals for reducing 26 poverty. Grants shall require local matching funds of at least a 25 percent, including in-kind 27 services.

4. Community employment and training programs and ESOs shall report on annual program performance and outcome measures contained in the memorandum of understanding with the Department of Social Services. The department shall report on the implementation of the programs and any performance and outcome data collected through the memorandum of understanding by June 1 of each year.

28

29 30

31

32

33 L. Out of this appropriation, \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to contract with Youth for Tomorrow (YFT) to provide 34 35 comprehensive residential, education and counseling services to at-risk youth of the 36 Commonwealth of Virginia who have been sexually exploited, including victims of sex 37 trafficking. The contract shall require YFT to provide individual assessments/individual 38 service planning; individual and group counseling; room and board; coordination of medical 39 and mental health services and referrals; independent living services for youth transitioning 40 out of foster care; active supervision; education; and family reunification services. Youth for 41 Tomorrow shall submit monthly progress reports on activities conducted and progress 42 achieved on outputs, outcomes and other functions/activities during the reporting period. On 43 October 1 of each year, YFT shall provide an annual report to the Governor and the Chairmen 44 of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees that details program services, 45 outputs and outcomes.

M. Out of this appropriation, \$75,000 each year from the federal Temporary Assistance to
 Needy Families block grant shall be provided to contract with Visions of Truth Community
 Development Corporation in Portsmouth, Virginia. The funding will support the Students
 Taking Responsibility in Valuing Education (STRIVE) suspension/dropout prevention
 program.

N. Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year from the
the federal Temporary Assistance to Needy Families block grant shall be provided to contract
with Early Impact Virginia to continue its work in support of Virginia's voluntary home
visiting programs. These funds may be used to hire three full-time staff, including a director
and an evaluator, and to continue Early Impact Virginia's training partnerships. Early Impact
Virginia shall have the authority and responsibility to determine, systematically track, and
report annually on the key activities and outcomes of Virginia's home visiting programs;

ITEM	346.	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5	conduct systematic and statewide needs assessments for Virg at least once every three years; and to support continuous of and coordination across Virginia's home visiting program Impact Virginia shall report on its findings to the Chairmer and Senate Finance Committees by July 1, 2019 and annua	quality improve as on an ongoir a of the House	ement, training, ng basis. Early		
6 7 8 9 10	O. Out of this appropriation, \$500,000 the first year and \$2 the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) blo contract with the Laurel Center in Winchester to provide pre domestic abuse and sexual violence in Winchester, Frederic Warren County at the Center's residential facility for survivo	ock grant shall ogram services k County, Clarl	be provided to to survivors of		
11 12 13 14 15	P. Out of this appropriation, \$50,000 the first year and \$50 general fund shall be provided for the Department of Soc Adoption Share, Inc. for the purpose of a pilot program application, which is an online matching tool for state cas foster care children with the best families.	cial Services to to operate the	contract with Family-Match		
16 17 18	Q. Out of this appropriation, \$200,000 the first year and \$ the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) blo FACETS to provide homeless assistance services in North	ck grant shall			
19 347. 20 21 22 23		5,783,256 2,936,647	\$25,883,039 \$2,936,647	\$28,719,903	\$28,819,686
24 25 26 27 28	Special		\$3,880,473 \$2,360,620 \$3,038,114 \$22,578,593 \$21,901,099		
29 30 31 32	 Authority: Title 63.2, Chapters 17 and 18, Code of Virginia. A. The state nongeneral fund amounts collected and paid into the provisions of § 63.2-1700, Code of Virginia, shall be delivery of training for operators and staff of assisted livery of training for operators. 	o the state treasured for the dev	velopment and		
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	 B. As a condition of this appropriation, the Department promptly fill all position vacancies that occur in licensing not remain vacant for longer than 120 days and (ii) hire s specialists to ensure that all child care facilities receive, at a year mandated by § 63.2-1706, Code of Virginia, and th problems receive additional inspection visits as necessary to laws and regulations. 	t of Social Ser offices so that sufficient child a minimum, the at facilities wi	vices shall (i) positions shall care licensing two visits per th compliance		
41 42 43 44 45 46 47	C. As a condition of this appropriation, the Department of risk assessment instrument for child and adult care enforce include criteria for determining when the following sar imposition of intermediate sanctions, (ii) the denial of licen license of a licensed facility, (iii) injunctive relief against a additional inspections and intensive oversight of a facility Services.	cement. This in actions may be asure renewal of a child care pro	strument shall e used: (i) the r revocation of ovider, and (iv)		
48 49 50	D. Out of this appropriation, the Department of Social Serv for new assisted living facility owners and managers to foc and resident rights as they pertain to adult care residences.				
51 52 53 54	E. Out of this appropriation, \$8,853,833 and 59 positions the 59 positions second year from the federal Child Care and shall be provided to address the workload associated with monitoring family day homes, pursuant to \$ 63.2-1704, Code	l Development ith licensing, i	Fund (CCDF) nspecting and		

1	ITEM 347.		Ite First Yea	em Details(\$) ar Second Year		iations(\$) Second Year
1	11 EN1 547		FY2019		FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8		the Director of the Department of Planning and Budg appropriation. At such time as the department demonstrathome licensure, inspection and monitoring activity to nee of the Department of Planning and Budget may allot add Social Services shall provide an annual report, not later preceding state fiscal year ending June 30, on the imp Governor, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations at the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.	get shall unallot les a sufficient in cessitate addition itional resources. than October 1 lementation of t	\$6,853,833 of this crease in family day al staff, the Director The Department of of each year for the his initiative to the		
9 10 11		F. The Department of Social Services shall work with I day care centers and family day homes to minimize du pursuant to § 63.2-1701.1, Code of Virginia.		• •		
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		G. No child day center, family day home, or family day Chapter 17, Title 63.2; child day center exempt from registered family day home; family day home approved day center or family day home that enters into a cont Services or a local department of social services to prov Child Care and Development Block Grant shall emplo serve as a volunteer who will be alone with, in control o who has an offense as defined in § 63.2-1719. All employ following background check by July 1, 2017 and every federal Child Care and Development Block Grant Act o	licensure pursu- by a family day s ract with the De ide child care ser y; continue to en f, or supervising yees and voluntee 5 years thereafter	ant to § 63.2-1716; system; or any child partment of Social vices funded by the nploy; or permit to children any person rrs shall undergo the c, as required by the		
22 23	347.10	Emergency Preparedness (77500) Emergency Preparedness and Response (77504)	\$0	\$4,250,000	\$0	\$4,250,000
24		Fund Sources: General	\$0	\$4,250,000		
25 26 27 28		1. Out of this appropriation, \$4,250,000 the second year for the advance purchase and storage of supplies require shelter, in response to an emergency order issued by the shall be carried forward to the subsequent fiscal year.	ed to stand up a s	tate-run emergency		
29 30 31		2. The Department of Social Services, in coordinatio Emergency Management and other state agencies as nec a statewide plan for purchasing, storing, and distributing	assary, shall dev	elop and implement		
32 33 34		3. Prior to the implmentation of the plan or the purchase the plan shall be submitted to the Secretaries of Health and Homeland Security, and Finance by September 1, 20	and Human Reso	urces, Public Safety		
35 36		4. Upon approval of this plan, the department is addition with this appropriation for related services to be delivered				
37	348.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)			\$103,784,025 \$108,000,762	\$103,784,025
38 39 40		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$3,529,872 \$4,515,894	\$3,529,872	\$108,009,763	\$115,544,025
41 42		Information Technology Services (49902)	\$76,684,999 \$79,924,715	\$76,684,999 \$88, <i>444,999</i>		
43		Accounting and Budgeting Services (49903)	\$9,732,964	\$9,732,964		
44		Human Resources Services (49914)	\$5,318,017	\$5,318,017		
45		Planning and Evaluation Services (49916)	\$2,972,427	\$2,972,427		
46		Procurement and Distribution Services (49918)	\$3,104,631 \$2,211,522	\$3,104,631 \$2,211,522		
47 48		Public Information Services (49919) Financial and Operational Audits (49929)	\$2,211,522 \$229,593	\$2,211,522 \$229,593		
		-				
49 50		Fund Sources: General	\$42,711,794 \$43,881,794	\$42,711,794 \$44,931,794		
50 51		Special	\$43,881,794 \$175,000	\$44,951,794 \$175,000		
51 52 53		Federal Trust	\$60,897,231 \$63,952,969	\$60,897,231 \$70,437,231		
54		Authority: Title 63.2, Chapter 1; § 2.2-4000 et seq., Cod				
54		rumority. The 03.2, Chapter 1, 8 2.2-4000 et seq., Cou	e or virginia, r.i	2. 70-302, I .L. 104-		

ITEM 3		Item D rst Year Y2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	156, P.L. 104-193, P.L. 104-327, P.L. 105-33, as amended, P. Titles IV-A, IV-B, IV-D, IV-E, XIX, XX, XXI of the federal amended.	L. 105-89,	Federal Code;	1 12019	1 1 2020
4 5 6 7	A. The Department of Social Services shall require localities to designated social services, regardless of reimbursement from s The Department of Social Services is authorized to include elig Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Maintenance of Effor	state and for the state and fo	ederal sources.		
8 9 10 11	B. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Commissior Services shall work with localities that seek to voluntarily me respective local departments of social services. No funds approp be used to require a locality to merge or consolidate local depart	rge and co riated und	nsolidate their er this act shall		
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	C.1. Out of this appropriation, \$473,844 the first year and \$473, the general fund and \$781,791 the first year and \$781,79 nongeneral funds shall be provided to support the statewide Referral System which provides resource and referral infor specialized health and human resource services available in the C child day care availability and providers in localities through consumer-oriented materials for those interested in learning the providers.	1 the second e 2-1-1 In commonwer commonwer out the state	nd year from formation and n many of the ealth, including e, and publish		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	2. The Department of Social Services shall request that all stat agencies within the Commonwealth be included in the Virginia S Referral System as well as any agency or entity that receives state provides services to families and youth. The Secretary of Healt the Secretary of Education and Workforce, and the Secreta Homeland Security shall assist in this effort by requesting all their secretariats to submit information to the statewide Informa and ensure that such information is accurate and updated annu notify the Virginia Information and Referral System of any cha occur throughout the year.	tatewide In e general fun- h and Hum ry of Pub affected a tion and R ally. Agen	nformation and ind dollars and nan Resources, lic Safety and gencies within eferral System cies shall also		
30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	3. The Department of Social Services shall communicate wit within the Commonwealth about the availability of the statewide System. This information shall also be communicated via th Services' broadcast system on their agency-wide Intranet so th offices can be better informed about the Statewide Informati Information on the Statewide Information and Referral Syste within the department's electronic mailings to all local and biannually.	Information The Department on all location on and Re m shall also	on and Referral ment of Social I and regional ferral System. so be included		
38 39 40 41 42	D.1. Within 30 days of awarding or amending any contract rel. Management System (VaCMS), the Department of Social Serv the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance C Department of Planning and Budget with a copy of the contr implications.	vices (DSS Committees) shall provide s, and Director,		
43 44 45 46 47	2. Prior to the award of any contract that will potentially obliga future unappropriated spending, the department shall receive p from Director, Department of Planning and Budget. Any appro requests shall be reported by DSS to the Chairmen of House A Finance Committees within 30 days.	orior writte wed increa	n concurrence ses in funding		
48 49 50 51 52 53	E.1. The Department of Social Services shall provide to the Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees a report on th Asset Verification Service that is part of the Eligibility Moderniz September 1, 2016. It is the intent of the General Assembly institutions with branches in Virginia to work collaboratively we vendor in order to maximize participation in the Asset Verificat	to e impleme ation Proje to encou th the dep	entation of the ct on or before rage financial artment and its		
54	2. The Department shall also develop a plan and submit it to th	e Chairme	n of the House		

54 2. The Department shall also develop a plan and submit it to the Chairmen of the House55 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees to incorporate searchable national real

ITEM 348.				Item I	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)			
						First Year	Second Year	First Year Second Year	
						FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
				 	<i>a</i> .				

- estate records as part of the Asset Verification Service program as soon as the data are available.
- 3 349. A. In the operation of any program of public assistance, including benefit and service
 4 programs in any locality, for which program appropriations are made to the Department of
 5 Social Services, it is provided that if a payment or overpayment is made to an individual who
 6 is ineligible therefor under federal and/or state statutes and regulations, the amount of such
 7 payment or overpayment shall be returned to the Department of Social Services by the
 8 locality.
- 9 B. However, no such repayments may be required of the locality if the department determines 10 that such overpayment or payments to ineligibles resulted from the promulgation of vague or 11 conflicting regulations by the department or from the failure of the department to make timely 12 distribution to the localities of the statutes, rules, regulations, and policy decisions, causing 13 the overpayment or payment to ineligible(s) to be made by the locality or from situations 14 where a locality exercised due diligence, yet received incomplete or incorrect information 15 from the client which caused the overpayment or payment to ineligibles. If a locality fails to 16 effect the return, the Department of Social Services shall withhold an equal amount from the 17 next disbursement made by the department to the locality for the same program.
- 18 C. The Department of Social Services shall implement the guidance issued by the U.S. 19 Department of Health and Human Services concerning the obligation of recipients of federal 20 financial assistance to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 by ensuring that 21 meaningful access to federally-funded programs, activities and services administered by the 22 department is provided to limited English proficient (LEP) persons, 63 Fed. Reg. 47,311-23 47,323 (August 8, 2003). At a minimum, the department shall (i) identify the need for 24 language assistance by analyzing the following factors: (1) the number or proportion of LEP 25 persons in the eligible service population, (2) the frequency of contact with such persons, (3) 26 the nature and importance of the program, activity or service, and (4) the costs of providing 27 language assistance and resources available; (ii) translate vital documents into the language of 28 each frequently encountered LEP group eligible to be served; (iii) provide accurate and timely 29 oral interpreter services; and (iv) develop an effective implementation plan to address the 30 identified needs of the LEP populations served.
- 31 350. A. The amount for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) shall be expended
 32 under regulations of the Board of Social Services to reimburse county and city welfare/social
 33 services boards pursuant to § 63.2-401, Code of Virginia, and subject to the same percentage
 34 limitations for other administrative services performed by county and city public
 35 welfare/social services boards and superintendents of public welfare/social services pursuant
 36 to other provisions of the Code of Virginia, as amended.
- B. Pursuant to the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996,
 Public Law 104-193, the Department of Social Services shall, in cooperation with local
 departments of social services, maintain a waiver of the work requirement for Supplemental
 Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) recipients residing in areas that do not have a sufficient
 number of jobs to provide employment for such individuals, including those areas designated
 as labor surplus areas by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- C. To the extent permitted by federal law, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) recipients subject to a work requirement pursuant to § 824 of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996, Public Law 104-193, as amended, shall be permitted to satisfy such work requirement by providing volunteer services to a public or private, nonprofit agency for the number of hours per month determined by dividing the household's monthly SNAP allotment by the federal minimum wage.
- 49 D. The Department of Social Services shall, to the extent permitted by federal law, disregard
 50 the value of at least one motor vehicle per household in determining eligibility for the
 51 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP).
- 52 E. The Department of Social Services shall develop a multi-lingual outreach campaign to
 53 inform qualified aliens and their children, who are United States citizens, of their eligibility
 54 for the federal Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) and ensure that they have
 55 access to benefits under SNAP. To the extent permitted by federal law, the department shall

ITEM 350.			Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1 2 3		administer SNAP in a way that minimizes the proce- addresses concerns about the impact of SNAP receip status.	dural burden on qua	alified aliens and			
4 5		Total for Department of Social Services			\$2,103,174,543 \$2,107,903,409	\$2,122,089,772 \$2,134,641,569	
6 7		General Fund Positions	624.00	624.00 624.50			
8 9		Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,198.50	1,198.50 <i>1,209.00</i>			
10 11		Position Level	1,822.50	1,822.50 1,833.50			
12 13		Fund Sources: General	\$429,818,874 \$429,427,587	\$432,365,784 \$436,569,717			
14 15		Special	\$695,448,849 \$696,126,343	\$694,848,849 \$697,411,024			
16 17		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,585,265 \$8,360,029	\$3,585,265 \$9,244,920			
18 19		Federal Trust	\$974,321,555 \$973,989,450	\$991,289,874 \$991,415,908			
20		§ 1-99. VIRGINIA BOARD FOR F	PEOPLE WITH D	ISABILITIES (6	06)		
21 22 23	351.	Social Services Research, Planning, and Coordination (45000)			\$1,535,390 \$1,572,417	\$1,535,390 \$1,578,852	
24 25		Research, Planning, Outreach, Advocacy, and Systems Improvement (45002)	\$980,625	\$980,625			
26 27		Administrative Services (45006)	\$554,765 \$591,792	\$554,765 \$598,227			
28 29		Fund Sources: General	\$211,515 \$248,542	\$211,515 \$2 <i>54,977</i>			
30		Federal Trust	\$1,323,875	\$1,323,875			
31		Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 7, Code of Virginia.					
32 33 34 35 36 37 38		Up to \$35,556 the first year and up to \$35,556 the sec Board for People with Disabilities (VBPD) to contrace Rehabilitative Services (DARS) for the provision of scope of the services and specific costs shall be understanding (MOU) between VBPD and DARS sub agency heads. Any revision to the MOU shall be Department of Planning and Budget within 30 day	t with the Departme shared administrat be outlined in a n ject to the approval reported by DARS	ent for Aging and ive services. The nemorandum of of the respective			
39 40 41 42	352.	Financial Assistance for Individual and Family Services (49000) Financial Assistance to Localities for Individual and Family Services (49001)	\$401,475	\$401,475	\$401,475	\$401,475	
43		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$401,475	\$401,475			
44		Authority: Title 51.5, Chapter 7, Code of Virginia.					
45 46 47		Total for Virginia Board for People with Disabilities			\$1,936,865 \$1,973,892	\$1,936,865 \$1,980,327	
48		General Fund Positions	0.60	0.60			
49		Nongeneral Fund Positions	8.40	8.40			
50		Position Level	9.00	9.00			
51 52		Fund Sources: General	\$211,515 \$248,542	\$211,515 \$2 <i>54</i> ,977			
53		Federal Trust	\$1,725,350	\$1,725,350			

	ITEM 352		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		§ 1-100. DEPARTMENT FOR THE B	BLIND AND VISIO	ON IMPAIRED (70)2)	
2 3	353.	Statewide Library Services (14200) Library and Resource Center Services (14202)	\$1,170,781	\$1,170,781	\$1,170,781	\$1,170,781
4		Fund Sources: General	\$1,170,781	\$1,170,781		
5		Authority: § 51.5-74, Code of Virginia; P.L. 89-522, and	P.L. 101-254, Feder	ral Code.		
6 7 8		Out of this appropriation, \$141,163 the first year and general fund shall be used to contract for the provision of and vision impaired.				
9 10 11 12	354.	State Education Services (19100) Braille and Instructional Materials (19101) Educational and Early Childhood Support Services (19102)	\$579,976 \$782,118	\$579,976 \$782.118	\$1,362,094	\$1,362,094
13 14 15		Fund Sources: General Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$857,094 \$55,000 \$450,000	\$857,094 \$55,000 \$450,000		
16 17		Authority: §§ 22.1-214 and 22.1-217, Code of Virginia; I 119, Federal Code.	P.L. 89-313, P.L. 97	-35 and P.L. 102-		
18 19	355.	Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400)			\$13,397,938	\$13,397,938 \$14,708,047
20		Low Vision Services (45401)	\$441,285	\$441,285		
21 22		Vocational Rehabilitation Services (45404)	\$8,339,166	\$8,339,166 \$8,964,666		
23		Community Based Independent Living Services				
24 25		(45407)	\$4,095,980	\$4,095,980 \$4,490,589		
26 27		Vending Stands, Cafeterias, and Snack Bars (45410)	\$521,507	\$521,507 \$811,507		
28 29		Fund Sources: General	\$1,981,012	\$1,981,012 \$3,001,121		
30 31		Special	\$504,731	\$504,731 \$794,731		
32		Trust and Agency	\$150,000	\$150,000		
33		Federal Trust	\$10,762,195	\$10,762,195		
34		Authority: § 51.5-1 and Title 51.5, Chapter 1, Code of V	irginia; P.L. 93-516	and P.L. 93-112,		

Authority: § 51.5-1 and Title 51.5, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-516 and P.L. 93-112, Federal Code.

35

36

37

38

39

A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that visually handicapped persons who have completed vocational training as food service managers through programs operated by the Department be considered for food service management position openings within the Commonwealth as they arise.

40 B. 1.The annual federal vocational rehabilitation grant award that will be received by the 41 Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired (DBVI) is estimated at \$11,442,719 for federal 42 fiscal year 2018; \$11,442,719 for federal fiscal year 2019; and \$11,442,719 for federal fiscal 43 year 2020. In addition to the base annual award amount, DBVI may request up to \$1,500,000 44 of additional federal reallotment dollars in each of these years. Assuming these amounts, the 45 annual 21.3 percent state matching requirement would equate to \$3,632,832 for federal fiscal 46 year 2018; \$3,632,832 for federal fiscal year 2019; and \$3,632,832 for federal fiscal year 47 2020.

2. Based on the projection of federal award funding in paragraph A.2., DBVI shall not request federal vocational rehabilitation grant dollars in excess of \$12,942,719 for federal fiscal year 2018; \$12,942,719 for federal fiscal year 2019; and \$12,942,719 for federal fiscal year 2020, without prior written concurrence from the Director, Department of Planning and Budget.
Any approved increases in grant award requests shall be reported by DARS to the Chairmen

ITEM 355.			Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1		of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Comm			F 12017	F I 2020	
2	356.	Regional Office Support and Administration			¢2 502 024	¢2 502 024	
3 4 5		(49700) Regional Office and Field Support Services (49701)	\$2,593,034	\$2,593,034	\$2,593,034	\$2,593,034	
6 7		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$1,366,526 \$1,226,508	\$1,366,526 \$1,226,508			
8 9		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 36; Title 51.5, Chapter 13 P.L. 97-35, Federal Code.	8, Code of Virginia	; P.L. 93-112 and			
10 11	357.	Rehabilitative Industries (81000)			\$50,768,817	\$50,768,817 \$50,368,817	
11 12 13 14		Manufacturing, Retail, and Contract Operations (81003)	\$50,768,817	\$50,768,817 \$50,368,817		<i>\$</i> 30,300,017	
15 16		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$50,768,817	\$50,768,817 \$50,368,817			
17		Authority: § 51.5-72, Code of Virginia; P.L. 92-29 and	P.L. 93-112, Fede	eral Code.			
18 19 20		The Industry Production Workers with the Virginia I counted in the classified employment levels of the De Impaired.					
21 22	358.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)			\$3,074,912	\$3,074,912 \$3,474,912	
23 24		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$2,277,309	\$2,277,309 \$2,677, <i>30</i> 9		<i>\(\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\</i>	
25		Physical Plant Services (49915)	\$797,603	\$797,603			
26 27		Fund Sources: General Special	\$762,724 \$749,678	\$762,724 \$749,678			
28 29		Enterprise	\$1,100,000	\$1,100,000 \$1,500,000			
30 31		Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$40,000 \$422,510	\$40,000 \$422,510			
31 32 33		Authority: Title 63.2, Chapter 4, Code of Virginia; P.L 35, Federal Code.		. ,			
34 35 36 37 38 39 40		Up to \$1,244,790 the first year and up to \$1,244,790 Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired (DBVI) Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) for the services. The scope of the services and specific costs of understanding (MOU) between DBVI and DAR respective agency heads. Any revision to the MOU Director, Department of Planning and Budget within	to contract with the provision of share shall be outlined in RS subject to the shall be reported	the Department for ed administrative n a memorandum approval of the			
41 42 43		Total for Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired			\$72,367,576	\$72,367,576 \$73,677,685	
44 45 46		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	62.60 92.40 155.00	62.60 92.40 155.00			
47 48		Fund Sources: General	\$6,138,137	\$6,138,137 \$7,158,246			
49		Special	\$1,254,409	\$1,254,409			
50 51 52 53		Enterprise Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$51,868,817 \$245,000 \$12,861,213	\$1,544,409 \$51,868,817 \$245,000 \$12,861,213			

ITEM 358.		Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$							
			First Year	Second Year	First Year Second Year				
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020			
1		Virginia Rehabilitation Center for the Blind and Vision Impaired (263)							
2 3	359.	Rehabilitation Assistance Services (45400)			\$1,651,313 \$1,671,313	\$1,651,313 <i>\$1,721,313</i>			
4		Social and Personal Adjustment to Blindness			\$1,0,1,010	\$1,721,010			
5 6		Training (45408)	\$1,651,313 \$1,671,313	\$1,651,313 \$1,721,313					
7		Fund Sources: General	\$172,500	\$172,500					
8		Special	\$2,000	\$2,000					
9			\$0	\$50,000					
10		Trust and Agency	\$20,000	\$20,000					
11		Federal Trust	\$1,476,813	\$1,476,813					
12		Authority: § 51.5-1, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Fede	ral Code.						
12	360.				\$1,339,251	\$1,339,251			
13 14	300.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)	\$588,403	\$588,403	\$1,559,251	\$1,559,251			
14		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$228,000	\$228,000					
		Food and Dietary Services (49907)	. ,						
16		Physical Plant Services (49915)	\$522,848	\$522,848					
17		Fund Sources: General	\$169,444	\$169,444					
18		Special	\$42,000	\$42,000					
19		Federal Trust	\$1,127,807	\$1,127,807					
20		Authority: § 51.5-73, Code of Virginia; P.L. 93-112, Fed	eral Code.						
21 22 23 24		Out of this appropriation, \$172,250 the first year and general fund shall be used for training individuals who vocational rehabilitation revenue. It is estimated that deafblind, and vision impaired individuals.	se cost cannot be co	overed by federal					
25 26 27		Total for Virginia Rehabilitation Center for the Blind and Vision Impaired			\$2,990,564 \$3,010,564	\$2,990,564 \$3,060,564			
28		Nongeneral Fund Positions	26.00	26.00					
20 29		Position Level	26.00	26.00					
20			\$241.044	\$241.044					
30 21		Fund Sources: General	\$341,944	\$341,944 \$44,000					
31 32		Special	\$44,000 <i>\$0</i>	\$44,000 \$50,000					
32 33		Enterprise	\$20,000	\$20,000 \$20,000					
33 34		Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$2,604,620	\$2,604,620					
54		rederat trust	\$2,004,020	\$2,004,020					
35 36 37		Grand Total for Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired			\$75,358,140 \$75,378,140	\$75,358,140 \$76,738,249			
38		Compared Frund Desitions	62.60	62.60					
		General Fund Positions	118.40	118.40					
39 40		Nongeneral Fund Positions							
40		Position Level	181.00	181.00					
41 42		Fund Sources: General	\$6,480,081	\$6,480,081 \$7,500,190					
43 44		Special	\$1,298,409	\$1,298,409 \$1,588,409					
45 46		Enterprise	\$51,868,817	\$51,868,817 \$51,918,817					
47 48		Trust and Agency	\$245,000 \$265,000	\$245,000 \$265,000					
49		Federal Trust	\$15,465,833	\$15,465,833					

395	

		It	em Details(\$)	Appro	priations(\$)
ITEM 3	360.	First Ye FY201			
1	TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF HEALTH AND	F 1 201	.9 F12020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3	TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES			\$ 16,788,153,180 \$17,323,510,762	
4 5	General Fund Positions	8,586.90 8,588.90	8,857.65 9,119.15		
6 7	Nongeneral Fund Positions	6,476.12 6,417.12	6,487.12 6,442.62		
8 9	Position Level	15,063.02 <i>15,006.02</i>	15,344.77 15,561.77		
10 11	Fund Sources: General	\$6,647,749,936 \$6,820,242,039			
12 13	Special	\$1,097,906,800 \$1,096,719,321			
14 15	Enterprise	\$51,868,817	\$51,868,817 \$51,918,817		
16 17	Trust and Agency	\$1,370,987 \$1,390,987	\$1,370,987 \$1,390,987		
18 19	Dedicated Special Revenue		\$1,244,497,489		
20 21	Federal Trust		\$9,300,372,775 \$11,093,229,121		

ITEM 361.			Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Approp First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		OFFICE OF NATU	RAL RESOURC	ES		
2		§ 1-101. SECRETARY OF NA	TURAL RESO	URCES (183)		
3	361.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$711,953	\$711,953
4		General Management and Direction (79901)	\$711,953 \$600,254	\$711,953		
5 6		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$609,254 \$102,699	\$609,254 \$102,699		
7		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Article 7; and § 2.2-201, C	Code of Virginia.			
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17		A. The Secretary of Natural Resources shall report to the on Finance and Agriculture, Conservation, and Natural Re- on Appropriations and Conservation and Natural Resource implementation of the Chesapeake Bay nutrient reduction and address the progress and costs of point source and n The report shall include, but not be limited to, information acress of submerged aquatic vegetation, computer model resources, and other relevant measures for the General As effectiveness of the tributary strategies. In addition, the Sec the status of all of Virginia's commitments to the Chesape	esources, and the ces, by November a strategies. The r ionpoint source p tion on levels of ling, variety and seembly to evalua ecretary shall inclu-	House Committees r 4 of each year on eport shall include ollution strategies. dissolved oxygen, numbers of living te the progress and ude information on		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27		B. It is the intent of the General Assembly that a reserve to Quality Improvement Fund to support the purposes der Quality Improvement Act of 1997 (WQIA 1997) when yunavailable. Consequently, 15 percent of any amounts Quality Improvement Fund due to annual general fund rofficial estimates contained in the general appropriation, unless otherwise specified. When annual genot exceed the official revenue estimates contained in reserve fund may be used for WQIA 1997 purposes as within the general appropriation act.	lineated within the year-end general appropriated to the revenue collection ation act shall he general fund revert the general app	he Virginia Water fund surpluses are he Virginia Water ns in excess of the be withheld from nue collections do ropriation act, the		
28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37		C. The Secretary of Natural Resources, with the assistance of the Directors of the Department of Conservation and Recreation, the Department of Environmental Quality, the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, and the Department of Historic Resources, shall provide an annual report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees of all projects undertaken pursuant to a settlement or mitigation agreement upon which the Secretary of Natural Resources is an authorized signatory on behalf of the Governor by November 15 each year until all terms of the settlement or mitigation agreement are satisfied. In addition, whenever a settlement or mitigation agreement is finalized, the Secretary shall provide a copy of, and explanation of, the terms of such settlement to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees within 15 days.				
38		Total for Secretary of Natural Resources			\$711,953	\$711,953
39 40		General Fund Positions Position Level	5.00 5.00	5.00 5.00		
41 42		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$609,254 \$102,699	\$609,254 \$102,699		
43		§ 1-102. DEPARTMENT OF CONSEI	RVATION AND	RECREATION (19	9)	
44	362.	Land and Resource Management (50300)		· · ·	\$61,126,611	\$38,274,312
45 46 47		Soil and Water Conservation (50301)	\$35,615,467 \$55,615,467	\$13,183,168 \$101,972,018	\$81,126,611	\$127,331,015
48 49 50		Dam Inventory, Evaluation and Classification and Flood Plain Management (50314)	\$3,502,916	\$101,972,018 \$3,082,916 \$3,350,769		

ITEM 362	<i>.</i> .	Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Natural Heritage Preservation and Management (50317)	\$4,717,137	\$4,717,137		
3 4	Financial Assistance to Soil and Water Conservation Districts (50320)	\$7,291,091	\$7,291,091		
5 6	Technical Assistance to Soil and Water Conservation Districts (50322)	\$1,200,000	\$1,200,000		
7 8	Agricultural Best Management Practices Cost Share Assistance (50323)	\$8,800,000	\$8,800,000		
9 10	Fund Sources: General	\$40,196,508 \$60,196,508	\$17,344,209 \$106,400,912		
11	Special	\$995,861	\$995,861		
12	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$12,251,202	\$12,251,202		
13	Federal Trust	\$7,683,040	\$7,683,040		

Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, and 21.1; Title 62.1, Chapter 3.1, Code of Virginia.

14 15

16 17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

A.1. Out of the amounts appropriated for Financial Assistance to Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Districts, \$7,191,091 the first year and \$7,191,091 the second year from the general fund shall be provided to soil and water conservation districts for administrative and operational support. These funds shall be distributed upon approval by the Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Board to the districts in accordance with the Board's established financial allocation policy. These amounts shall be in addition to any other funding provided to the districts for technical assistance pursuant to subsections B. and D. of this Item. Of this amount, \$6,209,091 the first year and \$6,209,091 the second year from the general fund shall be distributed to the districts for core administrative and operational expenses (personnel, training, travel, rent, utilities, office support, and equipment) based on identified budget projections and in accordance with the Board's financial allocation policy; \$312,000 the first year and \$312,000 the second year from the general fund shall be distributed at a rate of \$3,000 per dam for maintenance; \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the general fund for small dam repairs of known or suspected deficiencies; and \$170,000 the first year and \$170,000 the second year to the department to provide district support in accordance with Board policy, including, but not limited to, services related to auditing, bonding, contracts, and training. The amount appropriated for small dam repairs of known or suspected deficiencies is authorized for transfer to the Soil and Water Conservation District Dam Maintenance, Repair, and Rehabilitation Fund.

36 2. The department shall provide a semi-annual report on or before February 15 and August 37 15 of each year to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 38 Committees on each Virginia soil and water conservation district's budget, revised budget, 39 previous year's balance budget, and expenditure for the following: (i) the federal 40 Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program, (ii) the use of Agricultural Best 41 Management Cost-Share Program funds within the Chesapeake Bay watershed, (iii) the 42 use of Agricultural Best Management Cost-Share Program funds within the Southern 43 Rivers area, and (iv) the amount of Technical Assistance funding. The August 15 report 44 shall reflect cumulative amounts.

- 45 3. As part of the semi-annual report, the department shall assess the impact of settlement 46 agreements with the Commonwealth entered into between July 1, 2017, and June 30, 47 2018, on achieving an effective level of Soil and Water Conservation District technical 48 assistance funding and the implementation of agricultural best management practices 49 pursuant to § 10.1-546.1., Code of Virginia. The department shall include in its report any 50 amounts from the settlements including: 1) estimation of the timeline and amount for each 51 fiscal year to implement agricultural best management practices; and 2) estimation of the 52 timeline and amount for each fiscal year of additional technical assistance provided as a 53 result of the additional funding from the settlements.
- 54 B.1. Notwithstanding § 10.1-2129 A., Code of Virginia, \$22,532,299 the first year from 55 the general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Water Quality Improvement Fund 56 established under the Water Quality Improvement Act of 1997. Of this amount, \$750,000 57 shall be appropriated to the department for the following specified statewide uses: 58 \$500,000 shall be used for the Commonwealth's match for participation in the federal

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) and up to \$250,000 may be utilized to
 develop a financial tracking and reporting module as part of the Agricultural Best
 Management Practices Database and to make necessary database revisions. Pursuant to
 paragraph B of Item 361, \$2,011,689 is designated for deposit to the reserve within the
 Virginia Water Quality Improvement Fund.

6 2. Of the remaining amount, \$19,770,610 is authorized for transfer to the Virginia Natural 7 Resources Commitment Fund, a subfund of the Water Quality Improvement Fund. 8 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the funds transferred to the Virginia Natural 9 Resources Commitment Fund shall be distributed by the department upon approval of the 10 Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Board in accordance with the board's developed 11 policies, as follows: \$17,398,137 for Agricultural Best Management Practices Cost-Share 12 Assistance where of this amount \$10,438,882 shall be used for matching grants for 13 Agricultural Best Management Practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively or partly 14 within the Chesapeake Bay watershed, \$6,959,255 shall be used for matching grants for 15 Agricultural Best Management Practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively outside the Chesapeake Bay watershed, and \$2,372,473 shall be appropriated for Technical 16 17 Assistance for Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Districts.

18 3. This appropriation meets the mandatory deposit requirements associated with the FY 2017
 19 excess general fund revenue collections and discretionary year-end general fund balances.

20 C. It is the intent of the General Assembly, that notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.121 2132, Code of Virginia, the department is authorized to make Water Quality Improvement
22 Grants to state agencies.

D.1 Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$10,000,000 the first year and \$10,000,000 the
second year from the Virginia Natural Resources Commitment Fund, a subfund of the
Virginia Water Quality Improvement Fund, is hereby appropriated. The funds shall be
dispersed by the department pursuant to \$10.1-2128.1, Code of Virginia.

2. The source of an amount estimated at \$10,000,000 the first year and \$10,000,000 the second year to support the nongeneral fund appropriation to the Virginia Natural Resources Commitment Fund shall be the recordation tax fee established in Part 3 of this act.

30 3. Out of this amount *in the first year*, a total of eight percent, or \$1,200,000, whichever is
31 greater, shall be appropriated to Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Districts for technical
32 assistance to farmers implementing agricultural best management practices, and \$8,800,000
33 for Agricultural Best Management Practices Cost-Share Assistance. Of the amount deposited
34 for Cost-Share Assistance, distributions between watersheds shall be in accordance with the
35 allocation percentages set out in § 10.1-2128.1 B., Code of Virginia.

36 4. Out of this amount in the second year, a total of thirteen percent, or \$1,300,000, whichever 37 is greater, shall be appropriated to Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Districts for 38 technical assistance to farmers implementing agricultural best management practices, and 39 \$8,700,000 for Agricultural Best Management Practices Cost-Share Assistance. Of the 40 amount deposited for Cost-Share Assistance, seventy percent shall be used for matching grants for agricultural best management practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively 41 or partly within the Chesapeake Bay watershed, and thirty percent shall be used for matching 42 grants for agricultural best management practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively 43 44 outside of the Chesapeake Bay watershed.

- E.1. Out of the appropriation in this item, \$2,583,531 in the first year and \$2,583,531 in the second year from the funds designated in Item 3-1.01.C. of this act are hereby appropriated to the Virginia Water Quality Improvement Fund and designated for deposit to the reserve fund established pursuant to paragraph B of Item 361. It is the intent of the General Assembly that all interest earnings of the Water Quality Improvement Fund shall be spent only upon appropriation by the General Assembly, after the recommendation of the Secretary of Natural Resources, pursuant to § 10.1-2129, Code of Virginia.
- 52 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 10.1-2128, 10.1-2129 and 10.1-2128.1, Code of
 53 Virginia, it is the intent of the General Assembly that the department use interest earnings
 54 from the Water Quality Improvement Fund and the Virginia Natural Resources Commitment
 55 Fund to support one position to administer grants from the fund.

27

28

29

ITEM 362		Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Yea FY2020
1 2 3 4	F. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$15,000 the first year from the general fund is provided to support the Rappahanno. The funds shall be matched by the participating locali commissions.	ck River Basi	n Commission.		
5 6 7 8 9	G. Notwithstanding § 10.1-552, Code of Virginia, Soil and W are hereby authorized to recover a portion of the direct co- landowners within the district and to recover a portion of the direct conservation equipment. Such recoveries shall not exceed district on these services and equipment.	osts of servic cost for use of	es rendered to district-owned		
10 11 12 13 14	H. Unless specified otherwise in this Item, it is the intent of balances in Soil and Water Conservation be used first Agricultural Best Management Practices Cost Share A Commonwealth's statewide match for participation in the fe Enhancement Program (CREP).	, and then b ssistance be	alances from used for the		
15 16 17 18 19	I. The Water Quality Agreement Program shall be continued is of the Commonwealth through voluntary cooperation with lar state. The department shall encourage lawn care operators to management plans and annual reporting of fertilizer applicat program may be transferred to another state agency.	wn care opera voluntarily es	tors across the tablish nutrient		
20 21 22 23 24	J. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$80,000 the first year from the general fund is provided to the department to make a to provide Chesapeake Bay meaningful watershed educationa The department may enter into a two-year contract contingen in the second year of the biennium.	available a con l on-the-water	mpetitive grant r field services.		
25 26 27 28 29 30	K. The department, in collaboration with Soil and Water C develop a plan containing cost estimates, for the rehabilitat Water Conservation District owned and managed impounding shall be provided to the Governor and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2016, with a fir 2018.	ion of high h g structures. A House Appr	azard Soil and An interim plan opriations and		
31 32 33 34	L. Out of the appropriation in this Item, \$200,000 the first ye year from the general fund is provided to the department support Shoreline Erosion Advisory Services as establish Virginia.	for technical	l assistance to		
35 36 37 38	M. Out of the approriation in this Item, \$500,000 the first ye year from the general fund shall be provided to the Natural He active preserve management activities across Virginia's 63 identified by the Board of Conservation and Recreation.	eritage Program	m in support of		
39 40 41 42 43	N. Notwithstanding § 54.1, Chapter 4, the U.S. Departme Resources Conservation Service and Department of Conserva Office staff may provide engineering services to the Depar Recreation and the local Soil and Water Conservation Districts of agriculture best management practices.	ation and Rect rtment of Cor	reation Central nservation and		
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	O.1. Out of the amounts appropriated for Dam Inventory, Ev and Flood Plain Management, \$884,294 the first year and \$4 year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Dam S2 Protection Assistance Fund, established pursuant \$ 10.1-603. these amounts, \$420,000 in the first year from the general fun federal and local funding for the rehabilitation of the Hearth County.	64,294 \$732, afety, Flood I 17, Code of V d shall be pro	147 the second Prevention and Virginia. Out of vided to match		
51 52 53 54	2. Unobligated balances in the Dam Safety, Flood Preventio Fund may be utilized in an amount not to exceed \$60,000 to to update the flood protection plan for the Commonwealth and online. Once these activities are complete, the department w	perform activ to make the	ities necessary plan accessible		

ear

Ite	em Details(\$)	
First Yea	ar Second Year	Fi
FY2019	FY2020]

Appropriations(\$)					
First Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

ITEM 362.

2

3

4

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

1 plan as needed within existing resources.

P. Out of the amounts appropriated in this item, \$100,000 and one position the first year, and \$200,000 and two positions the second year, from the general fund is provided to fund additional engineering staff to support the 47 Soil and Water Conservation Districts.

5 Q.1. Notwithstanding § 10.1-2129A., Code of Virginia, \$73,757,699 the second year from the 6 general fund shall be deposited to the Virginia Water Quality Improvement Fund established 7 under the Water Quality Improvement Act of 1997. Of this amount, \$4,250,000 shall be 8 appropriated to the department for the following specified statewide uses: \$1,000,000 shall be 9 used for the Commonwealth's match for participation in the Federal Conservation Reserve 10 Enhancement Program (CREP) on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively or partly within 11 the Chesapeake Bay watershed; \$1,000,000 shall be used for the Commonwealth's match for 12 participation in CREP on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively outside the Chesapeake 13 Bay watershed; \$1,000,000 shall be transferred to the Virginia Association of Soil and Water 14 Conservation Districts to be used for the Virginia Conservation Assistance Program (VCAP); 15 \$750,000 shall be allocated for special nonpoint source reduction projects to include but not 16 be limited to poultry litter transport and grants related to the development and certification of 17 Resource Management Plans developed pursuant to § 10.1-104.7, Code of Virginia; and 18 \$500,000 shall be transferred to the Department of Forestry for water quality grants. The 19 Department of Forestry shall submit a report by August 15, 2019, to the Department of 20 Conservation and Recreation specifying the uses of the funds received. Pursuant to paragraph 21 B of Item 361, \$8,288,850 is designated for deposit to the reserve within the Virginia Water 22 Quality Improvement Fund.

23 2. Of the remaining amount, \$61,218,849 is authorized for transfer to the Virginia Natural 24 Resources Commitment Fund, a subfund of the Water Quality Improvement Fund. 25 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the funds transferred to the Virginia Natural 26 Resources Commitment Fund shall be distributed by the department upon approval of the 27 Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Board in accordance with the board's developed 28 policies, as follows: \$37,282,279 shall be used for matching grants for Agricultural Best 29 Management Practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively or partly within the 30 Chesapeake Bay watershed, and \$15,978,120 shall be used for matching grants for 31 Agricultural Best Management Practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively outside the Chesapeake Bay watershed, and \$7,958,450 shall be appropriated for Technical 32 33 Assistance for Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Districts.

34 3. This appropriation meets the mandatory deposit requirements associated with the FY 2018
 35 excess general fund revenue collections and discretionary year-end general fund balances.

R.1. Notwithstanding § 10.1-2129 A., Code of Virginia, \$20,000,000 the first year and \$15,031,151 the second year from the general fund shall be deposited to the Water Quality Improvement Fund established under the Water Ouality Improvement Act of 1997. Of the amount in the first year, \$9,000,000 shall be appropriated to the department for the following specified statewide uses: \$500,000 shall be used for the Commonwealth's match for participation in the Federal Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively or partly within the Chesapeake Bay watershed; \$1,000,000 shall be used for the Commonwealth's match for participation in CREP on lands exclusively outside the Chesapeake Bay watershed; \$500,000 shall be allocated for special nonpoint source reduction projects to include but not be limited to poultry litter transport and grants related to the development and certification of Resource Management Plans developed pursuant to § 10.1-104.7, Code of Virginia; and \$7,000,000 shall be appropriated for the implementation of previously approved livestock stream exclusion practices. Of the amount for livestock stream exclusion practices, \$6,300,000 shall be used for practices on land in the Commonwealth exclusively or partly outside the Chesapeake Bay watershed and \$700,000 shall be used for practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively inside the Chesapeake Bay watershed. In the second year, \$500,000 shall be transferred to the Department of Forestry for water quality grants. The Department of Forestry shall submit a report by August 15, 2020, to the Department of Conservation and Recreation specifying the uses of the funds received.

56 2. Of the remaining amounts, \$11,000,000 in the first year and \$14,531,151 in the second
57 year is authorized for transfer to the Virginia Natural Resources Commitment Fund, a

ITEM 362.		Item Details(\$)	Item Details(\$)		iations(\$)
		First Year Second FY2019 FY2		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		subfund of the Water Quality Improvement Fund. Notwithstanding any other provise	ion of		
2		law, the funds transferred to the Virginia Natural Resources Commitment Fund sha	all be		
3		distributed by the department upon approval of the Virginia Soil and Water Conserv	vation		
4		Board in accordance with the board's development policies. Of these amounts, in the	e first		
5		year, \$9,570,000 shall be used for matching grants for Agricultural Best Manage	ement		
6		Practices on lands in the Commonwealth exclusively or partly within the Chesapeak	e Bay		
7		watershed and \$1,430,000 shall be appropriated for Technical Assistance for Vir	ginia		
8		Soil and Water Conservation Districts. In the second year, \$8,849,471 shall be use	ed for		
9		matching grants for Agricultural Best Management Practices on lands in	n the		
10		Commonwealth exclusively or partly within the Chesapeake Bay watershed, \$3,79.	2,630		
11		shall be used for matching grants for Agricultural Best Management Practices on lar	nds in		
12		the Commonwealth exclusively outside the Chesapeake Bay watershed, and \$1,88	9,050		
13		shall be appropriated for Technical Assistance for Virginia Soil and Water Conserv	vation		
14		Districts.			
15	363.	Leisure and Recreation Services (50400)		\$58,395,919	\$61,884,926

\$63,895,919

\$67,793,291

15 16	363.	Leisure and Recreation Services (50400)			
17 18		Preservation of Open Space Lands (50401)	\$6,723,417 \$12,223,417	\$10,910,917 \$16,544,317	
19 20		Design and Construction of Outdoor Recreational Facilities (50403)	\$886,797	\$886,797	
21 22		State Park Management and Operations (50404)	\$46,305,543	\$45,719,550 \$45,994,515	
23 24 25		Natural Outdoor Recreational and Open Space Resource Research, Planning, and Technical Assistance (50406)	\$4,480,162	\$4,367,662	
26 27		Fund Sources: General	\$24,379,426 \$29,879,426	\$28,373,764 \$33,891,542	
28 29		Special	\$26,444,308	\$26,444,308 \$26,834,895	
30		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,322,455	\$1,817,124	
31		Federal Trust	\$5,249,730	\$5,249,730	

Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 4.1, and 17; Title 18.2, Chapters 1 and 5; Title 19.2, Chapters 1, 5, and 7, Code of Virginia.

32

33

34 A.1. Included in the amounts for Preservation of Open Space Lands is \$5,500,000 the first 35 year and \$4,500,000 \$10,000,000 the second year from the general fund to be deposited 36 into the Virginia Land Conservation Fund, § 10.1-1020, Code of Virginia. 37 Notwithstanding § 10.1-1020, Code of Virginia, \$900,000 in the second year shall be 38 transferred to the Virginia Outdoors Foundation's Open-Space Lands Preservation Trust 39 Fund. No less than 50 percent of the appropriations remaining after the transfer to the 40 Virginia Outdoors Foundation's Open-Space Lands Preservation Trust fund has been 41 satisfied are to be used for grants for fee simple acquisitions with public access or 42 acquisitions of easements with public access. This appropriation shall be deemed 43 sufficient to meet the provisions of § 2.2-1509.4, Code of Virginia.

2. Included in the amounts for Preservation of Open Space Lands is \$1,500,000 the first
year and \$1,500,000 the second year from nongeneral funds to be deposited into the
Virginia Land Conservation Fund to be distributed by the Virginia Land Conservation
Foundation pursuant to the provisions of \$58.1-513, Code of Virginia.

B. Included in the amounts for Preservation of Open-Space Lands is \$1,752,750 the first
year and \$1,752,750 the second year from the general fund for the operating expenses of
the Virginia Outdoors Foundation (Title 10.1, Chapter 18, Code of Virginia). Pursuant to \$
58.1-817, the \$1 recordation fee shall be imposed on each instrument or document
recorded in the proper book for filing of land records in those jurisdictions in which openspace easements are held by the Virginia Outdoors Foundation.

54 C.1. Out of the amounts appropriated for Natural Outdoor Recreational and Open Space
 55 Resource Research, Planning, and Technical Assistance, up to \$275,000 the first year and
 56 \$\$275,000 the second year from the general fund shall be paid for the operation and
 57 maintenance of Breaks Interstate Park. In addition to these amounts provided for

	Item Details(\$	5)				
ITEM 363		nd Year 2020	Fi I			
1	operations and maintenance, an additional \$112,500 the first year from the general fund is					
4	appropriated to undertake emergency repairs at the breaks interstate raik dam.	appropriated to undertake emergency repairs at the Breaks Interstate Park dam.				

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2. The Breaks Interstate Park Commission shall submit an annual audit of a fiscal and
compliance nature of its accounts and transactions to the Auditor of Public Accounts, the
Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, and the Director, Department of
Planning and Budget.

7 3. The Breaks Interstate Park Commission shall, following the modernization of the Breaks
8 Interstate Park electrical system, enter into negotiations to transfer control of the electrical
9 system serving the park to a local regional electric utility.

10 D. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.1-202, Code of Virginia, amounts deposited to the 11 State Park Conservation Resources Fund may be used for a program of in-state travel 12 advertising. Such travel advertising shall feature Virginia State Parks and the localities or 13 regions in which the parks are located. To the extent possible the department shall enter into 14 cooperative advertising agreements with the Virginia Tourism Authority and local entities to 15 maximize the effectiveness of expenditures for advertising. The department is further 16 authorized to enter into a cooperative advertising agreement with the Virginia Association of 17 Broadcasters.

E. Upon completion of the construction of the Daniel Boone Wilderness Trail Interpretative
Center, the Division of State Parks may accept transfer of the facility, 153 acres of land, and
\$450,000 for maintenance of the completed facility for operation as a satellite facility to
Natural Tunnel State Park. It is the intent of the General Assembly that at such time as the
facility, property, and cash are transferred to the Division of State Parks that positions and
ongoing funding for the operation of the satellite facility shall be provided.

F. The department is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with the non-profit organization that currently owns Natural Bridge to open and operate the facility as a Virginia
State Park.

27 G.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Code of Virginia, as a condition of the 28 expenditure of all amounts included in this Item, the department shall not initiate or accept by 29 gift, transfer or purchase with nongeneral funds any new lands for use as a State Park or 30 Natural Area Preserve without a specific appropriation for such purpose by the General 31 Assembly. However, the department is authorized to acquire land as expressly set out in Items 32 C-27 and C-27.10 of this act, as well as in-holdings or lands contiguous to an existing State 33 Park or Natural Area Preserve as expressly set out in Items C-25 and C-26 of this act and as provided for in Section 4-2.01 a.1. of this act provided further that acquisitions authorized in 34 Items C-25 and C-26 will not cause the department to incur additional operating expenses. It 35 is not the intent of these provisions to prohibit any acquisitions resulting from mitigation 36 37 settlements or to prohibit any additional operating expenses resulting from such acquisitions.

2. The Board of Conservation and Recreation is directed to develop a prioritization process and report which evaluates the relative priority of improvements for all properties that have not yet been fully developed as State Parks or Natural Area Preserves to ensure that the development of land-banked properties and properties not fully developed State Parks is undertaken with consideration of: i.) priority on development in areas with limited access to state and regional outdoor recreation facilities; ii.) the relative operational costs and staffing needs for any new areas compared to operating and staffing needs at existing state parks and natural areas; iii.) focus on in-holdings and parcels contiguous to existing state parks and natural area preserves; and iv.) any other such criteria as may deemed appropriate. The Board shall complete its evaluation and submit its prioritized listing to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than November 1, 2018.

38

39

40

41

42 43

44

45

46

47

48

H. Included in the amounts for State Park Management and Operations is \$965,310 the first
year and \$590,944 the second year and six positions from the general fund for the initial startup and ongoing operational costs for Phase I of Widewater State Park in Stafford County. It is
the intent of the General Assembly that, as soon as practicable upon completion of Phase 1A,
that the Department shall provide public access and proceed to regular revenue generating
operations at the Park.

55 I. Included in the amount for this item is \$167,548 and one position the first year and

	ITEM 363.		Iter First Yea FY2019			riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		\$198,752 and two positions the second year from the operation of Seven Bends State Park.				
3 4 5		J. Included in the amounts for this item is \$50,000 fr for the Department of Conservation and Recreatio facilities at First Landing State Park.				
6 7	364.	Administrative and Support Services (59900)			\$9,149,070	\$9,149,070 \$9,790,451
8 9		General Management and Direction (59901)	\$9,149,070	\$9,149,070 \$9,790,451		φ,,,,ο,,,ο,
10 11		Fund Sources: General	\$8,934,070	\$8,934,070 \$9,575,451		
12		Special	\$215,000	\$215,000		
13		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapters 37, 40, 41, 43; and Title	e 10.1, Chapter 1, C	Code of Virginia.		
14 15 16		Total for Department of Conservation and Recreation			\$128,671,600 \$154,171,600	\$109,308,308 \$204,914,757
17 18		General Fund Positions	416.50	418.50 421.50		
10 19 20		Nongeneral Fund Positions	42.50	42.50 44.50		
21 22		Position Level	459.00	461.00 466.00		
23 24		Fund Sources: General	\$73,510,004 \$99,010,004	\$54,652,043 \$149,867,905		
25 26		Special	\$27,655,169	\$27,655,169 \$28,045,756		
27		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$14,573,657	\$14,068,326		
28		Federal Trust	\$12,932,770	\$12,932,770		
29		§ 1-103. DEPARTMENT OF EN	VIRONMENTA	L QUALITY (440)		
30	365.	Land Protection (50900)	\$2.705.724	\$2,505,524	\$27,643,388	\$27,643,388
31 32		Land Protection Permitting (50925) Land Protection Compliance and Enforcement	\$3,785,734	\$3,785,734		
32 33		(50926)	\$22,972,580	\$22,972,580		
34		Land Protection Outreach (50927)	\$677,746	\$677,746		
35		Land Protection Planning and Policy (50928)	\$207,328	\$207,328		
36		Fund Sources: General	\$839,842	\$839,842		
37		Special	\$1,109,676	\$1,109,676		
38		Trust and Agency	\$11,088,508	\$11,088,508		
39		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,979,675	\$7,979,675		
40		Federal Trust	\$6,625,687	\$6,625,687		
41 42		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 11.1, 11.2, 12.1, 14, a Virginia.	nd 25; Title 44, Ch	hapter 3.5, Code of		
43 44 45		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that bala Emergency Response Fund be used to meet match re Protection Agency Superfund State Support Contract	equirements for U			
46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53		B. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.1-1422.3, first year and \$1,807,575 in the second year from \$250,000 in the first year and \$250,000 in the second Management Permit Fund within the Department of for the costs associated with the Department's land p funds may be used for the purposes set forth in § 10 Director's discretion and only as available after fund programs.	n the Waste Tire ind year from the Environmental Qu protection and wate 0.1-1422.3, Code	Trust Fund, and Hazardous Waste ality shall be used er programs. Such of Virginia, at the		

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
]	TEM 365.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	366.	Water Protection (51200)			\$44,039,387 \$44,189,387	\$44,039,387 \$44,781,502
3		Water Protection Permitting (51225)	\$10,208,957	\$10,208,957		
4 5		Water Protection Compliance and Enforcement (51226)	\$7,866,879	\$7,866,879		
6 7		Water Protection Outreach (51227)	\$2,147,757	\$2,147,757 \$2,372,672		
8 9		Water Protection Planning and Policy (51228)	\$5,820,533 \$5,970,533	\$5,820,533 \$6, <i>337,733</i>		
10 11		Water Protection Monitoring and Assessment (51229)	\$8,713,955	\$8,713,955		
12		Water Protection Stormwater Management (51230)	\$9,281,306	\$9,281,306		
13 14		Fund Sources: General	\$22,266,225 \$22,416,225	\$22,266,225 \$23,008,340		
15		Special	\$1,607,265	\$1,607,265		
16		Trust and Agency	\$25,500	\$25,500		
17		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$12,202,336	\$12,202,336		
18		Federal Trust	\$7,938,061	\$7,938,061		
19 20		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapter 11.1; and Title 62.1, Chap and 25, Code of Virginia.	pters 2, 3.1, 3.2, 3.6	, 5, 6, 20, 22, 24,		
21 22 23		A. Out of this appropriation, \$51,500 the first year and general fund is designated for annual membership due Sanitation Commission.				
24 25 26 27 28		B.1. The permit fee regulations adopted by the State Water Control Board pursuant to paragraphs B.1. and B.2. of § 62.1-44.15:6, Code of Virginia, shall be set at an amount representing not more than 50 percent of the direct costs for the administration, compliance and enforcement of Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permits and Virginia Pollution Abatement permits.				

29 2. The regulations adopted by the State Water Control Board to initially implement the provisions of this Item shall be exempt from Article 2 (§ 2.2-4006, et seq.) of Chapter 40 of Title 2.2, Code of Virginia, and shall become effective no later than July 1, 2010. Thereafter, any amendments to the fee schedule described by these acts shall not be exempted from Article 2 (§ 2.2-4006, et seq.) of Chapter 40 of Title 2.2, Code of Virginia.

C. Out of the appropriation for this item, \$151,500 the first year and \$151,500 the second year
 from the general fund is designated for the annual membership dues for the Interstate
 Commission on the Potomac River Basin.

D.1. Notwithstanding § 62.1-44.15:56, Code of Virginia, public institutions of higher
education, including community colleges, colleges, and universities, shall be subject to project
review and compliance for state erosion and sediment control requirements by the local
program authority of the locality within which the land disturbing activity is located, unless
such institution submits annual specifications to the Department of Environmental Quality, in
accordance with § 62.1-44.15:56 A (i), Code of Virginia.

43 2. The State Water Control Board is authorized to amend the Erosion and Sediment Control
44 Regulations (9 VAC 25-840 et seq.) to conform such regulations with this project review
45 requirement and to clarify the process. These amendments shall be exempt from Article 2
46 (§2.2-4006 et seq.) of the Administrative Process Act.

47 E. Beginning October 1, 2015, there shall be a \$3.75 fee imposed on each dry ton of
48 exceptional quality biosolids cake sewage sludge that is land applied pursuant to \$ 62.149 44.19:3P, Code of Virginia, until such fee is altered, amended or rescinded by the State Water
50 Control Board.

F. If the Board of the Appomattox River Water Authority does not approve an action to move forward with the raising of the Brasfield Dam prior to June 30, 2018, the authorization for \$5,000,000 in Virginia Public Building Authority bonds for such project included in Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly shall expire.

-	ITEM 366.			Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year		iations(\$)
1	1 EN1 300).	FIrst Year FY2019	FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		G. The Department shall work in conjunction with the Partnership to facilitate the development of long-ter Virginia Nutrient Credit Exchange as set out in Iter	rm offsetting me	thods within the		
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		H. Included in the appropriation for this item is \$250,0 second year from the general fund for the department to in the upper reaches of Buchannan Creek, a tributa Lynnhaven River in Virginia Beach. The study sho channel; (ii) evaluation of shoreline deterioration; (iii) Birchwood Gardens former private sewage treatment f not be limited to: an evaluation of historical land us testing and monitoring; soil sampling and other enviror required. The report will include recommendations for a to be necessary and shall be submitted to the Governor than October 1, 2019.	o evaluate environ ary of the Wester buld address: (i) and potential con facility. The study se records; permi ponmental testing a any corrective acti	nmental concerns in Branch of the adequacy of the ntamination from may require but ts; water quality and evaluation as on as determined		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22		I. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the dep voluntary fee of \$30,000 for review of sites or areas with or sale with land-disturbance acreage equal to or great stormwater impact review. Any individual or firm elec be guaranteed the total government review time shall applicant's time in responding to questions. The por \$9,600 fee shall be used by DEQ to increase the staff applications.	thin common plan ter than 100 acres cting to pay the vo not exceed 45 da rtion of the fee a	s of development for an expedited oluntary fee shall ys excluding any bove the normal		
23 24	367.	Air Protection (51300)			\$18,236,455	\$18,236,455 \$19,123,311
25 26		Air Protection Permitting (51325) Air Protection Compliance and Enforcement	\$6,369,469	\$6,369,469		φ19,123,311
27		(51326)	\$6,547,634	\$6,547,634		
28 29 30		Air Protection Outreach (51327) Air Protection Planning and Policy (51328)	\$148,587 \$2,067,437	\$148,587 \$2,067,437 \$2,954,293		
31 32		Air Protection Monitoring and Assessment (51329)	\$3,103,328	\$3,103,328		
33 34		Fund Sources: General	\$896,542	\$896,542 \$1,783,398		
35		Enterprise	\$9,712,296	\$9,712,296		
36		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,664,708	\$3,664,708		
37		Federal Trust	\$3,962,909	\$3,962,909		
38		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 11.1 and 13; and Title 4	6.2, Chapter 10, C	ode of Virginia.		
39 40 41 42 43 44		A. The Department of Environmental Quality is author year and \$300,000 the second year from the Vehicle E to implement the provisions of Chapter 710, Acts of A the department to operate a program to subsidize rej emissions standards established by the Air Pollution Co vehicle is financially unable to have the vehicle repaired	missions Inspections ssembly of 2002, pairs of vehicles pontrol Board when	on Program Fund which authorizes that fail to meet		
45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56		B.1. All of the permit program emissions fees collected Board pursuant to § 10.1-1322, Code of Virginia, sha annual basis notwithstanding the provisions of that Control Board shall adopt regulations adjusting permit pursuant to § 10.1-1322, Code of Virginia, and estable fees and permit maintenance fees sufficient to ensure th cover the total direct and indirect costs of the program Title V of the Clean Air Act, except that the initia emissions fees shall not be increased by more tha Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.1-1322, Code fees collected pursuant to this paragraph shall not be annual fees owed pursuant to § 10.1-1322, Code of	Il be assessed and section. The Sta t program emissic lish permit applic the revenues co- consistent with the al adjustment to an 30 percent ov of Virginia, the p e credited toward	d collected on an the Air Pollution ons fees collected vation processing ollected from fees e requirements of permit program er current rates. ermit application ls the amount of		

	ITEM 367.		Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		pursuant to this section shall be adjusted annually by the	Consumer Price In	dex.		
2 3 4 5 6		2. The regulations adopted by the State Air Pollution Co provisions of this item shall be exempt from Chapter 4 shall become effective no later than July 1, 2012. The schedule described by these acts shall not be exempted to Virginia.	0 of Title 2.2, Cod ereafter, any amen	le of Virginia, and adments to the fee		
7 8	368.	Environmental Financial Assistance (51500)			\$81,632,711	\$61,313,511 \$111,313,511
9 10 11		Financial Assistance for Environmental Resources Management (51502)	\$8,745,068	\$8,425,868 \$58,425,868		, , ,,,,
12 13		Virginia Water Facilities Revolving Fund Loans and Grants (51503)	\$43,588,877	\$23,588,877		
14 15 16		Financial Assistance for Coastal Resources Management (51507) Litter Control and Recycling Grants (51509)	\$1,924,500 \$2,039,509	\$1,924,500 \$2,039,509		
17		Petroleum Tank Reimbursement (51511)	\$25,334,757	\$25,334,757		
18 19		Fund Sources: General	\$22,672,814	\$2,353,614 \$52,353,614		
20		Trust and Agency	\$25,504,646	\$25,504,646		
21		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$4,741,509	\$4,741,509		
22		Federal Trust	\$28,713,742	\$28,713,742		
23		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 11.1, 14, 21.1, and 25 a	nd Title 62.1, Cha	pters 3.1, 22, 23.2,		

Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 11.1, 14, 21.1, and 25 and Title 62.1, Chapters 3.1, 22, 23.2, and 24, Code of Virginia.

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32 33

34

35

36

41

A. To the extent available, the authorization included in Chapter 781, 2009 Acts of Assembly, Item 368, paragraph E, is hereby continued for the Virginia Public Building Authority to issue revenue bonds in order to finance Virginia Water Quality Improvement Grants, pursuant to Chapter 851, 2007 Acts of Assembly.

B. To the extent available, the authorization included in Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly, Item C-39.40, is hereby continued for the Virginia Public Building Authority to issue revenue bonds in order to finance the Stormwater Local Assistance Fund, the Combined Sewer Overflow Matching Fund, Nutrient Removal Grants, the Hopewell Regional Wastewater Treatment Authority, and the Appomattox River Water Authority. The administration of several of the water quality programs, including the Stormwater Local Assistance Fund, transferred to the Department of Environmental Quality per Chapter 756, 2013 Acts of Assembly.

37 C.1. The State Comptroller is authorized to continue the Stormwater Local Assistance Fund as 38 established in Item 360, Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly. The fund shall consist of bond 39 proceeds from bonds authorized by the General Assembly and issued pursuant to Item C-40 39.40 in Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly, and Item C-43 of Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly, sums appropriated to it by the General Assembly, including \$20,000,000 the first 42 year and \$50,000,000 the second year from the general fund for the fiscal year beginning July 43 +, 2018, and other grants, gifts, and moneys as may be made available to it from any other 44 source, public or private. Interest earned on the moneys in the Fund shall remain in the Fund 45 and be credited to it. Any moneys remaining in the Fund, including interest thereon, at the end 46 of each fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund but shall remain in the Fund.

47 2. The purpose of the Fund is to provide matching grants to local governments for the 48 planning, design, and implementation of stormwater best management practices that address 49 cost efficiency and commitments related to reducing water quality pollutant loads. Moneys in 50 the Fund shall be used to meet: i) obligations related to the Chesapeake Bay total maximum 51 daily load (TMDL) requirements; ii) requirements for local impaired stream TMDLs; iii) 52 water quality requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan (WIP); 53 and iv) water quality requirements related to the permitting of small municipal stormwater 54 sewer systems. The grants shall be used only for the acquisition of certified nonpoint nutrient 55 credits and capital projects meeting all pre-requirements for implementation, including but not 56 limited to: i) new stormwater best management practices; ii) stormwater best management

	ITEM 368.		Item 1 First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	-	ii) stream restoration; iv) low imp nd retrofits; and vii) wetlands rest		ojects; v) buffer		
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	and capital project limited to: i) new s practice retrofits; restoration; vi) po accordance with el	I be used only for the acquisition as meeting all pre-requirements for tormwater best management practi- ii) stream restoration; iv) low impond retrofits; and vii) wetlands r igibility determinations made by the Department of Environmental Q	or implementation, in ices; ii) stormwater be pact development pro- restoration. Such gra- the State Water Contri-	cluding but not est management ojects; v) buffer ants shall be in		
10 11 12 13 14 15	\$3,000,000 from chlorophyll study Daily Load, Phase contractual suppor	nt of Environmental Quality sl the Water Quality Improvement pursuant to the approved Virgini I Watershed Implementation Plan. t for water quality monitoring and ling may be used for administrativ	Fund to conduct the a Chesapeake Bay T This amount shall be analysis and compute	te James River Fotal Maximum e used solely for er modeling. No		
16 17 18 19 20 21	Virginia Geograph digital orthography and implementing Department shall	ds available in this item, the Dep ic Information Network in an amore to improve land coverage data new stormwater management program also include data to update prior pport activities related to manage	unt necessary to imple cessary to assist local ns. As part of this au LIDAR surveys of e	ement statewide ities in planning thorization, the levations along		
22 23 24	Management, \$3,2	Ints appropriated for Financial Ass 92,479 the first year and \$3,292,47 ement stormwater management ac	9 the second year fro			
25 26 27 28 29 30 31	a local stormwater provide to the Aud by the Auditor, a r and sediment redu Quality shall, at th	establishing a utility or enacting a management program pursuant to itor of Public Accounts by October eport as to each program funded by ctions for each of these programs ne request of the Auditor of Publ the review of the submitted rep	§ 15.2-2114, Code o r 1 of each year, in a b y these fees and the ex . The Department of ic Accounts, offer a	f Virginia, shall format specified xpected nutrient Environmental		
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39	Counties, Cities, a enacting a system pursuant to § 15.2 local government Virginia. Any suc Towns regulation	Public Accounts shall include and Towns regulations for all local of service charges to support a loc -2114, Code of Virginia, a requir is in compliance with the prov adjustment to the Specifications s shall be exempt from the Admin dits completed after July 1, 201	governments establis cal stormwater manage rement to ensure that isions of § 15.2-21 s for Audits of Coun- inistrative Process A	hing a utility or gement program c each impacted 14 A., Code of ties, Cities, and		
40 41 42 43	fund to retire debt	nts appropriated in this item is \$31 and interest incurred by the W.E. ountain Lake to comply with a con ty.	Skelton 4-H Educatio	onal Conference		
44 45	369. Administrative and	Support Services (59900)			\$28,770,211	\$28,770,211 \$29,504,371
46 47 48	-	ent and Direction (59901) ology Services (59902)	\$20,123,257 \$8,646,954	\$20,123,257 \$8,646,954 \$9,381,114		ΨΔ>,307,3/1
49 50 51 52 53 54	Spe Ent Tru Dec	eral cial erprise st and Agency licated Special Revenue	\$13,686,360 \$6,431,064 \$3,325,278 \$1,239,744 \$633,740	\$13,686,360 \$14,420,520 \$6,431,064 \$3,325,278 \$1,239,744 \$633,740		
55	Fed	eral Trust	\$3,454,025	\$3,454,025		

				Details(\$)		riations(\$)
]	ITEM 369.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 11.1, 13 and 14 and Title	62.1, Chapter 3.1, C	Code of Virginia.		
2 3 4		A. Notwithstanding the provisions of Title 10.1, Chapter is authorized to expend funds from the balances in the Response Fund for costs associated with its waste man	Virginia Environm	nental Emergency		
5 6 7 8		B. Notwithstanding the provisions of Title 10.1, Chapter is authorized to expend up to \$600,000 the first year an balances in the Virginia Environmental Emergency Re implement eGovernment services.	d \$600,000 the sec	ond year from the		
9 10 11 12		C. Out of the amounts for this appropriation, \$11,200 t year from the general fund is provided for payment of t participation in the Roanoke River Bi-State Commission Committee.	the necessary exper	ises for Virginia's		
13 14		Total for Department of Environmental Quality			\$200,322,152 \$200,472,152	\$180,002,952 \$232,366,083
15 16		General Fund Positions	408.50	408.50 424.50		
17		Nongeneral Fund Positions	564.50	564.50		
18 19		Position Level	973.00	973.00 989.00		
20 21		Fund Sources: General	\$60,361,783 \$60,511,783	\$40,042,583 \$92,405,714		
22		Special	\$9,148,005	\$9,148,005		
23		Enterprise	\$13,037,574	\$13,037,574		
24		Trust and Agency	\$37,858,398	\$37,858,398		
25		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$29,221,968	\$29,221,968		
26		Federal Trust	\$50,694,424	\$50,694,424		
27		§ 1-104. DEPARTMENT OF GAM	IE AND INLAND	FISHERIES (403)		
28	370.	Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Management				
29		(51100)			\$43,794,951	\$43,794,951
30					\$46,374,951	\$47,304,951
31		Wildlife Information and Education (51102)	\$4,015,764	\$4,015,764		
32		Enforcement of Recreational Hunting and Fishing				
33 34		Laws and Regulations (51103)	\$15,342,891 \$15,322,891	\$15,342,891 \$15,222,801		
		Wildlife Menseement and Hebitet Immenseement	\$13,322,891	\$15,322,891		
35 36		Wildlife Management and Habitat Improvement (51106)	\$24,436,296	\$24,436,296		
37		(51100)	\$27,036,296	\$27,966,296		
38		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$31,622,269	\$31,622,269		
39			\$34,202,269	\$35,132,269		
40		Federal Trust	\$12,172,682	\$12,172,682		
41		Authority: Title 29.1, Chapters 1 through 6, Code of Virg	ginia.			
42 43 44		Out of the amounts appropriated for this Item, \$20,000 year from nongeneral funds is provided for the Sm Monitoring Program.				
45 46	371.	Boating Safety and Regulation (62500)			\$8,587,279 \$7,587,279	\$8,587,279 \$7,587,279
47 48		Boat Registration and Titling (62501)	\$2,744,547 \$2,844,547	\$2,744,547 \$2,844,547		
49 50		Boating Safety Information and Education (62502)	\$462,359 \$362,359	\$462,359 \$362,359		
51		Enforcement of Boating Safety Laws and	#5 200 252	#5 2 00 25 2		
52 53		Regulations (62503)	\$5,380,373 \$4,380,373	\$5,380,373 \$4,380,373		

]	ITEM 371	L .	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,143,234 \$6, <i>143,234</i>	\$7,143,234 \$6, <i>143,234</i>		
3		Federal Trust	\$1,444,045	\$1,444,045		
4		Authority: Title 29.1, Chapters 7 and 8, Code of Virginia	ι.			
5 6 7	372.	Administrative and Support Services (59900) General Management and Direction (59901) Information Technology Services (59902)	\$8,093,933 \$1,775,602	\$8,093,933 \$1,775,602	\$9,869,535	\$9,869,535
8 9		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$9,648,686 \$220,849	\$9,648,686 \$220,849		
10		Authority: Title 29.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
11 12 13		A. The department shall recover the cost of reproduction from persons or organizations requesting copies of comp the department.				
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		B. The department shall not further consolidate its regional of these offices in presently-served localities or regional office without notification of the Chairma Agriculture, Chesapeake, and Natural Resources at Committee on Agriculture, Conservation, and Natural not undertake any future reorganization of any division field offices, or any function it may perform without not Committee on Agriculture, Chesapeake, and Natural Re Appropriations, the Senate Committee on Finance.	enter into any le an of the House nd the Chairma Resources. The a, reporting struct tifying the Chairm sources, the House	ase for any new e Committee on n of the Senate department shall ures, regional or nen of the House se Committee on		
24 25 26		C. Funds previously appropriated to the Lake Anna A control and removal may be used at the discretion of the upon issues related to maintaining the health, safety, and	e Lake Anna Adv	isory Committee		
27 28 29	373.	A. Pursuant to §§ 29.1-101, 58.1-638, and 58.1-1410, Game Protection Fund include an estimated \$16,850,00 \$16,850,000 <i>\$15,500,000</i> the second year from revenue	00 \$15,500,000 t	he first year and		
30 31 32 33 34		B. Pursuant to § 29.1-101.01, Code of Virginia, the Department of Planning and Budget shall transfer such funds as designated by the Board of Game and Inland Fisheries from the Game Protection Fund (§ 29.1-101) to the Capital Improvement Fund (§ 29.1-101.01) up to an amount equal to 50 percent or less of the revenue deposited to the Game Protection Fund by § 3-1.01, subparagraph M, of this act.				
35 36 37 38		C. Out of the amounts transferred pursuant to § 3-1. \$881,753 the first year and \$881,753 the second year fro be used for the enforcement of boating laws, boating sa boating access.	m the Game Prote	ection Fund shall		
39 40 41		Total for Department of Game and Inland Fisheries			\$62,251,765 \$63,831,765	\$62,251,765 \$64,761,765
42 43		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	496.00 496.00	496.00 496.00		
44 45 46		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$48,414,189 \$49,994,189 \$12,827,576	\$48,414,189 \$50,924,189 \$12,827,576		
46		Federal Trust	\$13,837,576	\$13,837,576		
47		§ 1-105. DEPARTMENT OF HI	ISTORIC RESO	URCES (423)		
48 49	374.	Historic and Commemorative Attraction Management (50200)			\$6,976,468	\$6,876,468

ITEM 374.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	Financial Assistance for Historic Preservation (50204) Historic Resource Management (50205)	\$1,144,055 \$5,832,413	\$1,144,055 \$5,732,413		
4 5 6 7 8	Fund Sources: General Special Commonwealth Transportation Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$3,925,307 \$922,989 \$115,642 \$97,799 \$1,914,731	\$3,925,307 \$822,989 \$115,642 \$97,799 \$1,914,731		

Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 22 and 23, Code of Virginia.

9

11

27

10 A. General fund appropriations for historic and commemorative attractions not identified in § 10.1-2211 or § 10.1-2211.1, Code of Virginia, shall be matched by local or private sources, 12 either in cash or in-kind, in amounts at least equal to the appropriation and which are deemed 13 to be acceptable to the department.

14 B. In emergency situations which shall be defined as those posing a threat to life, safety or 15 property, § 10.1-2213, Code of Virginia, shall not apply.

16 C.1. Out of the amounts for Financial Assistance for Historic Preservation shall be paid from 17 the general fund grants to the following organization for the purposes prescribed in § 10.1-18 2211, Code of Virginia:

19	ORGANIZATION	FY 2019	FY 2020
20	United Daughters of the Confederacy	\$83,570	\$83,570

21 Notwithstanding the cited Code section, the United Daughters of the Confederacy shall make 22 disbursements to the treasurers of Confederate memorial associations and chapters of the 23 United Daughters of the Confederacy for the purposes stated in that section. By November 1 24 of each year, the United Daughters of the Confederacy shall submit to the Director, 25 Department of Historic Resources a report documenting the disbursement of these funds for 26 their specified purpose.

2. As disbursements are made to the treasurers of Confederate memorial associations and 28 chapters of the United Daughters of the Confederacy by the United Daughters of the 29 Confederacy for the purposes stated in § 10.1-2211, Code of Virginia, an amount equal to 30 \$7,500 each year shall be distributed to the Ladies Memorial Association of Petersburg.

- 31 3. As disbursements are made to the treasurers of Confederate memorial associations and 32 chapters of the United Daughters of the Confederacy by the United Daughters of the 33 Confederacy for the purposes stated in § 10.1-2211, Code of Virginia, an amount equal to \$90 34 the first year and \$90 the second year shall be distributed to the Town of Coeburn Municipal 35 Graveyard.
- 36 D. Pursuant to the provisions of § 10.1-2211.1, Code of Virginia, as amended by Chapter 639, 37 2018 Session of the General Assembly, out of the amounts provided for Financial 38 Preservation shall be paid \$23,100 the first year and \$23,100 the second year from the general 39 fund grants to the Virginia Society of the Sons of the American Revolution (VASSAR) and 40 the Revolutionary War memorial associations caring for cemeteries as set forth in subsection 41 B of § 10.1-2211.1, Code of Virginia. Such sums shall be expended by the associations for the 42 routine maintenance of their respective Revolutionary War cemeteries and graves and for the 43 graves of Revolutionary War soldiers and sailors not otherwise cared for in other cemeteries, 44 and in erecting and caring for markers, memorials, and monuments to the memory of such 45 soldiers, sailors, and persons rendering service to the Patriot cause in the Revolutionary War.
- 46 E. Included in this appropriation is \$115,642 the first year and \$115,642 the second year in 47 nongeneral funds from the Highway Maintenance and Operating Fund to support the 48 Department of Historic Resources' required reviews of transportation projects.
- 49 F. The Department of Historic Resources is authorized to accept a devise of certain real 50 property under the will of Elizabeth Rust Williams known as Clermont Farm located on Route 51 7 east of the town of Berryville in Clarke County. If, after due consideration of options, the 52 department determines that the property should be sold or leased to a different public or

	ITEM 374		Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		private entity, and notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2- the department is further authorized to sell or lease such pr lease is not in conflict with the terms of the will. The proce shall be deposited to the Historic Resources Fund established of Virginia.	operty, provide eeds of any suc	ed such sale or th sale or lease		
6 7 8 9		G. The Department of Historic Resources shall follow a legislation designed to establish a new national system Presidential Libraries for those entities that are not inclu Library Act.	of recognizin	g and funding		
10 11 12 13 14 15		H. Included in this appropriation is \$1,000,000 the first year from the general fund to be deposited into the Virginia for grants to be made in accordance with \$ 10.1-2202.4, Cremaining in the Fund, including interest thereon, at the energy revert to the general fund but shall remain in the Fund. This is sufficient to meet the provisions of \$ 2.2-1509.4, Code of Vi	Battlefield Pre ode of Virginia d of each fiscal appropriation s	servation Fund a. Any moneys I year shall not		
16 17 18 19 20 21 22		I. The Department of Historic Resources is authorized to rec for historic rehabilitation projects under § 58.1-339.2, Co audit by a certified public accountant licensed in Virginia, i developed by the department in consultation with the Aud department is also authorized to contract with tax, financia assist the department with the oversight of historic rehabil credits are anticipated.	de of Virginia, in accordance v litor of Public al, and other p	, to provide an with guidelines Accounts. The rofessionals to		
23 24 25		J.1. Included in this Item is \$34,875 the first year and \$34, general fund to support the preservation and care of historia and cemeteries pursuant to \$10.1-2211.2., Code of Virginia	ical African Ar			
26 27 28 29		2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.1-2211.2., Code Item is \$960 the first year and \$960 the second year from the preservation and care of historical African American grave Cemetery in Charlottesville, Virginia.	ne general fund	to support the		
30 31 32 33		3. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.1-2211.2, Code item is \$1,330 the first year and \$1,330 the second year from the preservation and care of historical African America Cemetery in Portsmouth, Virginia.	m the general f	fund to support		
34 35 36 37		4. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10.1-2211.2, Code item is \$220 the first year and \$220 the second year from the preservation and care of historical African American grad Burial Ground for the Enslaved at Belmont in Loudoun G	ne general fund ves at the Afri	to support the can-American		
38 39 40 41		K. The Department of Historic Resources is authorized to a the provision of easement and stewardship services. Re easement fee schedule shall be deposited into the Preservation § 10.1-2202.2., Code of Virginia.	evenues gener	ated from the		
42 43	375.	Administrative and Support Services (59900) General Management and Direction (59901)	\$973,912	\$973,912	\$973,912	\$973,912
44 45 46		Special	\$746,723 \$46,205 \$180,984	\$746,723 \$46,205 \$180,984		
47		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapters 10.1, 22 and 23, Code of Virg	ginia.			
48 49		Out of the amounts for Administrative and Support Ser administer state grants to nonstate agencies pursuant to				
50		Total for Department of Historic Resources			\$7,950,380	\$7,850,380
51		General Fund Positions	27.00	27.00		

]	ITEM 375		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	19.00 46.00	19.00 46.00		
3 4		Fund Sources: General Special	\$4,672,030 \$969,194	\$4,672,030 \$869,194		
5 6		Commonwealth Transportation Dedicated Special Revenue	\$115,642 \$97,799	\$115,642 \$97,799		
7		Federal Trust	\$2,095,715	\$2,095,715		
8		§ 1-106. MARINE RESOUF	RCES COMMISSI	ON (402)		
9 10	376.	Marine Life Management (50500)			\$20,937,803	\$21,187,803 \$22,187,803
11		Marine Life Information Services (50501)	\$1,336,855	\$1,336,855		
12		Marine Life Regulation Enforcement (50503)	\$9,139,908	\$9,139,908		
13 14		Artificial Reef Construction (50506) Chesapeake Bay Fisheries Management (50507)	\$69,520 \$5,670,841	\$69,520 \$5,670,841		
14		Oyster Propagation and Habitat Improvement	\$5,679,841	\$5,679,841		
16 17		(50508)	\$4,711,679	\$4,961,679 \$5,961,679		
18 19		Fund Sources: General	\$9,811,165	\$10,061,165 \$11,061,165		
20		Special	\$6,983,056	\$6,983,056		
21 22		Commonwealth Transportation	\$313,768	\$313,768		
22 23		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$581,014 \$3,248,800	\$581,014 \$3,248,800		
24 25 26 27 28 29		Authority: Title 18.2, Chapters 1 and 5; Title 19.2, Chapter through 10; Title 29.1, Chapter 7; Title 32.1, Chapter 6; T Chapters 18 and 20, Code of Virginia.A. Out of this appropriation, \$54,611 the first year and general fund is provided for annual membership dues to a Commission.	Fitle 33.2, Chapter	1; and Title 62.1, nd year from the		
29 30 31 32		B. Out of this appropriation, \$148,750 the first year and general fund is provided for annual membership due Commission.				
33 34 35 36		C. Out of the amounts for Marine Life Regulation Enforce Patrols Fund, \$169,248 the first year and \$169,248 the s Code of Virginia. For this purpose, cash shall be tran Transportation Fund.	econd year, pursua	int to § 28.2-108,		
37 38 39 40		D. Pursuant to § 58.1-2289 D, Code of Virginia, \$144,5 second year shall be transferred to Marine Life Re Commonwealth Transportation Fund from unrefunded n into the Marine Patrols Fund.	egulation Enforce	ement from the		
41 42 43 44		E. 1. Out of this appropriation, \$2,750,000 the first yes second year from the general fund is provided to suppor restoration activities. From these amounts \$750,000 the first the second year from the general fund shall be used to pro-	ort oyster replenish irst year and \$1,000	ment and oyster 0,000 \$1,500,000		
45 46 47		2. Any unexpended general fund balances designated by activities remaining in this Item on June 30, 2019, and Ju and reallotted to the Marine Resources Commission for e	ne 30, 2020, shall b			
48 49 50 51		F. The commission shall deposit proceeds from the sale other subaqueous materials pursuant to § 28.2-550, Coc Rock Replenishment Fund established by § 28.2-542, Co such sale shall be used for the same purposes specified in	le of Virginia, to the of Virginia. The of Virginia.	he Public Oyster ne proceeds from		

]	ITEM 376		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		G. Notwithstanding any action of the Virginia Marine Chapter 4 VAC 20-1090-10 et. seq., or other provision proposed to be levied by the Commission for commerce scheduled to go into effect in December 2017 shall be in effect on January 1, 2016.	ons of law or polic ial harvest license a	cy, fee increases and gear use fees		
6 7 8 9	377.	Coastal Lands Surveying and Mapping (51000) Coastal Lands and Bottomlands Management (51001) Marine Resources Surveying and Mapping	\$2,262,431	\$2,090,431	\$2,929,820	\$2,757,820
10		(51002)	\$667,389	\$667,389		
11 12 13		Fund Sources: General Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$1,858,641 \$889,179 \$182,000	\$1,686,641 \$889,179 \$182,000		
14 15		Authority: Title 28.2, Chapters 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16; T of Virginia.	itle 62.1, Chapters	16 and 19, Code		
16 17 18		A. Out of this appropriation, \$245,687 the first year a the general fund is designated for Virginia's share of a to construct a seawall to preserve the harbor on Tangie	n Army Corps of E			
19 20 21		B. Out of this appropriation, \$160,000 the first year fif for completion of the public boat ramp project RI necessary and reasonable improvements as may be	F16-11/RF16-11a	1, including all		
22 23 24	378.	Tourist Promotion (53600) Virginia Saltwater Sport Fishing Tournament (53601)	\$220,000	\$220,000	\$220,000	\$220,000
25		Fund Sources: Special	\$220,000	\$220,000		
26		Authority: Title 28.2, Chapter 2, Code of Virginia				
27 28 29		Pursuant to the provisions of §28.2-206, Code of Virgi Commission shall conduct the Virginia Saltwater Spor of the biennium.				
30 31	379.	Administrative and Support Services (59900) General Management and Direction (59901)	\$2,689,325	\$2,739,325	\$2,689,325	\$2,739,325
32 33		Fund Sources: General Special	\$2,567,729 \$121,596	\$2,617,729 \$121,596		
34		Authority: Title 28.2, Chapters 1 and 2, Code of Virgin	ia.			
35 36 37		Authority: Title 28.2, Chapters I and 2, Code of Virginia. A. The Marine Resources Commission shall recover the cost of reproduction, plus a reasonable fee per record, from persons or organizations requesting copies of computerized lists of licenses issued by the commission.				
38 39 40 41		B. From the amounts collected pursuant to § 28.2-2 deposited into the Virginia Marine Products Fund (§ Marine Resources Commission may retain \$10,000 the year for the administrative cost of issuing gear license	§ 3.2-2705, Code (e first year and \$10	of Virginia), the		
42 43 44 45		C. Notwithstanding any action of the Virginia Marine 2 Chapter 4 VAC 20-1090-10 et. seq., or other provisio the Commission for saltwater recreational fishing licen they were in effect on October 1, 2014.	ons of law or policy	y, fees levied by		
46 47 48 49		D. The Virginia Marine Resources Commission shall r all projects and expenditures funded from the Virgin Development Fund. The report shall be submitted Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.	nia Saltwater Recr	eational Fishing		

]	ITEM 379.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8		E. Out of this appropriation, \$175,000 the first year an general fund is provided for relocation costs of the Vir headquarters and all operational facilities to publicly ow of the General Assembly that all operational assets or limited to communications, dispatch, and marine equiptr of the current relocation project. The Department of Ger Services and the Fort Monroe Authority shall provide a not limited to revisions to the Fort Monroe Authority M	d \$225,000 the secc ginia Marine Resou ned land at Ft. Monr f the Commission, i nent storage remain neral Services, Divis Il necessary assistar	rces Commission roe. It is the intent including but not co-located as part ion of Real Estate		
9 10		Total for Marine Resources Commission			\$26,776,948	\$26,904,948 \$27,904,948
11 12 13		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	135.50 28.00 163.50	135.50 28.00 163.50		
14 15		Fund Sources: General	\$14,237,535	\$14,365,535 \$15,365,535		
16 17 18		Special Commonwealth Transportation Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,324,652 \$313,768 \$1,470,193	\$7,324,652 \$313,768 \$1,470,193		
10 19		Federal Trust	\$3,430,800	\$3,430,800		
20		§ 1-107. VIRGINIA MUSEUM	OF NATURAL H	ISTORY (942)		
21 22	380.	Museum and Cultural Services (14500)			\$3,522,111 \$3,592,111	\$3,272,111 \$3,427,782
23 24 25 26 27 28		Collections Management and Curatorial Services (14501) Education and Extension Services (14503) Operational and Support Services (14507) Scientific Research (14508)	\$114,827 \$567,559 \$2,002,884 \$2,032,884 \$836,841	\$114,827 \$317,559 \$2,002,884 <i>\$2,148,555</i> \$836,841		
29 30 31		Fund Sources: General	\$876,841 \$3,083,105	\$846,841 \$2,833,105 \$2,878,776		
32 33 34		Special	\$343,410 \$403,410 \$95,596	\$343,410 \$453,410 \$95,596		
35 36		Authority: Title 10.1, Chapter 20, Code of Virginia.	\$105,596			
37 38 39		Out of this appropriation, \$250,000 the first year from preliminary planning study to establish a satellite loca Museum in Waynesboro, Virginia.				
40 41		Total for Virginia Museum of Natural History			\$3,522,111 \$3,592,111	\$3,272,111 \$3,427,782
42 43 44		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	38.00 9.50 47.50	38.00 9.50 47.50		
45 46		Fund Sources: General	\$3,083,105	\$2,833,105 \$2,878,776		
47 48 49		Special	\$ 343,410 \$403,410 \$ 95,596	\$343,410 \$ <i>453,410</i> \$95,596		
50 51		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF NATURAL	\$105,596			
52 53		RESOURCES			\$430,206,909 \$457,506,909	\$390,302,417 \$541,937,668

ITEM 380		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	General Fund Positions	1,030.50	1,032.50 1,051.50		
3 4	Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,159.50	1,159.50 1,161.50		
5 6	Position Level	2,190.00	2,192.00 2,213.00		
7 8	Fund Sources: General	\$156,473,711 \$182,123,711	\$117,174,550 \$265,799,214		
9 10	Special	\$45,440,430 \$45,500,430	\$45,340,430 \$45,841,017		
11	Commonwealth Transportation	\$429,410	\$429,410		
12	Enterprise	\$13,037,574	\$13,037,574		
13	Trust and Agency	\$37,858,398	\$37,858,398		
14 15	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$93,777,806 \$95,357,806	\$93,272,475 \$95,782,475		
16 17	Federal Trust	\$83,189,580 \$8 <i>3,199,580</i>	\$83,189,580		

]	ITEM 381		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY	AND HOMELAN	D SECURITY		
2		§ 1-108. SECRETARY OF PUBLIC SAFE	CTY AND HOMEI	LAND SECURITY	(187)	
3 4	381.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$1,323,142	\$1,173,142	\$1,323,142	\$1,173,142
5		Fund Sources: General	\$1,323,142	\$1,173,142		
6		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Article 8, and § 2.2-201, C	Code of Virginia.			
7 8 9 10 11 12 13		A. The Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Securit and local juvenile and state and local responsibility adult Governor, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations at the Chairmen of the House and Senate Courts of Justice year. The secretary shall ensure that the revised forecast shall include an estimate of the number of probation vio overall population forecast who may be appropriate for a	offender populatio nd Senate Finance Committees by Oc for state-responsibl lators included eac	n forecasts to the Committees, and ctober 15 of each le adult offenders h year within the		
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22		B. The secretary shall continue to work with other secreta to improve the re-entry of offenders from prisons and jail the coordination of service delivery to those offenders shall provide a status report on actions taken to improv services, as provided in § 2.2-221.1, Code of Virgini preparation and provision for employment, treatment, a being released from incarceration. The report shall be Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate F November 15 of each year.	s to general society by all state agencia we offender transiti ia, including impr and housing opport provided to the C	v and (ii) enhance es. The secretary ional and reentry ovements to the tunities for those Governor and the		
23 24 25 26 27		C. Included in the appropriation for this item is \$500,0 second year from the general fund for the Commo requirement to accomplish the United States Corps of F Flood Control Study for both the Hampton Roads and Not the U.S. Congress.	nwealth's nonfed Engineers Regional	eral cost match Reconnaissance		
28 29 30 31 32 33 34		D. The appropriation in this item includes \$150,000 the fulfill the requirements set forth in § 2.2-222.2, Code of Y the systems that require upgrade to ensure the Commonwork Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security sh associated with the upgrade to achieve statewide into Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finan of Planning and Budget by November 1, 2018.	Virginia, and to ass ealth's goals for inte- all submit a repor eroperability to th	ess and prioritize eroperability. The t detailing costs te Governor, the		
35	382.	Disaster Planning and Operations (72200)			\$567,489	\$567,489
36 37		Emergency Planning and Homeland Security (72210)	\$567,489	\$567,489		
38		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$567,489	\$567,489		
39 40		Total for Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security			\$1,890,631	\$1,740,631
41 42 43		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	6.00 3.00 9.00	6.00 3.00 9.00		
44 45		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$1,323,142 \$567,489	\$1,173,142 \$567,489		
46		§ 1-109. COMMONWEALTH'S ATTO	ORNEYS' SERVIC	CES COUNCIL (95	57)	
47 48 49	383.	Adjudication Training, Education, and Standards (32600) Prosecutorial Training (32604)	\$2,077,357	\$2,077,357	\$2,077,357	\$2,077,357

	ITEM 383	3.	Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020		riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: General Special	\$666,396 \$1,410,961	\$666,396 \$1,410,961		
3		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 26, Article 7, Code of Vi	rginia.			
4 5		Total for Commonwealth's Attorneys' Services Council			\$2,077,357	\$2,077,357
6 7		General Fund Positions Position Level	7.00 7.00	7.00 7.00		
8 9		Fund Sources: General Special	\$666,396 \$1,410,961	\$666,396 \$1,410,961		
10		§ 1-110. DEPARTMENT OF ALCO	HOLIC BEVERA	GE CONTROL (999)	
11 12	384.	Crime Detection, Investigation, and Apprehension (30400)			\$20,087,975	\$20,087,975
13 14		Enforcement and Regulation of Alcoholic Beverage Control Laws (30403)	\$20,087,975	\$20,087,975		
15 16		Fund Sources: Enterprise Federal Trust	\$19,387,975 \$700,000	\$19,387,975 \$700,000		
17		Authority: § 4.1-100 through § 4.1-133, Code of Virgi	nia.			
18 19		A. No funds appropriated for this program shall be enforce local ordinances.	used for enforcen	nent personnel to		
20 21 22		B. Revenues of the fund appropriated in this Item an those received pursuant to Title 4, Code of Virgini Alcoholic Beverage Control Board.				
23 24 25 26 27 28 29		C. By September 1 of each year, the Alcoholic Bevera prior fiscal year the dollar amount of total wine li portion, expressed in dollars, of such tax collections wine in both ABC stores and in private stores; and, t collections attributable to the sale of Virginia wine. S Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Sena Department of Planning and Budget and the Virg	ter tax collections attributable to the he percentage of to buch report shall be te Finance Comm	s in Virginia; the e sale of Virginia otal wine liter tax e submitted to the nittees, Director,		
30 31		D. Included in this appropriation for this item is \$839 Fund to be used to support civilian licensing technici		om the Enterprise		
32 33	385.	Alcoholic Beverage Merchandising (80100)			\$715,950,057 \$716,914,931	\$753,966,617 \$756,574,679
34 35 36 37		Administrative Services (80101) Alcoholic Beverage Control Retail Store Operations (80102)	\$69,111,416 \$109,479,659 \$110,444,533	\$69,149,514 \$112,644,603 \$115,252,665	φ/10,714,751	\$750,57 4 ,079
38 39		Alcoholic Beverage Purchasing, Warehousing and Distribution (80103)	\$537,358,982	\$572,172,500		
40 41		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$715,950,057 \$716,914,931	\$753,966,617 \$756,574,679		
42		Authority: § 4.1-100 through § 4.1-133, Code of Virgi	nia.			
43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50		A. The Secretary of Finance shall chair an advisory of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority in pla implementing the information technology systems no business enterprise. Members of this committee sh Safety and Homeland Security; the Director, Depar Director, Department of Accounts; the Chief Informat the Auditor of Public Accounts; and the Staff Director Senate Finance Committees and/or their designees.	nning, financing ecessary to sustain all include the Se tment of Planning ttion Officer of the	, procuring, and the department's cretary of Public and Budget; the Commonwealth;		

49 the Auditor of Public Accounts; and the Staff Direc50 Senate Finance Committees and/or their designees.

I	TEM 385.		Iter First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		B. Funds appropriated for services related to state lotter lottery ticket purchases and prize payouts.	ery operations shall	be used solely for		
3 4		C. The Alcoholic Beverage Control Board shall open ac have the greatest potential for total increased sales in or				
5 6 7		D. Notwithstanding § 4.1-120, Code of Virginia, the Al open certain government stores, as determined by t beverages on New Year's Day and on Sundays after	the Board, for the			
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15		E. Consistent with the provisions of Chapters 730 and of the Board shall receive annually such salary, co expenses for the performance of their official duties as act for members of the House of Delegates when the except that the chairmen of the Board shall receive and reimbursement of expenses for the performance of his o appropriation act for a member of the Senate of Virginia session.	set forth in the ger General Assembly nually such salary, fficial duties as set	reimbursement of neral appropriation y is not is session, compensation, and forth in the general		
16 17		Total for Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.			\$736,038,032 \$737,002,906	\$774,054,592 \$776,662,654
18 19		Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,304.00 <i>1,320.00</i>	1,348.00 1,364.00		
20 21		Position Level	1,304.00 <i>1,320.00</i>	1,348.00 1,364.00		
22 23 24		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$735,338,032 \$736,302,906 \$700,000	\$773,354,592 \$775,962,654 \$700,000		
25		§ 1-111. DEPARTMENT	OF CORRECTION	ONS (799)		
26	386.	Instruction (19700)			\$30,012,821	\$30,012,821
27	500.	Career and Technical Instructional Services for			<i>\$20,012,021</i>	<i>\$20,012,021</i>
28		Youth and Adult Schools (19712)	\$10,330,218	\$10,330,218		
29		Adult Instructional Services (19713)	\$12,887,704	\$12,887,704		
30 31		Instructional Leadership and Support Services (19714)	\$6,794,899	\$6,794,899		
32		Fund Sources: General	\$29,502,543	\$29,502,543		
33		Federal Trust	\$510,278	\$510,278		
34		Authority: §§ 53.1-5 and 53.1-10, Code of Virginia.				
35 36	387.	Supervision of Offenders and Re-entry Services (35100)			\$103,664,289	\$104,905,315
37		Probation and Parole Services (35106)	\$98,623,821	\$99,864,847	\$105,004,207	<i>\\</i> 104,905,515
38		Community Residential Programs (35108)	\$3,163,556	\$3,163,556		
39		Administrative Services (35109)	\$1,876,912	\$1,876,912		
40		Fund Sources: General	\$100,715,593	\$101,956,619		
41		Special	\$85,000	\$85,000		
42		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,463,696	\$2,463,696		
43		Federal Trust	\$400,000	\$400,000		
44		Authority: §§ 53.1-67.2 through 53.1-67.6 and §§ 53	3.1-140 through 53	3.1-176.3, Code of		

45 Virginia.

 A. By September 1 of each year, the Department of Corrections shall provide a status report on the Statewide Community-Based Corrections System for State-Responsible Offenders to the Chairmen of the House Courts of Justice; Health, Welfare and Institutions; and Appropriations Committees and the Senate Courts of Justice; Rehabilitation and Social Services; and Finance Committees and to the Department of Planning and Budget. The report shall include a description of the department's progress in implementing evidence-based

I	TEM 387		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		practices in probation and parole districts, and its plan to con into additional districts. The section of the status report on e include an evaluation of the effectiveness of these practice how that effectiveness is measured.	itinue expandii evidence-based	ng this initiative I practices shall		1 1 2020
5 6 7 8		B. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$150,000 th second year from nongeneral funds to support the implet practices in probation and parole districts. The source of the Assessment Fund.	mentation of e	evidence-based		
9 10 11 12	387.10	Financial Assistance for Confinement of Inmates in Local and Regional Facilities (35600) Financial Assistance for Construction of Local and Regional Jails (35603)	\$0	\$124,641	\$0	\$124,641
12		Fund Sources: General	\$0 \$0	\$124,641 \$124,641		
14		Authority: §§ 53.1-80 and 53.1-81, Code of Virginia	<i>T</i> -	<i>+</i> , <i>-</i> . <i>-</i>		
15 16 17 18 19		The appropriation in this Item shall be used to pay the Com to construct, renovate, or expand a local correctional facility reimbursement, the Department of Corrections shall rein share of costs approved by the Board of Corrections for exceed the amount shown:	y. After review nburse the Co	ing requests for ommonwealth's		
20		Martinsville City Jail – Upgrade Security Control System				\$124,641
21 22 23 24	388.	A. The following process shall be applicable in order for an authority (hereinafter referred to as "the locality") to receiportion of the costs of the construction, expansion, or renor §§53.1-80 and 53.1-81, Code of Virginia:	ive state reimb	oursement for a		
25 26 27		1. The locality shall file with the Department of Correction which it wishes its request to be considered, the follow specified by the department:				
28		a. the information and documents required by \$53.1-82.1, Co	ode of Virginia	;		
29		b. Specifications for the proposed construction or renovation	; and			
30		c. Detailed cost estimates.				
31 32		2. The Department of Corrections shall review the request recommendations to the Board of Corrections.	t and make its	comments and		
33 34 35 36		3. The Departments of Corrections and Criminal Justic community-based corrections plan and jail population fore- and make their comments and recommendation concer- Corrections.	cast submitted	by the locality		
37 38 39 40		4. The Board of Corrections shall review and take action o the comments and recommendations of the Departments Justice Services. It may modify any aspect of the request b shall not approve any request unless the following condition	of Correction efore approvir	s and Criminal ig it. The board		
41 42		a. the project is consistent with the projected number of offenders to be housed in such facility;	f local and sta	ate responsible		
43 44		b. the project meets the design criteria set out in the Board Planning, Design, Construction and Reimbursement of Loc				
45 46 47 48		c. the project is proposed to be built using standards for a sadopted by the board, unless the use of more expensive consubased on a documented projection of offender populations level of security;	struction stand	ards is justified,		

ITEM 388.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	d. the project can be completed and operated in a cost-efficient r	nanner; and			
2	e. any other criteria established by the board.				
3 4 5	5. If the Board of Corrections approves a request, the Department the Department of Planning and Budget by October 1 of the summary of the project and a detailed list of the board-appro-	board's action	on and submit a		
6 7 8 9	6. If the Board of Corrections approves a request, the Department shall submit to the Department of Planning and Budget by alternatives to incarceration included in the community-based the project, along with a projection of the state funds needed to	October 1 a s corrections pl	summary of the an approved for		
10 11 12 13 14	7. The Department of Planning and Budget shall submit to the O inclusion in the budget bill to be submitted by the Governor recommendations concerning the approval of the reques construction or renovation costs and whether state funding alternatives to incarceration included in the community-base	to the Genera t for reimbut is appropriate	al Assembly, its rsement of jail e to support the		
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28	B. The Department of Corrections shall provide an annual construction and renovation projects as approved for funding b report shall be limited to those projects which increase bed cap a brief summary description of each project, the total capita approved state share of the capital cost, the number of beds number of new beds if existing beds are to be removed, and facilities, if applicable. The report shall include the six-year pop double-bunking capacity compared to the rated capacity for e shall also include the general fund impact on community correct the Department of Criminal Justice Services, and the recommen- and estimated general fund requirements for debt service as pr Copies of the report shall be provided by October 1 of each Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees and to Planning and Budget.	by the General acity. The rep al cost of the approved, alc d the closure ulation foreca ach project li ctions program ended financin ovided by the year to the C	Assembly. The ort shall include project and the ong with the net of any existing st, as well as the sted. The report as as reported by a arrangements State Treasurer. Chairmen of the		
29 30 31	C.1. No city, county, town or regional jail shall authorize t renovation or rehabilitation of any facility to house any inn results in increased jail capacity without the prior approval	nate in secure	custody which		
32 33 34 35	2. Any facility operated by any local or regional jail in the Cominmate in secure custody shall be subject to the operational pro 68, Code of Virginia, as well as all rules, regulations, and in Board of Corrections.	visions of §§	53.1-5 and 53.1-		
36 37 38 39 40	D. The Board of Corrections shall include within its reporting for local and regional jail, a measure of the actual jail capacity, bunking, with exceptions as appropriate, in the judgment segregation, or medical cells, or similar units which would no Exceptions to this measure of capacity may also be made for	which shall of the Board t normally be	include double- l, for isolation, double-bunked.		

Exceptions to this measure of capacity may also be made for jails which were constructed prior to 1980. A report including the double-bunking capacity, as well as the standard Board of Corrections measure of rated capacity, for each jail shall be presented to the Secretary of Public Safety and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees by October 1 of each year.

41

42

43

44

45 E. The Commonwealth shall reimburse localities or regional jail authorities up to 25 percent of the cost of constructing, enlarging, or renovating local or regional jails, for projects 46 47 approved by the Governor on or after July 1, 2017.

48 49 50	389.	Operation of State Residential Community Correctional Facilities (36100)			
51		Community Facility Management (36101)	\$1,406,592	\$1,406,592	
52		Supervision and Management of Probates (36102)	\$11,240,304	\$11,240,304	
53 54 55		Rehabilitation and Treatment Services - Community Residential Facilities (36103)	\$1,838,499	\$1,838,499 \$2,998,647	

\$17,503,006 \$18,663,154

\$17,503,006

ľ	TEM 389		Iter First Yea FY2019			priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Medical and Clinical Services - Community Residential Facilities (36104)	\$799,261	\$799,261		
3 4		Food Services - Community Residential Facilities (36105)	\$1,182,525	\$1,182,525		
5 6		Physical Plant Services - Community Residential Facilities (36106)	\$1,035,825	\$1,035,825		
7 8		Fund Sources: General	\$16,603,006	\$16,603,006 \$17,763,154		
9		Special	\$900,000	\$900,000		
10		Authority: §§ 53.1-67.2 through 53.1-67.8, Code of V	irginia.			
11 12 13 14 15 16		A. Included within this appropriation is \$700,00 the year from nongeneral funds to be used for operat operated by the Department of Corrections. The nor fees collected from probationers, assigned to the div the cost of housing them, pursuant to \$ 19.2-316.3 C B. Notwithstanding the provisions of \$ 53.1-67.1, C	ting expenses of ngeneral funds are ersion centers, to C, Code of Virgini	diversion center to come from the cover a portion o a.	s e f	
17 18		Corrections shall not be required to operate a boot ca probation.				
19 20 21 22 23 24		C. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$4 \$1,599,084 the second year from the general fun- treatment programs in the detention and diversion of annually to the Governor, the Chairmen of the Ho Finance Committees, and the Department of Planm program, including recidivism and illegal drug rela	nd for the establic centers. The depar suse Appropriationing and Budget or	shment of opioid tment shall report ns and the Senate n the status of the	d t e e	
25 26 27	390.	Operation of Secure Correctional Facilities (39800)			\$1,006,178,030 \$1,014,684,958	\$1,001,894,525 \$1,013,884,498
28 29		Supervision and Management of Inmates (39802)	\$499,024,754	\$503,718,236 \$504,769,803		
30 31		Rehabilitation and Treatment Services - Prisons (39803)	\$44,026,754	\$44,102,440		
32		Prison Management (39805)	\$73,063,102	\$73,063,102		
33 34		Food Services - Prisons (39807)	\$43,926,300 \$212,979,263	\$43,926,300 \$203,926,590		
34 35		Medical and Clinical Services - Prisons (39810)	\$212,979,203 \$221,486,191	\$214,864,996		
36		Agribusiness (39811)	\$10,481,833	\$10,481,833		
37		Correctional Enterprises (39812)	\$50,303,706	\$50,303,706		
38		Physical Plant Services - Prisons (39815)	\$72,372,318	\$72,372,318		
39 40		Fund Sources: General	\$948,378,153 \$956,885,081	\$947,753,642 \$959,743,615		
41		Special	\$53,219,843	\$53,219,843		
42		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,658,994	\$0		
43 44		Federal Trust	\$921,040	\$921,040		
44		Authority: §§ 53.1-1, 53.1-5, 53.1-8, and 53.1-10, Cod	le of virginia.			
45 46 47		A. Included in this appropriation is \$1,195,000 in the year from nongeneral funds for the purposes listed commissions generated by prison commissary oper	l below. The sour			
48 49 50		1. \$170,000 the first year and \$170,000 the second year inc., to provide transportation for family members to ancillary services to family members;				
51 52		2. \$950,000 the first year and \$950,000 the second y that work to enhance faith-based services to inmates		on to organization	S	
53		3. \$75,000 the first year and \$75,000 the second year	for the "FETCH" I	orogram.		

Item I	Item Details(\$)		
First Year	Second Year		
FY2019	FY2020		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

B.1. The Department of Corrections is authorized to contract with other governmental entities
 to house male and female prisoners from those jurisdictions in facilities operated by the
 department.

ITEM 390.

23

24

25

26

2. The State Comptroller shall continue to maintain the Contract Prisoners Special Revenue
Fund on the books of the Commonwealth to reflect the activities of contracts between the
Commonwealth of Virginia and other governmental entities for the housing of prisoners in
facilities operated by the Virginia Department of Corrections.

- 8 3. The Department of Corrections shall determine whether it may be possible to contract to house additional federal inmates or inmates from other states in space available within state correctional facilities. The department may, subject to the approval of the Governor, enter into such contracts, to the extent that sufficient bedspace may become available in state facilities for this purpose.
- C. The Department of Corrections may enter into agreements with local and regional jails to
 house state-responsible offenders in such facilities and to effect transfers of convicted state
 felons between and among such jails. Such agreements shall be governed by the provisions of
 Item 67 of this act.
- 17 D. To the extent that the Department of Corrections privatizes food services, the department18 shall also seek to maximize agribusiness operations.
- E. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 53.1-45, Code of Virginia, the Department of
 Corrections is authorized to sell on the open market and through the Virginia Farmers' Market
 Network any dairy, animal, or farm products of which the Commonwealth imports more than
 it exports.
 - F. It is the intention of the General Assembly that § 53.1-47, the Code of Virginia, concerning articles and services produced or manufactured by persons confined in state correctional facilities, shall be construed such that the term "manufactured" articles shall include "remanufactured" articles.
- G. Out of this appropriation, \$921,040 the first year and \$921,040 the second year from nongeneral funds is included for inmate medical costs. The sources of the nongeneral funds are an award from the State Criminal Alien Assistance Program, administered by the U.S.
 Department of Justice.
- 31 H.1. The Department of Corrections, in coordination with the Virginia Supreme Court, shall 32 continue to operate a behavioral correction program. Offenders eligible for such a program 33 shall be those offenders: (i) who have never been convicted of a violent felony as defined in § 34 17.1-805 of the Code of Virginia and who have never been convicted of a felony violation of 35 §§ 18.2-248 and 18.2-248.1 of the Code of Virginia; (ii) for whom the sentencing guidelines 36 developed by the Virginia Criminal Sentencing Commission would recommend a sentence of 37 four years or more in facilities operated by the Department of Corrections; and (iii) whom the 38 court determines require treatment for drug or alcohol substance abuse. For any such offender, 39 the court may impose the appropriate sentence with the stipulation that the Department of 40 Corrections place the offender in an intensive therapeutic community-style substance abuse 41 treatment program as soon as possible after receiving the offender. Upon certification by the 42 Department of Corrections that the offender has successfully completed such a program of a 43 duration of 24 months or longer, the court may suspend the remainder of the sentence 44 imposed by the court and order the offender released to supervised probation for a period 45 specified by the court.
- 2. If an offender assigned to the program voluntarily withdraws from the program, is removed
 from the program by the Department of Corrections for intractable behavior, fails to
 participate in program activities, or fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the
 program, the Department of Corrections shall notify the court, outlining specific reasons for
 the removal and shall reassign the defendant to another incarceration assignment as
 appropriate. Under such terms, the offender shall serve out the balance of the sentence
 imposed by the court, as provided by law.
- 53 3. The Department of Corrections shall collect the data and develop the framework and54 processes that will enable it to conduct an in-depth evaluation of the program three years after

	ITEM 390		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020		riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		it has been in operation. The department shall submit to the Chief Justice as he may require and shall submit the program and its usage to the Secretary of Public Sa Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate I each year.	a report periodical it a report on the i ifety and Homeland	ly on the program mplementation of d Security and the	11201)	1 1 2020
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		I. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$250, second year from nongeneral funds for a culinary a trained to operate food service activities serving agen source of the funds shall be revenues generated by generated by the program shall not be subject to \$4-2 the agency for the costs of operating the program. The maintain the Inmate Culinary Arts Training Proc Commonwealth to reflect the revenue and expendence.	arts program in w cy staff and the ge by the program. A 2.02 of this act and state Comptroller ogram Fund on t	hich inmates are eneral public. The Any revenues so d shall be used by r shall continue to he books of the		
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24		J. The Department of Corrections shall continue to Medical Assistance Services and the Department of inmates in Medicaid. To the extent possible, the Depa identify potentially eligible inmates on a proactive hospitalization occurs. Procedures shall also include bill the Department of Medical Assistance Service Corrections, for eligible inmate inpatient medical ex sources associated with inpatient and outpatient heal Corrections and the Department of Medical Assistant applicable provider community to ensure that admini- payment for health care services is rendered in a pro-	f Social Services artment of Corrective basis, prior to the provisions for mea- es, rather than the kpenses. Due to the th care services, the nce Services shall strative burdens a	to enroll eligible ions shall work to ne time inpatient dical providers to e Department of ne multiple payor he Department of consult with the		
25 26 27		K. Federal funds received by the Department of Corres Substance Abuse Treatment Program shall be exem agency indirect cost recoveries into the general fun	pt from payment			
28 29 30 31 32		L. Included in the appropriation for this item is fundi year from the general fund for six medical contract positions shall have the responsibility of closely mon inmate medical services in those correctional facili contracted with a private vendor to provide inmate	monitors. The per itoring the adequa ities for which the	sons filling these acy and quality of e department has		
33 34 35 36		M. The Department of Corrections shall continue inmates under 18 years old who have been tried and c the Department of Corrections. This separation of the population is required by the requirements of the fede	onvicted as adults se offenders from	and committed to the general prison		
37 38 39 40 41		N. Included in this appropriation is \$173,499 the first from the general fund and five positions to hire qualifi service members under Virginia's Military Medics a support the Department's recruitment efforts of administration of medical services for offende	ied, medically-trai nd Corpsmen (MM of medical profe	ned, transitioning MAC) program to		
42 43	391.	Administrative and Support Services (39900)			\$104,025,032	\$103,632,136 \$110,514,949
44		General Management and Direction (39901)	\$17,005,366	\$17,005,366		, ,,/ ·/
45 46		Information Technology Services (39902)	\$37,096,261	\$36,753,365 \$43,336,178		
47		Accounting and Budgeting Services (39903)	\$5,098,156	\$5,098,156		
48 49		Architectural and Engineering Services (39904)	\$6,482,895	\$6,432,895 \$6,732,895		
50		Jail Regulation, Inspections, and Investigations				
51		(39905)	\$465,274	\$465,274		
52 52		Human Resources Services (39914)	\$5,944,758	\$5,944,758		
53 54		Planning and Evaluation Services (39916)	\$799,987 \$13,120,696	\$799,987 \$13,120,696		
54 55		Procurement and Distribution Services (39918) Training Academy (39929)	\$13,120,696 \$7,910,592	\$13,120,696 \$7,910,592		
55 56		Offender Classification and Time Computation	φ <i>1</i> ,910,392	φ1,910,392		
50 57		Services (39930)	\$10,101,047	\$10,101,047		

Appropriations(\$)

IT	ЕМ 391.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Fund Sources: General	\$98,884,006	\$98,799,903 \$102,626,212		
3 4	Special	\$4,987,220	\$4,678,427 \$7,734,931		
5	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$153,806	\$153,806		

Authority: §§ 53.1-1 and 53.1-10, Code of Virginia.

6

A.1. Any plan to modernize and integrate the automated systems of the Department of
Corrections shall be based on developing the integrated system in phases, or modules.
Furthermore, any such integrated system shall be designed to provide the department the data
needed to evaluate its programs, including that data needed to measure recidivism.

- 2. The appropriation in this Item includes \$2,868,500 the first year and \$2,135,500 the second
 year from the Contract Prisoners Special Revenue Fund to defray a portion of the costs of
 maintaining and enhancing the offender management system, including the development of an
 electronic health records system. In addition to any general fund appropriations, the
 Department of Corrections may, subject to the authorization of the Director, Department of
 Planning and Budget, utilize additional revenue deposited in the Contract Prisoners Special
 Revenue Fund to support the development of the offender management system.
- B. Included in this appropriation is \$550,000 the first year and \$550,000 the second year from
 nongeneral funds to be used for installation and operating expenses of the telemedicine
 program operated by the Department of Corrections. The source of the funds is revenue from
 inmate fees collected for medical services.
- C. Included in this appropriation is \$1,100,000 the first year and \$1,100,000 the second year
 from nongeneral funds to be used by the Department of Corrections for the operations of its
 Corrections Construction Unit. The State Comptroller shall continue the Corrections
 Construction Unit Special Operating Fund on the Commonwealth Accounting and Reporting
 System to reflect the activities of contracts between the Corrections Construction Unit and (i)
 institutions within the Department of Corrections for work not related to a capital project and
 (ii) agencies without the Department of Corrections for work performed for those agencies.
- 29 D. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 53.1-20 A. and B., Code of Virginia, the Director, 30 Department of Corrections, shall receive offenders into the state correctional system from 31 local and regional jails at such time as he determines that sufficient, secure and appropriate 32 housing is available, placing a priority on receiving inmates diagnosed and being treated for 33 HIV, mental illnesses requiring medication, or Hepatitis C. The director shall maximize, 34 consistent with inmate and staff safety, the use of bed space in the state correctional system. 35 The director shall report monthly to the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security 36 and the Department of Planning and Budget on the number of inmates housed in the state 37 correctional system, the number of inmate beds available, and the number of offenders housed 38 in local and regional jails that meet the criteria set out in § 53.1-20 A. and B.
- 39 E. Notwithstanding any requirement to the contrary, any building, fixture, or structure to be 40 placed, erected or constructed on, or removed or demolished from the property of the 41 Commonwealth of Virginia under the control of the Department of Corrections shall not be 42 subject to review and approval by the Art and Architectural Review Board as contemplated by 43 § 2.2-2402, Code of Virginia. However, if the Department of Corrections seeks to construct a facility that is not a secure correctional facility or a structure located on the property of a 44 45 secure correctional facility, then the Department of Corrections shall submit that structure to the Art and Architectural Review Board for review and approval by that board. Such other 46 47 structures could include probation and parole district offices or regional offices.
- 48 F. The Commonwealth of Virginia shall convey 45 acres (more or less) of property, being a 49 portion of Culpeper County Tax Map No. 75, parcel 32, lying in the Cedar Mountain 50 Magisterial District of Culpeper County, Virginia, in consideration of the County's 51 construction of water capacity and service line(s) adequate to serve the needs of the 52 Department of Corrections' Coffeewood Facility and the Department of Juvenile Justice's 53 Culpeper Juvenile Correctional Facility (hereinafter "the facilities"). The cost of the water 54 improvements necessary to serve the facilities, including an eight-inch water service line, and 55 including engineering and land/easement acquisition costs, shall be paid by the 56 Commonwealth, less and except (i) the value of the property for the jail conveyed by the

ITEM	Item Details(\$)I 391.First YearFY2019FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(Secor FY
1 2 3	Commonwealth to the County (\$150,382, based on valuation by the Culpeper County Assessor), and (ii) the cost of increasing the size of the water service line from eight inches to twelve inches, in order to accommodate planned county needs.		
4 5 6	G. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-3403, Code of Virginia, the Department of Corrections shall be exempt from the payment of service charges levied in lieu of taxes by any county, city, or town.		
7 8 9 10 11 12	H. The Department of Corrections shall serve as the Federal Bonding Coordinator and shall work with the Virginia Community College System and its workforce development programs and services to provide fidelity bonds to those offenders released from jails or state correctional centers who are required to provide fidelity bonds as a condition of employment. The department is authorized to use funds from the Contract Prisoners Special Revenue Fund to pay the costs of this activity.		
13 14 15 16	I. In the event the Department of Corrections closes a correctional facility for which it has entered into an agreement with any locality to pay a proportionate share of the debt service for the establishment of utilities to serve the facility, the department shall continue to pay its agreed upon share of the debt service, subject to the schedule previously agreed upon.		
17 18 19	J. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from the general fund for the costs of security technology and hardware for the inmate telephone system.		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26	K. From the appropriation in this Item, \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the general fund shall be used to present seminars on overcoming obstacles to re-entry and to promote family integration in the correctional centers designated for intensive re-entry programs. The department shall submit a report by October 15 of each year to the chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, and the Department of Planning and Budget on the use of this funding.		
27 28 29 30 31	L. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$50,000 the first year from the general fund for the estimated net increase in the operating cost of adult correctional facilities resulting from the enactment of sentencing legislation as listed below. This amount shall be paid into the Corrections Special Reserve Fund, established pursuant to § 30-19.1:4, Code of Virginia.		
32	1. Chapter 549 \$50,000.		
33 34 35 36	M. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$175,000 in the first year and \$200,000 in the second year from the general fund and two positions to assist the Board of Corrections in carrying out its duties under the authority of \$53.1-69.1, Code of Virginia, to review deaths of inmates in local correctional facilities.		
37 38 39 40 41	N.1. Consistent with the provisions of Chapter 198 of the 2017 Session of the General Assembly, the Director, Department of Corrections, shall implement the recommendations relating to the Department of Corrections made by the Department of Medical Assistance Services in its November 30, 2017 report on streamlining the Medicaid application and enrollment process for incarcerated individuals.		
42 43 44 45	2. For the purpose of implementing these recommendations, included in the appropriation for this item are \$71,503 the first year and \$37,400 the second year from the general fund, and \$420,993 the first year and \$112,200 the second year from nongeneral funds and two positions.		
46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54	O. The Department of Corrections shall evaluate potential options to reduce the number of state-responsible inmates with serious mental illness who serve the entirety of their state-responsible sentences in, and are released directly from, local and regional jails. In its evaluation, and using the definition of serious mental illness in accordance with the American Correctional Association, the Department shall give consideration to (i) the number of state-responsible inmates identified by jail staff with serious mental illness held in regional jails, the jails in which they are held, their diagnostic category as delineated in the DSM-V, the length of their state-responsible sentence and the type of their offense, and whether they were assigned to a DBHDS facility from the jail for evaluation; (ii)		

Appropriation us(\$) cond Year FY2020

4	26	

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 which among these offenders should be prioritized for transfer to a state correctional facility; 2 (iii) the current inmate population with serious mental illness held in state correctional 3 facilities, their diagnosis and the acuity of their symptoms, and the length of their sentence 4 and the type of their offenses; (iv) the facilities and services currently provided for the 5 treatment of inmates with serious mental illness held in state correctional facilities; and, (v) 6 what additional capital and operating resources would be needed by the Department to 7 facilitate a reduction in the number of state-responsible inmates with serious mental illness 8 serving the entirety of their sentence in local and regional jails. The Department shall provide 9 the results of its evaluation to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance 10 Committees no later than October 15, 2018.

ITEM 391.

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

11 P. The Department of Corrections shall assess its long-term facility needs with respect to 12 providing appropriate levels of medical and mental health care to its offender population. At a 13 minimum, the assessment shall include (i) a summary of the Department's existing clinical, 14 geriatric, assisted living, and mental health capacity, and an assessment of the sufficiency of 15 this existing capacity to meet the current and future needs of the Department's offender 16 population; (ii) a prioritized list of capital projects which may be needed to address the 17 Department's current or future needs for capacity in relation to (i) which shall include a 18 discussion of the methodology used by the Department to prioritize projects and the estimated 19 cost of each project; and, (iii) a short-term plan to house offenders in a manner which reduces 20 the risks related to transmittable diseases. The Department shall provide the results of its 21 assessment to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the 22 House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than October 1, 2018.

Q. By September 1 of each year, the Department of Corrections shall remit data to the Director of the Department of Planning and Budget and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees regarding medical treatment provided to offenders at each facility. The data shall include, as a proportion of average daily population at each facility, the levels of inmates who received care, including: the specific proportions of inmates from each facility who were treated as inpatients, the specific proportion of inmates from each facility who were treated as outpatients, data on prescription drug administration, and the proportion of inmates from each facility who healthcare vendors, the Department of Corrections shall include the reporting of data required under this paragraph as a requirement within the contract.

R. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$300,000 the second year from the general fund for the estimated net increase in the operating cost of adult correctional facilities resulting from the enactment of sentencing legislation as listed below. This amount shall be paid into the Corrections Special Reserve Fund, established pursuant to § 30-19.1:4, Code of Virginia.

- **38** *1. Prohibit possession of firearms for persons subject to final orders of protection -- \$50,000*
- **39** 2. Increase the penalty for allowing a child to access unsecured firearms -- \$50,000
- **40** *3. Prohibit the sale, possession, and transport of assault firearms -- \$50,000*
- 41 4. Require background checks for all firearms sales -- \$50,000
- 425. Allow the removal of firearms from persons exhibiting extreme risk to themselves or others43-- \$50,000
- 44 6. Prohibit the sale, possession and transport of bump stock devices -- \$50,000

45 46	Total for Department of Corrections			\$1,261,383,178 \$1,269,890,106	\$1,257,947,803 \$1,278,105,378
47 48	General Fund Positions	12,146.00 <i>12,274.00</i>	12,185.00 <i>12,313.00</i>		
49	Nongeneral Fund Positions	233.50	233.50		
50 51	Position Level	12,379.50 12,507.50	12,418.50 12,546.50		
52 53	Fund Sources: General	\$1,194,083,301 \$1,202,590,229	\$1,194,615,713 \$1,211,716,784		

т	TEM 201			Details(\$)		riations(\$)
I	TEM 391		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Special	\$59,192,063	\$58,883,270 \$61,939,774		
3		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$6,276,496	\$2,617,502		
4		Federal Trust	\$1,831,318	\$1,831,318		
5		§ 1-112. DEPARTMENT OF CRIM	IINAL JUSTICE	SERVICES (140))	
6 7	392.	Criminal Justice Training and Standards (30300)			\$2,086,689	\$2,086,689 \$5,036,721
, 8 9		Criminal Justice Training Services (30303)	\$633,714	\$633,714 \$3,303,746		<i>\$5</i> ,050,721
10		Standards and Training (30304)	\$982,307	\$982,307		
11		Law Enforcement Training and Education	4.5			
12		Assistance (30306)	\$0	\$280,000		
13 14		Criminal Justice Academy Inspections and Audit Services (30307)	\$470,668	\$470,668		
15 16		Fund Sources: General	\$1,264,407	\$1,264,407 \$4,214,439		
17		Special	\$822,282	\$822,282		
18		Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33		stakeholders, review all of the compulsory minimum applicable to law-enforcement officers and update the Board shall ensure that the training standards appro officers in the areas of mental health, community poli- are disabled. The updated compulsory minimum appropriate, include consideration of, but not be limit President's Task Force on 21st Century Policing. The resources available to officers in dealing with situate identify what resources are needed. Any updates to the standards shall be completed by October 1, 2019 June the Chairmen of the House Committees on Militia, Po- Justice, and Appropriations, and to the Chairmen of the Justice and Finance.	m as needed. The priately educate l icing, and serving training standar ed to, the recomm he Director shall ions related to m he compulsory m <i>30, 2020</i> , and sha blice, and Public S	Director and the aw-enforcement individuals who ds shall, where hendations of the identify current ental health and inimum training all be reported to Safety, Courts of		
34 35 36	393.	Criminal Justice Research, Planning and Coordination (30500)			\$557,247	\$557,247 \$1,072,877
37 38 20		Criminal Justice Research, Statistics, Evaluation, and Information Services (30504)	\$557,247	\$557,247		
39				\$1,072,877		
40 41		Fund Sources: General	\$357,247	\$357,247 \$872,877		
42		Trust and Agency	\$200,000	\$200,000		
43		Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 1; Title 19.2, Chapter 23.1	, Code of Virginia	L .		
44 45	394.	Asset Forfeiture and Seizure Fund Management and Financial Assistance Program (30600)			\$6,040,538	\$6,040,538
46 47		Coordination of Asset Seizure and Forfeiture Activities (30602)	\$6,040,538	\$6,040,538		
48		Fund Sources: Special	\$6,040,538	\$6,040,538 \$6,040,538		
49		Authority: Title 19.2, Chapter 22.1, Code of Virginia.	\$0,0 10, <i>35</i> 0	\$5,010,000		
5 0	395.	Financial Assistance for Administration of Justice				
51	575.	Services (39000)			\$111,096,612	\$107,296,612 \$100,826,612
52 53 54		Criminal Justice Assistance Grants (39002)	\$107,857,257	\$104,057,257 \$106,587,257		\$109,826,612

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 395		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Criminal Justice Grants Fiscal Management Services (39003)	\$544,494	\$544,494		
3 4	Criminal Justice Policy and Program Services (39004)	\$2,694,861	\$2,694,861		
5 6	Fund Sources: General	\$40,121,333	\$36,321,333 \$38,851,333		
7	Special	\$223,347	\$223,347		
8	Trust and Agency	\$4,028,130	\$4,028,130		
9	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$11,036,199	\$11,036,199		
10	Federal Trust	\$55,687,603	\$55,687,603		

11 Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.

12 13

14

15

16

17 18

19

A.1. This appropriation includes an estimated \$4,800,000 the first year and an estimated \$4,800,000 the second year from federal funds pursuant to the Omnibus Crime Control Act of 1968, as amended. Of these amounts, nine *ten* percent is available for administration, and the remainder is available for grants to state agencies and local units of government. The remaining federal funds are to be passed through as grants to localities, with a required 25 percent local match. Also included in this appropriation is \$452,128 the first year and \$452,128 the second year from the general fund for the required matching funds for state agencies.

20 2. The Department of Criminal Justice Services shall provide a summary report on federal 21 anti-crime and related grants which will require state general funds for matching purposes 22 during FY 2013 and beyond. The report shall include a list of each grant and grantee, the 23 purpose of the grant, and the amount of federal and state funds recommended, organized by 24 topical area and fiscal period. The report shall indicate whether each grant represents a new 25 program or a renewal of an existing grant. Copies of this report shall be provided to the 26 Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees and the Director, 27 Department of Planning and Budget by January 1 of each year.

B. The Department of Criminal Justice Services is authorized to make grants and provide
 technical assistance out of this appropriation to state agencies, local governments, regional,
 and nonprofit organizations for the establishment and operation of programs for the following
 purposes and up to the amounts specified:

- 1.a. Regional training academies for criminal justice training, \$1,001,074 the first year and
 \$1,001,074 the second year from the general fund and an estimated \$1,649,315 the first year
 and an estimated \$1,649,315 the second year from nongeneral funds. The Criminal Justice
 Services Board shall adopt such rules as may reasonably be required for the distribution of
 funds and for the establishment, operation and service boundaries of state-supported regional
 criminal justice training academies.
- b. The Board of Criminal Justice Services, consistent with § 9.1-102, Code of Virginia, and §
 6VAC-20-20-61 of the Administrative Code, shall not approve or provide funding for the
 establishment of any new criminal justice training academy from July 1, 2018, through June
 30, 2020.
- 42 c. Notwithstanding subsection B.1.b. of this item, the Board of Criminal Justice Services may 43 approve a new regional criminal justice academy serving the Counties of Clarke, Frederick, 44 and Warren; the City of Winchester; the Towns of Berryville, Front Royal, Middletown, 45 Stephens City and Strasburg; the Northwestern Adult Detention Center; and, the Frederick 46 County Emergency Communications Center, to be established and operated consistent with a 47 written agreement, provided to the Board, between the local governing bodies, chief executive 48 officers, and chief law enforcement officers of the aforementioned localities, and the 49 Rappahannock Regional Criminal Justice Academy. The new academy shall be eligible to 50 receive state funding in a manner consistent with the currently existing regional criminal 51 justice training academies. However, no current existing regional criminal justice training 52 academy other than the Rappahannock Regional Criminal Justice Academy will receive less 53 funding as a result of the creation of the new regional academy.
- 54 2. Virginia Crime Victim-Witness Fund, \$5,692,738 the first year and \$5,692,738 the second
 55 year from dedicated special revenue, and \$943,700 the first year and \$943,700 the second

ITEM 395		Item D irst Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2 3 4 5 6	year from the general fund. The Department of Criminal Justic report on the current and projected status of federal, state and witness programs supported by the Fund. Copies of the report to the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, the D Budget, and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House A by October 16 of each year.	l local fundi shall be prov epartment o	hall provide a ng for victim- /ided annually f Planning and		
7 8	3.a. Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) programs, \$1, \$1,615,000 the second year from the general fund.	,615,000 the	first year and		
9 10 11	b. In the event that the federal government reduces or remov programs, the Governor is authorized to provide offsetting fu programs out of the unappropriated balances in this Act.				
12 13 14	4. Domestic Violence Fund, \$3,000,000 the first year and \$3 from the dedicated special revenue fund to provide grant prosecutors that provide services to victims of domestic	s to local p			
15 16 17 18	5. Pre and Post-Incarceration Services (PAPIS), \$2,286,144 the the second year from general fund to support pre and post i services and guidance that increase the opportunity for, and th reintegration into the community by adult offenders upon relea	ncarceration e likelihood	n professional of, successful		
19 20 21 22 23	6. To the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental activities and programs: (i) a partnership program between a board and the district probation and parole office for a jail diver discharge planners; (iii) advanced training on veterans' issues teams; and (iv) cross systems mapping targeting juvenile justice	local comm sion program to local crist	unity services n; (ii) forensic is intervention		
24 25 26 27 28	7. To the Department of Corrections for the following act community residential re-entry programs for female offenders; (day reporting center; and (iii) establishment of a pilot program offenders would be housed in a local or regional jail, rather the correctional facility, with rehabilitative services provided by	(ii) establish whereby no han a prison	ment of a pilot n-violent state		
29 30 31 32	8. To Drive to Work, \$75,000 the first year and \$75,000 the sec fund and \$75,000 the first year and \$75,000 the second year f may be available to provide assistance to low income and previ to restore their driving privileges so they can drive to work and	rom such fe ously incarc	deral funds as		
33 34 35 36 37	9. For model addiction recovery programs administered in local the first year and \$153,600 the second year from the general Criminal Justice Services, consistent with the provisions of C Assembly, shall award grants not to exceed \$38,400 to four p consultation with the Department of Behavioral Health and D	fund. The I Chapter 758, pilot program	Department of 2017 Acts of ns selected in		
38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	C.1. Out of this appropriation, \$25,390,378 the first year and \$2 from the general fund is authorized to make discretionary gran assistance to cities, counties or combinations thereof to develo evaluate programs, services and facilities established pursua Community Corrections Act for Local-Responsible Offenders 183 Code of Virginia) and the Pretrial Services Act (§§ 19.2- Code of Virginia). Out of these amounts, the Director, Depar Services, is authorized to expend no more than five pe administration of these programs.	ts and to pro p, implement ant to the C s (§§ 9.1-17) 152.2 throug the the C	vide technical at, operate and omprehensive 3 through 9.1- gh 19.2-152.7, iminal Justice		
47 48 49 50 51	2. The Department of Criminal Justice Services, in conjunct Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court and the Virgin Commission, shall conduct information and training sessions for officials on the programs, services and facilities available throug and the Comprehensive Community Corrections Act for Local-H	nia Crimina or judges and gh the Pretria	nl Sentencing l other judicial nl Services Act		
52 53	D.1. Out of this appropriation, \$225,000 the first year and \$225 the general fund is provided for Comprehensive Community		-		

53 54 the general fund is provided for Comprehensive Community Corrections and Pretrial Services Programs for localities that belong to the Central Virginia Regional Jail Second Year FY2020

Item Details(\$)		
First Year	Second Year	
FY2019	FY2020	

Appropriations(\$)				
First Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

Authority. These amounts are seventy-five percent of the costs projected in the communitybased corrections plan submitted by the Authority. The localities shall provide the remaining twenty-five percent as a condition of receiving these funds.

ITEM 395.

1

2

3

2. Out of this appropriation, \$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year from the general fund is provided for Comprehensive Community Corrections and Pretrial Services
Programs for localities that belong to the Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority. These amounts are seventy-five percent of the costs projected in the community-based corrections
plan submitted by the Authority. The localities shall provide the remaining twenty-five percent as a condition of receiving these funds.

- E. In the event the federal government should make available additional funds pursuant to the
 Violence Against Women Act, the department shall set aside 33 percent of such funds for
 competitive grants to programs providing services to domestic violence and sexual assault
 victims.
- F.1. Out of this appropriation, \$3,000,000 the first year and \$1,700,000 the second year from the general fund and \$1,710,000 the first year and \$1,710,000 the second year from such federal funds as are available shall be deposited to the School Resource Officer Incentive Grants Fund established pursuant to \$9.1-110, Code of Virginia.
- 18 2.a. The Director, Department of Criminal Justice Services, is authorized to expend \$410,877
 19 the first year and \$410,877 the second year from the School Resource Officer Incentive
 20 Grants Fund to operate the Virginia Center for School Safety, pursuant to § 9.1-110, Code of
 21 Virginia.
- 22 b. The Center for School Safety shall provide a grant of \$85,000 in the first year and \$85,000 23 in the second year to the York County-Poquoson Sheriff's Office for the statewide 24 administration of the Drug Abuse Resistance Education (DARE) program. The Center for 25 School Safety shall conduct an evaluation of the effectiveness of the program, along with an 26 assessment of other evidence-based drug education programs, and shall provide a report on its 27 findings to the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, the Director of the 28 Department of Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and 29 Senate Finance Committees by January 1, 2018.
- 30 3. Subject to the development of criteria for the distribution of grants from the fund, including 31 procedures for the application process and the determination of the actual amount of any grant 32 issued by the department, the department shall award grants to either local law-enforcement 33 agencies, where such local law-enforcement agencies and local school boards have established a collaborative agreement for the employment of school resource officers, as such 34 positions are defined in § 9.1-101, Code of Virginia, for the employment of school resource 35 officers, or to local school divisions for the employment of school security officers, as such 36 37 positions are defined in § 9.1-101, Code of Virginia, for the employment of school security 38 officers in any public school. The application process shall provide for the selection of either 39 school resource officers, school security officers, or both by localities. The department shall 40 give priority to localities requesting school resource officers, school security officers, or both 41 where no such personnel are currently in place. Localities shall match these funds based on 42 the composite index of local ability-to-pay.
- 43 4. Included in this appropriation is \$202,300 the first year and \$202,300 the second year from
 44 the general fund for the implementation of a model critical incident response training program
 45 for public school personnel and others providing services to public schools, and the
 46 maintenance of a model policy for the establishment of threat assessment teams for each
 47 public school, including procedures for the assessment of and intervention with students
 48 whose behavior poses a threat to the safety of public school staff or other students.
- 49 G. Included in the amounts appropriated in this Item is \$2,500,000 the first year and
 50 \$2,500,000 the second year from the general fund for grants to local sexual assault crisis
 51 centers (SACCs) and domestic violence programs to provide core and comprehensive services
 52 to victims of sexual and domestic violence, including ensuring such services are available and
 53 accessible to victims of sexual assault and dating violence committed against college students
 54 on- and off-campus.
- 55 H.1. Out of the amounts appropriated for this Item, \$2,658,420 the first year and \$2,658,420

]	ITEM 395		Iter First Yea FY2019			iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		the second year from nongeneral funds is provided, Southern Virginia Internet Crimes Against Children 7 and \$1,450,000 the second year; and, for the cro enforcement agencies for the prevention of internet the first year and \$1,208,420 the second year.	Fask Force, \$1,450 eation of a grant),000 the first year t program to law		
6 7 8 9 10 11		2. The Southern Virginia and Northern Virginia Inte Forces shall each provide an annual report, in a form Criminal Justice Services, on their actual expenditures these reports shall be provided to the Secretary of Pu the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appro Department of Planning and Budget prior to the distri-	mat specified by the stand performance and performance ablic Safety and H popriations Commit	he Department of results. Copies of omeland Security, tees, and Director,		
12 13 14 15		3. Subject to compliance with the reports and distribu 2 above, the Governor shall allocate all addition collections, for the prevention of Internet Crimes Ag 275.12, Code of Virginia.	nal funding, not	to exceed actual		
16 17 18 19		I. Out of the amounts appropriated for this item, \$50 second year from the general fund is provided for trai in their identifying and interacting with individuals dementia.	ning to local law	enforcement to aid		
20 21 22 23 24		J. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$2,50 <i>the second year</i> from the general fund to continue th 398, Chapter 836, 2017 Acts of Assembly. <i>Based on programs, the agency may expand the number of appropriation.</i>	e pilot programs a its assessment of a	authorized in Item the progress of the		
25 26 27 28 29 30		2. The Department of Criminal Justice Services, in c Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, sha effectiveness of the pilot programs and <i>submit report</i> Health and Human Resources and Public Safety Chairmen of the House Appropriations Committee ar October 15, 2018 <i>and by June 30, 2020</i> .				
31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39		K. Included in the appropriations for this Item is \$100 for the Department of Criminal Justice Services to m organizations to support services for law enforcement seminars and peer-supported critical incident stress officer safety and wellness, under guidelines to be of Department shall evaluate the effectiveness of the pri the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the House Committees by July 1, 2020.	nake competitive g ent, including poo management pro established by the rogram and report y, the Director of	grants to nonprofit st critical incident grams to promote Department. The on its findings to the Department of		
40 41 42 43 44 45	396.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000) Towing Licensing Oversight Services (56035) Licensure, Certification, and Registration of Professions and Occupations (56046) Enforcement of Licensing, Regulating and	\$573,743 \$1,329,160	\$573,743 \$1,329,160	\$3,319,556	\$3,319,556
46 47		Certifying Professions and Occupations (56047)	\$1,416,653 \$3,310,556	\$1,416,653 \$3,310,556		
47 48 49		Fund Sources: Special Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Article 4, §§ 9.1-141, of Virginia.	\$3,319,556 9.1-139, 9.1-143,	\$3,319,556 and 9.1-149, Code		
50 51	397.	Financial Assistance to Localities - General			¢191 519 600	¢101 746 001
51 52 53		(72800) Financial Assistance to Localities Operating Police Departments (72813)	\$184,548,683	\$191,746,081	\$184,548,683	\$191,746,081
54		Fund Sources: General	\$184,548,683	\$191,746,081		

	Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	riations(\$)
ITEM 397.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
	F 12017	1 1 2020	1 1 2017	I 1 2020

1 Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Article 8, Code of Virginia.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

A. The funds appropriated in this Item shall be distributed to localities with qualifying police departments, as defined in §§ 9.1-165 through 9.1-172, Code of Virginia (HB 599), except that, in accordance with the requirements of § 15.2-1302, Code of Virginia, such funds shall also be distributed to a city without a qualifying police force that was created by the consolidation of a city and a county subsequent to July 1, 2011, pursuant to the provisions of § 15.2-3500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 9.1-165 through 9.1-172, Code of Virginia, the total amount to be distributed to localities shall be \$184,548,683 the first year and \$191,746,081 the second year. The amount to be distributed to such a city created by consolidation shall equal the sum distributed to the city during the year prior to the effective date of the consolidation, net of any additional funds allocated by the Compensation Board to the sheriff of the consolidated city as a result of such consolidation, as adjusted in proportion to the increase or decrease in the total amount distributed to all localities during the applicable year. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 9.1-165, Code of Virginia, the amount to be distributed to the amount distributed to that locality in each year shall be proportionate to the amount distributed to that locality in FY 2018.

- B. For purposes of receiving funds in accordance with this program, it is the intention of the
 General Assembly that the Town of Boone's Mill shall be considered to have had a police
 department in operation since the 1980-82 biennium and is therefore eligible for financial
 assistance under Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Article 8, Code of Virginia (House Bill 599).
- C.1. It is the intent of the General Assembly that state funding provided to localities operating
 police departments be used to fund local public safety services. Funds provided in this item
 shall not be used to supplant the funding provided by localities for public safety services.
- 24 2. To ensure that state funding provided to localities operating police departments does not 25 supplant local funding for public safety services, all localities shall annually certify to the 26 Department of Criminal Justice Services the amount of funding provided by the locality to 27 support public safety services and that the funding provided in this item was used to 28 supplement that local funding. This certification shall be provided in such manner and on such 29 date as determined by the department. The department shall provide this information to the 30 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees within 30 days 31 following the submission of the local certifications.
- 32 D. The Director of the Department of Criminal Justice Services is authorized to withhold 33 reimbursements due a locality under Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Article 8, Code of Virginia, upon 34 notification from the Superintendent of State Police that there is reason to believe that crime 35 data reported by the locality to the Department of State Police in accordance with § 52-28, 36 Code of Virginia, is missing, incomplete or incorrect. Upon subsequent notification by the 37 superintendent that the data is accurate, the director shall make reimbursement of withheld 38 funding due the locality when such corrections are made within the same fiscal year that funds 39 have been withheld.
- 40 E. The Director of the Department of Criminal Justice Services is authorized to withhold 41 reimbursements due to a locality under Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Article 8, Code of Virginia, upon 42 notification from the Superintendent of State Police that there is reason to believe the police 43 department within a locality is not registering sex offenders as required in § 9.1-903, Code of 44 Virginia. Upon subsequent notification by the Superintendent that the local law enforcement 45 agency is compliant with the requirements of § 9.1-903, Code of Virginia, the Director shall 46 make reimbursement of withheld funding due to the locality in the same fiscal year in which 47 the local law enforcement agency comes into compliance.

48	398.	Administrative and Support Services (39900)		
49		General Management and Direction (39901)	\$1,934,237	\$1,934,237
50		Information Technology Services (39902)	\$4,674,805	\$4,674,805
51		Accounting and Budgeting Services (39903)	\$3,394,605	\$3,394,605
52		Fund Sources: General	\$4,479,976	\$4,479,976
53		Special	\$1,231,274	\$1,231,274
54		Trust and Agency	\$570,000	\$570,000
55		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,910,000	\$2,910,000

\$10,003,647

\$10,003,647

	ITEM 398		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1		Federal Trust	\$812,397	\$812,397			
2		Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.					
3 4		Total for Department of Criminal Justice Services			\$317,652,972	\$321,050,370 \$327,046,032	
5 6		General Fund Positions	48.50	48.50 60.50			
7 8		Nongeneral Fund Positions	67.50	67.50 74.50			
9 10		Position Level	116.00	116.00 135.00			
11 12		Fund Sources: General	\$230,771,646	\$234,169,044 \$240,164,706			
13		Special	\$11,636,997	\$11,636,997			
14		Trust and Agency	\$4,798,130	\$4,798,130			
15 16		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$13,946,199 \$56,500,000	\$13,946,199 \$56,500,000			
10		Federal Trust	\$56,500,000	\$56,500,000			
17		§ 1-113. DEPARTMENT OF EM	IERGENCY MAN	AGEMENT (127)			
18 19	399.	Emergency Preparedness (77500)			\$26,578,746	\$26,608,283 \$27,914,419	
20 21		Financial Assistance for Emergency Management and Response (77501)	\$20,370,257	\$20,370,257			
21		Emergency Training and Exercises (77502)	\$3,846,025	\$3,846,025			
23		Emergency Planning Preparedness Assistance	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++			
24		(77503)	\$462,341	\$476,091			
25 26		Emergency Preparedness and Response (77504)	\$1,006,824	\$1,022,611 \$2,328,747			
27 28		Emergency Management Regional Coordination (77506)	\$893,299	\$893,299			
29 30		Fund Sources: General	\$1,889,916	\$1,919,453 \$3,225,589			
31		Special	\$1,710,335	\$1,710,335			
32		Federal Trust	\$22,978,495	\$22,978,495			
33 34		Authority: Title 44, Chapters 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, §§ 44-1 146.31 through 44-146.40, Code of Virginia.	46.13 through 44-3	146.28:1 and 44-			
35 36 37		A. Included within this appropriation is the continuation of \$160,810 the first year and \$160,810 the second year from the Fire Programs Fund to support the department's hazardous materials training program.					
38 39 40 41 42		B. By October 1 of each year, the Sheltering Coordinator shall provide a status report on the Commonwealth's emergency shelter capabilities and readiness to the Governor, the Secretary of Veterans and Defense Affairs, the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, the Director of the Department of Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.					
43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54		House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. C. This appropriation includes \$500,000 in the first year and \$500,000 in the second year from the general fund for the Department of Emergency Management to conduct multidisciplinary training, regional training and exercises related to man-made and natural disaster preparedness, including training consistent with the National Incident Management System (NIMS). Training shall involve, but is not to be limited to, local and state law enforcement, fire services, emergency medical services, public health agencies, and affected private and nonprofit entities, including colleges and universities. Training may be conducted with a state, local or federal agency or agencies having the capability or responsibility to coordinate or assist in emergency preparedness. The agency shall submit a report detailing the number and types of training and exercises conducted, the costs associated with such training and exercises, and challenges and barriers to ensuring that state and local agencies are ready and able to respond to emergencies and natural disasters.					

	ITEM 399.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		The report shall be submitted to the Governor, Secreta Security, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Department of Planning and Budget by October 1 of each	ary of Public Safet Senate Finance Cor	y and Homeland	r 1 <i>2</i> 017	r 1 2020
4 5	400.	Emergency Response and Recovery (77600)			\$22,933,000	\$22,933,000 \$2 <i>3,083,000</i>
5 6 7 8		Emergency Response and Recovery Services (77601)	\$2,651,264	\$2,651,264 \$2,801,264		<i>Ψ23</i> ,003,000
9 10 11 12		Financial Assistance for Emergency Response and Recovery (77602) Emergency Response Direct Support (77603) Disaster Recovery Services (77604)	\$20,171,631 \$102,604 \$7,501	\$20,171,631 \$102,604 \$7,501		
13 14		Fund Sources: General	\$501,445	\$501,445 \$651,445		
14 15 16 17		Special Commonwealth Transportation Federal Trust	\$288,501 \$1,148,747 \$20,994,307	\$288,501 \$1,148,747 \$20,994,307		
18 19		Authority: Title 44, Chapters 3.2 through 3.5, §§ 44-14 146.28(a) Code of Virginia.	46.17, 44-146.18(c)	, 44-146.22, 44-		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26		A. Subject to authorization by the Governor, the Departm employ persons to assist in response and recovery ope declared either by the President of the United States or employees shall be compensated solely with funds author government for the emergency, disaster, or other specifi was authorized. The Director, Department of Planning a the agency's position level based on the number of positi	rations for emerger by the Governor of orized by the Govern c event for which t and Budget, is author	cies or disasters f Virginia. Such nor or the federal heir employment rized to increase		
27 28 29 30 31 32 33		B. The Secretary of Finance, consistent with any Exect may provide the department anticipation loans in su appropriately reimburse localities and state agencies for Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) mission ass on the reimbursements anticipated under the Emergence (EMAC) and, notwithstanding the provisions of § 4-3.02 period longer than twelve months.	ich amounts as ma or costs associated ignments. Such loan y Management Ass	by be needed to with Emergency as shall be based istance Compact		
34 35 36 37		C.1. Localities receiving reimbursements from the depa Assistance Compact (EMAC) mission costs shall reimburgement for any overpayments within sixty (60) overpayment.	ourse the Departme	nt of Emergency		
38 39 40 41		2. Overpayment amounts shall be based on the difference the locality by the Department of Emergency Management Department of Emergency Management by the state r Compact.	ent and the amount r	eimbursed to the		
42 43 44 45		3. If the locality does not reimburse the Department of E amount within sixty (60) days of being notified, the Co from any funds to be transferred to the locality the a transfer such withheld funds to the Department of Er	omptroller is author mount overpaid to	ized to withhold the locality and		
46 47 48 49 50 51		D. Consistent with any Executive Order signed by the G his designee may provide the department anticipation needed to appropriately reimburse the department for di be based on the federal reimbursements anticipated in ac Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act and, no 3.02 b of this act, may be extended for a period longer	l loans in such ame saster related costs. cordance with the R twithstanding the p	Such loans shall obert T. Stafford rovisions of § 4-		
52	401.	Virginia Emergency Operations Center (77800) Emergency Communications and Warning Point			\$2,434,179	\$2,434,179

ITEM 40	1.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1	Fund Sources: General	\$876,955	\$876,955			
2	Special	\$732,255	\$732,255			
3	Federal Trust	\$824,969	\$824,969			
4	Authority: Title 44 and § 52-47, Code of Virginia.					
5 6 7	Included within this appropriation is \$424,874 the first from the general fund to support the Integrated Flood (IFLOWS) program.					
8 402.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$11,533,224	\$11,533,224	
9	General Management and Direction (79901)	\$4,485,591	\$4,485,591			
10	Information Technology Services (79902)	\$4,132,504	\$4,132,504			
11	Accounting and Budgeting Services (79903)	\$1,574,652	\$1,574,652			
12	Public Information Services (79919)	\$324,705	\$324,705			
13	Telecommunications (79930)	\$1,015,772	\$1,015,772			
14	Fund Sources: General	\$4,181,225	\$4,181,225			
15	Special	\$418,803	\$418,803			
16	Commonwealth Transportation	\$63,762	\$63,762			
17	Federal Trust	\$6,869,434	\$6,869,434			
18	Authority: Title 44, Chapters 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, Code of Virg	inia.				
19 20 21 22 23 24 25	A. By September 1 of each year, the State Coordinator of Emergency Management shall assess emergencies and disasters that have been authorized sum sufficient funding by the Governor and provide to the Department of Planning and Budget written justification to support continuing sum sufficient funding longer than one year for a locally declared emergency (or disaster), three years for a state declared disaster, and five years for a nationally declared disaster. At the same time, the state coordinator shall identify any disasters that can be closed due to fulfillment of the state's obligations.					
26 27 28 29 30 31 32	B.1. Localities and eligible private non-profit organizations that have received cost reimbursement through state and/or federal assistance programs to support homeland security and eligible recovery and mitigation projects and initiatives associated with disaster events, that are subsequently notified that either a portion or all of the funds provided are to be returned, shall reimburse the Virginia Department of Emergency Management for such overpayments, including any interest accrued on such funds, within sixty (60) days of being notified and receiving the request for reimbursement.					
33 34 35 36 37	2. Overpayment amounts shall be based on the difference or prepaid to the entity involved by the Department of final amount approved by the granting agency. Localit organizations shall certify that no interest was earned included in the remittance.	f Emergency Mana ties and eligible pr	agement and the ivate non-profit			
38 39 40 41 42	3. If the entity does not reimburse the Virginia Department of Emergency Management within 60 days of being notified, the Comptroller is authorized to withhold the amount of overpayment from any eligible funds to be transferred to the locality or organization and redirect the funds withheld to the Virginia Department of Emergency Management to satisfy the outstanding liability.					
43 44 45	4. The Department of Emergency Management shall a any locality or eligible private non-profit organization required to withhold funding.					
46 47 48 49	C. Included within this appropriation is \$570,901 the f year from the general fund that shall only be used for a the agency's information systems to conform with star Technologies Agency.	costs associated w	ith transforming			
50 51 52	D. Out of this appropriation, \$173,256 the first year at the general fund is included for the financing costs of state's master equipment lease purchase program. It	f purchasing vehic	cles through the			

	ITEM 402.		Iten First Year	n Details(\$) • Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year		
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020		
1 2		establish a schedule for replacing emergency response v lease purchase program.	vehicles using the	master equipment				
3 4 5		E. Included in this appropriation is \$90,000 in the first y from the general fund to support regional satellite comm event of an emergency.						
6 7 8 9 10		F. Included in this appropriation is \$42,000 the first yea the general fund to replace radios for regional coordin disaster response and recovery officers, and other regio operable with the State Agencies Radio System (STARS master equipment lease program.	ators, hazardous i onal staff. The rad	materials officers, ios shall be inter-				
11 12 13	403.		All funds transferred to the Department of Emergency Management pursuant to the vernor's authority under § 44-146.28, Code of Virginia, shall be deposited into a special d account to be used only for Disaster Recovery.					
14 15 16 17 18		B. Included in the Federal Trust appropriation are amoun and \$34,592 the second year, to pay for statewide indi Actual recoveries of statewide indirect costs up to the lev from payment into the general fund, as provided by § 4-2. excess of these estimates shall be deposited to the general	rect cost recoveri el of these estimate .03 of this act. Am	es of this agency. es shall be exempt				
19 20		Total for Department of Emergency Management			\$63,479,149	\$63,508,686 \$64,964,822		
21 22 23		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	46.85 113.15 160.00	46.85 113.15 160.00				
24		Fund Sources: General	\$7,449,541	\$7,479,078				
25 26		Special	\$3,149,894	\$8, <i>935,214</i> \$3,149,894				
27 28		Commonwealth Transportation Federal Trust	\$1,212,509 \$51,667,205	\$1,212,509 \$51,667,205				
29		§ 1-114. DEPARTMENT O	F FIRE PROGRA	AMS (960)				
30 31	404.	Fire Training and Technical Support Services (74400)			\$8,879,001	\$8,857,251		
32		Fire Services Management and Coordination (74401)	¢2.024.046	¢2.024.046				
33 34		Virginia Fire Services Research (74402)	\$3,924,846 \$302,274	\$3,924,846 \$302,274				
35 36		Fire Services Training and Professional Development (74403)	\$2,318,625	\$2,296,875				
30 37		Technical Assistance and Consultation Services	\$2,310,025	\$2,270,875				
38		(74404)	\$2,128,643	\$2,128,643				
39 40		Emergency Operational Response Services (74405) Public Fire and Life Safety Educational Services	\$15,000	\$15,000				
40 41		(74406)	\$189,613	\$189,613				
42		Fund Sources: Special	\$8,879,001	\$8,857,251				
43		Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 2 and § 38.2-401, Code of V	irginia.					
44 45 46 47		A. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 38.2-401, Code revenue available from the Fire Programs Fund, after n 38.2-401 D, Code of Virginia, may be used by the Depart administrative costs of all activities assigned to it by law.	naking the distribution ment of Fire Program	utions set out in §				
48 49 50 51		B. Included in the amounts appropriation for this ite \$123,100 the second year from the Fire Programs Fun program for volunteer firefighters in accordance with Ho the General Assembly.	d to implement a	modular training				

]	ITEM 405		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	405.	Financial Assistance for Fire Services Programs				
2 3 4 5		(76400) Fire Programs Fund Distribution (76401) Live Fire Training Structure Grant (76402) Categorical Grants (76403)	\$26,500,000 \$2,500,000 \$825,000	\$26,500,000 \$2,500,000 \$825,000	\$29,825,000	\$29,825,000
6 7		Fund Sources: Special Federal Trust	\$29,575,000 \$250,000	\$29,575,000 \$250,000		
8		Authority: §§ 38.2-401, Code of Virginia.				
9	406.	Regulation of Structure Safety (56200)			\$2,986,469	\$2,986,469
10 11 12		State Fire Prevention Code Administration (56203)	\$2,986,469	\$2,986,469 \$3,111,469		\$3,111,469
13 14		Fund Sources: General	\$2,426,347	\$2,426,347 \$2,551,347		
15		Special	\$560,122	\$560,122		
16		Authority: §§ 9.1-201, 9.1-206, and 27-94 through 27	-99, Code of Virgin	ia.		
17 18		The State Fire Marshal may charge no fee for any p whether it be public or private.	ermits or inspectior	ns of any school,		
19 20		Total for Department of Fire Programs			\$41,690,470	\$41,668,720 \$41,793,720
21		General Fund Positions	29.00	29.00		
22 23		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	49.00 78.00	49.00 78.00		
24 25		Fund Sources: General	\$2,426,347	\$2,426,347 \$2,551,347		
26		Special	\$39,014,123	\$38,992,373		
27		Federal Trust	\$250,000	\$250,000		
28		§ 1-115. DEPARTMENT O	F FORENSIC SCI	ENCE (778)		
29 30 31	407.	Law Enforcement Scientific Support Services (30900)			\$47,861,280	\$48,216,780 \$52,274,568
32 33		Biological Analysis Services (30901)	\$12,838,592	\$12,888,229 \$13,274,752		φ52,271,300
33 34 35		Chemical Analysis Services (30902)	\$10,342,295	\$13,274,752 \$10,451,569 \$13,792,857		
36 37		Toxicology Services (30903)	\$7,842,925	\$7,980,024 \$8,310,001		
38		Physical Evidence Services (30904)	\$9,138,611	\$9,166,111		
39 40		Training Services (30905) Administrative Services (30906)	\$328,670 \$7,370,187	\$360,660 \$7,370,187		
40				\$7,370,187		
41 42		Fund Sources: General	\$45,818,010	\$46,173,510 \$50,014,798		
43 44		Federal Trust	\$2,043,270	\$2,043,270 \$2,259,770		
45		Authority: §§ 9.1-1100 through 9.1-1113, Code of Vir	ginia.			
46 47 48		A. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-3403, C Forensic Science shall be exempt from the payment taxes by any county, city, or town.				
49 50 51		B.1. The Forensic Science Board shall ensure that all to criminal investigations, for which its case files for were found to contain evidence possibly suitable for the second statement of the second	r the years between	n 1973 and 1988		

	ITEM 407.		Iten First Year	n Details(\$) Second Year	Appropr First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
	1112101 407.		FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10		evidence exists and is available for testing. To effectual prepare two form letters, one sent to each person whose each person whose evidence was not tested. Copies of Chairman of the Forensic Science Board and to the res Senate Committees for Courts of Justice. The Departmer in effectuating this requirement by providing the add letters shall be sent, whether currently incarcerated, on p the current address of the person cannot be ascertained, provide the last known address. The Chairman of the For the progress of this notification process at each meeting	evidence was teste each such letter sl spective Chairmen at of Corrections sha resses for all such robation, or on parc , the Department of prensic Science Boa	ed, and one sent to hall be sent to the of the House and all assist the board persons to whom ole. In cases where Corrections shall ard shall report on		
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		2. Upon a request pursuant to the Virginia Freedom of analysis that has been issued in connection with the Po and that reflects that a convicted person's DNA profile w tested, the Department of Forensic Science shall make such requested record after all personal and identifying family members, and consensual partners has been reda information contained therein is expressly prohibited by to whom the certificate was issued states that the certifi investigation and that disclosure jeopardizes the invest	st Conviction DNA vas not indicated on available for inspe- g information about acted, except where law or the Common ficate is critical to	A Testing Program items of evidence ction and copying the victims, their e disclosure of the nwealth's Attorney		
20 21 22 23		C. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$167,750 the fi from the general fund is provided for the ongoing finan the toxicology, controlled substances, breath alcohol, a master equipment lease purchase program.	ncing costs of scien	tific equipment in		
24 25 26		D. Included in the appropriation for this item is \$144,33 the estimated costs of materials needed for the addition Chapters 543 and 544 of the 2018 Session of the Gene	nal DNA testing rec			
27 28		Total for Department of Forensic Science			\$47,861,280	\$48,216,780 \$52,274,568
29 30 31 32		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	326.00 0.00 326.00	326.00 2.00 326.00 328.00		
33		Fund Sources: General	\$45,818,010	\$46,173,510		
34 35 36		Federal Trust	\$2,043,270	\$50,014,798 \$2,043,270 \$2,259,770		
37		§ 1-116. DEPARTMENT O	F JUVENILE JUS	TICE (777)		
38	408.	Instruction (19700)			\$15,139,348	\$15,139,348
39		Youth Instructional Services (19711)	\$9,246,195	\$9,246,195		
40 41		Career and Technical Instructional Services for Youth and Adult Schools (19712)	\$2,489,856	\$2,489,856		
42 43		Instructional Leadership and Support Services (19714)	\$3,403,297	\$3,403,297		
44		Fund Sources: General	\$12,630,968	\$12,630,968		
45		Special	\$170,536	\$170,536		
46		Federal Trust	\$2,337,844	\$2,337,844		
47		Authority: § 66-13.1, Code of Virginia.				
48 49	409.	Operation of Community Residential and Nonresidential Services (35000)			\$3,320,293	\$3,320,293
50 51		Community Residential and Non-residential Custody and Treatment Services (35008)	\$3,320,293	\$3,320,293		
52		Fund Sources: General	\$3,247,866	\$3,247,866		

ITEM 409		Item D First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Special	\$50,000	\$50,000		
2	Federal Trust	\$22,427	\$22,427		
3 4 5 6 7	Authority: §§ 16.1-246 through 16.1-258, 16.1-286, 16.1-291 through 16.1-295, 66-13, 66-14, 66-22 and 66-24, Code of Virginia.A. Services funded out of this appropriation may include intensive supervision, day treatment, boot camp, and aftercare services, and should be integrated into existing services for juveniles.				
8 9 10 11 12 13	B. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$2,920,000 in the first year and \$2,920,000 in the second year from the general fund for a Juvenile Community Placement Program, in which the department may contract with local juvenile detention centers to house juveniles committed to the department prior to their release. The funding provided shall support a minimum of 40 juvenile detention center beds. The department shall develop program guidelines that at a minimum will include which juveniles qualify for				

17 410. Supervision of Offenders and Re-entry Services 18 (35100)..... 19 Juvenile Probation and Aftercare Services (35102)... \$65,071,729 \$65,071,729 20 Fund Sources: General \$64,189,780 \$64,189,780 21 Special \$145,000 \$145,000 22 Federal Trust \$736,949 \$736,949

placement, length of stay, level of security, mental health services, alcohol and substance

abuse services, as well as other services that will be provided to the juvenile while in the

14

15

16

23

24

25

26

27

28

53

detention center.

\$65,071,729 \$65,071,729

\$49,558,594

\$49,558,594

Authority: §§ 16.1-233 through 16.1-238, 16.1-274, 16.1-294, 16.1-322.1 and 66-14, Code of Virginia.

A. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 16.1-273 of the Code of Virginia, the Department of Juvenile Justice, including locally-operated court services units, shall not be required to provide drug screening and assessment services in conjunction with investigations ordered by the courts.

29 B. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$1,626,575 in the first year and 30 \$1,626,575 in the second year from the general fund to support mental health and 31 substance abuse evaluation and treatment services for juveniles under state probation or 32 parole. Out of this item, up to \$325,315 each year may be used for the provision of 33 inpatient mental health treatment by private providers for residents committed to the 34 Department and found to be in need of mental health treatment pursuant to § 66-20 of the 35 Code of Virginia. The department shall develop a plan to ensure continuation of mental health and substance abuse treatment services, including contracting with local providers 36 37 as necessary.

38 C. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$240,000 in the first year and \$240,000 in 39 the second year from the general fund that shall be used for emergency housing upon 40 release from department custody. The department shall develop guidelines which at a 41 minimum includes a juvenile selection process for placement and maximum lengths of 42 stay.

43 411. 44 45 46	Financial Assistance to Local Governments for Juvenile Justice Services (36000) Financial Assistance for Juvenile Confinement in Local Facilities (36001)	\$35,327,514	\$35,327,514	
47 48 49 50	Financial Assistance for Probation and Parole - Local Grants (36002) Financial Assistance for Community based Alternative Treatment Services (36003)	\$3,566,348 \$10,664,732	\$3,566,348 \$10,664,732	
51 52	Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$47,748,915 \$1,809,679	\$47,748,915 \$1,809,679	

Authority: §§ 16.1-233 through 16.1-238, 16.1-274, 16.1-322.1 and 66-14, Code of

Item D	Details(\$)
First Year	Second Year
FY2019	FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

2 A. From July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020, the Board of Juvenile Justice shall not approve or 3 commit additional funds for the state share of the cost of construction, enlargement or 4 renovation of local or regional detention centers, group homes or related facilities. The board 5 may grant exceptions only to address emergency maintenance projects needed to resolve 6 immediate life safety issues. For such emergency projects, approval by both the Board of 7 Juvenile Justice and the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security is required. Any 8 emergency projects must also comply with Board of Juvenile Justice standards.

- 9 B. Each emergency resolution adopted by the Board of Juvenile Justice approving 10 reimbursement of the state share of the cost of construction, maintenance, or operation of 11 local or regional detention centers, group homes, or related facilities or programs shall include 12 a statement noting that such approval is subject to the availability of funds and approval by 13 the General Assembly at its next regular session.
- 14 C. The Department of Juvenile Justice shall reimburse localities, pursuant to § 66-15, Code of 15 Virginia, at the rate of \$50 per day for housing juveniles who have been committed to the 16 department, for each day after the department has received a valid commitment order and 17 other pertinent information as required by § 16.1-287, Code of Virginia.
- 18 D. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 16.1-322.1 of the Code of Virginia, the department 19 shall apportion to localities the amounts appropriated in this Item.
- 20 E.1. The appropriation for Financial Assistance for Community Based Alternative Treatment 21 Services includes \$10,379,926 the first year and \$10,379,926 the second year from the general 22 fund for the implementation of the financial assistance provisions of the Juvenile Community 23 Crime Control Act (VJCCCA), §§ 16.1-309.2 through 16.1-309.10, Code of Virginia. 24 Notwithstanding § 16.1-309.6, Code of Virginia, localities participating in this program and 25 contributing through their local match an amount of local funds which is greater than they 26 receive from the Commonwealth under this program are authorized, but not required, to 27 provide a contribution greater than the state general fund contribution. In no case shall their 28 local match be less than their state share.
- 29 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 16.1-309.2 through 16.1-309.10, Code of Virginia, 30 the Board of Juvenile Justice shall establish guidelines for use in determining the types of 31 programs for which VJCCCA funding may be expended. The department shall establish a 32 format to receive biennial or annual requests for funding from localities, based on these 33 guidelines. For each program requested, the plan shall document the need for the program, 34 goals, and measurable objectives, and a budget for the proposed expenditure of these funds and any other resources to be committed by localities. 35
- 36 3.a. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 16.1-309.7 B, Code of Virginia, unobligated 37 VJCCCA funds must be returned to the department by each grantee locality no later than 38 October 1 of the fiscal year following the fiscal year in which they were received, or a similar 39 amount may be withheld from the current fiscal year's periodic payments designated by the department for that locality. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may increase 40 the general fund appropriation for this Item up to the amount of unobligated VJCCCA funds 41 returned to the Department of Juvenile Justice. 42
- 43 b. All such unobligated and reappropriated balances shall be used by the department for the 44 purpose of awarding short-term supplementary grants to localities, for programs and services 45 which have been demonstrated to improve outcomes, including reduced recidivism, of 46 juvenile offenders. Such programs and services must augment and support current VJCCCA-47 funded programs within each affected locality. The grantee locality shall submit an outcomes 48 report to the department, in accord with a written memorandum of agreement which shall 49 accompany the supplementary grant award. This provision shall apply to funds obligated to 50 and in the possession of the department and its grant recipients. The entity which returns 51 unobligated funds under this provision shall not have a presumptive entitlement to a 52 supplementary grant.
- 53 c. The Department of Juvenile Justice, with the assistance of the Department of Corrections, 54 the Virginia Council on Juvenile Detention, juvenile court service unit directors, juvenile and 55 domestic relations district court judges, and juvenile justice advocacy groups, shall provide a

1 Virginia.

ITEM 411		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	report on the types of programs supported by the Juveni and whether the youth participating in such programs arrested, adjudicated or convicted, or incarcerated for ei would otherwise be considered felonies if committed by	are statistically ther misdemeane	less likely to be		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	F. The department shall consolidate the annual reportin 66-13 and in Chapters 755 and 914 of the 1996 Acts of r juvenile offender demographics. The consolidated annua of Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act pro in Article 12.1 of Chapter 11 of Title 16.1 (§ 16.1-309.2 juveniles served, the average cost for residential and no of employees, and descriptions of the contracts entered i any other provisions of the Code of Virginia, the consoli the Governor, the General Assembly, the Chairmen of Senate Finance Committees, the Secretary of Public Sa the Department of Planning and Budget by the first day session.	the General Asse al report shall add grams including e et seq.) relating onresidential servento by localities. idated report shal of the House Ap fety and Homela	embly concerning dress the progress the requirements to the number of vices, the number Notwithstanding II be submitted to propriations and and Security, and		
17 412. 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	Operation of Secure Correctional Facilities (39800) Juvenile Corrections Center Management (39801) Food Services - Prisons (39807) Medical and Clinical Services - Prisons (39810) Physical Plant Services - Prisons (39815) Offender Classification and Time Computation Services (39830) Juvenile Supervision and Management Services (39831) Juvenile Rehabilitation and Treatment Services	\$2,490,634 \$2,841,114 \$8,102,665 \$6,370,062 \$1,213,165 \$42,570,520	\$2,490,634 \$2,841,114 \$8,102,665 \$6,370,062 \$1,213,165 \$42,570,520	\$70,240,687	\$70,240,687
28 29 30 31 32	(39832) Fund Sources: General Special Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$6,652,527 \$66,546,028 \$2,101,371 \$48,000 \$1,545,288	\$6,652,527 \$66,546,028 \$2,101,371 \$48,000 \$1,545,288		
33 34 35 36 37	Authority: §§ 16.1-278.8, 16.1-285.1, 66-13, 66-16, 6 Code of Virginia.A. The Department of Juvenile Justice shall retain a children committed to the department to be used for th said children.	ll funds paid fo	or the support of		
38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47	B.1. The Director, Department of Juvenile Justice, (th transformation plan to provide more effective and effici- data-based decision-making, that improves outcomes a juveniles housed in state-operated juvenile correctional safety. To accomplish these objectives, the Departmen alternative placements and services for juveniles comm treatment, supervision and programs that meet the levels the Department's risk and needs assessment instruments placements or programs. Prior to implementation, th Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security.	cient services for and safely reduce al centers, consist t will provide, w itted to the Depa s of risk and need s, for each juveni	r juveniles, using es the number of stent with public when appropriate, artment that offer l, as identified by le placed in such		

48 2. The Department shall reallocate any savings from the reduced cost of operating state 49 juvenile correctional centers to support the goals of the transformation plan including, but 50 not limited to: (a) increasing the number of male and female local placement options, and 51 post-dispositional treatment programs and services; (b) ensuring that appropriate 52 placements and treatment programs are available across all regions of the Commonwealth; 53 and (c) providing appropriate levels of educational, career readiness, rehabilitative, and 54 mental health services for these juveniles in state, regional, or local programs and 55 facilities, including but not limited to, community placement programs, independent living 56 programs, and group homes. The goals of such transformation services shall be to reduce

I	TEM 412.		Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		the risks for reoffending for juveniles supervised or c improve and promote the skills and resiliencies necessar lives in their communities.	ommitted to the I	Department and to	F 1 2017	F 12020
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		3. No later than November 1 of each year, the Departmer report to the Governor, the Chairmen of the House A Committees, the Secretary of Public Safety and Ho Department of Planning and Budget, assessing the imp plan and its related actions. The report shall include, bu offender recidivism rates, fiscal and operational impact in commitment orders by the courts; and use of the transformation, including the amount expended for services, including the number of juveniles receiving ea- also include the average length of stay for juveniles in e	Appropriations an meland Security act and results of t is not limited to, on detention home e savings redirect contracted progra ch specific service.	d Senate Finance and the Director, the transformation assessing juvenile s; changes (if any) ted as a result of ms and treatment The report should		
14 15 16		4. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is between items and programs within the Department of savings achieved through transformation to accompli	of Juvenile Justice	to reallocate any		
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25		5. If the Department of Juvenile Justice deems it necessa efficient use of resources, and the need to further reduce correctional center, the Department shall (i) work coope minimize the effect of the closure on those commu implement a general closure plan, preferably not less th the closure, to create opportunities to place affected stat vacancies, assist affected employees with placement in opportunities for affected employees to increase their q and safely reduce the population of the facility facing c	e recidivism, to clo ratively with the af nities and their r an 12 months from e employees in exi other state agenci ualifications for ac	se a state juvenile fected localities to esidents, and (ii) announcement of sting departmental les, create training Iditional positions,		
26	413.	Administrative and Support Services (39900)			\$19,453,870	\$19,145,077
27		General Management and Direction (39901)	\$2,940,600	\$2,940,600		
28		Information Technology Services (39902)	\$4,486,215	\$4,177,422		
29 30		Accounting and Budgeting Services (39903) Architectural and Engineering Services (39904)	\$5,360,310 \$620,386	\$5,360,310 \$620,386		
30 31		Food and Dietary Services (39907)	\$287,734	\$287,734		
32		Human Resources Services (39914)	\$3,685,573	\$3,685,573		
33		Planning and Evaluation Services (39916)	\$2,073,052	\$2,073,052		
34		Fund Sources: General	\$17,679,616	\$17,679,616		
35		Special	\$979,574	\$979,574		
36		Federal Trust	\$794,680	\$485,887		
37		Authority: §§ 66-3 and 66-13, Code of Virginia.				
38 39 40 41 42		A.1. Consistent with the provisions of Chapter 198 Assembly, the Director, Department of Juveni recommendations relating to the Department of Juvenil Medical Assistance Services in its November 30, 2017 application and enrollment process for incarcerated ind	le Justice, shall e Justice made by report on streamli	implement the the Department of		
43 44 45		2. For the purpose of implementing these recomme appropriated for this item is \$420,993 the first year a nongeneral funds and two positions.				
46		Total for Department of Juvenile Justice			\$222,784,521	\$222,475,728
47		General Fund Positions	2,150.50	2,150.50		
48 49		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	22.00 2,172.50	22.00 2,172.50		
50		Fund Sources: General	\$212,043,173	\$212,043,173		
51		Special	\$3,446,481	\$3,446,481		
52		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$48,000	\$48,000		
53		Federal Trust	\$7,246,867	\$6,938,074		

	ITEM 413	3.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		§ 1-117. DEPARTMENT OF	F MILITARY AFI	FAIRS (123)		
2 3 4	414.	Higher Education Student Financial Assistance (10800)			\$3,028,382	\$3,028,382 \$4,528,382
4 5 6		Tuition Assistance (10811)	\$3,028,382	\$3,028,382 \$4,528,382		\$ 4 ,526,562
7 8		Fund Sources: General	\$3,028,382	\$3,028,382 \$4,528,382		
9		Authority: Title 44, Chapters 1 and 2; § 23.1-506, Code	e of Virginia.			
10 11 12	415.	At Risk Youth Residential Program (18700) Virginia Commonwealth Challenge Program (18701)	\$5,085,836	\$5,085,836	\$5,085,836	\$5,085,836
13 14		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$1,592,103 \$3,493,733	\$1,592,103 \$3,493,733		
15		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
16 17 18		A. The Department of Military Affairs is hereby author the State Military Reservation as an in-kind match fo the Commonwealth Challenge program, equivalent to	or the receipt of fed	leral funds under		
19 20 21 22		B. Out of this appropriation, up to \$350,000 the first year in nongeneral funds is provided to establish a ST to improve math and science skills to prepare students science-related fields of study.	ARBASE youth ed	lucation program		
23 24	416.	Defense Preparedness (72100)			\$52,468,404	\$52,468,404 \$52,618,404
24 25 26		Armories Operations and Maintenance (72101)	\$11,407,207	\$11,407,207 \$11,557,207		\$ <i>32</i> ,018,404
27 28		Virginia State Defense Force (72104)	\$201,217 \$4,355,909	\$201,217 \$4,355,909		
28 29 30		Security Services (72105) Fort Pickett and Camp Pendleton Operations (72109)	\$4,333,909	\$22,775,627		
31 32		Other Facilities Operations and Maintenance (72110)	\$13,728,444	\$13,728,444		
33 34		Fund Sources: General	\$2,814,589	\$2,814,589 \$2,964,589		
35		Special	\$1,784,927	\$1,784,927		
36 27		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,730,000 \$46,138,888	\$1,730,000 \$46,138,888		
37		Federal Trust		\$46,138,888		
38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47		 Authority: Title 44, Chapters 1 and 2, Code of Virginia A. The Department is authorized to receive payme reimbursement agreements with the Virginia Defe Virginia National Guard. The Department may disbu \$30,000 the second year from these payments to the V the appropriation for this Item is \$30,000 the first yea nongeneral funds for this purpose. B. The Department of Military Affairs may operate Welfare, and Recreation program for the benefit of the Defense Force, employees of the Department, fami 	ents from localitie nse Force, an org rse up to \$30,000 t Virginia Defense F r and \$30,000 the s , with nongeneral e Virginia National	anization of the the first year and orce. Included in second year from funds, a Morale, I Guard, Virginia		
48 49		transient users of the Department's facilities, under agency.				
50 51	417.	Disaster Planning and Operations (72200) Communications and Warning System (72201)	a sum suffi	cient	a sum suff	Icient

]	ITEM 417		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) 	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		Disaster Assistance (72203)	a sum suff			1 1 20 20
2		Fund Sources: General	a sum suff	icient		
3		Authority: Title 44, Chapters 1 and 2, Code of Virginia.				
4 5 6		A. The amount for Disaster Planning and Operations pro out of which to pay the military forces of the Con authorities.				
7 8 9 10		B. In the event units of the Virginia National Guard allocated herein for their support shall not be used for a prior written approval of the Governor, other than to pr Force or for safeguarding properties used by the Virgin	ny different purpos ovide for the Virg	se, except with the inia State Defense		
11 12 13	418.	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901) Telecommunications (79930)	\$4,891,773 \$2,936,732	\$5,066,193 \$2,936,732	\$7,828,505	\$8,002,925
14 15 16		Fund Sources: General Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$3,416,011 \$1,037,191 \$3,375,303	\$3,590,431 \$1,037,191 \$3,375,303		
17		Authority: Title 44, Chapters 1 and 2, Code of Virginia.				
18 19 20 21		A. The Department of Military Affairs shall advise and of Accounts in administering the \$20,000 death benefit National Guard and United States military reserves killed October 7, 2001, pursuant to § 44-93.1.B., Code of Virgi	provided for certa d in action in any a	in members of the		
22 23 24 25		B. Included in this appropriation is \$240,000 the first year the general fund and \$100,000 in the first year and \$100, funds for the financing costs of purchasing STARS radii the state's master equipment lease program.	000 the second year	ar from nongeneral		
26 27		Total for Department of Military Affairs			\$68,411,127	\$68,585,547 \$70,235,547
28		General Fund Positions	53.47	54.47		
29 30		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	307.03 360.50	307.03 361.50		
31 32		Fund Sources: General	\$10,851,085	\$11,025,505 \$12,675,505		
32 33		Special	\$1,784,927	\$1,784,927		
34		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,767,191	\$2,767,191		
35		Federal Trust	\$53,007,924	\$53,007,924		
36		§ 1-118. DEPARTMENT	OF STATE POLI	ICE (156)		
37 38 39 40	419.	Information Technology Systems, Telecommunications and Records Management (30200)			\$62,039,445	\$60,622,845 \$63,005,212
40 41		Information Technology Systems and Planning				<i>\$03,003,212</i>
42 43 44		(30201) Criminal Justice Information Services (30203)	\$17,741,662 \$9,597,348	\$16,325,062 \$9,597,348 \$ <i>10,068,837</i>		
45 46		Telecommunications and Statewide Agencies Radio System (STARS) (30204)	\$29,590,494	\$29,590,494		
47 48 49		Firearms Purchase Program (30206)	\$1,686,088	\$31,109,016 \$1,686,088 \$2,078,444		
49 50		Sex Offender Registry Program (30207)	\$3,109,440	\$3,109,440		
51		Concealed Weapons Program (30208)	\$314,413	\$314,413		

ITEM 419		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Fund Sources: General	\$51,728,298	\$50,311,698	F 12017	F 1 2020
2	Special	\$5,834,551	\$52,694,065 \$5,834,551		
3 4	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,716,561	\$3,716,561		
5	Federal Trust	\$760,035	\$760,035		
5	Federal Hust	\$700,035	\$700,035		
6 7	Authority: §§ 18.2-308.2:2, 19.2-387, 19.2-388, 27-55, 52-15, 52-16, 52-25 and 52-31 through 52-34, Code of		.5, 52-12, 52-13,		
8 9 10 11 12	A.1. It is the intent of the General Assembly that wire by the Commercial Mobile Radio Service (CMRS) p Answering Point (PSAP), in order that such calls be within which the call originates, thereby minimizing the possible.	provider to the loca answered by the lo	al Public Safety ocal jurisdiction		
13 14 15 16	2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 7, Chap \$3,700,000 the first year and \$3,700,000 the second ye included in this appropriation for telecommunications and related costs incurred for answering wireless 911 t	ear from the Wireles to offset dispatch c	ss E-911 Fund is		
17 18	B. Out of the Motor Carrier Special Fund, \$900,000 the year shall be disbursed on a quarterly basis to the Depa				
19 20	C.1. This appropriation includes \$9,175,535 the first years from the general fund for maintaining the Statewide A				
21 22 23 24 25 26 27	2. The Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Secur Management Group and the Superintendent of State F on (1) annual operating costs; (2) the status of site en (3) the project timelines for implementing the enhance matters as the secretary may deem appropriate. Th Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriation no later than October 1 of each year.	Police, shall provid hancements to sup ements to the syste is report shall be	e a status report port the system; m; and (4) other provided to the		
28 29 30	3. Any bond proceeds authorized for the STARS implementation of the STARS network shall be made a needs of the Department of Military Affairs.				
31 32 33 34	D. The department shall deposit to the general fund ar first year and \$100,000 the second year resulting f criminal background checks of local job applicants a pursuant to \$ 15.2-1503.1 of the Code of Virginia.	from fees generate	d by additional		
35 36 37 38 39	E. 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 19.2-386.1 Code of Virginia, the Department of State Police may Forfeiture Fund, the Insurance Fraud Fund, the Drug I and the Safety Fund to modify, enhance or procure at Commonwealth's law enforcement activities and infor	y use revenue from nvestigation Trust atomated systems t	the State Asset Account – State, hat focus on the		
40 41 42	2. Included within this appropriation is \$2,050,000 second year from the Safety Fund's 2018 year-end bal to the department's Computerized Criminal History Systems	ances to support th			
43 44 45 46 47 48	F. The Superintendent of State Police is authorized treasonable fee to contract for the bulk transmissio Virginia Sex Offender Registry. Any fees collected shat to be used to offset the costs of administering the reg State Police shall charge no fee for the transfer of any Offender Registry to the Statewide Automated Victim	n of public inform all be deposited in a gistry. The State Su information from a	nation from the special account sperintendent of the Virginia Sex		
49 50 51 52 53	G. The Virginia State Police shall, upon request, provi Health and Developmental Services any information it the provisions of §§ 19.2-389, 37.2-819 and 64.2-201 Department to make anonymous the data held pursuant other relevant data held by the Commonwealth for the	possesses as a resul 4, Code of Virgin t to those provisions	t of carrying out ia, to enable the s and link it with		

446	

Item Details(\$)				
First Year	Second Year			
FY2019	FY2020			

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

- 1 carrying out these provisions on the public health and safety, pursuant to a grant from the 2 National Science Foundation to Duke University and a subcontract with the University of 3 Virginia.
- 4 H. Included in the amounts provided for this Item is \$99,479 the first year and \$99,479 the 5 second year from the general fund for the public safety information exchange program with 6 those states that share a border with Canada or Mexico and are willing to participate in the 7 exchange program pursuant to § 2.2-224.1, Code of Virginia.
- 8 I. Included in this appropriation is \$620,371 the first year and \$620,371 the second year from 9 the general fund for the annual debt service for the Department to purchase fixed repeaters for 10 the Statewide Agencies Radio System (STARS) through the Department of Treasury's Master 11 Equipment Leasing Program.
- 12 J. Included within this appropriation is \$340,000 the first year and \$340,000 \$350,200 the 13 second year from the general fund to support maintenance costs of the state's Commonwealth 14 Link to Interoperable Communications (COMLINC) system.
- 15 K. Included within this appropriation is \$627,900 the second year for training costs and four 16 positions to support the upgrade and expansion of the COMLINC system.
- 17 L. Included in the amounts provided for in this Item is \$675,000 the second year for training 18 and project management costs to upgrade the STARS system. Of this amount, \$500,000 shall 19 not be allotted until the project management costs are determined to be ineligible costs for a 20 bond-funded capital project.
- 21 K. M. Included in the amounts provided for this item is \$1,678,929 the first year and \$262,329 22 the second year from the general fund for the Department to implement and operate an 23 electronic summons system in Division 7. The Department shall work in cooperation with the 24 Office of the Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court to implement the system, and shall 25 provide a report on its activities and the outcomes of the system implementation to the 26 Director, Department of Planning and Budget, and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations 27 and Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2019.
- 28 420. Law Enforcement and Highway Safety Services 29 (31000).....

ITEM 419.

30				
31 32	Aviation Operations (31001)	\$7,626,764 \$7,676,764	\$9,489,396 \$9,539,396	
33	Commercial Vehicle Enforcement (31002)	\$5,748,407	\$5,748,407	
34	Counter-Terrorism (31003)	\$6,170,042	\$6,170,042	
35	Help Eliminate Auto Theft (HEAT) (31004)	\$1,900,191	\$1,900,191	
36	Drug Enforcement (31005)	\$22,914,510	\$22,914,510	
37 38	Crime Investigation and Intelligence Services (31006)	\$36,880,537	\$37,332,029	
39	Uniform Patrol Services (Highway Patrol) (31007)	\$167,862,372	\$167,283,007	
40	Insurance Fraud Program (31009)	\$5,716,743	\$5,716,743	
41	Vehicle Safety Inspections (31010)	\$22,692,343	\$22,692,343	
42 43	Sex Offender Registry Program Enforcement (31011)	\$7,235,067	\$7,235,067	
44 45	Fund Sources: General	\$228,391,431 \$228,441,431	\$230,126,190 \$230,176,190	
46	Special	\$29,247,804	\$29,247,804	
47	Commonwealth Transportation	\$9,083,587	\$9,083,587	
48	Trust and Agency	\$20,000	\$20,000	
49	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$9,692,692	\$9,692,692	
50	Federal Trust	\$8,311,462	\$8,311,462	

51 Authority: §§ 27-56, 33.2-1726, 46.2-1157 through 46.2-1187, 52-1, 52-4, 52-4.2, 52-4.3, 52-52 8, 52-8.1, 52-8.2, 52-8.4 and 56-334, Code of Virginia.

53 A. Included in this appropriation is \$810,687 the first year and \$810,687 the second year from 54 Commonwealth Transportation Funds for the personal and associated nonpersonal services

- \$284,746,976 \$286,481,735
- \$284,796,976 \$286,531,735

ITEM 420.		Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	costs for eight positions. These positions will be dedicated to patrolling t Interchange.			
3 4 5	B. Included in this appropriation is \$4,831,625 the first year and \$4,831 year from the Commonwealth Transportation Fund to support enforcement weigh stations statewide.			
6 7 8 9 10	C. Included in this appropriation is \$1,631,282 the first year and \$1,631 year from Commonwealth Transportation Funds that shall be used to suppand associated nonpersonal services costs for trooper positions. These passigned to the "Highway Safety Corridors" and work to supplement the State Police's enforcement efforts in those corridors.	port the personal positions will be		
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	D. The Department of State Police shall modify the implementation of the law enforcement established pursuant to § 52-8.1:1, Code of Virginia, and as may be necessary, resources heretofore provided for that purpose Assembly for the purposes of homeland security, the gathering of intelling activities, the preparation for response to a terrorist attack and any determined by the Governor to be crucial to strengthening the prep Commonwealth against the threat of natural disasters and emergencies. Item shall be construed to prohibit the Department of State Police from law enforcement or investigation as otherwise provided for by the Code	nd shall redirect, by the General ence on terrorist y other activity aredness of the Nothing in this performing drug		
20 21 22	E. Included within this appropriation is \$3,098,098 the first year and second year from the Rescue Squad Assistance Fund to support the depart (med-flight) operations.			
23 24 25 26	F. Included within this appropriation is \$400,000 \$450,000 the first yes \$450,000 the second year from the general fund, which shall be provided Chesterfield for use in funding the paramedics assigned to the Departmer for aviation (med-flight) operations, and for related med-flight expenses.	to the County of		
27 28 29	G. In the event that special fund revenues for this Item exceed expenditure such revenues may be used for air medical evacuation equipment information technology upgrades or for motor vehicle replacemen	improvements,		
30 31 32 33 34	H. Included in this appropriation is \$110,000 the first year and \$110,000 from the general fund to maintain increased traffic enforcement on Inte funds shall be used to provide overtime payments for extended and additi so as to maintain the enhanced level of State Police patrols on this a highways in the Commonwealth.	rstate 81. These onal work shifts		
35 36 37 38 39 40 41	I.1. Included in the appropriation for this Item is sufficient funding to sup to sworn positions, at least 43 non-sworn positions for monitoring per comply with the requirements of the Sex Offender Registry. The d coordinate monitoring and verification activities related to registry re- other state and local law enforcement agencies that have responsibility for supervising individuals who are also required to comply with the required Offender Registry.	sons required to epartment shall quirements with or monitoring or		
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51	2. The Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, in conju Superintendent of State Police, shall report on the implementation of the offenders required to comply with the Sex Offender Registry requirem shall include at a minimum: (1) the number of verifications conducted; (2) investigations of violations; (3) the status of coordination with other state enforcement agencies activities to monitor Sex Offender Registry requirer update of the sex offender registration and monitoring section in the depa "Manpower Augmentation Study." This report shall be provided to the C Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committee January 1.	the monitoring of ents. The report 2) the number of the and local law ments; and (4) an artment's current Governor and the es each year by		
52 53	J. Included within this appropriation is \$200,000 the first year and \$200 year from nongeneral funds to be used by the Department of State I			

year from nongeneral funds to be used by the Department of State Police to record revenue related to overtime work performed by troopers at the end of a fiscal year and for

	ITEM 420		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		which reimbursement was not received by the department un Department of Accounts shall establish a revenue code and fi	til the following	fiscal year. The	F 12017	F 1 2020
3 4 5 6		K. Included within this appropriation is \$100,000 the first ye from the general fund for the Department of State Police recruiting minority troopers. Funding is to support increased r for recruiting minorities.	e to enhance it	s capabilities in		
7 8 9		L. Included within this appropriation is \$116,988 the first yes from the Department of Aviation's special fund to support Department of State Police.				
10 11 12		M.1. Out of the amounts appropriated for this Item, \$1,450,0 the second year from nongeneral funds shall be distributed operations of the Northern Virginia Internet Crimes Against	to the departme	nt to expand the		
13 14 15 16 17		2. Pursuant to paragraph H.2 of Item 395, the Northern Vi Children Task Force shall provide a report on the actual expe achieved each year. Copies of this report shall be provide Public Safety and Homeland Security and the Chairmen of Senate Finance Committees by October 1.	nditures and per d each year to	formance results the Secretary of		
18 19 20		N. Out of the appropriation for this Item, \$1,543,733 the first year from the general fund is continued for the ongoing fin helicopters through the state's master equipment lease purch	ancing costs of			
21 22 23 24 25 26 27		O. Effective July 1, 2015, the Superintendent of State Police law enforcement agencies on the proper method to register ar be registered with the Sex Offender and Crimes Agains Superintendent have reason to believe that any local la registering sex offenders as required by § 9.1-903, Code of V notify the local law enforcement agency, as well as the Compensation Board and the Director of the Department	nd re-register pe t Minors Regis tw enforcemen Virginia, the Sup the Executive S	rsons required to stry. Should the t agency is not erintendent shall ecretary of the		
28 29 30 31		P. Included in this appropriation for this item is \$1,708,919 t second year from the general fund to establish the second Spe shall serve the Sixth Division. Positions from the Sixth Divi Special Operations Sixth Division shall be backfilled in the	ecial Operations sion that are tra	Division, which		
32 33 34		Q. Included in this appropriation is \$103,470 each year Department of State Police to hire an aviation mechanic for Abingdon.				
35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42	421.	Accounting and Budgeting Services (39903) Human Resources Services (39914) Physical Plant Services (39915) Procurement and Distribution Services (39918)	\$6,532,462 \$2,096,886 \$2,281,203 \$5,562,343 \$2,892,679 \$6,908,465 \$695,003	\$6,532,462 \$2,096,886 \$2,281,203 \$5,562,343 \$2,892,679 \$6,908,465 \$695,003	\$26,969,041	\$26,969,041
43 44 45		Fund Sources: General \$ Special Dedicated Special Revenue	26,236,975 \$706,310 \$25,756	\$26,236,975 \$706,310 \$25,756		
46		Authority: §§ 52-1 and 52-4, Code of Virginia.				
47 48 49		A. The Superintendent of State Police shall establish writte accurate electronic reporting of crime data reported to the accordance with the provisions of § 52-28, Code of Virginia.	Department of	f State Police in		

48 accurate electronic reporting of crime data reported to the Department of State Police in accordance with the provisions of § 52-28, Code of Virginia. The procedures shall require the principal officer of the reporting organization to certify that the information provided is, to his knowledge and belief, a true and accurate report. Should the superintendent have reason to believe that any crime data is missing, incomplete or incorrect after audit of the data, the

	ITEM 421		Ite First Yea FY2019		Approp First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6		superintendent shall notify the reporting organization Compensation Board and the Director, Department receiving and verifying resubmitted data that correct notify the Chairman of the Compensation Board and Justice Services that the missing, incomplete or in submitted.	of Criminal Justi s the report, the su the Director, Depa	ce Services. Upon aperintendent shall rtment of Criminal		
7 8 9 10 11 12		B.1. The Department of State Police is authorized agencies a fee for the use of the Virginia State Police to training activities. The fee structure and subsequ approved by the Secretary of Public Safety and Home deposit any moneys received from such fees into the Training Facility Fund.	Blackstone Train uent changes mus eland Security. Th	ing Facility related t be reviewed and e Department shall		
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20		2. The State Comptroller shall continue the Virgim Facility Fund on the books of the Commonwealth. I Fund shall remain in the Fund and be credited to it. including interest thereon, at the end of the fiscal yea but shall remain in the Fund. The Department of S deposited in the Fund to (1) maintain and repair fa Blackstone Training Facility, and (2) acquire, mainta Virginia State Police Blackstone Training Facility.	Interest earned on Any moneys remain ar shall not revert tate Police shall un cilities at the Vir	the moneys in the aining in the Fund, to the general fund attilize the revenue ginia State Police		
21 22	422.	All revenue received from the sale of motor vehicles received from the sale of other property of the department		eparately from that		
23 24		Total for Department of State Police			\$373,755,462 \$373,805,462	\$374,073,621 \$376,505,988
25 26 27 28 29		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	2,626.00 394.00 3,020.00	2,630.00 2,645.00 394.00 3,024.00 3,039.00		
30 31 32 33 34 35 36		Fund Sources: General Special Commonwealth Transportation Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$306,356,704 \$306,406,704 \$35,788,665 \$9,083,587 \$20,000 \$13,435,009 \$9,071,497	\$306,674,863 \$309,107,230 \$35,788,665 \$9,083,587 \$20,000 \$13,435,009 \$9,071,497		
37		§ 1-119. VIRGINIA	PAROLE BOAR	D (766)		
38 39	423.	Probation and Parole Determination (35200) Adult Probation and Parole Services (35201)	\$1,787,462	\$1,787,462	\$1,787,462	\$1,787,462
40		Fund Sources: General	\$1,787,462	\$1,787,462		
41		Authority: Title 53.1, Chapter 4, Code of Virginia.				
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49		Notwithstanding the provisions of § 53.1-40.01, Cod annually consider for conditional release those is conditional geriatric release set out in § 53.1-40.01, any such review the Board may schedule the ne thereafter. If any such inmate is also eligible for disc of § 53.1-151 et seq., Code of Virginia, the board s inmate for conditional geriatric release unless t conditional geriatric release.	inmates who mee Code of Virginia xt review as ma retionary parole un hall not be require	et the criteria for , except that upon ny as three years nder the provisions ed to consider that		
50 51		Total for Virginia Parole Board	12.00	12.00	\$1,787,462	\$1,787,462
51		General Fund Positions	12.00	12.00		

		Ite	m Details(\$)	Approp	Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 423		First Yea FY2019		r First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1	Position Level	12.00	12.00			
2	Fund Sources: General	\$1,787,462	\$1,787,462			
3 4 5	TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND HOMELAND SECURITY			\$3,138,811,641 \$3,148,333,443	\$3,177,187,297 \$3,215,669,887	
6 7	General Fund Positions	17,451.32 17,579.32	17,495.32 17,650.32			
8 9	Nongeneral Fund Positions	2,493.18 2,509.18	2,537.18 2,562.18			
10 11	Position Level	19,944.50 20,088.50	20,032.50 20,212.50			
12 13	Fund Sources: General	\$2,013,576,807 \$2,022,133,735	\$2,018,234,233 \$2,050,835,757			
14 15	Special	\$155,424,111	\$155,093,568 \$158,150,072			
16	Commonwealth Transportation	\$10,296,096	\$10,296,096			
17 18	Enterprise	\$735,338,032 \$736,302,906	\$773,354,592 \$775,962,654			
19	Trust and Agency	\$4,818,130	\$4,818,130			
20	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$36,472,895	\$32,813,901			
21 22	Federal Trust	\$182,885,570	\$182,576,777 \$182,793,277			

ITEM 424.		4.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		OFFICE OF TECH	INOLOGY			
2	424.	Omitted.				
3	425.	Omitted.				
4	426.	Omitted.				
5	427.	Omitted.				
6	428.	Omitted.				
7	429.	Omitted.				
8	430.	Omitted.				
9	431.	Omitted.				
10	432.	Omitted.				
11		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY			\$0	\$0

ITEM 433	3.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	OFFICE OF TRANS	SPORTATION			
2	§ 1-120. SECRETARY OF TR	ANSPORTATIO	ON (186)		
3 433. 4	Administrative and Support Services (79900) General Management and Direction (79901)	\$916,840	\$916,840	\$916,840	\$916,840
5	Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$916,840	\$916,840		
6 7	Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 2, Article 10, § 2.2-201, and Virginia.	d Titles 33, 46, a	and 58, Code of		
8 9 10	A. The transportation policy goals enumerated in this a Secretary of Transportation, including the Secretar Commonwealth Transportation Board.				
11 12 13 14	1. The maintenance of existing transportation assets to ensure the safety of the public shall be the first priority in budgeting, allocation, and spending. The highway share of the Transportation Trust Fund shall be used for highway maintenance and operation purposes prior to its availability for new development, acquisition, and construction.				
15 16 17 18 19	2. It is in the interest of the Commonwealth to have a transportation system that promotes economic development intermodal connectivity, environmental quality, accessibil transportation safety. The planning, development, construct transportation facilities will reflect this goal.				
20 21	3. To the greatest extent possible, the appropriation of tran planned spending of such revenues by agency and by prog		ues shall reflect		
22 23	B. The maximization of all federal transportation funds avai be paramount in the budgetary, spending, and allocation pro		monwealth shall		
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35	1. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the the transportation secretariat are hereby authorized to take al federal transportation funds are allocated and utilized for Commonwealth, whether such actions or funds or both are the 114th Congress, or any successor or related federar regulation, rule, or guidance issued by the U.S. Department agency. The secretary and agencies within the transportation maximum extent practicable, the flexibility provided in a guidance to use federal funds in a manner consistent with neither the Secretary <i>n</i> or an agency in the transportation secretary and agency in the transportation secretary and agency agency. The secretary <i>n</i> or an agency is the transportation secretary <i>n</i> or an agency in the transportation secretary and agency agency.	Il actions necessa for the maximum authorized under al transportation t of Transportation on secretariat sha federal law, reg the Code of Vir ecretariat may m	ry to ensure that a benefit of the r P.L. 114-94 of legislation, or on or any federal all utilize, to the ulation, rule, or ginia. However, aterially delay a		
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43	2. The secretary shall ensure that the allocation of transport which obligation authority is expected to be available under the with such laws and in support of the transportation policy g this Item. Furthermore, the secretary is authorized to take all required match for federal highway funds to ensure their a and expenditure within the fiscal constraints of state transport the efforts addressed in B.1. By June 1 of each year, the sec- chall report to the Governor and General Assembly on	federal law shall l goals enumerated l actions necessar uppropriate and ti rtation revenues a retary, as Chairm	be in accordance in section A. of y to allocate the mely obligation and in support of an of the Board,		

3. The board shall only make allocations providing the required match for federal Regional
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program funds to those Metropolitan Planning
Organizations in urbanized areas greater than 200,000 that, in consultation with the Office of
Intermodal Planning and Investment, have developed regional transportation and land use
performance measures pursuant to Chapters 670 and 690 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly and
have been approved by the board.

transportation funds and the actions taken to provide the required match.

shall report to the Governor and General Assembly on the allocation of such federal

43

Item	Details	(\$)

First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

4. Projects funded, in whole or part, from federal funds referred to as congestion mitigation and air quality improvement, shall be selected as directed by the board. Such funds shall be federally obligated within 12 months of their allocation by the board and expended within 36 months of such obligation. If the requirements included in this paragraph are not met by such agency or recipient, then the board shall use such federal funds for any other project eligible under 23 USC 149.

ITEM 433.

1

2

3

4

5

6

5. Funds apportioned under federal law for the Surface Transportation Block Grant
Program shall be distributed and administered in accordance with federal requirements,
including the 22 percent of the non-suballocated portion that is required to be allocated for
public transportation purposes. The prioritization process developed under § 33.2-214.1,
Code of Virginia, shall not apply to the 22 percent share of the non-suballocated portion
allocated for public transportation purposes.

- 6. Funds made available to the Metropolitan Planning Organizations known as the
 Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant Program for urbanized areas greater than
 200,000 shall be federally obligated within 12 months of their allocation by the board and
 expended within 36 months of such obligation. If the requirements included in this
 paragraph are not met by the recipient, then the board may rescind the required match for
 such federal funds.
- 19 7. Notwithstanding paragraph B.2. of this Item, the required matching funds for
 20 Transportation Alternatives projects are to be provided by the project sponsor of the
 21 federal-aid funding.
- 8. Federal transportation funds as well as the required state matching funds may be
 allocated by the Commonwealth Transportation Board for transit purposes under the same
 rules and conditions authorized by federal law in a manner consistent with the Code of
 Virginia. The Commonwealth Transportation Board, in consultation with the appropriate
 local and regional entities, may allocate state revenues to local and regional public transit
 operators, for operating and/or capital purposes.
- 9. If a regional area (or areas) of the Commonwealth is determined to be not in compliance
 with Clean Air Act rules regarding conformity and as a result federal and/or state
 allocations, apportionments or obligations cannot be used to fund or support transportation
 projects or programs in that area, such funds may be used to finance demand management,
 conformity, and congestion mitigation projects to the extent allowed by federal law. Any
 remaining amount of such allocations, apportionments, or obligations shall be set aside to
 the extent possible under law for use in that regional area.
- 10. Appropriations in this act related to federal revenues outlined in this section may be
 adjusted by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, upon request from the
 Secretary of Transportation, as needed to utilize and allocate additional federal funds that
 may become available.
- 39 11. The secretary shall ensure that any bonds issued pursuant to Article 4, Chapter 15 of 40 Title 33.2 shall be programmed to eligible projects selected and funded through the High 41 Priority Projects Program pursuant § 33.2-370 or the Construction District Grant Program 42 pursuant to §33.2-371. In any year such bond proceeds are allocated to one or both of the 43 programs, the secretary shall take all necessary action to ensure that each program is 44 provided with the same overall amount of monies though the mix of bond proceeds, state 45 revenues, and federal revenues provided to each program may vary as deemed appropriate 46 by the secretary.
- 47 C. The secretary may ensure that appropriate action is taken to maintain a minimum cash48 balance and/or cash reserve in the Highway Maintenance and Operating Fund.
- 49 D.1. The Office of Intermodal Planning and Investment shall recommend to the
 50 Commonwealth Transportation Board all allocations of funds made available in
 51 subsections A. and B. of Item 449. The planning and evaluation may be conducted or
 52 managed by the Department of Transportation, Department of Rail and Public
 53 Transportation, or another qualified entity selected and/or approved by the
 54 Commonwealth Transportation Board.

ITEM 433.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropris First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Y FY202
1 2	2. The office shall be responsible for implementing the st pursuant to § 33.2-214.1 for the Commonwealth Transpor	atewide priorit			1 1 202
3 4 5 6 7	3. The office shall work directly with affected Metropolit develop and implement quantifiable and achievable goals relat safety, transit and HOV usage, job/housing ratios, job and pedestrian facilities, air quality, and/or per-capital vehicle mile 670 and 690 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly.	ing to congestion housing acces	on reduction and s to transit and		
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	4. For allocation of funds under Paragraph 1, the office m planning grants to (i) regional organizations to analyze vario for their long range transportation plans, (ii) local government plans and other applicable local ordinances to designate urban Chapter 896 of the 2007 Acts of Assembly and incorporate the and (iii) local governments, regional organizations, transit a entities to develop plans for transit oriented development and Such analyses, plans, and ordinances shall be shared with commission or metropolitan planning organization and the of Board.	us land develop s to revise their development a principles inclu- agencies and ot the expansion of the regional p	pment scenarios comprehensive reas pursuant to uded in such act, ther appropriate of transit service. lanning district		
18 19 20 21 22 23 24	E.1. The Commonwealth Transportation Board is hereby au and/or endorse applications submitted by private entities a <i>Commonwealth</i> to obtain federal credit assistance for one or infrastructure projects or facilities to be developed pu Transportation Act of 1995, as amended. Any such ap endorsement shall not financially obligate the Commonwealth credit of the Commonwealth as security for any such federal credit	or political sub more qualifyin rsuant to the plication, agr or be construed	bdivision of the g transportation Public-Private eement and/or		
25 26 27	2. The Commonwealth Transportation Board is hereby auth apply for, and execute, an agreement to obtain financing using project financings otherwise authorized by this Act or other A	g a federal credi	it instrument for		
28 29 30 31	F. Revenues generated pursuant to the provisions of § 58.1-3 only be used to supplement, not supplant, any local fund programs within the localities authorized to impose the fees 3221.3, Code of Virginia.	s provided for	transportation		
32 33 34 35 36	G. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is author of transportation agencies in order to utilize proceeds from Virginia Transportation Capital Projects Revenue Bonds whic fiscal year but not issued, pursuant to Section 2 of Enactment 2007 General Assembly Session.	the sale of Con h were authorized	mmonwealth of zed in thea prior		
37 38 39	H. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is author of transportation agencies in order to utilize proceeds from Virginia Federal Transportation Grant Anticipation Revenu	the sale of Cor			
40 41 42	I. In programming funds for the reconstruction and rehabilition bridges pursuant to § 33.2-358 C.(i), Code of Virginia, the Board shall consider both state and locally-owned bridges.		•		
43 44 45 46	J. All revenues generated under Chapter 896 of the Acts of As Chapter 766 of the Acts of Assembly of 2013 (HB 2: transportation-related funds have been appropriated in confo those respective chapters.	313) that wer	e dedicated to		
47	Total for Secretary of Transportation			\$916,840	\$916,
48 49	Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	6.00 6.00	6.00 6.00		
50	Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$916,840	\$916,840		
51	8 1 121 VIDCINIA COMMEDCIAL SDA)	

Second Year FY2020

\$916,840

§ 1-121. VIRGINIA COMMERCIAL SPACE FLIGHT AUTHORITY (509)

51

	ITEM 434		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	434.	Space Flight Support Services (60800)			\$15,800,000	\$15,800,000
2 3		Maintenance and Operation of Space Flight Facilities (60801)	\$15,800,000	\$15,800,000		
4		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$15,800,000	\$15,800,000		
5		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 22, Code of Virginia.				
6 7 8 9		Pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 779 and 8 Assembly, \$15,800,000 in the first year and \$15,80 transferred to the Commonwealth Space Flight Fund a the maintenance and operations of the Virginia Comm	00,000 in the second s set forth in § 33.2	nd year shall be -1526 to support		
10 11		Total for Virginia Commercial Space Flight Authority			\$15,800,000	\$15,800,000
12		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$15,800,000	\$15,800,000		
13		§ 1-122. DEPARTMEN	NT OF AVIATION	(841)		
14	435.	Financial Assistance for Airports (65400)			\$28,351,475	\$28,351,475
15 16		Financial Assistance for Airport Maintenance (65401)	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000		
17 18		Financial Assistance for Airport Development (65404)	\$25,976,475	\$25,976,475		
19 20		Financial Assistance for Aviation Promotion (65405)	\$1,375,000	\$1,375,000		
21		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$28,351,475	\$28,351,475		
22		Authority: Title 5.1, Chapters 1, 3, and 5; Title 58.1, C	hapter 6, Code of V	irginia.		
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30		A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the De funds for Airport Assistance to the maximum exte maximization, the Commonwealth Transportation Be Commonwealth Airport Fund for surface transport access. The Aviation Board shall consider such req approves. However, the legislative intent expressed prohibit the Virginia Aviation Board from allocating the event that federal matching funds are unavailable				
31 32 33 34		B. The department is authorized to expend up to \$400 second year from Aviation Special Funds to suppo academia, and Virginia Small Aircraft Transportation research efforts to promote safety and greater access	rt a partnership be on System. The pro	tween industry, ject shall target		
35 36 37		C. The department is authorized to pay to the Civil Ai \$100,000 the second year from Aviation Special Fu Code of Virginia, and § 4-5.05 of this act shall not	nds. The provision	s of § 2.2-1505,		
38 39		D. Out of the amounts included in this Item, \$500,0 second year shall be paid to the Washington Airport		nd \$500,000 the		
40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		E.1. By November 1 of each year, the Virginia A Governor and the General Assembly on the use of C allocated the previous fiscal year. The report shall incl the use of entitlement funds allocated by each air carr funds that are unobligated; (ii) the award and use of c carrier and reliever airports by every such airpor discretionary funds allocated for general aviation ai report shall also include the status of ongoing project Commonwealth Airport Fund pursuant to subdivision	Commercial Airpor ude at a minimum t ier airport, includir liscretionary funds t; and (iii) the aw rports by every su s funded in whole	t Fund revenues he following: (i) ng the amount of allocated for air yard and use of ch airport. Such or in part by the		
49 50 51		2. The Board shall have the right to withhold entitl subdivision A 3 a of 58.1-638 in the event that the approved by the Board or the airport uses the funds in	e entitlement utiliza	ation plan is not		

			Itom	Dotoila(\$)	A mmmm	intions(\$)
ITEM 435.			First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1		the approved plan.	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
2 3 4 5		F. It is the intent of the General Assembly that state mor A 3 of § 58.1-638 shall not be used for (i) operating co Virginia Aviation Board, or (ii) purposes related to su either directly or indirectly, through grants, credit enh	sts unless otherwise	approved by the ion of an airline,		
6 7 8	436.	Air Transportation System Planning, Regulation, Communication and Education (65500)			\$2,931,818	\$2,931,818 \$2,991,764
9 10		Aviation Licensing and Regulation (65501)	\$116,484	\$116,484 \$176,420		ψ_{2}, yy_{1}, y_{0}
11 12 13		Aviation Communication and Education (65502) General Aviation Personnel Development (65503) Air Transportation Planning and Development	\$882,536 \$26,400	\$176,430 \$882,536 \$26,400		
14		(65504)	\$1,906,398	\$1,906,398		
15 16		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$2,431,818	\$2,431,818 \$2,491,764		
17		Federal Trust	\$500,000	\$500,000		
18		Authority: Title 5.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
19 20	437.	State Aircraft Flight Operations (65600) State Aircraft Operations and Maintenance (65602)	\$2,257,381	\$2,257,381	\$2,257,381	\$2,257,381
21 22		Fund Sources: General Commonwealth Transportation	\$30,246 \$2,227,135	\$30,246 \$2,227,135		
23		Authority: Title 5.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
24 25	438.	Administrative and Support Services (69900) General Management and Direction (69901)	\$2,331,319	\$2,331,319	\$2,331,319	\$2,331,319
26		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$2,331,319	\$2,331,319		
27		Authority: Title 5.1, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
28 29 30 31 32 33 34		A. The Director, Department of Aviation, shall prepare acquisition and use that shall include a requirement f policies on usage, charge rates and record-keeping. Th needs of state agencies and determine the most efficien and managing the Commonwealth's aircraft operation aircraft management system he determines to be most su need arises.	or state agencies to e Director shall example t and effective meth s. The Director shall	develop written mine the aircraft od of organizing Il implement the		
35 36 37 38 39 40		B. The Virginia Aviation Board and the Department of A of the current biennium appropriation for aviation finance the Commonwealth Transportation Fund provided 1) projected costs in each year and 2) sufficient reven obligations for new obligations as well as all other comm by the General Assembly in the biennial budget.	cial assistance progra sufficient cash is av ues are projected t	ims supported by vailable to cover o meet all cash		
41 42		Total for Department of Aviation			\$35,871,993	\$35,871,993 \$35,931,939
43 44		Nongeneral Fund Positions	34.00	34.00 37.00		
45 46		Position Level	34.00	34.00 37.00		
47 48 49		Fund Sources: General Commonwealth Transportation	\$30,246 \$35,341,747	\$30,246 \$35,341,747 \$35,401,693		
50		Federal Trust	\$500,000	\$500,000		
51		§ 1-123. DEPARTMENT O	F MOTOR VEHIC	LES (154)		

]	ITEM 438		Item First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) • Second Year FY2020		iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	439.	Ground Transportation Regulation (60100)			\$214,197,223 \$2 <i>14,215,235</i>	\$211,657,741 \$211,832,588
3 4		Customer Service Centers Operations (60101)	\$148,942,473	\$153,523,491 \$153,389,781		
5 6 7		Ground Transportation Regulation and Enforcement (60103)	\$44,194,258	\$44,194,258 \$44,327,968		
8 9		Motor Carrier Regulation Services (60105)	\$21,060,492 \$21,078,504	\$13,939,992 \$14,114,839		
10 11		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$206,750,623 \$206,768,635	\$204,211,141 \$204,385,988		
12		Trust and Agency	\$5,446,600	\$5,446,600		
13		Federal Trust	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000		

Authority: Title 46.2, Chapters 1, 2, 3, 6, 8, 10, 12, 15, 16, and 17; §§ 18.2-266 through 18.2-272; Title 58.1, Chapters 21 and 24, Code of Virginia. Title 33, Chapter 4, United States Code.

A. The Commissioner, Department of Motor Vehicles, is authorized to establish, where feasible and cost efficient, contracts with private/public partnerships with commercial operations, to provide for simplification and streamlining of service to citizens through electronic means. Provided, however, that such commercial operations shall not be entitled to compensation as established under § 46.2-205, Code of Virginia, but rather at rates limited to those established by the commissioner.

B. The Department of Motor Vehicles shall work to increase the use of alternative service delivery methods, which may include offering discounts on certain transactions conducted online, as determined by the department. As part of its effort to shift customers to internet usage where applicable, the department shall not charge its customers for the use of credit cards for internet or other types of transactions; however, this restriction shall not apply with respect to any credit or debit card transactions the department conducts on behalf of another agency, provided (i) the other agency is authorized to charge customers for the use of credit or debit cards and (ii) the merchant's fees and other transaction costs imposed by the card issuer are charged to the department.

C. In order to provide citizens of the Commonwealth greater access to the Department of Motor Vehicles, the agency is authorized to enter into an agreement with any local constitutional officer or combination of officers to act as a license agent for the department, with the consent of the chief administrative officer of the constitutional officer's county or city, and to negotiate a separate compensation schedule for such office other than the schedule set out in § 46.2-205, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any compensation due to a constitutional officer serving as a license agent shall be remitted by the department to the officer's county or city on a monthly basis, and not less than 80 percent of the sums so remitted shall be appropriated by such county or city to the office of the constitutional officer to compensate such officer for the additional work involved with processing transactions for the department. Funds appropriated to the constitutional office for such work shall not be used to supplant existing local funding for such office, nor to reduce the local share of the Compensation Board-approved budget for such office below the level established pursuant to general law.

D. The base compensation for DMV Select Agents shall be set at 4.5 percent of gross collections for the first \$500,000 and 5.0 percent of all gross collections in excess of \$500,000 made by the entity during each fiscal year on such state taxes and fees in place as a matter of law. The commissioner shall supply the agents with all necessary agency forms to provide services to the public, and shall cause to be paid all freight and postage, but shall not be responsible for any extra clerk hire or other business-related expenses or business equipment expenses occasioned by their duties.

54 E. Out of the amounts identified in this Item, an amount estimated at \$332,789350,801 the
55 first year and \$332,789350,801 the second year from the Commonwealth Transportation
56 Fund shall be paid to the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Commission.

	Item	Details(\$)	Appropri	
ITEM 43		Second Year	First Year	
	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	
1	F.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the department shall asses	ss a minimum fee		

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

F.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the department shall assess a minimum fee of \$15 for all titles. The revenue generated from this fee shall be set aside to meet the expenses of the department.

2

3

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the department shall assess a \$10 late fee on all registration renewal transactions that occur after the expiration date. The late fee shall not apply to those exceptions granted under § 46.2-221.4, Code of Virginia. In assessing the late renewal fee the department shall provide a ten day grace period for transactions conducted by mail to allow for administrative processing. This grace period shall not apply to registration renewals for vehicles registered under the International Registration Plan. The revenue generated from this fee shall be set aside to meet the expenses of the department.

3. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the department shall establish a \$20 minimum
 fee for original driver's licenses and replacements. The revenue generated from this fee shall
 be set aside to meet the expenses of the department.

14 G. The Department of Motor Vehicles is hereby granted approval to renew or extend existing15 capital leases due to expire during the current biennium for existing customer service centers.

H. The Department of Motor Vehicles is hereby appropriated revenues from the additional sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts to recover the direct cost of administration incurred by the department in implementing and collecting this tax as provided by § 58.12295, Code of Virginia.

I. The Commissioner of the Department of Motor Vehicles, in consultation with the
 Commissioner of Highways, shall take such steps as may be necessary to expand access to the
 E-ZPass program through its customer service channels using such locations and methods as
 are practicable.

J. The Department of Motor Vehicles is hereby granted approval to distribute the transactional
 charges of the Cardinal accounting system to state agencies, when the transactions involve
 funds passed through the department to the benefiting agency. This paragraph shall not
 pertain to Direct Aid to Public Education.

K. The Department of Motor Vehicles is hereby granted approval to distribute a portion of its indirect cost allocation charge to another state agency when the charge is related to revenue collected and transferred by the department to the state agency. Such transfers shall be based on the agency's proportionate share of the department's total transactions in the immediately preceding fiscal year. The Department shall annually submit to the Department of Planning and Budget a summary of the transfer amounts and the transaction volumes used to allocate the internal cost amounts.

L. Notwithstanding § 46.2-688, Code of Virginia, the Department of Motor Vehicles shall not
be required to refund a proration of the total cost of a motor vehicle registration when less
than six months remain in the registration period. Any resulting savings shall be retained and
used to meet the expenses of the Department.

M. Notwithstanding § 46.2-342, Code of Virginia, the Department of Motor Vehicles shall
 not be required to include organ donation brochures with every driver's license renewal notice
 or application mailed to licensed drivers.

N. The Commissioner shall only refuse to issue or renew any vehicle registration pursuant to
subsection L of § 46.2-819.3:1 of an operator or owner of a vehicle who has no prior
resolution, whether that resolution is by settlement or conviction, for offenses under § 46.2819.3:1 if, in addition to the conditions set forth in subsection L of § 46.2-819.3:1 for such
refusal, the toll operator has offered the individual a settlement of no more than \$2,200.

47 O.1. Pursuant to § 3-2.03 of this act, a line of credit up to \$10,500,000 is provided to the 48 Department of Motor Vehicles as a temporary cash flow advance. The Department shall 49 transfer such related funds to its special fund. Funds received from the line of credit shall be 50 used to support operational costs related to the implementation and issuance of REAL ID 51 compliant credentials. The Department is authorized to impose a \$10 surcharge on all first 52 issuances of REAL ID compliant credentials that are acceptable for federal purposes. The 53 surcharge shall be used to reimburse the line of credit. The request for the line of credit shall 54 be prepared in the formats as approved by the Secretary of Finance and Secretary of

				n Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)		
1	ITEM 439	.	First Yea FY2019		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1		Transportation.					
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		2. At least 10 days prior to any draw downs from the Finance and Transportation shall report to the Chairm Senate Finance Committees the following: (i) the amo the incremental and cumulative costs associated equipment, (iii) the incremental and cumulative numb and part-time positions filled to support the implement and (iv) the intended usage of any new draw downs. department shall report on a quarterly basis to the Cha and Senate Finance Committees on the number of R have been issued and any changes in average wait time from the increased workload. The first report shall be s period October 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 submitted every three months thereafter.	en of the House A unt of any propose l with system m ber of full-time econtation of the fede Subsequent to Oc airmen of the Hou EAL ID complia es at DMV offices submitted by Janu	Appropriations and ed draw down, (ii) indifications and juivalent positions eral REAL ID Act, etober 1, 2018, the use Appropriations nt credentials that that have resulted ary 1, 2019 for the			
15 16 17 18 19		P. The Commissioner of the Department of Moto applicable stakeholder groups, shall report on the outsourcing driver license road tests for adults. Suc Chairmen of the House and Senate Transportation Cor 2018.	ne feasibility an ch report shall be	d advisability of e submitted to the			
20 21 22	440.	Ground Transportation System Safety Services (60500)			\$7,334,034	\$7,334,034 \$7,177,199	
23 24		Highway Safety Services (60508)	\$7,334,034	\$7,334,034 \$7,177,199		φ/,1//,199	
25 26 27		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$5,601,710 \$1,732,324	\$5,601,710 \$ <i>5,444</i> ,875 \$1,732,324			
27 28 29		Authority: §§ 46.2-222 through 46.2-224, Code of Code.					
30 31 32 33 34	441.	Administrative and Support Services (69900) General Management and Direction (69901) Information Technology Services (69902) Facilities and Grounds Management Services (69915)	\$30,884,836 \$38,505,554 \$5,171,829	\$30,884,836 \$38,505,554 \$5,171,829	\$74,562,219	\$74,562,219	
35 36		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation Federal Trust	\$72,325,219 \$2,237,000	\$72,325,219 \$2,237,000			
37 38		Authority: Title 46.2, Chapters 1 and 2, and § 46.2-21 24, Code of Virginia.	4.3; Title 58.1, Cl	napters 17, 21, and			
39 40		The Department of Transportation shall reimburse the the operating costs of the Fuels Tax Evasion Program		Notor Vehicles for			
41 42		Total for Department of Motor Vehicles			\$296,093,476 \$296,111,488	\$293,553,994 \$293,572,006	
43 44		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	2,080.00 2,080.00	2,080.00 2,080.00			
45 46 47 48		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation Trust and Agency Federal Trust	\$284,677,552 \$284,695,564 \$5,446,600 \$5,969,324	\$282,138,070 \$282,156,082 \$5,446,600 \$5,969,324			
49		Department of Motor Vehi	cles Transfer Pa	vments (530)			
50 51	442.	Ground Transportation System Safety Services (60500)			\$26,255,029	\$26,255,029	

ITEM 442. First Year FY2019 Second Year FY2020 First Year FY2019 1 Financial Assistance for Transportation Safety (60507)	FY2020
2 (60507)) \$85,691,500
 Authority: §§ 46,2-222 through 46,2-223, Code of Virginia; Chapter 4, United States Code. 443. Financial Assistance to Localities - General (72800) Financial Assistance to Localities - Mobile Home Tax (72803) \$5,500,000 \$5,500,000 Financial Assistance to Localities for the Disposal of Abandoned Vehicles (72814) \$391,500 \$391,500 Distribution of Sales Tax on Fuel in Certain Transportation Districts (72815) \$79,800,000 \$79,800,000 Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation \$391,500 \$391,500 Dedicated Special Revenue \$79,800,000 \$79,800,000 Authority: §§ 46.2-416, 58.1-2402, and 58.1-2425, and 46.2-1200 through 46.2-1207, Code of Virginia. A. Funds collected pursuant to § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, from the additional sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts under § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be returned to the respective commissions in amounts equivalent to the shares collected in the respective member jurisdictions. The amounts generated from the sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts in this item are estimated at \$61,200,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$40,800,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission in the first year and \$62,000,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation C) \$85,691,500
 5 443. Financial Assistance to Localities - General (72800) Financial Assistance to Localities - Mobile Home Tax (72803)) \$85,691,500
 Financial Assistance to Localities - Mobile Home Tax (72803)) \$85,691,500
 Tax (72803)	
 Abandoned Vehicles (72814)	
 Transportation Districts (72815)	
13Trust and Agency	
 14 Dedicated Special Revenue	
 Authority: §§ 46.2-416, 58.1-2402, and 58.1-2425, and 46.2-1200 through 46.2-1207, Code of Virginia. A. Funds collected pursuant to § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, from the additional sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts under § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be returned to the respective commissions in amounts equivalent to the shares collected in the respective member jurisdictions. The amounts generated from the sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts under § 56.1, 200, 000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation districts in this item are estimated at \$61,200,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$40,800,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Accountability Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$62,000,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$41,400,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission in the second year. These estimates are listed for informational purposes only. B. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Commissioner may divulge tax 	
 Virginia. A. Funds collected pursuant to § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, from the additional sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts under § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be returned to the respective commissions in amounts equivalent to the shares collected in the respective member jurisdictions. The amounts generated from the sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts in this item are estimated at \$61,200,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$40,800,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission in the first year and \$62,000,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$41,400,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$41,400,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission in the second year. These estimates are listed for informational purposes only. B. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Commissioner may divulge tax 	
 tax on fuel in certain transportation districts under § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be returned to the respective commissions in amounts equivalent to the shares collected in the respective member jurisdictions. The amounts generated from the sales tax on fuel in certain transportation districts in this item are estimated at \$61,200,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$40,800,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and \$49,500,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission in the first year and \$62,000,000 to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, \$41,400,000 to the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Commission, and \$50,300,000 to the Hampton Roads Transportation Commission in the second year. These estimates are listed for informational purposes only. B. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Commissioner may divulge tax 	
 director or designee of the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission, the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, and the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission for their confidential use of such tax information as may be necessary to facilitate the collection of the taxes collected in the respective member jurisdictions. Any person to whom tax information is divulged pursuant to this section shall be subject to the prohibitions and penalties prescribed in § 58.1-3, Code of Virginia, as though that person were a tax official as defined in that section. Total for Department of Motor Vehicles Transfer 	
38 Payments \$111,946,529 20 Find Support Commentation \$201,500 \$201,500	9 \$111,946,529
39 Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation \$391,500 \$391,500 40 Trust and Agency \$5,500,000 \$5,500,000	
41 Dedicated Special Revenue \$79,800,000 \$79,800,000	
42 Federal Trust \$26,255,029 \$26,255,029	
43 Grand Total for Department of Motor Vehicles \$408,040,005 44 \$408,058,017	
45 Nongeneral Fund Positions	
46 Position Level 2,080.00 2,080.00	
47 Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	
49 Trust and Agency \$10,946,600 \$10,946,600	
50 Dedicated Special Revenue \$79,800,000 \$79,800,000	
51 Federal Trust \$32,224,353 \$32,224,353	

§ 1-124. DEPARTMENT OF RAIL AND PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION (505)

	ITEM 443		Iter First Yea FY2019		Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	444.	Ground Transportation Planning and Research (60200) Rail and Public Transportation Planning,			\$3,347,198	\$3,347,198
4		Regulation, and Safety (60203)	\$3,347,198	\$3,347,198		
5		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$3,347,198	\$3,347,198		
6		Authority: Titles 33.2 and 58.1, Code of Virginia.				
7 8	445.	Financial Assistance for Public Transportation (60900)			\$443,248,455	\$443,248,455
9 10 11		Public Transportation Programs (60901) Congestion Management Programs (60902) Human Service Transportation Programs (60903)	\$420,042,153 \$13,344,000 \$9,862,302	\$420,042,153 \$13,344,000 \$9,862,302		
12 13		Fund Sources: Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,139,844 \$442,108,611	\$1,139,844 \$442,108,611		
14		Authority: Titles 33.2 and 58.1, Code of Virginia.				
15 16 17 18 19 20		A.1. Except as provided in Item 447, the Common allocate all monies in the Commonwealth Mass Tran 33.2-1526.1, Code of Virginia. The total appropri. Transit Fund is estimated to be \$296,028,000 the first year from the Transportation Trust Fund. From the allocations shall be made:	sit Fund, as provid ation for the Com st year and \$296,0	ed herein and in § monwealth Mass 79,000 the second		
21 22		a. \$90,932,000 the first year and \$90,948,000 the s Assistance as provided in § 33.2-1526.1.C.1., Cod	-	tewide Operating		
23 24		b. \$36,666,000 the first year and \$36,672,000 the se Mass Transit Fund to statewide Capital Assistance.	cond year from th	e Commonwealth		
25 26 27		c. \$156,930,000 the first year and \$156,958,000 the s Mass Transit Fund to the Northern Virginia Transp operating and capital costs of the Washington Metr	ortation Commiss	ion to support the		
28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36		d. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph A.1.a to the annual adoption of the Six-Year Improvem Transportation Board may allocate funding from the C implement the transit and transportation demand man the I-95 corridor. Such costs shall include only direct well as transportation demand management activitie park and ride lots required to be funded by the Comm Comprehensive Agreement for the Interstate 95 High be borne by the Department of Transportation as set				
37 38 39 40		2. Included in this item is \$1,500,000 the first year a the Commonwealth Mass Transit Trust Fund. Th "paratransit" capital projects and enhanced transpo disabled.	ese allocations a	re designated for		
41 42 43 44		3. Included in this item is an amount estimated at \$1,2 the second year from the Commonwealth Mass Tran designated for federally mandated state safety over agencies located in the Commonwealth.	sit Trust Fund. The	ese allocations are		
45 46 47		4. a. From the amounts appropriated in this item fro Fund, \$8,800,000 the first year and \$8,801,000 the se to statewide Special Programs as provided in § 33.2-	cond year is the es	timated allocation		
48 49 50 51		b. From the amounts provided for Special Programs Board shall operate a program entitled the Transport (TEIF). The purpose of the TEIF program is to reduce transportation demand management programs an	ation Efficiency In the traffic congest	mprovement Fund ion by supporting		

Second Year

FY2020

462

Item E	Details(\$)
First Year	Second
FY2019	FY2

Appropriations(\$)					
First Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

1 movement of passengers and freight on Virginia's highway system.

ITEM 445.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

27

29

31

34

37

2 5. The amount allocated for public transportation purposes according to Item 433 B. 5. is an 3 amount estimated at \$25,583,000 the first year and \$25,583,000 the second year from federal 4 sources for the Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) program.

B. Funds from a stable and reliable source, as required in Public Law 96-184, as amended, are to be provided to Metro from payments authorized and allocated in this program and pursuant to §§ 58.1-1720 and 58.1-2295, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, funds allocated to Metro under this program may be disbursed by the Department of Rail and Public Transportation directly to Metro or to any other transportation entity that has an agreement to provide funding to Metro as deemed appropriate by the Department. In appointing the Virginia members of the board of directors of the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA), the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission shall include the Secretary of Transportation or his designee as a principal member on the WMATA board of directors.

15 C. All Commonwealth Mass Transit Funds appropriated for Financial Assistance for Public 16 Transportation shall be used only for public transportation purposes as defined by the Federal Transit Administration or outlined in § 58.1-638 A.4. or in § 33.2-156.1, Code of Virginia. 17

18 D. It is the intent of the General Assembly that no transit operating assistance funding, as 19 provided in A.1.a. of this item, be used to support any new transit system or route at a level 20 higher than such project would be eligible for under the allocation formula set out in § 33.2-21 1526.1 C. 1., Code of Virginia, beyond the first two years of its operation.

22 E. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is hereby authorized, upon request by 23 the Secretary of Transportation, to transfer an amount not to exceed \$6,214,575 in the first 24 year and \$6,214,575 in the second year from the amounts appropriated in Item 450 of this act 25 to the Department of Rail and Public Transportation. Such transfers shall be considered loans, 26 and are intended to hold harmless transit agencies that operate in the Commonwealth that receive urbanized transit funds pursuant to 49 U.S.C 5307 whose funds have been withheld by 28 the Federal Transit Administration until the certification of the Metro Safety Commission by the Federal Transit Administration. The Department may disburse, subject to appropriate 30 repayment terms, such funds to affected transit agencies in an amount not to exceed the funds withheld by the Federal Transit Administration. To the extent repayment is not made as 32 required by the agreement between the Department and an affected transit agency, the 33 Department is directed to withhold the payment amount due from funds provided to such transit agency pursuant to §58.1-638 A. 4. b. 1. of the Code of Virginia in order to return such 35 amounts to the Department of Transportation. However, no funds from such loan shall be disbursed to any transit agency until such agency has expended all funds available for their 36 use from federal fiscal year 2016. The specific terms and structure of any loan shall be 38 approved by the Secretary of Transportation, upon consultation with the Chairmen of the 39 House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, or their designees.

40 F.1. The Department of Rail and Public Transportation, in conjunction with the Department of 41 Treasury and the Department of General Services shall investigate options to develop a 42 program for the financing of statewide transit capital needs using the Master Equipment 43 Leasing Program currently operated through the Department of the Treasury as a model to 44 facilitate group purchases of mass transit equipment. The goal of the program would be twofold: (i) to achieve cost savings through bulk purchases and (ii) to establish a revolving 45 46 fund to meet transit capital replacement needs that does not rely on the use of longer-term 47 debt for items with a limited life cycle.

48 2. As part of this effort, the department shall convene a work group that includes 49 representatives from the Northern Virginia, Rappahannock and Potomac, and Hampton Roads 50 Transportation District Commissions, at least one transit property that is not a member of a 51 Transportation District Commission, the Virginia Municipal League and the Virginia 52 Association of Counties. The work group shall utilize the Report of the Transit Capital 53 Revenue Advisory Board findings relating to state of good repair needs to develop and 54 estimate of the amount of transit capital funding needed annually and shall also identify 55 potential sources within the Transportation Trust Fund that could be used to provide lease 56 payments for the program.

1	TEM 445.		First Year		First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1 2 3 4		3. The Director of the Department of Rail and Public on the proposed program, including legal requirem structure to the Governor, the Chairman of the House Senate Finance Committee by November 1, 2018.	nents, terms, rates	and operational	FY2019	FY2020
5 6 7 8 9	446.	Financial Assistance for Rail Programs (61000) Rail Industrial Access (61001) Rail Preservation Programs (61002) Passenger and Freight Rail Financial Assistance Programs (61003)	\$3,000,000 \$14,583,520 \$109,904,849	\$3,000,000 \$14,583,520 \$109,904,849	\$127,488,369	\$127,488,369
10 11		Fund Sources: Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,000,000 \$126,488,369	\$1,000,000 \$126,488,369		
12		Authority: Title 33.2, Code of Virginia.				
13 14 15 16 17 18 19		A. 1. Except as provided in Item 447, the Commonwealth Transportation Board shall operate the Shortline Railway Preservation and Development program in accordance with § 33.2-1602, Code of Virginia. As determined by the board, funds apportioned pursuant to § 33.2-1530, Code of Virginia, shall be appropriated to the Shortline Railway Preservation and Development Program. Total funding appropriated to the Shortline Railway Preservation and Development Program from this source shall not exceed \$4,000,000 the first year and \$4,000,000 the second year.				
20 21 22 23 24 25 26		2. The board may allocate up to 20 percent of the annual revenue of the Rail Enhancement Fund established through § 33.2-1601, Code of Virginia, to the Shortline Railway Preservation and Development Fund. Should funds established in § 33.2-1601, Code of Virginia, be allocated for the purposes outlined in § 33.2-1602, Code of Virginia, the Director of the Department of Rail and Public Transportation shall administer and expend the funds subject to the approval of the board and according to the authority outlined in § 33.2-1602; the requirements of § 33.2-1601 shall not apply.				
27 28 29 30		B. The Commonwealth Transportation Board shall Program in accordance with § 33.2-1600, Code of Vir pursuant to § 33.2-358, Code of Virginia, to the fund railroad tracks.	ginia. The board n	nay allocate funds		
31 32 33 34 35 36		C. Of the funds appropriated pursuant to Chapters 1019 and 1044 of the 2000 Acts of Assembly for passenger rail capacity improvements in the I-95 passenger rail corridor between Richmond and the District of Columbia, the Director of the Department of Rail and Public Transportation is authorized to utilize any remaining funds along the described corridor for the development of intercity passenger rail enhancements to include rail improvements and passenger station facilities.				
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49		D. Because of the overwhelming need for the delivery of services provided by the investment in a balanced transportation system in the Commonwealth, and in an effort to deliver intercity passenger trains utilizing the Commonwealth's investments and to increase passenger train frequencies to Norfolk and Roanoke, notwithstanding the provisions of § 33.2-1601 and § 33.2-1603, Code of Virginia, the Commonwealth Transportation Board may only make further investments in intercity passenger rail capacity to serve new markets in North Carolina, provided the Six-Year Improvement Plan adopted pursuant to § 33.2-214, Code of Virginia includes sufficient funding to complete projects underway to deliver train capacity improvements and provides the funding for service for additional passenger rail frequency to Norfolk and an extension of passenger rail to Roanoke. Any Rail Enhancement Funds utilized for the purposes of the service delivery outlined in this paragraph shall be administered according to the guidelines governing the use of Intercity Passenger Rail Operating and Capital Funds.				
50 51	447.	Administrative and Support Services (69900) General Management and Direction (69901)	\$16,409,091	\$16,409,091	\$16,409,091	\$16,409,091
52		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$16,409,091	\$16,409,091		
53		Authority: Titles 33.2 and 58.1, Code of Virginia.				

	ITEM 447.		Iter First Yea FY2019	m Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		A. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, and allotments for the Department of Rail and Public T official revenue estimates for commonwealth transporta	ransportation to ref			
4 5 7 8 9 10		B. The Commonwealth Transportation Board may allo available each year in the funds established pursua subdivision A4 of § 58.1-638, and up to 5 percent of th fund established pursuant to § 33.2-1603 to support c administration and project compliance incurred by Transportation in implementing rail, public transport programs and grants .	nt to §§ 33.2-160 ne revenues availab costs of project dev the Department of	1, 33.2-1602, and ble each year in the velopment, project of Rail and Public		
11 12		Total for Department of Rail and Public Transportation			\$590,493,113	\$590,493,113
13 14		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	64.00 64.00	64.00 64.00		
15 16		Fund Sources: Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$2,139,844 \$588,353,269	\$2,139,844 \$588,353,269		
17		§ 1-125. DEPARTMENT O	F TRANSPORTA	ATION (501)		
18 19	448.	Environmental Monitoring and Evaluation (51400)			\$24,060,509 \$24,211,863	\$21,412,022 \$20,494,379
20 21 22		Environmental Monitoring and Compliance for Highway Projects (51408)	\$7,752,122 \$6,722,931	\$7,945,925 \$6,876,404		
23 24 25		Environmental Monitoring Program Management and Direction (51409)	\$3,131,597 \$3,293,882	\$3,209,887 \$3,356,739		
26 27 28		Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Compliance Activities (51410)	\$13,176,790 \$14,195,050	\$10,256,210 \$10,261,236		
29 30		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$24,060,509 \$24,211,863	\$21,412,022 \$20,494,379		
31 32 33	449.	Ground Transportation Planning and Research (60200)			\$74,664,920 \$75,153,449	\$76,333,475 \$76,658,340
34 35		Ground Transportation System Planning (60201)	\$61,250,286 \$61,573,678	\$62,601,600 \$62,853,660		
36 37		Ground Transportation System Research (60202)	\$9,368,150 \$9,500,838	\$9,584,229 \$9,606,334		
38 39 40		Ground Transportation Program Management and Direction (60204)	\$4,046,484 \$4,078,933	\$4,147,646 \$4,198,346		
41 42		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$74,664,920 \$75,153,449	\$76,333,475 \$76,658,340		
43		Authority: Title 33.2, Code of Virginia.				
44 45 46 47		A. Included in the amount for ground transportation sy than \$6,500,000 the first year and no less than \$6,500,00 share of the Transportation Trust Fund for the planning transportation needs.	000 the second year	r from the highway		

B. In addition, the Commonwealth Transportation Board may approve the expenditures of up to \$500,000 the first year and \$500,000 the second year from the highway share of the Transportation Trust Fund for the completion of advance activities, prior to the initiation of an individual project's design along existing highway corridors, to determine short-term and long-term improvements to the corridor. Such activities shall consider safety, access management, alternative modes, operations, and infrastructure improvements. Such funds shall be used for, but are not limited to, the completion of activities prior to the initiation of an individual project's design or to benefit identification of needs throughout the state or the

]	TEM 449		Ita First Ye FY201			priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5		prioritization of those needs. For federally eligible a included in the Commonwealth Transportation Bo Improvement program so that (i) appropriate for reimbursed for the activities and (ii) all requ Transportation Improvement Program can be	activities, the activ bard's annual upda ederal funds may irements of the	vity or item shall be ate of the Six-Yea be allocated and	e r 1	
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		C. Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 729 Assembly, the Commonwealth Transportation Boar projects on roadways controlled by any county that from the secondary system of state highways, nor fi or town as part of the state's urban roadway sy nonconformity with the Commonwealth Transporta Plan or the Six-Year Improvement Program. In j within their boundaries, the provisions of § 33.2-214 highways controlled by the Department of Transport	rd shall not realloc has withdrawn or rom any roadway rstem, based on a tion Board's States urisdictions that , Code of Virginia	eate any funds from elects to withdraw controlled by a city a determination o wide Transportation maintain roadways	1 7 7 6 1 8	
15 16 17		D. The prioritization process developed under § 33 apply to use of funds provided in this Item from the Planning and Research Program.				
18 19 20 21	450.	Highway Construction Programs (60300) Highway Construction Program Management (60315)	\$40.728.351	\$41,739,060	\$2,594,951,490 \$2,982,209,244	
22 23 24		State of Good Repair Program (60320)	\$42,834,638 \$68,943,750 \$85,614,863	\$42,367,081 \$38,800,246 \$43,176,315		
25		High Priority Projects Program (60321)	\$133,650,650	\$175,389,941		
26 27 28		Construction District Grant Programs (60322)	\$144,334,403 \$133,650,648 \$156,831,439	\$113,834,068 \$175,389,941 \$109,161,887		
29 30		Specialized State and Federal Programs (60323)	\$1,739,053,012 \$2,060,035,681	\$1,232,495,067 \$1,608,632,265		
30 31 32		Legacy Construction Formula Programs (60324)	\$2,000,055,081 \$478,925,079 \$492,558,220	\$1,000,052,205 \$509,780,950 \$530,056,924		
33 34 35		Fund Sources: <i>General</i> Commonwealth Transportation	\$75,000,000 \$2,375,558,246 \$2,687,816,000 \$210,202,244	\$0 \$1,836,380,620 \$2,110,013,955 \$227,214,585		
36		Trust and Agency		\$337,214,585		
37 38		Authority: Title 33.2, Chapter 3; Code of Virgin Assembly of 1989, Special Session II.	nia; Chapters 8, 9	9, and 12, Acts of	ſ	
39 40		A. From the appropriation for specialized state and federal programs funds shall be distributed as follows:				
41 42 43 44		1. \$108,071,298 the first year and \$113,028,115 <i>\$119,318,608</i> the second year in federal state and matching funds shall be allocated for regional Surface Transportation Block Grant Funds and distributed to applicable metropolitan planning organizations pursuant to 23 USC 133;				
45 46 47		2. \$53,122,502 the first year and \$53,122,502 the matching funds shall be allocated for the Highway S to 23 USC 148;				
48 49 50		3. \$78,058,001 the first year and \$77,859,551 \$81,142,944 the second year in federal and state matching funds shall be allocated for the Congestion Mitigation Air Quality program pursuant to 23 USC 149;				
51 52		4. \$100,000,000 the first year and \$100,000,000 the second year shall be allocated for the Revenue Sharing Program pursuant to \$ 33.2-357, Code of Virginia;				
53 54 55		5. \$20,265,939 the first year and \$20,089,434 \$20 funds shall be allocated for the Surface Transportati 23 USC 133(h).		-		

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

- 6. \$424,441,132 the first year and \$345,367,043 \$265,367,043 the second year in appropriation represents the estimated project participation costs from localities and regional entities.
- 4 7. \$150,908,817 the second year in this appropriation represents the bond proceeds to be used
 5 for the Route 58 Corridor Development Program.
- 6 8. \$2,736,051 the first year and \$4,183,261 the second year in state funds shall be allocated to
 7 the Virginia Transportation Infrastructure Bank pursuant to \$ 33.2-1500 et seq, Code of
 8 Virginia.
- 9 9. \$1,368,025 the first year and \$2,091,630 the second year in state funds shall be allocated to
 10 the Transportation Partnership Opportunity Fund pursuant to \$33.2-1529.1, Code of Virginia.
- B. Notwithstanding § 33.2-358, Code of Virginia, the proceeds from the lease or sale of
 surplus and residue property purchased under this program in excess of related costs shall be
 applied to the State of Good Repair Program pursuant to § 33.2-369, Code of Virginia.
 Proceeds must be used on Federal Title 23 eligible projects.
- 15 C. The Director of the Department of Planning and Budget is authorized to increase the
 appropriation as needed to utilize amounts available from prior year balances in the dedicated
 funds and adjust items to the most recent Commonwealth Transportation Board budget.
- D. Funds appropriated for legacy formula construction programs shall be used for the
 purposes enumerated in subsection C of § 33.2-358, Code of Virginia, or as previously
 appropriated.
- 21 E. Included in the amounts for specialized state and federal programs is the reappropriation of 22 \$145,700,000 the first year and \$131,300,000 \$135,100,000 the second year from bond 23 proceeds or dedicated special revenues for anticipated expenditure of amounts collected in 24 prior years. The amounts will be provided from balances in the Capital Projects Revenue 25 Bond Fund, Federal Transportation Grant Anticipation Revenue Bond Fund, Northern 26 Virginia Transportation District Fund, State Route 28 Highway Improvement District Fund, 27 U.S. Route 58 Corridor Development Fund and the Priority Transportation Fund. These 28 amounts were originally appropriated when received or forecasted and are not related to FY 29 2017 and FY 2018 estimated revenues.
- F. The Director of the Department of Planning and Budget is authorized to increase the
 appropriation as needed to utilize amounts available from prior year balances in the
 Consession Concession Payments Account to support project activities.
- 33 G. For funds allocated in § 58.1-1741, Code of Virginia, to state of good repair purposes for 34 fiscal year 2019 and fiscal year 2020, the distribution of funding in subsections (B) and (C) of 35 § 33.2-369, Code of Virginia, will not apply. The Commonwealth Transportation Board may 36 allocate funds to state of good repair purposes for reconstruction and replacement of 37 structurally deficient state and locally owned bridges and reconstruction and rehabilitation of 38 pavement on the interstate system and primary state highway system determined to be 39 deteriorated by the board, including municipality-maintained primary extensions, as well as to 40 work related to the condition assessment and pavement rehabilitation of secondary highways 41 and other related work to improve secondary highways.
- 42 H.The Commonwealth Transportation Board shall, no later than December 1, 2018, review 43 and report to the Chairmen of the House and Senate Committees on Transportation, the Joint 44 Transportation Accountability Commission, the House Committee on Appropriations and the 45 Senate Committees on Finance, on the overall condition and funding needs of large and 46 unique bridge and tunnel structures in the Commonwealth. As part of the review, the Board 47 shall make recommendations addressing funding of such projects within the State of Good 48 Repair program. In developing these recommendations the Board shall assess the impact of 49 establishing a set aside from the State of Good Repair funding pot, limited use of the 50 provisions of § 33.2-369 B., Code of Virginia, which allows for the waiving of district 51 minimum caps in a single year, or such other options as they might identify.
- 52 I. Out of this appropriation, \$75,000,000 the first year from the general fund is provided for
 53 the Virginia Transportation Infrastructure Bank. A portion of this appropriation may be used

]	ITEM 450).	Ite First Yea FY2019			priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		for start up costs associated with the proposed I-81 T	Coll Road Expansio	on.		
2 3 4	451.	Highway System Maintenance and Operations (60400)			\$1,719,918,399 \$1,978,877,656	\$1,685,842,192 \$1,992,859,424
5 6		Interstate Maintenance (60401)	\$319,352,830 \$439,078,579	\$312,119,525 \$442,264,643	<i>\$1,770,077,020</i>	<i>\(\)</i>
7 8		Primary Maintenance (60402)	\$469,662,397 \$591,903,773	\$458,613,079 \$595,965,645		
9 10		Secondary Maintenance (60403)	\$655,610,560 \$604,321,956	\$646,843,136 \$608,513,522		
11 12		Transportation Operations Services (60404)	\$194,533,844 \$266, <i>309,352</i>	\$188,351,801 \$268,459,641		
13 14 15		Highway Maintenance Operations, Program Management and Direction (60405)	\$80,758,768 \$77,263,996	\$79,914,651 \$77,655,973		
16 17		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,719,918,399 \$1,978,877,656	\$1,685,842,192 \$1,992,859,424		
18 19 20		A. The department is authorized to enter into ag enforcement officials to facilitate the enforcemen restrictions throughout the Commonwealth and m	t of high occupan	cy vehicle (HOV)		
21 22 23		B. Should federal law be changed to permit priva department is hereby authorized to accept or solicit p operation.				
24 25 26		C. The Director, Department of Planning and Bu appropriation in this Item as needed to utilize amoun in the dedicated funds.				
27 28 29		D. The Commissioner's annual report pursuant to include an assessment of whether the department h targets, by district and on a statewide basis.				
30 31	452.	Commonwealth Toll Facilities (60600)			\$64,386,587 \$80,876,667	\$63,967,153 \$91,272,130
32		Toll Facility Debt Service (60602)	\$3,194,200	\$3,190,600		
33 34		Toll Facility Maintenance And Operation (60603)	\$25,042,387 \$41,532,467	\$24,326,553 \$51,631,530		
35		Toll Facilities Revolving Fund (60604)	\$36,150,000	\$36,450,000		
36 37		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$58,386,587 \$74,876,667	\$57,967,153 \$85,272,131		
38 39		Trust and Agency	\$6,000,000	\$6,000,000 \$5,999,999		
40		Authority: §§ 33.2-1524 and 33.2-1700 through 33.2-	-1729, Code of Vir	ginia.		
41 42		A. Included in this Item are funds for the installation Electronic Toll Customer Service/Violation Enforce		tion of a statewide	•	
43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50		B. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the to concession payments backed by such toll revenues Interstate 64 between the interchange of Interst interchange of Interstate 64 with Interstate 564 contribution from the Hampton Roads Transpor established pursuant Chapter 26 of Title 33.2, Code of capacity of Interstate 64 between the interchange of the interchange of Interstate 64 with Interstate 564.	s, derived from th ate 64 with Inter 4 be used to redu tation Accountab of Virginia, for a pr	e express lanes on state 664 and the ace the necessary pility Commission roject to expand the	1 2 7 1	
51 52 53	453.	Financial Assistance to Localities for Ground Transportation (60700)			\$1,065,903,724 \$1,079,779,699	\$1,073,337,551 \$1,074,659,612

	2	468			
ITEM 453.		Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Financial Assistance for City Road Maintenance				
2 3	(60701)	\$386,527,944 \$386,532,142	\$384,438,120 \$385,407,026		
4 5 6	Financial Assistance for County Road Maintenance (60702)	\$69,287,562 \$69,295,633	\$68,914,911 \$69,468,919		
7 8	Financial Assistance for Planning, Access Roads, and Special Projects (60704)	\$15,188,218	\$15,384,520		
9 10 11	Distribution of Northern Virginia Transportation Authority Fund Revenues (60706)	\$15,551,924 \$266,800,000	\$15,383,667 \$272,600,000		
12 13	Distribution of Hampton Roads Transportation Fund	\$280,400,000	¢104-200-000		
14 15	Revenues (60707)	\$191,200,000 \$191,100,000	\$194,200,000 \$194,000,000		
16 17 18	Distribution of Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority Capital Fund Revenues (60708) Distribution of Certain Taxes to Certain Localities in	\$127,400,000	\$128,200,000		
10	Planning District 8 (60709)	\$9,500,000	\$9,600,000		
20 21	Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$471,003,724 \$471,379,699	\$468,737,551 \$470,259,612		
22 23	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$594,900,000 \$608,400,000	\$604,600,000 \$604,400,000		
24	Authority: Title 33.2, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.				
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	 A. Out of the amounts for Financial Assistance for Projects, \$7,000,000 the first year and \$7,000,000 the Transportation Fund shall be allocated for purposes set 33.2-1510, Code of Virginia. Of this amount, the allo shall be \$1,500,000 the first year and \$1,500,000 the B. Distribution of Northern Virginia Transportation direct payments, of the revenue collected and depo Virginia Transportation Authority for uses contained in 	second year from th forth in §§ 33.2-150 cation for Recreation second year. Authority Fund Rev sited into the Fund	e Commonwealth 09, 33.2-1600, and nal Access Roads venues represents , to the Northern		
33 34 35	Notwithstanding any other provision of law, money Transportation Fund shall be transferred to the Hampton Commission for use in accordance with § 33.2-2611, Co	n Roads Transportati	•		
36 37 38	C. The prioritization process developed under § 33.2-2 to use of funds provided in this Item from federal Planning Program.				
39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53	D. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 4-3.02 of th provide the Department of Transportation interest-fre exceed \$1,700,000 per year which may be extended for The loan amounts would be provided to the City of P property tax collections generated by the City due to the Virginia International Gateway to the Commonwealth. I loan shall be approved by the Secretary of Finance, af the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committ for this purpose shall be considered as bridge financia Virginia International Gateway Facility commences a which will generate personal property taxes that the Cit loan. To the extent the loan is not repaid as required Department of Transportation is directed to withhold provided to the City of Portsmouth pursuant to § 33.3 loan.	ee treasury loans in or a period longer the ortsmouth to offset e transfer of personal The specific terms ar ter consultation with ees, or their designed ng until the planned nd additional equipi- ty of Portsmouth sha by the specific term the payment amount	an amount not to an twelve months. losses in personal property from the ad structure of any the Chairmen of es. A treasury loan expansion of the ment is purchased all use to repay the as of the loan, the at due from funds		
54 55 56	E. Distribution of Washington Metropolitan Area Tran represents direct payments, of the revenue collected Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority for	and deposited into	the Fund, to the		

E. Distribution of Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority Capital Fund Revenues represents direct payments, of the revenue collected and deposited into the Fund, to the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority for uses pursuant to Chapter 34 of Title 33.2, Code of Virginia.

56 57

		Item D	etails(\$)	Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 453.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	F. Consistent with § 33.2-366, Code of Virginia, the Con Board, when establishing annual rates of payments to Co withdraw from the secondary highway system, shall adjust procedures established for adjusting payments to cities, and It is the express intent of the General Assembly, that under addition of lane miles to one jurisdiction result in the direct calculation of payment to any other jurisdiction receit appropriated for Financial Assistance for County Roa	ounties that h st such rate ar ii) lane mileag er no circums t or indirect re iving paymer	ave elected to mually with i) ge adjustments. tance shall the eduction in the nt from funds		

9 10 11	454.	Non-Toll Supported Transportation Debt Service (61200)			\$368,779,818 \$369,469,786	\$390,027,353 \$384,933,110
12 13		Highway Transportation Improvement District Debt Service (61201)	\$8,639,519	\$8,639,519		
14 15 16		Designated Highway Corridor Debt Service (61202)	\$57,580,183 \$55,935,686	\$69,853,813 \$64,321,062		
17 18 19		Commonwealth Transportation Capital Projects Bond Act Debt Service (61204)	\$179,370,270 \$187,706,263	\$177,641,395 \$188,168,113		
20 21 22		Federal Transportation Grant Anticipation Revenue Notes Debt Service (61205)	\$123,189,846 \$117,188,318	\$133,892,626 \$123,804,416		
23		Fund Sources: General	\$40,000,000	\$40,000,000		
24 25		Commonwealth Transportation	\$126,530,223 \$117,188,318	\$135,728,695 \$123,804,416		
26 27		Trust and Agency	\$195,085,520 \$204,649,770	\$207,402,784 \$213,496,996		
28 29		Federal Trust	\$7,164,075 \$7,631,698	\$6,895,874 \$7,631,698		

Authority: Titles 15.2, 33.2, and 58.1 of the Code of Virginia; Chapters 827 and 914, Acts of Assembly of 1990; Chapters 233 and 662, Acts of Assembly of 1994; Chapter 8, as amended by Chapter 538, Acts of Assembly of 1999; Chapters 1019 and 1044, Acts of Assembly of 2000; Chapter 799, Acts of Assembly of 2002; Chapter 896, Acts of Assembly of 2007; and Chapters 830 and 868, Acts of Assembly of 2011

- -----

30

31

32

33

34

35 A.1. The amount shown for Highway Transportation Improvement District Construction 36 shall be derived from payments made to the Transportation Trust Fund pursuant to the 37 Contract between the State Route 28 Highway Transportation Improvement District and 38 the Commonwealth Transportation Board dated September 1, 1988 as amended by the 39 Amended and Restated District Contract by and among the Commonwealth 40 Transportation Board, the Fairfax County Economic Development Authority and the State 41 Route 28 Highway Transportation Improvement District Commission (the "District 42 Commission") dated August 30, 2002, and May 1, 2012 (the "District Contract").

43 2. There is hereby appropriated for payment immediately upon receipt to a third party 44 approved by the Commonwealth Transportation Board, or a bond trustee selected by such 45 third party, a sum sufficient equal to the special tax revenues collected by the Counties of 46 Fairfax and Loudoun within the State Route 28 Highway Transportation Improvement 47 District and paid to the Commonwealth Transportation Board by or on behalf of the District Commission (the "contract payments") pursuant to § 15.2-4600 et seq., Code of 48 49 Virginia, and the District Contract between the Commonwealth Transportation Board and 50 the District Commission.

51 3. The contract payments may be supplemented from the Construction District Grant
52 Program pursuant to § 33.2-371 allocated to the highway construction district in which the
53 project financed is located, or any other lawfully available revenues of the Transportation
54 Trust Fund, as may be necessary to meet debt service obligations. The payment of debt
55 service shall be for the bonds (the Series 2012 Bonds) issued under the "Commonwealth
56 of Virginia Transportation Contract Revenue Bond Act of 1988" (Chapters 653 and 676,
57 Acts of Assembly of 1988 as amended by Chapters 827 and 914 of the Acts of Assembly

		Item Details(\$)		Appro	
ITEN	M 454. Fir	st Year	Second Year	First Year FY2019	
	F	FY2019 FY2020	FY2020		
1	of 1990) Funds required to pay the total debt service on the Series	2012 Bond	ls shall be made		

Appropriations(\$) irst Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

of 1990). Funds required to pay the total debt service on the Series 2012 Bonds shall be made
 available in the amounts indicated in paragraph E of this Item.

3 B.1. Out of the amounts for Designated Highway Corridor Construction, \$40,000,000 the first 4 year and \$40,000,000 the second year from the general fund shall be paid to the U.S. Route 58 5 Corridor Development Fund, hereinafter referred to as the "Fund", established pursuant to § 6 33.2-2300, Code of Virginia. This payment shall be in lieu of the deposit of state recordation 7 taxes to the Fund, as specified in the cited Code section. Said recordation taxes which would 8 otherwise be deposited to the Fund shall be retained by the general fund. Additional 9 appropriations required for the U.S. Route 58 Corridor Development Fund, an amount 10 estimated at \$9,000,000 the first year and \$9,000,000 \$20,000,000 the second year shall be 11 transferred from the highway share of the Transportation Trust Fund.

2. Pursuant to the "U.S. Route 58 Commonwealth of Virginia Transportation Revenue Bond
Act of 1989" (as amended by Chapter 538 of the 1999 Acts of Assembly and Chapter 296 of
the 2013 Acts of Assembly), the amounts shown in paragraph E of this Item shall be available
from the Fund for debt service for the bonds previously issued and additional bonds issued
pursuant to said act.

17 C.1. The Commonwealth Transportation Board shall maintain the Northern Virginia
18 Transportation District Fund, hereinafter referred to as the "Fund." Pursuant to § 33.2-2400,
19 Code of Virginia, and for so long as the Fund is required to support the issuance of bonds, the
20 Fund shall include at least the following elements:

a. Amounts transferred from Item 264 of this act to this Item.

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

36

37

38 39

40

41

42

b. Any public right-of-way use fees allocated by the Department of Transportation pursuant to \$ 56-468.1 of the Code of Virginia and attributable to the counties of Fairfax, Loudoun, and Prince William, the amounts estimated at \$5,315,304 the first year and \$5,315,304 the second year.

c. Any amounts which may be deposited into the Fund pursuant to a contract between the Commonwealth Transportation Board and a jurisdiction or jurisdictions participating in the Northern Virginia Transportation District Program, the amounts estimated to be \$816,000 the first year and \$816,000 the second year.

2. The Fund shall support the issuance of bonds at a total authorized level of \$500,200,000 for
the purposes provided in the "Northern Virginia Transportation District, Commonwealth of
Virginia Revenue Bond Act of 1993," Chapter 391, Acts of Assembly of 1993 as amended by
Chapters 470 and 597 of the Acts of Assembly of 1994, Chapters 740 and 761 of the Acts of
Assembly of 1998, Chapter 538 of the 1999 Acts of Assembly, Chapter 799 of the 2002 Acts
of Assembly, and Chapter 621 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly.

3. Pursuant to the Northern Virginia Transportation District, Commonwealth of Virginia Revenue Bond Act of 1993, Chapter 391, Acts of Assembly of 1993, and as amended by Chapters 470 and 597 of the Acts of Assembly of 1994, Chapters 740 and 761 of the Acts of Assembly of 1998, Chapter 538 of the 1999 Acts of Assembly, Chapter 799 of the 2002 Acts of Assembly, and Chapter 621 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly, amounts shown in paragraph E of this Item shall be available from the Fund for debt service for the bonds previously issued and additional bonds issued pursuant to said act.

- 43 4. Should the actual distribution of recordation taxes to the localities set forth in § 33.2-2400,
 44 Code of Virginia, exceed the amount required for debt service on the bonds issued pursuant to
 45 the above act, such excess amount shall be transferred to the Northern Virginia Transportation
 46 District Fund in furtherance of the program described in § 33.2-2401, Code of Virginia.
- 5. Should the actual distribution of recordation taxes to said localities be less than the amount
 required to pay debt service on the bonds, the Commonwealth Transportation Board is
 authorized to meet such deficiency, to the extent required, from funds identified in Enactment
 No. 1, Section 11, of Chapter 391, Acts of Assembly of 1993.
- 51 D.1. The Commonwealth Transportation Board shall maintain the City of Chesapeake account
 52 of the Set-aside Fund, pursuant to § 58.1-816.1, Code of Virginia, which shall include funds
 53 transferred from Item 264 of this act to this Item, and an amount estimated at \$1,000,000 the
 54 first year and \$1,000,000 the second year received from the City of Chesapeake pursuant to a

			etails(\$)		iations(\$)
ITEM 454		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	contract or other alternative mechanism for the purpose connector, City of Chesapeake Commonwealth of Virgi Revenue Bond Act of 1994," Chapters 233 and 662, Acts of referred to as the "Oak Grove Connector Act").	nia Transporta	tion Program		
5 6 7	2. The amounts shown in paragraph E of this Item shall b Chesapeake account of the Set-aside Fund for debt service to to the Oak Grove Connector Act.		-		
8 9 10 11 12 13	3. Should the actual distribution of recordation taxes and s City of Chesapeake as may be received pursuant to a c mechanism to the City of Chesapeake account of the Set amount required to pay debt service on the bonds, the Co Board is authorized to meet such deficiency, pursuant to En the Oak Grove Connector Act.	ontract or othe -aside Fund be mmonwealth T	er alternative less than the Transportation		
14 15 16 17	E. Pursuant to various Payment Agreements between t Commonwealth Transportation Board, funds required to pa following Commonwealth Transportation Board bonds shall Board as follows:	y the debt servi	ice due on the		
18		FY	2019		FY 2020
19 20 21	Transportation Contract Revenue Refund Bonds, Series 2012 (Refunding Route 28)	\$8,639	9,519		\$8,639,519
22 23 24 25	Commonwealth of Virginia Transportation Revenue Bonds: U.S. Route 58 Corridor Development Program:				
26	Series 2014B (Refunding)	\$24,142	2,000		\$24,139,500
27	Series 2016C (Refunding)	\$2,592	2,750		\$2,592,750
28 29 30	Series 2017C (Refunding) Northern Virginia Transportation District Program:	\$14,290			
31	Series 2009A-2	\$5,378	3,653		\$5,336,803
32	Series 2012A (Refunding)	\$9,790),538		\$2,559,038
33	Series 2014A (Refunding)	\$9,640),250		\$9,645,000
34	Series 2016B (Refunding)	\$2,358	3,750		\$463,500
35	Series 2017B (Refunding)	\$4,408	3,000		\$4,368,000
36 37	Transportation Program Revenue Bonds:				
38 39	Series 2016A (Oak Grove Connector, City of Chesapeake)	\$1,992	2,750		\$1,990,750
40	Capital Projects Revenue Bonds:				
41	Series 2010 A-2	\$35,882	2,155		\$35,660,925
42	Series 2011	\$42,10 9	,		\$42,107,800
43 44	Series 2012	\$21,097 \$40,279			\$21,096,500 \$40,277,205
44 45	56165 2012	\$40,275 \$29,163			\$29,161,550

ITEM 454.		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)		
		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1	Series 2014	\$18,220	\$18,226,700		\$18,224,700	
2	Series 2016	\$16,79	7,000		\$16,799,250	
3	Series 2017	\$16,524	4,688		\$16,525,938	
4	Series 2017A	\$30,408	8,400		\$30,408,400	
5	Series 2018	\$9,20	1,301		\$9,197,600	

F. Out of the amounts provided for in this Item, an estimated \$123,189,846 \$115,469,133 the
first year and \$133,892,626 \$123,804,416 the second year from federal reimbursements shall
be provided for debt service payments on the Federal Transportation Grant Anticipation
Revenue Notes.

10G. Out of the amounts provided for this Item, an estimated \$169,819,093 \$177,301,793 the11first year and \$169,595,863 \$188,168,113 the second year from the Priority Transportation12Fund shall be provided for debt service payments on the Commonwealth Transportation13Capital Projects Revenue Bonds. Any additional amounts needed to offset the debt service14payment requirements attributable to the issuance of the Capital Projects Revenue Bonds shall15be provided from the Transportation Trust Fund.

16 H. The Commonwealth Transportation Board is hereby authorized, by and with the consent of 17 the Governor, to issue, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Transportation 18 Development and Revenue Bond Act (§ 33.2-1700 et seq., Code of Virginia) as amended 19 from time to time, revenue obligations of the Commonwealth to be designated 20 "Commonwealth of Virginia Transportation Capital Projects Revenue Bonds, Series XXXX" 21 at one or more times in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$180,000,000, after all 22 costs. The net proceeds of the bonds shall be used exclusively for the purpose of providing 23 funds for paying the costs incurred or to be incurred for construction or funding of 24 transportation projects set forth in Item 449.10 of Chapter 847 of the Acts of Assembly of 25 2007, including but not limited to environmental and engineering studies; rights-of-way 26 acquisition; improvements to all modes of transportation; acquisition, construction and related 27 improvements; and any financing costs and other financing expenses. Such costs may include 28 the payment of interest on the bonds for a period during construction and not exceeding one 29 year after completion of construction of the projects. Notwithstanding the provisions of Item 30 449.10 of Chapter 847 of the acts of Assembly 2007, any remaining funding may be used for 31 the purposes set forth in subsection G of Item 453 of Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly.

- 32 455. Administrative and Support Services (69900)..... 33 34 \$141.489.732 \$144.879.504 General Management and Direction (69901)..... 35 \$147,188,104 \$150,993,064 36 Information Technology Services (69902)..... \$96.626.171 \$96.738.045 37 \$96,813,415 \$107,964,794 38 Facilities and Grounds Management Services 39 \$17,541,529 \$17,113,687 (69915)..... 40 \$17,169,363 \$17,653,302 41 Employee Training and Development (69924)..... \$18,584,482 \$17,390,344 42 \$18,646,135 \$17,465,039 \$273,814,072 \$276,549,422 43 Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation..... 44 \$279,817,017 \$294,076,199
- **45** Authority: Title 33.2, Code of Virginia.

46 A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the highway share of the Transportation Trust
47 Fund shall be used for highway maintenance and operation purposes prior to its availability
48 for new development, acquisition, and construction.

B. Administrative and Support Services shall include funding for management, direction, and
 administration to support the department's activities that cannot be directly attributable to
 individual programs and/or projects.

52 C. Out of the amounts for General Management and Direction, allocations shall be provided
 53 to the Commonwealth Transportation Board to support its operations, the payment of
 54 financial advisory and legal services, and the management of the Transportation Trust Fund.

\$273,814,072 \$2 \$279,817,017 \$2

\$276,549,422 \$294,076,199

ITEM 45	5.	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4	D. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the department costs of providing services to other entities, public and privat all actions necessary to ensure that all such costs are re- recovered, and understood as a condition to providing se	e. The department easonable and	nent shall take		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11	E. Each year, as part of the six-year financial planning proc implement a long-term business strategy that considers appro- department. In addition, the commissioner shall identify ser that will be evaluated for devolution or outsourcing in the up such evaluations, the commissioner is authorized to use the public and private, to competitively procure those identify projects and shall identify total costs for such activities.	priate staffing vices, program coming year. appropriate r	g levels for the ns, or projects In undertaking esources, both		
12 13 14 15	F. Notwithstanding § 4-2.03 of this act, the Virginia Departme exempt from recovering statewide and agency indirect costs Administration until an indirect cost plan can be evaluated a and approved by the Federal Highway Administration.	from the Fee	leral Highway		
16 17 18	G. The Director, Department of Planning and Budger appropriations and allotments for the Virginia Department changes in the official revenue estimates for commonwealt	of Transporta	ation to reflect		
19 20 21 22	H. Out of the amounts for General Management and Dira provided to support the capital lease agreement with Fairfa Virginia District building. An amount estimated at \$7,8 \$7,800,000 the second year from Commonwealth Transportat	ax County for 800,000 the	r the Northern first year and		
23 24 25	I. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the Com Commissioner may enter into a contract with homeowner keeping, mowing, and litter removal services.				
26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35	J. Notwithstanding the provisions § 2.2-2402 of the Code of erection, repair, upgrade, removal or demolition of any bu- located or to be located on property of the Commonwealth of the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) and w residency, area headquarters or district complex shall be subj the Art and Architectural Review Board as contemplated by changes to any building or fixture located on property owned has been designated or is under consideration for designation VDOT shall submit such changes to the Art and Architectur and approval by the Board.	hilding, fixtur Virginia unde vithin the sec ect to review v that section. or controlled h as a historic	re or structure r the control of ured area of a or approval by However, for by VDOT that property, then		
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49	K. The Virginia Department of Transportation is authorized to of land containing approximately 0.1923 acre located along t its original Callaway Area Headquarters parcel, Tax Map P E. Bowman, Jr. and Elizabeth H. Bowman, husband and wife, of an existing easement in favor of the Bowmans acros Commonwealth, as shown in those certain deeds and plats re Page 1622 and Deed Book 1114, Page 1630 in the Clerk's G Franklin County, Virginia, and the conveyance from the Be containing approximately 0.3582 acres located adjacent to original parcel, all as shown on a plat to be agreed to betwee value of the land to be acquired by VDOT shall be equal to the land to be transferred from VDOT. The exact property to b for this transaction is subject to change or adjustment provid requirements for value and form are met, and the appropriate	he southeaste Parcel #05800 in return for t ss certain pr ecorded at De Office of the C owmans of a o and northw n the Parties. or greater tha oe conveyed as ed that all part	rn boundary of 04200, to Earl he termination operty of the eed Book 1114, ircuit Court of parcel of land est of VDOT's The appraised an the value of s consideration rties agree, the		

requirements for value and form are met, and the appropriate approvals are obtained. The

conveyances shall be made with the recommendation of the Department of General

Services, the approval of the Governor and shall be in a form approved by the Attorney

General. The appropriate officials of the Commonwealth are hereby authorized to

prepare, execute, and deliver such deed and other documents as may be necessary to

L. 1. At such time as the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) determines that

the VDOT Residency office, on five acres, at 626 Waddell Street, in the City of Lexingon is

48 49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

accomplish the conveyance.

	ITEM 455		Ite First Yes FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		no longer required for VDOT's purposes, it shall offer Lexington prior to offering the property for transfer agency or entity or individual, on such terms and co	or sale to any othe	er public or private		
4 5 6 7		2. The Virginia Department of Transportation and the separate appraisal of the property, each perform Commonwealth of Virginia as Certified General Real F competency provisions of the Uniform Standards of Pro-	ed by an apprais Property Appraisers	er licensed by the , who must meet the	2	
8 9 10 11		3. VDOT shall offer the property to the City of Lexingto by averaging the values from the two appraisals obtain of the transfer shall be based on usual and customo transfers.	ied in L.2. above. A	ny other condition.	5	
12 13 14 15 16 17		4. If the Virginia Department of Transportation and the terms of the transfer of the property, VDOT may tran public or private agency or entity or individual on succinterest of the Virginia Department of Transportation, the City of Lexington for its consideration prior to fina party.	nsfer or sell the pr h terms as it detern however it will pr	operty to any othe nines are in the bes esent those terms to	r t D	
18 19	456.	A full accrual system of accounting shall be effected authority of the State Comptroller, as stated in § 2.			2	
20 21		Total for Department of Transportation			\$6,186,479,519 \$6,870,395,381	\$5,761,064,373 \$6,382,181,734
22 23		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	7,735.00 7,735.00	7,735.00 7,735.00		
24 25		Fund Sources: General	\$40,000,000 \$115,000,000	\$40,000,000		
23 26 27		Commonwealth Transportation	\$5,123,936,680 \$5,709,320,669	\$4,558,951,130 \$5,173,438,456		
28 29		Trust and Agency	\$420,478,764 \$430,043,014	\$550,617,369 \$556,711,580		
30 31		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$594,900,000 \$608,400,000	\$604,600,000 \$604,400,000		
32 33		Federal Trust	\$7,164,075 \$7,631,698	\$6,895,874 \$7,631,698		
34		§ 1-126. MOTOR VEHI	CLE DEALER BO	DARD (506)		
35 36	457.	Consumer Affairs Services (55000)			\$277,833	\$277,833 \$282.283
30 37 38		Consumer Assistance (55002)	\$277,833	\$277,833 \$282,283		<i>\$</i> 202,203
39 40		Fund Sources: Special	\$277,833	\$277,833 \$282,283		
41		Authority: Title 46.2, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.				
42 43	458.	Regulation of Professions and Occupations (56000)			\$2,697,139	\$2,697,139 \$2,779.014
44 45		Motor Vehicle Dealer and Salesman Regulation (56023)	\$1,436,275	\$1,436,275		<i>\$2,779,014</i>
46 47 48		Administrative Services (56048)	\$1,260,864	\$1,457,305 \$1,260,864 \$1,321,709		
49 50		Fund Sources: Special	\$2,697,139	\$2,697,139 \$2,779,014		
51		Authority: Title 46.2, Chapter 15, Code of Virginia.				

ITEM 458.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020		
1 2		Total for Motor Vehicle Dealer Board			\$2,974,972	\$2,974,972 \$3,061,297	
3 4		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	25.00 25.00	25.00 25.00			
5 6		Fund Sources: Special	\$2,974,972	\$2,974,972 \$3,061,297			
7		§ 1-127. VIRGINIA PO	ORT AUTHORIT	Y (407)			
8 9 10	459.	Economic Development Services (53400) National and International Trade Services (53413) Commerce Advertising (53426)	\$4,481,946 \$1,250,000	\$4,481,946 \$1,500,000	\$5,731,946	\$5,981,946	
11		Fund Sources: Special	\$5,731,946	\$5,981,946			
12		Authority: Title 62.1, Chapter 10, Code of Virginia.					
13 14 15 16 17 18	460.	Port Facilities Planning, Maintenance, Acquisition, and Construction (62600) Maintenance and Operations of Ports and Facilities (62601) Port Facilities Planning (62606) Debt Service for Port Facilities (62607)	\$28,926,314 \$1,280,247 \$63,632,363	\$28,926,314 \$1,280,247 \$63,632,363	\$93,838,924	\$93,838,924	
19 20 21		Fund Sources: Special Commonwealth Transportation Federal Trust	\$49,495,191 \$41,343,733 \$3,000,000	\$49,495,191 \$41,343,733 \$3,000,000			
22		Authority: Title 62.1, Chapter 10; Title 33.2, Chapter 1	l, Code of Virginia				
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34		 Autority: The 62.1, Chapter 10, The 53.2, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia. A. 1. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the Virginia Port Authority refunded bonds issued on October 22, 1996, in the amount of \$38,300,000 for the purposes of completing the Phase II Expansion at Norfolk International Terminals and replacing and improving equipment at other port facilities. The debt service on the 2006 refunding bonds is estimated to be \$1,440,100 the first year and \$1,440,100 the second year and all or a portion of such 2006 refunding bonds may be refunded by the authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the Virginia Port Authority issued Commonwealth Port Fund bonds on April 14, 2005, in the amount of \$60,000,000, for the purpose of regrading and reconstruction of Norfolk International Terminals (South), Phase III, land acquisition, and other improvements, 					
35 36 37		Capital Project 407-16644. The debt service on bor estimated to be \$4,033,900 the first year and \$4,032 portion of such bonds may be refunded by the Author Virginia.	3,900 the second y	year, and all or a			
38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45		3. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with Virginia Port Authority may issue Commonwealth P \$125,000,000, for the purpose of developing the C creating road and rail access to such terminal, capital also be used for the purpose of constructing warehouse Port Authority. All or a portion of such bonds may be to \$ 62.1-140, Code of Virginia. The debt service paragraph is estimated to be \$9,500,000 the first ye	ort Fund bonds up raney Island Mari project 407-17513. es at a facility owne e refunded by the a e on the bonds re	to the amount of ne Terminal and Such bonds may ed by the Virginia uthority pursuant ferenced in this			
46 47 48 49 50 51 52		It is hereby acknowledged that the Virginia Port Au Commonwealth Port Fund bonds noted in the para purpose of developing the Craney Island Marine T access to such terminal, capital project 407-17513. Th in this paragraph is estimated to be \$2,868,500 the fi year, and all or a portion of such bonds may be refur 62.1-140, Code of Virginia.	agraph above in Ju erminal and creati he debt service on irst year and \$2,86	uly 2011 for the ing road and rail bonds referenced 8,500 the second			

	Item Details(\$) Appropriat	Appropriations(\$)						
ITEM 4	460.First YearSecond YearFirst YearFY2019FY2020FY2019	Second Y FY202						
1	4. In the event revenues of the Commonwealth Port Fund are insufficient to provide for the							
2	debt service on the Virginia Port Authority Commonwealth Port Fund Revenue Bonds							

debt service on the Virginia Port Authority Commonwealth Port Fund Revenue Bonds authorized by paragraphs A 1, A 2, A 3, and A 4; or any bonds payable from the revenues of the Commonwealth Port Fund, there is hereby appropriated a sum sufficient first from the legally available moneys in the Transportation Trust Fund and then from the general fund to provide for this debt service. Total debt service on the bonds referenced in paragraphs A 1, A 2, A 3, and A 4 is estimated at \$31,579,000 the first year and \$31,579,000 the second year.

3

4

5

6

7

8 5. Notwithstanding § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the aggregate principal amount of 9 Commonwealth Port Fund bonds, and including any other long-term commitment that utilizes 10 the Commonwealth Port Fund, shall not exceed \$440,000,000.

- 11 6. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the 12 Virginia Port Authority issued Commonwealth Port Fund bonds on January 25, 2012 in the 13 amount of \$108,015,000 to refund Commonwealth Port Fund bonds originally issued on July 14 11, 2002. Debt service on bonds referenced in this paragraph is estimated to be \$9,056,000 the 15 first year and \$9,056,000 the second year, and all or a portion of such bonds may be refunded 16 by the Authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia.
- 17 7. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the 18 Virginia Port Authority issued Commonwealth Port Fund bonds on September 26, 2012 in the 19 amount of \$50,025,000 to refund a portion of Commonwealth Port Fund bonds originally 20 issued on April 14, 2005. Debt service on bonds referenced in the paragraph is estimated to be 21 \$4,680,193 the first year, and \$4,680,193 the second year, and all or a portion of such bonds 22 may be refunded by the Authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia.
- 23 B.1. In accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the Virginia Port Authority has issued 24 Port Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 1997, in the amount of \$98,065,000 to finance the cost 25 of capital projects for the Virginia Port Authority marine and intermodal terminals. In 26 accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the Virginia Port Authority refunded certain 27 maturities of the bonds in 2007. The debt service on the 2007 refunding bonds is estimated at 28 \$6,347,500 the first year and \$6,347,500 the second year from special funds and all or a 29 portion of such bonds may be refunded by the authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of 30 Virginia. The Virginia Port Authority is authorized to transfer to the Virginia International 31 Terminals Inc. (VIT), from the revenues of the authority's port facilities, funds that are 32 available for the purpose under the Authority's applicable Bond Resolution.
- 33 2. In accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the Virginia Port Authority on June 18, 34 2003, issued additional Port Facilities Revenue bonds in the amount of \$55,155,000 to 35 regrade and reconstruct the Norfolk International Terminal (South) backlands (Phase II, 36 capital outlay project 407-16644), and to construct security related facilities at Norfolk 37 International Terminals (North) and Portsmouth Marine Terminal (capital outlay project 407-38 16961). Total debt service on these bonds referenced in this paragraph is estimated at 39 \$688,300 the first year and \$688,300 the second year from special funds, and all or a portion 40 of such bonds may be refunded by the authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia.
- 41 3. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the 42 Virginia Port Authority may issue additional bonds, in an amount of up to \$90,000,000, for 43 the purposes of the reconstruction and expansion of Norfolk International Terminals, and 44 other improvements to port facilities (capital outlay project 407-17252). The debt service on 45 these bonds, estimated to be \$3,984,000 the first year and \$3,984,000 the second year, will be 46 paid from special funds, and all or a portion of such bonds may be refunded by the authority 47 pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia.
- 48 4. Prior to the 2006-2008 biennium, the Virginia Port Authority purchased, through their 49 master equipment lease program, equipment at a total cost of \$60,163,170 (capital outlay 50 project 407-16962 and capital outlay project 407-16989). Total debt service on the equipment 51 leases referenced in this paragraph is estimated at \$2,228,000 the first year and \$2,228,000 the 52 second year from special funds, and such lease purchases may be refunded by the authority.
- 53 5. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the 54 Virginia Port Authority is authorized to purchase, through a purchase agreement (master 55 equipment lease program), terminal operating equipment at a total cost of \$41,493,035

Second Year

FY2020

Item I	Details(\$)
First Year	Second

First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020 Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

(capital outlay project 407-16962). Total debt service referenced in this paragraph, including any interim financing issued in anticipation of such program, is estimated at \$4,706,000 the first year and \$4,706,000 the second year from special funds, and such lease purchases may be refunded by the authority.

ITEM 460.

1 2

3

4

5 6. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the 6 Virginia Port Authority on April 21, 2010, issued Port Facilities Revenue Refunding 7 bonds in an amount of \$68,630,000, for the purposes of the reconstruction and expansion 8 of Norfolk International Terminals (NIT), reconstruction and expansion of Portsmouth Marine Terminal (PMT), land acquisitions adjacent to NIT and PMT, and other 9 10 improvements to port facilities (capital outlay project 407-16644). The debt service on 11 these bonds, estimated to be \$4,825,000 the first year and \$4,825,000 the second year, will 12 be paid from special funds, and all or a portion of such bonds may be refunded by the 13 authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia.

14 7. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the 15 Virginia Port Authority may issue short-term debt on a revolving basis as interim or 16 anticipation financing in order to cover costs of planning, design, and construction 17 pending the receipt of bond or master equipment lease program proceeds authorized in 18 paragraphs A 4, B 5, and B 6 in an amount not to exceed the authorized amount for the 19 projects. In the aggregate, the short-term debt shall not exceed \$200,000,000 at any point 20 in time and all or a portion of such debt may be refunded by the Authority pursuant to § 21 62.1-140, Code of Virginia. The debt service, including associated fees, on the short-term 22 debt may be paid, as recommended by the authority and approved by the Board, from the 23 bond or master equipment lease proceeds, special funds, or other revenues or proceeds.

- 8. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the
 Virginia Port Authority may issue additional bonds, in an amount up to \$105,500,000 for
 purposes of expanding port terminal capacity (capital outlay project 407-17956). All or a
 portion of such bonds may be refunded by the authority pursuant to § 62.1-140, Code of
 Virginia. The debt service on these bonds, estimated to be \$8,500,000 the first year and
 \$8,500,000 the second year, will be paid from special funds.
- 30 9. Total debt service paid from special funds for all bonds, lease agreements, and short31 term debt noted herein shall not exceed \$45,000,000 the first year and \$45,000,000 the
 32 second year, unless approved by the Governor upon execution of the capital lease
 33 authorized by Item C-40.10 of Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly. Such approval shall
 34 be reported to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees
 35 within five days of the Governor's action.
- 10. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the
 Virginia Port Authority issued Port Facilities Revenue bonds on October 22, 3013, in the
 amount of \$37,945,000 to refund a portion of Port Facilities Revenue bonds originally
 issued on June 18, 2003 and October 17, 2006. Debt service on bonds referenced in this
 paragraph is estimated to be \$1,172,500 the first year and \$1,172,500 the second year, and
 all or a portion of such bonds may be refunded by the Authority pursuant to § 62.1-140,
 Code of Virginia.
- 11. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the
 Virginia Port Authority is authorized to purchase, through a purchase agreement (master
 equipment lease program), terminal operating equipment at a total estimated cost of
 \$37,000,000. Total debt service referenced in this paragraph (including any interim
 financing issued in anticipation of such program), is estimated at \$8,900,000 the first year
 and \$8,900,000 the second year from special funds, and such lease purchases may be
 refunded by the Authority.
- 12. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with § 62.1-140, Code of Virginia, the
 Virginia Port Authority on November 17, 2016, issued Port Facilities Revenue Refunding
 bonds in the amounts of \$143,965,000, \$99,230,000 and 37,335,000 for the purposes of
 defeasing and refunding special fund debt authorized by paragraphs B1, B2, B3 and B6.
 The debt service on these bonds, estimated to be \$17,600,000 the first year and
 \$17,600,000 the second year, will be paid from special funds, and all or a portion of such
 bonds may be refunded by the authority pursuant to \$62.1-140, Code of Virginia.

ITEM	I 460.	First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	C. In order to remain consistent with the grant of author 128 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, the Virginia Por independent payroll and nonpayroll disbursement sy systems, to open and maintain an appropriate account depositories. As implementation occurs, these systems a to review and approval by the State Comptroller. The to provide nonpayroll transaction detail to the State Co Accounting and Reporting System (Cardinal).	t Authority is author ystems and, in conno- with a qualified pub and related procedure Virginia Port Author	rized to maintain ection with such lic depository, or es shall be subject ity shall continue	FY2019	FY2020
9 10 11	D. Out of the amounts in this Item, \$10,000,000 the f year from the Commonwealth Port Fund may be used to the Virginia International Gateway capital lease.	•			
12 13 14 15	E. The Virginia Port Authority shall include the Com Relocation Project Phase 2 - I-664 Pughsville Road to I of its long-range plan for the development of the Crane road and rail access to such terminal.	Bowers Hill - Feasibi	lity Study as part		
 16 461. 17 18 	. Financial Assistance for Port Activities (62800) Aid to Localities (62801) Payment in Lieu of Taxes (62802)	\$3,350,000 \$2,530,725	\$3,350,000 \$2,531,925	\$5,880,725	\$5,881,925
19 20 21	Fund Sources: General Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$1,000,000 \$2,880,725 \$2,000,000	\$1,000,000 \$2,881,925 \$2,000,000		
22	Authority: Title 62.1. Chapter 10. Code of Virginia.				

22 Authority: Title 62.1, Chapter 10, Code of Virginia.

23 A. Of the amounts in this Item, \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from 24 the general fund is appropriated for service charges to be paid to localities in which the 25 Virginia Port Authority owns tax-exempt real estate. The funds shall be transferred to Item 26 451 of this act for distribution by the Commonwealth Transportation Board for roadway 27 maintenance activities in the jurisdictions hosting Virginia Port Authority facilities and shall 28 be treated as other Commonwealth Transportation Board payments to localities for highway 29 maintenance. These funds shall not be used for other activities nor shall they supplant other 30 local government expenditures for roadway maintenance. These funds shall be distributed to 31 the localities on a pro rata basis in accordance with the formula set out in § 58.1-3403 D, 32 Code of Virginia; however, the proportion of the funds distributed based on cargo traveling 33 through each port facility shall be distributed on a pro rata basis according to twenty-foot 34 equivalent units.

35 B. Of the amounts authorized in Item 103 A.1., \$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,000,000 the 36 second year from the general fund may be deposited in the Port of Virginia Economic and 37 Infrastructure Development Zone Grant Fund, created pursuant to § 62.1-132.3:2, Code of 38 Virginia. The Executive Director of the Virginia Port Authority shall disburse the funding in 39 the form of grants to qualified companies in accordance with the provisions of § 62.1-132.3:2, 40 Code of Virginia.

41 C. Of the amounts in this Item, \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from 42 the Commonwealth Port Fund is appropriated for previously awarded Aid to Local Ports 43 which were unreimbursed in the year of the initial award.

44 D. Out of amounts in this item, \$1,350,000 the first year and \$1,350,000 the second year from 45 amounts transferred to this item pursuant § 3-1.01 M. of this act, the Authority shall award a 46 grant of funds to a qualified applicant or applicants to support a dredging project or projects 47 that have been approved by the Authority. The source of the grant funds shall be the Virginia 48 Waterway Maintenance Fund created pursuant to § 62.1-132.3:3. Applicants shall be limited 49 to political subdivisions and the governing bodies of Virginia localities. The Authority shall 50 develop guidelines establishing an application process as set out in Chapter 642, 2018 Session 51 of the General Assembly. Projects for which the Authority may award grant funding include 52 (i) feasibility and cost evaluations, pre-project engineering studies, and project permitting and 53 contracting costs for a waterway project conducted by the Commonwealth; (ii) the state 54 portion of a nonfederal sponsor funding requirement for a federal project, which may include 55 the beneficial use of dredged materials that are not covered by federal funding; (iii) the Year

1.925

ITEN	1 461.	Ite First Ye FY2019			oriations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4 5 6	Commonwealth's maintenance of shallow-draft navig dredging and the construction and management of material; and (iv) the beneficial use, for environmer coastal erosion or flooding, of dredged materials from Commonwealth. Special consideration shall be giv three-to-one match for any requested funding in th	areas for the plac ntal restoration an n waterway projec en to any locality	cement of dredged d the mitigation of ts conducted by the	 ; ;	
7 462 8 9	 Administrative and Support Services (69900) General Management and Direction (69901) Security Services (69923) 	\$100,916,121 \$11,949,831	\$105,207,161 \$12,173,852	\$112,865,952	\$117,381,013
10 11	Fund Sources: Special Commonwealth Transportation	\$111,565,952 \$1,300,000	\$116,081,013 \$1,300,000		
12	Authority: Title 62.1, Chapter 10, Code of Virginia.				
13 14 15 16	A. Out of the amounts in this Item, the Executive D special funds amounts not to exceed \$37,500 the fir for entertainment expenses commonly borne by busi be recorded separately by the agency.	st year and \$37,50	00 the second year	,	
17 18 19	B. Prior to purchasing airline and hotel accommoda Virginia Port Authority shall provide an itemized list Secretary of Transportation.				
20 21 22 23 24 25	C. It is hereby acknowledged that, in accordance with Virginia Acts of Assembly, on November 17, 2016, year operating lease to operate a privately owned m year capital lease terminating December 31, 2065. estimated at \$86,700,000 the first year and \$90,10 funds to cover the costs of this lease.	, the Port Authori arine terminal in I Included in this	ty converted its 20 Portsmouth to a 49 Item is an amount		
26	Total for Virginia Port Authority			\$218,317,547	\$223,083,808
27 28	Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	236.00 236.00	236.00 236.00		
29 30 31 32	Fund Sources: General Special Commonwealth Transportation Federal Trust	\$1,000,000 \$169,673,814 \$44,643,733 \$3,000,000	\$1,000,000 \$174,440,075 \$44,643,733 \$3,000,000		
33 34	TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF TRANSPORTATION			\$7,458,893,989 \$8,142,827,863	\$7,035,705,622 \$7,656,987,266
35 36	Nongeneral Fund Positions	10,180.00	10,180.00 10,183.00		
37 38	Position Level	10,180.00	10,180.00 10,183.00		
39 40	Fund Sources: General	\$41,030,246 \$116,030,246	\$41,030,246		
41 42	Special	\$174,788,630	\$179,554,891 \$179,641,216		
43 44	Commonwealth Transportation	\$6,094,061,321 \$6,679,463,322	\$5,526,536,289 \$6,141,101,573		
45 46	Trust and Agency	\$431,425,364 \$440,989,614	\$561,563,969 \$567,658,180		
47 48	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$674,700,000 \$688,200,000	\$684,400,000 \$684,200,000		
49 50	Federal Trust	\$42,888,428 \$43,356,051	\$42,620,227 \$43,356,051		

]	ITEM 463.		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1		OFFICE OF VETERANS A	ND DEFENSE A	FFAIRS			
2		§ 1-128. SECRETARY OF VETERAN	IS AND DEFENS	E AFFAIRS (454)			
3 4	463.	Disaster Planning and Operations (72200) Emergency Planning (72205)	\$1,242,908	\$1,242,908	\$1,242,908	\$1,242,908	
5 6		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$870,878 \$372,030	\$870,878 \$372,030			
7		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapter 3.1, Code of Virginia.					
8 9		Included in this Item is \$200,000 the first year and \$190,00 fund for the grant match required for an Office of Economic					
10	464.	Economic Development Services (53400)			\$600,000	\$600,000	
11 12		Financial Assistance for Economic Development (53410)	\$600,000	\$600,000			
13		Fund Sources: General	\$600,000	\$600,000			
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		A.1. Any administrative reappropriations or other admin pursuant to Item 458 of the Appropriation Act for the 20 encroachment of incompatible uses in localities in which Base, an auxiliary landing field, or United States Air Force be governed by the provisions contained in the 2014-2016 dedicated special (nongeneral) fund component of the Auxiliary Landing Field encroachment mitigation progr 2020.	014-2016 biennium the United States Base are located Appropriation Act U.S. Navy Mast	m to address the Navy Master Jet shall continue to ct. The recurring, er Jet Base and			
22 23 24 25		2. In the event that dedicated special revenues generated 2014-16 Appropriations Act exceed the amounts needed t that Act, any excess dedicated special fund revenue appropriated as follows:	to fund the require	ements set out in			
26 27		a. \$1,700,000 for encroachment mitigation activities in Landing Field Fentress;	the vicinity of I	Naval Auxiliary			
28		b. \$700,000 for encroachment mitigation activities in the v and	vicinity of Langley	Air Force Base;			
29 30		c. \$600,000 for encroachment mitigation activities in t Oceana.	the vicinity of Na	aval Air Station			
31 32 33 34 35 36		3. The amounts identified in paragraph A.2. of this item shall be used to provide additional assistance to the locality in which the United States Navy Master Jet Base auxiliary landing field is located for the purpose of purchasing property or development rights and otherwise converting such property to an appropriate compatible use and prohibiting new uses or development which is deemed incompatible with air operations arising from such Master Jet Base.					
37 38 39		B. Included in this appropriation is \$600,000 in the first ye from the general fund to support the recommendations of Military Installations and Defense Activities.		-			
40 41 42 43 44 45 46		C. The Secretary of Veterans and Defense Affairs may sul expand, develop, or redevelop a federal or state milita infrastructure, to enhance its military value to the ME established pursuant to § 30-309, Code of Virginia. The approval or denial of such packages to the General Commission to consider and evaluate such projects shal provided to the MEI Project Approval Commission and	ary installation o El Project Approv ne Commission sl Assembly. The a l be in addition to	r its supporting val Commission hall recommend authority of the o the authorities			
47		Total for Secretary of Veterans and Defense Affairs			\$1,842,908	\$1,842,908	

]	ITEM 464		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		General Fund Positions Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	4.00 2.00 6.00	4.00 2.00 6.00		
4 5		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust	\$1,470,878 \$372,030	\$1,470,878 \$372,030		
6		§ 1-129. DEPARTMENT OF	VETERANS SER	VICES (912)		
7	465.	State Health Services (43000)			\$60,127,320	\$72,859,427
8		Veterans Care Center Operations (43013)	\$60,127,320	\$72,859,427		
9		Fund Sources: General	\$50,000	\$50,000		
10		Special	\$33,548,012	\$45,544,638		
11		Federal Trust	\$26,529,308	\$27,264,789		
12		Authority: § Title 2.2, Chapters 20, 24, 26, and 27, Co	de of Virginia.			
13 14	466.	Veterans Benefit Services (46700)			\$17,635,740	\$17,896,444 \$19,491,136
15 16 17		Case Management Services for Veterans Benefits (46701)	\$7,996,947	\$8,144,957 \$8,622,348		+
18 19 20		Virginia Veteran and Family Support Services (46702)	\$4,866,878	\$4,866,878 \$5,500,878		
21 22 23		Veterans Education, Transition, and Employment Services (46703)	\$3,975,415	\$4,088,109 \$4,571,410		
24		Veterans Services Fund Administration (46704)	\$796,500	\$796,500		
25 26		Fund Sources: General	\$15,652,998	\$15,913,702 \$17,508,394		
27 28		Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$796,500 \$1,186,242	\$796,500 \$1,186,242		
29		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapters 20, 24, 26, and 27, Code		1 7 - 7		
30 31 32 33 34 35		A. 1. Out of this appropriation, up to \$500,000 in the second year from the general fund shall be provided support of a grant program to create employment opp Virginia employers in hiring and retaining veterans. T shall develop program guidelines to ensure that the fun maximum participation of firms to increase the number	first year and up to to address the costs portunities for vete he Department of V nding mechanism ef	s associated with rans by assisting /eterans Services ffectively attracts		
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43		2. Such funds shall be used to provide grants beginning July 1, 2015, to any business located in Virginia with 300 or fewer employees which has hired a veteran on or after July 1, 2014, with the following additional requirements: (a) each such veteran shall have been hired within five years of the date of his or her discharge from active military service and (b) each such veteran shall have been continuously employed by the business in a full-time job for at least one year. The grant shall equal \$1,000 per qualifying business for each veteran who has been hired, and who qualifies under the provisions of this item, up to a maximum grant of \$10,000 per business in the fiscal year.				
44 45 46 47		3. Grants shall be issued in the order that each compl In the event that the amount of eligible grants request available in the Fund, such grants shall be paid in the available.	ed in a fiscal year e	exceeds the funds		
48 49 50		4. The Department shall report no later than Octo program is implemented on the demand for the pro resulting from requests in excess of the available ap	gram, and any sho			
51 52		B. Any general fund appropriation for the Virginia V service area which remains unexpended at the end of				

ITEM 466.			Item Details(\$)			
	ITEM 466.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		and allotted for expenditure for the second year.				
2 3 4 5 6		C.1. Notwithstanding § 23.1-608, Code of Virginia, the Council of Higher Education in Virginia the information r Virginia Military Survivors and Dependent Education Pr the responsibility to certify the eligibility of those who program.	these schools need ogram. The depart	to administer the ment shall retain		
7 8 9		2. No surviving spouse or child may receive the education Code of Virginia, and funded by this or similar state appro- or its equivalent.				
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		D. For the Virginia Values Veterans Program, the Depart (i) the program's specific effect on employers' knowledge retain veterans as civilian sector employees, (ii) the prog decisions to hire more veterans than if employers did not the time and effort required by employers to participate in also develop a plan to improve the effect of the Virg employer knowledge and hiring decisions, and reduc participating employers. The plan should evaluate whether the program, or whether program resources could be more to help veterans. If it is determined that program improver define those specific changes to the program, as well as th both Department staff and contractors in implementing an Department shall provide its assessment and recommender Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later th	of how to appropri- gram's specific effer participate in the p the program. The inia Values Veter er the time and effer er improvements s e effectively used be nents should be ma e roles, responsibility such recommen d plan to the Chair	iately recruit and ect on employers' program, and (iii) Department shall cans Program on ffort required of hould be made to by other programs ide, the plan shall ities, and costs to ded changes. The men of the House		
24 25	467.	Historic and Commemorative Attraction Management (50200)			\$4,547,749	\$4,912,749
26 27 28 29		State Veterans Cemetery Management and Operations (50206) Virginia War Memorial Management and Operations (50209)	\$3,076,394 \$1,471,355	\$3,441,394 \$1,471,355		
30		Fund Sources: General	\$2,601,164	\$2,901,164		
31		Special	\$348,466	\$348,466		
32		Federal Trust	\$1,598,119	\$1,663,119		
33		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapters 20, 24, 26, and 27, Code of	Virginia.			
34 35 36		The Department of General Services shall continue to pr maintenance for the Virginia War Memorial as part of s government rental plan.				
37	468.	Administrative and Support Services (49900)			\$2,773,744	\$2,773,744 \$2,913,744
38 39 40		General Management and Direction (49901)	\$2,773,744	\$2,773,744 \$2,913,744		\$2,915,744
41 42		Fund Sources: General	\$2,357,446	\$2,357,446 \$2,497,446		
4 3		Special	\$416,298	\$416,298		
44		Authority: Title 2.2, Chapters 20, 24, 26, 27, Code of Virg	inia.			
45 46 47		Included within the general fund appropriation for this is and up to \$160,000 the second year to support the op Foundation.				
48 49		Total for Department of Veterans Services			\$85,084,553	\$98,442,364 \$100,177,056
50 51		General Fund Positions	211.00	216.00 234.00		
51 52		Nongeneral Fund Positions	625.00	865.00		

			Item	Details(\$)	Approp	riations(\$)
]	ITEM 468		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		Position Level	836.00	1,081.00 1,099.00		
3 4		Fund Sources: General	\$20,661,608	\$21,222,312 \$22,957,004		
5		Special	\$34,312,776	\$46,309,402		
6		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$796,500	\$796,500		
7		Federal Trust	\$29,313,669	\$30,114,150		
8		§ 1-130. VETERANS SER	VICES FOUNDAT	TION (913)		
9	469.	Veterans Benefit Services (46700)			\$796,500	\$796,500
10		Veterans Services Fund Administration (46704)	\$796,500	\$796,500		
11		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$796,500	\$796,500		
12		Authority: §§ 2.2-2715 through 2.2-2718, Code of Vir	ginia			
13 14	470.	Administrative and Support Services (49900) General Management and Direction (49901)	\$115,000	\$115,000	\$115,000	\$115,000
15		Fund Sources: General	\$115,000	\$115,000		
16		Authority: §§ 2.2-2715 through 2.2-2718, Code of Vir	ginia			
17		Total for Veterans Services Foundation			\$911,500	\$911,500
18		General Fund Positions	1.00	1.00		
19		Position Level	1.00	1.00		
20		Fund Sources: General	\$115,000	\$115,000		
21		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$796,500	\$796,500		
22 23 24		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF VETERANS AND DEFENSE AFFAIRS			\$87,838,961	\$101,196,772 \$102,931,464
25 26		General Fund Positions	216.00	221.00 239.00		
27		Nongeneral Fund Positions	627.00	867.00		
28 29		Position Level	843.00	1,088.00 1,106.00		
30 31		Fund Sources: General	\$22,247,486	\$22,808,190 \$24,542,882		
32		Special	\$34,312,776	\$46,309,402		
33		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,593,000	\$1,593,000		
34		Federal Trust	\$29,685,699	\$30,486,180		

ITEM 471.	First Year FY2019
	CENTRAL APPROPRIATIONS

1

2

13

14

15

16

§ 1-131. CENTRAL APPROPRIATIONS (995)

3 4 5	471.	Higher Education Academic, Fiscal, and Facility Planning and Coordination (11100)			\$8,491,533 \$10,756,833
6 7 8		Interest Earned on Educational and General Programs Revenue (11106)	\$8,491,533 \$10,756,833	\$8,491,533 \$10,756,833	
9 10		Fund Sources: General	\$6,543,416 \$7,231,017	\$6,543,416 \$7,231,017	
11 12		Higher Education Operating	\$1,948,117 \$3,525,816	\$1,948,117 \$3,525,816	

A. The standards upon which the public institutions of higher education are deemed certified to receive the payment of interest earnings from the tuition and fees and other nongeneral fund Educational and General revenues shall be based upon the standards provided in § 4-9.01 of this act, as approved by the General Assembly.

17 B. The estimated interest earnings and other revenues shall be distributed to those specific 18 public institutions of higher education that have been certified by the State Council of Higher 19 Education for Virginia as having met the standards provided in § 4-9.01 of this act, based on 20 the distribution methodology developed pursuant to Chapter 933, Enactment 2, Acts of Assembly of 2005 and reported to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations Committee and 21 Senate Finance Committee. 22

23 C. In accordance with § 2.2-5004 and 5005, Code of Virginia, this Item provides \$3,371,977 24 \$4,573,395 the first year and \$3,371,977 \$4,573,395 the second year from the general fund, 25 and \$1,948,117 \$3,525,816 from nongeneral funds in the first year and \$1,948,117 26 \$3,525,816 from nongeneral funds in the second year for the estimated total payment to 27 individual institutions of higher education of the interest earned on tuition and fees and other 28 nongeneral fund Education and General Revenues deposited to the state treasury. Upon 29 certification by the State Council of Higher Education of Virginia that all available 30 performance benchmarks have been successfully achieved by the individual institutions of 31 higher education, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer the 32 appropriation in this Item for such estimated interest earnings to the general fund 33 appropriation of each institution's Educational and General program.

D. This Item also includes \$3,171,439 \$2,657,622 in the first year and \$3,171,439 \$2,657,622 34 35 the second year from the general fund for the payment to individual institutions of higher education of a pro rata amount of the rebate paid to the State Commonwealth on credit card 36 37 purchases not exceeding \$5,000 during the previous fiscal year. The State Comptroller shall 38 determine the amount owed to each certified institution, net of any payments due to the 39 federal government, using a methodology that equates a pro rata share based upon the total 40 transactions of \$5,000 or less made by the institution using the state-approved credit card in 41 comparison to all transactions of \$5,000 or less using said approved credit card. By October 15, or as soon thereafter as deemed appropriate, following the year of certification, the 42 43 Comptroller shall reimburse each institution its estimated pro rata share.

44 E. Once actual financial data from the year of certification are available, the State Comptroller 45 and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall compare the actual data with 46 estimates used to determine the distribution of the interest earnings, nongeneral fund 47 Educational and General revenues, and the pro rata amounts to the certified institutions of 48 higher education. In those cases where variances exist, the Governor shall include in his next 49 introduced budget bill recommended appropriations to make whatever adjustments to each 50 institution's distributed amount to ensure that each institution's incentive payments are 51 accurate based on actual financial data.

52 53	472.	Revenue Administration Services (73200) Designated Refunds for Taxes and Fees (73215)	a sum sufficient
54		Fund Sources: General	a sum sufficient

a sum sufficient

484

Item Details(\$)

Second Year

FY2020

Appropriations(\$)

First Year

FY2019

Second Year

FY2020

\$8,491,533

\$10,756,833

	Item I	Appropriations(\$)		
ITEM 472.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				

A. There is hereby appropriated from the affected funds in the state treasury, for refunds of taxes and fees, and the interest thereon, in accordance with law, a sum sufficient.

4 B. There is hereby established a special fund in the state treasury to be known as the 5 Refund Suspense Fund, hereinafter referred to as the Fund. The Tax Commissioner is 6 hereby authorized to contract with nongovernmental entities for review of requests for 7 refunds of taxes to enhance, expand and/or modify the administration of the refund review 8 program, and to perform analysis of refund processing techniques. The amount of any 9 refund identified by the nongovernmental entity as potentially erroneous shall be 10 deposited to the Fund pending review of the refund request. Amounts in the Fund may be 11 used to pay refunds subsequently determined to be valid, to pay the contracted 12 nongovernmental entity for its services, to perform oversight of their operations, to 13 upgrade necessary refund processing systems and data interfaces to facilitate the 14 contractor's work, to offset any administrative or other costs related to any contracts 15 authorized under this provision, and to retain experts to perform analysis of refund 16 processing techniques. Any balance in the fund remaining after such payments, or 17 provision therefore, shall be deposited into the appropriate general, nongeneral, or local 18 fund.

C. There is hereby appropriated from the affected funds in the state treasury for, (1) 20 refunds of previously paid taxes imposed by the Commonwealth at 100 percent of face 21 value up to the amount of the coalfield employment enhancement tax credit authorized by § 58.1-439.2, Code of Virginia, (2) refunds of any remaining credit at 90 percent of face 23 value for credits earned in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2002, and 85 percent of face value for credits earned in taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2002, and (3) payment of the remaining 10 or 15 percent credit to the Coalfields Economic 26 Development Authority, a sum sufficient.

27 28 473. Distribution of Tobacco Settlement (74500)

1 2

3

19

22

24

25

20	a sum sufficient, estimated at		
29 30	Payments to Tobacco Producers and Tobacco Growing Communities (74501)	\$110,000,000	\$110,000,000
31	Payments for Tobacco Usage Prevention (74502)	\$9,327,905	\$9,327,905
32	Fund Sources: Trust and Agency	\$119,327,905	\$119,327,905

33 Authority: Title 3.2, Chapters 31, 42 and 46, and Title 32.1, Chapter 14, Code of Virginia.

- 34 A.1. There is hereby appropriated a sum sufficient estimated at \$110,000,000 the first year 35 and \$110,000,000 the second year from nongeneral funds for expenditures of securitized 36 proceeds and earnings up to the amount transferred from the endowment to the Tobacco 37 Indemnification and Community Revitalization Fund in accordance with § 3.2-3104, Code 38 of Virginia. Such expenditures shall be made pursuant to § 3.2-3108, Code of Virginia.
- 39 2. From the amount deposited into the Tobacco Indemnification and Community 40 Revitalization Fund pursuant to § 3.2-3106, Code of Virginia, shall be paid 50 percent of the costs associated with the diligent enforcement of the non-participating manufacturer 41 42 statute of the 1998 Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement, § 3.2-4201, Code of Virginia, 43 and Item 56, Paragraph B of this act. These costs shall be paid pursuant to the transfer to 44 the general fund directed by § 3-1.01, Paragraph N.1, of this act.
- 45 B.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 32.1-354, 32.1-360 and 32.1-361.1, Code of 46 Virginia, the State Comptroller shall deposit 8.5 percent of the Commonwealth's 47 Allocation pursuant to the Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco product 48 manufacturers to the Virginia Tobacco Settlement Fund. There is hereby appropriated a 49 sum sufficient estimated at \$9,423,439 the first year and \$9,327,905 the second year from 50 available balances in the fund for the purposes set forth in § 32.1-361, Code of Virginia. 51 No less than \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year shall be allocated 52 for obesity prevention activities.
- 53 2. From the amount deposited into the Virginia Tobacco Settlement Fund shall be paid 8.5 54 percent of the costs associated with the diligent enforcement of the non-participating

\$119,327,905 \$119,327,905

ITEM 473.			First Year	r	tails(\$) Second Year	First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1 2 3		manufacturer statute of the 1998 Tobacco Master Settleme Virginia, and Item 56, Paragraph B, of this act. These transfer to the general fund directed by § 3-1.01, Parag	costs shall be pa	3.2-4 aid pu	irsuant to the	FY2019	FY2020
4 5 6 7		3. Beginning November 1, 2010, and each year thereaft Youth Foundation, shall report to the Chairmen of the Finance Committees on funding provided to communit prevention activities pursuant to § 32.1-355, Code of V	House Appropri ty-based organiz	iatior	is and Senate		
8 9 10		C. The amounts deposited by the State Comptroller purs shall be included in the general fund revenue calculation 58.1-3524, Code of Virginia.					
11	474.	Compensation and Benefit Adjustments (75700)				\$44,809,292	\$241,696,304
12 13		Adjustments to Employee Compensation (75701)	\$14,134,815		60,780,119	\$45,716,965	\$239,537,205
14 15 16		Adjustments to Employee Benefits (75702)	\$30,674,477 \$31,582,150	\$	00,963,356 80,916,185 38,573,849		
17 18		Fund Sources: General	\$44,809,292 \$45,716,965		41,696,304 39,537,205		
19		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.					
20 21		A. Transfers to or from this Item may be made to dec appropriations to state agencies for:	rease or suppler	ment	general fund		
22		1. Adjustments to base rates of pay;					
23		2. Adjustments to rates of pay for budgeted overtime of sal	laried employees;	;			
24		3. Salary changes for positions with salaries listed elsewhe	ere in this act;				
25		4. Salary changes for locally elected constitutional officers	and their employ	yees;			
26 27		5. Employer costs of employee benefit programs wh adjustments;	en required by	sala	ry-based pay		
28 29		6. Salary changes for local employees supported by the funded through appropriations to the Department of Ed		h, oth	er than those		
30 31		7. Adjustments to the cost of employee benefits to ind insurance premiums and retirement and related contril		e limi	ted to health		
32 33 34 35 36 37		are insufficient for the purposes stated in paragraph A Department of Planning and Budget, and subject to guide Further, the Department of Planning and Budget may tran	B. Transfers from this Item may be made when appropriations to the state agencies concerned re insufficient for the purposes stated in paragraph A of this Item, as determined by the Department of Planning and Budget, and subject to guidelines prescribed by the department. Further, the Department of Planning and Budget may transfer appropriations within this Item rom the second year of the biennium to the first year, when necessary to accomplish the				
38 39 40 41 42		C. Except as provided for elsewhere in this Item, agencie nongeneral fund sources, shall pay the proportionate share as required by this Item, subject to the rules and regulation governing authority of such agencies. Nongeneral fund of this purpose are hereby appropriated.	e of changes in sa ons prescribed by	alarie y the	s and benefits appointing or		
43 44 45 46 47 48		D. Any supplemental salary payment to a state employed local governing body shall be governed by a written agree the employee or class of employees receiving the supplem of the local governing body. Such agreement shall also Director of the State Department of Human Resource agreement shall specify the percent of state salary or fix regularity to the salary of the amplayee of state salary or fix	eement between t nent and the chie be reviewed and Management. A xed amount of th	the aged of exe and app of a m t a m the sup	gency head of ocutive officer proved by the ninimum, the pplement, the		

agreement shall specify the percent of state salary or fixed amount of the supplement, the resultant total salary of the employee or class of employees, the frequency and method of payment to the agency of the supplement, and whether or not such supplement shall be included in the employee's state benefit calculations. A copy of the agreement shall be made

ITEM 474		Item Do ïrst Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	available annually to all employees receiving the supplement. T supplement shall not subject employees to any personnel or p other than those promulgated by the State Department of Hum	The receipt of payroll rules	a local salary and practices	F 12017	F 1 2020
4 5 6 7 8	E. The Governor is hereby authorized to transfer funds from ag accounts of participating state employees in such amounts as in the contributions of the qualified participating employer requirements of the Code of Virginia governing the deferred program. Such transfers shall be made consistent with the following the state of the state of the following the state of the following the state of the following the state of	nay be neces ees, consist compensatio	sary to match ent with the		
9 10 11 12	1. The maximum cash match provided to eligible employees sh per pay period, or \$40.00 per month, in each year of the bier direct the agencies of the Commonwealth to utilize funds cont appropriations to meet these requirements.	nnium. The C	Governor may		
13 14 15 16 17	2. The Governor may direct agencies supported in whole or in to utilize existing agency appropriations to meet these requir revenues and balances are hereby appropriated for this purpose of § 4-2.01 b of this act. The use of such nongeneral funds sh existing conditions and restrictions otherwise placed upon suc	rements. Suc e, subject to hall be consis	th nongeneral the provisions stent with any		
18 19 20	3. The procurement of services related to the implementation governed by standards set forth in § 51.1-124.30 C, Code of subject to the provisions of Chapter 7 (§ 11-35 et seq.), Title	Virginia, an	d shall not be		
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	F. The Secretary of Administration, in conjunction with the S establish a program that allows for the sharing of cost productivity, efficiency, and performance with agencies and em programs require a management philosophy of open com employee participation; a system which seeks, evaluates and in on increasing productivity; and a formula for measuring prod these gains between employees and the agency. The Depart Management, in conjunction with the Department of Planning specific gain sharing program guidelines for use by agencies. Resource Management shall provide to the Governor, the Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees an annual rep- of each year detailing identified savings and their usage.	savings fro ployees. Suc munication nplements en uctivity gair ment of Hur and Budget, The Departme Chairmen	m improved h gain sharing encouraging nployee input s and sharing nan Resource shall develop ent of Human of the House		
33 34 35 36 37	G.1. Out of the appropriation for this Item, amounts estimated a and \$84,583,369 \$33,272,027 the second year from the general state agencies and institutions of higher education to support t costs associated with changes in the employer's share of Commonwealth's health benefit plans.	fund shall be he general fu	transferred to and portion of		
38 39 40	2. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, the heal employees resulting from the additional funding in this Item s employee medical premiums to be charged to employees.				
41 42 43 44 45 46	3. The Department of Human Resource Management shall e health insurance plan for state employees to promote value-bas creating greater employee satisfaction with lower overall h General Assembly's intent that any savings associated with initiative be retained and used towards funding state employee s increases.	ed health cho lealth care c this employe	bices aimed at osts. It is the se health care		
47 48 49 50	4. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, it shall be that authority of the Department of Human Resource Managemer employer contribution rates for any health insurance plan est 2818, Code of Virginia.	nt to establis	h and enforce		
51 52 53	5. The Department of Human Resource Management is prohretail maintenance network for maintenance drugs that include the retail maintenance network.				
54		•			

54 6. The Department of Human Resource Management shall not increase the annual out-of-

	Item 1	Item Details(\$)	
ITEM 474	First Year	Second Year	First Y
	FY2019	FY2020	FY201
1	and the second second of the second	.1	

Appropriations(\$)					
First Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

pocket maximum included in the plans above the limits in effect for the plan year which
 began on July 1, 2014.

3 7. The Department of Human Resource Management shall include language in all contracts, 4 signed on or after July 1, 2018, with third party administrators of the state employee health 5 plan requiring the third party administrators to: 1) maintain policies and procedures for 6 transparency in their pharmacy benefit administration programs; 2) transparently provide 7 information to state employees through an explanation of benefits regarding the cost of drug 8 reimbursement; dispensing fees; copayments; coinsurance; the amount paid to the dispensing 9 pharmacy for the claim; the amount charged to the third party administrator for the claim by 10 the third party administrator's pharmacy benefit manager; and the amount charged by the third 11 party administrator to the Commonwealth; and 3) provide a report to the Department of 12 Human Resource Management of the aggregate difference in amounts between 13 reimbursements made to pharmacies for claims covered by the state employee insurance plan, 14 the amount charged to the third party administrator for the claim by the third party 15 administrator's pharmacy benefit manager, and the amount charged by the third party 16 administrator to the Commonwealth as well as an explanation for any difference. The 17 department shall report to the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and 18 Senate Finance Committees on its implementation of this item by October 1, 2018.

- 8. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 38.2-3418.17 and any other provision of law, effective
 October 1, 2018, the Department of Human Resource Management shall provide coverage
 under the state employee health insurance program for the treatment of autism spectrum
 disorder through the age of eighteen.
- 9. In addition to the amounts cited in paragraph G.1 of this item, \$992,222 the first year from
 the general fund shall be provided for the Department of Human Resource Management for
 the repayment of costs incurred pursuant to the proposal to establish an optional statewide
 local employee health insurance program.
- H.1. Contribution rates paid to the Virginia Retirement System for the retirement benefits of
 public school teachers, state employees, state police officers, state judges, and state law
 enforcement officers eligible for the Virginia Law Officers Retirement System shall be based
 on a valuation of retirement assets and liabilities that are consistent with the provisions of
 Chapters 701 and 823, Acts of Assembly of 2012.
- 32 2. Retirement contribution rates, excluding the five percent employee portion, shall be as set
 33 out below and include both the regular contribution rate and for the public school teacher plan
 34 the rate calculated by the Virginia Retirement System actuary for the 10-year payback of the
 35 retirement contribution payments deferred for the 2010-12 biennium:

36		FY 2019	FY 2020
37	Public school teachers	15.68%	15.68%
38	State employees	13.52%	13.52%
39	State Police Officers' Retirement System	24.88%	24.88%
40	Virginia Law Officers' Retirement System	21.61%	21.61%
41	Judicial Retirement System	34.39%	34.39%

- 42 3. Payments *of all required contributions and insurance premiums* to the Virginia Retirement
 43 System *and its third-party administrators, as applicable,* shall be made no later than the tenth
 44 day following the close of each month of the fiscal year.
- 45 4. The Director of Department of Planning and Budget shall withhold and transfer to this
 46 Item, amounts estimated at \$6,539,646 the first year and \$6,823,946 the second year, from the
 47 general fund appropriations of state agencies and institutions of higher education, representing
 48 the net savings resulting from the changes in employer contributions for state employee
 49 retirement as provided for in this paragraph.
- 50 5. The funding necessary to support the cost of reimbursements to Constitutional Officers for51 retirement contributions are appropriated elsewhere in this act under the Compensation Board.
- 52 6. The funding necessary to support the cost of the employer retirement contribution rate for53 public school teachers is appropriated elsewhere in this act under Direct Aid to Public

Item Details(\$)					
First Year	Second Year				
FY2019	FY2020				

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

ITEM 474.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I.1. Except as authorized in Paragraph I.2. of this Item, rates paid to the Virginia Retirement System on behalf of employees of participating (i) counties, (ii) cities, (iii) towns, (iv) local public school divisions (only to the extent that the employer contribution rate is not otherwise specified in this act), and (v) other political subdivisions shall be based on the employer contribution rates certified by the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees pursuant to § 51.1-145(I), Code of Virginia.

8 2. Rates paid to the VRS on behalf of employees of participating (i) counties, (ii) cities, 0 (iii) towns, (iv) local public school divisions (only to the extent that the employer 10 contribution rate is not otherwise specified in this act), and (v) other political subdivisions 11 shall be based on the employer contribution rates certified by the Virginia Retirement 12 System Board of Trustees pursuant to § 51.1-145(I), Code of Virginia, unless the 13 participating employer notifies VRS that it has opted to base the employer contribution 14 rate on the higher of: a) the contribution rate in effect for FY 2012, or b) seventy percent 15 of the results of the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation of assets and liabilities as approved 16 by the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees for the 2012-14 biennium, eighty percent of the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of assets and liabilities as 17 18 approved by the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees for the 2014-16 biennium, 19 ninety percent of the results of the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation of assets and 20 liabilities as approved by the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees for the 2016-21 18 biennium, and one-hundred percent of the results of the June 30, 2017 actuarial 22 valuation of assets and liabilities as approved by the Virginia Retirement System Board of 23 Trustees for the 2018-20 biennium.

- 24 3. Every participating employer that opts not to use the employer contribution rates 25 certified by the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees pursuant to § 51.1-145(I), 26 Code of Virginia, must certify to the board of the Virginia Retirement System by 27 resolution adopted by its local governing body that it: has reviewed and understands the 28 information provided by the Virginia Retirement System outlining the potential future 29 fiscal implications of electing or not electing to utilize the employer contribution rates certified by the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees, as provided for in 30 31 paragraph I.1.
- 4. Local public school divisions must receive the concurrence of the local governing body
 if electing to pay the alternate contribution rate set out in paragraph I.2. Such concurrence
 must be documented by a resolution of the governing body.
- 5. The board of the Virginia Retirement System shall provide all employers participating
 in the Virginia Retirement System with a summary of the implications inherent in the use
 of the employer contribution rates certified by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
 Board of Trustees set out in paragraph I.1, and the alternate employer contribution rates
 set out in paragraph I.2.
- 40 J. The Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees shall account for the employer 41 retirement contribution payments for the public school teacher plan deferred for the 2010-42 2012 biennium based on limiting employer retirement contributions to the Virginia 43 Retirement System to the actuarial normal cost. In setting the employer retirement 44 contribution rates for the public school teacher plan for subsequent biennia, the board shall 45 calculate a separate, supplemental employer contribution rate that will amortize such 46 deferred payments over a period of ten years using the board's assumed long-term rate of 47 return. The Governor shall include funds to support payment of the approved state portion 48 of such board-approved, supplemental employer contribution rates for the public school 49 teacher plan in the budget submitted to the General Assembly.
- K.1. Contribution rates paid to the Virginia Retirement System for other employee
 benefits to include the public employee group life insurance program, the Virginia
 Sickness and Disability Program, the state employee retiree health insurance credit, and
 the public school teacher retiree health insurance credit, shall be based on a valuation of
 assets and liabilities that assume an investment return of seven percent and an
 amortization period of 30 years.

56 2. Contribution rates paid on behalf of public employees for other programs administered

ITEM 474		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	by the Virginia Retirement System shall be:				
2		FY 2019		FY 2020	
3 4 5 6	State employee retiree health insurance credit, excluding State Police Officers' Retirement System and Virginia Law Officers' Retirement System members	1.17%		1.17%	
7 8	Public school teacher retiree health insurance credit	1.20%		1.20%	
9 10	State employee group life insurance program	1.31%		1.31%	
11 12	Employer share of the public school teacher group life insurance program	0.52%		0.52%	
13	Virginia Sickness and Disability Program	0.62%		0.62%	
14 15 16 17	Retiree health insurance credit for State Police Officers' Retirement System and Virginia Law Officers' Retirement System members	1.17%		2.15%	
18 19	3. Funding for the Virginia Sickness and Disability Propercent of total payroll.	ogram is calculated o	n a rate of 0.53		
20 21 22 23 24	4. The Director of Department of Planning and Budget sh amounts estimated at \$676,148 the first year and \$705,5 fund appropriations of state agencies and institutions of h savings resulting from changes in employer contribut provided for in this paragraph.	21 the second year, f nigher education, repr	rom the general esenting the net		
25 26 27	5. The funding necessary to support the cost of reimburs public employee group life insurance contributions is app the Compensation Board.				
28 29 30	6. The funding necessary to support the cost of the empliinsurance and retiree health insurance credit rates is app Direct Aid to Public Education.				
31	7. Notwithstanding any provisions of Chapter 14 of Title	51.1 to the contrary:			
32 33 34	a. Any member who retires under the State Police Office. Law Officers' Retirement System, with at least 15 years for a health insurance credit in the following amounts of	of total creditable se	rvice, is eligible		
35 36 37 38	1) Any member who retires under the State Police Office Law Officers' Retirement System is eligible for \$6 per yea of service, credited monthly, on the effective date of h premium paid for the member's personal health insur-	ar of creditable servi	ce for each year e amount of the		
39 40 41 42 43 44	2) Any member of the State Police Officers' Retirement Retirement System receiving long-term disability purs Code of Virginia, or any such member retired under th Virginia, shall receive a maximum monthly credit of the for each year of creditable service at the time of disabili each year of creditable service at the time of eligibility f	uant to §§ 51.1-111 be provisions of § 51 e greater of (i) \$180, ty retirement, or (iii)	2 or 51.1-1123, .1-156, Code of (ii) \$6 per year \$6 per year for		
45 46 47 48 49 50	b. All aspects of eligibility for the credit and payment of manner prescribed by the Virginia Retirement System. I determine the amount actuarially necessary to fund all including the cost of such credits in the employer contr Code of Virginia, and prescribe such terms and condition provision.	The Virginia Retirema l credits provided by ibution rate pursuan	ent System shall this provision, t to § 51.1-145,		
51 52	c. In addition to the amounts cited in paragraph K.4. of t from the general fund is provided to support the net of				

-				Details(\$)	Appropri	
I	TEM 474		rst Year Y2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3		retiree health insurance credit for members of the State Police Og and the Virginia Law Officers' Retirement System, pursuant to Item.	-			
4 5 6 7 8		L.1. The retiree health insurance credit contribution rates for the supported local public employees shall be: 0.38 percent for consequence of constitutional officers <i>except as provided in par</i> 0.43 percent for employees of local social services boards, and Registrars and employees of General Registrars.	onstitution <i>agraph L</i> .	al officers and 3. of this Item,		
9 10 11 12 13		2. Out of the general fund appropriation for this Item is include and \$317,863 the second year to support the general fund portion from changes in the retiree health insurance credit contribution local public employees through the Compensation Board, th Services, and the Department of Elections pursuant to § 51.1-	of the net rates for s e Departr	costs resulting state supported nent of Social		
14		3. Notwithstanding any provisions of Chapter 14 of Title 51.1 to t	he contrar	y:		
15 16 17		a. Any member who retires as a sheriff of any county or city, or a with at least 15 years of total creditable service, is eligible for a the following amounts on or before January 1, 2020.				
18 19 20 21		1) A sheriff of any county or city, or deputy of any such sheriff, it of creditable service for each year of service, credited monthly, or retirement, or the amount of the premium paid for the member's p coverage, whichever is less.	on the effec	ctive date of his		
22 23 24		2) Any sheriff of any county or city, or deputy of any such sheriff, monthly credit of the greater of \$150 or \$5 per year for each year the time of disability retirement.				
25 26 27 28 29 30		b. All aspects of eligibility for the credit and payment of the credit manner prescribed by the Virginia Retirement System. The Vir shall determine the amount actuarially necessary to fund all provision, including the cost of such credits in the employer com § 51.1-145, Code of Virginia, and prescribe such terms and cond implement this provision.	ginia Reti credits pr tribution re	rement System ovided by this ate pursuant to		
31 32 33 34 35 36		c. In addition to the amounts cited in paragraph L.2. of this Iten year from the general fund is provided to support the general fun- resulting from changes in the retiree health insurance credit sheriffs at a rate of 1.23 percent the second year, pursuant to pa The retiree health insurance credit contribution rate for sheriffs remain 0.38 percent the first year, equal to that of other constitu-	nd portion for sheri ragraph L and deput	of the net costs ffs and deputy .3. of this Item. ty sheriffs shall		
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48		M.1. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-3205(A), Code of agency shall not be required to pay the Virginia Retirement Syst retirement benefits provided for in § 2.2-3204(A), Code of Virgare involuntarily separated from employment with the Common the Department of Planning and Budget certifies that such action reductions enacted in the Appropriation Act, 2. budget reduction the withholding of appropriations by the Governor pursuant to reorganization or reform actions taken by state agencies to operations or improve service delivery provided such action approved by the Governor, or 4. downsizing actions taken by state the loss of federal or other grants, private donations, or other r	em the cos ginia for e wealth if on results is s executed to \$4-1.02 o increase as have be e agencies nongeneral	sts of enhanced imployees who the Director of from 1. budget 1 in response to 6 of the Act, 3. efficiency of een previously as the result of 1 fund revenue,		
48 49 50 51		and if the Director of the Department of Human Resource Mana action comports with personnel policy. Under these conditions benefits for involuntarily separated employees shall be fact contribution rates paid to the Virginia Retirement System.	s, the entin cored into	re cost of such the employer		
52 53 54		2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-3205(A), Code of V agency shall not be required to pay the Virginia Retirement Syst retirement benefits provided for in § 2.2-3204(A), Code of Virg	em the cos	sts of enhanced		

Item Details(\$)

Appropriations(\$)

	Item D	etails(\$)
ITEM 474.	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year FY2019 FY2020

1 are involuntarily separated from employment with the Commonwealth if the Speaker of the 2 House of Delegates and the Chairman of the Senate Committee on Rules have certified on or 3 after July 1, 2016, that such action results from 1. budget reductions enacted in the 4 Appropriation Act pertaining to the Legislative Department; 2. reorganization or reform 5 actions taken by agencies in the legislative branch of state government to increase efficiency 6 of operations or improve service delivery provided such actions have been approved by the 7 Speaker of the House of Delegates and the Chairman of the Senate Committee on Rules; or 3. 8 downsizing actions taken by agencies in the legislative branch of state government as the 9 result of the loss of federal or other grants, private donations, or other nongeneral fund 10 revenue and if the applicable agency certifies that the actions comport with the provisions of 11 and related policies associated with the Workforce Transition Act. Under these conditions, the 12 entire cost of such benefits for involuntarily separated employees shall be factored into the 13 employer contribution rates paid to the Virginia Retirement System.

14 N. The purpose of this paragraph is to provide a transitional severance benefit, under the 15 conditions specified, to eligible city, county, school division or other political subdivision employees who are involuntarily separated from employment with their employer. 16

17 1.a. "Involuntary separation" includes, but is not limited to, terminations and layoffs from employment with the employer, or being placed on leave without pay-layoff or equivalent 19 status, due to budget reductions, employer reorganizations, workforce downsizings, or other 20 causes not related to the job performance or misconduct of the employee, but shall not include voluntary resignations. As used in this paragraph, a "terminated employee" shall mean an 21 22 employee who is involuntarily separated from employment with his employer.

23 b. The governing authority of a city, county, school division or other political subdivision 24 electing to cover its employees under the provisions of this paragraph shall adopt a resolution, 25 as prescribed by the Board of Trustees of the Virginia Retirement System, to that effect. An 26 election by a school division shall be evidenced by a resolution approved by the Board of such school division and its local governing authority.

2.a. Any (i) "eligible employee" as defined in § 51.1-132, (ii) "teacher" as defined in § 51.1-124.3, and (iii) any "local officer" as defined in § 51.1.124.3 except for the treasurer, commissioner of the revenue, attorney for the Commonwealth, clerk of a circuit court, or sheriff of any county or city, and (a) for whom reemployment with his employer is not possible because there is no available position for which the employee is qualified or the position offered to the employee requires relocation or a reduction in salary and (b) whose involuntary separation was due to causes other than job performance or misconduct, shall be eligible, under the conditions specified, for the transitional severance benefit conferred by this paragraph. The date of involuntary separation shall mean the date an employee was terminated from employment or placed on leave without pay-layoff or equivalent status.

38 b. Eligibility shall commence on the date of involuntary separation.

18

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36 37

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

3.a. On his date of involuntary separation, an eligible employee with (i) two years' service or less to the employer shall be entitled to receive a transitional severance benefit equivalent to four weeks of salary; (ii) three years through and including nine years of consecutive service to the employer shall be entitled to receive a transitional severance benefit equivalent to four weeks of salary plus one additional week of salary for every year of service over two years; (iii) ten years through and including fourteen years of consecutive service to the employer shall be entitled to receive a transitional severance benefit equivalent to twelve weeks of salary plus two additional weeks of salary for every year of service over nine years; or (iv) fifteen years or more of consecutive service to the employer shall be entitled to receive a transitional severance benefit equivalent to two weeks of salary for every year of service, not to exceed thirty-six weeks of salary.

- 50 b. Transitional severance benefits shall be computed by the terminating employer's payroll 51 department. Partial years of service shall be rounded up to the next highest year of service.
- 52 c. Transitional severance benefits shall be paid by the employer in the same manner as normal 53 salary. In accordance with § 60.2-229, transitional severance benefits shall be allocated to the 54 date of involuntary separation. The right of any employee who receives a transitional 55 severance benefit to also receive unemployment compensation pursuant to § 60.2-100 et seq. 56 shall not be denied, abridged, or modified in any way due to receipt of the transitional

Item Details(\$)					
First Year Second Yea					
FY2019	FY2020				

Appropriations(\$) **First Year** Second Year **FY2019** FY2020

severance benefit; however, any employee who is entitled to unemployment compensation shall have his transitional severance benefit reduced by the amount of such unemployment compensation. Any offset to a terminated employee's transitional severance benefit due to reductions for unemployment compensation shall be paid in one lump sum at the time the last transitional severance benefit payment is made.

ITEM 474.

1 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

d. For twelve months after the employee's date of involuntary separation, the employee shall continue to be covered under the (i) health insurance plan administered by the employer for its employees, if he participated in such plan prior to his date of involuntary separation, and (ii) group life insurance plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System pursuant to Chapter 5 (§ 51.1-500 et seq.) of Title 51.1, or such other group life insurance plan as may be administered by the employer. During such twelve months, the terminating employer shall continue to pay its share of the terminated employee's premiums. Upon expiration of such twelve month period, the terminated employee shall be eligible to purchase continuing health insurance coverage under COBRA.

15 e. Transitional severance benefit payments shall cease if a terminated employee is 16 reemployed or hired in an individual capacity as an independent contractor or consultant 17 by the employer during the time he is receiving such payments.

18 f. All transitional severance benefits payable pursuant to this section shall be subject to 19 applicable federal laws and regulations.

- 20 4.a. In lieu of the transitional severance benefit provided in subparagraph 3 of this 21 paragraph, any otherwise eligible employee who, on the date of involuntary separation, is 22 also (i) a vested member of a defined benefit plan within the Virginia Retirement System, 23 including the hybrid retirement program described in § 51.1-169, and including a member eligible for the benefits described in subsection B of § 51.1-138, and (ii) at least fifty years 24 25 of age, may elect to have the employer purchase on his behalf years to be credited to either 26 his age or creditable service or a combination of age and creditable service, except that 27 any years of credit purchased on behalf of a member of the Virginia Retirement System, 28 including a member eligible for the benefits described in subsection B of § 51.1-138, who 29 is eligible for unreduced retirement shall be added to his creditable service and not his age. 30 The cost of each year of age or creditable service purchased by the employer shall be 31 equal to fifteen percent of the employee's present annual compensation. The number of 32 years of age or creditable service to be purchased by the employer shall be equal to the 33 quotient obtained by dividing (i) the cash value of the benefits to which the employee 34 would be entitled under subparagraphs 3.a. and 3.d. of this paragraph by (ii) the cost of 35 each year of age or creditable service. Partial years shall be rounded up to the next highest 36 year. Deferred retirement under the provisions of subsection C of §§ 51.1-153 and 37 disability retirement under the provisions of § 51.1-156 et seq., shall not be available under this paragraph. 38
- 39 b. In lieu of the (i) transitional severance benefit provided in subparagraph 3 of this 40 paragraph and (ii) the retirement program provided in this subsection, any employee who 41 is otherwise eligible may take immediate retirement pursuant to §§ 51.1-155.1 or 51.1-42 155.2.
- 43 c. The retirement allowance for any employee electing to retire under this paragraph who, 44 by adding years to his age, is between ages fifty-five and sixty-five, shall be reduced on 45 the actuarial basis provided in subdivision A. 2. of § 51.1-155.
- 46 d. The retirement program provided in this subparagraph shall be otherwise governed by 47 policies and procedures developed by the Virginia Retirement System.
- 48 e. Costs associated with the provisions of this subparagraph shall be factored into the 49 employer contribution rates paid to the Virginia Retirement System.
- 50 f. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this paragraph N shall apply to an 51 otherwise eligible employee who is a person who becomes a member on or after July 1, 52 2010, a person who does not have 60 months of creditable service as of January 1, 2013, 53 or a person who is enrolled in the hybrid retirement program described in § 51.1-169, 54 mutatis mutandis.

	Item D	Item Details(\$)		riations(\$)
ITEM 474.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 O.1. In addition to the contributions	required under § 51.1-145 of the Code o	of Virginia, and		
2 notwithstanding any other contrary j	provisions of the Appropriation Act or of	§ 51.1-145, all		
3 institutions of higher education that h	stitutions of higher education that have established their own optional retirement plan under			
4 § 51.1-126(B) shall, beginning O	51.1-126(B) shall, beginning October 1, 2018, pay contributions to the employer's			
5 retirement allowance account in a	in amount equal to the difference betw	ween the total		
6 retirement contribution rate required	on behalf of State employees and the rate	payable by the		
7 Commonwealth under § 51.1-126(F	(1) for Optional Retirement Plan for Hig	gher Education		
8 employees who became a member of	n or after July 1, 2010. Such payment sha	all be made for		
9 each employee who began participat	ng in an Optional Retirement Plan for Hi	gher Education		
10 under § 51.1-126(B) on or after Jan	uary 1, 2014, and who, as of that date, w	vas not directly		

13
 2. Furthermore, the Department of Accounts, the Virginia Retirement System, and the universities of higher education shall work to develop a methodology to identify and report separately personnel services expenditures for university personnel in positions that use to be classified positions but have been transitioned to university staff positions.

described in § 51.1-126.1, § 51.1-126.3, and Chapter 24 of Title 23.1.

engaged in the performance of teaching duties, with the exception of employees of entities

11

12

17

18

19

20

27

28

29

30

31

- 3. The Virginia Retirement System and the universities of higher education shall submit a report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by November 15, 2018 on the approximate unfunded liability that maybe attributable to these positions and the level of additional contributions the system will realize from the surcharge.
- P. 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 17.1-327, Code of Virginia, any justice, judge, member of the State Corporation Commission, or member of the Virginia Workers'
 Compensation Commission who is retired under the Judicial Retirement System and who is temporarily recalled to service shall be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred during such service and shall be paid a per diem of \$250 for each day the person actually sits, exclusive of travel time.
 - 2. Out of the general fund appropriation for this Item, \$500,000 in the first year and \$500,000 in the second year is provided to support the costs resulting from the changes in the per diem amounts provided for in paragraph P.1. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall disburse funding from this Item to all affected judicial and independent agencies upon request.
- Q. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer from this Item, general fund amounts estimated at \$1,107,576 \$1,206,557 the first year and \$1,107,576 \$1,267,368
 the second year to state agencies and institutions of higher education to support the general fund portion of costs of Line of Duty Act premiums based on the latest enrollment update from the Virginia Retirement System.
- R. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer from this Item, general fund amounts estimated at \$1,821,951 the first year and \$2,436,844 \$2,291,203 the second year to state agencies and institutions of higher education to support the general fund portion of costs of workers' compensation premiums provided by the Department of Human Resource 41 Management.
- 42 S.1. The Governor is hereby authorized to allocate a sum of up to \$13,634,815 the first year 43 and \$160,280,119 the second year from this appropriation to the extent necessary to offset any 44 downward revisions of the general fund revenue estimate prepared for fiscal years 2019 and 45 2020 after the enactment by the General Assembly of the 2018 Special Session I 46 Appropriation Act. If the forecast of general fund revenues for fiscal years 2019 and 2020 47 developed as the basis for the 2019 budget bill is no less than the revenues assumed in the 48 2018 Appropriation Act then such appropriation shall be used only for employee 49 compensation purposes as stated in paragraphs T., U., V., W., X., Y., Z., and AA. below.
- 50
 2. Furthermore, \$131,500,000 \$218,924,887 the second year from the general fund allocated
 51
 52
 53
 54
 54
 2. Furthermore, \$131,500,000 \$218,924,887 the second year from the general fund allocated
 55
 56
 57
 58
 59
 50
 50
 50
 51
 52
 53
 54
 54
 54
 54
- 55 3. Appropriation amounts stated in paragraphs T., U., V., W., X., Y., Z., and AA. below reflect

ITEM 474		Item De Year	Second Year	Appropri First Year	Second Y
1 2 3 4 5 6	FY: the estimated general fund share of costs for such employee of Transfers from this Item shall be made based on the general fund s to implement the actions authorized in paragraphs T., U., V., W., determined by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget. H of such transfers shall not exceed the amounts designated for these S.1. above.	hare of th X., Y., Z. Iowever, t	e actual costs , and AA., as he total value	FY2019	FY202
7 8	T.1. The base salary of the following employees shall be increased 10, 2019:	by two pe	rcent on June		
9 10	a. Full-time and other classified employees of the Executive Dep Virginia Personnel Act;	partment s	subject to the		
11 12	b. Full-time employees of the Executive Department not subject to Act, except officials elected by popular vote;	the Virgi	nia Personnel		
13 14	c. Any official whose salary is listed in § 4-6.01 of this act, subject in the agency head salary levels in § 4-6.01 c;	to the rar	nges specified		
15 16 17	d. Full-time staff of the Governor's Office, the Lieutenant Governo General's Office, Cabinet Secretaries' Offices, including the D Virginia Liaison Office, and the Secretary of the Commonwea	eputy Se	cretaries, the		
18	e. Heads of agencies in the Legislative Department;				
19 20	f. Full-time employees in the Legislative Department, other the popular vote;	an officia	ls elected by		
21	g. Legislative Assistants as provided for in Item 1 of this act;				
22	h. Judges and Justices in the Judicial Department;				
23	i. Heads of agencies in the Judicial Department;				
24	j. Full-time employees in the Judicial Department;				
25 26 27 28	k. Commissioners of the State Corporation Commission and Compensation Commission, the Chief Executive Officer of the Vi Plan, and the <i>Executive</i> Directors of the Virginia Lottery, and the <i>R</i> Retirement System; and	rginia Co	llege Savings		
29 30 31	l. Full-time employees of the State Corporation Commission, the V Plan, the Virginia Lottery, Virginia Workers' Compensation Comm Retirement System.				
32 33 34	2.a. Employees in the Executive Department subject to the Virgin receive the salary increases authorized in this paragraph only if rating of "Contributor" on their latest performance evaluation.				
35 36 37 38 39 40 41	b. Salary increases authorized in this paragraph for employed Legislative Departments, employees of Independent agencies, Executive Department not subject to the Virginia Personnel Act s the provisions of this paragraph, as determined by the appointing The appointing or governing authority shall certify to the Department Management that employees receiving the awards are perform comparable to the eligible employees as set out in subparagraph	and empl shall be co or govern ent of Hur ning at le	loyees of the onsistent with ing authority. nan Resource evels at least		
42 43 44 45 46 47 48	3. The Department of Human Resource Management shall incre- maximum salary for each band within the Commonwealth's Classif by four percent on June 10, 2019. No salary increase shall be granter result of this action. The department shall develop policies and pr instances when employees fall below the entry level for a job cla performance. Movement through the revised pay band shall be performance.	ied Comp ed to any e rocedures ssification	ensation Plan employee as a to be used in n due to poor		

49 4. Out of the amounts for Supplements to Employee Compensation is included Second Year

FY2020

ITEM 47 4		Item D rst Year Y2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	\$68,791,336 the second year from the general fund to support th costs associated with the salary increase provided in this paragra		und portion of		
3 4 5	5. The following agency heads, at their discretion, may utilize a provided pursuant to this paragraph to implement the provis performance-based pay plans:				
6	a. The heads of agencies in the Legislative and Judicial Departments	5;			
7 8	b. The Commissioners of the State Corporation Commission a Compensation Commission;	nd the Vir	ginia Workers'		
9	c. The Attorney General;				
10	d. The Director of the Virginia Retirement System;				
11	e. The Executive Director of the Virginia Lottery;				
12	f. The Director of the University of Virginia Medical Center;				
13	g. The Chief Executive Officer of the Virginia College Savings Plan	ı;			
14	h. The Executive Director of the Virginia Port Authority; and				
15	i. The Chief Executive Officer of the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage C	Control Aut	hority.		
16 17 18	6. The base rates of pay, and related employee benefits, for wage en up to two percent no earlier than June 10, 2019. The cost of employees shall be borne by existing funds appropriated to e	such incre	ases for wage		
19 20 21	U.1. The appropriations in this item include funds to increase the be employees by two percent on July 1, 2019, provided that the go employees use such funds to support salary increases for the fol	verning au	thority of such		
22	a. Locally-elected constitutional officers;				
23	b. General Registrars and members of local electoral boards;				
24	c. Full-time employees of locally-elected constitutional officers and	,			
25 26 27 28 29	d. Full-time employees of Community Services Boards, Centers secure detention centers supported by Juvenile Block Grants, juven and local court service units, local social services boards, local comprehensive community corrections act employees, and local he memorandum of understanding exists with the Virginia Department	ile delinque pretrial se ealth depar	ency prevention ervices act and tments where a		
30 31 32	2. Out of the appropriation for Supplements to Employee Co \$17,882,376 the second year from the general fund to support the salary increase provided in this paragraph.				
33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42	V.1. In addition to the salary increase authorized in paragrappropriation for this item includes \$38,040,000 from the general provide an additional two percent merit based salary adjustment three or more years of continuous state service listed in paragraph faculty at institutions of higher education, appointed officials and university staff at institutions of higher education, and judges at Department, and Officials whose salary is listed in § 4-6.01 of the 2019. Agency directors shall have the authority to provide indivince as in excess of two percent provided the total cost of all merit does not exceed the two percent average.	I fund the for state e T. of this i employee nd justices his act, effi vidual emp	second year to mployees with tem, except for s designated as in the Judicial ective June 10, loyees a merit		
43 44 45	2. The following agency heads, at their discretion, may utilize a provided pursuant to this paragraph to implement the provis performance-based pay plans:				

46 a. The heads of agencies in the Legislative and Judicial Departments;

ITEM 47 4	4.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	b. The Commissioners of the State Corporation Commissio Compensation Commission;	on and the Vi	ginia Workers'		
3	c. The Attorney General;				
4	d. The Director of the Virginia Retirement System;				
5	e. The <i>Executive</i> Director of the Virginia Lottery;				
6	f. The Director of the University of Virginia Medical Center;				
7	g. The Chief Executive Officer of the Virginia College Savin	gs Plan;			
8	h. The Executive Director of the Virginia Port Authority; and	l			
9	i. The Chief Executive Officer of the Virginia Alcoholic Beve	erage Control	Authority.		
10 11 12 13	W. The appropriations in this item includes \$6,670,930 the f second year from the general fund to support the cost of Correctional Officers and Correctional Officer Seniors Corrections effective January 10, 2019.	a \$2,016 sala	ry increase for		
14 15 16 17	X. The appropriations in this item includes \$391,791 the second year from the general fund to support the cost of Correctional Officers and Correctional Officer Seniors withi Justice effective January 10, 2019.	a \$1,846 sala	ry increase for		
18 19 20	Y. Included in this appropriation is \$145,997 the first year a from the general fund to support the cost of the followin members of the Virginia Marine Police effective January	ng salary adju			
21	1.) The starting salary for officers of the Virginia Marine Poli	ice shall be set	at \$41,814.		
22 23 24	2.) Consistent with current practice, officers of the Virginia five percent salary adjustment after completing one year of s \$43,905.				
25 26 27	3.) The salary for all current members of the Virginia Marin year of service shall be the greater of \$43,905 or their curr percent increase.				
28 29 30 31 32	Z. The appropriations in this item includes \$5,083,333 the first second year from the general fund to support the cost of inc service associates, licensed practical nurses, and registered nut the Department of Behavioral Health & Developmental Service the market median effective January 10, 2019.	reasing the sal	laries for direct d in facilities of		
33 34 35	AA. The appropriations in this item includes \$1,342,764 the second year from the general fund to support the cost of incr sworn deputy sheriffs in sheriffs' offices by \$871 effective F	easing the ent	ry level pay for		
36 37 38	AB.1. A one-time bonus payment equal to one percent of be December 1, 2019, to the following employees of the Commo on July 1, 2019, and remain employed until at least Novemb	onwealth who			
39 40	a. Full-time and other classified employees of the Executiv Virginia Personnel Act;	ve Departmen	t subject to the		
41 42	b. Full-time employees of the Executive Department not subj Act, except officials elected by popular vote;	ject to the Virg	ginia Personnel		
43	c. Any official whose salary is listed in § 4-6.01 of this act;				
44 45 46	d. Full-time staff of the Governor's Office, the Lieutenant Go General's Office, Cabinet Secretaries' Offices, including Virginia Liaison Office, and the Secretary of the Commo	the Deputy S	ecretaries, the		

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 474.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
e. I	Heads of agencies in the Legislative Department;				
f. F vot	Full-time employees in the Legislative Department, other te:	than officials ele	cted by popular		

- *g. Legislative Assistants as provided for in Item 1 of this act;*
- 5 *h. Judges and Justices in the Judicial Department;*

1 2 3

31

- *i. Heads of agencies in the Judicial Department;*
- *j. Full-time employees in the Judicial Department;*
- 8 k. Commissioners of the State Corporation Commission and the Virginia Workers'
 9 Compensation Commission, the Chief Executive Officer of the Virginia College Savings Plan,
 10 the Executive Director of the Virginia Lottery, and the Director of the Virginia Retirement
 11 System; and
- I. Full-time employees of the State Corporation Commission, the Virginia College Savings
 Plan, the Virginia Lottery, Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission, and the Virginia
 Retirement System.
- 15 2. Employees in the Executive Department subject to the Virginia Personnel Act shall receive
 16 the bonus payment authorized in this paragraph only if they have attained an equivalent
 17 rating of at least "Contributor" on their performance evaluation and have no active written
 18 notices under the Standards of Conduct policy for the preceding review period.
- 193. Out of the appropriations for Adjustments to Employee Compensation is included an20amount estimated at \$30,381,181 the second year from the general fund to support the21general fund portion of costs associated with the one-time bonus payment provided in this22paragraph.
- 4. The Director of the Department of Planning and Budget shall administratively increase
 nongeneral fund appropriations as required to implement the one-time bonus payment.
- AC.1. The appropriations in this Item include funds to provide a one-time bonus payment
 equal to one percent of base pay to the following employees on December 1, 2019, provided
 that the governing authority of such employees use such funds to support a compensation
 increase for the following listed employees:
- *a. Locally-elected constitutional officers;*
- 30 b. General Registrars and members of local electoral boards;
 - c. Full-time employees of locally-elected constitutional officers and,
- d. Full-time employees of Community Services Boards, Centers for Independent Living,
 secure detention centers supported by Juvenile Block Grants, juvenile delinquency prevention
 and local court service units, local social services boards, local pretrial services act and
 comprehensive community corrections act employees, and local health departments where a
 memorandum of understanding exists with the Virginia Department of Health.
- 37 2. Out of the appropriations for Adjustments to Employee Compensation is included an
 38 amount estimated at \$9,802,056 the second year from the general fund to support the general
 39 fund portion of costs associated with the one-time bonus payment provided in this paragraph.
- 40 AD. Out of the amounts included in this Item, amounts estimated at \$808,692 the first year
 41 and \$808,692 the second year from the general fund shall be transferred to the University of
 42 Virginia to cover the state share of the increases in employer premiums for state employees
 43 participating in the university's health care plan.

44 45 46	475.	Payments for Special or Unanticipated Expenditures (75800)		
47 48		Miscellaneous Contingency Reserve Account (75801)	\$1,300,000	\$1,300,000
49		Economic Development Assistance (75804)	\$0	\$11,000,000

\$29,908,315 \$40,531,819 \$43,637,316 \$70,862,344

		Item Details(\$)		Appropriations(\$)	
ITEM 47	15.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	Undistributed Support for Designated State Agency Activities (75806)	\$28,608,315 \$42,337,316	\$39,231,819 \$58,562,344		
4 5	Fund Sources: General	\$29,908,315 \$43.637.316	\$40,531,819 \$70.862. <i>344</i>		

6 Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.

7

8 9

10

11

12

13

A. The Governor is hereby authorized to allocate sums from this appropriation, in addition to an amount not to exceed \$5,000,000 from the unappropriated balance derived by subtracting the general fund appropriations from the projected general fund revenues in this act, to provide for supplemental funds pursuant to paragraph D hereof. Transfers from this Item shall be made only when (1) sufficient funds are not available within the agency's appropriation and (2) additional funds must be provided prior to the end of the next General Assembly Session.

14 B.1. The Governor is authorized to allocate from the unappropriated general fund balance 15 in this act such amounts as are necessary to provide for unbudgeted cost increases to state 16 agencies incurred as a result of actions to enhance homeland security, combat terrorism, 17 and to provide for costs associated with the payment of a salary supplement for state 18 classified employees ordered to active duty as part of a reserve component of the Armed 19 Forces of the United States or the Virginia National Guard. Any salary supplement 20 provided to state classified employees ordered to active duty, shall apply only to 21 employees who would otherwise earn less in salary and other cash allowances while on 22 active duty as compared to their base salary as a state classified employee. Guidelines for 23 such payments shall be developed by the Department of Human Resource Management in 24 conjunction with the Departments of Accounts and Planning and Budget.

25 2. The Governor shall submit a report within thirty days to the Chairmen of House
 26 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees which itemizes any disbursements made
 27 from this Item for such costs.

3. The governing authority of the agencies listed in this subparagraph may, at its discretion
and from existing appropriations, provide such payments to their employees ordered to
active duty as part of a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States or the
Virginia National Guard, as are necessary to provide comparable pay supplements to its
employees.

- 33 a. Agencies in the Legislative and Judicial Departments;
- b. The State Corporation Commission, the Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission,
 the Virginia Retirement System, the Virginia Lottery, and the Virginia College Savings
 Plan;
- 37 c. The Office of the Attorney General and the Department of Law; and
- 38 d. State-supported institutions of higher education.
- 39 C. The Governor is authorized to expend from the unappropriated general fund balance in 40 this act such amounts as are necessary, up to \$1,500,000, to provide for indemnity 41 payments to growers, producers, and owners for losses sustained as a result of an 42 infectious disease outbreak or natural disaster in livestock and poultry populations in the 43 Commonwealth. These indemnity payments will compensate growers, producers, and 44 owners for a portion of the difference between the appraised value of each animal 45 destroyed or slaughtered or animal product destroyed in order to control or eradicate an 46 animal disease outbreak and the total of any salvage value plus any compensation paid by 47 the federal government.
- 48 D. Out of the appropriation for this item is included \$1,000,000 the first year and
 49 \$1,000,000 the second year from the general fund to be used by the Governor as he may
 50 determine to be needed for the following purposes:
- **51** 1. To address the six conditions listed in § 4-1.03 c 5 of this act.
- 52 2. To provide for unbudgeted and unavoidable increases in costs to state agencies for

Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020

essential commodities, services, and training which cannot be absorbed within agency
 appropriations including unbudgeted benefits associated with Workforce Transition Act
 requirements.

ITEM 475.

- 3. To secure federal funds in the event that additional matching funds are needed for Virginiato participate in the federal Superfund program.
- 6 4. To provide a payment of up to \$100,000 to the Military Order of the Purple Heart, for the continued operation of the National Purple Heart Hall of Honor, provided that at least half of other states have made similar grants.
- 5. In addition, if the amounts appropriated in this Item are insufficient to meet the unanticipated events enumerated, the Governor may utilize up to \$1,000,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year from the general fund amounts appropriated for the Commonwealth's Opportunity Fund for the unanticipated purposes set forth in paragraph D.1.
 through paragraph D.5. of this Item.
- 14 6. In addition, to provide for payment of monetary rewards to persons who have disclosed
 15 information of wrongdoing or abuse under the Fraud and Abuse Whistle Blower Protection
 16 Act.
- 17 7. The Department of Planning and Budget shall submit a quarterly report of any disbursements made from, commitments made against, and requests made for such sums authorized for allocation pursuant to this paragraph to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. This report shall identify each of the conditions specified in this paragraph for which the transfer is made.
- 22 E. Included in this appropriation is \$300,000 the first year and \$300,000 the second year from 23 the general fund to pay for private legal services and the general fund share of unbudgeted 24 costs for enforcement of the 1998 Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement. Transfers for 25 private legal services shall be made by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget upon 26 prior written authorization of the Governor or the Attorney General, pursuant to § 2.2-510, 27 Code of Virginia or Item 56, Paragraph D of this act. Transfers for enforcement of the Master 28 Settlement Agreement shall be made by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget at 29 the request of the Attorney General, pursuant to Item 56, Paragraph B of this act.
- F. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-608.3B.(v), Code of Virginia, any municipality
 which has issued bonds on or after July 1, 2001, but before July 1, 2006, to pay the cost, or
 portion thereof, of any public facility pursuant to § 58.1-608.3, Code of Virginia, shall be
 entitled to all sales tax revenues generated by transactions taking place in such public facility.
- G. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer from this Item, general fund amounts estimated at \$23,356,579 \$31,341,768 the first year and \$27,414,371
 \$47,497,476 the second year to state agencies and institutions of higher education to support the general fund portion of costs resulting from the estimated usage of technology services provided by the Virginia Information Technologies Agency.
- 39 H.1. Out of this appropriation, \$790,791 the first year from the general fund shall be provided 40 to the City of Richmond for expenses incurred for the development of the Slavery and Freedom Heritage Site in Richmond, including Lumpkin's Pavilion and Slave Trail 41 improvements. Any unexpended general fund balances as of June 30, 2019, that were 42 43 appropriated for the purpose of supporting the City of Richmond in the development of the 44 Slavery and Freedom Heritage Site in Richmond shall not revert to the general fund, but shall 45 instead be reappropriated for its original purpose. Out of this appropriation and all amounts 46 previously appropriated for this purpose, a cumulative total of up to \$1,000,000 shall be used 47 for improvements to the Slave Trail, and up to \$1,000,000 for costs associated with 48 Lumpkin's Pavilion. It is the intent of the General Assembly to fully meet its commitment to 49 the project as reimbursement requests are made and funding to meet such requests shall be 50 included by the Governor in any budget submission made pursuant to the provisions of §§ 51 2.2-1508 and 2.2-1509, Code of Virginia.
- 52 2. Prior to the receipt of state funds for the purpose set out in paragraph H.1., the Richmond
 53 City Council shall pass a resolution outlining its approval of and financial commitment to the
 54 proposed project and local matching funds in an amount totaling at least \$5,000,000 which

ITEM 475.	. Item Details(\$) First Year Second FY2019 FY2	
1 2 3 4	shall be appropriated by the City of Richmond for the project prior to receipt of any funds. Release of state funding for Lumpkin's Pavilion shall also require evidence th City of Richmond has raised at least fifty percent of the remaining funding require that portion of the project from private or other sources.	at the
5 6 7 8	3. At such time that the City of Richmond has completed construction of the respective improvements, the City of Richmond shall be eligible for reimbursement from Commonwealth of an amount not to exceed \$9,000,000, or up to twenty five percent the total costs of each project.	m the
9 10 11 12 13 14	4. State funding appropriated in paragraph H.1. and future appropriations consider paragraph H.3., shall be allocated only as follows: no more than \$5,000,000 shallocated for the planning, design, and construction of the Pavilion at Lumpkin's Ja more than \$1,000,000 shall be allocated for improvements to the Richmond Slave and no more than \$5,000,000 shall be allocated for the planning, design and construct of a slavery museum.	all be iil, no Trail,
15 16 17	5. The City of Richmond shall provide documentation to the Department of Ge Services on the progress of this project and actual expenditures incurred for it in a acceptable to the Secretaries of Finance and Administration.	
18 19 20	6. In addition to the matching requirements set out in paragraph H.2., the Ci Richmond shall provide and dedicate appropriate contiguous real estate prior to the re of any state funding for the purposes outlined in paragraph H.1 above.	
21 22 23 24 25	7. The Department of General Services shall act as the fiscal agent for these funds director shall oversee the expenditure of state appropriations to ensure that payme the City of Richmond are made consistent with the purposes set out in paragraphs H. H.4. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to transfer funds to the Department of General Services to implement this appropriation.	nts to 1. and
26 27	8. This appropriation shall be exempt from the disbursement procedures specified in 5.05 of the act.	n § 4-
28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35	I.1. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to transfe remaining balances originally appropriated in Item 476 I., Chapter 836, 2017 Vin Acts of Assembly, the first year, to the Department of State Police for unanticipated associated with mitigating security threats, information technology (IT) security gap the data stored on IT systems used by the Department. The costs eligibl reimbursement shall be for information technology and telecommunications good services that have been procured in accordance with the regulations, policies, proce- standards, and guidelines of the Virginia Information Technologies Agency.	rginia costs s, and e for ls and
36 37 38	2.a. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-2011, Code of Virginia, the Department State Police is authorized to procure, develop, operate, and manage the cyber security management tools required to protect the information technology used by the Department tools required to protect the information technology used by the Department tools required to protect the information technology used by the Department tools required to protect the information technology used by the Department tools required to protect the information technology used by the Department tools are used by the Department	y and

- 36 37 38 management tools required to protect the information technology used by the Department 39 that is defined as out-of-scope from the Virginia Information Technologies Agency 40 pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the two agencies dated 41 August 30, 2013. The Department of State Police shall be solely responsible for securing 42 all aspects of information technology defined as out-of-scope in the current MOU.
- 43 b. Costs expended by the Department of State Police for cyber security and management 44 tools shall be reimbursed by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget from 45 unexpended funds provided in paragraph I.1. of this Item, after such expenses have been 46 approved by the Chief Information Officer and determined to be in compliance with the 47 regulations, policies, procedures, standards, and guidelines of the Virginia Information 48 Technologies Agency.
- 49 3.a. The Superintendent of State Police shall develop and report to the Chairmen of the 50 House Committee on Appropriations and Senate Committee on Finance a detailed 51 transition plan addressing the steps required for the Department of State Police to assume 52 responsibility for the development, operation, and management of all of its information 53 technology infrastructure and services. The Department of State Police is authorized to 54 procure consulting services to assist in the development of the detailed transition plan. The

Appropriations(\$)

Second Year

FY2020

		Item Details(\$)		Appro	
ITEM 4	475.	First Year Second Year	Second Year	First Year	
		FY2019		FY2019	
1	Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall assist in the dev	elopment and	drafting of the		

ropriations(\$) ar Second Year FY2020

detailed transition plan. 2

3 b. The report shall, at a minimum, include a detailed transition plan that: (i) identifies and 4 evaluates anticipated transition timelines, tasks, activities, and responsible parties; (ii) 5 identifies any one-time and ongoing costs of transitioning responsibility for information 6 technology services from the Virginia Information Technologies Agency to the Department of 7 State Police, including the estimated costs to obtain existing information technology assets or 8 transition services from Northrop Grumman; (iii) identifies the ongoing costs of staffing, 9 services, and contracts related to enterprise security and management tools, legacy system 10 replacements or upgrades, construction or lease of facilities including data centers, labor costs and workload analyses, and training costs; (iv) identifies any other such factors deemed necessary for discussion as identified by the Superintendent of State Police or Chief 12 13 Information Officer of the Commonwealth; (v) identifies necessary changes required to 14 transition and modernize current statutes related to basic State Police communication systems 15 consistent with the Criminal Justice Information Services Security Policy Version 5.5, or its 16 successor; and (vi) provides a jointly developed and agreed upon MOU between the Department of State Police and the Virginia Information Technologies Agency that certifies 18 the information.

11

17

25

26

27

28

29 30

19 c. Costs expended by the Department of State Police for the development of the detailed 20 transition plan shall be reimbursed by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget from 21 unexpended funds provided in paragraph I.1 of this item, after such expenses have been 22 approved by the Chief Information Officer and determined to be in compliance with the 23 regulations, policies, procedures, standards, and guidelines of the Virginia Information 24 Technologies Agency.

d. The report and accompanying Memorandum shall be provided to the Chairmen of the House Committee on Appropriations and Senate Committee on Finance as required by Item 476 I., Chapter 836, 2017 Virginia Acts of Assembly. The Chief Information Officer of the Commonwealth shall review the report and provide an analysis of the detailed transition plan no later than 30 days after submission of the report to the Chairmen of the House Committee on Appropriations and Senate Committee on Finance.

31 4. Any remaining balances as originally appropriated in Item 476 I.5., Chapter 836, 2017 32 Virginia Acts of Assembly, from the general fund are authorized to be transferred to reimburse the Department of State Police for costs associated with mitigating information 33 34 technology security threats and gaps required to protect and manage out-of-scope information 35 technology that is not addressed in paragraph 3.b. All such costs shall be eligible for 36 reimbursement if they have been procured in accordance with the regulations, policies, 37 procedures, standards, and guidelines of the Virginia Information Technologies Agency. The 38 Director, Department of Planning and Budget is authorized to release this funding following 39 certification by the Chief Information Officer that these costs address cyber security threats 40 and gaps, including upgrades to legacy applications to remediate audit findings by the Auditor 41 of Public Accounts or Commonwealth Security and Risk Management.

42 J. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall withhold and transfer to this Item, 43 an amount estimated at \$365,568 the first year and shall transfer from this Item an amount 44 estimated at \$19,782 the second year from the general fund for the general fund share of 45 rental costs for space maintained and operated by the Department of General Services.

- 46 K. Out of this appropriation, \$203,893 the first year and \$203,893 the second year from the 47 general fund shall be provided to state agencies to support the costs of information technology 48 security audits and information security officer services. With such funding, agencies are 49 encouraged to work with the Virginia Information Technologies Agency's information 50 technology shared security center created pursuant to Item 84.70 of this act.
- 51 L. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer from this Item, general 52 fund amounts estimated at 1,043,931 the first year and $\frac{1,259,168}{3,208,467}$ the second 53 year to state agencies and institutions of higher education to support the general fund portion 54 of costs resulting from changes in agency charges for the Cardinal Financial System operated 55 by the Department of Accounts.
- M. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer from this Item, general 56

	Item I	Details(\$)
	First Year	Second Year
	FY2019	FY2020
fund amounts estimated at \$237,053 the first year and \$24 agencies and institutions of higher education to support th resulting from changes in agency charges for the Perform	ne general fund	potion of costs
N. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, general fund amounts estimated at \$2,256,188 the first ye		,
year to fund agency charges for the state payroll system		
Accounts.		

8 O. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall withhold and transfer to this
 9 Item, an amount estimated at \$25,552 the first year and shall transfer from this Item an
 10 amount estimated at \$21,608 the second year from the general fund to executive branch
 11 agencies to support the costs of the Personnel Management Information System.

ITEM 475.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

- 12 P. Out of the appropriation for this Item is included \$1,111,000 the first year and 13 \$1,215,000 the second year from the general fund for a joint internship and management 14 training program to assist in improving leadership, management, and succession planning 15 capabilities of all branches of state government. The Secretary of Finance shall contract 16 with Virginia Tech for the continuation of the program. The program shall collaborate 17 with Virginia public colleges and universities on an internship, management training and 18 succession planning program by which students in their final year of undergraduate school 19 work, or those attending graduate programs may be considered for opportunities for state 20 employment on a temporary basis, whereby they may earn academic credit for hours worked while participating in the program. Any balances remaining from the 21 22 appropriation identified in this paragraph shall not revert to the general fund at the end of 23 the fiscal year, but shall be brought forward and made available to support the Virginia 24 Management Fellows program in the subsequent fiscal year.
- 25 Q. 1. The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall study and submit its 26 recommendations for the development, ongoing support, and system of governance for a 27 personnel information system to replace the current version of the Personnel Management 28 Information System (PMIS) to the Governor no later than September 1, 2018. The 29 Department of Human Resource Management, Department of Accounts, and any other 30 agency designated by the Virginia Information Technologies Agency, shall provide all 31 required information necessary for the Virginia Information Technologies Agency to 32 develop the required recommendations.
- 33 2. Notwithstanding § 2.2-1201, Code of Virginia, the Governor shall select a state agency 34 to develop and maintain a personnel information system to replace the current version of 35 PMIS. In determining which agency shall develop and maintain the new personnel 36 information system, consideration shall be given to maximizing the efficiencies of 37 enterprise systems and the benefits of establishing a single source of personnel 38 information to achieve greater security of sensitive personally identifiable information. 39 Further, the Governor shall establish a permanent system of governance over the new 40 personnel information system which shall designate specifically which agencies have 41 responsibility for authority and control of the data in the new personnel information 42 system as well as responsibility for systems support and maintenance.
- 43 3. The Governor shall authorize a A working capital advance of up to \$25,000,000 is 44 authorized in Item 259 for the Department of Accounts to support the initial costs of 45 replacing the current version of PMIS. Initial costs include any costs necessary for the 46 planning, development, and configuration of the new personnel information system. Initial 47 costs do not include statewide roll-out costs necessary to ensure agencies are prepared for 48 the implementation of the new payroll system and the decommissioning of PMIS such as 49 applications configuration, agency training, change management costs, or costs incurred 50 by line agencies to develop required interfaces from agency based systems. Portions of 51 this working eapital advance may be assigned to selected agencies as needed in order to 52 meet the requirements for selecting the agency responsible for developing and maintaining 53 the new personnel information system, for developing the related system governance 54 structure, and for developing and deploying of the new personnel information system.
- R. Out of the appropriation for this Item is included \$5,898,631 the second year from the general fund to cover the costs associated with the 2020 presidential primary. Out of this amount, up to \$5,751,593 may be used by the Department of Elections to reimburse

Appropriations(\$)

Second Year

FY2020

First Year

FY2019

ITEM 475.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	localities for their presidential primary expenditures and up to costs incurred directly by the Department of Elections.	\$147,038 may	be used to cover		
3 4 5 6	S.1. The Secretary of Administration shall establish a Com Policy. The Committee shall study and report its findings an needs for and impact of statewide paid family leave policies Governor by October 30, 2019.	d recommenda	tions regarding		
7 8 9 10 11	2. Out of the general fund appropriation for this Item, \$250,00 to support the work of the Committee. Up to a total of \$22 reimburse the Secretary of Administration, Department of Hur other state agency as authorized by the Committee for cost Committee's analysis.	50,000 may be man Resource .	e transferred to Management, or		
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	3. The Secretary of Administration shall serve as the head of th members shall include the Secretary of Commerce and Trade, the heads of the following state agencies, or their designees, representatives of stakeholder groups as the Secretary of Admi the Department of Human Resource Management, the Department Virginia Employment Commission, and the Department of Diversity.	, the Secretary , and such oth inistration may nent of Labor o	of Finance, and er agencies and later designate: and Industry, the		
19 20 21	4. Members of the Committee shall not be compensated f reimbursed for all reasonable and necessary expenses incurr duties.		-		
22 23 24 25	T. Out of the appropriation for this Item in the first year, \$8,00 designated to integrate workforce case management system funding will enable interagency information sharing, imp customers with an easy-to-use entry point into the workf	ns across state prove efficien	agencies. Such cy and provide		
26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36	U. Out of this appropriation, \$8,300,000 the second year from support an increase in the number of bachelor's and master' and closely related fields and to improve the readiness of gra colleges and universities to be employed in technology- internships. Funds shall be disbursed to institutions on a co agreed-upon performance. Associate-degree-granting institu from this Item provided an institution presents a transfer plan degree. In consultation with the Secretary of Finance and th Trade, the Secretary of Education shall develop a process to av with the provisions of this language, with the Governor distribution of the funds.	s degrees in co aduates from V related occup mpetitive basi utions are elig that culminate be Secretary of ward these fund	omputer science Virginia's public ations through s and subject to vible for awards s in a bachelor's Commerce and ds in accordance		
37 38 30	V. Out of this appropriation, \$2,700,000 the second year from support the advancement of computer science education	ı and implem			

v. Out of this appropriation, \$2,700,000 the second year from the general fund is provided to support the advancement of computer science education and implementation of the Commonwealth's new computer science standards across the public education continuum. These funds are intended to provide high quality professional development to current and future teachers; create, curate, and disseminate high quality computer science curriculum, instructional resources, and assessments; support summer and after-school computer science related programming for students; and facilitate meaningful career exposure and work-based learning opportunities in computer science fields for high school students. Funds shall be disbursed through a competitive grant process and shall prioritize at-risk students and schools. In consultation with the Secretary of Finance and the Secretary of Commerce and Trade, the Secretary of Education shall develop a process to award these funds in accordance with the provisions of this language, with the Governor providing final approval for distribution of the funds.

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

W. In addition to the funding in this Item, \$80,000,000 the second year authorized in Item C49.10 shall be made available to support space renovations, enhancements, equipment, and
facility construction related to the initiative to increase the number of bachelor's and master's
degrees in computer science and closely related fields cited in paragraph U. above. In
consultation with the Secretary of Finance and the Secretary of Commerce and Trade, the
Secretary of Education shall develop a process to award these funds in accordance with the
provisions of this language, with the Governor providing final approval for distribution of the

ITEM 475.		i.	Iten First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020		iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		funds.				
2 3 4 5 6 7	476.	A. The Oil Overcharge Expendable Trust Fund shall Comptroller and the interest earned by investment of Expendable Trust Fund shall be allocated to such fun the Commonwealth's proportionate share of the reco Diamond Shamrock Refining and Marketing Comp Corporation litigations, for petroleum pricing viola				
8 9 10 11 12		B.1. Any expenditure involving oil overcharges by the according to regulations and procedures of the five sta programs specified in the Warner Amendment (Ser restitution to the broad class of parties injured by the a are:	ate energy conserv ction 155, P.L. 97	ation and benefits 7-377) to provide		
13		a. Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program, 42	U.S.C. § 8621 et s	eq.		
14		b. State Energy Conservation Program, 42 U.S.C. § 63	321 et seq.			
15		c. Energy Extension Service, 42 U.S.C. § 7001 et seq.				
16		d. Institutional Conservation Program, 42 U.S.C. § 63	71 et seq.			
17		e. Weatherization Assistance Program, 42 U.S.C. § 68	61 et seq.			
18 19 20 21 22 23		2. Any expenditure involving oil overcharges from the approved settlement In Re: The Department of Energy Stripper Well Litigation (MDL No. 378) or the approved settlement in the case of the Diamond Shamrock Refining and Marketing Company (Civil Action No. C2-84-1432) shall be utilized to fund one or more energy-related programs which are designed to benefit, directly or indirectly, consumers of petroleum products. These programs shall be limited to:				
24 25		a. Administration and operation of the five energy specified under the Warner Amendment (Section 1		benefit programs		
26 27		b. Those programs approved by the U.S. Department Appeals in Subpart V Refund Proceedings,	of Energy's Offic	e of Hearings and		
28		c. Those programs referenced in the Chevron consent	order (46 FR 5222	1), and		
29 30		d. Such other restitutionary programs approved Department of Energy's Office of Hearings and	-	Court or the U.S.		
31 32 33 34		C. Before appropriations to the Oil Overcharge Expendable Trust Fund can be expended, approval for the use of the funds must be obtained from the United States Department of Energy. Applications to the United States Department of Energy must be made through the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy.				
35 36 37 38 39		D. The Governor shall submit such statements and rep settlements, or the Departments of Energy or Health a of these funds and shall also report to the Chairme Senate Finance Committees on the activities funded fiscal years in which activities have occurred.	nd Human Service n of the House Ap	s regarding use(s) opropriations and		
40 41		Total for Central Appropriations			\$202,537,045 \$219,439,019	\$410,047,561 \$440,484,287
42 43		Fund Sources: General	\$81,261,023 \$96,585,298	\$288,771,539 \$317,630,566		
44 45		Higher Education Operating	\$1,948,117 \$3,525,816	\$1,948,117 \$3,525,816		
4 6		Trust and Agency	\$119,327,905	\$119,327,905		
47 48		TOTAL FOR CENTRAL APPROPRIATIONS			\$202,537,045 \$219,439,019	\$410,047,561 \$440,484,287

ITEM 470	i.	It First Ye FY201		11 1	priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Fund Sources: General	\$81,261,023 \$96,585,298	\$288,771,539 \$317,630,566		
3 4	Higher Education Operating	\$1,948,117 \$3,525,816	\$1,948,117 \$3,525,816		
5	Trust and Agency	\$119,327,905	\$119,327,905		
6 7	TOTAL FOR EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT			\$55,350,226,572 \$57,155,997,837	
8 9	General Fund Positions	48,569.64 48,702.64	48,927.96 49,508.41		
10 11	Nongeneral Fund Positions	65,000.40 65,157.40	65,468.53 65,977.23		
12 13	Position Level	113,570.04 113,860.04	114,396.49 115,485.64		
14 15	Fund Sources: General	\$20,401,796,960 \$21,505,960,763	\$21,044,767,991 \$22,048,909,662		
16 17	Special	\$1,656,188,761 \$1,655,921,782	\$1,671,924,122 \$1,649,060,778		
18 19	Higher Education Operating	\$8,748,333,375 \$9,013,852,830	\$8,780,507,729 \$9,174,575,597		
20 21	Commonwealth Transportation	\$6,111,022,943 \$6,696,424,944	\$5,543,497,911 \$6,158,063,195		
22 23	Enterprise	\$1,880,934,595 \$1,381,158,924	\$1,918,951,155 \$1,421,133,488		
24 25	Internal Service	\$2,098,949,919 \$2,099,646,770	\$2,208,679,991 \$2,070,414,416		
26 27	Trust and Agency	\$2,139,903,729 \$2,109,440,521	\$2,265,705,653 \$2,305,352,502		
28 29	Debt Service	\$343,923,009 \$344,923,009	\$343,923,009 \$344,923,009		
30 31	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$2,298,098,378 \$2,251,900,674	\$2,616,890,811 \$2,656,065,043		
32 33	Federal Trust	\$9,671,074,903 \$10,096,767,620	\$10,901,411,488 \$12,695,124,591		

	ITEM 477		Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		INDEPENDE	NT AGENCIES			
2		§ 1-132. STATE CORPORA	ATION COMMIS	SION (171)		
3 4	477.	Regulation of Business Practices (55200)			\$71,625,759	\$70,275,805 \$72,827,482
5 6		Corporation Commission Clerk's Services (55203)	\$17,595,201	\$15,101,725 \$15,603,703		<i>\$72,027,102</i>
7 8 9		Regulation of Investment Companies, Products and Services (55210)	\$8,699,380	\$8,716,052 \$9,040,257		
9 10 11		Regulation of Financial Institutions (55215)	\$15,438,846	\$9,040,237 \$16,633,492 \$17,265,135		
12 13		Regulation of Insurance Industry (55216)	\$29,892,332	\$29,824,536 \$30,918,387		
14 15		Fund Sources: Special	\$71,625,759	\$70,275,805 \$72,827,482		
16 17 18 19		Authority: Article IX, Constitution of Virginia; Title Title 13.1; Title 55, Chapter 6, Article 6; Title 56, Chapter 28; Title 59.1, Chapter 6.1, Code of Virginia; Title 58.1, Chapter 25; and Title 65.2, Chapter 8, Cod	Chapter 15, Artic ; Title 13.1, Chapter	cle 5; Title 58.1,		
20 21 22		A. Out of this appropriation, the State Corporation Cor amount not to exceed \$10,000 the first year and \$10,0 of annual membership dues to the National Conference	000 the second year	r for the payment		
23 24		B. Out of this appropriation, \$3,611,153 the first year designated for replacement of the Clerk's Information		he second year is		
25 26 27 28 29		C. Out of the amounts for this Item, \$1,150,000 the fi year is provided to effectuate the provisions of Chap 2017, which allows the Commission to absorb the cu fees as opposed to passing them on to the filers an discretion to not charge a fee for providing copies	ter 486 of the Acts redit card and eCh d also grants the	s of Assembly of eck convenience Commission the		
30 31	478.	Regulation of Public Utilities (56300)			\$29,836,417	\$30,021,897 \$30,945,527
31 32 33		Regulation of Utility Companies (56301)	\$29,836,417	\$30,021,897 \$30,945,527		φ30,7+3,327
34 35		Fund Sources: Special	\$26,477,917	\$26,626,025 \$27,514,016		
36 37		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$1,308,500	\$27,314,010 \$1,345,872 \$1,381,511		
38		Federal Trust	\$2,050,000	\$2,050,000		
39		Authority: Title 56, Chapter 10, Code of Virginia.				
40 41	479.	Distribution of Fees From and To Regulated Entities and Localities (56400)			\$5,856,941	\$5,856,941
42 43		Distribution of Uninsured Motorist Fee (56401) Distribution of Rolling Stock Taxes (56402)	\$5,340,845 \$516,096	\$5,340,845 \$516,096		
44		Fund Sources: Trust and Agency	\$5,856,941	\$5,856,941		
45		Authority: § 58.1-2652, Code of Virginia.				
46	480.	Administrative and Support Services (59900)			\$0	\$0
47 48		Authority: Title 12.1, Code of Virginia; Article Constitution of Virginia.	IV, Section 14	and Article IX,		
49 50		A. Operational costs for this program shall be par programs.	id solely from ch	arges to agency		

programs.

			Iter	m Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
Ι	TEM 480.		First Year FY2019	r Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2 3 4		B. Out of the amounts for this Item, shall be paid the am from July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2020 2019 and \$180,629 and for the other two Commissioners of the State Corpo from July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2020 2019 and \$178,650	nual salary of the c <i>from July 1, 2019</i> ration Commission	hairman, \$177,087 9 <i>to June 30</i> , 2020, 1, each at \$175,147		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12		C. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 13.1-775.1, Co Commission shall continue the following annual regist corporations. The new annual rates shall be \$100 for ev authorized to do business in the Commonwealth whose shares or less. Any such corporation whose number of shall pay an annual registration fee of \$100 plus \$30 for in excess of 5,000 up to a maximum of \$1,700. The com a special fund and transfer three-fourths of the receipts to	ration fees for do ery foreign and do number of authori authorized shares each 5,000 shares mission shall depo	mestic and foreign mestic corporation zed shares is 5,000 is more than 5,000 or fraction thereof sit these funds into		
13	481.	Plan Management (40800)			\$101,278	\$101,278
14 15		Federal Health Benefit Exchange Plan Management (40801)	\$101,278	\$101,278		
16		Fund Sources: General	\$101,278	\$101,278		
17		Authority: §§ 38.2-316.1 and 38.2-326, Code of Virginia	; § 42.18041 c, Un	ited States Code.		
18 19 20		There is hereby appropriated to the State Corporation Co \$101,278 the second year from the general fund to pay authorized in Chapter 670 of the Acts of Assembly of	for the plan man			
21 22		Total for State Corporation Commission			\$107,420,395	\$106,255,921 \$109,731,228
23 24		Nongeneral Fund Positions	675.00	675.00 676.00		
25 26		Position Level	675.00	675.00 676.00		
27 28 29		Fund Sources: General Special	\$101,278 \$98,103,676	\$101,278 \$96,901,830 \$ <i>100,341,498</i>		
30 31		Trust and Agency Dedicated Special Revenue	\$5,856,941 \$1,308,500	\$5,856,941 \$1,345,872		
32 33		Federal Trust	\$2,050,000	\$1,381,511 \$2,050,000		
34		§ 1-133. VIRGIN	A LOTTERY (17	(2)		
35	482.	State Lottery Operations (81100)		_)	\$108,679,472	\$101,279,472
36 37 38		Regulation and Law Enforcement (81105)	\$3,135,511	\$3,135,511 \$ <i>3,264,712</i>	\$112,279,472	\$102,661,539
39		Gaming Operations (81106)	\$93,217,454	\$85,817,454		
40 41 42		Administrative Services (81107)	\$96,817,454 \$12,326,507	\$86,880,145 \$12,326,507 \$12,516,682		
43 44		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$108,679,472 \$112,279,472	\$101,279,472 \$102,661,539		
45		Authority: Title 58.1, Chapter 40, Code of Virginia.				
46		Out of the amounts for Virginia Lottery Operations shall	be paid:			
47 48		1. Reimbursement for compensation and reasonable exp Lottery Board in the performance of their duties, as prov				
49 50		2. The total costs for the operation and administration o 4022, Code of Virginia.	f the state lottery,	pursuant to § 58.1-		

-				Details(\$)	Appropri	
I	TEM 482.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2		3. The costs of informing the public of the purpose established pursuant to Article X, Section 7-A, Co				
3 4	483.	Disbursement of Lottery Prize Payments (81200) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$350,000,000	\$350,000,000
5		Payment of Lottery Prizes (81201)	\$350,000,000	\$350,000,000		
6		Fund Sources: Enterprise	a sum suffi	cient		
7		Authority: Title 58.1, Chapter 40, Code of Virginia.				
8 9 10		There is hereby appropriated from affected funds in prizes awarded by the state lottery and of commi- accordance with law, a sum sufficient.				
11 12		Total for Virginia Lottery			\$458,679,472 \$462,279,472	\$451,279,472 \$452,661,539
13		Nongeneral Fund Positions	308.00	308.00		
14		Position Level	308.00	308.00		
15 16		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$458,679,472 \$462,279,472	\$451,279,472 \$452,661,539		
17		§ 1-134. VIRGINIA COLL	EGE SAVINGS P	PLAN (174)		
18 19	484.	Investment, Trust, and Insurance Services (72500) a sum sufficient, estimated at			\$250,000,000	\$250,000,000
20 21		Payments for Tuition and Educational Expense Benefits (72505)	\$250,000,000	\$250,000,000	\$ <u>2</u> 20,000,000	¢230,000,000
22		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$250,000,000	\$250,000,000		
23		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter 7, Code of Virginia.				
24 25 26 27 28		A. Amounts for Payments for Tuition and Education payment of benefits to postsecondary educational participants under the Prepaid529 Program, estimated \$250,000,000 the second year, from nongeneral func- Virginia.	institutions on be at \$250,000,000	chalf of program the first year and		
29 30 31		B.1. Any moneys collected, distributed or held for the Invest529 Program and other higher education saving from such funds, are subject to the provisions of § 2	gs programs, inclu	ding any income		
32 33 34		2. Any moneys collected, distributed or held for th Prepaid529 Program, or any Plan administrative reven funds, are subject to § 23.1-701.C. of the Code of Virg	ue, including any i			
35 36		C. Amounts for Payments for Tuition and Educational obligations of the fund as provided for in Title 23.1, C				
37 38	485.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$28,985,519 \$30,517,037	\$29,063,694 \$30,120,929
39 40		General Management and Direction (79901)	\$14,102,555 \$14,621,468	\$14,129,306 \$14,674,541	Ψυ 0,017,007	<i>420,120,727</i>
41 42 43		Investment, Trust and Related Services for Prepaid529 Program (79950)	\$6,402,127 \$6,447,127	\$6,373,856		
44 45 46		Trust and Related Services for Invest529 Program and other Higher Education Savings Programs (79951)	\$7,376,575	\$7,435,613		
47 48 49 50		Investment, Trust and Related Services for Achieving a Better Life Experience (ABLE) Program (79952)	\$8, <i>344,180</i> \$1,104,262	\$7,947,613 \$1,124,919		

	ITEM 485		Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: Enterprise	\$28,985,519 \$30,517,037	\$29,063,694 \$30,120,929		
3		Authority: Title 23.1, Chapter7, Code of Virginia.				
4 5 6		A. Out of the amounts appropriated to this Item, \$650,00 second year from nongeneral funds are designated for a co link pay to performance.				
7 8 9		B. Amounts for Investment, Trust and Related Services co of the Prepaid529 Program, estimated at \$6,402,127 the fi year, from nongeneral funds pursuant to \$23.1-701, Code	rst year and \$6,3			
10 11 12 13		C. Amounts for Investment, Trust and Related Services cov of the Invest529 Program and other higher education \$7,376,575 the first year and \$7,435,613 the second year, fi 23.1-701, Code of Virginia.	savings progra	ams, estimated at		
14 15		D.1. Included in this appropriation is \$2,000,000 the first y from nongeneral funds to support SOAR Virginia scholarsh		00 the second year		
16 17		2. Of the appropriation provided in D.1., \$1,000,000 the fi year shall be from existing appropriations provided in this		000,000 the second		
18 19 20 21		3. The funding provided to SOAR Virginia in D.1. and D Prepaid529 fund having an actuarial fund value of at least and Virginia529 operating expenses must have less than operating revenue ratio in the prior fiscal year unless other	100 percent in th a 70 percent op	he prior fiscal year erating expense to		
22 23 24 25		E. The newly created Investment Director position at the V assist the CEO and Board in directing, managing, and ac Investment Director shall serve at the pleasure of the majority vote of the Board.	dministering the	Plan's assets. The		
26 27		Total for Virginia College Savings Plan			\$278,985,519 \$280,517,037	\$279,063,694 \$280,120,929
28 29		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	115.00 115.00	115.00 115.00		
30 31			\$278,985,519 \$280,517,037	\$279,063,694 \$280,120,929		
32		§ 1-135. VIRGINIA RETIR	REMENT SYST	EM (158)		
33 34	486.	Personnel Management Services (70400)			\$17,175,128	\$16,994,991 \$17,625,718
35 36 37		Administration of Retirement and Insurance Programs (70415)	\$17,175,128	\$16,994,991 \$17,625,718		φ17,0 <u>2</u> 3,710
38		Fund Sources: General	\$185,137	\$80,000		
39 40		Trust and Agency	\$16,989,991	\$16,914,991 \$17,545,718		
41		Authority: Title 9.1, Chapter 4; Title 51.1, Chapters 1, 2, 2.	1, and 3, Code o	f Virginia.		
42 43 44 45 46 47		A. The Board of Trustees of the Virginia Retirement Syste participation fee to each employer served by the Virginia I provided pursuant to Title 51.1, Code of Virginia. The administrative expenses of all administrative services, in Retirement contributions required by the board shall be re- prescribed by the Board of Trustees.	Retirement Syste e fee shall be u ncluding non-ret	m for any services tilized to pay the irement programs.		

48 B. State agencies and institutions of higher education shall make payments to the Virginia
 49 Retirement System (VRS) for VRS-administered benefits no less often than monthly.

ITEM 486	ñ.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	C. The Virginia Retirement System shall make cha procedures, and systems as necessary for impleme retirement reforms provided in Chapter 701 of the	entation of the p	ublic employee		
4 5 6	D.1. Out of this appropriation, \$185,137 the first year a the general fund is provided for expenses associated w Rescue Squad Workers' Service Award Fund.				
7 8 9 10 11	2. Gains forfeited prior to July 1, 2016 pursuant to § 51 accumulated earnings thereon shall be used to provide 51.1-1200, Code of Virginia. All future gains forfeited Virginia, shall also be used to provide the reimburseme of Virginia.	the reimbursemetry pursuant to 51.	nt described in § 1-1206, Code of		
12 13 14 15 16	E. The Board of Trustees of the Virginia Retirement Sy the Chairmen of the House Appropriations Committee when a political subdivision becomes more than 60 days the Virginia Retirement System. Such notification shall 60 day period has occurred.	e and Senate Fin s in arrears in their	ance Committee		
17 18	F.1. Pursuant to the administration of Chapter 4 of following provisions are effective July 1, 2017:	Title 9.1, Code	of Virginia, the		
19 20 21	2. For purposes of this Item, employer contributions for the National Guard and Virginia Defense Force on Department of Military Affairs.				
22 23 24 25 26 27 28	3. In addition to any other benefit provided by law, a amount of \$20,000 for the surviving spouses and depe National Guard and United States military reserves kill on or after October 7, 2001, are payable pursuant to § 4 the Line of Duty Death and Health Benefits Trust Fund with support from the Department of Military Affairs, benefit.	endents of certain led in action in an 14-93.1.B., Code o l. The Virginia Re	members of the y armed conflict of Virginia, from tirement System,		
29 30 31 32	4. Funding for the inclusion of a member of any fire c services for facilities of the Virginia National Guard o will be paid by the Department of Military Affairs out this act.	r the Virginia Air	National Guard		
33 34 35 36	5. Any locality that has established a trust, trusts, or purpose of accumulating and investing assets to fund popensions under § 15.2-1544, Code of Virginia, may fur the assets of the trust, trusts, or equivalent arrangement	ost-employment be nd Line of Duty A	enefits other than		
37 38 39 40 41 42	G. Notwithstanding § 51.1-124.20, Code of Virginia, Board of Trustees of the Virginia Retirement System which, three members shall be ex-officio and non-voti members shall include the following: the Secretary of director of the Senate Finance Committee, or his designee.	n shall consist of ing members. The Finance, or his d	12 members; of three ex-officio esignee, the staff		
43 487. 44	Investment, Trust, and Insurance Services (72500)			\$35,251,714 \$35,393,852	\$34,758,314 \$37,783,637
45 46	Investment Management Services (72504)	\$35,251,714 \$35,393,852	\$34,758,314 \$37,783,637		
47 48	Fund Sources: Trust and Agency	\$35,251,714 \$35,393,852	\$34,758,314 \$37,783,637		
49	Authority: Title 51.1, Chapters 1, 2, 2.1, and 3, Code of	Virginia.			
50 51 52 53	By September 30 of each year, the Board of Trustees of shall report to the Governor and the Chairmen of the Finance Committees on the prior fiscal year's results of management program. The report shall include a comm	House Appropria btained by the int	tions and Senate ernal investment		

management program. The report shall include a comparison of investment performance

53

	ITEM 487		First Year		First Year	iations(\$) Second Year
1		against the board's banchmarks and an astimate of the pr	FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2		against the board's benchmarks and an estimate of the pro- to similar assets managed externally.	ogram s ree saving	gs when compared		
3 4	488.	Administrative and Support Services (79900)			\$41,124,684 \$4 <i>3,274,684</i>	\$36,241,810 \$38,928,014
5 6		General Management and Direction (79901)	\$19,814,712 \$21,964,712	\$14,256,589 \$16,406,220	<i><i>ϕ</i>,<i>2</i>, .,</i>	<i>\$20,0720,011</i>
7 8		Information Technology Services (79902)	\$21,309,972	\$10,400,220 \$21,985,221 \$22,521,794		
9 10		Fund Sources: Trust and Agency	\$41,124,684 \$43,274,684	\$36,241,810 \$38,928,014		
11		Authority: Title 51.1, Chapters 1, 2, 2.1, and 3, Code of V	irginia.			
12 13 14 15		A. Out of the amounts appropriated to this Item, the d amount not to exceed \$25,000 the first year and \$25, commonly borne by business enterprises. Such expenses agency.	000 the second y	year for expenses		
16 17 18 19		B. Out of the amounts appropriated to this item, an amory year and \$300,000 the second year is designated to prosupport of the Commission on Employee Retirement Se pursuant to the passage of Chapter 683, 2016 Acts of A	ovide retirement-r ecurity and Pensic	elated services in		
20 21 22 23 24 25 26	489.	In the event any political subdivision of the Commonwe programs administered by the Virginia Retirement System fees and costs of the programs as duly prescribed, the Retirement System shall inform the State Comptroll subdivision of the delinquent amount. The State Compt amounts to the appropriate fund from any nonearmarked such political subdivision by any department or agency	n fails to remit con Board of Trustee ler and the partic troller shall forth d moneys otherwi	tributions or other es of the Virginia cipating political with transfer such		
27 28		Total for Virginia Retirement System			\$93,551,526 \$95,843,664	\$87,995,115 \$94,337,369
29 30		Nongeneral Fund Positions Position Level	364.00 364.00	368.00 368.00		
31		Fund Sources: General	\$185,137	\$80,000		
32 33		Trust and Agency	\$93,366,389 \$95,658,527	\$87,915,115 \$94,257,369		
34		§ 1-136. VIRGINIA WORKERS' COM	MPENSATION (COMMISSION (19)	l)	
35	490.	Employment Assistance Services (46200)			\$40,560,127	\$40,534,327
36 37 38		Workers Compensation Services (46204)	\$40,560,127	\$40,534,327 \$41,846,302		\$41,846,302
39 40		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$40,560,127	\$40,534,327 \$41,846,302		
41		Authority: Title 65.2, Chapter 2; Title 38.2, Chapter 50, C	ode of Virginia.			
42 43 44 45 46		A. Out of the amounts for Workers' Compensation Servic the chairman, \$174,745 from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 20 2019 to June 30, 2020, and for each of the other two Com Compensation Commission, \$171,154 from July 1, 2018 to <i>from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020</i> .	20 2019 and \$17 missioners of the	8,240 from July 1, Virginia Workers'		
47 48		B. In addition, retired Commissioners recalled to active a 17.1-327, Code of Virginia.	duty will be paid a	as authorized by §		
49 50 51		C. Out of the amounts appropriated for this item, beginnin 2020, payments of \$20,000 per year shall be paid to Kur costs of his health care.				

ITEM 4	ITEM 490.		n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020		riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 491. 2 3	Financial Assistance for Supplemental Assistance Services (49100)			\$8,527,111	\$8,527,111 \$8,672,575
4 5	Crime Victim Compensation (49104)	\$8,527,111	\$8,527,111 \$8,672,575		φ0,072,575
6 7	Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$7,027,111	\$7,027,111 \$6,660,575		
8 9	Federal Trust	\$1,500,000	\$1,500,000 \$2,012,000		
10	Authority: Title 19.2, Chapters 21.1 and 21.2, Code o	f Virginia.			
11 12 13	Total for Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission			\$49,087,238	\$49,061,438 \$50,518,877
14	Nongeneral Fund Positions	297.00	297.00		
15	Position Level	297.00	297.00		
16 17	Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$47,587,238	\$47,561,438 \$48,506,877		
18 19	Federal Trust	\$1,500,000	\$1,500,000 \$2,012,000		
20 21	TOTAL FOR INDEPENDENT AGENCIES			\$987,724,150 \$995,147,806	\$973,655,640 \$987,369,942
22 23	Nongeneral Fund Positions	1,759.00	1,763.00 1,764.00		
24 25	Position Level	1,759.00	1,763.00 1,764.00		
26	Fund Sources: General	\$286,415	\$181,278		
27 28	Special	\$98,103,676	\$96,901,830 \$100,341,498		
29 30	Enterprise	\$737,664,991 \$742,796,509	\$730,343,166 \$732,782,468		
31 32	Trust and Agency	\$99,223,330 \$101,515,468	\$93,772,056 \$100,114,310		
33 34	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$48,895,738	\$48,907,310 \$49,888,388		
35 36	Federal Trust	\$3,550,000	\$3,550,000 \$4,062,000		

	ITEM 492.		It First Ye FY201			priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		STATE GRANT	S TO NONSTATE EN	NTITIES		
2		§ 1-137. STATE GRANTS TO NONS	TATE ENTITIES-NO	ONSTATE AGEN	CIES (986)	
3 4	492.	Financial Assistance for Educational, Cultur Community, and Artistic Affairs (14300)			\$0	\$0
5		Authority: Discretionary Inclusion.				
6 7 8 9 10		A. Grants provided for in this Item shall be add Resources. As determined by the department, p provided for in § 10.1-2211, 10.1-2212, and 10 administered under the provisions of those sec administered under the provisions of § 4-5.05	rojects of museums a 1-2213 of the Code of tions. Others listed in	nd historic sites, a of Virginia, shall b	is e	
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18		B. Prior to the distribution of any funds, the organ the department in a format prescribed by the depa grant funds provided under this item will be used outlay and shall include project and spending plat the matching share for grants funded from this Ite requested by the nonstate organization in its app concurrent with the grant period. The departme assessing the value and eligibility of in-kind cont	rtment. The applicatio for purposes of operati ns. Unless otherwise s m may be cash or in-l lication for state gran nt shall use applicabl	n shall state whethen ng support or capita pecified in this iter kind contributions a t funds, but must be e federal guideline	er al n, is e e es	
19 20		C. The appropriation to those entities in this Item to be subject to the matching requirements of § 4-5.02		asterisk (*) shall no	ot	
21 22		D. Grants are hereby made to each of the followin conditions set forth in paragraphs A., B., and C. e		ntities subject to th	e	
23 24		Total for State Grants to Nonstate Entities-Nonsta Agencies			\$0	\$0
25 26		TOTAL FOR STATE GRANTS TO NONSTA'			\$0	\$0
27 28		TOTAL FOR PART 1: OPERATING EXPENSES			\$56,963,585,949 \$58,776,780,870	\$58,904,841,592 \$62,149,718,578
29 30		General Fund Positions	52,434.85 52,567.85	52,793.17 53,393.62		
31 32		Nongeneral Fund Positions		67,370.03 67,879.73		
33 34		Position Level		120,163.20 <i>121,273.35</i>		
35 36		Fund Sources: General	\$20,990,363,049 \$22,094,526,852	\$21,642,519,808 \$22,650,211,742		
37 38		Special		\$1,781,709,135 \$1,762,535,459		
39 40		Higher Education Operating		\$8,780,507,729 \$9,174,575,597		
41 42		Commonwealth Transportation		\$5,543,497,911 \$6,158,063,195		
43 44		Enterprise		\$2,649,294,321 \$2,153,915,956		
45 46		Internal Service		\$2,103,915,950 \$2,208,679,991 \$2,070,414,416		
40 47 48		Trust and Agency		\$2,359,596,654 \$2,405,585,757		
48 49 50		Debt Service		\$2,405,585,757 \$343,923,009 \$344,923,009		
50 51 52		Dedicated Special Revenue	. , ,	\$344,923,009 \$2,688,713,893 \$2,728,869,203		

			Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ITEM 492.			st Year Y2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Federal Trust	\$9,676,062	,556	,906,399,141 ,700,624,244	1 1 2017	1 1 2020

PART 2: CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES

§ 2-0. GENERAL CONDITIONS

A.1. The General Assembly hereby authorizes the capital projects listed in this act. The amounts hereinafter set forth are appropriated
 to the state agencies named for the indicated capital projects. Amounts so appropriated and amounts reappropriated pursuant to
 paragraph G of this section shall be available for expenditure during the current biennium, subject to the conditions controlling the
 expenditures of capital project funds as provided by law. Reappropriated amounts, unless otherwise stated, are limited to the
 unexpended appropriation balances at the close of the previous biennium, as shown by the records of the Department of Accounts.

8 2. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriations listed in Part 2 of this act from the second year to the
 9 first year in accordance with § 4-1.03 a 5 of this act.

10 B. The five-digit number following the title of a project is the code identification number assigned for the life of the project.

11 C. Except as herein otherwise expressly provided, appropriations or reappropriations for structures may be used for the purchase of 12 equipment to be used in the structures for which the funds are provided, subject to guidelines prescribed by the Governor.

13 D. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, appropriations for capital projects shall be subject to the following:

 Appropriations or reappropriations of funds made pursuant to this act for planning of capital projects shall not constitute implied approval of construction funds in a future biennium. Funds, other than the reappropriations referred to above, for the preparation of capital project proposals must come from the affected agency's existing resources.

17 2. No capital project for which appropriations for planning are contained in this act, nor any project for which appropriations for

18 planning have been previously approved, shall be considered for construction funds until preliminary plans and cost estimates are

19 reviewed by the Department of General Services. The purpose of this review is to avoid unnecessary expenditures for each project, in 20 the interest of assuring the overall cost of the project is reasonable in relation to the purpose intended, regardless of discrete design

20 the interest of assuring the overall21 choices.

1

2

E.1. Expenditures from Items in this act identified as "Maintenance Reserve" are to be made only for the maintenance of property,
 plant, and equipment as defined in § 4-4.01c of this act to the extent that funds included in the appropriation to the agency for this
 purpose in Part 1 of this act are insufficient.

2. Agencies and institutions of higher education can expend up to \$2,000,000 for a single repair or project, and up to \$4,000,000 for a roof replacement project, through the maintenance reserve appropriation. Such expenditures shall be subject to rules and regulations prescribed by the Governor. To the extent an agency or institution of higher education has identified a potential project that exceeds this threshold, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, can provide exemptions to the threshold as long as the project still meets the definition of a maintenance reserve project as defined by the Department of Planning and Budget.

30 3. Only facilities supported wholly or in part by the general fund shall utilize general fund maintenance reserve appropriations.
 31 Facilities supported entirely by nongeneral funds shall accomplish maintenance through the use of nongeneral funds.

32 F. Conditions Applicable to Bond Projects

1. The capital projects listed in §§ 2-52 and 2-53 for the indicated agencies and institutions of higher education are hereby authorized and sums from the sources and in the amount indicated are hereby appropriated and reappropriated. The issuance of bonds in a principal amount plus amounts needed to fund issuance costs, reserve funds, and other financing expenses, including capitalized interest for any project listed in §§ 2-52 and 2-54 2-53 is hereby authorized.

2. The issuance of bonds for any project listed in § 2-52 is to be separately authorized pursuant to Article X, Section 9 (c), Constitution
 of Virginia.

39 3. The issuance of bonds for any project listed in §§ 2-52 or 2-53 shall be authorized pursuant to § 23.1-1106, Code of Virginia.

40 4. In the event that the cost of any capital project listed in §§ 2-52 and 2-53 shall exceed the amount appropriated therefore, the

41 Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is hereby authorized, upon request of the affected institution, to approve an increase in

42 appropriation authority of not more than ten percent of the amount designated in §§ 2-52 and 2-53 for such project, from any available

43 nongeneral fund revenues, provided that such increase shall not constitute an increase in debt issuance authorization for such capital

44 project. Furthermore, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is hereby authorized to approve the expenditure of all interest

45 earnings derived from the investment of bond proceeds in addition to the amount designated in §§ 2-52 and 2-53 for such capital

46 project.

Item Details(\$)Appropriations(\$)First YearSecond YearFY2019FY2020FY2019FY2020

5. The interest on bonds to be issued for these projects may be subject to inclusion in gross income for federal income tax
 purposes.

3 6. Inclusion of a project in this act does not imply a commitment of state funds for temporary construction financing. In the absence of

- 4 such commitment, the institution may be responsible for securing short-term financing and covering the costs from other sources of
 5 funda
- 5 funds.

6 7. In the event that the Treasury Board determines not to finance all or any portion of any project listed in § 2-52 of this act with the
7 issuance of bonds pursuant to Article X, Section 9 (c), Constitution of Virginia, and notwithstanding any provision of law to the
8 contrary, this act shall constitute the approval of the General Assembly to finance all or such portion of such project under the
9 authorization of § 2-53 of this act.

- 8. The General Assembly further declares and directs that, notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, 50 percent of
 the proceeds from the sale of surplus real property pursuant to § 2.2-1147 et seq., Code of Virginia, which pertain to the general fund,
 and which were under the control of an institution of higher education prior to the sale, shall be deposited in a special fund set up on
 the books of the State Comptroller, which shall be known as the Higher Education Capital Projects Fund. Such sums shall be held in
 reserve, and may be used, upon appropriation, to pay debt service on bonds for the 21st Century College Program as authorized in
 Item C-7.10 of Chapter 924 of the Acts of Assembly of 1997.
- G. Upon certification by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, there is hereby reappropriated the appropriationsunexpended at the close of the previous biennium for all authorized capital projects which meet any of the following conditions:
- **18** 1. Construction is in progress.
- 19 2. Equipment purchases have been authorized by the Governor but not received.
- 20 3. Plans and specifications have been authorized by the Governor but not completed.
- **21** 4. Obligations were outstanding at the end of the previous biennium.
- 22 H. Alternative Financing
- 23 1. Any agency or institution of the Commonwealth that would construct, purchase, lease, or exchange a capital asset by means of an
- alternative financing mechanism, such as the Public Private Education Infrastructure Act, or similar statutory authority, shall provide a
 report to the Governor and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees no less than 30 days prior to
 entering into such alternative financing agreement. This report shall provide:
- a. a description of the purpose to be achieved by the proposal;
- 28 b. a description of the financing options available, including the alternative financing, which will delineate the revenue streams or29 client populations pledged or encumbered by the alternative financing;
- 30 c. an analysis of the alternatives clearly setting out the advantages and disadvantages of each for the Commonwealth;
- d. an analysis of the alternatives clearly setting out the advantages and disadvantages of each for the clients of the agency or
 institution; and
- **33** e. a recommendation and planned course of action based on this analysis.
- 34 I. Conditions Applicable to Alternative Financing
- 35 The following authorizations to construct, purchase, lease or exchange a capital asset by means of an alternative financing mechanism,
- 36 such as the Public Private Education Infrastructure Act, or similar statutory authority, are continued until revoked:
- 37 1. James Madison University
- 38 a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes James Madison University, with the approval of the
- Governor, to explore and evaluate an alternative financing scenario to provide additional parking, student housing, and/or operational
 related facilities. The project shall be consistent with the guidelines of the Department of General Services and comply with Treasury
 Record Guidelines issued pursuant to \$ 22, 1, 1106 C 1 d. Code of Virginia.
- 41 Board Guidelines issued pursuant to § 23.1-1106 C.1.d, Code of Virginia.
- 42 b. The General Assembly authorizes James Madison University to enter into a written agreement with a public or private entity to
- 43 design, construct, and finance a facility or facilities to provide additional parking, student housing, and/or operational related facilities.
- 44 The facility or facilities may be located on property owned by the Commonwealth. All project proposals and approvals shall be in
- 45 accordance with the guidelines cited in paragraph 1 of this item. James Madison University is also authorized to enter into a written
- 46 agreement with the public or private entity to lease all or a portion of the facilities.

Item Details(\$)Appropriations(\$)First YearSecond YearFY2019FY2020FY2019FY2020

c. The General Assembly further authorizes James Madison University to enter into a written agreement with the public or private entity for
 the support of such parking, student housing, and/or operational related facilities by including the facilities in the University's facility
 inventory and managing their operation and maintenance; by assigning parking authorizations, students, and/or operations to the facilities in preference to other University facilities; by restricting construction of competing projects; and by otherwise supporting the
 facilities consistent with law, provided that the University shall not be required to take any action that would constitute a breach of the
 University's obligations under any documents or other instruments constituting or securing bonds or other indebtedness of the University or

7 the Commonwealth of Virginia.

8 d. James Madison University is further authorized to convey fee simple title in and to one or more parcels of land to James Madison
9 University Foundation (JMUF), which will develop and use the land for the purpose of developing and establishing residential housing
10 for students and/or faculty and staff, office, retail, athletics, dining, student services, and other auxiliary activities and commercial land
11 use in accordance with the University's Master Plan.

12 2. Longwood University

a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes Longwood University to enter into a written agreement or
 agreements with the Longwood University Real Estate Foundation (LUREF) for the development, design, construction and financing of
 student housing projects, a convocation center, parking, and operational and recreational facilities through alternative financing
 agreements including public-private partnerships. The facility or facilities may be located on property owned by the Commonwealth.

b. Longwood is further authorized to enter into a written agreement with the LUREF for the support of such student housing,
convocation center, parking, and operational and recreational facilities by including the facilities in the University's facility inventory
and managing their operation and maintenance; by assigning parking authorizations, students and/or operations to the facility or
facilities in preference to other University facilities; by restricting construction of competing projects; and by otherwise supporting the
facilities consistent with law, provided that the University shall not be required to take any action that would constitute a breach of the
University's obligations under any documents or other instruments constituting or securing bonds or other indebtedness of the
University or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

c. The General Assembly further authorizes Longwood University to enter into a written agreement with a public or private entity to plan, design, develop, construct, finance, manage and operate a facility or facilities to provide additional student housing and/or operational-related facilities. Longwood University is also authorized to enter into a written agreement with the public or private entity to lease all or a portion of the facilities. The State Treasurer is authorized to make Treasury loans to provide interim financing for planning, construction and other costs of any of the projects. Revenue bonds issued by or for the benefit of LUREF will provide

29 construction and/or permanent financing.

d. Longwood University is further authorized to convey fee simple title in and to one or more parcels of land to LUREF, which will
 develop and use the land for the purpose of developing and establishing residential housing for students and/or faculty and staff, office,
 retail, athletics, dining, student services, and other auxiliary activities and commercial land use in accordance with the University's
 Master Plan.

34 3. Christopher Newport University

a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes Christopher Newport University to enter into, continue, extend
 or amend written agreements with the Christopher Newport University Educational Foundation (CNUEF) or the Christopher Newport
 University Real Estate Foundation (CNUREF) in connection with the refinancing of certain housing and office space projects.

b. Christopher Newport University is further authorized to enter into, continue, extend or amend written agreements with CNUEF or
CNUREF to support such facilities including agreements to (i) lease all or a portion of such facilities from CNUEF or CNUREF, (ii)
include such facilities in the University's building inventory, (iii) manage the operation and maintenance of the facilities, including
collection of any rental fees from University students in connection with the use of such facilities, and (iv) otherwise support the
activities at such facilities consistent with law, provided that the University shall not be required to take any action that would
constituting a breach of the University's obligation under any documents or instruments constituting or securing bonds or other
indebtedness of the University or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

45 4. Radford University

a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes Radford University, with the approval of the Governor, to
explore and evaluate an alternative financing scenario to provide additional parking, student housing, and/or operational related
facilities. The project shall be consistent with the guidelines of the Department of General Services and comply with Treasury Board
Guidelines issued pursuant to § 23.1-1106 C.1.d, Code of Virginia.

50 b. The General Assembly authorizes Radford University to enter into a written agreement with a public or private entity to design,

51 construct, and finance a facility or facilities to provide additional parking, student housing, and/or operational related facilities. The 52 facility or facilities may be located on property owned by the Commonwealth. All project proposals and approvals shall be in

Item I	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)		
First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year	
FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020	

1 accordance with the guidelines cited in paragraph 1 of this item. Radford University is also authorized to enter into a written 2 agreement with the public or private entity to lease all or a portion of the facilities.

3 c. The General Assembly further authorizes Radford University to enter into a written agreement with the public or private entity for 4 the support of such parking, student housing, and/or operational related facilities by including the facilities in the University's facility

5 inventory and managing their operation and maintenance; by assigning parking authorizations, students, and/or operations to the

6 facility or facilities in preference to other University facilities; by restricting construction of competing projects; and by otherwise

- 7 supporting the facilities consistent with law, provided that the University shall not be required to take any action that would constitute 8 a breach of the University's obligations under any documents or other instruments constituting or securing bonds or other indebtedness
- 9 of the University or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

10 5. University of Mary Washington

11 a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes the University of Mary Washington to enter into a written

12 agreement or agreements with the University of Mary Washington Foundation (UMWF) to support student housing projects and/or operational-related or other facilities through alternative financing agreements including public-private partnerships and leasehold

13

14 financing arrangements.

15 b. The University of Mary Washington is further authorized to enter into written agreements with UMWF to support such student 16 housing facilities; the support may include agreements to (i) include the student housing facilities in the University's students housing 17 inventory; (ii) manage the operation and maintenance of the facilities, including collection of rental fees as if those students occupied 18 University-owned housing; (iii) assign students to the facilities in preference to other University-owned facilities; (iv) seek to obtain 19 police power over the student housing as provided by law; and (v) otherwise support the students housing facilities consistent with 20 law, provided that the University's obligation under any documents or other instruments constituting or securing bonds or other

21 indebtedness of the University or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

22 c. The General Assembly further authorizes the University of Mary Washington to enter into a written agreement with a public or 23 private entity to design, construct, and finance a facility or facilities to provide additional student housing and/or operational-related

24 facilities. The facility or facilities may or may not be located on property owned by the Commonwealth. The University of Mary

Washington is also authorized to enter into a written agreement with the public or private entity to lease all or a portion of the 25

26 facilities. The State Treasurer is authorized to make Treasury loans to provide interim financing for planning, construction and other

27 costs of any of the projects. Revenue bonds issued by or for UMWF will provide construction and/or permanent financing.

28 d. The University of Mary Washington is further authorized to convey fee simple title in and to one or more parcels of land to the 29 University of Mary Washington Foundation (UMWF) which will develop and use the land for the purpose of developing and 30 establishing residential housing for students, faculty, or staff, recreational, athletic, and/or operational related facilities including office, retail and commercial, student services, or other auxiliary activities. 31

32 6. Norfolk State University

33 a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes Norfolk State University to enter into a written agreement or

34 agreements with a Foundation of the University for the development of one or more student housing projects on or adjacent to campus, 35 subject to the conditions outlined in the Public-Private Education Facilities Infrastructure Act of 2002.

36 b. Norfolk State University is further authorized to enter into written agreements with a Foundation of the University to support such 37 student housing facilities; the support may include agreements to (i) include the student housing facilities in the University's student 38 housing inventory; (ii) manage the operation and maintenance of the facilities, including collection of rental fees as if those students 39 occupied University-owned housing; (iii) assign students to the facilities in preference to other University-owned facilities; (iv) restrict 40 construction of competing student housing projects; (v) seek to obtain police power over the student housing as provided by law; and 41 (vi) otherwise support the student housing facilities consistent with law, provided that the University shall not be required to take any 42 action that would constitute a breach of the University's obligations under any documents or other instruments constituting or securing 43 bonds or other indebtedness of the University or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

44 7. Northern Virginia Community College - Alexandria Campus

45 The General Assembly authorizes Northern Virginia Community College, Alexandria Campus to enter into a written agreement either

46 with its affiliated foundation or a private contractor to construct a facility to provide on-campus housing on College land to be leased

47 to said foundation or private contractor for such purposes. Northern Virginia Community College, Alexandria Campus, is also

48 authorized to enter into a written agreement with said foundation or private contractor for the support of such student housing facilities 49 and management of the operation and maintenance of the same.

50 8. Virginia State University

51 a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes Virginia State University (University) to enter into a written

agreement or agreements with the Virginia State University Foundation (VSUF), Virginia State University Real Estate Foundation 52

Item Details(\$)Appropriations(\$)First YearSecond YearFY2019FY2020FY2019FY2020

(VSUREF), and other entities owned or controlled by the university for the development, design, construction, financing, and management
 of a mixed-use economic development corridor comprising student housing, parking, and dining facilities through alternative financing
 agreements including public-private partnerships. The facility or facilities may be located on property owned by the Commonwealth.

b. Virginia State University is further authorized to enter into a written agreement with the VSUREF, VSUF, and other entities owned
or controlled by the university for the support of such a mixed-use economic development corridor comprising student housing,

parking, and dining facilities by including these projects in the university's facility inventory and managing their operation and
 maintenance; by assigning parking authorizations, students and/or operations to the facility or facilities in preference to other university

8 facilities; by restricting construction of competing projects; and by otherwise supporting the facilities consistent with law, provided that

- 9 the university shall not be required to take any action that would constitute a breach of the university's obligations under any documents
- 10 or other instruments constituting or securing bonds or other indebtedness of the university or the Commonwealth of Virginia.
- 11 9. College of William and Mary

a. Subject to the provisions of this act, the General Assembly authorizes the College of William and Mary, with the approval of the
 Governor, to explore and evaluate alternative financing scenarios to provide additional parking, student or faculty/staff housing,
 recreational, athletic and/or operational related facilities. The project shall be consistent with the guidelines of the Department of

15 General Services and comply with Treasury Board guidelines issued pursuant to § 23.1-1106 C.1. (d), Code of Virginia.

b. The General Assembly authorizes the College of William and Mary to enter into written agreements with public or private entities to
design, construct, and finance a facility or facilities to provide additional parking, student or faculty/staff housing, recreational, athletic,
and/or operational related facilities. The facility or facilities may be on property owned by the Commonwealth. All project proposals
and approvals shall be in accordance with the guidelines cited in paragraph 1 of this item. The College of William and Mary is also
authorized to enter into a written agreement with the public or private entity to lease all or a portion of the facility.

c. The General Assembly further authorizes the College of William and Mary to enter into written agreements with the public or private
 entities for the support and operation of such parking, student or faculty/staff housing, recreational, athletic, and /or operational related
 facilities by including the facilities in the College's facility inventory and managing their operation and maintenance including the
 assignment of parking authorizations, students, faculty or staff, and operations to the facilities consistent with law, provided that the Collage
 shall not be required to take any action that would constitute a breach of the University's obligations under any documents or other
 instruments constituting or securing bonds or other indebtedness of the College or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

d. The College of William and Mary is further authorized to convey fee simple title in and to one or more parcels of land to the William
 and Mary Real Estate Foundation (WMREF) which will develop and use the land for the purpose of developing and establishing
 residential housing for students, faculty, or staff, recreational, athletic, and/or operational related facilities including office, retail and
 commercial, student services, or other auxiliary activities.

32 10. The following individuals, and members of their immediate family, may not engage in an alternative financing arrangement with33 any agency or institution of the Commonwealth, where the potential for financial gain, or other factors may cause a conflict of interest:

34 a. A member of the agency or institution's governing body;

b. Any elected or appointed official of the Commonwealth or its agencies and institutions who has, or reasonably can be assumed tohave, a direct influence on the approval of the alternative financing arrangement; or

37 c. Any elected or appointed official of a participating political subdivision, or authority who has, or reasonably can be assumed to have,38 a direct influence on the approval of the alternative financing arrangement.

J. Appropriations contained in this act for capital project planning shall be used as specified for each capital project and construction
 funding for the project shall be considered by the General Assembly after determining that (1) project cost is reasonable; (2) the project
 remains a highly-ranked capital priority for the Commonwealth; and (3) the project is fully justified from a space and programmatic
 perspective.

K. Any capital project that has received a supplemental appropriation due to cost overruns must be completed within the revised budget
 provided. If a project requires an additional supplement, the Governor should also consider reduction in project scope or cancelling the
 project before requesting additional appropriations. Agencies and institutions with nongeneral funds may bear the costs of additional
 overruns from nongeneral funds.

47 L. The Governor shall consider the project life cycle cost that provides the best long-term benefit to the Commonwealth when48 conducting capital project reviews, design and construction decisions, and project scope changes.

49 M. No structure, improvement or renovation shall occur on the state property located at the Carillon in Byrd Park in the City of50 Richmond without the approval of the General Assembly.

51 N. All agencies of the Commonwealth and institutions of higher education shall provide information and/or use systems and processes

Item I	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)		
First Year	Second Year	First Year	Second Year	
FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020	

1 in the method and format as directed by the Director, Department of General Services, on behalf of the Six-Year Capital Outlay

2 Plan Advisory Committee, to provide necessary information for state-wide reporting. This requirement shall apply to all projects,

3 including those funded from general and nongeneral fund sources.

O. The Department of General Services, with the cooperation and support of the Workers' Compensation Commission, is hereby
directed to manage acquisition or, construction, or leasing under a capital lease of a new headquarters facility for the commission out
of such funds appropriated for such purposes by Item C-38.10, Chapter 1, 2014 Special Session I. Upon completion of the new
facility, the department shall transfer the existing headquarters facility located at 1000 DMV Drive in Richmond, Virginia to the

8 Science Museum of Virginia.

9 P. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, in consultation with the Six-Year Capital Outlay Plan Advisory Committee, is authorized to transfer bond appropriations and bond proceeds between and among the capital pool projects listed in the table below, in

11 order to address any shortfall in appropriation in one or more of such projects:

		1 5	
12	Pool Project No.	Pool Project Title	Authorization
13 14	17775	Public Education Institutions Capital Account	Enactment Clause 2, § 4, Chapter 1, 2008 Special Session I Acts of Assembly
15 16	17776	State Agency Capital Account	Enactment Clause 2, § 2, Chapter 1, 2008 Special Session I Acts of Assembly
17 18 19	17861	Supplements for Previously Authorized Higher Education Capital Projects	Item C-85, Chapter 874, 2010 Acts of Assembly; amended by Item C-85, Chapter 890, 2011 Acts of Assembly
20 21	17862	Energy Conservation	Item C-86, Chapter 890, 2011 Acts of Assembly
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	17967	Capital Outlay Project Pool	Item C-38.10, Chapter 3, 2012 Special Session I Acts of Assembly; amended by: Item C-38.10, Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly; by Item C-38.10, Chapter 1, 2014 Special Session I Acts of Assembly; Item C-43, Chapter 2, 2014 Special Session I Acts of Assembly; Item C-43, Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly; and Item 48.10, Chapter 836, 2017 Acts of Assembly.
32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39	18049	Comprehensive Capital Outlay Program	Item C-39.40, Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly; amended by: Item C-39.40, Chapter 1, 2014 Special Session I Acts of Assembly; Item C-46.10, Chapter 2, 2014 Special Session I Acts of Assembly, and Item 46.10, Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly, and Item C-46, Chapter 2, 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special Session I.
40 41	18196	Capital Outlay Renovation Pool	Item C-46.15, Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly
42 43 44 45	18300	2016 VPBA Capital Construction Pool	§ 1, Chapters 759 and 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly; <i>amended by: Item C-47</i> , <i>Chapter 2, 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special</i> <i>Session I.</i>
46 47 48 49	18301	2016 VCBA Capital Construction Pool	§ 2, Chapters 759 and 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly; <i>amended by: Item C-48</i> , <i>Chapter 2, 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special</i> <i>Session I.</i>
50 51	18371	2018 Capital Construction Pool	Item C-45, Chapter 2, 2018 Acts of Assembly, Special Session I
52		EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT	
53		OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION	

]	ITEM C-1		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		§ 2-1. DEPARTMENT OF	GENERAL SERVIC	CES (194)		
2 3	C-1.	Improvements: Monroe Building Critical Systems Replacements (18368)			\$13,600,000	\$0
4		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$13,600,000	\$0		
5	C-1.10	Security improvements for North Drive (18420)			\$2,000,000	\$0
6		Fund Sources: General	\$2,000,000	\$0		
7	C-2.	Omitted.				
8 9		Total for Department of General Services			\$13,600,000 \$15,600,000	\$0
10		Fund Sources: General	\$2,000,000	\$0		
11		Bond Proceeds	\$13,600,000	\$0		
12 13		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION			\$13,600,000 \$15,600,000	\$0
14		Fund Sources: General	\$2,000,000	\$0		
15		Bond Proceeds	\$13,600,000	\$0		
16		OFFICE OF AGRICUL	TURE AND FORES	STRY		
17		§ 2-2. DEPARTMENT	T OF FORESTRY (4	11)		
18 19	C-2.10	New Construction: Construct new vehicle service center (18405)			\$0	\$4,270,000
20		Fund Sources: Special	\$0	\$4,270,000		
21 22 23 24 25		The purpose of the project authorized in this Item is construction of a new Department of Forestry vehicle area. The Department of Forestry and the University of to exchange property, pursuant to the provisions of § 2.2 project.	service center in the Virginia may enter in	Charlottesville to an agreement		
26		Total for Department of Forestry			\$0	\$4,270,000
27		Fund Sources: Special	\$0	\$4,270,000		
28 29		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY			\$0	\$4,270,000
30		Fund Sources: Special	\$0	\$4,270,000		
31		OFFICE OF	EDUCATION			
32		§ 2-3. VIRGINIA SCHOOL FOR T	THE DEAF AND TH	HE BLIND (218)		
33 34	C-3.	Improvements: Make System Infrastructure Repairs and Improvements (18370)			\$2,000,000	\$0
35		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$2,000,000	\$0		
36 37	C-3.10	Improvements: Expand Emergency Generator System (18417)			\$0	\$1,017,000
38		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$0	\$1,017,000		
39 40		Total for Virginia School for the Deaf and the Blind			\$2,000,000	\$0 \$1,017,000

II	ЪМ С-3.	10.	Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$2,000,000	\$0 \$1,017,000		
3		§ 2-4. THE COLLEGE OF WILLIA	AM AND MARY IN	VIRGINIA (204	4)	
4 5	C-4.	New Construction: Construct the Sadler Center West Addition (18360)			\$37,742,000	\$0
6		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$37,742,000	\$0		
7	C-5.	Improvements: Renovate dormitories (18100)			\$11,000,000	\$0
8		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$11,000,000	\$0		
9 10		Total for The College of William and Mary in Virginia			\$48,742,000	\$0
11		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$48,742,000	\$0		
12		§ 2-5. GEORGE MAS	ON UNIVERSITY	(247)		
13 14	C-6.	New Construction: Construct Utilities Distribution Infrastructure (18208)			\$5,381,000	\$0
15		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$5,381,000	\$0		
16		Total for George Mason University			\$5,381,000	\$0
17		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$5,381,000	\$0		
18		§ 2-6. JAMES MADIS	ON UNIVERSITY	(216)		
19 20	C-7.	Acquisition: Blanket Property Acquisition (17821)			\$3,000,000	\$0
21		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,000,000	\$0		
22	C-8.	Omitted.				
23		Total for James Madison University			\$3,000,000	\$0
24		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,000,000	\$0		
25		§ 2-7. LONGWOOD	O UNIVERSITY (21	(4)		
26 27 28	C-8.50	Planning: Renovate / Expand Environmental Health & Safety and Facilities Annex Building (18384)			\$1,378,000	\$0
29		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,378,000	\$0		
30 31 32 33 34 35 36		A. In accordance with Chapter 15.1 (§ 2.2-1515 et Virginia, Longwood University shall submit its complet the Six-Year Capital Outlay Plan Advisory or recommendation. Longwood University is authorized operating nongeneral funds to move to working draw planning documents pursuant to this item shall be General Assembly prior to July 1, 2019.	eted detailed plannir Committee for it I to use additional h vings for this projec submitted to the G	ng documents to s review and igher education t. However, no tovernor or the		
37 38		B. Longwood University shall be reimbursed for al project is funded to move into the construction pha	-	useu when the		
39		Total for Longwood University			\$1,378,000	\$0
40		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,378,000	\$0		
41		§ 2-8. NORFOLK STA	TE UNIVERSITY	(213)		

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
I	TEM C-9.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	C-9.	New Construction: Construct Residential Housing (17818)			\$10,000,000	\$0
3		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$10,000,000	\$0		
4	C-10.	Acquisition: Acquire Property (18188)			\$3,000,000	\$0
5		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,000,000	\$0		
6	C-10.10	Planning: Science Building Replacement (18385)			\$3,500,000	\$0
7		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,500,000	\$0		
8 9 10 11 12 13		A. In accordance with Chapter 15.1 (§ 2.2-1515 et seq.) Norfolk State University shall submit its completed deta Year Capital Outlay Plan Advisory Committee for its re State University is authorized to use additional higher et to move to working drawings for this project. However, this item shall be submitted to the Governor or the Gene	ailed planning docur eview and recommend ducation operating r , no planning docur	nents to the Six- ndation. Norfolk nongeneral funds nents pursuant to		
14 15		B. Norfolk State University shall be reimbursed for a project is funded to move into the construction phase	-	s used when the		
16		Total for Norfolk State University			\$16,500,000	\$0
17 18		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$6,500,000 \$10,000,000	\$0 \$0		
19		§ 2-9. OLD DOMINIO	ON UNIVERSITY (221)		
20 21	C-11.	Improvements: Convert Gymnasium Into a Competition Women's Volleyball Facility (18359)			\$3,420,000	\$0
22		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,420,000	\$0		
23 24	C-11.10	Improvements: Construct Campus Dining Improvements, Phase II (18406)			\$0	\$5,000,000
25		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$0	\$5,000,000		
26 27	C-11.20	New Construction: Construct Student Health and Wellness Addition (18407)			\$0	\$11,000,000
28 29		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$0 \$0	\$1,800,000 \$9,200,000		
30 31		Total for Old Dominion University			\$3,420,000	\$0 \$16,000,000
32 33 34		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$3,420,000 \$0	\$0 \$6,800,000 \$9,200,000		
35		§ 2-10. RADFORD	UNIVERSITY (21)	7)		
36	C-11.50	Planning: Renovation / Construction Center of)	\$4,000,000	\$0
37 38		Adaptive Innovation and Creativity (CAIC) (18386) Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$4,000,000	\$0	\$4,000,000	\$ U
39 40 41 42 43 44 45		 A. In accordance with Chapter 15.1 (§ 2.2-1515 et seq.) Radford University shall submit its completed detailed Capital Outlay Plan Advisory Committee for its revi University is authorized to use additional higher educa move to working drawings for this project. However, no item shall be submitted to the Governor or the General A B. Radford University shall be reimbursed for all nonge 	of Title 2.2 of the O planning documents we and recommen ation operating non planning documents assembly prior to Jul	Code of Virginia, s to the Six-Year dation. Radford general funds to s pursuant to this ly 1, 2019.		
43		b. Rauford University shan be reinibursed for all nonge	neral funds used Wr	ien die project is		

			Item I	Details(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
IT	EM C-11.5	50.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		funded to move into the construction phase.	F 12017	F 1 2020	F 1201)	F 12020
2 3	C-11.60	Acquisition: Acquire property for campus expansion (17851)			\$17,850,000	\$0
4		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$17,850,000	\$0		
5 6		Total for Radford University			\$4,000,000 \$21,850,000	\$0
7 8		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$4,000,000 <i>\$17,850,000</i>	\$0 <i>\$0</i>		
9		§ 2-11. UNIVERSITY OF M	IARY WASHINGT	CON (215)		
10 11	C-12.	Improvements: Renovate Residence Halls - Phase II (18362)			\$24,500,000	\$0
12		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$24,500,000	\$0		
13		Total for University of Mary Washington			\$24,500,000	\$0
14		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$24,500,000	\$0		
15		§ 2-12. UNIVERSITY	OF VIRGINIA (2	07)		
16 17	C-13.	Improvements: Renovate Gilmer Hall and Chemistry Building (18082)			\$31,441,000	\$0
18		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$31,441,000	\$0		
19		Total for University of Virginia			\$31,441,000	\$0
20		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$31,441,000	\$0		
21		§ 2-13. VIRGINIA COMMON	WEALTH UNIVE	RSITY (236)		
22	C-13.10	Acquire Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority	Property			
23 24 25 26 27 28 29		At such time as the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Contr that the Alcoholic Beverage Control Central Office a 2919 Hermitage Road in the City of Richmond, Virgin acres +/- of land and improvements (Property), is purposes, it shall offer to transfer the Property to V. (VCU) prior to offering the Property for transfer or s agency or entity or individual, on such terms and con	and Warehouse loca nia, consisting of ap no longer required irginia Commonwea sale to any other pu	ated at 2901 & proximately 20 I for Authority alth University ublic or private		
30 31 32 33		The Authority and VCU shall each obtain a separat performed by an appraiser licensed by the Commo General Real Property Appraisers, who must meet Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Pract	onwealth of Virgini the competency pro	ia as Certified		
34 35 36 37		The Authority shall offer the Property to VCU at a veraging the values from the two appraisals obtained Any other conditions of the transfer shall be based on a intergovernmental transfers.	by the university an	d the Authority.		
38 39 40 41 42		If the Authority and VCU cannot agree on the terms of Authority may transfer or sell the Property to any othe or individual on such terms as it determines are in however it will present those terms to VCU for its co transfer or sale to any other party.	r public or private a the best interest of	gency or entity the Authority,		
43		Total for Virginia Commonwealth University			\$0	\$0

IT	ITEM C-13.10.		Item 1 First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropri First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		§ 2-14. VIRGINIA MILIT	TARY INSTITUTE	E (211)		
2	C-14.	Improvements: Turman House Renovations (18361).			\$2,500,000	\$0
3		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$2,500,000	\$0		
4	C-15.	Improvements: Improve Crozet Hall (18372)			\$1,650,000	\$0
5		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,650,000	\$0		
6 7	C-16.	Improvements: Improve Gray Minor Stadium (18373)			\$0	\$3,100,000
8		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$0	\$3,100,000		
9 10	C-16.10	Planning: Physical Training Facility Phase 3 (18387)			\$1,800,000	\$0
11		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$1,800,000	\$0		
12 13 14 15 16 17		A. In accordance with Chapter 15.1 (§ 2.2-1515 et seq.) Virginia Military Institute shall submit its completed deta Year Capital Outlay Plan Advisory Committee for its rev Military Institute is authorized to use additional higher ec to move to working drawings for this project. However, this item shall be submitted to the Governor or the General	iled planning docur view and recommen lucation operating n no planning docum	nents to the Six- idation. Virginia iongeneral funds tents pursuant to		
18 19		B. Virginia Military Institute shall be reimbursed for a project is funded to move into the construction phase.	ll nongeneral funds	s used when the		
20 21	C-16.20	Improvements: Expand / Improve Clarkson- McKenna Press Box (18388)			\$1,500,000	\$0
22		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$1,500,000	\$0		
23 24	C-16.30	Improvements: Renovate 412 Parade, Superintendents Quarters (18389)			\$2,000,000	\$0
25		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$2,000,000	\$0		
26		Total for Virginia Military Institute			\$9,450,000	\$3,100,000
27 28		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$5,450,000 \$4,000,000	\$3,100,000 \$0		
29		§ 2-15. VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INST	ITUTE AND STAT	FE UNIVERSITY	(208)	
30 31	C-17.	Improvements: Renovate O'Shaughnessy Hall (18356)			\$21,501,000	\$0
32 33		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$8,867,000 \$12,634,000	\$0 \$0		
34 35	C-18.	Improvements: Improve Student Wellness Facilities (18357)			\$63,000,000	\$0
36 37		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$13,310,000 \$49,690,000	\$0 \$0		
38 39	C-19.	New Construction: Construct VT Carilion Research Institute Biosciences Addition (18269)			\$17,765,000	\$0
40		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$17,765,000	\$0		
41 42 43	C-20.	Improvements: Renovate Dietrick Hall, First Floor and Plaza (18358)			\$7,000,000 \$10,800,000	\$0
44		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$5,000,000	\$0	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	

ITEM C-20.).	Iter First Yea	n Details(\$) r Second Year	Approp First Year	riations(\$) Second Year
1 2		Bond Proceeds	FY2019 \$2,000,000 \$5,800,000	FY2020 \$0	FY2019	FY2020
3 4 5	C-20.10	New Construction: Construct new academic facility, Innovation campus, Northern Virginia (18412)			\$0	\$275,000,000
6 7		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating Bond Proceeds	\$0 \$0	\$107,000,000 \$168,000,000		
8 9 10		A. No state funding will be released to support the Inne certifies dollars are in hand and available to cover project costs.				
11 12 13 14 15 16		B. The Virginia College Building Authority, pursuant to Virginia, is authorized to issue bonds in a principal of plus amounts needed to fund issuance costs, reserve ful prior to and during the acquisition or construction thereof, and other financing expenses, to finance the co the appropriation in this Item is provided.	amount not to exc nds, original issue and for one year	eed \$168,000,000 e discount, interest after completion		
17 18		C. Debt service on bonds issued under the authorization from appropriations to the Treasury Board.	ution in this Item	shall be provided		
19 20 21		Total for Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University			\$109,266,000 \$113,066,000	\$0 \$275,000,000
22 23		Fund Sources: Higher Education Operating	\$27,177,000	\$0 \$107,000,000		
24 25		Bond Proceeds	\$82,089,000 \$85,889,000	\$0 \$168,000,000		
26		§ 2-16. FRONTIER CULTURE	MUSEUM OF V	VIRGINIA (239)		
27 28	C-21.	New Construction: Construct English Barn (18364)			\$629,000	\$0
29		Fund Sources: Special	\$629,000	\$0		
30		Total for Frontier Culture Museum of Virginia			\$629,000	\$0
31		Fund Sources: Special	\$629,000	\$0		
32		§ 2-17. GUNST	ON HALL (417)			
33 34	C-21.50	Improvements: Repair Exterior Brick and Stone at Gunston Hall (18409)			\$375,000	\$0
35		Fund Sources: General	\$375,000	\$0	\$373,000	ψυ
36		Total for Gunston Hall	<i></i>	<i>+</i> -	\$375,000	\$0
37		Fund Sources: General	\$375,000	\$0		
38		§ 2-18. VIRGINIA MUSE	CUM OF FINE A	RTS (238)		
39 40 41 42 43	C-22.	There is hereby established a capital project for the Vir "Repair and Replace Deteriorating Plywood in Furthermore, it is hereby authorized that unutilized bond authorization in the amount of \$1,494,000 be to Virginia Museum of Fine Arts' Renovate and Reloca	the Mellon Gal Virginia Public B transferred to this	lleries (18374)." uilding Authority s project from the		
44		Total for Virginia Museum of Fine Arts			\$0	\$0
45		§ 2-19. ROANOKE HIGHER E	DUCATION AU	THORITY (935)		

I	TEM C-22	2.	Item First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020	
1	C-22.50	Create Oliver Hill Courtyard (18411)			\$328,000	\$0	
2		Fund Sources: General	\$328,000	\$0			
3		Total for Roanoke Higher Education Authority			\$328,000	\$0	
4		Fund Sources: General	\$328,000	\$0			
5 6		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF EDUCATION			\$259,707,000 \$282,060,000	\$3,100,000 \$295,117,000	
7		Fund Sources: General	\$703,000	\$0			
8		Special	\$629,000 \$50,025,000	\$0 \$2,100,000			
9 10		Higher Education Operating	\$50,925,000	\$3,100,000 \$116,900,000			
11 12		Bond Proceeds	\$208,153,000 \$229,803,000	\$0 \$178,217,000			
13		OFFICE OF HEALTH A	ND HUMAN RESO	OURCES			
14		§ 2-20. DEPARTMENT OF BEHAVIORAL HEA	ALTH AND DEVE	LOPMENTAL SE	ERVICES (720)		
15 16	C-23.	Improvements: Address patient and staff safety issues at state facilities (18365)			\$9,400,000	\$0	
17		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$9,400,000	\$0			
18 19		Total for Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services			\$9,400,000	\$0	
20		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$9,400,000	\$0			
21 22		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES			\$9,400,000	\$0	
23		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$9,400,000	\$0			
24		OFFICE OF NAT	URAL RESOURCI	ES			
25		§ 2-21. DEPARTMENT OF CONSE	RVATION AND R	ECREATION (19	9)		
26	C-24.	Omitted.					
27 28 29	C-25.	Acquisition: Acquisition of land for State Parks (18236)			\$1,620,000 \$3,132,335	\$0 \$750,000	
30		Fund Sources: General	\$120,000	\$0			
31 32		Special	\$1,500,000 \$1,512,335	\$0 \$750,000			
33		Federal Trust	\$1,500,000	\$750,000 \$0			
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42		 A. It is the intent of the General Assembly that any acquire additional land abutting the limited to in-holdings or contiguous properties, consisting Item 363, and be limited to property within or contributed to property within the addition of the property of the property	istent with the author guous to Hungry M nd, Seven Bends, Fa oah River, Wildernes ized to accept donati he first year from th	rization contained other, Kiptopeke, alse Cape, Natural <i>is Road,</i> and York <i>ons of property to</i>			
43 11	C-26.	Acquisition: Acquisition of land for Natural Area			<u>\$2,600,000</u>	ድሳ	
44 45		Preserves (18242)			\$3,600,000 \$4,251,431	\$0 \$7,688,164	

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropri	ations(\$)
ľ	ГЕМ С-20	Ś.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		Fund Sources: Special	\$300,000	\$2,488,500		
2 3		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,600,000 \$3,951,431	\$0 \$500,000		
4		Federal Trust	\$0	\$4,699,664		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		It is the intent of the General Assembly that any acquis be limited, consistent with the authorization contained contiguous to The Cedars, Cowbane Prairie, Grayson G Redrock Mountain, Buffalo Mountain, Antioch Pines, N Ponds, Mount Joy Ponds, <i>Camp Branch Wetlands, C</i> <i>Difficult Creek, Pedlar Hills Glades, Poor Mountain</i> , S Ponds Natural Area Preserves. In addition, the dep donations of property within Stafford County cont Preserves.	in Item 363, to pr lads, Bald Knob, l Magothy Bay, Pin <i>hesnut Ridge, Cle</i> South Quay Sandh partment is autho	roperty within or Deep Run Ponds, nacle, Lyndhurst <i>eveland Barrens</i> , <i>iills</i> , and Grafton prized to accept		
14 15	C-27.	New Construction: Acquire and develop land for Middle Peninsula State Park (18355)			\$145,000	\$0
16		Fund Sources: Special	\$145,000	\$0		
17 18 19 20 21 22		Notwithstanding § 10.1-200.1, Code of Virginia, and department is authorized to acquire, by donation, land Middle Peninsula State Park. In addition, the departme the property using funds it may receive for this purpose set in the Surry-Skiffes Creek Transmission Line Me Mitigation Project Agreements, and as agreed to by t	and any improve nt is authorized to in accordance wi morandum of Un	ments to expand further develop th the provisions derstanding and		
23	C-27.10	Acquire the Daniel Boone Wilderness Trail Interpretive	Center (18416)			
24 25 26 27		Notwithstanding § 10.1-200.1, Code of Virginia, and p the department is authorized to acquire, by transj Wilderness Trail Interpretive Center for operation as a State Park.	fer, land and the	e Daniel Boone		
28 29 30		Total for Department of Conservation and Recreation			\$5,220,000 \$7,528,766	\$0 \$8,438,164
31		Fund Sources: General	\$120,000	\$0		
32 33		Special	\$1,500,000 \$1,957,335	\$0 \$3,238,500		
34 35		Dedicated Special Revenue	\$3,600,000 \$3,951,431	\$0 \$500,000		
36		Federal Trust	\$1,500,000	\$4,699,664		
37		§ 2-22. DEPARTMENT OF GAME	AND INLAND I	FISHERIES (403)		
38	C-28.	Maintenance Reserve (13316)			\$1,900,000	\$1,900,000
39 40		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$1,150,000 \$750,000	\$1,150,000 \$750,000		
41 42	C-29.	Improvements: Improve Wildlife Management Areas (18103)			\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000
43 44		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$500,000 \$500,000	\$500,000 \$500,000		
45	C-30.	Acquisition: Acquire Additional Land (18104)			\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000
46 47		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$500,000 \$4,500,000	\$500,000 \$4,500,000		
48 49	C-31.	Improvements: Repair and Upgrade Dams to Comply with the Dam Safety Act (18105)			\$500,000	\$500,000

ľ	ITEM C-31.		Item First Year FY2019	First Year Second Year First Y			
1		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue	\$500,000	F Y 2020 \$500,000	FY2019	FY2020	
2	C-32.	Improvements: Improve Boating Access (18106)			\$1,000,000	\$2,000,000	
3 4		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$250,000 \$750,000	\$500,000 \$1,500,000			
5		Total for Department of Game and Inland Fisheries			\$9,400,000	\$10,400,000	
6 7		Fund Sources: Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$2,900,000 \$6,500,000	\$3,150,000 \$7,250,000			
8 9 10		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF NATURAL RESOURCES			\$14,620,000 \$16,928,766	\$10,400,000 \$18,838,164	
11 12 13 14 15 16		Fund Sources: General Special Dedicated Special Revenue Federal Trust	\$120,000 \$1,500,000 \$1,957,335 \$6,500,000 \$6,851,431 \$6,500,000	\$0 \$ 0 \$3,238,500 \$3,150,000 \$3,650,000 \$7,250,000			
17 18		OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY	\$8,000,000 AND HOMELAN	\$11,949,664 D SECURITY			
19		§ 2-23. DEPARTMENT OF	HIVENILE HIST	ICE (777)			
20	C-32 50	<i>S 2 20. Differentiation of</i> <i>Improvements: Renovate Buildings to Create</i>					
20 21 22	0 52.50	Additional Vocational Classroom Space at Bon Air JCC (18410)			\$432,000	\$0	
23		Fund Sources: General	\$432,000	\$0			
24		Total for Department of Juvenile Justice			\$432,000	\$0	
25		Fund Sources: General	\$432,000	\$0			
26		§ 2-24. DEPARTMENT OF	MILITARY AFFA	AIRS (123)			
27 28	C-33.	Improve Readiness Centers (18369)			\$3,000,000	\$0 \$12,000,000	
29 20		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$0	\$9,000,000			
30 31		Bond Proceeds	\$3,000,000	\$0 \$3,000,000			
32 33 34		It is the intent that the funding provided in this project be any federal funds made available for the repair, renova centers in the Commonwealth.					
35 36		Total for Department of Military Affairs			\$3,000,000	\$0 \$12,000,000	
37 38 39		Fund Sources: Federal Trust Bond Proceeds	<i>\$0</i> \$3,000,000	\$9,000,000 \$0 \$3,000,000			
40		§ 2-25. DEPARTMENT (OF STATE POLIC	E (156)			
41 42 43	C-34.	From the existing appropriation for the Statewide Ager (17130), the Department of State Police is directed replacement of STARS battery power plants, the upgrad	to use up to \$3,4	443,651 for the			

replacement of STARS battery power plants, the upgrade of STARS network management
platforms, and the replacement of Department of State Police STARS mobile data terminals.

IT	ITEM C-34.10.		Iter First Yea FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Approp First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	C-34.10	Stand-alone Equipment Acquisition: Upgrade Statewide Agencies Radio System (STARS) network (18414)			\$0	\$132,151,000
4		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$0	\$132,151,000		
5 6 7 8 9 10 11		The purpose of this project is to upgrade the Statewide a project. It may consist of, but is not limited to, land, mobile and towers; software; radio frequency rights and lice buildings and facilities; related infrastructure; program costs necessary, incidental or convenient to undertak upgrade, and equip the integrated statewide shared land system for the Commonwealth.	le telecommuni enses; commu management; ce, acquire, de	cations equipment nications control and other project evelop, construct,		
12 13 14	C-34.20	Improvements: Refresh Commonwealth Link to Interoperable Communications (COMLINC) system (18415)			\$0	\$5,844,000
15		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$0	\$5,844,000		
16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Commonwealth Link to Interoperable Communications (COMLINC) system. The Department of State Police shall replace COMLINC equipment at existing sites and install such equipment at new sites, as well as install updated software to maintain radio communication interoperability in the Commonwealth. Following the equipment and software replacement and installation, the Department shall own and oversee the 					
23 24	C-34.30	New Construction: Construct Area 39 Office in Rockbridge County (18421)			\$725,000	\$0
25		Fund Sources: General	\$725,000	\$0		
26		Total for Department of State Police			\$725,000	\$137,995,000
27 28		Fund Sources: General Bond Proceeds	\$725,000 \$0	\$0 \$137,995,000		
29 30 31		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND HOMELAND SECURITY			\$3,000,000 \$4,157,000	\$0 \$149,995,000
32 33 34 35		Fund Sources: General Federal Trust Bond Proceeds	\$1,157,000 \$0 \$3,000,000	\$0 \$9,000,000 \$0 \$140,995,000		
36		OFFICE OF TRAN	SPORTATIO	N		
37		§ 2-26. DEPARTMENT OF M	IOTOR VEHI	CLES (154)		
38 39	C-34.50	Acquisition: Acquire Emporia Customer Service Center (18419)			\$10,000	\$0
40		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$10,000	\$0		
41		Total for Department of Motor Vehicles			\$10,000	\$0
42		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$10,000	\$0		
43		§ 2-27. DEPARTMENT OF T	RANSPORTA	TION (501)		
44	C-35.	Maintenance Reserve (15732)		·	\$0	\$5,000,000
45		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$0	\$5,000,000		
46 47	C-36.	Improvements: Acquire, Design, Construct and Renovate Agency Facilities (18130)			\$20,000,000	\$25,000,000

			Item	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)		
ľ	ГЕМ С-36		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	
1		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$0	\$25,000,000			
2		Bond Proceeds	\$20,000,000	\$0			
3 4 5 6 7 8 9		A. The Director, Department of Planning and Budger amounts in the Transportation Trust Fund available for h for facility capital projects under the Virginia Departme Port Authority for advancing the planning and prelin widening and dredging the Norfolk Harbor channel to th feet and dredging the Southern Branch of the Elizabeth depth of 45 feet.	ighway construction ont of Transportation ninary engineering ne maximum autho	on and designated on to the Virginia g requirments of rized depth of 55			
10 11 12 13 14 15 16		B. The Virginia Public Building Authority, pursuant to Virginia, is authorized to issue bonds in a principal amo amounts needed to fund issuance costs, reserve funds, ori and during the acquisition or construction and for one yea financing expenses to finance the capital costs of the Vin capital project "Improvements: Acquire, Design, Constru (18130).	\$20,000,000, plus it, interest prior to thereof, and other of Transportation				
17 18		C. Debt service on the bonds issued under the authorization from appropriations to the Treasury Board.	on provided in this	Item shall be paid			
19		Total for Department of Transportation			\$20,000,000	\$30,000,000	
20 21		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation Bond Proceeds	\$0 \$20,000,000	\$30,000,000 \$0			
22		§ 2-28. VIRGINIA POP	RT AUTHORITY	(407)			
23	C-37.	Maintenance Reserve (13804)			\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	
24		Fund Sources: Commonwealth Transportation	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000			
25	C-38.	Improvements: Expand Empty Yard (16643)			\$13,000,000	\$11,000,000	
26		Fund Sources: Special	\$13,000,000	\$11,000,000			
27 28	C-39.	Improvements: Cargo Handling Facilities (16048)			\$13,000,000	\$11,000,000 \$16,250,000	
29 30		Fund Sources: Special	\$13,000,000	\$11,000,000 \$16,250,000			
31 32	C-40.	Stand-alone Equipment Acquisition: Procure Equipment (18125)			\$37,000,000	\$30,000,000	
33		Fund Sources: Special	\$37,000,000	\$30,000,000			
34 35	C-40.10	Improvements: Harbor Widening and Deepening (18390)			\$330,000,000	\$0	
36		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$330,000,000	\$0			
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45	That pursuant to § 2.2-2263 of the Code of Virginia, the Virginia Public Building Authority is authorized to issue bonds in an aggregate amount not to exceed \$330,000,000 plus amounts needed to fund issuance costs, reserve funds, original issue discount, interest prior to and during acquisition, construction, or renovation and for one year after completion thereof, and other financing expenses. The proceeds of such bonds shall be used to fund capital projects related to the Port Harbor Widening and Deepening. The General Assembly hereby appropriates the proceeds from any such bonds for the projects listed in this enactment. Debt service on projects contained in this enactment shall be provided from appropriations to the Treasury Board.						
46 47		Total for Virginia Port Authority			\$396,000,000	\$55,000,000 \$60,250,000	
48 49		Fund Sources: Special	\$63,000,000	\$52,000,000 \$57,250,000			

ITEM C-40.10.		Item First Year	Details(\$) Second Year	Approp First Year	riations(\$) Second Year	
			FY2019	FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2		Commonwealth Transportation Bond Proceeds		\$3,000,000 \$0		
3 4		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF TRANSPORTATION	I		\$416,000,000 \$416,010,000	\$85,000,000 \$90,250,000
5 6		Fund Sources: Special	\$63,000,000	\$52,000,000 \$57,250,000		
7 8		Commonwealth Transportation	\$3,000,000 \$3,010,000	\$33,000,000		
9		Bond Proceeds		\$0		
10		OFFICE OF VETER	AFFAIRS			
11		§ 2-29. DEPARTMENT	OF VETERANS SER	VICES (912)		
12	C-41.	Expand Amelia Veterans Cemetery (18363)			\$4,500,000	\$0
13		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$4,500,000	\$0		
14 15 16 17 18		The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall approve a short-term, interest- free treasury loan in the amount of up to \$1,000,000 for the Department of Veterans Services for final cemetery expansion design and to assist with cash flow during the construction of the expansion. The loan shall be repaid by the Department of Veterans Services upon receipt of federal funds by June 30, 2020.				
19		Total for Department of Veterans Services			\$4,500,000	\$0
20		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$4,500,000	\$0		
21 22		TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF VETERANS AN DEFENSE AFFAIRS			\$4,500,000	\$0
23		Fund Sources: Federal Trust	\$4,500,000	\$0		
24		CENTRAI	L APPROPRIATIONS			
25		§ 2-30. CENTRA	L CAPITAL OUTLAY	(949)		
26	C-42.	Central Maintenance Reserve (15776)			\$128,566,436	\$128,566,436
27		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$128,566,436	\$128,566,436		
28 29 30 31		A. A total of \$128,566,436 the first year and \$ authorized for issuance by the Virginia Public B Code of Virginia, or the Virginia College Buildi seq., Code of Virginia, for capital costs of main	uilding Authority pursu ing Authority pursuant t	ant to § 2.2-2263 to § 23.1-1200 et		
32 33		B. The proceeds of such bonds authorized in para capital costs of the following maintenance reserv		propriated for the		
34		Agency Name/Code Proj	ect Code	FY 2019		FY 2020
35 36		Department of Military Affairs (123)	10893	\$972,356		\$972,356
37 38		Department of Emergency Management (127)	15989	\$100,000		\$100,000
39 40		The Science Museum of Virginia (146)	13634	\$681,997		\$681,997
41		Department of State Police (156)	10886	\$652,917		\$652,917
42		Department of General Services	14260	\$11,800,591		\$11,800,591
43 44		(194) Department of Conservation and	16646	\$2,674,091		\$2,674,091
45 46		Recreation (199) The Library of Virginia (202)	17423	\$184,182		\$184,182

			Item De			riations(\$)
ITEM (2-42.		First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1 2	Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)	10885		\$542,549		\$542,549
3 4	The College of William and Mary (204)	12713		\$3,666,752		\$3,666,752
5	University of Virginia (207)	12704		\$12,916,383		\$12,916,383
6 7	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (208)	12707		\$13,574,211		\$13,574,211
8	Virginia Military Institute (211)	12732		\$1,714,724		\$1,714,724
9	Virginia State University (212)	12733		\$3,769,199		\$3,769,199
10	Norfolk State University (213)	12724		\$4,118,167		\$4,118,167
11	Longwood University (214)	12722		\$1,878,865		\$1,878,865
12 13	University of Mary Washington (215)	12723		\$1,653,087		\$1,653,087
14	James Madison University (216)	12718		\$4,957,041		\$4,957,041
15	Radford University (217)	12731		\$2,213,442		\$2,213,442
16 17	Virginia School for the Deaf and Blind (218)	14082		\$458,357		\$458,357
18	Old Dominion University (221)	12710		\$3,629,749		\$3,629,749
19 20	Virginia Commonwealth University (236)	12708		\$7,073,267		\$7,073,267
21 22	Virginia Museum of Fine Arts (238)	13633		\$827,971		\$827,971
23 24	Frontier Culture Museum of Virginia (239)	15045		\$600,000		\$600,000
25	Richard Bland College (241)	12716		\$515,756		\$515,756
26 27	Christopher Newport University (242)	12719		\$1,015,859		\$1,015,859
28 29	University of Virginia's College at Wise (246)	12706		\$772,776		\$772,776
30	George Mason University (247)	12712		\$5,837,877		\$5,837,877
31 32	Virginia Community College System (260)	12611		\$13,158,441		\$13,158,441
33 34	Virginia Institute of Marine Science (268)	12331		\$802,315		\$802,315
35 36	Eastern Virginia Medical School (274)	18190		\$318,929		\$318,929
37 38	Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (301)	12253		\$413,678		\$413,678
39 40	Marine Resources Commission (402)	16498		\$101,472		\$101,472
41 42	Department of Mines, Minerals, and Energy (409)	13096		\$110,237		\$110,237
43	Department of Forestry (411)	13986		\$467,234		\$467,234
44	Gunston Hall (417)	12382		\$173,320		\$173,320
45 46	Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation (425)	13605		\$1,669,298		\$1,669,298
47 48	Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired (702)	13942		\$383,462		\$383,462
49 50	Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (720)	10880		\$6,759,827		\$6,759,827
51 52	Department of Juvenile Justice (777)	15081		\$1,049,679		\$1,049,679
53 54	Department of Forensic Science (778)	16320		\$538,217		\$538,217
55	Department of Corrections (799)	10887		\$11,744,472		\$11,744,472

ITEM C-42	2.		Item Details(\$) First Year Second Year FY2019 FY2020		Appropr First Year FY2019	iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2	Institute for Advanced Learning and Research (885)	18044		\$331,973		\$331,973
3 4	Department of Veterans Services (912)	17073		\$100,000		\$100,000
5 6	Roanoke Higher Education Center (935)	17916		\$380,889		\$380,889
7 8	Southern Virginia Higher Education Center (937)	18131		\$303,571		\$303,571
9	New College Institute (938)	18132		\$303,571		\$303,571
10 11	Virginia Museum of Natural History (942)	14439		\$331,062		\$331,062
12 13	Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center (948)	16499		\$322,623		\$322,623
14	Total			\$128,566,436	\$	128,566,436

15 C. Expenditures for amounts appropriated in this Item are subject to conditions defined in\$2-0 E of this act.

17 D. 1. In order to reduce building operation costs and repay capital investments, agencies
18 and institutions of higher education may give priority to maintenance reserve projects
19 which result in guaranteed savings to the agency or institution pursuant to § 11-34.3, Code
20 of Virginia.

21 2. Agencies and institutions of higher education may use maintenance reserve funds to 22 finance the following capital costs: to repair or replace damaged or inoperable equipment, 23 components of plant, and utility systems; to correct deficiencies in property and plant 24 required to conform with building and safety codes or those associated with hazardous 25 condition corrections, including asbestos abatement; to correct deficiencies in fire 26 protection, safety and security, energy conservation and handicapped access; and to 27 address such other physical plant deficiencies as the Director, Department of Planning and 28 Budget may approve. Agencies and institutions of higher education may also use 29 maintenance reserve funds to make other necessary improvements that do not meet the 30 criteria for maintenance reserve funding with the prior approval of the Director, 31 Department of Planning and Budget.

- E. 1. The Department of General Services is authorized to use these funds from its
 maintenance reserve allocation for necessary repairs and improvements in and around
 Capitol Square for items such as repair and conservation of the historic fence, repair and
 improvements to the grounds, upkeep and ongoing repairs to the exterior of the Capitol
 and Bell Tower, needed safety and security upgrades, and conservation and maintenance
 of monuments and statues. The use of and allocation of these funds shall be as deemed
 appropriate by the Director, Department of General Services.
- 39 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1130, Code of Virginia, the Department of 40 General Services shall retain custody, control and supervision of the Virginia War 41 Memorial Carillon. Out of the amounts provided for the Department of General Services 42 (Project Code 14260), the Department shall provide for maintenance and repair of the 43 Virginia War Memorial Carillon. In addition, notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-44 1130, Code of Virginia, any fund balances held by the Department of General Services 45 and new revenues generated by the Department of General Services under the provisions 46 of § 2.2-1130, Code of Virginia, shall be paid to the Department of General Services by 47 the Comptroller and shall be retained by the Department of General Services for the 48 upkeep, maintenance, and improvement of the Virginia War Memorial Carillon.
- 49 F.1. The Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation may use an amount not to exceed 20 percent of
 50 its annual maintenance reserve allocation from this item for the conservation of art and
 51 artifacts.
- 52 2. The Virginia Museum of Fine Arts may use an amount not to exceed 20 percent of its
 53 annual maintenance reserve allocation from this item for the conservation of art works
 54 owned by the Museum.

ITEM C-42.		Item I Year	Details(\$) Second Year	Appropria First Year	
		2019	FY2020	FY2019	
1 2 3	G. The Department of Corrections may use a portion of its annua allocation to make modifications to correctional facilities needed to en the requirements of the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act.				
4 5 6	H. The Frontier Culture Museum may use its maintenance reserve allocation to pave the loop roads, paths, and parking lots, repair and replace restroom facilities, improve public entrance accessibility, and improve the grounds at the museum.				
7 8	I. The Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation may utilize its annual maintenance reserve allocation to restore, repair or renew exhibits.				
9 10 11 12	J. The Department of Corrections may use up to \$1,500,000 of its annu allocation to retrofit the correctional facility in Culpeper County that h by the Department of Juvenile Justice to house juvenile defenders, bu adult offenders.	ad been	used in the past		
13 14 15 16	K. Gunston Hall may use an amount not to exceed 20 percent of i reserve allocation from this Item to restore, repair, or renew exhibits. I its maintenance reserve allocation to pave the roads, paths, and parking accessibility, and improve the grounds at the museum.	Furthern	nore, it may use		
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	L. Out of the amount allocated for the Department of General Servic year and \$2,000,000 the second year is designated for building and Monroe. After determining those buildings and utilities to be repai which repairs will be undertaken within the available allocation in this Authority shall present an annual plan to the Director, Department of The Fort Monroe Authority is authorized to use a portion of this fund the services of a project manager for overseeing and coordinating the of the various repairs at Fort Monroe. The project manager shall wo coordination with the Department of General Services. The Department shall act as fiscal agent for the authorized funds.	d utility red, and s Item, t of Plann ing allo on-site e ork in co	repairs at Fort I the priority in he Fort Monroe ing and Budget. cation to secure ifforts involving onsultation and		
27 28	M. Out of the amounts provided for the Department of Behavioral Hes Services (720), Project Code 10880, \$570,000 the first year is design		•		

Services (720), Project Code 10880, \$570,000 the first year is designated to begin the initial 29 environmental remediation recommended in the initial environmental site assessment at the 30 Central Virginia Training Center site.

Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds.....

34

35

31 32 33	C-43.	Central Reserve for Capital Equipment Funding (17954)	\$59,997,000
----------------	-------	---	--------------

\$59,997,000

\$0

\$46,041,000

36 A. 1. The capital projects in paragraph B. of this Item are hereby authorized and may be 37 financed in whole or part through bonds of the Virginia College Building Authority, pursuant 38 to § 23.1-1200 et seq., Code of Virginia, or the Virginia Public Building Authority, pursuant 39 to § 2.2-2260, Code of Virginia. Bonds of the Virginia College Building Authority issued to 40 finance these projects may be sold and issued under the 21st Century College Program at the 41 same time with other obligations of the Authority as separate issues or as a combined issue. 42 The aggregrate principal amount shall not exceed \$59,997,000 \$106,038,000 plus amounts to 43 fund issuance costs, reserve funds, original issue discount, interest prior to and during the 44 acquisition or construction and for one year after completion thereof, and other financing 45 costs.

46 2. From the list of projects included in paragraph B of this Item, the Director, Department of 47 Planning and Budget, shall provide the Chairmen of the Virginia College Building Authority 48 and the Virginia Public Building Authority with the specific projects, as well as the amounts 49 for these projects, to be financed by each authority within the dollar limit established by this 50 authorization.

- 51 3. Debt service on the projects contained in this Item shall be provided from appropriations to 52 the Treasury Board.
- 53 B. There is hereby appropriated \$59,997,000 in the first year and \$46,041,000 in the second

Itom Dotoila(\$)

Appropriations(\$) Second Year FY2020

\$0 \$46,041,000

ITEM C-43			ır
		FY2019 FY2020 FY2019 FY2020	
1 2 3		<i>year</i> from bond proceeds of the Virginia College Building Authority or the Virginia Public Building Authority to provide funds for equipment for the following projects for which construction was previously provided.	
4		Agency Name/Project Title	
5		Department of Conservation and Recreation (199)	
6		Construct Various Cabins at Pocahontas and Powhatan State Parks (18264)	
7		Renovate Foster Falls Hotel at New River Trail State Park (18298)	
8		College of William and Mary (204)	
9		Construct Fine and Performing Arts Facility, Phases I & II (18292)	
10		University of Virginia (207)	
11		Renovate Gilmer Hall and Chemistry Building (18082)	
12		Renovate Space for the Center for Human Therapeutics (18291)	
13		Virginia Tech (208)	
14		VT Carilion Research Institute Biosciences Addition (18269)	
15		Longwood University (214)	
16		Construct New Academic Building (18084)	
17		University of Mary Washington (215)	
18		Construct Jepson Science Center Addition (18367)	
19		Convert and Renovate Seacobeck Hall (18297)	
20		James Madison University (216)	
21		Construct New College of Business (18273)	
22		Renovate Wilson Hall (18274)	
23		Radford University (217)	
24 25		Renovate Curie and Reed Halls (18275)	
25 26		School for the Deaf and Blind (218) Renovate Bradford Hall (18276)	
20 27		Old Dominion University (221)	
28		Construct New Chemistry Building (18068)	
29		Virginia Commonwealth University (236)	
30		Construct School of Allied Health Professions Building (18206)	
31		Construct School of Engineering Research Expansion (18243)	
32		Christoper Newport University (242)	
33		New Library, Phase II (18074)	
34		George Mason University (247)	
35		Construct Utilities Distribution Infrastructure (18208)	
36		Virginia Community College System (260)	
37		Construct Bioscience Building, Blue Ridge (18078)	
38		Construct Academic Building, Fauquier Campus, Lord Fairfax (18161)	
39		Replace Academic and Administrative Building, Eastern Shore (18076)	
40		Eastern Virginia Medical School (274)	
41		Construct New Education and Academic Administration Building (18284)	
42		Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (720)	
43		Expand Western State Hospital (18210)	
44		Construct New Sexually Violent Predator Facility (18166)	
45	C-43.50	Planning: Replace Central State Hospital (18391)\$3,000,000	0
46		Fund Sources: Special \$3,000,000 \$0	
47 48 49		A. The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) and the Department of General Services (DGS) shall develop and deliver a plan to provide capital project options for a new Central State Hospital.	

IT	ITEM C-43.50.			Item D rst Year Y2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	tions(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		B. The Department of General Service the DBHDS plan as part of the detailed	s (DGS) shall analyze and i				
3 4 5		C. Project budgeting estimates pursus Chairmen of the House Appropriation Capital Outlay Plan Advisory Commit	s and Senate Finance Com	mittees, an	d the Six-Year		
6 7		D. DBHDS shall be reimbursed for all move into the construction phase.	nongeneral funds used whe	en the proje	ect is funded to		
8	C-44.	Omitted.					
9	C-44.10	Capital Outlay Project Pool (17967)				\$0	\$7,785,000
10		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds		\$0	\$7,785,000		
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18		A. 1. In addition to the amounts previous Assembly, Special Session I and Item Virginia Public Building Authority, p authorized to issue bonds in a princip needed to fund issuance costs, reserve f during the acquisition or construction financing costs, to supplement the fund Item C-43, Chapter 2, 2014 Acts of Ass	C-48.10, Chapter 836, 20 bursuant to § 2.2-2260 et s bal amount not to exceed § funds, original issuance disc and for one year after com ling for the following project	017 Acts of seq., Code \$7,785,000 count, inter- pletion the	Assembly, the of Virginia, is , plus amounts est prior to and reof, and other		
19		Department of Corrections (799)	Repi	lace Fire A	larm Systems (18	156)	
20 21		2. Debt service on the bonds issued un from appropriations to the Treasury E		his Item sho	all be provided		
22 23 24 25 26		B. The title and scope of the capital "Replace Greensville Heating and Ho 836, 2017 Acts of Assembly, is hereby Water Systems", including hot water Correctional Center.	t Water Pipes" authorized changed to "Replace Gre	in Item C- ensville He	48.10, Chapter eating and Hot		
27 28	C-44.20	Planning: Detail Planning for Cap (17968)				\$29,591,000	\$0
29		Fund Sources: General	\$29,591	1,000	\$0		
30 31 32 33		A. Included in the appropriation for th fund to be used for detailed planning of the Central Capital Planning Fund, es Virginia.	of authorized projects. This	amount she	all be paid into		
34 35		B. The following projects shall be fund Capital Planning Fund and such amou			s in the Central		
36		Agency Code	Agency Na			Project Title	
37 38		146	Science Museum of Virgin	nia	Construct H Northern V	Regional Science Ce 'irginia	nter in
39 40		156	Department of State Polic	ce		aining Academy Loo	cated at
41 42		203	Wilson Workforce and Re Center	chabilitation		Vatson Theater and .	Activities
43		238	Virginia Museum of Fine			d Renovate the Muse	
44 45		720	Department of Behaviora Developmental Services		III	astern State Hospite	
46 47		720	Department of Behaviora Developmental Services	l Health an	d Replace Ce	entral State Hospital	
48 49		777	Department of Juvenile J	ustice	Construct J Central Vir	luvenile Correctiona ginia	ul Center,

			Item Details((\$)	Appropriat	
IT	EM C-44.	20.		ond Year Y2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1		799 D	Department of Corrections	Expand Dee	erfield Correctiona	l Center
2 3 4 5		C. The total cost of the project to expand is expected to be funded as follows: two-th other than the state, if the project is author planning.	irds with state funds and one-third from	sources		
6 7	C-45.	New Construction: 2018 Capital Con- Pool (18371)		5	\$216,471,500	\$0
8		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$216,471,500	\$0		
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		A. 1. The capital projects in paragraph B financed in whole or in part through bor pursuant to § 23-30.24 § 23.1-1203 et s Building Authority pursuant to § 2.2-22 College Building Authority issued to finat the 21st Century College Program at the si as separate issues or as a combined issue exceed \$216,471,500 plus amounts needed issue discount, interest prior to and during after completion thereof, and other finant Code of Virginia.	ads of the Virginia College Building A seq., Code of Virginia, or the Virginia 263, Code of Virginia. Bonds of the nce these projects may be sold and issue ame time with other obligations of the A e. The aggregrate principal amounts so d to fund issuance costs, reserve funds, the acquisition or construction and for	uthority a Public Virginia ed under authority shall not original one year		
20 21 22 23 24		2. From the list of projects included in par of Planning and Budget, shall provide to Authority and the Virginia Public Buildin, the amounts for these projects, to be fina established by this authorization.	the Chairmen of the Virginia College I g Authority with the specific projects, a	Building s well as		
25 26		3. Debt service on these projects con appropriations to the Treasury Board		ed from		
27 28		4. The appropriations for the capital proje 2.0 F. of this act.	cts in this Item are subject to the condit	ions in §		
29 30 31		B. There is hereby appropriated \$216,47 Virginia College Building Authority or th funds for the construction and other capita	e Virginia Public Building Authority to			
32		Agency Code	Agency Title		Project Title	
33 34		123	Department of Military Affairs	Replace Facility	Army Aviation	Support
35 36		146	Science Museum of Virginia	-	hibits, Danville (18317)	Science
37		156	Department of State Police	Construc	t Area 13 Barracks	
38 39 40 41		194	Department of General Services	Repairs	overnment Swing arehouse and Adm	
42					New NCI Facility	
43				-	Consolidated Labs,	1st floor
44 45 46		229	Virginia Cooperative Extension and Agricultural Experiment Station	Constru Agricultu Center (A	uct Virginia ural Research and AREC)	Seafood Extension
47 48		236	Virginia Commonwealth University		ences Building 1 Replacement	Roof and
49 50		238	Virginia Museum of Fine Arts	Replace Center	Roof and Drains	
51 52		702	Department for the Blind and Vision		Air Handling Units e Departmental Hea	

				Item Deta	ails(\$)	Appropr	iations(\$)
ľ	FEM C-45	5.		First Year S FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1			Impaired	F 1 2019	Building	F 1 2019	Г 1 2020
2 3 4		799	Department of Co	rrections	Replace Mechani and Red		ssex I & H
5 6 7 8					Systems	Heating and Piping and 1 nt at Sussex I &	Associated
9 10					Renovate Treatmen	e Buckingham nt Plant	Wastewater
11 12		885	Institute for Adv Research	anced Learning a	and Construc Advance	t Center for Ma ment	nufacturing
13 14		948	Southwest Virgin Center	ia Higher Educat	ion Replace I	IVAC System	
15 16 17 18		C. Pursuant to authorization in Item 246 C.1 item to the Department of General Servic execute the necessary agreements to acquir programs, and instructional and research a	ces for the New Co re a new facility fo	ollege Institute to	prepare and		
19	C-46.	Comprehensive Capital Outlay Program (18	3049)			\$21,066,000	\$0
20		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$2	1,066,000	\$0		
21 22 23 24 25 26 27		A. In addition to the amounts previously au of Assembly and in Item C-48.50, Chapter Building Authority, pursuant to § 23.1-120 bonds in a principal amount not to exceed \$ costs, reserve funds, original issue discour construction and for one year after comp finance the capital costs of the project de	836, 2017 Acts of A 00 et seq., Code of 21,066,000, plus ar nt, interest prior to letion thereof, and	Assembly, the Virg Virginia, is author nounts needed to f and during the ac l other financing of	ginia College ized to issue und issuance cquisition or expenses, to		
28 29		B. Debt service on the bonds issued under from appropriations to the Treasury Board		in this Item shall	be provided		
30 31 32		C. Included in the appropriation for this Iter supplement the funding for the following Chapter 806, 2013 Acts of Assembly:					
33		247-George Mason University		Construct Life Sci	ences Building	, Prince William ((18000)
34		D. The title of this project is hereby changed	d to "Construct Bull	Run Hall IIIB Ad	dition".		
35	C-46.10	Capital Outlay Renovation Pool (18196)				\$3,100,000	\$0
36		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$.	3,100,000	\$0		
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44		A. In addition to the amounts previously au of Assembly and Item C-49.20, Chapter 8 Building Authority, pursuant to § 23.1-120 bonds in a principal amount not to exceed costs, reserve funds, original issue discour construction and for one year after comp supplement the funding for the following Chapter 665, 2015 Acts of Assembly:	36, 2017 Acts of A 0 et seq., Code of \$3,100,000, plus an nt, interest prior to letion thereof, and	ssembly, the Virg Virginia, is author nounts needed to fu and during the au l other financing	inia College ized to issue und issuance cquisition or expenses, to		
45 46		229Virginia Cooperative Extension and A Experiment Station	gricultural	Improve Kentland	Facilities (178	30)	
47 48		B. Debt service on the bonds issued under from appropriations to the Treasury Boar		in this Item shall	be provided		
49	C-47.	2016 VPBA Capital Construction Pool (183	300)			\$13,500,000	\$0

ITEM C-4	7.	Item D First Year FY2019	etails(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropria First Year FY2019	ations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1	Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds	\$13,500,000	\$0		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	A. In addition to the amounts previously authorized in 759 and 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly, the Virginia Publis 2.2-2260 et seq., Code of Virginia, is authorized to issu to exceed \$13,500,000, plus amounts needed to fun original issue discount, interest prior to and during the a one year after completion thereof, and other financing exproject described in paragraph C. of this Item.	ic Building Authori ue bonds in a princip d issuance costs, r acquisition or constr	ty, pursuant to bal amount not reserve funds, ruction and for		
9 10	B. Debt service on bonds issued under the authorization from appropriations to the Treasury Board.	on in this Item sha	ll be provided		
11 12	C. Included in the appropriation for this Item is \$7,500,0 for the following project:	000 in bond proceed	s the first year		
13	199-Department of Conservation	Renovate Vario	ous Cabins (18265))	
14 15 16 17 18 19	D. The title and scope of the capital project for the Depa "Expand Central Forensic Laboratory and Office of the C authorized in Enactment 1, § 1 A. of Chapters 759 and 7 is hereby changed to "Expand and Renovate Current of Laboratory and Office of the Chief Medical Examiner at is determined by the Department to be more cost effective	Chief Medical Exam 769 of the 2016 Acts r Construct New Ce t its current site or an	niner Facility," s of Assembly, entral Forensic nother site that		
20 21 22 23	E. The project previously authorized in Enactment 9 of of Assembly, Renovate the Post Library as a Visitor C included in the amounts authorized in Item C-43, D Assembly of 2015.	Center for Fort Mon	roe, is hereby		
24 25 26 27	F. 1. The title and scope of the capital project for the titled, "Construct New Juvenile Correctional Center Enactment 1, § 1 A. of Chapters 759 and 769 of the 2 changed to "Construct New Juvenile Correctional Center Center Construct New Juvenile Correctional Center C	er, Chesapeake," a 016 Acts of Assem	authorized in bly, is hereby		
28 29 30 31	2. a. The Department of General Services (DGS), with t of Juvenile Justice (DJJ), shall construct the New Juve Wight project authorized in F.1. The project is authori provide DGS facility program information and assistant	enile Correctional (zed as a 60 bed fac	Center, Isle of		
32 33 34	b. The capital project for the Department of Juveni Construct Juvenile Correctional Center, authorized in En and 769 of the 2016 Acts of Assembly is hereby rescinde	nactment 4, § 1 A. of			
35 36	c. The provisions of Enactment 4, § 1 B. of Chapters Assembly are hereby rescinded.	759 and 769 of the	2016 Acts of		
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	3.a. DGS shall determine options for a second DJJ Ju located in Central Virginia. However, the property loca of approximately 427.97 acres along Old Bon Air R Midlothian Magisterial District of Chesterfield County, of 1900 Chatsworth Avenue, Bon Air, Virginia, and fi County Tax Parcel No. 752713101100000, shall b consideration as a Central Virginia DJJ Juvenile Correc report location options for a Central Virginia DJJ Juv Chairmen of the House Appropriations, Senate Finance October 31, 2018.	tted in Central Virgi coad and Rockawa , Virginia, having a urther designated a e excluded from a ctional Center locati venile Correctional	nia consisting y Road in the street address s Chesterfield any option or on. DGS shall Center to the		
47 48 49 50	b. DGS, working with Chesterfield County, Virginia, sh and the highest and best use of the DJJ site identified in preliminary findings to the Chairmen of House A Committees, and the Governor by December 1, 2	n 3.a of this section Appropriations, Se	and report its		
51 52	c. In addition, the Department of General Services shall for the property located at 3500 Beaumont Road in Powl				

П	ITEM C-47.			Second Year	Appropri First Year	Second Year
1 2 3 4 5 6		FY2 use DGS shall (i) estimate revenues and costs from any sale or dev property or any portion thereof, and (ii) the viability of various options property by the Department of Corrections (DOC), Department Recreation (DCR), and/or DJJ, DOC, DCR, and DJJ will provide assistance, if requested. DGS shall provide the results of its study t House Appropriations, Senate Finance Committees, and Governor I	elopment for poten of Conse DGS info o the Cha	tial use of the ervation and ormation and uirmen of the	FY2019	FY2020
7 8		d. All costs incurred by DGS to perform the requirements in item F., ar F., shall be funded by the capital project authorized in F.1.	ıd all subs	ections under		
9 10 11		e. Should the property identified in 3a. be sold by the Commonwealth, from a sale shall be used to offset the capital costs of a DJJ Cen Correctional Center location.				
12 13 14		G. The amounts provided by this item and Enactment 1, § 1 A. of Chap 2016 Acts of Assembly include funding for the development of Clinch Department of Conservation and Recreation.				
15 16 17 18 19 20		H. The scope of the project, "Renovate Roanoke Readiness Center," Military Affairs, authorized for detailed planning in Enactment 4, § 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly is expanded to include all planned phase (1) renovation of four existing buildings, (2) construction of a readine (3) construction of a combined support maintenance shop, as set ou project request submitted by the Department of Military Affairs for	1 of Chap s of the over ess center t in the c	oters 759 and verall project: addition, and apital budget		
21	C-48.	2016 VCBA Capital Construction Pool (18301)			\$43,883,000	\$0
22		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds \$43,883,000	0	\$0		
23 24 25 26 27 28 29		A. In addition to the amount previously authorized in Enactment Claus and 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly, the Virginia College Building Author 1200 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, is authorized to issue bonds in a exceed \$43,883,000, plus amounts needed to fund issuance costs, reser discount, interest prior to and during the acquisition or construction completion thereof, and other financing expenses, to finance the ca authorized in Enactment Clause 1, § 2 of Chapters 759 and 769, 20	rity, pursu principal a ve funds, and for c upital cost	ant to § 23.1- amount not to original issue one year after ts of projects		
30 31		B. Debt service on the bonds issued under the authorization of this from appropriations to the Treasury Board.	Item shall	be provided		
32 33 34		C. There is hereby appropriated \$43,883,000 in bond proceeds for the Enactment Clause 1, § 2 of Chapters 759 and 769, 2016 Acts of Asse \$883,000 is allocated for the following project authorized in that sec	embly. Of			
35 36				e Corridor, Stora or (18126)	ge Area;	
37 38 39 40 41		D. 1. The title and scope of the project previously authorized in Enact 759 and 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly, as "Construct Service Corridor, Generator" are hereby changed to "Construct Building Expansion and order to provide an expanded scope, including additional space that m storage space, with total square footage of approximately 6,400 square	Storage A Replace (ay be use	Area, Replace Generator" in		
42 43 44 45 46 47		2. The scope of the project previously authorized in Enactment 1, §2 of 2016 Acts of Assembly, as "Christopher Newport University, Constr Arts and Rehearsal Space reflects 105,040 gross square feet to include feet of new construction and 16,980 gross square feet of renovation. Of in Paragraph C. of this Item, \$4 million is allocated to this project to c cost.	uct and R le 88,060 Of the amo	enovate Fine gross square ount provided		
48 49 50 51 52		3. The title and scope of the project previously authorized in Enactmen and 769, 2016 Acts of Assembly, as "Virginia Institute of Mar Mechanical Systems and Repair Building Envelope of Chesapeake changed to "Virginia Institute of Marine Science, Construct New Rese to replace the existing Chesapeake Hall, for which a renovation	ine Scier Bay Hall earch Faci	nce, Replace l" are hereby llity" in order		

ľ	ГЕМ C-4	8.		Ite First Ye FY2019			iations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2		alternative, with a comparable and cost is contained in Paragr			r this revised scop	e	
3 4 5 6 7 8		E. Virginia Commonwealth U reimbursed should construction STEM Building which consist Chapter 759 and 769 (2016) Classroom Building, as a sing to each other on the site of the	on funding be appr sts of the STEM C , and the Humanit le facility. The pro	roved, to develop Det lass Laboratory Build ties and Sciences Ph posed buildings will	ailed Plans for the ding, authorized in ase II, Admin and	e n d	
9 10 11 12		F. The title of the project, "Re Nelson," for the Virginia Com Enactment 4, § 1 of Chapte "Replace Diggs/Moore/Harr	munity College Sy rs 759 and 769, 2	stem, authorized for c 2016 Acts of Assem	letailed planning in bly. is changed to	n	
13 14	C-48.10	New Construction: 2019 C Pool (18408)				\$0	\$131,982,000
15 16		Fund Sources: Special Bond Proceeds			\$10,516,000 \$121,466,000		
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27		A. 1. The capital projects in p financed in whole or in part pursuant to § 23.1-1200 et Authority pursuant to § 2.2-22 Building Authority issued to fi Centry College Program at separate issues or as a comb exceed \$121,466,000 plus ama issue discount, interest prior year after completion thereof 2263, Code of Virginia.	through bonds of t seq., Code of Virg 263 et seq., Code og inance these projec the same time with bined issue. The a pounts needed to fun to and during the	the Virginia College ginia, or the Virgini f Virginia. Bonds of th ts may be sold and is: h other obligations of ggregrate principal ad issuance costs, rese acquisition or constr	Building Authorit a Public Building we Virginia Colleg sued under the 21s of the Authority a amounts shall no erve funds, origina uction and for on	y g t t s t l e	
28 29 30 31 32		2. From the list of projects inc of Planning and Budget, shall Authority and the Virginia Pu amounts for these projects, established by this authorized	l provide to the Ch blic Building Auth to be financed by	airmen of the Virgini ority the specific proj	a College Building ects, as well as th	g e	
33 34		3. Debt service on the pro appropriations to the Trea		in this Item shall l	be provided from	n	
35 36		4. The appropriations for the c 2.0 F. of this act.	capital projects in th	his Item are subject to	the conditions in	Ş	
37 38 39 40 41		B. In addition to the appropr Director, Department of Plan Building Authority (VCBA) authorization and appropriati this project for funding the pr	ning and Budget, s and Virginia Put on from the project	hall transfer unutilize blic Building Autho ts listed below, in the	d Virginia Colleg rity (VPBA) bond	e d	
42		Agency No.	Project No.	Issuing Authority	Initial Authori	zation	Amount
43 44 45 46		207	17476	VCBA	Chapter 1, Enac 2, Section 3, 200 of Assembly, Spe Session I	8 Acts	\$4,080,667
47 48 49 50		215	17670	VCBA	Chapter 1, Enac 2, Section 3, 200 of Assembly, Spe Session I	8 Acts	\$1,374,605
51 52 53		247	16607	VCBA	Item C-85.10, Cl 874, 2010 Acts of Assembly		\$1,120,047

ITEM C-48.10.			Iter First Year FY2019	n Details(\$) r Second Year FY2020	Approp First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1 2 3	260	16836	VCBA	Item C-182.10, Chapte 781, 2009 Acts of Assembly	r	\$111,398
4 5 6	260	17379	VCBA	Item C-326.30, Chapte 847, 2008 Acts of Assembly	r	\$401,727
7 8 9	912	18319	VPBA	Item C-43.50, Chapter 836, 2017 Acts of Assembly		\$10,000,000

C. There is hereby appropriated \$96,466,000 the second year from bond proceeds of the Virginia College Building Authority or the Virginia Public Building Authority and \$10,516,000 from nongeneral funds to provide funds for the construction and other capital costs of the following projects:

10

11

12

13

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

14	Agency Code	Agency Title	Project Title
15 16	194	Department of General Services	Renovate Parking Deck, Main Street Centre
17	194	Department of General Services	Improve Capitol Campus Utilities
18 19	211	Virginia Military Institute	Construct Corps Physical Training Facility Phase 3 (Aquatic Center)
20 21	214	Longwood University	Replace Major HVAC System Components
22 23	221	Old Dominion University	Address Maintenance Needs in Kaufman Hall and Mills Godwin Building
24	238	Virginia Museum of Fine Arts	Replace Life and Safety Systems
25	238	Virginia Museum of Fine Arts	Repair the Museum Building Envelope
26	268	Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Replace Oyster Hatchery
27 28	417	Gunston Hall	Upgrade Fire Suppression System and Improve Security
29 30	720	Departement of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services	Renovate Catawba Hospital
31 32	777	Department of Juvenile Justice	Repair Life Safety Systems and Upgrade Electrical Systems, Bon Air
33 34	799	Department of Corrections	Replace Appalachian and Wise Wastewater Treatment Plants
35 36	799	Department of Corrections	Construct James River Wastewater Pump Station

D. 1. From the proceeds of bonds authorized to be issued by the Virginia Public Building Authority in paragraph A of this Item, there is hereby appropriated \$25,000,000 in the second year for the Combined Sewer Overflow Matching Fund, established pursuant to § 62.1-242.12, Code of Virginia and administered by the Department of Environmental Quality. These bond proceeds shall be used by the Virginia Resources Authority and the State Water Control Board to make a grant to the City of Alexandria to pay a portion of the capital costs of its combined sewer overflow control project. Disbursements from these proceeds shall be authorized by the State Water Control Board, under the authority of the Department of Environmental Quality, and administered by the Virginia Resources Authority through the Combined Sewer Overflow Matching Fund.

2. This appropriation is subject to the conditions of § 2.0 F of this act.

48 3. Except as provided in paragraph D.2 of this Item, the provisions of §§ 2.0 and 4-4.01 of
49 this act and the provisions of § 2.2-1132, Code of Virginia, shall not apply to the project
50 supported in this Item.

51 E. Funding for the Department of General Services' project to Improve Capitol Campus
 52 utilities shall not be released until the department and the City of Richmond have signed an
 53 agreement allowing the state to work on any needed improvements to the utilities running

IT	EM C-48.		Item Details(\$) Appropriations(\$) First Year Second Year First Year Second			iations(\$) Second Year
		FY20		FY2020	FY2019	FY2020
1 2 3		through Capitol Square, including a methodology in the agreement state's utility bills to be adjusted to offset the state's expenditures for the water lines.				
4 5	C-49.	A. The Department of General Services is authorized to enter i follows:	nto ca	apital leases as		
6 7 8		1. On behalf of the Department of Social Services, to address lease Child Support Enforcement District Office, the Regional Administ Regional Training Offices in Abingdon.				
9 10 11		2. On behalf of the Department of Social Services, to address lease Child Support Enforcement District Office and the Child Support E Offices in Roanoke.				
12 13 14		3. On behalf of the Department of Motor Vehicles, to address lea customer service center to replace or renew the lease for the existing and Henrico County.				
15 16 17		4. On behalf of the Department of Corrections, to address space new parole offices in Petersburg, Bristol, Abingdon, Gloucester, Front Ro County.				
18 19		5. On behalf of the Department of Environmental Quality, to address a regional office to replace or renew the lease for the existing facility				
20 21 22		6. On behalf of the Department of Environmental Quality, to address the Piedmont Regional Office and Office of Air Quality Monitoring the lease for the existing facility in the greater Richmond area.				
23 24 25		7. On behalf of the Department of Emergency Management, to addr for a headquarters facility to replace or renew the lease for the ex greater Richmond area.				
26 27		8. On behalf of the Department of Motor Vehicles, to address lease Sterling Customer Service Center to relocate and expand the exist	-	-		
28	C-49.10	Workforce Development Projects (18418)			\$0	\$80,000,000
29		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds \$6)	\$80,000,000		
30 31 32 33 34 35		A. 1. The Virginia College Building Authority, pursuant to § 23.1- Virginia, is authorized to issue bonds in a principal amount not to plus amounts needed to fund issuance costs, reserve funds, original is prior to and during the acquisition or construction and for one y thereof, and other financing expenses, to finance the capital costs of the appropriation is this Item is provided.	exce sue d ear a	ed \$80,000,000 liscount, interest fter completion		
36 37		2. Debt service on bonds issued under the authorization in this Its from appropriations to the Treasury Board.	em sh	all be provided		
38 39 40 41		B. The funding authorized in this Item shall be made availab renovations, enhancements, equipment, and facility construction rela increase the number of bachelor's and master's degrees in compute related fields, consistent with the provisions of Item 475, paragraph	ted to r scie	the initiative to the and closely		
42 43	C-49.20) Parking Deck RepairsHigher Ed Institutions (18422)			\$0	\$20,000,000
44		Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds \$0)	\$20,000,000		
45 46 47 48 49		The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to authorization in this project to Virginia Commonwealth University, University, and Germanna Community College to address any ident for one or more of the institutions' parking decks. If desired by a appropriation can be transferred to auxiliary appropriation by the b	Chris ified 1 n inst	topher Newport repairs required riution, the 9(d)		

IT	EM C-49.2	20.		Item I First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Approj First Year FY2019	priations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1		of Planning and Budget.		F 12017	F I 2020	F 12019	F 1 2020
2 3 4 5 6 7	C-50.	A. The Virginia Public Building Au Virginia, is authorized to issu \$39,820,000\$181,832,000 plus amou issue discount, interest prior to and after completion thereof, and other projects described in paragraph C.	te bonds in a prin nts needed to fund iss during the acquisition financing expenses,	ncipal amount r uance costs, reserve n or construction a	not to exceed e funds, original nd for one year		
8 9		B. Debt service on bonds issued und appropriations to the Treasury Board		n this Item shall be	e provided from		
10 11		C. The appropriations for the followi Items listed:	ng authorized projects	s are contained in th	ne appropriation		
12 13 14		Agency Name/Project Title Department of Military	Project Code	It	tem		VPBA Bonds
15 16		Affairs (123) Improve Readiness Centers	18369	C	-33		\$3,000000
17 18		Department of State Police					\$6,000,000
19 20		Upgrade Statewide Radio System (STARS) Network	18414	С	34.10		\$132,151,000
21 22 23		Refresh Commonwealth Link to Interoperable Communications (COMLINC) System	18415	C	34.20		\$5,844,000
24 25		Department of General Services (194)					
26 27		Monroe Building Critical Systems Replacements	18368	(C-1		\$13,600,000
28 29 30		Capitol Complex Infrastructure and Security Virginia School for the Deaf	18081	C-:	51.50		\$11,820,000
31		and the Blind (218)					
32 33		Make System Infrastructure Repairs and Improvements	18370	(C-3		\$2,000,000
34 35 36		Expand Emergency Generator System Department of Behavioral	18417	C-	3.10		\$1,017,000
30 37 38		Health and Developmental Services (720)					
39 40		Address Patient and Staff Safety Issues at State Facilities	18365	C	2-23		\$9,400,000
41 42		Total VPBA Bonds					\$39,820,000 \$181,832,000
43 44 45 46 47	C-51.	The Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Co (DGS) are authorized to execute an warehouse and administrative office called for in Item C-52.45 of Chap agreement shall be cost effective and	agreement for a capi s pursuant to the com ter 836 of the 2017 A	ital project to acqu petitive public soli Acts of Assembly.	ire a new ABC citation process Terms of such		
48 49 50	C-51.50	Improvements: Supplemental fu Complex Infrastructure and Security (18382)	(Project 18081)			\$11,820,000	\$0

\$0

\$11,820,000

51 Fund Sources: Bond Proceeds.....

		Item I	Details(\$)	Appropriations(\$)		
ITEM C-51.		irst Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	First Year FY2019	Second Y FY202	
1	A. 1. Pursuant to projects authorized and funded in paragraphs	B and E.1 c	of Item C-39.40			
2	of Chapter 1 of the 2014 Special Session I, Virginia Acts of	of Assembl	y, the General			
3	Assembly appropriated funds to the Department of General Sector	ervices (DO	GS) for Capitol			
4	Complex Infrastructure and Security construction projects. Proj	ject work in	cludes security			
5	work to be performed, at North 9th Street, (in the area nor	th of wher	e Grace Street			
6	intersects 9th Street and south of where 9th Street intersects Bro	ad Street),	which is owned			
7	by the City of Richmond (City), and more specifically as deter	mined by th	ne DGS project			
8	team and in collaboration with the City with respect to North 9	th Street. A	ccordingly, the			
9	City and DGS shall enter into a deed of easement whereby the					
10	Commonwealth, shall grant to DGS, as agent of the Commo	onwealth. w	here mutually			
11	agreeable across, over, under and above North 9th Street, the pe					
12	easement to construct, install, use, operate, inspect, maintain		· • •			
13	improve, alter and remove any construction contracted fo	· ·	· · ·			
14	referenced construction projects and all equipment, ac	-	1			
15	appurtenances necessary to support the construction projects, a	,				

appropriate temporary construction easements, upon terms approved by the City Council

2. The City, without expending City funds, shall cooperate with DGS (i) to support the referenced construction project work to be performed at North 9th Street, to relocate any utilities located in the agreed upon easement area, if necessary, and (ii) to coordinate any closure or other traffic flow controls of North 9th Street during the construction projects. At no time shall DGS make any permanent changes to the North 9th Street right-of-way without the prior approval of the Chief Administrative Officer of the City or the City hinder or delay construction of the referenced construction projects.

and the Governor (pursuant to § 2.2-1149, Code of Virginia).

B. 1. Pursuant to projects authorized and funded in paragraph E.1 of Item C-39.40 of Chapter 1 of the Acts of Assembly of 2014, operations of the Virginia General Assembly have temporarily moved and now operate from the Pocahontas Building bounded by the following streets 9th to the west, 10th to the east, Bank to the north, and Main to the south in the City of Richmond. This temporary move has resulted in the Commonwealth's legislative activities to be concentrated in an area requiring traffic and pedestrian operational safety and security enhancements. As such, and pursuant to the responsibilities of the Department of General Services (DGS) (§ 2.2-1129) and the Division of Capitol Police (DCP) (§ 30-34.2:1), Bank Street from 9th to 12th Street in the City of Richmond shall be controlled by the DGS and the DCP year-round while General Assembly operations are located, and conducted, in the Pocahontas Building. Vehicular travel limitations and pedestrian management needs on and along Bank Street shall be determined jointly by the DGS and the DCP during that time. These determinations will be based on the recommendations outlined in the Bank Street Safety and Security Assessment prepared by Commonwealth Architects dated February 15, 2017 (the Assessment). Funding for materials and contract services needed to address pedestrian and vehicle management activities are available to DGS from the Chapter referenced in this item.

2. At no time, will DGS or DCP make permanent changes to Bank Street right-of-way (e.g. traffic control devices, security fixtures, street lighting, surface treatments) without the approval of the City of Richmond's Chief Administrative Officer. Additionally, at no time will the City prevent DGS and DCP from implementing and maintaining the recommendations outlined in the Assessment. Bank Street operations, as described in paragraph A, will remain under the control of DGS and DCP year-round until control of Bank Street l reverts to the City of Richmond upon the General Assembly, and its operations, vacating the Pocahontas Building, and the General Assembly, with approval of the Governor, authorizing control of Bank Street back to the City of Richmond.

52 Total for Central Capital Outlay..... 53

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

54	Fund Sources: General	\$29,591,000	\$0
55	Special	\$3,000,000	\$0
56			\$10,516,000
57	Bond Proceeds	\$495,303,936	\$128,566,436
58		\$498,403,936	\$403,858,436

\$498.303.936 \$128.566.436 \$530,994,936 \$414,374,436

Second Year FY2020

IT	ITEM C-51.50.			Item D First Year FY2019	Details(\$) Second Year FY2020	Appropi First Year FY2019	riations(\$) Second Year FY2020
1			§ 2-31. 9(C) REVENUE	BONDS (950)			
2 3	C-52.	A.1. This Item authorizes the capita X, Section 9(c), Constitution of Vir		be financed pur	suant to Article		
4 5		2. The appropriations for said capita below and are subject to the conditional subject to the conditional subject to the conditional subject to the subject		n the appropriat	ion Items listed		
6		3. The total amount listed in this Iten	n includes \$21,000,000 \$38	3,850,000 in bon	d proceeds.		
7 8 9 10		Agency Name/ Project Title College of William and Mary (204)	Item #		oject ode		Section 9(c) Bonds
11 12 13		Renovate Dormitories Norfolk State University (213)	C-5	18	100		\$11,000,000
14 15		Construct Residential Housing <i>Radford University (217)</i>	C-9		818		\$10,000,000
16 17		Acquire Property for Campus Expansion	C-11.60	17	851		\$17,850,000
18 19		Total for Nongeneral Fund Obligation Bonds 9(c)					\$21,000,000 \$38,850,000
20		Total for 9(C) Revenue Bonds				\$0	\$0
21			§ 2-32. 9(D) REVENUE	BONDS (951)			
22 23	C-53.	1. This Item authorizes the capital pr Section 9(d), Constitution of Virginia		nanced pursuan	t to Article X,		
24 25		2. The appropriations for said capita below and are subject to the condition		n the appropriat	ion Items listed		
26		3. The total amount listed in this Iten	n includes \$185,153,000 \$2	218,153,000 in I	bond proceeds.		
27 28		Agency Name/ Project Title	Item #		oject ode	Sectio 9(d) Bo	
20 29 30		College of William and Mary (204)		C.	oue	7(u) D 0	ius
31 32		Construct the Sadler Center West Addition	C-4	18	360	\$37,742,	,000
33 34 35 36 37		University of Virginia (208) Renovate Gilmer Hall and Chemistry Building Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (208)	C-13	18	082	\$31,441,	,000
38		Renovate O'Shaughnessy Hall	C-17	18	356	\$12,634,	,000
39 40		Improve Student Wellness Center	C-18	18	357	\$49,690,	,000
41 42 43		Construct VT Carilion Research Institute Biosciences Addition	C-19	18	269	\$17,765,	.000
44 45 46		Renovate Dietrick Hall, First Floor and Plaza Virginia Military Institute	C-20	18	358	\$2,000,(\$5,800,(
47		(211)					

ITEM C-53.		Ite First Yea FY2019			riations(\$) Second Year FY2020		
1		Turman House Renovations	C-14		18361	\$2,500,	000
2 3		Expand / Improve Clarkson- McKenna Press Box	C-16.20		18388	\$1,500,	
4 5		University of Mary Washington (215)					
6 7		Renovate Residence Halls Phase II	C-12		18362	\$24,500	,000
8 9		Old Dominion University (221)					
10 11		Construct Student Health and Wellness Addition	C-11.20		18407	\$9,200,	000
12 13		George Mason University (247)					
14 15		Construct Utilities Distribution Infrastructure	C-6		18208	\$5,381,	000
16		Central Capital Outlay (949)	a (0.00			42 0 0 0 0	
17 18		Parking Deck Repairs Higher Ed Institutions	C-49.20		18422	\$20,000	
19 20		Total for Nongeneral Fund Obligation Bonds 9(d)				\$185,15; \$218,15;	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
21		Total for 9(D) Revenue Bonds				\$0	\$0
22 23		TOTAL FOR CENTRAL APPROPRL	ATIONS			\$498,303,936 \$530,994,936	\$128,566,436 \$414,374,436
24		Fund Sources: General		\$29,591,000	\$0		
25 26		Special		\$3,000,000	\$0 \$10,516,000		
20 27 28		Bond Proceeds		\$495,303,936 \$498,403,936	\$10,510,000 \$128,566,436 \$403,858,436		
29 30		TOTAL FOR EXECUTIVE DEPART	MENT			\$1,219,130,936 \$1,279,650,702	\$227,066,436 \$972,844,600
31 32		Fund Sources: General		\$120,000 \$33,571,000	\$0		
33 34 35		Special		\$68,129,000 \$68,586,335 \$50,025,000	\$52,000,000 \$75,274,500		
35 36 37		Higher Education Opera	-	\$50,925,000 \$3,000,000	\$3,100,000 \$116,900,000 \$33,000,000		
38 39 40		Dedicated Special Reve		\$3,010,000 \$6,500,000 \$6,851,431	\$3,150,000 \$3,650,000		
40 41 42		Federal Trust		\$0,851,451 \$11,000,000 \$12,500,000	\$3,030,000 \$7,250,000 \$20,949,664		
43 44		Bond Proceeds		\$1,079,456,936 \$1,104,206,936	\$128,566,436 \$723,070,436		
45			INDEPEND	ENT AGENCIES			
46		§ 2-33. STA	TE CORPOR	RATION COMMI	SSION (171)		
47	C-54.	Maintenance Reserve (18351)				\$1,250,000	\$0
48 49		Fund Sources: Special Dedicated Special Reve		\$1,212,780 \$37,220	\$0 \$0		
50		Total for State Corporation Commission				\$1,250,000	\$0
51		Fund Sources: Special		\$1,212,780	\$0	<i>41,400,000</i>	ψŪ

		Item	Details(\$)	Appropr	riations(\$)
ITEM C-5	4.	First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020	r First Year FY2019	Second Year FY2020
1	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$37,220	\$0		
2	TOTAL FOR INDEPENDENT AGENCIES			\$1,250,000	\$0
3	Fund Sources: Special	\$1,212,780	\$0		
4	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$37,220	\$0		
5 6 7	TOTAL FOR PART 2: CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES			\$1,220,380,936 \$1,280,900,702	\$227,066,436 \$972,844,600
8 9	Fund Sources: General	\$120,000 \$33,571,000	\$0		
10 11	Special	\$69,341,780 \$69,799,115	\$52,000,000 \$75,274,500		
12 13	Higher Education Operating	\$50,925,000	\$3,100,000 \$116,900,000		
14 15	Commonwealth Transportation	\$3,000,000 \$3,010,000	\$33,000,000		
16 17	Dedicated Special Revenue	\$6,537,220 \$6,888,651	\$3,150,000 \$3,650,000		
18 19	Federal Trust	\$11,000,000 \$12,500,000	\$7,250,000 \$20,949,664		
20 21	Bond Proceeds	\$1,079,456,936 \$1,104,206,936	\$128,566,436 \$723,070,436		

PART 3: MISCELLANEOUS § 3-1.00 TRANSFERS

3 § 3-1.01 INTERFUND TRANSFERS

1 2

A.1. In order to reimburse the general fund of the state treasury for expenses herein authorized to be paid therefrom on account
of the activities listed below, the State Comptroller shall transfer the sums stated below to the general fund from the nongeneral
funds specified, except as noted, on January 1 of each year of the current biennium. Transfers from the Alcoholic Beverage
Control Enterprise Fund to the general fund shall be made four times a year, and such transfers shall be made within fifty (50)
days of the close of the quarter. The payment for the fourth quarter of each fiscal year shall be made in the month of June.

9		FY 2019	FY 2020
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Alcoholic Beverage Control Enterprise Fund (§ 4.1-116, Code of Virginia) a) For expenses incurred for care, treatment, study and rehabilitation of alcoholics by the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services and other state agencies (from Alcoholic Beverage Control gross profits) 	\$65,375,769	\$65,375,769
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	 b) For expenses incurred for care, treatment, study and rehabilitation of alcoholics by the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services and other state agencies (from gross wine liter tax collections as specified in § 4.1-234, Code of Virginia) 2. Forest Products Tax Fund (§ 58.1- 1609, Code of Virginia) 	\$9,141,363 \$23,613	\$9,141,363 \$23,613
28 29 30	For collection by Department of Taxation 3. Peanut Fund (§3.2-1906, Code of Virginia)	\$2,419	\$2,419
31 32 33 34 35 36	 4. For collection by Department of Taxation a) Aircraft Sales & Use Tax (§ 58.1- 1509, Code of Virginia) b) Soft Drink Excise Tax c) Virginia Litter Tax 	\$39,169 \$1,596 \$9,472	\$39,169 \$1,596 \$9,472
37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47	 5. Proceeds of the Tax on Motor Vehicle Fuels For inspection of gasoline, diesel fuel and motor oils 6. Virginia Retirement System (Trust and Agency) For postage by the Department of the Treasury 7. Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority (Enterprise) For services by the: 	\$97,586 \$34,500	\$97,586 \$34,500
47 48 49 50	For services by the:a) Auditor of Public Accountsb) Department of Accountsc) Department of the Treasury	\$75,521 \$64,607 \$47,628	\$75,521 \$64,607 \$47,628

TOTAL

1

\$74,913,243

2.a. Transfers of net profits from the Alcoholic Beverage Control Enterprise Fund to the general fund shall be made four times a
year, and such transfers shall be made within fifty (50) days of the close of each quarter. The transfer of fourth quarter profits shall
be estimated and made in the month of June. In the event actual net profits are less than the estimate transferred in June, the
difference shall be deducted from the net profits of the next quarter and the resulting sum transferred to the general fund.
Distributions to localities shall be made within fifty (50) days of the close of each quarter. Net profits are estimated at \$109,800,000
\$112,900,000 the first year and \$115,500,000 \$117,200,000 the second year.

b. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 4.1-116 B, Code of Virginia, the Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority shall properly record
the depreciation of all depreciable assets, including approved projects, property, plant and equipment. The State Comptroller shall be
notified of the amount of depreciation costs recorded by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority. However, such depreciation
costs shall not be the basis for reducing the quarterly transfers needed to meet the estimated profits contained in this act.

B.1. If any transfer to the general fund required by any subsections of §§ 3-1.01 through 3-6.02 is subsequently determined to be in violation of any federal statute or regulation, or Virginia constitutional requirement, the State Comptroller is hereby directed to reverse such transfer and to return such funds to the affected nongeneral fund account.

15 2. There is hereby appropriated from the applicable funds such amounts as are required to be refunded to the federal government for
 16 mutually agreeable resolution of internal service fund over-recoveries as identified by the U. S. Department of Health and Human
 17 Services' review of the annual Statewide Indirect Cost Allocation Plans.

C. In order to fund such projects for improvement of the Chesapeake Bay and its tributaries as provided in § 58.1-2289 D, Code of
Virginia, there is hereby transferred to the general fund of the state treasury the amounts listed below. From these amounts
\$2,583,531 the first year and \$2,583,531 the second year shall be deposited to the Virginia Water Quality Improvement Fund
pursuant to § 10.1-2128.1, Code of Virginia, and designated for deposit to the reserve fund, for ongoing improvements of the
Chesapeake Bay and its tributaries. The Department of Motor Vehicles shall be responsible for effecting the provisions of this
paragraph. The amounts listed below shall be transferred on June 30 of each fiscal year.

 24
 154
 Department of Motor Vehicles
 \$10,000,000
 \$10,000,000

D. The provisions of Chapter 6 of Title 58.1, Code of Virginia notwithstanding, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund from the special fund titled "Collections of Local Sales Taxes" a proportionate share of the costs attributable to increased local sales and use tax compliance efforts, the Property Tax Unit, and State Land Evaluation Advisory Committee (SLEAC) services by the Department of Taxation estimated at \$5,986,862 \$6,208,652 the first year and \$5,986,862 \$6,208,652 the second year.

E. The State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund from the Transportation Trust Fund a proportionate share of the costs attributable to increased sales and use tax compliance efforts and revenue forecasting for the Transportation Trust Fund by the Department of Taxation estimated at \$2,933,496 \$3,010,852 the first year and \$2,933,496 \$3,010,852 the second year.

F. On or before June 30 of each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer \$12,965,823 the first year and \$12,965,823 \$10,178,028
 the second year to the general fund the following amounts from the agencies and fund sources listed below, for expenses incurred by central service agencies:

35	Agency Name	Fund Group	FY 2019	FY 2020
36 37	Administration of Health Insurance (149)	0500	\$558,986	\$558,986
38 39 40	Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services (301)	0200	\$1,847	\$1,847
41 42	Department of Forestry (411)	0200	\$48,576	\$48,576
43 44	Department of Forestry (411)	0900	\$297	\$297
45 46	Board of Accountancy (226)	0900	\$11,302	\$11,302
47 48	Department of Housing and Community Develop.	0900	\$306	\$306

1	(165)			
2 3	Department of Labor and Industry (181)	0200	\$7,404	\$7,404
4 5 6 7	Department of Professional & Occupational Regulations (222)	0200	\$8,513	\$8,513
8 9	Southwest Virginia Higher Ed. Center (948)	0200	\$9,535	\$9,535
10 11	Virginia Museum of Fine Arts (238)	0200	\$24,516	\$24,516
12 13	Virginia Museum of Fine Arts (238)	0500	\$19,470	\$19,470
14 15 16	Department for the Deaf and Hard-Of-Hearing (751)	0200	\$13,975	\$13,975
17 18 19 20	Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (720)	0200	\$99,048	\$99,048
21 22	Department of Health (601)	0900	\$152,263	\$152,263
23 24 25	Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (262)	0200	\$85,374	\$85,374
26 27	Virginia for Health Youth Foundation (852)	0900	\$23,052	\$23,052
28 29	State Corporation Commission (171)	0900	\$10,928	\$10,928
30 31	Virginia College Savings Plan (174)	0500	\$380,986	\$380,986
32 33	Board of Bar Examiners (233)	0200	\$5,155	\$5,155
34	Supreme Court (111)	0900	\$343,043	\$343,043
35	Virginia State Bar (117)	0900	\$56,836	\$56,836
36 37 38	Department of Conservation and Recreation (199)	0200	\$206,500	\$206,500
39 40 41	Department of Conservation and Recreation (199)	0900	\$47,612	\$47,612
42 43 44	Department of Game and Inland Fisheries (403)	0900	\$315,439	\$315,439
45	Department of Historic	0900	\$144	\$144

1	Resources (423)			
2 3	Marine Resources Commission (402)	0200	\$26,282	\$26,282
4 5	Marine Resources Commission (402)	0900	\$8,205	\$8,205
6 7	Virginia Museum of Natural History (942)	0200	\$4,460	\$4,460
8 9	Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority (999)	0500	\$169	\$169
10 11	Department of Criminal Justice Services (140)	0200	\$72,779	\$72,779
12 13	Department of Criminal Justice Services (140)	0900	\$64,195	\$64,195
14 15	Department of Fire Programs (960)	0200	\$124,615	\$124,615
16 17	Department of State Police (156)	0200	\$84,399	\$84,399
18 19	Department of Military Affairs (123)	0900	\$13,123	\$13,123
20 21	Division of Community Corrections (767)	0900	\$12,874	\$12,874
22 23 24 25	Innovation & Entrepreneurship Investment Authority (934)	0900	\$15,383	\$15,383
26 27	Department of Aviation (841)	0400	\$94,028	\$94,028
28 29	Department of Motor Vehicles (154)	0400	\$3,728,268	\$3,728,268 \$940,473
30 31 32	Department of Rail & Public Transportation (505)	0400	\$680,556	\$680,556
33 34	Department of Transportation (501)	0400	\$5,338,860	\$5,338,860
35 36	Motor Vehicle Dealer Board (506)	0200	\$15,065	\$15,065
37 38	Virginia Port Authority (407)	0200	\$170,539	\$170,539
39 40	Virginia Port Authority (407)	0400	\$80,916	\$80,916
41 42			\$12,965,823	\$12,965,823 \$10,178,028

G.1. The State Comptroller shall transfer to the Lottery Proceeds Fund established pursuant to § 58.1-4022.1, Code of Virginia, an amount estimated at \$592,533,186 \$632,398,647 the first year and \$598,393,186 \$628,830,501 the second year, from the Virginia
Lottery Fund. The transfer each year shall be made in two parts: (1) on or before January 1 of each year, the State Comptroller shall

transfer the balance of the Virginia Lottery Fund for the first five months of the fiscal year and (2) thereafter, the transfer will
be made on a monthly basis, or until the amount estimated at \$592,533,186 \$632,398,647 the first year and \$598,393,186
\$628,830,501 the second year has been transferred to the Lottery Proceeds Fund. Prior to June 20 of each year, the Virginia
Lottery *Executive* Director shall estimate the amount of profits in the Virginia Lottery Fund for the month of June and shall
notify the State Comptroller so that the estimated profits can be transferred to the Lottery Proceeds Fund prior to June 22.

6 2. No later than 10 days after receipt of the annual audit report required by § 58.1-4022.1, Code of Virginia, the State 7 Comptroller shall transfer to the Lottery Proceeds Fund the remaining audited balances of the Virginia Lottery Fund for the 8 prior fiscal year. If such annual audit discloses that the actual revenue is less than the estimate on which the June transfer was 9 based, the State Comptroller shall adjust the next monthly transfer from the Virginia Lottery Fund to account for the difference 10 between the actual revenue and the estimate transferred to the Lottery Proceeds Fund. The State Comptroller shall take all actions necessary to effect the transfers required by this paragraph, notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-4022, Code of 11 Virginia. In preparing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the State Comptroller shall report the Lottery Proceeds 12 Fund as specified in § 58.1-4022.1, Code of Virginia. 13

H.1. The State Treasurer is authorized to charge up to 20 basis points for each nongeneral fund account which he manages and
which receives investment income. The assessed fees, which are estimated to generate \$3,000,000 the first year and \$3,000,000
the second year, will be based on a sliding fee structure as determined by the State Treasurer. The amounts shall be paid into
the general fund of the state treasury.

2.a. The State Treasurer is authorized to charge institutions of higher education participating in the pooled bond program of the
Virginia College Building Authority an administrative fee of up to 10 basis points of the amount financed for each project in
addition to a share of direct costs of issuance as determined by the State Treasurer. Such amounts collected from the public
institutions of higher education, which are estimated to generate \$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year, shall be
paid into the general fund of the state treasury.

3. The State Treasurer is authorized to charge agencies, institutions and all other entities that utilize alternative financing
 structures and require Treasury Board approval, including capital lease arrangements, up to 10 basis points of the amount
 financed in addition to a share of direct costs of issuance as determined by the State Treasurer. Such amounts collected shall be
 paid into the general fund of the state treasury.

4. The State Treasurer is authorized to charge projects financed under Article X, Section 9(c) of the Constitution of Virginia, an administrative fee of up to 10 basis points of the amount financed for each project in addition to a share of direct costs of issuance as determined by the State Treasurer. Such amounts collected are estimated to generate \$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year, and shall be paid into the general fund of the state treasury.

I. The State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund of the state treasury 50 percent of the annual reimbursement received
 from the Manville Property Damage Settlement Trust for the cost of asbestos abatement at state-owned facilities. The balance
 of the reimbursement shall be transferred to the state agencies that incurred the expense of the asbestos abatement.

J. The State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund from the Revenue Stabilization Fund in the state treasury any
 amounts in excess of the limitation specified in § 2.2-1829, Code of Virginia.

K.1. Not later than 30 days after the close of each quarter during the biennium, the State Comptroller shall transfer, notwithstanding the allotment specified in § 58.1-1410, Code of Virginia, funds collected pursuant to § 58.1-1402, Code of Virginia, from the general fund to the Game Protection Fund. This transfer shall not exceed \$4,500,000 the first year and \$4,500,000 the second year.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph K.1. above, the Governor may, at his discretion, direct the State Comptroller
to transfer to the Game Protection Fund, any funds collected pursuant to § 58.1-1402, Code of Virginia, that are in excess of the
official revenue forecast for such collections.

L.1. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer from the general fund to the Family Access to Medical
Insurance Security Plan Trust Fund the amount required by § 32.1-352, Code of Virginia. This transfer shall not exceed
\$14,065,627 the first year and \$14,065,627 the second year. The State Comptroller shall transfer 90 percent of the yearly
estimated amounts to the Trust Fund on July 15 of each year.

47 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, interest earnings shall not be allocated to the Family Access to Medical
48 Insurance Security Plan Trust Fund (agency code 602, fund detail 0903) in either the first year or the second year of the
49 biennium.

50 M. Not later than thirty days after the close of each quarter during the biennium, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the

51 Game Protection Fund the general fund revenues collected pursuant to \S 58.1-638 E, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding \S 58.1-628 E, this transfer hall get arrowed \$11,000,000 the first arrow and \$11,000,000 the ground ware. Notwithstanding \S 58.1-638 E, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding \S 58.1-638 E, Code of Virginia.

638 E, this transfer shall not exceed \$11,000,000 the first year and \$11,000,000 the second year. Notwithstanding \$58.1-638 E, on or before June 30 of the first year and June 30 of the second year. the State Comptroller shall transfer to the Virginia Port

on or before June 30 of the first year and June 30 of the second year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the Virginia Port
 Authority \$1,350,000 of the general fund revenues collected pursuant to \$58.1-638 E, Code of Virginia, to enhance and

improve recreation opportunities for boaters, including but not limited to land acquisition, capital projects, maintenance, and 1 facilities for boating access to the waters of the Commonwealth pursuant to the provisions of Senate Bill 693, 2018 Session of the 3 General Assembly.

4 N.1. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer from the Tobacco Indemnification and Community 5 Revitalization Fund to the general fund an amount estimated at \$244,268 the first year and \$244,268 the second year. This amount 6 represents the Tobacco Indemnification and Community Revitalization Commission's 50 percent proportional share of the Office of the Attorney General's expenses related to the enforcement of the 1998 Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement and § 3.2-4201, Code 7 8 of Virginia.

2

- 9 2. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer from the Tobacco Settlement Fund to the general fund an 10 amount estimated at \$48,854 the first year and \$48,854 the second year. This amount represents the Tobacco Settlement Foundation's ten percent proportional share of the Office of the Attorney General's expenses related to the enforcement of the 1998 11 12 Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement and § 3.2-4201, Code of Virginia.
- 13 O. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund \$4,089,914 \$3,000,000 the first year and \$4,089,914 \$3,000,000 the second year from the Court Debt Collection Program Fund at the Department of Taxation. 14
- P. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund \$7,400,000 the first year and \$7,400,000 15 the second year from the Department of Motor Vehicles' Uninsured Motorists Fund. These amounts shall be from the share that 16 17 would otherwise have been transferred to the State Corporation Commission.
- 18 Q. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer an amount estimated at \$6,500,000 \$5,000,000 the first year and an amount estimated at \$6,500,000 \$5,000,000 the second year to the general fund from the Intensified Drug Enforcement 19 20 Jurisdictions Fund at the Department of Criminal Justice Services.
- 21 R. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund \$3,364,585 the first year and \$3,864,585 22 the second year from operating efficiencies to be implemented by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority.
- 23 S. The State Comptroller shall transfer quarterly, one-half of the revenue received pursuant to § 18.2-270.01, of the Code of 24 Virginia, and consistent with the provisions of § 3-6.03 of this act, to the general fund in an amount not to exceed \$8,055,000 the first year, and \$8,055,000 \$1,859,900 the second year from the Trauma Center Fund contained in the Department of Health's 25 Financial Assistance for Non Profit Emergency Medical Services Organizations and Localities (40203). 26
- 27 T. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer \$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 \$466,600 the second 28 year to the general fund from the Land Preservation Fund (Fund 0216) at the Department of Taxation.
- 29 U. Unless prohibited by federal law or regulation or by the Constitution of Virginia and notwithstanding any contrary provision of 30 state law, on June 30 of each fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund of the state treasury the cash balance from any nongeneral fund account that has a cash balance of less than \$100. This provision shall not apply to institutions of higher 31 education, bond proceeds, or trust accounts. The State Comptroller shall consult with the Director of the Department of Planning and 32 Budget in implementing this provision and, for just cause, shall have discretion to exclude certain balances from this transfer or to 33 34 restore certain balances that have been transferred.
- 35 V.1. The Brunswick Correctional Center operated by the Department of Corrections shall be sold. The Commonwealth may enter 36 into negotiations with (1) the Virginia Tobacco Indemnification and Community Revitalization Commission, (2) regional local governments, and (3) regional industrial development authorities for the purchase of this property as an economic development site. 37
- 38 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia or any other provisions of law, the proceeds of the sale of the Brunswick Correctional Center shall be paid into the general fund. 39
- 40 W. On a monthly basis, in the month subsequent to collection, the State Comptroller shall transfer all amounts collected for the fund 41 created pursuant to § 17.1-275.12 of the Code of Virginia, to Items 344, 395, and 420 of this act, for the purposes enumerated in 42 Section 17.1-275.12.
- 43 X. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer \$10,518,587 the first year and \$10,518,587 the second year to the general fund from the \$2.00 increase in the annual vehicle registration fee from the special emergency medical services fund 44 contained in the Department of Health's Emergency Medical Services Program (40200). 45
- 46 Y. The provisions of Chapter 6.2, Title 58.1, Code of Virginia, notwithstanding, on or before June 30 each year the State 47 Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund from the proceeds of the Virginia Communications Sales and Use Tax (fund 0926), the 48 Department of Taxation's indirect costs of administering this tax estimated at \$106,451 the first year and \$106,451 the second year.
- 49 Z. Any amount designated by the State Comptroller from the June 30, 2018, or June 30, 2019, general fund balance for 50 transportation pursuant to § 2.2-1514B., Code of Virginia, is hereby appropriated.
- 51 AA. The Department of General Services, with the cooperation and support of the Department of Behavioral Health and

Developmental Services, is authorized to sell to Virginia Electric and Power Company, a Virginia corporation d/b/a Dominion Virginia Power, for such consideration as the Governor may approve, a parcel of land containing approximately 15 acres along the northern property line of Southside Virginia Training Center. After deduction of the expenses incurred by the Department of General Services in the sale of the property, the proceeds of the sale shall be deposited to the Behavioral Health and Developmental Services Trust Fund established pursuant to § 37.2-318, Code of Virginia. Any conveyance shall be approved by the Governor or his designee in the manner set forth in § 2.2-1150, Code of Virginia.

BB. On or before June 30, of each fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the State Health Insurance Fund (Fund 06200) the balance from the Administration of Health Benefits Services Fund (Fund 06220) at the Department of Human Resource Management.

CC. The Department of General Services is authorized to dispose of the following property currently owned by the Department
 of Corrections in the manner it deems to be in the best interests of the Commonwealth: Pulaski Correctional Center and White
 Post Detention and Diversion Center. Such disposal may include sale or transfer to other agencies or to local government
 entities. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia, the proceeds from the sale of all or any part of the
 properties shall be deposited into the general fund no later than June 30, 2018.

DD. The State Comptroller shall deposit an additional \$300,000 to the general fund on or before June 30, 2019, and an additional \$800,000 to the general fund on or before June 30, 2020, from the fees generated by the Firearms Transaction and Concealed Weapons Permit Programs at the Department of State Police.

EE.1. On or before June 30 each year, the State Comptroller shall transfer \$4,414,446 the first year and \$273,627 the second year to the general fund from agency nongeneral funds, as detailed below, to fund a portion of the nongeneral share of costs for the expedited repayment of deferred contributions to the Virginia Retirement System authorized in Chapter 732, 2016 Acts of Assembly.

21	Assembly.				
22		Agency Name	Fund Detail	FY 2019	FY 2020
23		Supreme Court (111)	02800	\$13,506	
24		Virginia State Bar (117)	09117	\$132,793	
25 26 27		Department of Emergency Management (127)	02870	\$17,828	
28 29		Department of Motor Vehicles (154)	04540	\$417,507	
30 31		Department of Motor Vehicles (154)	04100	\$31,425	
32 33 34		Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (203)	02203	\$92,218	\$92,217
35 36		Board of Bar Examiners (233)	02233	\$11,896	
37 38 39		Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (262)	02262	\$4,665	\$4,667
40 41 42		Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (262)	02800	\$53,670	\$53,670
43 44 45		Department of Environmental Quality (440)	02149	\$63	
46 47 48		Department of Environmental Quality (440)	02440	\$420	
49 50		Department of Environmental Quality	02450	\$309	

1	(440)		
2	Department of	02800	\$6,575
3 4	Environmental Quality		
4 5	(440) Department of	05100	\$5048
6	Environmental Quality	05100	\$5048
7	(440)		
8	Department of	09024	\$1,622
9 10	Environmental Quality (440)		
11	Department of	09042	\$5
12	Environmental Quality		
13	(440)		
14 15	Department of	09060	\$34
15	Environmental Quality (440)		
17	Department of	09070	\$47
18	Environmental Quality		
19	(440)	00000	\$070
20 21	Department of Environmental Quality	09080	\$873
22	(440)		
23	Department of	09110	\$1,682
24	Environmental Quality		
25 26	(440) Department of	09190	\$914
27	Environmental Quality	09190	\$914
28	(440)		
29	Department of	09143	\$2,891
30 31	Environmental Quality (440)		
32	Department of	09250	\$10
33	Environmental Quality		
34	(440)		
35 36	Department of	09640	\$454
30 37	Environmental Quality (440)		
38 39	Department of Health (601)	02000	\$163,259
40	Department of Health	02030	\$3,873
41	(601)	02030	\$5,675
42 43	Department of Health (601)	02063	\$7,577
44	Department of Health	02110	\$17,839
45	(601)		+,,
46 47	Department of Health (601)	02130	\$100,099
48	Department of Health	02150	\$3,927
49	(601)	000 (0	#2 400
50 51	Department of Health (601)	02260	\$2,400
52 52	Department of Health	02480	\$112,729
53 54	(601) Department of Health	02800	\$1,707,240
55	(601)	02000	φ1,707,240
56	Department of Health	09013	\$51,751
57	(601)		

1	Department of Health	09100	\$3,927	
2 3 4	(601) Department of Health (601)	09312	\$23,326	
5 6 7	Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired (702)	05910	\$32,019	\$32,019
8 9	Department of Social Services (765)	02022	\$39,869	\$39,870
10 11	Department of Social Services (765)	02043	\$39,869	\$39,870
12 13	Department of Juvenile Justice (777)	02777	\$9,389	
14 15	Department of Corrections (799)	02711	\$147,786	
16 17	Department of Corrections (799)	02320	\$23,995	
18 19	Department of Corrections (799)	09530	\$68,864	
20 21	Virginia Foundation for Healthy Youth (852)	09430	\$11,313	\$11,314
22 23 24	Commonwealth's Attorneys' Services Council (957)	02957	\$561	
25 26	Department of Fire Programs (960)	02180	\$44,614	
27 28	Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority (999)	05001	\$1,001,765	
29			\$4,414,446	\$273,627

2. Out of the amounts listed above, the Comptroller shall transfer into the Federal Repayment Reserve Fund an amount
 estimated to be sufficient to pay the federal government in anticipation of a federal repayment resulting from transfers from
 internal service funds identified in this list. The State Comptroller shall notify the Director, Department of Planning and Budget
 of the final federal repayment transfer amount prior to making the transfer into the Federal Repayment Reserve Fund.

FF. On or before June 30, of each fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the Health Insurance Fund - Local (Fund
 05200) at the Administration of Health Insurance the balance from the Administration of Local Benefits Services Fund (Fund
 05220) at the Department of Human Resource Management.

GG. On or before June 30, of each fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the Line of Duty Death and Health
 Benefits Trust Fund (Fund 07420) at the Administration of Health Insurance the balance from the Administration of Health
 Benefits Payment - LODA Fund (Fund 07422) at the Department of Human Resource Management.

HH. On or before June 30, of each fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall transfer \$154,743 from Special Funds of the
Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (720) to Special Funds at the Office of the State Inspector
General (147).

II. The Department of General Services, with the cooperation and support of the Department of Agriculture and Consumer
Services, is authorized to sell, for such consideration and the Governor may approve, a portion of the Eastern Shore Farmers
Market, including the Market Office Building at 18491 Garey Road and the Produce Warehouse at 18513 Garey Road, Melfa,
Virginia 23410. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia, the proceeds from the sale shall first be
applied toward remediation options under federal tax law of any outstanding tax-exempt bonds on the property. After deduction
of the expenses incurred by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, any proceeds that remain shall be deposited
to the general fund no later than June 30, 2020. Any conveyance shall be approved by the Governor in a manner set forth in

1 §2.2-1150, Code of Virginia.

JJ. On or before June 30 of each fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall transfer to the general fund the portion of the balance of the Disaster Recovery Fund (Fund 02460) at the Virginia Department of Emergency Management that was received as a federal cost recovery. The amounts transferred represent repayment of the sum sufficient fund originally appropriated for federally-declared emergencies. The Department of Emergency Management shall report to the State Comptroller the amount of the balance to be transferred by June 1 of each year.

KK. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A of § 58.1-662, Code of Virginia, and in addition to clause (i) and (ii) of that
subsection, monies in the Communications Sales and Use Tax Trust Fund shall not be allocated to the Commonwealth's counties,
cities, and towns until after an amount equal to \$2,000,000 each the first year is allocated to the general fund. The State Comptroller
shall deposit to the general fund \$2,000,000 on or before June 30, 2019 and an additional \$2,000,000 on or before June 30, 2020
from the revenues received from the Communications Sales and Use Tax.

LL. As required by §4-1.05 b of Chapter 2, 2018 Special Session I, \$168,434 in various inactive nongeneral fund accounts were
 reverted by the State Comptroller to the general fund in the first year.

14 § 3-1.02 INTERAGENCY TRANSFERS

The Virginia Department of Transportation shall transfer, from motor fuel tax revenues, \$388,254 the first year and \$388,254 the second year to the Department of General Services for motor fuels testing.

17 § 3-1.03 SHORT-TERM ADVANCE TO THE GENERAL FUND FROM NONGENERAL FUNDS

18 A. To meet the occasional short-term cash needs of the general fund during the course of the year when cumulative year-to-date 19 disbursements exceed temporarily cumulative year-to-date revenue collections, the State Comptroller is authorized to draw cash 20 temporarily from nongeneral fund cash balances deemed to be available, although special dedicated funds related to commodity 21 boards are exempt from this provision. Such cash drawdowns shall be limited to the amounts immediately required by the general 22 fund to meet disbursements made in pursuance of an authorized appropriation. However, the amount of the cash drawdown from any 23 particular nongeneral fund shall be limited to the excess of the cash balance of such fund over the amount otherwise necessary to 24 meet the short-term disbursement requirements of that nongeneral fund. The State Comptroller will ensure that those funds will be 25 replenished in the normal course of business.

B. In the event that nongeneral funds are not sufficient to compensate for the operating cash needs of the general fund, the State
 Treasurer is authorized to borrow, temporarily, required funds from cash balances within the Transportation Trust Fund, where such
 trust fund balances, based upon assessments provided by the Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner, are not otherwise
 needed to meet the short-term disbursement needs of the Transportation Trust Fund, including any debt service and debt coverage
 needs, over the life of the borrowing. In addition, the State Treasurer shall ensure that such borrowings are consistent with the terms
 and conditions of all bond documents, if any, that are relevant to the Transportation Trust Fund.

C. The Secretary of Finance, the State Treasurer and the Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner shall jointly agree on the amounts of such interfund borrowings. Such borrowed amounts shall be repaid to the Transportation Trust Fund at the earliest practical time when they are no longer needed to meet short-term cash needs of the general fund, provided, however, that such borrowed amounts shall be repaid within the biennium in which they are borrowed. Interest shall accrue daily at the rate per annum equal to the then current one-year United States Treasury Obligation Note rate.

D. Any temporary loan shall be evidenced by a loan certificate duly executed by the State Treasurer and the Commonwealth
 Transportation Commissioner specifying the maturity date of such loan and the annual rate of interest. Prepayment of temporary
 loans shall be without penalty and with interest calculated to such prepayment date. The State Treasurer is authorized to make, at
 least monthly, interest payments to the Transportation Trust Fund.

41

§ 3-2.00 WORKING CAPITAL FUNDS AND LINES OF CREDIT

42 § 3-2.01 ADVANCES TO WORKING CAPITAL FUNDS

A. The State Comptroller shall make available to the Virginia Racing Commission, on July 1 of each year, the amount of \$125,000
from the general fund as a temporary cash flow advance, to be repaid by December 30 of each year.

B. The State Comptroller shall provide a Working Capital Advance for up to \$11,553,000 to the Department of Veterans Services,
on July 1 of the second year, to operate the Puller and Jones & Cabacoy Veterans Care Centers, to be repaid from revenue generated
by the facilities.

48 § 3-2.02 CHARGES AGAINST WORKING CAPITAL FUNDS

49 The State Comptroller may periodically charge the appropriation of any state agency for the expenses incurred for services received

from any program financed and accounted for by working capital funds. Such charge may be made upon receipt of such

51 documentation as in the opinion of the State Comptroller provides satisfactory evidence of a claim, charge or demand against the

appropriations made to any agency. The amounts so charged shall be recorded to the credit of the appropriate working capital 1

- 2 fund accounts. In the event any portion of the charge so made shall be disputed, the amount in dispute may be restored to the agency appropriation by direction of the Governor.
- 3
- 4 § 3-2.03 LINES OF CREDIT
- 5 a. The State Comptroller shall provide lines of credit to the following agencies, not to exceed the amounts shown:

6	Administration of Health Insurance, Health Benefits Services	\$75,000,000
7	Administration of Health Insurance, Line of Duty Act	\$10,000,000
8	Department of Accounts, for the Payroll Service Bureau	\$400,000
9	Department of Accounts, Transfer Payments	\$5,250,000
10	Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority	\$60,000,000
11 12	Department of Corrections, for Virginia Correctional Enterprises	\$1,000,000
13	Department of Corrections, for Educational Grant Processing	300,000
14	Department of Emergency Management	\$150,000
15	Department of Environmental Quality	\$5,000,000
16 17	Department of Human Resource Management, for the Workers' Compensation Self Insurance Trust Fund	\$10,000,000
18	Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services	\$30,000,000
19 20	Department of Medical Assistance Services, for the Virginia Health Care Fund	\$12,000,000
21	Department of Motor Vehicles	\$5,000,000
22 23	Department of the Treasury, for the Unclaimed Property Trust Fund	\$5,000,000
24 25	Department of the Treasury, for the State Insurance Reserve Trust Fund	\$25,000,000
26	Virginia Lottery	\$40,000,000
27	Virginia Information Technologies Agency	\$165,000,000
28	Virginia Tobacco Settlement Foundation	\$3,000,000
29	Department of Historic Resources	\$600,000
30	Department of Fire Programs	\$30,000,000
31	Compensation Board	\$8,000,000
32	Department of Conservation and Recreation	\$4,000,000
33	Department of Military Affairs, for State Active Duty	\$5,000,000
34 35	Department of Military Affairs, for Federal Cooperative Agreements	\$21,000,000
36	Innovation and Entrepreneurship Authority	\$2,500,000
37	Department of Motor Vehicles	\$10,500,000
38	Virginia Parole Board	\$50,000

39 b. The State Comptroller shall execute an agreement with each agency documenting the procedures for the line of credit, 40 including, but not limited to, applicable interest and the method for the drawdown of funds. The provisions of § 4-3.02 b of this 41 act shall not apply to these lines of credit.

42 c. The State Comptroller, in conjunction with the Departments of General Services and Planning and Budget, shall establish 43 guidelines for agencies and institutions to utilize a line of credit to support fixed and one-time costs associated with 44 implementation of office space consolidation, relocation and/or office space co-location strategies, where such line of credit 45 shall be repaid by the agency or institution based on the cost savings and efficiencies realized by the agency or institution 46 resulting from the consolidation and/or relocation. In such cases the terms of office space consolidation or co-location strategies shall be approved by the Secretary of Administration, in consultation with the Secretary of Finance, as demonstrating cost 47 48 benefit to the Commonwealth. In no case shall the advances to an agency or institution exceed \$1,000,000 nor the repayment 49 begin more than one year following the implementation or extend beyond a repayment period of seven years.

d. The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to provide lines of credit of up to \$2,500,000 to the Department of Motor 50 Vehicles and up to \$2,500,000 to the Department of State Police to be repaid from revenues provided under the federal 51 52 government's establishment of Uniform Carrier Registration.

5 Lottery if necessary to meet operating needs.

2

4

6 f. The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to provide a line of credit of up to \$5,000,000 to the Department of Military Affairs to 7 cover the actual costs of responding to State Active Duty. The line of credit will be repaid as the Department of Military Affairs is 8 reimbursed from federal or other funds, other than Department of Military Affairs funds.

9 g. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority is hereby authorized to use its line of credit to meet cash flow needs at 10 any time during the year in support of operational costs in anticipation of reimbursement of said expenditures from signed contracts and grant awards. The Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority shall repay the line of credit by June 30 of each fiscal 11 12 year.

13 h. The Department of Human Resource Management shall repay the local health insurance option program's initial start-up costs, funded through the line of credit authorized in Chapter 836, 2017 Acts of Assembly, in fiscal years 2017 and 2018, over a period not 14 15 to exceed ten years from the health insurance premiums paid by the local health insurance option program's participants.

§ 3-3.00 GENERAL FUND DEPOSITS 16

17 § 3-3.01 PAYMENT BY THE STATE TREASURER

18 The state Treasurer shall transfer an amount estimated at \$50,000 on or before June 30, 2019 and an amount estimated at \$50,000 on 19 or before June 30, 2020, to the general fund from excess 9(c) sinking fund balances.

20 § 3-3.02 UTILITY BILL CREDITS

21 Utility bill credits pursuant to the provisions of House Bill 1558, 2018 Session of the General Assembly; in an amount estimated to 22 be \$3,400,000 shall accrue to state agencies on or before June 30, 2019. Out of this amount, the Comptroller shall transfer into the 23 Federal Repayment Reserve Fund an amount estimated to be sufficient to pay the federal government in anticipation of a federal 24 repayment. The State Comptroller shall notify the Director; Department of Planning and Budget of the final federal repayment 25 transfer amount prior to making the transfer into the Federal Repayment Reserve Fund. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget and the State Comptroller are authorized to utilize a combination of nongeneral fund cash transfers and general fund 26 27 appropriation transfers from applicable state agencies in order to recover these rebate amounts to the general fund.

§ 3-4.00 AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES AND SPONSORED PROGRAMS IN INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION 28

29 § 3-4.01 AUXILIARY ENTERPRISE INVESTMENT YIELDS

30 A. The educational and general programs in institutions of higher education shall recover the full indirect cost of auxiliary enterprise

programs as certified by institutions of higher education to the Comptroller subject to annual audit by the Auditor of Public accounts. 31

32 The State Comptroller shall credit those institutions meeting this requirement with the interest earned by the investment of the funds 33 of their auxiliary enterprise programs.

34 B. No interest shall be credited for that portion of the fund's cash balance that represents any outstanding loans due from the State

Treasurer. The provisions of this section shall not apply to the capital projects authorized under Items C-36.21 and C-36.40 of 35

Chapter 924, 1997 Acts of Assembly. 36

37

§ 3-5.00 ADJUSTMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS TO TAX COLLECTIONS

- 38 § 3-5.01 RETALIATORY COSTS TO OTHER STATES TAX CREDIT
- 39 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the amount deposited to the Priority Transportation Trust Fund pursuant to § 58.1-2531 40 shall not be reduced by more than \$266,667 by any refund of the Tax Credit for Retaliatory Costs to Other States available under § 58.1-2510. 41

§3-5.02 PAYMENT OF AUTO RENTAL TAX TO THE GENERAL FUND 42

43 Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-1741, Code of Virginia, or any other provision of law, all revenues resulting from the fee

44 imposed under subdivision A3 of § 58.1-1736, Code of Virginia, shall be deposited into the general fund after the direct costs of

45 administering the fee are recovered by the Department of Taxation.

§ 3-5.03 IMPLEMENTATION OF CHAPTER 3, ACTS OF ASSEMBLY OF 2004, SPECIAL SESSION I 46

47 Revenues deposited into the Public Education Standards of Quality/Local Real Estate Property Tax Relief Fund established under §

48 58.1-638.1 of the Code of Virginia pursuant to enactments of the 2004 Special Session of the General Assembly shall be transferred

49 to the general fund and used to meet the Commonwealth's responsibilities for the Standards of Quality prescribed pursuant to Article

VIII, Section 2, of the Constitution of Virginia. The Comptroller shall take all actions necessary to effect such transfers 1 2 monthly, no later than 10 days following the deposit to the Fund. The amounts transferred shall be distributed to localities as 3 specified in Direct Aid to Public Education's (197), State Education Assistance Programs (17800) of this Act. The estimated

4 amount of such transfers are \$386,700,000 \$389,900,000 the first year and \$395,200,000 \$409,300,000 the second year.

- 5 § 3-5.04 RETAIL SALES & USE TAX EXEMPTION FOR INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDERS
- 6 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for purchases made on or after July 1, 2006, any exemption from the retail sales
- and use tax applicable to production, distribution, and other equipment used to provide Internet-access services by providers of 7 Internet service, as defined in § 58.1-602, Code of Virginia, shall occur as a refund request to the Tax Commissioner. The Tax 8
- 9 Commissioner shall develop procedures for such refunds.

10 § 3-5.05 DISPOSITION OF EXCESS FEES COLLECTED BY CLERKS OF THE CIRCUIT COURTS

- Notwithstanding §§ 15.2-540, 15.2-639, 15.2-848, 17.1-285, and any other provision of law general or special, effective July 1, 11
- 12 2009, the Commonwealth shall be entitled to two-thirds of the excess fees collected by the clerks of the circuit courts as 13 required to be reported under § 17.1-283.

14 § 3-5.06 ACCELERATED SALES TAX

15 A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, in addition to the amounts required under the provisions of §§58.1-615 and 16 58.1-616, any dealer as defined by \$58.1-612 or direct payment permit holder pursuant to \$58.1-624 with taxable sales and 17 purchases of \$1,000,000 or greater for the 12-month period beginning July 1, and ending June 30 of the immediately preceding 18 calendar year, shall be required to make a payment equal to 90 percent of the sales and use tax liability for the previous June. 19 Such tax payments shall be made on or before the 30th day of June, if payments are made by electronic fund transfer, as 20 defined in § 58.1-202.1. If payment is made by other than electronic funds transfer, such payment shall be made on or before 21 the 25th day of June. Every dealer or direct payment holder shall be entitled to a credit for the payment under this section on the 22 return for June of the current year due July 20.

- 23 B. The Tax Commissioner may develop guidelines implementing the provisions of this section. Such guidelines shall be 24 exempt from the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq.).
- 25 C. For purposes of this section, taxable sales or purchases shall be computed without regard to the number of certificates of registration held by the dealer. The provisions of this section shall not apply to persons who are required to file only a Form 26 27 ST-7, Consumer's Use Tax Return.
- 28 D. In lieu of the penalties provided in § 58.1-635, except with respect to fraudulent returns, failure to make a timely payment or 29 full payment of the sales and use tax liability as provided in subsection A shall subject the dealer or direct payment permit 30 holder to a penalty of six percent of the amount of tax underpayment that should have been properly paid to the Tax 31 Commissioner. Interest shall accrue as provided in § 58.1-15. The payment required by this section shall become delinquent on 32 the first day following the due date set forth in this section if not paid.
- 33 E. Payments made pursuant to this section shall be made in accordance with procedures established by the Tax Commissioner 34 and shall be considered general fund revenue, except with respect to those revenues required to be distributed under the 35 provisions of §§ 58.1-605, 58.1-606, 58.1-638(A), 58.1-638(G)-(H), 58.1-638.2, and 58.1-638.3 of the Code of Virginia.
- 36 F. That the State Comptroller shall make no distribution of the taxes collected pursuant to this section in accordance with §§ 58.1-605, 58.1-606, 58.1-638, 58.1-638.1, 58.1-638.2 and 58.1-638.3 of the Code of Virginia until the Tax Commissioner 37 makes a written certification to the Comptroller certifying the sales and use tax revenues generated pursuant to this section. The 38 39 Tax Commissioner shall certify the sales and use tax revenues generated as soon as practicable after the sales and use tax 40 revenues have been paid into the state treasury in any month for the preceding month.
- 41 G.1. Beginning with the tax payment that would be remitted on or before June 25, 2019, if the payment is made by other than 42 electronic fund transfers, and by June 30, 2019, if payments are made by electronic fund transfer, the provisions of § 3-5.08 of 43 Chapter 874, 2010 Acts of Assembly, shall apply only to those dealers or permit holders with taxable sales and purchases of 44 \$4,000,000 or greater for the 12-month period beginning July 1 and ending June 30 of the immediately preceding calendar year.
- 45 2. Beginning with the tax payment that would be remitted on or before June 25, 2020, if the payment is made by other than 46 electronic fund transfers, and by June 30, 2020, if payments are made by electronic fund transfer, the provisions of § 3-5.08 of Chapter 874, 2010 Acts of Assembly, shall apply only to those dealers or permit holders with taxable sales and purchases of 47 48 \$4,000,000 \$10,000,000 or greater for the 12-month period beginning July 1 and ending June 30 of the immediately preceding 49 calendar year.

§ 3-5.07 DISCOUNTS AND ALLOWANCES 50

51 A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, effective beginning with the return for June 2010, due July 2010, the

52 compensation allowed under § 58.1-622, Code of Virginia, shall be suspended for any dealer required to remit the tax levied under §§ 58.1-603 and 58.1-604, Code of Virginia, by electronic funds transfer pursuant to § 58.1-202.1, Code of Virginia, and the
 compensation available to all other dealers shall be limited to the following percentages of the first three percent of the tax levied
 under §§ 58.1-603 and 58.1-604, Code of Virginia:

4	Monthly Taxable Sales	Percentage
5	\$0 to \$62,500	1.6%
6	\$62,501 to \$208,000	1.2%
7	\$208,001 and above	0.8%

- 8 B. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, effective beginning with the return for June 2010, due July 2010, the compensation
 9 available under §§ 58.1-642, 58.1-656, 58.1-1021.03, and 58.1-1730, Code of Virginia, shall be suspended.
- 10 C. Beginning with the return for June 2011, due July 2011, the compensation under § 58.1-1021.03 shall be reinstated.

11 § 3-5.08 SALES TAX COMMITMENT TO HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE AND OPERATING FUND

12 The sales and use tax revenue for distribution to the Highway Maintenance and Operating Fund shall be consistent with Chapter 766,13 2013 Acts of Assembly.

14 § 3-5.09 INTANGIBLE HOLDING COMPANY ADDBACK

15 Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-402(B)(8), Code of Virginia, for taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2004:

(i) The exception in § 58.1-402(B)(8)(a)(1) for income that is subject to a tax based on or measured by net income or capital imposed by Virginia, another state, or a foreign government shall be limited and apply only to the portion of such income received by the related member, which portion is attributed to a state or foreign government in which the related member has sufficient nexus to be subject to such taxes; and

(ii) The exception in § 58.1-402(B)(8)(a)(2) for a related member deriving at least one-third of its gross revenues from licensing to unrelated parties shall be limited and apply only to the portion of such income derived from licensing agreements for which the rates and terms are comparable to the rates and terms of agreements that the related member has actually entered into with unrelated entities.

24 § 3-5.10 REGIONAL FUELS TAX

Funds collected pursuant to § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, from the additional sales tax on fuel in certain transportation
districts under § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code of Virginia, shall be returned to the respective commissions in amounts equivalent to the
shares collected in the respective member jurisdictions. However, no funds shall be collected pursuant to § 58.1-2291 et seq., Code
of Virginia, from levying the additional sales tax on aviation fuel as that term is defined in § 58.1-2201, Code of Virginia.

29 § 3-5.11 DEDUCTION FOR ABLE ACT CONTRIBUTIONS

A. Effective for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2016, an individual shall be allowed a deduction from Virginia 30 31 adjusted gross income as defined in § 58.1-321, Code of Virginia, for the amount contributed during the taxable year to an ABLE savings trust account entered into with the Virginia College Savings Plan pursuant to Chapter 7 (§ 23.1-700 et seq.) of Title 23.1, 32 33 Code of Virginia. The amount deducted on any individual income tax return in any taxable year shall be limited to \$2,000 per ABLE 34 savings trust account. No deduction shall be allowed pursuant to this section if such contributions are deducted on the contributor's 35 federal income tax return. If the contribution to an ABLE savings trust account exceeds \$2,000 the remainder may be carried 36 forward and subtracted in future taxable years until the ABLE savings trust contribution has been fully deducted; however, in no 37 event shall the amount deducted in any taxable year exceed \$2,000 per ABLE savings trust account.

B. Notwithstanding the statute of limitations on assessments contained in § 58.1-312, Code of Virginia, any deduction taken
hereunder shall be subject to recapture in the taxable year or years in which distributions or refunds are made for any reason other
than (i) to pay qualified disability expenses, as defined in § 529A of the Internal Revenue Code; or (ii) the beneficiary's death.

C. A contributor to an ABLE savings trust account who has attained age 70 shall not be subject to the limitation that the amount of
 the deduction not exceed \$2,000 per ABLE savings trust account in any taxable year. Such taxpayer shall be allowed a deduction for

- 43 the full amount contributed to an ABLE savings trust account, less any amounts previously deducted.
- D. The Tax Commissioner shall develop guidelines implementing the provisions of this section, including but not limited to the computation, carryover, and recapture of the deduction provided under this section. Such guidelines shall be exempt from the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq., Code of Virginia).

47 § 3-5.12 RETAIL SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION FOR RESEARCH FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED RESEARCH AND48 DEVELOPMENT CENTERS

49 A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law or regulation, and beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2018, the retail sales

and use tax exemption provided for in subdivision 5 of § 58.1-609.3 of the Code of Virginia, applicable to tangible personal
 property purchased or leased for use or consumption directly and exclusively in basic research or research and development in
 the experimental or laboratory sense, shall apply to such property used in a federally funded research and development center,
 regardless of whether such property is used by the purchaser, lessee, or another person or entity.

B. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, beginning July 1, 2018, tangible personal property purchased by a federally
 funded research and development center sponsored by the U.S. Department of Energy shall be exempt from the retail sales and
 use tax.

8 C. Nothing in this section shall be construed to relieve any federally funded research and development center of any liability for
 9 retail sales and use tax due for the purchase of tangible personal property pursuant to the law in effect at the time of the purchase.

11 § 3-5.13 ADMISSIONS TAX

Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-3818.02, Code of Virginia, or any other provision of law, subject to the execution of a memorandum of understanding between an entertainment venue and the County of Stafford, Stafford County is authorized to impose a tax on admissions to an entertainment venue located in the county that (i) is licensed to do business in the county for the first time on or after July 1, 2015, and (ii) requires at last 75 acres of land for its operations, and (iii) such land is purchased or leased by the entertainment venue owner on or after June 1, 2015. The tax shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount of charge for admission to any such venue. The provisions of this section shall expire on July 1, 2019 if no entertainment venue exists in Stafford County upon which the tax authorized is imposed.

19 § 3-5.14 SUNSET DATES FOR INCOME TAX CREDITS AND SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTIONS

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law the General Assembly shall not advance the sunset date on any existing sales tax
 exemption or tax credit beyond June 30, 2022. Any new sales tax exemption or tax credit enacted by the General Assembly
 prior to the 2021 regular legislative session shall have a sunset date not later than June 30, 2022. However, this requirement
 shall not apply to tax exemptions administered by the Department of Taxation under § 58.1-609.11, relating to exemptions for
 nonprofit entities nor shall it apply to exemptions or tax credits with sunset dates after June 30, 2022, enacted or advanced
 during the 2016 Session of the General Assembly.

B. By November 1, 2020, the Department of Taxation shall report to every member of the General Assembly and to the Joint
Subcommittee to Evaluate Tax Preferences, on the revenue impact of every sales tax exemption and tax credit scheduled to
expire on or before June 30, 2022. The report shall include the prior fiscal year's state and local sales tax impact of each
expiring sales tax exemption, and the prior fiscal year's general fund revenue impact of each expiring tax credit. The tax credit
revenue impact analysis shall be inclusive of credits claimed against any tax imposed under Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia.

C. The Department shall provide an updated revenue impact report no later than November 1, 2025, and every five years
 thereafter, for sales tax exemptions and tax credits set to expire within two years following the date of the report. Such reports
 shall be distributed to every member of the General Assembly and to the Joint Subcommittee to Evaluate Tax Preferences.

34 § 3-5.15 PROVIDER COVERAGE ASSESSMENT

A. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is authorized to levy an assessment upon private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia in accordance with this item. Private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia shall pay a coverage assessment beginning on or after October 1, 2018. For the purposes of this coverage assessment, the definition of private acute care hospitals shall exclude public hospitals, freestanding psychiatric and rehabilitation hospitals, children's hospitals, long stay hospitals, long-term acute care hospitals and critical access hospitals.

B.1. The coverage assessment shall be used only to cover the non-federal share of the full cost for expanded Medicaid coverage
 for newly eligible individuals pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396d(y)(1)[2010] of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act,
 including the administrative costs of collecting the coverage assessment, and implementing and operating the coverage for
 newly eligible adults.

44 2: The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall calculate each hospital's "coverage assessment" annually by
 45 multiplying the "coverage assessment percentage" times "net patient service revenue" as defined below.

3. The "coverage assessment percentage" shall be calculated as (i) 1.08 times the non-federal share of the "full cost of expanded
 Medicaid coverage" for newly eligible individuals under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (42 U.S.C. §
 1396d(y)(1)[2010]) divided by (ii) the total "net patient service revenue" for hospitals subject to the assessment. By May 1 of
 each year, DMAS shall report the estimated assessment payments by hospital and all assessment percentage calculations for the
 upcoming fiscal year to the Director. Department of Planning and Budget and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and

upcoming fiscal year to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and
 Senate Finance Committees.

52 4. The "full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage" shall equal the amount estimated in the official Medicaid forecast due by

53 November 1 of each year as required by paragraph A.1. of Item 307 of this Act. This Act estimates the non-federal share of the

1 cost of coverage for FY 2019 as \$80,823,953 and FY 2020 as \$226,123,826.

5: Each hospital's "net patient service revenue" equals the amount reported in the most recent Virginia Health Information (VHI)
 "Hospital Detail Report" as of December 15 of each year. In the first year, net patient service revenue shall be prorated by the portion of the year subject to the tax.

6. Any estimated excess or shortfall of revenue from the previous year shall be deducted from or added to the "full cost of expanded
 Medicaid coverage" for the next year prior to the calculation of the "coverage assessment percentage."

7. DMAS shall be responsible for collecting the coverage assessment. Hospitals subject to the coverage assessment shall make
quarterly payments to the department equal to 25 percent of the annual "coverage assessment" amount. In the first year, quarterly
amounts for the remainder of the state fiscal year shall equal one-third of the coverage assessment. The payments are due not later
than the first day of each quarter. In the first year, the first coverage assessment payment shall be due on or after October 1, 2018.
Hospitals that fail to make the coverage assessment payments within 30 days of the due date shall incur a five percent penalty. Any
unpaid coverage assessment or penalty will be considered a debt to the Commonwealth and DMAS is authorized to recover it as
such.

8: DMAS shall submit a report due September 1 of each year to the Director; Department of Planning and Budget and Chairmen of
 the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The report shall include, for the most recently completed fiscal year, the
 revenue collected from the coverage assessment, expenditures for purposes authorized by this Item, and the year-end coverage
 assessment balance in the Health Care Coverage Assessment Fund.

9: All revenue from the coverage assessment including penalties shall be deposited into the Health Care Coverage Assessment Fund.
 Proceeds from the coverage assessment, including penalties, shall not be used for any other purpose than to cover the non-federal
 share of the full cost of enhanced Medicaid coverage for newly eligible individuals, pursuant to 42 U.S.S. § 1396d(y)(1)[2010] of
 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, including the administrative costs of collecting the assessment, and implementing
 and operating the coverage for newly eligible adults.

23 10. Any provision of this Item is contingent upon approval by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services if necessary.

A. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is authorized to levy an assessment upon private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia in accordance with this Item. Private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia shall pay a coverage assessment beginning on or after October 1, 2018. For the purposes of this coverage assessment, the definition of private acute care hospitals shall exclude public hospitals, freestanding psychiatric and rehabilitation hospitals, children's hospitals, long stay hospitals, long-term acute care hospitals and critical access hospitals.

B.1. The coverage assessment shall be used only to cover the non-federal share of the "full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage" for newly eligible individuals pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396d(y)(1)[2010] of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, including the administrative costs of collecting the coverage assessment and implementing and operating the coverage for newly eligible adults.

2.a. The "full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage" shall include: 1) any and all Medicaid expenditures related to individuals
 eligible for Medicaid pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396d(y)(1)[2010] of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, including any
 federal actions or repayments; and, 2) all administrative costs associated with providing coverage and collecting the coverage
 assessment.

b. The "full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage" shall be updated: 1) on November 1 of each year based on the official Medicaid
forecast and latest administrative cost estimates developed by DMAS; 2) no more than 30 days after the enactment of this Act to
reflect policy changes adopted by the latest session of the General Assembly; and 3) on March 1 of any year in which DMAS
estimates that the most recent non-federal share of the "full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage" times 1.08 will be insufficient to
pay all expenses in 2.a. for that year.

- 42 c. This Act estimates the non-federal share of the cost of Medicaid expansion to be \$86,103,345 the first year and \$293,192,716 the
 43 second year. However, these amounts shall not be construed as a limitation on collections or override the provisions of this item that
 44 allow for periodic updates of the full cost of coverage.
- 45 C. 1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall calculate each hospital's "coverage assessment amount" by
 46 multiplying the "coverage assessment percentage" times "net patient service revenue" as defined below.
- 47 2. The "coverage assessment percentage" shall be calculated as (i) 1.08 times the non-federal share of the "full cost of expanded
 48 Medicaid coverage" divided by (ii) the total "net patient service revenue" for hospitals subject to the assessment.
- 49 3. Each hospital's "net patient service revenue" equals the amount reported in the most recent Virginia Health Information (VHI)
- "Hospital Detail Report." In FY 2019, net patient service revenue shall be prorated by the portion of the year subject to the tax.
 Hospitals shall certify that the net patient service revenue is hospital revenue and this amount shall be the assessment basis for the

following fiscal year.

D.1. DMAS shall, at a minimum, update the "coverage assessment amount" to be effective on January 1, of each year. DMAS
is further authorized to update the "coverage assessment amount" on a quarterly basis to ensure amounts are sufficient to
cover the full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage based on the latest estimate. Hospitals shall be given no less than 30 days'
notice prior to a change in its coverage assessment amount and be provided with associated calculations. Prior to any change
to the coverage assessment amount, DMAS shall perform and incorporate a reconciliation of the Health Care Coverage
Assessment Fund. Any estimated excess or shortfall of revenue since the previous reconciliation shall be deducted from or

7 added to the "full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage" for the updated coverage assessment amount.

8 2. DMAS shall be responsible for collecting the coverage assessment amount. Hospitals subject to the coverage assessment
9 shall make quarterly payments due no later than July 1, October 1, January 1 and April 1 of each state fiscal year. In FY 2019,
10 quarterly amounts for the remainder of the state fiscal year shall equal one-third of the coverage assessment. In the first year,
11 the first coverage assessment payment shall be due on or after October 1, 2018.

3. Hospitals that fail to make the coverage assessment payments within 30 days of the due date shall incur a five percent
 penalty that shall be deposited in the Virginia Health Care Fund. Any unpaid coverage assessment or penalty will be
 considered a debt to the Commonwealth and DMAS is authorized to recover it as such.

E. DMAS shall submit a report due September 1 of each year to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget and
Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The report shall include, for the most recently
completed fiscal year, the revenue collected from the coverage assessment, expenditures for purposes authorized by this Item,
and the year-end coverage assessment balance in the Health Care Coverage Assessment Fund.

F. All revenue from the coverage assessment excluding penalties, shall be deposited into the Health Care Coverage Assessment
 Fund. Proceeds from the coverage assessment, excluding penalties, shall not be used for any other purpose than to cover the
 non-federal share of the full cost of expanded Medicaid coverage.

22 G. Any provision of this Item is contingent upon approval by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services if necessary.

23 § 3-5.16 PROVIDER PAYMENT RATE ASSESSMENT

A. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is hereby authorized to levy a payment rate assessment upon private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia in accordance with this item. Private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia
 shall pay a payment rate assessment beginning on or after October 1, 2018 when all necessary state plan amendments are approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). For purposes of this assessment, the definition of private acute care hospitals shall exclude public hospitals; freestanding psychiatric and rehabilitation hospitals; children's hospitals, long stay hospitals, long-term acute care hospitals and critical access hospitals.

B.1. Proceeds from the payment rate assessment shall be disbursed to fund an increase in inpatient and outpatient payment rates
 paid to private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia up to the "upper payment limit" and to fill the "managed care
 organization hospital payment gap" for care provided to recipients of medical assistance services.

33 2. DMAS shall calculate each hospital's payment rate assessment annually by multiplying the "payment rate assessment 34 percentage" times "net patient service revenue". Each hospital's "net patient service revenue" equals the amount reported in the 35 most recent Virginia Health Information (VIII) "Hospital Detail Report" as of December 15 of each year. The "payment rate 36 assessment percentage" for hospitals shall be calculated as (i) 1.00 times the non-federal share of funding the "upper payment 37 limit gap" and the "managed care organization hospital payment gap" divided by (ii) the total "net patient service revenue" for 38 hospitals subject to the assessment. Prior to calculating the payment rate assessment percentage, DMAS shall estimate the cost 39 of the upper payment limit gap and the managed care organization hospital payment gap. Any estimated excess or shortfall of 40 revenue from the previous year shall be deducted from or added to the calculation of the provider rate costs. By 14 days after 41 the Appropriation Act for the upcoming fiscal year is signed, DMAS shall report the estimated payment rate assessment by 42 hospital and all assessment percentage calculations for the upcoming fiscal year to the Director, Department of Planning and 43 Budget, and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

44 3. The "upper payment limit" means the limit on payment for inpatient services for recipients of medical assistance established 45 in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 447.272 and outpatient services for recipients of medical assistance pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 46 447.321 for private hospitals. DMAS shall complete a calculation of the "upper payment limit" for each state fiscal year with a 47 detailed analysis of how it was determined. The "upper payment limit payment gap" means the difference between the amount 48 of the private hospital upper payment limit and the amount otherwise paid pursuant to the state plan for inpatient and outpatient 49 services. The "managed care organization hospital payment gap" means the difference between the amount included in the 50 capitation rates for inpatient and outpatient services based on historical paid claims and the amount that would be included 51 when the projected hospital services furnished by private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia are priced according to the 52 existing State Plan methodology but using 100% for the adjustment factors (including the capital reimbursement percentage) 53 and full inflation subject to CMS approval under 42 C,F.R. section 438.6(c). As part of the development of the managed care capitation rates; the Department shall calculate a "Medicaid managed care organization (MCO) supplemental hospital 54 55 capitation payment adjustment". This is a distinct additional amount added to Medicaid MCO capitation rates to fund 56 supplemental payments under this section to private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia for services to Medicaid 1 recipients.

4: DMAS shall contractually direct Medicaid MCOs to disburse supplemental hospital capitation payment funds consistent with this
 section and 42 C.F.R. § 438.6(c), that ensure that all such funds are disbursed to private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia. In
 addition, DMAS shall contractually prohibit MCOs from making reductions to or supplanting hospital payments otherwise paid by
 MCOs.

5. DMAS shall make available monthly a report of the additional capitation payments that are made to each MCO pursuant to this
 subsection. Further, DMAS shall consider recommendations of the Medicaid Hospital Payment Policy and Advisory Council in
 designing and implementing the specific elements of the payment rate assessment and private acute care hospital supplemental
 payment program authorized by this item.

10 C: DMAS shall be responsible for collecting the payment rate assessment. Hospitals subject to the assessment shall make quarterly 11 payments to the department equal to 25 percent of the annual "assessment" amount. In the first year, quarterly amounts for the 12 remainder of the state fiscal year shall equal the hospital's total payment rate assessment for the fiscal year divided by the number of 13 quarters in the remainder of the fiscal year after the effective date of the payment rates. The assessment are due not later than the 14 first day of each quarter. In the first year, the first assessment payment shall be due on or after October 1, 2018. Hospitals that fail to 15 make the assessment payments within 30 days of the due date shall incur a five percent penalty. Any unpaid assessment or penalty 16 will be considered a debt to the Commonwealth and DMAS is authorized to recover it as such.

D: DMAS shall submit a report due September 1 of each year to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget and Chairmen of
 the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The report shall include, for the most recently completed fiscal year, the
 revenue collected from the payment rate assessment, expenditures for purposes authorized by this item, and the year-end assessment
 balance in the Health Care Provider Payment Rate Assessment Fund.

E: All revenue from the payment rate assessment shall be deposited into the Health Care Provider Payment Rate Assessment Fund, a
 special non-reverting fund in the state treasury. Proceeds from the payment rate assessment, including penalties, shall not be used for
 any other purpose than to fund (i) an increase in inpatient and outpatient payment rates paid to private acute care hospitals operating
 in Virginia up to the private hospital "upper payment limit" and "managed care organization hospital payment gap" for care provided
 to recipients of medical assistance services, and (ii) the administrative costs of collecting the assessment and of implementing and
 operating the associated payment rate actions.

27 F. Any provision of this Section is contingent upon approval by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services if necessary.

A. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is hereby authorized to levy a payment rate assessment upon private
 acute care hospitals operating in Virginia in accordance with this item. Private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia shall pay
 a payment rate assessment beginning on or after October 1, 2018 when all necessary state plan amendments are approved by the
 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). For purposes of this assessment, the definition of private acute care hospitals
 shall exclude public hospitals, freestanding psychiatric and rehabilitation hospitals, children's hospitals, long stay hospitals, long-term acute care hospitals and critical access hospitals.

B. Proceeds from the payment rate assessment shall be used to i) fund an increase in inpatient and outpatient payment rates paid to
private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia up to the "upper payment limit gap" and ii) fill the "managed care organization
hospital payment gap" for care provided to recipients of medical assistance services. Payments made under the provisions of this
item shall be referred to as "private acute care hospital enhanced payments".

- C.1. The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) shall calculate each hospital's "payment rate assessment amount" by
 multiplying the "payment rate assessment percentage" times "net patient service revenue" as defined below.
- 2. The "payment rate assessment percentage" for hospitals shall be calculated as (i) 1.08 times the non-federal share of funding the
 "private acute care hospitals enhanced payments" divided by (ii) the total "net patient service revenue" for hospital subject to the
 assessment.
- 43 3. Each hospital's "net patient service revenue" equals the amount reported in the most recent Virginia Health Information (VHI)
 44 "Hospital Detail Report." In FY 2019, net patient service revenue shall be prorated by the portion of the year subject to the tax.
 45 Hospitals shall certify that the net patient service revenue is hospital revenue and this amount shall be the assessment basis for the following fiscal year.
- D. DMAS is authorized to update the payment rate assessment amount on a quarterly basis to ensure amounts are sufficient to cover
 the full cost of the private acute care hospital enhanced payments based on the latest estimate. Hospitals shall be given no less than
 30 days prior notice of the new assessment amount and be provided with calculations. Prior to any change to the payment rate
 assessment amount, DMAS shall perform and incorporate a reconciliation of the Health Care Provider Payment Rate Assessment
 Fund. Any estimated excess or shortfall of revenue since the previous reconciliation shall be deducted from or added to the
- 52 calculation of the private acute care hospital enhanced payments.
- 53 E.1. The "upper payment limit" means the limit on payment for inpatient services for recipients of medical assistance established in

1 accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 447.272 and outpatient services for recipients of medical assistance pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 2 447.321 for private hospitals. DMAS shall complete a calculation of the "upper payment limit" for each state fiscal year with a 3 detailed analysis of how it was determined. The "upper payment limit payment gap" means the difference between the amount 4 of the private hospital upper payment limit and the amount otherwise paid pursuant to the state plan for inpatient and 5 outpatient services. The "managed care organization hospital payment gap" means the difference between the amount included 6 in the capitation rates for inpatient and outpatient services based on historical paid claims and the amount that would be 7 included when the projected hospital services furnished by private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia are priced 8 according to the existing State Plan methodology but using 100% for the adjustment factors (including the capital 9 reimbursement percentage) and full inflation subject to CMS approval under 42 C.F.R. section 438.6(c). As part of the 10 development of the managed care capitation rates, the DMAS shall calculate a "Medicaid managed care organization (MCO) 11 supplemental hospital capitation payment adjustment". This is a distinct additional amount shall be added to Medicaid MCO 12 capitation rates to fund supplemental payments under this section to private acute care hospitals operating in Virginia for

- 13 services to Medicaid recipients.
- 2. DMAS shall contractually direct Medicaid MCOs to disburse supplemental hospital capitation payment funds consistent with
 this section and 42 C.F.R. § 438.6(c), to ensure that all such funds are disbursed to private acute care hospitals operating in
 Virginia. In addition, DMAS shall contractually prohibit MCOs from making reductions to or supplanting hospital payments
 otherwise paid by MCOs.
- 3. DMAS shall make available quarterly a report of the additional capitation payments that are made to each MCO pursuant to
 this item. Further, DMAS shall consider recommendations of the Medicaid Hospital Payment Policy and Advisory Council in
 designing and implementing the specific elements of the payment rate assessment and private acute care hospital supplemental
 payment program authorized by this item.
- F.1. DMAS shall be responsible for collecting the payment rate assessment amount. Hospitals subject to the payment rate assessment shall make quarterly payments due no later than July 1, October 1, January 1 and April 1 of each state fiscal year.
 In FY 2019, the first payment rate assessment payment shall be due on or after October 1, 2018.
- 25 2. Hospitals that fail to make the payment rate assessment payments within 30 days of the due date shall incur a five percent
 26 penalty that shall be deposited in the Virginia Health Care Fund. Any unpaid payment assessment or penalty will be considered
 27 a debt to the Commonwealth and DMAS is authorized to recover it as such.
- G. DMAS shall submit a report due September 1 of each year to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget and
 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. The report shall include, for the most recently
 completed fiscal year, the revenue collected from the payment rate assessment, expenditures for purposes authorized by this
 item, and the year-end assessment balance in the Health Care Provider Payment Rate Assessment Fund.
- H. All revenue from the payment rate assessment shall be deposited into the Health Care Provider Payment Rate Assessment
 Fund, a special non-reverting fund in the state treasury. Proceeds from the payment rate assessment, excluding penalties, shall
 not be used for any other purpose than to fund (i) an increase in inpatient and outpatient payment rates paid to private acute
 care hospitals operating in Virginia up to the private hospital "upper payment limit" and "managed care organization hospital
 payment gap" for care provided to recipients of medical assistance services, and (ii) the administrative costs of collecting the
 assessment and of implementing and operating the associated payment rate actions.
- 38 J. Any provision of this Section is contingent upon approval by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services if necessary.

39 § 3-5.17 TOBACCO TAX STUDY

- 40 The Joint Subcommittee to Evaluate Tax Preferences is hereby directed to study options for the modernization of § 58.1-41 1001(A), Code of Virginia, to reflect advances in science and technology in the area of tobacco harm reduction, and the role 42 innovative non-combustible tobacco products can play in reducing harm, including products that produce vapor or aerosol from 43 heating tobacco or liquid nicotine. In addition, the Joint Subcommittee shall study possible reforms to the taxation of tobacco 44 products that will provide fairness and equity for all local governments and also ensure stable tax revenues for the 45 Commonwealth. The Joint Subcommittee shall complete its study and submit a final report with recommended reforms to the 46 Finance Committees of the Virginia Senate and Virginia House of Delegates by November 1, 2018. All agencies of the
- 47 Commonwealth shall provide assistance for this study, upon request.

48 §3-5.18 HISTORIC PRESERVATION TAX CREDIT

- 49 Notwithstanding § 58.1-339.2 or any other provision of law, effective for taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2017,
 50 the amount of the Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credit that may be claimed by each taxpayer, including amounts carried over
- 50 from prior taxable years, shall not exceed \$5 million for any taxable year.
- 52 § 3-5.19 LAND PRESERVATION TAX CREDIT CLAIMED

- 2 before January 1, 2020, the amount of the Land Preservation Tax Credit that may be claimed by each taxpayer, including amounts
- 3 carried over from prior taxable years, shall not exceed \$20,000

4 § 3-5.20 REFUNDABLE EARNED INCOME TAX CREDIT

- 5 Notwithstanding § 58.1-339.8(C) or any other provision of law, effective for taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2019
- 6 but before January 1, 2026, the credit provided pursuant to (558.1-339.8(B)(2)) shall be refundable. The credit provided pursuant to
- *Subscipile summer y 1, 2020, the creat provided pursuant to y 50.1 500.06(2) shall be regulation. The creat provided pursuant to y 50.1 500.06(2) shall be claimed on the Virginia income tax return and the amount in excess of the individual's or married*
- 8 persons' Virginia income tax liability shall be redeemed by the Tax Commissioner.
- 9 § 3-6.00 ADJUSTMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS TO FEES

10 § 3-6.01 RECORDATION TAX FEE

- There is hereby assessed a twenty dollar fee on (i) every deed for which the state recordation tax is collected pursuant to §§ 58.1-801
 A and 58.1-803, Code of Virginia; and (ii) every certificate of satisfaction admitted under § 55-66.6, Code of Virginia. The revenue generated from fifty percent of such fee shall be deposited to the general fund. The revenue generated from the other fifty percent of
- such fee shall be deposited to the Virginia Natural Resources Commitment Fund, a subfund of the Virginia Water Quality
 Improvement Fund, as established in § 10.1-2128.1, Code of Virginia. The funds deposited to this subfund shall be disbursed for the
- Improvement Fund, as established in § 10.1-2128.1, Code of Virginia. The funds deposited to this subfur agricultural best management practices cost share program, pursuant to § 10.1-2128.1, Code of Virginia.

17 § 3-6.02 ANNUAL VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE (\$4.25 FOR LIFE)

18 Notwithstanding § 46.2-694 paragraph 13 of the Code of Virginia, the additional fee that shall be charged and collected at the time19 of registration of each pickup or panel truck and each motor vehicle shall be \$6.25.

20 § 3-6.03 DRIVERS LICENSE REINSTATEMENT FEE

Notwithstanding § 46.2-411 of the Code of Virginia, the drivers license reinstatement fee payable to the Trauma Center Fund shall
 be \$100.

23 § 3-6.04 ASSESSMENT OF ELECTRONIC SUMMONS FEE BY LOCALITIES

- 24 Nothing in § 17.1-279.1 of the Code of Virginia shall be construed to authorize any county, city, or town to assess the sum set forth
- 25 therein upon any summons issued by a law-enforcement agency of the Commonwealth.

PART 4: GENERAL PROVISIONS § 4-0.00 OPERATING POLICIES

3 § 4-0.01 OPERATING POLICIES

a. Each appropriating act of the General Assembly shall be subject to the following provisions and conditions, unless
 specifically exempt elsewhere in this act.

b. All appropriations contained in this act, or in any other appropriating act of the General Assembly, are declared to bemaximum appropriations and conditional on receipt of revenue.

8 c. The Governor, as chief budget officer of the state, shall ensure that the provisions and conditions as set forth in this section9 are strictly observed.

10 d. Public higher education institutions are not subject to the provisions of § 2.2-4800, Code of Virginia, or the provisions of the

11 Department of Accounts' Commonwealth Accounting Policies and Procedures manual (CAPP) topic 20505 with regard to

12 students who are veterans of the United States armed services and National Guard and are in receipt of federal educational 13 benefits under the G.I. Bill. Public higher education shall establish internal procedures for the continued enrollment of such

14 students to include resolution of outstanding accounts receivable.

e. The provisions of the Virginia Public Procurement Act (§ 2.2-4300 et seq. of the Code of Virginia) shall not apply to grants
 made in support of the 2019 Commemoration to non-profit entities organized under § 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

17 f. 1. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall establish a policy for granting undergraduate course credit to
 18 entering freshman students who have taken one or more Advanced Placement, Cambridge Advanced (A/AS), College-Level
 19 Examination Program (CLEP), or International Baccalaureate examinations by August 1, 2017. The policy shall:

- a) Outline the conditions necessary for each public institution of higher education to grant course credit, including the minimum
 required scores on such examinations;
- b) Identify the course credit or other academic requirements of each public institution of higher education that the studentsatisfies by achieving the minimum required scores on such examinations; and
- c) Ensure, to the extent possible, that the grant of course credit is consistent across each public institution of higher educationand each such examination.
- 26 2. The Council and each public institution of higher education shall make the policy available to the public on its website.
- 27

1

2

§ 4-1.00 APPROPRIATIONS

28 § 4-1.01 PREREQUISITES FOR PAYMENT

a. The State Comptroller shall not pay any money out of the state treasury except pursuant to appropriations in this act or in any other act of the General Assembly making an appropriation during the current biennium.

31 b. Moneys shall be spent solely for the purposes for which they were appropriated by the General Assembly, except as 32 specifically provided otherwise by § 4-1.03 Appropriation Transfers, § 4-4.01 Capital Projects, or § 4-5.01 a. Settlement of 33 Claims with Individuals. Should the Governor find that moneys are not being spent in accordance with provisions of the act 34 appropriating them, he shall restrain the State Comptroller from making further disbursements, in whole or in part, from said 35 appropriations. Further, should the Auditor of Public Accounts determine that a state or other agency is not spending moneys in accordance with provisions of the act appropriating them, he shall so advise the Governor or other governing authority, the 36 37 State Comptroller, the Chairman of the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission, and Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees. 38

c. Exclusive of revenues paid into the general fund of the state treasury, all revenues earned or collected by an agency, and
 contained in an appropriation item to the agency shall be expended first during the fiscal year, prior to the expenditure of any
 general fund appropriation within that appropriation item, unless prohibited by statute or by the terms and conditions of any
 gift, grant or donation.

43 § 4-1.02 WITHHOLDING OF SPENDING AUTHORITY

44 a. For purposes of this subsection, withholding of spending authority is defined as any action pursuant to a budget reduction

45 plan approved by the Governor to address a declared shortfall in budgeted revenue that impedes or limits the ability to spend

46 appropriated moneys, regardless of the mechanism used to effect such withholding.

b.1. Changed Expenditure Factors: The Governor is authorized to reduce spending authority, by withholding allotments of appropriations, when expenditure factors, such as enrollments or population in institutions, are smaller than the estimates upon which the appropriation was based. Moneys generated from the withholding action shall not be reallocated for any other purpose, provided the withholding of allotments of appropriations under this provision shall not occur until at least 15 days after the Governor has transmitted a statement of changed factors and intent to withhold moneys to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

2. Moneys shall not be withheld on the basis of reorganization plans or program evaluations until such plans or evaluations have
 been specifically presented in writing to the General Assembly at its next regularly scheduled session.

9 c. Increased Nongeneral Fund Revenue:

1 2

3

4

5

6

10 1. General fund appropriations to any state agency for operating expenses are supplemental to nongeneral fund revenues collected by 11 the agency. To the extent that nongeneral fund revenues collected in a fiscal year exceed the estimate on which the operating budget was based, the Governor is authorized to withhold general fund spending authority, by withholding allotments of appropriations, in 12 an equivalent amount. However, this limitation shall not apply to (a) restricted excess tuition and fees for educational and general 13 programs in the institutions of higher education, as defined in § 4-2.01 c of this act; (b) appropriations to institutions of higher 14 15 education designated for fellowships, scholarships and loans; (c) gifts or grants which are made to any state agency for the direct 16 costs of a stipulated project; (d) appropriations to institutions for the mentally ill or intellectually disabled payable from the 17 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services Revenue Fund; and (e) general fund appropriations for highway construction and 18 mass transit. Moneys unallotted under this provision shall not be reallocated for any other purpose.

2. To the degree that new or additional grant funds become available to supplement general fund appropriations for a program,
following enactment of an appropriation act, the Governor is authorized to withhold general fund spending authority, by withholding
allotments of appropriations, in an amount equivalent to that provided from grant funds, unless such action is prohibited by the
original provider of the grant funds. The withholding action shall not include general fund appropriations, which are required to
match grant funds. Moneys unallotted under this provision shall not be reallocated for any other purpose.

24 d. Reduced General Fund Resources:

1. The term "general fund resources" as applied in this subsection includes revenues collected and paid into the general fund of the state treasury during the current biennium, transfers to the general fund of the state treasury during the current biennium, and all unexpended balances brought forward from the previous biennium.

28 2. In the event that general fund resources are estimated by the Governor to be insufficient to pay in full all general fund appropriations authorized by the General Assembly, the Governor shall, subject to the qualifications herein contained, withhold general fund spending authority, by withholding allotments of appropriations, to prevent any expenditure in excess of the estimated 31 general fund resources available.

32 3. In making this determination, the Governor shall take into account actual general fund revenue collections for the current fiscal
 33 year and the results of a formal written re-estimate of general fund revenues for the current and next biennium, prepared within the
 34 previous 90 days, in accordance with the process specified in § 2.2-1503, Code of Virginia. Said re-estimate of general fund
 35 revenues shall be communicated to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance, House Appropriations and House Finance Committees,
 36 prior to taking action to reduce general fund allotments of appropriations on account of reduced resources.

4.a) In addition to monthly reports on the status of revenue collections relative to the current fiscal year's estimate, the Governor
shall provide a written quarterly assessment of the current economic outlook for the remainder of the fiscal year to the Chairmen of
the House Appropriations, House Finance, and Senate Finance Committees.

40 b) Within five business days after the preliminary close of the state accounts at the end of the fiscal year, the State Comptroller shall 41 provide the Governor with the actual total of (1) individual income taxes, (2) corporate income taxes, and (3) sales taxes for the just-42 completed fiscal year, with a comparison of such actual totals with the total of such taxes in the official budget estimate for that 43 fiscal year. If that comparison indicates that the total of (1) individual income taxes, (2) corporate income taxes, and (3) sales taxes, 44 as shown on the preliminary close, was one percent or more below the amount of such taxes in the official budget estimate for the 45 just-completed fiscal year, the Governor shall prepare a written re-estimate of general fund revenues for the current biennium and the 46 next biennium in accordance with § 2.2-1503, Code of Virginia, to be reported to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance, House 47 Finance and House Appropriations Committees, not later than September 1 following the close of the fiscal year.

5.a) The Governor shall take no action to withhold allotments until a written plan detailing specific reduction actions approved by
 the Governor, identified by program and appropriation item, has been presented to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and
 Senate Finance Committees. Subsequent modifications to the approved reduction plan also must be submitted to the Chairmen of the
 House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, prior to withholding allotments of appropriations.

b) In addition to the budget reduction plan approved by the Governor, all budget reduction proposals submitted by state agencies to
 the Governor or the Governor's staff, including but not limited to the Department of Planning and Budget, the Governor's Cabinet

54 secretaries, or the Chief of Staff, whether submitted electronically or otherwise, shall be made available via electronic means to the

- 1 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees concurrently with that budget reduction plan.
- 2 6. In effecting the reduction of expenditures, the Governor shall not withhold allotments of appropriations for:

3 a) More than 15 percent cumulatively of the annual general fund appropriation contained in this act for operating expenses of any one state or nonstate agency or institution designated in this act by title, and the exact amount withheld, by state or nonstate 4 5 agency or institution, shall be reported within five calendar days to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House 6 Appropriations Committees. State agencies providing funds directly to grantees named in this act shall not apportion a larger 7 cut to the grantee than the proportional cut apportioned to the agency. Without regard to § 4-5.05 b.4. of this act, the remaining 8 appropriation to the grantee which is not subject to the cut, equal to at least 85 percent of the annual appropriation, shall be made by July 31, or in two equal installments, one payable by July 31 and the other payable by December 31, if the remaining 9 10 appropriation is less than or equal to \$500,000, except in cases where the normal conditions of the grant dictate a different 11 payment schedule.

- b) The payment of principal and interest on the bonded debt or other bonded obligations of the Commonwealth, its agencies and its authorities, or for payment of a legally authorized deficit.
- 14 c) The payments for care of graves of Confederate and historical African American dead.

15 d) The employer contributions, and employer-paid member contributions, to the Social Security System, Virginia Retirement System, Judicial Retirement System, State Police Officers Retirement System, Virginia Law Officers Retirement System, 16 17 Optional Retirement Plan for College and University Faculty, Optional Retirement Plan for Political Appointees, Optional Retirement Plan for Superintendents, the Volunteer Service Award Program, the Virginia Retirement System's group life 18 19 insurance, sickness and disability, and retiree health care credit programs for state employees, state-supported local employees 20 and teachers. If the Virginia Retirement System Board of Trustees approves a contribution rate for a fiscal year that is lower 21 than the rate on which the appropriation was based, or if the United States government approves a Social Security rate that is 22 lower than that in effect for the current budget, the Governor may withhold excess contributions. However, employer and 23 employee paid rates or contributions for health insurance and matching deferred compensation for state employees, state-24 supported local employees and teachers may not be increased or decreased beyond the amounts approved by the General 25 Assembly. Payments for the employee benefit programs listed in this paragraph may not be delayed beyond the customary billing cycles that have been established by law or policy by the governing board. 26

- e) The payments in fulfillment of any contract awarded for the design, construction and furnishing of any state building.
- **28** f) The salary of any state officer for whom the Constitution of Virginia prohibits a change in salary.

g) The salary of any officer or employee in the Executive Department by more than two percent (irrespective of the fund source for payment of salaries and wages); however, the percentage of reduction shall be uniformly applied to all employees within the Executive Department.

h) The appropriation supported by the State Bar Fund, as authorized by § 54.1-3913, Code of Virginia, unless the supporting
 revenues for such appropriation are estimated to be insufficient to pay the appropriation.

7. The Governor is authorized to withhold specific allotments of appropriations by a uniform percentage, a graduated reduction
 or on an individual basis, or apply a combination of these actions, in effecting the authorized reduction of expenditures, up to
 the maximum of 15 percent, as prescribed in subdivision 6a of this subsection.

37 8. Each nongeneral fund appropriation shall be payable in full only to the extent the nongeneral fund revenues from which the 38 appropriation is payable are estimated to be sufficient. The Governor is authorized to reduce allotments of nongeneral fund 39 appropriations by the amount necessary to ensure that expenditures do not exceed the supporting revenues for such 40 appropriations; however, the Governor shall take no action to reduce allotments of appropriations for major nongeneral fund 41 sources on account of reduced revenues until such time as a formal written re-estimate of revenues for the current and next biennium, prepared in accordance with the process specified in § 2.2-1503, Code of Virginia, has been reported to the 42 43 Chairmen of the Senate Finance, House Finance, and House Appropriations Committees. For purposes of this subsection, major 44 nongeneral fund sources are defined as Highway Maintenance and Operating Fund and Transportation Trust Fund.

- 9. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of law, the Governor is authorized to transfer to the general fund on June 30 of each year of the biennium, or within 20 days from that date, any available unexpended balances in other funds in the state treasury, subject to the following:
- a) The Governor shall declare in writing to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees that a
 fiscal emergency exists which warrants the transfer of nongeneral funds to the general fund and reports the exact amount of
 such transfer within five calendar days of the transfer;
- b) No such transfer may be made from retirement or other trust accounts, the State Bar Fund as authorized by § 54.1-3913,
 Code of Virginia, debt service funds, or federal funds; and

- c) The Governor shall include for informative purposes, in the first biennial budget he submits subsequent to the transfer, the amount
 transferred from each account or fund and recommendations for restoring such amounts.
- 10. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall make available via electronic means a report of spending authority
 withheld under the provisions of this subsection to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees
 within five calendar days of the action to withhold. Said report shall include the amount withheld by agency and appropriation item.
- 6 11. If action to withhold allotments of appropriation under this provision is inadequate to eliminate the imbalance between projected
 7 general fund resources and appropriations, the Speaker of the House of Delegates and the President pro tempore of the Senate shall
 8 be advised in writing by the Governor, so that they may consider requesting a special session of the General Assembly.

9 § 4-1.03 APPROPRIATION TRANSFERS

10 GENERAL

- a. During any fiscal year, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriation authority from one state or
 other agency to another, to effect the following:
- 13 1) distribution of amounts budgeted in the central appropriation to agencies, or withdrawal of budgeted amounts from agencies in
 14 accordance with specific language in the central appropriation establishing reversion clearing accounts;
- 15 2) distribution of pass-through grants or other funds held by an agency as fiscal agent;
- 3) correction of errors within this act, where such errors have been identified in writing by the Chairmen of the HouseAppropriations and Senate Finance Committees;
- **18** 4) proper accounting between fund sources 0100 and 0300 in higher education institutions;
- 19 5) transfers specifically authorized elsewhere in this act or as specified in the Code of Virginia;
- 20 6) to supplement capital projects in order to realize efficiencies or provide for cost overruns unrelated to changes in size or scope; or
- 7) to administer a program for another agency or to effect budgeted program purposes approved by the General Assembly, pursuant
 to a signed agreement between the respective agencies.
- b. During any fiscal year, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriation authority within an agency to
 effect proper accounting between fund sources and to effect program purposes approved by the General Assembly, unless
 specifically provided otherwise in this act or as specified in the Code of Virginia. However, appropriation authority for local aid
 programs and aid to individuals, with the exception of student financial aid, shall not be transferred elsewhere without advance
 notice to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. Further, any transfers between capital projects
 shall be made only to realize efficiencies or provide for cost overruns unrelated to changes in size or scope.
- c.1. In addition to authority granted elsewhere in this act, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer operating
 appropriations authority among sub-agencies within the Judicial System, the Department of Corrections, and the Department of
 Behavioral Health and Developmental Services to effect changes in operating expense requirements which may occur during the
 biennium.
- 2. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriations from the Department of Behavioral Health and
 Developmental Services to the Department of Medical Assistance Services, consisting of the general fund amounts required to
 match federal funds for reimbursement of services provided by its institutions and Community Services Boards.
- 36 3. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriations from the Office of Comprehensive Services to the
 37 Department of Medical Assistance Services, consisting of the general fund amounts required to match federal funds for
 38 reimbursement of services provided to eligible children.
- 4. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer an appropriation or portion thereof within a state or other agency,
 or from one such agency to another, to support changes in agency organization, program or responsibility enacted by the General
 Assembly to be effective during the current biennium.
- 5. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriations from the second year to the first year, with said
 transfer to be reported in writing to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees within five calendar
 days of the transfer, when the expenditure of such funds is required to:
- 45 a) address a threat to life, safety, health or property, or
- b) provide for unbudgeted cost increases for statutorily required services or federally mandated services, in order to continue those
 services at the present level, or

c) provide for payment of overtime salaries and wages, when the obligations for payment of such overtime were incurred
during a situation deemed threatening to life, safety, health, or property, or

- 3 d) provide for payments to the beneficiaries of certain public safety officers killed in the line of duty, as authorized in Title 2.2,
- 4 Chapter 4, Code of Virginia and for payments to the beneficiaries of certain members of the National Guard and United States
- military reserves killed in action in any armed conflict on or after October 7, 2001, as authorized in § 44-93.1 B., Code of Virginia, or
- e) continue a program at the present level of service or at an increased level of service when required to address unanticipated
 increases in workload such as enrollment, caseload or like factors, or unanticipated costs, or
- f) to address unanticipated business or industrial development opportunities which will benefit the state's economy, provided
 that any such appropriations be used in a manner consistent with the purposes of the program as originally appropriated.
- 6. An appropriation transfer shall not occur except through properly executed appropriation transfer documents designed specifically for that purpose, and all transactions effecting appropriation transfers shall be entered in the state's computerized
- 13 budgeting and accounting systems.
- 7. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer from any other agency, appropriations to supplement any project of the Virginia Public Building Authority authorized by the General Assembly and approved by the Governor. Such capital project shall be transferred to the state agency designated as the managing agency for the Virginia Public Building Authority.
- 8. In the event of the transition of a city to town status pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 41 of Title 15.2 of the Code of Virginia (§ 15.2-4100 et seq.) or the consolidation of a city and a county into a single city pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 35 of Title 15.2, Code of Virginia (§ 15.2-3500 et seq.) subsequent to July 1, 1999, the provisions of § 15.2-1302 shall govern distributions from state agencies to the county in which the town is situated or to the consolidated city, and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is authorized to transfer appropriations or portions thereof within a state agency, or from one such agency to another, if necessary to fulfill the requirements of § 15.2-1302.

24 § 4-1.04 APPROPRIATION INCREASES

- **25** a. UNAPPROPRIATED NONGENERAL FUNDS:
- **26** 1. Sale of Surplus Materials:
- 27 The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is hereby authorized to increase the appropriations to any state agency by
 28 the amount of credit resulting from the sale of surplus materials under the provisions of § 2.2-1125, Code of Virginia.
- **29** 2. Insurance Recovery:

The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall increase the appropriation authority for any state agency by the amountof the proceeds of an insurance policy or from the State Insurance Reserve Trust Fund, for expenditures as far as may be

- 32 necessary, to pay for the repair or replacement of lost, damaged or destroyed property, plant or equipment.
- **33** 3. Gifts, Grants and Other Nongeneral Funds:
- a) Subject to § 4-1.02 c, Increased Nongeneral Fund Revenue, and the conditions stated in this section, the Director,
 Department of Planning and Budget, is hereby authorized to increase the appropriations to any state agency by the amount of
 the proceeds of donations, gifts, grants or other nongeneral funds paid into the state treasury in excess of such appropriations
 during a fiscal year. Such appropriations shall be increased only when the expenditure of moneys is authorized elsewhere in
 this act or is required to:
- **39** 1) address a threat to life, safety, health or property or
- 2) provide for unbudgeted increases in costs for services required by statute or services mandated by the federal government, in
 order to continue those services at the present level or implement compensation adjustments approved by the General
 Assembly, or
- 43 3) provide for payment of overtime salaries and wages, when the obligations for payment of such overtime were incurred
 44 during a situation deemed threatening to life, safety, health, or property, or
- 4) continue a program at the present level of service or at an increased level of service when required to address unanticipated
 increases in noncredit instruction at institutions of higher education or business and industrial development opportunities which
 will benefit the state's economy, or
- 48 5) participate in a federal or sponsored program provided that the provisions of § 4-5.03 shall also apply to increases in
- 49 appropriations for additional gifts, grants, and other nongeneral fund revenue which require a general fund match as a condition

- 1 of their acceptance; or
- 2 6) realize cost savings in excess of the additional funds provided, or
- 3 7) permit a state agency or institution to use a donation, gift or grant for the purpose intended by the donor, or
- 4 8) provide for cost overruns on capital projects and for capital projects authorized under § 4-4.01 m of this act, or
- 5 9) address caseload or workload changes in programs approved by the General Assembly.
- 6 b) The above conditions shall not apply to donations and gifts to the endowment funds of institutions of higher education.

c) Each state agency and institution shall ensure that its budget estimates include a reasonable estimate of receipts from donations,
 gifts or other nongeneral fund revenue. The Department of Planning and Budget shall review such estimates and verify their
 accuracy, as part of the budget planning and review process.

d) No obligation or expenditure shall be made from such funds until a revised operating budget request is approved by the Director,
 Department of Planning and Budget. Expenditures from any gift, grant or donation shall be in accordance with the purpose for which
 it was made; however, expenditures for property, plant or equipment, irrespective of fund source, are subject to the provisions of §§
 4-2.03 Indirect Costs, 4-4.01 Capital Projects General, and 4-5.03 b Services and Clients-New Services, of this act.

e) Nothing in this section shall exempt agencies from complying with § 4-2.01 a Solicitation and Acceptance of Donations, Gifts,
 Grants, and Contracts of this act.

4. Any nongeneral fund cash balance recorded on the books of the Department of Accounts as unexpended on the last day of the fiscal year may be appropriated for use in the succeeding fiscal year with the prior written approval of the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, unless the General Assembly shall have specifically provided otherwise. Revenues deposited to the Virginia
Health Care Fund shall be used only as the state share of Medicaid, unless the General Assembly specifically authorizes an alternate
use. With regard to the appropriation of other nongeneral fund cash balances, the Director shall make a listing of such transactions available to the public via electronic means no less than ten business days following the approval of the appropriation of any such balance.

23 5. Reporting:

The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall make available via electronic means a report on increases in unappropriated
 nongeneral funds in accordance with § 4-8.00, Reporting Requirements, or as modified by specific provisions in this subsection.

26 b. AGRIBUSINESS EQUIPMENT FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

The Director of the Department of Planning and Budget may increase the Department of Corrections appropriation for the purchase
 of agribusiness equipment or the repair or construction of agribusiness facilities by an amount equal to fifty percent of any annual
 amounts in excess of fiscal year 1992 deposits to the general fund from agribusiness operations. It is the intent of the General
 Assembly that appropriation increases for the purposes specified shall not be used to reduce the general fund appropriations for the
 Department of Corrections.

- 32 § 4-1.05 REVERSION OF APPROPRIATIONS AND REAPPROPRIATIONS
- **33** a. GENERAL FUND OPERATING EXPENSE:

34 1.a) General fund appropriations which remain unexpended on (i) the last day of the previous biennium or (ii) the last day of the first 35 year of the current biennium, shall be reappropriated and allotted for expenditure where required by the Code of Virginia, where 36 necessary for the payment of preexisting obligations for the purchase of goods or services, or where desirable, in the determination 37 of the Governor, to address any of the six conditions listed in § 4-1.03 c.5 of this act or to provide financial incentives to reduce 38 spending to effect current or future cost savings. With the exception of the unexpended general fund appropriations of agencies in 39 the Legislative Department, the Judicial Department, the Independent Agencies, or institutions of higher education, all other such 40 unexpended general fund appropriations unexpended on the last day of the previous biennium or the last day of the first year of the 41 current biennium shall revert to the general fund.

b) General fund appropriations for agencies in the Legislative Department, the Judicial Department, and the Independent Agencies
shall be reappropriated, except as may be specifically provided otherwise by the General Assembly. General fund appropriations
shall also be reappropriated for institutions of higher education, subject to § 23.1-1002, Code of Virginia.

c) To improve the stability in institutional planning and predictability for students and families to prepare for the cost of higher
education, public higher education institutions are encouraged to employ the financial management strategy of establishing an
institutional reserve fund supported by any unexpended education and general appropriations of the institution at the end of the fiscal
year. The establishment of such a fund is designed to foster more long-term planning, promote efficient resource utilization and
reduce the need for substantial year-to-year increases in tuition, thereby increasing affordability for Virginians. Independent of the
provisions of § 23.1-1001, institutions are authorized to carry over education and general unexpended balances to establish and

1 maintain a reserve fund in an amount not to exceed three percent of their general fund appropriation for educational and general 2 programs in the most recently-completed fiscal year. Any use of the reserve fund shall be approved by the Board of Visitors of

3 the affected institution, and the institution shall immediately report the details of the approved plan for use of the reserve fund

4 to the Governor, the Secretary of Education, the Secretary of Finance and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and

5 Senate Finance Committees. Any reserve fund shall be subject to the provisions of § 23.1-1303.B.11.

6 2. a. The Governor shall report within five calendar days after completing the reappropriation process to the Chairmen of the
 7 Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees on the reappropriated amounts for each state agency in the Executive
 8 Department. He shall provide a preliminary report of reappropriation actions on or before November 1 and a final report on or
 9 before December 20 to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

- b. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer reappropriated amounts within an agency to covernonrecurring costs.
- 3. Pursuant to subsection E of § 2.2-1125, Code of Virginia, the determination of compliance by an agency or institution with
 management standards prescribed by the Governor shall be made by the Secretary of Finance and the Secretary having
 jurisdiction over the agency or institution, acting jointly.
- 4. The general fund resources available for appropriation in the first enactment of this act include the reversion of certain unexpended balances in operating appropriations as of June 30 of the prior fiscal year, which were otherwise required to be reappropriated by language in the Appropriation Act.
- 5. Upon request, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall provide a report to the Chairmen of the House
 Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees showing the amount reverted for each agency and the total amount of such reversions.

21 b. NONGENERAL FUND OPERATING EXPENSE:

Based on analysis by the State Comptroller, when any nongeneral fund has had no increases or decreases in fund balances for a
 period of 24 months, the State Comptroller shall promptly transfer and pay the balance into the fund balance of the general
 fund. If it is subsequently determined that an appropriate need warrants repayment of all or a portion of the amount transferred,
 the Director, Department of Planning and Budget shall include repayment in the next budget bill submitted to the General
 Assembly. This provision does not apply to funds held in trust by the Commonwealth.

27 c. CAPITAL PROJECTS:

1. Upon certification by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, the State Comptroller is hereby authorized to revert to the fund balance of the general fund any portion of the unexpended general fund cash balance and corresponding appropriation or reappropriation for a capital project when the Director determines that such portion is not needed for completion of the project. The State Comptroller may similarly return to the appropriate fund source any part of the unexpended nongeneral fund cash balance and reduce any appropriation or reappropriation which the Director determines is not needed to complete the project.

2. The unexpended general fund cash balance and corresponding appropriation or reappropriation for capital projects shall
 revert to and become part of the fund balance of the general fund during the current biennium as of the date the Director,
 Department of Planning and Budget, certifies to the State Comptroller that the project has been completed in accordance with
 the intent of the appropriation or reappropriation and there are no known unpaid obligations related to the project. The State
 Comptroller shall return the unexpended nongeneral fund cash balance, if there be any, for such completed project to the source
 from which said nongeneral funds were obtained. Likewise, he shall revert an equivalent portion of the appropriation or

3. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may direct the restoration of any portion of the reverted amount if he
 shall subsequently verify an unpaid obligation or requirement for completion of the project. In the case of a capital project for
 which an unexpended cash balance was returned and appropriation or reappropriation was reverted in the prior biennium, he
 may likewise restore any portion of such amount under the same conditions.

45 § 4-1.06 LIMITED ADJUSTMENTS OF APPROPRIATIONS

46 a. LIMITED CONTINUATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.

47 Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, any unexpended balances on the books of the State Comptroller as of the last
48 day of the previous biennium shall be continued in force for such period, not exceeding 10 days from such date, as may be
49 necessary in order to permit payment of any claims, demands or liabilities incurred prior to such date and unpaid at the close of

49 necessary in order to permit payment of any claims, demands or liabilities incurred prior to such date and unpaid at the close of
 50 business on such date, and shown by audit in the Department of Accounts to be a just and legal charge, for values received as of

- 50 business on such date, and snown by audit in the Department of Accounts to be a just a
- 51 the last day of the previous biennium, against such unexpended balances.

52 b. LIMITATIONS ON CASH DISBURSEMENTS.

1 Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, the State Comptroller may begin preparing the accounts of the Commonwealth for 2 each subsequent fiscal year on or about 10 days before the start of such fiscal year. The books will be open only to enter budgetary 3 transactions and transactions that will not require the receipt or disbursement of funds until after June 30. Should an emergency arise, or in years in which July 1 falls on a weekend requiring the processing of transactions on or before June 30, the State 4 5 Comptroller may, with notification to the Auditor of Public Accounts, authorize the disbursement of funds drawn against 6 appropriations of the subsequent fiscal year, not to exceed the sum of three million dollars (\$3,000,000) from the general fund. This 7 provision does not apply to debt service payments on bonds of the Commonwealth which shall be made in accordance with bond 8 documents, trust indentures, and/or escrow agreements.

9 § 4-1.07 ALLOTMENTS

Except when otherwise directed by the Governor within the limits prescribed in §§ 4-1.02 Withholding of Spending Authority, 4-1.03 Appropriation Transfers, and 4-1.04 Appropriation Increases of this act, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall
prepare and act upon the allotment of appropriations required by this act, and by § 2.2-1819, Code of Virginia, and the authorizations
for rates of pay required by this act. Such allotments and authorizations shall have the same effect as if the personal signature of the
Governor were subscribed thereto. This section shall not be construed to prohibit an appeal by the head of any state agency to the
Governor for reconsideration of any action taken by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, under this section.

16

§ 4-2.00 REVENUES

17 § 4-2.01 NONGENERAL FUND REVENUES

18 a. SOLICITATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS, GIFTS, GRANTS, AND CONTRACTS:

 1. No state agency shall solicit or accept any donation, gift, grant, or contract without the written approval of the Governor except under written guidelines issued by the Governor which provide for the solicitation and acceptance of nongeneral funds, except that donations or gifts to the Virginia War Memorial Foundation that are small in size and number and valued at less than \$5,000, such as library items or small display items, may be approved by the Executive Director of the Virginia War Memorial in consultation with the Secretary of Veterans Affairs and Homeland Security. All other gifts and donations to the Virginia War Memorial Foundation must receive written approval from the Secretary of Veterans Affairs and Homeland Security.

2. The Governor may issue policies in writing for procedures which allow state agencies to solicit and accept nonmonetary donations, gifts, grants, or contracts except that donations, gifts and grants of real property shall be subject to § 4-4.00 of this act and § 2.2-1149, Code of Virginia. This provision shall apply to donations, gifts and grants of real property to endowment funds of institutions of higher education, when such endowment funds are held by the institution in its own name and not by a separately incorporated foundation or corporation.

30 3. The preceding subdivisions shall not apply to property and equipment acquired and used by a state agency or institution through a
 31 lease purchase agreement and subsequently donated to the state agency or institution during or at the expiration of the lease purchase
 32 agreement, provided that the lessor is the Virginia College Building Authority.

4. The use of endowment funds for property, plant or equipment for state-owned facilities is subject to §§ 4-2.03 Indirect Costs, 4 4.01 Capital Projects-General and 4-5.03 Services and Clients of this act.

35 b. HIGHER EDUCATION TUITION AND FEES

1. Except as provided in Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly,
 and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, all nongeneral fund collections by public institutions of higher education,
 including collections from the sale of dairy and farm products, shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with § 2.2-1802,
 Code of Virginia, and expended by the institutions of higher education in accordance with the appropriations and provisions of this
 act, provided, however, that this requirement shall not apply to private gifts, endowment funds, or income derived from endowments
 and gifts.

42 2. a) The Boards of Visitors or other governing bodies of institutions of higher education may set tuition and fee charges at levels
43 they deem to be appropriate for all resident student groups based on, but not limited to, competitive market rates, provided that the
44 total revenue generated by the collection of tuition and fees from all students is within the nongeneral fund appropriation for
45 educational and general programs provided in this act.

b) The Boards of Visitors or other governing bodies of institutions of higher education may set tuition and fee charges at levels they
deem to be appropriate for all nonresident student groups based on, but not limited to, competitive market rates, provided that: i) the
tuition and mandatory educational and general fee rates for nonresident undergraduate and graduate students cover at least 100
percent of the average cost of their education, as calculated through base adequacy guidelines adopted, and periodically amended, by
the Joint Subcommittee Studying Higher Education Funding Policies, and ii) the total revenue generated by the collection of tuition
and fees from all students is within the nongeneral fund appropriation for educational and general programs provided in this act.

52 c) For institutions charging nonresident students less than 100 percent of the cost of education, the State Council of Higher

Education for Virginia may authorize a phased approach to meeting this requirement, when in its judgment, it would result in
 annual tuition and fee increases for nonresident students that would discourage their enrollment.

d) The Boards of Visitors or other governing bodies of institutions of higher education shall not increase the current proportion
 of nonresident undergraduate students if the institution's nonresident undergraduate enrollment exceeds 25 percent. Norfolk
 State University, Virginia Military Institute, Virginia State University, and two-year public institutions are exempt from this

6 restriction.

3. a) In setting the nongeneral fund appropriation for educational and general programs at the institutions of higher education,
the General Assembly shall take into consideration the appropriate student share of costs associated with providing full funding
of the base adequacy guidelines referenced in subparagraph 2. b), raising average salaries for teaching and research faculty to
the 60th percentile of peer institutions, and other priorities set forth in this act.

b) In determining the appropriate state share of educational costs for resident students, the General Assembly shall seek to
 cover at least 67 percent of educational costs associated with providing full funding of the base adequacy guidelines referenced
 in subparagraph 2. b), raising average salaries for teaching and research faculty to the 60th percentile of peer institutions, and
 other priorities set forth in this act.

4. a) Each institution and the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall monitor tuition, fees, and other charges, as
well as the mix of resident and nonresident students, to ensure that the primary mission of providing educational opportunities
to citizens of Virginia is served, while recognizing the material contributions provided by the presence of nonresident students.
The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall also develop and enforce uniform guidelines for reporting student
enrollments and the domiciliary status of students.

b) The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall report to the Governor and the Chairmen of the House
Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than August 1 of each year the annual change in total charges for
tuition and all required fees approved and allotted by the Board of Visitors. As it deems appropriate, the State Council of
Higher Education for Virginia shall provide comparative national, peer, and market data with respect to charges assessed
students for tuition and required fees at institutions outside of the Commonwealth.

c) Institutions of higher education are hereby authorized to make the technology service fee authorized in Chapter 1042, 2003
 Acts of Assembly, part of ongoing tuition revenue. Such revenues shall continue to be used to supplement technology resources at the institutions of higher education.

d) Except as provided in Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of
 Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, each institution shall work with the State Council of
 Higher Education for Virginia and the Virginia College Savings Plan to determine appropriate tuition and fee estimates for
 tuition savings plans.

5. It is the intent of the General Assembly that each institution's combined general and nongeneral fund appropriation within itseducational and general program closely approximate the anticipated annual budget each fiscal year.

6. Nonresident graduate students employed by an institution as teaching assistants, research assistants, or graduate assistants
 and paid at an annual contract rate of \$4,000 or more may be considered resident students for the purposes of charging tuition
 and fees.

7. The fund source "Higher Education Operating" within educational and general programs for institutions of higher education
 includes tuition and fee revenues from nonresident students to pay their proportionate share of the amortized cost of the
 construction of buildings approved by the Commonwealth of Virginia Educational Institutions Bond Act of 1992 and the
 Commonwealth of Virginia Educational Facilities Bond Act of 2002.

8. a) 1) Except as provided in Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of
Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, mandatory fees for purposes other than educational and
general programs shall not be increased for Virginia undergraduates beyond three percent annually, excluding requirements for
wage, salary, and fringe benefit increases, authorized by the General Assembly. Fee increases required to carry out actions that
respond to mandates of federal agencies are also exempt from this provision, provided that a report on the purposes of the
amount of the fee increase is submitted to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by the
institution of higher education at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the fee increase.

2) The University of Mary Washington is hereby authorized to undertake a review of its tuition and fee structure for the purpose of more closely aligning auxiliary fees, including room, board, and the comprehensive fee, with auxiliary expenditure budgets. Adjustments to mandatory fees in auxiliary programs may exceed three percent to the extent required to effect budgetary realignment of revenues and expenditures.

b) This restriction shall not apply in the following instances: fee increases directly related to capital projects authorized by the
 General Assembly; fee increases to support student health services; and other fee increases specifically authorized by the

1 General Assembly.

c) Due to the small mandatory non-educational and general program fees currently assessed students in the Virginia Community
 College System, increases in any one year of no more than \$15 shall be allowed on a cost-justified case-by-case basis, subject to
 approval by the State Board for Community Colleges.

- 9. Any institution of higher education granting new tuition waivers to resident or nonresident students not authorized by the Code of
 Virginia must absorb the cost of any discretionary waivers.
- 7 10. Tuition and fee revenues from nonresident students taking courses through Virginia institutions from the Southern Regional
 8 Education Board's Southern Regional Electronic Campus must exceed all direct and indirect costs of providing instruction to those
 9 students. Tuition and fee rates to meet this requirement shall be established by the Board of Visitors of the institution.
- 10 c. HIGHER EDUCATION PLANNED EXCESS REVENUES:
- An institution of higher education, except for those public institutions governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of
 Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, may
 generate and retain tuition and fee revenues in excess of those provided in § 4-2.01 b Higher Education Tuition and Fees, subject to
 the following:
- 15 1. Such revenues are identified by language in the appropriations in this act to any such institution.
- 16 2. The use of such moneys is fully documented by the institution to the Governor prior to each fiscal year and prior to allotment.
- 17 3. The moneys are supplemental to, and not a part of, ongoing expenditure levels for educational and general programs used as the basis for funding in subsequent biennia.
- 4. The receipt and expenditure of these moneys shall be recorded as restricted funds on the books of the Department of Accounts andshall not revert to the surplus of the general fund at the end of the biennium.
- 5. Tuition and fee revenues generated by the institution other than as provided herein shall be subject to the provisions of § 4-1.04
 a.3 Gifts, Grants, and Other Nongeneral Funds of this act.
- 23 § 4-2.02 GENERAL FUND REVENUE
- 24 a. STATE AGENCY PAYMENTS INTO GENERAL FUND:
- 1. Except as provided in § 4-2.02 a.2., all moneys, fees, taxes, charges and revenues received at any time by the following agencies
 from the sources indicated shall be paid immediately into the general fund of the state treasury:
- a) Marine Resources Commission, from all sources, except:
- **28** 1) Revenues payable to the Public Oyster Rocks Replenishment Fund established by § 28.2-542, Code of Virginia.
- 2) Revenue payable to the Virginia Marine Products Fund established by § 3.2-2705, Code of Virginia.
- 3) Revenue payable to the Virginia Saltwater Recreational Fishing Development Fund established by § 28.2-302.3, Code of
 Virginia.
- 4) Revenue payable to the Marine Fishing Improvement Fund established by § 28.2-208, Code of Virginia.
- 33 5) Revenue payable to the Marine Habitat and Waterways Improvement Fund established by § 28.2-1206, Code of Virginia.
- b1) Department of Labor and Industry, or any other agency, for the administration of the state labor and employment laws under
 Title 40.1, Code of Virginia.
- 2) Department of Labor and Industry, from boiler and pressure vessel inspection certificate fees, pursuant to § 40.1-51.15, Code of
 Virginia.
- 38 c) All state institutions for the mentally ill or intellectually disabled, from fees or per diem paid employees for the performance of
- services for which such payment is made, except for a fee or per diem allowed by statute to a superintendent or staff member of anysuch institution when summoned as a witness in any court.
- 41 d) Secretary of the Commonwealth, from all sources.
- 42 e) The Departments of Corrections and Juvenile Justice, as required by law, including revenues from sales of dairy and other farm43 products.
- 44 f) Auditor of Public Accounts, from charges for audits or examinations when the law requires that such costs be borne by the county,

- 1 city, town, regional government or political subdivision of such governments audited or examined.
- 2 g) Department of Education, from repayment of student scholarships and loans, except for the cost of such collections.
- 3 h) Department of the Treasury, from the following source:
- 4 Fees collected for handling cash and securities deposited with the State Treasurer pursuant to § 46.2-454, Code of Virginia.
- 5 i) Attorney General, from recoveries of attorneys' fees and costs of litigation.
- j) Department of Social Services, from net revenues received from child support collections after all disbursements are made in
 accordance with state and federal statutes and regulations, and the state's share of the cost of administering the programs is
 paid.
- 9 k) Department of General Services, from net revenues received from refunds of overpayments of utilities charges in prior fiscal
 10 years, after deduction of the cost of collection and any refunds due to the federal government.

11 1) Without regard to paragraph e) above, the following revenues shall be excluded from the requirement for deposit to the general fund and shall be deposited as follows: (1) payments to Virginia Correctional Enterprises shall be deposited into the 12 13 Virginia Correctional Enterprises Fund; (2) payments to the Departments of Corrections and Juvenile Justice for work 14 performed by inmates, work release prisoners, probationers or wards, which are intended to cover the expenses of these 15 inmates, work release prisoners, probationers, or wards, shall be retained by the respective agencies for their use; and (3) 16 payments to the Departments of Corrections and Juvenile Justice for work performed by inmates in educational programs shall 17 be retained by the agency to increase vocational training activities and to purchase work tools and work clothes for inmates, 18 upon release.

m) the Department of State Police, from the fees generated by the Firearms Transaction Program Fund, the Concealed Weapons
 Program, and the Conservator of the Peace Program pursuant to §§ 18.2-308, 18.2-308.2:2 and 19.2-13, Code of Virginia

 2. The provisions of § 4-2.02 a.1. State Agency Payments into General Fund shall not apply to proceeds from the sale of surplus materials pursuant to § 2.2-1125, Code of Virginia. However, the State Comptroller is authorized to transfer to the general fund of the state treasury, out of the credits under § 4-1.04 a.1 Unappropriated Nongeneral Funds – Sale of Surplus Materials of this act, sums derived from the sale of materials originally purchased with general fund appropriations. The State Comptroller may authorize similar transfers of the proceeds from the sale of property not subject to § 2.2-1124, Code of Virginia, if said property was originally acquired with general fund appropriations, unless the General Assembly provides otherwise.

n) Without regard to § 4-2.02 a.1 above, payments to the Treasurer of Virginia assessed to insurance companies for the safekeeping and handling of securities or surety bonds deposited as insurance collateral shall be deposited into the Insurance Collateral Assessment Fund to defray such safekeeping and handling expenses.

31 b. DEFINITION OF GENERAL FUND REVENUE FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY RELIEF ACT

32 Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, for purposes of subsection C of § 58.1-3524 and subsection B of § 58.1-3536, 33 Code of Virginia, the term general fund revenues, excluding transfers, is defined as (i) all state taxes, including penalties and 34 interest, required and/or authorized to be collected and paid into the general fund of the state treasury pursuant to Title 58.1, 35 Code of Virginia; (ii) permits, fees, licenses, fines, forfeitures, charges for services, and revenue from the use of money and 36 property required and/or authorized to be paid into the general fund of the treasury; and (iii) amounts required to be deposited 37 to the general fund of the state treasury pursuant to § 4-2.02 a.1., of this act. However, in no case shall (i) lump-sum payments, 38 (ii) one-time payments not generated from the normal operation of state government, or (iii) proceeds from the sale of state 39 property or assets be included in the general fund revenue calculations for purposes of subsection C of § 58.1-3524 and 40 subsection B of § 58.1-3536, Code of Virginia.

41 c. DATE OF RECEIPT OF REVENUES:

All June general fund collections received under Subtitle I of Title 58.1, Code of Virginia, bearing a postmark date or electronic
 transactions with a settlement or notification date on or before the first business day in July, when June 30 falls on a Saturday

- 44 or Sunday, shall be considered as June revenue and recorded under guidelines established annually by the Department of
- 45 Accounts.

46 d. RECOVERIES BY THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

47 1. As a condition of the appropriation for Item 59 of this Act, there is hereby created the Disbursement Review Committee (the

- 48 "Committee"), the members of which are the Attorney General, who shall serve as chairman; two members of the House of
- 49 Delegates appointed by the Speaker of the House; two members of the Senate appointed by the Chairman of the Senate
- 50 Committee on Rules; and two members appointed by the Governor.

1 2. Whenever forfeitures are available for distribution by the Attorney General through programs overseen by either the U.S. 2 Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture Program or the U.S. Treasury Executive Office for Asset Forfeiture, by virtue of the Attorney

3 General's participation on behalf of the Commonwealth or on behalf of an agency of the Commonwealth, the Attorney General shall

4 5 6 7 seek input from the Committee, to the extent permissible under applicable federal law and guidelines, for the preparation of a

proposed Distribution Plan (the "Plan") regarding the distribution and use of money or property, or both. If a federal entity must approve the Plan for such distribution or use, or both, and does not approve the Plan submitted by the Attorney General, the Plan

may be revised if deemed appropriate and resubmitted to the federal entity for approval following notification of the Committee. If

- 8 the federal entity approves the original Plan or a revised Plan, the Attorney General shall inform the Committee, and ensure that such
- 9 money or property, or both, is distributed or used, or both, in a manner that is consistent with the Plan approved by the federal entity.
- 10 The distribution of any money or property, or both, shall be done in a manner as prescribed by the State Comptroller and consistent
- with any federal authorization in order to ensure proper accounting on the books of the Commonwealth. 11

§ 4-2.03 INDIRECT COSTS 12

13 a. INDIRECT COST RECOVERIES FROM GRANTS AND CONTRACTS:

14 Each state agency, including institutions of higher education, which accepts a grant or contract shall recover full statewide and agency indirect costs unless prohibited by the grantor agency or exempted by provisions of this act. 15

- **b. AGENCIES OTHER THAN INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION:** 16
- 17 The following conditions shall apply to indirect cost recoveries received by all agencies other than institutions of higher education:

18 1. The Governor shall include in the recommended nongeneral fund appropriation for each agency in this act the amount which the agency includes in its revenue estimate as an indirect cost recovery. The recommended nongeneral fund appropriations shall reflect 19 20 the indirect costs in the program incurring the costs.

21 2. If actual agency indirect cost recoveries exceed the nongeneral fund amount appropriated in this act, the Director, Department of 22 Planning and Budget, is authorized to increase the nongeneral fund appropriation to the agency by the amount of such excess 23 indirect cost recovery. Such increase shall be made in the program incurring the costs.

24 3. Statewide indirect cost recoveries shall be paid into the general fund of the state treasury, unless the agency is specifically 25 exempted from this requirement by language in this act. Any statewide indirect cost recoveries received by the agency in excess of 26 the exempted sum shall be deposited to the general fund of the state treasury.

- 27 c. INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION:
- 28 The following conditions shall apply to indirect cost recoveries received by institutions of higher education:

29 1. Seventy percent shall be retained by the institution as an appropriation of moneys for the conduct and enhancement of research 30 and research-related requirements. Such moneys may be used for payment of principal of and interest on bonds issued by or for the 31 institution pursuant to § 23.1-1106, Code of Virginia, for any appropriate purpose of the institution, including, but not limited to, the conduct and enhancement of research and research-related requirements. 32

33 2. Thirty percent of the indirect cost recoveries for the level of sponsored programs authorized in the appropriations in Part 1 of Chapter 1042 of the Acts of Assembly of 2003, shall be included in the educational and general revenues of the institution to meet 34 35 administrative costs.

36 3. Institutions of higher education may retain 100 percent of the indirect cost recoveries related to research grant and contract levels in excess of the levels authorized in Chapter 1042 of the Acts of Assembly of 2003. This provision is included as an additional 37 38 incentive for increasing externally funded research activities.

39 d. REPORTS

40 The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall make available via electronic means a report to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees and the public no later than September 1 of each year on the indirect cost recovery 41 42 moneys administratively appropriated.

43 e. REGULATIONS:

44 The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to issue regulations to carry out the provisions of this subsection, including the 45 establishment of criteria to certify that an agency is in compliance with the provisions of this subsection.

46

§ 4-3.00 DEFICIT AUTHORIZATION AND TREASURY LOANS

- 47 § 4-3.01 DEFICITS
- 48 a. GENERAL:

Except as provided in this section no state agency shall incur a deficit. No state agency receiving general fund appropriations
 under the provisions of this act shall obligate or expend moneys in excess of its general fund appropriations, nor shall it
 obligate or expend moneys in excess of nongeneral fund revenues that are collected and appropriated.

- 4 2. The Governor is authorized to approve deficit funding for a state agency under the following conditions:
- 5 a) an unanticipated federal or judicial mandate has been imposed,
- 6 b) insufficient moneys are available in the first year of the biennium for start-up of General Assembly-approved action, or

c) delay pending action by the General Assembly at its next legislative session will result in the curtailment of services required
 by statute or those required by federal mandate or will produce a threat to life, safety, health or property.

9 d) Such approval by the Governor shall be in writing under the conditions described in § 4-3.02 a Authorized Deficit Loans of
10 this act and shall be promptly communicated to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees
11 within five calendar days of deficit approval.

12 3. Deficits shall not be authorized for capital projects.

4. The Department of Transportation may obligate funds in excess of the current biennium appropriation for projects of a
capital nature not covered by § 4-4.00 Capital Projects, of this act provided such projects a) are delineated in the Virginia
Transportation Six-Year Improvement Program, as approved by the Commonwealth Transportation Board; and b) have
sufficient cash allocated to each such project to cover projected costs in each year of the Program; and provided that c)
sufficient revenues are projected to meet all cash obligations for such projects as well as all other commitments and
appropriations approved by the General Assembly in the biennial budget.

19 b. UNAUTHORIZED DEFICITS: If any agency contravenes any of the prohibitions stated above, thereby incurring an 20 unauthorized deficit, the Governor is hereby directed to withhold approval of such excess obligation or expenditure. Further, 21 there shall be no reimbursement of said excess, nor shall there be any liability or obligation upon the state to make any 22 appropriation hereafter to meet such unauthorized deficit. Further, those members of the governing board of any such agency 23 who shall have voted therefor, or its head if there be no governing board, making any such excess obligation or expenditure 24 shall be personally liable for the full amount of such unauthorized deficit and, at the discretion of the Governor, shall be 25 deemed guilty of neglect of official duty and be subject to removal therefor. Further, the State Comptroller is hereby directed to 26 make public any such unauthorized deficit, and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, is hereby directed to set out 27 such unauthorized deficits in the next biennium budget. In addition, the Governor is directed to bring this provision of this act 28 to the attention of the members of the governing board of each state agency, or its head if there be no governing board, within 29 two weeks of the date that this act becomes effective. The governing board or the agency head shall execute and return to the 30 Governor a signed acknowledgment of such notification.

c. TOTAL AUTHORIZED DEFICITS: The amount which the Governor may authorize, under the provisions of this section
during the current biennium, to be expended from loans repayable out of the general fund of the state treasury, for all state
agencies, or other agencies combined, in excess of general fund appropriations for the current biennium, shall not exceed one
and one-half percent (1 1/2%) of the revenues collected and paid into the general fund of the state treasury as defined in § 42.02 b. of this act during the last year of the previous biennium and the first year of the current biennium.

d. The Governor shall report any such authorized and unauthorized deficits to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and
 Senate Finance Committees within five calendar days of deficit approval. By August 15 of each year, the Governor shall
 provide a comprehensive report to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees detailing all such
 deficits.

40 § 4-3.02 TREASURY LOANS

41 a. AUTHORIZED DEFICIT LOANS: A state agency requesting authorization for deficit spending shall prepare a plan for the 42 Governor's review and approval, specifying appropriate financial, administrative and management actions necessary to 43 eliminate the deficit and to prevent future deficits. If the Governor approves the plan and authorizes a state agency to incur a 44 deficit under the provisions of this section, the amount authorized shall be obtained by the agency by borrowing the authorized 45 amount on such terms and from such sources as may be approved by the Governor. At the close of business on the last day of 46 the current biennium, any unexpended balance of such loan shall be applied toward repayment of the loan, unless such action is 47 contrary to the conditions of the loan approval. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall set forth in the next 48 biennial budget all such loans which require an appropriation for repayment. A copy of the approved plan to eliminate the 49 deficit shall be transmitted to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and the Senate Finance Committees within five 50 calendar days of approval.

51 b. ANTICIPATION LOANS: Authorization for anticipation loans are limited to the provisions below.

52 1.a) When the payment of authorized obligations for operating expenses is required prior to the collection of nongeneral fund 53 revenues, any state agency may borrow from the state treasury the required sums with the prior written approval of the Secretary of Finance or his designee as to the amount, terms and sources of such funds; such loans shall not exceed the amount of
 the anticipated collections of such revenues and shall be repaid only from such revenues when collected.

b) When the payment of authorized obligations for capital expenses is required prior to the collection of nongeneral fund revenues or
 proceeds from authorized debt, any state agency or body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation and government
 instrumentality, may borrow from the state treasury the required sums with the prior written approval of the Secretary of Finance or
 his designee as to the amount, terms and sources of such funds; such loans in anticipation of bond proceeds shall not exceed the
 amount of the anticipated proceeds from debt authorized by the General Assembly and shall be repaid only from such proceeds
 when collected.

9 2. Anticipation loans for operating expenses shall be in amounts not greater than the sum identified by the agency as the minimum
 10 amount required to meet the projected expenditures. The term of any anticipation loans granted for operating expenses shall not
 11 exceed twelve months.

3. Before an anticipation loan for a capital project is authorized, the agency shall develop a plan for financing such capital project;
 approval of the State Treasurer shall be obtained for all plans to incur authorized debt.

4. Anticipation loans for capital projects shall be in amounts not greater than the sum identified by the agency as required to meet theprojected expenditures for the project within the current biennium.

16 5. To ensure that such loans are repaid as soon as practical and economical, the Department of Planning and Budget shall monitor
 17 the construction and expenditure schedules of all approved capital projects that will be paid for with proceeds from authorized debt
 18 and have anticipation loans.

6. Unless otherwise prohibited by federal or state law, the State Treasurer shall charge current market interest rates on anticipation
 loans made for operating purposes and capital projects subject to the following:

a) Anticipation loans for capital projects for which debt service will be paid with general fund appropriations shall be exempt from
 interest payments on borrowed balances.

b) Interest payments on anticipation loans for nongeneral fund capital projects or nongeneral fund operating expenses shall be made
 from appropriated nongeneral fund revenues. Such interest shall not be paid with the funds from the anticipation loan or from the
 proceeds of authorized debt without the approval of the State Treasurer.

26 c) REPORTING: All outstanding loans shall be reported by the Governor to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate
 27 Finance Committees by August 15 of each year. The report shall include a status of the repayment schedule for each loan.

c. ANTICIPATION LOANS FOR PROJECTS NOT INCLUDED IN THIS ACT OR FOR PROJECTS AUTHORIZED UNDER §
 4-4.01M: Authorization for anticipation loans for projects not included in this act or for projects authorized under § 4-4.01 m are
 limited to the provisions below:

31 1. Such loans are limited to those projects that shall be repaid from revenues derived from nongeneral fund sources.

32 2.a) When the payment of authorized obligations for operating expenses is required prior to the collection of nongeneral fund
 33 revenues, any state agency may borrow from the state treasury the required sum with the prior written approval of the Secretary of
 34 Finance or his designee as to the amount, terms, and sources of such funds. Such loans shall not exceed the amount of the anticipated
 35 collections of such nongeneral fund revenues and shall be repaid only from such nongeneral fund revenues when collected.

b) When the payment of obligations for capital expenses for projects authorized under § 4-4.01 m is required prior to the collection
of nongeneral fund revenues, any state agency or body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation and government
instrumentality, may borrow from the state treasury the required sums with the prior written approval of the Secretary of Finance or
his designee as to the amount, terms and sources of such funds. Such loans shall be repaid only from nongeneral fund revenues
associated with the project.

3. Anticipation loans for operating expenses shall be in amounts not greater than the sum identified by the agency as the minimum
 amount required to meet projected expenditures. The term of any anticipation loans granted for operating expenses shall not exceed
 12 months.

44 4. Before an anticipation loan is provided for a capital project authorized under § 4-4.01 m, the agency shall develop a plan for
45 repayment of such loan and approval of the Director of the Department of Planning and Budget shall be obtained for all such plans
46 and reported to the Chairman of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

47 5. Anticipation loans for capital projects authorized under § 4-4.01 m shall be in amounts not greater than the sum identified by the
48 agency as required to meet the projected expenditures for the project within the current biennium. Such loans shall be repaid only
49 from nongeneral fund revenues associated with the project.

50 6. The State Treasurer shall charge current market interest rates on anticipation loans made for capital projects authorized under § 4-

4.01 m. Interest payments on anticipation loans for nongeneral fund capital projects authorized under § 4-4.01 m shall be made
 from appropriated nongeneral fund revenues. Such interest shall not be paid with the funds from the anticipation loan without
 the approval of the Director of the Department of Planning and Budget.

a) REPORTING: All outstanding loans shall be reported by the Governor to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and
Senate Finance Committees by August 15 of each year. The report shall include a status of the repayment schedule for each
loan.

7 § 4-3.03 CAPITAL LEASES

8 a. GENERAL:

9 1. As part of their capital budget submission, all agencies and institutions of the Commonwealth proposing building projects
10 that may qualify as capital lease agreements, as defined in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and that may be
11 supported in whole, or in part, from appropriations provided for in this act, shall submit copies of such proposals to the
12 Directors of the Departments of Planning and Budget and General Services, the State Comptroller, and the State Treasurer. The
13 Secretary of Finance may promulgate guidelines for the review and approval of such requests.

2. The proposals shall be submitted in such form as the Secretary of Finance may prescribe. The Comptroller and the Director,
 Department of General Services shall be responsible for evaluating the proposals to determine if they qualify as capital lease
 agreements. The State Treasurer shall be responsible for incorporating existing and authorized capital lease agreements in the
 annual Debt Capacity Advisory Committee reports.

18 b. APPROVAL OF FINANCINGS:

1. For any project which qualifies as a capital lease, as defined in the preceding subdivisions a 1 and 2, and which is financed
 through the issuance of securities, the Treasury Board shall approve the terms and structure of such financing pursuant to § 2.2 2416, Code of Virginia.

2. For any project for which costs will exceed \$5,000,000 and which is financed through a capital lease transaction, the
 Treasury Board shall approve the financing terms and structure of such capital lease in addition to such other reviews and
 approvals as may be required by law. Prior to consideration by the Treasury Board, the Departments of Accounts, General
 Services, and Planning and Budget shall notify the Treasury Board upon their approval of any transaction which qualifies as a
 capital lease under the terms of this section. The State Treasurer shall notify the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and
 Senate Finance Committees of the action of the Treasury Board as it regards this subdivision within five calendar days of its
 action.

c. REPORTS: Not later than December 20 of each year, the Secretary of Finance and the Secretary of Administration shall
 jointly be responsible for providing the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees with
 recommendations involving proposed capital lease agreements.

d. This section shall not apply to capital leases that are funded entirely with nongeneral fund revenues and are entered into by
 public institutions of higher education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly. Furthermore, the
 Department of General Services is authorized to enter into capital leases for executive branch agencies provided that the
 resulting capital lease is funded entirely with nongeneral funds, is approved based on the requirements of § 4-3.03 b.1 and 2
 above, and would not be considered tax supported debt of the Commonwealth.

37

§ 4-4.00 CAPITAL PROJECTS

- **38** § 4-4.01 GENERAL
- **39** a. Definition:

1. Unless defined otherwise, when used in this section, "capital project" or "project" means acquisition of property and new
construction and improvements related to state-owned property, plant or equipment (including plans therefor), as the terms
"acquisition", "new construction", and "improvements" are defined in the instructions for the preparation of the Executive
Budget. "Capital project" or "project" shall also mean any improvements to property leased for use by a state agency, and not
owned by the state, when such improvements are financed by public funds, except as hereinafter provided in subdivisions 3 and
4 of this subsection.

2. The provisions of this section are applicable equally to acquisition of property and plant by purchase, gift, or any other
means, including the acquisition of property through a lease/purchase contract, regardless of the method of financing or the
source of funds. Acquisition of property by lease shall be subject to § 4-3.03 of this act.

49 3. The provisions of this section shall not apply to property or equipment acquired by lease or improvements to leased property50 and equipment when the improvements are provided by the lessor pursuant to the terms of the lease and upon expiration of the

51 lease remain the property of the lessor.

4. The provisions of this section shall not apply to property leased by state agencies for the purposes described in §§ 2.2-1151 C and
 33.2-1010, Code of Virginia.

3 b. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, requests for appropriations for capital projects shall be subject to the following:

The agency shall submit a capital project proposal for all requested capital projects. Such proposals shall be submitted to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, for review and approval in accordance with guidelines prescribed by the director.
 Projects shall be developed to meet agency functional and space requirements within a cost range comparable to similar public and private sector projects.

8 2. Except for institutions of higher education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, financings for capital projects shall comply, where applicable, with the Treasury Board Guidelines issued pursuant to § 2.2-2416, Code of Virginia, and any subsequent amendments thereto.

3. As part of any request for appropriations for an armory, the Department of Military Affairs shall obtain a written commitmentfrom the host locality to share in the operating expense of the armory.

c. Each agency head shall provide annually to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, a report on the use of the maintenance reserve appropriation of the agency in Part 2 of this act. In the use of its maintenance reserve appropriation, an agency shall give first priority to the repair or replacement of roof on buildings under control of the agency. The agency head shall certify in the agency's annual maintenance reserve report that to the best of his or her knowledge, all necessary roof repairs have been accomplished or are in the process of being accomplished. Such roof repairs and replacements shall be in accord with the technical requirements of the Commonwealth's Construction and Professional Services Manual.

d. The Department of Planning and Budget shall review its approach to capital outlay planning and budgeting from time to time and
 make available via electronic means a report of any proposed change to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate
 Finance Committees and the public prior to its implementation. Such report shall include an analysis of the impact of the suggested
 change on affected agencies and institutions.

e. Nothing in §§ 2-0 and 4-4.00 of this act shall be deemed to override the provisions of §§ 2.2-1132 and 62.1-132.6, Code of
Virginia, amended by Chapter 488, 1997 Acts of Assembly, relating to Virginia Port Authority capital projects and procurement
activities.

f. Legislative Approval: It is the intent of the General Assembly that, with the exceptions noted in this paragraph and paragraph m,
all capital projects to be undertaken by agencies of the Commonwealth, including institutions of higher education, shall be pursuant
to approvals by the General Assembly as provided in the Six-Year Capital Outlay Plan established pursuant to § 2.2-1515, et seq.,
Code of Virginia. Otherwise, the consideration of capital projects shall be limited to:

31 1. Supplementing projects which have been bid and determined to have insufficient funding to be placed under contract, and

32 2. Projects declared by the Governor or the General Assembly to be of an emergency nature, which may avoid an increase in cost or33 otherwise result in a measurable benefit to the state, and/or which are required for the continued use of existing facilities.

34 3. This paragraph does not prohibit the initiation of projects authorized by § 4-4.01 m hereof, or projects included under the central appropriations for capital project expenses in this act.

36 g. Preliminary Requirements: In regard to each capital project for which appropriation or reappropriation is made pursuant to this 37 act, or which is hereafter considered by the Governor for inclusion in the Executive Budget, or which is offered as a gift or is 38 considered for purchase, the Governor is hereby required: (1) to determine the urgency of its need, as compared with the need for 39 other capital projects as herein authorized, or hereafter considered; (2) to determine whether the proposed plans and specifications 40 for each capital project are suitable and adequate, and whether they involve expenditures which are excessive for the purposes 41 intended; (3) to determine whether labor, materials, and other requirements, if any, needed for the acquisition or construction of such 42 project can and will be obtained at reasonable cost; and (4) to determine whether or not the project conforms to a site or master plan 43 approved by the agency head or board of visitors of an institution of higher education for a program approved by the General 44 Assembly.

45 h. Initiation Generally:

46 1. No architectural or engineering planning for, or construction of, or purchase of any capital project shall be commenced or revised
 47 without the prior written approval of the Governor or his designee.

48 2. The requirements of § 10.1-1190, Code of Virginia, shall be met prior to the release of funds for a major state project, provided,

49 however, that the Governor or his designee is authorized to release from any appropriation for a major state project made pursuant to

50 this act such sum or sums as may be necessary to pay for the preparation of the environmental impact report required by § 10.1-

51 1188, Code of Virginia.

1 3. The Governor, at his discretion, or his designee may release from any capital project appropriation or reappropriation made 2 pursuant to this act such sum (or sums) as may be necessary to pay for the preparation of plans and specifications by architects 3 and engineers, provided that the estimated cost of the construction covered by such drawings and specifications does not exceed 4 the appropriation therefor; provided, further, however, that the architectural and engineering fees paid on completion of the 5 preliminary design for any such project may be based on such estimated costs as may be approved by the Governor in writing, where it is shown to the satisfaction of the Governor that higher costs of labor or material, or both, or other unforeseen 6 7 conditions, have made the appropriation inadequate for the completion of the project for which the appropriation was made. 8 and where in the judgment of the Governor such changed conditions justify the payment of architectural or engineering fees 9 based on costs exceeding the appropriation.

4. Architectural or engineering contracts shall not be awarded in perpetuity for capital projects at any state institution, agency or
 activity.

i. Capital Projects Financed with Bonds: Capital projects proposed to be financed with (i) 9 (c) general obligation bonds or (ii)
 9(d) obligations where debt service is expected to be paid from project revenues or revenues of the agency or institution, shall
 be reviewed as follows:

By August 15 of each year, requests for inclusion in the Executive Budget of capital projects to be financed with 9(c) general obligation bonds shall be submitted to the State Treasurer for evaluation of financial feasibility. Submission shall be in accordance with the instructions prescribed by the State Treasurer. The State Treasurer shall distribute copies of financial feasibility studies to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, the Secretary for the submitting agency or institution, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, and the Director, State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, if the project is requested by an institution of higher education.

2. By August 15 of each year, institutions shall also prepare and submit copies of financial feasibility studies to the State
Council of Higher Education for Virginia for 9(d) obligations where debt service is expected to be paid from project revenues
or revenues of the institution. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall identify the impact of all projects
requested by the institutions of higher education, and as described in § 4-4.01 j.1. of this act, on the current and projected cost
to students in institutions of higher education and the impact of the project on the institution's need for student financial
assistance. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall report such information to the Secretary of Finance and the
Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than October 1 of each year.

3. Prior to the issuance of debt for 9(c) general obligation projects, when more than one year has elapsed since the review of financial feasibility specified in § 4-4.01 j 1 above, an updated feasibility study shall be prepared by the agency and reviewed by the State Treasurer prior to requesting the Governor's Opinion of Financial Feasibility required under Article X, Section 9
 (c), of the Constitution of Virginia.

j. Transfers to supplement capital projects from nongeneral funds may be made under the conditions set forth in §§ 4-1.03 a, 4-1.04 a.3, and 4-4.01 m of this act.

34 k.1. Change in Size and Scope: Unless otherwise provided by law, the scope, which is the function or intended use, of any 35 capital project may not be substantively changed, nor its size increased or decreased by more than five percent in size beyond 36 the plans and justification which were the basis for the appropriation or reappropriation in this act or for the Governor's 37 authorization pursuant to § 4-4.01 m of this act. However, this prohibition is not applicable to changes in size and scope 38 required because of circumstances determined by the Governor to be an emergency, or requirements imposed by the federal 39 government when such capital project is for armories or other defense-related installations and is funded in whole or in part by 40 federal funds. Furthermore, this prohibition shall not apply to minor increases, beyond five percent, in square footage 41 determined by the Director, Department of General Services, to be reasonable and appropriate based on a written justification 42 submitted by the agency stating the reason for the increase, with the provision that such increase will not increase the cost of 43 the project beyond the amount appropriated; nor to decreases in size beyond five percent to offset unbudgeted costs when such 44 costs are determined by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, to be reasonable based on a written justification 45 submitted by the agency specifying the amount and nature of the unbudgeted costs and the types of actions that will be taken to 46 decrease the size of the project. The written justification shall also include a certification, signed by the agency head, that the 47 resulting project will be consistent with the original programmatic intent of the appropriations.

48 2. If space planning, energy conservation, and environmental standards guides for any type of construction have been approved49 by the Governor or the General Assembly, the Governor shall require capital projects to conform to such planning guides.

- **50** 1. Projects Not Included In This Act:
- **51** 1. Authorization by Governor:

a) The Governor may authorize initiation of, planning for, construction of or acquisition of a nongeneral fund capital project not

53 specifically included in this act or provided for a program approved by the General Assembly through appropriations, under 54 one or more of the following conditions:

- 1 1) The project is required to meet an emergency situation.
- 2) The project is to be operated as an auxiliary enterprise or sponsored program in an institution of higher education and will be fully
 3 funded by revenues of auxiliary enterprises or sponsored programs.
- 3) The project is to be operated as an educational and general program in an institution of higher education and will be fully funded
 by nongeneral fund revenues of educational and general programs or from private gifts and indirect cost recoveries.
- 6 4) The project consists of plant or property which has become available or has been received as a gift.
- 5) The project has been recommended for funding by the Tobacco Indemnification and Community Revitalization Commission or
 the Virginia Tobacco Settlement Foundation.
- 9 b) The foregoing conditions are subject to the following criteria:
- 1) Funds are available within the appropriations made by this act (including those subject to §§ 4-1.03 a, 4-1.04 a.3, and 4-2.03)
 without adverse effect on other projects or programs, or from unappropriated nongeneral fund revenues or balances.
- 12 2) In the Governor's opinion such action may avoid an increase in cost or otherwise result in a measurable benefit to the state.
- 3) The authorization includes a detailed description of the project, the project need, the total project cost, the estimated operating costs, and the fund sources for the project and its operating costs.
- 4) The Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees shall be notified by the Governor prior to the authorization of any capital project under the provisions of this subsection.
- 17 5) Permanent funding for any project initiated under this section shall only be from nongeneral fund sources.
- 18 2. Authorization by Director, Department of Planning and Budget:

a) The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may authorize initiation of a capital project not included in this act, if the

- 20 General Assembly has enacted legislation to fund the project from bonds of the Virginia Public Building Authority, Virginia College
 21 Building Authority, or from reserves created by refunding of bonds issued by those Authorities.
- 22 3. Delegated authorization by Boards of Visitors, Public Institutions of Higher Education:
- a) In accordance with § 4-5.06 of this act, the board of visitors of any public institution of higher education that: i) has met the
 eligibility criteria set forth in Chapters 933 and 945 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly for additional operational and administrative
 autonomy, including having entered into a memorandum of understanding with the Secretary of Administration for delegated
 authority of nongeneral fund capital outlay projects, and ii) has received a sum sufficient nongeneral fund appropriation for
 emergency projects as set out in Part 2: Capital Project Expenses of this act, may authorize the initiation of any capital project that is
 not specifically set forth in this act provided that the project meets at least one of the conditions and criteria identified in § 4-4.01 m
 of this act.
- b) At least 30 days prior to the initiation of a project under this provision, the board of visitors must notify the Governor and
 Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and must provide a life-cycle budget analysis of the project.
 Such analysis shall be in a form to be prescribed by the Auditor of Public Accounts.
- c) The Commonwealth of Virginia shall have no general fund obligation for the construction, operation, insurance, routine
 maintenance, or long-term maintenance of any project authorized by the board of visitors of a public institution of higher education
 in accordance with this provision.
- m. Acquisition, maintenance, and operation of buildings and nonbuilding facilities in colleges and universities shall be subject to the
 following policies:
- 1. The anticipated program use of the building or nonbuilding facility should determine the funding source for expenditures for acquisition, construction, maintenance, operation, and repairs.
- 2. Expenditures for land acquisition, site preparation beyond five feet from a building, and the construction of additional outdoor
 lighting, sidewalks, outdoor athletic and recreational facilities, and parking lots in the Virginia Community College System shall be
 made only from appropriated federal funds, Trust and Agency funds, including local government allocations or appropriations, or
 the proceeds of indebtedness authorized by the General Assembly.
- 3. The general policy of the Commonwealth shall be that parking services are to be operated as an auxiliary enterprise by all collegesand universities. Institutions should develop sufficient reserves for ongoing maintenance and replacement of parking facilities.
- 46 4. Except as provided in paragraph 2 above, expenditures for maintenance, replacement, and repair of outdoor lighting, sidewalks,47 and other infrastructure facilities may be made from any appropriated funds.

 5. Expenditures for operations, maintenance, and repair of athletic, recreational, and public service facilities, both indoor and outdoor, should be from nongeneral funds. However, this condition shall not apply to any indoor recreational facility existing on a community college campus as of July 1, 1988.

6.a.1. At institutions of higher education that have met the eligibility criteria for additional operational and administrative authority as set forth in Chapters 933 and 945 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly or Chapters 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, any repair, renovation, or new construction project costing up to \$3,000,000 shall be exempt from the capital outlay review and approval process. For purposes of this paragraph, projects shall not include any subset of a series of projects, which in combination would exceed the \$3,000,000 maximum.

9 2. All state agencies and institutions of higher education shall be exempt from the capital review and approval process for repair, renovation, or new construction projects costing up to \$3,000,000.

b. Blanket authorizations funded entirely by nongeneral funds may be used for 1) renovation and infrastructure projects costing
 up to \$3,000,000 and 2) the planning of nongeneral fund new construction and renovation projects through bidding, with bid
 award made after receipt of a construction authorization. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may provide
 exemptions to the threshold.

7. It is the policy of the Commonwealth that the institutions of higher education shall treat the maintenance of their facilities as a priority for the allocation of resources. No appropriations shall be transferred from the "Operation and Maintenance of Plant" subprogram except for closely and definitely related purposes, as approved by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, or his designee. A report providing the rationale for each approved transfer shall be made to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

n. Legislative Intent and Reporting: Appropriations for capital projects shall be deemed to have been made for purposes which
 require their expenditure, or being placed under contract for expenditure, during the current biennium. Agencies to which such
 appropriations are made in this act or any other act are required to report progress as specified by the Governor. If, in the
 opinion of the Governor, these reports do not indicate satisfactory progress, he is authorized to take such actions as in his
 judgment may be necessary to meet legislative intent as herein defined. Reporting on the progress of capital projects shall be in
 accordance with § 4-8.00, Reporting Requirements.

o. No expenditure from a general fund appropriation in this act shall be made to expand or enhance a capital outlay project
 beyond that anticipated when the project was initially approved by the General Assembly except to comply with requirements
 imposed by the federal government when such capital project is for armories or other defense-related installations and is funded
 in whole or in part by federal funds. General fund appropriations in excess of those necessary to complete the project shall not
 be reallocated to expand or enhance the project, or be reallocated to a different project. The prohibitions in this subsection shall
 not apply to transfers from projects for which reappropriations have been authorized.

p. Local or private funds to be used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital projects for state agency use as
 owner or lessee shall be deposited into the state treasury for appropriation prior to their expenditure for such projects.

q. State-owned Registered Historic Landmarks: To guarantee that the historical and/or architectural integrity of any state-owned properties listed on the Virginia Landmarks Register and the knowledge to be gained from archaeological sites will not be adversely affected because of inappropriate changes, the heads of those agencies in charge of such properties are directed to submit all plans for significant alterations, remodeling, redecoration, restoration or repairs that may basically alter the appearance of the structure, landscaping, or demolition to the Department of Historic Resources. Such plans shall be reviewed within thirty days and the comments of that department shall be submitted to the Governor through the Department of General Services for use in making a final determination.

41 r.1. The Governor may authorize the conveyance of any interest in property or improvements thereon held by the 42 Commonwealth to the educational or real estate foundation of any institution of higher education where he finds that such 43 property was acquired with local or private funds or by gift or grant to or for the use of the institution, and not with funds 44 appropriated to the institution by the General Assembly. Any approved conveyance shall be exempt from § 2.2-1156, Code of 45 Virginia, and any other statute concerning conveyance, transfer or sale of state property. If the foundation conveys any interest 46 in the property or any improvements thereon, such conveyance shall likewise be exempt from compliance with any statute 47 concerning disposition of state property. Any income or proceeds from the conveyance of any interest in the property shall be 48 deemed to be local or private funds and may be used by the foundation for any foundation purpose.

2. This section shall not apply to public institutions of higher education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of
Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and
Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly.

s.1. Facility Lease Agreements Involving Institutions of Higher Education: In the case of any lease agreement involving state owned property controlled by an institution of higher education, where the lease has been entered into consistent with the
 provisions of § 2.2-1155, Code of Virginia, the Governor may amend, adjust or waive any project review and reporting

55 procedures of Executive agencies as may reasonably be required to promote the property improvement goals for which the

- 1 lease agreement was developed.
- 2 2. This section shall not apply to public institutions of higher education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of
- Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters
 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly.
- t. Energy-efficiency Projects: Improvements to state-owned properties for the purpose of energy-efficiency shall be treated as
 follows:
- 7 1. Such improvements shall be considered an operating expense, provided that:

a) the scope of the project meets or exceeds the applicable energy-efficiency standards set forth in the American Society of Heating,
 Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE), the Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) standard 90.1-1989 and is
 limited to measures listed in guidelines issued by the Department of General Services;

- b) the project is financed consistent with the provisions of § 2.2-2417, Code of Virginia, which requires Treasury Board approval
 and is executed through a nonprofessional services contract with a vendor approved by the Department of General Services;
- 13 c) the scope of work has been reviewed and recommended by the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy;
- d) the total cost does not exceed \$3,000,000; and

e) if the total cost exceeds \$3,000,000, but does not exceed \$7,000,000, the energy savings from the project offset the total cost ofthe project, including debt service and interest payments.

17 2. If (a) the total cost of the improvement exceeds \$7,000,000 or (b) the total cost exceeds \$3,000,000, but does not exceed
18 \$7,000,000, and the energy savings from the project do not fully offset the total cost of the project, including debt services and
19 interest payments, the improvement shall be considered a capital expense regardless of the type of improvement and the following
20 conditions must be met:

a) the scope of the project meets or exceeds the applicable energy-efficiency standards set forth in the American Society of Heating,
 Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE), the Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) standard 90.1-1989 and is
 limited to measures listed in guidelines issued by the Department of General Services;

b) the project is financed consistent with the provisions of § 2.2-2417, Code of Virginia, which requires Treasury Board approval and is executed through a nonprofessional services contract with a vendor approved by the Department of General Services;

- 26 c) the scope of work has been reviewed and recommended by the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy;
- d) the project has been reviewed by the Department of Planning and Budget; and
- e) the project has been approved by the Governor.

3. If the total project exceeds \$250,000, the agency director will submit written notification to the Director, Department of Planning
 and Budget, verifying that the project meets all of the conditions in subparagraph 1 above.

The provisions of §§ 2.0 and 4-4.01 of this act and the provisions of § 2.2-1132, Code of Virginia, shall not apply to energy conservation projects that qualify as capital expenses.

4. As used in this paragraph, "improvement" does not include (a) constructing, enlarging, altering, repairing or demolishing a
building or structure, (b) changing the use of a building either within the same use group or to a different use group when the new
use requires greater degrees of structural strength, fire protection, exit facilities or sanitary provisions, or (c) removing or disturbing
any asbestos-containing materials during demolition, alteration, renovation of or additions to building or structures, If the projected
scope of an energy-efficiency project includes any of these elements, it shall be subject to the capital outlay process as set out in this
section.

5. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall notify the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance
 Committees upon the initiation of any energy-efficiency projects under the provisions of this paragraph.

u. No expenditures shall be authorized for the purchase of fee simple title to any real property to be used for a correctional facility or
for the actual construction of a correctional facility provided for in this act, or by reference hereto, that involves acquisition or new
construction of youth or adult correctional facilities on real property which was not owned by the Commonwealth on January 1,
1995, until the governing body of the county, city or town wherein the project is to be located has adopted a resolution supporting
the location of such project within the boundaries of the affected jurisdiction. The foregoing does not prohibit expenditures for site
studies, real estate options, correctional facility design and related expenditures.

v. Except for institutions of higher education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and
 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, any alternative financing agreement

- entered into between a state agency or institution of higher education and a private entity or affiliated foundation must be
 reviewed and approved by the Treasury Board.
- w. Prior to requesting authorization for new dormitory capital projects, institutions of higher education shall conduct a cost
 study to determine whether an alternative financing arrangement or public-private transaction would provide a more effective
 option for the construction of the proposed facility. This study shall be submitted to the Department of Planning and Budget as
 part of the budget development process and shall be evaluated by the Governor prior to submitting his proposed budget.
- x. Construction or improvement projects of the Department of Military Affairs are not exempt from the capital outlay review
 process when the state procurement process is utilized, except for those projects with both an estimated cost of \$3,000,000 or
 less and are 100 percent federally reimbursed. The Department of Military Affairs shall submit by July 30 of each year to the
 Department of Planning and Budget a list of such projects that were funded pursuant to this exemption in the previous fiscal
 year and any projects that would be eligible for such funding in future fiscal years.
- 12 § 4-4.02 PLANNING AND BUDGETING
- a. It shall be the intent of the General Assembly to make biennial appropriations for a capital improvements program sufficient
 to address the program needs of the Commonwealth. The capital improvements program shall include maintenance and
 deferred maintenance of the Commonwealth's existing facilities, and of the facility requirements necessary to deliver the
 programs of state agencies and institutions.
- b. In effecting these policies, the Governor shall establish a capital budget plan to address the renewal and replacement of the
 Commonwealth's physical plant, using such guidelines as recommended by industry or government to maintain the
 Commonwealth's investment in its property and plant.
- 20

§ 4-5.00 SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS ON EXPENDITURES

21 § 4-5.01 TRANSACTIONS WITH INDIVIDUALS

a. SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS: Whenever a dispute, claim or controversy involving the interest of the Commonwealth is
 settled pursuant to § 2.2-514, Code of Virginia, payment may be made out of any appropriations, designated by the Governor,
 to the state agency(ies) which is (are) party to the settlement.

25 b. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR HIGHER EDUCATION:

26 1. General:

27 a) The appropriations made in this act to state institutions of higher education within the Items for student financial assistance 28 may be expended for any one, all, or any combination of the following purposes: grants to undergraduate students enrolled at 29 least one-half time in a degree, certificate, industry-based certification and related programs that do not qualify for other 30 sources of student financial assistance or diploma program; grants to full-time graduate students; graduate assistantships: grants 31 to students enrolled full-time in a dual or concurrent undergraduate and graduate program. The institutions may also use these appropriations for the purpose of supporting work study programs. The institution is required to transfer to educational and 32 33 general appropriations all funds used for work study or to pay graduate assistantships. Institutions may also contribute to 34 federal or private student grant aid programs requiring matching funds by the institution, except for programs requiring work. 35 The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall annually review each institution's plan for the expenditures of its 36 general fund appropriation for undergraduate student financial assistance prior to the start of the fall term to determine program 37 compliance. The institution's plan shall include the institution's assumptions and calculations for determining the cost of 38 attendance, student financial need, and student remaining need as well as an award schedule or description of how funds are 39 awarded. For the purposes of the proposed plan, each community college shall be considered independently. No limitations 40 shall be placed on the awarding of nongeneral fund appropriations made in this act to state institutions of higher education 41 within the Items for student financial assistance other than those found previously in this paragraph and as follows: (i) funds 42 derived from in-state student tuition will not subsidize out-of-state students, (ii) students receiving these funds must be making 43 satisfactory academic progress, (iii) awards made to students should be based primarily on financial need, and (iv) institutions should make larger grant and scholarship awards to students taking the number of credit hours necessary to complete a degree 44 45 in a timely manner.

46 b) All awards made to undergraduate students from such Items shall be for Virginia students only and such awards shall offset 47 all, or portions of, the costs of tuition and required fees, and, in the case of students qualifying under subdivision b 2 c)1) 48 hereof, the cost of books. All undergraduate financial aid award amounts funded by this appropriation shall be proportionate to 49 the remaining need of individual students, with students with higher levels of remaining need receiving grants before other 50 students. No criteria other than the need of the student shall be used to determine the award amount. Because of the low cost of 51 attendance and recognizing that federal grants provide a much higher portion of cost than at other institutions, a modified 52 approach and minimum award amount for the neediest VGAP student should be implemented for community college and Richard Bland College students based on remaining need and the combination of federal and grant state aid. Student financial 53

54 need shall be determined by a need-analysis system approved by the Council.

c)1) All need-based awards made to graduate students shall be determined by the use of a need-analysis system approved by the
 Council.

2) As part of the six-year financial plans required in the provisions of Chapters 933 and 945 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly, each
 institution of higher education shall report the extent to which tuition and fee revenues are used to support graduate student aid and
 graduate compensation and how the use of these funds impacts planned increases in student tuition and fees.

d) A student who receives a grant under such Items and who, during a semester, withdraws from the institution which made the
 award must surrender the unearned portion. The institution shall calculate the unearned portion of the award based on the percentage
 used for federal Return to Title IV program purposes.

9 e) An award made under such Items to assist a student in attending an institution's summer session shall be prorated according to the
10 size of comparable awards made in that institution's regular session.

f) The provisions of this act under the heading "Student Financial Assistance for Higher Education" shall not apply to (1) the soil
 scientist scholarships authorized under § 23.1-615, Code of Virginia and (2) need-based financial aid programs for industry-based
 certification and related programs that do not qualify for other sources of student financial assistance, which will be subject to
 guidelines developed by the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia.

15 g) Unless noted elsewhere in this act, general fund awards shall be named "Commonwealth" grants.

h) Unless otherwise provided by statute, undergraduate awards shall not be made to students seeking a second or additional
 baccalaureate degree until the financial aid needs of first-degree seeking students are fully met.

18 2. Grants To Undergraduate Students:

a) Each institution which makes undergraduate grants paid from its appropriation for student financial assistance shall expend such sums as approved for that purpose by the Council.

b) A student receiving an award must be duly admitted and enrolled in a degree, certificate or diploma program at the institution
 making the award, and shall be making satisfactory academic progress as defined by the institution for the purposes of eligibility
 under Title IV of the federal Higher Education Act, as amended.

c)1) It is the intent of the General Assembly that students eligible under the Virginia Guaranteed Assistance Program (VGAP)
 authorized in Title 23.1, Chapter 4.4:2, Code of Virginia, shall receive grants before all other students at the same institution with
 equivalent remaining need from the appropriations for undergraduate student financial assistance found in Part 1 of this act (service
 area 1081000 - Scholarships). In each instance, VGAP eligible students shall receive awards greater than other students with
 equivalent remaining need.

2) The amount of each VGAP grant shall vary according to each student's remaining need and the total of tuition, all required fees
and the cost of books at the institution the student will attend upon acceptance for admission. The actual amount of the VGAP award
will be determined by the proportionate award schedule adopted by each institution; however, those students with the greatest
financial need shall be guaranteed an award at least equal to tuition.

33 3) It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Virginia Guaranteed Assistance Program serve as an incentive to financially
 34 needy students now attending elementary and secondary school in Virginia to raise their expectations and their academic
 35 performance and to consider higher education an achievable objective in their futures.

- **36** 4) Students may not receive a VGAP and a Commonwealth grant in the same semester.
- **37** 3. Grants To Graduate Students:

a) An individual award may be based on financial need but may, in addition to or instead of, be based on other criteria determined by
 the institution making the award. The amount of an award shall be determined by the institution making the award; however, the
 Council shall annually be notified as to the maximum size of a graduate award that is paid from funds in the appropriation.

b) A student receiving a graduate award paid from the appropriation must be duly admitted into a graduate degree program at theinstitution making the award.

c) Not more than 50 percent of the funds designated by an institution as graduate grants from the appropriation, and approved as
such by the Council, shall be awarded to persons not eligible to be classified as Virginia domiciliary resident students except in cases
where the persons meet the criteria outlined in § 4-2.01b.6.

46 4. Matching Funds: Any institution of higher education may, with the approval of the Council, use funds from its appropriation for
47 fellowships and scholarships to provide the institutional contribution to any student financial aid program established by the federal
48 government or private sources which requires the matching of the contribution by institutional funds, except for programs requiring
49 work.

1 5. Discontinued Loan Program:

a) If any federal student loan program for which the institutional contribution was appropriated by the General Assembly is
 discontinued, the institutional share of the discontinued loan program shall be repaid to the fund from which the institutional

- share was derived unless other arrangements for the use of the funds are recommended by the Council and approved by the
 Department of Planning and Budget. Should the institution be permitted to retain the federal contributions to the program, the
 funds shall be used according to arrangements authorized by the Council and approved by the Department of Planning and
 Budget.
- b)1) An institution of higher education may discontinue its student loan fund established pursuant to Title 23.1, Chapter 4.01,
 Code of Virginia. The full amount of cash in such discontinued loan fund shall be paid into the state treasury into a nonrevertible nongeneral fund account. Prior to such payment, the State Comptroller shall verify its accuracy, including the fact that the cash held by the institution in the loan fund will be fully depleted by such payment. The loan fund shall not be reestablished thereafter for that institution.
- 2) The cash so paid into the state treasury shall be used only for grants to undergraduate and graduate students in the Higher
 Education Student Financial Assistance program according to arrangements authorized by the Council and approved by the
 Department of Planning and Budget.
- 3) Payments on principal and interest of any promissory notes held by the discontinued loan fund shall continue to be received
 by the institution, which shall deposit such payments in the state treasury to the nonrevertible nongeneral fund account
 specified in subdivision (1) preceding, to be used for grants as specified in subdivision (2) preceding.
- 6. Reporting: The Council shall collect student-specific information for undergraduate students as is necessary for the operation of the Student Financial Assistance Program. The Council shall maintain regulations governing the operation of the Student Financial Assistance Program based on the provisions outlined in this section, the Code of Virginia, and State Council policy.
- 22 C. PAYMENTS TO CITIZEN MEMBERS OF NONLEGISLATIVE BODIES:
- Notwithstanding any other provision of law, executive branch agencies shall not pay compensation to citizen members of
 boards, commissions, authorities, councils, or other bodies from any fund for the performance of such members' duties in the
 work of the board, commission, authority, council, or other body.
- 26 d. VIRGINIA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION PROGAM

 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program is authorized to require each admitted claimant's parent or legal guardian to purchase private health insurance (the "primary payer") to provide coverage for the actual medically necessary and reasonable expenses as described in Virginia Code § 38.2-5009(A)(1) that were, or are, incurred as a result of the admitted claimant's birth-related neurological injury and for the admitted claimant's benefit. Provided, however, that the Program shall reimburse, upon receipt of proof of payment, solely the portion of the premiums that is attributable to the admitted claimant's post-admission coverage from the effective date of this provision forward and paid for by the admitted claimant's parent or legal guardian.

2. The State Corporation Commission shall develop a report containing options and recommendations for improving the actuarial soundness of financing for the Virginia Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Program. The report shall be presented to the Governor and Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees no later than November 1, 2017.

38 § 4-5.02 THIRD PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39 a. EMPLOYMENT OF ATTORNEYS:

1.a) All attorneys authorized by this act to be employed by any state agency and all attorneys compensated out of any moneys
appropriated in this session of the General Assembly shall be appointed by the Attorney General and be in all respects subject
to the provisions of Title 2.2, Chapter 5, Code of Virginia, to the extent not to conflict with Title 12.1, Chapter 4, Code of
Virginia; provided, however, that if the Governor certifies the need for independent legal counsel for any Executive Department
agency, such agency shall be free to act independently of the Office of the Attorney General in regard to selection, and
provided, further, that compensation of such independent legal counsel shall be paid from the moneys appropriated to such
Executive Department agency or from the moneys appropriated to the Office of the Attorney General.

b) For purposes of this act, "attorney" shall be defined as an employee or contractor who represents an agency before a court,
board or agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivision thereof. This term shall not include members of the
bar employed by an agency who perform in a capacity that does not require a license to practice law, including but not limited
to, instructing, managing, supervising or performing normal or customary duties of that agency.

- 51 2. This section does not apply to attorneys employed by state agencies in the Legislative Department, Judicial Department or
- 52 Independent Agencies.

1 3. Reporting on employment of attorneys shall be in accordance with § 4-8.00, Reporting Requirements.

4. Notwithstanding § 2.2-510.1 of the Code of Virginia and any other conflicting provision of law, the Virginia Retirement System
may enter into agreements to seek i) recovery of investment losses in foreign jurisdictions, and ii) legal advice related to its
investments. Any such agreements shall be reported to the Office of the Attorney General as soon as practicable.

b. STUDIES AND CONSULTATIVE SERVICES REQUIRED BY GENERAL ASSEMBLY: No expenditure for payments on
third party nongovernmental contracts for studies or consultative services shall be made out of any appropriation to the General
Assembly or to any study group created by the General Assembly, nor shall any such expenditure for third party nongovernmental
contracts be made by any Executive Department agency in response to a legislative request for a study, without the prior approval of
two of the following persons: the Chairman of the House Appropriations Committee; the Chairman of the Senate Finance
Committee; the Speaker of the House of Delegates; the President pro tempore of the Senate. All such expenditures shall be made
only in accordance with the terms of a written contract approved as to form by the Attorney General.

c. USE OF CONSULTING SERVICES: All state agencies and institutions of higher education shall make a determination of "return
 on investment" as part of the criteria for awarding contracts for consulting services.

14 d. DEBT COLLECTION SERVICES:

1. Notwithstanding any provision of the Code of Virginia or this act to the contrary, the Virginia Commonwealth University Health
 System Authority shall have the option to participate in the Office of the Attorney General's debt collection process. Should the
 Authority choose not to participate, the Authority shall have the authority to collect its accounts receivable by engaging private
 collection agents and attorneys to pursue collection actions, and to independently compromise, settle, and discharge accounts
 receivable claims.

20 2. Notwithstanding any provision of the Code of Virginia or this act to the contrary, the University of Virginia Medical Center shall
21 have the authority to collect its accounts receivable by engaging private collection agents and attorneys to pursue collection actions,
22 and to independently compromise, settle, and discharge accounts receivable claims, provided that the University of Virginia
23 demonstrates to the Secretary of Finance that debt collection by an agent other than the Office of the Attorney General is anticipated
24 to be more cost effective. Nothing in this paragraph is intended to limit the ability of the University of Virginia Medical Center from
25 voluntarily contracting with the Office of the Attorney General's Division of Debt Collection in cases where the Center would
26 benefit from the expertise of legal counsel and collection services offered by the Office of the Attorney General.

3. Notwithstanding any provision of the Code of Virginia or this act to the contrary, the Department of Taxation shall be exempt from participating in the debt collection process of the Office of the Attorney General.

29 § 4-5.03 SERVICES AND CLIENTS

30 a. CHANGED COST FACTORS:

1. No state agency, or its governing body, shall alter factors (e.g., qualification level for receipt of payment or service) which may increase the number of eligible recipients for its authorized services or payments, or alter factors which may increase the unit cost of benefit payments within its authorized services, unless the General Assembly has made an appropriation for the cost of such change.

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Department of Planning and Budget, with assistance from agencies that operate
 internal service funds as requested, shall establish policies and procedures for annually reviewing and approving internal service
 fund overhead surcharge rates and working capital reserves.

37 3. By September 1 each year, state agencies that operate an internal service fund, pursuant to §§ 2.2-803, 2.2-1101, and 2.2-2013, 38 Code of Virginia, that have an impact on agency expenditures, shall submit a report to the Department of Planning and Budget and 39 the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission to include all information as required by the Department of Planning and 40 Budget to conduct a thorough review of overhead surcharge rates, revenues, expenditures, full-time positions, and working capital 41 reserves for each internal service fund. The report shall include any proposed modifications in rates to be charged by internal service 42 funds for review and approval by the Department of Planning and Budget. In its review, the Department of Planning and Budget 43 shall determine whether the requested rate modifications are consistent with budget assumptions. The format by which agencies 44 submit the operating plan for each internal service fund shall be determined by the Department of Planning and Budget with 45 assistance from agencies that operate internal service funds as requested.

- 46 4. State agencies that operate internal service funds may not change a billable overhead surcharge rate to another state agency unless47 the resulting change is provided in the final General Assembly enacted budget.
- 48 5. State agencies that operate more than one internal service fund shall comply with the review and approval requirements detailed in this Item for each internal service fund.
- 6. As determined by the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, state agencies that operate select programs where an agency
 provides a service to and bills other agencies shall be subject to the annual review of the agency's internal service funds consistent

with the provisions of this Item, unless such payment for services is pursuant to a memorandum of understanding authorized by
 § 4-1.03 a. 7 of this act.

3 7. The Governor is authorized to change internal service fund overhead surcharge rates, including the creation of new rates,

beyond the rates enacted in the budget in the event of an emergency or to implement actions approved by the General Assembly, upon prior notice to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees. Such prior notice shall be no less than five days prior to enactment of a revised or new rate and shall include the basis of the rate change and the impact on state agencies.

8 8. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Commonwealth's statewide electronic procurement system and program
9 known as eVA shall have all rates and working capital reserves reviewed and approved by the Department of Planning and
10 Budget consistent with the provisions of this Item.

9. State agencies that are partially or fully funded with nongeneral funds and are billed for services provided by another state
 agency shall pay the nongeneral fund cost for the service from the agency's applicable nongeneral fund revenue source
 consistent with an appropriation proration of such expenses.

b. NEW SERVICES:

15 1. No state agency shall begin any new service that will call for future additional property, plant or equipment or that will
 require an increase in subsequent general or nongeneral fund operating expenses without first obtaining the authorization of the
 General Assembly.

2. Pursuant to the policies and procedures of the State Council of Higher Education regarding approval of academic programs
 and the concomitant enrollment, no state institution of higher education shall operate any academic program with funds in this
 act unless approved by the Council and included in the Executive Budget, or approved by the General Assembly. The Council
 may grant exemptions to this policy in exceptional circumstances.

22 3. a) The General Assembly is supportive of the increasing commitment by both Virginia Tech and the Carilion Clinic to the 23 success of the programs at the Virginia Tech/Carilion School of Medicine and the Virginia Tech/Carilion Research Institute, 24 and encourages these two institutions to pursue further developments in their partnership. Therefore, notwithstanding § 4-5.03 25 c. of the Appropriation Act, if through the efforts of these institutions to further strengthen the partnership, Virginia Tech 26 acquires the Virginia Tech Carilion School of Medicine during the current biennium, the General Assembly approves the 27 creation and establishment of the Virginia Tech/Carilion School of Medicine within the institution notwithstanding § 23.1-203 28 Code of Virginia. No additional funds are required to implement establishment of the Virginia Tech/Carilion School of 29 Medicine within the institution.

30 b) Virginia Tech Carilion School of Medicine is hereby authorized to transfer funds to the Department of Medical Assistance

Services to fully fund the state share for Medicaid supplemental payments to the teaching hospital affiliated with the Virginia
 Tech Carilion School of Medicine. These Medicaid supplemental fee-for-service and/or capitation payments to managed care
 organizations are for the purpose of securing access to Medicaid hospital services in Western Virginia. The funds to be
 transferred must comply with 42 CFR 433.51.

- 4. Reporting on all new services shall be in accordance with § 4-8.00, Reporting Requirements.
- 36 c. OFF-CAMPUS SITES OF INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION:
- 37 No moneys appropriated by this act shall be used for off-campus sites unless as provided for in this section.

1. A public college or university seeking to create, establish, or operate an off-campus instructional site, funded directly or indirectly from the general fund or with revenue from tuition and mandatory educational and general fees generated from credit course offerings, shall first refer the matter to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia for its consideration and approval. The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia may provide institutions with conditional approval to operate the site for up to one year, after which time the college or university must receive approval from the Governor and General Assembly, through legislation or appropriation, to continue operating the site.

44 2. For the colleges of the Virginia Community College System, the State Board for Community Colleges shall be responsible
45 for approving off-campus locations. Sites governed by this requirement are those at any locations not contiguous to the main
46 campus of the institution, including locations outside Virginia.

47 3. a) The provisions herein shall not apply to credit offerings on the site of a public or private entity if the offerings are
48 supported entirely with private, local, or federal funds or revenue from tuition and mandatory educational and general fees
49 generated entirely by course offerings at the site.

- 50 b) Offerings at previously approved off-campus locations shall also not be subject to these provisions.
- c) Further, the provisions herein do not govern the establishment and operations of campus sites with a primary function of

- carrying out grant and contract research where direct and indirect costs from such research are covered through external funding
 sources. Such locations may offer limited graduate education as appropriate to support the research mission of the site.
- d) Nothing herein shall prohibit an institution from offering non-credit continuing education programs at sites away from the main
 campus of a college or university.
- 5 4. The State Council of Higher Education shall establish guidelines to implement this provision.
- 6 d. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

1. In accordance with § 2.2-1501, Code of Virginia, the Department of Planning and Budget shall develop a programmatic budget and accounting structure for all new programs and activities to ensure that it provides the appropriate financial and performance measures to determine if programs achieve desired results and outcomes. The Department of Accounts shall provide assistance as requested by the Department of Planning and Budget. The Department of Planning and Budget shall provide this information each year when the Governor submits the budget in accordance with § 2.2-1509, Code of Virginia, to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations, House Finance, and Senate Finance Committees.

13 2.a) Within thirty days of the enactment of this act, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall make available via
14 electronic means to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the public a list of the new
15 initiatives for which appropriations are provided in this act.

b) Not later than ninety days after the end of the first year of the biennium, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall
make available via electronic means a report on the performance of each new initiative contained in the list, to be submitted to the
Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees and the public. The report shall compare the actual results,
including expenditures, of the initiative with the anticipated results and the appropriation for the initiative. This information shall be
used to determine whether the initiative should be extended beyond the beginning period. In the preparation of this report, all state
agencies shall provide assistance as requested by the Department of Planning and Budget.

22 § 4-5.04 GOODS AND SERVICES

23 a. STUDENT ATTENDANCE AT INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION:

24 1. Public Information Encouraged: Each public institution of higher education is expected and encouraged to provide prospective 25 students with accurate and objective information about its programs and services. The institution may use public funds under the 26 control of the institution's Board of Visitors for the development, preparation and dissemination of factual information about the 27 following subjects: academic programs; special programs for minorities; dates, times and procedures for registration; dates and times 28 of course offerings; admission requirements; financial aid; tuition and fee schedules; and other information normally distributed 29 through the college catalog. This information may be presented in any and all media, such as newspapers, magazines, television or 30 radio where the information may be in the form of news, public service announcements or advertisements. Other forms of acceptable presentation would include brochures, pamphlets, posters, notices, bulletins, official catalogs, flyers available at public places and 31 formal or informal meetings with prospective students. 32

2. Excessive Promotion Prohibited: Each public institution of higher education is prohibited from using public funds under the
 control of the institution's Board of Visitors for the development, preparation, dissemination or presentation of any material intended
 or designed to induce students to attend by exaggerating or extolling the institution's virtues, faculty, students, facilities or programs
 through the use of hyperbole. Artwork and photographs which exaggerate or extol rather than supplement or complement
 permissible information are prohibited. Mass mailings are generally prohibited; however, either mass mailings or newspaper inserts,
 but not both, may be used if other methods of distributing permissible information are not economically feasible in the institution's

- 40 3. Remedial Education: Senior institutions of higher education shall make arrangements with community colleges for the
 41 remediation of students accepted for admission by the senior institutions.
- 42 4. Compliance: The president or chancellor of each institution of higher education is responsible for the institution's compliance with43 this subsection.
- 44 b. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FACILITIES AND SERVICES:

45 1.a) The Virginia Information Technologies Agency shall procure information technology and telecommunications goods and
 46 services of every description for its own benefit or on behalf of other state agencies and institutions, or authorize other state agencies
 47 or institutions to undertake such procurements on their own.

b) Except for research projects, research initiatives, or instructional programs at public institutions of higher education, or any non major information technology project request from the Virginia Community College System, Longwood University, or from an
 institution of higher education which is a member of the Virginia Association of State Colleges and University Purchasing
 Professionals (VASCUPP) as of July 1, 2003, or any procurement of information technology and telecommunications goods and

52 services by public institutions of higher education governed by some combination of Chapters 933 and 945 of the 2005 Acts of

Assembly, Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, Chapters
 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, requests for authorization
 from state agencies and institutions to procure information technology and telecommunications goods and services on their own
 behalf shall be made in writing to the Chief Information Officer or his designee. Members of VASCUPP as of July 1, 2003, are
 hereby recognized as: The College of William and Mary, George Mason University, James Madison University, Old Dominion
 University, Radford University, Virginia Commonwealth University, Virginia Military Institute, Virginia Polytechnic Institute
 and State University, and the University of Virginia.

8 c) The Chief Information Officer or his designee may grant the authorization upon a written determination that the request
 9 conforms to the statewide information technology plan and the individual information technology plan of the requesting agency
 10 or institution.

d) Any procurement authorized by the Chief Information Officer or his designee for information technology and
 telecommunications goods and services, including geographic information systems, shall be issued by the requesting state
 agency or institution in accordance with the regulations, policies, procedures, standards, and guidelines of the Virginia
 Information Technologies Agency.

e) Nothing in this subsection shall prevent public institutions of higher education or the Virginia Community College Systemfrom using the services of Network Virginia.

f) To ensure that the Commonwealth's research universities maintain a competitive position with access to the national optical
 research network infrastructure including the National LambdaRail and Internet2, the Network Virginia Contract Administrator
 is hereby authorized to renegotiate the term of the existing contracts. Additionally, the contract administrator is authorized to
 competitively negotiate additional agreements in accordance with the Code of Virginia and all applicable regulations, as
 required, to establish and maintain research network infrastructure.

22 2. If the billing rates and associated systems for computer, telecommunications and systems development services to state
 23 agencies are altered, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, may transfer appropriations from the general fund
 24 between programs affected. These transfers are limited to actions needed to adjust for overfunding or underfunding the program
 25 appropriations affected by the altered billing systems.

3. The provisions of this subsection shall not in any way affect the duties and responsibilities of the State Comptroller under the provisions of § 2.2-803, Code of Virginia.

4. It is the intent of the General Assembly that information technology (IT) systems, products, data, and service costs, including geographic information systems (GIS), be contained through the shared use of existing or planned equipment, data, or services which may be available or soon made available for use by state agencies, institutions, authorities, and other public bodies. State agencies, institutions, and authorities shall cooperate with the Virginia Information Technologies Agency in identifying the development and operational requirements for proposed IT and GIS systems, products, data, and services, including the proposed use, functionality, capacity and the total cost of acquisition, operation and maintenance.

5. This section shall not apply to public institutions of higher education governed by some combination of Chapters 933 and
945 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly or Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008
Acts of Assembly, Chapters 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of
Assembly, or to the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority.

6. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, state agencies that do not receive computer services from the Virginia
 Information Technologies Agency may develop their own policies and procedures governing the sale of surplus computers and
 laptops to their employees or officials. Any proceeds from the sale of surplus computers or laptops shall be deposited into the
 appropriate fund or funds used to purchase the equipment.

42 c. MOTOR VEHICLES AND AIRCRAFT:

43 1. No motor vehicles shall be purchased or leased with public funds by the state or any officer or employee on behalf of the44 state without the prior written approval of the Director, Department of General Services.

2. The institutions of higher education and the Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority shall be exempt from this provision but
shall be required to report their entire inventory of purchased and leased vehicles including the cost of such to the Director of
the Department of General Services by June 30 of each year. The Director of the Department of General Services shall compare
the cost of vehicles acquired by institutions of higher education and the Authority to like vehicles under the state contract. If the
comparison demonstrates for a given institution or the Authority that the cost to the Commonwealth is greater for like vehicles
than would be the case based on a contract of statewide applicability, the Governor or his designee may suspend the exemption
granted to the institution or the Authority pursuant to this subparagraph c.

52 3. The Director, Department of General Services, is hereby authorized to transfer surplus motor vehicles among the state
 53 agencies, and determine the value of such surplus equipment for the purpose of maintaining the financial accounts of the state

1 agencies affected by such transfers.

2 d. MOTION PICTURE, TELEVISION AND RADIO SERVICES PRODUCTION: Except for public institutions of higher 3 education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, no state Executive Department agency or the Virginia 4 Lottery Department shall expend any public funds for the production of motion picture films or of programs for television 5 transmission, or for the operation of television or radio transmission facilities, without the prior written approval of the Governor or 6 as otherwise provided in this act, except for educational television programs produced for elementary-secondary education by 7 authority of the Virginia Information Technologies Agency. The Joint Subcommittee on Rules is authorized to provide the approval 8 of such expenditures for legislative agencies. For judicial agencies and independent agencies, other than the Virginia Lottery Department, prior approval action rests with the supervisory bodies of these entities. With respect to television programs which are 9 10 so approved and other programs which are otherwise authorized or are not produced for television transmission, state agencies may 11 enter into contracts without competitive sealed bidding, or competitive negotiation, for program production and transmission 12 services which are performed by public telecommunications entities, as defined in § 2.2-2006, Code of Virginia.

e. TRAVEL: Reimbursement for the cost of travel on official business of the state government is authorized to be paid pursuant to
 law and regulations issued by the State Comptroller to implement such law. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of law:

1. For the use of personal automobiles in the discharge of official duties outside the continental limits of the United States, the State
 Comptroller may authorize an allowance not exceeding the actual cost of operation of such automobiles;

17 2. The first 15,000 miles of use during each fiscal year of personal automobiles in the discharge of official duties within the 18 continental limits of the United States shall be reimbursed at an amount equal to the most recent business standard mileage rate as 19 established by the Internal Revenue Service for employees or self-employed individuals to use in computing their income tax 20 deductible costs for operating passenger vehicles owned or leased by them for business purposes, or in the instance of a state 21 employee, at the lesser of (a) the IRS rate or (b) the lowest combined capital and operational trip pool rate charged by the 22 Department of General Services, Office of Fleet Management Services (OFMS), posted on the OFMS website at time of travel, for 23 the use of a compact state-owned vehicle. If the head of the state agency concerned certifies that a state-owned vehicle was not 24 available, or if, according to regulations issued by the State Comptroller, the use of a personal automobile in lieu of a state-owned 25 automobile is considered to be an advantage to the state, the reimbursement shall be at the rate of the IRS rate. For such use in 26 excess of 15,000 miles in each fiscal year, the reimbursement shall be at a rate of 13.0 cents per mile, unless a state-owned vehicle is 27 not available; then the rate shall be the IRS rate;

- 28 3. The State Comptroller may authorize exemptions to restrictions upon use of common carrier accommodations;
- 4. The State Comptroller may authorize reimbursement by per diem in lieu of actual costs of meals and any other expense categorydeemed necessary for the efficient and effective operation of state government;
- 5. State employees traveling on official business of state government shall be reimbursed for their travel costs using the same bank
 account authorized by the employee in which their net pay is direct deposited; and
- 33 6. This section shall not apply to members and employees of public school boards.

f. SMALL PURCHASE CHARGE CARD, ELECTRONIC DATA INTERCHANGE, DIRECT DEPOSIT, AND PAYLINE OPT
 OUT: The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to charge state agencies a fee of \$5 per check or earnings notice when, in his
 judgment, agencies have failed to comply with the Commonwealth's electronic commerce initiatives to reduce unnecessary
 administrative costs for the printing and mailing of state checks and earning notices. The fee shall be collected by the Department of

- **38** Accounts through accounting entries.
- g. PURCHASES OF APPLIANCES AND EQUIPMENT: State agencies and institutions shall purchase Energy Star rated
 appliances and equipment in all cases where such appliances and equipment are available.

h. ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS: Any recipient of payments from the State Treasury who receives six or more payments per year
 issued by the State Treasurer shall receive such payments electronically. The State Treasurer shall decide the appropriate method of
 electronic payment and, through his warrant issuance authority, the State Comptroller shall enforce the provisions of this section.
 The State Comptroller is authorized to grant administrative relief to this requirement when circumstances justify non-electronic
 payment.

- i. LOCAL AND NON-STATE SAVINGS AND EFFICIENCIES: It is the intent of the General Assembly that State agencies shall
 encourage and assist local governments, school divisions, and other non-state governmental entities in their efforts to achieve cost
 savings and efficiencies in the provision of mandated functions and services including but not limited to finance, procurement, social
 services programs, and facilities management.
- 50 j. TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES AND DEVICES:

51 1. The Chief Information Officer and the State Comptroller shall develop statewide requirements for the use of cellular telephones
 52 and other telecommunication devices by in-scope Executive Department agencies, addressing the assignment, evaluation of need,
 53 safeguarding, monitoring, and usage of these telecommunication devices. The requirements shall include an acceptable use

agreement template clearly defining an employee's responsibility when they receive and use a telecommunication device.
 Statewide requirements shall require some form of identification on a device in case it is lost or stolen and procedures to wipe the device clean of all sensitive information when it is no longer in use.

2. In-scope Executive Department agencies providing employees with telecommunication devices shall develop agency specific policies, incorporating the guidance provided in § 4-5.04 k. 1. of this act and shall maintain a cost justification for the assignment or a public health, welfare and safety need.

3. The Chief Information Officer shall determine the optimal number of telecommunication vendors and plans necessary to meet the needs of in-scope Executive Department agency personnel. The Chief Information Officer shall regularly procure these services and provide statewide contracts for use by all such agencies. These contracts shall require the vendors to provide detailed usage information in a useable electronic format to enable the in-scope agencies to properly monitor usage to make informed purchasing decisions and minimize costs.

4. The Chief Information Officer shall examine the feasibility of providing tools for in-scope Executive Department agencies to
analyze usage and cost data to assist in determining the most cost effective plan combinations for the entity as a whole and
individual users.

k. ALTERNATIVE PROCUREMENT: If any payment is declared unconstitutional for any reason or if the Attorney General
finds in a formal, written, legal opinion that a payment is unconstitutional, in circumstances where a good or service can
constitutionally be the subject of a purchase, the administering agency of such payment is authorized to use the affected
appropriation to procure, by means of the Commonwealth's Procurement Act, goods and services, which are similar to those
sought by such payment in order to accomplish the original legislative intent.

1. MEDICAL SERVICES: No expenditures from general or nongeneral fund sources may be made out of any appropriation by
 the General Assembly for providing abortion services, except otherwise as required by federal law or state statute.

22 § 4-5.05 NONSTATE AGENCIES, INTERSTATE COMPACTS AND ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

a. The accounts of any agency, however titled, which receives funds from this or any other appropriating act, and is not owned
 or controlled by the Commonwealth of Virginia, shall be subject to audit or shall present an audit acceptable to the Auditor of
 Public Accounts when so directed by the Governor or the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission.

- 26 b.1. For purposes of this subsection, the definition of "nonstate agency" is that contained in § 2.2-1505, Code of Virginia.
- 27 2. Allotment of appropriations to nonstate agencies shall be subject to the following criteria:
- a) Such agency is located in and operates in Virginia.
- b) The agency must be open to the public or otherwise engaged in activity of public interest, with expenditures having actuallybeen incurred for its operation.

31 3. No allotment of appropriations shall be made to a nonstate agency until such agency has certified to the Secretary of Finance
 32 that cash or in-kind contributions are on hand and available to match equally all or any part of an appropriation which may be
 33 provided by the General Assembly, unless the organization is specifically exempted from this requirement by language in this

- 34 act. Such matching funds shall not have been previously used to meet the match requirement in any prior appropriation act.
- 4. Operating appropriations for nonstate agencies equal to or in excess of \$150,000 shall be disbursed to nonstate agencies in
 twelve or fewer equal monthly installments depending on when the first payment is made within the fiscal year. Operating
 appropriations for nonstate agencies of less than \$150,000 shall be disbursed in one payment once the nonstate agency has
 successfully met applicable match and application requirements.
- 39 5. The provisions of § 2.2-4343 A 14, Code of Virginia shall apply to any expenditure of state appropriations by a nonstate agency.
- c.1. Each interstate compact commission and each organization in which the Commonwealth of Virginia or a state agency
 thereof holds membership, and the dues for which are provided in this act or any other appropriating act, shall submit its
 biennial budget request to the state agency under which such commission or organization is listed in this act. The state agency
 shall include the request of such commission or organization within its own request, but identified separately. Requests by the
 commission or organization for disbursements from appropriations shall be submitted to the designated state agency.
- 2. Each state agency shall submit by November 1 each year, a report to the Director, Department of Planning and Budget,
 listing the name and purpose for organizational memberships held by that agency with annual dues of \$5,000 or more. The
 institutions of higher education shall be exempt from this reporting requirement.

49 § 4-5.06 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

50 a. The designation in this act of an officer or agency head to perform a specified duty shall not be deemed to supersede the

1 authority of the Governor to delegate powers under the provisions of § 2.2-104, Code of Virginia.

b. The nongeneral fund capital outlay decentralization programs initiated pursuant to § 4-5.08b of Chapter 912, 1996 Acts of
 Assembly as continued in subsequent appropriation acts are hereby made permanent. Decentralization programs for which
 institutions have executed memoranda of understanding with the Secretary of Administration pursuant to the provisions of § 4-5.08b

5 of Chapter 912, 1996 Acts of Assembly shall no longer be considered pilot projects, and shall remain in effect until revoked.

c. Institutions wishing to participate in a nongeneral fund capital outlay decentralization program for the first time shall submit a
letter of interest to the appropriate Cabinet Secretary. Within 90 calendar days of the receipt of the institution's request to participate,
the responsible Cabinet Secretary shall determine whether the institution meets the eligibility criteria and, if appropriate, establish a
decentralization program at the institution. The Cabinet Secretary shall report to the Governor and Chairmen of the Senate Finance
and House Appropriations Committees by December 1 of each year all institutions that have applied for inclusion in a
decentralization program and whether the institutions have been granted authority to participate in the decentralization program.

- d. The provisions identified in § 4-5.08 f and § 4-5.08 h of Chapter 1042 of the Acts of Assembly of 2003 pertaining to pilot
 programs for selected capital outlay projects and memoranda of understanding in institutions of higher education are hereby
 continued. Notwithstanding these provisions, those projects shall be insured through the state's risk management liability program.
- e. If during an independent audit conducted by the Auditor of Public Accounts, the audit discloses that an institution is not
 performing within the terms of the memoranda of understanding or their addenda, the Auditor shall report this information to the
 Governor, the responsible Cabinet Secretary, and the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees.
- f. Institutions that have executed memoranda of understanding with the Secretary of Administration for nongeneral fund capital
 outlay decentralization programs are hereby granted a waiver from the provisions of § 2.2-4301, Competitive Negotiation,
 subdivision 3a, Code of Virginia, regarding the not to exceed amount of \$100,000 for a single project, the not to exceed sum of
 \$500,000 for all projects performed, and the option to renew for two additional one-year terms.
- g. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law or this act, delegations of authority in this act to the Governor shall apply only to
 agencies and personnel within the Executive Department, unless specifically stated otherwise.
- h. This section shall not apply to public institutions of higher education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly.

26 § 4-5.07 LEASE, LICENSE OR USE AGREEMENTS

27 a. Agencies shall not acquire or occupy real property through lease, license or use agreement until the agency certifies to the 28 Director, Department of General Services, that (i) funds are available within the agency's appropriations made by this act for the cost 29 of the lease, license or use agreement and (ii) except for good cause as determined by the Department of General Services, the 30 volume of such space conforms with the space planning procedures for leased facilities developed by the Department of General Services and approved by the Governor. The Department of General Services shall acquire and hold such space for use by state 31 32 departments, agencies and institutions within the Executive Branch and may utilize brokerage services, portfolio management 33 strategies, strategic planning, transaction management, project and construction management, and lease administration strategies 34 consistent with industry best practices as adopted by the Department from time to time. These provisions may be waived in writing 35 by the Director, Department of General Services. However, these provisions shall not apply to institutions of higher education that 36 have met the conditions prescribed in subsection B of § 23.1-1006, Code of Virginia.

b. Agencies acquiring personal property in accordance with § 2.2-2417, Code of Virginia, shall certify to the State Treasurer that
funds are available within the agency's appropriations made by this act for the cost of the lease.

39 § 4-5.08 SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING PERFORMANCE GRANT PROGRAMS

40 a. The Comptroller shall not draw any warrants to issue checks for semiconductor manufacturing performance grant programs, 41 pursuant to Title 59.1, Chapter 22.3, Code of Virginia, without a specific legislative appropriation. The appropriation shall be in 42 accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in a memorandum of understanding between a qualified manufacturer and the Commonwealth. These terms and conditions shall supplement the provisions of the Semiconductor Manufacturing Performance 43 44 Grant Program, the Semiconductor Memory or Logic Wafer Manufacturing Performance Grant Program, and the Semiconductor 45 Memory or Logic Wafer Manufacturing Performance Grant Program II, as applicable, and shall include but not be limited to the numbers and types of semiconductor wafers that are produced; the level of investment directly related to the building and equipment 46 47 for manufacturing of wafers or activities ancillary to or supportive of such manufacturer within the eligible locality; and the direct 48 employment related to these programs. To that end, the Secretary of Commerce and Trade shall certify in writing to the Governor 49 and to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees the extent to which a qualified manufacturer met 50 the terms and conditions. The appropriation shall be made in full or in proportion to a qualified manufacturer's fulfillment of the 51 memorandum of understanding.

b. The Governor shall consult with the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees before amending any existing
 memorandum of understanding. These Committees shall have the opportunity to review any changes prior to their execution by the

- 1 Commonwealth.
- 2 § 4-5.09 DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY
- a. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia, the departments, divisions, institutions, or agencies of the
 Commonwealth, or the Governor, shall sell or lease surplus real property only under the following circumstances:
- 5 1. Any emergency declared in accordance with §§ 44-146.18:2 or § 44-146.28, Code of Virginia, or
- 6 2. Not less than thirty days after the Governor notifies, in writing, the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate
 7 Finance Committees regarding the planned conveyance, including a statement of the proceeds to be derived from such
 8 conveyance and the individual or entity taking title to such property.
- 9 3. Surplus property valued at less than \$5,000,000 that is possessed and controlled by a public institution of higher education,
 10 pursuant to §§ 2.2-1149 and 2.2-1153, Code of Virginia.
- b. In any circumstance provided for in subsection a of this section, the cognizant board or governing body of the agency or
 institution holding title or otherwise controlling the state-owned property shall approve, in writing, the proposed conveyance of
 the property.
- 14 c. In accordance with § 15.2-2005, Code of Virginia, the consent of the General Assembly is herein provided for the road 15 known as Standpipe Road, that was relocated and established on a portion of the Virginia Department of Transportation's 16 Culpeper District Office property, identified as Tax Map No. 50-28, to improve the operational efficiency of the local road 17 network in the Town of Culpeper. Further, the Virginia Department of Transportation is hereby authorized to convey to the 18 Town of Culpeper, upon such terms and conditions as the Department deems proper and for such considerations the 19 Department may determine, the property on which "Standpipe Road (Relocated)(Variable Width R/W)" on the plat entitled 20 "plat Showing Property and Various Easements for Standpipe Road Relocated, Tax Map 50-28, Town of Culpeper, Culpeper 21 County, Virginia" prepared by ATCS P.L.C and sealed March 14, 2012, together with easements to the Town of Culpeper for 22 electric utility, slopes and drainage as shown on said plat. The conveyance shall be made with the approval of the Governor 23 and in a form approved by the Attorney General. The appropriate officials of the Commonwealth are hereby authorized to 24 prepare, execute, and deliver such deed and other documents as may be necessary to accomplish the conveyance.
- d. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.2-1156, Code of Virginia, if tax-exempt bonds were issued by the Commonwealth or
 its related authorities, boards or institutions to finance the acquisition, construction, improvement or equipping of real property,
 proceeds from the sale or disposition of such property and any improvements may first be applied toward remediation options
 available under federal law to maintain the tax-exempt status of such bonds.

29 § 4-5.10 SURPLUS PROPERTY TRANSFERS FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

- a. The Commonwealth shall receive the fair market value of surplus state property which is designated by the Governor for
 economic development purposes, and for any properties owned by an Industrial Development Authority in any county where
 the Commonwealth has a continuing interest based on the deferred portion of the purchase price, which shall be assessed by
 more than one independent appraiser certified as a Licensed General Appraiser. Such property shall not be disposed of for less
 than its fair market value as determined by the assessments.
- b. Recognizing the commercial, business and industrial development potential of certain lands declared surplus, and for any properties owned by an Industrial Development Authority in any county where the Commonwealth has a continuing interest based on the deferred portion of the purchase price, the Governor shall be authorized to utilize funds available in the Governor's discretion, to meet the requirements of the preceding subsection a. Sale proceeds, together with the money from the Commonwealth's Development Opportunity Fund, shall be deposited as provided in § 2.2-1156 D, Code of Virginia.
- c. Within thirty days of closing on the sale of surplus property designated for economic development, the Governor or his
 designee shall report to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees. The report shall include
 information on the number of acres sold, sales price, amount of proceeds deposited to the general fund and Conservation
 Resources Fund, and the fair market value of the sold property.
- d. Except for subaqueous lands that have been filled prior to January 1, 2006, the Governor shall not sell or convey those
 subaqueous lands identified by metes and bounds in Chapter 884 of the Acts of the Assembly of 2006.

46 § 4-6.00 POSITIONS AND EMPLOYMENT

47 § 4-6.01 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

- 48 a. The compensation of all kinds and from all sources of each appointee of the Governor and of each officer and employee in
- 49 the Executive Department who enters the service of the Commonwealth or who is promoted to a vacant position shall be fixed
- 50 at such rate as shall be approved by the Governor in writing or as is in accordance with rules and regulations established by the
- 51 Governor. No increase shall be made in such compensation except with the Governor's written approval first obtained or in

accordance with the rules and regulations established by the Governor. In all cases where any appointee, officer or employee is employed or promoted to fill a vacancy in a position for which a salary is specified by this act, the Governor may fix the salary of such officer or employee at a lower rate or amount within the respective level than is specified. In those instances where a position is created by an act of the General Assembly but not specified by this act, the Governor may fix the salary of such position in accordance with the provisions of this subsection.

b. Annual salaries of persons appointed to positions by the General Assembly, pursuant to the provisions of §§ 2.2-200 and 2.2-400,
Code of Virginia, shall be paid in the amounts shown. However, if an incumbent is reappointed, his or her salary may be as high as his or her prior salary.

10 11 Chie 12	ef of Staff retary of Administration	to June 24, 2019 \$175,000 \$172,000	to November 24, 2019 \$175,000 \$178,500	to June 30, 2020 \$175,000 \$178,500
11 Chie		\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000
12	retary of Administration	\$172.000	\$178,500	\$178 500
	retary of Administration	\$172.000		$\psi_1 / 0, 500$
13 Seci	•	$\phi_{1}/2,000$	\$172,000	\$172,000
14			\$175,440	\$175,440
15 Seci	retary of Agriculture and	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
	estry	. ,	\$175,440	\$175,440
17 Seci	retary of Commerce and	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
18 Trac		, , <u>,</u>	\$175,440	\$175,440
19 Seci	retary of the Commonwealth	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
20		+ - · _ , • • •	\$175,440	\$175,440
21 Seci	retary of Education	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
22		+ - · _ , • • •	\$175,440	\$175,440
23 Seci	retary of Finance	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
24	5	\$175,980	\$179,500	\$179,500
25 Seci	retary of Health and Human	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
	ources		\$175,440	\$175,440
27 Seci	retary of Natural Resources	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
28			\$175,440	\$175,440
29 Seci	retary of Public Safety and	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
	neland Security	\$173,903	\$177,381	\$177,381
31 Seci	retary of Transportation	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
32			\$175,440	\$175,440
33 Seci	retary of Veterans and	\$172,000	\$172,000	\$172,000
	ense Affairs		\$175,440	\$175,440
	retary of Workforce velopment	\$172,000	\$175,440	\$175,440

c.1.a) Annual salaries of persons appointed to positions listed in subdivision c 6 hereof shall be paid in the amounts shown for the
 current biennium, unless changed in accordance with conditions stated in subdivisions c 2 through c 5 hereof.

b) The starting salary of a new appointee shall not exceed the midpoint of the range, except where the midpoint salary is less than a
ten percent increase from an appointee's preappointment compensation. In such cases, an appointee's starting salary may be set at a
rate which is ten percent higher than the preappointment compensation, provided that the maximum of the range is not exceeded.
However, in instances where an appointee's preappointment compensation exceeded the maximum of the respective salary range,
then the salary for that appointee may be set at the maximum salary for the respective salary range except if the new hire was
employed in a state classified position, then the Governor may exceed the maximum salary for the position and set the salary for the

- 1 employee at a salary level not to exceed the employee's salary at their prior state position.
- 2 c) Nothing in subdivision c 1 shall be interpreted to supersede the provisions of § 4-6.01 e, f, g, h, i, j, k, l, and m of this act.

d) For new appointees to positions listed in § 4-6.01c.6., the Governor is authorized to provide for fringe benefits in addition to
 those otherwise provided by law, including post retirement health care and other non-salaried benefits provided to similar
 positions in the public sector.

6 2.a)1) The Governor may increase or decrease the annual salary for incumbents of positions listed in subdivision c 6 below at a rate of up to 10 percent in any single fiscal year between the minimum and the maximum of the respective salary range in accordance with an assessment of performance and service to the Commonwealth.

9 2) The governing boards of the independent agencies may increase or decrease the annual salary for incumbents of positions
10 listed in subdivision c.7. below at a rate of up to 10 percent in any fiscal year between the minimum and maximum of the
11 respective salary range, in accordance with an assessment of performance and service to the Commonwealth.

b)1) The appointing or governing authority may grant performance bonuses of 0-5 percent for positions whose salaries are
listed in §§ 1-1 through 1-9, and 4-6.01 b, c, and d of this act, based on an annual assessment of performance, in accordance
with policies and procedures established by such appointing or governing authority. Such performance bonuses shall be over
and above the salaries listed in this act, and shall not become part of the base rate of pay.

16 2) The appointing or governing authority shall report performance bonuses which are granted to executive branch employees to17 the Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

3. From the effective date of the Executive Pay Plan set forth in Chapter 601, Acts of Assembly of 1981, all incumbents
holding positions listed in this § 4-6.01 shall be eligible for all fringe benefits provided to full-time classified state employees
and, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, the annual salary paid pursuant to this § 4-6.01 shall be included as
creditable compensation for the calculation of such benefits.

4. Notwithstanding § 4-6.01.c.2.b)1) of this Act, the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Port Authority may supplement
 the salary of its Executive Director, with the prior approval of the Governor. The Board should be guided by criteria which
 provide a reasonable limit on the total additional income of the Executive Director. The criteria should include, without
 limitation, a consideration of the salaries paid to similar officials at comparable ports of other states. The Board shall report
 approved supplements to the Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

5.a. With the written approval of the Governor, the Board of Trustees of the Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, the Science
Museum of Virginia, the Virginia Museum of Natural History, Gunston Hall, and the Library Board may supplement the salary
of the Director of each museum, and the Librarian of Virginia from nonstate funds. In approving a supplement, the Governor
should be guided by criteria which provide a reasonable limit on the total additional income and the criteria should include,
without limitation, a consideration of the salaries paid to similar officials at comparable museums and libraries of other states.
The respective Boards shall report approved supplements to the Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

b) The Board of Trustees of the Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation may supplement, using nonstate funds, the salary of the
 Executive Director of the Foundation. In approving the supplement the Board should be guided by criteria which provides a
 reasonable limit on the total additional income and the criteria should include, without limitation, a consideration of the salaries
 paid to similar officials at comparable Foundations in other states. The Board shall report approved supplements to the
 Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

39 6.a) The following salaries shall be paid for the current biennium in the amounts shown, however, all salary changes shall be subject to subdivisions c 2 through c 5 above.

41		July 1, 2018	June 25, 2019	November 25, 2019
		to	to	to
42		June 24, 2019	November 24, 2019	June 30, 2020
43 44	Level I Range	\$155,442 - \$235,000 \$164,651 - \$235,000	\$155,442 - \$235,000 \$167,944 - \$239,700	\$155,442 - \$235,000 \$167,944 - \$239,700
45 46	Midpoint	\$184,051 \$198,825	\$184,051 \$203,822	\$184,051 \$203,822
47 48 49	Chief Information Officer, Virginia Information Technologies Agency	\$180,250 \$189,263	\$180,250 <i>\$193,048</i>	\$180,250 <i>\$193,048</i>

1	Commissioner, Department of	\$164,970	\$164,970	\$164,970
2	Motor Vehicles	+	\$168,269	\$168,269
-			<i>\</i>	\$100 ,_ 07
3	Commissioner, Department of	\$155,442	\$155,442	\$155,442
4	Social Services	\$209,000	\$213,180	\$213,180
•	Social Services	<i>\[\[\]</i>	<i>\\\</i> 215,100	<i>\[\[\]</i>
5	Commissioner, Department of	\$183,855	\$183,855	\$183,855
6	Behavioral Health and	\$212,661	\$216,914	\$216,914
7	Developmental Services	+	+===;>==	+;
•				
8	Commonwealth Transportation	\$208,492	\$208,492	\$208,492
9	Commissioner	\$212,661	\$216,914	\$216,914
-		<i>\\</i>	<i><i><i><i>q</i></i>_10,<i>y</i>17</i></i>	<i><i><i><i>q</i></i>-1 0,<i>y</i> 1 1</i></i>
10	Director, Department of	\$160,742	\$160,742	\$160,742
11	Corrections	\$184,051	\$187,732	\$187,732
	conceating	<i>\(\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\</i>	<i>\\</i> 107,752	<i>\(\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\</i>
12	Director, Department of	\$190,188	\$190,188	\$190,188
13	Environmental Quality	<i><i><i>ψ</i>170,100</i></i>	\$193,992	\$193,992
10	Environnienan Quanty		<i>\\</i> \ <i>\</i> \\\\\\\\\\\\\	<i><i><i><i>ϕ</i>175,772</i></i></i>
14	Director, Department of	\$199,548	\$199,548	\$199,548
15	Medical Assistance Services	<i><i><i>q</i>177,0</i>¹<i>0</i>¹</i>	\$203,539	\$203,539
10			<i>\\\</i>	<i>\[\[\]\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\</i>
16	Director, Department of	\$172,699	\$172,699	\$172,699
17	Planning and Budget	<i>•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••</i>	\$176,153	\$176,153
			<i> </i>	+
18	State Health Commissioner	\$202,023	\$202,023	\$202,023
19		\$225,000	\$229,500	\$229,500
		. ,		. ,
20	State Tax Commissioner	\$164,651	\$164,651	\$164,651
21			\$167,944	\$167,944
22	Superintendent of Public	\$212,661	\$212,661	\$212,661
23	Instruction	\$235,000	\$239,700	\$239,700
24	Superintendent of State Police	\$184,705	\$184,705	\$184,705
25			\$188,399	\$188,399
•				
26		July 1, 2018	June 25, 2019	November 25, 2019
		to	to	to
27		June 24, 2019	November 24, 2019	June 30, 2020
28	Level II Range	\$85,654 - \$172,567	\$85,654 - \$172,567	\$85,654 - \$172,567
29		\$114,330 - \$180,000	\$116,617 - \$183,600	\$116,617 - \$183,600
•				****
30	Midpoint	\$129,110	\$129,110	\$129,110
31		\$147,150	\$150,108	\$150,108
32	Commissioner, Department for	\$155,895	\$155,895	\$155,895
32 33	Aging and Rehabilitative	φ155,075	\$159,013	\$159,013
33 34	Services		<i><i><i>ϕ</i>157,015</i></i>	φ139,015
57	501 11005			
35	Commissioner, Department of	\$170,519	\$170,519	\$170,519
35 36	Agriculture and Consumer	\$165,000	\$168,300	\$168,300
30 37	Services	$\varphi_10J,000$	\$100,500	\$100,300
51	Services			
38	Commissioner, Department of	\$147,084	\$147,084	\$147,084
38 39	Veterans Services	φ177,007	\$150,026	\$150,026
			$\psi_{1,50,020}$	$\psi_{1,5,0,0,2,0}$
40	Executive Director, Veterans	\$85,654	\$85,654	\$85,654
40	Services Foundation	<i>200,00</i> ·	<i><i><i><i>v</i>c,cciiiiiiiiiiii</i></i></i>	400,001
	wer rever a continuation			

			¢1.61.670	¢1.41.470
1 2	Commissioner, Virginia Employment Commission	\$161,679	\$161,679 \$164,913	\$161,679 \$164,913
-			<i><i><i></i></i></i>	<i>\</i>
3	Executive Director,	\$144,414	\$144,414	\$144,414
4 5	Department of Game and Inland Fisheries		\$147,302	\$147,302
6	Commissioner, Marine	\$121,770	\$121,770	\$121,770
7	Resources Commission	\$142,000	\$144,840	\$144,840
8	Director, Department of	\$167,566	\$167,566	\$167,566
9	Forensic Science		\$170,917	\$170,917
10	Director, Department of	\$167,214	\$167,214	\$167,214
11	General Services	+ - • · , ·	\$170,558	\$170,558
12	Director, Department of	\$149,997	\$149.997	\$149,997
12	Human Resource Management	\$158,738	\$161,913	\$161,913
		+	+;>	
14	Director, Department of	\$126,860	\$126,860	\$126,860
15	Juvenile Justice		\$129,397	\$129,397
16	Director, Department of	\$146,775	\$146,775	\$146,775
17	Mines, Minerals and Energy		\$149,711	\$149,711
10		¢150.007	¢150.007	¢150.007
18 19	Director, Department of Rail and Public Transportation	\$152,337	\$152,337 \$155,384	\$152,337 \$155,384
17	and I done Transportation		<i>\\</i>	<i><i><i>q</i>100,001</i></i>
20	Director, Department of Small	\$139,466	\$139,466	\$139,466
21 22	Business and Supplier		\$142,255	\$142,255
<i>LL</i>	Diversity			
23	Executive Director, Motor	\$114,330	\$114,330	\$114,330
24	Vehicle Dealer Board		\$116,617	\$116,617
25	Executive Director, Virginia	\$141,301	\$141.301	\$141,301
26	Port Authority	1 7	\$144,127	\$144,127
27		¢170.577	¢170.577	¢170.577
27 28	State Comptroller	\$172,567	\$172,567 \$176,018	\$172,567 \$176,018
20			<i>φ</i> 170,010	φ170,010
29	State Treasurer	\$172,430	\$172,430	\$172,430
30			\$175,879	\$175,879
31	Executive Director, Board of	\$145,000	\$147,900	\$147,900
32	Accountancy	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
33	Chief Executive Officer,	\$180,000	\$183,600	\$183,600
33 34	Virginia Alcoholic Beverage	\$180,000	\$185,000	<i>\$</i> 185,000
35	Control Authority			
36		July 1, 2018	June 25, 2019	November 25, 2019
		to	to	to
37		June 24, 2019	November 24, 2019	June 30, 2020
38 30	Level III Range	\$110,980 - \$153,585	\$110,980 - \$153,585	\$110,980 - \$153,585
39			\$113,200 - \$156,657	\$113,200 - \$156,657
40	Midpoint	\$132,282	\$132,282	\$132,282
41			\$134,928	\$134,928

1 2	Adjutant General	\$139,614	\$139,614 \$142,406	\$139,614 \$142,406
2			\$142,400	\$142,400
3	Chairman, Virginia Parole	\$131,310	\$131,310	\$131,310
4	Board		\$133,936	\$133,936
5	Vice Chairman, Virginia Parole	\$118,145	\$118,145	\$118,145
6	Board	¢110,110	\$120,508	\$120,508
7	Mombar Virginia Darola Poard	\$115,829	\$115,829	\$115,829
8	Member, Virginia Parole Board	\$115,629	\$118,146	\$118,146
9	Commissioner, Department of	\$139,647	\$139,647	\$139,647
9 10	Labor and Industry	\$139,047	\$142,440	\$142,440
11	Coordinator, Department of	\$139,122	\$139,122	\$139,122
12	Emergency Management	\$148,860	\$151,837	\$151,837
13	Director, Department of	\$138,315	\$138,315	\$138,315
13	Aviation	\$150,000	\$153,000	\$153,000
15	Director, Department of	\$151,577	\$151,577	\$151,577
16	Conservation and Recreation		\$154,609	\$154,609
17	Director, Department of	\$125,021	\$125,021	\$125,021
18	Criminal Justice Services	, -,-	\$127,521	\$127,521
19	Director, Department of Health	\$135,160	\$135,160	\$135,160
20	Professions	\$155,100	\$137,863	\$137,863
				, ,
21	Director, Department of	\$110,980	\$110,980	\$110,980
22	Historic Resources		\$113,200	\$113,200
23	Director, Department of	\$137,296	\$137,296	\$137,296
24	Housing and Community		\$140,042	\$140,042
25	Development			
26	Director, Department of	\$151,759	\$151,759	\$151,759
27	Professional and Occupational		\$154,794	\$154,794
28	Regulation			
29	Director, The Science Museum	\$138,798	\$138,798	\$138,798
30	of Virginia		\$141,574	\$141,574
31	Director, Virginia Museum of	\$144,315	\$144,315	\$144,315
32	Fine Arts	<i><i><i></i></i></i>	\$147,201	\$147,201
33	Director, Virginia Museum of	\$118,480	\$118,480	\$118,480
34	Natural History		\$120,850	\$120,850
35	Executive Director, Board of	\$132,283	\$132,283	\$132,283
36	Accountancy			
37	Executive Director, Jamestown-	\$140,888	\$140,888	\$140,888
38	Yorktown Foundation	<i></i>	\$143,706	\$143,706
		4112 2 22	****	
39 40	Executive Secretary, Virginia	\$113,300	\$113,300 \$115,566	\$113,300 \$115 566
40	Racing Commission		\$115,566	\$115,566
41	Librarian of Virginia	\$153,585	\$153,585	\$153,585
42	-		\$156,657	\$156,657

1 2	State Forester, Department of Forestry	\$144,983	\$144,983 \$147,883	\$144,983 \$147,883
3		July 1, 2018	June 25, 2019	November 25, 2019
		to	to	to
4		June 24, 2019	November 24, 2019	June 30, 2020
5 6	Level IV Range	\$99,586 - \$118,393 \$98,000 - \$118,393	\$99,586 - \$118,393 \$99,960 - \$120,761	\$99,586 - \$118,393 \$99,960 - \$120,761
7 8	Midpoint	\$108,989 \$108,196	\$108,989 \$110,360	\$108,989 \$110,360
9 10 11	Administrator, Commonwealth's Attorneys' Services Council	\$107,761	\$107,761 \$109,916	\$107,761 \$109,916
12 13 14	Commissioner, Virginia Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired	\$118,393	\$118,393 \$120,761	\$118,393 \$120,761
15 16	Executive Director, Frontier Culture Museum of Virginia	\$115,362 \$105,000	\$115,362 \$107,100	\$115,362 \$107,100
17 18	Secretary, Commissioner, Department of Elections	\$111,448 <i>\$111,000</i>	\$111,448 <i>\$113,220</i>	\$111,448 <i>\$113,220</i>
19 20	Executive Director, Virginia- Israel Advisory Board	\$99,586 \$98,000	\$99,586 \$99,960	\$99,586 \$99,960
21	Director, Gunston Hall	\$90,537	\$90,537	\$90,537
22		July 1, 2018	June 25, 2019	November 25, 2019
		to	to	to
23		June 24, 2019	November 24, 2019	June 30, 2020
24 25	Level V Range	\$23,515 - \$98,577	\$23,515 - \$98,577 \$23,986 - \$100,549	\$23,515 - \$98,577 \$23,986 - \$100,549
26 27	Midpoint	\$61,046	\$61,046 \$62,267	\$61,046 \$62,267
28 29 30	Director, Virginia Department for the Deaf and Hard-of- Hearing	\$98,577	\$98,577 \$100,549	\$98,577 \$100,549
31	Executive Director,	\$94,926	\$94,926	\$94,926
32	Department of Fire Programs	\$98,577	\$100,549	\$100,549
33	Executive Director, Virginia	\$90,649	\$90,649	\$90,649
34	Commission for the Arts	\$98,577	\$100,549	\$100,549
35 36	Chairman of Board Chairman, Compensation Board	\$23,515	\$23,515 \$2 <i>3,98</i> 6	\$23,515 \$2 <i>3,986</i>
37	Director, Gunston Hall	\$90,537	\$92,348	\$92,348

38 7. Annual salaries of the directors of the independent agencies, as listed in this subdivision, shall be paid in the amounts shown.
 39 All salary changes shall be subject to subdivisions c 1, c 2, and c 3 above.

1 2		July 1, 2018 to June 24, 2019	June 25, 2019 to November 24, 2019	November 25, 2019 to June 30, 2020
2 3 4	Independent Range	\$171,954 - \$185,871	\$171,954 - \$185,871 \$175,393 - \$189,588	\$171,954 = \$185,871 \$175,393 - \$189,588
5 6	Midpoint	\$178,913	\$178,913 \$182,490	\$178,913 \$182,490
7	Executive Director, Virginia	\$171,954	\$171,954	\$171,954
8	Lottery		\$175,393	\$175,393
9	Director, Virginia Retirement	\$185,871	\$185,871	\$185,871
10	System		\$189,588	\$189,588
11	Chief Executive Officer,	\$183,362	\$183,362	\$183,362
12	Virginia College Savings Plan		\$187,029	\$187,029

8. Notwithstanding any provision of this Act, the Board of Trustees of the Virginia Retirement System may supplement the salary of
its Director. The Board should be guided by criteria, which provide a reasonable limit on the total additional income of the Director.
The criteria should include, without limitation, a consideration of the salaries paid to similar officials in comparable public pension
plans. The Board shall report such criteria and potential supplement level to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House
Appropriations Committees at least 60 days prior to the effectuation of the compensation action. The Board shall report approved
supplements to the Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

9. Notwithstanding any provision of this Act, the Board of the Virginia College Savings Plan may supplement the compensation of
its Chief Executive Officer. The Board should be guided by criteria which provide a reasonable limit on the total additional income
of the Chief Executive Officer. The criteria should include, without limitation, a consideration of compensation paid to similar
officials in comparable qualified tuition programs, independent public agencies or other entities with similar responsibilities and
size. The Board shall report such criteria and potential supplement level to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House
Appropriations Committees at least 60 days prior to the effectuation of the compensation action. The Board shall report approved
supplements to the Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

d.1. Annual salaries of the presidents of the senior institutions of higher education, the President of Richard Bland College, the
 Chancellor of the University of Virginia's College at Wise, the Superintendent of the Virginia Military Institute, the Director of the
 State Council of Higher Education, the Director of the Southern Virginia Higher Education Center, the Director of the Southwest
 Virginia Higher Education Center and the Chancellor of Community Colleges, as listed in this paragraph, shall be paid in the
 amounts shown. The annual salaries of the presidents of the community colleges shall be fixed by the State Board for Community
 Colleges within a salary structure submitted to the Governor prior to June 1 each year for approval.

32 2.a) The board of visitors of each institution of higher education or the boards of directors for Southern Virginia Higher Education Center, Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center, and the New College Institute may annually supplement the salary of a 33 president or director from private gifts, endowment funds, foundation funds, or income from endowments and gifts. Supplements 34 35 paid from other than the cited sources prior to June 30, 1997, may continue to be paid. In approving a supplement, the board of visitors or board of directors should be guided by criteria which provide a reasonable limit on the total additional income of a 36 37 president or director. The criteria should include a consideration of additional income from outside sources including, but not being 38 limited to, service on boards of directors or other such services. The board of visitors or board of directors shall report approved 39 supplements to the Department of Human Resource Management for retention in its records.

b) The State Board for Community Colleges may annually supplement the salary of the Chancellor from any available
appropriations of the Virginia Community College System. In approving a supplement, the State Board for Community Colleges
should be guided by criteria which provide a reasonable limit on the total additional income of the Chancellor. The criteria should
include consideration of additional income from outside sources including, but not being limited to, service on boards of directors or
other such services. The Board shall report approved supplements to the Department of Human Resource Management for retention
in its records.

46 c) Norfolk State University is authorized to supplement the salary of its president from educational and general funds up to \$17,000.

d) Should a vacancy occur for the Director of the State Council of Higher Education on or after the date of enactment of this act, the
salary for the new director shall be established by the State Council of Higher Education based on the salary range for Level I
agency heads. Furthermore, the state council may provide a bonus of up to five percent of the annual salary for the new director.

July 1, 2018 June 25, 2019 November 25, 2019

50

1		to June 24, 2019	to November 24, 2019	to June 30, 2020
2 3	NEW COLLEGE INSTITUTE			
4	Executive Director, New	\$126,844	\$126,844	\$126,844
5	College Institute		\$129,381	\$129,381
6 7 8	STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR VIRGINIA			
9	Director, State Council of	\$199,479	\$199,479	\$199,479
10	Higher Education for Virginia		\$203,469	\$203,469
11 12 13	SOUTHERN VIRGINIA HIGHER EDUCATION CENTER			
14	Director, Southern Virginia	\$134,273	\$134,273	\$134,273
15	Higher Education Center		\$136,958	\$136,958
16 17 18	SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA HIGHER EDUCATION CENTER			
19 20 21	Administrator Director , Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center	\$133,900	\$133,900 \$136,578	\$133,900 \$136,578
22 23	VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM			
24	Chancellor of Community	\$180,976	\$180,976	\$180,976
25	Colleges		\$184,596	\$184,596
26 27	SENIOR COLLEGE PRESIDENTS' SALARIES			
28	Chancellor, University of	\$127,210	\$127,210	\$127,210
29	Virginia's College at Wise	\$127,218	\$129,762	\$129,762
30	President, Christopher	\$142,606	\$142,606	\$142,606
31	Newport University		\$145,458	\$145,458
32	President, The College of	\$168,510	\$168,510	\$168,510
33	William and Mary in Virginia	\$163,602	\$166,874	\$166,874
34	President, George Mason	\$154,298	\$154,298	\$154,298
35	University	\$157,384	\$160,532	\$160,532
36	President, James Madison	\$164,153	\$164,153	\$164,153
37	University	\$168,654	\$172,027	<i>\$172,027</i>
38	President, Longwood	\$153,858	\$153,858	\$153,858
39	University		\$156,935	\$156,935
40	President, Norfolk State	\$168,405	\$168,405	\$168,405
41	University	\$166,920	\$170,258	\$170,258
42	President, Old Dominion	\$173,735	\$173,735	\$173,735
43	University	\$173,732	\$177,207	\$177,207
44 45	President, Radford University	\$162,579	\$162,579 \$165,831	\$162,579 \$165,831

1	President, Richard Bland	\$138,453	\$138,453	\$138,453
2	College		\$141,222	\$141,222
3	President, University of Mary	\$151,404	\$151,404	\$151,404
4	Washington		\$154,432	\$154,432
5	President, University of	\$197,620	\$197,620	\$197,620
6	Virginia	\$187,500	\$191,250	\$191,250
7	President, Virginia	\$181,387	\$181,387	\$181,387
8	Commonwealth University	\$181,395	\$185,023	\$185,023
9	President, Virginia Polytechnic	\$198,266	\$198,266	\$198,266
10	Institute and State University		\$202,231	\$202,231
11	President, Virginia State	\$149,496	\$149,496	\$149,496
12	University		\$152,486	\$152,486
13	Superintendent, Virginia	\$154,785	\$154,785	\$154,785
14	Military Institute		\$157,881	\$157,881

e. 1. Salaries for newly employed or promoted employees shall be established consistent with the compensation and classificationplans established by the Governor.

17 2. The State Comptroller is hereby authorized to require payment of wages or salaries to state employees by direct deposit or by credit to a prepaid debit card or card account from which the employee is able to withdraw or transfer funds.

f. The provisions of this section, requiring prior written approval of the Governor relative to compensation, shall apply also to any
 system of incentive award payments which may be adopted and implemented by the Governor. The cost of implementing any such
 system shall be paid from any funds appropriated to the affected agencies.

g. No lump sum appropriation for personal service shall be regarded as advisory or suggestive of individual salary rates or of salary
 schedules to be fixed under law by the Governor payable from the lump sum appropriation.

h. Subject to approval by the Governor of a plan for a statewide employee meritorious service awards program, as provided for in §
 2.2-1201, Code of Virginia, the costs for such awards shall be paid from any operating funds appropriated to the affected agencies.

i. The General Assembly hereby affirms and ratifies the Governor's existing authority and the established practice of this body to
 provide for pay differentials or to supplement base rates of pay for employees in specific job classifications in particular geographic
 and/or functional areas where, in the Governor's discretion, they are needed for the purpose of maintaining salaries which enable the
 Commonwealth to maintain a competitive position in the relevant labor market.

j.1. If at any time the Administrator of the Commonwealth's Attorneys' Services Council serves on the faculty of a state-supported
 institution of higher education, the faculty appointment must be approved by the Council. Such institution shall pay one-half of the
 salary listed in § 4-6.01 c 6 of this act. Further, such institution may provide compensation in addition to that listed in § 4-6.01 c 6;
 provided, however, that such additional compensation must be approved by the Council.

34 2. If the Administrator ceases to be a member of the faculty of a state-supported institution of higher education, the total salary listed
 35 in § 4-6.01 c 6 shall be paid from the Council's appropriation.

36 k.1.a. Except as otherwise provided for in this subdivision, any increases in the salary band assignment of any job role contained in 37 the compensation and classification plans approved by the Governor shall be effective beginning with the first pay period, defined as 38 the pay period from June 25 through July 9, of the fiscal year if: (1) the agency certifies to the Secretary of Finance that funds are 39 available within the agency's appropriation to cover the cost of the increase for the remainder of the current biennium and presents a 40 plan for covering the costs next biennium and the Secretary concurs, or (2) such funds are appropriated by the General Assembly. If 41 at any time the Secretary of Administration shall certify that such change in the salary band assignment for a job role is of an 42 emergency nature and the Secretary of Finance shall certify that funds are available to cover the cost of the increase for the 43 remainder of the biennium within the agency's appropriation, such change in compensation may be effective on a date agreed upon 44 by these two Secretaries. The Secretary of Administration shall provide a monthly report of all such emergency changes in 45 accordance with § 4-8.00, Reporting Requirements.

b. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, state employees will be paid on the first workday of July for the work period June 10
to June 24 in any calendar year in which July 1 falls on a weekend.

48 2. Salary adjustments for any employee through a promotion, role change, exceptional recruitment and retention incentive options,

or in-range adjustment shall occur only if: a) the agency has sufficient funds within its appropriation to cover the cost of the
 salary adjustment for the remainder of the current biennium or b) such funds are appropriated by the General Assembly.

3 3. No changes in salary band assignments affecting classified employees of more than one agency shall become effective unless
 4 the Secretary of Finance certifies that sufficient funds are available to provide such increase or plan to all affected employees
 5 supported from the general fund.

6 I. Full-time employees of the Commonwealth, including faculty members of state institutions of higher education, who are appointed to a state-level board, council, commission or similar collegial body shall not receive any such compensation for their services as members or chairmen except for reimbursement of reasonable and necessary expenses. The foregoing
9 provision shall likewise apply to the Compensation Board, pursuant to § 15.2-1636.5, Code of Virginia.

m.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the board of visitors or other governing body of any public institution of
 higher education is authorized to establish age and service eligibility criteria for faculty participating in voluntary early
 retirement incentive plans for their respective institutions pursuant to § 23.1-1302 B and the cash payment offered under such
 compensation plans pursuant to § 23.1-1302 D, Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding the limitations in § 23.1-1302 D, the total
 cost in any fiscal year for any such compensation plan , shall be set forth by the governing body in the compensation plan for
 approval by the Governor and review for legal sufficiency by the Office of the Attorney General.

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, employees holding full-time, academic-year classified positions at public
institutions of higher education shall be considered "state employees" as defined in § 51.1-124.3, Code of Virginia, and shall be
considered for medical/hospitalization, retirement service credit, and other benefits on the same basis as those individuals
appointed to full-time, 12-month classified positions.

20 n. Notwithstanding the Department of Human Resource Management Policies and Procedures, payment to employees with five 21 or more years of continuous service who either terminate or retire from service shall be paid in one sum for twenty-five percent 22 of their sick leave balance, provided, however, that the total amount paid for sick leave shall not exceed \$5,000 and the 23 remaining seventy-five percent of their sick leave shall lapse. This provision shall not apply to employees who are covered by 24 the Virginia Sickness and Disability Program as defined in § 51.1-1100, Code of Virginia. Such employees shall not be paid for 25 their sick leave balances. However, they will be paid, if eligible as described above, for any disability leave credits they have at 26 separation or retirement or may convert disability credits to service credit under the Virginia Retirement System pursuant to § 27 51.1-1103 (F), Code of Virginia.

o. It is the intent of the General Assembly that calculation of the faculty salary benchmark goal for the Virginia Community
 College System shall be done in a manner consistent with that used for four-year institutions, taking into consideration the
 number of faculty at each of the community colleges. In addition, calculation of the salary target shall reflect an eight percent
 salary differential in a manner consistent with other public four-year institutions and for faculty at Northern Virginia
 Community College.

p. Any public institution of higher education that has met the eligibility criteria set out in Chapters 933 and 945 of the 2005
 Acts of Assembly may supplement annual salaries for classified employees from private gifts, endowment funds, or income from endowments and gifts, subject to policies approved by the board of visitors. The Commonwealth shall have no general fund obligations for the continuation of such salary supplements.

q. The Governor, or any other appropriate Board or Public Body, is authorized to adjust the salaries of employees specified in this item, and other items in the Act, to reflect the compensation adjustments authorized in this Act.

r. Any public institution of higher education shall not provide general fund monies above \$100,000 for any individual athletic coaching salaries after July 1, 2013. Athletic coaching salaries with general fund monies above this amount shall be phased-down over a five-year period at 20 percent per year until reaching the cap of \$100,000.

42 § 4-6.02 EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND STUDY

43 Subject to uniform rules and regulations established by the Governor, the head of any state agency may authorize, from any 44 funds appropriated to such department, institution or other agency in this act or subsequently made available for the purpose, 45 compensation or expenses or both compensation and expenses for employees pursuing approved training courses or academic 46 studies for the purpose of becoming better equipped for their employment in the state service. The rules and regulations shall 47 include reasonable provision for the return of any employee receiving such benefits for a reasonable period of duty, or for 48 reimbursement to the state for expenditures incurred on behalf of the employee should he not return to state service.

49 § 4-6.03 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a. Any medical/hospitalization benefit program provided for state employees shall include the following provision: any state
 employee, as defined in § 2.2-2818, Code of Virginia, shall have the option to accept or reject coverage.

b. Except as provided for sworn personnel of the Department of State Police, no payment of, or reimbursement for, the
 employer paid contribution to the State Police Officers' Retirement System, or any system offering like benefits, shall be made

by the Compensation Board of the Commonwealth at a rate greater than the employer rate established for the general classified
 workforce of the Commonwealth covered under the Virginia Retirement System. Any cost for benefits exceeding such general rate
 shall be borne by the employee or, in the case of a political subdivision, by the employer.

c. Each agency may, within the funds appropriated by this act, implement a transit and ridesharing incentive program for its
employees. With such programs, agencies may reimburse employees for all or a portion of the costs incurred from using public
transit, car pools, or van pools. The Secretary of Transportation shall develop guidelines for the implementation of such programs
and any agency program must be developed in accordance with such guidelines. The guidelines shall be in accordance with the
federal National Energy Policy Act of 1992 (P.L. 102-486), and no program shall provide an incentive that exceeds the actual costs
incurred by the employee.

10 d. Any hospital that serves as the primary medical facility for state employees may be allowed to participate in the State Employee Health Insurance Program pursuant to § 2.2-2818, Code of Virginia, provided that (1) such hospital is not a participating provider in 11 the network, contracted by the Department of Human Resource Management, that serves state employees and (2) such hospital 12 enters into a written agreement with the Department of Human Resource Management as to the rates of reimbursement. The 13 14 department shall accept the lowest rates offered by the hospital from among the rates charged by the hospital to (1) its largest 15 purchaser of care, (2) any state or federal public program, or (3) any special rate developed by the hospital for the state employee 16 health benefits program which is lower than either of the rates above. If the department and the hospital cannot come to an 17 agreement, the department shall reimburse the hospital at the rates contained in its final offer to the hospital until the dispute is 18 resolved. Any dispute shall be resolved through arbitration or through the procedures established by the Administrative Process Act, 19 as the hospital may decide, without impairment of any residual right to judicial review.

e. Any classified employee of the Commonwealth and any person similarly employed in the legislative, judicial and independent
 agencies who (i) is compensated on a salaried basis and (ii) works at least twenty hours per week shall be considered a full-time
 employee for the purposes of participation in the Virginia Retirement System's group life insurance and retirement programs. Any
 part-time magistrate hired prior to July 1, 1999, shall have the option of participating in the programs under this provision.

f.1. Any member of the Virginia Retirement System who is retired under the provisions of § 51.1-155.1, Code of Virginia who: 1)
returns to work in a position that is covered by the provisions of § 51.1-155.1, Code of Virginia after a break of not less than four
years, 2) receives no other compensation for service to a public employer than that provided for the position covered by § 51.1-155.1, Code of Virginia during such period of reemployment, 3) retires within one year of commencing such period of
reemployment, and 4) retires directly from service at the end of such period of reemployment may either:

- a) Revert to the previous retirement benefit received under the provisions of § 51.1-155.1, Code of Virginia, including any annual
 cost of living adjustments granted thereon. This benefit may be adjusted upward to reflect the effect of such additional months of
 service and compensation received during the period of reemployment, or
- b) Retire under the provisions of Title 51.1 in effect at the termination of his or her period of reemployment, including any purchase
 of service that may be eligible for purchase under the provisions of § 51.1-142.2, Code of Virginia.
- 34 2. The Virginia Retirement System shall establish procedures for verification by the employer of eligibility for the benefits provided35 for in this paragraph.

36 g. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no agency head compensated by funds appropriated in this act may be a member of
37 the Virginia Law Officers' Retirement System created under Title 51.1, Chapter 2.1, Code of Virginia. The provisions of this
38 paragraph are effective on July 1, 2002, and shall not apply to the Chief of the Capitol Police.

h. Full-time employees appointed by the Governor who, except for meeting the minimum service requirements, would be eligible for
the provisions of § 51.1-155.1, Code of Virginia, may, upon termination of service, use any severance allowance payment to
purchase service to meet, but not exceed, the minimum service requirements of § 51.1-155.1, Code of Virginia. Such service
purchase shall be at the rate of 15 percent of the employee's final creditable compensation or average final compensation, whichever
is greater, and shall be completed within 90 days of separation of service.

- i. When calculating the retirement benefits payable under the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), the State Police Officers'
 Retirement System (SPORS), the Virginia Law-enforcement Officers' Retirement System (VaLORS), or the Judicial Retirement
 System (JRS) to any employee of the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions who is called to active duty with the armed forces
 of the United States, including the United States Coast Guard, the Virginia Retirement System shall:
- 48 1) utilize the pre-deployment salary, or the actual salary paid by the Commonwealth or the political subdivision, whichever is higher,49 when calculating average compensation, and
- 2) include those months after September 1, 2001 during which the employee was serving on active duty with the armed forces of the
 United States in the calculation of creditable service.
- j. The provisions in § 51.1-144, Code of Virginia, that require a member to contribute five percent of his creditable compensation for
- 53 each pay period for which he receives compensation on a salary reduction basis, shall not apply to any (i) "state employee," as

defined in § 51.1-124.3, Code of Virginia, who is an elected official, or (ii) member of the Judicial Retirement System under
 Chapter 3 of Title 51.1 (§ 51.1-300 et seq.), who is not a "person who becomes a member on or after July 1, 2010," as defined

3 in § 51.1-124.3, Code of Virginia.

k. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection G of § 51.1-156, any employee of a school division who completed a period of
24 months of leave of absence without pay during October 2013 and who had previously submitted an application for disability
retirement to VRS in 2011 may submit an application for disability retirement under the provisions of § 51.1-156. Such
application shall be received by the Virginia Retirement System no later than October 1, 2014. This provision shall not be
construed to grant relief in any case for which a court of competent jurisdiction has already rendered a decision, as
contemplated by Article II, Section 14 of the Constitution of Virginia.

10 § 4-6.04 CHARGES

11 a. FOOD SERVICES: Except as exempted by the prior written approval of the Director, Department of Human Resource Management, and the provisions of § 2.2-3605, Code of Virginia, state employees shall be charged for meals served in state 12 facilities. Charges for meals will be determined by the agency. Such charges shall be not less than the value of raw food and the 13 cost of direct labor and utilities incidental to preparation and service. Each agency shall maintain records as to the calculation of 14 15 meal charges and revenues collected. Except where appropriations for operation of the food service are from nongeneral funds, 16 all revenues received from such charges shall be paid directly and promptly into the general fund. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to on-duty employees assigned to correctional facilities operated by the Departments of Corrections 17 18 and Juvenile Justice.

19 b. HOUSING SERVICES:

1. Each agency will collect a fee from state employees who occupy state-owned or leased housing, subject to guidelines
 provided by the Director, Department of General Services. Each agency head is responsible for establishing a fee for state owned or leased housing and for documenting in writing why the rate established was selected. In exceptional circumstances,
 which shall be documented as being in the best interest of the Commonwealth by the agency requesting an exception, the
 Director, Department of General Services may waive the requirement for collection of fees.

25 2. All revenues received from housing fees shall be promptly deposited in the state treasury. For housing for which operating 26 expenses or rent are financed by general fund appropriations, such revenues shall be deposited to the credit of the general fund. 27 For housing for which operating expenses or rent are financed by nongeneral fund appropriations, such revenues shall be 28 deposited to the credit of the nongeneral fund. Agencies which provide housing for which operating expenses or rent are financed from both general fund and nongeneral fund appropriations shall allocate such revenues, when deposited in the state 29 treasury, to the appropriate fund sources in the same proportion as the appropriations. However, without exception, any portion 30 31 of a housing fee attributable to depreciation for housing which was constructed with general fund appropriations shall be paid 32 into the general fund.

- 33 c. PARKING SERVICES:
- **34** 1. State-owned parking facilities

Agencies with parking space for employees in state-owned facilities shall, when required by the Director, Department of
 General Services, charge employees for such space on a basis approved by the Governor. All revenues received from such
 charges shall be paid directly and promptly into a special fund in the state treasury to be used, as determined by the Governor,
 for payment of costs for the provision of vehicle parking spaces. Interest shall be added to the fund as earned. -

39 2. Leased parking facilities in metropolitan Richmond area

40 Agencies occupying private sector leased or rental space in the metropolitan Richmond area, not including institutions of higher 41 education, shall be required to charge a fee to employees for vehicle parking spaces that are assigned to them or are otherwise available either incidental to the lease or rental agreement or pursuant to a separate lease agreement for private parking space. 42 43 In such cases, the individual employee parking fee shall not be less than that paid by employees parking in Department of 44 General Services parking facilities at the Seat of Government. The Director, Department of General Services may amend or 45 waive the fee requirement for good cause. Revenues derived from employees paying for parking spaces in leased facilities will 46 be retained by the leasing agency to be used to offset the cost of the lease to which it pertains. Any lease for private parking 47 space must be approved by the Director, Department of General Services.

3. The assignment of Lot P1A of the Department of General Services, Capitol Area Site Plan, to include parking spaces 1
through 37, but excluding spaces 34 and 36, which shall be reserved for the Department of General Services, and the surrounding surfaces around those spaces shall be under the control of the Committee on Joint Rules and administered by the Clerk of the House and the Clerk of the Senate. Any employee permanently assigned to any of these spaces shall be subject to the provisions of paragraph 1 of this item.

4. The assignment of 300 parking spaces in the Department of General Services parking facility to be built at the corner of 9th

and Broad Streets in the City of Richmond, shall be under the control of the Committee on Joint Rules and administered by the Clerk
 of the House and the Clerk of the Senate. Such parking spaces shall be subject to the provisions of paragraph 1 of this item.

3 § 4-6.05 SELECTION OF APPLICANTS FOR CLASSIFIED POSITIONS

It is the responsibility of state agency heads to ensure that all provisions outlined in Title 2.2, Chapter 29, Code of Virginia (the
 Virginia Personnel Act), and executive orders that govern the practice of selecting applicants for classified positions are strictly

6 observed. The Governor's Secretaries shall ensure this provision is faithfully enforced.

7 § 4-6.06 POSITIONS GOVERNED BY CHAPTERS 933 AND 943 OF THE 2006 ACTS OF ASSEMBLY

8 Except as provided in subsection A of § 23.1-1020 of the Code of Virginia, § 4-6.00 shall not apply to public institutions of higher
9 education governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly
10 and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly, with regard to their participating covered employees, as that term is

- defined in those two chapters, except to the extent a specific appropriation or language in this act addresses such an employee.
- 12

§ 4-7.00 STATEWIDE PLANS

13 § 4-7.01 MANPOWER CONTROL PROGRAM

a.1. The term Position Level is defined as the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) salaried employees assigned to an agency in this
 act. Except as provided in § 4-7.01 b, the Position Level number stipulated in an agency's appropriation is the upper limit for agency
 employment which cannot be exceeded during the fiscal year without approval from the Director, Department of Planning and
 Budget for Executive Department agencies, approval from the Joint Committee on Rules for Legislative Department agencies or
 approval from the appropriate governing authority for the independent agencies.

2. Any approval granted under this subsection shall be reported in writing to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations Committee
and the Senate Finance Committee, the Governor and the Directors of the Department of Planning and Budget and Department of
Human Resource Management within ten days of such approval. Approvals for executive department agencies shall be based on
threats to life, safety, health, or property, or compliance with judicial orders or federal mandates, to support federal grants or private
donations, to administer a program for another agency or to address an immediate increase in workload or responsibility or when to
delay approval of increased positions would result in a curtailment of services prior to the next legislative session. Any such position level increases pursuant to this provision may not be approved for more than one year.

b. The Position Levels stipulated for the individual agencies within the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental
 Services and the Department of Corrections are for reference only and are subject to changes by the applicable Department, provided
 that such changes do not result in exceeding the Position Level for that department.

c.1. The Governor shall implement such policies and procedures as are necessary to ensure that the number of employees in the Executive Department, excluding institutions of higher education and the State Council of Higher Education, may be further
 restricted to the number required for efficient operation of those programs approved by the General Assembly. Such policies and
 procedures shall include periodic review and analysis of the staffing requirements of all Executive Department agencies by the
 Department of Planning and Budget with the object of eliminating through attrition positions not necessary for the efficient
 operation of programs.

2. The institutions of higher education and the State Council of Higher Education are hereby authorized to fill all positions
authorized in this act. This provision shall be waived only upon the Governor's official declaration that a fiscal emergency exists
requiring a change in the official estimate of general fund revenues available for appropriation.

- d.1. Position Levels are for reference only and are not binding on agencies in the legislative department, independent agencies, the
 Executive Offices other than the offices of the Governor's Secretaries, and the judicial department.
- 40 2. Positions assigned to programs supported by internal service funds are for reference only and may fluctuate depending upon
 41 workload and funding availability.
- 3. Positions assigned to sponsored programs, auxiliary enterprises, continuing education, and teaching hospitals in the institutions of
 higher education are for reference only and may fluctuate depending upon workload and funding availability. Positions assigned to
 Item Detail 43012, State Health Services Technical Support and Administration, at Virginia Commonwealth University are for
 reference only and may fluctuate depending upon workload and funding availability.
- 46 4. Positions assigned to educational and general programs in the institutions of higher education are for reference only and may
 47 fluctuate depending upon workload and funding availability. However, total general fund positions filled by an institution of higher
 48 education may not exceed 105 percent of the general fund positions appropriated without prior approval from the Director,
 49 Department of Planning and Budget.
- 5. Positions assigned to Item Details 47001, Job Placement Services; 47002, Unemployment Insurance Services; 47003, Workforce
- 51 Development Services; and 53402, Economic Information Services, at the Virginia Employment Commission are for reference only

and may fluctuate depending upon workload and funding availability. Unless otherwise required by the funding source, after
 enactment of this act, any new positions hired using this provision shall not be subject to transitional severance benefit
 provisions of the Workforce Transition Act of 1995, Title 2.2, Chapter 32, Code of Virginia.

e. Prior to implementing any Executive Department hiring freeze, the Governor shall consider the needs of the Commonwealth
in regards to the safe and efficient operation of state facilities and performance of essential services to include the exemption of
certain positions assigned to agencies and institutions that provide services pertaining to public safety and public health from
such hiring freezes.

f.1. Full-time, part-time, wage or contractual state employees assigned to the Governor's Cabinet Secretaries from agencies and
 institutions under their control for the purpose of carrying out temporary assignments or projects may not be so assigned for a
 period exceeding 180 days in any calendar year. The permanent transfer of positions from an agency or institution to the
 Offices of the Secretaries, or the temporary assignment of agency or institutional employees to the Offices of the Secretaries for
 periods exceeding 180 days in any calendar year regardless of the separate or discrete nature of the projects, is prohibited
 without the prior approval of the General Assembly.

14 2. Not more than three positions in total, as described in subsection 1 hereof, may be assigned at any time to the Office of any
 15 Cabinet Secretary, unless specifically approved in writing by the Governor. The Governor shall notify the Chairmen of the
 16 House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees in the case of any such approvals.

17 g. All state employees, including those in the legislative, judicial, and executive branches and the independent agencies of the Commonwealth, who are not eligible for benefits under a health care plan established and administered by the Department of 18 19 Human Resource Management (DHRM) pursuant to Va. Code § 2.2-2818, or by an agency administering its own health care 20 plan, may not work more than 29 hours per week on average over a twelve month period. Adjunct faculty at institutions of 21 higher education may not work more than 29 hours per week on average over a twelve month period, including classroom or 22 other instructional time plus additional hours determined by the institution as necessary to perform the adjunct faculty's duties. 23 DHRM shall provide relevant program requirements to agencies and employees, including, but not limited to, information on 24 wage, variable and seasonal employees. All state agencies/employers in all branches of government shall provide information 25 requested by DHRM concerning hours worked by employees as needed to comply with the Affordable Care Act (the "Act") 26 and this provision. State agencies/employers are accountable for compliance with this provision, and are responsible for any 27 costs associated with maintaining compliance with it and for any costs or penalties associated with any violations of the Act or 28 regulations thereunder and any such costs shall be borne by the agency from existing appropriations. The provisions of this 29 paragraph shall not apply to employees of state teaching hospitals that have their own health insurance plan; however, the state 30 teaching hospitals are accountable for compliance with, and are responsible for any costs associated with maintaining 31 compliance with the Act and for any costs or penalties associated with any violations of the Act or regulations thereunder and 32 any such costs shall be borne by the agency from existing appropriations. Subject to approval of the Governor, DHRM shall 33 modify this provision consistent with any updates or changes to federal law and regulations.

34

§ 4-8.00 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- **35** § 4-8.01 GOVERNOR
- 36 a. General:

1. The Governor shall submit the information specified in this section to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate
 Finance Committees on a monthly basis, or at such intervals as may be directed by said Chairmen, or as specified elsewhere in
 this act. The information on agency operating plans and expenditures as well as agency budget requests shall be submitted in
 such form, and by such method, including electronically, as may be mutually agreed upon. Such information shall be preserved
 for public inspection in the Department of Planning and Budget.

42 2. The Governor shall make available annually to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance, House Finance, and House
43 Appropriations Committees a report concerning the receipt of any nongeneral funds above the amount(s) specifically
44 appropriated, their sources, and the amounts for each agency affected.

45 3. a) It is the intent of the General Assembly that reporting requirements affecting state institutions of higher education be
46 reduced or consolidated where appropriate. State institutions of higher education, working with the Secretary of Education and
47 Workforce, Secretary of Finance, and the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall continue to identify specific
48 reporting requirements that the Governor may consider suspending.

b) Reporting generally should be limited to instances where (1) there is a compelling state interest for state agencies to collect,
use, and maintain the information collected; (2) substantial risk to the public welfare or safety would result from failing to
collect the information; or (3) the information collected is central to an essential state process mandated by the Code of
Virginia.

- c) Upon the effective date of this act, and until its expiration date, the following reporting requirements are hereby suspended or
- 54 modified as specified below:

1	Agency	Report Title of Descriptor	Authority	Action
2 3	Department of Accounts	Intercollegiate Athletics Receipts & Disbursements	Code of Virginia § 23.1-102.	Suspend reporting.
4 5	Department of Accounts	Prompt Pay Summary Report	Agency Directive	Change reporting from monthly to quarterly.
6 7	Department of General Services	Usage of State-Assigned and State-Owned Vehicles Report	Agency Directive Executive Order 89 (2005)	Suspend reporting.
8 9	Department of General Services	Gas Report/Repair Charge	Agency DirectiveExecutive Order 89 (2005)	Suspend reporting.
10 11	Department of Human Resource Management	Report of Personnel Development Service	Agency Directive	Suspend reporting.
12 13 14 15	Department of Human Resource Management	Human Capital Report (Full- Time, Part-Time, Temporary, Contractual employees funded by the Commonwealth)	Code of Virginia § 2.2-1201. A. 14.	Change reporting from annually to monthly.
16 17 18 19	Department of Human Resource Management State Employee Workers' Compensation Program	Work-related injuries and illnesses report goals, strategies, and results	Agency Directive Executive Order 94 (2005)	Suspend reporting.
20 21	Governor's Office	Small, Women-and Minority- owned Businesses (SWaM)	Executive Directive	Change reporting from weekly to monthly.
22 23	Secretary of Commerce and Trade	Recruitment of National and Regional Conferences Report	Agency Directive Executive Order 14 (2006)	Suspend reporting.

d) The Department of Planning and Budget (DPB) and the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV) shall work
 jointly to attempt to consolidate various reporting requirements pertaining to the estimates and projections of nongeneral fund
 revenues in institutions of higher education. The purpose of this effort shall be aimed at developing a common form for use in
 collecting nongeneral fund data for DPB's six-year nongeneral fund revenue estimate submission and SCHEV's annual survey of
 nongeneral fund revenue from institutions of higher education.

29 b. Operating Appropriations Reports:

1. Status of Adjustments to Appropriations. Such information must include increases and decreases of appropriations or allotments,
 transfers and additional revenues. A report of appropriation transfers from one agency to another made pursuant to § 4-1.03 of this
 act shall be made available via electronic means to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, and
 the public by the tenth day of the month following that in which such transfer occurs, unless otherwise specified in § 4-1.03.

2. Status of each sum sufficient appropriation. The information must include the amount of expenditures for the period just
 completed and the revised estimates of expenditures for the remaining period of the current biennium, as well as an explanation of
 differences between the amount of the actual appropriation and actual and/or projected appropriations for each year of the current
 biennium.

- 38 3. Status of Economic Contingency Appropriation. The information must include actions taken related to the appropriation for economic contingency.
- 40 4. Status of Withholding Appropriations. The information must include amounts withheld and the agencies affected.
- 41 5. Status of reductions occurring in general and nongeneral fund revenues in relation to appropriations.
- 42 6. Status of approvals of deficits.
- 43 c. Employment Reports:

1. Status of changes in positions and employment of state agencies affected. The information must include the number of positionsand the agencies affected.

- 2. Status of the employment by the Attorney General of special counsel in certain highway proceedings brought pursuant to
 Chapter 10 of Title 33.2, Code of Virginia, on behalf of the Commissioner of Highways, as authorized by § 2.2-510, Code of
 Virginia. This report shall include fees for special counsel for the respective county or city for which the expenditure is made
 and shall be submitted within 60 days of the close of the fiscal year (see § 4-5.02 a.3).
- S. Changes in the level of compensation authorized pursuant to § 4-6.01 k, Employee Compensation. Such report shall include
 a list of the positions changed, the number of employees affected, the source and amount of funds, and the nature of the emergency.

4. Pursuant to requirements of § 2.2-203.1, Code of Virginia, the Secretary of Administration, in cooperation with the Secretary of Technology, shall provide a report describing the Commonwealth's telecommuting policies, which state agencies and localities have adopted telecommuting policies, the number of state employees who telecommute, the frequency with which state employees telecommute by locality, and the efficacy of telecommuting policies in accomplishing the provision of state services and completing state functions. This report shall be provided to the Chairmen of the House Committee on Appropriations, the House Committee on Science and Technology, the Senate Committee on Finance, and the Senate Committee on General Laws and Technology each year by October 1.

- 15 d. Capital Appropriations Reports:
- 16 1. Status of progress of capital projects on an annual basis (see § 4-4.01 o).
- 17 2. Notice of all capital projects authorized under § 4-4.01 m (see § 4-4.01 m. 1. b) 4)).
- **18** e. Utilization of State Owned and Leased Real Property:

19 1. By November 15 of each year, the Department of General Services (DGS) shall consolidate the reporting requirements of § 2.2-1131.1 and § 2.2-1153 of the Code of Virginia into a single report eliminating the individual reports required by § 2.2-20 1131.1 and § 2.2-1153 of the Code of Virginia. This report shall be submitted to the Governor and the General Assembly and 21 22 include (i) information on the implementation and effectiveness of the program established pursuant to subsection A of § 2.2-23 1131.1, (ii) a listing of real property leases that are in effect for the current year, the agency executing the lease, the amount of 24 space leased, the population of each leased facility, and the annual cost of the lease; and, (iii) a report on DGS's findings and 25 recommendations under the provisions of § 2.2-1153, and recommendations for any actions that may be required by the 26 Governor and the General Assembly to identify and dispose of property not being efficiently and effectively utilized.

27 2. By October 1 of each year, each agency that controls leased property, where such leased property is not under the DGS lease
28 administration program, shall provide a report on each leased facility or portion thereof to DGS in a manner and form
29 prescribed by DGS. Specific data included in the report shall identify at a minimum, the number of square feet occupied, the
30 number of employees and contractors working in the leased space, if applicable, and the cost of the lease.

31 f. Services Reports:

Status of any exemptions by the State Council of Higher Education to policy which prohibits use of funds in this act for the
 operation of any academic program by any state institution of higher education, unless approved by the Council and included in
 the Governor's recommended budget, or approved by the General Assembly (see § 4-5.05 b 2).

35 g. Standard State Agency Abbreviations:

The Department of Planning and Budget shall be responsible for maintaining a list of standard abbreviations of the names of
 state agencies. The Department shall make a listing of agency standard abbreviations available via electronic means on a
 continuous basis to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, the State Comptroller, the
 Director, Department of Human Resource Management and the Chief Information Officer, Virginia Information Technologies
 Agency, and the public.

h. Educational and General Program Nongeneral Fund Administrative Appropriations Approved by the Department of Planning
 and Budget:

43 The Secretary of Finance and Secretary of Education, in collaboration with the Director, Department of Planning and Budget, 44 shall report in December and June of each year to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees 45 on adjustments made to higher education operating funds in the Educational and General Programs (10000) items for each 46 public college and university contained in this budget. The report shall include actual or projected adjustments which increase

47 nongeneral funds or actual or projected adjustments that transfer nongeneral funds to other items within the institution. The48 report shall provide the justification for the increase or transfer and the relative impact on student groups.

49 § 4-8.02 STATE AGENCIES

50 a. As received, all state agencies shall forward copies of each federal audit performed on agency or institution programs or

51 activities to the Auditor of Public Accounts and to the State Comptroller. Upon request, all state agencies shall provide copies

of all internal audit reports and access to all working papers prepared by such auditors to the Auditor of Public Accounts and to the
 State Comptroller.

b. Annually: Within five calendar days after state agencies submit their budget requests, amendment briefs, or requests for
amendments to the Department of Planning and Budget, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget shall submit,
electronically if available, copies to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations Committees.

c. By September 1 of each year, state agencies receiving any asset as the result of a law-enforcement seizure and subsequent
 forfeiture by either a state or federal court, shall submit a report identifying all such assets received during the prior fiscal year and
 their estimated net worth, to the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees.

9 d. Any state agency that is required to return federal grant funding as a result of not fulfilling the specifications of a grant, shall, as
 10 soon as practicable but no later than November 1st, report to the Chairmen of the Senate Finance and House Appropriations
 11 Committees of such forfeiting of federal grant funding.

12 § 4-8.03 LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

13 a.1. The Auditor of Public Accounts shall establish a workgroup to develop criteria for a preliminary determination that a local government may be in fiscal distress. Such criteria shall be based upon information regularly collected by the Commonwealth or 14 otherwise regularly made public by the local government. This information includes expenditure reports submitted to the Auditor, 15 budget information posted on local government websites, and reports prepared by the Commission on Local Government on revenue 16 17 fiscal stress. Information provided by the Virginia Retirement System, the Virginia Resources Authority, the Virginia Public 18 Building Authority, and other state and regional authorities concerning late or missed debt service payments shall be shared with the Auditor. Fiscal distress as used in this context shall mean a situation whereby the provision and sustainability of public services is 19 threatened by various administrative and financial shortcomings including but not limited to cash flow issues; inability to pay 20 expenses; revenue shortfalls; deficit spending; structurally imbalanced budgets; billing and revenue collection inadequacies and 21 22 discrepancies; debt overload; failure to meet obligations to authorities, school divisions, or political subdivisions of the Commonwealth; and/or lack of trained and qualified staff to process administrative and financial transactions. Fiscal distress may be 23 24 caused by factors internal to the unit of government or external to the unit of government and in various degrees such conditions 25 may or may not be controllable by management, or the local governing body, or its constitutional officers.

26 2. Based upon the criteria established by the workgroup and using information identified above, the Auditor of Public Accounts shall
27 establish a prioritized early warning system. Under the prioritized early warning system, the Auditor of Public Accounts shall
28 establish a regular process whereby it reviews data on at least an annual basis to make a preliminary determination that a local
29 government is in fiscal distress.

30 3. For local governments where the Auditor of Public Accounts has made a preliminary determination of fiscal distress based upon the early warning system criteria, the Auditor of Public Accounts shall notify the local governing body of its preliminary 31 determination that it may meet the criteria for fiscal distress. Based upon the request of the local governing body or chief executive 32 33 officer, the Auditor of Public Accounts may conduct a review and request documents and data from the local government. Such 34 review shall consider factors including, but not limited to, budget processes, debt, borrowing, expenses and payables, revenues and 35 receivables, and other areas including staffing, and the identification of external variables contributing to a locality's financial 36 position, and if so, the scope of the issues involved. Any local governing body that receives requests for information from the 37 Auditor of Public Accounts pursuant to such preliminary determination based on the above described threshold levels shall 38 acknowledge receipt of such a request and shall ensure that a response is provided within the time frames specified by the Auditor of 39 Public Accounts. After such review, if the Auditor of Public Accounts is of the opinion that state assistance, oversight, or targeted 40 intervention is needed, either to further assess, help stabilize, or remediate the situation, the Auditor shall notify the Governor and 41 the Chairmen of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, and the governing body of the local government in 42 writing outlining specific issues or actions that need to be addressed by state intervention.

43 4. The notification issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts pursuant to paragraph 3 above shall satisfy the notification requirement
44 necessary to effectuate the provisions of this act in paragraph b.3 below.

b.1. The Director of the Department of Planning and Budget shall identify any amounts remaining unexpended from general fund
appropriations in this Act as of June 30 of each year, which constitute state aid to local governments. The Director shall provide a
listing of such amounts designated by item number and by program on or before August 15 of each year, to the Governor and the
Chairmen of the House Appropriations Committee and the Senate Finance Committee.

2. From such unexpended balances identified by the Director of the Department of Planning and Budget, the Governor may
reappropriate up to \$750,000 from amounts which would otherwise revert to the balance of the general fund and transfer such
amounts as necessary to establish a component of fund balance which may be used for the purpose of providing technical assistance
and intervention actions for local governments deemed to be fiscally distressed and in need of intervention to address such distress.
Any such reappropriation approved by the Governor, shall be separately identified in the commitments specified on the balance
sheet and financial statements of the State Comptroller for the close of each fiscal year, to the extent that such reserve is not used or
added to by future appropriations.

3. Prior to any expenditure of the reappropriated reserve, the Governor and the Chairmen of the House Appropriations
 Committee and the Senate Finance Committee must receive a notification from the Auditor of Public Accounts that a specific
 locality is in need of intervention because of a worsening financial situation. The Auditor of Public Accounts may issue such a
 notification upon receipt of audited financial statement or other information that indicates the existence of fiscal distress. But,
 no such notification shall be made until appropriate follow up and correspondence ascertains that, in the opinion of the Auditor
 of Public Accounts, such fiscal distress indeed exists. Such notification may also be issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts if
 written concerns raised about fiscal distress are not adequately addressed by the locality in question.

8 4. Once the Governor has received a notification from the Auditor of Public Accounts indicating fiscal distress in a specific local government, the Governor shall consult with the Chairmen of the House Appropriations Committee and the Senate 9 10 Finance Committee about a plan for state intervention prior to any expenditure of funds from the cash reserve. Any plan approved by the Governor for intervention should, at a minimum, specify the purpose of such intervention, the estimated 11 duration of the intervention, and the anticipated resources (dollars and personnel) directed toward such effort. The staffing 12 necessary to carry out the intervention plan may be assembled from either public agencies or private entities or both and, 13 notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the Governor may use an expedited method of procurement to secure such staffing 14 15 when, in his judgment, the need for intervention is of an emergency nature such that action must be taken in a timely manner to avoid or address unacceptable financial risks to the Commonwealth. 16

17 5. The governing body and the elected constitutional officers of a locality subject to an intervention plan approved by the Governor shall assist all state appointed staff conducting the intervention regardless of whether such staff are from public 18 19 agencies or private entities. Intervention staff shall provide periodic reports in writing to the Governor and the Chairmen of the 20 House Appropriations Committee and the Senate Finance Committee outlining the scope of issues discovered and any 21 recommendations made to remediate such issues, and the progress that is made on such recommendations or other remediation 22 efforts. These periodic reports shall specifically address the degree of cooperation the intervention team is receiving from 23 locally elected officials, including constitutional officers, city, county, or town managers and other local personnel in regards to 24 their intervention work.

6. The Department of General Services is hereby encouraged to develop a master contract of qualified private sector turnaround
 specialists with expertise in local government intervention that the Governor can use to procure intervention services in an
 expeditious manner when he determines that state intervention is warranted in situations of local fiscal distress.

28

§ 4-9.00 HIGHER EDUCATION RESTRUCTURING

29 § 4-9.01 ASSESSMENT OF INSTITUTIONAL PERFORMANCE

Consistent with § 23.1-206, Code of Virginia, the following education-related and financial and administrative management
 measures shall be the basis on which the State Council of Higher Education shall annually assess and certify institutional
 performance. Such certification shall be completed and forwarded in writing to the Governor and the General Assembly no
 later than October 1 of each even-numbered year. Institutional performance on measures set forth in paragraph D of this section
 shall be evaluated year-to-date by the Secretaries of Finance, Administration, and Technology as appropriate, and
 communicated to the State Council of Higher Education before October 1 of each even-numbered year. Financial benefits
 provided to each institution in accordance with § 23.1-1002 will be evaluated in light of that institution's performance.

37 In general, institutions are expected to achieve all performance measures in order to be certified by SCHEV, but it is 38 understood that there can be circumstances beyond an institution's control that may prevent achieving one or more performance 39 measures. The Council shall consider, in consultation with each institution, such factors in its review: (1) institutions meeting 40 all performance measures will be certified by the Council and recommended to receive the financial benefits, (2) institutions 41 that do not meet all performance measures will be evaluated by the Council and the Council may take one or more of the 42 following actions: (a) request the institution provide a remediation plan and recommend that the Governor withhold release of 43 financial benefits until Council review of the remediation plan or (b) recommend that the Governor withhold all or part of 44 financial benefits.

- Further, the State Council shall have broad authority to certify institutions as having met the standards on education-related
 measures. The State Council shall likewise have the authority to exempt institutions from certification on education-related
 measures that the State Council deems unrelated to an institution's mission or unnecessary given the institution's level of
- 48 performance.
- 49 The State Council may develop, adopt, and publish standards for granting exemptions and ongoing modifications to the certification process.

51 a. BIENNIAL ASSESSMENTS

- 52 1. Institution meets at least 95 percent of its State Council-approved biennial projections for in-state undergraduate headcount
 53 enrollment.
- 54 2. Institution meets at least 95 percent of its State Council-approved biennial projections for the number of in-state associate

- 1 and bachelor degree awards.
- 3. Institution meets at least 95 percent of its State Council-approved biennial projections for the number of in-state STEM-H
 (Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics, and Health professions) associate and bachelor degree awards.
- 4. Institution meets at least 95 percent of its State Council-approved biennial projections for the number of in-state, upper level sophomore level for two-year institutions and junior and senior level for four-year institutions program-placed, full-time equivalent
 students.
- 5. Maintain or increase the number of in-state associate and bachelor degrees awarded to students from under-representedpopulations.
- 9 6. Maintain or increase the number of in-state two-year transfers to four-year institutions.
- 10 b. Elementary and Secondary Education

1. The Virginia Department of Education shall share data on teachers, including identifying information, with the State Council of
 Higher Education for Virginia in order to evaluate the efficacy of approved programs of teacher education, the production and
 retention of teachers, and the exiting of teachers from the teaching profession.

2. a) The Virginia Department of Education and the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall share personally
identifiable information from education records in order to evaluate and study student preparation for and enrollment and
performance at state institutions of higher education in order to improve educational policy and instruction in the Commonwealth.
However, such study shall be conducted in such a manner as to not permit the personal identification of students by persons other
than representatives of the Department of Education or the State Council for Higher Education for Virginia, and such shared
information shall be destroyed when no longer needed for purposes of the study.

b) Notwithstanding § 2.2-3800 of the Code of Virginia, the Virginia Department of Education, State Council of Higher Education
 for Virginia, Virginia Community College System, and the Virginia Employment Commission may collect, use, share, and maintain
 de-identified student data to improve student and program performance including those for career readiness.

3. Institutions of higher education shall disclose information from a pupil's scholastic record to the Superintendent of Public
 Instruction or his designee for the purpose of studying student preparation as it relates to the content and rigor of the Standards of
 Learning. Furthermore, the superintendent of each school division shall disclose information from a pupil's scholastic record to the
 Superintendent of Public Instruction or his designee for the same purpose. All information provided to the Superintendent or his
 designee for this purpose shall be used solely for the purpose of evaluating the Standards of Learning and shall not be redisclosed,
 except as provided under federal law. All information shall be destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes of studying the
 content and rigor of the Standards of Learning.

- 30 c. SIX-YEAR PLAN
- **31** Institution prepares six-year financial plan consistent with § 23.1-907.
- 32 d. FINANCIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE STANDARDS
- The financial and administrative standards apply to all institutions except those governed under Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006
 Acts of Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly.
- 35 1. As specified in § 2.2-5004, Code of Virginia, institution takes all appropriate actions to meet the following financial and administrative standards:
- a) An unqualified opinion from the Auditor of Public Accounts upon the audit of the public institution's financial statements;
- 38 b) No significant audit deficiencies attested to by the Auditor of Public Accounts;
- **39** c) Substantial compliance with all financial reporting standards approved by the State Comptroller;
- d) Substantial attainment of accounts receivable standards approved by the State Comptroller, including but not limited to, any
 standards for outstanding receivables and bad debts; and
- e) Substantial attainment of accounts payable standards approved by the State Comptroller including, but not limited to, anystandards for accounts payable past due.
- 2. Institution complies with a debt management policy approved by its governing board that defines the maximum percent of
 institutional resources that can be used to pay debt service in a fiscal year, and the maximum amount of debt that can be prudently
 issued within a specified period.
- 47 3. The institution will achieve the classified staff turnover rate goal established by the institution; however, a variance of 15 percent

1 from the established goal will be acceptable.

2 4. The institution will substantially comply with its annual approved Small, Women and Minority (SWAM) plan as submitted

- to the Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity; however, a variance of 15 percent from its SWAM purchase goal,
 as stated in the plan, will be acceptable.
- The institution will make no less than 75 percent of dollar purchases through the Commonwealth's enterprise-wide internet
 procurement system (eVA) from vendor locations registered in eVA.

5. The institution will complete capital projects (with an individual cost of over \$1,000,000) within the budget originally approved by the institution's governing board for projects initiated under delegated authority, or the budget set out in the Appropriation Act or other Acts of Assembly. If the institution exceeds the budget for any such project, the Secretaries of Administration and Finance shall review the circumstances causing the cost overrun and the manner in which the institution responded and determine whether the institution shall be considered in compliance with the measure despite the cost overrun.

6. The institution will complete major information technology projects (with an individual cost of over \$1,000,000) within the
budgets and schedules originally approved by the institution's governing board. If the institution exceeds the budget and/or time
schedule for any such project, the Secretary of Administration shall review the circumstances causing the cost overrun and/or
delay and the manner in which the institution responded and determine whether the institution appropriately adhered to Project
Management Institute's best management practices and, therefore, shall be considered in compliance with the measure despite
the cost overrun and/or delay.

18 e. FINANCIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE STANDARDS

19 The financial and administrative standards apply to institutions governed under Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of 20 Assembly, Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of Assembly. They 21 shall be measured by the administrative standards outlined in the Management Agreements and § 4-9.02.d.4. of this act. 22 However, the Governor may supplement or replace those administrative performance measures with the administrative 23 performance measures listed in this paragraph. Effective July 1, 2009, the following administrative and financial measures shall 24 be used for the assessment of institutional performance for institutions governed under Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts 25 of Assembly and those governed under Chapters 594 and 616 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, and Chapters 675 and 685 of the 26 2009 Acts of Assembly.

- 27 1. Financial
- a) An unqualified opinion from the Auditor of Public Accounts upon the audit of the public institution's financial statements;
- b) No significant audit deficiencies attested to by the Auditor of Public Accounts;
- 30 c) Substantial compliance with all financial reporting standards approved by the State Comptroller;
- d) Substantial attainment of accounts receivable standards approved by the State Comptroller, including but not limited to, any
 standards for outstanding receivables and bad debts; and
- e) Substantial attainment of accounts payable standards approved by the State Comptroller including, but not limited to, any
 standards for accounts payable past due.
- 35 2. Debt Management
- 36 a) The institution shall maintain a bond rating of AA- or better;
- b) The institution achieves a three-year average rate of return at least equal to the imoney.net money market index fund; and
- c) The institution maintains a debt burden ratio equal to or less than the level approved by the Board of Visitors in its debt management policy.
- **40** 3. Human Resources
- a) The institution's voluntary turnover rate for classified plus university/college employees will meet the voluntary turnover rate for state classified employees within a variance of 15 percent; and
- b) The institution achieves a rate of internal progression within a range of 40 to 60 percent of the total salaried staff hires for thefiscal year.
- 45 4. Procurement
- a) The institution will substantially comply with its annual approved Small, Women and Minority (SWAM) procurement plan
- 47 as submitted to the Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity; however, a variance of 15 percent from its SWAM

- 1 purchase goal, as stated in the plan, will be acceptable; and
- b) The institution will make no less than 80 percent of purchase transactions through the Commonwealth's enterprise-wide internet
 procurement system (eVA) with no less than 75 percent of dollars to vendor locations in eVA.
- 4 5. Capital Outlay

a) The institution will complete capital projects (with an individual cost of over \$1,000,000) within the budget originally approved
by the institution's governing board at the preliminary design state for projects initiated under delegated authority, or the budget set
out in the Appropriation Act or other Acts of Assembly which provides construction funding for the project at the preliminary design
state. If the institution exceeds the budget for any such project, the Secretaries of Administration and Finance shall review the
circumstances causing the cost overrun and the manner in which the institution responded and determine whether the institution shall
be considered in compliance with the measure despite the cost overrun;

b) The institution shall complete capital projects with the dollar amount of owner requested change orders not more than 2 percent of
 the guaranteed maximum price (GMP) or construction price; and

c) The institution shall pay competitive rates for leased office space – the average cost per square foot for office space leased by the
 institution is within 5 percent of the average commercial business district lease rate for similar quality space within reasonable
 proximity to the institution's campus.

16 6. Information Technology

a) The institution will complete major information technology projects (with an individual cost of over \$1,000,000) on time and on
budget against their managed project baseline. If the institution exceeds the budget and/or time schedule for any such project, the
Secretary of Technology shall review the circumstances causing the cost overrun and/or delay and the manner in which the
institution responded and determine whether the institution appropriately adhered to Project Management Institute's best
management practices and, therefore, shall be considered in compliance with the measure despite the cost overrun and/or delay; and

b) The institution will maintain compliance with institutional security standards as evaluated in internal and external audits. Theinstitution will have no significant audit deficiencies unresolved beyond one year.

f. REPORTING

The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, with cooperation from the Comptroller and institutions of higher education
 governed under Management Agreements, shall develop uniform reporting requirements and formats for revenue and expenditure
 data.

28 g. EXEMPTION

The requirements of this section shall not be in effect if they conflict with § 23.1-206.D. of Chapters 828 and 869 of the Acts of
 Assembly of 2011.

31 § 4-9.02 LEVEL II AUTHORITY

a. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 5 of Chapter 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, institutions of higher education that
 have met the eligibility criteria for additional operational and administrative authority set forth in Chapters 824 and 829 of the 2008

Acts of Assembly shall be allowed to enter into separate negotiations for additional operational authority for a third and separate
 functional area listed in Chapter 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly, provided they have:

- 36 1. successfully completed at least three years of effectiveness and efficiencies operating under such additional authority granted by37 an original memorandum of understanding;
- **38** 2. successfully renewed an additional memoranda of understanding for a five year term for each of the original two areas.

The institutions shall meet all criteria and follow policies for negotiating and establishing a memorandum of understanding with the
Commonwealth of Virginia as provided in § 2.0 (Information Technology), § 3.0 (Procurement), and § 4.0 (Capital Outlay) of
Chapter 824 and 829 of the 2008 Acts of Assembly.

b. As part of the memorandum of understanding, each institution shall be required to adopt at least one new education-related
measure for the new area of operational authority. Each education-related measure and its respective target shall be developed in
consultation with the Secretary of Finance, Secretary of Education, the appropriate Cabinet Secretary, and the State Council of
Higher Education for Virginia. Each education-related measure and its respective target must be approved by the State Council of
Higher Education for Virginia.

c. 1. As part of a five-year pilot program, George Mason University and James Madison University are authorized, for a period of
five years, to exercise additional financial and administrative authority as set out in each of the three functional areas of information
technology, procurement and capital projects as set forth and subject to all the conditions in §§ 2.0, 3.0 and 4.0 of the second

1 enactment of Chapter 824 and 829 of the Acts of Assembly of 2008 except that (i) any effective dates contained in Chapter 824

- and 829 of the Acts of Assembly of 2008 are superseded by the provisions of this item, and (ii) the institution is not required to
 have a signed memorandum of understanding with the Secretary of Administration regarding participation in the nongeneral
- 4 fund decentralization program as provided in subsection C of § 2.2-1132 in order to be eligible for the additional capital project
- 5 authority.
- 6 2. In addition, each institution shall exercise additional financial and administrative authority over financial operations as7 follows:

8 a). BOARD OF VISITORS ACCOUNTABILITY AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY.

9 The Board of Visitors of the University shall at all times be fully and ultimately accountable for the proper fulfillment of the duties and responsibilities set forth in, and for the appropriate implementation of, this Policy. Consistent with this full and ultimate accountability, however, the Board may, pursuant to its legally permissible procedures, specifically delegate either herein or by separate Board resolution the duties and responsibilities set forth in this Policy to a person or persons within the University, who, while continuing to be fully accountable for such duties and responsibilities, may further delegate the implementation of those duties and responsibilities pursuant to the University's usual delegation policies and procedures.

15 b) FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING SYSTEM.

16 The President, acting through the Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or Chief Financial Officer, shall continue 17 to be authorized by the Board to maintain existing and implement new policies governing the management of University 18 financial resources. These policies shall continue to (i) ensure compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, (ii) 19 ensure consistency with the current accounting principles employed by the Commonwealth, including the use of fund 20 accounting principles, with regard to the establishment of the underlying accounting records of the University and the 21 allocation and utilization of resources within the accounting system, including the relevant guidance provided by the State 22 Council of Higher Education for Virginia chart of accounts with regard to the allocation and proper use of funds from specific 23 types of fund sources, (iii) provide adequate risk management and internal controls to protect and safeguard all financial 24 resources, including moneys transferred to the University pursuant to a general fund appropriation, and ensure compliance with 25 the requirements of the Appropriation Act.

The financial management system shall continue to include a financial reporting system to satisfy both the requirements for
 inclusion into the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, as specified in the related State Comptroller's
 Directives, and the University's separately audited financial statements. To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions
 placed on the use of the resources available to the University, the accounting and bookkeeping system of the University shall
 continue to be maintained in accordance with the principles prescribed for governmental organizations by the Governmental
 Accounting Standards Board.

In addition, the financial management system shall continue to provide financial reporting for the President, acting through the
 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or Chief Financial Officer, and the Board of Visitors to enable them to
 provide adequate oversight of the financial operations of the University.

35 c) FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES.

The President, acting through the Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or Chief Financial Officer, shall create 36 37 and implement any and all financial management policies necessary to establish a financial management system with adequate 38 risk management and internal control processes and procedures for the effective protection and management of all University 39 financial resources. Such policies will not address the underlying accounting principles and policies employed by the 40 Commonwealth and the University, but rather will focus on the internal operations of the University's financial management. 41 These policies shall include, but need not be limited to, the development of a tailored set of finance and accounting practices 42 that seek to support the University's specific business and administrative operating environment in order to improve the 43 efficiency and effectiveness of its business and administrative functions. In general, the system of independent financial 44 management policies shall be guided by the general principles contained in the Commonwealth's Accounting Policies and 45 Procedures such as establishing strong risk management and internal accounting controls to ensure University financial 46 resources are properly safeguarded and that appropriate stewardship of public funds is obtained through management's 47 oversight of the effective and efficient use of such funds in the performance of University programs.

The University shall continue to follow the Commonwealth's accounting policies until such time as specific alternate policies
 can be developed, approved and implemented. Such alternate policies shall include applicable accountability measures and
 shall be submitted to the State Comptroller for review and comment before they are implemented by the University.

d) FINANCIAL RESOURCE RETENTION AND MANAGEMENT.

52 The Board of Visitors shall retain the authority to establish tuition, fee, room, board, and other charges, with appropriate

- 53 commitment provided to need-based grant aid for middle- and lower-income undergraduate Virginians. Except as provided
- 54 otherwise in the Appropriation Act, it is the intent of the Commonwealth and the University that the University shall be exempt

from the revenue restrictions in the general provisions of the Appropriation Act related to non-general funds. In addition, unless prohibited by the Appropriation Act, it is the intent of the Commonwealth and the University that the University shall be entitled to retain non-general fund savings generated from changes in Commonwealth rates and charges, including but not limited to health, life, and disability insurance rates, retirement contribution rates, telecommunications charges, and utility rates, rather than reverting such savings back to the Commonwealth. This financial resource policy assists the University by providing the framework for retaining and managing non-general funds, for the receipt of general funds, and for the use and stewardship of all these funds.

7 The President, acting through the Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or Chief Financial Officer, shall continue to provide oversight of the University's cash management system which is the framework for the retention of non-general funds. The Internal Audit Department of the University shall periodically audit the University's cash management system in accordance with appropriate risk assessment models and make reports to the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of Visitors. Additional oversight shall continue to be provided through the annual audit and assessment of internal controls performed by the Auditor of Public Accounts. For the receipt of general and non-general funds, the University shall conform to the Security for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 44 (§ 2.2-4400 et seq.) of Title 2.2 of the Code of Virginia as it currently exists and from time to time may be amended.

14 e) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE MANAGEMENT AND COLLECTION.

The President, through the Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or Chief Financial Officer, shall continue to be authorized to create and implement any and all Accounts Receivable Management and Collection policies as part of a system for the management of University financial resources. The policies shall be guided by the requirements of the Virginia Debt Collection Act, Chapter 48 (§ 2.2-4800 et seq.) of the Code of Virginia, such that the University shall take all appropriate and cost effective actions to aggressively collect accounts receivable in a timely manner.

20 These shall include, but not be limited to, establishing the criteria for granting credit to University customers; establishing the nature 21 and timing of collection procedures within the above general principles; and the independent authority to select and contract with 22 collection agencies and, after consultation with the Office of the Attorney General, private attorneys as needed to perform any and 23 all collection activities for all University accounts receivable such as reporting delinquent accounts to credit bureaus, obtaining 24 judgments, garnishments, and liens against such debtors, and other actions. In accordance with sound collection activities, the 25 University shall continue to utilize the Commonwealth's Debt Set-Off Collection Programs, shall develop procedures acceptable to 26 the Tax Commissioner and the State Comptroller to implement such Programs, and shall provide a quarterly summary report of 27 receivables to the Department of Accounts in accordance with the reporting procedures established pursuant to the Virginia Debt 28 Collection Act.

29 f) DISBURSEMENT MANAGEMENT.

30 The President, acting through the Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or Chief Financial Officer, shall continue to be 31 authorized to create and implement any and all disbursement policies as part of a system for the management of University financial 32 resources. The disbursement management policies shall continue to define the appropriate and reasonable uses of all funds, from 33 whatever source derived, in the execution of the University's operations. These policies also shall continue to address the timing of 34 appropriate and reasonable disbursements consistent with the Prompt Payment Act, and the appropriateness of certain goods or 35 services relative to the University's mission, including travel-related disbursements. Further, the University's disbursement policy shall continue to provide for the mechanisms by which payments are made including the use of charge cards, warrants, and 36 37 electronic payments.

38 These disbursement policies shall authorize the President, acting through the Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, or 39 Chief Financial Officer, to independently select, engage, and contract for such consultants, accountants, and financial experts, and 40 other such providers of expert advice and consultation, and, after consultation with the Office of the Attorney General, private 41 attorneys, as may be necessary or desirable in his or her discretion. The policies also shall continue to include the ability to locally manage and administer the Commonwealth's credit card and cost recovery programs related to disbursements, subject to any 42 43 restrictions contained in the Commonwealth's contracts governing those programs, provided that the University shall submit the 44 credit card and cost recovery aspects of its financial and operations policies to the State Comptroller for review and comment prior 45 to implementing those aspects of those policies. The disbursement policies shall ensure that adequate risk management and internal 46 control procedures shall be maintained over previously decentralized processes for public records, payroll, and non-payroll 47 disbursements. The University shall continue to provide summary quarterly prompt payment reports to the Department of Accounts 48 in accordance with the reporting procedures established pursuant to the Prompt Payment Act.

The University's disbursement policies shall be guided by the principles of the Commonwealth's policies as included in the
 Commonwealth's Accounting Policy and Procedures Manual. The University shall continue to follow the Commonwealth's
 disbursement policies until such time as specific alternative policies can be developed, approved and implemented. Such alternate
 policies shall be submitted to the State Comptroller for review and comment prior to their implementation by the University.

53 3. The Auditor of Public Accounts or his legally authorized representatives shall audit annually the accounts of each institution and
54 shall distribute copies of each annual audit to the Governor and to the Chairmen of the House Committee on Appropriations and the
55 Senate Committee on Finance. Pursuant to § 30-133, the Auditor of Public Accounts and his legally authorized representatives shall
56 examine annually the accounts and books of each such institution, but the institution shall not be deemed to be a state or
57 governmental agency, advisory agency, public body, or agency or instrumentality for purposes of Chapter 14 (§ 30-130 et seq.) of

- Title 30 except for those provisions in such chapter that relate to requirements for financial recordkeeping and bookkeeping.
 Each such institution shall be subject to periodic external review by the Joint Legislative and Audit Review Commission and such other reviews and audits as shall be required by law.
- 4 d. Subject to review of its Shared Services Center by the Department of General Services, and approval to proceed with 5 decentralized procurement of authority by the Department of General Services, the Virginia Community College System (VCCS) is authorized, for a period of five years, to exercise additional financial and administrative authority as set out in each 6 7 of the three functional areas of information technology, procurement and capital projects as set forth and subject to all the 8 conditions in §§ 2.0, 3.0 and 4.0 of the second enactment of Chapter 824 and 829 of the Acts of Assembly of 2008 except that 0 (i) any effective dates contained in Chapter 824 and 829 of the Acts of Assembly of 2008 are superseded by the provisions of 10 this item. The State Board for Community Colleges may request any subsequent delegation of procurement authority after consultation with and positive recommendation by the Department of General Services. 11

12 § 4-9.03 LEVEL III AUTHORITY

a. The Management Agreements negotiated by the institutions contained in Chapters 675 and 685 of the 2009 Acts of
 Assembly shall continue in effect unless the Governor, the General Assembly, or the institutions determine that the
 Management Agreements need to be renegotiated or revised.

b. Pursuant to § 23.1-1005, Code of Virginia, the Governor recommends approval for James Madison University to operate as
 a Level III institution under the management agreement as approved by its board of visitors on November 9, 2018.

18 § 4-9.04 IMPLEMENT JLARC RECOMMENDATIONS

- 19 a. The Boards of Visitors at each Virginia public four-year higher education institution, to the extent practicable, shall:
- 1. require their institutions to clearly list the amount of the athletic fee on their website's tuition and fees information page. The
 page should include a link to the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia's tuition and fee information. The boards
 should consider requiring institutions to list the major components of all mandatory fees, including the portion attributable to
 athletics, on a separate page attached to student invoices;
- 24 2. assess the feasibility and impact of raising additional revenue through campus recreation and fitness enterprises to reduce
 25 reliance on mandatory student fees. The assessments should address the feasibility and impact of raising additional revenue
 26 through charging for specialized programs and services, expanding membership, and/or charging all users of recreation
 27 facilities;
- 3. direct staff to perform a comprehensive review of the institution's organizational structure, including an analysis of spans of control and a review of staff activities and workload, and identify opportunities to streamline the organizational structure.
 Boards should further direct staff to implement the recommendations of the review to streamline their organizational structures where possible;
- 4. require periodic reports on average and median spans of control and the number of supervisors with six or fewer direct reports;
- 5. direct staff to revise human resource policies to eliminate unnecessary supervisory positions by developing standards that
 establish and promote broader spans of control. The new policies and standards should (i) set an overall target span of control
 for the institution, (ii) set a minimum number of direct reports per supervisor, with guidelines for exceptions, (iii) define the
 circumstances that necessitate the use of a supervisory position, (iv) prohibit the establishment of supervisory positions for the
 purpose of recruiting or retaining employees, and (v) establish a periodic review of departments where spans of control are
 unusually narrow; and,
- 6. direct institution staff to set and enforce policies to maximize standardization of purchases of commonly procured goods,
 including use of institution-wide contracts;
- 42 7. consider directing institution staff to provide an annual report on all institutional purchases, including small purchases, that
 43 are exceptions to the institutional policies for standardizing purchases;
- 44 8. participate in national faculty teaching load assessments by discipline and faculty type.
- 45 b. The State Council on Higher Education for Virginia, to the extent practicable, shall:
- 46 1. convene a working group of institution financial officers, with input from the Department of Accounts, the Department of
 47 Planning and Budget, and the Auditor of Public Accounts, to create a standard way of calculating and publishing mandatory
 48 non-E&G fees, including for intercollegiate athletics;
- 49 2. update the state's Chart of Accounts for higher education in order to improve comparability and transparency of mandatory
 50 non-E&G fees, with input from the Department of Accounts, the Department of Planning and Budget, the Auditor of Public

- 1 Accounts, and institutional staff. This process should be coordinated with the standardization of tuition and fee reporting;
- 2 3. convene a working group of institutional staff to develop instructional and research space guidelines that adequately measure
 3 current use of space and plans for future use of space at Virginia's public higher education institutions;

4. coordinate a committee of institutional representatives, such as the previously authorized Learning Technology Advisory
 5 Committee. In addition to the objectives set out in the Appropriation Act for the Learning Technology Advisory Committee, the
 6 committee should identify instructional technology initiatives and best practices for directly or indirectly lowering institutions'
 7 instructional expenditures per student while maintaining or enhancing student learning:

8 5. include factors such as discipline, faculty rank, cost of living, and regional comparisons in developing faculty salary goals;

9 6. identify instructional technology best practices that directly or indirectly lower student cost while maintaining or enhancing10 learning.

c. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 23.1-1304, the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia shall annually train boards of
 visitors members on the types of information members should request from institutions to inform decision making, such as
 performance measures, benchmarking data, the impact of financial decisions on student costs, and past and projected cost trends.
 Boards of Visitors members serving on finance and facilities subcommittees should, at a minimum, participate in the training within
 their first year of membership on the subcommittee. SCHEV should obtain assistance in developing or delivering the training from
 relevant agencies such as the Department of General Services and past or present finance officers at Virginia's public four-year
 institutions, as appropriate.

- d. The Department of Planning and Budget shall revise the formula used to make allocation recommendations for the state's maintenance reserve funding to account for higher maintenance needs resulting from poor facility condition, aging of facilities, and differences in facility use. Beginning with fiscal year 2016, the Department of Planning and Budget shall submit these recommendations to the Governor and General Assembly no later than November 1 of each year.
- e. The Six-Year Capital Outlay Plan Advisory Committee, the Department of Planning and Budget, and others as appropriate shall
 use the results of the prioritization process established by the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia in determining which
 capital projects should receive funding.
- f. Beginning with fiscal year 2016, the Auditor of Public Accounts shall include in its audit plan for each public institution of higher
 education a review of progress in implementing the JLARC recommendations contained in paragraph § 4-9.04 a.
- 27

§ 4-11.00 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Each agency head handling any state funds shall, at least once each year, upon request of the Auditor of Public Accounts, make a
detailed statement, under oath, of the financial condition of his office as of the date of such call, to the Auditor of Public Accounts, and upon such forms as shall be prescribed by the Auditor of Public Accounts.

31

§ 4-12.00 SEVERABILITY

32 If any part, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or item of this act or the application thereof to any person or 33 circumstance is for any reason declared unconstitutional, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 34 act which shall remain in force as if such act had been passed with the unconstitutional part, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, 35 clause, phrase, item or such application thereof eliminated; and the General Assembly hereby declares that it would have passed this 36 act if such unconstitutional part, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or item had not been included herein, or if 37 such application had not been made.

38

46

48

§ 4-13.00 CONFLICT WITH OTHER LAWS

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, and until June 30, 2020, the provisions of this act shall prevail over any conflicting provision of any other law, without regard to whether such other law is enacted before or after this act; however, a conflicting provision of another law enacted after this act shall prevail over a conflicting provision of this act if the General Assembly has clearly evidenced its intent that the conflicting provision of such other law shall prevail, which intent shall be evident only if such other law (i) identifies the specific provision(s) of this act over which the conflicting provision of such other law is intended to prevail and (ii) specifically states that the terms of this section are not applicable with respect to the conflict between the provision(s) of this act and the provision of such other law.

§ 4-14.00 EFFECTIVE DATE

47 This act is effective on July 1, 2018 on its passage as provided in § 1-214, Code of Virginia..

ADDITIONAL ENACTMENTS

49 23. That §§ 33.2-1904, 33.2-1907 and 33.2-2502 of the Code of Virginia are amended and reenacted as follows:

1 § 33.2-1904. Northern Virginia Transportation District and Commission.

2 A. There is hereby created the Northern Virginia Transportation District (the District), comprising the Counties of Arlington,

- Fairfax, and Loudoun; the Cities of Alexandria, Falls Church, and Fairfax; and such other county or city contiguous to the District
 that agrees to join the District.
- 5 B. There is hereby established the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission (the Commission) as a transportation

6 commission pursuant to this chapter. The Commission shall consist of five nonlegislative citizen members from Fairfax County,
 7 three nonlegislative citizen members from Arlington County, two nonlegislative citizen members from Loudoun County, two

- 8 nonlegislative citizen members from the City of Alexandria, one nonlegislative entitien the City of Falls Church, one
- nonlegislative citizen member from the City of Fairfax, and the Chairman of the Commonwealth Transportation Board or his
- 10 designee to serve ex officio with voting privileges. If a county or city contiguous to the District agrees to join the District, such
- 11 locality shall appoint one nonlegislative citizen member to the Commission. Members from the counties and cities shall be
- 12 appointed from their respective governing bodies. The Commission shall also include four members of the House of Delegates
- 13 appointed by the Speaker of the House of Delegates who may be members of the House of Delegates for terms coincident with
- 14 their terms of office and two members of the Senate appointed by the Senate Committee on Rules. All legislative members shall
- serve for terms coincident with their terms of office. Members may be reappointed for successive terms. All members shall be
- citizens of the Commonwealth. Except for the Chairman of the Commonwealth Transportation Board or his designee, all membersof the Commission shall be residents of the localities composing the District. Vacancies occurring other than by expiration of a
- 18 term shall be filled for the unexpired term. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointments.

19 § 33.2-1907. Members of Transportation Commissions.

20 A. Any transportation district commission created pursuant to this chapter shall consist of the number of members the component

- 21 governments shall agree upon, or as may otherwise be provided by law. The governing body of each participating county and city
- shall appoint from among its members the number of commissioners to which the county or city is entitled; however, for those
- commissions with powers as set forth in subsection A of § 33.2-1915, the governing body of each participating county or city is
 not limited to appointing commissioners from among its members. In addition, the governing body may appoint, from its number
- 24 not limited to appointing commissioners from among its members. In addition, the governing body may appoint, from its number 25 or otherwise, designated alternate members for those appointed to the commission who shall be able to exercise all of the powers
- and duties of a commission member when the regular member is absent from commission meetings. Each such appointee shall
- 27 serve at the pleasure of the appointing body; however, no appointee to a commission with powers as set forth in subsection B of §
- **28** 33.2-1915 may continue to serve when he is no longer a member of the appointing body. Each governing body shall inform the
- commission of its appointments to and removals from the commission by delivering to the commission a certified copy of the
- 30 resolution making the appointment or causing the removal.
- 31 The Chairman of the Commonwealth Transportation Board, or his designee, shall be a member of each commission, ex officio
- 32 with voting privileges. The Chairman of the Commonwealth Transportation Board may appoint an alternate member who may
- 33 exercise all the powers and duties of the Chairman of the Commonwealth Transportation Board when neither the Chairman of the
- 34 Commonwealth Transportation Board nor his designee is present at a commission meeting.
- 35 The Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission shall also include two members who reside within the boundaries of 36 the transportation district of the House of Delegates and one member of the Senate from legislative districts located wholly or in 37 part within the boundaries of the transportation district. The members of the House of Delegates shall be appointed by the Speaker
- 38 of the House for terms coincident with their terms of office who may be members of the House of Delegates and theone member of
- 39 the Senate shall be appointed by the Senate Committee on Rules. Each legislative member shall be from a legislative district
- 40 *located wholly or in part within the boundaries of the transportation district and shall serve for* a term coincident with his term of
- 41 office. The members of the General Assembly shall be eligible for reappointment for successive terms. Vacancies occurring other
- than by expiration of a term shall be filled for the unexpired term. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as the original
- 43 appointments.
- The Transportation District Commission of Hampton Roads shall consist of one nonlegislative citizen member appointed by the Governor from each county and city embraced by the transportation district. However, for the gubernatorial appointments that will become effective July 1, 2016, three of the appointments shall be for initial terms of two years and three appointments shall be for terms of four years. Thereafter, all gubernatorial appointments shall be for terms of four years so as to stagger the terms of the gubernatorial appointees. The governing body of each such county or city may appoint either a member of its governing body or its county or city manager to serve as an ex officio member with voting privileges. Every such ex officio member shall be allowed
- to attend all meetings of the commission that other members may be required to attend. Vacancies shall be filled in the same
- 51 manner as the original appointments.
- 52 B. The Secretary or his designee and any appointed member of the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission are authorized
- to serve as members of the board of directors of the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (§ 33.2-3100 et seq.) and
- while so serving the provisions of § 2.2-2800 shall not apply to such member. In appointing Virginia members of the board of
- directors of the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA), the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission shall include the Secretary or his designee as a principal member on the board of directors of WMATA. Any designee serving as
- 57 the principal member must reside in a locality served by WMATA.

In selecting from its membership those members to serve on the board of directors of WMATA, the Northern Virginia Transportation 1 2 Commission shall comply with the following requirements:

3 1. A board member shall not have been an employee of WMATA within one year of appointment to serve on the board of directors.

2. A board member shall have (i) experience in at least one of the fields of transit planning, transportation planning, or land use 4

5 planning; transit or transportation management or other public sector management; engineering; finance; public safety; homeland

6 security: human resources: or the law or (ii) knowledge of the region's transportation issues derived from working on regional 7 transportation issue resolution.

8 3. A board member shall be a regular patron of the services provided by WMATA.

9 4. Board members shall serve a term of four years with a maximum of two consecutive terms. A board member's term or terms must 10 coincide with his term on the body that appointed him to the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission. Any vacancy created if a board member cannot fulfill his term because his term on the appointing body has ended shall be filled for the unexpired term in the 11 12 same manner as the member being replaced was appointed within 60 days of the vacancy. The initial appointments to a four-year term 13 will be as follows: the Secretary, or his designee, for a term of four years; the second principal member for a term of three years; one 14 alternate for a term of two years; and the remaining alternate for a term of one year. Thereafter, board members shall be appointed for 15 terms of four years. Service on the WMATA board of directors prior to July 1, 2012, shall not be considered in determining length of 16 service. Any person appointed to an initial one-year or two-year term, or appointed to an unexpired term in which two years or less is

17 remaining, shall be eligible to serve two consecutive four-year terms after serving the initial or unexpired term.

18 5. Members may be removed from the board of directors of WMATA if they attend fewer than three-fourths of the meetings in a calendar year; if they are conflicted due to employment at WMATA; or if they are found to be in violation of the State and Local 19

20 Government Conflict of Interests Act (§ 2.2-3100 et seq.). If a board member is removed during a term, the vacancy shall be filled pursuant to the provisions of subdivision 4. 21

22 6. Each member of the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission appointed to the board of directors of WMATA shall file

23 semiannual reports with the Secretary's office beginning July 1, 2012. The reports shall include (i) the dates of attendance at WMATA 24 board meetings, (ii) any reasons for not attending a specific meeting, and (iii) dates and attendance at other WMATA-related public 25 events.

26 7. Each nonelected member of the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission appointed to the board of directors of WMATA shall

27 be eligible to receive reasonable and necessary expenses and compensation pursuant to §§ 2.2-2813 and 2.2-2825 from the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission for attending meetings and for the performance of his official duties as a board member on that 28 29 day.

30 Any entity that provides compensation to a WMATA board member for his service on the WMATA board shall be required to submit on July 1 of each year to the Secretary the amount of that compensation. Such letter will remain on file with the Secretary's office and 31 32 be available for public review.

33 C. When the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission and the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission enter into 34 an agreement to operate a commuter railway, the agreement governing the creation of the railway shall provide that the Chairman of 35 the Commonwealth Transportation Board or his designee shall have one vote on the oversight board for the railway. For each year in 36 which the state contribution to the railway is greater than or equal to the highest contribution from an individual locality, the total 37 annual subsidy as provided by the member localities used to determine vote weights shall be recalculated to include the Commonwealth contributing an amount equal to the highest contributing locality. The vote weights shall be recalculated to provide the Chairman of the 38

39 Commonwealth Transportation Board or his designee the same weight as the highest contributing locality. The revised vote weights

40 shall be used in determining the passage of motions before the oversight board.

41 § 33.2-2502. Composition of Authority; membership; terms.

42 The Authority shall consist of 17 members as follows:

43 1. The chief elected officer of the governing body of each county and city embraced by the Authority or, in the discretion of the chief elected officer, his designee, who shall be a current elected officer of such governing body; 44

45 2. Two members of the House of Delegates who reside in different counties or cities embraced by the Authority, appointed by the

46 Speaker of the House who may be and, to the extent practicable, from the membership of the House Committee on Appropriations, the House Committee on Finance, or the House Committee on Transportation; 47

48 3. One member of the Senate who resides in a county or city embraced by the Authority, appointed by the Senate Committee on Rules and, to the extent practicable, from the membership of the Senate Committee on Finance and the Senate Committee on Transportation; 49

50 4. Two nonlegislative citizen members who reside in different counties or cities embraced by the Authority, appointed by the Governor.

51 One such gubernatorial appointment shall be a member of the Commonwealth Transportation Board and one shall be a person who has

52 significant experience in transportation planning, finance, engineering, construction, or management; and

- 1 5. The following three persons who shall serve as nonvoting ex officio members of the Authority: the Director of the Department
- 2 of Rail and Public Transportation, or his designee; the Commissioner of Highways, or his designee; and the chief elected officer
- 3 of one town in a county embraced by the Authority to be chosen by the Authority.
- 4 All members of the Authority shall serve terms coincident with their terms of office, except that the gubernatorial appointee who
- 5 is not a member of the Board shall serve for a term of four years. A vacancy occurring other than by expiration of a term shall be
- 6 filled for the unexpired term. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointments. The Authority shall
- 7 appoint a chairman and vice-chairman from among its members.

34. That the Code of Virginia is amended by adding in Article 1 of Chapter 10 of Title 32.1 sections numbered 32.1-332.01, and 32.1-332.02 as follows:

- 10 § 32.1-331.01. Health Care Coverage Assessment Fund.
- **11** *A. As used in this section:*
- 12 "Covered hospital" means any in-state private acute care hospital other than a hospital classified as a public hospital,
- freestanding psychiatric and rehabilitation hospital, children's hospital, long stay hospital, long-term care hospital, or critical
 access hospital.
- 15 "Newly eligible adult" means an individual described in 42 U.S.C. §1396a(a)(10)(A)(i)(VIII).
- 16 "State Plan" means the state plan for medical assistance under Title XIX (§ 42 U.S.C. § 1396 et seq.) of the Social Security Act.
- 17 B. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special nonreverting fund to be known as the Health Care Coverage Assessment
- 18 Fund, referred to in this section as "the Fund." The Fund shall be established on the books of the Comptroller. All revenues
- 19 collected or received as a result of imposition of a health care coverage assessment on covered hospitals and any other such
- 20 moneys, public or private, received for the administration of the health care coverage assessment shall be paid into the state
- treasury and credited to the Fund. Interest earned on moneys in the Fund shall remain in the Fund and be credited to it. Any
- 22 moneys remaining in the Fund, including interest thereon, at the end of each fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund but
- shall remain in the Fund. Moneys deposited to the Fund shall be used solely for the nonfederal share of the cost of medical
 assistance for newly eligible adults, the administrative costs of collecting the assessment and implementing and operating the
- assistance for newly eligible adults, the administrative costs of collecting the assessment and implementing and operating the
 coverage for newly eligible adults. Such moneys shall be appropriated as provided in the general appropriation act. Expenditures
- 25 coverage for newly englore datas. Such moneys shall be appropriated as provided in the general appropriation act. Expenditures 26 and disbursements from the Fund shall be made by the State Treasurer on warrants issued by the Comptroller upon written
- 27 request signed by the Director of the Department of Medical Assistance Services.

28 § 32.1-331.02. Health Care Provider Payment Rate Assessment Fund.

- **29** *A. As used in this section:*
- 30 "Covered hospital" means any in-state private acute care hospital other than a hospital classified as a public hospital,
- freestanding psychiatric and rehabilitation hospital, children's hospital, long stay hospital, long-term care hospital, or critical
 access hospital.
- 33 "Managed care organization hospital payment gap" means the difference between the amount included in rates for inpatient and
- 34 outpatient services provided by covered hospitals, based on historical paid claims, and the amount that would be included when
- 35 hospital services are priced according to the existing State Plan methodology but using 100 percent of the adjustment factors,
- including the capital reimbursement percentage, and full inflation subject to approval by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
 Services pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.6(c).
- 38 "State Plan" means the state plan for medical assistance under Title XIX (§ 42 U.S.C. § 1396 et seq.) of the Social Security Act.
- **39** "Upper payment limit" means the amount equal to the maximum amount of payment for inpatient services for recipients of
- assistance services pursuant to 42 CFR § 447.321.
- 42 B. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special nonreverting fund to be known as the Health Care Payment Rate
- 43 Assessment Fund, referred to in this section as "the Fund." The Fund shall be established on the books of the Comptroller. All
- 44 revenues collected or received as a result of imposition of a health care payment rate assessment on covered hospitals and any
- 45 other such moneys, public or private, received for the administration of the health care payment assessment shall be paid into the
- 46 state treasury and credited to the Fund. Interest earned on moneys in the Fund shall remain in the Fund and be credited to it. Any
- 47 moneys remaining in the Fund, including interest thereon, at the end of each fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund but
- 48 shall remain in the Fund. Moneys deposited to the Fund shall be used solely for the nonfederal share of the cost of payment rate
- 49 actions associated with the payment rate assessment as provided in the general appropriation act and the administrative costs of
- 50 collecting the assessment and of implementing and operating the associated payment rate actions. Such moneys shall be
- 51 appropriated as provided in the general appropriation act. Expenditures and disbursements from the Fund shall be made by the

- State Treasurer on warrants issued by the Comptroller upon written request signed by the Director of the Department of Medical
 Assistance Services.
- 3 45. Effective July 1, 2018, the authority and responsibilities of the Secretary of Technology included in the Code of Virginia
- shall be executed by the Secretary of Administration and the Secretary of Commerce and Trade pursuant to Item 65 and Item
 102 of this act. Any authority or responsibilities of the Secretary of Technology not referenced in Item 65 and Item 102 of this
 act shall be executed by either the Secretary of Administration or the Secretary of Commerce and Trade as determined by the
 Governor.

8 6. That § 58.1-301 of the Code of Virginia is amended and reenacted as follows:

9 58.1-301. Conformity to Internal Revenue Code.

A. Any term used in this chapter shall have the same meaning as when used in a comparable context in the laws of the United Statesrelating to federal income taxes, unless a different meaning is clearly required.

B. Any reference in this chapter to the laws of the United States relating to federal income taxes shall mean the provisions of the
 Internal Revenue Code of 1954, and amendments thereto, and other provisions of the laws of the United States relating to federal
 income taxes, as they existed on February 9, 2018 December 31, 2018, except for:

1. The special depreciation allowance for certain property provided for under §§ 168(k), 168(l), 168(m), 1400L, and 1400N of the
 Internal Revenue Code;

17 2. The carry-back of certain net operating losses for five years under § 172(b)(1)(H) of the Internal Revenue Code;

18 3. The original issue discount on applicable high yield discount obligations under § 163(e)(5)(F) of the Internal Revenue Code;

19 4. The deferral of certain income under § 108(i) of the Internal Revenue Code. For Virginia income tax purposes, income from the 20 discharge of indebtedness in connection with the reacquisition of an "applicable debt instrument" (as defined under § 108(i) of the 21 Internal Revenue Code) reacquired in the taxable year shall be fully included in the taxpayer's Virginia taxable income for the taxable year, unless the taxpayer elects to include such income in the taxpayer's Virginia taxable income ratably over a three-taxable-year 22 23 period beginning with taxable year 2009 for transactions completed in taxable year 2009, or over a three-taxable-year period beginning 24 with taxable year 2010 for transactions completed in taxable year 2010 on or before April 21, 2010. For purposes of such election, all 25 other provisions of § 108(i) of the Internal Revenue Code shall apply mutatis mutandis. No other deferral shall be allowed for income 26 from the discharge of indebtedness in connection with the reacquisition of an "applicable debt instrument";

5. The amount of the deduction allowed for domestic production activities pursuant to § 199 of the Internal Revenue Code for taxable
years beginning on or after January 1, 2010. For Virginia income tax purposes, two-thirds of the amount deducted pursuant to § 199 of
the Internal Revenue Code for federal income tax purposes during the taxable year may be deducted for Virginia income tax purposes
for taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2010. For taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2013, the entire amount of
the deduction allowed for domestic production activities pursuant to § 199 of the Internal Revenue Code may be deducted for Virginia
income tax purposes;

6: The provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the Act) enacted December 22, 2017, as Public Law 115-97, provided, however, that
 this exception shall not apply to the following:

- 35 a. Treatment of certain individuals performing services in the Sinai Peninsula of Egypt pursuant to § 11026 of the Act;
- 36 b. Relief for 2016 disaster areas pursuant to § 11028 of the Act;
- c. Any other provision of the Act that affects the computation of federal adjusted gross income of individuals or federal taxable
 income of corporations for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2016, and before January 1, 2018, other than the temporary
 reduction in the medical expense deduction floor pursuant to § 11027 of the Act; and
- 40 7: The provisions of the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018 enacted February 9; 2018, as Public Law 115-123, that affect any taxable year
 41 other than a taxable year beginning after December 31, 2016, and before January 1, 2018.

6. The temporary reduction in the medical expense deduction floor pursuant to § 11027 of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted
December 22, 2017, as Public Law 115-97, provided, however, that this exception shall not apply to taxable years beginning on and
after January 1, 2018.

The Department of Taxation is hereby authorized to develop procedures or guidelines for implementation of the provisions of this section, which procedures or guidelines shall be exempt from the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq.).

47 7. That the Code of Virginia is amended by adding in Chapter 6 of Title 58.1 sections numbered 58.1-612.1 and 58.1-612.2 as 48 follows:

49 58.1-612.1. Remote Seller Sales Tax Nexus

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, if a remote seller engages in, within the current or previous calendar year, retail
 sales exceeding \$100,000 in gross revenues or 200 transactions into the Commonwealth, or any other minimum amount as
 required by federal law, then such remote seller shall be deemed to have sufficient activity within the Commonwealth to require

4 registration under § 58.1-613 pursuant to § 58.1-612(C), provided that, in determining a remote seller's gross revenues or

5 number of sales transactions, the sales made by all commonly controlled persons as defined in § 58.1-612(D) shall be aggregated.

6 B. The Tax Commissioner shall not require more than one return per month be filed by any remote seller or software provider
7 subject to the obligation to collect sales tax.

8 C. All state sales and use tax collected from remote sellers shall be distributed according to the provisions of § 58.1-638. The
9 local sales and use tax shall be paid to localities pursuant to the provisions of § 58.1-605 and § 58.1-606.

10 D. In administering the collection of state and local sales and use taxes from remote sellers, the Tax Commissioner shall provide

11 adequate information to remote sellers to enable them to identify state and local tax rates and exemptions, provide adequate

12 information to software providers to enable them to make software and services available to remote sellers, and ensure that if the

13 Department requires a periodic audit, the remote seller may complete a single audit which covers the state and local tax in all

14 *counties and cities.*

15 E. Prior to any change in the rate of any local sales tax, the Tax Commissioner shall provide remote sellers with at least 30 days'

16 notice. Any change in the rate of any local sales tax shall only become effective on the first calendar day of a calendar quarter.

17 Failure to provide notice pursuant to this section shall require the Commonwealth and the locality to apply the preceding effective

18 *rate until 30 days after notification is provided.*

19 58.1-612.2. Marketplace Facilitator Sales Tax Nexus

20 A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a marketplace facilitator shall be deemed to have sufficient activity within the

21 Commonwealth to require registration under § 58.1-613, and shall be required to collect sales tax on all transactions facilitated

22 through his marketplace, if he meets at least one requirement in each of subdivisions 1, 2, and 3 of this section:

- 1. He engages either directly or indirectly through a commonly controlled person as defined in subsection D of § 58.1-612, in any of the following activities:
- 25 a. Transmitting or communicating an offer or acceptance between a purchaser and a marketplace seller;
- 26 b. Owning or operating the infrastructure, whether electronic or physical, or technology that brings purchasers and
 27 marketplace sellers together; or
- c. Providing a virtual currency that purchasers are allowed or required to use to purchase products from the marketplace
 seller;
- 30 2. He engages in any of the following activities with respect to a marketplace seller's products:
- *a. Payment processing;*
- 32 b. Fulfillment or storage;
- *c. Listing products for sale;*
- *d. Setting prices;*
- *e. Branding sales as those of the marketplace facilitator;*
- *f. Advertising or promotion; or*
- *g. Providing customer service or accepting or assisting with returns or exchanges; and*

38 3. He facilitates sales in Virginia that that, in the aggregate, number more than 200 separate retail sale transactions, or that

39 generate more than \$100,000 in gross revenue, or other minimum transaction or revenue amounts as may be required by federal

40 law, for such marketplace facilitator. A marketplace facilitator may surpass this threshold based on sales for either the previous

41 or current calendar year. In determining the amount of a marketplace facilitator's gross revenues, the sales made by all commonly

42 controlled persons as defined in subsection D of § 58.1-612 shall be aggregated.

43 B. No dealer who sells on a marketplace facilitator's marketplace shall collect sales tax on a transaction made through a
44 marketplace facilitator's marketplace.

45 C. A marketplace facilitator is the sole entity subject to audit by the Department for sales and use tax collection for all

46 transactions facilitated by the marketplace facilitator unless the marketplace facilitator can demonstrate that his failure to collect

47 the proper tax was due to erroneous information provided by the marketplace seller.

D. When a marketplace facilitator lacks physical presence in the Commonwealth, and has both facilitated and made direct sales into
 the Commonwealth, both types of sales shall be considered in determining whether he has established economic nexus.

3 E. When a marketplace seller not otherwise required to register for collection of the tax under any of the provisions contained in §
4 58.1-612 (C) 1 through 9 makes both direct sales and sales on a marketplace facilitator's marketplace, only the marketplace seller's
5 direct sales shall be considered in determining whether the marketplace seller is required to register for the collection of the tax under
6 this section.

7 8. That the provisions of the sixth enactment of this act shall apply to taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2018.

8 9. That the provisions of the seventh enactment of this act shall apply beginning July 1, 2019.

9 10. That § 58.1-638.2 of the Code of Virginia is repealed.

11. That the provisions of Chapter 766 of the 2013 Acts of Assembly amending §§ 58.1-601, 58.1-602, 58.1-605, 58.1-606, 58.1-612,
 58.1-615, 58.1-635, and subdivision 5 of § 58.1-604, as they may become effective, of the Code of Virginia are repealed.

12 12. That the fourth enactment clause of Chapter 766 of the 2013 Acts of Assembly is amended and reenacted as follows:

13 4. That Article 22 (§§ 58.1-540 through 58.1-549) of Chapter 3 of Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia, §§ 58.1-609.13, 58.1-2289, as it

14 may become effective, 58.1-2290, and 58.1-2701, as it may become effective, of the Code of Virginia and the second enactment of

15 Chapter 822 of the Acts of Assembly of 2009, as amended by Chapter 535 of the Acts of Assembly of 2012, are repealed.

16 13. That the seventh and fifteenth enactment clauses of Chapter 766 of the 2013 Acts of Assembly are repealed.

17 14. That the twelfth enactment of Chapter 684 of the Acts of Assembly of 2015, as amended by the eighteenth enactments of
 18 Chapter 854 and Chapter 856 of the 2018 Acts of Assembly is repealed.

19 15. That nothing in the tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, or fourteenth enactment clauses shall be construed to appropriate or

20 transfer any transportation revenues for non-transportation purposes pursuant to the twenty-second enactment of Chapter 896 of

21 the Acts of Assembly of 2007 or the fourteenth enactment of Chapter 766 of the Acts of Assembly of 2013.

22 516. That the provisions of the first, second and fourth fifth enactments of this act shall expire at midnight on June 30, 2020.

23 The provisions of the second and third, fourth, sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fourteenth, and

24 *fifteenth* enactments shall have no expiration date.

	Page
PART 1: OPERATING EXPENSES	4
PART 2: CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES	516
PART 3: MISCELLANEOUS	551
PART 4: GENERAL PROVISIONS	571

Index, PART 1: OPERATING EXPENSES

Agency Name	Agency Code	Page
Accounts Transfer Payments, Department of (DOATP)	(162)	267
Accounts, Department of (DOA)		
Administration of Health Insurance (AHI)	(149)	79
Agricultural Council (VAC)		97
Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of (VDACS)		91
Alcoholic Beverage Control, Department of (ABC)		417
Attorney General and Department of Law (OAG)	(141)	45
Auditor of Public Accounts (APA)	(133)	14
Autism Advisory Council (AAC)	(871)	21
Aviation, Department of (DOAV)		455
Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, Department of (DBHDS)		
Blind and Vision Impaired, Department for the (DBVI)	(702)	392
Board of Accountancy (BOA)		103
Board of Bar Examiners (BBE)		
Brown v. Board of Education Scholarship Committee (BBEDS)		20
Capitol Square Preservation Council (CSPC)		17
Central Appropriations (CA)	(995)	484
Chesapeake Bay Commission (CBC)		22
Children's Services Act (CSA)		292
Christopher Newport University (CNU)		
Circuit Courts (CCV)	(113)	34
Combined District Courts (CDC)		
Commission on Economic Opportunity for Virginians in Aspiring and Diverse Communities (CEOVADC	(877)	22
Commission on Electric Utility Regulation (CEUR)		20
Commission on the Virginia Alcohol Safety Action Program (VASAP)		
Commission on Unemployment Compensation (CUC)		20
Commissioners for the Promotion of Uniformity of Legislation in the United States (CPUL)		
Commonwealth's Attorneys' Services Council (CASC)	(957)	416
Compensation Board (CB)	(157)	51
Conservation and Recreation, Department of (DCR)	(199)	396
Cooperative Extension and Agricultural Research Services (VSU/ CEAR)	(234)	248
Corrections, Department of (DOC)	(799)	418
Court of Appeals of Virginia (CAV)		
Criminal Justice Services, Department of (DCJS)		427
Deaf and Hard-Of-Hearing, Department for the (VDDHH)		
Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS)	(262)	366
Direct Aid to Public Education (DOE/ DAPE)		134
Division of Capitol Police (DCP)		16
Division of Debt Collection (DDC)	(143)	47
Division of Legislative Automated Systems (DLAS)	(109)	16
Division of Legislative Services (DLS)	(107)	16
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Memorial Commission (MLKMC)		

Eastern Virginia Medical School (EVMS)	(274)	254
Economic Development Incentive Payments (EDIP)		
Education, Central Office Operations, Department of (DOE/ COO)		
Elections, Department of (ELECT)		
Emergency Management, Department of (DEM)		
Environmental Quality, Department of (DEQ)	(440)	403
Fine Drograms, Department of (DED)	(060)	126
Fire Programs, Department of (DFP) Forensic Science, Department of (DFS)		
Forestry, Department of (DOF)		
Fort Monroe Authority (FMA)		
Frontier Culture Museum of Virginia (FCMV)		
Game and Inland Fisheries, Department of (DGIF)		
General Assembly of Virginia (GAV)		
General District Courts (GDC)		
General Services, Department of (DGS) George Mason University (GMU)		
Grants to Localities (DBDHS/GL)		
Gunston Hall (GH)		
Health Professions, Department of (DHP)		312
Health, Department of (VDH)	(601)	297
Higher Education Research Initiative (HERI)		
Historic Resources, Department of (DHR)		
Housing and Community Development, Department of (DHCD).		
Human Resource Management, Department of (DHRM)	(129)	76
Indigent Defense Commission (IDC)	(848)	40
Innovation and Entrepreneurship Investment Authority (IEIA)		
Institute for Advanced Learning and Research (IALR)		
Intellectual Disabilities Training Centers (IDTC)		
Interstate Organization Contributions (IOC)	(921)	50
James Madison University (JMU)Jamestown 2007 (JYCOM)		
Jamestown 2007 (JTCOM)Jamestown Foundation (JYF)	· · ·	
Joint Commission on Administrative Rules (JCAR)		
Joint Commission on Health Care (JCHC)		
Joint Commission on Technology and Science (JCOTS)		
Joint Commission on Transportation Accountability (JCTA)		21
Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission (JLARC)		
Judicial Inquiry and Review Commission (JIRC)		
Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Courts (JDRC)		
Juvenile Justice, Department of (DJJ)		438
Labor and Industry, Department of (DOLI)	(181)	109
Legislative Department Reversion Clearing Account (LDRCA)		
Lieutenant Governor (LTGOV)		
Longwood University (LU)		
Magistrate System (MAG)		
Manufacturing Development Commission (MDC)		
Marine Resources Commission (MRC)		
Medical Assistance Services, Department of (DMAS)		
Mental Health Treatment Centers (MHTC) Military Affairs, Department of (DMA)		
Mines, Minerals and Energy, Department of (DMME)		
Motor Vehicle Dealer Board (MVDB)		
Motor Vehicles Transfer Payments, Department of (DMVTP)		
Motor Vehicles, Department of (DMV)		

New College Institute (NCI) Norfolk State University (NSU)		
		207
Office of the Governor (GOV)	(121)	
Office of the State Inspector General (OSIG)		
Old Dominion University (ODU)	(221)	210
Online Virginia Network Authority (OVN)	(244)	260
Planning and Budget, Department of (DPB)		
Professional and Occupational Regulation, Department of (DPOR)	(222)	112
	(217)	214
Radford University (RU) Rail and Public Transportation, Department of (DRPT)		
Richard Bland College (RBC)		
Roanoke Higher Education Authority (RHEA)		
Secretary of Administration (SOA)	(180)	51
Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry (OSAF)	(193)	91
Secretary of Commerce and Trade (SCT)		
Secretary of Education (SOE)		
Secretary of Finance (SFIN)		
Secretary of Health and Human Resources (SHHR)		
Secretary of Natural Resources (SNR) Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security (SPSHS)		
Secretary of the Commonwealth (SOC)		
Secretary of Transportation (STO)		
Secretary of Veterans and Defense Affairs (SVDA)		
Small Business and Supplier Diversity, Department of (DSBSD)		
Small Business Commission (SBC)		
Social Services, Department of (DSS)	(765)	374
Southeastern Universities Research Association Doing Business for Jefferson Science Associates, LLC (JSA)		
Southern Virginia Higher Education Center (SVHEC)		
Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center (SWHEC)		
State Corporation Commission (SCC)		
State Council of Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV) State Grants to Nonstate Entities-Nonstate Agencies (GNSA)		
State Police, Department of (VSP)		
State Water Commission (SWC)		
Supreme Court (SUPCT)		
	. ,	
Taxation, Department of (TAX)	(161)	273
The College of William and Mary in Virginia (CWM)		
The Library Of Virginia (LVA)		
The Science Museum of Virginia (SMV)		
Transportation, Department of (VDOT)		
Treasury Board (TB) Treasury, Department of the (TD)		
Treasury, Department of the (TD)	(152)	200
University of Mary Washington (UMW)	(215)	216
University of Virginia (UVA/AD)		
University of Virginia Medical Center (UVAH)		
University of Virginia's College at Wise (UVA/CW)	(246)	224
Veterans Services Foundation (VSF)		
Veterans Services, Department of (DVS)		
Virginia Board for People with Disabilities (VBPD)		
Virginia Center for Behavioral Rehabilitation (VCBR) Virginia Coal and Energy Commission (VCEC)		
Virginia Coar and Energy Commission (VCEC)		
Virginia College Building Authority (VCBA)		
Virginia College Savings Plan (VCSP)		
Virginia Commercial Space Flight Authority (VCSFA)		

Virginia Commission for the Arts (VCA)	
Virginia Commission on Intergovernmental Cooperation (VCIC)	
Virginia Commission on Youth (VCOY)	
Virginia Commonwealth University (VCU/AD)	
Virginia Community College System (VCCS)	
Virginia Conflict of Interest & Ethics Advisory Council (VCIEAC)	
Virginia Cooperative Extension and Agricultural Experiment Station (VPISU /CE)	
Virginia Criminal Sentencing Commission (VCSC)	
Virginia Disability Commission (VDC)	
Virginia Economic Development Partnership (VEDP)	
Virginia Employment Commission (VEC)	
Virginia Freedom of Information Advisory Council (FIAC)	
Virginia Housing Commission (VHC)	
Virginia Information Technologies Agency (VITA)	
Virginia Institute of Marine Science (VIMS)	
Virginia Lottery (VAL)	
Virginia Military Institute (VMI)	
Virginia Museum of Fine Arts (VMFA)	
Virginia Museum of Natural History (VMNH)	
Virginia Parole Board (VPB)	
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (VPISU/ID)	
Virginia Port Authority (VPA)	
Virginia Racing Commission (VRC)	
Virginia Rehabilitation Center for the Blind and Vision Impaired (VRCBVI)	
Virginia Retirement System (VRS)	
Virginia School for the Deaf and the Blind (VSDB)	
Virginia State Bar (VSB)	
Virginia State Crime Commission (VSCC)	
Virginia State University (VSU)	
Virginia Tourism Authority (VTA)	
Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission (VWC)	
Virginia-Israel Advisory Board (VIAB)	
Wilson Workforce and Rehabilitation Center (WWRC)	

Index, PART 2: CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES

Agency Name	Agency Code	Page
9(C) Revenue Bonds (RBNC)		548
9(C) Revenue Bonds (RBNC) 9(D) Revenue Bonds (RBND)		548
Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, Department of (DBHDS)	(720)	528
Central Capital Outlay (CCO)		533
Conservation and Recreation, Department of (DCR)		
Forestry, Department of (DOF)	(411)	522
Frontier Culture Museum of Virginia (FCMV)	(239)	527
Game and Inland Fisheries, Department of (DGIF)		529
General Services, Department of (DGS)	(194)	522
George Mason University (GMU)		
Gunston Hall (GH)	(417)	527
James Madison University (JMU)		523
Juvenile Justice, Department of (DJJ)	(777)	530
Longwood University (LU)	(214)	523

Military Affairs, Department of (DMA) Motor Vehicles, Department of (DMV)	(123)	530
Motor Vehicles, Department of (DMV)	(154)	531
Nonfalls State Iniversity (NIST)	(212)	502
Norfolk State University (NSU)	(213)	525
Old Dominion University (ODU)	(221)	524
Radford University (RU)	(217)	524
Roanoke Higher Education Authority (RHEA)	(935)	527
State Corporation Commission (SCC)		
State Police, Department of (VSP)	(156)	530
The College of William and Mary in Virginia (CWM)		523
Transportation, Department of (VDOT)		
University of Mary Washington (UMW)	(215)	525
University of Virginia (UVA/AD)		
Veterans Services, Department of (DVS)		533
Virginia Commonwealth University (VCU/AD)		525
Virginia Military Institute (VMI)		
Virginia Museum of Fine Arts (VMFA)	(238)	527
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (VPISU/ID)		526
Virginia Port Authority (VPA)	(407)	532
Virginia School for the Deaf and the Blind (VSDB)	(218)	522

Index, PART 3: MISCELLANEOUS

Page

Accelerated Sales Tax	
Adjustments and Modifications to Fees	
Adjustments and Modifications to Tax Collections	
Admissions Tax	
Advances to Working Capital Funds	
Annual Vehicle Registration Fee (\$4.25 for Life)	
Assessment of Electronic Summons Fee by Localities	
Auxiliary Enterprise Investment Yields	
Auxiliary Enterprises and Sponsored Programs in Institutions of Higher Education	
Charges Against Working Capital Funds	
Deduction for Able Act Contributions	
Discounts and Allowances	
Disposition of Excess Fees Collected by Clerks of the Circuit Courts	
Drivers License Reinstatement Fee	
General Fund Deposits	
Historic Preservation Tax Credit	
Implementation of Chapter 3, Acts of Assembly of 2004, Special Session I	
Intangible Holding Company Addback	
Interagency Transfers	
Interfund Transfers	
Land Preservation Tax Credit Claimed	

Lines of Credit	561
Payment by the State Treasurer	. 562
Payment of Auto Rental Tax to the General Fund	. 562
Provider Coverage Assessment	565
Provider Payment Rate Assessment	567
Recordation Tax Fee	570
Recordation Tax Fee Refundable Earned Income Tax Credit	570
Regional Fuels Tax	. 564
Retail Sales & Use Tax Exemption for Internet Service Providers	. 563
Retail Sales and Use Tax Exemption for Research for Federally Funded Research and Development Centers	
Retaliatory Costs to other States Tax Credit	562
Sales Tax Commitment to Highway Maintenance and Operating Fund	564
Short-term Advance to the General Fund from Nongeneral Funds	
Sunset Dates for Income Tax Credits and Sales and Use Tax Exemptions	565
Tobacco Tax Study	. 569
Tobacco Tax Study Transfers	551
Utility Bill Credits	562
Working Capital Funds and Lines of Credit	560

Index, PART 4: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Page

Allotments	579
Appropriation Increases Appropriation Transfers	
Appropriations	
Assessment of Institutional Performance	
Capital Leases	585
Capital Projects	
Charges	
Conflict with other Laws	
Deficit Authorization and Treasury Loans	582
Deficits	
Delegation of Authority	
Disposition of Surplus Real Property	
Effective Date	
Employee Benefits	
Employee Compensation	
Employee Training and Study	
General	
General Fund Revenue	580
Goods and Services	
Governor	
Higher Education Restructuring	
Implement JLARC Recommendations	
Indirect Costs	582

Lease, License or Use Agreements	
Level II Authority	
Level III Authority	
Limited Adjustments of Appropriations	
Local Governments	
Manpower Control Program	
Nongeneral Fund Revenues	
Nonstate Agencies, Interstate Compacts and Organizational Memberships	
Operating Policies	
Operating Policies	
Planning and Budgeting	591
Positions and Employment	
Positions Governed by Chapters 933 and 943 of the 2006 Acts of Assembly	
Prerequisites for Payment	
Reporting Requirements	
Revenues	
Reversion of Appropriations and Reappropriations	
Selection of Applicants for Classified Positions	
Semiconductor Manufacturing Performance Grant Programs	
Services and Clients	
Severability	
Special Conditions and Restrictions on Expenditures	
State Agencies	
Statement of Financial Condition	
Surplus Property Transfers for Economic Development	
Third Party Transactions	
Transactions with Individuals	
Treasury Loans	
Withholding of Spending Authority	

Index, CODE OF VIRGINIA SECTION REFERENCES

Fitle 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS Section 1-214	Pag
Title 2.2 ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNME	
action	Par
2.2-104	
2.2-115	
2.2-120 2.2-200	
2.2-200	99 263 396 416 45
2.2-203.1	51.61
2.2-203.3	9
2.2-205	9
2.2-206	
2.2-208	
2.2-213.3	
2.2-221.1	
2.2-222 2.2-222.2	
2.2-222.2	
2.2-222.3	
2.2-225	
2.2-400	
2.2-409	4
2.2-424	
2.2-435	
2.2-436	
2.2-437	
2.2-507	
2.2-510	
2.2-510.1 2.2-514	
2.2-514	
2.2-803	3 224 474 594 59
2.2-806	
2.2-813	
2.2-1101	
2.2-1104	
2.2-1105	
2.2-1124	
2.2-1125	
2.2-1129 2.2-1130	
2.2-1130	
2.2-1131.1	
2.2-1147	
2.2-1149	
2.2-1150	
2.2-1151	
2.2-1153	
2.2-1155	
2.2-1156	
2.2-1158	
2.2-1176 2.2-1201	
2.2-1201	
2.2-1501	
2.2-1502.1	
2.2-1503	
2.2-1503.1	
2.2-1505	
2.2-1508	
2.2-1509	
2.2-1509.3	
2.2-1509.4	
2.2-1514 2.2-1515	572 574 576 59
2.2-1515	
2.2-1510	
2.2-1611	
2.2-1615	

§ 22-1616 113 § 22-1802 231,578 § 22-1829 244 § 22-1829 14269,555 § 22-1831 2069,270 § 22-1831 2069,270 § 22-1831 2069,270 § 22-2005 51,598 § 22-2006 51,598 § 22-2001 516 § 22-2011 501 § 22-2013 86,594 § 22-2013 86,594 § 22-2013 86,594 § 22-2013 86,594 § 22-221 99,123,124 § 22-221 99,122,123 § 22-2221 99,122,124 § 22-2221 99,122,124 § 22-2220 512,536,535,541,54 § 22-2220 512,2536,535,545,545 § 22-2260 532,535,536,534,54 § 22-2261 532,535,535,535,535,535,535,535,535,535,		
§ 2.2-180. 221.578 § 2.2-183. 264 § 2.2-183. 269.270 § 2.2-183. 269.270 § 2.2-183. 269.270 § 2.2-183. 269.270 § 2.2-183. 269.270 § 2.2-2005. 51.598 § 2.2-2011. 501 § 2.2-2012. 16 § 2.2-2013. 86.594 § 2.2-2013. 86.594 § 2.2-2013. 87.2200 § 2.2-2013. 99.123.124 § 2.2-2201. 99.123.124 § 2.2-221. 99.123.124 § 2.2-221. 99.123.124 § 2.2-221. 99.123.124 § 2.2-221. 99.123.124 § 2.2-2260. 532.556.538.541.546 § 2.2-2261. 532.553.539.543 § 2.2-2261. 282 § 2.2-2261. 285 § 2.2-2261. 285 § 2.2-2261. 285 § 2.2-2261. 285 § 2.2-2261. 282 § 2.2-2261. 282 § 2.2-2261. 282 § 2.2-2261. 283	§ 2.2-1616	
§ 2.2-189		
§ 2-1829 14,269,555 § 2-1831.2 269,270 § 2-21831.2 269,270 § 2-2005 51 § 2-2006 51,598 § 2-2011 501 § 2-2012 16 § 2-2013 866,594 § 2-2013 86,594 § 2-2013 86,594 § 2-2013 86,594 § 2-2013 86,594 § 2-2014 98 § 2-2210 51 § 2-2221 99,123,124 § 2-2221 99,123,124 § 2-2220 51 § 2-2221 99,123,124 § 2-2226. 532,536,538,541,546 § 2-2226. 532,536,538,541,546 § 2-2226. 532,536,538,541,546 § 2-2226. 532,536,538,541 § 2-2226. 532,536,538,541 § 2-2261 282 § 2-2261 282 § 2-2261 282 § 2-2261 282 § 2-2261 282 § 2-2262 532,536,538,541 § 2-2263 532,533,539,543 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td></td<>		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	§ 2.2-1822	
§ 2.2-1836. 280 § 2.2-2005. .51 § 2.2-2006. .51,598 § 2.2-2011. .501 § 2.2-2012. .66 § 2.2-2013. .86,594 § 2.2-2014. .87 § 2.2-2028. .83 § 2.2-2104. .98 § 2.2-2200. .51 § 2.2-220. .51 § 2.2-220. .51 § 2.2-220. .51 § 2.2-220. .51 § 2.2-220. .51 § 2.2-221. .99 § 2.2-223. .99 § 2.2-226. .532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-226. .532,535,59,543 § 2.2-226. .532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-226. .532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-228. .113 § 2.2-228. .113 § 2.2-228. .113 § 2.2-228. .113 § 2.2-230. .113 § 2.2-230. .101 § 2.2-241. .16 § 2.2-232. .16 § 2.2-241. .16 § 2.2-2		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
§ 2.2-2007. 51.87 § 2.2-2012. 16 § 2.2-2017. 86.594 § 2.2-2017. 87 § 2.2-2017. 87 § 2.2-2028. 83 § 2.2-2020. 51 § 2.2-2020. 51 § 2.2-221. 99 § 2.2-223. 99 § 2.2-223. 99 § 2.2-221. 99 § 2.2-2260. 532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2261. 285 § 2.2-2263. 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2261. 285 § 2.2-2263. 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2290. 113 § 2.2-221. 113 § 2.2-220. 113 § 2.2-221. 285 § 2.2-221. 113 § 2.2-223. 113 § 2.2-2240. 114 § 2.2-230. 101 § 2.2-2310. 113 § 2.2-2416. 585,586 § 2.2-2417. 590,600 § 2.2-2417. 590,600 § 2.2-2417. 590 § 2.2-2417. 5		
§ 2.2-2011 501 § 2.2-2012 16 § 2.2-2013 86.594 § 2.2-2014 98 § 2.2-2104 98 § 2.2-221 99,123,124 § 2.2-221 99,123,124 § 2.2-221 99,123,124 § 2.2-221 99,123,124 § 2.2-221 99,123,124 § 2.2-221 99,123,124 § 2.2-2260 532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2261 285 § 2.2-2261 285 § 2.2-2263 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2291 113 § 2.2-2291 113 § 2.2-230 113 § 2.2-2310 113 § 2.2-2320 01 § 2.2-2310 113 § 2.2-2320 101 § 2.2-241 144 § 2.2-2320 101 § 2.2-241 585,586 § 2.2-241 592,586 § 2.2-241 592,586 § 2.2-241 592 § 2.2-2485 99 § 2.2-2487 107 § 2.2-2487 1		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	§ 2.2-2011	
§ 2.2-2017. 87 § 2.2-2028. 83 § 2.2-2104. 98 § 2.2-2220. 51 § 2.2-2221. 99 § 2.2-2233.1 99 § 2.2-2260. 532.536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2260. 532.533,539,543 § 2.2-2260. 532.533,539,543 § 2.2-2263. 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2260. 532.533,539,543 § 2.2-2285. 113 § 2.2-2290. 113 § 2.2-2200. 113 § 2.2-230. 101 § 2.2-230. 101 § 2.2-230. 101 § 2.2-2310. 113 § 2.2-2320. 101 § 2.2-2417. 590,600 § 2.2-2416. 585,586 § 2.2-2417. 590,600 § 2.2-2485. 99 § 2.2-2485. 107 § 2.2-2485. 107 § 2.2-2487. 107 § 2.2-2699.5. 51 § 2.2-2699.5. 51 § 2.2-2699.5. 51 § 2.2-2699.5. 51		
§ 2.2-2028 83 § 2.2-220 51 § 2.2-221 99 § 2.2-221 99 § 2.2-2231 99 § 2.2-2233.1 99 § 2.2-2260 532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2261 285 § 2.2-2263 532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2263 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2263 532,2533,539,543 § 2.2-2200 113 § 2.2-2200 113 § 2.2-2200 113 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-2310 113 § 2.2-2320 101 § 2.2-2310 113 § 2.2-242 144 § 2.2-242 144 § 2.2-2416 585,586 § 2.2-2416 585,586 § 2.2-2416 585,586 § 2.2-248 107 § 2.2-2485 99 § 2.2-2487 107 § 2.2-2699.1 99 § 2.2-2699.1 99 § 2.2-2699.1 99 § 2.2-2699.5 51		
§ 2.2-2104 98 § 2.2-2220 51 § 2.2-2221 99,123,124 § 2.2-2221 99,122,123,124 § 2.2-2233 99,122,123,124 § 2.2-2260 532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2261 285 § 2.2-2263 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2263 532,533,539,543 § 2.2-2290 113 § 2.2-2290 113 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-238 114 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-238 114 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-238 114 § 2.2-230 101 § 2.2-238 114 § 2.2-240 114 § 2.2-241 114 § 2.2-241 114 § 2.2-241 114 § 2.2-241 114 § 2.2-241 114 § 2.2-241 114 § 2.2-247 114 § 2.2-248 117 § 2.2-248 117 § 2.2-248 117 § 2.2-2698 199 § 2.2-2699 199		
§ 2.2-220 .51 § 2.2-221 .99 § 2.2-2233.1 .99 § 2.2-2233.1 .99 § 2.2-2233.1 .99 § 2.2-2260 .532,536,538,541,546 § 2.2-2261 .285 § 2.2-2285 .133 § 2.2-2290 .113 § 2.2-2200 .113 § 2.2-230 .113 § 2.2-230 .113 § 2.2-230 .101 § 2.2-230 .101 § 2.2-230 .101 § 2.2-230 .101 § 2.2-230 .101 § 2.2-231 .13 § 2.2-240 .424,473 § 2.2-241 .585,586 § 2.2-2417 .590,600 § 2.2-2485 .99 § 2.2-2485 .99 § 2.2-2482 .99 § 2.2-2483 .99 § 2.2-269 .51 § 2.2-269 .51 § 2.2-269 .51 § 2.2-269 .51 § 2.2-269 .51 § 2.2-269 .51		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	§ 2.2-2220	51
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{tabular}{l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l $		
§ 2.2-2240.1	§ 2.2-2233.1	
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	§ 2.2-2240.1	
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	§ 2.2-2260	532,536,538,541,546
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	§ 2.2-2261	
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	§ 2.2-2558 \$ 2.2.2242	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	8 2 2-2472	127
$\begin{array}{c} \$ 2.2-2487 \\ 107 \\ \$ 2.2-2489 \\ 2.2-2698 \\ 99 \\ \$ 2.2-2699.1 \\ 99 \\ \$ 2.2-2699.5 \\ \$ 2.2-2699.7 \\ \$ 2.2-2699.7 \\ \$ 2.2-2699.7 \\ \$ 2.2-2715 \\ \$ 2.2-2718 \\ \$ 3 \\ \$ 2.2-2718 \\ \$ 3 \\ \$ 2.2-2718 \\ \$ 3 \\ \$ 2.2-2738 \\ 99 \\ \$ 2.2-2800 \\ 627 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-2813 \\ 10,508,628 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ \$ 2.2-2822 \\ 5 \\ \$ 2.2-2823 \\ 5 \\ \$ 2.2-2823 \\ 5 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-3100 \\ 6 \\ \$ 2.2-300 \\ 114 \\ \$ 2.2-300 \\ 114 \\ \$ 2.2-300 \\ 114 \\ \$ 2.2-300 \\ 8 \\ 6 \\ 2.2-400 \\ 114 \\ \$ 2.2-400 \\ 10,317 \\ \$ 2.2-400 \\ 8 \\ 2.2-401 \\ 3 \\ 2.2-400 \\ 10,317 \\ \$ 2.2-400 \\ 4 \\ 2.2-401 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2.2-401 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3$		
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
§ 2.2-2738 99 § 2.2-2800 627 § 2.2-2813 10,508,628 § 2.2-2817.1 51 § 2.2-2818 79,487,611,612,615 § 2.2-2822 51 § 2.2-2823 55 § 2.2-2825 10,628 § 2.2-3106 48 § 2.2-305 491 § 2.2-305 491 § 2.2-3503 51 § 2.2-3700 24,26,27 § 2.2-3700 24,26,27 § 2.2-3701 26,27,114 § 2.2-3803 51 § 2.2-3803 51 § 2.2-3803 51 § 2.2-4000 282,302,388,563,564,630 § 2.2-4002 310,317 § 2.2-4004 404	§ 2.2-2715	
	§ 2.2-2718	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	8 2 2-2818	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	§ 2.2-2029 8 2 2-3100	628
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	§ 2.2-3204	491
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	§ 2.2-3205	491
§ 2.2-3504 51 § 2.2-3605 613 § 2.2-3700 24,26,27 § 2.2-3701 26,27,114 § 2.2-3708 114 § 2.2-3800 88,620 § 2.2-3803 51 § 2.2-4000 282,302,388,563,564,630 § 2.2-4006 404 § 2.2-4011 321		
§ 2.2-3605 613 § 2.2-3700 .24,26,27 § 2.2-3701 .26,27,114 § 2.2-3708 .114 § 2.2-3800 .88,620 § 2.2-3803 .51 § 2.2-4000 .282,302,388,563,564,630 § 2.2-4006 .404 § 2.2-4011 .321	§ 2.2-3504	
§ 2.2-3700 .24,26,27 § 2.2-3701 .26,27,114 § 2.2-3708 .114 § 2.2-3800 .88,620 § 2.2-3803 .51 § 2.2-4000 .282,302,388,563,564,630 § 2.2-4002 .310,317 § 2.2-4006 .404 § 2.2-4011 .321	§ 2.2-3605	
\$ 2.2-3701	§ 2.2-3700	
\$ 2.2-3800	§ 2.2-3701	
\$ 2.2-3803	§ 2.2-3708	
\$ 2.2-4000	§ 2.2-3800	
\$ 2.2-4002	§ 2.2-3803	
\$ 2.2-4006		
§ 2.2-4011	§ 2.2-4002	
§ 2.2-4019		
	8 2.2-4019	

§ 2.2-4020	322
§ 2.2-4025	
§ 2.2-4300	
§ 2.2-4301	
§ 2.2-4343	
§ 2.2-4400	
§ 2.2-4401	
§ 2.2-4800	47,81,571,624
§ 2.2-4806	
§ 2.2-4809	
§ 2.2-5004	
§ 2.2-5101	
§ 2.2-5102.1	
§ 2.2-5200	
§ 2.2-5206	
§ 2.2-5209	
§ 2.2-5211	

Title 3.2 AGRICULTURE, ANIMAL CARE, AND FOOD

Section P	age
§ 3.2-201	
§ 3.2-303	93
§ 3.2-305	
§ 3.2-2705	580
§ 3.2-3005	92
§ 3.2-3100	316
§ 3.2-3104	485
§ 3.2-3106	485
§ 3.2-3108	485
§ 3.2-4200	5,46
§ 3.2-4201	
§ 3.2-4204	46
§ 3.2-4415	93
§ 3.2-4416	93
§ 3.2-5206	311
§ 3.2-5216	311
§ 3.2-5600	94
§ 3.2-5703	94

Title 4.1 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL ACT

Section	Page
§ 4.1-100	
§ 4.1-116	
§ 4.1-120	
§ 4.1-133	
§ 4.1-234	

Title 8.01 CIVIL REMEDIES AND PROCEDURE

Section	Page
§ 8.01-195.3	
§ 8.01-216.1	
§ 8.01-217	
§ 8.01-384.1:1	
§ 8.01-582	
§ 8.01-589	

Title 9.1 COMMONWEALTH PUBLIC SAFETY

The 9.1 Common weather oblic safer i	
Section	Page
§ 9.1-101	
§ 9.1-102	
§ 9.1-110	
§ 9.1-139	
§ 9.1-141	
§ 9.1-143	
§ 9.1-149	
§ 9.1-165	
§ 9.1-172	
§ 9.1-173	
§ 9.1-183	
§ 9.1-187	
§ 9.1-201	
§ 9.1-206	
§ 9.1-903	
§ 9.1-1100	
§ 9.1-1113	
·	

Title 10.1 CONSERVATION

Section	Page
§ 10.1-104.7	400
§ 10.1-200.1	
§ 10.1-202	
§ 10.1-546.1	
§ 10.1-552	
§ 10.1-603.17	
§ 10.1-702	
§ 10.1-1020	
§ 10.1-1124	96
§ 10.1-1188	
§ 10.1-1190	
§ 10.1-1237	
§ 10.1-1300	
§ 10.1-1322	
§ 10.1-1400	71
§ 10.1-1422.3	
§ 10.1-2128	
§ 10.1-2128.1	
§ 10.1-2129	
§ 10.1-2132	
§ 10.1-2202.1	
§ 10.1-2202.2	
§ 10.1-2202.4	
§ 10.1-2211	
§ 10.1-2211.1	
§ 10.1-2211.2	
§ 10.1-2212	
§ 10.1-2213	
~	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Title 11 CONTRACTS Section

Section	Page
§ 11-34.3	
§ 11-35	

Title 13.1 CORPORATIONS Section

Section	Page
§ 13.1-775.1	

Title 15.2 COUNTIES, CITIES AND TOWNS

Section	Page
§ 15.2-540	
§ 15.2-639	
§ 15.2-848	
§ 15.2-941	
§ 15.2-1302	63,165,432,575
§ 15.2-1503.1	
§ 15.2-1544	
§ 15.2-1604	
§ 15.2-1605	
§ 15.2-1609.1	54
§ 15.2-1613	
§ 15.2-1615.1	
§ 15.2-1627.1	61
§ 15.2-1628	61
§ 15.2-1629	61
§ 15.2-1630	61
§ 15.2-1631	61
§ 15.2-1636.12	
§ 15.2-1636.17	
§ 15.2-1636.5	611
§ 15.2-1636.8	67
§ 15.2-1643	
§ 15.2-2005	
§ 15.2-2114	
§ 15.2-2425	
§ 15.2-2502	
§ 15.2-2602	
§ 15.2-2659	
§ 15.2-3500	
§ 15.2-4100	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
§ 15.2-4207	
§ 15.2-4600	
§ 15.2-5814	

Title 16.1 COURTS NOT OF RECORD Section Page § 16.1-69.1 8 8 8 16.1-285.1 441 8 8 § §

Title 17.1 COURTS OF RECORD

Section	Page
§ 17.1-100	
§ 17.1-132	
§ 17.1-275.12	431,556
§ 17.1-278	
§ 17.1-279	
§ 17.1-283	
§ 17.1-284	
§ 17.1-285	
§ 17.1-286	
§ 17.1-287	64
§ 17.1-288	
§ 17.1-290	7.7
§ 17.1-314	21
§ 17.1-320	
§ 17.1-327	
§ 17.1-502	
§ 17.1-507	
§ 17.1-805	

Title 18.2 CRIMES AND OFFENSES GENERALLY

Section	Page
§ 18.2-186.6	
§ 18.2-248	
§ 18.2-248.1	
§ 18.2-254.1	
§ 18.2-266	
§ 18.2-270.01	
§ 18.2-271.1	
§ 18.2-271.2	
§ 18.2-272	
§ 18.2-308	
§ 18.2-308.2:2	
§ 18.2-340.31	

Title 19.2 CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Section	Page
§ 19.2-13	581
\$ 19.2-38.1	31
§ 19.2-43	
§ 19.2-152.2	
§ 19.2-152.7	
§ 19.2-155	

§ 19.2-163	
§ 19.2-163.01	
§ 19.2-163.8	
§ 19.2-169.6	
§ 19.2-176	
§ 19.2-177.1	
§ 19.2-298.01	
§ 19.2-306	
§ 19.2-316.3	
§ 19.2-326	
§ 19.2-349	
§ 19.2-386.14	
§ 19.2-387	
§ 19.2-388	
\$ 19.2-389	
0	

Title 20 DOMESTIC RELATIONS Section

Section	Page
§ 20-124.4	30

Title 22.1 EDUCATION

Section	Page
§ 22.1-1	
§ 22.1-3.4	
§ 22.1-8	
§ 22.1-16	
§ 22.1-16.2	
§ 22.1-17.1	
§ 22.1-17.2	120
§ 22.1-18.01	
§ 22.1-10.01	131
§ 22.1-20.1 § 22.1-21	
§ 22.1-24	
§ 22.1-25	
§ 22.1-70.2	
\$ 22.1-79.1	
\$ 22.1-89.1	
§ 22.1-97	
\$ 22.1-101.1	
\$ 22.1-108	
\$ 22.1-166.2	
\$ 22.1-168	
\$ 22.1-168.1	161,163,165
§ 22.1-175.5	171
\$ 22.1-176	143
\$ 22.1-198	
22.1-199	1/3
§ 22.1-199.1	
§ 22.1-199.2	
\$ 22.1-199.4	
\$ 22.1-199.6	
\$ 22.1-205	
\$ 22.1-206	
§ 22.1-207.1	
§ 22.1-207.3	
§ 22.1-208.01	
§ 22.1-209.2	
\$ 22.1-212.2	
§ 22.1-212.2:2	
\$ 22.1-213	
§ 22.1-214	
\$ 22.1-217	
22.1-221	
§ 22.1-223	
\$ 22.1-227	
\$ 22.1-237	
\$ 22.1-253.13:1	
\$ 22.1-253.13:3	
§ 22.1-253.13:8	
§ 22.1-254	
\$ 22.1-254.01	
\$ 22.1-254.1	
\$ 22.1-254.2	
§ 22.1-289.1	143
\$ 22.1-290	
a == =/V	

§ 22.1-290.01	
§ 22.1-290.02	
§ 22.1-290.1	
§ 22.1-298	
§ 22.1-298.1	
§ 22.1-299	
§ 22.1-299.2	
§ 22.1-302	
§ 22.1-303	
§ 22.1-305.1	
§ 22.1-305.2	
§ 22.1-316	
§ 22.1-318	
§ 22.1-319	
§ 22.1-332	
§ 22.1-346	
§ 22.1-349	
§ 22.1-362	

Title 23.1 INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION; OTHER EDUCATIONAL AND CULTURAL INSTITUTIONS

Section	Daga
§ 23.1-102	Page
§ 23.1-200	
§ 23.1-203	
§ 23.1-206	188,619,622
§ 23.1-211	
§ 23.1-219	
§ 23.1-224	
§ 23.1-306	
§ 23.1-500	215
§ 23.1-506	
§ 23.1-608	
§ 23.1-614	
§ 23.1-615	
§ 23.1-623	
§ 23.1-624	
§ 23.1-627	185,186
§ 23.1-628	
§ 23.1-629	
§ 23.1-635	
§ 23.1-700	
§ 23.1-701	509.510
§ 23.1-907	
§ 23.1-1001	
§ 23.1-1002	
§ 23.1-1005	
§ 23.1-1006	
§ 23.1-1020	614
§ 23.1-1106	
§ 23.1-1107	
§ 23.1-1200	542 543 545
§ 23.1-1203	539
§ 23.1-1207	
§ 23.1-1302	
§ 23.1-1302	
§ 23.1-1304	
§ 23.1-1310	
§ 23.1-2506	
§ 23.1-2500 § 23.1-2704	
§ 23.1-2911.1 § 23.1-2912	
8 22 1 2102	
§ 23.1-3102	
§ 23.1-3132	
§ 23.1-3133	
§ 23.1-3203	

Title 24.2 ELECTIONS

Section	Page
§ 24.2-108	
§ 24.2-111	
§ 24.2-668	
§ 24.2-712	
§ 24.2-947.5	
•	

Title 27 FIRE PROTECTION

Section	Page
§ 27-55	
§ 27-56	
§ 27-94	437
§ 27-99	
§ 27-99	

Title 28.2 FISHERIES AND HABITAT OF THE TIDAL WATERS

Section	Page
§ 28.2-108	
§ 28.2-200	
§ 28.2-208	
§ 28.2-302.3	
§ 28.2-542	
§ 28.2-550	
§ 28.2-800	
§ 28.2-825	
§ 28.2-1206	

Title 29.1 GAME, INLAND FISHERIES AND BOATING

Section	Page
§ 29.1-101	
§ 29.1-101.01	

Title 30 GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Section	Page
§ 30-19.1:4	
§ 30-19.11	4
§ 30-19.12	
§ 30-19.13	7
§ 30-19.20	
§ 30-19.4	
§ 30-34.1	14
§ 30-34.2:1	
§ 30-130	
§ 30-133	
§ 30-231.5	
§ 30-257	
§ 30-278	
§ 30-279	
§ 30-309	
§ 30-310	
§ 30-335	
§ 30-347	
-	

Title 32.1 HEALTH

Section	Page
§ 32.1-2	
§ 32.1-11	
§ 32.1-11.1	
§ 32.1-11.2	
§ 32.1-11.3	
§ 32.1-12	
§ 32.1-23	
§ 32.1-31	
§ 32.1-35	
§ 32.1-39	
§ 32.1-42	
§ 32.1-50	
§ 32.1-73	
§ 32.1-77	
§ 32.1-89	
§ 32.1-90	
§ 32.1-102.1	
§ 32.1-102.11	
§ 32.1-111.1	
§ 32.1-111.16	
§ 32.1-116.1	
§ 32.1-116.3	
§ 32.1-122.01	
§ 32.1-122.08	
§ 32.1-122.10	
§ 32.1-122.5:1	
§ 32.1-123	
§ 32.1-138.5	
§ 32.1-162.23	

§ 32.1-162.28	
§ 32.1-163	
§ 32.1-165	
§ 32.1-171.1	
§ 32.1-176	303,304
§ 32.1-176.7	
§ 32.1-198	
§ 32.1-211	
§ 32.1-212	
§ 32.1-245	
§ 32.1-246	
§ 32.1-246.1	
§ 32.1-249	
§ 32.1-273	
§ 32.1-276	
§ 32.1-277	
§ 32.1-304	
§ 32.1-313	
§ 32.1-323.2	
§ 32.1-324.3	
§ 32.1-325	
§ 32.1-325.1	
§ 32.1-325.1:1	
§ 32.1-330	
§ 32.1-330.1	
§ 32.1-331.01	
§ 32.1-331.02	
§ 32.1-331.12	
§ 32.1-332.02	
§ 32.1-351	
§ 32.1-352	
§ 32.1-354	
§ 32.1-355	
§ 32.1-360	
§ 32.1-361	
§ 32.1-361.1	
§ 32.1-366	
§ 32.1-367	

Title 33.2 HIGHWAYS AND OTHER SURFACE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS

Section	Page
§ 33.2-156.1	
§ 33.2-214	
§ 33.2-214.1	
§ 33.2-232	
§ 33.2-319	
§ 33.2-357	
§ 33.2-358	
§ 33.2-366	
§ 33.2-369	
§ 33.2-370	
§ 33.2-371	
§ 33.2-1010	
§ 33.2-1500	
§ 33.2-1509	
§ 33.2-1510	
§ 33.2-1524	
§ 33.2-1526	
§ 33.2-1526.1	
§ 33.2-1529.1	
§ 33.2-1530	
§ 33.2-1600	
§ 33.2-1601	
§ 33.2-1602	
§ 33.2-1603	
§ 33.2-1700	
§ 33.2-1726	
§ 33.2-1729	
§ 33.2-1904	
§ 33.2-1907	
§ 33.2-1915	
§ 33.2-1919	
§ 33.2-1927	
§ 33.2-2300	

§ 33.2-2400	268,287,470
§ 33.2-2401	
§ 33.2-2502	
\$ 33.2-2611	
§ 33.2-3100	

Title 35.1 HOTELS, RESTAURANTS, SUMMER CAMPS, AND CAMPGROUNDS

Section	Page
§ 35.1-1	
§ 35.1-7	
§ 35.1-9	
§ 35.1-13	
§ 35.1-14	
§ 35.1-16	
§ 35.1-17	
§ 35.1-26	
§ 35.1-28	

Title 36 HOUSING

Section	. P	age
§ 36-142		104

Title 37.2 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

Section	Page
§ 37.2-304	
§ 37.2-312	
§ 37.2-318	
§ 37.2-319	
§ 37.2-504	
§ 37.2-605	
§ 37.2-713	
§ 37.2-808	
§ 37.2-809	
§ 37.2-813	
§ 37.2-815	
§ 37.2-816	
§ 37.2-817	
§ 37.2-819	
§ 37.2-900	

Title 38.2 INSURANCE

Section	Page
§ 38.2-316.1	
§ 38.2-326	
§ 38.2-400	
§ 38.2-401	
§ 38.2-403	
§ 38.2-415	
§ 38.2-3418.17	
§ 38.2-5601	

Title 40.1 LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT

Section	Page
§ 40.1-49.4	

Title 42.1 LIBRARIES Section

Section	Page
§ 42.1-60	
§ 42.1-64	

Title 44 MILITARY AND EMERGENCY LAWS

Section	Page
§ 44-93.1	
§ 44-146.13	
§ 44-146.17	
§ 44-146.18	
§ 44-146.18:2	
§ 44-146.22	
§ 44-146.28	
§ 44-146.28:1	
§ 44-146.31	
§ 44-146.40	

Title 45.1 MINES AND MINING	
Section	Page
§ 45.1-161.292:31	110
§ 45.1-161.58	
§ 45.1-361.29	

Title 46.2 MOTOR VEHICLES

The 40.2 MOTOR VEHICLED	
Section	Page
§ 46.2-205	
§ 46.2-214.3	
§ 46.2-221.4	
§ 46.2-222	
§ 46.2-223	
§ 46.2-224	
§ 46.2-342	
§ 46.2-411	
§ 46.2-416	
§ 46.2-454	
§ 46.2-688	
§ 46.2-694	
§ 46.2-819.3:1	
§ 46.2-1157	
§ 46.2-1167	
§ 46.2-1187	
§ 46.2-1200	
§ 46.2-1207	

Title 51.1 PENSIONS, BENEFITS, AND RETIREM	
Section	Page
§ 51.1-124.20	
§ 51.1-124.3	7,492,611,612
§ 51.1-124.30	
§ 51.1-124.38	
§ 51.1-126	
§ 51.1-126.1	
§ 51.1-126.3	
§ 51.1-132	
§ 51.1-137	
§ 51.1-138	
§ 51.1-142.2	
§ 51.1-144	
§ 51.1-145	489,490,491,493
§ 51.1-152	7
§ 51.1-153	
§ 51.1-155	
§ 51.1-155.1	
§ 51.1-156	
§ 51.1-166	
§ 51.1-169	
§ 51.1-300	
§ 51.1-500	
§ 51.1-706	
§ 51.1-1100	
§ 51.1-1103	611
§ 51.1-1112	
§ 51.1-1200	
§ 51.1-1206	
§ 51.1-1401	
§ 51.1-1403	

Title 51.5 PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES	
Section	Page
§ 51.5-1	
§ 51.5-72	
§ 51.5-73	
§ 51.5-74	

Title 52 POLICE (STATE)

Section	Page
§ 52-1	
§ 52-4	
§ 52-4.2	
§ 52-4.3	
§ 52-4.4	
§ 52-8	
§ 52-8.1	

§ 52-8.1:1	
§ 52-8.2	
§ 52-8.4	
§ 52-8.5	
§ 52-12	
§ 52-13	
§ 52-15	
§ 52-16	
§ 52-25	
§ 52-28	69,432,448
§ 52-31	
§ 52-34	
§ 52-47	

Title 53.1 PRISONS AND OTHER METHODS OF CORRECTION

Section	Page
§ 53.1-1	
§ 53.1-5	
§ 53.1-8	
§ 53.1-10	
§ 53.1-20	
§ 53.1-40	
§ 53.1-40.01	
§ 53.1-40.2	
§ 53.1-45	
§ 53.1-47	
§ 53.1-67.1	
§ 53.1-67.2	
§ 53.1-67.6	
§ 53.1-67.8	
§ 53.1-68	
§ 53.1-69.1	
§ 53.1-80	
§ 53.1-81	
§ 53.1-82.2	
§ 53.1-83.1	
§ 53.1-84	
§ 53.1-85	51,55
§ 53.1-120	
§ 53.1-131	
§ 53.1-140	
§ 53.1-151	
§ 53.1-176.3	

Title 54.1 PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS

Section	Page
§ 54.1-3011.2	
§ 54.1-3912	
§ 54.1-3913	
§ 54.1-3916	
§ 54.1-3934	
§ 54.1-3935	
§ 54.1-3938	

Title 55 PROPERTY AND CONVEYANCES

Section	Page
§ 55-66.6	
§ 55-210.1	
§ 55-210.13	
§ 55-210.19	
§ 55-210.29	
§ 55-297	

Title 56 PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANIES

Section	Page
§ 56-232	
§ 56-234	
§ 56-334	
§ 56-468.1	
§ 56-484	
§ 56-484.17	
§ 56-484.17:1	
§ 56-575.1	
§ 56-575.17	
•	

Title 58.1 TAXATION

§ 58.1-1410	
§ 58.1-1509	
§ 58.1-1609	
§ 58.1-1720	
§ 58.1-1730	
§ 58.1-1731	
§ 58.1-1734	
§ 58.1-1736	
§ 58.1-1741	
§ 58.1-1803	
§ 58.1-2201	
§ 58.1-2289	
§ 58.1-2290	
§ 58.1-2291	
§ 58.1-2295	
§ 58.1-2402	
§ 58.1-2425	
§ 58.1-2501	
§ 58.1-2510	
§ 58.1-2531	
§ 58.1-2533	
§ 58.1-2652	
§ 58.1-2655	
§ 58.1-2658.1	
§ 58.1-2701	
§ 58.1-3176	
§ 58.1-3221.3	
§ 58.1-3234	
§ 58.1-3239	
§ 58.1-3278	
§ 58.1-3374	
§ 58.1-3403	
§ 58.1-3406	
§ 58.1-3524	
§ 58.1-3536	
§ 58.1-3701	
§ 58.1-3818.02	
§ 58.1-3851.1	
§ 58.1-3851.2	
§ 58.1-3912	
§ 58.1-3958	
§ 58.1-4022	
§ 58.1-4022.1	

Title 59.1 TRADE AND COMMERCE

Section	Page
§ 59.1-284.20	101
§ 59.1-284.22	101
§ 59.1-336	
§ 59.1-364	
§ 59.1-392	
§ 59.1-497	
§ 59.1-547	
§ 59.1-548	
§ 59.1-550	
•	

Title 60.2 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

Section	Page
§ 60.2-100	
§ 60.2-106	
§ 60.2-229	
§ 60.2-301	
§ 60.2-305	
§ 60.2-315	

Title 62.1 WATERS OF THE STATE, PORTS AND HARBORS

Section	Page
§ 62.1-44.15:6	
§ 62.1-44.15:56	
§ 62.1-44.18	
§ 62.1-44.19:3	
§ 62.1-44.19:9	
§ 62.1-44.2	
§ 62.1-128	
§ 62.1-132.3:2	
•	

ctio		Pag
	-3	
58.1	-15	
58.1	-105	
	-200	
20.1	-202	
	-202.1	
58.1	-202.2	
	-203	
	-206	
58.1	-207	Z.
	-208	
58.1	-210	
	-213	
	-214	
20.1	-301	
	-302	
58.1	-306	
58.1	-312	
	-320	
	-321	
20.1	-521	
	-322.02	
58.1	-339.2	
58.1	-339.8	
	-381	
-0.1 -0.1	-392	
58.1	-402	
58.1	-435	
58.1	-439.2	
	-442	
58 1	-460	
	-472	
	-478	
58.1	-490	
58.1	-495	27
58 1	-512	54
	-513	
58.1	-540	6.
58.1	-549	63
58.1	-601	
58.1	-602	563.63
	-603	
50.1	-603.2	24
	-604	
58.1	-605	
58.1	-606	
58.1	-608.3	268.273.50
	-609.10	
	-609.11	
	-609.12	
58.1	-609.3	
	-612	
	-612.2	
	-613	
	-615	
	-616	
	-622	
	-624	
	-635	
	-638153,156,174,409,4	
	-638.1	
	-638.2	
	-638.3	
	-642	
	-645	
	-656	
	-662	
	-801	
	-803	
	-815.1	
58.1	-816	
	-816.1	
10.1	-817	
	-1021.03	
58.1	-1402	

§ 62.1-132.3:3	
§ 62.1-132.6	
§ 62.1-140	
§ 62.1-242.12	

Title 63.2 WELFARE (SOCIAL SERVICES)

SectionPage§ $63.2-401$	Title 63.2 WELFARE (SOCIAL SERVICES)	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Section	Page
	§ 63.2-401	
	\$ 63.2-403	
	§ 63.2-406	
	§ 63.2-407	
	•	
§ 63.2-905.1 381 § 63.2-1300 381 § 63.2-1302 381 § 63.2-1303 381 § 63.2-1502 381 § 63.2-1615 380 § 63.2-1700 387 § 63.2-1701.1 388 § 63.2-1704 387 § 63.2-1706 387 § 63.2-1716 388 § 63.2-1719 388		
§ 63.2-905.1 381 § 63.2-1300 381 § 63.2-1302 381 § 63.2-1303 381 § 63.2-1502 381 § 63.2-1615 380 § 63.2-1700 387 § 63.2-1701.1 388 § 63.2-1704 387 § 63.2-1706 387 § 63.2-1716 388 § 63.2-1719 388	§ 63.2-615	
§ 63.2-1300 381 § 63.2-1302 381 § 63.2-1303 381 § 63.2-1502 381 § 63.2-1615 380 § 63.2-1700 387 § 63.2-1701.1 388 § 63.2-1704 387 § 63.2-1706 387 § 63.2-1716 388 § 63.2-1719 388	0	
§ 63.2-1302 381 § 63.2-1303 381 § 63.2-1502 381 § 63.2-1615 380 § 63.2-1700 387 § 63.2-1701.1 388 § 63.2-1704 387 § 63.2-1706 387 § 63.2-1716 388 § 63.2-1719 388		
\$ 63.2-1303	•	
\$ 63.2-1502	0	
\$ 63.2-1615	•	
\$ 63.2-1700	•	
\$ 63.2-1701.1	0	
\$ 63.2-1704	•	
\$ 63.2-1706	•	
§ 63.2-1719	0	
§ 63.2-1719	§ 63.2-1716	

Title 66 JUVENILE JUSTICE

Section	Page
§ 66-3	
§ 66-13	
§ 66-13.1	
§ 66-14	
§ 66-15	
§ 66-16	
§ 66-18	
§ 66-19	
§ 66-20	
§ 66-22	
§ 66-24	439
§ 66-25.1	

Page